

CITY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF CITY PLANNING CITY HALL 200 NOR ITH STYLING STREET LOS ANGELES CA 90017

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT

1024 Mateo Project

Case Number: ENV-2016-4555-SCEA

Project Location: 1000, 1016, 1026 South Mateo Street; 2006, 2010, 2016, 2018 East Bay Street; 2001, 2007, 2011, 2015, 2019, 2023 East Sacramento Street, Los Angeles, CA 90021

Community Plan Area: Central City North

Council District: 14

Project Description: The Project includes the demolition of the surface parking lot and the 16,960 square-foot maintenance service building; and the construction, use and maintenance of a single 257,287 square-foot mixeduse building containing a total of 106 live/work condominium units and approximately 119,843 square feet of commercial space, including 13,978 square feet of retail space, 13,126 square feet of restaurant space, and 92,740 square-feet of office space. Of the 106 units, 9 units would be set aside for Very Low Income Households. The proposed building would be eight stories tall and approximately 127 feet in height with a floor area ratio of 4.57:1. The Project would provide 402 vehicular parking spaces within a parking garage consisting of one subterranean, one at-grade and second floor levels. Vehicular access to the subterranean level will be provided via an ingress and egress driveway along Bay Street, and access to the ground level parking will be provided via an ingress and egress driveway along Sacramento Street. A third driveway will be provided along the easterly property line on Sacramento Street for the trash and loading area. A total of 145 bicycle parking stalls, including 33 short-term and 112 long-term stalls, would be provided at the ground level. The Project would provide 24,020 square feet of usable open space within an outdoor courtyard, a rooftop deck, a recreation room and balconies. The Project requires approximately 39,985 cubic yards of export and removal of six trees including three on-site trees and three street trees along Mateo Street. The Project Site has a land use designation of Heavy Manufacturing and is currently zoned M3-1-RIO (Heavy Industrial, River Improvement Overlay).

PREPARED FOR:

City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning

PREPARED BY:

CAJA Environmental Services 15350 Sherman Way, Suite 315 Van Nuys, CA 91406

APPLICANT:

Dart Partners LLC / Mateo Arts LLC 20501 Ventura Blvd., Suite 295 Woodland Hills, CA 91364

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Page</u>

| 1. INTRODUCTION | 1-1 |
|--|-------------------|
| 2. PROJECT DESCRIPTION | 2-1 |
| 3. SCEA FINDINGS AND CONSISTENCY | 3-1 |
| 4. RTP/SCS MITIGATION MEASURES | 4-1 |
| 5. INITIAL STUDY | 5-1 |
| 6. SCEA IMPACT ANALYSIS | 6.I-1 |
| 7. LIST OF MITIGATION MEASURES, PROJECT DESIGN FEATURES, REGULAT COMPLIANCE MEASURES, AND CORRECTIVE MEASURES | ORY 7-1 |

APPENDICES

- Appendix A Air Quality and GHG CalEEMod
- Appendix B Tree Report
- Appendix C-1 Archaeological Resources Assessment
- Appendix C-2 Native American Heritage Commission Letter
- Appendix D-1 Geotechnical Report
- Appendix D-2 Soils Report Approval Letter
- Appendix E-1 Phase I Environmental Site Assessment
- Appendix E-2 Phase II Environmental Site Assessment
- Appendix E-3 Site Characterization Report
- Appendix E-4 Existing Soils Report
- Appendix E-5 Soils Management Plan
- Appendix F Noise Measurements
- Appendix G-1 Traffic Impact Study
- Appendix G-2 LADOT Approval Letter
- Appendix G-3 VMT Analysis
- Appendix H Tribal Cultural Resources Assessment

1 INTRODUCTION

An application for the proposed 1024 Mateo Project (Project) has been submitted to the City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning for discretionary review. The Department of City Planning, as Lead Agency, has determined that the Project is subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

The State of California adopted Senate Bill 375 (SB 375), also known as *The Sustainable Communities and Climate Protection Act of 2008*, which outlines growth strategies that better integrate regional land use and transportation planning and that help meet the State of California's greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions reduction mandates. SB 375 requires the State's 18 metropolitan planning organizations to incorporate a "sustainable communities strategy" (SCS) into the regional transportation plans to achieve their respective region's greenhouse gas emission reduction targets set by the California Air Resources Board (CARB). Correspondingly, SB 375 provides various CEQA streamlining provisions for projects that are consistent with an adopted applicable SCS and meet certain objective criteria; one such CEQA streamlining tool is the Sustainable Communities Environmental Assessment (SCEA).

The Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) is the metropolitan planning organization for the County of Los Angeles, along with the Counties of Imperial, San Bernardino, Riverside, Orange, and Ventura. On April 7, 2016, SCAG's Regional Council adopted the 2016-2040 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (2016-2040 RTP/SCS). For the SCAG region, CARB has set GHG emissions reduction targets at eight percent below 2005 per capita emissions levels by 2020, and 13 percent below 2005 per capita emissions levels by 2020, and 13 percent below 2005 per capita emissions levels by 2020, and 13 percent below 2005 per capita emissions levels by 2035. The 2016-2040 RTP/SCS outlines strategies to meet or exceed the targets set by CARB.¹ On June 28, 2016, the Executive Officer of CARB accepted SCAG's determination that the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS would achieve CARB's 2020 and 2035 GHG emission reduction targets.

SB 375 allows the City, acting as lead agency, to prepare a SCEA as the environmental CEQA clearance for "transit priority projects" (as described below) that are consistent with SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS.

1.1 TRANSIT PRIORITY PROJECT CRITERIA

SB 375 provides CEQA streamlining benefits to qualifying transit priority projects (TPPs). For purposes of projects in the SCAG region, a qualifying TPP is a project that meets the following four criteria (see Public Resources Code §21155 (a) and (b)):

1. Is consistent with the general use designation, density, building intensity, and applicable policies specified for the project area in the SCAG 2016-2040 RTP/SCS;

Southern California Association of Governments, 2016-2040 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy, Introduction, April 7, 2016. http://scagrtpscs.net/Pages/FINAL2016RTPSCS.aspx

- 2. Contains at least 50 percent residential use, based on total building square footage and, if the project contains between 26 percent and 50 percent nonresidential uses, a floor area ratio of not less than 0.75;
- 3. Provides a minimum net density of at least 20 units per acre; and
- 4. Is within one-half mile of a major transit stop or high-quality transit corridor included in a regional transportation plan.

1.2 SCEA PROCESS AND STREAMLINING PROVISIONS

Qualifying TPPs that have incorporated all feasible mitigation measures and performance standards, or criteria set forth in the prior applicable EIR (e.g., SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Program EIR) and that are determined to not result in significant and unavoidable environmental impacts may be approved with a SCEA. The specific substantive and procedural requirements for the approval of a SCEA include the following:

- 1. An initial study shall be prepared for a SCEA to identify all significant impacts or potentially significant impacts, except for the following:
 - a. Growth-inducing impacts, and
 - b. Project-specific or cumulative impacts from cars and light trucks on global warming or the regional transportation network.²
 - Note: All relevant and applicable 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Program EIR mitigation measures shall be incorporated into the Project prior to conducting the initial study analysis.
- 2. The initial study shall identify any cumulative impacts that have been adequately addressed and mitigated in a prior applicable certified EIR. Where the lead agency determines the impact has been adequately addressed and mitigated, the impact shall not be cumulatively considerable.
- 3. The SCEA shall contain mitigation measures that either avoid or mitigate to a level of insignificance all potentially significant or significant effects of the project required to be identified in the initial study.

² "Regional transportation network" means all existing and proposed transportation system improvements, including the state transportation system, that were included in the transportation and air quality conformity modeling, including congestion modeling, for the final regional transportation plan adopted by the metropolitan planning organization, but shall not include local streets and roads. Nothing in the foregoing relieves any project from a requirement to comply with any conditions, exactions, or fees for the mitigation of the project's impacts on the structure, safety, or operations of the regional transportation network or local streets and roads.

- 4. A draft of the SCEA shall be circulated for a public comment period not less than 30 days, and the lead agency shall consider all comments received prior to acting on the SCEA.
- 5. The SCEA may be approved by the lead agency after the lead agency's legislative body conducts a public hearing, reviews comments received, and finds the following:
 - a. All potentially significant or significant effects required to be identified in the initial study have been identified and analyzed, and
 - b. With respect to each significant effect on the environment required to be identified in the initial study, either of the following apply:
 - i. Changes or alternations have been required in or incorporated into the project that avoid or mitigate the significant effects to a level of insignificance.
 - ii. Those changes or alterations are within the responsibility and jurisdiction of another public agency and have been, or can and should be, adopted by that other agency.
- 6. The lead agency's decision to review and approve a TPP with a SCEA shall be reviewed under the substantial evidence standard.

1.3 **REQUIRED FINDINGS**

Based on the information contained in Section 2 (Project Description), Section 3 (SCEA Criteria and Transit Priority Project Consistency Analysis), Section 4 (2016-2040 RTP/SCS Project EIR Mitigation Measures), and Section 5 (Initial Study/Sustainable Communities Environmental Impact Analysis) of this document, the City finds that preparation of a SCEA in accordance with Public Resources Code Section 21155.2(b) is appropriate for the Project. The findings listed below are detailed and supported in the above mentioned sections:

- The Project is consistent with the general use designations, density, building intensity, and applicable policies specified for the area of the Project Site in the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS prepared by SCAG, which is the metropolitan planning organization for the City.
- The State Air Resources Board, pursuant to subparagraph (H) of paragraph (2) of subdivision (b) of Section 65080 of the Government Code, has accepted SCAG's determination that the sustainable communities strategy adopted by SCAG in the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS would, if implemented, achieve the greenhouse gas emission reduction targets.
- The Project qualifies as a TPP pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21155 in that the Project contains more than 50 percent residential use; provides a minimum net density greater than 20 units an acre; and is within one-half mile of a major transit stop or high-quality transit corridor included in a regional transportation plan;

- The Project is a residential or mixed-use project as defined by Public Resources Code Section 21159.28(d);
- The Project incorporates all relevant and applicable mitigation measures, performance standards, or criteria set forth in the prior environmental reports and adopted findings made pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21081, including SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Program EIR;
- All potentially significant or significant effects required to be identified and analyzed pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) in an initial study have been identified and analyzed in an initial study; and
- As outlined in detail in Section 5 (Initial Study/Sustainable Communities Environmental Impact Analysis) changes or alterations have been required in or incorporated into the Project that avoid or mitigate the significant effects to a level of less than significant.

1.4 ORGANIZATION OF THE SCEA

Based on the information presented above, the SCEA for the Project is organized as follows:

Section 1. Introduction: This section provides introductory information about the Project and background information regarding SB 375, lists the TPP criteria, and describes the required content of the SCEA.

Section 2. Project Description: This section provides a detailed description of the environmental setting and the Project characteristics.

Section 3. SCEA Criteria and Transit Priority Project Consistency: This section includes a discussion of the Project's consistency with the TPP criteria listed above and demonstrates that the Project satisfies all necessary criteria for approval of a SCEA as set forth in California Public Resources Code Sections 21155 and 21155.2.

Section 4. 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Program EIR Mitigation Measures: This section identifies all of the mitigation measures contained in the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) for SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Program EIR and a discussion of the applicability of the mitigation measures to the Project.

Section 5. Initial Study/Sustainable Communities Environmental Impact Analysis: Each environmental issue identified in the Initial Study Checklist contains an assessment and discussion of Project-specific and cumulative impacts associated with each subject area. Where the evaluation identifies potentially significant effects, as identified on the Checklist, mitigation measures are provided to reduce such impacts to less-than-significant levels.

Appendices: Includes various documents, technical reports, and information used in preparation of the SCEA and can be found in the case file at the Department of City Planning.

2 PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Introduction

The Project will develop the Project Site with a single 257,287 square-foot mixed-use building containing a total of 106 live/work condominium units and approximately 119,843 square feet of commercial space, including 13,978 square feet of retail space, 13,126 square feet of restaurant space, and 92,740 square-feet of office space. The proposed building would be eight stories tall and approximately 127 feet in height with a Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of 4.57:1.

Environmental Setting

The 1.42-acre Project Site is located in the urbanized area of Downtown Los Angeles in the City of Los Angeles, and it is in close proximity to nearby existing utilities, infrastructure, roads and freeways, as well as public transit options. The Project Site is located at 1000-1026 Mateo Street, 2001-2023 East Sacramento Street, and 2006-2018 East Bay Street. The Site is bound by Bay Street to the north, Sacramento Street to the south, and Mateo Street to the west. Just east of the Project Site is an adjacent light industrial use building. The Los Angeles River is approximately 2,100 feet to the east of the Project Site. The Project Site is located within a variety of planning and service jurisdictional areas, including the following:

- City of Los Angeles Central City North Community Plan
- City of Los Angeles Community Redevelopment Agency Central Industrial Redevelopment Project Area
- City of Los Angeles Transit Priority Area pursuant to Senate Bill (SB) 743 (Properties located within one-half mile of a major transit stop that is existing or planned. Section 21064.3 of the Public Resources Code defines a "major transit stop" as a site containing an existing rail transit station, a ferry terminal served by either a bus or rail transit service, or the intersection of two or more major bus routes with a frequency of service interval of 15 minutes or less during the morning and afternoon peak commute periods.)
- SCAG High Quality Transit Area pursuant to Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) (Areas considered to be generally walkable and are located within one half-mile of a well-serviced transit stop or a transit corridor with 15-minute or less service frequency during peak commute hours, consistent with a "major transit stop" as defined by Section 21064.3 of the Public Resources Code.)
- Los Angeles City Council District 14 (Councilmember Huizar)
- Downtown Los Angeles Neighborhood Council
- River Improvement Overlay (RIO) District
- Los Angeles County Department of Public Health Service Planning Area

Regional vehicular access to the Project Site is provided by the U.S. 101 (Hollywood) Freeway, located less than 1.0 mile to the east; the I-10 (Santa Monica) Freeway, located approximately 0.2 miles to the south; U.S. 101 Freeway, located approximately one mile to the north and east of the Project Site; and State Route 110/I-110 (Pasadena/Harbor) Freeway, located approximately 2.0 miles to the west.

Existing utilities are readily available at the Project Site. Water and electricity are provided by the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP). Cable television is provided by Spectrum (formerly Time Warner Cable). Telephone and internet service are readily available from a variety of providers. The Project Site is further served by the City's existing network of sewer and storm drain facilities. Gas is provided by Southern California Gas Company. A map showing the Project Site in its regional and local context is included as Figure 2-1.

The Project Site has a land use designation of Heavy Manufacturing and is currently zoned M3-1-RIO (Heavy Industrial, River Improvement Overlay). The M3-1 Zone permits any industrial uses and any enclosed commercial uses. Residential uses are prohibited, except for a dwelling when constructed as an accessory use for a caretaker or watchman. As a result, the Project requires the following entitlements: a General Plan Amendment, a Vesting Zone Change and Height District Change, a Density Bonus, Site Plan Review, and a Vesting Tentative Tract Map. In addition, the Project shall comply with the standards of the River Improvement Overlay (RIO).

The Project Site is currently developed with a surface parking lot and a 16,960 square-foot maintenance service building, which was formerly operated by the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transit Authority (Metro) and was used as a service center for transit buses. A month-to-month tenant currently utilizes the existing building for general office uses. Additionally, there are six trees on the Project Site, three of which are located on the 2023 East. Sacramento Street side of the Site and three others fronting Mateo Street in the public right-of-way. All six trees will be removed as part of the Project.

Surrounding Properties

Adjacent properties are improved with structures containing a variety of commercial and manufacturing uses, including textiles, light manufacturing, industrial, office, and general warehouse uses. Most structures range from one to three stories in overall height. The properties located in proximity to the Project Site to the north, south, east, and west (across Mateo Street), like the Project Site have a land use designation of Heavy Manufacturing and are zoned M3-1-RIO. A vicinity map and regional location map are included as **Figure 2-1 and Figure 2-2, below**.





Surrounding Transit Services

Public bus and rail transit service is available within the area of the Project Site with regular service intervals of 15 minutes during the peak hours. In particular, public bus transit service in the immediate vicinity of the Project Site is currently provided by the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Metro) bus lines. Additional public bus transit service in the Downtown Los Angeles area is provided by Foothill Transit and the Los Angeles Department of Transportation (LADOT) DASH Transit Service. Specifically, Metro Lines 18, 53, 60, 62, 66, Metro Rapid 720, and Metro Rapid 760 have stops near the Project Site. Metro Line Rapid 760 has a stop at the intersection of 7th and Alameda Street, approximately 2,375 feet northwest of the Project Site at the intersection of 7th Street and Decatur Street, approximately 1,400 feet (0.625 miles) northwest of the Project Site.

Metro Rail transit service is provided by connection to the nearby Metro Rail B/D Lines and the Metro Rail A Line. Metro Bus Lines 18, 62, and Rapid 720 provide connections to the Metro Rail D Line at the Pershing Square Station, which itself provides regional access. The Metro Rail A Line has a station stop at the intersection of Washington Boulevard and Long Beach Avenue, approximately 4,900 feet (0.9 miles) southwest of the Project Site and can also be accessed by the Metro 60 bus line.

It should be noted that these above lines also provide connections with the City of Montebello and Gardena transit services, which are several miles to the east of the Project Site.

Related Projects

In this SCEA, cumulative impact analyses are provided for each environmental issue discussed in Section 5 (Initial Study/Sustainable Communities Environmental Impact Assessment) and can be found in each respective subsection of Section 5.¹ **Table 2-1, Related Projects,** lists 80 reasonably foreseeable related projects within a 1.5-mile radius of the Project Site that were considered in the cumulative impact analyses. This list was prepared based on information obtained from LADOT and the Department of City Planning.

Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21155.2(b)(1), the SCEA is required to identify all significant or potentially significant impacts of a TPP through the preparation of an initial study, other than growth inducing impacts or specific or cumulative impacts from cars and light-duty trucks trips consistent with Section 21159.28, based on substantial evidence in light of the whole record. The Initial Study Checklist for the Project is attached hereto in Section 4 of this SCEA. Additionally, the SCEA is required to identify any cumulative effects that have been adequately addressed and mitigated in prior applicable certified EIRs.

| Мар | Project | Project Name/Number | Land Use Data | |
|-----|-----------------------|--|---|---|
| No. | Status | Address/Location | Land Use | Size |
| 1 | Under Construction | 454 E. Commercial Street | Bus Facility | 2 ACRES |
| 2 | Proposed | 2901 E. Olympic Boulevard | Apartments Shopping Center Day Care Center Office Medical-Dental Office Library Community Room Passive Open Space Active Open Space | 4,400 DU 135-185 KSF 15 KSF 75-125 KSF 25 KSF 15 KSF 10 KSF 6 Acres 4 Acres |
| 3 | Under Construction | 150 N. Los Angeles Street | Office Retail Child Care Center | 712,500 GSF 35,000 GSF 2,500 GSF |
| 4 | Under Construction | 928 S. Broadway | Apartments Live-Work Apartments Retail | 667 DU 17 GSF 58,700 GSF |
| 5 | Proposed | 2053 E. 7 th Street | Hotel | 53,350 GSF |
| 6 | Under Construction | 950 E. 3 rd Street | Apartments Retail School | 635 DU 30,062 GSF 532 Students |
| 7 | Proposed | 201 S. Broadway | Retail/Restaurant | 27,765 GSF |
| 8 | Proposed | 1041 -1057 S. San Pedro Street | Apartments Condominiums Shopping Center Cinema Office Hotel | 877 DU 68 DU 224,862 GSF 744 Seats 549,141 GSF 210 Rooms |
| 9 | Under Construction | 400 S. Broadway | Apartments Retail Bar | 450 DU 6,904 GSF 5,000 GSF |
| 10 | Proposed | 1525 E. Industrial Street | Apartments Creative Office Retail Restaurant | 328 DU 27,300 GSF 6,400 GSF 5,700 GSF |
| 11 | Proposed | 601 S. Main Street | Condominiums Retail | 452 DU 25,000 GSF |
| 12 | Under Construction | 2051 E. 7 th Street 695 S. Santa Fe Avenue | Apartments Retail Restaurant | 320 DU 15,000 GSF 5,000 GSF |
| 13 | Under Construction | 737 – 755 S. Spring Street | Apartments Pharmacy/Drugstore | 320 DU 25,000 GSF |
| 14 | Proposed | 401 E. 7 th Street | Affordable Housing | 99 DU |

| Мар | Project | Project Name/Number | Land Use Data | | |
|-----|--------------|---|--------------------------|---------|----------|
| No. | Status | Address/Location | Land Use | Si | ze |
| | | | | | |
| 15 | Proposed | 2650 E. Olympic Boulevard | Apartments | 1,000 | DU |
| | | , I | Retail | 34,000 | GSF |
| | | , | High-Turnover Restaurant | 46,000 | GSF |
| 40 | Duranaad | 000 0 Mateo Otreet | | 230,000 | GSF |
| 10 | Proposed | 826 S. Maleo Sireei | Live-work Condominiums | 90 | |
| | | , | Retail | 5 600 | GOF |
| | | , | Restaurant | 3,000 | GSF |
| 17 | Under | 555 S. Mateo Street | Retail | 153 000 | GSF |
| | Construction | | T Ctain | 100,000 | 001 |
| | Conourse | , | | | |
| 18 | Under | 2030 E. 7 th Street | Office | 243,000 | GSF |
| - | Construction | | Retail | 40,000 | GSF |
| | | , | | | - |
| 19 | Proposed | 340 S. Hill Street | Apartments | 406 | DU |
| | | , | Affordable Housing | 22 | DU |
| | | , | Office | 2,980 | GSF |
| | | | Quality Restaurant | 2,630 | GSF |
| 20 | Proposed | 540 S. Santa Fe Avenue | Office | 89,825 | GSF |
| | | | | | |
| 21 | Proposed | 360 S. Alameda Street | Apartments | 52 | DU |
| | | , | Restaurant | 2,400 | GSF |
| | | , | Creative Office | 6,900 | GSF |
| 22 | Under | 119 S. Astropout E.S. Opizuka | Aportmonto | 77 | |
| 22 | Construction | 110 J. Astionaul E.J. Unizuka Street | Apariments | | DU |
| 23 | Inder | 649 S Wall Street | Medical Office | 66 | Employee |
| 20 | Under | | | | s |
| | Construction | , | Assisted Living | 55 | Beds |
| | | , | 5 | | |
| 24 | Proposed | 410 N. Center Street | Office | 110,000 | GSF |
| | | | | | |
| 25 | Proposed | 300-306 S. Main Street | Apartments | 471 | DU |
| | | , | High-Turnover Restaurant | 27,780 | GSF |
| | | | Retail | 5,190 | GSF |
| 26 | Proposed | 400 S. Alameda Street | Hotel | 66 | Rooms |
| | | , | Restaurant | 2,130 | GSF |
| | | , | Specialty Retail | 840 | GSF |
| | Durana | 740 E Sth Otre et | A | 100 | 511 |
| 27 | Proposea | /19 E. 5" Street | Apartments | 160 | DU |
| | | , | Ketali | 7,500 | Gor |
| 28 | Proposed | 2130 E Violet Street | Office | 94,000 | COF |
| 20 | Fiupuseu | ZIJU E. VIDIEL SUEEL | Retail | 3 500 | GSF |
| | | , | Restaurant | 4 000 | GSF |
| | | | Rootadiant | 1,000 | 001 |
| 29 | Approved | 929 E 2 nd Street | Retail | 36 955 | GSF |
| 20 | rippiorod | 020 2. 2 0.000 | Private Retail | 1.024 | GSF |
| | | | Private Event Space | 8,157 | GSF |
| | | | Private Drinking Space | 10.784 | GSF |
| | | | Private Office | 45,759 | GSF |
| | | | Private Health Club | 6,378 | GSF |
| | | | Private Movie Theater | 49 | Seats |
| 30 | Proposed | 633 S. Spring Street | Hotel | 176 | Rooms |
| | | | Quality Restaurant | 8,430 | GSF |

| Мар | Project | Project Name/Number | Land Use Data | |
|-----|-----------------------|--|---|---|
| No. | Status | Address/Location | Land Use | Size |
| | | | Bar/Lounge Conference Space | 5,290 GSF 1,200 GSF |
| 31 | Proposed | 1800 E. 7 th Street | Apartment Retail Restaurant | 122 DU 3,245 GSF 4,605 GSF |
| 32 | Proposed | 1722 E. 16 th Street | Restaurant | 8,515 GSF |
| 33 | Proposed | 668 S. Alameda Street 1562 Industrial Street | Live-Work Apartments Live-Work Office Specialty Retail Office Restaurant Supermarket | 475 DU 25,200 GSF 17,500 GSF 7,900 GSF 16,300 GSF 15,300 GSF |
| 34 | Approved | 955 S. Broadway | Apartments Retail | 201 DU 6,000 GSF |
| 35 | Proposed | 850 S. Hill Street | Apartments Retail Restaurant | 305 DU 3,499 GSF 3,500 GSF |
| 36 | Proposed | 433 S. Main Street | Condominiums Retail Coffee Shop | 196 DU 5,300 GSF 900 GSF |
| 37 | Proposed | 520 S. Mateo Street | Apartments Office Retail Restaurant Museum | 600 DU 110,000 GLSF 15,000 GSF 15,000 GSF 10,000 GSF |
| 38 | Proposed | 1100 S. Main Street | Apartments Retail | 379 DU 25,810 GSF |
| 39 | Proposed | 755 S. Los Angeles Street | Retail Office Quality Restaurant | 16,694 GSF 60,243 GSF 26,959 GSF |
| 40 | Under Construction | 222 W. 2 nd Street | Apartments Office Retail | 107 DU 534,044 GSF 7,200 GSF |
| 41 | Proposed | 100 S. Broadway | Apartments Office Supermarket Quality Restaurant High-Turnover Restaurant | 1,127 DU 285,088 GSF 50,000 GSF 22,200 GSF 53,389 GSF |
| 42 | Proposed | 333 W. 5 th Street | Condominiums Hotel Restaurant/Bar Meeting Space | 100 DU 200 Rooms 27,500 GSF 4,500 GSF |
| 43 | Proposed | 1101-1129 E. 5 th Street 445 S. Colyton Street | Apartments Retail Restaurants Hotel Art Gallery Art School | 129 DU 26,979 GSF 31,719 GSF 113 Rooms 10,341 GSF 2,340 GSF |
| 44 | Proposed | 330 S. Alameda Street | Apartments Retail Creative Office | 186 DU 11,925 GSF 10,415 GSF |
| 45 | Proposed | 709-755 S. Wall Street | Office | 53,200 GSF |

| Мар | Project | Project Name/Number | Land Use Data | | |
|-----|--------------|--------------------------------|--------------------------|---------|-----------------|
| No. | Status | Address/Location | Land Use | Siz | e |
| | | | Apartments | 323 | DU |
| | | | Retail | 4,400 | GSF |
| | | | High-Turnover Restaurant | 4,420 | GS⊦ |
| | | | Event Space | 125 | Persons |
| 46 | Proposed | 333 S. Alameda | Apartments | 994 | DU |
| | | | Retail | 99,000 | GSF |
| 47 | Proposed | 401-405 S. Hewitt Street | Office | 255,514 | GSF |
| | | | Retail | 4,970 | GSF |
| | | | Residurani | 9,930 | GSF |
| 48 | Proposed | 1206-1278 E. 6th Street | Apartments | 1,305 | DU |
| | | 640 S. Alameda Street | Hotel | 412 | Rooms |
| | | | Condominiums | 431 | DU |
| | | | Quality Restaurant | 22,639 | GSF |
| | | | High-Turnover Restaurant | 22,639 | GSF |
| | | | Retail | 82,332 | GSF |
| | | | | 200,014 | GSF |
| | | | School | 22,429 | GOF Students |
| | | | 301001 | 300 | Sludenis |
| 49 | Proposed | 527 S. Colyton Street | Apartments | 275 | DU |
| | | | Affordable Housing | 35 | DU |
| | | | Retail | 11,375 | GSF |
| | | | Production Space | 11,736 | GSF |
| 50 | Proposed | 609 E. 5 th Street | Apartments | 151 | DU |
| 51 | Proposed | 713 E. 5 th Street | Apartments | 51 | DU |
| 52 | Proposed | 940 E 1th Street | Apartments | 93 | ווח |
| 52 | Tioposed | | Office | 6 000 | GSF |
| | | | Retail | 14,248 | GSF |
| 53 | Under | 237-249 S. Los Angeles Street | Sports Complex | 43.453 | GSF |
| | Construction | 5 | 1 - 1 | -, | _ |
| 54 | Under | 1000 S. Santa Fe Avenue | Market | 14 193 | GSF |
| 01 | Construction | | Health Club | 6,793 | GSF |
| | | | Restaurant | 10,065 | GSF |
| 55 | Proposed | 640 S. Santa Fe Avenue | Office | 91,185 | GSF |
| | | | Retail | 9,430 | GSF |
| | | | Restaurant | 6,550 | GSF |
| 56 | Under | 1745 E. 7 th Street | Apartments | 57 | DU |
| | Construction | | Retail | 6,000 | GSF |
| 57 | Proposed | 361 S. Spring Street | Hotel | 315 | Rooms |
| | | | Meeting Space | 2,000 | GSF |
| 58 | Proposed | 670 S. Mesquite Street | Apartments | 308 | DU |
| | | | Hotel | 236 | Rooms |
| | | | Retail | /9,240 | GSF |
| | | | Restaurant | 89,576 | GSF |
| | | | | 93,617 | GOF |
| | | | Gym | 02,140 | GOF |
| | | | Creative Office | 01/ 055 | GSF |
| | | | | 011,000 | |

| Мар | Project | Project Name/Number | Land Use Data | |
|-----|-----------------------|--------------------------------|--|--|
| No. | Status | Address/Location | Land Use | Size |
| 59 | Proposed | 676 S. Mateo Street | Live-Work Apartments Live-Work Office Restaurant Retail | 185 DU 3,900 GSF 15,005 GSF 8,375 GSF |
| 60 | Proposed | 2117 – 2143 E. Violet Street | Apartments Arts & Production Retail Office | 320 DU 5,519 GSF 46,670 GSF 224,292 GSF |
| 61 | Proposed | 2159 E. Bay Street | Office Retail | 203,670 GSF 18,330 GSF |
| 62 | Proposed | 656 S. Stanford Avenue | Apartments | 82 DU |
| 63 | Approved | 554 S. San Pedro Street | Affordable Housing Retail Apartments Office Flexible Space | 378 DU 1,758 GSF 4 GSF 4,410 GSF 5,932 GSF |
| 64 | Proposed | 930 E. 6 th Street | Apartments Retail | 236 DU 12,000 GSF |
| 65 | Proposed | 600 S. San Pedro Street | Affordable Housing Apartments Office Commercial | 298 DU 5 DU 16,773 GSF 3,136 GSF |
| 66 | Proposed | 508 E. 4 th St5reet | Apartments | 41 DU |
| 67 | Proposed | 701-717 S. Maple Avenue | Apartments Retail Restaurant | 452 DU 6,801 GSF 6,802 GSF |
| 68 | Under Construction | 437 W. 5 th Street | Condominiums Restaurant | 660 DU 13,742 GSF |
| 69 | Proposed | 443 S. Soto Street | Charter School (K-5) | 625 Students |
| 70 | Proposed | 1005 S. Mateo Street | Industrial Park | 94,849 GSF |
| 71 | Under Construction | 354 S. Spring Street | Apartments | 212 DU |
| 72 | Under Construction | 810 E. 3 rd Street | Live-Work Apartments Drinking Place Quality Restaurant High Turnover Restaurant Retail | 4 DU 3,047 GSF 285 GSF 209 GSF 6,171 GSF |
| 73 | Proposed | 2001 E. Washington Boulevard | Industrial | 187,000 GSF |
| 74 | Proposed | 100 S. Boyle Avenue | Affordable Housing Managers Unit Retail | 43 DU 1 DU 8,000 GSF |
| 75 | Proposed | 1100 E. 5 th Street | Live-Work Apartments Live-Work Office Office Restaurant | 220 DU 4,350 GSF 15,671 GSF 19,609 GSF |

| Мар | Project | Project Name/Number | Land Use Data | | | |
|--------|---|------------------------------|----------------------|----------|-------|--|
| No. | Status | Address/Location | Land Use | Si | ize | |
| | | | Retail | 9,250 | GSF | |
| 76 | Proposed | 920 S. Hill Street | Apartments | 239 | DU | |
| | | | Retail | 5,400 | GSF | |
| | | | | | | |
| 77 | Proposed | 2110 Bay Street | Apartments | 110 | DU | |
| | | | Commercial | 43,657 | GSF | |
| | | | Creative Office | 113,350 | GSF | |
| 78 | Proposed | 641 Imperial Street | Live-Work Apartments | 140 | DU | |
| | | | Office | 14,700 | GSF | |
| 79 | Proposed | 655 S. San Pedro Street | Apartments | 81 | DU | |
| | | | | | | |
| 80 | Proposed | Union Station Terminal Annex | Apartments | 22 | DU | |
| | | | Office | 7,443,20 | GSF | |
| | | | Retail | 0 | GSF | |
| | | | Hotel | 645,000 | Rooms | |
| | | | Restaurant | 750 | GSF | |
| | | | Museum | 20,000 | GSF | |
| | | | | 70,000 | | |
| | | | | | | |
| GLSF = | GISE = aross leasable square feet GSE = aross square feet DII = dwelling unit | | | | | |
| Source | : LLG Engineers | s. March 2019. | | | | |

In addition to the 80 related projects listed on **Table 2-1**, the City is currently updating the Central City and Central City North Community Plans as part of an effort called "DTLA 2040". The two plan areas together comprise the new Downtown Community Plan. The purpose of the new Downtown Community Plan is to develop and implement a future vision for Downtown Los Angeles that supports and sustains ongoing revitalization, while accommodating projected future growth. Downtown Los Angeles is a rapidly changing setting within the City, supports a variety of economic opportunities and entrepreneurship, people (both workers and residents), culture and distinct neighborhoods, and Downtown Community Plan will include new development options, densities, and intensities.² A preliminary Draft Downtown Community Plan was released in July 2019.

In addition, the City has received funding from Metro's Transit Oriented Development Planning Grant Program, which encourages cities to adopt and implement land use regulations that support transit ridership and vibrant neighborhoods around transit stations. As such, the Downtown Community Plan will focus on Metro's new Regional Connector and existing transit station areas to improve the walkability and transit orientation of neighborhoods in Downtown Los Angeles.

The Regional Connector, currently under construction and anticipated to open in 2021, will be a 1.9-mile underground light-rail system extension that will connect the Metro Gold Line to the 7th Street/Metro Center Station. Specifically, the Regional Connector will allow for a direct connection between the cities of Azusa and Long Beach and between East Los Angeles and Santa Monica,

² City of Los Angeles, DTLA 2040, About DTLA 2040, Welcome to the Downtown Community Plans, www.dtla2040.org/about.html, March 2019.

and three new stations will be added at 1st Street/Central Avenue (Little Tokyo/Arts District Station), 2nd Street/Broadway (Historic Broadway Station), and 2nd Street/Hope Street (Grand Avenue Arts/Bunker Hill Station).³ The Regional Connector will also improve access to both local and regional destinations by providing connectors to other rail lines via the 7th Street/Metro Center Station. Specially, the new rail lines at the 7th Street/Metro Center station would be served by the light rail A Line and E Line, heavy rail Red Line and Purple Line. These lines have their terminus at this Metro Center Station, which helps improve overall connections in and around the downtown area of the City.

Project Characteristics

The Project includes demolition and removal of the existing 16,960 square-foot building and surface parking area from the Project Site and development of the Project Site with a single mixeduse building that would provide 106 live/work condominium units and approximately 119,843 square feet of commercial space, including 13,979 square feet of retail space, 13,126 square feet of restaurant space, and 92,740 square feet of office space. Of the 106 live/work condominium units, 6 units would be two-bedroom with a loft; 29 would be two-bedroom units; 25 would be onebedroom loft units; and 30 would be single studio units. Of the 106 proposed units, 9 units (11 percent of base density, which is 78 units) would be set aside as Very Low Income units.

Overall, the development of the Project Site would encompass roughly 257,287 square feet of mixed residential, restaurant, office, and commercial land uses in one 127-foot tall podiumdesigned building with two levels of above-grade and one level of subterranean parking, accommodating 402 vehicle parking spaces. Approximately 24,020 square feet of common indoor, outdoor, and private open space would also be provided. Vehicular access to the Project would be provided via driveways along Bay Street and Sacramento Streets into the subterranean parking garage. Site plans, floor plans, elevations, and elevation perspectives for the Project are included on **Figures 2-3 through 2-9**. A breakdown of the proposed land uses for the Project is shown in **Table 2-2**, below.

| Land Use | Size |
|-----------------------------------|---------------------|
| Residential | |
| Residential Units | 119,941 sf (106 du) |
| Residential Loft ^a | 3,282 sf |
| Residential Exterior ^b | 14,219 sf |
| Total Residential | 106 du (194,831 sf) |
| Commercial Retail | 13,979 sf |
| Restaurant | 13,126 sf |

Table 2-2 Breakdown of Land Uses

³ https://www.metro.net/projects/connector/

| Office | 92,740 sf | |
|--|------------|--|
| Total | 257,287 sf | |
| <i>du</i> = <i>dwelling unit</i> (s) <i>sf</i> = <i>square feet</i> | | |
| a Includes loft square-footage within residential units, where applicable. | | |
| b Includes stairwell, hallways, small gathering areas not counted under retail, office, or restaurant. | | |

Density and Floor Area

The requested Project entitlements include a Vesting Zone Change and Height District Change to change the existing M3-1 zoning designation to CM-2. Consistent with LAMC Section 12.17.1, the new zone will allow residential density corresponding to R3 density, permitting both live/work and commercial uses at the Project Site. The proposed Height District No. 2 would allow a 6:1 Floor Area Ratio (FAR). The Project Site (which is comprised of two parcels) has a total lot area of 62,111 square feet, with a buildable lot area of 56,305 square feet. Total floor area permitted by the proposed zone is approximately 337,833 square feet. As proposed, the Project provides 257,287 square feet of total floor area, which is a 4.57:1 FAR and within the allowable floor area for Height District No. 2 as proposed for the Project Site.

Parking

A minimum of 395 vehicle parking stalls would be required of the Project. Vehicle parking would be provided within two levels of above-grade parking and one subterranean parking level and would include 402 vehicle parking spaces. Nine (9) Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) stalls would be provided on the first parking level.

Additionally, in accordance with the updated Bicycle Parking Ordinance (Ordinance 185,480), the Project would be required to provide 112 long-term and 33 short-term bicycle parking spaces for a total of 145 spaces. The Project would meet the short-term bicycle parking requirements and would exceed the bicycle parking requirements by 2 spaces (one short term space and one long term space).

Open Space and Landscaping

Per LAMC Section 12.21 G, the Project is required to provide open space (both indoor and outdoor allowed) for its residential uses. Specifically, 15,050 square feet of total open space is required for the Project. In total, the Project is providing 24,020 square feet of common outdoor, private, and common indoor open space to satisfy these requirements. This is a surplus of 8,970 square feet of open space being provided beyond what is required per the LAMC. As shown in **Table 2-3**, below, the Project proposes a third level common open space courtyard roughly 4,129 square feet in size, 10,828 square feet of common open space on the roof-top of the building, which also includes 3,763 square feet of indoor open space designed as a roof amenity.

| Common Open Space Component | Size | |
|--|-------------------------------|--|
| Common Outdoor Open Space (Open to Sky) Level 03 Courtyard | 4,129 sf | |
| Level R09/CO7 Rooftop Subtotal | 10,828 sf <u>14,957 sf</u> | |
| <i>Private Open Space (Balconies)</i> Level L02 thru R08 | <u>5,300 sf</u> 1 | |
| <i>Common Indoor Open Space</i> Level R09/C07 Roof Amenities | <u>3,763 sf</u> | |
| Total | 24,020 sf | |
| sf = square feet ¹ This includes accountable open space, not solely provided open space. | | |

| Table 2-3 | |
|--------------------------------------|---|
| Private/Common Open Space Components | 5 |

The residential landscaped areas include ground floor open space and courtyard spaces, as well as roof terraces on the 8th floor. The 3rd floor open space would be accessible through two paseos located along the northern and southern edge of the development. The upper level courtyard spaces would be accessible to residents via the shared building interior corridors. A portion of the roof terrace on the 8th floor may contain green roof areas that would be inaccessible except for maintenance activities. Frontage along Bay, Sacramento, and Mateo Streets would be landscaped with street trees and associated planters.

The landscaped areas would be designed consistent with the requirements and guidelines established by the City, including the Landscape Ordinance Guidelines (Ordinance No. 170,978). The plant selections and irrigation would be designed to meet all water efficient landscape requirements. A weather-based controller would regulate the automatic drip irrigation system in all of the planting areas within the Project Site.

The ground floor would include open space with planting areas. Seat walls and furniture that meet ADA standards would be provided. Planters would be included with shade tolerant trees, shrubs, and ground cover. Landscaping also would be used as a way-finding feature and would include shade tolerant hedges as well as wall-mounted green wall modules lining the pedestrian accessible portions of the Project Site. Paving throughout the site would be selected in accordance to the Los Angeles Green Building and Department of Building and Safety requirements.

Finally, per LAMC Section 12.21.G.2(a)(3), 41 trees would be required for the Project. These trees would be planted in the public plaza on the ground floor, along sidewalks, on the level 3 courtyard area, and on the level 7 roof area.















Site Access and Circulation

Vehicular Access

Existing vehicular access to the Project Site is provided via one gated driveway along the south side of Bay Street and one gated driveway along the north side of Sacramento Street. The existing driveways accommodate full vehicular access (i.e., left-turn and right-turn ingress and egress turning movements).

Proposed vehicular access to the Project also would be provided via one driveway along the south side of Bay Street and one driveway along the north side of Sacramento Street, similar to existing conditions. Descriptions of the Project driveways are provided below:

• *Bay Street Project Driveway:* The Bay Street driveway will provide access to the subterranean level of the on-site parking garage. It is proposed to serve the residential parking spaces associated with the residential component of the Project. The Bay Street driveway is proposed to accommodate full vehicular access (i.e., left-turn and right-turn ingress and egress turning movements).

• Sacramento Street Project Driveway: The Sacramento Street driveway will provide access the ground level and above-grade level of the on-site parking garage. It is proposed to serve the commercial parking spaces located on the ground level, which are associated with the restaurant and retail components of the Project, and the parking spaces located on the above-grade level, which are associated with the office component of the Project. The Sacramento Street driveway is proposed to accommodate full vehicular access (i.e., left-turn and right-turn ingress and egress turning movements).

Bicycle Access

Proposed bicycle access to the Project will also be provided via Bay Street and Mateo Street. The Project will provide bicycle parking on-site for residents, visitors, and commercial employees of the Project. Bicycle parking spaces would be installed in compliance with the *Bicycle Parking Ordinance, Los Angeles Municipal Code* (City of Los Angeles, March 27, 2018) (LAMC) Section 12.21 A16(a)(2). Bicycle spaces would be provided in Level 01.

Architecture and Design

The exterior finishes used for the Project include concrete, metal, and glass. The base of the building has transparent ground floors with floor-to-ceiling storefront windows. The entries to all buildings have been slightly inset (roughly 6 feet) to create a break in the front building façade and add an element of interest. Variations of green plantings are introduced to create a complex pattern on the facades. Metal trim is used to add depth and to accentuate the cutout portions for the courtyards and in particular, the 3rd floor open space area.

Project Design Features

The following Project Design Features (PDFs) are included as part of the Project:

- **ENERGY-PDF-1:** The Project shall not include natural gas-fueled fireplaces in the proposed residential units.
- **ENERGY-PDF-2:** The Project shall provide vehicle parking spaces that would be pre-wired and capable of accommodating EV charging stations in accordance with Ordinance No. 186,485.
- **ENERGY-PDF-3:** Windows would be included in all living units and common spaces for natural daylight, reducing the need for overhead lighting impacting the need for electricity. High-performance dual-pane windows and exterior materials would be used in order to reduce the need for energy driven mechanical systems.
- **ENERGY-PDF-4:** Active energy conservation strategies would include implementing LED lighting with daylighting controls and dimming capabilities, installing motion detector controls for all circulation and auxiliary spaces, providing Energy Star qualified appliances.
- **ENERGY-PDF-5:** High-efficiency toilets with a flush volume of 1.0 gallon per flush, or less.
- **ENERGY-PDF-6:** Showerheads with a flow rate of 1.5 gpm or less.
- **ENERGY-PDF-7:** Residential bathroom faucets equipped with aerators to reduce flow to 1.0 gpm or less.
- **ENERGY-PDF-8:** Drip/subsurface irrigation (micro-irrigation)
- ENERGY-PDF-9: Micro-spray
- **ENERGY-PDF-10:** Proper hydro-zoning/zoned irrigation (group plants with similar water requirements)
- **ENERGY-PDF-11:** Drought-tolerant plants 50 percent of total landscaping
- **GHG-PDF-1:** The Project shall prohibit the use of natural gas-fueled fireplaces in the proposed live/work units.
- **GHG-PDF-2:** The Project shall provide filtered outside air supply sufficient to meet American Society of Heating, Refrigerating, and Air Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) 62.1 standards.
- **GHG-PDF-3:** Participation in fundamental refrigerant management to preclude the use of chlorofluorocarbons (CFCs) in heating, cooling, and ventilation (HVAC) systems.

- **GHG-PDF-4:** Use of adhesives, sealants, paints, finishes, and other materials that emit low quantities of volatile organic compounds (VOCs) and/or other air quality pollutants.
- **GHG-PDF-5:** Installation of a Low Impact Development (LID) compliant on-site stormwater treatment system, capable of treating the volume of stormwater runoff from a local 85th percentile storm event.
- **GHG-PDF-6:** Installation of pre-treatment stormwater infrastructure for the stormwater runoff tributary to the on-site stormwater treatment system.
- **GHG-PDF-7:** During construction of the Project, best management practices (BMPs) would be implemented to control stormwater runoff and minimize pollutant loading and erosion effects.
- **GHG-PDF-8:** During operation, BMPs would be implemented to minimize pollutant loading in stormwater runoff.
- **GHG-PDF-9:** Contractors would reference Partnership for Advancing Technology in Housing (PATH) and other current references for state-of-the-art construction methods, materials, and mechanical equipment and utilize same methods where applicable.
- **GHG-PDF-10:** Recycling and reuse of building and construction materials to the maximum extent feasible, including the on-site recycling and reuse of concrete removed during demolition and salvaging of existing appliances and fixtures.
- **GHG-PDF-11:** Use of sub-base in parking lots, fly ash-based concrete and recycled content in joists and joist girders when feasible.
- **GHG-PDF-12**: 15 percent of the roof area shall be set aside for future solar panels
- **GHG-PDF-13:** Waste diversion accounting shall be utilized.
- **GHG-PDF-14:** Installation of a "cool roof" that reflects the sun's heat and reduces urban heat island effect.
- **GHG-PDF-15:** At least 50 percent of construction and demolition debris from Project construction would be diverted from landfills.
- **GHG-PDF-16:** Provide on-site recycling containers to promote the recycling of paper, metal, glass, and other recyclable materials and adequate storage areas for such containers.
- **GHG-PDF-17:** Use of locally (within 500 miles) manufactured construction materials and of building materials with recycled content, where possible.

- **GHG-PDF-18:** Provision of EV charging stations in the parking structure in compliance with Ordinance No. 186,485
- **GHG-PDF-19:** Provision of parking spaces that are capable of supporting future electric vehicle charging equipment in compliance with Ordinance No. 186,485.
- GHG-PDF-20: Installation of Energy Star-labeled products and appliances, where appropriate.
- **GHG-PDF-21:** Meeting or exceeding Title 24, Part 6, California Energy Code baseline standard requirements for energy efficiency, based on the 2016 Energy Efficiency Standards requirements. Examples of design methods and technologies that could be implemented may include but would not be limited to high-performance glazing on windows, appropriately-oriented shading devices, high-efficiency boilers (if single metered); instantaneous water heaters (if individual meters), and enhanced insulation to minimize thermal gain.
- **GHG-PDF-22:** Application of energy-saving lighting technologies and components to reduce the Project's electrical usage profile. Examples of these components include occupancy-sensing controls (where applicable), use of light-emitting diode (LED) lighting or other energy-efficient lighting technologies where appropriate, and exterior lighting controlled by photo sensor and/or timeclocks to ensure safety and visibility while preventing unnecessary energy usage.
- **GHG-PDF-23:** Commissioning of building energy systems to verify that the Project's building energy systems are installed, calibrated, and performing to the Owner's Project requirements.
- **GHG-PDF-24:** Water conservation measures shall include:
 - High-efficiency toilets (with flush volume of 1.06 gallons of water per flush or less) throughout, including ultra-low-flow urinals in all nonresidential restrooms, as appropriate.
 - Residential lavatory faucets with a maximum flow rate of 1.2 gallons per minute and kitchen faucets with a maximum flow rate of 1.5 gallons per minute.
 - High-efficiency washers, whether within individual units (with water factor of 6.0 or less) and/or in common laundry rooms (commercial washers with water factor of 7.5 or less). Equipment is required to be Energy Star-certified.
 - High-efficiency dishwasher within individual units, using 3.5 gallons per cycle or less. Equipment is required to be Energy Star-certified.
 - No-flush or waterless urinals in all nonresidential restrooms as appropriate.

- Nonresidential lavatory faucets with a maximum flow rate of 0.4 gallon per minute and of a self-closing design (i.e., that would automatically turn off when not in use.
- Nonresidential kitchen faucets (except restaurant kitchens) with a maximum flow rate of 1.5 gallons per minute. Restaurant kitchen faucets shall have prerinse self-closing spray heads with a maximum flow rate of 1.6 gallons per minute.
- Installation of tankless and on-demand water heaters in commercial kitchens and restrooms, where appropriate.
- Water-saving pool filter.
- Pool/spa recirculating filtration equipment.
- Pool splash troughs around the perimeter that drain back into the pool.
- Leak detection system for swimming pools and Jacuzzi.
- Minimum irrigation system distribution uniformity of 75 percent.
- Use of proper hydro-zoning, turf minimization, zoned irrigation and use of native/drought-tolerant plant materials.
- Use of landscape contouring to minimize precipitation runoff.
- Use of landscape contouring to minimize precipitation runoff.
- **TRA-PDF-1:** Reduce Parking Supply: This measure encourages alternative transportation choices. The degree of effectiveness of this measure varies based on the surrounding area, level of existing transit service, level of existing pedestrian and bicycle networks and other factors which would complement the shift away from single-occupant vehicle travel. The Project will provide 402 parking spaces (i.e., 140 spaces less than the 542 spaces required per LAMC prior to consideration of allowable adjustments).
- **TRA-PDF-2:** Bicycle Infrastructure: These improvements help reduce peak-hour vehicle trips by making commuting by bicycle easier and more convenient. The Project should provide a maximum commitment to implementing/improving on-street bicycle facilities, providing bicycle parking per the LAMC and providing secure ancillary bike facilities such as indoor bicycle parking/lockers, showers, and repair stations. The Project will provide the minimum number of short-term and long-term bicycle parking spaces for the residential and commercial components.

TRA-PDF-3: Neighborhood Enhancement: Providing a pedestrian access network to link areas of the Project site encourages people to walk instead of drive. The project should ensure a maximum commitment to providing pedestrian network improvements within the project and to off-site connections. The Project will include pedestrian access points directly to sidewalks on the adjacent streets. Specifically, a walk-in entrance to the Project's residential component is proposed via Bay Street. Additionally, a walk-in entrance to the Project's office and restaurant components is proposed via Mateo Street. Pedestrian access to the ground floor retail uses is proposed via adjacent streets. The Project will improve existing sidewalks or construct new sidewalks on Bay Street, Mateo Street and Sacramento Street adjacent to the site.

Construction Phasing

The Project's construction would occur over an approximately 24-month period and would include the following phases: demolition, site preparation, grading and excavation, and building construction. The grading and excavation phase would require the export of approximately 39,985 cubic yards of material. The approximate overall construction schedule for the Project is shown on **Table 2-4**.

| Phase | Duration | Notes | |
|---|-------------------------|---|--|
| Demolition | Approximately 1 month | Demolition of asphalt parking lot and existing structure | |
| Grading | Approximately 2 months | 38,985 cubic yards of export hauled to off-site location within a 50-mile radius. | |
| Building Construction | Approximately 18 months | No overlap with grading or site preparation phase. | |
| Finishing (Architectural Coating) | Approximately 3 months | Some overlap with building construction phase. | |
| Note: The approximate construction schedule assumes a 5-day workweek. | | | |

Table 2-4Approximate Project Construction Schedule

Haul Route

The facility or facilities which will receive the Project's export materials generated during construction have not been identified at this time. However, several facilities are located within a 50-mile radius of the Project Site, including, but not limited to: Active Recycling MRF and Transfer Station on Slauson Avenue in the City of Los Angeles (South Los Angeles), American Reclamation CDI Processing Facility on Doran Street in the City of Los Angeles (Atwater Village), Downtown Diversion on Olympic Boulevard in the City of Los Angeles (Butte Street Junction), and Manning Pit in the City of Irwindale. The Project's haul route would be required to be approved

by the City. Project haul trucks would use the most direct route to transport demolition and construction debris from the Project Site to a designated recycling facility and/or landfill. Likely routes will leave the Project Site via Bay Street and Sacramento Street and would most likely utilize Mateo Street towards the I-10 Freeway to the South.

Requested Discretionary Actions

In order to implement the Project, the Project Applicant is requesting approval of the following discretionary actions from the City:

- 1. Pursuant to Los Angeles Municipal Code (L.A.M.C.) Section 11.5.6, as authorized by the Los Angeles Charter Section 555, the Applicant requests approval of a General Plan Amendment to revise the land use designation in the Central City North Community Plan from Heavy Industrial to Commercial Industrial to permit the construction of a new mixed-use project containing a maximum of 106 Live/Work Units ("LW"), of which 9 units (11% of the base density, which is 78 units) will be set aside as Restricted Affordable units at a Very Low Income level, and approximately 119,845 square feet of commercial space. This request also includes the deletion of Community Plan Footnotes 1 and 6 as it relates to the Project Site from the Industrial land use category to permit a Height District 2 in the CM zone.
- Pursuant to L.A.M.C. Section 12.32 F & Q, the Applicant requests approval of Vesting Zone Change from M3-1-RIO to CM-2-RIO to permit the construction of a new mixeduse project containing a maximum of 106 Live/Work Units, of which 9 units (11% of the base density, which is 78 units) will be set aside as Restricted Affordable units at a Very Low Income level, and approximately 119,845 square feet of commercial space.
- 3. Pursuant to **L.A.M.C. Section 12.32 F**, the Applicant requests approval of a Height District change from M3-1-RIO to CM-2-RIO to permit the construction of a new mixed-use project containing a maximum of 106 Live/Work Units, of which 9 units (11% of the base density, which is 78 units) will be set aside as Restricted Affordable units at a Very Low income level, and approximately 119,845 square feet of commercial space. The Project's proposed floor area ratio is equal to 4.57:1.
- 4. Pursuant to **L.A.M.C. Section 12.22 A.25** (as amended by Ordinance 179,681), the Applicants propose to set aside 11% of the site's base density, which is 78 units, equal to 9 units, as Restricted Affordable Units at a Very Low Income level, qualifying it for a 35% density increase, parking reductions and the following incentive:
 - a. On-Menu Incentive, pursuant to L.A.M.C. Section 12.22 A.25(f)(7):

i. To utilize the pre-dedicated lot area of 62,111 square feet to define the site's permitted density. The request will permit a base density of 78 units in lieu of 73 units.

- 5. Pursuant to **L.A.M.C. Section 16.05**, the Applicant requests the approval of Site Plan Review.
- Pursuant to California Government Code Sections 66473.1, 66474 (Subdivision Map Act) and LAMC, Section 17.00 of Article 7 (Division of Land), the Applicant requests a Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 74596 to merge and resubdivide 11 lots and to create 106 Live/Work condominiums within an Airspaces Subdivision consisting of one (1) master lot and six (6) air-space lots.

3 SCEA FINDINGS AND CONSISTENCY

CONSISTENCY WITH TRANSIT PRIORITY PROJECT CRITERIA

3.1 Overview

As discussed in **Section 1, Introduction**, a Sustainable Communities Environmental Assessment (SCEA) may be prepared for a project that: (a) is consistent with the general use designation, density, building intensity, and applicable policies specified for the project area in a sustainable communities strategy [see California Public Resources Code Section 21155(a)]; and (b) is a "transit priority project" [as defined in California Public Resources Code Section 21155(b)]. As further described below, the Project meets these criteria and thus, is eligible for certain CEQA streamlining benefits by way of preparing a SCEA for purposes of clearance under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Specifically, Section 21155(b) applies to a project that:

3.1.1 Criterion #1: Is consistent with the general use designation, density, building intensity, and applicable policies specified for the project area in either a sustainable communities strategy or an alternative planning strategy, for which the California Air Resources Board (CARB) has accepted a metropolitan planning organization's determination that the sustainable communities strategy or the alternative planning strategy would, if implemented achieve the greenhouse gas emission reduction targets established by CARB; and

3.1.2 Criterion #2: Is a Transit Priority Project (TPP) in that the project meets the following criteria:

- a. 2.1 Contains at least 50 percent residential use, based on total building square footage and if the project contains between 26 percent and 50 percent nonresidential uses, a floor area ratio of not less than 0.75;
- b. 2.2 Provides a minimum net density of at least 20 units per acre; and
- c. 2.3 s located within one-half mile of a major transit stop or high-quality transit corridor included in a regional transportation plan/sustainable communities strategy (RTP/SCS).

3.2 Consistency with Criterion #1 – The Project is consistent with the general use designation, density, and building intensity and applicable policies specified for the project area in either a sustainable communities strategy or an alternative planning strategy.

The Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) is the metropolitan planning organization for the Project Site area, and the applicable "sustainable communities strategy" is SCAG's 2016-2040 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (2016-2040)
RTP/SCS) ("RTP/SCS"), adopted on April 7, 2016. The RTP/SCS contains a forecasted transportation system and development pattern for the region which, if implemented, will reduce greenhouse gas emissions to meet regional greenhouse gas emission reduction targets. For the SCAG region, CARB has set greenhouse gas reduction targets to eight percent below 2005 per capita emissions levels by 2020, and 13 percent below 2005 per capita emissions levels by 2035.

On June 28, 2016, CARB accepted SCAG's quantification of GHG emission reductions from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS and determined that the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS would, if implemented, achieve the 2020 and 2035 GHG emission reduction targets and thus, met the criteria to be a sustainable communities strategy.

3.2.1 Consistency with RTP/SCS Land Use, Density and Intensity

The RTP/SCS contains SCAG's regional growth projections, goals and policies, as well as a regional overview of projected land uses and development standards. Using data collected from local jurisdictions, including general plans, SCAG has categorized existing and projected land use into land use types. Given the number of square miles the SCAG region encompasses, SCAG developed a simplified series of Land Development Categories (LDCs) to represent the themes taken from the region's many general plans. This was developed in order to facilitate regional modeling of land use information from six counties representing nearly 200 distinct jurisdictions.

As described in the RTP/SCS, the LDCs employed in the RTP/SCS are not intended to represent detailed land use policies, but are used to describe the general conditions likely to occur within a specific area if recently emerging trends, such as transit-oriented development, were to continue in concert with the implementation of the RTP/SCS. These forecasted regional development types are shown in various maps by county and subregion. The smallest level of information provided in the RTP/SCS is the subregion, which in the case of the Project Site is within the "Los Angeles City" Subregion, encompassing the entire City.

Specific areas of these subregions (unrelated to county and city boundaries) are classified into one of three LDCs (urban, compact, or standard) and then the land use types are combined into 35 Place Types. SCAG uses each of these categories to describe the conditions that exist and/or are likely to exist within each specific area of the region. (2016-2040 RTP/SCS, pp. 20-21.)

3.2.2 Land Development Category (LDC)

The RTP/SCS contains land use projections in the SCS Background Documentation Appendix. *Exhibit 14: Forecasted Regional Development Types (2040)* is a map of the Los Angeles City Subregion. Exhibit 14 includes the following language:





"Note: The forecasted land use development patterns shown are based on Transportation Analysis Zone (TAZ) level data utilized to conduct required modeling analyses. Data at the TAZ level or at a geography smaller than the jurisdictional level are advisory only and non-binding, because SCAG sub-jurisdictional forecasts are not to be adopted as part of the 2016 RTP/SCS. The data is controlled to be within the density ranges of local general plans and/or input received from local jurisdictions. For purposes of determining consistency for California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) streamlining, lead agencies have the sole discretion in determining a local project's consistency with the 2016 RTP/SCS."

Due to the scale and level of detail of the RTP/SCS map, the Project site is located in an area that is within the range of "Compact" LDC to "Urban" LDC. Due to the fact that the location of the Project is located very near the blended boundary between the Compact LDC and Urban LDC, both of these LDCs are described in detail below:

The 2016-2040 RTP/SCS describes the Compact LDC as follows:

These areas are less dense than those in the Urban Land Development Category, but they are highly walkable with a rich mix of retail, commercial, residential and civic uses. These areas are most likely to occur as new growth on the urban edge, or as large-scale redevelopment. They have a rich mix of housing, from multifamily and attached singlefamily (townhome) to small- and medium-lot single-family homes. These areas are well served by regional and local transit service, but they may not benefit from as much service as urban growth areas and are less likely to occur around major multimodal hubs. Streets in these areas are well connected and walkable, and destinations such as schools, shopping and entertainment areas can typically be reached by walking, biking, taking transit, or with a short auto trip. (2016-2040 RTP/SCS, at page 20.)

The 2016-2040 RTP/SCS describes the Urban LDC as follows:

These areas are often found within and directly adjacent to moderate and high density urban centers. Nearly all urban growth in these areas would be considered infill or redevelopment. The majority of housing is multifamily and attached single-family (townhome), which tend to consume less water and energy than the larger types found in greater proportion in less urban locations. These areas are supported by high levels of regional and local transit service. They have well-connected street networks, and the mix and intensity of uses result in a highly walkable environment. These areas offer enhanced access and connectivity for people who choose not to drive or do not have access to a vehicle.

As noted on the RTP/SCS map, the Lead Agency has the authority to determine a project's consistency with the 2016 RTP/SCS, and the LDC designation on the map is considered advisory and non-binding on any site geographically smaller than a jurisdiction or sub-region, due to the fact that the SCAG data is for the purpose of making a regional projection. For these reasons, and for purposes of analyzing potential consistency with SCAG policies in this SCEA, the discussion below focuses on the Project's consistency with the Urban LDC. The Project Site is located directly adjacent to a moderate and high density urban center of downtown Los Angeles,

which conforms to the classifications of the Urban LDC. The Project is also consistent with the Urban LDC goals of transit connectivity and well-connected street networks associated with multifamily housing. Finally, the Project is located within a High Quality Transit Area (HQTA) as defined by SCAG and a Transit Priority Area (TPA) as defined by SB 743, each of which support transit opportunities and promote a walkable environment.¹ Per SCAG, an HQTA and TPA is defined as an area within one-half mile from major transit stops and high quality transit corridors. Per California Public Resources Code Section 21064.3, a major transit stop is a site containing an existing rail transition station served by either a bus or rail transit service, or the intersection of two or more major bus routes with a frequency of service interval of 15 minutes or less during the morning and afternoon peak commute period.

3.2.3 Place Type

The 2016-2040 RTP/SCS includes 35 Place Types for modeling purposes, which provide a blueprint for consistency with its Land Use Density Designation and Density provisions, including mixed use, residential, commercial, office, research and development, industrial, civic, and open space.² Within the Urban LDC, the City Mixed Use footprint most typifies the proposed development and is characterized below.

The land use mix for the City Mixed Use place type is approximately 28 percent residential, 17 percent employment, 35 percent mixed use, and 20 percent open space/civic. The residential mix is 97 percent multi-family and three percent townhome. The average total net floor area ratio is 3.4; and the gross density ranges from 10 to 75 households per acre and 25 to 165 employees per acre.

The Project is a mixed-use development consisting of residential, retail, restaurant, and office, land uses in a highly urbanized part of Los Angeles. The land uses within the general vicinity of the Project Site are characterized by a mix of, light industrial, and office buildings, which vary widely in building style and period of construction.

The Project is approximately 53 percent residential, and the housing consists entirely of multifamily live/work residential dwelling units.³ The Project would be 257,287 square feet in overall size with a total proposed FAR of 4.57:1. The density of the Project would be 79 residential dwelling units per acre (106 units on 1.35 acres). Specifically, the Project would provide 106 live/work condominium units and approximately 119,843 square feet of commercial space, including 13,978 square feet of retail space, 13,126 square feet of restaurant space, and 92,754 square feet of office space. Of the 106 live/work condominium units, 16 would be one-bedroom loft units; 6 units would be two-bedroom with a loft; 29 would be two-bedroom units; 25 would be one-bedroom loft units; and 30 would be single studio units. The Project would include 8 stories

SCAG, High Quality Transit Areas 2012 – SCAG Region, http://gisdatascag.opendata.arcgis.com/datasets/1f6204210fa9420b87bb2e6c147e85c3_0, accessed on February 2019.

² SCAG 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Background Documentation, Urban Footprint Place Types, http://scagrtpscs.net/documents/2016/supplemental/UrbanFootprint_PlaceTypesSummary.pdf. Refer to Appendix C; see also Place Types Categorized into Land Development Categories, available at: http://scagrtpscs.net/Documents/2016/supplemental/LDC_PlaceType.pdf.

³ 137,443 square feet of residential / 257,287 square feet total = 0.53

and be approximately 127 feet in height. The area of the Project Site is also supported by high levels of regional and local transit, including Metro Lines 18, 60, 62, and Rapid 720 which serve the Project Site at 7th and Decatur. Rapid 760 is at 7th and Alameda.

Accordingly, using SCAG's Urban Footprint Scenario Planning Model in the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS to help determine form, scale, and function of the suggested Place Types and LDCs, the Project is consistent with the SCAG's "Urban" Land Use Designation and City Mixed Use place type, and associated density and building intensity for the area of the Project Site in the SCAG 2016-2040 RTP/SCS.

3.3 The Project is consistent with the Applicable 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Policies Specified for the Project Area

The Project is consistent with other applicable RTP/SCS policies as well as SCAG's growth projections for the City. (Refer to **Section XIV, Initial Study/Sustainable Communities Environmental Impact Assessment, Population and Housing**, for a discussion on the Project's consistency with SCAG's population and housing growth projections.)

Additionally, as discussed below in **Table 3-1**, the Project would be consistent with applicable goals and policies of SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS.

| Goals and Policies | Consistency Assessment |
|--|--|
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Goal 1 Align the plan investments and policies with improving regional economic development and competitiveness. | Not Applicable/Consistent. This Goal is directed towards SCAG and the City of Los Angeles (City) and not does apply to the Project. However, the Project also would contribute to the economic development of the region by creating new businesses, jobs, and sales tax revenue, |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Goal 2 Maximize mobility and accessibility for all people and goods in the region. | Consistent. The Project Site is located in a highly urbanized area in the City. Specifically, the Project will allow Project residents, tenants and users accessibility and mobility with good pedestrian and transit connectivity. The Project would develop 106 live/work units and approximately 119,843 square feet of retail, restaurant, and office land uses within an HQTA, as defined by SCAG, and within a transit priority area as defined by SB 743, and in close proximity to existing and proposed residences and commercial opportunities. The Proposed Project would provide residents and visitors with convenient access to public transit and opportunities for walking and biking, encouraging a variety of |

 Table 3-1

 Consistency with SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Goals and Policies | Consistency Assessment | |
|--|---|--|
| | transportation options. Therefore, the project will help maximize accessibility between people and goods. | |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Goal 3 Ensure travel safety and reliability for all people and goods in the region. | Not Applicable/Consistent. Though not necessarily applicable on a project-specific basis, the Project would ensure safe travel at and near the Project Site by improving the public sidewalks adjacent to Project Site and ensuring safe vehicular and pedestrian access. | |
| | In addition, the Project would include lighting of pedestrian pathways adjacent to the Project Site to allow for safe travel. Furthermore, the Project would be subject to the site plan review requirements of the City and would be required to coordinate with the Department of Building and Safety and the Los Angeles Fire Department to ensure that all access roads, driveways and parking areas would not create a design hazard to local roadways. | |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Goal 4 Preserve and ensure a sustainable regional transportation system. | Not Applicable/Consistent. This goal is directed towards SCAG transportation projects and does not apply to the Project. | |
| | Nevertheless, the Project would contribute to achieving this goal. The Project would not create a significant traffic impact at any of the study intersections, as discussed in Section 4.XVII., Transportation and Traffic, of this SCEA. | |
| | The Project would minimize impacts on the existing roadway system by placing housing and employment near jobs and transit and providing ample bicycle parking and bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure to dis- incentivize automobile use and encourage biking and walking. The Project also encourages transit use through the Project Site's location near existing transit, thereby contributing to ridership and sustainability of the multimodal transportation system in the region. | |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Goal 5 Maximize the productivity of our transportation system. | Consistent. The Project includes 106 live/work units and approximately 119,843 square feet of retail, restaurant, and office land uses located close to an existing transportation system. | |
| | Given the Project Site's location close to transit, the Project would encourage the utilization of transit as a mode of transportation to and from the Project Site area. | |

 Table 3-1

 Consistency with SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Goals and Policies | Consistency Assessment |
|---|--|
| | Thus, the Project would contribute to the productivity and use of the regional transportation system by providing housing and employment near transit. |
| | The Project would not create a significant impact at any of the study intersections. |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Goal 6 Protect the environment and health of our residents by improving air quality and encouraging active transportation (e.g., bicycling and walking). | Consistent. The Project would remove a vehicular service building with associated surface parking and construct housing and sources of employment near transit and other sources of housing and employment, thereby reducing dependence on automobile travel and vehicle miles traveled (VMT) and reducing associated pollutant emissions. |
| | The Project also would activate the sidewalks at the Project Site by incorporating a majority of retail uses at the street-level, while simultaneously creating internal infrastructure for bike parking and encouraging walking, biking, and transit use. |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Goal 7 Actively encourage and create incentives for energy efficiency, where possible. | Consistent. The Project would meet/exceed the requirements of the City's Green Building Code and the California Green Building Code by including at least 10 percent of the Project's vehicle parking spaces (40) to be capable of accommodating electric vehicle (EV) charging stations. The Project would be built to the current building codes that require sustainability measures such as efficient energy systems. |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Goal 8 Encourage land use and growth patterns that facilitate transit and active transportation | Consistent. The Project Site is located in a highly urbanized area in the City within a HQTA and a TPA. |
| | The Project would develop 106 live/work units and approximately 119,843 square feet of retail, restaurant, and office land uses within an HQTA, as defined by SCAG, and a transit priority area as defined by SB 743. |
| | The area of the Project Site is supported by high levels of regional and local transit, including Metro Lines 18, 60, 62, and Rapid 720, which serve the Site at 7 th and Decatur. Rapid 760 is at 7 th and Alameda. |
| | Moreover, the location of the Project Site promotes the use of a variety of transportation options and access, |

Table 3-1 Consistency with SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Goals and Policies | Consistency Assessment | | | | |
|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| | which includes walking and the use of public transportation. | | | | |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Goal 9 Maximize the security of the regional transportation system through improved system monitoring, rapid recovery planning, and coordination with other security agencies. | Not Applicable/Consistent. This goal is directed towards SCAG to ensure the safety and security of the regional transportation system. No further assessment is required. | | | | |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Guiding Policy 1 Transportation investments shall be based on SCAG's adopted regional Performance Indicators. | Not Applicable/Consistent. This policy is directed towards SCAG in allocating transportation investments. This goal does not apply to the individual development projects, and no further assessment is required. | | | | |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Guiding Policy 2 Ensuring safety, adequate maintenance and efficiency of operations on the existing multimodal transportation system should be the highest RTP/SCS priorities for any incremental funding in the region. | Not Applicable/Consistent. This policy is directed towards SCAG in allocating transportation system funding. This goal does not apply to the individual development projects, and no further assessment is required. | | | | |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Guiding Policy 3 RTP/SCS land use and growth strategies in the RTP/SCS will respect local input and advance smart growth initiatives. | Not Applicable/Consistent. This Goal is directed towards SCAG and the City and not does apply to the Project. No further assessment is required. | | | | |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Guiding Policy 4 Transportation demand management (TDM) and active transportation will be focus areas, subject to Policy 1. | Consistent. The Project would support active transportation (e.g. walking and bicycling) by providing landscaping along the public rights-of-way and active ground floor uses, which promotes and supports pedestrian activity in the area. Additionally, the Project Site's location within an HQTA promotes the use of public transit and pedestrian activity. With this, the Project is also proposing a TDM program, as discussed in detail in Section 4.XVII., Transportation and Traffic, of this SCEA. | | | | |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Guiding Policy 5 HOV gap closures that significantly increase transit and rideshare usage will be supported and encouraged, subject to Policy 1. | Not Applicable/Consistent. This policy is directed towards transportation investment by SCAG to support high occupancy vehicles (HOV), transit and rideshare. No further assessment is required. | | | | |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Guiding Policy 6 The RTP/SCS will support investments and | Not Applicable/Consistent. This Guiding Policy relates to SCAG goals in supporting investments and strategies | | | | |

Table 3-1 Consistency with SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Goals and Policies | Consistency Assessment |
|---|--|
| strategies to reduce non-recurrent congestion and demand for single occupancy vehicle use, by leveraging advanced technologies. | to reduce congestion and the use of single occupancy vehicles. Nevertheless, the Project Site is located within an HQTA (as defined SCAG) and a transit priority area (as defined by SB 743). The Project would support public transportation and other alternative methods of transportation (e.g., walking and biking). |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Guiding Policy 7 The RTP/SCS will encourage transportation investments that result in cleaner air, a better environment, a more efficient transportation system and sustainable outcomes in the long run. | Not Applicable/Consistent. This policy is directed towards SCAG transportation projects to encourage and support transportation investments. The policy does not apply to the Project, and no further assessment is required. |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Guiding Policy 8 Monitoring progress on all aspects of the Plan, including the timely implementation of projects, programs, and strategies, will be an important and integral component of the Plan. | Not Applicable/Consistent. This policy is directed towards SCAG and governmental agencies to encourage and support transportation investments, and not does apply to the Project. No further assessment is required. |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Policy 1 Identify regional strategic areas for infill and investment. | Not Applicable/Consistent. This policy is directed towards SCAG to identify regional strategic areas. Nevertheless, the Project is an infill development in an HQTA (defined by SCAG) and within a transit priority area (as defined by SB 743). |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Policy 2 Structure the plan on a three-tiered system of centers development. ⁴ | Not Applicable/Consistent. This Land Use Policy is directed towards SCAG and not does apply to the Project. Nevertheless, the Project is located in an existing center where existing transportation infrastructure exists to support the proposed density of the Project. |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Policy 3 Develop "Complete Communities." | Consistent. SCAG describes the development of "complete communities" to provide areas that encourage households to be developed with a range of mobility options to complete short trips. The 2016-2040 RTP/SCS supports the creation of these districts through a concentration of activities with housing, employment, and |

Table 3-1 Consistency with SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

⁴ The 2016-2040 RTP/SCS reaffirms the 2008 Advisory Land Use Policies that were incorporated into the 2012-2035 RTP/SCS. The complete language from the original SCAG Advisory Land Use Policies is "Identify strategic centers based on a three-tiered system of existing, planned and potential relative to transportation infrastructure. This strategy more effectively integrates land use planning and transportation investment." A more detailed description of these strategies and policies can be found on pages 90–92 of the SCAG 2008 Regional Transportation Plan, adopted in May 2008.

| Goals and Policies | Consistency Assessment |
|---|--|
| | a mix of retail and services, located in proximity to each other, where most daily needs can be met within a short distance of home, providing residents with the opportunity to patronize their local area and run daily errands by walking or cycling rather than traveling by automobile. ⁵ |
| | The Project would place residential and commercial land uses in a transit-rich area. The Project Site's location near transit and in proximity to services, retail stores, and employment opportunities promotes the use of a variety of transportation options, which includes walking, biking, and the use of public transportation. Thus, the Project would be consistent with this land use policy to reduce vehicles-per-miles traveled. |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Policy 4 Develop nodes on a corridor. | Not Applicable/Consistent. This policy is directed towards SCAG and City goals to identify and develop locations that promote nodes. Nevertheless, the Project is located within an HQTA and a transit priority area, and the Project's mixed-use design and transit-rich location provide close-proximity to residents' daily needs. |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Policy 5 Plan for additional housing and jobs near transit. | Consistent. The Project Site is located in a highly urbanized area in the City within a HQTA and a TPA. |
| | The Project would develop 106 live/work units and approximately 119,843 square feet of retail, restaurant, and office land uses within an HQTA, as defined by SCAG, and a transit priority area as defined by SB 743. |
| | The area of the Project Site is supported by high levels of regional and local transit, including Metro Lines 18, 60, 62, and Rapid 720, which serve the Site at 7 th and Decatur. Rapid 760 is at 7 th and Alameda. |
| | The Project also would contribute to the economy by creating new businesses, jobs, and sales tax revenue. |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Policy 6 Plan for changing demand in types of housing. | Consistent. The Project would provide 106 live/work units in close proximity to commercial uses and areas, meeting demands for live/work style housing in the urbanized Arts District area. Additionally, the Project provides a wide range of unit sizes and styles, ranging |

 Table 3-1

 Consistency with SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

⁵ SCAG, 2016-2040 RTP/SCS, April 2016 (page 79).

| Goals and Policies | Consistency Assessment |
|---|--|
| | from studio to three bedroom units, adding to the variety of housing types available in the area. |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Policy 7 Continue to protect stable, existing single-family areas. | Consistent. The Project would not displace any existing single-family residential neighborhoods. The Project provides live/work units in the urban downtown area on an infill lot. |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Policy 8 Ensure adequate access to open space and preservation of habitat. | Consistent. The Project Site is located within an urbanized area within the City. Development of the Project would not remove any existing open space areas or habitat since the Project Site is currently fully developed. The Project would provide approximately 24,020 square feet of open space, which would meet the City's provision of usable and private open space. |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Policy 9: Incorporate local input and feedback on future growth. | Not Applicable/Consistent. This Land Use Policy is directed towards SCAG and does not necessarily apply to the Project. Regardless, the purpose of the Project is to respond to the City's need to provide mixed-use, live/work housing opportunities and commercial uses in the downtown area. |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Strategy 1: Reflect the Changing Population and Demands | Consistent. The Project Site is located in a highly urbanized area in the City within a HQTA and a TPA. Due to this location, the Project is a reflection of the growing demand for mixed-use live/work residences and commercial offices in the Los Angeles Region. The Project also reflects a demand to locate residences and commercial uses in close proximity to transit, and a decreased reliance on automobile and truck uses in the downtown area. |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Strategy 2: Focus New Growth Around Transit | Consistent. The Project would remove a vehicular service building with associated surface parking and construct mixed use live/work housing and sources of employment near transit and other sources of housing and employment. The Project is consistent with the trend to focus ne development near transit and promote alternative modes of transportation, thereby reducing dependence on automobile travel and VMT. |

Table 3-1 Consistency with SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Table 3-1 |
|---|
| Consistency with SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS |

| Goals and Policies | Consistency Assessment | |
|--|--|--|
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Strategy 3: Plan for Growth Around Livable Corridors | Consistent. The Project would be consistent with this strategy, as it would help plan for the growth of Downtown Los Angeles by providing a better and safer livable community in an area rich in transit and pedestrian amenities. | |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Strategy 4: Provide More Options for Short Trips | Consistent. The Project would construct housing and sources of employment in a dense urban area near transit and other sources of housing and employment. By doing this, the Project helps reduce and shorten vehicle trips. | |
| 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Benefit 1: The RTP/SCS will promote the development of better places to live and work through measures that encourage more compact development in certain areas of the region, varied housing options, bicycle and pedestrian improvements, and efficient transportation infrastructure. | Consistent. The Project would develop 106 live/work units and approximately 119,843 square feet of retail, restaurant, and office land uses on an infill urban site within an HQTA, as defined by SCAG, and a transit priority area as defined by SB 743. The Project provides a variety of sizes and styles of housing units, including studio, one, two, and three bedrooms plus den units. The Project also includes pedestrian improvements and 145 bicycle parking spaces. The area of the Project Site is also supported by high levels of regional and local transit, including Metro Lines 18, 60, 62, and Rapid 720, which serve the Site at 7 th and Decatur. Rapid 760 is at 7 th and Alameda. | |
| 2016 RTP/SCS Benefit 2: The RTP/SCS will encourage strategic transportation investments that add appropriate capacity and improve critical road conditions in the region, increase transit capacity and expand mobility options. Meanwhile, the Plan outlines strategies for developing land in coming decades that will place destinations closer together, thereby decreasing the time and cost of traveling between them. | Not Applicable/Consistent. Benefit 2 is directed towards SCAG and not does apply to the Project. Nevertheless, the Project is an infill, mixed-use development located within an HQTA, thereby decreasing time and cost of traveling between places. | |
| 2016 RTP/SCS Benefit 3: The RTP/SCS is expected to result in less energy and water consumption across the region, as well as lower transportation costs for households. | Consistent. The Project would meet/exceed the requirements of the City's Green Building Code and the California Green Building Code by including at least 10 percent of the Project's vehicle parking spaces to be capable of accommodating EV charging stations, for a total of 40 EV charging station stalls. | |

| Goals and Policies | Consistency Assessment | |
|---|--|--|
| | | |
| | The Project's incorporation of bicycle- and pedestrian- friendly elements and location near various bus lines would provide future residents with various affordable transportation options. The Project is a high-density mixed-use development on an infill site, well served by existing utilities. | |
| 2016 RTP/SCS Benefit 4: Improved placemaking and strategic transportation investments will help improve air quality; improve health as people have more opportunities to bicycle, walk and pursue other active alternatives to driving; and better protect natural lands as new growth is concentrated in existing urban and suburban areas. | Consistent. The Project would remove a vehicular service building with associated surface parking and construct housing and sources of employment near transit and other sources of housing and employment, thereby reducing dependence on automobile travel and VMT, and reducing associated pollutant emissions. The Project also would activate the sidewalks at the Project Site by incorporating street-level retail uses, while simultaneously creating internal infrastructure for bike parking and encouraging walking, biking, and transit use. The Project would include 24,020 square feet of open space and 41 trees to encourage outdoor recreation and walking. | |
| Source: SCAG_2016-2040 RTP/SCS_April 2016 | | |

Table 3-1 Consistency with SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

<u>3.3.1</u> Consistency with TPP Criterion #2(a) – The Project contains at least 50 percent residential use.

Criterion 2(a) requires that a project "Contains at least 50 percent residential use, based on total building square footage and if the project contains between 26 percent and 50 percent nonresidential uses, a floor area ratio of not less than 0.75."

The Project includes the construction of a total floor area of 257,287 square feet. The Project is approximately 53 percent residential based on total building square footage.⁶ Because the Project is 47 percent nonresidential, it must also achieve a floor area ratio of not less than 0.75. The floor area ratio for the Project is 4.75:1. As such, the Project would be consistent with this criterion.

<u>3.3.2.</u> Consistency with TPP Criterion #2(b) – The Project includes a minimum net density of at least 20 units per acre.

Criterion 2(b) requires that a project "Provides a minimum net density of at least 20 units per acre." The proposed density of the Project is 79 residential dwelling units per acre (106 units on 1.35

^{6 137,443} square feet of residential / 257,287 square feet total = 0.53

acres). As such, the Project would be consistent with this criterion.

<u>3.3.3</u> Consistency with TPP Criterion #2(c) – The Project Site is located within onehalf mile of a major transit stop or a high quality transit corridor included in the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS.

Criterion 2(c) requires that a project "Is located within one-half mile of a major transit stop or highquality transit corridor included in a regional transportation plan/sustainable communities strategy (RTP/SCS).

PRC Section 21064.3 defines "major transit stop" as "a site containing an existing rail transit station, a ferry terminal served by either a bus or rail transit service, or the intersection of two or more major bus routes with a frequency of service interval of 15 minutes or less during the morning and afternoon peak commute periods." PRC Section 21155 (b) states that a "major transit stop" is defined in PRC Section 21064.3, except that, for purposes of Section 21155 (b), it also includes major transit stops that are included in the applicable regional transportation plan.

Public Resources Code (PRC) Section 21155 (b) defines a "high-quality transit corridor" as a corridor with fixed route bus service with service intervals no longer than 15 minutes during peak commute hours. The HQTC is also mapped as part of the SCAG RPT/SCS.

The Project meets both of the definitions to qualify for this criterion. The Project Site is located in an urban area served by multiple local bus lines that are adjacent to the Project Site and with service intervals of 15 minute or less during morning and afternoon peak commute periods, as shown in **Table 3-2**. Moreover, the Project Site is located within a half-mile of a high-quality transit corridor as mapped by SCAG (refer to **Figure 3-3**). As such, the Project is consistent with this criterion.

| Line | Direction | # Trips | Total Trips | Average Frequency | Qualifies? |
|--|--|------------------------|----------------|----------------------|------------|
| Intersection (7 | Intersection (7 th and Alameda) | | | | |
| East | | 27 AM Peak-Hours trips | 51 | 8.24 minutes | Yes |
| | | 24 PM Peak-Hours trips | 51 | | |
| Metro To | 14 AM Peak-Hours trips | 4.4 | 9.55 minutes | | |
| vvest | | 30 PM Peak-Hours trips | | 44 | |
| North | | 15 AM Peak-Hours trips | 21 | 13.55 | |
| Metro Rapid | NOTUT | 16 PM Peak-Hours trips | 51 | minutes | Yes |
| 760 ' | 0 | 13 AM Peak-Hours trips | 29 | 14.5 minutes | |
| South | | 16 PM Peak-Hours trips | _ | - | |
| Peak Periods are considered to be between 6:00 to 9:00 AM (180 minutes) and 3:00 to 7:00 PM (240 minutes) for a total of 420 minutes. Bus routes must have a service frequency of 15 minutes or less for the entire duration of the peak-hour periods. | | | | | |

Table 3-2 Major Transit Stop Analysis

To determine the eligibility of the bus line, the average number of minutes per trip for each direction is calculated separately. If one or both directions fail to meet the 15 minute frequency limit, the entire bus line is ineligible for a Major Transit Stop designation.

The total number of trips from the point of origin during peak hours (Monday to Friday) is used. A trip is included if its median time falls within the peak hour.

To calculate the median time, the time at trip origin is subtracted from the time at arrival at final station, divided by two, and then added to origin time.

The total peak-hour time (420 minutes) is then divide by the number of trips for the average number of minutes per trip.

CAJA Environmental Services, March 2019.



4 RTP/SCS MITIGATION MEASURES

INCORPORATION OF APPLICABLE MITIGATION MEASURES FROM THE 2016-2040 RTP/SCS PROGRAM EIR

Public Resources Code (PRC) Section 21151.2 requires that a Transit Priority Project (TPP) incorporate all feasible mitigation measures, performance standards, or criteria from prior applicable EIRs, including the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Program EIR for SCAG on December 2015.

The Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Program EIR (SCAG MMRP) does not include project-level mitigation measures that are required of the Project. The SCAG MMRP does provide a list of mitigation measures that SCAG determined a lead agency can and should consider, as applicable and feasible, where the lead agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects.

To comply with PRC Section 21151.2, the City has reviewed all mitigation measures contained in the SCAG MMRP (shown on **Table 4-1**) and determined their applicability to the Project. For each such mitigation measure, the City considered whether to use the SCAG MMRP mitigation measure or an equally effective City mitigation measure or federal, state, regional, or City regulation. The City's applicability determination is found on **Table 4-1**. As indicated on **Table 4-1**, with the exception of SCAG mitigation measure MM-LU-1(b) which is incorporated for the Project, the City has incorporated an equally or more effective City mitigation measure or federal, state, regional, or City regulation or has for other reasons determined that incorporation of the SCAG 2016-2040 RTP/SCS MMRP mitigations measure is not required.

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-----------------------------------|---|---|
| <u>Aesthetics</u> Scenic Vista | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-AES-1(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects of visual intrusions on scenic vistas, or National Scenic Byways that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of Caltrans, other public agencies, and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with regulations for Caltrans scenic vistas and goals and policies within county and city general plans, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because PRC Section 21099, enacted by Senate Bill 743, provides that "aesthetic and parking impacts of a residential, mixed-use residential, or employment center project on an infill site within a transit priority area shall not be considered significant impacts on the environment." |
| | Use a palette of colors, textures, building materials that are graffiti-resistant, and/or plant materials that complement the surrounding landscape and development. Use contour grading to better match surrounding terrain. Contour edges of major cut-and-fill to provide a more natural looking finished profile. Use alternating facades to "break up" large facades and provide visual interest. Design new corridor landscaping to respect existing natural and man-made features and to complement the dominant landscaping of the surrounding areas. | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--------------------------|--|---|
| | Replace and renew landscaping along corridors with road widenings, interchange projects, and related improvements. Retain or replace trees bordering highways, so that clear-cutting is not evident. Provide new corridor landscaping that respects and provides appropriate transition to existing natural and man-made features and is complementary to the dominant landscaping or native habitats of surrounding areas. Implement design guidelines, local policies, and programs aimed at protecting views of scenic corridors and avoiding visual intrusions in design of projects to minimize contrasts in scale and massing between the project and surrounding natural forms and developments. Avoid, if possible, large cuts and fills when the visual environment (natural or urban) would be substantially disrupted. Site or design of projects should minimize their intrusion into important viewsheds and use contour grading to better match surrounding terrain | |
| Aesthetics | Project-Level Mitigation Measure | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because PRC |
| Visual Character/Quality | MM-AES-3(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects of degrading the existing public viewpoints, visual character, or quality of the site that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of local jurisdictions and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure | Section 21099, enacted by Senate Bill 743, provides that "aesthetic and parking impacts of a residential, mixed-use residential, or employment center project on an infill site within a transit priority area shall not be considered significant impacts on the environment." The Project qualifies for this provision, and no mitigation is required. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| | compliance with the goals and policies within county and city general plans, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | |
| | identified by the Lead Agency: Minimize contrasts in scale and massing between the projects and surrounding natural forms and development, minimize their intrusion into important viewsheds, and use contour grading to better match surrounding terrain in accordance with county and city hillside ordinances, where applicable. Design landscaping along highway corridors to add significant natural elements and visual interest to soften the hard-edged, linear transportation corridors. Require development of design guidelines for projects that make elements of proposed buildings/facilities visually compatible or minimize visibility of changes in visual quality or character through use of hardscape and softscape solutions. Specific measures to be addressed include setback buffers, landscaping, color, texture, signage, and lighting criteria. Design projects consistent with design guidelines of applicable general plans. Apply development standards and guidelines to maintain compatibility with surrounding natural areas, including site coverage, building baidet, and massing building baidet, and massing building baidet, and massing building baidet and massing building baidet. | |
| | materials and color, landscaping, site grading, and so forth in accordance with general plans | |
| | and adopted design guidelines, where applicable. | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------------------|--|---|
| | • Require that sites are kept in a blight/nuisance-free condition. Remove blight or nuisances that compromise visual character or visual quality of project areas including graffiti abatement, trash removal, landscape management, maintenance of signage and billboards in good condition, and replace compromised native vegetation and landscape. | |
| <u>Aesthetics</u> | Project-Level Mitigation Measure | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because PRC |
| Light/Glare/Shade | MM-AES-4(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or minimizing the effects of light and glare on routes of travel for motorists, cyclists, and pedestrians, or on adjacent properties, and limit expanded areas of shade and shadow to areas that would not adversely affect open space or outdoor recreation areas that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of local jurisdictions and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with the goals and policies within county and city general plans, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: Use lighting fixtures that are adequately shielded to a point below the light bulb and reflector and that prevent unnecessary glare | Section 21099, enacted by Senate Bill 743, provides that "aesthetic and parking impacts of a residential, mixed-use residential, or employment center project on an infill site within a transit priority area shall not be considered significant impacts on the environment." The Project qualifies for this provision, and no mitigation is required. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--|---|---|
| | Restrict the operation of outdoor lighting for construction and operation activities in accordance with local regulations. Use high pressure sodium and/or cut-off fixtures instead of typical mercury-vapor fixtures for outdoor lighting. Use unidirectional lighting to avoid light trespass onto adjacent properties. Design exterior lighting to confine illumination to the project site, and/or to areas which do not include light-sensitive uses. Provide structural and/or vegetative screening from light-sensitive uses. Shield and direct all new street and pedestrian lighting away from light-sensitive off-site uses. Use non-reflective glass or glass treated with a non-reflective coating for all exterior windows and glass used on building surfaces. Architectural lighting shall be directed onto the building surfaces and have low reflectivity to minimize glare and limit light onto adjacent properties. | |
| Agriculture and Forestry | Project-Level Mitigation Measure | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, as it is not applicable to the Project because no farmland or |
| Conversion of Farmland to Non- Ag Use, Conversion of Forest Land | MIM-AF-1(D): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects from the conversion of Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance to non-agricultural uses that are within the jurisdiction and responsibility of the Natural Resources Conservation Service, the California Resources Agency, other public agencies, and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for | agricultural activity exists on or in the vicinity of the Project Site and no impacts related to this issue would occur. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| | significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with the Farmland Protection Act and implementing regulations, and the goals and policies established within the applicable adopted county and city general plans to protect agricultural resources consistent with the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency taking into account project and site-specific considerations as applicable and feasible: | |
| | For projects that require approval or funding by the USDOT, comply with Section 4(f) U.S. Department of Transportation Act of 1966 (USDOT Act). Project relocation or corridor realignment to avoid Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Local or Statewide Importance. Maintain and expand agricultural land protections such as urban growth boundaries. | |
| | Support the acquisition or voluntary dedication of agriculture conservation easements and other programs that preserve agricultural lands, including the creation of farmland mitigation banks. Local governments would be responsible for encouraging the development of agriculture conservation easements or farmland mitigation banks, purchasing conservation agreements or farmland for mitigation, and ensuring that the terms of the conservation easement agreements are upheld. The California Department of Fish and | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| | Wildlife provides a definition for conservation or mitigation banks on their website (please see https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Plannin g/Banking) | |
| | "A conservation or mitigation bank is privately, or publicly owned land managed for its natural resource values. In exchange for permanently protecting, managing, and monitoring the land, the bank sponsor is allowed to sell or transfer habitat credits to permitees who need to satisfy legal requirements and compensate for the environmental impacts of developmental projects. | |
| | A privately owned conservation or mitigation bank is a free-market enterprise that: | |
| | Offers landowners economic incentives to protect natural resources; Saves permitees time and money by providing them with the certainty of preapproved compensation lands; Consolidates small, fragmented wetland mitigation projects into large contiguous sites that have much higher wildlife habitat values; Provides for long-term protection and management of habitat. | |
| | A publicly owned conservation or mitigation bank: | |
| | Offers the sponsoring public agency advance mitigation for large projects or multiple years of operations and maintenance." | |

| Table 4-1 |
|---|
| Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| | In 2013, the University of California published an article entitled "Reforms could boost conservation banking by landowners" that speaks specifically to the use of agricultural lands for in conjunction with conservation banking programs. | |
| | Provide for mitigation fees to support a mitigation bank that invests in farmer education, agricultural infrastructure, water supply, marketing, etc., that enhance the commercial viability of retained agricultural lands. | |
| | Include underpasses and overpasses at reasonable intervals to maintain property access. | |
| | Use berms, buffer zones, setbacks, and fencing to reduce conflicts between new development and farming uses and protect the functions of farmland. | |
| | Ensure individual projects are consistent with federal, state, and local policies that preserve agricultural lands and support the economic viability of agricultural activities, as well as policies that provide compensation for property owners if preservation is not feasible. | |
| | Contact the California Department of Conservation and each county's Agricultural Commissioner's office to identify the location of prime farmlands and lands that support crops considered valuable to the local or | |
| | regional economy and evaluate potential impacts to such lands using the land evaluation and site assessment (LESA) | |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|---|--|
| | analysis method (CEQA Guidelines §21095), as appropriate. Use conservation easements or the payment of in-lieu fees to offset impacts. | |
| Agriculture and Forestry Zoning for Ag Use, Williamson Act Contract | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-AF-2(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects from conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use or a Williamson Act contract that are within the jurisdiction and responsibility of the California Department of Conservation, other public agencies, and Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to mitigate the significant effects of agriculture and forestry resources to ensure compliance with the goals and policies established within the applicable adopted county and city general plans to protect agricultural resources consistent with the California Land Conservation Act of 1965, the Farmland Security Zone Act, and county and city zoning codes, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency, taking into account project and sitespecific considerations as applicable and feasible: Project relocation or corridor realignment to avoid lands in Williamson Act contracts. | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, as it is not applicable to the Project, because the Project Site is not zoned for agricultural production, there is no farmland at the Project Site, and there are no Williamson Act Contracts in effect for the Project Site, and no impacts related to this issue would occur. |
| | Security Zone contracts (Government Code | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Table 4-1 |
|---|
| Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|----------------------------------|--|--|
| | Section 51296 et seq.), 10-year Williamson Act contracts (Government Code Section 51200 et seq.) or use of other conservation tools available from the California Department of Conservation Division of Land Resource Protection. Prior to final approval of each project, encourage enrollments of agricultural lands for counties that have Williamson Act programs, where applicable. | |
| <u>Air Quality</u> | Project-Level Mitigation Measure | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because the |
| Potential to Violate AQ Standard | MM-AIR-2(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures that are within the jurisdiction and authority of the CARB, air quality management districts, and other regulatory agencies. Where the Lead Agency has | City has determined that the existing regulatory measures listed below would apply to the Project and are equal to or more effective than SCAG RTP/SCS Program EIR MM- AIR-2(b). Specifically, the applicable regulatory requirements |
| | identified that a project has the potential to violate an air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing air quality violation, the Lead Agency can and should consider the measures that have been identified by CARB and air district(s) and other agencies as set forth below, | identified by CARB and the Southern California Air Quality Management District, and other agencies to facilitate consistency with plans for attainment of the NAAQS and CAAQS, as applicable and feasible, are set forth below. |
| | or other comparable measures, to facilitate consistency with plans for attainment of the National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) and California Ambient Air Quality Standards (CAAQS), as applicable and feasible. | The Project shall comply with all applicable standards of the Southern California Air Quality Management District, including the following provisions of District Rule 403: All unpaved demolition and construction areas |
| | CARB, South Coast AQMD, Antelope Valley AQMD, Imperial County APCD, Mojave Desert AQMD, Ventura County APCD, and Caltrans have identified project-level feasible measures to reduce construction emissions: | shall be wetted at least twice daily during excavation and construction, and temporary dust covers shall be used to reduce dust emissions and meet SCAQMD District Rule 403. Wetting could reduce fugitive dust by as much as 50 percent. |

| Table 4-1 |
|---|
| Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|---|
| | Minimize land disturbance. Use watering trucks to minimize dust; watering should be sufficient to confine dust plumes to the project work areas. Suspend grading and earth moving when wind gusts exceed 25 miles per hour unless the soil is wet enough to prevent dust plumes. Cover trucks when hauling dirt. Stabilize the surface of dirt piles if not removed immediately. Limit vehicular paths on unpaved surfaces and stabilize any temporary roads. Minimize unnecessary vehicular and machinery activities. Revegetate disturbed land, including vehicular paths created during construction to avoid future off-road vehicular activities. On Caltrans projects, Caltrans Standard Specifications 10-Dust Control, 17-Watering, and 18-Dust Palliative shall be incorporated into project specifications. Require contractors to assemble a comprehensive inventory list (i.e., make, model, engine year, horsepower, emission rates) of all heavy-duty off-road (portable and mobile) equipment (50 horsepower and greater) that could be used an aggregate of 40 or more hours for the construction project. Prepare a plan for approval by the applicable air district demonstrating achievement of the applicable percent reduction for a CARB-approved fleet. Ensure that all construction equipment is properly tuned and maintained. | The construction area shall be kept sufficiently dampened to control dust caused by grading and hauling, and at all times provide reasonable control of dust caused by wind. All clearing, earth moving, or excavation activities shall be discontinued during periods of high winds (i.e., greater than 15 mph), so as to prevent excessive amounts of dust. All dirt/soil loads shall be secured by trimming, watering or other appropriate means to prevent spillage and dust. All dirt/soil materials transported off-site shall be either sufficiently watered or securely covered to prevent excessive amount of dust. General contractors shall maintain and operate construction equipment so as to minimize exhaust emissions. Trucks having no current hauling activity shall not idle but be turned off. The Project shall comply with South Coast Air Quality Management District Rule 1166 – Volatile Organic Compound Emissions from Decontamination of Soil, which sets requirements to control the emission of VOC from excavating, grading, handling and treating VOC-contaminated soil as a result of leakage from storage or transfer operations, accidental spillage, or other deposition. The Project shall comply with South Coast Air Quality Management District Rule 1403 – Asbestos Emissions from Demolition/Renovation Activities, which specify work practice requirements to limit asbestos emissions from building demolition and renovation activities, including the removal and associated disturbance of asbestos-containing materials (ACM). |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|--|
| | Provide an operational water truck on-site at all times. Use watering trucks to minimize dust; watering should be sufficient to confine dust plumes to the project work areas. Sweep paved streets at least once per day where there is evidence of dirt that has been carried on to the roadway. | In accordance with Sections 2485 in Title 13 of the California Code of Regulations, the idling of all diesel fueled commercial vehicles (weighing over 10,000 pounds) during construction shall be limited to five minutes at any location. |
| | Project sponsors should ensure to the extent possible that construction activities utilize grid-based electricity and/or onsite renewable electricity generation rather than diesel and/or gasoline powered generators. Develop a traffic plan to minimize traffic flow | In accordance with Section 93115 in Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations, operation of any stationary, diesel-fueled, compression-ignition engines shall meet specified fuel and fuel additive requirements and emission standards. |
| | interference from construction activities. The plan may include advance public notice of routing, use of public transportation, and satellite parking areas with a shuttle service. Schedule operations affecting traffic for off- peak hours. Minimize obstruction of through- | • The Project shall comply with South Coast Air Quality Management District Rule 1113 limiting the volatile organic compound content of architectural coatings. |
| | traffic lanes. Provide a flag person to guide traffic properly and ensure safety at construction sites. • As appropriate require that portable engines | • The Project shall install odor-reducing equipment in accordance with South Coast Air Quality Management District Rule 1138. |
| | and portable engine-driven equipment units used at the project work site, with the exception of on-road and off-road motor vehicles, obtain CARB Portable Equipment Registration with the state or a local district permit. Arrange appropriate consultations with the CARB or the District to determine registration and permitting requirements prior to equipment operation at the site. | • New on-site facility nitrogen oxide emissions shall be minimized through the use of emission control measures (e.g., use of best available control technology for new combustion sources such as boilers and water heaters) as required by South Coast Air Quality Management District Regulation XIII, New Source Review. |
| | Implement EPA's National Clean Diesel Program. | Additionally, the following mitigation measure is proposed: |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|---|
| | Diesel- or gasoline-powered equipment shall be replaced by lowest emitting feasible for each piece of equipment from among these options: electric equipment whenever feasible, gasoline-powered equipment if electric infeasible. On-site electricity shall be used in all construction areas that are demonstrated to be served by electricity. If cranes are required for construction, they shall be rated at 200 hp or greater equipped with Tier 4 or equivalent engines. Use alternative diesel fuels, such as Clean Fuels Technology (water emulsified diesel fuel) or O2 diesel ethanol-diesel fuel (O2 Diesel) in existing engines. | MM-AQ-1. All off-road construction equipment greater than 50 hp shall meet U.S. EPA Tier 3 emission standards, to reduce NO _x , PM ₁₀ , and PM _{2.5} emissions at the Project Site. In addition, all construction equipment shall be outfitted with Best Available Control Technology devices certified by CARB. Any emissions control device used by the contractor shall achieve emissions reductions that are no less than what could be achieved by a Level 3 diesel emissions control strategy for a similarly sized engine as defined by CARB regulations. |
| | Convert part of the construction truck fleet to natural gas. Include "clean construction equipment fleet", defined as a fleet mix cleaner than the state average, in all construction contracts Fuel all off-road and portable diesel powered equipment with ARB-certified motor vehicle diesel fuel (non-taxed version suitable for use off-road) Use electric fleet or alternative fueled vehicles where feasible including methanol, propane, and compressed natural gas Use diesel construction equipment meeting ARB's Tier 4 certified engines or cleaner offroad heavy-duty diesel engines and comply with State off-road regulation Use on-road, heavy-duty trucks that meet the ARB's 2007 or cleaner certification standard | During plan check, the Project Applicant shall make available to the lead agency and SCAQMD a comprehensive inventory of all off-road construction equipment, equal to or greater than 50 horsepower that shall be used during any portion of demolition/excavation activities and concrete pour days for the foundation for the Project. The inventory shall include the horsepower rating, engine production year, and certification of the specified Tier standard. A copy of each unit's certified tier specification, Best Available Control Technology documentation, and CARB or SCAQMD operating permit shall be available onsite at the time of mobilization of each applicable unit of equipment to |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|--|
| Topic | RTP/SCS Measure for on-road diesel engines, and comply with the State on-road regulation Use idle reduction technology, defined as a device that is installed on the vehicle that automatically reduces main engine idling and/or is designed to provide services, e.g., heat, air conditioning, and/or electricity to the vehicle or equipment that would otherwise require the operation of the main drive engine while the vehicle or equipment is temporarily parked or is stationary Minimize idling time either by shutting off equipment when not in use or limit idling time to 3 minutes Signs shall be posted in the designated queuing areas and/or job sites to remind drivers and operators of the 3 minute idling limit. The construction contractor shall maintain a written idling policy and distribute it to all employees and subcontractors. The onsite construction manager shall enforce this limit. Prohibit diesel idling within 1,000 feet of sensitive receptors. Staging and queuing areas shall not be located within 1,000 feet of sensitive receptors. The number of construction equipment operating simultaneously shall be minimized through efficient management practices to ensure that the smallest practical number is operating at any one time. The engine size of construction equipment shall be the minimum practical size. Catalytic converters shall be installed on gasoline-powered equipment | Applicability to the Project allow the Construction Monitor to compare the on-site equipment with the inventory and certified Tier specification and operating permit. Off-road diesel- powered equipment within the construction inventory list described above shall meet Tier 4 CARB/U.S. EPA standards |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|---|--|
| | Signs shall be posted in designated queuing areas and job sites to remind drivers and operators of the idling limit. Construction worker trips shall be minimized by providing options for carpooling and by providing for lunch onsite. Use new or rebuilt equipment. Maintain all construction equipment in proper working order, according to manufacturer's specifications. The equipment must be check by an ASE-certified mechanic and determined to be running in proper condition before it is operated. Use low rolling resistance tires on long haul class 8 tractor-trailers. Suspend all construction activities that generate air pollutant emissions during air alerts. Install a CARB-verified, Level 3 emission control device, e.g., diesel particulate filters, on all diesel engines | |
| <u>Air Quality</u> | Project-Level Mitigation Measure | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, as it is not |
| Expose Sensitive Receptors to Pollutants | MM-AIR-4(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures that are within the jurisdiction and authority of the air quality management district(s) where proposed 2016 RTP/SCS transportation projects would be located. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential to expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations and harm public health outcomes substantially, the Lead Agency can and should consider the measures that have been identified by CARB and air district(s), or other comparable measures, to | applicable to the Project, because the Project impacts related to exposure of sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations would be less than significant, and no mitigation measures are required. Furthermore, this mitigation measure is not applicable because the listed measures generally relate to vehicle fleet standards, which cannot be implemented at a Project level. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| | reduce cancer risk pursuant to the Air Toxics "Hot Spots" Act of 1987 (AB2588), as applicable and feasible. Such measures include those adopted by CARB designed to reduce substantial pollutant concentrations, specifically diesel, from mobile sources and equipment. CARB's strategy includes the following elements: | |
| | Set technology forcing new engine standards. Reduce emissions from the in-use fleet. Require clean fuels and reduce petroleum dependency. Work with US EPA to reduce emissions from federal and state sources. Pursue long-term advanced technology measures | |
| | Proposed new transportation-related SIP measures include: | |
| | On-Road Sources | |
| | Improvements and Enhancements to California's Smog Check Program Expanded Passenger Vehicle Retirement Modifications to Reformulated Gasoline Program Cleaner In-Use Heavy-Duty Trucks Ship Auxiliary Engine Cold Ironing and Other Clean Technology Cleaner Ship Main Engines and Fuel Port Truck Modernization | |

| Table 4-1 |
|---|
| Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--|---|---|
| | Accelerated Introduction of Cleaner Line- Haul Locomotives Clean Up Existing Commercial Harbor Craft Limited idling of diesel-powered trucks Consolidated truck trips and improve traffic flow Late model engines, Low emission diesel products, engine retrofit technology Alternative fuels for on-road vehicles | |
| | Off-Road Sources | |
| | Cleaner Construction and Other Equipment Cleaner In-Use Off-Road Equipment Agricultural Equipment Fleet Modernization New Emission Standards for Recreational Boats Off-Road Recreational Vehicle Expanded Emission Standards | |
| Biological Resources | Project-Level Mitigation Measure | This mitigation measure is not incorporated for the |
| Adverse Effect on Candidate, Sensitive, or Special Status Species, Adverse Effect on Riparian Habitat or Other Sensitive Natural Community, Adverse Effect on Wetlands, Interfere with the Movement of Species, Conflict with Local Policies or Ordinances Protecting Bio Resources, Conflict with Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural | MM-BIO-1(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects on threatened and endangered species and other special status species that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS), National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), other public agencies, and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and | Project impacts related to adverse effects, either directly or through habitat modifications, any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulation, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, would be less than significant and no mitigation is required. The Project Site does not contain any critical habitat or support any species identified or |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--|---|---|
| Community Conservation Plan, or Other Conservation Plan | should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with Sections 7, 9, and 10(a) of the federal Endangered Species Act; the California Endangered Species Act; the Native Plant Protection Act; the State Fish and Game Code; and the Desert Native Plant Act; and related applicable implementing regulations, as applicable and feasible. Additional compliance should adhere to applicable implementing regulations from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, the National Marine Fisheries Service, and/or the California Department of Fish and Wildlife. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | designated as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. The Project Site is located in an urbanized area of the City. The Site is developed with a surface parking lot and an automobile service building; Thus, none of the mitigation measures that pertain to compliance with Sections 7, 9, and 10(a) of the Federal Endangered Species Act; the California Endangered Species Act; the Native Plant Protection Act; the State Fish and Game Code; and the Desert Native Plant Act; and related applicable implementing regulations, are applicable to the Project. |
| | Require project design to avoid occupied habitat, potentially suitable habitat, and designated critical habitat, wherever practicable and feasible. Where avoidance is determined to be infeasible, provide conservation measures to fulfill the requirements of the applicable authorization for incidental take pursuant to Section 7 or 10(a) of the federal Endangered Species Act or Section 2081 of the California Endangered Species Act to support issuance of an Incidental take permit. A wide variety of conservation strategies have been successfully used in the SCAG region to protect the survival and recovery in the wild of federally and state-listed endangered species including the bald eagle: Avoidance strategies Contribution of in-lieu fees | Additionally, the City has determined that the existing regulatory requirements listed below would apply to the Project and are equal to or more effective than SCAG RTP/SCS Program EIR MM-BIO-12(b). Specifically, the Project Applicant would be required to comply with the Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA) (Title 33, United States Code, Section 703 et seq., see also Title 50, Code of Federal Regulation, Part 10) and Section 3503 of the California Department of Fish and Wildlife Code, which regulates vegetation removal during the nesting season (February 15 th to August 15 th) to ensure that significant impacts to migratory birds associated with tree removal would not occur. Compliance with these existing regulations would ensure impacts related to nesting birds would be less than significant. |
Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Table 4-1 |
|---|
| Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|--|---|
| | guidelines and are conducted by qualified and/or certified personnel. | |
| <u>Biological Resources</u> Adverse Effect on Riparian Habitat or Other Sensitive Natural Community, Adverse Effect on Wetlands, Interfere with the Movement of Species, Conflict with Local Policies or Ordinances Protecting Bio Resources, Conflict with Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or Other Conservation Plan | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-BIO-2(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant impacts on state-designated sensitive habitats, including riparian habitats, that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, the National Marine Fisheries Service, the California Department of Fish and Wildlife; and other public agencies, and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with Section 1600 of the State Fish and Game Code, USFS Land Management Plan for the four national forests in the six-county area: Angeles, Cleveland, Los Padres, and San Bernardino, implementing regulations for the U.S. Fish and Wildlife; and other related federal, state, and local regulations, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: Consult with the USFWS and NMFS where such state-designated sensitive or riparian habitats provide potential or occupied habitat for federally listed rare, threatened, and condense of the state of the sensitive or riparian habitats provide potential or occupied habitat for federally listed rare, threatened, and condense of the sensitive or riparian habitats provide potential or occupied habitat for federally listed rare, threatened, and condense of the sensitive or riparian habitats provide potential or occupied habitat for federally listed rare, threatened, and condense of the sensitive or riparian habitats provide potential or occupied habitat for federally listed rare, threatened, and condense of the sensitive or riparian habitats provide potential or occupied habitat for federally listed rare, threatened, and condense of the sensitive or riparian habitats provide potential or occu | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, as it is not applicable to the Project, because the Project Site does not contain any wetlands, riparian habitats, sensitive natural community or critical habitat or support any species identified or designated as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, and no impacts related to this issue would occur. The Project Site is located in an urbanized area of the City. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| Topic | RTP/SCS Measure pursuant to the federal Endangered Species Act. Consult with the USFS where such state-designated sensitive or riparian habitats provide potential or occupied habitat for federally listed rare, threatened, and endangered species afforded protection pursuant to the federal Endangered Species Act and any additional species afforded protection by an adopted Forest Land Management Plan or Resource Management Plan for the four national forests in the six-county area: Angeles, Cleveland, Los Padres, and San Bernardino. Consult with the CDFW where such state-designated sensitive or riparian habitats provide potential or occupied habitat for state-listed rare, threatened, and endangered species afforded protection pursuant to the California Endangered Species Act, or Fully-Protected Species afforded protection pursuant to the State Fish and Game Code. Consult with the CDFW pursuant to the provisions of Section 1600 of the State Fish and Game Code as they relate to lakes and streambeds. Consult with the USFWS, USFS, CDFW, and counties and cities in the SCAG region, where state-designated sensitive or riparian habitats are occupied by birds afforded protection pursuant to the Migratory Bird Treaty Act during the breeding season. Consult with the CDFW for state-designated sensitive or riparian habitats are furthered species afforded protection pursuant to the Migratory Bird Treaty Act during the breeding season. | Applicability to the Project |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| Topic | RTP/SCS Measure pursuant to the provisions of the State Fish and Game Code for fur-beaming mammals, are actively using the areas in conjunction with breeding activities. Utilize applicable and CDFW approved plant community classification resources during delineation of sensitive communities and invasive plants including, but not limited to, the Manual of California Vegetation, the California Invasive Plant Inventory Database, and the Orange County California Native Plant Society (OCCNPS) Emergent Invasive Plant Management Program, where appropriate. Encourage project design to avoid sensitive natural communities and riparian habitats, wherever practicable and feasible. Where avoidance is determined to be infeasible, develop sufficient conservation measures through coordination with local agencies and the regulatory agency (i.e., USFWS or CDFW) to protect sensitive natural communities and riparian habitats. Install fencing and/or mark sensitive habitat to be avoided during construction activities. Salvage and stockpile topsoil (the surface material from 6 to 12 inches deep) and perennial plants for use in restoring native vegetation to all areas of temporary disturbance within the project area. | Applicability to the Project |
| | vegetation to all areas of temporary disturbance within the project area. Revegetate with appropriate native vegetation following the completion of construction activities. Complete habitat enhancement (e.g., through removal of non-native invasive wetland | |

| Table 4-1 |
|---|
| Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--|--|--|
| | species and replacement with more ecologically valuable native species). Use Best Management Practices (BMPs) at construction sites to minimize erosion and sediment transport from the area. BMPs include encouraging growth of vegetation in disturbed areas, using straw bales or other silt-catching devices, and using settling basins to minimize soil transport. | |
| <u>Biological Resources</u> Adverse Effect on Wetlands, Interfere with the Movement of Species, Conflict with Local Policies or Ordinances Protecting Bio Resources, Conflict with Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or Other Conservation Plan | <u>Project-Level Mitigation Measure</u> MM-BIO-3(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant impacts on protected wetlands that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, public agencies and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with Section 404 of the Clean Water Act and regulations of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACOE), and other applicable federal, state and local regulations, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: Require project design to avoid federally protected wetlands consistent with the provisions of Section 404 of the Clean Water | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, as it is not applicable to the Project, because the Project Site is not located on protected wetlands that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, public agencies and/or Lead Agencies. Moreover, the Project Site is an infill site in an urban setting in a region that is fully developed and would not affect species movement or policies or regulations protecting biological resources. No impacts related to this issue would occur. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| | Where the Lead Agency has identified that a | |
| | project, or other regionally significant project, | |
| | has the potential to impact other wetlands or | |
| | waters not protected under Section 404 of the | |
| | Clean Water Act, seek comparable coverage | |
| | for these wetlands and waters in consultation | |
| | with the USACOE and applicable Regional | |
| | Water Quality Control Boards (RWQCB). | |
| | Where avoidance is determined to be | |
| | infeasible, develop sufficient conservation | |
| | measures to fulfill the requirements of the | |
| | applicable authorization for impacts to | |
| | inderally protected wetlands to support | |
| | Clean Water Act as administered by the | |
| | USACOE The use of an authorized | |
| | Nationwide Permit or issuance of an individual | |
| | nermit requires the project applicant to | |
| | demonstrate compliance with the USACOF's | |
| | Final Compensatory Mitigation Rule The | |
| | USACOE reviews projects to ensure | |
| | environmental impacts to aquatic resources | |
| | are avoided or minimized as much as | |
| | possible. Consistent with the administration's | |
| | performance standard of "no net loss of | |
| | wetlands" a USACOE permit may require a | |
| | project proponent to restore, establish, | |
| | enhance or preserve other aquatic resources | |
| | in order to replace those affected by the | |
| | Project. This compensatory mitigation | |
| | process seeks to replace the loss of existing | |
| | aquatic resource functions and area. Project | |
| | proponents required to complete mitigation | |
| | are encouraged to use a watershed approach | |
| | rule establishes performance standards, esta | |
| | Tule establishes performance standards, sets | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--|---|--|
| | timeframes for decision making, and to the extent possible, establishes equivalent requirements and standards for the three sources of compensatory mitigation: Permitee-responsible mitigation Contribution of in-lieu fees Use of mitigation bank credits Require review of construction drawings by a certified wetland delineator as part of each project-specific environmental analysis to determine whether wetlands will be affected and, if necessary, perform a formal wetland delineation. | |
| Biological Resources Interfere with the Movement of Species, Conflict with Local Policies or Ordinances Protecting Bio Resources, Conflict with Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or Other Conservation Plan | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-BIO-4(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant impacts on migratory fish or wildlife species or within established native resident and/or migratory wildlife corridors, and native wildlife nursery sites that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, U.S. Forest Service, public agencies and/or Lead Agencies, as applicable and feasible. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with regulations of the USFWS, USFS, CDFW, and related regulations, goals and polices of counties and cities, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable | This mitigation measure is not incorporated because the City has determined that the existing regulatory compliance requirements listed below would apply to the Project and are equal to or more effective than SCAG RTP/SCS Program EIR MM- BIO-4(b). The applicable regulatory requirements include the MBTA (Title 33, United States Code, Section 703 et seq., see also Title 50, Code of Federal Regulation, Part 10) and Section 3503 of the California Department of Fish and Wildlife Code, which regulates vegetation removal during the nesting season (February 15 to August 15) to ensure that significant impacts to migratory birds would not occur. Compliance with these existing regulations would ensure that any potential impacts would be less than significant. Additionally, the Project does not include removal of any City-designated protected trees. |

| Table 4-1 |
|---|
| Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| | Consult with the USFWS, USFS, CDFW, and counties and cities in the SCAG region, where impacts to birds afforded protection pursuant to the Migratory Bird Treaty Act during the breeding season may occur. | |
| | • Consult with the USFS where impacts to migratory wildlife corridors may occur in an area afforded protection by an adopted Forest Land Management Plan or Resource Management Plan for the four national forests in the six-County area: Angeles, Cleveland, Los Padres, and San Bernardino. | |
| | Consult with counties, cities, and other local organizations when impacts may occur to open space areas that have been designated as important for wildlife movement. | |
| | Prohibit construction activities within 500 feet of occupied breeding areas for wildlife afforded protection pursuant to Title 14 § 460 of the California Code of Regulations protecting fur-bearing mammals, during the breeding season. | |
| | Prohibit clearing of vegetation and construction within the peak avian breeding season (February 1st through September 1st), where feasible. | |
| | Conduct weekly surveys to identify active raptor and other migratory nongame bird nests by a qualified biologist with experience in conducting breeding bird surveys within three days prior to the work in the area from February 1 through August 31. | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| | Prohibit construction activities with 300 feet (500 feet for raptors) of occupied nests of birds afforded protection pursuant to the Migratory Bird Treaty Act, during the breeding season. Delineate the non-disturbance buffer by temporary fencing and keep the buffer in place until construction is complete or the nest is no longer active. No construction shall occur within the fenced nest zone until the young have fledged, are no longer being fed by the parents, have left the nest, and will no longer be impacted by the project. Reductions or expansions in the nest buffer distance may be appropriate depending on the avian species involved, ambient levels of human activity, screening vegetation, or possibly other factors. | |
| | Ensure that suitable nesting sites for migratory nongame native bird species protected under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act and/or trees with unoccupied raptor nests should only be removed prior to February 1 or following the nesting season. | |
| | Conduct site-specific analyses of opportunities to preserve or improve habitat linkages with areas on- and off-site. Analyze habitat linkages/wildlife movement corridors on a broader and cumulative impact analysis scale to avoid adverse impacts from linear projects that have potential for impacts on a broader scale or critical narrow choke points that could reduce function of recognized movement corridors on a larger scale. Require review of construction drawings and habitat connectivity mapping provided by the | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| | CDFW or CNDDB by a qualified biologist to determine the risk of habitat fragmentation. | |
| | Pursue mitigation banking to preserve habitat linkages and corridors (opportunities to purchase, maintain, and/or restore offsite habitat). | |
| | • Demonstrate that Projects would not adversely affect movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species, wildlife movement corridors, or wildlife nursery sites through the incorporation of avoidance strategies into project design, wherever practicable and feasible. | |
| | Evaluate the potential for overpasses, underpasses, and culverts in cases where a roadway or other transportation project may interrupt the flow of species through their habitat. Provide wildlife crossings in accordance with proven standards, such as FHWA's Critter Crossings or Ventura County Mitigation Guidelines and in consultation with wildlife corridor authorities with sufficient knowledge of both regional and local wildlife corridors, and at locations useful and appropriate for the species of concern. | |
| | Install wildlife fencing where appropriate to minimize the probability of wildlife injury due to direct interaction between wildlife and roads or construction. | |
| | Establish native vegetation and facilitate the enhancement and maintenance of biological diversity within existing habitat pockets in urban environments that provide connectivity to large-scale habitat areas. | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| | Where avoidance is determined to be infeasible, design sufficient conservation measures through coordination with local agencies and the regulatory agency (i.e., USFWS or CDFW) and in accordance with the respective counties and cities general plans to establish plans to mitigate for the loss of fish and wildlife movement corridors and/or wildlife nursery sites. The consideration of conservation measures may include the following measures, in addition to the measures outlined in MM-BIO-1(b), where applicable: | |
| | Wildlife movement buffer zones Corridor realignment Appropriately spaced breaks in center barriers Stream rerouting Culverts Creation of artificial movement corridors such as freeway under- or overpasses Other comparable measures Where the Lead Agency has identified that an RTP/SCS project, or other regionally significant project, has the potential to impact other open space or nursery site areas, seek comparable coverage for these areas in consultation with the USFWS, CDFW, NMFS, or other local jurisdictions. Project sponsors should emphasize that urban habitate and the plant and wildlife | |
| | urban habitats and the plant and wildlife species they support are indeed valuable, despite the fact they are located in urbanized (previously disturbed) areas. Established | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|--|--|
| | habitat connectivity and wildlife corridors in these urban ecosystems will likely be impacted with further urbanization, as proposed in the Project. Appropriate mitigation measures should be proposed, developed, and implemented in these sensitive urban microhabitats to support or enhance the rich diversity of urban plant and wildlife species. Establish native vegetation within habitat pockets or the "wildling of urbanized habitats" that facilitate the enhancement and maintenance of biological diversity in these areas. These habitat pockets, as the hopscotch across an urban environment, provide connectivity to large-scale habitat | |
| <u>Biological Resources</u> Conflict with Local Policies or Ordinances Protecting Bio Resources, Conflict with Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or Other Conservation Plan | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-BIO-5(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant impacts related to conflicts with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or ordinance, that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of local jurisdictions and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to comply with county, city and local policies or ordinances, protecting biological resources, such as tree preservation policies or ordinances, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because the City has determined that compliance by the Project with existing City regulatory requirements that are equal to or more effective than SCAG RTP/SCS Program EIR MM-BIO-5(b). The Project will comply with the City tree preservation ordinance; by removing three street trees in the public right-of-way along Mateo Street with Board of Public Works approval and replacement ratio of 2:1. Prior to the removal of trees located within the public right-of-way, the Project Applicant would be required to obtain approval from the Board of Public Works for the removal and replacement of said trees. Street trees would be required to be removed and replaced as required by the Urban Forestry Division and the Board of Public Works. The landscape plans for the Project shall identify the all trees that would be removed. Compliance with the City's |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|---|
| | include the following, or other comparable | requirements would ensure no significant impacts related |
| | measures identified by the Lead Agency: | to biological resources, in particular trees, would occur. |
| | include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: Consult with the appropriate local agency responsible for the administration of the policy or ordinance protecting biological resources. Prioritize retention of trees on-site consistent with local regulations. Provide adequate protection during the construction period for any trees that are to remain standing, as recommended by a certified arborist. If specific project area trees are designated as "Protected Trees," "Landmark Trees," or "Heritage Trees," obtain approval for encroachment or removals through the appropriate entity, and develop appropriate mitigation measures at that time, to ensure that the trees are replaced. Mitigation trees shall be locally collected native species. Before the start of any clearing, excavation, construction or other work on the site, securely fence off every protected tree deemed to be potentially endangered by said site work. Keep such fences in place for duration of all such work. Clearly mark all trees to be removed. Establish a scheme for | requirements would ensure no significant impacts related to biological resources, in particular trees, would occur. |
| | the removal and disposal of logs, brush, earth | |
| | protected tree. | |
| | Where proposed development or other site | |
| | work could encroach upon the protected | |
| | special measures to allow the roots to breathe | |
| | and obtain water and nutrients. Minimize any | |
| | excavation, cutting, filing, or compaction of | |
| | the existing ground surface within the | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| Topic | RTP/SCS Measure protected perimeter. Require that no change in existing ground level occur from the base of any protected tree at any time. Require that no burning or use of equipment with an open flame occur near or within the protected perimeter of any protected tree. Require that no storage or dumping of oil, gas, chemicals, or other substances that may be harmful to trees occur from the base of any protected trees, or any other location on the site from which such substances might enter the protected perimeter. Require that no heavy construction equipment or construction materials be operated or stored within a distance from the base of any protected trees. Require that wires, ropes, or other devices not be attached to any protected tree. Thoroughly spray the leaves of protected tree. Thoroughly spray the leaves of protected trees with water periodically during construction to prevent buildup of dust and other pollution that would inhibit leaf transpiration. If any damage to a protected tree should occur during or as a result of work on the site, the appropriate local agency will be immediately notified of such damage. If, such tree cannot be preserved in a healthy state, require replacement of any tree removed with another tree or trees on the same site deemed | Applicability to the Project |
| | for the loss of the tree that is removed. | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|--|---|
| | Remove all debris created as a result of any tree removal work from the property within two weeks of debris creation, and such debris shall be properly disposed of in accordance with all applicable laws, ordinances, and regulations. Design projects to avoid conflicts with local policies and ordinances protecting biological resources. Where avoidance is determined to be infeasible, sufficient conservation measures to fulfill the requirements of the applicable policy or ordinance shall be developed, such as to support issuance of a tree removal permit. The consideration of conservation measures may include: Avoidance strategies Contribution of in-lieu fees Planting of replacement trees at a minimum ratio of 2:1 Re-landscaping areas with native vegetation post-construction | |
| Biological Resources | Project-Level Mitigation Measure | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, as it is not |
| Conflict with Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or Other Conservation Plan | MM-BIO-6(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant impacts on HCP and NCCPs that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of public agencies and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with Section 7 or 10(a) of the federal Endangered | applicable to the Project, because the City has no adopted Habitat Conservation Plans or Natural Community Conservation Plans that would apply to the Project Site. As such, no impacts related to this issue would occur. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--------------------|--|---|
| Topic | RTP/SCS Measure Species Act or Section 2081 of the California Endangered Species Act; and implementing regulations, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: Consult with the appropriate federal, state, and/or local agency responsible for the administration of HCPs, NCCPs or other conservation programs. Wherever practicable and feasible, the project shall be designed to avoid through project design lands preserved under the conditions of an HCP, NCCP, or other conservation program. Where avoidance is determined to be infeasible, sufficient conservation measures to fulfill the requirements of the HCP and/or | Applicability to the Project |
| | NCCP or other conservation program, which would include but not be limited to applicable authorization for incidental take pursuant to Section 7 or 10(a) of the federal Endangered Species Act or Section 2081 of the California Endangered Species Act, shall be developed to support issuance of an Incidental take permit or any other permissions required for development within the HCP/NCCP boundaries. The consideration of additional conservation measures would include the measures outlined in MM-BIO-1(b) , where applicable. | |
| | • | |
| Cultural Resources | Project-Level Mitigation Measure | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because the City has determined that the following mitigation measures |

| Table 4-1 |
|---|
| Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|---|--|
| Topic Substantial Adverse Change in Significance of a Historical Resource, Substantial Adverse Change in the Significance of an Archaeological Resource | RTP/SCS Measure MM-CUL-2(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects of on historical resources within the jurisdiction and responsibility of the Office of Historical Preservation, Native American Heritage Commission, other public agencies, and/or Local Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures consistent with Section 15064.5 of the State CEQA Guidelines capable of avoiding or reducing significant impacts on historical resources, to ensure compliance with | Applicability to the Projectare imposed as being equal to or more effective than theSCAG RTP/SCS Program EIR MM-CUL-2(b):CULT-MM-1: Retain a Qualified Archaeologist. Priorto the issuance of a demolition permit, theproject proponent shall retain a qualifiedarchaeologist, defined as anarchaeologist who meets the Secretary ofthe Interior's (SOI) Standards forprofessional archaeology, during theexcavation phase to carry out and ensureproper implementation of the mitigationmeasures related to archaeologistresources. The qualified archaeologist |
| | the National Historic Preservation Act, Section 5097.5 of the Public Resources Code (PRC), state programs pursuant to Sections 5024 and 5024.5 of the PRC, adopted county and city general plans and other federal, state and local regulations, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | shall submit a letter of retention to the project proponent no fewer than 15 days before demolition or excavation activities commence. The letter shall include a resume for the qualified archaeologist that demonstrates fulfillment of the SOI standards. |
| | Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5, conduct a record search at the appropriate Information Center to determine whether the project area has been previously surveyed and whether historic resources were identified. Obtain a qualified architectural historian to conduct historic architectural surveys as recommended by the Information Center. In the event the records indicate that no previous survey has been conducted, the Information | CULT-MM-2: Prepare an Archaeological Resources Monitoring and Mitigation Plan (ARMMP). Prior to the commencement of demolition and excavation, an ARMMP shall be prepared. The ARMMP shall include, but not be limited to, a construction worker training program (described in CULT-MM-3), monitoring protocol for demolition and excavation |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|---|
| | Center will make a recommendation on whether a survey is warranted based on the sensitivity of the project area for historical resources within 1,000 feet of the project. • Comply with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act including, but not limited to, projects for which federal funding or approval is required for the individual project. This law requires federal agencies to evaluate the impact of their actions on resources included in or eligible for listing in the National Register. Federal agencies must coordinate with the State Historic Preservation Officer in evaluating impacts and developing mitigation. These mitigation measures may include, but are not limited to the following: • Employ design measures to avoid historical resources and undertake adaptive reuse where appropriate and feasible. If resources are to be preserved, as feasible, carry out the maintenance, repair, stabilization, rehabilitation, restoration or reconstruction in a manner consistent with the Secretary of the Interior's Guidelines for Preserving, Rehabilitating, Restoring, and Reconstructing Historic Buildings. If resources would be impacted, impacts should be minimized to the extent feasible. • Where feasible, noise buffers/walls and/or visual buffers/landscaping should be constructed to preserve the | activities, discovery and processing protocol for inadvertent discoveries of archaeological resources, and identification of a curation facility should artifacts be collected. The ARMMP shall identify areas that require monitoring, provide a framework for assessing the geoarchaeological setting to determine whether sediments capable of preserving archaeological remains are present, and include a protocol for identifying the conditions under which additional or reduced levels of monitoring (e.g., spot- checking) may be appropriate. The duration and timing of the monitoring shall be determined based on the rate of excavation, geoarchaeological assessment, and, if present, the quantity, type, and spatial distribution of archaeological resources identified. The ARMMP shall minimally include a historical context statement, research design, and methodology by which any newly identified archaeological sites will be evaluated for CRHR eligibility and as unique archaeological resources. The ARMMP will specify the specific types of archaeological sites likely to be encountered, the means by which |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|--|
| | contextual setting of significant built resources. Secure a qualified environmental agency and/or architectural historian, or other such qualified person to document any significant historical resource(s), by way of historic narrative, photographs, and architectural drawings, as mitigation for the effects of demolition of a resource. Consult with the Native American Heritage Commission to determine whether known sacred sites are in the project area and identify the Native American(s) to contact to obtain information about the project site. Prior to construction activities, obtain a qualified archaeologist to conduct a record search at the appropriate Information Center of the California Archaeological Inventory to determine whether the project area has been previously surveyed and whether resources were identified. Prior to construction activities, obtain a qualified archaeologist or architectural historian (depending on applicability) to conduct archaeological and/or historic architectural surveys as recommended by the Information Center. In the event the records indicate that no previous survey has been conducted, the Information Center will make a recommendation on whether a survey is warranted based on the sensitivity of the project area for archaeological resources. If a record search indicates that the project is located in an area rich with cultural materials, retain a qualified archaeologist to monitor any | significance will be assessed. If any archaeological resources are identified and are found not to be significant or do not retain integrity, then they will be recorded to a level sufficient to document the contents and condition. The ARMMP shall include a proactive identification and documentation protocol that would facilitate preservation or mitigation of impacts to any archaeological sites identified in a cost-effective manner. The ARMMP will include potential treatment plans to be implemented in the event a newly discovered archaeological resource is determined by the qualified archaeologist to constitute a "historical resource" pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(a) or a "unique archaeological resource" pursuant to PRC 21083.2(g). The ARMMP will require that if the treatment plans outlined therein are found to be infeasible or other alternatives are proposed, the qualified archaeologist shall coordinate with the project proponent and City Planning to amend the ARMMP with a formal treatment plan that would reduce impacts to the resource(s). The treatment plans stated in the ARMMP or prepared after the discovery of a historical resource, |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|--|
| | subsurface operations, including but not limited to grading, excavation, trenching, or removal of existing features of the subject property. Conduct construction activities and excavation to avoid cultural resources (if identified). If avoidance is not feasible, further work may be needed to determine the importance of a resource. Retain a qualified archaeologist familiar with the local archaeology, and/or as appropriate, an architectural historian who should make recommendations regarding the work necessary to determine importance. If the cultural resource is determined to be important under state or federal guidelines, impacts on the cultural resource will need to be mitigated. Stop construction activities and excavation in the area where cultural resources. | shall be in accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(f) for historical resources and Public Resources Code Sections 21083.2(b) for unique archaeological resources. Preservation in place (i.e., avoidance) is the preferred manner of treatment and if it is determined avoidance is not feasible, treatment may include but not be limited to any of the following depending on the type of resource and the significance evaluation: Prehistoric archaeological sites. Data recovery shall be conducted (i.e., excavation, laboratory processing and analysis) to remove the resource(s) and reduce potential impacts to less than significant where significance is determined under CRHR Criterion 4 and integrity is retained. Historic-period archaeological site, including but not limited to a refuse scatter or building foundation(s), is present and found to retain integrity, data recovery shall be conducted (i.e., excavation, laboratory |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|-----------------|--|
| | | processing and analysis) to remove |
| | | the resource(s) and reduce potential |
| | | impacts to less than significant. In |
| | | addition to data recovery, specific |
| | | treatments shall be developed and |
| | | implemented based on potential |
| | | CRHR or eligibility criteria or as a |
| | | unique archaeological resource as |
| | | follows: |
| | | Treatment Under Criteria 1 |
| | | and 2, or as a unique |
| | | archaeological resource: |
| | | Treatment shall include |
| | | interpretation for the public. |
| | | Interpretive materials may |
| | | include, but not be limited to, |
| | | signage at the Project Site, |
| | | relocating preserved |
| | | materials in a publicly |
| | | accessible display, or visual |
| | | representations of recovered |
| | | materials. The interpretive |
| | | materials shall be prepared, |
| | | at the expense of the project |
| | | applicant, by professionals |
| | | meeting the Secretary of the |
| | | Interior standards in history |
| | | or historical archeology. The |
| | | details of the interpretive |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|-----------------|---|
| | | materials, including the form, |
| | | content, and timing of their |
| | | preparation, shall be |
| | | completed to the satisfaction |
| | | and subject to the approval of |
| | | the Department of City |
| | | Planning. The results of the |
| | | historical and archaeological |
| | | studies conducted for the |
| | | Project shall be made |
| | | available to the public |
| | | through repositories such as |
| | | the local main library branch |
| | | or identified non-profit historic |
| | | groups interested in the |
| | | subject matter. |
| | | Treatment Under Criterion |
| | | 3: Architectural |
| | | documentation of exposed |
| | | features shall be conducted |
| | | by producing narrative |
| | | records, measured drawings, |
| | | and photographs in |
| | | conformance with HAER |
| | | standards prior to any |
| | | alteration or demolition |
| | | activity. |
| | | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|-----------------|------------|--|
| - | | | Treatment Under Criterion |
| | | | 4: No additional work; data |
| | | | recovery is sufficient. |
| | | | The ARMMP shall summarize the |
| | | | requirements for tribal coordination in the |
| | | | event of an inadvertent discovery of |
| | | | Native American archaeological |
| | | | resources, including the applicable |
| | | | regulatory compliance measures or |
| | | | conditions of approval for the inadvertent |
| | | | discovery of tribal cultural resources to be |
| | | | carried out in concert. The ARMMP shall |
| | | | be prepared in compliance with Public |
| | | | Resources Code Section 5024.1, Title 14 |
| | | | California Code of Regulations, Section |
| | | | 15064.5 of the CEQA Guidelines, and |
| | | | PRC Sections 21083.2 and 21084.1. |
| | | CULT-MM-3: | Worker Environmental Awareness |
| | | | Program (WEAP) Training. Before the |
| | | | commencement of initial demolition or |
| | | | excavation at the Project Site, the |
| | | | retained qualified archaeologist or their |
| | | | designee shall provide a WEAP training to |
| | | | on-site project personnel responsible for |
| | | | supervising demolition and excavation |
| | | | (i.e., foreman or supervisor) and machine |
| | | | operators. The WEAP training shall brief |
| | | | construction crews regarding the |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|-----------------|---|
| | | regulatory compliance requirements and |
| | | applicable mitigation measures that must |
| | | be adhered to during demolition and |
| | | excavation activities for the protection of |
| | | archaeological resources. As an element |
| | | of the WEAP training, the qualified |
| | | archaeologist or their designee shall |
| | | advise the construction crews on proper |
| | | procedures to follow if an unanticipated |
| | | archaeological resource is discovered |
| | | during construction. The qualified |
| | | archaeologist or their designee shall also |
| | | provide the construction workers with |
| | | contact information for the qualified |
| | | archaeologist and their designee(s) and |
| | | protocols to follow if inadvertent |
| | | discoveries are made. In addition, |
| | | workers shall be shown examples of the |
| | | types of archaeological resources that |
| | | would require notification of the |
| | | archaeologist, if encountered. Once the |
| | | ground disturbances have commenced, |
| | | the need for additional or supplemental |
| | | WEAP training shall be determined |
| | | through consultation with the qualified |
| | | archaeologist, project proponent or their |
| | | designated project supervisor. Within five |
| | | days of completing a WEAP training, a list |
| | | of those in attendance shall be provided |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|-----------------|--------------|--|
| | | | by the qualified archaeologist to the |
| | | | project proponent. |
| | | | |
| | | CUL1-MIVI-4: | Monitoring for Archaeological |
| | | | of demolition or execution activities on |
| | | | archaeological monitor shall be present |
| | | | during ground disturbing activities as |
| | | | stipulated in the ARMMP. The qualified |
| | | | archaeologist may designate an |
| | | | archaeologist to conduct the monitoring |
| | | | under their direction. The monitor shall |
| | | | have the authority to temporarily halt or |
| | | | redirect construction activities in soils that |
| | | | are likely to contain potentially significant |
| | | | archaeological resources, as determined |
| | | | by the qualified archaeologist. The |
| | | | monitor shall complete a daily log |
| | | | documenting construction activities and |
| | | | observations. The field observations shall |
| | | | include assessment of the |
| | | | geoarchaeological setting and whether |
| | | | sediments are identified that are no longer |
| | | | capable or unlikely to contain |
| | | | archaeological material (i.e., sterile), |
| | | | reaching the total donth of execution |
| | | | expected for the project if initial |
| | | | archaeological monitoring identifies low |
| | | | archaeological sensitivity (i.e. sterile soil |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|-----------------|--|
| | | strata) below a certain depth or within a |
| | | certain portion of the Project Site, a |
| | | corresponding reduction of monitoring |
| | | coverage would be appropriate. In the |
| | | event that potentially significant |
| | | archaeological resources are exposed |
| | | during construction, work in the |
| | | immediate vicinity of the find (within 8 |
| | | meters [25 feet]) shall stop until a qualified |
| | | archaeologist can evaluate the |
| | | significance of the find. Construction |
| | | activities may continue in other areas in |
| | | coordination with the qualified |
| | | archaeologist. If the discovery is |
| | | determined by the qualified archaeologist |
| | | to constitute a "historical resource" |
| | | pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section |
| | | 15064.5(a) or a "unique archaeological |
| | | resource" pursuant to PRC 21083.2(g), |
| | | and the treatments proposed in the |
| | | ARMMP are found to be infeasible or |
| | | other alternatives are proposed, the |
| | | qualified archaeologist shall coordinate |
| | | with the project proponent and the |
| | | Department of City Planning to amend the |
| | | ARMMP with a formal treatment plan that |
| | | would reduce impacts to the resource(s). |
| | | The treatment plan established for the |
| | | resource(s) shall be in accordance with |
| | | CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(f) for |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|-----------------|---|
| | | historical resources and Public |
| | | Resources Code Sections 21083.2(b) for |
| | | unique archaeological resources. |
| | | Preservation in place (i.e., avoidance) is |
| | | the preferred manner of treatment and if it |
| | | is determined avoidance is not feasible, |
| | | treatment may include architectural |
| | | documentation and archaeological data |
| | | recovery (i.e., excavation, laboratory |
| | | processing and analysis) to remove the |
| | | resource(s) and reduce potential impacts |
| | | to less than significant. |
| | | Within 30 days of concluding the |
| | | archaeological monitoring the gualified |
| | | archaeologist shall prepare a memo |
| | | stating that the archaeological monitoring |
| | | requirement of the mitigation measure |
| | | has been fulfilled and summarize the |
| | | results of any archaeological finds. The |
| | | memo shall be submitted to the project |
| | | proponent and the Department of City |
| | | Planning. Following submittal of the |
| | | memo, the qualified archaeologist shall |
| | | prepare a technical report documenting |
| | | the methods and results of all work |
| | | completed under the ARMMP, including, |
| | | if any, treatment of archaeological |
| | | materials, results of artifact processing, |
| | | analysis, and research, and evaluation of |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|-----------------|--|
| | | the resource(s) for the California Register |
| | | of Historical Resources. Once laboratory |
| | | analysis is complete, any recovered |
| | | archaeological materials shall be curated |
| | | at a public, non-profit research institution |
| | | that will ensure their long-term |
| | | preservation and allow access to |
| | | interested scholars and shall be done at |
| | | the expense of the project applicant. |
| | | Should no such institutions accept the |
| | | materials, they shall be donated to an |
| | | educational institution or historical |
| | | society. The format and content of the |
| | | report shall follow the California Office of |
| | | Historic Preservation's Archaeological |
| | | Resource Management Reports (ARMR). |
| | | Any archaeological resources identified |
| | | shall be documented on appropriate |
| | | California Department of Parks and |
| | | Recreation 523-Series Forms The report |
| | | shall be prepared under the supervision of |
| | | a qualified archaeologist and submitted to |
| | | the Department of City Planning within 12 |
| | | months of completion of the monitoring. |
| | | The final draft of the report shall be |
| | | submitted to the South Central Coastal |
| | | Information Center. |
| | | |

Table 4-1 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--|---|---|
| <u>Cultural Resources</u> Disturb Human Remains | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-CUL-4(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects to human remains that are within the jurisdiction and responsibility of the Native American Heritage | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because the City has determined that the existing regulatory requirements listed below regarding discovery of human remains would apply to the Project and are equal to or more effective than the SCAG RTP/SCS Program EIR MM-CUL-4(b). |
| | Commission, other public agencies, and/or Local Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency should consider mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing significant impacts on human remains, to ensure compliance with the California Health and Safety Code, Section 7060 and Section 18950- 18961 and Native American Heritage Commission, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | Specifically, in accordance with the State's Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5, in the event of discovery or recognition of any human remains at the Project Site, no further excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie adjacent remains shall occur until the Los Angeles County Coroner has determined, in accordance with Chapter 10 (commencing with Section 27460) of Part 3 of Division 2 of Title 3 of the Government Code, that the remains are not subject to the provisions of Section 27491 of the Government Code or any other related provisions of law concerning investigation of the circumstances, manner, and cause of any death, and the recommendations concerning the treatment and disposition of the human remains have been |
| | In the event of discovery or recognition of any human remains during construction or excavation activities associated with the project, in any location other than a dedicated cemetery, cease further excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie adjacent human remains until the coroner of the county in which the remains are discovered has been informed and has determined that no investigation of the cause of death is required. If any discovered remains are of Native American origin: | made to the person responsible for the excavation, or to his or her authorized representative, in the manner provided in Section 5097.98 of the Public Resources Code. The coroner shall make his or her determination within two working days from the time the person responsible for the excavation, or his or her authorized representative, notifies the coroner of the discovery or recognition of the human remains. If the coroner determines the the remains are not subject to his or her authority and if the coroner recognizes the human remains to be those of a Native American or has reason to believe that they are those of a Native American, he or she shall contact, by telephone within 24 hours, the Native American Heritage Commission. Through compliance with this |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|---|
| Topic | RTP/SCS Measure Contact the County Coroner to contact the Native American Heritage Commission to ascertain the proper descendants from the deceased individual. The coroner should make a recommendation to the landowner or the person responsible for the excavation work, for means of treating or disposing of, with appropriate dignity, the human remains and any associated grave goods. This may include obtaining a qualified archaeologist or team of archaeologists to properly excavate the human remains. If the Native American Heritage Commission is unable to identify a descendant, or the descendant failed to make a recommendation within 24 hours after being notified by the commission, obtain a Native American monitor, and an archaeologist, if recommended by the Native American human remains and any associated grave goods, with appropriate dignity, on the property and in a location that is not wheat the further environmended by the property and in a location that is not wheat the further environmended by the property and in a location that is not wheat the further environmended by the property and in a location that is not wheat the further environmended by the property and in a location that is not wheat the further environmended by the property and in a location that is protected. | Applicability to the Project regulation, potential Project impacts to human remains would be less than significant. |
| | not subject to further subsurface disturbance where the following conditions occur: The Native American Heritage Commission is | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--|---|--|
| | unable to identify a descendent; The descendant identified fails to make a recommendation; or The landowner or their authorized representative rejects the recommendation of the descendant, and the mediation by the NAHC fails to provide measures acceptable to the landowner. | |
| <u>Energy</u> Increase Residential Energy Use, Increase Building Energy Use | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-EN-2(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects of increased residential energy consumption that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of public agencies and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with CALGreen, local building codes, and other applicable laws and regulations governing residential building standards, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: Integrate green building measures | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because the City has determined the Project substantially conforms to this mitigation measure through the Project's compliance with existing City and state regulatory requirements. The Project would be constructed to meet or exceed energy standards outlined in the City's Green Building Code, which incorporates the requirements of CALGreen. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------------------|--|---|
| | Building Code Title 24) into project design including: OUse energy efficient materials in building design, construction, rehabilitation, and retrofit. Install energy-efficient lighting, heating, and cooling systems (cogeneration); water heaters; appliances; equipment; and control systems. Reduce lighting, heating, and cooling needs by taking advantage of light colored roofs, trees for shade, and sunlight. Incorporate passive environmental control systems that account for the characteristics of the natural environment. Use high-efficiency lighting and cooking devices. Incorporate passive solar design. Use high-reflectivity building materials and multiple glazing. Prohibit gas-powered landscape maintenance equipment. Install electric vehicle charging stations. Reduce wood burning stoves or fireplaces. | |
| Geology and Soils | Project-Level Mitigation Measure | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because the City has determined that the existing regulatory |

| Table 4-1 |
|---|
| Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--|---|---|
| Adverse Effects due to Earthquake or Other Seismic Activity, Unstable Geologic Unit or Soil, Expansive Soil | to MM-GEO-1(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects on the potential for projects to result in the exposure | requirements listed below regarding soils and geology would apply to the Project and are equal to or more effective than the SCAG RTP/SCS Program EIR MM- GEO-1(b). |
| | of people and infrastructure to the effects of earthquakes, seismic related ground-failure, liquefaction, and seismically induced landslides, that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of public agencies, regulatory agencies, and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with County and City Public Works and Building and Safety Department Standards, the Uniform Building Code (UBC) and the California Building Code (CBC), and other applicable laws and regulations governing building standards, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | Specifically, the Project would be required to comply with the existing building regulations associated with the City's Building Code, which incorporates the Uniform Building Code and the California Building Code. Furthermore, construction of the Project would not exacerbate existing physical conditions pertaining to seismic hazards. Moreover, the Project is subject to regulatory compliance measures, which avoid and/or reduce the significant effects on the potential for projects to result in the exposure of people and infrastructure to the effects of earthquakes, seismic related ground-failure, liquefaction, and seismically induced landslides. The Project would also be subject to the following regulatory compliance measures: |
| | • Consistent with Section 4.7.2 of the Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act, conduct a geologic investigation to demonstrate that proposed buildings would not be constructed across active faults. An evaluation and written report of a specific site can and should be prepared by a licensed geologist. If an active fault is found and unfit for human occupancy over the fault, place a setback of 50 feet from the fault. | (1) Prior to the issuance of any permit, a geology/soils report shall be submitted to the Grading Division to provide design recommendations for the proposed grading/construction along with an evaluation by the project geologist to confirm that the proposed habitable structures are located within the shadow zone of the fault study exploration. (2) The report shall be reviewed and approved by the Los Angeles Department of Building and Safety, Grading Division for the Project |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|--|
| | Use site-specific fault identification investigations conducted by licensed geotechnical professionals in accordance with the requirements of the Alquist-Priolo Act, as well as any applicable Caltrans regulations that exceed or reasonably replace the requirements of the Act to either determine that the anticipated risk to people and property is at or below acceptable levels or site-specific measures have been incorporated into the project design, consistent with the CBC and UBC. Ensure that projects located within or across Alquist-Priolo Zones comply with design requirements provided in Special Publication 117, published by the California Geological Survey, as well as relevant local, regional, state, and federal design criteria for construction in seismic areas. Consistent with the CBC and local regulatory agencies with oversight of development associated with the Plan, ensure that projects are designed in accordance with county and city code requirements for seismic ground shaking. With respect to design, consider seismicity of the site, soil response at the site, and dynamic characteristics of the structure, in compliance with the appropriate California Building Code and State of California design, grading, and | (3) During construction, the project engineering geologist shall observe all excavations that expose the natural alluvial soils and bedrock to verify the conclusions of the fault investigation and confirm that no Holocene faults or ground deformation are exposed. The project engineering geologist shall post a notice on the job site for the City Inspector and the Contractor stating that the excavation (or portion thereof) has been observed, documented and meets the conditions of the report. No fill or lagging shall be placed until the LADBS Inspector has verified the documentation. (4) A supplemental report that summarizes the geologist's observations shall be submitted to the Grading Division of the Department upon completion of the excavations. If evidence of active faulting is observed, the Grading Division shall be notified immediately. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| Topic | RTP/SCS Measure construction practices in order to avoid or reduce geologic hazards. Consistent with the CBC and local regulatory agencies with oversight of development associated with the Plan, ensure that site-specific geotechnical investigations conducted by a qualified geotechnical expert be required prior to preparation of project designs. These investigations shall identify areas of potential expansive soils and recommend remedial geotechnical measures to eliminate any problems. Recommended corrective measures, such as structural reinforcement and replacing soil with engineered fill, shall be implemented in project designs. Geotechnical investigations identify areas of potential failure and recommend remedial geotechnical measures to eliminate any problems. Adhere to design standards described in the CBC and all standard geotechnical investigation, design, grading, and construction practices to avoid or reduce impacts from earthquakes, ground shaking, ground failure, and landslides. Consistent with the CBC and local regulatory agencies with oversight of development associated with the Plan, design projects to avoid geologic units or soils that are unstable, expansive soils and soils prone to lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse wherever feasible | Applicability to the Project |

Table 4-1 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project | |
|---|---|--|---|
| <u>Geology and Soils</u> Soil Erosion or Loss of Topsoil | RTF/SCS MeasureProject-Level Mitigation MeasureTopsoilProject-Level Mitigation MeasureMM-GEO-2(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects on | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because the City has determined that the existing regulatory requirements listed below that require compliance with existing water quality standards as governed by the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (LARWQCB) would apply to the Project and are equal to or more effective than the SCAG RTP/SCS Program EIR MM-GEO-4(b). | |
| | | Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with County and | Specifically, the Project would be required to comply with the following regulatory requirements: |
| | | 1) The NPDES General Construction Permit including the preparation of a SWPPP and implementation of best management practices (BMPs), required to minimize soil erosion and sedimentation from entering the storm drains during the construction period. In addition, the Project would be subject to the City's Stormwater and Urban Runoff Pollution Control regulations (Ordinance No. 172,176 and No. 173,494) to ensure pollutant loads from the Project Site would be minimized for downstream receiving waters. Compliance with the NPDES and | |
| | | implementation of the SWPPP and BMPs, as well as the City's discharge requirements would ensure that construction stormwater runoff would not violate water quality and/or discharge requirements. | |
| are conducted to ascertain soil types prior to preparation of project designs. These investigations can and should identify areas of potential failure and recommend remedial geotechnical measures to eliminate any problems. Consistent with the requirements of the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) for | 2) LID Ordinance: Also, during operation the Project would be required to comply with the City's Low Impact Development (LID) Ordinance. The LID Ordinance applies to all development and redevelopment in the City that requires a building permit. LID Plans are required to include a site design approach and BMPs that address runoff and pollution at the source. Further, to comply with | | |
Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|---|--|
| | should submit a notice of termination to the SWRCB. Consistent with the requirements of the SWRCB and local regulatory agencies with oversight of development associated with the Plan, ensure that project designs provide adequate slope drainage and appropriate landscaping to minimize the occurrence of slope instability and erosion. Design features should include measures to reduce erosion caused by storm water. Road cuts should be designed to maximize the potential for revegetation. Consistent with the CBC and local regulatory agencies with oversight of development associated with the Plan, ensure that, prior to preparing project designs, new and abandoned wells are identified within construction areas to ensure the stability of nearby soils. | |
| <u>Geology and Soils</u> Potential to Destroy Unique Paleo Resources or Unique Geological Features | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-CUL-1(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects on unique paleontological resources or sites and unique geologic features that are within the jurisdiction and responsibility of National Park Service, Office of Historic Preservation, and Native American Heritage Commission, other public agencies, and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures consistent with Section 15064.5 of the | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because the City has determined that the following mitigation measure is imposed as being equal to or more effective than the SCAG RTP/SCS Program EIR MM-CUL-1(b): GEO-MM-1: Prior to Project construction, the prime contractor and any subcontractor(s) shall be advised of the legal and/or regulatory implications of knowingly destroying paleontological or unique geologic resources or sites from the Project Sites. In addition, in the event that paleontological resources or sites, or unique geologic features are exposed during Project construction, work within 50 feet of the find |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|--|
| | State CEQA Guidelines capable of avoiding or reducing significant impacts on unique paleontological resources or sites or unique geologic features. Ensure compliance with the National Historic Preservation Act, Section 5097.5 of the Public Resources Code (PRC), state programs pursuant to Sections 5024 and 5024.5 of the PRC, adopted county and city general plans, and other federal, state and local regulations, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | shall stop until a qualified paleontologist can identify and evaluate the significance of the discovery and develop recommendations for treatment. Construction activities could continue in other areas of the Project Site. If the resource is found to be significant, recommendations would include a preparation of a Treatment Plan, which would require recordation, collection, and analysis of the discovery; preparation of a technical report; and curation of the collection and supporting documentation in an appropriate depository. Any paleontological resources or sites, or unique |
| | Obtain review by a qualified geologist or paleontologist to determine if the project has the potential to require excavation or blasting of parent material with a moderate to high potential to contain unique paleontological or resources, or to require the substantial alteration of a unique geologic feature. Avoid exposure or displacement of parent material with a moderate to high potential to yield unique paleontological resources. Where avoidance of parent material with a moderate to high potential to yield unique paleontological resources is not feasible: All on-site construction personnel receive Worker Education and Awareness Program (WEAP) training to understand the regulatory framework that provides for protection of paleontological resources and become familiar with diagnostic | geologic features shall be treated in accordance with state law. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| | characteristics of the materials | |
| | with the potential to be | |
| | encountered. | |
| | Prepare a Paleontological | |
| | Resource Management Plan | |
| | (PRMP) to guide the salvage, | |
| | documentation and repository of | |
| | representative samples of unique | |
| | paleontological resources | |
| | encountered during construction. | |
| | If unique paleontological | |
| | during execution or blosting upo | |
| | a gualified paleontologist to | |
| | a qualified pareonitologist to | |
| | the PRMP | |
| | \circ Monitor blasting and earth- | |
| | moving activities in parent | |
| | material, with a moderate to high | |
| | potential to yield unique | |
| | paleontological resources using a | |
| | qualified paleontologist or | |
| | archeologists cross-trained in | |
| | paleontology to determine if | |
| | unique paleontological resources | |
| | are encountered during such | |
| | activities, consistent with the | |
| | specified or comparable | |
| | protocols. | |
| | earthmoving activity is proposed | |
| | in a geologic unit baying a | |
| | moderate or high potential for | |
| | containing fossils and specify the | |
| | need for a paleontological or | |
| | archeological (cross-trained in | |

| Table 4-1 |
|---|
| Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|--|--|
| | paleontology) to be present during earth-moving activities or blasting in these areas. Avoid routes and project designs that would permanently alter unique features with archaeological and/or paleontological significance. Salvage and document adversely affected resources sufficient to support ongoing scientific | |
| <u>Greenhouse Gases</u> Cumulative Impacts | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-GHG-3(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the potential to conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emission of greenhouse gases that are within the jurisdiction and authority of California Air Resources Board, local air districts, and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential to conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emission of greenhouse gases, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to mitigate the significant effects of greenhouse gas impacts to ensure compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, governing CAPs, general plans, adopted policies and plans of local agencies, and standards set forth by responsible public agencies for the purpose of reducing emissions of greenhouse gases, as applicable and feasible. Consistent with Section 15126.4(c) of the State CEQA Guidelines, | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because the City has determined that the existing regulatory requirements listed below, including but not limited to the City's Green Building Code are applicable, and are equal to or more effective than the SCAG RTP/SCS Program EIR MM-GHG-3(b) in avoiding or reducing the potential to conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emission of greenhouse gases that are within the jurisdiction and authority of California Air Resources Board, local air districts, and/or Lead Agencies. Such features and regulatory requirements include the following: The Project must meet Title 24 2016 standards and include ENERGY STAR appliances. Energy Starrated appliances would reduce the projects energy demand during the operational life of the 685 dwelling units. The Project is subject to construction waste reduction of at least 50 percent. In addition, operations at the Project Site is subject to AB 939 requirements to divert 50 percent of solid waste to landfills through source reduction, recycling, and composting. Finally, the Project is required by the California Solid Waste |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|---|
| | greenhouse gas mitigation measures that have been used for projects in the SCAG region as set forth below, or through comparable measures identified by Lead Agency: Measures in an adopted plan or mitigation program for the reduction of emissions that are required as part of the Lead Agency's decision. Reduction in emissions resulting from a project through implementation of project features, project design, or other measures, such as those described in Appendix F of the State CEQA Guidelines. Off-site measures to mitigate a project's emissions. Measures that consider incorporation of Best Available Control Technology (BACT) during design, construction and operation of projects to minimize GHG emissions, including but not limited to: Use energy and fuel efficient vehicles and equipment. Project proponents are encouraged to meet and exceed all EPA/NHTSA/CARB standards relating to fuel efficiency and emission reduction; Use alternative (non-petroleum based) fuels; Deployment of zero- and/or near zero emission technologies as defined by CARB; | Reuse and Recycling Access Act of 1991 to provide adequate storage areas for collection and storage of recyclable waste materials. As mandated by the LA Green Building Code, the Project would be required to provide a schedule of plumbing fixtures and fixture fittings that reduce potable water use within the development by at least 20 percent. It must also provide irrigation design and controllers that are weather- or soil moisture-based and automatically adjust in response to weather conditions and plants' needs. The Project would use energy from LADWP, which has goals to diversify its portfolio of energy sources to increase the use of renewable energy. The Project would use water-efficient landscaping including point-to-point irrigation and a smart controller drip system to reduce water use. The Project would include a minimum of 10 percent of the total number of parking spaces to include Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Stations. The Project would be consistent with the following key GHG reduction strategies in SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS which are based on changing the region's land use and travel patterns: Compact growth in areas accessible to transit; More multi-family housing; Jobs and housing closer to transit; New housing and job growth focused in High Quality Transit Areas (HQTA); and Biking and walking infrastructure to improve active transportation options, transit access. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Use lighting systems that are energy efficient, such as LED technology; Use the minimum feasible amount of GHG-emitting construction materials that is feasible; Use cement blended with the maximum feasible amount of fmG emissions from cement production; Use cement blended with the raduce GHG emissions from cement production; Incorporate design measures to reduce on the design measures to reduce management through encouraging solid waste metage fixtures and water capture to reduce water consumption; Use lighter-colored pavement where feasible; Protect and plant shade trees in or near construction debris to maximum extent feasible; Protect and plant shade trees in or near construction projects where feasible; and Solid bible tab include concepts | Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | | Applicability to the Project |
|---|-------|---|---|--|
| Use cement blended with the maximum feasible amount of fig ash or other materials that reduce GHG emissions from cement production; Incorporate design measures to reduce GHG emissions from solid waste management through encouraging solid waste reduction, recycling, and reuse; Incorporate passive solar and other design measures to reduce energy consumption and increase production and use of renewable energy; Incorporate design measures like WaterSense fixtures and water capture to reduce water consumption; Use lighter-colored pavement where feasible; Protect and plant shade trees in or near construction projects where feasible; Protect and plant shade trees in or near construction projects where feasible; and Solid bids that include concents | | o Us er te o Us ar cc | lse lighting systems that are nergy efficient, such as LED echnology; lse the minimum feasible mount of GHG-emitting onstruction materials that is easible: | Moreover, the Project is consistent with state, regional, and City of Los Angeles GHG emission reduction goals and objectives, and thus would not conflict with any applicable plan, policy, or regulation of an agency adopted for purposes of reducing the emission of GHGs. |
| or near construction projects where feasible; and o Solicit bids that include concepts | | fe. Us m. as Gi pr In re sc er re In o In o er o In ve o In o er o In o er o In o er o In o er er | binstruction materials that is easible; lise cement blended with the naximum feasible amount of fly sh or other materials that reduce GHG emissions from cement roduction; neorporate design measures to educe GHG emissions from olid waste management through neouraging solid waste eduction, recycling, and reuse; neorporate passive solar and ther design measures to reduce nergy consumption and nerease production and use of enewable energy; neorporate design measures like VaterSense fixtures and water apture to reduce water onsumption; lise lighter-colored pavement there feasible; recycle construction debris to naximum extent feasible; rotect and plant shade trees in | Finally, pursuant to California Public Resources Code Sections 21155.2 and 21159.28, a SCEA prepared for a TPP that is consistent with the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS and its applicable mitigation measures does not need to prepare or discuss project specific or cumulative GHG emission impacts associated with car or light-duty truck trips. |
| | | o Sc | where feasible; and olicit bids that include concepts | |

| Table 4-1 |
|---|
| Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| | • Measures that encourage transit use, carpooling, bike-share and car-share programs, active transportation, and parking strategies, including, but not limited to, transit- active transportation coordinated strategies, increased bicycle carrying capacity on transit and rail vehicles. | |
| | Incorporating bicycle and pedestrian facilities into project designs, maintaining these facilities, and providing amenities incentivizing their use; providing adequate bicycle parking and planning for and building local bicycle projects that connect with the regional network. | |
| | • Improving transit access to rail and bus routes by incentives for construction of transit facilities within developments, and/or providing dedicated shuttle service to transit stations. | |
| | Adopting employer trip reduction measures to reduce employee trips such as vanpool and carpool programs, providing end-of-trip facilities, and telecommuting programs. | |
| | Designate a percentage of parking spaces for ride-sharing vehicles or high-occupancy vehicles, and provide adequate passenger loading and unloading for those vehicles. | |
| | Land use siting and design measures that reduce GHG emissions, including: | |
| | Developing on infill and brownfields sites; Building high density and mixed use developments near transit; | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|--|---|
| | Retaining on-site mature trees and vegetation, and planting new canopy trees; Measures that increase vehicle efficiency, encourage use of zero and low emissions vehicles, or reduce the carbon content of fuels, including constructing or encouraging construction of electric vehicle charging stations or neighborhood electric vehicle networks, or charging for electric bicycles; and Measures to reduce GHG emissions from solid waste management through encouraging solid waste recycling and reuse. | |
| HazardsandHazardousMaterialsSignificantHazardduetoRoutineTransport,Use,orDisposalofHazardousMaterials,ReasonablyForeseeableUpsetandAccidentConditions,HazardousEmissionsorMaterialsNearSchoolSchoolSchoolSchool | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-HAZ-1(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects related to the routine transport, use or disposal of hazardous materials that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of public agencies and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Hazardous Waste Control Act, the Unified Hazardous Waste and Hazardous Materials Management Regulatory Program, the Hazardous Waste Source Reduction and Management Review Act of 1989, the California Vehicle Code, and other applicable laws and regulations, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because the City has determined that a Phase I ESA and a Phase II ESA have been prepared for the Project showing that in the event that an underground storage tank is encountered during excavation, the City's mitigation measures listed below would apply to the Project and are equal to or more effective than the SCAG RTP/SCS Program EIR MM-HAZ -1(b). Specifically, the following mitigation measure has been imposed on the Project that would ensure any potential impacts related to an unknown underground storage tank would be less than significant: HAZ-MM-1: During excavation of the Project Site for the subterranean parking garage and prior to issuance of a Building Permit, if a UST is encountered, the |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|---|
| Topic | RTP/SCS Measure comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: Where the construction or operation of projects involves the transport of hazardous material, provide a written plan of proposed routes of travel demonstrating use of roadways designated for the transport of such materials. Where the construction or operation of projects involves the transport of hazardous materials, avoid transport of such materials within one-quarter mile of schools, when school is in session, wherever feasible. Where it is not feasible to avoid transport of hazardous materials, within one-quarter mile of schools on local streets, provide notification of the anticipated schedule of transport of such materials. Specify the need for interim storage and disposal of hazardous materials to be undertaken consistent with applicable federal, state, and local statutes and regulations in the plans and specifications of the transportation | Applicability to the ProjectProject Applicant shall procure aDivision 5 Permit from the LosAngeles County Fire Department forremoval of a UST and shall complywith the requirements of the permit.HAZ-MM-2:Prior to start of construction, the SoilManagement Plan (SMP) dated May27, 2020 and subsequentamendments shall be submitted tothe Los Angeles County FireDepartment for review and approval.The SMP shall be implementedduring excavation and gradingactivities in areas of potential soilcontamination to ensure site closureis properly implemented, andcontaminated soil encountered isproperly identified, removed, anddisposed of off-site. The SMP shall |
| | Specify the freed for internit storage and disposal of hazardous materials to be undertaken consistent with applicable federal, state, and local statutes and regulations in the plans and specifications of the transportation improvement project. Submit a Hazardous Materials Business/Operations Plan for review and approval by the appropriate local agency. Once approved, keep the plan on file with the Lead Agency (or other appropriate government agency) and update, as applicable. The purpose of the Hazardous | is properly implemented, and contaminated soil encountered is properly identified, removed, and disposed of off-site. The SMP shall include the following: A qualified environmental consultant shall be present as necessary during grading and excavation activities to monitor |
| | Materials Business/Operations Plan is to ensure that employees are adequately trained to handle the materials and provides information to the local fire protection agency | compliance with the SMP and to actively monitor the soil and excavations for evidence of contamination. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|--|
| | should emergency response be required. The Hazardous Materials Business/Operations Plan should include the following: The types of hazardous materials or chemicals stored and/or used on-site, such as petroleum fuel products, lubricants, solvents, and cleaning fluids. The location of such hazardous materials. An emergency response plan including employee training information. A plan that describes the manner in which these materials are handled, transported and disposed. Specify the appropriate procedures for interim storage and disposal of hazardous materials, anticipated to be required in support of operations and maintenance activities, in conformance with applicable federal, state, and local statutes and regulations, in the Operations Manual for projects. Follow manufacturer's recommendations on use, storage, and disposal of chemical products used in construction. Avoid overtopping construction equipment fuel gas tanks. During routine maintenance of construction equipment, properly contain and remove grease and oils. | Soil encountered during excavation or grading activities that appears to have been affected by hydrocarbons or other contamination shall be evaluated, based on appropriate laboratory analysis, by a qualified environmental consultant prior to off-site disposal at a licensed facility. Identified contaminated soil shall be properly removed, handled, and transported to an appropriately licensed disposal facility, in accordance with the SMP. Measures to protect construction workers from exposure to soils. HAZ-MM-3: Prior to start of construction, building controls such as liquid boot protection or a passive sub-slab vapor depressurization system as part of the footprint of the structure shall be included to the satisfaction of the Los Angeles Building and Safety Department. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|-----------------|-----------|--|
| | | HAZ-MM-4: | The design of the passive system should |
| | | | also include the provision to convert the |
| | | | passive system to an active |
| | | | depressurization system if vapor |
| | | | concentrations near the slab and in the |
| | | | parking structure exceed current |
| | | | screening levels. |
| | | | Vapor sampling of the parking area and passive sub-slab system could be conducted either annually or semi- annually to periodically measure the contaminant concentrations in those areas. With these controls in place the known subsurface contamination risks can be successfully mitigated providing protection for future occupants (both commercial and residential) of the development. |
| | | HAZ-MM-5: | During excavation tasks, a photo- ionization detector (PID) shall be on site at all times. The PID shall be maintained in good working order, and shall be calibrated by the manufacturer at least once every three months and by experienced personnel on a daily basis. The calibration of the device shall be verified using hexane calibration gas at the beginning of each working day. In the |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|-----------------|-----------|---|
| | | | event that inconsistent or erratic readings |
| | | | are experienced, or the PID becomes |
| | | | otherwise inoperable, all excavation |
| | | | activities will cease until it is repaired or |
| | | | replaced. |
| | | HAZ-MM-6: | All monitoring shall be conducted by an |
| | | | environmental professional provided by |
| | | | Remdox or other equally qualified |
| | | | professional, and the monitoring of soil |
| | | | will occur at a distance no more than 3 |
| | | | inches above the soil surface using the |
| | | | PID. Monitoring shall be initially |
| | | | conducted at a minimum frequency of one |
| | | | reading every fifteen minutes. Upon |
| | | | detection of VOC contamination, |
| | | | monitoring shall be conducted at a |
| | | | minimum rate of one reading for every five |
| | | | cubic yards excavated. All readings shall |
| | | | be taken no later than three minutes after |
| | | | each load of soil is excavated. All |
| | | | monitoring shall be conducted by trained |
| | | | personnel who are proficient in the use of |
| | | | the PID. Written records of PID monitoring |
| | | | and calibrations shall be kept in a format |
| | | | approved by the SCAQMD. The |
| | | | certification on all records shall be signed |
| | | | and dated on the day the measurements |
| | | | are observed. Upon detection of VOC- |
| | | | contaminated soil (defined by PID |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|-----------------|-----------|---|
| | | | readings 50 ppmV or greater), the SCAQMD shall be notified within 24 hours. The Soil Monitoring Program is required by SCAQMD but is also designed to provide a framework for segregating the soil planned for export into three categories: Significantly Impacted Soil, Lightly Impacted Soil, and Non-Impacted Soil. |
| | | HAZ-MM-7: | Although not expected during this project, any VOC-contaminated soil greater 1000 ppmV shall be immediately stockpiled, covered with plastic sheeting and stored separately from non-VOC-contaminated soil. Once excavated, contaminated soil under these conditions will be considered contaminated at all times and will not be backfilled. A VOC contaminated stockpile shall not contain more than 500 cubic yards of soil. |
| | | HAZ-MM-8: | If the PID measurement is greater than 50 ppmV, but less than 1000 ppmV, the affected work area and load of soil shall be sprayed with water to suppress vapors. The contaminated soil in stockpiles shall be covered with plastic sheeting and secured so that no portion of the |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|-----------------|------------|---|
| | | | contaminated soil is exposed to the atmosphere. |
| | | HAZ-MM-9: | If the PID measurement is greater than 1000 ppmV, SCAQMD will be notified within one hour and the affected soil and working area shall be immediately sprayed with water. Contaminated soil once stockpiled and covered with plastic sheeting shall remain covered and undisturbed until removed from the site. In the unlikely event that any contaminated soils meet the criteria for designation as hazardous waste it will be disposed of according to the applicable SCAQMD and City regulations. |
| | | HAZ-MM-10: | Any soil with readings greater than 50 ppmV via PID shall be considered potentially contaminated and placed in a separate stockpile from native soil that is not impacted. This material will require additional testing and separate disposal from the (highly unlikely) Significantly Impacted Soil and the (probably more voluminous) Non-Impacted Soil. Monitoring of the spoils during excavation using the PID is the primary mechanism for separation of the material into different piles that may not be comingled. Stockpiles may be expanded to a maximum of 500 cubic yards before disposal is required. Determining the fate |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|---|--|
| | | and destination of the stockpiled soil will require sampling and profiling of the material as required by the waste- accepting facility. This will include laboratory testing for petroleum hydrocarbons, VOC, heavy metals, and other components at their discretion. Soil that passes the field screening and has less than 50 ppmV VOC will be considered Non-Impacted by the SCAQMD Rule 1166 standards, but still may be impacted enough to warrant discretionary disposal at an appropriate landfill. Because of the high sensitivity of chlorinated volatiles, Remdox recommends that all soils over 1 ppmV be contained in a separate pile from non-impacted soil. |
| Hazards and Hazardous <u>Materials</u> Located on a Hazardous Materials Site Section 65962.5 | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-HAZ-4(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects related to a project placed on a hazardous materials site, that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of regulatory agencies, other public agencies and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Government Code Section 65962.5, Occupational Safety and Health Code of 197; the Response Conservation, and Recovery Act; the | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, as it is not applicable to the Project, because the City has determined that the Project Site is not included on any list compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5, and no impacts related to this issue would occur. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| | Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act; the Hazardous Materials Release and Clean-up Act, and the Uniform Building Code, and County and City building standards, and all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations governing hazardous waste sites, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | |
| | Complete a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, including a review and consideration of data from all known databases of contaminated sites, during the process of planning, environmental clearance, and construction for projects. Where warranted due to the known presence of contaminated materials, submit to the appropriate agency responsible for hazardous materials/wastes oversight a Phase II Environmental Site Assessment report if warranted by a Phase I report for the project site. The reports should make recommendations for remedial action, if appropriate, and be signed by a Registered Environmental Assessor, Professional Geologist, or Professional Engineer. Implement the recommendations provided in the Phase II Environmental Site Assessment report, where such a report was determined to be necessary for the construction or operation of the project, for remedial action. Submit a copy of all applicable documentation required by local, state, and federal | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| | drums, or other hazardous materials or wastes are encountered), in the vicinity of the suspect material. Secure the area as necessary and take all appropriate measures to protect human health and the environment, including but not limited to notification of regulatory agencies and identification. Stop work in the areas affected until the measures have been implemented consistent with the guidance of the appropriate regulatory oversight authority. Use best management practices (BMPs) regarding potential soil and groundwater hazards. Soil generated by construction activities should be stockpiled on-site in a secure and safe manner. All contaminated soils determined to be hazardous or nonhazardous waste must be adequately profiled (sampled) prior to acceptable reuse or disposal at an appropriate off-site facility. Complete sampling and handling and transport procedures for reuse or disposal, in accordance with applicable local, state and federal laws and policies. Groundwater pumped from the subsurface should be contained on-site in a secure and safe manner, prior to treatment and disposal, to ensure environmental and health issues are resolved pursuant to applicable laws and policies. Utilize engineering controls, which include impermeable barriers to prohibit groundwater and vapor intrusion into the building. | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| | Prior to issuance of any demolition, grading, or building permit, submit for review and approval by the Lead Agency (or other appropriate government agency) written verification that the appropriate federal, state and/or local oversight authorities, including but not limited to the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB), have granted all required clearances and confirmed that the all applicable standards, regulations, and conditions have been met for previous contamination at the site. Develop, train, and implement appropriate worker awareness and protective measures to assure that worker and public exposure is minimized to an acceptable level and to prevent any further environmental contamination as a result of construction. If asbestos-containing materials (ACM) are found to be present in building materials to be removed, submit specifications signed by a certified asbestos consultant for the removal, encapsulation, or enclosure of the identified ACM in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations, including but not necessarily limited to: California Code of Regulations, Title 8; Business and Professions Code; Division 3; California Health and Safety Code Section 25915- 25919.7; and other local regulations. Where projects include the demolitions or modification of buildings constructed prior to 1968, complete an assessment for the potential presence or lack thereof of ACM, head haced point and any other huilding | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|------------------------------------|---|---|
| | materials or stored materials classified as hazardous waste by state or federal law. Where the remediation of lead-based paint has been determined to be required, provide specifications to the appropriate agency, signed by a certified Lead Supervisor, Project Monitor, or Project Designer for the stabilization and/or removal of the identified lead paint in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations, including but not necessarily limited to: California Occupational Safety and Health Administration's (Cal OSHA's) Construction Lead Standard, Title 8 California Code of Regulations (CCR) Section 1532.1 and Department of Health Services (DHS) Regulation 17 CCR Sections 35001–36100, as may be amended. If other materials classified as hazardous waste by state or federal law are present, the project sponsor should submit written confirmation to the appropriate local agency that all state and federal laws and regulations should be followed when profiling, handling, treating, transporting, and/or disposing of such materials. Where a project site is determined to contain materials classified as hazardous waste by state or federal law are present, submit written confirmation to appropriate agency that all state and federal laws and regulations should be followed when profiling, handling, treating, transporting, and/or disposing of such materials. | |
| Hazards and Hazardous Materials | Project-Level Mitigation Measure | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, as it is not applicable to the Project because the Project Site is |
| IVIALEI IAIS | | applicable to the Project, because the Project Site is |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--------------------|--|--|
| Wildland Fire Risk | MM-HAZ-8(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects from the potential exposure of people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where residences are intermixed with wildlands; that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of public agencies and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with local general plans, specific plans, and regulations provided by County and City fire departments, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | located in an urbanized area and there are no wildlands in the vicinity. Furthermore, the Project is subject to existing regulatory requirements, such as adherence to Fire Code requirements. Thus, no impacts related to these issues would occur. |
| | Adhere to fire code requirements, including ignition-resistant construction with exterior walls of noncombustible or ignition resistant material from the surface of the ground to the roof system. Other fire-resistant measures would be applied to eaves, vents, windows, and doors to avoid any gaps that would allow intrusion by flame or embers. Adhere to the Multi-Jurisdictional Hazards Mitigation Plan, as well as local general plans, including policies and programs aimed at reducing the risk of wildland fires through land use compatibility, training, sustainable | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| Topic | RTP/SCS Measure development, brush management, and public outreach. Encourage the use of fire-resistant vegetation native to Southern California and/or to the local microclimate (e.g., vegetation that has high moisture content, low growth habits, ignition-resistant foliage, or evergreen growth), eliminate brush and chaparral, and discourage the use of fire-promoting species especially non-native, invasive species (e.g., pampas grass, fennel, mustard, or the giant reed) in the immediate vicinity of development in areas with high fire threat. Encourage natural revegetation or seeding with local, native species after a fire and discourage reseeding of non-native, invasive species to promote healthy, natural ecosystem regrowth. Native vegetation is more likely to have deep root systems that prevent slope failure and erosion of burned areas than shallow-rooted non-natives. Submit a fire safety plan (including phasing) to the Lead Agency and local fire agency for their review and approval. The fire safety plan shall include all of the fire safety features incorporated into the project and the schedule for implementation of the features. The local fire protection agency may require changes to the plan or may reject the plan if it does not adequately address fire hazards associated | Applicability to the Project |
| | with the project as a whole or the individual phase. Utilize Fire-wise Land Management by encouraging the use of fire-resistant vegetation and the elimination of brush and | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|--|--|
| | chaparral in the immediate vicinity of development in areas with high fire threat. Promote Fire Management Planning that would help reduce fire threats in the region as part of the Compass Blueprint process and other ongoing regional planning efforts. Encourage the use of fire-resistant materials when constructing projects in areas with high fire threat. | |
| <u>Hydrology and Water Quality</u> Violate Water Quality Standards or Waste Discharge Requirements, Alteration of Site Drainage Pattern, Runoff Exceeding Stormwater Drainage System Capacity, Otherwise Degrade Water Quality | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-HYD-1(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the potential impacts on water quality on related waste discharge requirements that are within the jurisdiction and authority of the Regional Water Quality Control Boards and other regulatory agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, and health and safety standards set forth by regulatory agencies responsible for regulating and enforcing water quality and waste discharge requirements in a manner that conforms to applicable water quality standards and/or waste discharge requirements, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because the City has determined that the existing regulatory requirements listed below as governed by the LARWQCB and the City regarding water quality would apply to the Project and are equal to or more effective than the SCAG RTP/SCS Program EIR MM-HYD-1(b). Specifically, the Project would be required to comply with the following regulatory requirements; 1) The NPDES General Construction Permit including the preparation of a SWPPP and implementation of BMPs, required to minimize soil erosion and sedimentation from entering the storm drains during the construction period. In addition, the Project would be subject to the City's Stormwater and Urban Runoff Pollution Control regulations (Ordinance No. 172,176 and No. 173,494) to ensure pollutant loads from the Project Site would be minimized for downstream receiving waters. Compliance with the NPDES and implementation of the SWPPP and BMPs, as well as the City's discharge requirements would ensure that construction stormwater runoff would not violate water quality and/or discharge requirements. |

Table 4-1Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|--|
| ropic | Complete, and have approved, a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) prior to initiation of construction. Implement Best Management Practices to reduce the peak stormwater runoff from the project site to the maximum extent practicable. Comply with the Caltrans storm water discharge permit as applicable; and identify and implement Best Management Practices to manage site erosion, wash water runoff, and spill control. Complete, and have approved, a Standard Urban Stormwater Management Plan, prior to occupancy of residential or commercial structures. Ensure adequate capacity of the surrounding stormwater system to support stormwater runoff from new or rehabilitated structures or buildings. Prior to construction within an area subject to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act, obtain all required permit approvals and certifications for construction within the vicinity of a watercourse: U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps): Section 404. Permit approval from the Corps should be obtained for the placement of dredge or fill material in Waters of the U.S., if any, within the interior of the project site, pursuant to Section 404 of the federal Clean Water Act. Regional Walter Quality Control Board (RWQCB): Section 401 Water | 2) During operation, the Project would be required to comply with the City's LID Ordinance. The LID Ordinance applies to all development and redevelopment in the City that requires a building permit. LID Plans are required to include a site design approach and BMPs that address runoff and pollution at the source. Further, to comply with LID Ordinance the Project would be required to capture and treat the first 3/4-inch of rainfall in accordance with established stormwater treatment priorities. Compliance with the LID Ordinance would reduce the amount of surface water runoff leaving the Project Site as compared to the current conditions. Compliance with the LID Plan and SUSMP, including the implementation of BMPs, would ensure that operation of the Project would not violate water quality standard and discharge requirements or otherwise substantially degrade water quality. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| | Quality Certification. Certification that the project will not violate state water quality standards is required before the Corps can issue a 404 permit, above. California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW): Section 1602 Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement. Work that will alter the bed or bank of a stream requires authorization from CDFW. Where feasible, restore or expand riparian areas such that there is no net loss of impervious surface as a result of the project. Install structural water quality control features, such as drainage channels, detention basins, oil and grease traps, filter systems, and vegetated buffers to prevent pollution of adjacent water resources by polluted runoff where required by applicable urban storm water runoff discharge permits, on new facilities. Provide structural storm water runoff treatment consistent with the applicable urban storm water runoff permit. Where Caltrans is the operator, the statewide permit applies. Provide operational best management practices for street cleaning, litter control, and catch basin cleaning are implemented to prevent water quality degradation in compliance with applicable storm water runoff discharge permits; and ensure treatment controls are in place as early as possible, such as during the acquisition process for rights-of-way, not just later during the facilities | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| Topic | RTP/SCS Measure Comply with applicable municipal separate storm sewer system discharge permits as well as Caltrans' storm water discharge permit including long-term sediment control and drainage of roadway runoff. Incorporate as appropriate treatment and control features such as detention basins, infiltration strips, and porous paving, other features to control surface runoff and facilitate groundwater recharge into the design of new transportation projects early on in the process to ensure that adequate acreage and elevation contours are provided during the right-of-way acquisition process. Design projects to maintain volume of runoff, where any downstream receiving water body has not been designed and maintained to accommodate the increase in flow velocity, rate, and volume without impacting the water's beneficial uses. Pre-project flow velocities, rates, and volumes must not be exceeded. This applies not only to increases in storm water runoff from the project site, but also to hydrologic changes induced by flood plain encroachment. Projects should not cause or contribute to conditions that degrade the physical integrity or ecological function of any downstream receiving waters. | Applicability to the Project |
| | Provide culverts and facilities that do not increase the flow velocity, rate, or volume and/or acquiring sufficient storm drain easements that accommodate an appropriately vegetated earthen drainage channel. | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|--|--|
| | Upgrade stormwater drainage facilities to accommodate any increased runoff volumes. These upgrades may include the construction of detention basins or structures that will delay peak flows and reduce flow velocities, including expansion and restoration of wetlands and riparian buffer areas. System designs shall be completed to eliminate increases in peak flow rates from current levels. Encourage Low Impact Development (LID) and incorporation of natural spaces that reduce, treat, infiltrate and manage stormwater runoff flows in all new developments, where practical and feasible. If a Project has the potential to create a major new stormwater discharge to a water body with an established Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL), a quantitative analysis of the anticipated pollutant loads in the stormwater discharges to the receiving waters should be carried out. | |
| Hydrology and Water Quality | Project-Level Mitigation Measure | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, as it is not |
| Deplete Groundwater Supply or Interfere with Groundwater Recharge | MM-HYD-2(b): Consistent with the provisions of the Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the potential impacts to groundwater resources that are within the jurisdiction and authority of the State Water Resources Control Board, Regional Water Quality Control Boards, Water Districts, and other groundwater management agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to | not a source of groundwater recharge. The Project Site area is already completely impervious and would continue in this condition after the Project is developed. Groundwater beneath the Project Site is perched groundwater and is of poor quality. Only a small percentage of the City's water supply, which would be used by the Project, comes from groundwater supplies. As such, there is no impact related to this issue. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| | ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and health and safety standards set forth by federal, state, regional, and local authorities that regulate groundwater management, consistent with the provisions of the Groundwater Management Act and implementing regulations, including recharge in a manner that conforms to federal, state, regional, and local standards for sustainable management of groundwater basins, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | |
| | For projects requiring continual dewatering facilities, implement monitoring systems and long-term administrative procedures to ensure proper water management that prevents degrading of surface water and minimizes, to the greatest extent possible, adverse impacts on groundwater for the life of the project, Construction designs shall comply with appropriate building codes and standard practices including the Uniform Building Code. Maximize, where practical and feasible, permeable surface area in existing urbanized areas to protect water quality, reduce flooding, allow for groundwater recharge, and preserve wildlife habitat. Minimize to the greatest extent possible, new impervious surfaces, including the use of in-lieu fees and off-site mitigation. Avoid designs that require continual dewatering where feasible. | |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|--|---|
| | Avoid construction and siting on groundwater recharge areas, to prevent conversion of those areas to impervious surface. Reduce hardscape to the extent feasible to facilitate groundwater recharge as appropriate. | |
| <u>Hydrology and Water Quality</u> Structures within a 100-Year Floodplain Hazard Area, Risk due to Levee or Dam Failure, Risks due to Seiche, Tsunami, or Mudflow | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-HYD-8(b) : Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the potential impacts of locating structures that would impede or redirect flood flows in a 100-year flood hazard area that are within the jurisdiction and authority of the Flood Control District, County Public Works Departments, local agencies, regulatory agencies, and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with all federal, state, and local floodplain regulations, consistent with the provisions of the National Flood Insurance Program, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, as it is not applicable to the Project, because the Project Site is not, according to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) flood insurance rate map, located within a designated flood zone. Also, the Project Site is not located within an area potentially affected by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow. The Project Site is not located within a designated 100- year flood plain. The Project Site is not identified in the Safety Element of the General Plan as being located in any area potentially susceptible to floods associated with a levee or dam. |
| | Comply with Executive Order 11988 on Floodplain Management, which requires avoidance of incompatible floodplain development, restoration and preservation of the natural and beneficial floodplain values, and maintenance of consistency with the | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|---|--|
| | standards and criteria of the National Flood Insurance Program. Ensure that all roadbeds for new highway and rail facilities be elevated at least one foot above the 100-year base flood elevation. Since alluvial fan flooding is not often identified on FEMA flood maps, the risk of alluvial fan flooding should be evaluated, and projects should be sited to avoid alluvial fan flooding. Delineation of floodplains and alluvial fan boundaries should attempt to account for future hydrologic changes caused by global climate change. | |
| Land Use and Planning Conflict with Applicable Land Use Plan, Policy, or Regulation | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-LU-1(b) : Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects regarding the potential to conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the project that are within the jurisdiction and responsibility of local jurisdictions and Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with the goals and policies established within the applicable adopted county and city general plans within the SCAG region to avoid conflicts with zoning and ordinance codes, general plans, land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the project, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, and/or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, as it is not applicable to the Project. The Project is requesting a General Plan Amendment to change the land use designation in the Central City North Community Plan from Heavy Industrial to Commercial Industrial and to delete Footnotes 1 and 6, and Zone Change and Height District Change from M3-1-RIO to CM-2-RIO. Approval of the General Plan Amendment and Zone Change would not result in significant impacts related to land use as analyzed in the Land Use Analysis in the Initial Study. Impacts would be less than significant |

| Table 4-1 |
|---|
| Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--|--|--|
| | • Where an inconsistency with the adopted general plan is identified at the Project location, determine if the environmental, social, economic, and engineering benefits of the project warrant a variance from adopted zoning or an amendment to the general plan. | |
| Land Use and Planning Physically Divide a Community | <u>Project-Level Mitigation Measure</u> <u>MM-LU-2(b)</u>: Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects related to the physical division of an established community in a project area within the jurisdiction and responsibility of local jurisdictions and Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with the goals and policies established within the applicable adopted county and city general plans within the SCAG region to avoid the creation of barriers that physically divide such communities, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: Consider alignments within or adjacent to existing public rights-of-way. | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, as it is not applicable to the Project, because the Project does not include the development of new roadway facilities and would not physically divide a community. No impacts related to this issue would occur. |
| | Consider designs to include sections above- or below-grade to maintain viable vehicular, cycling, and pedestrian connections between portions of communities where existing | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| Topic | RTP/SCS Measure connections are disrupted by the transportation project. Wherever feasible incorporate direct crossings, overcrossings, or undercrossings at regular intervals for multiple modes of travel (e.g., pedestrians, bicyclists, vehicles). Consider realigning roadway or interchange improvements to avoid the affected area of residential communities or cohesive neighborhoods. Where it has been determined that it is infeasible to avoid creating a barrier in an established community, consider other measures to reduce impacts, including but not limited to: Alignment shifts to minimize the area affected | Applicability to the Project |
| | Reduction of the proposed right- of-way take to minimize the overall area of impact. Provisions for bicycle, pedestrian, and vehicle access across improved roadways. Design new transportation facilities that consider access to existing community facilities. Identify and consider during the design phase of the project, community amenities and facilities in the design of the project. Design roadway improvements that minimize barriers to pedestrians and bicyclists. Determine during the design phase, pedestrian and bicycle routes that permit connections to nearby community facilities. | |

| Table 4-1 |
|---|
| Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|---|--|
| <u>Mineral Resources</u> Loss of Availability of a Known Mineral Resource | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-MIN-1(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects on the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and the residents of the state or a locally important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan that are within the jurisdiction and responsibility of the California Department of Conservation, and/or Lead Agencies. | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, as it is not applicable to the Project, because the Project Site is not located within the Los Angeles Downtown Oil Field, a Mineral Resource Zone 2 (MRZ-2) Area, an Oil Drilling/Surface Mining Supplemental Use District, or an Oil Field/Drilling Area. None of the suggested measures are applicable as there are no known aggregate and mineral sources or locally important mineral resource recovery sites on or adjacent to the Project Site. No impacts related to these issues would occur. |
| | Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with SMARA, California Department of Conservation regulations, local general plans, specific plans, and other laws and regulation governing mineral or aggregate resources, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | |
| | • Provide for the efficient use of known aggregate and mineral resources or locally important mineral resource recovery sites, by ensuring that the consumptive use of aggregate resources is minimized and that access to recoverable sources of aggregate is not precluded, as a result of construction, operation and maintenance of projects. | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| | • Where avoidance is infeasible, minimize | |
| | impacts to the efficient and effective use of | |
| | recoverable sources of aggregate through | |
| | measures that have been identified in county | |
| | and city general plans, or other comparable | |
| | measures: | |
| | Recycle and reuse building | |
| | materials resulting from | |
| | demolition, particularly aggregate | |
| | resources, to the maximum | |
| | extent practicable. | |
| | Identify and use building | |
| | materials, particularly aggregate | |
| | materials, resulting from | |
| | demolition at other construction | |
| | sites in the SCAG region, or | |
| | within a reasonable hauling | |
| | distance of the project site. | |
| | Design transportation network | |
| | improvements in a manner (such | |
| | as buffer zones or the use of | |
| | screening) that does not preclude | |
| | adjacent or nearby extraction of | |
| | known mineral and aggregate | |
| | resources following completion of | |
| | the improvement and during | |
| | long-term operations. | |
| | Avoid or reduce impacts on | |
| | known aggregate and mineral | |
| | resources and mineral resource | |
| | recovery sites through the | |
| | evaluation and selection of | |
| | Project Sites and design features | |
| | (e.g., putters) that minimize | |
| | impacts on land suitable for | |
| | aggregate and mineral resource | |

| Table 4-1 |
|---|
| Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|---|--|
| | extraction by maintaining portions of MRZ-2 areas in open space or other general plan land use categories and zoning that allow for mining of mineral resources. | |
| Noise Exposure of Persons to Noise in Excess of Local Standards, Excessive Groundborne Vibration or Noise Levels, Substantial Permanent Increase in Noise Level, Substantial Temporary Increase in Noise Levels | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-NOISE-1(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects of noise impacts that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of public agencies and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure consistency with the Federal Noise Control Act, California Government Code Section 65302, the Governor's Office of Planning and Research Noise Element Guidelines, and the noise ordinances and general plan noise elements for the counties or cities where projects are undertaken, Federal Highway Administration and Caltrans guidance documents and other health and safety standards set forth by federal, state, and local authorities that regulate noise levels, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, as it is not applicable to the Project, because the Project would not expose persons to noise in excess of local standards and excessive groundwater vibration that would exceed established significance thresholds and as such, would not result in any significant impacts related to noise groundborne vibration. |
Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| | Include permanent noise barriers and sound- attenuating features as part of the project design. | |
| | Schedule construction activities consistent with the allowable hours pursuant to applicable general plan noise element or noise ordinance Where construction activities are authorized outside the limits established by the noise element of the general plan or noise ordinance, notify affected sensitive noise receptors and all parties who will experience noise levels in excess of the allowable limits for the specified land use, of the level of exceedance and duration of exceedance; and provide a list of protective measures that can be undertaken by the individual, including temporary relocation or use of hearing protective devices. | |
| | Limit speed and/or hours of operation of rail and transit systems during the selected periods of time to reduce duration and frequency of conflict with adopted limits on noise levels. | |
| | • Post procedures and phone numbers at the construction site for notifying the Lead Agency staff, local Police Department, and construction contractor (during regular construction hours and off-hours), along with permitted construction days and hours, complaint procedures, and who to notify in the event of a problem. | |
| | Notify neighbors and occupants within 300 feet of the project construction area at least 30 days in advance of anticipated times when noise levels are expected to exceed limits | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| | established in the noise element of the general plan or noise ordinance. Hold a preconstruction meeting with the job inspectors and the general contractor/on-site project manager to confirm that noise measures and practices (including construction hours, neighborhood notification, posted signs, etc.) are completed. Designate an on-site construction complaint and enforcement manager for the project. Ensure that construction equipment are properly maintained per manufacturers' specifications and fitted with the best available noise suppression devices (e.g., mufflers, silencers, wraps). All intake and exhaust ports on power equipment shall be muffled or shielded | |
| | Ensure that impact tools (e.g., jack hammers, pavement breakers, and rock drills) used for project construction are hydraulically or electrically powered to avoid noise associated with compressed air exhaust from pneumatically powered tools. However, where use of pneumatic tools is unavoidable, an exhaust muffler on the compressed air exhaust can and should be used. External jackets on the tools themselves can and should be used, if such jackets are commercially available and this could achieve a reduction of 5 dBA. Quieter procedures can and should be used, such as drills rather than impact equipment, whenever such procedures are available and consistent with construction procedures. | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| | Ensure that construction equipment does not idle for an extended time in the vicinity of noise-sensitive receptors. Locate fixed/stationary equipment (such as generators compressors rock crushers and | |
| | cement mixers) as far as possible from noise- sensitive receptors. | |
| | Locate new roadway lanes, roadways, rail lines, transit-related passenger station and related facilities, park-and-ride lots, and other new noise-generating facilities away from sensitive receptors to the maximum extent feasible. | |
| | Where feasible, eliminate noise-sensitive receptors by acquiring freeway and rail rights- of-way. | |
| | Use noise barriers to protect sensitive receptors from excessive noise levels during construction. | |
| | Construct sound-reducing barriers between noise sources and noise-sensitive receptors to minimize exposure to excessive noise during operation of transportation improvement projects, including but not limited to earth-berms or sound walls. | |
| | Where feasible, design projects so that they are depressed below the grade of the existing noise-sensitive receptor, creating an effective barrier between the roadway and sensitive receptors. | |
| | Where feasible, improve the acoustical insulation of dwelling units where setbacks and sound barriers do not provide sufficient noise reduction. | |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--|---|--|
| | Monitor the effectiveness of noise reduction measures by taking noise measurements and installing adaptive mitigation measures to achieve the standards for ambient noise levels established by the noise element of the general plan or noise ordinance. | |
| <u>Noise</u> | Project-Level Mitigation Measure | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, as it is not |
| Exposure of Persons to Excessive Groundborne Vibration or Noise Levels | MM-NOISE-2(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects of vibration impacts that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of public agencies and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with the Federal Transportation Authority and Caltrans guidance documents, county or city transportation commission, noise and vibration ordinances and general plan noise elements for the counties and cities where projects are undertaken and other health and safety regulations set forth by federal state, and local authorities that regulate vibration levels, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | applicable to the Project, because the Project would not generate groundborne vibration that would exceed established significance thresholds and as such, would not result in any significant impacts related to groundborne vibration. |
| | • For projects that require pile driving or other construction techniques that result in excessive vibration, such as blasting, determine the potential vibration impacts to the structural integrity of the adjacent buildings within 50 feet of pile driving locations. | |

Table 4-1 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--|--|--|
| | For projects that require pile driving or other construction techniques that result in excessive vibration, such as blasting, determine the threshold levels of vibration and cracking that could damage adjacent historic or other structure, and design means and construction methods to not exceed the thresholds. For projects where pile driving would be necessary for construction due to geological conditions, utilize quiet pile driving techniques such as predrilling the piles to the maximum feasible depth, where feasible. Predrilling pile holes will reduce the number of blows required to completely seat the pile and will concentrate the pile driving noise can be shielded more effectively by a noise barrier/curtain. For projects where pile driving would be necessary for construction due to geological conditions, utilize quiet pile driving noise can be shielded more effectively by a noise barrier/curtain. | |
| Population and Housing Displacement of Housing, Requiring Replacement Housing Elsewhere | Project-Level Implementation Measures MM-PHE-2(b). Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects related to displacement that are within the jurisdiction and responsibility of Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to minimize the displacement of | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, as it is not applicable to the Project, because the Project would consist of the development of new housing and commercial land uses on a site that is currently developed with nonresidential uses. No displacement of existing housing would occur with the development of the Project and therefore, none of the suggested measures are applicable. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|---|---|
| | existing housing and people and to ensure compliance with local jurisdiction's housing elements of their general plans, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | |
| | • Evaluate alternate route alignments and transportation facilities that minimize the displacement of homes and businesses. Use an iterative design and impact analysis where impacts to homes or businesses are involved to minimize the potential of impacts on housing and displacement of people. | |
| | Prioritize the use existing ROWs, wherever feasible. | |
| | • Develop a construction schedule that minimizes potential neighborhood deterioration from protracted waiting periods between right-of-way acquisition and construction. | |
| <u>Public Services</u> Adverse Impacts Associated with New or Physically Altered Governmental Facilities for Public Protective Fire and Emergency Services | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-PS-1(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects from the need for new or physically altered governmental facilities in order to maintain acceptable response times for fire protection and emergency response services that are within the jurisdiction and responsibility of fire departments, law enforcement agencies, and local jurisdictions. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because existing facilities are capable of providing acceptable response times for fire protection and emergency response services. Specifically, the Los Angeles Fire Department (LAFD) considers fire protection services for a project adequate if a project is within the maximum response distance (1.5 miles in this instance). The Project Site is served by LAFD Station No. 17, which is within the miles allowed. Additionally, the Project would be subject to the existing regulations in the City's Fire Code and LAMC related to emergency access. Thus, fire protection response with existing facilities is therefore considered adequate. Therefore, the Project would not require the need for new or physically altered governmental facilities. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| | measures consistent with the Community Facilities Act of 1982, the goals and policies established within the applicable adopted county and city general plans and the performance objectives established in the adopted county and city general plans, to provide sufficient structures and buildings to accommodate fire and emergency response, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency, taking into account project and site- specific considerations as applicable and feasible: | |
| | Where the project has the potential to generate the need for expanded emergency response services which exceed the capacity of existing facilities, provide for the construction of new facilities directly as an element of the project or through dedicated fair share contributions toward infrastructure improvements. During project-level review of government facilities projects, require implementation of Mitigation Measures MM-AES-1(b), MM-AES-3(b), MM-AES-4(b), MM-AES-1(b), MM-GEO-1(b), MM-CUL-2(b), MM-GEO-1(b), MM-GEO-1(b), MM-GEO-1(b), MM-USS-3(b), MM-USS-4(b), and MM-USS-6(b) to avoid or reduce significant environmental impacts associated with the construction or | |
| | expansion of such facilities, through the imposition of conditions required to be followed to avoid or reduce impacts | |

| Table 4-1 |
|---|
| Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--|---|--|
| | associated with air quality, noise, traffic, biological resources, greenhouse gas emissions, hydrology and water quality, and others that apply to specific construction or expansion of new or expanded public service facilities. | |
| Public Services Facilities | Project-Level Mitigation Measure | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because the |
| <u>Public Services Facilities</u> Adverse Impacts Associated with New or Physically Altered Governmental Facilities for Public Protective Security Services | <u>Project-Level Mitigation Measure</u> MM-PS-2(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects from the need for new or physically altered governmental facilities in order to maintain acceptable service ratios for police protection services that are within the jurisdiction and responsibility of law enforcement agencies and local jurisdictions. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures consistent with the Community Facilities Act of 1982, the goals and policies established within the applicable adopted county and city general plans and the standards established in the safety elements of county and city general plans to maintain police response performance objectives, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency, taking in to account project and site-specific considerations | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because the City has determined that the existing regulatory requirements would apply to the Project and are equal to or more effective than the SCAG RTP/SCS Program EIR MM-PS-3(a). In addition, existing facilities are capable of providing acceptable response times for police protection, and the City-imposed mitigation measure discussed below is equally effective in mitigating any potential impacts to a less than significant level. The Project Site is currently served by the Los Angeles Police Department's (LAPD). The Project would incorporate crime prevention features into the design of the buildings and public spaces, such as lighting of entryways and public areas. The Project would include the following design features: On-site security personnel; Security cameras; Perimeter lighting to supplement the street lighting and to provide increased visibility and security; Parking structure access control; and Residential units access control. |
| | as applicable and feasible, including: Coordinate with public security agencies to ensure that there are adequate governmental facilities to maintain acceptable service ratios, | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--|--|--|
| | response times, or other performance objectives for public protective security services and that any required additional construction of buildings is incorporated into the project description. Where current levels of services at the project site are found to be inadequate, provide fair share contributions towards infrastructure improvements and/or personnel. During project-level review of government facilities projects, require implementation of Mitigation Measures MM-AES-1(b), MM-AES-3(b), MM-BIO-1(b), MM-BIO-2(b), MM-BIO-3(b), MM-CUL-4(b), MM-GEO-1(b), MM-GEO-1(b), MM-GEO-1(b), MM-GEO-1(b), MM-ULS-3(b), MM-CUL-4(b), MM-GEO-1(b), MM-GEO-1(b), MM-USS-3(b), MM-USS-4(b), and MM-USS-6(b) to avoid or reduce significant environmental impacts associated with the construction or expansion of such facilities, through the imposition of conditions required to be followed to avoid or reduce impacts associated with air quality, noise, traffic, biological resources, greenhouse gas emissions, hydrology and water quality, and others that apply to specific construction or expansion of new or expanded public service facilities. | |
| Public Services | Project-Level Mitigation Measure | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because the |
| Adverse Impacts Associated with New or Physically Altered Governmental Facilities for School Services | MM-PS-3(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects from the need for new or physically altered | City has determined that the existing regulatory requirements listed below would apply to the Project and are equal to or more effective than the SCAG RTP/SCS Program EIR MM-PS-3(b). |

Table 4-1Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|---|
| | governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives that are within the jurisdiction and responsibility of school districts and local jurisdictions. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures consistent with Community Facilities Act of 1982, the California Education Code, and the goals and policies established within the applicable adopted county and city general plans to ensure that the appropriate school district fees are paid in accordance with state law, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency, taking in to account project and site-specific considerations as applicable and feasible: | Specifically, the Project is subject to the following existing regulation that avoids or reduces the significant effects from the need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives that are within the jurisdiction and responsibility of school districts and local jurisdictions: The Applicant shall pay school fees to the Los Angeles Unified School District to offset the impact of additional student enrollment at schools serving the project area. |
| | Where construction or expansion of school facilities is required to meet public school service ratios, require school district fees, as applicable. During project-level review of government facilities projects, require implementation of Mitigation Measures MM-AES-1(b), MM-AES-3(b), MM-AES-4(b), MM-AES-1(b), MM-AF-2(b), MM-BIO-1(b), MM-BIO-2(b), MM-BIO-3(b), MM-CUL-1(b), MM-CUL-2(b), MM-CUL-3(b), MM-CUL-4(b), MM-GEO-1(b), MM-GEO-1(b), MM-USS-3(b), MM-USS-4(b), and MM-USS-6(b) to avoid or reduce significant environmental impacts associated with the construction or | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--|---|--|
| | expansion of such facilities, through the imposition of conditions required to be followed to avoid or reduce impacts associated with air quality, noise, traffic, biological resources, greenhouse gas emissions, hydrology and water quality, and others that apply to specific construction or expansion of new or expanded public service facilities. | |
| Increased Use or Physical Deterioration of Recreational Facilities | MM-REC-1(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects on the integrity of recreation facilities, particularly neighborhood parks in the vicinity of HQTAs and other applicable development projects, that are within the jurisdiction and responsibility of other public agencies and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing significant impacts on the use of existing neighborhood and | City has determined that the existing regulatory requirements listed below would apply to the Project and are equal to or more effective than the SCAG RTP/SCS Program EIR MM-REC-1(b). Project Applicant would be required to pay park fees for the 9 manager's units in accordance with mandates set forth in Los Angeles Municipal Code Section 17.12 and 12.33. |
| | regional parks or other recreational facilities to ensure compliance with county and city general plans and the Quimby Act, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following, or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: Prior to the issuance of permits, where projects require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities or the payment of equivalent Quimby fees, consider increasing | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| Topic | RTP/SCS Measure the accessibility to natural areas and lands for outdoor recreation from the Project area, in coordination with local and regional open space planning and/or responsible management agencies. • Prior to the issuance of permits, where projects require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities or the payment of equivalent Quimby fees, encourage patterns of urban development and land use which reduce costs on infrastructure and make better use of existing facilities, using strategies such as: Increasing the accessibility to natural areas for outdoor recreation. Promoting infill development and redevelopment to revitalize existing communities. Utilizing "green" development techniques. Promoting multiple uses. Including trail systems and trail segments in General Plan recreation standards. Prior to the issuance of permits, where construction and operation of projects would require the acquisition or development of protected open space or recreation lands, demonstrate that existing neighborhood parks can be expanded, or new neighborhood parks developed such that there is no net decrease in acres of neighborhood park area available | Applicability to the Project |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--|--|---|
| | Where construction or expansion of recreational facilities is included in the project or required to meet public park service ratios, require implementation of Mitigation Measures MM-AES-1(b), MM-AES-3(b), MM-AES-4(b), MM-AF-1(b), MM-AF-2(b), MM-BIO-1(b), MM-BIO-2(b), MM-BIO-3(b), MM-CUL-1(b), MM-CUL-2(b), MM-CUL-3(b), MM-CUL-4(b), MM-GEO-1(b), MM-GEO-1(b), MM-GEO-1(b), MM-HYD-1(b), MM-USS-3(b), MM-USS-4(b), and MM-USS-6(b) to avoid or reduce significant environmental impacts associated with the construction or expansion of such facilities, through the imposition of conditions required to be followed to avoid or reduce impacts associated with air quality, noise, traffic, biological resources, greenhouse gas emissions, hydrology and water quality, and others that apply to specific construction or expansion of new or expanded public service facilities. | |
| <u>Transportation/Traffic</u> Conflict with Measures of Effectiveness For Performance of the Circulation System | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-TRA-1(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the potential for conflicts with the established measures of effectiveness for the performance of the circulation system that are within the jurisdiction and responsibility of Lead Agencies. This measure need only be considered where it is found by the Lead Agency to be appropriate and consistent with local transportation priorities. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because the City has determined that the existing regulatory requirements and City mitigation measures listed below would apply to the Project and are equal to or more effective than the SCAG RTP/SCS Program EIR MM-TRA- 1(b). In addition, the Project already substantially conforms to this mitigation measure, due to the Project's mixed-use nature and transit adjacency which serve to avoid or reduce the potential for conflicts with the established measures of effectiveness for the performance of the circulation system that are within the jurisdiction and responsibility of the City. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|---|
| | should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with the adopted Congestion Management Plan, and other adopted local plans and policies, as applicable and feasible. Compliance can be achieved through adopting transportation mitigation measures as set forth below, or through other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | Project Design Features PDF-TRA-1 through PDF-TRA-3 and Mitigation Measures MM-TRA-1 through MM-TRA-3 (listed below) would help reduce any potential impact the Project may have with regard to effectiveness for performance of the circulation system: |
| | Institute teleconferencing telecommute and/or | encourages alternative transportation |
| | flexible work hour programs to reduce unnecessary employee transportation. Create a ride-sharing program by designating a certain percentage of parking spaces for ride sharing vehicles, designating adequate passenger loading and unloading for ride sharing vehicles, and providing a web site or message board for coordinating rides. Provide a vanpool for employees. Fund capital improvement projects to accommodate future traffic demand in the area. Provide a Transportation Demand | choices. The degree of effectiveness of this measure varies based on the surrounding area, level of existing transit service, level of existing pedestrian and bicycle networks and other factors which would complement the shift away from single-occupant vehicle travel. The Project will provide 402 parking spaces (i.e., 140 spaces less than the 542 spaces required per LAMC prior to consideration of allowable adjustments). |
| | Management (TDM) plan containing strategies to reduce on-site parking demand and single occupancy vehicle travel. The TDM shall include strategies to increase bicycle, pedestrian, transit, and carpools/vanpool use, including: | TRA-PDF-2: Bicycle Infrastructure: These improvements help reduce peak-hour vehicle trips by making commuting by bicycle easier and more convenient. The |
| | Inclusion of additional bicycle parking, shower, and locker facilities that exceed the requirement Construction of bike lanes per the | Project should provide a maximum commitment to implementing/improving on-street bicycle facilities, providing bicycle parking per the LAMC and |
| | prevailing Bicycle Master Plan (or another similar document) | providing secure ancillary bike facilities |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|---|
| | Signage and striping onsite to encourage bike safety Installation of pedestrian safety elements (such as cross walk striping, curb ramps, countdown signals, bulb outs, etc.) to encourage convenient crossing at arterials Installation of amenities such as lighting, street trees, trash and any applicable streetscape plan. Direct transit sales or subsidized transit passes Guaranteed ride home program Pre-tax commuter benefits (checks) On-site car-sharing program (such as City Car Share, Zip Car, etc.) On-site carpooling program Distribution of information concerning alternative transportation options Parking spaces sold/leased separately Parking management strategies; including attendant/valet parking and shared parking spaces. | such as indoor bicycle parking/lockers, showers, and repair stations. The Project will provide the minimum number of short-term and long-term bicycle parking spaces for the residential and commercial components. TRA-PDF-3: Neighborhood Enhancement: Providing a pedestrian access network to link areas of the Project site encourages people to walk instead of drive. The project should ensure a maximum commitment to providing pedestrian network improvements within the project and to off-site connections. The Project will include pedestrian access points directly to sidewalks on the adjacent streets. Specifically, a walk-in entrance to the Project's residential component is proposed via Bay Street. Additionally, a walk-in entrance to the Project's office and restaurant components is proposed via dateo Street. Pedestrian access to the ground floor retail uses is proposed via adjacent streets. The Project will improve existing sidewalks or construct new sidewalks on Bay Street Adational to the site. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|---|
| | Inking; vehicle performance and efficiency (e.g., keeping tires inflated); and low or zero-emission vehicles. Purchase, or create incentives for purchasing, low or zero-emission vehicles. Create local "light vehicle" networks, such as neighborhood electric vehicle systems. Enforce and follow limits idling time for commercial vehicles, including delivery and construction vehicles. Provide the necessary facilities and infrastructure to encourage the use of low or zero-emission vehicles. Reduce VMT-related emissions by encouraging the use of public transit through adoption of new development standards that would require improvements to the transit system and infrastructure, increase safety and accessibility, and provide other incentives. Project Selection: Give priority to transportation projects that would contribute to a reduction in vehicle miles traveled per capita, while maintaining economic vitality and sustainability. Separate sidewalks whenever possible, on both sides of all new street improvement projects, except where there are severe topographic or natural resource constraints. Public Involvement: Carry out a comprehensive public involvement and input process that provides information about | change program that targets individual attitudes, goals, and travel behaviors, educating participants on the impacts of their travel choices and the opportunities to alter their habits. The Project shall assign staff to serve as the transportation management coordinator to inform Project residents and employees of available travel options. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| Topic | RTP/SCS Measure transportation issues, projects, and processes to community members and other stakeholders, especially to those traditionally underserved by transportation services. o Transit and Multimodal Impact Fees: o Assess transit and multimodal impact fees for new developments to fund public transportation infrastructure, bicycle infrastructure, pedestrian infrastructure and other multimodal accommodations. o Implement traffic and roadway management strategies to improve mobility and efficiency and reduce associated emissions. • System Monitoring: o Monitor traffic and congestion to determine when and where new transportation facilities are needed in order. | Applicability to the Project |
| | Arterial Traffic Management: Modify arterial roadways to allow more efficient bus operation, including bus lanes and signal priority/preemption where necessary. | |
| | Signal Synchronization: Expand signal timing programs where emissions reduction benefits can be demonstrated, including maintenance of the synchronization system, and will coordinate with adjoining jurisdictions as needed to optimize transit operation while maintaining a free flow of traffic. | |

Table 4-1 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| | HOV Lanes: Encourage the construction of high-occupancy vehicle (HOV) lanes or similar mechanisms whenever necessary to relieve congestion and reduce emissions. Delivery Schedules: Establish ordinances or land use permit conditions limiting the hours when deliveries can be made to off-peak hours in high traffic areas. Implement and supporting trip reduction programs. Support bicycle use as a mode of transportation by enhancing infrastructure to accommodate bicycles and riders and providing | |
| | Establish standards for new development and redevelopment projects to support bicycle use, including amending the Development Code to include standards for safe pedestrian and bicyclist accommodations, and require new development and redevelopment projects to include bicycle facilities. Bicycle and Pedestrian Trails: Establish a network of multi-use trails to facilitate safe and direct off-street bicycle and pedestrian travel and will provide bike racks along these trails at secure, lighted locations. Bicycle Safety Program: Develop and implement a bicycle safety educational program to teach direct off-street bicycle | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| | protocols, routes, safety tips, and emergency maneuvers. | |
| | Bicycle and Pedestrian Project Funding: Pursue and provide enhanced funding for bicycle and pedestrian facilities and access projects | |
| | Bicycle Parking: | |
| | Adopt bicycle parking standards that ensure bicycle parking sufficient to | |
| | accommodate 5 to 10 percent of projected use at all public and | |
| | commercial facilities, and at a rate of | |
| | at least one per residential unit in | |
| | (suggestion: check language with League of American Bicvclists). | |
| | • Adopt a comprehensive parking policy to | |
| | discourage private vehicle use and encourage | |
| | incorporating the following: | |
| | Reduce the available parking spaces | |
| | for private vehicles while increasing | |
| | parking spaces for shared vehicles, | |
| | bicycles, and other alternative modes | |
| | of transportation; | |
| | Eliminate or reduce minimum parking | |
| | equirements for new buildings; | |
| | narking is paid for separately and is | |
| | not included in the base rent for | |
| | residential and commercial space); | |
| | • Use parking pricing to discourage | |
| | private vehicle use, especially at peak | |
| | times; | |
| | • Create parking benefit districts, which | |
| | invest meter revenues in pedestrian | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| | infrastructure and other public amenities; Establish performance pricing of street parking, so that it is expensive enough to promote frequent turnover and keep 15 percent of spaces empty at all times; Encourage shared parking programs in mixed-use and transit-oriented development areas. Establish policies and programs to reduce onsite parking demand and promote ride-sharing and public transit at large events, including: Promote the use of peripheral parking by increasing on-site parking rates and offering reduced rates for peripheral parking; Encourage special event center operators to advertise and offer discounted transit passes with event tickets; Encourage special event center operators to advertise and offer discount parking incentives to carpooling patrons, with four or more persons per vehicle for on-site parking Promote the use of bicycles by providing space for the operation of valet bicycle parking service. | Applicability to the Project |
| | Parking "Cash-out Program: Require new office developments with more than 50 employees to offer Parking "Cash out" Program to | |
| | discourage private vehicle use. | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|--|---|
| | Pedestrian and Bicycle Promotion: Work with local community groups and downtown business associations to organize and publicize walking tours and bicycle events, and to encourage pedestrian and bicycle modes of transportation. Fleet Replacement: Establish a replacement policy and schedule to replace fleet vehicles and equipment with the most fuel efficient vehicles practical, including gasoline hybrid and alternative fuel or electric models. | |
| <u>Transportation/Traffic</u> Conflict with Applicable Congestion Management Program | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-TRA-2(b). Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding conflict with an applicable congestion management program that are within the jurisdictions of the lead agencies, including, but not limited to, VMT, VHD and travel demand measures, or other standards established by the county congestion management agency for designated roads or highways. This measure need only be considered where it is found by the Lead Agency to be appropriate and consistent with local transportation priorities. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with the adopted Congestion Management Plan, and other adopted local plans and policies, as applicable and feasible. Compliance can be achieved through adopting | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because it is not applicable to the Project as County of Los Angeles is no longer subject to the congestion management plan since the County decided to opt-out of the state-mandated program in July of 2019. |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| | transportation mitigation measures such as those set forth below, or through other relevant and feasible comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency. Not all measures and/or options within each measure may apply to all jurisdictions: | |
| | Encourage a comprehensive parking policy that prioritizes system management, increase rideshare, and telecommute opportunities, including investment in non-motorized transportation and discouragement against private vehicle use, and encouragement to maximize the use of alternative transportation: Advocate for a regional, marketbased system to price or charge for auto trips during peak hours. Ensure that new developments incorporate both local and regional transit measures into the project design that promote the use of alternative. Coordinate controlled intersections so that traffic passes more efficiently through congested areas. Where traffic signals or streetlights are installed, require the use of Light Emitting Diode (LED) technology or aimilar toghapalage. | |
| | Encourage the use of car-sharing programs. Accommodations for such programs include providing parking spaces for the car-share vehicles at convenient locations accessible by public transportation. | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| Topic | RTP/SCS Measure Reduce VHDs, especially daily heavy-duty truck vehicle hours of delay, through goods movement capacity enhancements, system management, increasing rideshare and work-at-home opportunities to reduce demand on the transportation system, investments in non-motorized transportation, maximizing the benefits of the land use-transportation connection and key transportation investments targeted to reduce heavy-duty truck delay. Determine traffic management strategies to reduce, to the maximum extent feasible, traffic congestion and the effects of parking demand by construction workers during construction. Develop a construction management plan that include the following items and requirements, if determined feasible and applicable by the Lead Agency: A set of comprehensive traffic control measures, including scheduling of major truck trips and deliveries to avoid peak traffic hours, detour signs if required, lane closure procedures, signs, cones for drivers, and designated construction access routes. Notification procedures for adjacent property owners and public safety personnel regarding when major deliveries, detours, and lane closures will occur | Applicability to the Project |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| | \circ Location of construction staging | |
| | areas for materials, equipment, and | |
| | vehicles at an approved location. | |
| | \circ A process for responding to, and | |
| | tracking, complaints pertaining to | |
| | construction activity, including | |
| | Identification of an onsite complaint | |
| | manager. The manager shall | |
| | determine the cause of the | |
| | complaints and shall take prompt | |
| | Load Agonov shall be informed who | |
| | the Manager is prior to the issuance | |
| | of the first permit | |
| | \circ Provision for accommodation of | |
| | pedestrian flow. | |
| | As necessary, provision for parking | |
| | management and spaces for all | |
| | construction workers to ensure that | |
| | construction workers do not park in | |
| | on street spaces. | |
| | Any damage to the street caused by | |
| | heavy equipment, or as a result of this | |
| | construction, shall be repaired, at the | |
| | project sponsor's expense., within | |
| | one week of the occurrence of the | |
| | damage (or excessive wear), unless | |
| | iuriner damage/excessive wear may | |
| | continue, in such case, i Repair shall | |
| | inspection of the building permit All | |
| | damage that is a threat to public | |
| | health or safety shall be repaired | |
| | immediately. The street shall be | |
| | restored to its condition prior to the | |
| | new construction as established by | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| | the Lead Agency (or other | |
| | appropriate government agency) | |
| | and/or photo documentation, at the | |
| | sponsor's expense, before the | |
| | issuance of a Certificate of | |
| | Occupancy. | |
| | Any heavy equipment brought to the | |
| | construction site shall be transported | |
| | by truck, where feasible. | |
| | No materials or equipment shall be | |
| | stored on the traveled roadway at any | |
| | time. | |
| | Prior to construction, a portable toilet | |
| | facility and a debris box shall be | |
| | installed on the site, and properly | |
| | maintained through project | |
| | completion. | |
| | All equipment shall be equipped with | |
| | mufflers. | |
| | \circ Prior to the end of each work-day | |
| | during construction, the contractor or | |
| | contractors shall pick up and properly | |
| | dispose of all litter resulting from or | |
| | related to the project, whether located | |
| | on the property, within the public | |
| | rights-of-way, or properties of | |
| | adjacent or nearby neighbors. | |
| | \circ Promote "least polluting" ways to | |
| | connect people and goods to their | |
| | destinations. | |
| | Create an interconnected transportation | |
| | system that allows a shift in travel from private | |
| | passenger vehicles to alternative modes, | |
| | including public transit, ride sharing, car | |
| | sharing, bicycling and walking, by | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure incorporating the following, if determined feasible and applicable by the Lead Agency: o Ensure transportation centers are multi-modal to allow transportation modes to intersect. o Provide adequate and affordable public transportation choices, including expanded bus routes and service, as well as other transit choices such as shuttles, light rail, and rail. o To the extent feasible, extend service and hours of operation to | Applicability to the Project |
| | and nours of operation to underserved arterials and population centers or destinations such as colleges. Focus transit resources on high- volume corridors and high-boarding destinations such as colleges, employment centers and regional destinations. Coordinate schedules and routes | |
| | Support programs to provide "station cars" for short trips to and from transit nodes (e.g., neighborhood electric vehicles). | |
| | Study the feasibility of providing free transit to areas with residential densities of 15 dwelling units per acre or more, including options such as removing service from less dense, underutilized areas to do so. Employ transit-preferential measures, such as signal priority and | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| Topic | RTP/SCS Measure bypass lanes. Where compatible with adjacent land use designations, right-of-way acquisition or parking removal may occur to accommodate transit-preferential measures or improve access to transit. The use of access management shall be considered where needed to reduce conflicts between transit vehicles and other vehicles. Provide safe and convenient access for pedestrians and bicyclists to, across, and along major transit priority streets. Use park-and-ride facilities to access transit stations only at ends of regional transit ways or where adequate feeder bus service is not feasible. Upgrade and maintain transit system infrastructure to enhance public use, if determined feasible and applicable by the Lead Agency, including: Ensure transit stops and bus lanes are safe, convenient, clean and efficient. Ensure transit stops have clearly marked street-level designation and are accessible. | Applicability to the Project |
| | marked street-level designation and are accessible. | |
| | sheltered, benches are clean, and lighting is adequate. | |
| | Place transit stations along transit corridors within mixed-use or transit- oriented development areas at | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| | intervals of three to four blocks, or no less than one-half mile. | |
| | intervals of three to four blocks, or no less than one-half mile. Enhance customer service and system ease-of-use, if determined feasible and applicable by the Lead Agency, including: Develop a Regional Pass system to reduce the number of different passes and tickets required of system users. Implement "Smart Bus" technology, using GPS and electronic displays at transit stops to provide customers with "real-time" arrival and departure time information (and to allow the system operator to respond more quickly and effectively to disruptions in service). Investigate the feasibility of an on-line trip-planning program. Prioritize transportation funding to support a shift from private passenger vehicles to transit and other modes of transportation, if determined feasible and applicable by the Lead Agency, including: Give funding preference to improvements in public transit over other new infrastructure for private | |
| | automobile traffic. | |
| | Before funding transportation improvements that increase readway | |
| | capacity and VMT, evaluate the | |
| | feasibility and effectiveness of | |
| | funding projects that support | |
| | and reduce VMT, including transit, | |
| | and bicycle and pedestrian access. | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| Topic | RTP/SCS Measure sharing, or other modes of transportation, and encourage employers to subscribe to or support the program. Encourage and utilize shuttles to serve neighborhoods, employment centers and major destinations. Create a free or low-cost local area shuttle system that includes a fixed route to popular tourist destinations or shopping and business centers. Work with existing shuttle service providers to coordinate their services. Facilitate employment opportunities that minimize the need for private vehicle trips, including: Amend zoning ordinances and the Development Code to include live/work sites and satellite work centers in appropriate locations. Encourage telecommuting options with new and existing employers, through project review and incentives, as appropriate. | Applicability to the Project |
| | Enforce state idling laws for commercial vehicles, including delivery and construction vehicles. | |
| | Organize events and workshops to promote GHG-reducing activities. | |
| | Implement a Parking Management Program to discourage private vehicle use, including: | |
| | encouraging carpools and varpools with preferential parking and a reduced parking fee. Institute a parking cash-out program. | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-----------------------------|---|---|
| | Renegotiate employee contracts, where possible, to eliminate parking subsidies. Install on-street parking meters with fee structures designed to discourage private vehicle use. Establish a parking fee for all single-occupant vehicles. Work with school districts to improve pedestrian and bicycle to schools and restore school bus service Encourage the use of bicycles to transit facilities by providing bicycle parking lockers facilities. Monitor traffic congestion to determine where and when new transportation facilities are needed to increase access and efficiency. Develop and implement a bicycle and pedestrian safety educational program to teach drivers and riders the laws, riding protocols, safety tips, and emergency maneuvers. Synchronize traffic signals to reduce congestion and air quality. Work with community groups and business associations to organize and publicize walking tours and bicycle evens. | |
| Transportation/Traffic | Project-Level Mitigation Measure | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because the |
| Inadequate Emergency Access | MM-TRA-5(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing impacts to emergency | City has determined that the existing regulatory requirements listed below would apply to the Project and are equal to or more effective than the SCAG RTP/SCS Program EIR MM-TRA-5(b). |

| Table 4-1 |
|---|
| Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS |

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|--|---|
| <u>Hazards and Hazardous</u> <u>Materials</u> <i>Impair or Interfere with</i> <i>Emergency Response or</i> <i>Evacuation Plan</i> | access that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of fire departments, local enforcement agencies, and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider improving emergency access and ensuring compliance with the provisions of the county and city general plan, Emergency Evacuation Plan, and other regional and local plans establishing access during emergencies, as applicable and feasible. Compliance can be achieved through adopting transportation mitigation measures as set forth below, or through other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | Specifically, the Project would be subject to the City's existing regulations that require the Project to comply with the Fire Code and LAMC emergency access requirements. Additionally, the LAFD would require the Project Applicant to prepare an emergency response plan that would address the following: mapping of emergency exits, evacuation routes for vehicles and pedestrians, and locations of nearest hospitals and fire departments. |
| | Prior to construction, project implementation agencies can and should ensure that all necessary local and state road and railroad encroachment permits are obtained. The project implementation agency can and should also comply with all applicable conditions of approval. As deemed necessary by the governing jurisdiction, the road encroachment permits may require the contractor to prepare a traffic control plan in accordance with professional engineering standards prior to construction. Traffic control plans can and should include the following requirements: Identification of all roadway locations where special construction techniques (e.g., directional drilling or night construction) would be used to minimize impacts to traffic flow. | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| | Development of circulation and | |
| | detour plans to minimize impacts to | |
| | local street circulation. This may | |
| | include the use of signing and | |
| | flagging to guide vehicles through | |
| | and/or around the construction zone. | |
| | Scheduling of truck trips outside of | |
| | peak morning and evening commute | |
| | hours. | |
| | Limiting of lane closures during peak | |
| | hours to the extent possible. | |
| | Usage of haul routes minimizing truck | |
| | traffic on local roadways to the extent | |
| | possible. | |
| | Inclusion of detours for bicycles and | |
| | pedestrians in all areas potentially | |
| | affected by project construction. | |
| | Installation of traffic control devices | |
| | as specified in the California | |
| | Department of Transportation Manual | |
| | of Traffic Controls for Construction | |
| | and Maintenance Work Zones. | |
| | Development and implementation of | |
| | access plans for highly sensitive land | |
| | uses such as police and fire stations, | |
| | transit stations, hospitals, and | |
| | schools. The access plans would be | |
| | developed with the facility owner or | |
| | administrator. To minimize disruption | |
| | of emergency vehicle access, | |
| | affected jurisdictions can and should | |
| | be asked to identify detours for | |
| | emergency vehicles, which will then | |
| | be posted by the contractor. Notify in | |
| | advance the facility owner or operator | |
| | of the timing, location, and duration of | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| | construction activities and the | |
| | | |
| | Storage of construction materials only | |
| | in designated areas. | |
| | Coordination with local transit agencies for | |
| | temporary relocation of routes or bus stops in | |
| | work zones, as necessary. Ensure the rapid | |
| | repair of transportation infrastructure in the | |
| | event of an emergency through cooperation | |
| | among public agencies and by identifying | |
| | critical infrastructure needs necessary for: a) | |
| | emergency responders to enter the region, b) | |
| | restoration of utilities. | |
| | • Enhance emergency preparedness | |
| | awareness among public agencies and with | |
| | the public at large. | |
| | Provision for collaboration in planning, | |
| | communication, and information sharing | |
| | before, during, or after a regional emergency | |
| | through the following: | |
| | Incorporate strategies and actions portaining to response and | |
| | prevention of security incidents and | |
| | events as part of the on-going | |
| | regional planning activities. | |
| | Provide a regional repository of GIS | |
| | data for use by local agencies in | |
| | emergency planning, and response, | |
| | in a standardized format. | |
| | Enter into mutual aid agreements with other local invitations in | |
| | coordination with the California OES | |
| | in the event that an event disrupts the | |
| | jurisdiction's ability to function. | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--|---|--|
| Utilities and Service Systems Require New Water or Wastewater Treatment Facilities | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-USS-3(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects on utilities and service systems, particularly for construction of storm water drainage facilities including new transportation and land use projects that are within the responsibility of local jurisdictions including the Riverside, San Bernardino, Los Angeles, Ventura, and Orange Counties Flood Control District, and County of Imperial. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures, as applicable and feasible. These mitigation measures are within the responsibility of the Lead Agencies and Regional Water Quality Control Boards of (Regions 4, 6, 8, and 9) pursuant to the provisions of the National Flood Insurance Act, stormwater permitting requirements for stormwater discharges for new constructions, the flood control act, and Urban Waste Management Plan. Such mitigation measures, or other comparable measures, capable of avoiding or reducing significant impacts on the use of existing storm water drainage facilities and can and should be adopted where Lead Agencies identify significant impacts on new storm water drainage facilities. | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because it is not applicable to the Project, as the Project would not require the need for new or upgraded water or wastewater treatment facilities. |
| Utilities and Service Systems | Project-Level Mitigation Measure | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because it is not applicable to the Project, as the Project would not |
Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|--|---|---|
| Require New or Expanded Entitlements for Water Supply | MM-USS-4(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects on water supplies from existing entitlements requiring new or expanded services in the vicinity of HQTAs that are in the jurisdiction and responsibility of public agencies and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance with EO B-29-15, provisions of the Porter –Cologne Water Quality Control Act, California Domestic Water Supply Permit requirements, and applicable County, City or other Local provisions. Such measures may include the following or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | require the need for new or expanded water supply facilities. |
| | Reduce exterior consumptive uses of water in public areas, and should promote reductions in private homes and businesses, by shifting to drought-tolerant native landscape plantings (xeriscaping), using weather-based irrigation systems, educating other public agencies about water use, and installing related water pricing incentives. Promote the availability of drought-resistant landscaping options and provide information on where these can be purchased. Use of reclaimed water especially in median landscaping and hillside landscaping can and should be implemented where feasible. Implement water conservation best practices such as low-flow toilets, water-efficient | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|---|--|--|
| | clothes washers, water system audits, and leak detection and repair. Ensure that projects requiring continual dewatering facilities implement monitoring systems and long-term administrative procedures to ensure proper water management that prevents degrading of surface water and minimizes, to the greatest extent possible, adverse impacts on groundwater for the life of the project. Comply with appropriate building codes and standard practices including the Uniform Building Code. Maximize, where practical and feasible, permeable surface area in existing urbanized areas to protect water quality, reduce flooding, allow for groundwater recharge, and preserve wildlife habitat. Minimized new impervious surfaces to the greatest extent possible, including the use of in-lieu fees and off-site mitigation. Avoid designs that require continual dewatering where feasible. Where feasible, do not site transportation facilities in groundwater recharge areas to impervious surfaces. | |
| <u>Utilities and Service Systems</u> Landfill with Sufficient Capacity | Project-Level Mitigation Measure MM-USS-6(b): Consistent with the provisions of Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines, SCAG has identified mitigation measures capable of avoiding or reducing the significant effects to serve landfills with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate solid waste disposal needs, in which 75 percent of the waste stream be recycled | This mitigation measure is not incorporated, because the City has determined that the City's existing regulatory requirements, such as the City's recycling requirements, would apply to the Project and are equal to or more effective than the SCAG RTP/SCS Program EIR MM- USS-6(b). |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|--|------------------------------|
| | and waste reduction goal by 50 percent that are within the responsibility of public agencies and/or Lead Agencies. Where the Lead Agency has identified that a project that has the potential for significant effects, the Lead Agency can and should consider mitigation measures to ensure compliance pursuant to the provisions of the Solid Waste Diversion Goals and Integrated Waste Management Plan, as applicable and feasible. Such measures may include the following or other comparable measures identified by the Lead Agency: | |
| | Integrate green building measures consistent with CALGreen (California Building Code Title 24) into project design including, but not limited to the following: Reuse and minimization of construction and demolition (C&D) debris and diversion of C&D waste from landfills to recycling facilities. Inclusion of a waste management plan that promotes maximum C&D diversion. Source reduction through (1) use of materials that are more durable and easier to repair and maintain, (2) design to generate less scrap material through dimensional planning, (3) increased recycled content, (4) use of reclaimed materials, and (5) use of structural materials in a dual role as finish material (e.g., stained concrete flooring, unfinished ceilings, etc.). | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|---|------------------------------|
| | Reuse of existing structure and shell | |
| | in renovation projects. | |
| | Design for deconstruction without | |
| | compromising safety. | |
| | \circ Design for flexibility through the use | |
| | of moveable walls, raised floors, | |
| | modular furniture, moveable task | |
| | lighting and other reusable building | |
| | components. | |
| | Development of indoor recycling program and appage | |
| | Discourage the siting of now landfills | |
| | Unless all other waste reduction and | |
| | prevention actions have been fully | |
| | explored If landfill siting or expansion | |
| | is necessary, site landfills with an | |
| | adequate landfill-owned, | |
| | undeveloped land buffer to minimize | |
| | the potential adverse impacts of the | |
| | landfill in neighboring communities. | |
| | Locally generated waste should be | |
| | disposed of regionally, considering | |
| | distance to disposal site. Encourage | |
| | disposal near where the waste | |
| | originates as much as possible. | |
| | Promote green technologies for long- | |
| | distance transport of waste (e.g., | |
| | or electric rail for waste by rail | |
| | disposal systems) and consistency | |
| | with SCAQMD and 2016 RTP/SCS | |
| | policies can and should be required. | |
| | Encourage waste reduction doals and | |
| | practices and look for opportunities | |
| | for voluntary actions to exceed the 50 | |
| | percent waste diversion target. | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|-------|------|---|------------------------------|
| | 0 E | Encourage the development of local | |
| | n | narkets for waste prevention, | |
| | r | eduction, and recycling practices by | |
| | s | supporting recycled content and | |
| | g | green procurement policies, as well | |
| | a | as other waste prevention, reduction | |
| | a | and recycling practices. | |
| | 0 E | Develop ordinances that promote | |
| | v | vaste prevention and recycling | |
| | a | activities such as: requiring waste | |
| | r | prevention and recycling efforts at all | |
| | l la | arge events and venues: | |
| | ir | mplementing recycled content | |
| | r n | procurement programs: and | |
| | | developing opportunities to divert | |
| | f | ood waste away from landfills and | |
| | te | oward food banks and composting | |
| | f | acilities | |
| | | Develop alternative waste | |
| | | management strategies such as | |
| | | composting recycling and | |
| | | conversion technologies | |
| | о Г | Develop and site composting | |
| | | ecycling and conversion technology | |
| | f | acilities that have minimum | |
| | | environmental and health impacts | |
| | € | Require the reuse and recycle | |
| | | construction and demolition waste | |
| | (| including but not limited to soil | |
| | | regetation concrete lumber metal | |
| | | and cardboard) | |
| | | ntegrate reuse and recycling into | |
| | | esidential industrial institutional and | |
| | | commercial projects | |
| | L C | | |

 Table 4-1

 Applicability of Project-Level Mitigation Measures from the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

| Торіс | RTP/SCS Measure | Applicability to the Project |
|----------------------------------|---|--|
| | Provide recycling opportunities for | |
| | residents, the public, and tenant | |
| | DUSINESSES. | |
| | Provide education and publicity about | |
| | reducing waste and available | |
| | recycling services. | |
| | o comply with state solid waste | |
| | diversion rate mandates and where | |
| | nossible encourage further recycling | |
| | to exceed these rates | |
| | Implement or expand city or county- | |
| | wide recycling and composting | |
| | programs for residents and | |
| | businesses. This could include | |
| | extending the types of recycling | |
| | services offered (e.g., to include food | |
| | and green waste recycling) and | |
| | providing public education and | |
| | publicity about recycling services. | |
| Source: Southern California Asso | ciation of Governments, Final 2016 2016-2040 RTP | /SCS Program Environmental Impact Report, Mitigation |
| Monitoring and Reporting Program | m, April 2016. | |

5 INITIAL STUDY

CITY OF LOS ANGELES OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK ROOM 395, CITY HALL LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 90012

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT

INITIAL STUDY

AND APPENDIX G CHECKLIST

| LEAD CITY AGENCY | COUNCIL | DISTRICT | DATE | |
|---|----------|----------------|-------------|--|
| City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning | CD14 - H | uizar | August 2020 | |
| RESPONSIBLE AGENCIES | | | | |
| | | | | |
| PROJECT TITLE / CASE NO. | | RELATED CASES | | |
| 1024 Mateo Project | | None | | |
| PROJECT LOCATION | | | | |
| 1024 Mateo Street, Los Angeles, CA 90021 | | | | |
| APPLICANT NAME AND ADDRESS | | PHONE NUMBER | | |
| SRG Properties | | (310) 894-8000 | | |
| 1875 Century Park East, Suite 1750, Los Angeles, CA 90067 | | | | |
| PROJECT DESCRIPTION: | | | | |
| (For additional detail, see Section 1., Project Description). | | | | |
| ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING: | | | | |
| (For additional detail, see Section 1., Project Description). | | | | |

Have California Native American tribes traditionally and culturally affiliated with the project area requested consultation pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21080.3.1? If so, has consultation begun?

No

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED:

The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at least one impact that is a "Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the following pages.

| Aesthetics | Greenhouse Gas Emissions | Public Services |
|------------------------------------|-------------------------------|---------------------------------------|
| Agriculture and Forestry Resources | Hazards & Hazardous Materials | Recreation |
| 🛛 Air Quality | Hydrology / Water Quality | Transportation / Traffic |
| Biological Resources | Land Use / Planning | Tribal Cultural Resources |
| Cultural Resources | Mineral Resources | Utilities / Service Systems |
| ☐ Energy | □ Noise | |
| 🛛 Geology / Soils | Population / Housing | Mandatory Findings of Significance |
| | | Significance |

DETERMINATION (to be completed by Lead Agency)

On the basis of this initial evaluation:

| I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have DECLARATION will be prepared. | a significant effect on the environment, and a NEGATIVE |
|---|--|
| ☑ I find that although the proposed project could have a sig effect in this case because revisions on the project ha SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL AS | nificant effect on the environment, there will not be a significant ave been made by or agreed to by the project proponent. A SSESSMENT will be prepared. |
| I find the proposed project MAY have a significant eff REPORT is required. | ect on the environment, and an ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT |
| ☐ I find the proposed project MAY have a "potentially signif on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has be applicable legal standards, and 2) has been addressed on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT F remain to be addressed. | icant impact" or "potentially significant unless mitigated" impact een adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to by mitigation measures based on earlier analysis as described REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that |
| I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because all potential significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant t applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required. | |
| Nuri Cho | City Planner |
| PRINTED NAME | TITLE |
| Debbie Lawrence | (213) 978-1177 |

SIGNATURE

TELEPHONE NUMBER

EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS:

- 1) A brief explanation is required for all answers except "No Impact" answers that are adequately supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses following each question. A "No Impact" answer is adequately supported if the referenced information sources show that the impact simply does not apply to projects like the one involved (e.g., the project falls outside a fault rupture zone). A "No Impact" answer should be explained where it is based on project-specific factors as well as general standards (e.g., the project will not expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, based on a project-specific screening analysis).
- 2) All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site, cumulative as well as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as operational impacts.
- 3) Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then the checklist answers must indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less that significant with mitigation, or less than significant. "Potentially Significant Impact" is appropriate if there is substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If there are one or more "Potentially Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an EIR is required.
- 4) "Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated" applies where the incorporation of a mitigation measure has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant Impact" to "Less Than Significant Impact." The lead agency must describe the mitigation measures, and briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less than significant level (mitigation measures from "Earlier Analysis," as described in (5) below, may be cross referenced).
- 5) Earlier analysis must be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, an effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR, or negative declaration. Section 15063 (c)(3)(D). In this case, a brief discussion should identify the following:
 - a) Earlier Analysis Used. Identify and state where they are available for review.
 - b) Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were within the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and state whether such effects were addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis.
 - c) Mitigation Measures. For effects that are "Less Than Significant With Mitigation Measures Incorporated," describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined from the earlier document and the extent to which they address site-specific conditions for the project.
- 6) Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information sources for potential impacts (e.g., general plans, zoning ordinances). Reference to a previously prepared or outside document should, where appropriate, include a reference to the page or pages where the statement is substantiated
- 7) Supporting Information Sources: A sources list should be attached, and other sources used or individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion.
- 8) This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats; however, lead agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant to a project's environmental effects in whichever format is selected.
- 9) The explanation of each issue should identify:
 - a) The significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question; and
 - b) The mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance.

- I. **AESTHETICS.** Except as provided in Public Resources Code Section 21099, would the project:
 - a. Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?
 - b. Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic highway?
 - c. Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of public views of the site and its surroundings?
 - d. Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area?
- AGRICULTURE AND FOREST RESOURCES. П. In determining whether impacts to agricultural resources are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the California Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model (1997) prepared by the California Dept. of Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing impacts on agriculture and farmland. In determining whether impacts to forest resources, including timberland, are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to information compiled by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection regarding the state's inventory of forest land, including the Forest and Range Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy Assessment project; and forest carbon measurement methodology provided in Forest Protocols adopted by the California Air Resources Board. Would the project:
 - a. Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?
 - b. Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract?
 - c. Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code section 51104(g))?
 - d. Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

| Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-------------|
| | | • | · |
| | | | \boxtimes |
| | | | \boxtimes |
| | | | \boxtimes |

| | | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|------|-----------------------|--|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-----------|
| | e. | Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could result in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest use? | | | | |
| III. | Al es dis ma | R QUALITY. Where available, the significance criteria tablished by the applicable air quality management strict or air pollution control district may be relied upon to ake the following determinations. Would the project: | | | | |
| | a. | Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan? | | | \boxtimes | |
| | b. | Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non- attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard? | | | | |
| | C. | Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations? | | | \boxtimes | |
| | d. | Result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors) affecting a substantial number of people? | | | \boxtimes | |
| IV. | BI | OLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would the project: | | | | |
| | a. | Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? | | | | |
| | b. | Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Game or US Fish and Wildlife Service? | | | | |
| | C. | Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means? | | | | |
| | d. | Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites? | | | | |
| | e. | Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or ordinance? | | | | |

| | | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|------|----|--|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-------------|
| | f. | Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan? | | | | |
| V. | С | JLTURAL RESOURCES: Would the project: | | | | |
| | a. | Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant to § 15064.5? | | | | \boxtimes |
| | b. | Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to § 15064.5? | | | | |
| | C. | Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of dedicated cemeteries? | | | | |
| VI. | E١ | IERGY. Would the project: | | | | |
| | a. | Result in potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources, during project construction or operation? | | | | |
| | b. | Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency? | | | \boxtimes | |
| VII. | G | EOLOGY AND SOILS. Would the project: | | | | |
| | a. | Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving: | | | | |
| | | i. Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault, caused in whole or in part by the project's exacerbation of the existing environmental conditions? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special Publication 42. | | | | |
| | | ii. Strong seismic ground shaking caused in whole or in part by the project's exacerbation of the existing environmental conditions? | | | \boxtimes | |
| | | iii. Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction, caused in whole or in part by the project's exacerbation of the existing environmental conditions? | | | | |
| | | iv. Landslides, caused in whole or in part by the project's exacerbation of the existing environmental conditions? | | | | \boxtimes |
| | b. | Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? | | | \boxtimes | |

| | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|---|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-------------|
| is unstable, or that of the project, and a landslide, lateral on, or collapse, ject's exacerbation ons? | | | | |
| ned in Table 18-1-B (1994), creating life or property? | | | | |
| supporting the use astewater disposal ble for the disposal | | | | \boxtimes |
| ue paleontological eature? | | \boxtimes | | |
| ould the project: s, either directly or ant impact on the | | | | |
| olicy or regulation g the emissions of | | | | |
| RIALS. Would the | | | | |
| he public or the transport, use, or | | \boxtimes | | |
| he public or the eseeable upset and ease of hazardous | | \boxtimes | | |
| ndle hazardous or stances, or waste sting or proposed | | \boxtimes | | |
| luded on a list of biled pursuant to 5 and, as a result, 5 the public or the in part from the ng environmental | | | | |
| rt land use plan or, dopted, within two e airport, would the | | | | \boxtimes |

- c. Be located on a geologic unit that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse, caused in whole or in part by the project's exacerbation of the existing environmental conditions?
- d. Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), creating substantial direct or indirect risks to life or property?
- e. Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste water?
- f. Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature?

VIII. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS. Would the project:

- a. Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment?
- b. Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases?

IX. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Would the project:

- a. Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials?
- b. Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment?
- c. Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?
- d. Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would create a significant hazard to the public or the environment caused in whole or in part from the project's exacerbation of existing environmental conditions?
- e. For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in a safety hazard or excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area?

| | | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|-----|-------------------|--|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-------------|
| | f. | Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan? | | | \boxtimes | |
| | g. | Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires? | | | | |
| X. | H י pre | YDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY. Would the oject: | | | | |
| | a. | Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface or groundwater? | | | \boxtimes | |
| | b. | Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such that the project may impede sustainable groundwater management of the basin? | | | | \boxtimes |
| | C. | Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which would result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site? | | | | |
| | i. | result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site? | | | \boxtimes | |
| | ii. | substantially increase the rate or amount or amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site? | | | \boxtimes | |
| | iii | create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff, or? | | | | |
| | iv | .Impede or redirect flood flows? | | | \boxtimes | |
| | d. | In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk release of pollutants due to project inundation? | | | | \boxtimes |
| | e. | Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or sustainable groundwater management plan? | | | \boxtimes | |
| XI. | LÆ | AND USE AND PLANNING. Would the project: | | | | |
| | a. | Physically divide an established community? | | | | \boxtimes |
| | b. | Cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect? | | | | |

XII. MINERAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|--|--|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-------------|
| a. | Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and the residents of the state? | | | | \boxtimes |
| b. | Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? | | | | \boxtimes |
| XIII. N | OISE. Would the project result in: | | | | |
| a. | Generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies? | | | | |
| b. | Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels? | | | | |
| C. | For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels? | | | | |
| XIV. P | OPULATION AND HOUSING. Would the project: | | | | |
| a. | Induce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or other infrastructure)? | | | | |
| b. | Displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing, necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere? | | | | |
| XV. PI su pr fa fa er se ot a. b. c. d. | UBLIC SERVICES. Would the project result in ubstantial adverse physical impacts associated with the rovision of new or physically altered governmental cilities, need for new or physically altered governmental cilities, the construction of which could cause significant nvironmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable ervice ratios, response times or other performance ojectives for any of the public services: Fire protection? Police protection? Schools? Parks? | | | | |
| e. | Other public facilities? | | | \boxtimes | |

| - | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|------------------|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-----------|
| g II | | | \boxtimes | |
| e e e | | | | |
| y ., | | \boxtimes | | |
| t ə r | | | \boxtimes | |
| ר 5 5 1 | | | \boxtimes | |
| | | | \boxtimes | |
| edas fil rfs | | | | |
| ร ว า า | | | | |

XVI. RECREATION.

- a. Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated?
- b. Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment?

XVII. TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC. Would the project:

- a. Conflict with a program, plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system, including transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities?
- b. Conflict with an applicable congestion management program, including, but not limited to level of service standards and travel demand measures, or other standards established by the county congestion management agency for designated roads or highways
- c. Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)?
- d. Result in inadequate emergency access?

XVIII. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES.

- a. Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public Resources Code section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is:
 - i. Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k), or
 - ii. A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1. In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resource Code Section 5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a California Native American tribe.

| | | | | Less Than Significant | | |
|-----|----------------|--|--------------------------------------|------------------------------------|------------------------------------|-------------|
| | | | Potentially Significant Impact | with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
| XIX | - | UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS. Would the project: | | | | |
| | a. | Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater treatment or storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications facilities, the construction or relocation of which could cause significant environmental effects? | | | | |
| | b. | Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable future development during normal, dry and multiple dry years? | | | | |
| | C. | Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project's projected demand in addition to the provider's existing commitments? | | | | |
| | d. | Generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of the capacity of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals? | | | \boxtimes | |
| | e. | Comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations related to solid waste? | | | \boxtimes | |
| XX. | W or the | ILDFIRE . If located in or near state responsibility areas lands classified as very high fire severity zones, would e project: | | | | |
| | a. | Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan? | | | | \boxtimes |
| | b. | Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby expose project occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or uncontrolled spread of a wildfire? | | | | |
| | C. | Requires the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel breaks, emergency water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment? | | | | |
| | d. | Expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage changes? | | | | |

XXI. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE. Would the project:

- a. Does the project have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory??
- b. Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)?
- c. Does the project have environmental effects, which will cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly?

| | \boxtimes | |
|--|-------------|--|
| | \boxtimes | |

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

I. AESTHETICS

Senate Bill (SB) 743 (Public Resources Code (PRC) §21099(d)) sets forth new guidelines for evaluating aesthetic impacts for an in-fill, transit-oriented project under CEQA, as follows: "Aesthetic and parking impacts of a residential, mixed-use residential, or employment center project on an infill site within a transit priority area (TPA) shall not be considered significant impacts on the environment." PRC Section 21099 defines a "transit priority area" as an area within 0.5 miles of a major transit stop that is "existing or planned, if the planned stop is scheduled to be completed within the planning horizon included in a Transportation Improvement Program adopted pursuant to Section 450.216 or 450.322 of Title 23 of the Code of Federal Regulations." PRC Section 21064.3 defines "major transit stop" as "a site containing an existing rail transit station, a ferry terminal served by either a bus or rail transit service, or the intersection of two or more major bus routes with a frequency of service interval of 15 minutes or less during the morning and afternoon peak commute periods." PRC Section 21099 defines an "employment center project" as "a project located on property zoned for commercial uses with a floor area ratio of no less than 0.75 and that is located within a transit priority area. PRC Section 21099 defines an "infill site" as a lot located within an urban area that has been previously developed, or on a vacant site where at least 75 percent of the perimeter of the site adjoins or is separated only by an improved public right-ofway from, parcels that are developed with qualified urban uses. This state law supersedes the aesthetic impact thresholds in the 2006 L.A. CEQA Thresholds Guide, including those established for aesthetics, obstruction of views, shading, and nighttime illumination.

The related City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning Zoning Information (ZI) File ZI No. 2452 provides further instruction concerning the definition of transit priority projects and that "visual resources, aesthetic character, shade and shadow, light and glare, and scenic vistas or any other aesthetic impact as defined in the City's CEQA Threshold Guide shall not be considered an impact for infill projects within TPAs pursuant to CEQA."¹

As identified in Section 3, SCEA Findings and Consistency, the Project qualifies as an infill transitoriented project pursuant to PRC Section 21099. Specifically, per PRC Section 21099, an infill site is defined as a lot located within an urban area that has been previously developed, or on a vacant site where at least 75 percent of the perimeter of the site adjoins, or is separated only by an improved public right-of-way from, parcels that are developed with qualified urban uses. The Project Site currently complies with this definition as an infill site since it was previously developed as a bus and auto repair yard, and since at least 75 percent of the perimeter of the Project Site adjoins an improved public rightof-way and is located in an urban area. Also, the Project Site is situated within a transit priority area, which is defined as an area within one-half mile of a major transit stop that is existing or planned. As disclosed in Section 3 of this SCEA, the Project Site is situated within multiple major transit stops within n a one-half mile radius. In particular, the Project Site is located in an urban area served by multiple local

¹ City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning, Zoning Information File ZA No. 2452, Transit Priority Areas (TPAs)/Exemptions to Aesthetics and Parking Within TPAs Pursuant to CEQA. Available at: http://zimas.lacity.org/documents/zoneinfo/ZI2452.pdf. Accessed Dec. 2, 2016.

bus lines that are adjacent to the Project Site and with service intervals of 15 minute or less during morning and afternoon peak commute periods, as shown in **Table 3-2** in Section 3 of this SCEA. In particular, Metro Lines 18, 60, 62, and Rapid 720 have stops at the intersection of 7th Street and Decatur Street, approximately 1,400 feet (0.625 miles) northwest of the Project Site. Metro Lines 18, 62, and Rapid 720 provide transit connections to the rail line, Metro Red/Purple Line at the Pershing Square Station, which itself provides regional access. Metro Line Rapid 760 has a stop at the intersection of 7th and Alameda Street, approximately 2,375 feet northwest of the Project Site. The rail line, Metro Blue Line has a station stop at the intersection of Washington Boulevard and Long Beach Avenue, approximately 4,900 feet southwest of the Project Site. These above lines also provide transit connections to City of Montebello and Gardena transit services, which are several miles to the east of the Project Site. Therefore, the Project is exempt from further analysis of aesthetic impacts. As such, nothing in the aesthetic impact discussion in this initial study shall trigger the need for any CEQA findings, CEQA analysis, or CEQA mitigation measures.

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|------------|--|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-------------|
| Exc Sec | cept as provided in Public Resources Code ction 21099 would the project: | | | | |
| a. | Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? | | | | \boxtimes |
| b. | Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic highway? | | | | |
| C. | In nonurbanized areas, substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of public views of the site and its surroundings? (Public views are those that are experienced from publicly accessible vantage point). If the project is in an urbanized area, would the project conflict with applicable zoning and other regulations governing scenic quality? | | | | |
| d. | Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day or nighttime | | | | \boxtimes |

views in the area?

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

II. AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES

In determining whether impacts to agricultural resources are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the California Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model (1997) prepared by the California Department of Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing impacts on agriculture and farmland. In determining whether impacts to forest resources, including timberland, are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to information compiled by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection regarding the state's inventory of forest land, including the Forest and Range Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy Assessment Project; and forest carbon measurement methodology provided in Forest Protocols adopted by the California Air Resources Board.

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|----|---|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-------------|
| W | ould the project: | | | | |
| a. | Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non- agricultural use? | | | | |
| b. | Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract? | | | | \boxtimes |
| C. | Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code section 51104(g))? | | | | |
| d. | Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use? | | | | \boxtimes |



a. Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?

No Impact. The Extent of Important Farmland Map Coverage maintained by the Division of Land Resource Protection indicates that the Project Site is not included in the Important Farmland category.¹ Therefore, the Project would not convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland) to non-agricultural use, as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency. **Thus, no impacts would occur.**

b. Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract?

No Impact. The Project Site is proposed to be zoned CM-2 (Commercial Manufacturing) and is located in the Central City North Community Plan area. The current General Plan Land Use Designation for the Project Site is Heavy Manufacturing. The proposed General Plan Land Use Designation is Commercial Industrial. The Project Site is not zoned for agricultural use, and the Site is not under and is not eligible for enrollment under a Williamson Act Contract.² There are no Williamson Act Contracts in the City of Los Angeles. Therefore, the Project would not conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act Contract, and no impacts would occur.

c. Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code section 51104(g))?

No Impact. The Project Site is located in an urbanized area of the City. The Site is developed with a surface parking lot and an automobile service building which is currently being utilized by a month-to-month tenant. The Project Site does not include any forest or timberland and is not zoned as forest land or timberland. **Therefore, no impacts related to this issue would occur.**

d. Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

No Impact. The Project Site is located in a developed area of the City and does not contain any forest land. Additionally, forest land is defined as "land that can support 10-percent native tree cover of any

¹ State of California Department of Conservation, Division of Land Resource Protection, Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program, Los Angeles County Important Farmland, 1998. ftp://ftp.consrv.ca.gov/pub/dlrp/FMMP/pdf/2012/los12.pdf.

² Ibid.

species, including hardwoods, under natural conditions, and that allows for management of one or more forest resources, including timber, aesthetics, fish and wildlife, biodiversity, water quality, recreation, and other public benefits."³ Timberland is defined as "land...which is available for, and capable of, growing a crop of trees of any commercial species used to produce lumber and other forest products, including Christmas trees."⁴ At present, there are three non-protected trees located on the Project Site, all of which would be removed as part of the Project. Additionally, there are three non-protected palm trees located along Mateo Street in the public right-of-way, which will also be removed as part of the Project. These existing street trees would be replaced and/or relocated consistent with the Urban Forestry Division's requirements. Nevertheless, this land is not considered forest land. **Therefore, no impacts related to this issue would occur.**

e. Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could result in conversion of Farmland to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

No Impact. The Project Site and surrounding area is developed with urban land uses. As stated, the Project Site is developed with a surface parking lot and an automobile service building which is currently being utilized by a month-to-month tenant. No agricultural uses are located on the Project Site or within the area. **Therefore, no impacts related to this issue would occur.**

Cumulative Impacts

Neither the Project Site nor any of the related projects' sites are used or designated as agricultural land or forest land. **Therefore, no cumulative impacts related to agricultural resources would occur.**

³ California Public Resources Code Section 1222 [g].

⁴ California Public Resources Code Section 4526.

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

III. AIR QUALITY

Where available, the significance criteria established by the South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) may be relied upon to make the following determinations.

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|----|---|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-----------|
| Wo | uld the project: | | | | |
| a. | Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan? | | | \boxtimes | |
| b. | Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard? | | | | |
| C. | Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations? | | | \boxtimes | |
| d. | Result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting a substantial number of people? | | | | |

Introduction

This section of the SCEA addresses the air emissions generated by construction and operation of the Project. The analysis also evaluates the consistency of the Project with the air quality policies set forth within the South Coast Air Quality Management District's (SCAQMD) Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP) and the City's General Plan. The analysis of Project-generated air emissions focuses on whether the Project would cause an exceedance of an ambient air quality standard or SCAQMD significance threshold. Calculation worksheets, assumptions, and model outputs used in the analysis are included in **Appendix A**, to this SCEA:

A <u>Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions Appendices</u>, DKA Planning, March 2019.

Pollutants and Effects

State and Federal Criteria Pollutants

Air quality is defined by ambient air concentrations of seven specific pollutants identified by the USEPA to be of concern with respect to health and welfare of the general public. These specific pollutants, known as "criteria air pollutants," are defined as pollutants for which the federal and State governments have established ambient air quality standards, or criteria, for outdoor concentrations to protect public health. Federal criteria air pollutants include carbon monoxide (CO), ground-level ozone (O3), nitrogen oxides (NO_X), sulfur oxides (SOX), particulate matter ten microns or less in diameter (PM10), particulate matter 2.5 microns or less in diameter (PM2.5), and lead (Pb). State-only criteria pollutants include Visibility Reducing Particles, Sulfates (SO₄²⁻), Hydrogen Sulfide (H₂S), and Vinyl Chloride.

Toxic Air Contaminants

TACs refer to a diverse group of "non-criteria" air pollutants that can affect human health but have not had ambient air quality standards established for them. This is not because they are fundamentally different from the pollutants discussed above but because their effects tend to be local rather than regional. TACs are classified as carcinogenic and noncarcinogenic, where carcinogenic TACs can cause cancer and noncarcinogenic TAC can cause acute and chronic impacts to different target organ systems (e.g., eyes, respiratory, reproductive, developmental, nervous, and cardiovascular). These include Diesel Particulate Matter (DPM) and Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs).

The Clean Air Act (CAA) requires USEPA to designate areas as attainment, nonattainment, or maintenance (previously nonattainment and currently attainment) for each criteria pollutant based on whether the NAAQS have been achieved. Title I provisions are implemented for the purpose of attaining NAAQS. The federal standards are summarized in **Table 6III-1**. USEPA has classified the Los Angeles County portion of the South Coast Air Basin (Basin) as a nonattainment area for O₃, PM_{2.5}, and Pb.

| Averaging | | | California | Federal | |
|---|---------------------------|-----------------------------|------------------|--------------------------|-------------------|
| Pollutant | Period | Standards Attainment Status | | Standards | Attainment Status |
| $Ozone(O_{2})$ | 1-hour | 0.09 ppm (180 µg/m³) | Non-attainment | | |
| 02016 (03) | 8-hour | 0.070 ppm (137 µg/m³) | N/A ¹ | 0.070 ppm (137 μg/m³) | Non-attainment |
| | | | | | |
| Respirable | 24-hour | 50 µg/m³ | Non-attainment | 150 µg/m³ | Maintenance |
| Particulate Matter (PM ₁₀) | Annual Arithmetic Mean | 20 µg/m³ | Non-attainment | | |
| | | | | | |
| Eino Porticulato | 24-hour | | - | 35 µg/m³ | Non-attainment |
| Matter (PM _{2.5}) | Annual Arithmetic Mean | 12 µg/m³ | Non-attainment | 12 µg/m³ | Non-attainment |
| | | | | | |

 Table 6.III-1

 State and National Ambient Air Quality Standards and Attainment Status for LA County 2018

Table 6.III-1 State and National Ambient Air Quality Standards and Attainment Status for LA County 2018

| | Averaging | C | California | | Federal | | |
|--|---------------------------|--|-------------------------------|-----------------------------------|-------------------|--|--|
| Pollutant | Period | Standards | Standards Attainment Status S | | Attainment Status | | |
| Carbon Monoxide | 1-hour | 20 ppm (23 mg/m ³) | Attainment | 35 ppm (40 mg/m ³) | Maintenance | | |
| (CO) | 8-hour | 9.0 ppm (10 mg/m ³) | Attainment | 9 ppm (10 mg/m ³) | Maintenance | | |
| | - | | | | | | |
| Nitrogen Dioxide | 1-hour | 0.18 ppm (338 µg/m³) | Attainment | 100 ppb (188 μg/m³) | Maintenance | | |
| (NO ₂) | Annual Arithmetic Mean | 0.030 ppm (57 µg/m³) | Attainment | 53 ppb (100 μg/m³) | Maintenance | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| Sulfur Diovido (SOs) | 1-hour | 0.25 ppm (655 μg/m³) | Attainment | 75 ppb (196 μg/m³) | Attainment | | |
| | 24-hour | 0.04 ppm (105 µg/m³) | Attainment | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| Lead (Ph) | 30-day average | 1.5 µg/m³ | Attainment | | | | |
| | Calendar Quarter | | | 0.15 µg/m ³ | Non-attainment | | |
| | - | | | • | | | |
| Visibility Reducing Particles | 8-hour | Extinction of 0.07 per kilometer | N/A | No Feo | leral Standards | | |
| - | 1 | 1 | | 1 | | | |
| Sulfates | 24-hour | 25 µg/m³ | Attainment | No Feo | leral Standards | | |
| | 1 | | | 1 | | | |
| Hydrogen Sulfide (H₂S) | 1-hour | 0.03 ppm (42 µg/m³) | Unclassified | No Federal Standards | | | |
| | 1 | | | 1 | | | |
| Vinyl Chloride | 24-hour | 0.01 ppm (26 µg/m³) | N/A | No Feo | deral Standards | | |
| ¹ N/A = not available Source: CARB_Ambie | nt Air Quality Standa | rds and attainr | nent status 2018 (www | arb ca gov/des | ia/adm/adm htm) | | |

Existing Conditions

As summarized in **Table 6.III-2**, most existing emissions are associated with mobile sources from the 530 daily vehicle trips traveling to and from the Project Site, as estimated by the CalEEMod 2016.3.2 model for industrial-type uses like the existing bus operations and maintenance facility. This includes trips from both light-duty vehicles from employees working at the site as well as diesel- and CNG-fueled transit buses that serve Metro bus routes.

| | Daily Emissions (Pounds Per Day) | | | | | | | |
|---|----------------------------------|-----|----|-----|-------------------------|-------------------|--|--|
| Emissions Source | VOC | NOx | со | SOx | PM ₁₀ | PM _{2.5} | | |
| Area Sources | <1 | <1 | <1 | <1 | <1 | <1 | | |
| Energy Sources | <1 | <1 | <1 | <1 | <1 | <1 | | |
| Mobile Sources | 1 | 7 | 22 | <1 | 5 | 2 | | |
| Net Regional Total | 2 | 7 | 22 | <1 | 5 | 2 | | |
| Source: DKA Planning 2019 based on CalEEMod 2016 3.2 model runs | | | | | | | | |

Table 6.III-2Existing Estimated Daily Operations Emissions

Project Impacts

<u>Methodology</u>

The air quality analysis conducted for the Project is consistent with the methods described in the SCAQMD CEQA Air Quality Handbook (1993 edition), as well as the updates to the CEQA Air Quality Handbook, as provided on the SCAQMD website. The SCAQMD recommends the use of the California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod, version 2016.3.2) as a tool for quantifying emissions of air pollutants that will be generated by constructing and operating development projects. The analyses focus on the potential change in air quality conditions due to Project implementation. Air pollutant emissions would result from both construction and operation of the Project. Specific methodologies used to evaluate these emissions are discussed below.

Construction

Sources of air pollutant emissions associated with construction activities include heavy-duty off-road diesel equipment and vehicular traffic to and from the Project construction site. Project-specific information was provided describing the schedule of construction activities and the equipment inventory required from the Applicant. Details pertaining to the schedule and equipment can be found in Appendix A to this SCEA. The CalEEMod model provides default values for daily equipment usage rates and worker trip lengths, as well as emission factors for heavy-duty equipment, passenger vehicles, and haul trucks that have been derived by the CARB. Maximum daily emissions were quantified for each construction activity based on the number of equipment and daily hours of use, in addition to vehicle trips to and from the Project Site.

The SCAQMD recommends that air pollutant emissions be assessed for both regional scale and localized impacts. The regional emissions analysis includes both on-site and off-site sources of emissions, while the localized emissions analysis focuses only on sources of emissions that would be located on the Project Site.

Localized impacts were analyzed in accordance with the SCAQMD Localized Significance Threshold (LST) methodology.¹ The localized effects from on-site portion of daily emissions were evaluated at

¹ SCAQMD, Final Localized Significance Methodology, revised July 2008.

sensitive receptor locations potentially impacted by the Project according to the SCAQMD's localized significance thresholds (LST) methodology, which uses on-site mass emission look-up tables and Project-specific modeling, where appropriate.² SCAQMD provides LSTs applicable to the following criteria pollutants: NO_X , CO, PM_{10} , and $PM_{2.5}$. SCAQMD does not provide an LST for SO₂ since land use development projects typically result in negligible construction and long-term operation emissions of this pollutant. Since VOCs are not a criteria pollutant, there is no ambient standard or SCAQMD LST for VOCs. Due to the role VOCs play in O₃ formation, it is classified as a precursor pollutant, and only a regional emissions threshold has been established.

LSTs represent the maximum emissions from a project that are not expected to cause or contribute to an exceedance of the most stringent applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard and are developed based on the ambient concentrations of that pollutant for each source receptor area and distance to the nearest sensitive receptor. The mass rate look-up tables were developed for each source receptor area and can be used to determine whether or not a project may generate significant adverse localized air quality impacts. SCAQMD provides LST mass rate look-up tables for projects with active construction areas that are less than or equal to five acres. If the project exceeds the LST look-up values, then the SCAQMD recommends that project-specific air quality modeling must be performed. Please refer to Threshold b below, for the analysis of localized impacts from on-site construction activities. In accordance with SCAQMD guidance, maximum daily emissions of NO_X, CO, PM₁₀, and PM2.5 from onsite sources during each construction activity were compared to LST values for a one-acre site having sensitive receptors within 200 meters (656 feet). These LST values were selected because the Project Site is approximately 1.42 acres and the nearest sensitive receptor (Loft 726 apartments at 726 Santa Fe Avenue) is approximately 283 meters (930 feet) from the Project Site.³

The Basin is divided into 38 SRAs, each with its own set of maximum allowable LST values for on-site emissions sources during construction and operations based on locally monitored air quality. Maximum on-site emissions resulting from construction activities were quantified and assessed against the applicable LST values.

The significance criteria and analysis methodologies in the SCAQMD's CEQA Air Quality Handbook were used in evaluating impacts in the context of the CEQA significance criteria listed below. The SCAQMD localized significance thresholds (LSTs) for NO₂, CO, and PM₁₀ were initially published in June 2003 and revised in July 2008.⁴ The LSTs for PM2.5 were established in October 2006.⁵ Updated LSTs were published on the SCAQMD website on October 21, 2009.⁶ **Table 6.III-3** presents the significance criteria for both construction and operational emissions.

² SCAQMD, LST Methodology Appendix C-Mass Rate LST Look-Up Table, October 2009.

³ SCAQMD, Fact Sheet for Applying CalEEMod to Localized Significance Thresholds, 2008.

⁴ SCAQMD, Fact Sheet for Applying CalEEMod to Localized Significance Thresholds, 2008.

⁵ SCAQMD, Final – Methodology to Calculate Particulate Matter (PM) 2.5 and PM 2.5 Significance Thresholds, October 2006.

⁶ SCAQMD, Final Localized Significance Threshold Methodology Appendix C – Mass Rate LST Look-Up Tables, October 21, 2009.

| Criteria Pollutant | Construction Emissions | | |
|---|------------------------|---------------|----------------------------|
| | Regional | Localized /a/ | Operation Emissions |
| Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) | 75 | | 55 |
| Nitrogen Oxides (NO _x) | 100 | 106 | 55 |
| Carbon Monoxide (CO) | 550 | 2,406 | 550 |
| Sulfur Oxides (SO _x) | 150 | | 150 |
| Respirable Particulates (PM ₁₀) | 150 | 70 | 150 |
| Fine Particulates (PM _{2.5}) | 55 | 24 | 55 |
| In pounds per day | | | |
| /a/ Localized significance thresholds assumed a 1-acre and 200-meter (656-foot) receptor distance. The SCAQMD has not developed LST values for VOC or SO _X . | | | |
| Source: SCAQMD | | | |

Table 6.III-3 SCAQMD Construction Emissions Thresholds

Operations

CalEEMod also generates estimates of daily and annual emissions of air pollutant resulting from future operation of a project. Operational emissions of air pollutants are producing by mobile sources (vehicular travel) and stationary sources (utilities demand). The Project Site is serviced LADWP, for which CalEEMod has derived default emissions factors for electricity and natural gas usage that are applied to the size and land use type of the Project in question. CalEEMod also generates estimated operational emissions associated with water use, wastewater generation, and solid waste disposal.

Similar to construction, SCAQMD's CalEEMod software was used for the evaluation of Project emissions during operation. CalEEMod was used to calculate on-road fugitive dust, architectural coatings, landscape equipment, energy use, mobile source, and stationary source emissions. To determine if a significant air quality impact would occur, the net increase in regional and local operational emissions generated by the Project was compared against the SCAQMD's significance thresholds.⁷ Details describing the operational emissions of the Project can be found in Appendix A of this SCEA.

Toxic Air Contaminants Impacts (Construction and Operations)

Potential TAC impacts are evaluated by conducting a qualitative analysis consistent with the CARB Handbook followed by a more detailed analysis (i.e., dispersion modeling), as necessary. The qualitative analysis consists of reviewing the Project to identify any new or modified TAC emissions sources. If the qualitative evaluation does not rule out significant impacts from a new source, or modification of an existing TAC emissions source, a more detailed analysis is conducted.

⁷ SCAQMD, SCAQMD Air Quality Significance Thresholds, revised March 2015. SCAQMD based these thresholds, in part on the federal Clean Air Act and, to enable defining "significant" for CEQA purposes,

Thresholds of Significance

State CEQA Guidelines Appendix G

Would the Project:

- a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan;
- b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or State ambient air quality standard;
- c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations; or
- d) Result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting a substantial number of people.

2006 L.A. CEQA Thresholds Guide and SCAQMD Thresholds

For this analysis the State CEQA Guidelines Appendix G Thresholds are relied upon. The analysis utilizes factors and considerations identified in the 2006 L.A. CEQA Thresholds Guide (Thresholds Guide) and SCAQMD Thresholds, as appropriate, to assist in answering the Appendix G Threshold questions.

Construction

The Thresholds Guide states that the determination of significance shall be made on a case-by-case basis, considering the following criteria to evaluate construction-related air emissions:

- *(i)* Combustion Emissions from Construction Equipment
- Type, number of pieces and usage for each type of construction equipment;
- Estimated fuel usage and type of fuel (diesel, natural gas) for each type of equipment; and
- Emission factors for each type of equipment.
 - (ii) Fugitive Dust—Grading, Excavation and Hauling
- Amount of soil to be disturbed on-site or moved off-site;
- Emission factors for disturbed soil;
- Duration of grading, excavation and hauling activities;
- Type and number of pieces of equipment to be used; and

• Projected haul route.

```
(iii) Fugitive Dust—Heavy-Duty Equipment Travel on Unpaved Road
```

- Length and type of road;
- Type, number of pieces, weight and usage of equipment; and
- Type of soil.
- *(iv)* Other Mobile Source Emissions
- Number and average length of construction worker trips to Project Site, per day; and
- Duration of construction activities.

In addition, the following criteria set forth in the SCAQMD's *CEQA Air Quality Handbook* serve as quantitative air quality standards to be used to evaluate project impacts under the Appendix G Thresholds. Under these thresholds, a significant threshold would occur when:⁸

- Regional emissions from both direct and indirect sources would exceed any of the following SCAQMD prescribed threshold levels: (1) 100 pounds per day for NO_x; (2) 75 pounds a day for VOC; (3) 150 pounds per day for PM₁₀ or SO_x; (4) 55 pounds per day for PM_{2.5}; and (5) 550 pounds per day for CO.
- Maximum on-site daily localized emissions exceed the LST, resulting in predicted ambient concentrations in the vicinity of the Project Site greater than the most stringent ambient air quality standards for CO (20 ppm [23,000 µg/m³] over a 1-hour period or 9.0 ppm [10,350 µg/m³] averaged over an 8-hour period) and NO₂ (0.18 ppm [339 µg/m³] over a 1-hour period, 0.1 ppm [188 µg/m³] over a three-year average of the 98th percentile of the daily maximum 1-hour average, or 0.03 ppm [57 µg/m³] averaged over an annual period).
- Maximum on-site localized PM₁₀ or PM_{2.5} emissions during construction exceed the applicable LSTs, resulting in predicted ambient concentrations in the vicinity of the Project Site to exceed the incremental 24-hour threshold of 10.4 μg/m³ or 1.0 μg/m³ PM₁₀ averaged over an annual period.

Operation

The Thresholds Guide bases the determination of significance of operational air quality impacts on criteria set forth in the SCAQMD's *CEQA Air Quality Handbook*.⁹ However, as discussed above, the City is using Appendix G as the thresholds of significance for this analysis. Specifically, the analysis utilizes factors and considerations identified in the Thresholds Guide and SCAQMD Thresholds, as appropriate,

⁸ SCAQMD, SCAQMD Air Quality Significance Thresholds, revised March 2015.

⁹ SCAQMD, SCAQMD Air Quality Significance Thresholds, revised March 2015.

to assist in answering the Appendix G Threshold questions. Accordingly, the following thresholds from the SCAQMD handbook serve as quantitative air quality standards to be used to evaluate project impacts under the Appendix G thresholds. Under these thresholds, a significant threshold would occur when:

- Operational emissions exceed 10 tons per year of volatile organic gases or any of the following SCAQMD prescribed threshold levels: (1) 55 pounds a day for VOC;¹⁰ (2) 55 pounds per day for NO_x; (3) 550 pounds per day for CO; (4) 150 pounds per day for SO_x; (5) 150 pounds per day for PM₁₀; and (6) 55 pounds per day for PM_{2.5}.^{11,12}
- Maximum on-site daily localized emissions exceed the LST, resulting in predicted ambient concentrations in the vicinity of the Project Site greater than the most stringent ambient air quality standards for CO (20 parts per million (ppm) over a 1-hour period or 9.0 ppm averaged over an 8-hour period) and NO₂ (0.18 ppm over a 1-hour period, 0.1 ppm over a 3-year average of the 98th percentile of the daily maximum 1-hour average, or 0.03 ppm averaged over an annual period).¹³
- Maximum on-site localized operational PM₁₀ and PM_{2.5} emissions exceed the incremental 24hour threshold of 2.5 μg/m³ or 1.0 μg/m³ PM₁₀ averaged over an annual period.¹⁴
- The Project causes or contributes to an exceedance of the California 1-hour or 8-hour CO standards of 20 or 9.0 ppm, respectively; or
- The Project creates an odor nuisance pursuant to SCAQMD Rule 402.

Toxic Air Contaminants

The Thresholds Guide states that the determination of significance shall be made on a case-by-case basis, considering the following criteria to evaluate TACs:

• Would the project use, store, or process carcinogenic or non-carcinogenic toxic air contaminants which could result in airborne emissions?

In assessing impacts related to TACs in this section, the City will use Appendix G as the thresholds of significance. The criteria identified above from the Thresholds Guide will be used where applicable and relevant to assist in analyzing the Appendix G thresholds. In addition, the following criteria set forth in the SCAQMD's *CEQA Air Quality Handbook* serve as quantitative air quality standards to be used to

¹⁰ For purposes of this analysis, emissions of VOC and reactive organic compounds (ROG) are used interchangeably since ROG represents approximately 99.9 percent of VOC emissions.

¹¹ City of Los Angeles, L.A. CEQA THRESHOLDS GUIDE, 2006, P. B.2-5.

¹² SCAQMD Air Quality Significance Thresholds, www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/scaqmd-air-qualitysignificance-thresholds.pdf, last updated March 2015.

¹³ SCAQMD, Final Localized Significance Threshold Methodology, revised July 2008.

¹⁴ SCAQMD, Final—Methodology to Calculate Particulate Matter (PM) 2.5 and PM_{2.5} Significance Thresholds, October 2006.

evaluate project impacts under Appendix G thresholds. Under these thresholds, a significant threshold would occur when:¹⁵

• The Project results in the exposure of sensitive receptors to carcinogenic or toxic air contaminants that exceed the maximum incremental cancer risk of 10 in one million or an acute or chronic hazard index of 1.0.¹⁶ For projects with a maximum incremental cancer risk between 1 in one million and 10 in one million, a project would result in a significant impact if the cancer burden exceeds 0.5 excess cancer cases.

Consistency with Applicable Air Quality Plans

CEQA Guidelines Section 15125 requires an analysis of project consistency with applicable governmental plans and policies. This analysis is conducted to assess potential project impacts against Threshold (a) from the Appendix G thresholds. In accordance with the SCAQMD's *CEQA Air Quality Handbook*, the following criteria shall be used to evaluate a project's consistency with SCAQMD and SCAG regional plans and policies, including the AQMP, consistent with the Appendix G thresholds:¹⁷

- Will the Project result in any of the following:
 - An increase in the frequency or severity of existing air quality violations;
 - Cause or contribute to new air quality violations; or
 - Delay timely attainment of air quality standards or the interim emission reductions specified in the AQMP?
- Will the Project exceed the assumptions utilized in preparing the AQMP?
 - Is the Project consistent with the population and employment growth projections upon which AQMP forecasted emission levels are based;
 - Does the Project include air quality mitigation measures; or
 - To what extent is Project development consistent with the AQMP land use policies?

The Project's impacts with respect to these criteria are discussed to assess the consistency with the SCAQMD's AQMP and SCAG regional plans and policies. In addition, the Project's consistency with the City of Los Angeles General Plan Air Quality Element is discussed.

¹⁵ SCAQMD, <u>CEQA Air Quality Handbook</u>, April 1993, Chapter 6 (Determining the Air Quality Significance of a Project) and Chapter 10 (Assessing Toxic Air Pollutants).

¹⁶ Hazard index is the ratio of a toxic air contaminant's concentration divided by its Reference Concentration, or safe exposure level. If the hazard index exceeds one, people are exposed to levels of TACs that may pose noncancer health risks.

¹⁷ SCAQMD, <u>CEQA Air Quality Handbook</u>, April 1993, p. 12-3.

Regulatory Compliance Measures

The Project would comply with the 2017 Los Angeles Green Building Code (LAGBC),¹⁸ which builds upon and sets higher standards than those in the 2016 California Green Building Standards Code (CalGreen, effective January 1, 2017).¹⁹

Further energy efficiency and sustainability features would include native plants and drip/subsurface irrigation systems, individual metering or sub metering for water use, leak detection systems, and ten percent of vehicle parking (40 stalls) that are pre-wired for electric vehicle charging.

a. Would the Project conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?

Less Than Significant Impact.

SCAQMD CEQA Air Quality Handbook Policy Analysis and SCAG 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Consistency

The following analysis addresses the Project's consistency with applicable SCAQMD and SCAG policies, including the SCAQMD's 2016 AQMP and growth projections within the SCAG 2016–2040 RTP/SCS. In accordance with the procedures established in the SCAQMD's *CEQA Air Quality Handbook*, the following criteria are required to be addressed in order to determine the Project's consistency with applicable SCAQMD and SCAG policies:

- Would the project result in any of the following:
 - An increase in the frequency or severity of existing air quality violations;
 - Cause or contribute to new air quality violations; or
 - Delay timely attainment of air quality standards or the interim emission reductions specified in the AQMP.
- Would the project exceed the assumptions utilized in preparing the AQMP?
 - Is the Project consistent with the population and employment growth projections upon which AQMP forecasted emission levels are based;
 - Does the Project include air quality mitigation measures; or
 - To what extent is Project development consistent with the AQMP land use policies?

With respect to the first criterion, as discussed later in this section, localized concentrations of NO₂ as NO_X, CO, PM₁₀, and PM_{2.5} have been analyzed for the Project. SO₂ emissions would be negligible during

¹⁸ LA Department of Building and Safety: http://ladbs.org/forms-publications/forms/green-building

¹⁹ California Building Codes: http://www.bsc.ca.gov/Codes.aspx

construction and long-term operations (see **Tables 6.III-6 and 7**, respectively later in this section), and thus, would not have the potential to cause or affect a violation of the SO_2 ambient air quality standard. Since VOCs are not a criteria pollutant, there is no ambient standard or localized threshold for VOCs. Due to the role VOCs play in O_3 formation, VOCs are classified as a precursor pollutant, and only a regional emissions threshold has been established.

Particulate matter is the primary pollutant of concern during construction activities, and thus, the Project's PM_{10} and $PM_{2.5}$ emissions during construction were analyzed in order to: (1) ascertain potential effects on localized concentrations, and (2) determine if there is a potential for such emissions to cause or affect a violation of the ambient air quality standards for PM_{10} and $PM_{2.5}$. As demonstrated in the analysis below (see **Table 6.III-6** later in this section), the increases in PM_{10} and $PM_{2.5}$ emissions during construction would not exceed the SCAQMD-recommended significance thresholds at sensitive receptors in proximity to the Project Site.

Additionally, the Project's maximum potential NO_X and CO daily emissions during construction were analyzed to ascertain potential effects on localized concentrations and to determine if there is a potential for such emissions to cause or affect a violation of an applicable ambient air quality standard. As shown in **Table 6.III-6** later in this section NO_X and CO would not exceed the SCAQMD-recommended localized significance thresholds. Therefore, Project construction would not result in a significant impact with regard to localized air quality.

Because the Project would not introduce any substantial stationary sources of emissions, CO is the preferred benchmark pollutant for assessing local area air quality impacts from post-construction motor vehicle operations.²⁰ As indicated under Threshold (d), no intersections would require a CO hotspot analysis, and impacts would be less than significant. Therefore, the Project would not increase the frequency or severity of an existing CO violation or cause or contribute to new CO violations.

As discussed below, an analysis of potential localized operational impacts from on-site activities was conducted. As demonstrated in the analysis below (see **Table 6.III-8** later in this section), localized NO₂ as NO_X, CO, PM₁₀, and PM_{2.5} operational impacts would be less than significant. Therefore, the Project would not increase the frequency or severity of an existing violation or cause or contribute to new violations for these pollutants. As the Project would not exceed any of the state and federal standards, the Project would also not delay timely attainment of air quality standards or interim emission reductions specified in the AQMP.

With respect to the determination of consistency with AQMP growth assumptions, the projections in the AQMP for achieving air quality goals are based on assumptions in SCAG's 2016–2040 RTP/SCS regarding population, housing, and growth trends. Determining whether or not a project exceeds the assumptions reflected in the AQMP involves the evaluation of three criteria: (1) consistency with applicable population, housing, and employment growth projections; (2) project mitigation measures; and (3) appropriate incorporation of AQMP land use planning strategies. The following discussion provides an analysis with respect to each of these three criteria.

²⁰ SCAQMD, <u>CEQA Air Quality Handbook</u>, Chapter 12, Assessing Consistency with Applicable Regional Plans, 1993.
• Is the project consistent with the population, housing, and employment growth projections upon which AQMP forecasted emission levels are based?

A project is consistent with the AQMP, in part, if it is consistent with the population, housing, and employment assumptions that were used in the development of the AQMP. In the case of the 2016 AQMP, two sources of data form the basis for the projections of air pollutant emissions: the City of Los Angeles General Plan and SCAG's RTP. The General Plan serves as a comprehensive, long-term plan for future development of the City.

The 2016–2040 RTP/SCS provides socioeconomic forecast projections of regional population growth. The population, housing, and employment forecasts, which are adopted by SCAG's Regional Council, are based on local plans and policies applicable to the specific area; these are used by SCAG in all phases of implementation and review. According to the California Department of Finance, the population for the City in 2019, which was the last year the American Community Survey was prepared, was approximately 3,963,408 persons. In 2040, the City of Los Angeles is anticipated to have a population of approximately 4,609,400 persons.

Based on a household size factor of 2.74 persons per household in the City in 2019, the Project is estimated to generate a residential population of 290 persons from the live/work units at full buildout, which would represent approximately 0.04 percent of the population growth forecasted by SCAG in the City between 2017 and 2040.²¹

Development of the Project also would result in approximately 275 employment positions on-site. According to the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS, the employment forecast for the City of Los Angeles in 2012 was approximately 1,696,400 employees. In 2040, the City of Los Angeles is anticipated to have approximately 2,169,100 employees. Thus, the Project's estimated 275 employees would constitute approximately 0.04 percent of the employment growth forecasted between 2012 and 2040. Because the Project's resulting residential and employment growth would fall well within the growth forecasts for the City and similar projections form the basis of the 2016 AQMP, it can be concluded that the Project would be consistent with the projections in the AQMP.

• Does the project implement feasible air quality mitigation measures?

As discussed below under Thresholds (b), (c), and (d), the Project would result in significant air quality impacts for regional emission level prior to mitigation. However, all emission levels would be reduced to an acceptable level with implementation of **MM-AQ-1**, as discussed in detail below. In addition, the Project would comply with all applicable regulatory standards as required by SCAQMD. As such, the Project meets this AQMP consistency criterion.

• To what extent is project development consistent with the land use policies set forth in the AQMP?

²¹ Based on a 2.43 persons per household rate for multi-family units based on the 2016 American Community Survey 5-Year Average Estimate (2012-2016) per correspondence with Jack Tsao, Los Angeles Department of City Planning Demographics Unit, January 11, 2018.

With regard to land use developments such as the Project, the AQMP's air quality policies focus on the reduction of vehicle trips and vehicle miles traveled (VMT). The Project would serve to implement a number of land use policies of the City of Los Angeles, SCAQMD, and SCAG.

The Project would be designed and constructed to support and promote environmental sustainability. The Project represents an infill development within an existing urbanized area that would concentrate new residential, office, restaurant, and retail uses within an HQTA designated by SCAG in the 2016 RTP/SCS.

"Green" principles are incorporated throughout the Project to comply with the City of Los Angeles Green Building Code and the California Green Building Standards Code (CALGreen) through energy conservation, water conservation, and waste reduction features.

The air quality plan applicable to the Project Site area is the 2016 AQMP.

As demonstrated in the following analyses, the Project would not result in significant regional emissions. The 2016 AQMP adapts previously conducted regional air quality analyses to account for the recent unexpected drought conditions and presents a revised approach to demonstrated attainment of the 2006 24-hour PM_{2.5} NAAQS for the Basin. Directly applicable to the Project, the 2016 AQMP proposes robust NO_X reductions from commercial cooking and residential and commercial appliances, as well as commercial space heating. The Project would be required to comply with all new and existing regulatory measures set forth by the SCAQMD. Implementation of the Project would not interfere with air pollution control measures listed in the 2016 AQMP.

The Project Site is classified as having a "Heavy Manufacturing" General Plan Land Use Designation in the Central City North Community Plan and conditionally allows Joint Living and Work Quarters through a discretionary process, as well as restaurants and retail uses. As a result, the Project would be consistent with the growth assumptions in the City's General Plan. Since the AQMP accommodates growth forecasts from local General Plans, the emissions associated with this Project are accounted for and mitigated in the region's air quality attainment plans. In addition, the RTP/SCS' assumptions about growth in the City accommodate housing, population, and job growth on this site. Therefore, the air quality impacts of development on the Project Site are accommodated in the region's emissions inventory for the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS and 2016 AQMP. Therefore, Project impacts related to consistency with the AQMP would be less than significant.

City of Los Angeles Policies

The Project would offer convenient access to public transit and opportunities for walking and biking, thereby facilitating a reduction in VMT, in addition to bicycle parking. Also, the Project would be consistent with the existing land use pattern in the vicinity that concentrates urban density along major arterials and near transit options. The Project also includes primary entrances for pedestrians and bicyclists that would be safe, easily accessible, and a short distance from local Metro bus stops.

The City's General Plan Air Quality Element identifies 30 policies with specific strategies for advancing the City's clean air goals. As illustrated in **Table 6.III-4**, the Project is consistent with the applicable

policies in the Air Quality Element. The Project would implement sustainability features that would reduce vehicular trips, reduce VMT, and encourage use of alternative modes of transportation. Therefore, Project impacts related to consistency with the Air Quality Element would be less than significant.

| Strategy | Project Consistency |
|--|---|
| Policy 1.3.1. Minimize particulate emissions from construction sites. | Consistent. The Project would minimize particulate emissions during construction through best practices and/or SCAQMD rules (i.e., Rule 403) and mitigation. |
| Policy 1.3.2. Minimize particulate emissions from unpaved roads and parking lots associated with vehicular traffic. | Consistent. The Project would minimize particulate emissions from unpaved facilities through best practices and/or SCAQMD rules (i.e., Rule 403). |
| Policy 2.1.1. Utilize compressed work weeks and flextime, telecommuting, carpooling, vanpooling, public transit, and improve walking/bicycling related facilities in order to reduce vehicle trips and/or VMT as an employer and encourage the private sector to do the same to reduce work trips and traffic congestion. | Consistent. The Project would be located in Downtown Los Angeles, an urban area with significant infrastructure to provide alternative transportation modes, including proximity to Metro bus routes, Metro Rapid, and Metro Rail Gold Line service at the Little Tokyo/Arts District station 1.5 miles to the north. As part of the Project, a Transportation Demand Management (TDM) program is proposed to help offset any potential impacts. |
| Policy 2.1.2. Facilitate and encourage the use of telecommunications (i.e., telecommuting) in both the public and private sectors, in order to reduce work trips. | Consistent. It is anticipated that companies and tenants occupying the Project would encourage telecommuting and include appropriate facilities. |
| Policy 2.2.1. Discourage single-occupant vehicle use through a variety of measures such as market incentive strategies, mode-shift incentives, trip reduction plans and ridesharing subsidies. | Consistent. As part of the Project, a Transportation Demand Management (TDM) program is proposed to encourage transit use and alternative transportation modes. |
| Policy 2.2.2. Encourage multi-occupant vehicle travel and discourage single-occupant vehicle travel by instituting parking management practices. | Consistent. As part of the Project, a Transportation Demand Management (TDM) program is proposed to encourage transit use and alternative transportation modes, including by way of example unbundling of parking leases. The provision of 110 short- and long- term bicycle parking spaces could reduce demand for auto parking. |
| Policy 2.2.3. Minimize the use of single-occupant vehicles associated with special events or in areas and times of high levels of pedestrian activities. | Not Applicable. The Project would not include facilities for special events. |
| Policy 3.2.1. Manage traffic congestion during peak hours. | Consistent. With mitigation, the Project would not result in significant traffic impacts during peak hours at any of the 12 study intersections. |
| Policy 4.1.1. Coordinate with all appropriate regional agencies on the implementation of strategies for the integration of land use, transportation, and air quality policies. | Consistent. The Project would be entitled through the City, which coordinates with SCAG, Metro, and other regional agencies on the coordination of land use, air quality, and transportation policies. |
| Policy 4.1.2. Ensure that project level review and approval of land use development remains at the local level. | Consistent. The Project would be entitled and would be required to obtain CEQA clearance at the local level. |
| Policy 4.2.1. Revise the City's General Plan/Community Plans to achieve a more compact, | Not Applicable. This policy calls for City updates to its General Plan. |

Table 6.III-4 Project Consistency With City Of Los Angeles General Plan Air Quality Element

Table 6.III-4 Project Consistency With City Of Los Angeles General Plan Air Quality Element

| Strategy | Project Consistency |
|---|--|
| efficient urban form and to promote more transit- oriented development and mixed-use development. Policy 4.2.2. Improve accessibility for the City's residents to places of employment, shopping centers and other establishments. | Consistent. The Project would be infill development that would provide residents with proximate access to jobs, shopping, and other uses. The Project's commercial uses would serve Project residents and the others in the vicinity (thereby reducing VMT) that would otherwise be required to travel to similar uses elsewhere in the community. |
| Policy 4.2.3. Ensure that new development is compatible with pedestrians, bicycles, transit, and alternative fuel vehicles. | Consistent. The Project would be located in an urban area with significant infrastructure to facilitate alternative transportation modes, including close proximity to bus routes and Metro Rail service to the north. The inclusion of 145 short- and long-term bicycle parking spaces would support this policy, along with electric vehicle charging facilities at ten percent of parking spaces on-site. |
| Policy 4.2.4. Require that air quality impacts be a consideration in the review and approval of all discretionary projects. | Consistent. The Project's air quality impacts are analyzed in this document. |
| Policy 4.2.5. Emphasize trip reduction, alternative transit and congestion management measures for discretionary projects. | Consistent. The Project would be located in an urban area with significant infrastructure to facilities alternative transportation modes, including close proximity to Metro bus routes (e.g., 18, 52, 60, 62, 66), Metro Rapid 720 and 760, and Metro Rail Gold Line service at the Little Tokyo/Arts District station 1.5 miles to the north. As part of the Project, a Transportation Demand Management (TDM) program is proposed to encourage transit use and alternative transportation modes. |
| Policy 4.3.1. Revise the City's General Plan/Community Plans to ensure that new or relocated sensitive receptors are located to minimize significant health risks posed by air pollution sources. | Not Applicable. This policy calls for City updates to its General Plan. |
| Policy 4.3.2. Revise the City's General Plan/Community Plans to ensure that new or relocated major air pollution sources are located to minimize significant health risks to sensitive receptors. | Not Applicable. This policy calls for City updates to its General Plan. |
| Policy 5.1.1. Make improvements in Harbor and airport operations and facilities in order to reduce air emissions. | Not Applicable. This policy calls for City changes in operations of the City's water port and airport facilities. |
| Policy 5.1.2. Effect a reduction in energy consumption and shift to non-polluting sources of energy in its buildings and operations. | Not Applicable. This policy calls for City changes in operations of the City's buildings and operations. |
| Policy 5.1.3. Have the Department of Water and Power make improvements at its in-basin power plants in order to reduce air emissions. Policy 5.1.4. Reduce energy consumption and associated air emissions by encouraging waste reduction and recycling. | Not Applicable. This policy calls for the City's Department of Water and Power to make changes in operations of the City's energy plants. Consistent. The Project would be consistent with this policy by complying with Title 24, CALGreen, and other requirements to reduce solid waste and energy consumption. |

Table 6.III-4 Project Consistency With City Of Los Angeles General Plan Air Quality Element

| Strategy | Project Consistency |
|---|---|
| Policy 5.2.1. Reduce emissions from its own vehicles by continuing scheduled maintenance, inspection and vehicle replacement programs; by adhering to the State of California's emissions testing and monitoring programs; by using alternative fuel vehicles wherever feasible, in accordance with regulatory agencies and City Council policies. | Not Applicable. This policy calls for the City to make changes in its own emissions from its fleet vehicles. |
| Policy 5.3.1. Support the development and use of equipment powered by electric or low-emitting fuels. | Consistent. The Project would be designed to meet the applicable requirements of the States Green Building Standards Code and the City's Green Building Code. |
| Policy 6.1.1. Raise awareness through public- | Not Applicable. This policy calls for the City to |
| information and education programs of the actions | promote clean air awareness through its public |
| that individuals can take to reduce air emissions. | awareness programs. |
| Source: DKA Planning, 2019. | |

Cumulative Impacts

AQMP Consistency

Cumulative development is not expected to result in a significant impact in terms of conflicting with, or obstructing implementation of the 2016 AQMP. As discussed previously, growth considered to be consistent with the AQMP would not interfere with attainment because this growth is included in the projections utilized in the formulation of the AQMP. Consequently, as long as growth in the Basin is within the projections for growth identified in the 2016 RTP/SCS, implementation of the AQMP will not be obstructed by such growth. In addition, as discussed previously, the population growth resulting from the Project would be consistent with the growth projections of the AQMP. Each related project would implement feasible air quality mitigation measures to reduce the criteria air pollutants, if required due to any significant emissions impacts. In addition, each related project would be evaluated for its consistency with the land use policies set forth in the AQMP. Therefore, the Project's contribution to the cumulative impact would not be considerable and thus, would be less than significant.

b. Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard?

Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation.

Construction

Construction-related emissions were estimated for the Project using the SCAQMD's CalEEMod 2016.3.2 model, based on assumptions from the Project's developer, including the Project's construction schedule of 24 months. **Table 6.III-5** summarizes the potential construction schedule that was modeled for air quality impacts.

Table 6.III-5Potential Construction Schedule

| Phase | Duration | Notes | | | |
|-----------------------------|--------------------|---|--|--|--|
| Demolition | Month 1 | 1,687 tons of demolition material | | | |
| Site Preparation | Month 2 (one week) | | | | |
| Grading | Months 2-4 | 38,985 cubic yards of material exported | | | |
| Building Construction | Months 5-25 | | | | |
| Architectural Coatings | Months 23-24 | | | | |
| Source: DKA Planning, 2019. | | | | | |

Regional Emissions

Construction activity has the potential to create air quality impacts through the use of heavy-duty construction equipment and through vehicle trips generated by construction workers traveling to and from the Project Site. Fugitive dust emissions would primarily result from grading activities. NOX emissions would primarily result from the use of construction equipment and truck trips. During the building finishing phase, paving and the application of architectural coatings (e.g., paints) would potentially release VOCs (regulated by SCAQMD Rule 1113). The assessment of construction air quality impacts considers each of these potential sources. Construction emissions can vary substantially from day to day, depending on the level of activity, the specific type of operation and, for dust, the prevailing weather conditions.

As stated above, it is mandatory for all construction projects in the Basin to comply with SCAQMD Rule 403 for Fugitive Dust. Rule 403 control requirements include measures to prevent the generation of visible dust plumes. Measures include, but are not limited to, applying water and/or soil binders to uncovered areas, reestablishing ground cover as quickly as possible, utilizing a wheel washing system or other control measures to remove bulk material from tires and vehicle undercarriages before vehicles exit the Project Site, and maintaining effective cover over exposed areas. Compliance with Rule 403 would reduce regional PM2.5 and PM10 emissions associated with construction activities by approximately 61 percent.

This analysis also assumes a single-trip haul distance of up to 17 miles to the Puente Hills Materials Recovery Facility. However, closer locations may be determined feasible, which would result in lower emissions for the Project.

As shown in **Table 6.III-6**, the construction of the Project would not produce VOC, CO, SO_X, PM₁₀ and PM_{2.5} emissions in excess of SCAQMD's regional thresholds. However, NO_X emissions from dieselfueled engines operating during the demolition phase would exceed the daily thresholds. Because this pollutant is a precursor regional O₃ formation, construction of the Project could contribute substantially to an existing violation of ozone air quality standards due to NO_X emissions. **Mitigation is proposed below to reduce these levels to a less than significant amount, and NOx would be reduced to an acceptable level with implementation of MM-AQ-1**, as discussed in detail below (see Table 6.III-8 for Estimated Daily Construction Emissions - Mitigated). However, without mitigation, this construction related impact to regional thresholds is potentially significant.

| | Daily Emissions (Pounds Per Day) | | | | | |
|---|----------------------------------|-----|-------|-----|--------------|-------------------|
| Construction Phase Year | voc | NOx | со | SOx | PM 10 | PM _{2.5} |
| 2020 | 11 | 105 | 85 | <1 | 8 | 5 |
| 2021 | 7 | 56 | 65 | <1 | 6 | 4 |
| 2022 | 37 | 63 | 80 | <1 | 7 | 4 |
| | | | | | | • |
| Maximum Regional Total | 3 | 105 | 85 | <1 | 8 | 5 |
| Regional Threshold | 75 | 100 | 550 | 150 | 150 | 55 |
| Exceed Threshold? | No | Yes | No | No | No | No |
| | | | | | | |
| Maximum Localized Total | 36 | 61 | 67 | <1 | 3 | 3 |
| Localized Threshold | | 106 | 2,406 | | 70 | 24 |
| Exceed Threshold? | N/A | No | No | N/A | No | No |
| Does not assume implementation of SCAQMD Rule 403 (Fugitive Dust Emissions) | | | | | | |
| Source: DKA Planning, 2019, based on CalEEMod 2016.3.2 model runs. LST analyses based on 1-acre | | | | | | |

Table 6.III-6 Estimated Daily Construction Emissions - Unmitigated

Mitigation Measure

To ensure that the Project's regional construction-related NO_x emissions would not exceed SCAQMD's significance threshold and substantially contribute to potential regional exceedances of the ozone standard, the following mitigation measure is required:

site with 200-meter distances to receptors in Central LA source receptor area.

MM-AQ-1. All off-road construction equipment greater than 50 hp shall meet U.S. EPA Tier 3 emission standards, to reduce NO_x, PM₁₀, and PM_{2.5} emissions at the Project Site. In addition, all construction equipment shall be outfitted with Best Available Control Technology devices certified by CARB. Any emissions control device used by the contractor shall achieve emissions reductions that are no less than what could be achieved by a Level 3 diesel emissions control strategy for a similarly sized engine as defined by CARB regulations.

During plan check, the Project Applicant shall make available to the lead agency and SCAQMD a comprehensive inventory of all off-road construction equipment, equal to or greater than 50 horsepower that shall be used during any portion of demolition/excavation activities and concrete pour days for the foundation for the Project. The inventory shall include the horsepower rating, engine production year, and certification of the specified Tier standard. A copy of each unit's certified tier specification, Best Available Control Technology documentation, and CARB or SCAQMD operating permit shall be available onsite at the time of mobilization of each applicable unit of equipment to allow the Construction Monitor to compare the on-site equipment with the inventory and certified Tier specification and operating permit. Off-road diesel-powered equipment within the construction inventory list described above shall meet Tier 4 CARB/U.S. EPA standards.

Level of Significance after Mitigation

Following application of **MM-AQ-1**, Project impacts on regional emission levels during the construction phase would be mitigated to below SCAQMD regional thresholds, as illustrated in **Table 6.III-7**.

| | Daily Emissions (Pounds Per Day) | | | | | | |
|---|----------------------------------|-----|-----|-----|-------------------------|-------------------|--|
| Construction Phase Year | voc | NOx | со | SOx | PM ₁₀ | PM _{2.5} | |
| 2020 | 4 | 77 | 94 | <1 | 5 | 4 | |
| 2021 | 3 | 43 | 69 | <1 | 5 | 3 | |
| 2022 | 33 | 53 | 85 | <1 | 5 | 4 | |
| | | | | | | | |
| Maximum Regional Total | 33 | 77 | 94 | <1 | 5 | 4 | |
| Regional Threshold | 75 | 100 | 550 | 150 | 150 | 55 | |
| Exceed Threshold? | No | No | No | No | No | No | |
| Assumes implementation of SCAQMD Rule 403 (Fugitive Dust Emissions) | | | | | | | |
| Source: DKA Planning, 2019 based on CalEEMod 2016.3.2 model runs. LST analyses based on 1-acre site with 200-meter distances to receptors in Central LA source receptor area. | | | | | | | |

 Table 6.III-7

 Estimated Construction Daily Emissions - Mitigated

All other Project-related impacts on regional air quality and localized air quality would be less than significant.

Localized Emissions

In addition to maximum daily regional emissions, maximum localized (onsite) emissions were quantified for each construction activity. The localized construction air quality analysis was conducted using the methodology promulgated by the SCAQMD. Look-up tables provided by the SCAQMD were used to determine localized construction emissions thresholds for the Project.²² LSTs represent the maximum emissions from a project that are not expected to cause or contribute to an exceedance of the most stringent applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard and are based on the most recent background ambient air quality monitoring data (years 2015 to 2017) for the Project Site area.

Maximum on-site daily construction emissions for NO_X , CO, PM_{10} , and $PM_{2.5}$ were calculated using CalEEMod and compared to the applicable SCAQMD LSTs for the Central LA SRA based on construction site acreage that is less than or equal to two acres. Potential impacts were evaluated at the closest off-site sensitive receptor, which is the Loft 726 multi-family residences at 726 Santa Fe Avenue, about 930 feet east of the Project Site. The closest receptor distance on the SCAQMD mass rate LST look-up tables is 200 meters.

As shown in **Table 6.III-6**, the Project would not produce emissions in excess of SCAQMD's recommended localized standards of significance for NO_2 and CO during the construction phase. Similarly, construction activities would not produce PM_{10} and $PM_{2.5}$ emissions that exceed localized thresholds recommended by the SCAQMD.

²² SCAQMD, LST Methodology Appendix C-Mass Rate LST Look-up Table, revised October 2009.

These estimates assume the use of Best Available Control Measures (BACM) that address fugitive dust emissions of PM₁₀ and PM_{2.5} through SCAQMD Rule 403. This would include watering portions of the site that are disturbed three times daily during grading activities and minimizing tracking of dirt onto local streets. Therefore, the Project's construction-related impacts on localized air quality would be less than significant.

Operation

Regional and Localized

Operational emissions of criteria pollutants would come from area sources and mobile sources. Area sources include natural gas for space heating and water heating, gasoline-powered landscaping and maintenance equipment, consumer products such as household cleaners, and architectural coatings for routine maintenance.

The Project would also contribute long-term emissions to the region primarily from motor vehicles that access the Project Site. The Project could add up to 1,862 net vehicle trips on a peak weekday at the start of operations in 2023.23

As shown in Table 6.III-8, the Project would not exceed the SCAQMD's regional or localized significance thresholds. Therefore, the operational impacts of the Project on regional and localized air quality would be less than significant.

| | Daily Emissions (Pounds Per Day) | | | | | |
|--|----------------------------------|-----|-------|-----|-------------------------|-------------------|
| Emissions Source | VOC | NOx | со | SOx | PM ₁₀ | PM _{2.5} |
| Area Sources | 6 | <1 | 9 | <1 | <1 | <1 |
| Energy Sources | <1 | 1 | 1 | <1 | <1 | <1 |
| Mobile Sources | 4 | 21 | 61 | <1 | 18 | 5 |
| Regional Total | 16 | 17 | 81 | <1 | 15 | 4 |
| Existing Sources | -2 | -7 | -22 | -<1 | -5 | -2 |
| Net Regional Total | 14 | 10 | 59 | <1 | 10 | 2 |
| Regional Significance Threshold | 55 | 55 | 550 | 150 | 150 | 55 |
| Exceed Threshold? | No | No | No | No | No | No |
| | | | | | | |
| Net Localized Total | 3 | <1 | 7 | < | <1 | <1 |
| Localized Significance Threshold | N/A | 106 | 2,406 | N/A | 17 | 6 |
| Exceed Threshold? | No | No | No | No | No | No |
| Source: DKA Planning, 2019, based on CalEEMod 2016.3.2 model runs. LST analyses based on 1-acre site | | | | | | |

Table 6.III-8 **Estimated Daily Operations Emissions**

with 200-meter distances to receptors in Central LA source receptor area.

²³ Linscott Law & Greenspan, Traffic Impact Study 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project, March 2019.

c. Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations?

Less Than Significant Impact. Because the area is heavily populated by industrial and manufacturing facilities, there are very few sensitive receptors in the area. These include but are not limited to the following:

- Loft 726, multi-family residences, 726 Santa Fe Avenue; 930 feet northeast of the Project Site.
- Multi-family residences, 712 Santa Fe Avenue; 980 feet northeast of the Project Site.
- Metropolitan High School, 727 Wilson Street; 980 feet northwest of the Project Site.

Construction

Substantial pollutant concentrations could involve pollutants above threshold concentrations or Toxic Air Contaminants (TACs). Construction of the Project could expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations if maximum daily emissions of regulated pollutants generated by sources located on and/or near the Project Site exceeded the applicable LST values presented in **Table 6.III-2**, or if construction activities generated significant emissions of TACs that could result in carcinogenic risks or non-carcinogenic hazards exceeding the SCAQMD Air Quality Significance Thresholds of 10 excess cancers per million or non-carcinogenic Hazard Index greater than 1.0, respectively. As discussed above, the LST values were derived by the SCAQMD for the criteria pollutants NO_X, CO, PM₁₀, and PM_{2.5} to prevent the occurrence of concentrations exceeding the air quality standards at sensitive receptor locations based on proximity and construction site size.

As shown in **Table 6.III-6**, during construction of the Project, maximum daily localized unmitigated emissions of NO₂, CO, PM₁₀, and PM_{2.5} from sources on the Project Site would remain below each of the respective LST values. Unmitigated maximum daily localized emissions would not exceed any of the localized standards for receptors that are generally within 25 meters of the Project's construction activities. Thus, based on SCAQMD guidance, localized emissions of criteria pollutants would not have the potential to expose sensitive receptors to substantial concentrations that would present a public health concern.

Average daily emissions of diesel PM would be less than one pound per day throughout the course of Project construction. Therefore, the magnitude of daily diesel PM emissions, would not be sufficient to result in substantial pollutant concentrations at off-site residential locations nearby.

Furthermore, according to SCAQMD methodology, health risks from carcinogenic air toxics are usually described in terms of individual cancer risk. "Individual Cancer Risk" is the likelihood that a person exposed to concentrations of TACs over a 30-year period will contract cancer based on the use of standard risk-assessment methodology. The entire duration of construction activities associated with implementation of the Project is anticipated to be approximately 30 months, and the magnitude of daily diesel PM emissions will vary over this time period. No residual emissions and corresponding individual cancer risk are anticipated after construction. Because there is such a short-term exposure period, construction TAC emissions would result in a less-than significant impact. **Therefore, construction of the Project would not expose**

sensitive receptors to substantial TAC or other substantial concentrations, and this impact would be less than significant.

Operation

The Project Site would be developed with land uses that are not typically associated with TAC emissions. The primary sources of potential TACs associated with Project operations include diesel PM from delivery trucks (e.g., truck traffic on local streets and idling on adjacent streets) and to a lesser extent, facility operations (e.g., natural gas fired boilers). However, these activities, and the land uses associated with the Project, are not considered land uses that generate substantial TAC emissions. It should be noted that the SCAQMD recommends that health risk assessments (HRAs) be conducted for substantial individual sources of DPM (e.g., truck stops and warehouse distribution facilities that generate more than 100 trucks per day or more than 40 trucks with operating transport refrigeration units) and has provided guidance for analyzing mobile source diesel emissions.²⁴ Based on this guidance, the Project would not include these types of land uses and is not considered to be a substantial source of DPM warranting a refined HRA since daily truck trips to the Project Site would not exceed 100 trucks per day or more than 40 trucks per day or more than 40 trucks per day or truck trips to the Project Site would not exceed 100 trucks per day or more than 40 trucks per day or more than 40 trucks with operating transport per day or more than 40 trucks per day or bland uses and is not considered to be a substantial source of DPM warranting a refined HRA since daily truck trips to the Project Site would not exceed 100 trucks per day or more than 40 trucks with operating transport refrigeration units.

As the Project would not contain substantial TAC sources and is consistent with the CARB and SCAQMD guidelines, the Project would not result in the exposure of off-site sensitive receptors to carcinogenic or TACs that exceed the maximum incremental cancer risk of 10 in one million or an acute or chronic hazard index of 1.0, and potential TAC impacts would be less than significant.

CO Hotspots

The Project would generate long-term emissions on-site from area and energy sources that would generate negligible pollutant concentrations of CO, NO₂, PM_{2.5}, or PM₁₀ at nearby sensitive receptors. While long-term operations of the Project would generate traffic that produces off-site emissions, these would not result in exceedances of CO air quality standards at roadways in the area due to three key factors. First, CO hotspots are extremely rare and only occur in the presence of unusual atmospheric conditions and extremely cold conditions, neither of which applies to this Project area. Second, auto-related emissions of CO continue to decline because of advances in fuel combustion technology in the vehicle fleet. Finally, the Project would not contribute to the levels of congestion that would be needed to produce the amount of emissions needed to trigger a potential CO hotspot.²⁵

Finally, the Project would not result in any substantial emissions of TACs during the construction or operations phase. During the construction phase, the primary air quality impacts would be associated with the combustion of diesel fuels, which produce exhaust-related particulate matter that is considered a TAC by CARB based on chronic exposure to these emissions.²⁶ However, construction activities would not produce chronic, long-term exposure to diesel particulate matter. During long-term operations,

²⁴ SCAQMD, Health Risk Assessment Guidance for Analyzing Cancer Risks from Mobile Source Diesel Idling Emissions for CEQA Air Quality Analysis, 2002.

²⁵ Caltrans, Transportation Project-Level Carbon Monoxide Protocol, updated October 13, 2010.

²⁶ California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment. Health Effects of Diesel Exhaust. www. http://oehha.ca.gov/public_info/facts/dieselfacts.html

the Project would not include typical sources of acutely and chronically hazardous TACs such as industrial manufacturing processes and automotive repair facilities. As a result, the Project would not create substantial concentrations of TACs.

In addition, the SCAQMD recommends that HRAs be conducted for substantial sources of diesel PM (e.g., truck stops and warehouse distribution facilities) and has provided guidance for analyzing mobile source diesel emissions.²⁷ The Project would not generate a substantial number of truck trips. Based on the limited activity of TAC sources, the Project would not warrant the need for a HRA associated with on-site activities. Therefore, Project impacts related to substantial pollutant concentrations including CO Hotspots, TACs, and diesel PMs would be less than significant.

Cumulative Impacts

Overall, the Project would not result in any substantial emissions of TACs during the construction or operations phase.

Construction

As discussed above, the Project's construction-related air quality emissions and cumulative impacts would be less than significant. The Project would comply with regulatory requirements, including the SCAQMD Rule 403 requirements listed above. Based on SCAQMD guidance, individual construction projects that exceed the SCAQMD's recommended daily thresholds for project-specific impacts would cause a cumulatively considerable increase in emissions for those pollutants for which the Basin is in non-attainment. As shown above, a majority of the construction-related daily emissions at the Project Site would not exceed any of the SCAQMD's localized significance thresholds. Thus, the Project's contribution to cumulative air quality impacts due to localized emissions would be less than significant.

Similar to the Project, the greatest potential for TAC emissions at each related project would generally involve diesel particulate emissions associated with heavy equipment operations during grading and excavation activities. According to SCAQMD methodology, health effects from carcinogenic air toxics are usually described in terms of individual cancer risk. "Individual Cancer Risk" is the likelihood that a person exposed to concentrations of TACs over a 30-year period will contract cancer, based on the use of standard risk-assessment methodology. Construction activities are temporary and short-term events, thus construction activities at each related project would not result in a long-term substantial source of TAC emissions. Additionally, the SCAQMD CEQA guidance does not require a health risk assessment for short-term construction emissions. It is therefore not meaningful to evaluate long-term cancer impacts from construction activities, which occur over relatively short durations. **As such, given the short-term nature of these activities, cumulative TAC emission impacts during construction would be less than significant.**

²⁷ SCAQMD, Health Risk Assessment Guidance for Analyzing Cancer Risks from Mobile Source Diesel Emissions, December 2002.

Operation

As discussed above, the Project's operational air quality emissions and cumulative impacts would be less than significant. According to the SCAQMD, if an individual project results in air emissions of criteria pollutants that exceed the SCAQMD's recommended daily thresholds for project-specific impacts, then the project would also result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of these criteria pollutants. As operational emissions would not exceed any of the SCAQMD's regional or localized significance thresholds, the emissions of non-attainment pollutants and precursors generated by Project operations would not be cumulatively considerable.

With respect to TAC emissions, neither the Project nor any of the related projects (which are largely residential, retail/commercial, and office in nature), would represent a substantial source of TAC emissions, which are typically associated with large-scale industrial, manufacturing, and transportation hub facilities. The Project and related projects would be consistent with the recommended screening level siting distances for TAC sources, as set forth in CARB's Land Use Guidelines, and the Project and related projects would not result in a cumulative impact requiring further evaluation. However, the related projects could generate minimal TAC emissions related to the use of consumer products and landscape maintenance activities, among other things. Pursuant to AB 1807, which directs the CARB to identify substances as TACs and adopt airborne toxic control measures to control such substances, the SCAQMD has adopted numerous rules (primarily in Regulation XIV) that specifically address TAC emissions. These SCAQMD rules have resulted in and will continue to result in substantial Basin-wide TAC emissions reductions. As such, cumulative TAC emissions during long-term operations would be less than significant. Therefore, the Project would not result in any substantial sources of TACs that have been identified by the CARB's Land Use Guidelines, and thus, would not contribute to a significant cumulative impact.

d. Result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting a substantial number of people?

Less Than Significant Impact. Potential sources that may emit odors during construction activities include equipment exhaust and architectural coatings. Odors from these sources would be localized and generally confined to the immediate area surrounding the Project Sites. The Project would utilize typical construction techniques, and the odors would be typical of most construction sites and temporary in nature. Construction of the Project would not cause an odor nuisance.

According to the SCAQMD CEQA Air Quality Handbook, land uses and industrial operations that are associated with odor complaints include agricultural uses, wastewater treatment plants, food processing plants, chemical plants, composting, refineries, landfills, dairies and fiberglass molding. The Project's proposed land uses would not result in activities that create objectionable odors. **Therefore, Project impacts related to odors would be less than significant.**

Individual projects that generate odors would not contribute considerably to any potential cumulative impact. As the Project's odors during construction and operation would not exceed any applicable significance threshold, the Project's contribution to any cumulative odor impact would not be considerable, and cumulative impacts related to odors would be less than significant.

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|-------|--|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-------------|
| | | | | | |
| Would | the project: | | | | |
| a. | Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? | | | | |
| b. | Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or US Fish and Wildlife Service? | | | | |
| C. | Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means? | | | | |
| d. | Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites? | | | | |
| e. | Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or ordinance? | | | | \boxtimes |

| f. | Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat | | \bowtie |
|----|--|--|-----------|
| | Conservation Plan, Natural Community | | |
| | Conservation Plan, or other approved local, | | |
| | regional, or state habitat conservation plan? | | |

The information and analysis of the Project's potential impacts to biological resources is based primarily on the following (refer to Appendix B):

B Tree Inventory and Report, 1024 Mateo Street, The Urban Lumberjack, October 4, 2016.

a. Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

Less Than Significant Impact. The Project Site is located in an urbanized and developed area of the City and is roughly 2,100 feet west of the Los Angeles River. The Site is developed with a surface parking lot and an automotive service building that is currently being used by a month to month tenant. Additionally, there are six trees located on and near the Project Site (three trees on the 2023 East Sacramento Street side of the Project Site and three trees in the public right-of-way fronting Mateo Street) in which a species or habitat could exist. All six trees will be removed as part of the Project. Based on the Tree Inventory and Report, which is attached as Appendix B to this SCEA, none of the six trees would qualify for the designation of Protected Tree under the species requirements set in City Ordinance No. 177,404. Also, 41 new trees would be planted on the Project Site as part of the Proposed Project, which would replace those that are proposed to be removed, consistent with Ordinance replacement provisions. Thus, the Project would not have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. **Therefore, impacts would be less than significant.**

b. Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

No Impact. The Project Site is located in an urbanized and developed area of the City. The Site is developed with a surface parking lot and an automotive service building that is currently being used by a month to month tenant. The Site does not contain any riparian habitat or sensitive natural community. Thus, the Project would not have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, and regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. **Therefore, no impacts related to this issue would occur.**

c. Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means?

No Impact. The Project Site is located in an urbanized and developed area of the City. The Site is developed with a surface parking lot and an automotive service building that is currently being used by a month to month tenant. The Site does not contain wetlands or other areas subject to the jurisdiction of the US Army Corps of Engineers, California Department of Fish and Wildlife, or State Water Resources Control Board under the Clean Water Act. Thus, the Project would not have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands. **Therefore, no impacts related to this issue would occur.**

d. Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites?

No Impact. The Project Site is located in an urbanized and developed area of the City. The Site is developed with a surface parking lot and an automotive service building that is currently being used by a month to month tenant. The Project Site is not part of a significant wildlife corridor. Additionally, there are no waterways located in the vicinity of the Project Site that could be used by migratory fish, and there are no wildlife nursery sites in the area. However, the Project is located within the City's River Improvement Overlay (RIO) District, which requires the Project to obtain administrative clearance from the City that identifies compliance with landscaping and other design standards to minimize impacts to the Los Angeles River.

Additionally, the Project Applicant would be required to comply with the Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA) (Title 33, United States Code, Section 703 et seq., see also Title 50, Code of Federal Regulation, Part 10) and Section 3503 of the California Department of Fish and Wildlife Code, which regulates vegetation removal during the nesting season (February 15th to August 15th) to ensure that significant impacts to migratory birds associated with tree removal would not occur. Compliance with these existing regulations would ensure impacts related to nesting birds would be less than significant.

Thus, the Project would not interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish, wildlife species, or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, and/or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites. **Therefore, no Project impacts related to this issue would occur.**

e. Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or ordinance (e.g., oak trees or California walnut woodlands)?

No Impact. The Project Site is located in an urbanized and developed area of the City. The Site is developed with a surface parking lot and an automotive service building that is currently being used by a month to month tenant. There are six trees located on and near the Project Site in which a species or habitat could exists, none of which would allow a conflict of a local policy or ordinance protecting biological resources since they Mexican Fan Palms and Trees of Heaven, which are not common to migratory birds. Thus, the Project would not conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources. **Therefore, no impacts related to this issue would occur.**

f. Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan?

No Impact. The Project Site is located in an urbanized area of the City. There are no identified Significant Ecological Areas (SEAs) within the vicinity of the Project Site, and the Site is not subject to a Habitat Conservation Plan, a Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other such plan.¹ Thus, the Project would not conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan. **Therefore, no impacts related to this issue would occur.**

Cumulative Impacts

All of the related projects are located in highly urban areas and likely do not contain significant biological resources, such as candidate, sensitive or special status species, riparian habitat, sensitive natural communities, and are not part of a wildlife corridor or SEA or subject to a Habitat Conservation Plan, a Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other such plan. All related projects with existing trees would be required to comply with the requirements of the Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA). For those projects located in the RIO supplemental use district, all projects would require administrative clearance from the City before a permit is issued. Because the Project would not result in any impacts related to biological resources, the Project does not have the potential to contribute to any cumulative biological resources impacts. Therefore, cumulative impacts related to biological resources would be less than significant.

¹ City of Los Angeles General Plan Conservation Element, Exhibit B2.

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

V. CULTURAL RESOURCES

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|----------------|---|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-----------|
| Wou | ld the project: | | | | |
| a. C s 1 | Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant to § 15064.5? | | | | |
| b. C s | Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource oursuant to § 15064.5? | | | | |
| c. E i | Disturb any human remains, including those nterred outside of dedicated cemeteries? | | \boxtimes | | |

The information and analysis of the Project's potential impacts to archaeological resources is based primarily on the following (refer to Appendix C):

- C-1 Archaeological Resources Assessment, 1024 Mateo Street, SWCA, May 2019.
- C-2 Native American Heritage Commission, Native Lands File Search, April 25, 2019.

a. Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines §15064.5?

No Impact. CEQA requires a lead agency to analyze whether historic resources may be adversely affected by a proposed project. Under CEQA, a "project that may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historic resource is a project that may have a significant effect on the environment" (PRC Section 21084.1). First, the determination must be made whether the project involves cultural resources. Second, if cultural resources are present, the project must be analyzed for a potential "substantial adverse change in the significance" of the resource. CEQA Guidelines specify that a "substantial adverse change in the significance of an historical resource means physical demolition, destruction, relocation, or alteration of the resource or its immediate

surroundings such that the significance of an historical resource would be materially impaired" (CEQA Guidelines, Section 15064.5). Material impairment occurs when a project alters in an adverse manner or demolishes "those physical characteristics of an historical resource that convey its historical significance and that justify its inclusion" or eligibility for inclusion in the National Register of Historic Place (NRHP), California Register of Historical Resources (CRHR), or local register. A project-related significant adverse effect would occur if a project were to adversely affect a historical resource meeting one of the above definitions.

The Project Site was not identified as eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places, California Register of Historical Resources, or for designation as a City of Los Angeles Historic-Cultural Monument. The buildings on the Project Site do not appear to be individually eligible for listing in the National Register, the California Register, or as an HCM, nor do the buildings appear to be a contributor to a potential Historic Preservation Overlay Zone (HPOZ). Thus, the buildings do not meet the criteria to be considered a historical resource pursuant to Section 15064.5(a) of the CEQA Guidelines. Thus, demolition of the existing structures and development of the **Project would not result in any impacts related to historical resources and no impact would occur.**

b. Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines §15064.5?

Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated. Section 15064.5(a)(3)(D) of the CEQA Guidelines generally defines archaeological resources as any resource that "has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history." Archaeological resources are features, such as tools, utensils, carvings, fabric, building foundations, etc., that document evidence of past human endeavors and that may be historically or culturally important to a significant earlier community.

Search Results

<u>CHRIS</u>

The CHRIS records search identified a total of five previously documented archaeological resources within a 0.5-mile radius of the Project Site, none of which was recorded within the Project Site. Four of the resources are Historic-period archaeological sites, of which three contained only small quantities of historic materials (P-19-03777, P-19-004192, P-19-004193). The fourth site, P-19-003683, was identified during construction monitoring in 2003 for the North Outfall Sewer–East Central Interceptor near the intersection of Mission Road and Jesse Street, north of 7th Street, on the east side of the Los Angeles River. The site included more than 100 artifacts deposited between the 1880s and 1930s. In addition to the resources identified in the 0.5-mile radius, SWCA and their subsequent Archaeological Resources Assessment also acquired records for Site P-19-003287 (LAN-4460H). This is a Historic-period archaeological site that consisted of early twentieth-century refuse deposits and structural foundations. The site was buried below existing developments and identified in 2004 during construction monitoring for the

La Kretz Innovation Campus Project, located within the Arts District neighborhood approximately 0.75 mile north of the Project Site.

The closest sites with physical remains that could be reliably associated with Native Americans are located approximately 1.5 miles north of the Project Site, near Union Station and the MWD Headquarters building. These include four sites: P-19-00007, P-19-001575/H, P-19-004662, and P-19-100515. Of these sites, only P-19-001575/H included a large and diverse assemblage of artifacts and features, which included human remains, in a location that largely retained its physical integrity. The materials identified at P-19-00007, P-19-004662, and P-19-100515 include only isolated artifacts recovered from settings subject to extensive disturbances, both from historical developments and flooding along the Los Angeles River, which posed significant constraints on the ability of the resources to provide important scientific information and contribute to the understanding of Native American lifeways.

LAN-4460H was a site with archaeological resources from the Historic period that was identified in 2014 by Environmental Science Associates during construction monitoring within the boundaries of a city block bound by Fifth Street to the north, Colyton Street to the west, Palmetto Street to the south, and South Hewitt Street to the east. The site was recommended eligible for CRHR under Criterion 4, above. The period of significance for the site is 1887 to 1923, corresponding to the residential use of the site. The site was recorded during construction of the La Kretz Innovation Campus Project, and the results were documented in a technical report submitted to the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP). That project area and surrounding neighborhood were developed at the same time in the 1880s as the current Project Site and went through similar cycles of redevelopment through the 1920s during the conversion of the property into more industrial uses.

Native American Archaeological Resources File Search

On April 25, 2019, SWCA received the results of a Sacred Lands File (SLF) search from the NAHC. The NAHC letter indicated negative results. The NAHC letter is included within Appendix C.

No archaeological resources with Native Americans components were identified in a CHRIS records search within the Project Site and a 0.5-mile radius. The SLF records search did not identify any sacred lands or sites in the Project Site. The closest known sites with Native American-affiliated materials on file at the CHRIS are mapped in approximately 1.5 miles north of the Project Site, between the Los Angeles Plaza, Union Station, and MWD Headquarters building. The Gabrielino village known as Yaanga and several other important Historic-period Gabrielino sites were located in the same approximate area, more than one mile from the Project Site.

Project Impacts

Historic-Period Archaeological Resources

Zanja No. 1

One segment of the Los Angeles zanja system was historically located approximately 250 feet from the Project Site, between Mateo and Wilson Streets (Zanja No. 1). As detailed in Appendix C-1, Archaeological Resources Assessment, a zanja system was a series of irrigation ditches that brought water from the now LA River to the homes and fields of Los Angeles. A second, unnamed branch of the zanja was also mapped 300 feet east of the Project Site. While several overview maps depicting the zanja system trace the route of Zanja No. 1 either within or very near the Project Site, an 1891 survey map was able to more precisely and reliably confirm its relative location. As shown in Appendix C-1, Zanja No. 1 survey map depicts the main channel of Zanja No. 1 as being constructed of a concrete conduit in the parcels northwest of the Project Site and then transitioning into a wooden flume, within the former Leck property, directly east of the Project Site. Because the 1891 survey map was drawn to scale and depicted streets that are close to their current alignments, the map can be considered a reliable source for assessing the sensitivity for any physical remains of the zanja system within the Project Site and supports the conclusion that the Project Site has a low sensitivity for Zanja No. 1 and any other zanja system components.

Household and Industrial Refuse and Building Foundations

A CHRIS records search and archival research identified five archaeological resources, four of which are Historic-period sites, within a 0.5-mile radius of the Project Site. As mentioned above, one additional archaeological site, LAN-4460H, was identified in the CHRIS search, although it was located outside the 0.5-mile radius. Archival research documents the land use history of the Project Site in its conversion from agriculture in the mid-nineteenth century, to mixed residential and industrial properties in the 1880s, to primarily industrial uses after the 1910s. The historical developments of LAN-4460H closely resemble those within the current Project Site: both were developed in the 1880s with residences and went through similar cycles of redevelopment through the 1920s during the conversion of the neighborhood into more industrial uses. Although some of the features associated with the initial residences at LAN-4460H were disturbed by the construction of warehouses (which were still present when construction was initiated in 2015), the concrete warehouse foundations apparently required very little excavation before being poured and the archaeological deposits largely retained their integrity. The likelihood of encountering similar Historic-period archaeological resources within the current Project Site is considered very high.

Prior to the development of the Project Site, the Project Site was partially within a former corn field identified on maps published between 1849 and 1857. Plowing and other ground disturbances from any other agricultural uses would have disturbed any native surface sediments and displaced any archaeological material that might have been located within the Project Site.

Historic-period archaeological resources could be preserved below the current ground surface, especially within any sediments identified as artificial fill. Specifically, there is potential to encounter structural remains, features, and artifacts associated with the residential neighborhood from the 1890s to the mid-1920s. Refuse was commonly deposited in trash pits and privies prior to the establishment of sewer lines and trash services. Because these types of historical features were originally excavated into pits, which can extend several feet below the surface, they are frequently found preserved below subsequent modifications. The various industrial uses of the Project Site from the mid-1920s through the 1950s are also likely to occur as archaeological deposits such as pieces of refuse, hardware, tools, buildings materials, machine parts, as well as former building foundations or other structural remains. The preservation potential is reduced in at least some portions of the Project Site as a result of the construction and removal of some subterranean structures in the Project Site after 1970.

A geophysical survey conducted as part of the Phase II ESA for the Project Site identified several subsurface anomalies, which are also frequently used to detect buried archaeological features. An anomaly in the southwestern portion of the Project Site was interpreted as the location of the island pumps and one of the Underground Storage Tanks (USTs), which suggested that the UST was likely removed and backfilled as a 1975 permit suggested. Any archaeological features once located in the footprint of this anomaly was likely destroyed and the sensitivity is considered to be low for that location. Plotting the geophysical survey results onto the 1906 Sanborn map shows no obvious correlations that would suggest the presence of intact foundations, but the variability in the results across the survey area suggests there is likely to be portions of the Project Site that have been subject to less disturbance than others and have an increased likelihood of preserving intact archaeological features.

Thus, the Project Site has a high sensitivity for containing Historic-period (non-Native American) archaeological resources. Implementation of mitigation measures CULT-MM-1 through CULT-MM-4, below, addressing Historic-period archaeological resources are provided below to help reduce this potential impact to a less than significant level.

Considerations for Resource Significance

For an archeological site to be considered CRHR eligible, it must be considered significant under one of the four CRHR criteria for evaluation and possess the quality of integrity. Significance for most archaeological sites of the types identified near the Project Site are typically found under Criterion, namely it will yield information important in the prehistory of the area, but significance can also be found eligible under Criteria 1 and 2 where the archaeological materials can be correlated with a historically significant event or person. The nature of Historic-period refuse scatters and building foundations are such that they are not commonly found eligible for the CRHR under Criterion 3, i.e., refuse scatters and buildings foundations do not typically convey any distinctive characteristics in type, period, region, or method, and they are not the focus of masterful design or artistry.

Archival research identified 13 single-story dwellings once present within the Project Site that were constructed prior to 1905. Initial research on the occupants of these buildings demonstrates that documentary evidence is available that could be used to establish connections with any refuse identified within the Project Site. Archaeological features associated with the early residential use of the Project Site have a high likelihood of occurring within the Project Site. Therefore, archaeological resources associated with the occupation of dwellings once located on the Project Site are likely to contribute to our understanding of history and rise to the level of significance under Criterion 4. However, assessing the integrity of archaeological materials is important for establishing the eligibility of sites under Criterion 4. The integrity of any refuse deposits or building foundations depends on whether or not surfaces or features are preserved, and also includes the potential for identifying and analyzing horizontal and vertical spatial patterning in past behavior. As a result, a site with poor integrity often has a diminished capacity to yield information important in history (Criterion 4).

If present, Historic-period refuse scatters or building foundations have the potential to be significant and would require mitigation to avoid potentially significant impacts. Implementation of CULT-MM-1 through CULT-MM-4, below, will ensure that previously unrecorded archaeological resources are properly identified by a qualified archaeologist so that they can be evaluated for the CRHR under the applicable criteria. Specifically, CULT-MM-4 requires an archaeological monitor to be present during excavation or grading in the area of sensitivity so that any Historic-period archaeological sites are identified, and impacts are avoided. CULT-MM-2 requires preparation of an Archaeological Resources Monitoring and Mitigation Plan (ARMMP) that addresses the means by which CRHR eligibility will be assessed in the event of a discovery. This includes but is not limited to the considerations under Criterion 1, 2, and 4 discussed above. The ARMMP will also outline a procedure for treatment of any Historic-period archaeological sites are reduced to less than significant levels.

Mitigation Measures

Construction at the Project Site would adhere to applicable regulatory compliance measures intended to avoid or to reduce significant impacts to archeological resources in the event of a discovery during grading, excavation, or other ground disturbing activities. As noted above, certain soils at the Project Site have high sensitivity based on reviewed archival materials and databases. Given the likelihood of encountering previously unrecorded resources, mitigation measures are required to ensure that potential impacts to archeological resources that may be present in the Project Site are less than significant. The mitigation measures recommended here have been developed in accordance with, and incorporate the performance standards of the

Secretary of the Interior's Standards for professional archaeology, Public Resources Code Section 5024.1, Title 14 California Code of Regulations, Sections 15064.5 and 15126.4 of the CEQA Guidelines, and PRC Sections 21083.2 and 21084.1, Office of Historic Preservation's *Archaeological Resource Management Reports (ARMR): Recommended Contents and Format*, and the guidelines of the City of Los Angeles General Plan Conservation Element.

The recommended mitigation measures provide a framework for mitigating impacts to a variety of resource types. Under CULT-MM-2, an ARMMP must be prepared that further describes treatment of the specific archaeological resources that may be identified during the archaeological monitoring (implemented under CULT-MM-4) and outlines protocols to follow in the event that a resource is found to meet CRHR eligibility criteria. The recommended mitigation measures are as follows:

- CULT-MM-1: Retain a Qualified Archaeologist. Prior to the issuance of a demolition permit, the project proponent shall retain a qualified archaeologist, defined as an archaeologist who meets the Secretary of the Interior's (SOI) Standards for professional archaeology, during the excavation phase to carry out and ensure proper implementation of the mitigation measures related to archaeological resources. The qualified archaeologist shall submit a letter of retention to the project proponent no fewer than 15 days before demolition or excavation activities commence. The letter shall include a resume for the qualified archaeologist that demonstrates fulfillment of the SOI standards.
- CULT-MM-2: Prepare an Archaeological Resources Monitoring and Mitigation Plan (ARMMP). Prior to the commencement of demolition and excavation, an ARMMP shall be prepared. The ARMMP shall include, but not be limited to, a construction worker training program (described in CULT-MM-3), monitoring protocol for demolition and excavation activities, discovery and processing protocol for inadvertent discoveries of archaeological resources, and identification of a curation facility should artifacts be collected. The ARMMP shall identify areas that require monitoring, provide a framework for assessing the geoarchaeological setting to determine whether sediments capable of preserving archaeological remains are present, and include a protocol for identifying the conditions under which additional or reduced levels of monitoring (e.g., spot-checking) may be appropriate. The duration and timing of the monitoring shall be determined based on the rate of excavation, geoarchaeological assessment, and, if present, the quantity, type, and spatial distribution of archaeological resources identified.

The ARMMP shall minimally include a historical context statement, research design, and methodology by which any newly identified archaeological sites will be evaluated for CRHR eligibility and as unique archaeological resources. The ARMMP will specify the specific types of archaeological sites likely to be encountered, the means by which significance will be assessed. If any archaeological resources are identified and are found not to be significant or do not retain integrity, then they will be recorded to a level sufficient to document the contents and condition. The ARMMP shall include a proactive

identification and documentation protocol that would facilitate preservation or mitigation of impacts to any archaeological sites identified in a cost-effective manner. The ARMMP will include potential treatment plans to be implemented in the event a newly discovered archaeological resource is determined by the gualified archaeologist to constitute a "historical resource" pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(a) or a "unique archaeological resource" pursuant to PRC 21083.2(g). The ARMMP will require that if the treatment plans outlined therein are found to be infeasible or other alternatives are proposed, the gualified archaeologist shall coordinate with the project proponent and City Planning to amend the ARMMP with a formal treatment plan that would reduce impacts to the resource(s). The treatment plans stated in the ARMMP or prepared after the discovery of a historical resource, shall be in accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(f) for historical resources and Public Resources Code Sections 21083.2(b) for unique archaeological resources. Preservation in place (i.e., avoidance) is the preferred manner of treatment and if it is determined avoidance is not feasible, treatment may include but not be limited to any of the following depending on the type of resource and the significance evaluation:

- Prehistoric archaeological sites. Data recovery shall be conducted (i.e., excavation, laboratory processing and analysis) to remove the resource(s) and reduce potential impacts to less than significant where significance is determined under CRHR Criterion 4 and integrity is retained.
- Historic-period archaeological sites. If a Historic-period site, including but not limited to a refuse scatter or building foundation(s), is present and found to retain integrity, data recovery shall be conducted (i.e., excavation, laboratory processing and analysis) to remove the resource(s) and reduce potential impacts to less than significant. In addition to data recovery, specific treatments shall be developed and implemented based on potential CRHR or eligibility criteria or as a unique archaeological resource as follows:
 - Treatment Under Criteria 1 and 2, or as a unique archaeological resource: Treatment shall include interpretation for the public. Interpretive materials may include, but not be limited to, signage at the Project Site, relocating preserved materials in a publicly accessible display, or visual representations of recovered materials. The interpretive materials shall be prepared, at the expense of the project applicant, by professionals meeting the Secretary of the Interior standards in history or historical archeology. The details of the interpretive materials, including the form, content, and timing of their preparation, shall be completed to the satisfaction and subject to the approval of the Department of City Planning. The results of the historical and archaeological studies conducted for the Project shall be made available to the public through repositories such as the local main

library branch or identified non-profit historic groups interested in the subject matter.

- **Treatment Under Criterion 3:** Architectural documentation of exposed features shall be conducted by producing narrative records, measured drawings, and photographs in conformance with HAER standards prior to any alteration or demolition activity.
- **Treatment Under Criterion 4:** No additional work; data recovery is sufficient.

The ARMMP shall summarize the requirements for tribal coordination in the event of an inadvertent discovery of Native American archaeological resources, including the applicable regulatory compliance measures or conditions of approval for the inadvertent discovery of tribal cultural resources to be carried out in concert. The ARMMP shall be prepared in compliance with Public Resources Code Section 5024.1, Title 14 California Code of Regulations, Section 15064.5 of the CEQA Guidelines, and PRC Sections 21083.2 and 21084.1.

- CULT-MM-3: Worker Environmental Awareness Program (WEAP) Training. Before the commencement of initial demolition or excavation at the Project Site, the retained gualified archaeologist or their designee shall provide a WEAP training to on-site project personnel responsible for supervising demolition and excavation (i.e., foreman or supervisor) and machine operators. The WEAP training shall brief construction crews regarding the regulatory compliance requirements and applicable mitigation measures that must be adhered to during demolition and excavation activities for the protection of archaeological resources. As an element of the WEAP training, the gualified archaeologist or their designee shall advise the construction crews on proper procedures to follow if an unanticipated archaeological resource is discovered during construction. The gualified archaeologist or their designee shall also provide the construction workers with contact information for the gualified archaeologist and their designee(s) and protocols to follow if inadvertent discoveries are made. In addition, workers shall be shown examples of the types of archaeological resources that would require notification of the archaeologist, if encountered. Once the ground disturbances have commenced, the need for additional or supplemental WEAP training shall be determined through consultation with the gualified archaeologist, project proponent or their designated project supervisor. Within five days of completing a WEAP training, a list of those in attendance shall be provided by the qualified archaeologist to the project proponent.
- CULT-MM-4: Monitoring for Archaeological Resources. Before the commencement of demolition or excavation activities, an archaeological monitor shall be present during ground disturbing activities as stipulated in the ARMMP. The qualified archaeologist may designate an archaeologist to conduct the monitoring under their direction. The monitor

shall have the authority to temporarily halt or redirect construction activities in soils that are likely to contain potentially significant archaeological resources, as determined by the qualified archaeologist. The monitor shall complete a daily log documenting construction activities and observations. The field observations shall include assessment of the geoarchaeological setting and whether sediments are identified that are no longer capable or unlikely to contain archaeological material (i.e., sterile), which may be encountered prior to reaching the total depth of excavation expected for the project. If initial archaeological monitoring identifies low archaeological sensitivity (i.e., sterile soil strata) below a certain depth or within a certain portion of the Project Site, a corresponding reduction of monitoring coverage would be appropriate. In the event that potentially significant archaeological resources are exposed during construction, work in the immediate vicinity of the find (within 8 meters [25 feet]) shall stop until a qualified archaeologist can evaluate the significance of the find. Construction activities may continue in other areas in coordination with the gualified archaeologist. If the discovery is determined by the gualified archaeologist to constitute a "historical resource" pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(a) or a "unique archaeological resource" pursuant to PRC 21083.2(g), and the treatments proposed in the ARMMP are found to be infeasible or other alternatives are proposed, the gualified archaeologist shall coordinate with the project proponent and the Department of City Planning to amend the ARMMP with a formal treatment plan that would reduce impacts to the resource(s). The treatment plan established for the resource(s) shall be in accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(f) for historical resources and Public Resources Code Sections 21083.2(b) for unique archaeological resources. Preservation in place (i.e., avoidance) is the preferred manner of treatment and if it is determined avoidance is not feasible, treatment may include architectural documentation and archaeological data recovery (i.e., excavation, laboratory processing and analysis) to remove the resource(s) and reduce potential impacts to less than significant.

Within 30 days of concluding the archaeological monitoring, the gualified archaeologist shall prepare a memo stating that the archaeological monitoring requirement of the mitigation measure has been fulfilled and summarize the results of any archaeological finds. The memo shall be submitted to the project proponent and the Department of City Planning. Following submittal of the memo, the gualified archaeologist shall prepare a technical report documenting the methods and results of all work completed under the ARMMP, including, if any, treatment of archaeological materials, results of artifact processing, analysis, and research, and evaluation of the resource(s) for the California Register of Historical Resources. Once laboratory analysis is complete, any recovered archaeological materials shall be curated at a public, non-profit research institution that will ensure their long-term preservation and allow access to interested scholars and shall be done at the expense of the project applicant. Should no such institutions accept the materials, they shall be donated to an educational institution or historical society. The format and content of the report shall follow the California Office of Historic Preservation's Archaeological Resource Management Reports (ARMR): Recommended Contents and Format. Any archaeological resources identified shall be documented on appropriate

California Department of Parks and Recreation 523-Series Forms. The report shall be prepared under the supervision of a qualified archaeologist and submitted to the Department of City Planning within 12 months of completion of the monitoring. The final draft of the report shall be submitted to the South Central Coastal Information Center.

Level of Significance with Mitigation

Overall, the Archaeological Resources Assessment included a review of historical archival sources and archaeological records. A CHRIS records search did not identify any known archaeological sites in the Project Site. The SLF results returned by the NAHC were negative. Background research indicates that subsurface archaeological deposits are commonly encountered during construction projects in downtown Los Angeles and previously unrecorded Historic-period archaeological sites have a high likelihood of occurring within the Project Site. Specifically, there is potential to encounter domestic and industrial refuse associated with residences from about 1891 to 1938, as well as construction material and building foundations associated with the residences, as well as those from several industrial and commercial buildings present after 1925. These resources have the highest probability to occur in the soil strata defined as fill, which are estimated to extend at least 2 feet below the surface. Without mitigation, physical destruction of an archaeological resource eligible for listing in the CRHR would result in a potentially significant impact. To address potential impacts to previously undiscovered archaeological resources, the Project will be required to retain a qualified archaeologist (CULT-MM-1) who will be producing and implementing a detailed ARMMP (CULT-MM-2 and CULT-MM-4) and conducting worker training (CULT-MM-3). Doing so will ensure any archaeological sites encountered will be identified and a determination made if the sites are unique archaeological resources. Therefore, with mitigation, potential impacts to archaeological resources would be reduced to a less than significant level.

c. Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of dedicated cemeteries?

Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. Although the Project Site has been subject to grading and development in the past, the Project would require excavations at a depth of approximately 25 feet below ground surface. A significant adverse effect could occur if grading or excavation activities associated with a project could disturb human remains. However, no human remains are known to exist at the Project Site. In accordance with the State's Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5, in the event of discovery or recognition of any human remains at the Project Sites, no further excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie adjacent remains shall occur until the Los Angeles County Coroner has determined, in accordance with Chapter 10 (commencing with Section 27460) of Part 3 of Division 2 of Title 3 of the Government Code, that the remains are not subject to the provisions of Section 27491 of the Government Code or any other related provisions of law concerning investigation of the circumstances, manner, and cause of any death, and the recommendations concerning the treatment and disposition of the human remains have been made to the person responsible for the excavation, or to his or her authorized representative, in the manner provided in Section

5097.98 of the Public Resources Code. The coroner shall make his or her determination within two working days from the time the person responsible for the excavation, or his or her authorized representative, notifies the coroner of the discovery or recognition of the human remains. If the coroner determines that the remains are not subject to his or her authority and if the coroner recognizes the human remains to be those of a Native American or has reason to believe that they are those of a Native American, he or she shall contact, by telephone within 24 hours, the NAHC. Through compliance with the regulatory standards and mitigation measures (CULT-MM-1 through CULT-MM-4) described above, potential Project impacts to human remains would be less than significant.

Cumulative Impacts

As discussed above, the Project would not result in indirect or direct impacts to any significant historical resource. Thus, the Project would not have the potential to contribute toward any significant cumulative impacts related to historical resources. Impacts related to archaeological and paleontological resources and human remains are site-specific and are assessed on a site-by-site basis. All development in the City (including the Project and the related projects) that involves ground-disturbing activities is required to implement standard City conditions of approval and/or mitigation similar to Mitigation Measures CULT-MM-1 through CULT-MM-4 related to the discovery of archaeological resources, as well as existing state and City regulations related to discovery of paleontological resources and human remains. For these reasons, cumulative impacts related to archaeological and paleontological resources and human remains.

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

VI. ENERGY

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|----|--|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-----------|
| Wo | ould the project: | | | | |
| a. | Result in potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources, during project construction or operation? | | | | |
| b. | Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency? | | | \boxtimes | |

Regulatory Setting

Federal

First established by the U.S. Congress in 1975, the Corporate Average Fuel Economy (CAFE) standards reduce energy consumption by increasing the fuel economy of cars and light trucks. The National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) and U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) jointly administer the CAFE standards. The U.S. Congress has specified that CAFE standards must be set at the "maximum feasible level" with consideration given for: (1) technological feasibility; (2) economic practicality; (3) effect of other standards on fuel economy; and (4) need for the nation to conserve energy.¹

<u>State</u>

Building Energy Efficiency Standards

The Building Energy Efficiency Standards for Residential and Nonresidential Buildings (CCR, Title 24, Part 6) were first adopted in 1976 and have been updated periodically since then as directed by statute. The Building Energy Efficiency Standards contain energy and water efficiency requirements (and indoor

¹ United States Department of Transportation, CAFE standards, www.nhtsa.gov/fuel-economy, accessed on May 7, 2018

air quality requirements) for newly constructed buildings, additions to existing buildings, and alterations to existing buildings. Public Resources Code Sections 25402 subdivisions (a)-(b) and 25402.1 emphasize the importance of building design and construction flexibility by requiring the California Energy Commission (CEC) to establish performance standards, in the form of an "energy budget" in terms of the energy consumption per square foot of floor space. For this reason, the Building Energy Efficiency Standards include both a prescriptive option, allowing builders to comply by using methods known to be efficient, and a performance option, allowing builders complete freedom in their designs provided the building achieves the same overall efficiency as an equivalent building using the prescriptive option. Reference Appendices are adopted along with the Building Energy Efficiency Standards that contain data and other information that helps builders comply with the Building Energy Efficiency Standards.

The 2016 update to the Building Energy Efficiency Standards focuses on several key areas to improve the energy efficiency of newly constructed buildings and additions and alterations to existing buildings. The most significant efficiency improvements to the residential Building Energy Efficiency Standards include improvements for attics, walls, water heating, and lighting, as well as alignment with the American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) 90.1 2013 national standards. New efficiency requirements for elevators and direct digital controls are included in the nonresidential Building Energy Efficiency Standards. The 2016 Building Energy Efficiency Standards also include changes made throughout all of its sections to improve the clarity, consistency, and readability of the regulatory language. The Building Energy Efficiency Standards are enforced through the local building or individual agency permit and approval processes.²

California Green Building Standards Code

Part 11 of the Title 24 California Building Standards Code is referred to as the California Green Building Standards Code (CALGreen). The purpose of CalGreen is to "improve public health, safety and general welfare by enhancing the design and construction of buildings through the use of building concepts having a positive environmental impact and encouraging sustainable construction practices in the following categories: (1) Planning and design; (2) Energy efficiency; (3) Water efficiency and conservation; (4) Material conservation and resource efficiency; and (5) Environmental air quality." As of January 1, 2011, compliance with CalGreen is mandatory for all new buildings constructed in the state. CalGreen establishes mandatory measures for new residential and non-residential buildings, including energy efficiency, water conservation, material conservation, planning and design and overall environmental quality. CalGreen was most recently updated in 2016 (2016 CalGreen Code) to reflect regulatory changes that were made to Title 24 and to include Verification Guidelines for use by local building departments, builders, and designers, that is intended to highlight and clarify both mandatory and voluntary nonresidential. The updated 2016 CalGreen Code took effect on January 1, 2017. The Project would be required to comply with the lighting power requirements in the California Energy Code, CCR, Title 24, Part 6.

² CEC, 2016 Building Energy Efficiency Standards for Residential and Nonresidential Buildings, June 2015.

California Renewable Portfolio Standard

First established in 2002 under Senate Bill (SB) 1078, California's Renewable Portfolio Standards (RPS) requires retail sellers of electric services to increase procurement from eligible renewable energy resources to 33 percent of total retail sales by 2020.³ The California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) and the CEC jointly implement the RPS program. The CPUC's responsibilities include: (1) determining annual procurement targets and enforcing compliance; (2) reviewing and approving each investor-owned utility's renewable energy procurement plan; (3) reviewing contracts for RPS-eligible energy; and (4) establishing the standard terms and conditions used in contracts for eligible renewable energy. The CEC is responsible for the certification of electrical generation facilities as eligible renewable energy resources and adopting regulations for the enforcement of RPS procurement requirements of public-owned utilities.

Senate Bill 350

Senate Bill (SB) 350, signed October 7, 2015, is the Clean Energy and Pollution Reduction Act of 2015. The objectives of SB 350 are: (1) to increase the procurement of electricity from renewable sources from 33 percent to 50 percent by 2030, and (2) to double the energy efficiency savings in electricity and natural gas final end uses of retail customers through energy efficiency and conservation.⁴

Assembly Bill 32

Assembly Bill (AB) 32 (Health and Safety Code Sections 38500–38599), also known as the California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006, commits the State to achieving year 2000 GHG emission levels by 2010 and year 1990 levels by 2020. To achieve these goals, AB 32 tasked the CPUC and the CEC with providing information, analysis, and recommendations to the California Air Resources Board (CARB) regarding ways to reduce GHG emissions in the electricity and natural gas utility sectors.⁵

Assembly Bill 1493/Pavley Regulations

AB 1493 (commonly referred to as CARB's Pavley regulations) was the first legislation to regulate GHG emissions from new passenger vehicles. Under this legislation, CARB adopted regulations to reduce GHG emissions from non-commercial passenger vehicles (cars and light-duty trucks) for model years 2009–2016. The Pavley regulations are expected to reduce GHG emissions from California's passenger vehicles by about 30 percent in 2016, all while improving fuel efficiency and reducing motorists' costs.⁶

Low Carbon Fuel Standard

The Low Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS), established in 2007 through Executive Order S-1-07 and administered by CARB, requires producers of petroleum-based fuels to reduce the carbon intensity of their products, starting with 0.25 percent in 2011 and culminating in a 10-percent total reduction in 2020.

⁴ Senate Bill 350 (2015–2016 Reg, Session) Stats 2015, ch. 547.

³ CPUC, California Renewables Portfolio Standard (RPS), www.cpuc.ca.gov/RPS_Homepage/, accessed May 7, 2018.

⁵ Ibid.

⁶ Clean Car Standards - Pavley, Assembly Bill 1943, www.energy.ca.gov/low_carbon_fuel_standard/

Petroleum importers, refiners and wholesalers can either develop their own low carbon fuel products or buy LCFS credits from other companies that develop and sell low carbon alternative fuels, such as biofuels, electricity, natural gas, and hydrogen.⁷

CARB's Advanced Clean Cars Regulation

Closely associated with the Pavley regulations, the Advanced Clean Car Standards emissions-control program (ACC program) was approved by CARB in 2012. The program combines the control of smog, soot, and GHG emissions with requirements for greater numbers of zero-emission vehicles for model years 2017-2025. The components of the ACC program include the Low-Emission Vehicle (LEV) regulations that reduce criteria pollutants and GHG emissions from light- and medium-duty vehicles, and the Zero-Emission Vehicle (ZEV) regulation, which requires manufacturers to produce an increasing number of pure ZEVs (meaning battery electric and fuel cell electric vehicles), with provisions to also produce plug-in hybrid electric vehicles (PHEV) in the 2018 through 2025 model years.⁸

Airborne Toxic Control Measure to Limit Diesel-Fueled Commercial Motor Vehicle Idling

The Airborne Toxic Control Measure to Limit Diesel-Fueled Commercial Motor Vehicle Idling (Title 13, California Code of Regulations, Division 3, Chapter 10, Section 2435) was adopted to reduce public exposure to diesel particulate matter and other air contaminants by limiting the idling of diesel-fueled commercial motor vehicles. This section applies to diesel-fueled commercial motor vehicles with gross vehicular weight ratings of greater than 10,000 pounds that are or must be licensed for operation on highways. Reducing idling of diesel-fueled commercial motor vehicles the amount of petroleum-based fuel used by the vehicle.

Senate Bill 375, Sustainable Communities Strategy

The Sustainable Communities and Climate Protection Act of 2008, or Senate Bill 375 (SB 375), coordinates land use planning, regional transportation plans, and funding priorities to help California meet the GHG emissions reduction mandates established in AB 32. SB 375 specifically requires the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) to prepare a "sustainable communities strategy" (SCS) as a part of its Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) that will achieve GHG emission reduction targets set by CARB for the years 2020 and 2035 by reducing vehicle miles traveled (VMT) from light-duty vehicles through the development of more compact, complete, and efficient communities.⁹

SCAG is the MPO for the area in which the Project Site is located. SCAG's first-ever SCS is included in the 2012–2035 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (2012–2035 RTP/SCS), which was adopted by SCAG in April 2012. The goals and policies of the SCS that reduce VMT (and result in corresponding decreases in transportation-related fuel consumption) focus on transportation and land use planning that include building infill projects, locating residents closer to

⁷ Low Carbon Fuel Standard: Fuels and Transportation Division Emerging Fuels and Technologies Office, www.energy.ca.gov/low_carbon_fuel_standard/

⁸ CARB, California's Advanced Clean Cars Program, www.arb.ca.gov/msprog/acc/acc.htm, last reviewed by CARB January 18, 2017.

⁹ Sustainable Communities, www.arb.ca.gov/cc/sb375/sb375.htm

where they work and play, and designing communities so there is access to high quality transit service. In 2016, SCAG adopted the 2016–2040 2016-2040 RTP/SCS.¹⁰ The goals and policies of the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS are the same as those in the 2012–2035 RTP/SCS.

Senate Bill 1389

SB 1389 (Public Resources Code Sections 25300–25323) requires the development of an integrated plan for electricity, natural gas, and transportation fuels. The CEC must adopt and transmit to the Governor and Legislature an Integrated Energy Policy Report every two years. The most recently completed report, the 2016 Integrated Energy Policy Report, addresses a variety of issues including the environmental performance of the electricity generation system, landscaped-scale planning, the response to the gas leak at the Aliso Canyon natural gas storage facility, transportation fuel supply reliability issues, update on the Southern California electricity reliability, methane leakage, climate adaptation activities for the energy sector, climate and sea level rise scenarios, and includes the *California Energy Demand Forecast*. ¹¹

California Environmental Quality Act: Appendix G

In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and Appendix G, Energy Conservation, of the CEQA Guidelines, in order to assure that energy implications are considered in project decisions, EIRs are required to include a discussion of the potentially significant energy impacts of proposed projects, with particular emphasis on avoiding or reducing inefficient, wasteful, and unnecessary consumption of energy. Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines provides a list of energy-related topics that should be analyzed in the EIR. In addition, while not described or required as significance thresholds for determining the significance of impacts related to energy, Appendix G provides the following topics that the lead agency may consider in the discussion of energy use in an EIR, where topics are applicable or relevant to the project:

- The project's energy requirements and its energy use efficiencies by amount and fuel type for each stage of the project including construction, operation, maintenance, and/or removal. If appropriate, the energy intensiveness of materials may be discussed;
- The effects of the project on local and regional energy supplies and on requirements for additional capacity;
- The effects of the project on peak and base period demands for electricity and other forms of energy;
- The degree to which the project complies with existing energy standards;
- The effects of the project on energy resources;

¹⁰ SCAG, 2016 RTP/SCS, dated April 2016.

¹¹ CEC, 2016 Integrated Energy Policy Report, docketed January 18, 2017.

• The project's projected transportation energy use requirements and its overall use of efficient transportation alternatives.

Regional

SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS presents a long-term transportation vision through the year 2040 for the six-county region of Imperial, Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, and Ventura Counties. On April 7, 2016, the SCAG Regional Council adopted the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS, the mission of which is "leadership, vision and progress which promote economic growth, personal well-being, and livable communities for all Southern Californians."¹² The 2016-2040 RTP/SCS includes land use strategies that focus on urban infill growth and walkable, mixed-use communities in existing urbanized and opportunity areas. More mixed-use, walkable, and urban infill development would be expected to accommodate a higher proportion of growth in more energy-efficient housing types like townhomes, apartments, and smaller single-family homes, as well as more compact commercial building types. Furthermore, the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS includes transportation investments and land use strategies that encourage carpooling, increase transit use, active transportation opportunities, and promoting more walkable and mixed-use communities, which would potentially help to reduce VMT.

The 2016-2040 RTP/SCS also establishes High-Quality Transit Areas (HQTA), which are described as generally walkable transit villages or corridors that are within 0.5 miles of a well-serviced transit stop or a transit corridor with 15-minute or less service frequency during peak commute hours.¹³ Local jurisdictions are encouraged to focus housing and employment growth within HQTAs to reduce VMT. The Project Site is located within an HQTA as designated by the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS.¹⁴

Local

Green LA: An Action Plan to Lead the Nation in Fighting Global Warming and ClimateLA

Green LA is the City's climate action plan. The plan, released in May 2007, sets forth a goal of reducing the City's GHG emissions to 35 percent below 1990 levels by the year 2030.¹⁵ ClimateLA is the implementation program that provides detailed information about each action item discussed in the Green LA framework. ClimateLA includes focus areas addressing environmental issues including but not limited to energy, water, transportation, and waste.¹⁶ The energy focus area includes action items with measures that aim to increase the use of renewable energy to 35 percent by 2020, reduce the use of coal-fired power plants, and present a comprehensive set of green building policies to guide and support private sector development.¹⁷

¹² SCAG, 2016–2040 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy, dated April 2016.

¹³ SCAG, 2016–2040 RTP/SCS, p. 8.

¹⁴ SCAG, 2016–2040 RTP/SCS; Exhibit 5.1: High Quality Transit Areas in the SCAG Region for 2040 Plan, p. 77.

¹⁵ City of Los Angeles, Green LA: An Action Plan to Lead the Nation In Fighting Global Warming, May 2007.

¹⁶ City of Los Angeles, Climate LA: Municipal Program Implementing the GreenLA Climate Action Plan, 2008.

¹⁷ Ibid.

City of Los Angeles Green Building Code

The City's Green Building Code is based on CalGreen (discussed above), which was developed and mandated by the state to attain consistency among the various jurisdictions within the state with the specific goals to reduce a building's energy and water use, reduce waste, and reduce the carbon footprint. The following types of projects are subject to the City's Green Building Code:

- All new buildings (residential and non-residential)
- All additions (residential and nonresidential)
- Alterations with building valuations over \$200,000 (residential and non-residential)

Specific measures that may be incorporated into the Project could include, but are not limited to:

- Recycling of asphalt, concrete, metal, wood and cardboard waste generated during demolition and construction;
- Installation of a "cool roof" that reflects the sun's heat and reduces urban heat island effect;
- Use of recycled construction materials, including recycled steel framing, crushed concrete
- Use of sub-base in parking lots, fly ash-based concrete and recycled content in joists and joist girders when feasible;
- Use of locally (within 500 miles) manufactured construction materials, where possible;
- Use of energy efficient lighting;
- Use of Energy Star appliances in residential units;
- Use of high energy efficiency rooftop heating and conditioning systems;
- 15 percent of the roof area set aside for future solar panels;
- Use of ultra-low-flow toilets and low-flow metered hand-wash faucets in public facilities;
- Use of smart irrigation systems to avoid over-watering of landscape;
- Use of indigenous and/or water-appropriate plants in landscaping;
- Use of low-impact development measures using innovative design to filter and infiltrate stormwater runoff and reduce water sent to storm drain systems; and
- Provision of EV charging stations in the parking structure.
On December 20, 2016, the Los Angeles City Council approved Ordinance No. 184,692, which amended Chapter IX (Green Building Code) of the LAMC, by amending certain provisions of Article 9 to reflect local administrative changes and incorporating by reference portions of the 2016 CalGreen Code. Projects filed on or after January 1, 2017, must comply with the provisions of the City's Green Building Code. Specific mandatory requirements and elective measures are provided for three categories: (1) low-rise residential buildings; (2) nonresidential and high-rise residential buildings; and (3) additions and alterations to nonresidential and high-rise residential buildings. Article 9, Division 5 includes mandatory measures for newly constructed nonresidential and high-rise residential buildings.

City of Los Angeles Solid Waste Programs and Ordinances

The recycling of solid waste materials also contributes to reduced energy consumption. Specifically, when products are manufactured using recycled materials, the amount of energy that would have otherwise been consumed to extract and process virgin source materials is reduced. For example, in 2015, 3.61 million tons of aluminum was produced by recycling in the United States, saving enough energy to provide electricity to 7.5 million homes.¹⁸ In 1989, California enacted AB 939, the California Integrated Waste Management Act, which establishes a hierarchy for waste management practices such as source reduction, recycling, and environmentally safe land disposal.¹⁹ The City includes programs and ordinances related to solid waste. They include: (1) the City of Los Angeles Solid Waste Management Policy Plan, which was adopted in 1993 and is a long-range policy plan promoting source reduction for recycling for a minimum of 50 percent of the City's waste by 2000 and 70 percent of the waste by 2020; (2) the RENEW LA Plan, which is a Resource Management Blueprint with the aim to achieve a zero waste goal through reducing, reusing, recycling, or converting the resources now going to disposal so as to achieve an overall diversion level of 90 percent or more by 2025; (3) the Waste Hauler Permit Program (Ordinance 181,519), which requires all private waste haulers collecting solid waste, including construction and demolition waste, to obtain AB 939 Compliance Permits and to transport construction and demolition waste to City certified construction and demolition processing facilities; and (4) the Exclusive Franchise System Ordinance (Ordinance No. 182,986), which, among other requirements, sets maximum annual disposal levels and specific diversion requirements for franchised waste haulers in the City to promote solid waste diversion from landfills in an effort to meet the City's zero waste goals. These solid waste reduction programs and ordinances help to reduce the number of trips to haul solid waste, therefore reducing the amount of petroleum-based fuel, and also help to reduce the energy used to process solid waste.

2017 Power Strategic Long-Term Resource Plan

The 2017 Power Strategic Long-Term Resource Plan (2017 SLTRP) document serves as a comprehensive 20-year roadmap that guides LADWP's Power System in its efforts to supply reliable electricity in an environmentally responsible and cost effective manner. LADWP is currently in the process of finalizing their 2018 update to the SLTRP, which has not yet been fully finalized. The 2017 SLTRP re-examines and expands its analysis on the 2016 Final Power Integrated Resource Plan

¹⁸ American Geosciences Institute, How Does Recycling Save Energy?, www.americangeosciences.org/criticalissues/faq/how-does-recycling-save-energy, accessed May 7, 2018.

¹⁹ CalRecycle, History of California Solid Waste Law, 1985–1989 www.calrecycle.ca.gov/laws/legislation/calhist/1985to1989.htm, accessed May 7, 2018.

resource cases with updates in line with latest regulatory framework, and updates to case scenario assumptions that include a 65 percent RPS, advanced energy efficiency, and higher levels of local solar, energy storage, and transportation electrification.

Recent updates include an updated 2016/17 Energy Efficiency Potential Study results with a target of 15 percent energy efficiency from 2017 through 2027, revised energy storage procurement targets, and completion of a distributed energy resources study titled, "Distributed Energy Resources Implementation Study (DERIS)." The 2017 SLTRP also includes numerous updates including new renewable projects, associated transmission upgrade cost and fuel cost assumptions, along with a host of other updates. The 2017 SLTRP uses system modeling tools to analyze and determine the long-term economic, environmental, and operational impact of alternative resource portfolios by simulating the integration of new resource alternatives within the existing mix of assets and providing the analytic results to inform the selection of a recommended case that is cost effective in reducing greenhouse gas emissions and maintains superior system reliability.

Early coal replacement and energy efficiency continue to be key strategies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Increasing the RPS to 55 percent by 2030 and 65 percent by 2036, including increased amounts of energy efficiency, local solar and energy storage, are other key initiatives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The 2017 SLTRP analyzed electrification of the transportation sector as a strategy to further reduce overall greenhouse gas emissions and to significantly reduce local emissions such as VOC, NO_x, CO, and PM_{2.5} that would result from electrifying local transportation and therefore recommends expanding existing programs to promote increased workplace and residential electric vehicle charging stations to support greater electric vehicle adoption while collaborating with regulatory agencies to develop mutually beneficial policies.

The 2017 SLTRP also includes a general assessment of the revenue requirements and rate impacts that support the recommended resource plan through 2037. While this assessment will not be as detailed and extensive as the financial analysis that was completed for 2015-16 fiscal year rate action, it clearly outlines the general requirements. As a long-term planning process, the 2017 SLTRP examines a 20-year horizon in order to secure adequate supplies of electricity.

Existing Conditions

<u>Electricity</u>

Electricity, a consumptive utility, is a man-made resource. The production of electricity requires the consumption or conversion of energy resources, including water, wind, oil, gas, coal, solar, geothermal, and nuclear resources, into energy. The delivery of electricity involves a number of system components, including substations and transformers that lower transmission line power (voltage) to a level appropriate for on-site distribution and use. The electricity generated is distributed through a network of transmission and distribution lines commonly called a power grid. Conveyance of electricity through transmission lines is typically responsive to market demands.

Energy capacity, or electrical power, is generally measured in watts (W), while energy use is measured in watt-hours (Wh). For example, if a light bulb has a capacity rating of 100 W, the energy required to

keep the bulb on for 1 hour would be 100 Wh. If ten 100-W bulbs were on for 1 hour, the energy required would be 1,000 Wh or 1 kilowatt-hour (kWh). On a utility scale, a generator's capacity is typically rated in megawatts (MW), which is one million W, while energy usage is measured in megawatt-hours (MWh) or gigawatt-hours (GWh), which is one billion Wh.

LADWP provides electrical service throughout the City and many areas of the Owens Valley, serving approximately 4.0 million people within a service area of approximately 465 square miles, excluding the Owens Valley. Electrical service provided by the LADWP is divided into two planning districts: Valley and Metropolitan. The Valley Planning District includes LADWP's service area north of Mulholland Drive, and the Metropolitan Planning District includes LADWP's service area south of Mulholland Drive. The Project Site is located within LADWP's Metropolitan Planning District. LADWP generates power from a variety of energy sources, including hydropower, coal, gas, nuclear sources, and renewable resources, such as wind, solar, and geothermal sources. According to LADWP's 2016 IRP, LADWP has a net dependable generation capacity greater than 7,531 MW.²⁰ In 2017, LADWP's power system experienced an instantaneous peak demand of 6,432 MW.²¹ Approximately 29 percent of LADWP's 2016 electricity purchases were from renewable sources, which is similar to the 25 percent statewide percentage of electricity purchases from renewable sources.²²

LADWP supplies electrical power to the Project Site from electrical service lines located in the Project Site's vicinity. Electricity is provided to the Project Site through a network of utility poles that are operated and maintained by LADWP. Overhead electrical lines run north-south on South San Pedro Street and Crocker Street and east-west on East 6th Street adjacent to the Project Site.

Existing Electricity Consumption at the Project Site

Electricity is provided to the Project Site through a network of utility poles that are operated and maintained by the LADWP. The Project Site is developed with a surface parking lot and a vacant automotive service building approximately 16,960 square feet in size. Based on CalEEMod calculations for the existing uses listed in Appendix A to this SCEA, the existing automotive service building consumes approximately 220,310 kilowatt-hours (kw-h) per year.

Natural Gas

Natural gas is a combustible mixture of simple hydrocarbon compounds (primarily methane) that is used as a fuel source. Natural gas consumed in California is obtained from naturally occurring reservoirs, mainly located outside the state, and delivered through high-pressure transmission pipelines. The natural gas transportation system is a nationwide network and thus, resource availability is typically not an issue. Natural gas provides almost one-third of the state's total energy requirements and is used in electricity generation, space heating, cooking, water heating, industrial processes, and as a transportation fuel.

²⁰ LADWP, 2016 Final Power Integrated Resource Plan.

²¹ LADWP, 2017 Retail Electric Sales and Demand Forecast, p. 6.

²² CEC, Utility Annual Power Content Labels for 2016, www.energy.ca.gov/pcl/labels/, accessed on May 7, 2018.

Natural gas is provided to the Project Site by the Southern California Gas Company (SoCalGas). SoCalGas is the principal distributor of natural gas in Southern California, serving residential, commercial, and industrial markets. SoCalGas serves approximately 21.6 million customers in more than 500 communities encompassing approximately 20,000 square miles throughout Central and Southern California, from the City of Visalia to the Mexican border.

SoCalGas receives gas supplies from several sedimentary basins in the western United States and Canada, including supply basins located in New Mexico (San Juan Basin), West Texas (Permian Basin), the Rocky Mountains, and Western Canada as well as local California supplies. The traditional, southwestern United States sources of natural gas will continue to supply most of SoCalGas' natural gas demand. The Rocky Mountain supply is available but is used as an alternative supplementary supply source, and the use of Canadian sources provides only a small share of SoCalGas supplies due to the high cost of transport. Gas supply available to SoCalGas from California sources averaged 122 million cf per day in 2015 (the most recent year for which data are available).²³

SoCalGas supplies natural gas to the Project Site from natural gas service lines located in the Project Site vicinity. Natural gas is provided to the Project Site through a network of underground pipelines that are operated and maintained by SoCalGas.

Existing Natural Gas Consumption at the Project Site

Natural gas is provided to the Project Site through a network of underground pipelines that are operated and maintained by the Southern California Gas Company (SoCalGas). Based on CalEEMod calculations for the existing uses listed in Appendix A to this SCEA, the existing automotive service building, and related uses, consume approximately 176,554 British thermal units (kBTU) per year.

Transportation Energy

According to the CEC, transportation accounts for nearly 37 percent of California's total energy consumption in 2014.²⁴ In 2015, California consumed 15.1 billion gallons of gasoline and 2.82 billion gallons of diesel fuel. ²⁵ Petroleum-based fuels currently account for 90 percent of California's transportation energy sources.²⁶ However, the state is now working on developing flexible strategies to reduce petroleum use. Over the last decade, California has implemented several policies, rules, and regulations to improve vehicle efficiency, increase the development and use of alternative fuels, reduce air pollutants and GHG emissions from the transportation sector, and reduce VMT. Accordingly, gasoline consumption in California has declined. The CEC predicts that the demand for gasoline will continue to decline over the next 10 years, and there will be an increase in the use of alternative fuels.²⁷ According

²³ Southern California Gas Company, 2016 California Gas Report, July 2016.

²⁴ CEC, 2016 Integrated Energy Policy Report, docketed January 18, 2017, p. 4.

²⁵ California Board of Equalization, Net Taxable Gasoline Gallons 10-Year Report.

²⁶ CEC, 2016–2017 Investment Plan Update for the Alternative and Renewable Fuel and Vehicle Technology Program, March 2016.

²⁷ CEC, 2015 Integrated Energy Policy Report, docketed June 29, 2016, p. 113.

to CARB's EMFAC Web Database, Los Angeles County on-road transportation sources consumed 4.42 billion gallons of gasoline and 0.69 billion gallons of diesel fuel in 2015.²⁸

Existing Transportation Energy Consumption at the Project Site

The estimate of annual VMT associated with existing conditions at the Project Site is 2,516 per year.²⁹ Thus, the existing VMT associated with existing conditions at the Project Site translates to the consumption of approximately 30,796 gallons of gasoline and approximately 5,747 gallons of diesel for transportation per year.³⁰

Environmental Impacts

Thresholds of Significance

Appendix G of the State CEQA Guidelines

Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines was prepared in response to the requirement in Public Resources Code Section 21100(b)(3), which states that an EIR shall include a detailed statement setting forth "[m]itigation measures proposed to minimize significant effects of the environment, including, but not limited to, measures to reduce the wasteful, inefficient, and unnecessary consumption of energy."

In addition, with regard to potential impacts to energy, the *L.A. CEQA Thresholds Guide* (Thresholds Guide) states that a determination of significance shall be made on a case-by case basis, considering the following factors:

- The extent to which the project would require new (off-site) energy supply facilities and distribution infrastructure; or capacity-enhancing alterations to existing facilities;
- Whether and when the needed infrastructure was anticipated by adopted plans; and
- The degree to which the project design and/or operations incorporate energy- conservation measures, particularly those that go beyond City requirements.

Project Design Features

The following measures are included as part of the Project to reduce energy consumption:

• **ENERGY-PDF-1:** The Project shall not include natural gas-fueled fireplaces in the proposed residential units.

²⁸ CARB, EMFAC2014 Web Database, www.arb.ca.gov/emfac/2014/

²⁹ Refer to the CalEEMod calculations in Appendix A that include existing VMT.

³⁰ Refer to Appendix A.

- **ENERGY-PDF-2:** The Project shall provide vehicle parking spaces that would be prewired and capable of accommodating EV charging stations in accordance with Ordinance No. 186,485.
- **ENERGY-PDF-3**: Windows would be included in all living units and common spaces for natural daylight, reducing the need for overhead lighting impacting the need for electricity. High-performance dual-pane windows and exterior materials would be used in order to reduce the need for energy driven mechanical systems.
- **ENERGY-PDF-4**: Active energy conservation strategies would include implementing LED lighting with daylighting controls and dimming capabilities, installing motion detector controls for all circulation and auxiliary spaces, providing Energy Star qualified appliances.
- **ENERGY-PDF-5:** High-efficiency toilets with a flush volume of 1.0 gallon per flush, or less.
- **ENERGY-PDF-6:** Showerheads with a flow rate of 1.5 gpm or less.
- **ENERGY-PDF-7:** Residential bathroom faucets equipped with aerators to reduce flow to 1.0 gpm or less.
- **ENERGY-PDF-8:** Drip/subsurface irrigation (micro-irrigation)
- ENERGY-PDF-9: Micro-spray
- **ENERGY-PDF-10:** Proper hydro-zoning/zoned irrigation (group plants with similar water requirements)
- ENERGY-PDF-11: Drought-tolerant plants 50 percent of total landscaping

a. Result in potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources, during project construction or operation?

Less Than Significant Impact. The analysis below considers the eight criteria identified in the Thresholds of Significance subsection above to determine whether this significance threshold would be exceeded.

1) The project's energy requirements and its energy use efficiencies by amount and fuel type for each stage of the project including construction, operation, maintenance, and/or removal. If appropriate, the energy intensiveness of materials may be discussed.

The Project would consume energy during construction and operational activities. Sources of energy for these activities would include electricity usage, natural gas consumption, and transportation fuels such as diesel and gasoline. The analysis below includes the Project's energy requirements and energy use

efficiencies by fuel type for each stage of the Project (construction, operations, maintenance and removal activities).

For purposes of this analysis, Project maintenance would include activities such as repair of structures, landscaping, and architectural coatings. Energy usage related to Project maintenance activities are assumed to be included as part of Project operations. Project removal activities would include demolition or abandonment of the site. However, it is not known when the Project would be removed. Therefore, analysis of energy usage related to Project removal activities would be speculative. For this reason, energy usage related to Project removal was not analyzed.

Construction

The Project would have short-term construction impacts, as construction activities would consume relatively minor quantities of electricity (i.e., temporary use for lighting and small power tools). Electricity used to provide temporary power for lighting electronic equipment inside temporary construction trailers and within the proposed structures would be consumed during Project construction. This electricity would be supplied to the Project Site by LADWP and would be obtained from the existing electrical lines that connect to the Project Site. Electricity consumed during Project construction would be temporary and would cease upon the completion of construction, as well as vary depending on site-specific operations and the amount of construction occurring at any given time. Overall, construction activities associated with the Project would require limited electricity generation that would not be expected to have an adverse impact on available electricity supplies.

Transportation fuels, primarily gasoline and diesel, would be provided by local or regional suppliers and vendors. Project-related vehicles would require a negligible fraction of the total state's transportation fuel consumption. A study by Caltrans found that the statewide average fuel economy for all vehicle types (automobiles, trucks, and motorcycles) is projected at 20.4 miles per gallon (mpg) and worse-case diesel trucks is 5.71 mpg in 2015.³¹ In 2012, California consumed a total of 337,666 barrels of gasoline for transportation, which is equivalent to a total annual consumption of 14.1 billion gallons by the transportation sector.³²

Energy Conservation

The Project would utilize construction contractors who demonstrate compliance with applicable CARB regulations governing the accelerated retrofitting, repowering, or replacement of heavy-duty diesel onand off-road equipment. CARB has adopted an Airborne Toxic Control Measure to limit heavy-duty diesel motor vehicle idling in order to reduce public exposure to diesel particulate matter and other TACs. This measure prohibits diesel-fueled commercial vehicles greater than 10,000 pounds from idling for more than five minutes at any given time. CARB has also approved the Truck and Bus regulation (CARB Rules Division 3, Chapter 1, Section 2025, subsection (h)) to reduce NOX, PM10, and PM2.5 emissions from existing diesel vehicles operating in California; this regulation will be phased in with full

³¹ Caltrans, 2007 California Motor Vehicle Stock, Travel and Fuel Forecast, Table 7, http://www.energy.ca.gov/2008publications/CALTRANS-1000-2008-036/CALTRANS-1000-2008-036.PDF.

³² US EPA, State Energy Data System, Table F-3: http://www.eia.gov/state/seds/sep_fuel/html/pdf/fuel_mg.pdf, May 18, 2016.

implementation by 2023.³³ In addition to limiting exhaust from idling trucks, CARB recently promulgated emission standards for off-road diesel construction equipment of greater than 25 horsepower. The regulation aims to reduce emissions by requiring the installation of diesel soot filters and encouraging the retirement, replacement, or repower of older, dirtier engines with newer emission-controlled models. Implementation began January 1, 2014 and the compliance schedule requires that best available control technology turnovers or retrofits be fully implemented by 2023 for large and medium equipment fleets and by 2028 for small fleets. Compliance with the above anti-idling and emissions regulations would result in efficient use of construction-related energy and the minimization or elimination of wasteful and unnecessary consumption of energy. Idling restrictions and the use of newer engines and equipment would result in less fuel combustion and energy consumption, as would use of haul trucks with larger capacities, as previously stated.

Operation

During operation of the Project, energy would be consumed for multiple purposes, including, but not limited to HVAC; refrigeration; lighting; and the use of electronics, equipment, and machinery. Energy would also be consumed during Project operations related to water usage, solid waste disposal, and vehicle trips. As shown on **Table 6.VI-1**, the Project's net demand for electricity would be approximately 3,664,075 kWh per year. As shown on **Table 6.VI-2**, the Project's net demand for natural gas would be 5,017,728 kBTU per year.

| Land Use | Size | Total (kw-h/yr) ¹ | | |
|---|-----------|------------------------------|--|--|
| Residential live/work | 106 du | 419,768 | | |
| Retail | 13,979 sf | 188,717 | | |
| Restaurant | 13,126 sf | 879,382 | | |
| Office | 92,740 sf | 1,233,920 | | |
| Enclosed Parking | 40,299 sf | 942,288 | | |
| Project Total 3,664,075 | | | | |
| du = dwelling unit sf =square feet kw-h = kilowatt-hour yr = year ¹ Calculated via CalEEMod. Refer to Appendix A of this SCEA. Note: LADWP does not provide or comment on generation rates to provide an estimate of demand. | | | | |

Table 6.VI-1Project Estimated Electricity Demand

Table 6.VI-2 Project Estimated Natural Gas Demand

| Land Use | Size | Total (kBTU/yr) ¹ |
|-------------|-----------|------------------------------|
| Residential | 106 du | 976,996 |
| Retail | 13,979 sf | 22,926 |

³³ California Air Resources Board, Final Regulation Order, Amendments to the Regulation to Reduce Emissions of Diesel Particulate Matter, Oxides of Nitrogen and Other Criteria Pollutants from In-Use On-Road Diesel-Fueled Vehicles, http://www.arb.ca.gov/msprog/onrdiesel/documents/tbfinalreg.pdf.

| Land Use | Size | Total (kBTU/yr) ¹ | | |
|---|-----------|------------------------------|--|--|
| Restaurant | 13,126 sf | 3,028,960 | | |
| Office | 92,740 sf | 988,846 | | |
| Enclosed Parking | 40,299 sf | 0 | | |
| Project Total 5,017,728 | | | | |
| du = dwelling unit sf =square feet kBTU = 1,000 British Thermal Units yr = year ¹ Calculated via CalEEMod. Refer to Appendix A. Note: SoCalGas does not provide or comment on generation rates to provide an estimate of demand. | | | | |

Table 6.VI-2 Project Estimated Natural Gas Demand

Electricity

With compliance with 2016 Title 24 standards and applicable requirements of the City's Green Building Code, buildout of the Project would result in a projected net increase in the on-site demand for electricity totaling approximately 3,664,075 kWh per year (refer to **Table 6.VI-1**). In addition, LADWP is required to procure at least 33 percent of their energy portfolio from renewable sources by 2020. The current sources procured by LADWP include wind, solar, and geothermal sources. These sources account for 29 percent of LADWP's overall energy mix in 2016, the most recent year for which data are available.³⁴ This represents the available off-site renewable sources of energy that would meet the Project's energy demand. Furthermore, the Project would incorporate active energy conservation strategies, such as LED lighting with day-lighting controls and dimming capabilities, and Energy Star light bulbs.

Based on LADWP's 2017 SLTRP, LADWP forecasts that its total energy sales in the 2022-2023 fiscal year (the Project's buildout year) will be over 20,000 GWh of electricity.³⁵ As such, the Project-related increase in annual electricity consumption of 3,664,075 kWh per year would represent approximately 0.009 percent of LADWP's projected sales in 2023.

Natural Gas

With compliance with 2016 Title 24 standards and applicable requirements of the City's Green Building Code, buildout of the Project is projected to generate an increase in the on-site demand for natural gas totaling approximately 5,017,728 kBTU per year, or approximately 913,477 cf per day.³⁶ Based on the 2018 California Gas Report, the California Energy and Electric Utilities estimates natural gas consumption within SoCalGas's planning area will be approximately 2,898 million cf per day in 2021 (the year of the California Gas Report that is closest to Project's buildout year). The Project would account for approximately 0.0003 percent of the forecasted 2021 consumption in SoCalGas's planning area. In addition, the Project would incorporate a variety of energy conservation measures as required under the City's Green Building Code to reduce energy usage.

³⁴ CEC, Utility Annual Power Content Labels for 2016, www.energy.ca.gov/pcl/labels/.

³⁵ 2017 Power Strategic Long-Term Resource Plan, December 2017, LADWP, Appendix A.

³⁶ kBTU = 1,000 BTU. One BTU equals 1,020 cubic feet. 5,017,728 x 1,000 = 5,017,728,000 BTU. 5,017,728,000 BTU/1,020 cf = 4,919,341 cf. 4,919,341/365 days = 13,477 cf/day.

Transportation Energy

During operation, Project-related traffic would result in the consumption of petroleum-based fuels related to vehicular travel to and from the Project Site. As noted previously, the Project Site is located in an HQTA designated by SCAG that indicates that the Project Site is an appropriate site for increased density and employment opportunities from a "smart growth" regional planning perspective. As discussed in response to Checklist Question 17(a) (Transportation) of this SCEA, extensive public bus and rail transit service is provided within the Project study area. Public bus transit service in the immediate Project Site area is currently provided by Metro, City of Gardena Transit, and City of Montebello Bus Lines. Additional public bus transit service in the Downtown Los Angeles area is provided by Foothill Transit, LADOT DASH Transit Service, Orange County Transportation Authority, and Torrance Transit Service. The Metro Red and Gold lines also are provided in proximity to the Project Site. Walk Score calculates a transit score based on the number and proximity of bus and rail routes, which generates a transit score of approximately 95 (Rider's Paradise) out of 100 for the Project Site.³⁷ The existing transit services in the vicinity of the Project Site would provide Project employees, residents, and guests with various public transportation opportunities in lieu of driving.

Additionally, the Project would provide bicycle storage areas for Project residents and guests. The Project would also incorporate characteristics that would reduce trips and VMT as compared to standard ITE trip generation rates. The Project characteristics listed below are consistent with the CAPCOA guidance document, *Quantifying Greenhouse Gas Mitigation Measures*, which provides emission reduction values for recommended mitigation measures, and would reduce vehicle trips to the Project Site and VMT to the Project Site. These Project characteristics would result in a corresponding reduction in VMT and associated transportation energy consumption and reduce the potential for inefficient, wasteful, and unnecessary use of energy. Qualifying measures applicable to the Project include the following:

- CAPCOA Measure LUT-1 Increase Density: Increased density, measured in terms of persons, jobs, or dwelling units per unit area, reduces emissions associated with transportation as it reduces the distance people travel for work or services and provides a foundation for the implementation of other strategies, such as enhanced transit services. The Project would increase the Project Site's density with 106 residences.
- CAPCOA Measure LUT-3 Increase Diversity of Urban and Suburban Developments (Mixed-Use): The Project would introduce new uses on the Project Site, including new live/work units and commercial uses. The Project would co-locate complementary residential and commercial uses in proximity to other existing off site residential and commercial uses. The increases in land use diversity and mix of uses on the Project Site would reduce vehicle trips and VMT by encouraging walking and non-automotive forms of transportation (i.e., walking and biking), which would result in corresponding reductions in transportation-related emissions.

³⁷ Refer to http://www.walkscore.com/, which generates the transit score for the project site. Walk Score calculates the transit score of an address by locating nearby bus/rail transit routes and stops. Walk Score measures how easy it is to live a carlite lifestyle—not how pretty the area is for using transit service.

- CAPCOA Measure LUT-4 Increase Destination Accessibility: The Project Site is located in Koreatown near Downtown Los Angeles, a primary job center, also easily accessible by public transportation. Access to multiple destinations, and other commercial and retail uses in proximity to the Project Site would reduce vehicle trips and VMT compared to the statewide average and encourage walking and non-automotive forms of transportation and would result in corresponding reductions in transportation-related emissions as a result of the Project.
- CAPCOA Measure LUT-5 Increase Transit Accessibility: The Project would be located near a Metro Purple Line station, as well as Metro local and Rapid Bus service on Wilshire Boulevard. The Project would also provide bicycle parking spaces for resident and commercial uses to encourage utilization of alternative modes of transportation.
- **CAPCOA Measure LUT-9 Improve Design of Development:** The Project would enhance the pedestrian environment by developing floor live/work spaces, ground floor retail and improved streetscape, which would enhance walkability in the Project Site vicinity. The Project would also locate a development with a high level of street access, which improves street accessibility and connectivity.
- CAPCOA Measure SDT-2 Traffic Calming Measures: Providing traffic calming measures encourages people to walk or bike instead of using a vehicle. This mode shift results in a decrease in VMT. Streets within a half mile of the Project Site are equipped with sidewalks, and several of the intersections include marked crosswalks and/or count-down signal timers that calm traffic.

Summary of Energy Requirements and Energy Use Efficiencies

Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines recommends quantification of a project's energy requirements and its energy use efficiencies by amount and fuel type for each stage of the project's life cycle including construction, operation, maintenance, and/or removal. If appropriate, the energy intensiveness of materials may be discussed. The Project's energy requirements were based on the methodology contained in CalEEMod for electricity and natural gas usage. The calculations also considered energy efficiency measures such as Title 24, CalGreen and vehicle fuel economy standards. **Tables 6.VI-1 and 5.VI-2** provide a summary of Project construction and operational energy usage.

2) The effects of the project on local and regional energy supplies and on requirements for additional capacity.

Construction

As discussed above, electricity would be intermittently consumed during the conveyance of the water used to control fugitive dust, as well as to provide electricity for temporary lighting and other general construction activities. The electricity demand at any given time would vary throughout the construction period based on the construction activities being performed and would cease upon completion of construction. When not in use, electric equipment would be powered off so as to avoid unnecessary energy consumption. As energy consumption during Project construction activities would be relatively negligible, the Project would not likely affect regional energy consumption in years during the construction period.

Operation

As stated above, the Project-related increase in annual electricity consumption would represent approximately 0.009 percent of LADWP's projected sales in 2024-205. Also, the Project's estimated increase in demand for natural gas would account for approximately 0.0004 percent of the forecasted 2021 consumption in SoCalGas's planning area. In summary, energy consumption during Project operations would be relatively negligible, and energy requirements would be within LADWP's and SoCalGas's service provision.

3) The effects of the project on peak and base period demands for electricity and other forms of energy.

As discussed above, electricity demand during construction and operation of the Project would have a negligible effect on the overall capacity of LADWP's power grid and base load conditions. With regard to peak load conditions, LADWP's power system experienced an all-time high peak of 6,432 MW on August 31, 2017.³⁸ LADWP also estimates a peak load based on two years of data known as base case peak demand to account for typical peak conditions. Based on LADWP estimates for 2017, the base case peak demand for the power grid is 5,854 MW.³⁹ Under peak conditions, the Project would consume 4,538,308 kWh on an annual basis, equivalent to 255 kW. In comparison to the LADWP power grid base peak load of 5,854 MW in 2017, the Project would represent approximately 0.003 percent of the LADWP base peak load conditions. In addition, LADWP's annual growth projection in peak demand of the electrical power grid of 0.4 percent would be enough to account for future electrical demand by the Project.⁴⁰ Therefore, Project electricity consumption during operational activities would have a negligible effect on peak load conditions of the power grid.

4) The degree to which the project complies with existing energy standards.

Although Title 24 requirements typically apply to energy usage for buildings, construction equipment would also comply with Title 24 requirements where applicable. Electricity and natural gas usage during Project operations presented on **Table 6.VI-1 and 6.VI-2** would comply with 2016 Title 24 standards and applicable 2016 CalGreen Code requirements and the City's Green Building Code. Therefore, Project construction and operational activities would comply with existing energy standards with regards to electricity and natural gas usage.

With regard to transportation fuels, trucks and equipment used during proposed construction activities, the Project would comply with CARB's anti-idling regulations as well as the In-Use Off-Road Diesel-Fueled Fleets regulation. Although these regulations are intended to reduce criteria pollutant emissions, compliance with the anti-idling and emissions regulations would also result in efficient use of construction-related energy. During Project operations, vehicles travelling to and from the Project Site is

³⁸ LADWP, 2017 Retail Electric Sales and Demand Forecast. p. 6.

³⁹ Ibid.

⁴⁰ Ibid.

assumed to comply with CAFE fuel economy standards. Project-related vehicle trips would also comply with Pavley and Low Carbon Fuel Standards, which are designed to reduce vehicle GHG emissions but would also result in fuel savings in addition to CAFE standards. Therefore, Project construction and operational activities would comply with existing energy standards with regards to transportation fuel consumption.

5) Effects of the Project on Energy Resources

As discussed above, LADWP's electricity generation is derived from a mix of non-renewable and renewable sources such as coal, natural gas, solar, geothermal, wind, and hydropower. LADWP's 2017 STLRP identifies adequate resources (natural gas, coal) to support future generation capacity.

Natural gas supplied to the Southern California is mainly sourced from out of state with a small portion originating in California. Sources of natural gas for the Southern California region are obtained from locations throughout the western United States as well as Canada.⁴¹ According to the U.S. Energy Information Administration (EIA), the United States currently has over 80 years of natural gas reserves based on 2015 consumption.⁴² Compliance with energy standards is expected to result in more efficient use of natural gas (lower consumption) in future years. Therefore, Project construction and operation activities would have a negligible effect on natural gas supply.

Transportation fuels (gasoline and diesel) are produced from crude oil, which is imported from various regions around the world. Based on current proven reserves, crude oil production would be sufficient to meet over 50 years of consumption.⁴³ The Project would also comply with CAFE fuel economy standards, which would result in more efficient use of transportation fuels (lower consumption). Project-related vehicle trips would also comply with Pavley and Low Carbon Fuel Standards, which are designed to reduce vehicle GHG emissions but would also result in fuel savings in addition to CAFE standards. Therefore, Project construction and operation activities would have a negligible effect on the transportation fuel supply.

As discussed above in the Regulatory Framework, one of the objectives of SB 350 is to increase procurement of California's electricity from renewable sources from 33 percent to 50 percent by 2030. Accordingly, LADWP is required to procure at least 50 percent of their energy portfolio from renewable sources by 2030. The current sources of renewable energy procured by LADWP include wind, solar, and geothermal sources. These sources account for 29 percent of LADWP's overall energy mix in 2016, the most recent year for which data are available.⁴⁴ This represents the available off-site renewable sources of energy that would meet the Project's energy demand.

With regard to on-site renewable energy sources, as required under the City's Green Building Code, the Project would include the provision of conduit that is appropriate for future photovoltaic and solar thermal

⁴¹ California Gas and Electric Utilities, 2017 California Gas Report, 2017.

⁴² U.S. Energy Information Administration, Frequently Asked Questions, www.eia.gov/tools/faqs/faq.php?id=58&t=8, accessed February 2019.

⁴³ BP Global, Oil reserves, https://www.bp.com/en/global/corporate/energy-economics/statistical-review-of-worldenergy/oil/oil-reserves.html, accessed February 2019.

⁴⁴ CEC, Utility Annual Power Content Labels for 2016, www.energy.ca.gov/pcl/labels/.

collectors. However, due to the Project Site location, other on-site renewable energy sources would not be feasible to install on-site as there are no local sources of energy from the following sources: biodiesel, biomass hydroelectric and small hydroelectric, digester gas, fuel cells, landfill gas, municipal solid waste, ocean thermal, ocean wave, and tidal current technologies, or multi- fuel facilities using renewable fuels. Furthermore, while methane is a renewable derived biogas and was found beneath the Project Site, it is not available on the Project Site in commercially viable quantities or form, and its extraction and treatment for energy purposes would result in secondary impacts. Additionally, wind-powered energy is not viable on the Project Site due to the lack of sufficient wind in the Los Angeles basin.

Specifically, based on a map of California's wind resource potential, the Project Site is not identified as an area with wind resource potential.⁴⁵

6) The project's projected transportation energy use requirements and its overall use of efficient transportation alternatives.

The Project's design and proximity to job centers and retail uses would allow for more residents to live closer to work and shopping areas, reducing associated VMT. The design of the Project, which includes dedicated bicycle parking facilities and an improved streetscape with pedestrian amenities, also would encourage non-automotive forms of transportation such as walking or biking to destinations. In addition, extensive public bus and rail transit service is provided within the area of the Project Site and provide regular service intervals of 15 minutes during the peak hours. Public bus transit service in the immediate Project study area is currently provided by Metro, City of Gardena Transit, and City of Montebello bus lines. Additional public bus transit service in the Downtown Los Angeles area is provided by Foothill Transit, LADOT DASH Transit Service, Orange County Transportation Authority, and Torrance Transit Service. The Metro Red and Gold rail lines also are provided in proximity to the Project Site.

7) The degree to which the project design and/or operations incorporate energyconservation measures, particularly those that go beyond City requirements

The City's current Green Building Code requires compliance with the CalGreen Code and California's Building Energy Efficiency Standards (Title 24). The Project would be required to comply with the City's Green Building Code.

The City has also adopted several plans and regulations to promote the reduction, reuse, recycling, and conversion of solid waste going to disposal systems. These regulations include the City of Los Angeles Solid Waste Management Policy Plan, the RENEW LA Plan, and the Exclusive Franchise System Ordinance (Ordinance No. 182,986). These solid waste reduction programs and ordinances help to reduce the number of trips associated with hauling solid waste, thereby reducing the amount of petroleum-based fuel consumed. Furthermore, recycling efforts indirectly reduce the energy necessary to create new products made of raw material, which is an energy- intensive process. Thus, through

 ⁴⁵ CEC, National Renewable Energy Laboratory (NREL) Wind Prospector, https://maps.nrel.gov/wind-prospector/#/?aL=kM6jR-%255Bv%255D%3Dt%26qCw3hR%255Bv%255D%3Dt%26qCw3hR%255Bd%255D%3D1&bL=groad&cE=0&IR=0&mC =36.416862115300304%2C-120.421142578125&zL=8, accessed May 7, 2019. compliance with the City's construction-related solid waste recycling programs, the Project would contribute to reduced fuel-related energy consumption.

8) Whether the Project conflicts with adopted energy conservation plans.

The Project would comply with applicable regulatory requirements for the design of new buildings, including the provisions set forth in the 2016 CalGreen Code and California's Building Energy Efficiency Standards, which have been incorporated into the City's Green Building Code.

With regard to transportation uses, the Project design would reduce the VMT throughout the region and encourage use of alternative modes of transportation. The Project would be consistent with regional planning strategies that address energy conservation. As discussed in Section 3 (SCEA Criteria and Transit Priority Project Consistency Analysis), SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS focuses on creating livable communities with an emphasis on sustainability and integrated planning, and identifies mobility, economy, and sustainability as the three principles most critical to the future of the region. As part of the approach, the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS focuses on reducing fossil fuel use by decreasing VMT, reducing building energy use, and increasing use of renewable sources. The Project would be consistent with the energy efficiency policies emphasized in the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS. The Project would provide greater proximity to neighborhood services, jobs, and residences and would be well served by existing public transportation, including Metro bus lines and rail lines. This is evidenced by the Project Site's location within a designated HQTA. The introduction of new housing and job opportunities within an HQTA, as proposed by the Project, is consistent with numerous policies in the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS related to locating new housing and jobs near transit. The 2016-2040 RTP/SCS would result in an estimated 8 percent decrease in VMT by 2020, an 18 percent decrease in VMT by 2035, and a 21 percent decrease in VMT by 2040. By meeting and exceeding the SB 375 targets for 2020 and 2035, as well as achieving an approximately 21 percent decrease in VMT by 2040 (an additional 3 percent reduction in the 5 years between 2035 [18 percent] and 2040 [21 percent]), the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS is expected to fulfill and exceed its portion of SB 375 compliance with respect to meeting the state's GHG emission reduction goals. Thus, consistent with the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS, the Project would reduce VMT and associated petroleum-based fuel. As such, based on the above, the Project would be consistent with adopted energy conservation plans.

Conclusion

As demonstrated in the analysis of the eight criteria discussed above, the Project would not result in any wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy during construction or operation. The Project's energy requirements would not significantly affect local and regional supplies or capacity. The Project's energy usage during peak and base periods would also be consistent with electricity and natural gas future projections for the region. Electricity generation capacity and supplies of natural gas and transportation fuels would also be sufficient to meet the needs of Project-related construction and operations. During operations, the Project would comply with the City's existing energy efficiency requirements under the City's Green Building Code. In summary, the Project's energy demands would not significantly affect available energy supplies and would comply with existing energy efficiency standards. Therefore, Project impacts related to energy use would be less than significant during construction and operation.

b. Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency?

Less Than Significant Impact.

Construction

Electricity

As discussed above, construction activities at the Project Site would require minor quantities of electricity for lighting, power tools, and other support equipment. Heavy construction equipment would be powered with diesel fuel.

During Project construction activities, electricity usage represents a negligible amount of the estimated annual Project operational demand, which as described below. LADWP's existing electrical infrastructure currently has enough capacity to provide service for the Project Site and its related construction and operational activities. Moreover, construction electricity usage would replace the existing electricity usage at the Project Site during construction since the existing on-site uses, which currently generate a demand for electricity, would be removed. As existing power lines are located in the vicinity of the Project Site, temporary power poles may be installed to provide electricity during Project construction. Existing off-site infrastructure would not have to be expanded or newly developed to provide electrical service to the project during construction or demolition. Therefore, the Project would not result in an increase in demand for electricity or natural gas that exceeds available supply or distribution infrastructure capabilities that could result in the construction of new energy facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects.

With regard to existing electrical distribution lines, the Project Applicant would be required to coordinate electrical infrastructure removals or relocations with LADWP and comply with site-specific requirements set forth by LADWP, which would ensure that service disruptions and potential impacts associated with grading, construction, and development within LADWP easements are minimized. Project contractors would notify and coordinate with SoCalGas to identify the locations and depth of all existing gas lines and avoid disruption of gas service to other properties. As such, construction of the Project would not adversely affect the electrical infrastructure serving the surrounding uses or utility system capacity.

Natural Gas

Construction activities, including the construction of new buildings and facilities, typically do not involve the consumption of natural gas. Since the Project Site is located in an area already served by existing natural gas infrastructure, it is anticipated that the Project would not require extensive off-site infrastructure improvements to serve the Project Site. Construction impacts associated with the installation of natural gas connections would be confined to trenching in order to place the lines below surface. In addition, prior to ground disturbance, Project contractors would notify and coordinate with SoCalGas to identify the locations and depth of all existing gas lines and avoid disruption of gas service to other properties. Therefore, construction of the Project would not result in an increase in demand for natural gas to affect available supply or distribution infrastructure capabilities and would not result in the construction of new energy facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects.

Operation

Electricity

As shown above, the Project's operational electricity usage is approximately 0.009 percent of LADWP's projected sales. In addition, during peak conditions, the Project would represent approximately 0.009 percent of the LADWP estimated peak load. Therefore, during Project operations, LADWP's existing and planned electricity capacity and electricity supplies would be sufficient to support the Project's electricity demand.

Natural Gas

Based on the 2016 California Gas Report, the California Energy and Electric Utilities estimates natural gas consumption within SoCalGas's planning area will be approximately 2,526 million cf per day in 2021 (the year of the California Gas Report that is closest to Project's buildout year). The Project would account for approximately 0.0004 percent of the forecasted 2021 consumption in SoCalGas' planning area. Therefore, SoCalGas's existing and planned natural gas supplies would be sufficient to support the Project's net increase in demand for natural gas.

Conclusion

As demonstrated in the analysis above, construction and operation of the Project would not result in an increase in demand for electricity or natural gas that exceeds available supply or distribution infrastructure capabilities that could result in the construction of new energy facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects. Therefore, the Project would not conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency and potential impacts would be less than significant during construction and operation.

Cumulative Impacts

Significance Threshold No. 1 (Use and Consumption of Energy)

Cumulative impacts occur when impacts that are significant or less than significant from a proposed project combine with similar impacts from other past, present, or reasonably foreseeable projects in a similar geographic area. There are 80 related projects located within the vicinity of the Project Site. The geographic context for the cumulative analysis of electricity is LADWP's service area and the geographic context for the cumulative analysis of natural gas is SoCalGas's service area. While the geographic context for transportation-related energy use is more difficult to define, it is meaningful to consider the Project in the context of countywide consumption. Growth within these geographies is anticipated to increase the demand for electricity, natural gas, and transportation energy, as well as the need for energy infrastructure, such as new or expanded energy facilities.

Electricity

Buildout of the Project, related projects, and additional forecasted growth in LADWP's service area would cumulatively increase the demand for electricity supplies and infrastructure capacity. As stated previously, LADWP forecasts that its total energy sales for the 2023-2024 fiscal year (the Project buildout year) will be 23,286 GWh of electricity. Based on the Project's estimated net new electrical consumption, the Project would account for approximately 0.009 percent of LADWP's total projected sales for the Project's buildout year. Thus, although Project development would result in the use of renewable and non-renewable electricity resources during construction and operation, which could limit future availability, the use of such resources would be on a relatively small scale, would be reduced by measures making the Project more energy-efficient, and would be consistent with growth expectations for LADWP's service area. Furthermore, as with the Project, during construction and operation, other future development projects would be expected to incorporate energy conservation features, comply with applicable regulations including CalGreen and state energy standards under Title 24, and incorporate mitigation measures, as necessary. As such, the Project's contribution to cumulative impacts related to wasteful, inefficient and unnecessary use of electricity would not be cumulatively considerable and thus, would be less than significant.

Natural Gas

Buildout of the Project, related projects, and additional forecasted growth in SoCalGas' service area would cumulatively increase the demand for natural gas supplies and infrastructure capacity. As stated previously, based on the 2016 California Gas Report, the CEC estimates natural gas consumption within SoCalGas' planning area will be approximately 2,526 million cf per day in 2021 (the year of the California Gas Report that is closest to Project's buildout year). The Project would account for approximately 0.0004 percent of the forecasted 2021 consumption in SoCalGas' planning area. SoCalGas' forecasts take into account projected population growth and development based on local and regional plans. Although Project development would result in the use of natural gas resources, which could limit future availability, the use of such resources would be on a relatively small scale, would be reduced by measures rendering the Project more energy-efficient, and would be consistent with regional and local growth expectations for SoCalGas' service area. Furthermore, future development projects would be expected to incorporate energy conservation features, comply with applicable regulations including CalGreen and state energy standards under Title 24, and incorporate mitigation measures, as necessary. As such, the Project's contribution to cumulative impacts related to wasteful, inefficient and unnecessary use of natural gas would not be cumulatively considerable and thus, would be less than significant.

Transportation Energy

Buildout of the Project, related projects, and additional forecasted growth would cumulatively increase the demand for transportation-related fuel in the state and region. As described above, petroleum currently accounts for 90 percent of California's transportation energy sources; however, over the last decade the state has implemented several policies, rules, and regulations to improve vehicle efficiency, increase the development and use of alternative fuels, reduce air pollutants and GHG emissions from the transportation sector, and reduce VMT, which would reduce reliance on petroleum fuels. According to the CEC, gasoline consumption has declined by 6 percent since 2008, and the CEC predicts that the demand for gasoline will continue to decline over the next 10 years and that there will be an increase in the use of alternative fuels, such as natural gas, biofuels, and electricity. As with the Project, other future development projects would be expected to reduce VMT by encouraging the use of alternative modes of transportation and other design features that promote VMT reductions.

Furthermore, as discussed previously, the Project would be consistent with the energy efficiency policies emphasized by the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS. Specifically, the Project would be a mixed-use development consisting and is characterized by a high degree of pedestrian activity. The Project would provide greater proximity to neighborhood services, jobs, and residences and would be well served by existing public transportation, including Metro bus lines and rail line. The Project also would introduce new housing and job opportunities within an HQTA, which is consistent with numerous policies in the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS related to locating new jobs near transit. These features would serve to reduce VMT and associated transportation fuel consumption. Since the Project is consistent with the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS, the Project's contribution to cumulative impacts related to wasteful, inefficient and unnecessary use of transportation fuel would not be cumulatively considerable and thus, would be less than significant.

Significance Threshold No. 2 (Infrastructure Capacity Analysis)

Electricity

Electricity infrastructure is typically expanded in response to increasing demand, and system expansion and improvements by LADWP are ongoing. As described in LADWP's 2017 STLRP, LADWP would continue to expand delivery capacity as needed to meet demand increases within its service area at the lowest cost and risk consistent with LADWP's environmental priorities and reliability standards. The 2017 STLRP takes into account future energy demand, advances in renewable energy resources and technology, energy efficiency, conservation, and forecast changes in regulatory requirements. Development projects within the LADWP service area would also be anticipated to incorporate sitespecific infrastructure improvements, as necessary. Each of the related projects would be reviewed by LADWP to identify necessary power facilities and service connections to meet the needs of their respective projects. Project applicants would be required to provide for the needs of their individual projects, thereby contributing to the electrical infrastructure in the area of the Project Site. **As such, the Project's contribution to cumulative impacts with respect to electricity infrastructure would not be cumulatively considerable and thus, would be less than significant.**

Natural Gas

Natural gas infrastructure is typically expanded in response to increasing demand and system expansion and improvements by SoCalGas occur as needed. It is expected that SoCalGas would continue to expand delivery capacity if necessary, to meet demand increases within its service area. Each of the related projects would be reviewed by SoCalGas to identify necessary facilities and service connections to meet the needs of their respective projects. Project applicants would be required to provide for the needs of their individual projects, thereby contributing to the natural gas infrastructure in the area of the Project Site. **As such, the Project's contribution to cumulative impacts with respect to natural** gas infrastructure would not be cumulatively considerable and thus, would be less than significant.

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

VII. GEOLOGY AND SOILS

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|----|--|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|--------------|
| Wa | ould the project: | | | | |
| a. | Directly or indirectly cause substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving: | | | | |
| | i. Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special Publication 42. | | | | |
| | ii. Strong seismic ground shaking? | | | \boxtimes | |
| | iii. Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction? | | | \boxtimes | |
| | iv. Landslides? | | | | \boxtimes |
| b. | Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? | | | \boxtimes | |
| C. | Be located on a geologic unit that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse? | | | | |
| d. | Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), creating substantial direct or indirect risks to life or property? | | | | |

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|----|---|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|--------------|
| e. | Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste water? | | | | |
| f. | Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic | | \boxtimes | | |

In 2015, the California Supreme Court in the California Building Industry Association v. Bay Area Air Quality Management District (62 Cal.4th 369 [Case No. S213478]) (CBIA v. BAAQMD), held that CEQA generally does not require a lead agency to consider the impacts of the existing environment on the future residents or users of the project. The City's revised thresholds are intended to comply with this decision. Specifically, the decision held that an impact from the existing environment to the project, including future users and/or residents, is not an impact for purposes of CEQA. However, if the project physically exacerbates existing conditions that already exist, that impact must be assessed, including how it might affect future users and/or residents of the project. Thus, in accordance with Appendix H of the State CEQA Guidelines and the CBIA v. BAAQMD decision, the Project would have a significant impact related to geology and soils if it would result in any of the following impacts to future residents or users in the Central City North Community Plan Area.

This analysis is based on the geotechnical report performed for the Project Site attached as **Appendix D**, to this SCEA:

- D-1 Geotechnical Engineering Exploration, Byer Geotechnical, Inc., April 2019.
- **D-2** Soils Report Approval Letter, City of Los Angeles, December 9, 2019

a. Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving:

i. Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology **Special Publication 42.**

No Impact. According to the Geotechnical Exploration prepared for the Project Site, the location of the proposed Project is not located within an Alguist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zone, and no

feature?

known faults exist on the Project Site.¹ The Hollywood Fault, located approximately 6.0 miles from the Project Site, is the closest fault with the potential for surface rupture. Thus, the Project would not expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault on the Project Site.

Additionally, given that no active or potentially active faults with the potential for surface fault rupture are known to pass directly beneath the Project Site, the Project would not exacerbate existing fault rupture conditions. Construction of the Project would be subject to the compliance with the existing state and local regulations, including the 2016 California Building Code and the Los Angeles Building Code (LABC) and with the recommendations contained in the Final Geotechnical Reports prepared for the Project by a licensed engineer and approved by the City of Los Angeles Department of Building and Safety's (LADBS). Further, the LABC, with which the Project would be required to comply, contains construction requirements to ensure that structures are built to a level such that they can withstand acceptable seismic risk. Therefore, the Project would not cause potential substantial adverse effects as a result of a known earthquake fault in or around the Project Site. No impacts with respect to fault rupture would occur.

ii. Strong seismic ground shaking?

Less Than Significant Impact.

Given the Project Site location in a seismically active region, the Site could experience seismic groundshaking in the event of an earthquake. However, as with any new development in the State of California, building design and construction for the Project would be required to conform to the current seismic design provisions of the California Building Code. The 2016 California Building Code incorporates the latest seismic design standards for structural loads and materials as well as provisions from the National Earthquake Hazards Reduction Program to mitigate losses from an earthquake and provide for the latest in earthquake safety. Additionally, construction of the Project would be required to adhere to the seismic safety requirements contained in the LABC, as well as the applicable recommendations provided in the geotechnical investigations required by the City to minimize seismic-related hazards. In addition, the Project would not exacerbate existing environmental conditions with regard to seismic ground shaking. Adherence to current building codes and engineering practices would ensure that the Project would not expose people, property or infrastructure to seismically induced ground shaking hazards that are greater than the average risk associated with locations in the Southern California region, and would minimize the potential to expose people or structures to substantial risk, loss, or injury. Based on the above, development of the Project would not exacerbate seismic conditions on the Project Site. With

¹ Geotechnical Engineering Exploration, Appendix D to this SCEA, April 2019.

compliance with regulatory requirements, Project impacts associated with seismic ground shaking would be less than significant.

iii. Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction?

Less Than Significant Impact.

As discussed in the Geotechnical Engineering Exploration prepared for the Project Site, the State of California Seismic Hazard Zone Map for the Los Angeles Quadrangle (California Department of Mines and Geology ["CDMG"], 1999; CGS, 2016) indicates that the Project Site is not located in an area designated as having a potential for liquefaction. Additionally, there is no known historic occurrence of liquefaction or geological, geotechnical, and groundwater conditions that indicate a potential for permanent ground displacement such that mitigation would be required.² It should be noted that the historic groundwater level for the Site is between 150 and 200 feet. Based on these considerations, the potential for liquefaction and associated ground deformations beneath the Project Site is very low.

Construction of the Project would be subject to the City's current Building Code requirements and recommendations included in the Final Geotechnical Reports. As such and as stated previously, liquefaction potential for the Project Site is considered low. Based on the above, development of the Project would not cause or exacerbate geologic hazards, including seismic related liquefaction. Therefore, Project impacts related to liquefaction would be less than significant.

iv. Landslides?

No Impact. The Project Site and adjacent properties are flat and do not contain any slopes or hillside areas.³ The Project Site is not located within a City of Los Angeles Hillside Grading Area or a Hillside Ordinance Area (City of Los Angeles, 2017). The City of Los Angeles Safety Element indicates the site is not within an area identified as having a potential for slope instability or landslides. Thus, the Project would not result in any impacts related to landslides. Based on the above, development of the Project would not cause or exacerbate geologic hazards, including landslides.

b. Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?

Less Than Significant Impact. The Project Site is currently completely developed with impervious surfaces and do not contain any topsoil. During the Project's construction phase, activities such as excavation below ground surface, grading, and site preparation could leave soils at the Project Site susceptible to soil erosion. The Project Applicant would be required to comply with SCAQMD Rule 403 – Fugitive Dust to minimize wind and water-borne erosion at the site, as well as prepare and implement a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), in

² Geotechnical Engineering Exploration, Appendix D to this SCEA, April 2019.

³ Ibid.

accordance with the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) General Permit for Discharges of Storm Water Associated with Construction Activity and Land Disturbance Activities. The site-specific SWPPP would be prepared prior to earthwork activities and would be implemented during Project construction. The SWPPP would include best management practices (BMPs) and erosion control measures to prevent pollution in storm water discharge. Typical BMPs that could be used during construction include good-housekeeping practices (e.g., street sweeping, proper waste disposal, vehicle and equipment maintenance, concrete washout area, materials storage, minimization of hazardous materials, proper handling and storage of hazardous materials, etc.) and erosion/sediment control measures (e.g., silt fences, fiber rolls, gravel bags, storm water inlet protection, and soil stabilization measures, etc.). The SWPPP would be subject to review and approval by the City for compliance with the City's Development Best Management Practices Handbook, Part A, Construction Activities.

Additionally, all Project construction activities would comply with the City's grading permit regulations, which require the implementation of grading and dust control measures, including a wet weather erosion control plan if construction occurs during rainy season, as well as inspections to ensure that sedimentation and erosion is minimized. Through compliance with these existing regulations, the Project would not result in any significant impacts related to soil erosion during the construction phase. Further, during the Project's operational phase, most of the Project Site would be developed with impervious surfaces, and all stormwater flows would be directed to storm drainage features and would not come into contact with bare soil surfaces. Therefore, with compliance with applicable regulatory requirements, development of the Project would not cause or exacerbate soil erosion or loss of topsoil and impacts regarding soil erosion or the loss of topsoil would be less than significant.

c. Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse?

Less Than Significant Impact. As discussed previously, liquefaction potential at the Project Site is considered low. Subsidence occurs when a large portion of land is displaced vertically, usually due to the withdrawal of groundwater, oil, or natural gas. Soils that are particularly subject to subsidence include those with high silt or clay content. The Project Site is not located within an area of known ground subsidence. No large-scale extraction of groundwater, gas, oil, or geothermal energy is occurring or planned at the Project Site or in the general Site vicinity. Thus, the potential for subsidence due to withdrawal of fluids or gases to adversely impact the Site is considered low.

The Project Applicant would be required by the LADBS, as part of the permitting process, to submit a Final Geotechnical Engineering Exploration that would address the building standards and recommendations that shall be followed in order to construct the proposed structure in accordance with California Building Code and LABC building standards that apply to building within the types of soils found at the Project Site, including areas prone to geologic or soil

instability. Through compliance with the California Building Code and LABC, and with recommendations included in the Final Geotechnical Engineering Exploration, impacts related to geologic and soil instability would be less than significant. Based on the above, development of the Project would not cause or exacerbate geologic hazards by being located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of the Project.

d. Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18 1 B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), creating substantial direct or indirect risks to life or property?

No Impact. Expansive soils are typically associated with fine-grained clayey soils that have the potential to shrink and swell with repeated cycles of wetting and drying. According to the Geotechnical Engineering Exploration prepared for the Site, based on depth of the proposed subterranean level and granular nature of the Site soils, the proposed structure would not be prone to the effects of expansive soils.⁴

In addition, the Project would be designed and constructed in conformance with current LABC requirements and the recommendations of the Final Geotechnical Engineering Exploration. Thus, the Project would not be constructed on expansive soil and would not create a substantial risk to individuals and/or property. Based on the above, development of the Project would not cause or exacerbate geologic hazards. Therefore, no impacts related to expansive soils would occur as a result of the Project.

e. Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of wastewater?

No Impact. The Project Site is located within a community served by existing sewage infrastructure. The Project would connect to the City's existing sewer system and would not require the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems. Thus, the Project would not result in any impacts related to soils that are incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of wastewater. Therefore, no impacts related to this issue would occur.

f. Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature?

Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated. Paleontological resources are the fossilized remains of organisms that have lived in a region in the geologic past and whose remains are found in the accompanying geologic strata. This type of fossil record represents the primary source of information on ancient life forms, since the majority of species that have existed on earth from this era are extinct. Section 5097.5 of the California Public Resources Code specifies that any unauthorized removal of paleontological remains is a misdemeanor. Furthermore,

⁴ Geotechnical Engineering Exploration, April 2019. Refer to Appendix D.

California Penal Code Section 622.5 includes penalties for damage or removal of paleontological resources.

Although the Project Site has been subject to grading and development in the past, the Project would require excavations below the ground surface. As such, there is a possibility for unknown paleontological resources to be encountered within the underlying alluvium during grading and excavation activities associated with development of the Project. Nonetheless, the Project Applicant would be required to implement Mitigation Measure GEO-MM-1, below, which would ensure that Project impacts related to unknown paleontological resources would be less than significant.

GEO-MM-1: Prior to Project construction, the prime contractor and any subcontractor(s) shall be advised of the legal and/or regulatory implications of knowingly destroying paleontological or unique geologic resources or sites from the Project Sites. In addition, in the event that paleontological resources or sites, or unique geologic features are exposed during Project construction, work within 50 feet of the find shall stop until a qualified paleontologist can identify and evaluate the significance of the discovery and develop recommendations for treatment. Construction activities could continue in other areas of the Project Site. If the resource is found to be significant, recommendations would include a preparation of a Treatment Plan, which would require recordation, collection, and analysis of the discovery; preparation of a technical report; and curation of the collection and supporting documentation in an appropriate depository. Any paleontological resources or sites, or unique geologic features shall be treated in accordance with state law.

Cumulative Impacts

Geotechnical impacts related to future development in the City involve hazards related to sitespecific soil conditions, erosion, and ground-shaking during earthquakes. The impacts on each site are specific to that site and its users and would not be in common or contribute to (or shared with, in an additive sense) the impacts on other sites. In addition, development on each site is subject to uniform site development and California Building Code and LABC construction standards that are designed to protect public safety. Therefore, Project cumulative geotechnical impacts related would be less than significant.

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

VIII. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

| | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|---|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-----------|
| Would the project: | | | | |
| a. Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment? | | | \boxtimes | |
| b. Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases? | | | \boxtimes | |

a. Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment?

b. Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases?

Less Than Significant Impact.

Introduction

This section examines the direct and indirect impacts of the Project related to greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions and global climate change by disclosing GHG emissions generation that address CEQA Guidelines checklist question VIII.a and by addressing the project's consistency with applicable GHG emission reduction plans, policies, and regulations that address CEQA Guidelines checklist question VIII.b. The information and analysis in this section are primarily based on the following technical document (refer to Appendix A):

A Air Quality and Greenhouse Gases Modeling Results, 1024 Mateo Street Project, DKA Planning, March 2019.

Project Impacts

Thresholds of Significance

State CEQA Guidelines Appendix G

In accordance with Appendix G of the State CEQA Guidelines (Appendix G), a project would have a significant impact related to GHG emissions if the project would do the following:

- a) Generate GHG emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment;
- b) Conflict with any applicable plan, policy or regulation of an agency adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of GHG emissions.

Analysis of Project Impacts

Project Design Features

The following project design features are applicable to the Project with regard to GHG emissions:

- **GHG-PDF-1:** The Project shall prohibit the use of natural gas-fueled fireplaces in the proposed live/work units.
- **GHG-PDF-2:** The Project shall provide filtered outside air supply sufficient to meet American Society of Heating, Refrigerating, and Air Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) 62.1 standards.
- **GHG-PDF-3:** Participation in fundamental refrigerant management to preclude the use of chlorofluorocarbons (CFCs) in heating, cooling, and ventilation (HVAC) systems.
- **GHG-PDF-4:** Use of adhesives, sealants, paints, finishes, and other materials that emit low quantities of volatile organic compounds (VOCs) and/or other air quality pollutants.
- **GHG-PDF-5:** Installation of a Low Impact Development (LID) compliant on-site stormwater treatment system, capable of treating the volume of stormwater runoff from a local 85th percentile storm event.
- **GHG-PDF-6:** Installation of pre-treatment stormwater infrastructure for the stormwater runoff tributary to the on-site stormwater treatment system.
- **GHG-PDF-7:** During construction of the Project, best management practices (BMPs) would be implemented to control stormwater runoff and minimize pollutant loading and erosion effects.
- **GHG-PDF-8:** During operation, BMPs would be implemented to minimize pollutant loading in stormwater runoff.

- **GHG-PDF-9:** Contractors would reference Partnership for Advancing Technology in Housing (PATH) and other current references for state-of-the-art construction methods, materials, and mechanical equipment and utilize same methods where applicable.
- **GHG-PDF-10:** Recycling and reuse of building and construction materials to the maximum extent feasible, including the on-site recycling and reuse of concrete removed during demolition and salvaging of existing appliances and fixtures.
- **GHG-PDF-11:** Use of sub-base in parking lots, fly ash-based concrete and recycled content in joists and joist girders when feasible.
- **GHG-PDF-12:** 15 percent of the roof area shall be set aside for future solar panels
- GHG-PDF-13: Waste diversion accounting shall be utilized.
- **GHG-PDF-14:** Installation of a "cool roof" that reflects the sun's heat and reduces urban heat island effect.
- **GHG-PDF-15:** At least 50 percent of construction and demolition debris from Project construction would be diverted from landfills.
- **GHG-PDF-16:** Provide on-site recycling containers to promote the recycling of paper, metal, glass, and other recyclable materials and adequate storage areas for such containers.
- **GHG-PDF-17:** Use of locally (within 500 miles) manufactured construction materials and of building materials with recycled content, where possible.
- **GHG-PDF-18:** Provision of EV charging stations in the parking structure in compliance with Ordinance No. 186,485
- **GHG-PDF-19:** Provision of parking spaces that are capable of supporting future electric vehicle charging equipment in compliance with Ordinance No. 186,485.
- **GHG-PDF-20:** Installation of Energy Star-labeled products and appliances, where appropriate.
- **GHG-PDF-21:** Meeting or exceeding Title 24, Part 6, California Energy Code baseline standard requirements for energy efficiency, based on the 2016 Energy Efficiency Standards requirements. Examples of design methods and technologies that could be implemented may include but would not be limited to high-performance glazing on windows, appropriately-oriented shading devices, high-efficiency boilers (if single metered); instantaneous water heaters (if individual meters), and enhanced insulation to minimize thermal gain.
- **GHG-PDF-22:** Application of energy-saving lighting technologies and components to reduce the Project's electrical usage profile. Examples of these components include occupancy-

sensing controls (where applicable), use of light-emitting diode (LED) lighting or other energy-efficient lighting technologies where appropriate, and exterior lighting controlled by photo sensor and/or timeclocks to ensure safety and visibility while preventing unnecessary energy usage.

GHG-PDF-23: Commissioning of building energy systems to verify that the Project's building energy systems are installed, calibrated, and performing to the Owner's Project requirements.

GHG-PDF-24: Water conservation measures shall include:

- High-efficiency toilets (with flush volume of 1.06 gallons of water per flush or less) throughout, including ultra-low-flow urinals in all nonresidential restrooms, as appropriate.
- Residential lavatory faucets with a maximum flow rate of 1.2 gallons per minute and kitchen faucets with a maximum flow rate of 1.5 gallons per minute.
- High-efficiency washers, whether within individual units (with water factor of 6.0 or less) and/or in common laundry rooms (commercial washers with water factor of 7.5 or less). Equipment is required to be Energy Star-certified.
- High-efficiency dishwasher within individual units, using 3.5 gallons per cycle or less. Equipment is required to be Energy Star-certified.
- No-flush or waterless urinals in all nonresidential restrooms as appropriate.
- Nonresidential lavatory faucets with a maximum flow rate of 0.4 gallon per minute and of a self-closing design (i.e., that would automatically turn off when not in use.
- Nonresidential kitchen faucets (except restaurant kitchens) with a maximum flow rate of 1.5 gallons per minute. Restaurant kitchen faucets shall have pre-rinse self-closing spray heads with a maximum flow rate of 1.6 gallons per minute.
- Installation of tankless and on-demand water heaters in commercial kitchens and restrooms, where appropriate.
- Water-saving pool filter.
- Pool/spa recirculating filtration equipment.
- Pool splash troughs around the perimeter that drain back into the pool.
- Leak detection system for swimming pools and Jacuzzi.
- Minimum irrigation system distribution uniformity of 75 percent.

- Use of proper hydro-zoning, turf minimization, zoned irrigation and use of native/drought-tolerant plant materials.
- Use of landscape contouring to minimize precipitation runoff.

In addition, the Project would comply with all applicable state and local regulatory requirements, including the provisions set forth in the City's Green Building Ordinance. Also, a Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Program would be developed and would include strategies to promote non-auto travel and reduce the use of single-occupant vehicle trips. Furthermore, the Project would also include sustainability features related to water conservation and waste reduction.

Project Impacts

Would the Project:

Threshold a): Generate GHG emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment?

Threshold (b): Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of GHG?

Consistency with Applicable Plans and Policies

The discussion below describes the extent the Project complies with or exceeds the performance-based standards included in the regulations outlined in the *Climate Change Scoping Plan*, the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS, the LA Green Plan, and the Sustainable City pLAn. As shown herein, the Project would be consistent with the applicable GHG reduction plans and policies.

Statewide: Climate Change Scoping Plan

Provided in **Table 6.VIII-1** is an evaluation of the Project's consistency with applicable reduction actions/strategies by emissions source category outlined in the *2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan Update*.¹ As discussed therein, the Project would be consistent with the GHG reduction-related actions and strategies of the 2017 *Climate Change Scoping Plan Update*.

The 2017 Scoping Plan Update identifies additional GHG reduction measures necessary to achieve the 2030 target. These measures build upon those identified in the 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan Update. As discussed therein, the Project would be consistent with the GHG reduction-related actions and strategies of the 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan Update.

Although a number of these measures are currently established as policies and measures, some measures have not yet been formally proposed or adopted. It is expected that these measures or similar

¹ An evaluation of stationary sources is not necessary as the stationary sources emissions will be created by emergency generators that would only be used in an emergency.

actions to reduce GHG emissions will be adopted as required to achieve statewide GHG emissions targets. Based on the analysis in Table 6.VIII-1, the Project would be consistent with the State's Climate Change Scoping Plan and, thus, impacts related to consistency with the Scoping Plan would be less than significant impact.

 Table 6.VIII-1

 Consistency Analysis—Climate Change Scoping Plan and First Update

| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Party(ies) | Project Consistency Analysis |
|---|--|--|
| Area | | |
| SCAQMD Rule 445 (Wood Burning Devices): Requires use of natural gas to power all cooking stoves and fireplaces. | SCAQMD | Consistent. Project Design Feature GHG-PDF-1 would prohibit hearths (woodstove and fireplaces) installed in the live/work units therefore use of natural gas is not required in fireplaces. All cooking stoves would either be electric or natural gas, not wood-burning. |
| Energy | | |
| California Renewables Portfolio Standard (RPS) program: Senate Bill 2X modified California's RPS program to require that both public and investor-owned utilities in California receive at least 33 percent of their electricity from renewable sources by the year 2020. California Senate Bill 2X also requires regulated sellers of electricity to meet an interim milestone of procuring25 percent of their energy supply from certified renewable resources by 2016. | LADWP | Consistent. As LADWP would provide electricity service to the Project Site, the Project would use electricity that is produced consistent with this performance-based standard. LADWP's commitment to achieve 35 percent renewables by 2020 would exceed the requirement under the RPS program of 33 percent renewables by 2020. In 2017, LADWP indicated that 29 percent of its electricity came from renewable resources in Year 2016. ^a Electricity-related GHG emissions assume that LADWP will receive at least 33 percent of their electricity from renewable sources by the 2020. |
| Senate Bill 350 (SB 350): The Clean Energy and Pollution Reduction Act of 2015 increases the standards of the California RPS program by requiring that the amount of electricity generated and sold to retail customers per year from eligible renewable energy resources be increased to 50 percent by 2030 and also requires the State Energy Resources Conservation and Development Commission to double the energy efficiency savings in electricity and natural | State Energy Resources Conservation and Development Commission and LADWP | Consistent. LADWP would be required to generate electricity that would increase renewable energy resources to 50 percent by 2030. As LADWP would provide electricity service to the Project Site, the Project by 2030 would use electricity consistent with the requirements of SB 350. Project buildout would occur in 2023 and, therefore, the estimated GHG emissions from electricity usage provided herein conservatively do not include implementation of SB 350 with a compliance date of 2030. Electricity GHG emissions would be further reduced by 17 percent by Year 2030, as the |

| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Party(ies) | Project Consistency Analysis |
|---|---------------------------|---|
| gas final end uses of retail customers through energy efficiency and conservation. ^b | Party(les) | electricity provided to the Project Site would meet the requirements under SB 350. As required under SB 350, doubling of the energy efficiency savings from final end uses of retail customers by 2030 would primarily rely on the existing suite of building energy efficiency standards under the California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 24, Part 6 (consistency with this regulation is discussed below) and utility-sponsored programs such as rebates for high-efficiency appliances, heating ventilation and air-conditioning (HVAC) systems and insulation. The Project would support this action/strategy because the Project would be required to comply with efficiency requirements of the Los Angeles Green Code (consistency with this regulation is discussed below). |
| Senate Bill 1368 (SB 1368): GHG Emissions Standard for Baseload Generation prohibits any retail seller of electricity in California from entering into a long-term financial commitment for baseload generation if the GHG emissions are higher than those from a combined-cycle natural gas power plant. | State, CEC, and LADWP | Consistent. As LADWP would provide electricity service to the Project Site, the Project would use electricity that meets the requirements under SB 1368. LADWP meets the requirements of SB 1368. |
| California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 20: The 2012 Appliance Efficiency Regulations, adopted by the California Energy Commission (CEC), include | State and CEC | Consistent. The Appliance Efficiency Regulations apply to new appliances and lighting that are sold or offered for sale in California. |

 Table 6.VIII-1

 Consistency Analysis—Climate Change Scoping Plan and First Update

| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Party(ies) | Project Consistency Analysis |
|---|---------------------------|--|
| standards for new appliances (e.g., refrigerators) and lighting, if they are sold or offered for sale in California. | | The Project would include new appliances and lighting that comply with this energy efficiency standard. |
| CCR, Title 24, Building Standards Code: The 2013 Building Energy Efficiency Standards contained in Title 24, Part 6 (also known as the California Energy Code), requires the design of building shells and building components to conserve energy. The standards are updated periodically to allow for consideration and possible incorporation of new energy efficiency technologies and methods. The California Green Building Standards Code (Part 11, Title 24) established mandatory and voluntary standards on planning and design for sustainable site development, energy efficiency (extensive update of the California Energy Code), water conservation, material conservation, and internal air contaminants. | State and CEC | Consistent. Consistent with regulatory requirements, the Project must comply with applicable provisions of the 2016 Los Angeles Green Code that in turn requires compliance with mandatory standards included in the California Green Building Standards. The 2016 Title 24 standards are 28 percent more efficient (for electricity) than residential construction built to the 2013 Title 24 standards and 5 percent more efficient (for electricity) for non-residential construction built to 2013 Title 24 standards. ^o The 2016 Title 24 standards are more efficient than the 2020 Projected Emissions under the BAU in CARB's <i>Climate Action Scoping Plan</i> . The standards promote the use of better windows, insulation, lighting, ventilation systems and other features that reduce energy consumption in homes and businesses. Thus, the Project would incorporate energy efficiency standards that are substantially more effective than the measures identified in the <i>Climate Action Scoping Plan</i> to reduce GHG emissions. |
| Energy Independence and Security Act of 2007 (EISA): EISA requires manufacturing for sale within the United States to phase out incandescent light bulbs between 2012 and 2014 resulting in approximately 25 percent greater efficiency for light bulbs and requires approximately 200 percent greater efficiency for light bulbs, or similar energy savings, by 2020. | Federal/ Manufacturers | Consistent. EISA would serve to reduce the use of incandescent light bulbs for the Project and thus, reduce energy usage associated with lighting. Electricity GHG emissions estimates account for a 25-percent reduction in lighting electricity consumption with implementation of this regulation. |

 Table 6.VIII-1

 Consistency Analysis—Climate Change Scoping Plan and First Update
| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Partv(ies) | Project Consistency Analysis |
|--|---------------------------|---|
| | | |
| Assembly Bill 1109 (AB 1109): The Lighting Efficiency and Toxic Reduction Act prohibits a person from manufacturing for sale in the state specified general purpose lights that contain levels of hazardous substances, as it requires the establishment of minimum energy efficiency standards for all general purpose lights. The standards are structured to reduce average statewide electrical energy consumption by not less than 50 percent from the 2007 levels for indoor residential lighting and not less than 25 percent from the 2007 levels for indoor lighting by 2018. ^d | State/ Manufacturers | Consistent. As with the EISA, discussed above, the Project would meet the requirements under AB 1109, because the Project incorporates energy efficient lighting and electricity consumption that comply with local and state green building programs. |

 Table 6.VIII-1

 Consistency Analysis—Climate Change Scoping Plan and First Update

 Table 6.VIII-1

 Consistency Analysis—Climate Change Scoping Plan and First Update

| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Party(ies) | Project Consistency Analysis |
|---|---------------------------|--|
| Cap-and-Trade Program: The program establishes an overall limit on GHG emissions from capped sectors (e.g., electricity generation, petroleum refining, and cement production). Facilities subject to the cap are able to trade permits to emit GHG emissions within the overall limit. | State/ Manufacturers | Consistent. As required by AB 32 and the Climate Change Scoping Plan, the Cap-and-Trade Program covers the GHG emissions associated with electricity consumed in California, whether generated in-state or imported. Therefore, GHG emissions associated with the Project's electricity usage would be covered by the Cap-and-Trade Program (as the Project's provider, LADWP, would be a covered entity) and would be consistent with AB 32 and the Climate Change Scoping Plan. |
| Mobile | | |
| Assembly Bill 1493 (AB 1493) "Pavley Standards": AB 1493 requires the development and adoption of regulations to achieve "the maximum feasible reduction of greenhouse gases" emitted by noncommercial passenger vehicles, light-duty trucks, and other vehicles used primarily for personal transportation in the State. In compliance with AB 1493, CARB adopted regulations to reduce GHG emissions from non- commercial passenger vehicles and light duty trucks of model year 2009 through 2016. Model years 2017 through 2025 are addressed by California's Advanced Clean Cars program (discussed below). | State, CARB | Consistent. The Pavley regulations required a reduction in GHG emissions from California passenger vehicles by about 22 percent in 2012 and by about 30 percent in 2016, all while improving fuel efficiency. GHG emissions related to vehicular trip generation from the Project would benefit from reductions imposed by this regulation because vehicle trips associated with the Project would be affected by AB 1493. Mobile source emissions generated by the Project would be reduced with implementation of AB 1493 consistent with reduction of GHG emissions under AB 32. Mobile source GHG emissions estimates were calculated using CalEEMod that includes implementation of AB 1493 into mobile source emission factors. |
| Executive Order S-01-07: The Low Carbon Fuel Standard requires a 10-percent or greater reduction by 2020 in the average fuel carbon intensity for transportation fuels in California regulated by CARB. CARB identified the LCFS as a Discrete Early Action | State, CARB | Consistent. GHG emissions related to vehicular trip generation from the Project would benefit from the reductions imposed by this regulation, because fuel used by Project-related vehicles would be compliant with LCFS. Mobile source GHG emissions estimates for |

 Table 6.VIII-1

 Consistency Analysis—Climate Change Scoping Plan and First Update

| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Party(ies) | Project Consistency Analysis |
|---|-------------------------------|--|
| item under AB 32, and the final resolution (09-31) was issued on April 23, 2009 (CARB 2009). ^{e,f} | | the Project were calculated using CalEEMod that includes implementation of the LCFS into mobile source emission factors. |
| Advanced Clean Cars Program: In 2012, CARB approved the Advanced Clean Cars Program, a new emissions-control program for model year 2017 through 2025. The program combines the control of smog, soot, and GHG emissions with requirements for greater numbers of zero-emission vehicles. By 2025, when the rules will be fully implemented, the new automobiles will emit 34 percent fewer global warming gases and 75 percent fewer smog-forming emissions. | State, CARB | Consistent. Standards under the Advanced Clean Cars Program would apply to all passenger and light duty trucks used by customers, employees, and deliveries to/from the Project. GHG emissions related to vehicular trip generation from the Project would benefit from the reductions imposed by this regulation, and mobile source emissions generated by the Project would be reduced with implementation of standards under the Advanced Clean Cars Program consistent with reduction of GHG emissions under AB 32. Mobile source GHG emissions estimates conservatively do not include this additional 34-percent reduction in mobile source emissions as the CalEEMod model does not yet account for this regulation. The Project would further advance this regulation since the Project would provide parking spaces for electrical charging. |
| Senate Bill (SB) 375: SB 375 requires integration of planning processes for transportation, land-use and housing. Under SB 375, each Metropolitan Planning Organization would be required to adopt a Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS) to encourage compact development that reduces passenger vehicle miles traveled and trips so that the region will meet a target, created by CARB, for reducing GHG emissions. | State, CARB Regional, SCAG | Consistent. SB 375 requires SCAG to direct the development of the SCS for the region, which is discussed further below. The Project represents an infill development within an existing urbanized area that would concentrate new live/work, office, retail, and restaurant uses within an HQTA. Therefore, the Project would be consistent with SCAG's 2016–2040 RTP/SCS. Furthermore, the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS would result in an estimated 18-percent decrease in per capita GHG emissions from passenger vehicles by 2035 and 21-percent decrease in per capita GHG emissions from passenger vehicles by 2040. As Project-related transportation emissions are reduced by approximately 30 percent, the Project would be consistent with SB 375 and the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS. |

 Table 6.VIII-1

 Consistency Analysis—Climate Change Scoping Plan and First Update

| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Party(ies) | Project Consistency Analysis | |
|--|---------------------------|--|--|
| Solid Waste | | | |
| California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 and Assembly Bill 341: The California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 requires each jurisdiction's source reduction and recycling element to include an implementation schedule that shows: (1) diversion of 25 percent of all solid waste by January 1, 1995, through source reduction, recycling, and composting activities; and (2) diversion of 50 percent of all solid waste on and after January 1, 2000, through source reduction, recycling, and composting facilities. ⁹ AB 341 (2011) amended the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 to include a provision declaring that it is the policy goal of the state that not less than 75 percent of solid waste generated be source reduced, recycled, or composted by the year 2020, and annually thereafter. ^h | State | Consistent. GHG emissions related to solid waste generation from the Project would benefit from the reductions imposed by this regulation as it would decrease the overall amount of solid waste disposed of at landfills. The decrease in solid waste would then in return decrease the amount of methane released from the decomposing solid waste. Project-related GHG emissions from solid waste generation include a 50-percent reduction in solid waste generation source emissions per goals of the City. The Project Applicant would contract for waste disposal services with a company that recycles solid waste in compliance with AB 341. In addition, the Project would provide recycling bins at appropriate locations to promote recycling of paper, metal, glass and, other recyclables, consistent with the City's Curbside Recycling Program. | |
| Water (Three percent of project inventory) | | | |
| CCR, Title 24, Building Standards Code : The California Green Building Standards Code (Part 11, Title 24) includes water efficiency requirements for new residential and non-residential uses, in which buildings | State | Consistent. Water usage for the Project will be at rates consistent with the requirements under City Ordinance No. 184,248, 2013 California Plumbing Code, 2016 California Green Building Code (CALGreen), 2014 Los Angeles Plumbing Code, and 2016 Los Angeles Green Building Code. These rates reflect an approximately 20 percent reduction in water usage as compared to the base demand of the prior year. Project-related GHG emissions from | |

 Table 6.VIII-1

 Consistency Analysis—Climate Change Scoping Plan and First Update

| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Party(ies) | Project Consistency Analysis |
|--|---------------------------|---|
| shall demonstrate a 20-percent overall water use reduction. | | water related sources will be reduced based on this compliance with water efficiency requirements. Examples of water conservation measures could include: residential bathroom faucets with a maximum flow rate of 1.0 gallons per minute, kitchen faucets with a maximum flow rate of 1.5 gallons per minute, Energy Star-certified and high efficiency clothes washers and dishwashers, non- residential kitchen faucets (except restaurant kitchens) with a maximum flow rate of 1.5 gallons per minute, and installation of tankless and on- demand water heaters in commercial kitchens and restrooms, when appropriate, among others. The Project would have an overall water use reduction of 20 percent and would meet the requirements of the California Green Building Standards. |
| Senate Bill X7-7: The Water Conservation Act of 2009 sets an overall goal of reducing per-capita urban water use by 20 percent by December 31, 2020. The state is required to make incremental progress toward this goal by reducing per-capita water use by at least 10 percent by December 31, 2015. This in an implementing measure of the Water Sector of the AB 32 Scoping Plan. Reduction in water consumption directly reduces the energy necessary and the associated emissions to convene, treat, and distribute the water; it also reduces emissions from wastewater treatment. | State | Consistent. As discussed above under Title 24, the Project would meet this performance-based standard. Water conservation measures consistent with Green Building Code requirements could include: residential bathroom faucets with a maximum flow rate of 1.2 gallons per minute, kitchen faucets with a maximum flow rate of 1.5 gallons per minute, Energy Star-certified and high-efficiency clothes washers and dishwashers, nonresidential kitchen faucets (except restaurant kitchens) with a maximum flow rate of 1.5 gallons per minute, and installation of tankless and on-demand water heaters in commercial kitchens and restrooms, when appropriate, among others. The Project thereby complies with measures consistent with the GHG emissions reductions sought by SB X7-7 related to water conservation and related GHG emissions. |

| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Party(ies) | Project Consistency Analysis |
|--|---------------------------|--|
| CARB In-Use Off-Road Regulation: CARB's in-use off- road diesel vehicle regulation ("Off-Road Diesel Fleet Regulation") requires the owners of off-road diesel equipment fleets to meet fleet average emissions standards pursuant to an established compliance schedule. | CARB | Consistent. The Project's construction contractors would be required to comply with this regulation. |
| CARB In-Use On-Road Regulation: CARB's in-use on- road heavy-duty vehicle regulation ("Truck and Bus Regulation") applies to nearly all privately and federally owned diesel fueled trucks and buses and to privately and publicly owned school buses with a gross vehicle weight rating greater than 14,000 pounds. | CARB | Consistent. The Project would use construction contractors that Consistent. The Project's construction contractors would be required to comply with this regulation. |
| ^a California Energy Commission, Utility Annual Power Content Labels for 2016, www.energy.ca.gov/pcl/labels/. ^b Senate Bill 350 (2015–2016 Reg, Session) Stats 2015, Ch. 547. ^c CEC, Adoption Hearing, 2016 Building Energy Efficiency Standards. ^d 2007b. Assembly Bill 1109 (2007–2008 Reg. Session) Stats. 2007, Ch. 534. ^e CARB, Initial Statement of Reason for Proposed Regulation for The Management of High Global Warming Potential Refrigerant for Stationary Sources, October 23, 2009. ^f Carbon intensity is a measure of the GHG emissions associated with the various production, distribution, and use steps in the "lifecycle" of a transportation fuel. ^g Cal. Pub. Res. Code § 41780(a). ^h Cal. Pub. Res. Code § 41780.01(a). Source: DKA Planning, 2019. | | |

 Table 6.VIII-1

 Consistency Analysis—Climate Change Scoping Plan and First Update

| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Party(ies) | Project Consistency Analysis |
|--|---|---|
| Senate Bill 350 (SB 350): The Clean Energy and Pollution Reduction Act of 2015 increases the standards of the California RPS program by requiring that the amount of electricity generated and sold to retail customers per year from eligible renewable energy resources be increased to 50 percent by 2030.^a Required measures include: Increase RPS to 50 percent of retail sales by 2030. Establish annual targets for statewide energy efficiency savings and demand reduction that will achieve a cumulative doubling of statewide energy efficiency savings in electricity and natural gas end uses by 2030. Reduce GHG emissions in the electricity sector through the implementation of the above measures and other actions as modeled in IRPs to meet GHG emissions reductions planning targets through a combination of measures as described in IRPs. | CPUC, CEC, CARB | Consistent. LADWP is required to generate electricity that would increase renewable energy resources to 33 percent by 2020 and 50 percent by 2030. As LADWP would provide electricity service to the Project Site, by 2030 the Project would use electricity consistent with the requirements of SB 350. It is assumed that LADWP will receive at least 33 percent of electricity from renewable sources by year 2020 and 50 percent by 2030 (with a straight-line interpolation for the Project buildout year of 2026). As required under SB 350, doubling of the energy efficiency savings from final end uses of retail customers by 2030 would primarily rely on the existing suite of building energy efficiency standards under CCR Title 24, Part 6 (consistency with this regulation is discussed below) and utility-sponsored programs such as rebates for high-efficiency appliances, HVAC systems, and insulation. The Project would comply with this this action/strategy by being located within the LADWP service area and would comply with CalGreen and Title 24 energy efficiency standards. |
| Implement Mobile Source Strategy (Cleaner Technology and Fuels) | CARB, CalSTA, SGC, CalTrans CEC, OPR, Local agencies | Consistent. The CARB approved the Advanced Clean Cars Program in 2012 that establishes an emissions control program for model year 2017 through 2025. Standards under the Advanced Clean Cars Program likely will apply to all passenger and light duty trucks used |

Table 6.VIII-2 Consistency Analysis—2017 Scoping Plan Update

| - | Actions and Strategies | Responsible | Project Consistency Analysis |
|---|---|-------------|--|
| • | At least 1.5 million zero emission and plug-in hybrid light-duty electric vehicles by 2025. At least 4.2 million zero emission and plug-in hybrid light-duty electric vehicles by 2030. Further increase GHG stringency on all light-duty vehicles beyond existing Advanced Clean Cars regulations. Medium- and heavy-duty GHG Phase 2 | Party(ies) | by customers, employees, and deliveries to the Project, depending on the outcome of ongoing negotiations between CARB and EPA regarding federal standards. The Program also requires auto manufacturers to produce an increasing number of zero emission vehicles in the 2018 through 2025 model years. Extension of the Advanced Clean Cars Program has not yet been adopted, but it is expected that measures will be introduced to increase GHG emissions reductions stringency on light duty autos and continue |
| • | Innovative Clean Transit: Transition to a suite of to- be- determined innovative clean transit options. Assumed 20 percent of new urban buses purchased beginning in 2018 will be zero emission buses with the penetration of zero-emission technology ramped up to 100 percent of new sales in 2030. Also, new natural gas buses, starting in 2018, and diesel buses, starting in 2020, meet the optional heavy-duty low-NO _x standard. | | adding zero emission and plug in vehicles through 2030. CARB is also developing the Innovative Clean Transit measure to encourage purchase of advanced technology buses such as alternative fueled or battery powered buses. This would allow fleets to phase in cleaner technology in the near future. CARB is also in the process of developing proposals for new approaches and strategies to achieve zero emission trucks under the Advanced Clean Local Trucks (Last Mile Delivery) Program. ^{b,c} |
| • | Last Mile Delivery: New regulation that would result in the use of low NO _x or cleaner engines and the deployment of increasing numbers of zero- emission trucks primarily for class 3-7 last mile delivery trucks in California. This measure assumes ZEVs comprise 2.5 percent of new Class 3–7 truck sales in local fleets starting in 2020, increasing to 10 percent in 2025 and remaining flat through 2030. Further reduce VMT through continued implementation of SB 375 and regional Sustainable Communities Strategies; forthcoming statewide implementation of SB 743; and potential | | GHG emissions generated by Project-related vehicular traffic I would benefit from the reductions imposed by this regulation, and mobile source emissions generated by the Project would be reduced with implementation of standards under the Advanced Clean Cars Program, consistent with reduction of GHG emissions under AB 32. Mobile source GHG emissions estimates conservatively do not include this additional 34-percent reduction in mobile source emissions as the CalEEMod model does not yet account for this regulation. Although the Innovative Clean Transit and Advanced Clean Local Truck Programs have not yet been established, the Project would also benefit from these measures once adopted. |

 Table 6.VIII-2

 Consistency Analysis—2017 Scoping Plan Update

| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Party(ies) | Project Consistency Analysis |
|--|---------------------------|--|
| additional VMT reduction strategies not specified in the Mobile Source Strategy but included in the document "Potential VMT Reduction Strategies for Discussion." | | SB 375 requires SCAG to direct the development of the SCS for the region and is discussed further below. The Project represents an infill development within an existing urbanized area that would concentrate new live/work, office, restaurant, and retail uses within an HQTA. Therefore, the Project would be consistent with SCAG's 2016–2040 RTP/SCS. Furthermore, the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS would result in an estimated 18-percent decrease in per capita GHG emissions from passenger vehicles by 2035 and 21-percent decrease in per capita GHG emissions from passenger vehicles by 2040. Project-related transportation emissions would be reduced by approximately 33 percent and therefore, the Project would be consistent with SB 375 and the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS. |
| Increase Stringency of SB 375 Sustainable Communities Strategy (2035 Targets) | CARB | Consistent Under SB 375, CARB sets regional targets for GHG emission reductions from passenger vehicle use. In 2010, CARB established targets for 2020 and 2035 for each region. As required under SB 375, CARB is required to update regional GHG emissions targets every 8 years and are due to be updated in 2018. As part of the 2018 updates, CARB has proposed a passenger vehicle related GHG emissions reduction of 19 percent for 2035 for the SCAG region that is more stringent than the current reduction target of 13 percent for 2035. The Project would be consistent with SB 375 for developing an infill project within an existing urbanized area. This would concentrate new live/work, office, restaurant, and retail uses within an HQTA. Project-related transportation emissions would be reduced by approximately 30 percent, and therefore, the Project would be consistent with SB 375 and the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS. |

 Table 6.VIII-2

 Consistency Analysis—2017 Scoping Plan Update

| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Party(ies) | Project Consistency Analysis |
|--|---|---|
| By 2019, adjust performance measures used to select and design transportation facilities. Harmonize project performance with emissions reductions and increase competitiveness of transit and active transportation modes (e.g. via guideline documents, funding programs, project selection, etc.). | CalSTA and SGC, OPR, CARB, GoBiz, IBank, DOF, CTC, Caltrans | Not Applicable. The Project would not involve construction of transportation facilities. The Project would benefit from this strategy by encouraging use of mass transit resulting in a reduction of Project-related vehicle trips to and from the Project Site. |
| By 2019, develop pricing policies to support low- GHG transportation (e.g. low-emission vehicle zones for heavy duty, road user, parking pricing, transit discounts). | CalSTA, Caltrans, CTC, OPR/SGC, CARB | Consistent. The Project would support this policy since the Project Applicant would provide infrastructure to support electric vehicle charging stations for the Project, consistent with Project Design Feature GHG-PDF-18 and GHG-PDF-19. |
| Implement California Sustainable Freight Action Plan: Improve freight system efficiency. Deploy over 100,000 freight vehicles and equipment capable of zero emission operation and maximize both zero and near-zero emission freight vehicles and equipment powered by renewable energy by 2030. | CARB | Not Applicable . The Project land uses would not include freight transportation or warehousing. Therefore, the Project would not interfere or impede the implementation of the Sustainable Freight Action Plan. |
| Adopt a Low Carbon Fuel Standard with a Cl reduction of 18 percent. | CARB | Consistent. This regulatory program applies to fuel suppliers, not directly to land use development. However, GHG emissions related to vehicular trip generation associated with the Project would benefit from the reductions achieved by this regulation, because fuel used by Project-related vehicles would be required to comply with LCFS. Mobile source GHG emissions estimates were calculated for the |

 Table 6.VIII-2

 Consistency Analysis—2017 Scoping Plan Update

| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Partv(ies) | Project Consistency Analysis |
|--|---|--|
| | | Project using CalEEMod that includes implementation of the LCFS into mobile source emission factors. The current LCFS, adopted in 2007, requires a reduction of at least 10 percent in the carbon intensity (CI) of California's transportation fuels by 2020. On September 27, 2018, CARB amended the LCFS regulation to target a 20 percent reduction in CI from a 2010 baseline by 2030. |
| Implement the Short-Lived Climate Pollutant Strategy by 2030: 40 percent reduction in methane and hydrofluorocarbon emissions below 2013 levels. 50 percent reduction in black carbon emissions below 2013 levels. | CARB, CalRecycle, CDFA, SWRCB, Local air districts | Consistent. Senate Bill 605 (SB 605) was adopted in 2014 and directs CARB to develop a comprehensive Short-Lived Climate Pollutant (SLCP) strategy. Senate Bill 1383 was adopted in 2016 to require CARB to set statewide 2030 emission reduction targets of 40 percent for methane and hydrofluorocarbons and 50 percent black carbon emissions below 2013 levels. ^e The Project would comply with the CARB SLCP Reduction Strategy, which limits the use of hydrofluorocarbons for refrigeration uses. |
| By 2019, develop regulations and programs to support organic waste landfill reduction goals in the SLCP and SB 1383. | CARB, CalRecycle, CDFA, SWRCB, Local air districts | Not Applicable. This strategy calls on regulators to reduce GHG emissions from landfills and is not applicable to a development project. Under SB 1383, the California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) is responsible for achieving a 50 percent reduction in the level of statewide disposal of organic waste from the 2014 level by 2020 and 75-percent reduction by 2025. Adoption of the regulations to achieve SB 1383 targets is expected in early 2019. ^f |
| Implement the post-2020 Cap-and-Trade Program with declining annual caps. | CARB | Not Applicable. This applies to State regulators and is not applicable to a development project. The current Cap-and-Trade program would |

 Table 6.VIII-2

 Consistency Analysis—2017 Scoping Plan Update

| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Party(ies) | Project Consistency Analysis |
|--|--|---|
| | | end on December 31, 2020. Assembly Bill 398 (AB 398) was enacted in 2017 to extend and clarify the role of the state's Cap-and-Trade Program from January 1, 2021, through December 31, 2030. As part of AB 398, refinements were made to the Cap-and-Trade program to establish updated protocols and allocation of proceeds to reduce GHG emissions. |
| By 2018, develop Integrated Natural and Working Lands Implementation Plan to secure California's land base as a net carbon sink: Protect land from conversion through conservation easements and other incentives. Increase the long-term resilience of carbon storage in the land base and enhance sequestration capacity. Utilize wood and agricultural products to increase the amount of carbon stored in the natural and built environments. Establish scenario projections to serve as the foundation for the Implementation Plan. | CNRA and departments within, CDFA, CaIEPA, CARB | Not Applicable. This applies to State regulators and is not applicable to a development project. This regulatory program applies to Natural and Working Lands, not directly related to development of the Project. However, the Project would not interfere or impede implementation of the Integrated Natural and Working Lands Implementation Plan. |
| Establish a carbon accounting framework for natural and working lands as described in SB 859 by 2018 | CARB | Not Applicable. This applies to State regulators and is not applicable to a development project. This regulatory program applies to Natural and Working Lands, not directly related to development of the Project. However, the Project would not interfere or impede implementation of the Integrated Natural and Working Lands Implementation Plan. |

 Table 6.VIII-2

 Consistency Analysis—2017 Scoping Plan Update

| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Party(ies) | Project Consistency Analysis |
|--|---|--|
| Implement Forest Carbon Plan | CNRA, CAL FIRE, CalEPA and departments within | Not Applicable. This applies to State regulators and is not applicable to a development project. This regulatory program applies to state and federal forest land, not directly related to development of the Project. However, the Project would not interfere or impede implementation of the Forest Carbon Plan. |
| Identify and expand funding and financing mechanisms to support GHG reductions across all sectors. | State AgenciesNot Applicable. This applies to State regulators and is not applies all& Localto a development project. Funding and financing mechanisms are responsibility of the state and local agencies. The Project would conflict with funding and financing mechanisms to support GHG reductions. | |
| ^a Senate Bill 350 (2015–2016 Regular Session) Stats 2015, Ch. 547. ^b CARB, Advance Clean Cars, Midterm Review, www.arb.ca.gov/msprog/acc/acc-mtr.htm. ^c CARB, Advanced Clean Local Trucks (Last mile delivery and local trucks), www.arb.ca.gov/msprog/actruck/actruck.htm. ^d CARB, LCFS Rulemaking Documents, www.arb.ca.gov/fuels/lcfs/rulemakingdocs.htm. ^e CARB, Reducing Short-Lived Climate Pollutants in California, www.arb.ca.gov/cc/shortlived/shortlived.htm. ^f CARB, Short-Lived Climate Pollutants (SLCP): Organic Waste Methane Emissions Reductions, www.calrecycle.ca.gov/climate/slcp/ | | |

Table 6.VIII-2 Consistency Analysis—2017 Scoping Plan Update

limate Pollutants (SLCP): Organic Waste Methane Emissions Reductions, www.calrecycle.ca.gov/climate/slcp/. CARD, SII

Source: California Air Resources Board (CARB), California's 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan, November 2017.

Regional: 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

The Project would result in a VMT reduction of approximately 70 percent as compared to the Project without implementation of VMT reducing measures. As estimated by CalEEMod and as shown in Appendix A to this SCEA, the Project would result in a reduction in GHG emissions from mobile sources as compared to the Project without implementation of VMT reducing measures. This would be consistent with the reduction in transportation emission per capita provided in the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS. This reduction is attributable to the Project characteristics as being an infill project near transit that supports multi-modal transportation options.

The Project would also be consistent with the following key GHG emissions reduction strategies in SCAG's 2016–2040 RTP/SCS that are based on changing the region's land use and travel patterns:

- Compact growth in areas accessible to transit;
- More multi-family housing;
- Jobs and housing closer to transit;
- New housing and job growth focused in HQTAs; and
- Biking and walking infrastructure to improve active transportation options and transit access.

The Project represents an infill development within Downtown Los Angeles that would concentrate new live/work, office, retail, and restaurant uses within an HQTA, which is defined by the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS as generally walkable transit villages or corridors that are within 0.5 miles of a well-serviced transit stop or a transit corridor with 15-minute or less service frequency during peak commute hours. The Project Site is served by Metro bus routes (e.g., 18, 52, 60, 62, 66), Metro Rapid 720 and 760, and Metro Rail Gold Line service at the Little Tokyo/Arts District station 1.5 miles to the north.

The Project would also provide bicycle storage areas for Project residents, employees, and guests. The Project would provide residents, employees, and guests with convenient access to public transit and opportunities for walking and biking that would facilitate a reduction in VMT and related vehicular GHG emissions. These and other measures would further promote a reduction in VMT and subsequent reduction in GHG emissions and would be consistent with the goals of SCAG's 2016–2040 RTP/SCS.

At the regional level, the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS is an applicable plan adopted for the purpose of reducing GHG emissions. In order to assess the Project's potential to conflict with the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS, this section also assesses the Project's land use assumptions for consistency with those utilized by SCAG in its SCS. Generally, projects are considered consistent with the

provisions and general policies of applicable City and regional land use plans and regulations, such as SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS, if they are compatible with the general intent of the plans and would not preclude the attainment of their primary goals. As demonstrated earlier, the Project would be consistent with the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS.

In summary, the Project is the type of land use development that is encouraged by the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS to reduce VMT and expand multi-modal transportation use in order for the region to achieve the GHG emissions reductions from the land use and transportation sectors required by SB 375, which in turn, advances the state's long-term climate policies.² By furthering implementation of SB 375, the Project supports regional land use and transportation GHG emissions reductions consistent with state regulatory requirements, as shown in Table 6.VIII-3, below. Therefore, the Project would be consistent with the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS and the GHG reduction-related actions and strategies contained therein, and impacts would be less than significant impact.

| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Party(ies) | Consistency Analysis ^a |
|--|------------------------|---|
| Land Use Strategies | | |
| Reflect the changing population and demands, including combating gentrification and displacement, by increasing housing supply at a variety of affordability levels. | Local jurisdictions | Consistent. The Project would include 106 live/work units that would add to the supply and diversity of housing in metropolitan Los Angeles County by providing a unique class of flexible residential uses. Approximately 8.2 percent of the units would be set aside as Very Low Income units. |
| Focus new growth around transit. | Local Jurisdictions | Consistent. The Project is an infill development that would be consistent with the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS focus on growing near transit facilities. The Project Site is located in Downtown Los Angeles and is served by Metro bus routes (e.g., 18, 52, 60, 62, 66), Metro Rapid 720 and 760, and Metro Rail Gold Line service at the Little Tokyo/Arts District station 1.5 miles to the north. |

| Table 6.VIII-3 | |
|----------------------------------|---|
| Consistency with the 2016 RTP/SC | S |

² As discussed above, SB 375 legislation links regional planning for housing and transportation with the GHG reduction goals outlined in AB 32.

| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Party(ies) | Consistency Analysis ^a | |
|---|---------------------------|---|--|
| Plan for growth around livable corridors, including growth on the Livable Corridors network. | SCAG, Local Jurisdictions | Consistent. The Project is an infill development that would be consistent with the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS focus on planning growth along the 2,980 miles of Livable Corridors in the region, as identified in the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS. The Project Site is also served by Metro bus routes (e.g., 18, 52, 60, 62, 66), Metro Rapid 720 and 760, and Metro Rail Gold Line service at the Little Tokyo/Arts District station 1.5 miles to the north. | |
| Provide more options for short trips through Neighborhood Mobility Areas and Complete Communities. | SCAG, Local Jurisdictions | Consistent. The Project would help further jobs/housing balance objectives that can improve the use of Neighborhood Electric Vehicles for short trips. The Project is also generally consistent with the Complete Communities initiative that focuses on creation of mixed-use districts in growth areas. | |
| Support local sustainability planning, including developing sustainable planning and design policies, sustainable zoning codes, and Climate Action Plans. | Local Jurisdictions | Not Applicable. This strategy calls on local governments to adopt General Plan updates, zoning codes, and Climate Action Plans to further sustainable communities. However, the Project would not interfere with such policymaking and would be consistent with those policy objectives. | |
| Protect natural and farm lands, including developing conservation strategies. | SCAG, Local Jurisdictions | Consistent. The Project is an infill development that would help reduce demand for growth in areas that threaten greenfields and open spaces. The Project Site does not contain any natural lands or farmlands. | |
| Transportation Strategies | | | |

Table 6.VIII-3 Consistency with the 2016 RTP/SCS

| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Party(ies) | Consistency Analysis ^a | |
|--|---|---|--|
| Preserve our existing transportation system. | SCAG, County Transportation Commissions, Local Jurisdictions | Not Applicable. This strategy calls on local jurisdictions to invest in the maintenance of our existing transportation system. However, the Project would not interfere with such policymaking. | |
| Manage congestion through programs like the Congestion Management Program, Transportation Demand Management, and Transportation Systems Management strategies. | County Transportation Commissions, Local Jurisdictions | Consistent. The Project is an infill development that will minimize congestion impacts on the region, because of the Project Site's proximity to public transit, the Project's conformity with Complete Communities policies, and the general density of population and jobs in the area. | |
| Promote safety and security in the transportation system. | SCAG, County Transportation Commissions, Local Jurisdictions | Not Applicable. This strategy directs local jurisdictions to improve the safety of the transportation system and protect users from security threats. However, the Project would not interfere with such policymaking. | |
| Complete our transit, passenger rail, active transportation, highways and arterials, regional express lanes, goods movement, and airport ground transportation systems. | SCAG, County Transportation Commissions, Local Jurisdictions | Not Applicable. This strategy calls for transportation planning partners to implement major capital and operational projects that are designed to address regional growth. The Project would not interfere with this larger goal of investing in the transportation system. | |
| Technological Innovation and 21 st Century Transportation | | | |
| Promote zero-emission vehicles. | SCAG, Local Jurisdictions | Consistent. While this action/strategy is directed at local jurisdictions an not applicable on a project-specific basis, the Project would include 40 EVS spaces, which is a minimum of 10% of the total provided parking spaces. | |

Table 6.VIII-3 Consistency with the 2016 RTP/SCS

| Actions and Strategies | Responsible Party(ies) | Consistency Analysis ^a |
|--|---------------------------|---|
| Promote neighborhood electric vehicles. | SCAG, Local Jurisdictions | Consistent. While this action/strategy is directed at local jurisdictions and not applicable on a project-specific basis, the Project would include 40 pre-wired EVS spaces, which is a minimum of 10% of the total provided parking spaces. |
| Implement shared mobility programs. | | Not Applicable. While this strategy directs local jurisdictions to implement shared mobility transportation programs, the Project would not interfere with these emerging programs. |
| Source: Southern California Association of Governments; 2016–2040 RTP/SCS, Chapter 5: The Road to Greater Mobility and Sustainable Growth; April 2016. | | |

Table 6.VIII-3 Consistency with the 2016 RTP/SCS

Local: LA Green Plan/Climate LA Plan

The LA Green Plan outlines the goals and actions the City has established to reduce the generation and emission of GHG emissions from both public and private activities. **Table 6.VIII-4** evaluates the Project's consistency with applicable GHG-reducing actions from the LA Green Plan. As discussed below, the Project is consistent with the applicable goals and actions of the LA Green Plan. To facilitate implementation of the LA Green Plan, the City adopted the Los Angeles Green Building Code. The 2016 Los Angeles Green Building Code (Chapter IX, Article 9, of the Los Angeles Municipal Code, as amended pursuant to City Ordinance No. 184,692), incorporated by reference the mandatory requirements of the 2016 California Green Building Standards Code (discussed above under AB 32 Climate Change Scoping Plan).

 Table 6.VIII-4

 Consistency with Applicable GHG Emissions Goals and Actions of the LA Green Plan

| Action | | Description | Consistency Analysis |
|--------|--|---|--|
| Focu | s Area: Energy | | |
| E6 | Present a comprehensive set of green building policies to guide and | The City initiated an effort to establish green building requirements, paired with incentives, for medium- to large- private | Consistent. While this action primarily applies to the City, the Project would be designed and operated to meet the applicable |

 Table 6.VIII-4

 Consistency with Applicable GHG Emissions Goals and Actions of the LA Green Plan

| | Action | Description | Consistency Analysis |
|------|---|---|---|
| | support private sector development. | projects. Buildings account for a majority of electricity use. Each building site relates to a wide range of environmental issues faced by the City, so addressing each site in a comprehensive manner will provide a variety of environmental benefits. | requirements of the State Green Building Standards Code and the City's Green Building Code. |
| Focu | s Area: Water | | |
| W1 | Meet all additional demand for water resulting from growth through water conservation and recycling. | The Mayor's Office and LADWP developed the Securing LA's Water Supply plan, which is an aggressive, multi-faceted approach to developing a locally sustainable water supply. The plan includes a set of key short-term and long-term strategies to secure our water future, such as: Short-Term Conservation Strategies: Enforcing prohibited uses of water (levying fines and sanctions against water abusers and increase water conservation awareness). Expanding the list of prohibited uses of water restrictions on watering landscape and washing/rinsing vehicles without a self-closing nozzle). Extending outreach efforts, water conservation incentives, and rebates. Encouraging regional conservation ordinances which include prohibited uses and enforcement). | Consistent. While this action primarily applies to the City and LADWP, the Project would incorporate water conservation features to reduce indoor water use by at least 20 percent., Water conservation measures could include: Energy Star-certified appliances in residential units and use of ultra-low flow toilets and hand wash faucets in public facilities. |

 Table 6.VIII-4

 Consistency with Applicable GHG Emissions Goals and Actions of the LA Green Plan

| | Action | Description | Consistency Analysis |
|------|---|---|--|
| | | Long-Term Conservation Strategies: Increasing water conservation through reduction of outdoor water use and new technology. Maximizing water recycling. Enhancing stormwater capture Accelerating cleanup of the groundwater basin. Expanding groundwater storage. | |
| W2 | Reduce per capita water consumption by 20%. | [See W1, above.] | [See W1, above.] |
| Focu | s Area: Transportation | | |
| Τ4 | Complete the Automated Traffic Surveillance and Control System (ATSAC). | This action reduces vehicle emissions that result from idling at intersections. By reducing vehicle stops, delays and travel time through improved traffic signal timing, vehicles can travel a longer distance at a consistent rate of speed, improving fuel economy. | Consistent. While the City has implemented this action, the Project would not interfere with the maintenance and improvement of improved signal timing in the City. |
| T6 | Make transit information easily available, understandable, and translated into multiple languages. | A Los Angeles Department of Transportation (LADOT) partnership with the Personnel Department will enable DOT to determine in which additional languages transit information should be provided. Facilitating access to transit information increases the likelihood of transit use, which can reduce single occupancy vehicle trips and help alleviate traffic congestion, and most importantly, reducing associated greenhouse gas emissions. | Consistent. While this action primarily applies to the City, the Project would not impair the ability of the City to make transit information easily available, understandable, and translated into multiple languages. |

 Table 6.VIII-4

 Consistency with Applicable GHG Emissions Goals and Actions of the LA Green Plan

| | Action | Description | Consistency Analysis |
|---------|--|--|--|
| T8 | Promote walking and biking to work, within neighborhoods, and to large events and venues. | Promoting alternate modes of travel will reduce the carbon emissions associated with single occupancy vehicles (SOVs). As described in Action Items LU1 and LU2 below, the City is promoting high-density and mixed-use housing close to major transportation arteries. Such developments will also support the advancement of Action Item T8, by improving accessibility for those who wish to walk and bike to work. | Consistent. While this action primarily applies to the City, the proposed Project would promote a pedestrian-friendly community by connecting the Project with the Downtown Los Angeles community through the provision of ground- level neighborhood- serving commercial retail and restaurant uses to activate the streets in the surrounding area. The Project Site is also located in an HQTA as designated by the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS and near regional and local transit services. The Project would provide residents and visitors with convenient access to public transit and opportunities for walking and biking, including the installation of bicycle parking spaces in accordance with LAMC requirements. |
| Focu | s Area: Land Use | <u> </u> | <u> </u> |
| LU 1 | Promote high- density housing close to major transportation arteries. | With 469 square miles, Los Angeles is a vast and sprawling city. Yet many neighborhoods are walkable, with stores and services clustered near dense residential housing. As the city continues to redevelop and grow, there is an unprecedented opportunity to rethink the urban environment. Accommodating continued growth requires taking advantage of infill opportunities and increasing density along transit corridors. | Consistent. The Project represents a mixed-use infill development that would provide live/work units, office, retail, and restaurant uses within an HQTA. The Project Site is located near regional and local public transit services. The Project would provide bicycle storage areas for Project residents, employees, and guests. Further, the Project is located within direct access to the I-10 and SR-110 freeways. |

Table 6.VIII-4 Consistency with Applicable GHG Emissions Goals and Actions of the LA Green Plan

| | Action | Description | Consistency Analysis |
|----------|---|--|--|
| LU 2 | Promote and implement transit- oriented development (TOD). | Transit Oriented Districts (TODs) represent opportunities for creating cohesive, vibrant, walkable communities where fragmented, auto- dependent corridors now exist. TODs are a positive alternative to low-density traditional land use patterns that typically segregate housing, jobs and neighborhood services from one another. In contrast, TODs cluster these community elements in close proximity, so a greater portion of trips can be made by transit, bike, or on foot. | Consistent. While this action primarily applies to the City, the proposed Project would concentrate new live/work and commercial uses in close proximity to public transit opportunities. The Project Site area is well served by public transit, including both bus and rail service. |
| Focu | s Area: Waste | | |
| Ws T1 | Reduce or recycle 70 percent of trash by 2015. | Source reduction and recycling programs not only conserve natural resources and landfill space, but also confer climate benefits. | Consistent. While this action primarily applies to the City, the Project would provide adequate storage areas in accordance with the City's Space Allocation Ordinance (Ordinance No. 171,687), which requires that developments include a recycling area or a room of specified size on the Project Site. |

The Project would comply with performance-based standards included in the Green Building Code. In order to meet reduction goals in the LA Green Plan, LADWP will continue to implement programs to emphasize water conservation and will pursue securing alternative supplies, including recycled water and storm water capture. With regard to solid waste, the City implemented the RENEW LA plan to meet solid waste reduction goals by expanding recycling to multifamily dwellings, commercial establishments, and restaurants. The Project would be indirectly affected by these actions and would further reduce water and solid waste generation, thereby meeting the goals of the LA Green Plan. In addition, LADWP is required to procure a minimum of 33 percent of its energy portfolio from renewable sources by 2020 and would continue

to implement programs consistent with the LA Green Plan. **Therefore, the Project would be** consistent with the LA Green Plan, and impacts would be less than significant impact.

Local: City of Los Angeles Sustainable City pLAn

As discussed above, the Sustainable City pLAn includes both short- and long-term aspirations through the year 2035 in various topic areas, including: water, solar power, energy-efficient buildings, carbon and climate leadership, waste and landfills, housing and development, mobility and transit, and air quality, among others. The Sustainable City pLAn provides information as to what the City will do with buildings and infrastructure in their control. Specific targets related to housing and development and mobility and transit include the decrease of VMT per capita by 5 percent by 2025, and increasing trips made by walking, biking or transit by at least 35 percent by 2025. The Project would generally comply with these aspirations as the Project is an infill development consisting of live/work, office, retail, and restaurant commercial uses on the Project Site, which is located near regional and local transit services. The Project would be well-served by transit and would implement a TDM Program that would encourage transit use. Furthermore, the Project would comply with CALGreen and would comply with the City's Solid Waste Management Policy Plan, the RENEW LA Plan, and the Exclusive Franchise System Ordinance (Ordinance No. 182,986) in furtherance of the aspirations included in the Sustainable City pLAn with regard to energy-efficient buildings and waste and landfills. The Project would also provide secure short- and long-term bicycle storage areas for Project residents and guests. Therefore, the Project would be consistent with the Sustainable City pLAn, and impacts would be less than consistent.

Conclusion

In summary, the plan consistency analysis provided above demonstrates that the Project complies with the applicable plans, policies, regulations and GHG emissions reduction actions/strategies outlined in the *Climate Change Scoping Plan and Update*, the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS, the LA Green Plan, and the Sustainable City pLAn. Consistency with the above plans, policies, regulations, and GHG emissions reduction actions/strategies would reduce the Project's incremental contribution of GHG emissions. Thus, the Project would not conflict with any applicable plan, policy, or regulation of an agency adopted for the purpose of reducing emissions of GHG emissions. Furthermore, because the Project is consistent and does not conflict with these plans, policies, and regulations, the Project's incremental increase in GHG emissions as described above would not result in a significant impact on the environment. Therefore, Project-specific impacts with regard to climate change would be less than significant.

Project Emissions

In support of the consistency analysis above that describes the Project's compliance with, or exceedance of performance-based standards included in the regulations and policies outlined in

the applicable portions of the *Climate Change Scoping Plan*, the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS, the LA Green Plan, and the Sustainable City pLAn, quantitative calculations are provided below.

The Project would generate direct and indirect GHG emissions as a result of different types of emissions sources, including the following:

- Construction: emissions associated with demolition of the existing buildings parking areas, shoring, excavation, grading, and construction-related equipment and vehicular activity;
- Area source: emissions associated with landscape equipment;
- Energy source (building operations): emissions associated with electricity and natural gas use for space heating and cooling, water heating, energy consumption, and lighting;
- Stationary source: emissions associated with stationary equipment (e.g., emergency generators);
- Mobile source: emissions associated with vehicles accessing the project site;
- Solid Waste: emissions associated with the decomposition of the waste, which generates methane based on the total amount of degradable organic carbon; and
- Water/Wastewater: emissions associated with energy used to pump, convey, deliver, and treat water.

The Project would generate an incremental contribution to and a cumulative increase in GHG emissions. A specific discussion regarding potential GHG emissions associated with the construction and operational phases of the Project is provided below.

Construction

Project construction is anticipated to be completed in 2023. A summary of construction details (e.g., schedule, equipment mix, and vehicular trips) and CalEEMod modeling output files are provided in Appendix A to this SCEA. The GHG emissions associated with construction of the Project were calculated for each year of construction activity. A summary of GHG emissions for each year of construction is presented in **Table 6.VIII-5**.

As presented in **Table 6.VIII-5**, construction of the Project is estimated to generate a total of 98 MTCO₂e. As recommended by the SCAQMD, the total GHG construction emissions were amortized over the 30-year lifetime of the Project (i.e., total construction GHG emissions were divided by 30 to determine an annual construction emissions estimate that can be added to the Project's operational emissions) in order to determine the Project's annual GHG emissions

inventory.³ The result of this calculation is annual Project construction emissions of 98 MTCO₂e. A complete listing of the construction equipment by on-site and off-site activities, duration, and emissions estimation model input assumptions used in this analysis is included within the emissions calculation worksheets that are provided in Appendix A to this SCEA.

| Year | MTCO ₂ e ^a | |
|---|----------------------------------|--|
| 2020 | 835 | |
| 2021 | 1,387 | |
| 2022 | 710 | |
| Total | 1,387 | |
| Amortized Over 30 Years | 98 | |
| a CO ₂ e was calculated using CalEEMod and the results are provided in Section 2.0 of the Construction CalEEMod output file within Appendix A . | | |
| Source: DKA Planning, 2019. | | |

Table 6.VIII-5 Combined Construction-Related Emissions (MTCO₂e)

Operation

Area Source Emissions

Area source emissions were calculated using the CalEEMod emissions inventory model. The emissions model includes emissions from hearths (fireplaces) and landscape maintenance equipment. As discussed above, the Project Design Feature GHG-PDF-1 prohibits the use of any natural gas-fueled fireplaces in the proposed residential units. Thus, the reduction in GHG emissions from Project Design Feature GHG-PDF-1 was calculated and is shown in **Table 6.VIII-6**. As shown in the table, the Project would result in a total of approximately 2 MTCO₂e per year from area sources.

Table 6.VIII-6 Annual GHG Emissions Summary (Buildout)^a (metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent [MTCO2e])

| Year | MTCO ₂ ª |
|---|---------------------|
| Area ^b | 2 |
| Energy ^c (electricity and natural gas) | 2,147 |
| Mobile | 3,639 |
| Solid Waste ^d | 155 |
| Water/Wastewater ^e | 345 |

³ SCAQMD Governing Board Agenda Item 31, December 5, 2008.

| Construction | | 98 | | |
|------------------------|--|-------|--|--|
| | Total Emissions | 6,386 | | |
| а | CO ₂ e was calculated using CalEEMod and the results are provided in Section 2.0 of the Operation CalEEMod output file within Appendix A | | | |
| b c d e So | Area source emissions are from landscape equipment and other operational equipment only; hearths omitted. Energy source emissions are based on CalEEMod default electricity and natural gas usage rates. Solid waste emissions are calculated based on CalEEMod default solid waste generation rates. Water/Wastewater emissions are calculated based on CalEEMod default water consumption rates. Source: DKA Planning, 2019. | | | |

Electricity and Natural Gas Generation Emissions

GHG emissions are emitted as a result of activities in buildings when electricity and natural gas are used as energy sources. Combustion of any type of fuel emits CO_2 and other GHG emissions directly into the atmosphere; when this occurs in a building, it is a direct emission source associated with that building. GHG emissions are also emitted during the generation of electricity from fossil fuels. When electricity is used in a building, the electricity generation typically takes place off-site at the power plant; electricity use in a building generally causes emissions in an indirect manner.

Electricity and natural gas emissions were calculated for the Project using the CalEEMod emissions inventory model, which multiplies an estimate of the energy usage by applicable emissions factors chosen by the utility company. GHG emissions from electricity use are directly dependent on the electricity utility provider. In this case, GHG emissions intensity factors for LADWP were selected in CalEEMod. The carbon intensity ((pounds per megawatt an hour (lbs/MWh)) for electricity generation was calculated for the Project buildout year based on LADWP projections. A straight-line interpolation was performed to estimate the LADWP carbon intensity factor for the Project buildout year. LADWP's carbon intensity projections also take into account SB 350 RPS requirements for renewable energy.

This approach is conservative, given the 2018 chaptering of SB 100 (De Leon), which requires electricity providers to provide renewable energy for at least 60 percent of their delivered power by 2030 and 100 percent use of renewable energy and zero-carbon resources by 2045. SB 100 also increases existing renewable energy targets, called Renewables Portfolio Standard (RPS), to 44 percent by 2024 and 52 percent by 2027.

Energy use in buildings is divided into energy consumed by the built environment and energy consumed by uses that are independent of the construction of the building, such as in plug-in appliances. CalEEMod calculates energy use from systems covered by Title 24 (e.g., HVAC system, water heating system, and lighting system); energy use from lighting; and energy use from office equipment, appliances, plug-ins, and other sources not covered by Title 24 or lighting.

CalEEMod electricity and natural gas usage rates are based on the CEC-sponsored California Commercial End-Use Survey (CEUS) and the California Residential Appliance Saturation Survey (RASS) studies.⁴ The data are specific for climate zones; therefore, Zone 11 was selected for the Project Site based on the zip code tool. Since these studies are based on older buildings, adjustments have been made to account for changes to Title 24 building codes but do not reflect 2016 Title 24 standards. For the Project scenario, an adjustment was made to account for the 2016 Title 24 standards. The 2016 Title 24 standards would be applicable to the Project as the Project would be built after January 1, 2017, when the 2016 Title 24 standards went into effect. The 2016 Title 24 standards are 28 percent more efficient (for electricity) than the 2013 Title 24 standards for residential construction and 5 percent more efficient (for electricity) for non-residential construction.⁵

As shown in **Table 6.VIII-6**, Project GHG emissions from electricity and natural gas usage would result in a total of 2,147 MTCO₂e per year. This accounts for a six percent reduction in energy source emissions with implementation of Project Design Feature GHG-PDF-1 as compared to the Project without implementation of this project design feature.

Mobile Source Emissions

Mobile-source emissions were calculated for the Project using the SCAQMD-recommended CalEEMod emissions inventory model. CalEEMod calculates the emissions associated with onroad mobile sources associated with residents, employees, visitors, and delivery vehicles visiting the Project Site based on the number of daily trips generated and VMT.

The Project represents an infill development within an urbanized area that would concentrate new residential, office, retail, and restaurant uses within an HQTA.⁶ The Project Site is located in Downtown Los Angeles with proximity to Metro local and Rapid bus service and the nearby Metro Rail Gold Line station. The Project would provide bicycle storage areas for Project residents and visitors. The Project would also incorporate characteristics that would reduce trips and VMT as compared to standard ITE trip generation rates. The Project characteristics listed below are consistent with the CAPCOA guidance document, *Quantifying Greenhouse Gas Mitigation Measures*, which provides emission reduction values for transportation related design techniques.⁷ These techniques would reduce vehicle trips and VMT associated with the Project relative to the standard ITE trip generation rates, which would result in a comparable reduction in

⁴ CEC, Commercial End-Use Survey, March 2006, and California Residential Appliance Saturation Survey, October 2010.

⁵ CEC, 2016 Building Energy Efficiency Standards, Frequently Asked Questions.

⁶ The Project Site is also located in Transit Priority Area as defined by Public Resources Code Section 20199. Public Resources Code Section 21099 defines a "transit priority area" as an area within 0.5 miles of a major transit stop that is "existing or planned, if the planned stop is scheduled to be completed within the planning horizon included in a Transportation Improvement Program adopted pursuant to Section 450.216 or 450.322 of Title 23 of the Code of Federal Regulations." Public Resources Code Section 21064.3 defines "major transit stop" as "a site containing an existing rail transit station, a ferry terminal served by either a bus or rail transit service, or the intersection of two or more major bus routes with a frequency of service interval of 15 minutes or less during the morning and afternoon peak commute periods." Also refer to the City's ZIMAS System regarding the location of the Project Site within a Transit Priority Area. www.zimas.lacity.org, accessed March 2019.

⁷ CAPCOA, Quantifying Greenhouse Gas Mitigation Measures, 2010.

VMT and associated GHG emissions. Techniques applicable to the Project include the following (a brief description of the Project's relevance to the measure is also provided):

- CAPCOA Measure LUT-1 Increase Density: Increased density, measured in terms of persons, jobs, or dwelling units per unit area, reduces emissions associated with transportation as it reduces the distance people travel for work or services and provides a foundation for the implementation of other strategies, such as enhanced transit services. The Project would increase the Project Site's density with 106 residences.
- CAPCOA Measure LUT-3 Increase Diversity of Urban and Suburban Developments (Mixed-Use): The Project would introduce new uses on the Project Site, including new live/work units and commercial uses. The Project would co-locate complementary residential and commercial uses in proximity to other existing off site residential and commercial uses. The increases in land use diversity and mix of uses on the Project Site would reduce vehicle trips and VMT by encouraging walking and non-automotive forms of transportation (i.e., walking and biking), which would result in corresponding reductions in transportation-related emissions.
- CAPCOA Measure LUT-4 Increase Destination Accessibility: The Project Site is located south of Downtown Los Angeles and south of the Arts District area of the City, a primary job center, also easily accessible by public transportation. Access to multiple destinations, and other commercial and retail uses in proximity to the Project Site would reduce vehicle trips and VMT compared to the statewide average and encourage walking and non-automotive forms of transportation and would result in corresponding reductions in transportation-related emissions as a result of the Project.
- CAPCOA Measure LUT-5 Increase Transit Accessibility: The Project would be located near Metro local and Rapid Bus services. The Project would also provide bicycle parking spaces for resident and commercial uses to encourage utilization of alternative modes of transportation.
- **CAPCOA Measure LUT-9 Improve Design of Development:** The Project would enhance the pedestrian environment by developing floor live/work spaces, ground floor retail and improved streetscape, which would enhance walkability in the Project Site vicinity. The Project would also locate a development with a high level of street access, which improves street accessibility and connectivity.

CalEEMod calculates VMT based on the type of land use, trip purpose, and trip type percentages for each land use subtype in the project (primary, diverted, and pass-by). As shown in **Table 6.VIII-6**, the Project GHG emissions from mobile sources would result in a total of 3,639 MTCO₂e per year. This estimate reflects reductions attributable to the Project's characteristics (e.g., infill project near transit that supports multi-modal transportation options), as described above.

Solid Waste Generation Emissions

Emissions related to solid waste were calculated using the CalEEMod emissions inventory model, which multiplies an estimate of the waste generated by applicable emissions factors provided in Section 2.4 of the USEPA's AP-42, Compilation of Air Pollutant Emission Factors. CalEEMod solid waste generation rates for each applicable land use were selected for this analysis. As shown in **Table 6.VIII-6**, the Project scenario is expected to result in a total of 155 MTCO₂e per year from solid waste that accounts for a 50-percent recycling/diversion rate.

Water Usage and Wastewater Generation Emissions

GHG emissions are related to the energy used to convey, treat, and distribute water, and treat wastewater. Thus, these emissions are generally indirect emissions from the production of electricity to power these systems. Three processes are necessary to supply potable water; these include (1) supply and conveyance of the water from the source; (2) treatment of the water to potable standards; and (3) distribution of the water to individual users. After use, energy is used as the wastewater is treated and reused as reclaimed water.

Emissions related to water usage and wastewater generation were calculated for the Project using the CalEEMod emissions inventory model, which multiplies an estimate of the water usage by the applicable energy intensity factor to determine the embodied energy necessary to supply potable water. ⁸ GHG emissions are then calculated based on the amount of electricity consumed multiplied by the GHG emissions intensity factors for the utility provider. In this case, embodied energy for Southern California supplied water and GHG emissions intensity factors for LADWP were selected in CalEEMod. Water usage rates were calculated consistent with the requirements under City Ordinance No. 184,248, 2016 California Plumbing Code, 2016 CALGreen, 2017 Los Angeles Plumbing Code, and reflect an approximately 20-percent reduction as compared to the base demand.

As shown in **Table 6.VIII-6**, Project GHG emissions from water usage and wastewater generation would result in a total of 345 MTCO₂e per year, which reflects a 20-percent reduction in water/wastewater emissions consistent with building code requirements as compared to the Project without sustainability features related to water conservation.

Combined Construction and Operational Emissions

As shown in **Table 6.VIII-6**, when taking into consideration the requirements set forth in the City's Green Building Code and the full implementation of current state mandates, the GHG emissions for the Project would equal 98 MTCO₂e annually (as amortized over 30 years) during construction and 6,288 MTCO₂e per year during operation of the Project with a combined total of 6,386 MTCO₂e per year.

⁸ The intensity factor reflects the average pounds of CO₂e per megawatt generated by a utility company.

Estimated Reduction of Project Related GHG Emissions Resulting from Consistency with Plans

As noted earlier, one approach to demonstrating a project's consistency with GHG plans is to show how a project would reduce its incremental contribution to GHG emissions by comparing the estimated Project emissions to a theoretical estimate of standardized emissions, also known as "NAT or business-as-usual" and providing a comparison. The NAT scenario assumes that all future development remains at a density that is consistent with existing development in the area. The analysis in this section includes potential emissions under a NAT (business-as-usual) scenario and from the Project at build-out based on actions and mandates expected to be in force in 2020.

As shown in **Table 6.VIII-7**, the estimated emissions for the Project and the estimated emissions from its projected CARB 2020 NAT scenario are estimated to be 6,386 and 9,485 MTCO₂e per year, respectively, which shows the Project would reduce emissions by 33 percent from CARB's 2020 NAT scenario.

| Scenario and Source | NAT Scenario* | As Proposed Scenario | Reduction from NAT Scenario | Change from NAT Scenario |
|---------------------|------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------------------|--------------------------------|
| Area Sources | 2 | 2 | _ | 0% |
| Energy Sources | 3,701 | 2,147 | -1,555 | -42% |
| Mobile Sources | 5,184 | 3,639 | -1,545 | -30% |
| Waste Sources | 155 | 155 | - | 0% |
| Water Sources | 345 | 345 | - | 0% |
| Construction | 98 | 98 | - | 0% |
| Total Emissions | 9,485 | 6,386 | -3,099 | -33% |

 Table 6.VIII-7

 Estimated Reduction of Project-Related GHG Emissions Resulting from Consistency with Plans

Daily construction emissions amortized over 30-year period pursuant to SCAQMD guidance. Annual construction emissions derived by taking total emissions over duration of activities and dividing by construction period.

* NAT scenario does not assume 30% reduction in in mobile source emissions from Pavley emission standards (19.8%), low carbon fuel standards (7.2%), vehicle efficiency measures 2.8%); does not assume 42% reduction in energy production emissions from the State's renewables portfolio standard (33%), natural gas extraction efficiency measures (1.6%), and natural gas transmission and distribution efficiency measures (7.4%).

Source: DKA Planning, 2019.

The analysis in this section uses the 2017 Scoping Plan's statewide goals as one approach to evaluate the Project's incremental contribution to climate change. The methodology is to compare the Project's emissions as proposed to the Project's emissions as if the Project were built using a NAT approach in terms of design, methodology, and technology. This means the Project's emissions were calculated as if the Project was constructed with project design features to reduce

GHG emissions that are not required by state or local code and with several regulatory measures adopted in furtherance of AB 32.

While the AB 32 Scoping Plan's cumulative statewide objectives were not intended to serve as the basis for project-level assessments, this analysis finds that its NAT comparison based on the Scoping Plan is appropriate, because the Project would contribute to statewide GHG emissions reduction goals. Specifically, the Project's mixed-use nature and location in an existing urban setting provide opportunities to reduce transportation-related emissions. First, it would capture vehicle travel on-site that would have normally been destined for off-site locations. This produces substantial reductions in the amount of vehicle trips and VMT that no longer are made. Second, it would eliminate many vehicle trips, because travel to and from the Project Site could be captured by public transit and pedestrian travel instead. Finally, it would attract existing trips on the street network that would divert to the proposed uses.

Post-2020 Analysis

Recent studies show that the state's existing and proposed regulatory framework will put the state on a pathway to reduce its GHG emissions level to 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030, and to 80 percent below 1990 levels by 2050 if additional appropriate reduction measures are adopted.⁹ Even though these studies did not provide an exact regulatory and technological roadmap to achieve the 2030 and 2050 goals, they demonstrated that various combinations of policies could allow the statewide emissions level to remain very low through 2050, suggesting that the combination of new technologies and other regulations not analyzed in the studies could allow the state to meet the 2050 target. Subsequent to the findings of these studies, SB 32 was passed on September 8, 2016, and would require the state board to ensure that statewide GHG emissions are reduced to 40 percent below the 1990 level by 2030. As discussed above, the new plan, outlined in SB 32, involves increasing renewable energy use, imposing tighter limits on the carbon content of gasoline and diesel fuel, putting more electric cars on the road, improving energy efficiency, and curbing emissions from key industries.

As discussed above, SCAG's 2016-2040 RTP/SCS establishes a regulatory framework for achieving GHG emissions reductions from the land use and transportation sectors pursuant to SB 375 and the state's long-term climate policies. The 2016-2040 RTP/SCS ensures VMT reductions and other measures that reduce regional emissions from the land use and transportation sectors. Specifically, the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS would result in an estimated 8-

⁹ Energy and Environmental Economics (E3). "Summary of the California State Agencies' PATHWAYS Project: Long-term Greenhouse Gas Reduction Scenarios" (April 2015); Greenblatt, Jeffrey, Energy Policy, "Modeling California Impacts on Greenhouse Gas Emissions" (Vol. 78, pp. 158–172). The California Air Resources Board, California Energy Commission, California Public Utilities Commission, and the California Independent System Operator engaged E3 to evaluate the feasibility and cost of a range of potential 2030 targets along the way to the state's goal of reducing GHG emissions to 80 percent below 1990 levels by 2050. With input from the agencies, E3 developed scenarios that explore the potential pace at which emission reductions can be achieved, as well as the mix of technologies and practices deployed. E3 conducted the analysis using its California PATHWAYS model. Enhanced specifically for this study, the model encompasses the entire California economy with detailed representations of the buildings, industry, transportation and electricity sectors.

percent decrease in per capita GHG emissions by 2020, an 18-percent decrease in per capita GHG emissions by 2035, and a 21-percent decrease in per capita GHG emissions by 2040. By meeting and exceeding the SB 375 targets for 2020 and 2035, as well as achieving an approximately 21-percent decrease in per capita GHG emissions by 2040 (an additional 3-percent reduction in the five years between 2035 [18 percent] and 2040 [21 percent]), the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS is expected to fulfill and exceed its portion of SB 375 compliance with respect to meeting the state's GHG emission reduction goals.

The Project is the type of land use development that is encouraged by the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS to reduce VMT and expand multi-modal transportation use in order for the region to achieve the GHG emissions reductions from the land use and transportation sectors required by SB 375, which in turn, advances the state's long-term climate policies. By furthering implementation of SB 375, the Project supports regional land use and transportation GHG emissions reductions consistent with state climate targets for 2020 and beyond. In addition, the Project would be consistent with the Actions and Strategies set forth in the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS. Therefore, the Project would be consistent with the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS, and impacts would be less than significant.

Conclusion

Given the Project's consistency with state, SCAG, and City GHG emissions reduction goals and objectives, the Project is consistent with applicable plans, policies, and regulations adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of GHGs. In the absence of adopted standards and established significance thresholds, and given this consistency, it is concluded that the Project's incremental contribution to greenhouse gas emissions and their effects on climate change would not be cumulatively considerable.

Cumulative Impacts

As explained above, the analysis of a project's GHG emissions is inherently a cumulative impacts analysis, because climate change is a global problem, and the emissions from any single project alone would be negligible. Accordingly, the analysis above took into account the potential for the Project to contribute to the cumulative impact of global climate change.

The analysis shows that the Project is consistent with CARB's *Climate Change Scoping Plan*, particularly its emphasis on the identification of emission reduction opportunities that promote economic growth while achieving greater energy efficiency and accelerating the transition to a low-carbon economy. The analysis also shows that the Project would be consistent with the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS, which would serve to reduce regional GHG emissions from the land use and transportation sectors by 2020 and 2035. In addition, the Project would comply with the LA Green Plan, which emphasizes improving energy conservation and energy efficiency, increasing renewable energy generation, and changing transportation and land use patterns to reduce auto dependence. Furthermore, the Project would generally comply with the aspirations of the Sustainable City pLAn, which includes specific targets related to housing and development, and

mobility and transit. Given the Project's consistency with statewide, regional, and local plans adopted for the reduction of GHG emissions, it is concluded that the Project's incremental contribution to greenhouse gas emissions and their effects on climate change would not be cumulatively considerable. For these reasons, the Project's cumulative contribution to global climate change is less than significant.

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

IX. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|--------------------|---|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-----------|
| Would the project: | | | | | |
| a. | Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials? | | \boxtimes | | |
| b. | Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment? | | | | |
| C. | Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school? | | | | |
| d. | Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the public or the environment? | | | | |
| e. | For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in a safety hazard or excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area? | | | | |

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|----|--|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-------------|
| f. | Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan? | | | \boxtimes | |
| g. | Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury or | | | | \boxtimes |

death involving wildland fires?

The information and analysis of the Project's potential impacts to hazards and hazardous materials is based primarily on the following (refer to Appendix E):

- *E-1* Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, 2025 Sacramento Street, 1024 Mateo Street, and 2016 Bay Street, Environmental Managers & Auditors, Inc., June 2015.
- *E-2* Phase II Environmental Site Assessment, 1024 Mateo Street, 2016 Bay Street, and 2001, 2005, and 2025 Sacramento Street, Certified Environmental Consultants, Inc., August 13, 2015.
- *E-3* Site Characterization Report, Anderson Environmental, December 3, 2015.
- *E-4* Existing Soils Status Opinion Letter, Remdox Inc., April 27, 2020.
- *E-5* Soils Management Plan, Remdox Inc., May 27, 2020.

a. Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials?

Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation.

The types of hazardous materials that would be used during construction of the Project would be typical of those hazardous materials necessary for construction of a mixed-use development (e.g., paints, solvents, fuel for construction equipment, building materials, etc.). Although construction of the Project would require the routine transport, use, and disposal of hazardous waste, construction activities associated with Project would be required to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local regulations governing such activities, as discussed below in detail

Phase I

The Phase I Report (Appendix E-1) includes the results of an inspection of the Project Site to assess the current on-site activities that may pose potential impact to the subsurface conditions

of the Project Site. Environmental Managers & Auditors, Inc. (EMA) prepared the Phase I Environmental Site Assessments (Phase I ESA) for the Project Site in conformance with the scope and limitations of the American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) Practice E1527-13, 40 Code of Federal Regulations (F) Part 312.

The Project Site was inspected regarding potential environmental concerns including the presence of the UST's or AST's, spray booths, pits, clarifiers, and/or sumps, quantities and types of hazardous/toxic materials and wastes stored, treated, used, generated, or disposed of as part of present or previous tenants business activities, unusual stains or odors, and knowledge of hazardous material spills on the Project Site. The Project Site was inspected for evidence of any staining and/or spills.

Based on the Phase I ESA, various concerns were identified. The recognized environmental conditions included drainage/belowground clarifier associated with auto washing operations at the Project Site. In addition, significant stains were observed in the vicinity of hazardous materials/hazardous wastes storage areas at the Project Site.

A historical recognized environmental condition (HREC) refers to a past release of any hazardous substances or petroleum products that has occurred in connection with the property and has been addressed to the satisfaction of the applicable regulatory authority or meeting unrestricted use criteria established by a regulatory authority, without subjecting the property to any required controls. EMA identified historical recognized environmental conditions during the course of the Phase I ESA. The HREC included operation of a service station, Wash Rack with a clarifier, grease pit and a junk yard at the Project Site in the past. The owner of the service station was indicated as Standard Oil Company. A further review of records indicated that an application for grading permit for the storage tank backfill was filed on August 22, 1975. It is unknown whether the tank(s) were abandoned in-place by backfilling. It is unknown how many tanks were installed/removed and/or abandoned in-place associated with the former auto service station owned by Standard Oil Company at the Site.

Phase II

Based on the recommendation of the Phase I, the Project Applicant also performed a Phase II ESA for the Project Site to perform subsurface collection and analysis of soil vapor samples to ensure that any potential UST would not create a potentially significant impact. The Phase II is included as Appendix E-2. In summary, no subsurface features that would be consistent with the presence of USTs were identified in the screened areas. This finding, in conjunction with a prior grading-permit reference for "storage tank backfill", is deemed to be consistent with the prior removal of the Site's former USTs.

Further, the soil-sample analytical report in the Phase II indicated the presence of arsenic. This concentration was slightly greater than the published ESL for this compound in shallow soils at commercial properties. The remaining Title 22 metals were reported at concentrations that were well below the respective ESL values or were not detected. Also, the soil-vapor analytical report
indicated the presence of tetrachloroethene, also known as perchloroethene, or PCE, in each of the collected samples. Each of these values exceeds the screening level for PCE in commercialsite soil vapors (California Human Health Screening Levels).

The soil-vapor screening did not identify the presence of any of the most common VOCs that are associated with gasoline and other petroleum products (benzene, ethylbenzene, toluene, and total xylenes). This finding is deemed to be consistent with a lack of present-day, fuel-related environmental impacts at the Project Site. Based on the results of the Phase I and Phase II reports, the Project Site has the potential for impacts related to Hazardous Materials unless mitigated.

Site Characterization Report

As disclosed above, during the Phase II ESA, PCE was detected in eight soil vapor samples collected throughout the Project Site at a depth of 5 feet below ground surface (bgs). The three highest PCE concentrations were detected in the area of the former hoists, pump islands, and UST pit in the southwestern portion of the Project Site. The source of the PCE was unknown, and there was no soil data collected as part of that assessment.

In an attempt to further evaluate the source of PCE vapor contamination and delineate the lateral and vertical extent of impact, Andersen Environmental performed additional sampling and analysis, which formed the context of the Site Characterization Report. Overall, PCE was detected in only 2 of the 12 analyzed soil samples, and both of the detected concentrations were below the screening level for direct exposure. Additionally, all of the deeper soil samples from 15 feet to 30 feet bgs had no detectable concentrations of VOCs, indicating that the vertical extent of PCE contamination in soil has been adequately delineated. Furthermore, PCE was not detected in the 15- and 30-foot samples from borings. Although the source of PCE impact remains unclear, the residual concentrations do not represent an unacceptable risk to human health or the environment, and the extent of impact has been adequately delineated. Further, the ND concentrations in the 15- and 30-foot soil samples do not correlate with the soil vapor concentrations detected at those depths, potentially signifying that the vapors have migrated onto the Site from an off-Site source.

Subsurface soil vapor is impacted with VOCs, primarily PCE and, to a lesser extent, TCE. Based on the information within the Site Characterization Report, the VOCs in soil vapor do not pose an unacceptable risk to Project Site occupants. Regardless of the potential source of the soil vapor impacts, since the results indicate that the risk to on-Site occupants under commercial use scenarios is within acceptable limits, no further delineation of the soil vapor contaminant plume was warranted.

In summary, the following are the recommendations of the Site Characterization Study:

- Based on the extent of soil impact, which appears to be limited to shallow soil (less than 10 feet deep) in localized areas of the Project Site, no further soil assessment is warranted at this time.
- Given the distribution of VOCs in soil vapor and the results of the model, no further soil vapor assessment is warranted.
- Given the potential for mass excavation and grading of the Project Site for the construction
 of an underground parking structure, Andersen Environmental recommends that extra
 care be taken during any excavation and grading work, since it is possible that residual
 VOCs may be encountered during Project Site redevelopment activities. Further, since
 PCE has been detected in subsurface soils, it should be noted that a waste profile will
 need to be established prior to soil being exported off-Site, and the soil will require
 transportation and disposal in accordance with federal, state, local, and tribal laws and
 regulations.

Soils Status Letter

At the direction of the City and Applicant, Remdox was retained to provide an opinion on the environmental status of the Project Site with respect to the redevelopment as a mixed-use commercial/residential project. In summary, the Remdox Soils Status Letter shows evidence of subsurface contamination by PCE, which will likely need to be addressed as part of the redevelopment program to protect workers during excavation and grading, and to protect the future occupants of the property. The proposed development includes subterranean parking with a ground floor used for commercial purposes and residential use limited to the upper floors. Given that no residential units are proposed with a connection to the surface grade, the development remains a "commercial end-use" scenario, with respect to possible impacts from subsurface contamination.

Overall, Remdox agrees with the conclusions provided by Andersen Environmental in the Site Characterization Report, but regulatory limits that have been developed for vapor intrusion threat have since been altered to far more stringent levels; therefore, Remdox recommends a more aggressive approach to mitigate unforeseen possible vapor intrusion risks (including PCE) during construction and operation of the Project Site. These mitigation measures are listed below, which will help reduce potential impacts to a less than significant level.

Soils Management Plan

As a result of the above analysis and the recommended mitigation measure below, Remdox, Inc. prepared a Draft Soil Management Plan (SMP) in advance of Project approval. The objective of the SMP is to provide a framework for identifying and handling of VOC-contaminated soil that could conceivably be encountered during Project Site excavation and grading, which could impact the routine use, transport, or disposal of contaminated soils. The SMP is designed to provide a

mechanism to segregate possibly impacted soil from non-impacted soil. The final disposition of the soil piles depends on the preliminary screening effort and follow-up laboratory testing as required by the waste-accepting facility.

Although no significant environmental concerns remain for the proposed development, the findings suggest a very low but potential health risk during the construction phase of the Project. This might include encountering soil or soil gas impacted with VOC. This SMP is intended to mitigate that risk to an acceptable extent. Because the Project includes a net export of a significant volume of soil, this SMP includes provisions for segregation of excavation spoils for disposal at appropriate facilities. Soil that is impacted with VOC will be handled and disposed separately from native non-impacted soil using the screening methods discussed therein.

As stated in greater detail in the SMP, the greatest potential for exposure exists during excavation and grading, where fugitive vapors could be admitted to the atmosphere and personnel could come in contact with vapors containing these constituents. However, the SMP proposed mitigation measures which are listed below will help reduce any potential impacts.

Additionally, pursuant to SCAQMD Rule 1403, prior to the issuance of any demolition and/or alteration permits, the Project Applicant shall provide a letter to the LADBS from a qualified asbestos abatement consultant indicating that no asbestos-containing materials (ACMs) are present on the Project Site. If ACMs are discovered on Site, during demolition or construction proper abatement regulations shall be followed. Because the Project would be required to comply with the SCAQMD Rule 1403, which regulates the removal of ACMs to ensure that asbestos fibers are not released into the air during demolition and/or renovation activities, as well as other applicable state and federal regulations, impacts from ACMs would be less than significant. Additionally, demolition and removal of the existing building would be required to comply with CCR Title 8, Section 1532 et seq., which requires that all LBP be abated and removed by a licensed lead contractor. Standard handling and disposal practice shall be implemented pursuant to California Department of Industrial Relations (Cal-OSHA) regulations. Prior to issuance of a demolition permit, an LBP survey shall be performed and approved by the LADBS.

Thus, construction and operation of the Project would not result in a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials. Impacts would be less than significant with implementation of the below mitigation measures.

Mitigation Measures (Hazards and Hazardous Materials)

HAZ-MM-1: During excavation of the Project Site for the subterranean parking garage and prior to issuance of a Building Permit, if a UST is encountered, the Project Applicant shall procure a Division 5 Permit from the Los Angeles County Fire Department for removal of a UST and shall comply with the requirements of the permit.

- **HAZ-MM-2:** Prior to issuance of a Building Permit, the Soil Management Plan (SMP) dated May 27, 2020 and subsequent amendments shall be submitted to the Los Angeles County Fire Department for review and approval. The SMP shall be implemented during excavation and grading activities in areas of potential soil contamination to ensure site closure is properly implemented, and contaminated soil encountered is properly identified, removed, and disposed of off-site. The SMP shall include the following:
 - A qualified environmental consultant shall be present as necessary during grading and excavation activities to monitor compliance with the SMP and to actively monitor the soil and excavations for evidence of contamination.
 - Soil encountered during excavation or grading activities that appears to have been affected by hydrocarbons or other contamination shall be evaluated, based on appropriate laboratory analysis, by a qualified environmental consultant prior to off-site disposal at a licensed facility.
 - Identified contaminated soil shall be properly removed, handled, and transported to an appropriately licensed disposal facility, in accordance with the SMP.
 - Measures to protect construction workers from exposure to soils.
- **HAZ-MM-3:** Prior to start of construction, building controls such as liquid boot protection or a passive sub-slab vapor depressurization system as part of the footprint of the structure shall be included to the satisfaction of the Los Angeles Building and Safety Department.
- **HAZ-MM-4:** The design of the passive system shall include the provision to convert the passive system to an active depressurization system if vapor concentrations near the slab and in the parking structure exceed federal, state and/or local screening levels.
 - Vapor sampling of the parking area and passive sub-slab system shall be conducted either annually or semi-annually to periodically measure the contaminant concentrations in those areas.
- **HAZ-MM-5:** During excavation tasks, a photo-ionization detector (PID) shall be on site at all times. The PID shall be maintained in good working order, and shall be calibrated by the manufacturer at least once every three months and by experienced personnel on a daily basis. The calibration of the device shall be verified using hexane calibration gas at the beginning of each working day. In the event that inconsistent or erratic readings are experienced, or the PID becomes otherwise inoperable, all excavation activities will cease until it is repaired or replaced.

- HAZ-MM-6: All monitoring shall be conducted by an environmental professional provided by Remdox or other equally qualified professional, and the monitoring of soil will occur at a distance no more than 3 inches above the soil surface using the PID. Monitoring shall be initially conducted at a minimum frequency of one reading every fifteen minutes. Upon detection of VOC contamination, monitoring shall be conducted at a minimum rate of one reading for every five cubic yards excavated. All readings shall be taken no later than three minutes after each load of soil is excavated. All monitoring shall be conducted by trained personnel who are proficient in the use of the PID. Written records of PID monitoring and calibrations shall be kept in a format approved by the SCAQMD. The certification on all records shall be signed and dated on the day the measurements are observed. Upon detection of VOC-contaminated soil (defined by PID readings 50 ppmV or greater), the SCAQMD shall be notified within 24 hours. The Soil Monitoring Program is required by SCAQMD but is also designed to provide a framework for segregating the soil planned for export into three categories: Significantly Impacted Soil, Lightly Impacted Soil, and Non-Impacted Soil.
- **HAZ-MM-7:** Although not expected during this project, any VOC-contaminated soil greater 1000 ppmV shall be immediately stockpiled, covered with plastic sheeting and stored separately from non-VOC-contaminated soil. Once excavated, contaminated soil under these conditions will be considered contaminated at all times and will not be backfilled. A VOC contaminated stockpile shall not contain more than 500 cubic yards of soil.
- **HAZ-MM-8:** If the PID measurement is greater than 50 ppmV, but less than 1000 ppmV, the affected work area and load of soil shall be sprayed with water to suppress vapors. The contaminated soil in stockpiles shall be covered with plastic sheeting and secured so that no portion of the contaminated soil is exposed to the atmosphere.
- **HAZ-MM-9:** If the PID measurement is greater than 1000 ppmV, SCAQMD will be notified within one hour and the affected soil and working area shall be immediately sprayed with water. Contaminated soil once stockpiled and covered with plastic sheeting shall remain covered and undisturbed until removed from the site. In the unlikely event that any contaminated soils meet the criteria for designation as hazardous waste it will be disposed of according to the applicable SCAQMD and City regulations.
- **HAZ-MM-10:** Any soil with readings greater than 50 ppmV via PID shall be considered potentially contaminated and placed in a separate stockpile from native soil that is not impacted. This material will require additional testing and separate disposal from the (highly unlikely) Significantly Impacted Soil and the (probably more voluminous) Non-Impacted Soil. Monitoring of the spoils during excavation using the PID is the primary mechanism for separation of the material into different piles

that may not be comingled. Stockpiles may be expanded to a maximum of 500 cubic yards before disposal is required. Determining the fate and destination of the stockpiled soil will require sampling and profiling of the material as required by the waste-accepting facility. This will include laboratory testing for petroleum hydrocarbons, VOC, heavy metals, and other components at their discretion. Soil that passes the field screening and has less than 50 ppmV VOC will be considered Non-Impacted by the SCAQMD Rule 1166 standards, but still may be impacted enough to warrant discretionary disposal at an appropriate landfill. Because of the high sensitivity of chlorinated volatiles, Remdox recommends that all soils over 1 ppmV be contained in a separate pile from non-impacted soil.

Level of Significance after Mitigation

With mitigation incorporated, all potential impacts would be reduced to less than significant levels.

b. Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment?

Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation. A significant impact may occur if a project utilizes hazardous materials as part of its routine operations and could potentially pose a hazard to nearby sensitive receptors under accident or upset conditions.

As stated above, a Phase I and II were prepared for the Project Site. As disclosed above, during the Phase I and II ESA, PCE was detected in eight soil vapor samples collected throughout the Project Site at a depth of 5 feet bgs. The three highest PCE concentrations were detected in the area of the former hoists, pump islands, and UST pit in the southwestern portion of the Project Site.

Database Search

The following is a list of databases related to potential on-site and off-site sources of contamination that were reviewed and interpreted by EMA (Phase I ESA) As noted in the Phase I ESA, no sites pose potential environmental concerns relative to the Project Site and the Proposed Project.

Federal Sources

- <u>National Priority List</u>
- <u>Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act Information</u>
 <u>System</u>
- <u>CERCLIS-NFRAP</u>
- Federal Facilities (FEDFAC)
- Federal ERNS List

- Federal RCRA TSD Facilities List
- Federal RCRA Small & Large Generators List
- EPA CORRACTS
- <u>Site Enforcement Systems (SETS)</u>
- Enforcement Docket System (DO)
- <u>Criminal Docket System (C-DOCKET)</u>
- Federal Enforcement Dockets
- Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act (SARA)
- Nuclear Regulatory Commission Licenses (NC)
- Polychlorinated Biphenyl Waste Handler Database (PCB)
- Permit Compliance System (PCS)
- Facility System (AFS)
- <u>Section Seven Tracking System (SSTS)</u>
- FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System (FIFRA)
- Federal Facilities Information System (FFIS)
- <u>Chemicals in Commerce Information System (CICIS)</u>
- EPA Facility Index System (FINDS)
- Hazardous Material Incident Report System (HMIRS)

California State Sources

- <u>State Response Sites</u>
- Cal Sites No Further Action
- <u>School Property Evaluation Program</u>
- Voluntary Clean Up Program
- Properties Needing Further Evaluation
- Leaking Underground Storage Tanks (LUST)
- Solid Waste Information System (SWIS)
- Underground Storage Tank (UST) Registrations Database
- Hazardous Waste and Substance Site List (CORTESE List)
- Hazardous Waste Information System
- <u>Toxic Release</u>
- <u>Toxic Pits</u>
- Solid Waste Assessment Test

Local Sources

- City of Los Angeles Department of Building and Safety
- South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD)

- Department of Toxic Substances Control
- <u>California Regional Quality Control Board- Los Angeles Region</u>

c. Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?

Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation. The closest school to the Project Site is the Metropolitan High School, located approximately 980 feet north of the Project Site, which is within one-quarter mile of the Project Site. To help reduce potential exposure to neighboring schools, an SMP was prepared and will be submitted to the Los Angeles County Fire Department for review and approval. The SMP has suggested mitigation measures to help reduce potential hazardous materials impacts, all of which would be implemented during excavation and grading activities in areas of potential soil contamination to ensure Project Site closure is properly implemented, and contaminated soil encountered is properly identified, removed, and disposed of off-site. With these measures, and compliance with all federal, state, and local standards and regulations, the Project Site is not anticipated to emit dangerous levels of hazardous emissions during construction or operation. Therefore, the Project would not adversely affect the existing Metropolitan High School. Thus, impacts would be less than significant with mitigation.

d. Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the public or the environment?

No Impact. California Government Code Section 65962.5 requires various state agencies, including but not limited to, the Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) and the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB), to compile lists of hazardous waste disposal facilities, unauthorized releases from underground storage tanks, contaminated drinking water wells and solid waste facilities where there is known migration of hazardous waste and submit such information to the Secretary for Environmental Protection on at least an annual basis. The Project Site is not included on any list compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5.¹ The construction and operation of the Project would not create a significant hazard to the public or the environment, as a result of being on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5. Based on this, development of the Project and construction at the Project Site would not cause or exacerbate a significant hazard to the public or the environment nor impact Project residents. **Therefore, no impacts related to this issue would occur**.

Department of Toxic Substances Control, Envirostor, https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/map/?global_id=60001142, April 16, 2018.

e. For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in a safety hazard or excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area?

No Impact. The Project Site is not located within two miles of a public airport. The closest airport is Hollywood Burbank Airport located approximately 17 miles northwest of the Project Site. Thus, implementation of the Project would not have the potential to exacerbate current environmental conditions as to result in a safety hazard for people residing or working in the area of the Project Site. Therefore, no impacts related to this issue would occur.

f. Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?

Less Than Significant Impact. The City's General Plan Safety Element addresses public protection from unreasonable risks associated with natural disasters (e.g., fires, floods, earthquakes) and sets forth guidance for emergency response. Specifically, the Safety Element includes Exhibit H, Critical Facilities and Lifeline Systems, that identifies emergency evacuation routes, along with the location of selected emergency facilities.

While it is expected that the majority of construction activities for the Project would be confined to the Project Site, temporary and limited off-site construction activities may occur in adjacent street rights-of-way during certain periods of the day, which could potentially affect emergency access adjacent to the Project Site. Access to the Project Site and surrounding area during construction of the Project would be maintained in accordance with standard construction management plans that would be implemented to ensure adequate circulation and emergency access. Furthermore, prior to the issuance of a building permit, the Project Applicant would be required by the Los Angeles Fire Department (LAFD) and the Department of Building and Safety to develop an emergency response plan for the Project in consultation with the LAFD. The emergency response plan shall include but not be limited to the following: mapping of emergency exits, evacuation routes for vehicles and pedestrians, location of nearest hospitals, and fire departments. **Preparation and implementation of the Project impacts related to emergency response plan as required by the City would ensure that Project impacts related to emergency response would be less than significant.**

g. Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires?

No Impact. The Project Site is located in a highly urbanized area of the City that is not subject to wildland fires. Also, the Project Site is not located in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity zones. Therefore, the Project would not expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where residences are intermixed with wildlands. **Implementation of the Project would not have the potential to exacerbate existing environmental conditions so as to increase the potential to expose people or structures to**

significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires, and no impacts would occur as a result of the Project.

Cumulative Impacts

The geographic extent of the Project's potential hazards, and hazardous materials impacts is limited to the Project Site and would not contribute to any other potential hazards and hazardous materials impact that may occur beyond the boundaries of the Project Site. All related projects would be subject to discretionary or ministerial review by their respective jurisdictions, which would be responsible for assessing potential hazards risks associated with those related projects, and if necessary, the applicants of those projects would be required to implement measures appropriate for the type and extent of hazardous materials present and the land use proposed to reduce the risk associated with the hazardous materials to an acceptable level. As stated previously, with mitigation, the Project would not result in any significant impacts related to hazards and hazardous materials would be less than significant.

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

X. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|----|---|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-------------|
| Wc | ould the project: | | | | |
| a. | Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface or ground water quality? | | | | |
| b. | Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such that the project may impede sustainable groundwater management of the basin? | | | | |
| C. | Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which would: | | | | |
| | Result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site; | | | | |
| | Substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site; | | | | |
| | iii. Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff; or | | | | |
| | iv. Impede or redirect flood flows? | | | | |
| d. | In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk release of pollutants due to project inundation? | | | | \boxtimes |



a. Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface or ground water quality?

Less Than Significant Impact. During construction of the Project, particularly during the grading and excavation phases, stormwater runoff from precipitation events could cause exposed and stockpiled soils to be subject to erosion and convey sediments into municipal storm drain systems. In addition, on-site watering activities to reduce airborne dust could contribute to pollutant loading in runoff. Pollutant discharges relating to the storage, handling, use and disposal of chemicals, adhesives, coatings, lubricants, and fuel could also occur. Thus, a significant impact could occur if the Project discharges water that does not meet the quality standards of agencies that regulate surface water quality and water discharge into storm water drainage systems or would not comply with all applicable regulations as governed by the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (LARWQCB).

The Project would be required to comply with the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) General Construction Permit including the preparation of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and implementation of best management practices (BMPs), required to minimize soil erosion and sedimentation from entering the storm drains during the construction period. In addition, the Project would be subject to the City's Stormwater and Urban Runoff Pollution Control regulations (Ordinance No. 172,176 and No. 173,494) to ensure pollutant loads from the Project Site would be minimized for downstream receiving waters. Compliance with the NPDES and implementation of the SWPPP and BMPs, as well as the City's discharge requirements would ensure that construction stormwater runoff would not violate water quality and/or discharge requirements.

Stormwater runoff generated during operation of the Project has the potential to introduce small amounts of pollutants typically associated with mixed-use developments (e.g., household cleaners, landscaping pesticides, and vehicle petroleum products) into the stormwater system. Stormwater runoff from precipitation events could carry urban pollutants into municipal storm drains, however during operation the Project would be required to comply with the City's Low Impact Development (LID) Ordinance. The LID Ordinance applies to all development and redevelopment in the City that requires a building permit. LID plans are required to include a site design approach and BMPs that address runoff and pollution at the source. Further, to comply with LID Ordinance the Project would be required to capture and treat the first 3/4-inch of rainfall

in accordance with established stormwater treatment priorities. Compliance with the LID Ordinance would reduce the amount of surface water runoff leaving the Project Site as compared to the current conditions. Compliance with the LID Plan and Standard Urban Stormwater Mitigation Plan (SUSMP), including the implementation of BMPs, would ensure that operation of the Project would not violate water quality standard and discharge requirements or otherwise substantially degrade water quality.

Conformance with these regulations would ensure construction and operational activities would not violate water quality standards, waste discharge requirements, or otherwise substantially degrade water quality. Therefore, Project impacts related to water quality would be less than significant.

b. Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such that the project may impede sustainable groundwater management of the basin?

No Impact. The Project Site is located in an urbanized area of the City and is developed with a surface parking lot and automotive service building. During a storm event stormwater runoff flows to the adjacent roadways where it is directed into the City's storm drain system. As such, the Project Site is not a source of groundwater recharge. Following redevelopment of the Project Site, groundwater recharge would remain negligible, similar to existing conditions. Based on the Phase I ESA conducted for the Project Site (refer to Appendix D-1), groundwater was encountered at roughly 120-feet below the ground surface. The project's excavation is expected to be 25 feet below the ground. As such, no temporary groundwater removal would be required. Additionally, all water consumption associated with the Project would be supplied by LADWP and not from groundwater beneath the Project Sites. **Thus, no impacts related to groundwater would occur as a result of the Project.**

c. Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which would:

i. Result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site;

Less Than Significant Impact. A significant impact could occur if the Project substantially altered the drainage pattern of the Project Site or an existing stream or river, so that substantial erosion or siltation would result on-or off-site. The Project Site is located in a highly urbanized area of the City. There are no natural watercourses on the Project Site. The nearest watercourse is the Los Angeles River located approximately 2,100 feet east of the Project Site. As discussed above, the Project Site is developed with buildings and/or paved surfaces and are considered 100 percent impervious. Current stormwater runoff flows to the local storm drain system.

Under the post-Project condition, the Project Site also would be considered 100 percent impervious, and drainage patterns would be much the same as under the existing condition. The

Project Applicant would be required to prepare a SWPPP and implement BMPs to reduce runoff and preserve water quality during construction of the Project. While grading and construction activities may temporarily alter the existing drainage patterns of the site, BMPs would be implemented to minimize soil erosion impacts during Project grading and construction activities.

In addition, the Project would be required to implement a LID Plan (during operation), which would reduce the amount of surface water runoff leaving the Project Site after a storm event. Specifically, the LID Plan would require the implementation of stormwater BMPs to retain or treat the runoff from a storm event producing 3/4-inch of rainfall in a 24-hour period. Therefore, the Project would not result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site, and impacts would be less than significant.

ii. Substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site;

Less Than Significant Impact. A significant impact could occur if the Project resulted in increased surface water runoff volumes during construction, or if operation of the Project would result in flooding conditions affecting the Project Site or nearby properties. Grading and construction activities on the Project Site may temporarily alter the existing drainage patterns and reduce off-site flows. However, construction and operation of the Project would not result in a significant increase in site runoff or any changes in the local drainage patterns that would result in flooding on- or off-site. The Project would be required to prepare a SWPPP and implement BMPs to reduce runoff and preserve water quality during construction of the Project. Compliance with the LID Ordinance would also reduce the amount of surface water runoff leaving the Project Site as compared to the current conditions. **Impacts would therefore be less than significant.**

iii. Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff; or

Less Than Significant Impact. A significant impact could occur if the Project would increase the volume of stormwater runoff to a level that exceeds the capacity of the storm drain system serving the Project Sites, or if the Project would introduce substantial new sources of polluted runoff. Runoff from the Project Site currently is and would continue to be collected on the sites and directed towards existing storm drains in the vicinity of the Project Site.

Construction-Related Project Impacts

Three general sources of potential short-term construction-related stormwater pollution associated with the Project are: 1) the handling, storage, and disposal of construction materials containing pollutants; 2) the maintenance and operation of construction equipment; and 3) earth moving activities which, when not controlled, may generate soil erosion and transportation, via storm runoff or mechanical equipment. Generally, routine safety precautions for handling and storing construction materials may effectively mitigate the potential pollution of stormwater by

these materials. These same types of common sense, "good housekeeping" procedures, or BMPs, can be extended to non-hazardous stormwater pollutants such as sawdust and other solid wastes.

Poorly maintained vehicles and heavy equipment leaking fuel, oil, antifreeze, or other fluids on the construction site are also common sources of stormwater pollution and soil contamination. Grading activities can greatly increase erosion processes. Two general strategies are recommended to prevent construction silt from entering local storm drains. First, erosion control procedures should be implemented for those areas that must be exposed. Secondly, the area should be secured to control off-site migration of pollutants. During construction, the Applicant shall be required to implement all applicable and mandatory BMPs in accordance with the approved LID Plan and the SWPPP. These "good-housekeeping" practices would ensure that short-term construction-related impacts would be less than significant.

Operation-Related Project Impacts

Pursuant to City policy, stormwater retention would be required as part of the LID/SUSMP implementation features (despite no increase of imperviousness surfaces on the site). Any contaminants gathered during routine cleaning of construction equipment would be disposed of in compliance with applicable stormwater pollution prevention permits. Further, pollutants resulting from Project operation, including petroleum products associated with the Project's parking and circulation areas, would be subject to the requirements and regulations of the NPDES and applicable LID Ordinance requirements. Accordingly, the Project would be required to demonstrate compliance with LID Ordinance standards and retain or treat the first three-quarters inch of rainfall in a 24-hour period. Thus, the Project would not create or contribute surface runoff that would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff. Therefore, Project impacts related to storm drain capacity and water quality would be less than significant.

Activities associated with operation of the Project could generate substances that could degrade the quality of water runoff. The deposition of certain chemicals by cars in the parking garage could have the potential to contribute metals, oil and grease, solvents, phosphates, hydrocarbons, and suspended solids to the storm drain system. However, impacts to water quality would be reduced since the Project must comply with water quality standards and wastewater discharge BMPs set forth by the City, the SWRCB, and the Project's approved LID Plan. Through compliance with existing regulations and the approved LID Plan, the Project would not create or contribute surface runoff that would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff. **Therefore, Project impacts related to storm drain capacity and water quality would be less than significant.**

iv. Impede or redirect flood flows?

No Impact. The Project Site is not located within a 100-year zone, as mapped by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).¹ Also, the Project Site is not located near any bodies of water. Thus, the Project would not have the potential to impede or redirect flood flows. **Therefore, no impacts related to this issue would occur.**

d. In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk release of pollutants due to project inundation?

No Impact. A seiche is an oscillation of a body of water in an enclosed or semi-enclosed basin, such as a reservoir, harbor, lake, or storage tank. A tsunami is a great sea wave, commonly referred to as a tidal wave, produced by a significant disturbance undersea, such as a tectonic displacement of sea floor associated with large, shallow earthquakes. Mudflows occur as a result of downslope movement of soil and/or rock under the influence of gravity. The Project Site is located approximately 15 miles east of the Pacific Ocean. In addition, the Safety Element of the General Plan does not map the Project Site as being located within an area potentially affected by a tsunami.² Therefore, the Project would not expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow, and no impact would occur.

e. Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or sustainable groundwater management plan?

Less Than Significant Impact. As discussed previously, the Project would be required to comply with the NPDES General Construction Permit including the preparation of a SWPPP and implementation of BMPs that would require the Project to minimize soil erosion and sedimentation from entering the storm drains during the construction period. However, the Project would obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan. In addition, the Project would be subject to the City's Stormwater and Urban Runoff Pollution Control regulations (Ordinance No. 172,176 and No. 173,494) to ensure pollutant loads from the Project Sites would be minimized for downstream receiving waters. Compliance with the NPDES and implementation of the SWPPP and BMPs, as well as the City's discharge requirements, would ensure that construction stormwater runoff would not violate water quality and/or discharge requirements. **Thus, potential impacts would be less than significant.**

FEMA, https://msc.fema.gov/portal/search?AddressQuery=350%20Hill%20street%2C%20los%20angeles%2 C%20ca#searchresultsanchor, effective on 9-26-2008; and City of Los Angeles General Plan Safety Element, Exhibit F.

² Ibid.

Cumulative Impacts

The site of the Project and the related projects are located in an urbanized area where most of the surrounding properties are already developed. The existing storm drainage system serving this area has been designed to accommodate runoff from an urban built-out environment. When new construction occurs it generally does not lead to substantial additional runoff, since new developments is required to control the amount and quality of stormwater runoff coming from their respective sites. Additionally, all new development in the City is required to comply with the City's LID Ordinance and incorporate appropriate stormwater pollution control measures into the design plans to ensure that water quality impacts are minimized. **Therefore, Project cumulative impacts related to hydrology and water quality would be less than significant.**

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

XI. LAND USE AND PLANNING

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|----|---|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-------------|
| Wo | ould the project: | | | | |
| a. | Physically divide an established community? | | | | \boxtimes |
| b. | Cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect? | | | | |

a. Physically divide an established community?

No Impact. The Project Site is located in an urbanized area of the City in the Central City North Community Plan Area. A fully developed street network is located adjacent to the Project Site and within the vicinity of the site, along with all basic urban infrastructure systems. The Project would not create a physical barrier causing an impediment to travel or access in the area surrounding the Project Site. Development of the Project would occur within the boundaries of the existing Project Site. Thus, the Project would not physically divide, disrupt, or isolate an established community. Therefore, no impacts related to this issue would occur.

b. Cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?

Less Than Significant Impact. As discussed below, the Project would be substantially consistent with all of the applicable plans, policies, and regulations adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect associated with development of the Project Site. The Project requires a Zone Change and General Plan Amendment to, among other things, allow housing to be constructed at the Project Site; however, mitigation measures will ensure these amendments are adopted following a determination that the environmental, social, economic and engineering benefits of the Project support such amendment. Project impacts related to land use and planning would be less than significant.

In order to implement the Project, the Project Applicant is requesting approval of the following discretionary actions from the City:

- 1. Pursuant to Los Angeles Municipal Code (L.A.M.C.) Section 11.5.6, as authorized by the Los Angeles Charter Section 555, the Applicant requests approval of a General Plan Amendment to revise the land use designation in the Central City North Community Plan from Heavy Industrial to Commercial Industrial to permit the construction of a new mixed-use project containing a maximum of 106 Live/Work Units ("LW"), of which 9 units (11% of the base density, which is 78 units) will be set aside as Restricted Affordable units at a Very Low Income level, and approximately 119,845 square feet of commercial space. The Applicant also requests the deletion of Community Plan Footnotes 1 and 6, from the Industrial land use category to permit Height District 2 in the CM zone on the Project Site.
- Pursuant to L.A.M.C. Section 12.32 F & Q, the Applicant requests approval of Vesting Zone Change from M3-1-RIO to CM-2-RIO to permit the construction of a new mixeduse project containing a maximum of 106 Live/Work Units, of which 9 units (11% of the base density, which is 78 units) will be set aside as Restricted Affordable units at a Very Low Income level, and approximately 119,845 square feet of commercial space.
- 3. Pursuant to **L.A.M.C. Section 12.32 F**, the Applicant requests approval of a Height District change from M3-1-RIO to CM-2-RIO to permit the construction of a new mixed-use project containing a maximum of 106 Live/Work Units, of which 9 units (11% of the base density, which is 78 units) will be set aside as Restricted Affordable units at a Very Low income level, and approximately 119,845 square feet of commercial space. The Project's proposed floor area ratio is equal to 4.57:1.
- 4. Pursuant to **L.A.M.C. Section 12.22 A.25** (as amended by Ordinance 179,681), the Applicants propose to set aside 11% of the site's base density, which is 78 units, equal to 9 units, as Restricted Affordable Units at a Very Low Income level, qualifying it for a 35% density increase, parking reductions and the following incentive:
 - a. On-Menu Incentive, pursuant to L.A.M.C. Section 12.22 A.25(f)(7):

i. To utilize the pre-dedicated lot area to define the site's permitted density. The request will permit a base density of 78 units in lieu of 73 units.

- 5. Pursuant to **L.A.M.C. Section 16.05**, the Applicant requests the approval of Site Plan Review.
- 6. Pursuant to California Government Code Sections 66473.1, 66474 (Subdivision Map Act) and LAMC, Section 17.00 of Article 7 (Division of Land), the Applicant requests a

Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 74596 to merge and resubdivide all existing lots to create 106 Live/Work condominiums within an Airspaces Subdivision consisting of seven lots.

Project Consistency Discussion

The Project's consistency with the General Plan Framework Element land use policies is provided in **Table 6.XI-1**. As noted, policies are listed and labeled as either consistent, partially consistent, or not consistent.

The determination of consistency with applicable land use policies and ordinances is based upon a review of the planning and zoning documents that regulate land use or guide land use decisions pertaining to the Project Site. A project is considered consistent with the provisions and general policies of an applicable city or regional land use plan if it is consistent with the overall intent of the plan and would not preclude the attainment of its primary goals. A project does not need to be in perfect conformity with each and every policy. More specifically, according to the ruling in *Sequoyah Hills Homeowners Association v. City of Oakland*, state law does not require an exact match between a project and the applicable general plan. Rather, to be "consistent," the project must be "compatible with the objectives, policies, general land uses, and programs specified in the applicable plan," meaning that a project must be in "agreement or harmony" with the applicable land use plan to be consistent with that plan.

| Objective | Project Consistency |
|---|--|
| Framework Element: Land Use Chapter | |
| 3.1.1 Identify areas on the Long-Range Land Use Diagram and in the community plans sufficient for the development of a diversity of uses that serve the needs of existing and future residents (housing, employment, retail, entertainment, cultural / institutional, educational, health, services, recreation, and similar uses), provide job opportunities, and support visitors and tourism. | Consistent. The Project will provide a diversity of uses. The Project Site is located in a highly urbanized area in the City. The Project would develop 106 live/work units, approximately 13,979 square feet of commercial land uses, 13,126 square feet of restaurant uses, and 92,740 square feet of office uses within an HQTA, as defined by SCAG, and a transit priority area as defined by SB 743. Thus, the Project would provide new housing and sources of retail and employment at the Project Site. |
| 3.2.2 Establish, through the Framework Long- Range Land Use Diagram, community plans, and other implementing tools, patterns and types of development that improve the integration of housing with commercial uses and the integration of public services and various densities of residential development within neighborhoods at appropriate locations. | Consistent . The Project will integrate housing and commercial uses. The Project Site is located in a highly urbanized area in the City. The Project would develop 106 residential live/work dwelling units, approximately 13,979 square feet of commercial land uses, 13,126 square feet of restaurant uses, and 92,740 square feet of office uses within an HQTA, as defined by SCAG, and a transit priority area as defined by SB 743. |

 Table 6.XI-1

 Project Consistency with Applicable Policies of the Framework Element

| Table 6.XI-1 |
|---|
| Project Consistency with Applicable Policies of the Framework Element |

| Objective | Project Consistency |
|---|--|
| 3.2.3 Provide for the development of land use patterns that emphasize pedestrian/bicycle access and use in appropriate locations. | Consistent. The area of the Project Site currently experiences a low level of pedestrian activity, based on most uses being industrial related surrounding the Project Site. Based on the proximity of transit and sources of employment and retail opportunities, it is anticipated that introduction of the Project would increase the level of pedestrian activity in the area. |
| | With this new level of pedestrian activity created, the Project would be designed to encourage pedestrian activity and walking and cycling as a transportation mode. The Project would be designed to provide connections to the adjacent public sidewalks and would include site enhancements to promote walkability. The Project Site would be accessible from nearby public bus and rail transit stops as well as other amenities along nearby major corridors. The majority of pedestrian access to the Project Site would occur via the existing public sidewalks provided along every street in the Downtown Los Angeles area. |
| | Use of bicycles as a transportation mode to and from the Project Site would be encouraged as part of the Project by the provision of ample and safe bicycle parking. The type of spaces and dimensions would be provided based on LAMC Sections 12.21 A.16 and 12.21 A.4(c), as well as to meet the needs of a variety of bicycles. The proposed 110 bicycle spaces would be provided in a readily accessible location(s). Appropriate lighting would be provided to increase safety and provide theft protection during nighttime parking. The short-term and long-term bicycle parking requirements of the LAMC would be satisfied both for the residential and commercial land use components of the Project. |
| 3.4.1 Conserve existing stable residential neighborhoods and lower-intensity commercial districts and encourage the majority of new commercial and mixed-use (integrated commercial and residential) development to be located (a) in a network of neighborhood districts, community, regional, and downtown centers, (b) in proximity to rail and bus transit stations and corridors, and (c) along the City's major boulevards, referred to as districts, centers, and mixed-use boulevards, in accordance with the Framework Long-Range Land Use Diagram. | Consistent. The Project Site is located in a highly urbanized area in the City. The Project is an infill development that would include approximately 13,979 square feet of commercial land uses, 13,126 square feet of restaurant uses, and 92,740 square feet of office uses within an HQTA, as defined by SCAG, and a transit priority area as defined by SB 743. Also, the Project is not near other neighborhoods of the scale of this development, thus, conservation of neighborhood is minimized, as no impact would occur to existing residential uses. |

 Table 6.XI-1

 Project Consistency with Applicable Policies of the Framework Element

| Objective | Project Consistency |
|---|---|
| 3.14.1 Accommodate the development of industrial uses in areas designated as "Industrial-Light," "Industrial-Heavy," and "Industrial-Transit" in accordance with Tables 3-1 and 3-9. The range and intensities of uses permitted in any area shall be determined by the community plans. | Inconsistent. Although the Project does not propose new industrial land uses, the Project's new live/work and commercial space will serve the goal of generating new jobs and economic activity in the area. Further, the proposed office space will serve existing technology industry in the area. The ongoing pattern of development in the area including mixed-use projects is beneficial for the City's long- term fiscal and economic viability as these projects generate small business activity and economic opportunities. The Project Site is in an area of transition within the Downtown Los Angeles portion of the City. Based on the changing demographics of the immediate area, the Project Site is not suited to a large-scale industrial operation. |
| | Many of the industrial related land uses near the Project Site are either vacant or no longer being fully utilized for industrial related practices. This area of the City is not ideal for heavy industrial land uses due to densities and conflicting land uses around the Project Site. In addition, the local infrastructure including street widths is no longer suited to industrial use and the movement of large trucks. Although the Project is inconsistent with this policy, the Project is consistent with most of the General Plan policies listed and analyzed in this SCEA. |
| 3.14.2 Provide flexible zoning to facilitate the clustering of industries and supporting uses, thereby establishing viable "themed" sectors (e.g., movie/television/media production, set design, reproductions, etc.). | Consistent. The mixed-use Project will contribute to the City's flexible zoning, while revitalizing an area that has lacked new investment, by introducing commercial uses that will be beneficial to local residents and businesses. The existing industrial zoning is not ideal for heavy industry due to densities and conflicting land uses, but the mixed-use nature of the Project would help establish a new sector to this particular area of the City by locating housing and jobs in close proximity to each other and near transit. In addition, the Project will provide for the clustering of new jobs within the Project's office space. This will in turn provide new jobs to increase the overall number of jobs on the Property from what exists currently. |
| 3.14.3 Promote the re-use of industrial corridors for small scale incubator industries. | Consistent. The Project would re-use the existing Project Site for construction of a new mixed-use development. The commercial office and 106 Live/Work units may serve the small scale incubator industries. In addition, the Project Site is in the Arts District area of the City that allows the |

| Objective | Project Consistency |
|--|---|
| | clustering of projects with supporting uses that strengthen the economic base of the community. Moreover, while the existing industrial designation for the Property is not appropriate to support the jobs being created in the area, the Project would provide for new technology industry jobs, creating the potential for new small scale industries to develop and grow within the existing industrial area. |
| 3.14.4 Limit the introduction of new commercial and other non-industrial uses in existing commercial manufacturing zones to uses which support the primary industrial function of the location in which they are located. | Not Applicable. Please see Framework Policy 3.1.1 and 3.14.1, above, for a thorough discussion of applicable policies that furthers the Project's consistency with the City's Framework Element. |
| 3.14.5 Promote the development of a mix of commercial and light industrial uses in areas designated as Industrial-Transit. | Consistent. The Project would promote the development of a mix of commercial uses in an area in close proximity to transit. The Project Site is in close proximity to the MTA's express bus system, known as Metro Rapid. The most convenient Metro Rapid stop to the Project Site is Metro Rapid Bus 760, which runs north and south along Santa Fe Avenue and then turns west along 7th Street connecting with the 7th Street Metro Station. Route 760 runs south to Long Beach Boulevard ending at the 105 Freeway and the Green Line rail station. In addition, the Project would provide a mix of commercial uses by introducing commercial retail space and creative office space to the neighborhood. |
| 3.14.6 Consider the potential re-designation of marginal industrial lands for alternative uses by amending the community plans based on the following criteria: a. Where it can be demonstrated that the existing parcelization precludes effective use for industrial or supporting functions and where | Consistent. The proposed Project Site meets the criteria for amendment as it is located in an area characterized by smaller parcels and substandard streets, restricting the potential for site expansion required by newer industries. Substandard streets are a major impediment to heavy industrial use in the area. |
| there is no available method to assemble parcels into a unified site that will support viable industrial development; b. Where the size and/or the configuration of assembled parcels are insufficient to accommodate viable industrial development; | Although the Project Site is one of the larger sites in the area, it represents an underutilized parcel in a transit rich location, with a large street frontage on a prominent corner, which is best suited to serve as a mixed use development combining needed economic activity and live/work and affordable housing. Further, the Project is consistent with the recent pattern of mixed use development in the Arts District area which continues to experience substantial growth of |

Table 6.XI-1Project Consistency with Applicable Policies of the Framework Element

| Objective | Project Consistency |
|--|---|
| c. Where the size, use, and/or configuration of the industrial parcels adversely impact adjacent residential neighborhoods: | Live/Work development, revitalization and commercial growth. |
| d. Where available infrastructure is inadequate, and improvements are economically infeasible to support the needs of industrial uses; | This Project Site provides a catalytic opportunity to provide a higher and better use for the Property that can contribute new jobs, retail and residential uses in close proximity to Downtown Los Angeles. The Project and its uses will be consistent with the |
| e. Where the conversion of industrial lands to an alternative use will not create a fragmented pattern of development and reduce the integrity and viability of existing industrial areas; | diversity of surrounding uses in the Project S area, including a garden store, hair sa members-only club and restaurant, and of related uses. |
| f. Where the conversion of industrial lands to an alternative use will not result in an adverse impact on adjacent residential neighborhoods, commercial districts, or other land uses; | |
| g. Where it can be demonstrated that the reduction of industrial lands will not adversely impact the City's ability to accommodate sufficient industrial uses to provide jobs for the City's residents or incur adverse fiscal impacts; and/or | |
| h. Where existing industrial uses constitute a hazard to adjacent residential or natural areas. | |
| 3.14.7 Consider the potential redesignation of non-industrial properties located adjacent to lands designated and developed with industrial uses for industrial purposes by amending the community plans or by conditional use permits based on the following criteria: | Not Applicable. The Project does not propose to re-designate a property for expanded industrial use. |
| a. The redesignation is required to accommodate the expansion of existing industrial uses to facilitate their retention in areas in which they are located; | |
| b. There is substantial support of the property owners of the parcels to be redesignated; | |
| c. There is no significant disruption or intrusion into existing residential neighborhoods, commercial districts, or other land uses; | |
| d. There are no adverse environmental impacts (traffic, noise, lighting, air pollution, other) on | |

Table 6.XI-1 Project Consistency with Applicable Policies of the Framework Element

| Table 6.XI-1 |
|---|
| Project Consistency with Applicable Policies of the Framework Element |

| Objective | Project Consistency |
|---|--|
| adjacent land uses due to the industrial uses; and | |
| e. There is adequate infrastructure to support the expanded industrial use(s). | |
| 3.14.8 Encourage the development in areas designated as "Industrial-Heavy" of critical public facilities that are necessary to support the needs of residents and businesses but normally are incompatible with residential neighborhoods and commercial districts, such as corporate vards. | Inconsistent. The Project does not include critical public facilities. However, the Project is consistent with Policy 3.14.6, which considers the potential re-designation of marginal industrial lands for alternative uses by amending community plans. |
| 3.14.9 Initiate programs for lot consolidation and implement improvements to assist in the retention/expansion of existing and attraction of new industrial uses, where feasible. | Not Applicable. This Policy is a City-wide policy for the City to initiate programs and implement improvements to encourage industrial uses City- wide and is therefore not applicable on a project- by-project basis. |
| Framework Element: Economic Development | Chapter |
| 7.B A City with land appropriately and sufficiently designated to sustain a robust commercial and industrial base. | Consistent. The Project will help sustain a robust commercial base in the City. The Project would create new Live/Work, commercial, retail, and office uses that would contribute to the economy by creating new businesses, jobs, and sales tax revenue. |
| 7.2.8 Retain the current manufacturing and industrial land use designations, consistent with other Framework Element policies, to provide adequate quantities of land for emerging industrial sectors. | Inconsistent. Although the Project would not retain the existing industrial land use designation, the Project would meet the needs of the City by providing adequate commercial area for new jobs, businesses and economic activity. Based on the changing demographics of the immediate area, the site is not suited to a large-scale industrial operation. Please see Framework Policy 3.1.1 and 3.14.1, above, for a thorough discussion of applicable policies that furthers the Project's consistency with the City's Framework Element. |
| 7.2.9 Limit the redesignation of existing industrial land to other land uses except in cases where such redesignation serves to mitigate existing land use conflicts, and where it meets the criteria spelled out in Policy 3.14.6 of Chapter 3: <i>Land Use</i> . | Inconsistent. Although the Project is inconsistent with this policy that limits the redesignation of existing industrial land, the proposed Project Site meets the criteria for amendment discussed in Policy 3.14.6 as it is located in an area characterized by smaller parcels and substandard streets, restricting the potential for site expansion required by newer industries. |

| Objective | Project Consistency |
|---|---|
| 7.2.10 Ensure that the City's industrial sites are regionally competitive to maintain and enhance a core manufacturing base. | Inconsistent. The Project Site is not suited to industrial or manufacturing uses due to surrounding uses and insufficient infrastructure including street widths. However, the Project will enhance the area with a new ground up mixed-use project that respects the industrial character of the area by constructing a building with design features that complement other industrial buildings and the character of the area. |
| 7.2.11 Ensure that the City has sufficient quantities of land suitable to accommodate existing, new and relocating industrial firms, whose operations are appropriate to a specific location in Los Angeles. | Consistent. Per the Central City North Community Plan, existing planned industrial land use is 914 acres within the Community Plan. The Project Site is 1.42 acres, which comprises approximately 0.0015 percent of the total planned industrial land use within the Community Plan area. The requested discretionary actions are site-specific and would not amend or change the land use designation or zones of any of the other industrial properties in the vicinity. After Project implementation, there would still exist many sites for potential industrial related projects whose operation would fit in the area. Therefore, the Project is substantially consistent with Policy 7.2.11. |
| 7.2.12 Establish, as shown in Figure 7-1, the area adjacent to the Port of Los Angeles, the rail corridor bisecting the San Fernando Valley, and the South Central/Southeast industrial area as market-linked targeted industrial areas (market-linked areas are described on page 7-4). | Not Applicable. The Project Site is not near the Port of Los Angeles or the other designated areas. This Policy is not applicable. |
| 7.3.5 Improve the movement of goods and workers to industrial areas. | Not Applicable. The Project does not involve improvements that impact the movement of good and workers. |
| 7.3.7 Prioritize the retention and renewal of existing industrial businesses. | Inconsistent. The Project Site is not suited to industrial or manufacturing uses due to surrounding uses and insufficient infrastructure including street widths. However, the Project will enhance the area with a new ground up mixed-use project that respects the industrial character of the area by constructing a building with design features that complement other industrial buildings and the character of the area |
| 7.3.8 Assist existing industries located in Los Angeles with their expansion plans and/or relocation efforts to find suitable industrial sites in the City. | Not Applicable. This policy is not applicable to the Project because it is a Citywide policy not project-specific. |
| 7.5.3 Strive to provide an industrial business climate that meets the needs of the targeted industries. | Inconsistent. This is a City-wide goal that is not project-specific. The Project does not |

 Table 6.XI-1

 Project Consistency with Applicable Policies of the Framework Element

Table 6.XI-1Project Consistency with Applicable Policies of the Framework Element

| Objective | Project Consistency |
|---|---|
| | propose/provide an industrial business that meets the needs of the targeted industries. |
| Source: City of Los Angeles General Plan. | |

Project Consistency Discussion

<u>DTLA 2040</u>

The City is currently undertaking DTLA 2040, which involves an update of the Central City and Central City North Community Plans and would modify the land use designations and zoning for Downtown Los Angeles. DTLA 2040 began in 2014 and is currently in the environmental review process. With this, the City was the recipient of funding from Metro's Transit Oriented Development (TOD) Planning Grant Program, which encourages cities to create land use regulations that support transit ridership and neighborhood around existing and future transit stations. In general, as part of the Community Plan Update process and DTLA 2040, the City is evaluating the re-designation of land that is currently designated for manufacturing and heavy industrial uses to different designations that could accommodate housing, general commercial uses, and other new industries.

The Project Site is proposed to be designated "Hybrid Industrial (HI)" under the Downtown Community Plan. At this time, the Downtown Community Plan is in draft form and is not a formal document and cannot be used to illustrate compliance with City goals and objectives. Nonetheless, according to the City, the purpose of this zone is to preserve land for jobs and to foster job creation in areas previously designated for industrial use. General uses permitted in the HI designation are mixed-use, creative office, live/work and production uses.

Central City North (CCN) Community Plan

The CCN Community Plan promotes an arrangement of land use, infrastructure, and services intended to enhance the economic, social, and physical health, safety, welfare, and convenience of the people who live, work and invest in the community. By serving to guide development, the CCN encourages progress and change within the community to meet anticipated needs and circumstances, promotes balanced growth, builds on economic strengths and opportunities while protecting the physical, economic, and social investments in the community to the extent reasonable and feasible. The current land use designation for the Project Site in the Community Plan is Heavy Manufacturing; however, the Project proposes a plan amendment to Commercial Manufacturing to allow residential uses.

As discussed on **Table 6.XI-2** and below, the Project would be substantially consistent with a majority of the applicable objectives and, therefore, no significant impacts regarding consistency with this plan would occur.

| Guideline | Consistency Discussion | | |
|--|--|--|--|
| Residential | | | |
| 1-1: To provide for the preservation of existing housing and for the development of new housing to meet the diverse economic and physical needs of the existing residents and projected population of the Central City North Plan area to the year 2010. | Consistent. The Project Site is located in a highly urbanized area in the City. The Project would develop 106 residential live/work dwelling units, approximately 13,979 square feet of commercial land uses, and 92,740 square feet of office uses within an HQTA, as defined by SCAG, and a transit priority area as defined by SB. | | |
| | With this, the Project would create new commercial, retail, and office uses that would contribute to the economy by creating new businesses, jobs, and sales tax revenue. More importantly, the Project would provide housing to meet the diverse economic and physical needs of the City. | | |
| 1-2: To locate new housing in a manner which reduces vehicular trips and makes it accessible to services and facilities. | Consistent. The Project Site is located in a highly urbanized area in the City. The Project would develop 106 residential live/work dwelling units, approximately 13,979 square feet of commercial land uses, and 92,740 square feet of office uses within an HQTA, as defined by SCAG, and a transit priority area as defined by SB 743. The Project Site is in proximity to existing bus lines. Additionally, the Project includes 110 secure bicycle parking spaces. | | |
| 1-3: To preserve and enhance the varied and distinct residential character and integrity of existing residential neighborhoods. | Consistent. The Project will not impact an existing residential neighborhood but will provide a new residential community in a live/work, mixed use environment. The Project includes infill development of new live/work residential and commercial land uses that are needed in the area of the Project Site. The Project would set aside 11% of the proposed units for Very Low Income households, thereby, ensuring a varied and distinct residential character. | | |
| 1-4: To promote and insure the provision of adequate housing for all persons regardless of income, age, or ethnic background. | Consistent. The Project includes infill development of new live/work residential and commercial land uses that are needed in the area of the Project Site. The Project would set aside 11% of the proposed units for Very Low Income households, thereby, being consistent with this objective to provide housing for all incomes. | | |

Table 6.XI-2Project Consistency with the Community Plan

| Table 6.XI-2 | | | | |
|---|--|--|--|--|
| Project Consistency with the Community Plan | | | | |

| Guideline | Consistency Discussion | | | | |
|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| Commercial | | | | | |
| 2-1: To conserve and strengthen viable commercial development in the community and to provide additional opportunities for new commercial development and services. | Consistent. The Project includes infill development of new live/work residential and commercial and office land uses that are needed in the area of the Project Site. | | | | |
| 2-2: To attract uses which strengthen the economic base and expand market opportunities for existing and new businesses. | Consistent. The Project includes infill development of new live/work residential and commercial and office land uses that are needed in the area of the Project Site. | | | | |
| 2-3:To enhance the identity of distinctive commercial districts and to identify pedestrian oriented districts. | Consistent. The Project would enhance the commercial area by adding a distinctive mixed use project. The Project would remove existing concrete space near the abandoned building and construct housing and office uses near jobs and transit. Additionally, the Project would enhance the pedestrian nature of the area by incorporating outdoor open space, pedestrian connections and amenities, and plant 41 trees on-site in an area that is currently lacking green space and trees. The Project would be designed to encourage pedestrian activity and walking as a transportation mode. The Project would be designed to provide connections to the adjacent public sidewalks and would include site enhancements to promote walkability. | | | | |
| Industrial | | | | | |
| 3 Sufficient land for a variety of industrial uses with maximum employment opportunities which are safe for the environment and the work force and which have minimal adverse impact on adjacent uses. | Inconsistent . The Project does not retain, maintain, or introduce industrial uses on the Project Site. However, the Project does promote City goals of maximizing employment opportunities by providing commercial and office uses intended to serve existing and future technology uses in the area. | | | | |
| H3-1.1 Designate lands for the continuation of existing industry and development of new industrial parks, research and development uses, light manufacturing, and similar uses which provide employment opportunities. | Consistent. The Project would provide new employment opportunities in the area by providing Live/Work units and adequate commercial area for new jobs, businesses and economic activity, which can be accommodated in the proposed CM zone. | | | | |
| 3-1.2 Adequate compatibility should be achieved through design treatments, compliance with environmental protection standards and health and | Not Applicable. The Project is not proposing any industrial uses that need to address compatibility | | | | |

| Guideline | Consistency Discussion | | |
|---|--|--|--|
| safety requirements for industrial uses where they | with adjoining residential neighborhood and | | |
| adjoin residential neighborhoods and commercial uses. | commercial uses. | | |
| 3-1.3 Require that any proposed development be designed to enhance and be compatible with adjacent development. | Consistent. The Project is designed to enhance and be compatible with adjacent development that fits the fabric of the area and surrounding community. The Project's residential units and neighborhood commercial and creative office use are compatible with adjoining uses and with the changing character of the Arts District area. Specifically, as noted in Figure 2-2 in Section 2, of this SCEA, there are several newly proposed projects in and around the Project Site that include a wide variety of uses other than industrial related land uses. With these projects, the Project will enhance the area with a new ground up mixed-use project that respects the industrial character of the area by constructing a building with design features that complement other industrial buildings, including the industrial building immediately adjacent to the east. The Project's new commercial space will be job creating and the ground floor uses will be neighborhood serving and beneficial not only to the Project residents but also to residents of other mixed-use developments located in the surrounding neighborhood. To activate the street frontage, the ground floor commercial space will front on all three streets. The ongoing development of mixed-use projects in the area surrounding the Project Site would provide | | |
| 3-2.1 Support the existing artists-in-residence in | Consistent. The Project would support the | | |
| Central City North as a cultural resource for the community. | existing designated Artists-In-Residence area of the Community Plan and spur additional growth of this resource. As stated earlier, the Project will contribute to the City's fiscal and economic viability, while revitalizing an area that has lacked new investment, by introducing commercial uses that will be beneficial to local residents and employees. The Project is consistent with the recent growth of the Arts District area with new developments and conversions of aging industrial buildings to mixed-use projects containing Live/Work. The development of more Live/Work residential units helps to achieve the City's vision of a more livable city. Additionally, the Project would provide 11 Very Low-income | | |

Table 6.XI-2Project Consistency with the Community Plan

| Guideline | Consistency Discussion | | | |
|--|--|--|--|--|
| | Units that helps to achieve a more livable city by providing affordable housing units. | | | |
| 3-3.1 The numerous large rail yards and other industrially planned parcels located in predominantly industrial areas should be protected from development by other uses which do not support the industrial base of the City and the community. | Inconsistent Although the Project does not directly protect industrial development, the Project's new live/work and commercial space will serve the goal of generating new housing, jobs and economic activity in the area, and thus the Project is a development which supports the industrial base of the City and the community. The Project Site is in an area in transition in the Downtown Los Angeles area, and the site Is not suited to large-scale industrial development due to the lack of infrastructure and street widths in the area. | | | |
| Source: City Central North Community Plan. | | | | |

 Table 6.XI-2

 Project Consistency with the Community Plan

The Project would help to foster the development of a transitional neighborhood demolishing aging automobile service buildings and surface parking lot to construct a mixed-use development that would contribute to the revitalization of an underutilized area of Downtown Los Angeles. The Project would increase the housing unit count in the area by 106 residential units, including 11 units for Very Low Income Households. Although the Project is not wholly consistent with all policies listed above related to industrial land uses, a project does not need to be in perfect conformity with each and every policy or objective of a General Plan a project does not need to be in perfect conformity with each and every policy according to the ruling in *Sequoyah Hills Homeowners Association v. City of Oakland*. Rather, to be "consistent," the project must be "compatible with the objectives, policies, general land uses, and programs specified in the applicable plan," meaning that a project must be in "agreement or harmony" with the applicable land use plan to be consistent with that plan.

The Project is consistent with the majority of applicable policies and objectives promoting employment, economic vitality and the provision of a variety of housing types and styles. The Project will bring live/work and commercial development to a transitional area of downtown which is not currently thriving and is not well-suited to future heavy industrial development. The Project Site is also well-served by transit and ideal for a more active, pedestrian oriented mixed use development. Additionally, the Project would meet or exceed several other relevant policies related to residential uses, mass transit, job-oriented developments, and employment opportunities. The Project would also not conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy or regulation that was adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect. Overall, the Project would have a less than significant impact. With the approval of the requested entitlements, the Project would conform to the new General Plan and Zoning designations, and no mitigation measures are needed to obtain a variance for a General Plan Amendment or Zone Change.

Cumulative Impacts

With approval of the General Plan Amendment and other entitlements requested for the Project, the Project will be consistent with the General Plan and all existing regulations associated with development of the Project Site. For the related projects, the City would assess whether a General Plan Amendment is necessary and would ensure the consistency of those projects with all applicable plans, policies, and regulations, individually. Each of the related projects needing a General Plan amendment must comply with City Charter Section 555 and meet the requirement that the project or area has a significant social, economic, or physical identity. This focused review and compliance with the Charter would ensure that all related projects are consistent with the General Plan and would ensure that cumulative impacts are less than significant. Additionally, the Project's scope of work is limited to the subject site, and the requested discretionary actions are site-specific. The Project would not amend or change the land use designation or zones of any of the other properties in the vicinity which are designated and zoned for industrial uses. Analyzing potential impacts of displacing industrial land uses on other properties would be speculative and not reasonably foreseeable. Thus, regardless of any potentially inconsistencies the related projects may result in, because the Project would not result in any inconsistencies, the Project would not have the potential to contribute to any cumulative inconsistency impacts.

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

XII. MINERAL RESOURCES

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|----|--|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-----------|
| Wo | ould the project: | | | | |
| a. | Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and the residents of the state? | | | | |
| b. | Result in the loss of availability of a locally- important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? | | | | |

a. Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and the residents of the state?

No Impact. The Project Site is located in an urbanized area of the City. There are no known mineral resources on the Project Site or in the vicinity.¹ The Project Site is currently zoned M3-1 and the applicant has requested a zone change to CM-2. Thus, the Project Site would not be zoned for oil extraction and drilling, or mining of mineral resources, and there are no such sites at the Project Site. Further, the Project Site is not located in an identified Mineral Resource Zone in the City of Los Angeles General Plan Conservation Element.² Thus, the Project would not result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and the residents of the state. **Therefore, no impacts related to issue would occur.**

b. Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan?

No Impact. The Project Site is located in an urbanized area of the City. The Project Site is not located in an identified Mineral Resource Zone in the City of Los Angeles General Plan

¹ City of Los Angeles General Plan, Conservation Element, Exhibit A.

² City of Los Angeles, Conservation Element Exhibit A Mineral Resources Map, http://planning.lacity.org/cwd/gnlpln/consvelt.pdf

Conservation Element or any other applicable land use plan.³ Thus, the Project would not result in the loss of availability of a locally-important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan. **Therefore, no impacts related to issue would occur.**

Cumulative Impacts

As discussed previously, the Project would not result in any impacts related to mineral resources. Regardless to what degree the related projects could result in impacts related to mineral resources, because the Project would not result in any impacts related to mineral resources, the Project would not have the potential to contribute to any cumulative impacts.

³ Ibid.

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

XIII. NOISE

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|----|--|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-----------|
| Wo | ould the project result in: | | | | |
| a. | Generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies? | | | | |
| b. | Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels? | | | \boxtimes | |
| C. | For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project expose people residing or working in the | | | | |

This section evaluates noise impacts that would be generated by construction and operation of the Project. The analysis compares these impacts to applicable regulations and thresholds of significance. Noise measurement technical reports, calculation worksheets, and a map of noise receptors and measurement locations are included in Appendix F.

F <u>Noise Appendix</u>, DKA Planning, March 2019.

project area to excessive noise levels?

a. Generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?

Less Than Significant Impact.

Regulatory Compliance Measures

The Project will comply with the following regulatory compliance measures to help further reduce potential impacts:

- **NOISE-RCM-1:** All diesel-powered construction vehicles shall be equipped with exhaust mufflers or other suitable noise reduction devices capable of achieving a sound attenuation of at least 3 dBA.
- **NOISE-RCM-2:** Temporary sound barriers capable of achieving a sound attenuation of at least 10 dBA shall be erected along the Project's boundaries.

Analysis of Project Impacts

On-Site Construction Activities

Proposed construction would generate noise during the 24 months of demolition, grading, building construction, and application of architectural coatings. During all construction phases, noise-generating activities could occur at the Project Site between the hours of 7:00 A.M. and 9:00 P.M. Monday through Friday, in accordance with Section 41.40(a) of the LAMC. On Saturdays, construction would be permitted to occur between 8:00 A.M. and 6:00 P.M. Construction activities would not occur on national holidays. The Project would require heavy equipment such as excavators, loaders, and other earthmoving vehicles. Smaller equipment such as forklifts, generators, and various powered hand tools would also be utilized. Off-site secondary noises would be generated by construction worker vehicles, vendor deliveries, and haul trucks.

As shown in **Table 6.XIII-1**, regulatory compliance with LAMC Section 112.05 would ultimately limit any noise levels from powered construction equipment to 75 dBA or below at 50 feet, even though the Project Site is not located within 500 feet of residential land uses. As reflected in Regulatory Compliance Measures NOISE-RCM-1 and NOISE-RCM-2, standard, industry-wide "best practices" for construction in urban or otherwise noise-sensitive areas would ensure that the Project's construction noise does not exceed this noise limit. "Best practices" utilized by the Project would include erecting temporary noise barriers around the Project's perimeter, using mufflers to dampen noise from internal combustion engines, and warming-up or staging equipment away from sensitive receptors. As discussed earlier, the Department of City Planning recommends that LAMC Section 112.05 be used as a threshold of significance for construction noise. Therefore, the Project's construction-related noise impacts would be less than significant.
Therefore, because the Project would comply fully with LAMC Section 112.05, generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies would not occur, and potential impacts would be less than significant.

| Noine Source | Noise Level | Significant? | | |
|--|-------------|---------------------|--------------|--|
| Noise Source | Reference | With Best Practices | Significant? | |
| Backhoe | 77.6 | 67.6 | No | |
| Dozer | 81.7 | 71.7 | No | |
| Excavator | 80.7 | 70.7 | No | |
| Front End Loader | 79.1 | 69.1 | No | |
| Gradall | 83.4 | 73.4 | No | |
| Grader | 85.0 | 75.0 | No | |
| ¹ Noise levels derived from the Federal Highway Administration's Roadway Construction Noise Model | | | | |

Table 6.XIII-1Maximum Construction Noise LevelsWith Implementation of Best Practices

¹ Noise levels derived from the Federal Highway Administration's Roadway Construction Noise Model, version 1.1 (FHWA RCNM 1.1).

Estimated Project construction noise levels were modeled using the noise reference levels of both an excavator and loader working in tandem to represent a conservative-scenario noise source during the construction phase. As shown on **Table 6.XIII-2**, this equipment used in tandem can produce average weighted peak noise levels of 48.3 dBA at a reference distance of 50 feet. The noise levels of other construction equipment and vehicles would not be as loud or as extensive over the duration of the Project's construction phase. Thus, noise levels of all other construction equipment and phases would not exceed the impacts analyzed here. As shown on **Table 6.XIII-2**, ambient noise levels during Project construction would increase up to 0.2 dBA L_{eq} at nearby sensitive receptors. These increases would not exceed the City's 5 dBA threshold in its L.A. CEQA Thresholds Guide. **Therefore, no significant Project impacts related to on-site construction noise would occur and impacts would be less than significant.**

| Receptor Location | Maximum Construction Noise (dBA at 50 feet) | Existing Ambient (dBA, L _{eq}) | New Ambient (dBA, L _{eq}) | Increase |
|--------------------------------------|--|--|--|----------|
| 1. Metropolitan High School | 43.8 | 57.9 | 58. | 0.2 |
| 2. 726 Santa Fe Avenue residences | 45.8 | 61.5 | 61.6 | 0.1 |
| 3. Art House live/work residences | 48.3 | 66.4 | 66.5 | 0.1 |

Table 6.XIII-2Estimated Construction Noise Levels

Off-Site Construction Activities – Haul Trucks

With regard to off-site construction-related noise impacts, peak noise sources would result from haul truck activity during demolition and grading activities, which would require up to approximately 17 haul trips per workday to export excavated soils and demolished materials from the Project Sites to a regional landfill. Such activity can increase ambient noise levels at roadside sensitive receptors along the designated haul route. A 3 dBA increase in traffic-related noise levels is associated with a doubling of traffic, assuming that travel speeds and fleet mix remain constant. A 5 dBA increase in noise levels would require an approximate tripling of traffic. Though the addition of haul trucks would alter the fleet mix of haul route roadways, this effect can be accounted for by the concept of equivalent vehicles, which equates the noise levels from heavy trucks to an acoustically equivalent number of automobiles. According to Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Reference Energy Mean Emission Levels (REMELs) for its TNM noise prediction software, one heavy truck traveling at 35 mph produces as much noise as approximately 19 automobiles traveling at the same speed. This relationship can be used to determine whether the addition of Project haul trucks would result in an equivalent doubling or tripling of traffic volumes along nearby roadways, and thus whether or not they would be capable of producing a significant impact at any roadside sensitive receptors.

Considering that the Project would generate up to approximately 17 haul trips per workday, and that the noise impact of these haul trips would be acoustically equivalent to 323 automobile trips per work day, the Project would not cause an equivalent doubling or tripling of traffic levels that would be associated with either a 3 dBA or 5 dBA noise increase, respectively. The Project is located in a dense urban environment with high traffic levels. Roadways in the vicinity of the Project experience hundreds of automobile trips per hour, even during off-peak hours of travel. On average, Project haul trucks would not contribute more than 50 equivalent automobile trips per work hour on nearby roadways. As a result, the Project's hauling activities would not substantially increase ambient noise levels at sensitive receptors located along haul route roadways. The Project's off-site construction-related noise impact associated with haul trips would be less than significant.

On-Site Operational Noise Sources

During operations, the Project would produce noise from both on- and off-site sources. As discussed below, the Project would not result in an exposure of persons to or a generation of noise levels in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies. The Project would also not increase surrounding noise levels by more than 3 dBA CNEL, the minimum threshold of significance adopted by this analysis. **Therefore, the Project's operational on-site noise impacts would be less than significant.**

<u>Mechanical Equipment.</u> Regulatory compliance with LAMC Section 112.02 would ensure that noises from sources such as heating, air conditioning, and ventilation systems not increase ambient noise levels at neighboring occupied properties by more than 5 dBA. Given this regulation, the elevated ambient noise levels along Santa Fe Avenue, the relatively quiet operation of modern rooftop-mounted HVAC systems, and distances to receptors, it is unlikely that noise from the Project's HVAC systems would be audible at off-site locations. Nearly all of the Project's surrounding commercial and industrial uses contain similar rooftop-mounted HVAC units. The Project's HVAC systems would be neighborhood by any substantial degree.

<u>Auto-Related Activities.</u> The Project would include 402 parking spaces in one subterranean and two above-ground levels of garage space. To be discussed in greater detail below, the Project is forecast to generate a maximum of 166 A.M. and 174 P.M. net peak-hour vehicle trips that would access the parking garage from Bay Street through a vehicular ramp down to a subterranean level. Parking for commercial uses would be at-grade and on the second floor, accessed via Sacramento Street. Service trucks and loading activities would also access the property through a rear driveway off Sacramento Street. Garage-related traffic would have no impact on nearby sensitive receptors, as the closest receptor are live/work units located 690 feet southeast of the Project Site, with several blocks of intervening buildings and structures that would result in no change in ambient noise levels at that receptor. As such, noise levels associated with the Project's parking garage would have a negligible effect on the surrounding noise environment.

<u>Residential, Retail, and Commercial Uses.</u> Noise associated with residential, retail and other commercial uses would be contained internally within the Project. Normal and reasonable use of the Project's open space areas would not be expected to generate a substantial amount of noise. Noise from speech and conversation generally does not exceed approximately 65 dBA at a reference distance of one meter. These noise levels attenuate rapidly and would not be capable of elevating surrounding ambient noise levels by more than a nominal degree.

Off-Site Operational Noise Sources

The majority of the Project's operational noise impacts would be from off-site mobile sources associated with its net new daily vehicle trips. On a typical weekday, the Project is forecast to generate an estimated 1,862 net new daily trips, including 166 net new A.M. peak-hour trips and 174 net new P.M. peak-hour trips.¹

As shown on **Tables 6.XIII-3** and **6.XIII-4**, Project-related traffic would generate no more than a 9.8 percent increase in traffic on key roadway segments near the Project Site, with the greatest

¹ Linscott Law & Greenspan, Traffic Impact Analysis For a 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project, March 2019.

impacts along Mateo Street around 7th Street. The City's L.A. CEQA Guidelines finds that a doubling of traffic volumes (i.e., 100 percent increase) is needed to increase ambient noise levels near roadways by 3 dBA or more. As a result, Project-related traffic would have no impact on roadside ambient noise levels in the Project Site vicinity. Twenty-four-hour CNEL impacts would similarly be negligible, well below the minimum 3 dBA noise increase threshold. **Therefore, the Project's operational off-site noise impacts would be less than significant.**

| | Traffic Volumes | | | | |
|---|-----------------|-------------------------|-----------------------------|---------------------|------------------------|
| Roadway Segment | | No Project (2019) | Project Impact (2019) | Percent Increase | Significant Impact? |
| Mateo Street couth of 7th Street | Ν | 235 | 17 | 7.2% | No |
| Mateo Street South of 7" Street | S | 354 | 32 | 9.0% | No |
| Mateo Street couth of 7th Street | Ν | 524 | 14 | 2.7% | No |
| Mateo Street South of 7" Street | S | 204 | 17 | 8.3% | No |
| 7 th Street west of Sente Fe Avenue | Е | 450 | 3 | 0.7% | No |
| 7" Street west of Santa Fe Avenue | W | 849 | 5 | 0.6% | No |
| Oth Street west of Sente Fe Avenue | Е | 361 | 361 | 0.0% | No |
| W | | 459 | 459 | 0.0% | No |
| Source: DKA Planning, 2019. An increase of over 100.00 percent is needed to increase ambient noise levels by 3 dBA. | | | | | |

Table 6.XIII-3 Existing + Project AM Peak-Hour Traffic Volumes

| Roadway Segment | | Traffic Volumes | | | |
|---|---|-------------------------|-----------------------------|---------------------|------------------------|
| | | No Project (2019) | Project Impact (2019) | Percent Increase | Significant Impact? |
| Motoo Stroot couth of 7th Stroot | Ν | 334 | 27 | 8.1% | No |
| Maleo Street south of 7" Street | S | 235 | 23 | 9.8% | No |
| Motoo Street couth of 7th Street | Ν | 189 | 16 | 8.5% | No |
| Maleo Street south of 7" Street | S | 477 | 21 | 4.4% | No |
| 7th Otreat west of Conta Fa Avenue | Е | 909 | 5 | 0.6% | No |
| 7" Street west of Santa Fe Avenue | W | 446 | 11 | 2.5% | No |
| Oth Ctreat west of Conta Fa Avenue | Е | 416 | 0 | 0.0% | No |
| 8" Street west of Santa Fe Avenue | | 452 | 0 | 0.0% | No |
| Source: DKA Planning, 2019. An increase of over 100.00 percent is needed to increase ambient noise levels by 3 dBA. | | | | | |

Table 6.XIII-4 Existing + Project PM Peak-Hour Traffic Volumes

Similarly, and as listed in Appendix F to this SCEA, the Project's contribution to permanent cumulative off-site ambient noise level increases would also be negligible, as traffic volumes in 2022 and beyond without the Project would be even larger. As a result, the Project's contribution

toward cumulative traffic volumes would be even smaller than without the addition of related projects. As a result, the Project's cumulative operational noise impact would be considered **less than significant.**

b. Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels?

Less Than Significant Impact.

Project Impacts

Construction Vibration

As discussed earlier, construction of the Project would require heavy-duty earthmoving vehicles such as excavators and front-end loaders. These types of vehicles can produce peak vibration velocities of up to 0.089 inches per second PPV at a distance of 25 feet.² Auger drilling rigs for shoring activities can produce similar vibration levels. Solid concrete single-story buildings are situated near the Project Site, with none including residential or noise sensitive uses. Thus, no building would experience potentially damaging levels of groundborne vibration from the Project's construction activities. Other buildings are located at greater distances from the Project and would experience reduced vibrations. Therefore, the Project's construction-related vibration impacts would be less than significant.

Operational Vibration

During Project operations, there would be no significant stationary sources of ground-borne vibration, such as heavy equipment or industrial operations. Operational ground-borne vibration in the Project Site's vicinity would be generated by its related vehicle travel on local roadways. However as previously discussed, road vehicles rarely create vibration levels perceptible to humans unless road surfaces are poorly maintained and have potholes or bumps. **As a result, the Project's long-term vibration impacts would be less than significant.**

c. For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport land use plan, or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels?

No Impact. The Project Site is not located within an airport land use plan or within two miles of a public airport or public use airport. The closest airport to the Project Site is the Hollywood Burbank Airport located approximately 16 miles northwest of the Site. Based on the above the Project would not exacerbate the existing airport noise conditions so as to expose people residing or working in the Project area to excessive noise levels. **Therefore, the Project would not**

² Ibid.

expose people residing or working in the Project area to excessive noise levels, and no impact would occur.

Cumulative Impacts

Construction Noise

As discussed previously, construction activities would temporarily increase ambient noise levels at nearby receptors. Any other future developments that are built concurrently with the Project could further contribute to these temporary increases in ambient noise levels. Assuming that the related projects incorporate a similar set of project design features and/or mitigation measures that represent industry "best practices" for controlling the construction noise of urban infill projects in compliance with the City's noise regulations, potential impacts would be less than significant. Combined, simultaneous construction noises from these projects (and their respective distance from one another) is not expected to increase ambient noise greater than 5 dBA, if constructed concurrently. With industry standard best practices and the identified mitigation, the Project would have a minimal and less than significant impact at the above identified sensitive receptors, and their potential to contribute to cumulative construction noise levels at these receptors would be less than significant.

Operational Noise

The majority of the Project's long-term noise would come from traffic traveling to and from the Project Site. This addition of future traffic from any new developments in the vicinity of the Project Site and overall ambient traffic growth would elevate ambient noise levels surrounding local roadways. However, the Project's individual contribution to permanent off-site ambient noise level increases would be minimal. As shown above on **Tables 6.XIII-3 and 6.XIII-4**, with or without the addition of Project traffic, future roadside ambient noise levels would not increase by 3 dBA to or within their respective "Normally Unacceptable" or "Clearly Unacceptable" noise categories, or by 5 dBA or greater overall. **Therefore, the Project's cumulative operational noise impact would be less than significant.**

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

XIV. POPULATION AND HOUSING

replacement housing elsewhere?

| | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|---|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-------------|
| Would the project: | | | | |
| a. Induce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or other infrastructure)? | | | | |
| b. Displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing, necessitating the construction of | | | | \boxtimes |

a. Induce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or other infrastructure)?

Less Than Significant Impact. A significant impact could occur if the Project would locate new development such as homes, businesses, and/or infrastructure, with the effect of substantially inducing growth in the proposed area that would otherwise not have occurred as rapidly or in as great a magnitude. Based on the L.A. CEQA Thresholds Guide the determination of whether a project results in a significant impact on population and housing growth considers (a) the degree to which a project would cause growth (i.e., new housing or employment generators) or accelerate development in an undeveloped area that exceeds projected/planned levels for the year of project occupancy, and would result in an adverse physical change in the environment; (b) whether the project would introduce unplanned infrastructure that was not previously evaluated in the adopted Community Plan or General Plan; and (c) the extent to which growth would occur without implementation of the Project.

Project Impacts

Construction

The construction activities associated with the Project would create temporary constructionrelated jobs. Nevertheless, the work requirements of most construction activities are highly specialized, so that construction workers remain at a job site only for the time in which their specific skills are needed to complete a particular phase of the construction process. Thus, construction workers would not be anticipated to relocate their residence to the Project area and would not induce substantial population growth and/or require permanent housing. Therefore, the Project's indirect population growth impacts related to construction activities would be less than significant.

Operation

The Project includes the development of up to 106 new residential dwelling units, approximately 13,978 square feet of retail,13,126 square feet of restaurant uses, and 92,740 square feet of office space. As identified in Appendix A to this SCEA, the Air Quality and GHG model runs used CalEEMod project characteristics for the Project Site as 303 persons for the estimated population after implementation of the Project.

As discussed above and as shown in **Table 6.XIV-1**, the Project would generate approximately 266 net new employees, taking into account the existing use by month-to-month tenants at the Project Site.

| Land Use | Size | Employee Rate | Number of Employees | |
|--|--|-------------------------------------|--------------------------------|--|
| Existing Uses | | | | |
| General Office | 18,000 | 2.6 employees / 1,000 sf | 47 | |
| Proposed Uses | | | | |
| Retail | 13,978 sf | 1 employee / 369 sf | 38 | |
| Restaurant | 13,126 sf | 1 employee / 388 sf | 34 | |
| Office | 92,740 sf | 2.6 employees / 1,000 sf | 241 | |
| Total 313 | | | | |
| Net New 266 | | | | |
| sf = square feet The employee generation fac Study and independent third | tor is from the Los party research. | Angeles Unified School District, 20 | 18 Developer Fee Justification | |

Table 6.XIV-1 Project Estimated Employee Generation

Population: As shown on **Table 6.XIV-2**, below, compared to the anticipated population growth in the City between the 2019 baseline year and the Project's anticipated buildout year of 2023, the Project's residential population would represent 0.13 percent of the total forecasted City population growth during that period. The Project's residential population would represent 0.08 percent of the forecasted growth between 2020 and 2035 in the City and 0.04 percent of the forecasted population growth between 2020 and 2040.

| Net Project Population, Housing, and Employment Growth | Forecast Citywide Growth ¹ | Project % of Forecast Citywide Growth | | | |
|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| As compared to SCAG G | rowth Forecast from 2019 to | 2023 (Interpolated) | | | |
| 290 residents | +218,256 | 0.13 | | | |
| 106 units | +104,232 | 0.10 | | | |
| employees | +135,056 | 0.19 | | | |
| As compared to SCAG Growth Forecast from 2020 to 2035 ¹ | | | | | |
| 290 residents | +328,900 | 0.08 | | | |
| 106 units | +170,900 | 0.06 | | | |
| 266 employees | +89,100 | 0.29 | | | |
| As compared to SCAG Growth Forecast from 2020 to 2040 | | | | | |
| 290 residents | +617,700 | 0.04 | | | |
| 106 units | +234,900 | 0.04 | | | |
| 266 employees | +351,400 | 0.07 | | | |
| ¹ Refer to Table 6.IV-1. | | | | | |

Table 6.XIV-2Project Growth Comparison to Growth Forecasts

Housing: As shown on **Table 6.XIV-2**, compared to the anticipated housing growth in the City between the 2019 baseline year and the Project's anticipated buildout year, the Project's residential housing would represent 0.10 percent of the forecasted City housing growth. The Project's housing units would represent approximately 0.06 percent of forecasted growth between 2020 and 2035 in the City and 0.04 percent between 2020 and 2040.

Employment: As shown on **Table 6.XIV-2**, compared to the anticipated employment growth in the City between the 2019 baseline year and the Project's anticipated buildout year, the Project's employment would represent 0.19 percent of the forecasted City employment growth. The Project's employment would represent approximately 0.29 percent of forecasted growth between 2020 and 2035 in the City and 0.07 percent between 2020 and 2040.

The Project Site is already served by an existing roadway network and utility and public services infrastructure. The Project does not include the development of any new or extended roadways or other infrastructure that would be growth-inducing. For the reasons discussed above, the Project would not indirectly or directly induce substantial population growth. **Therefore, Project impacts related to population growth would be less than significant.**

b. Displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing, necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere?

No Impact. No housing currently exists on the Project Site, and no people live on the Project Site. Thus, the Project would not displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing, necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere. **Therefore, no impacts related to this would occur.**

Cumulative Impacts

The related projects listed in **Section 2 (Project Description)** include development of approximately 13,267 dwelling units. It is possible that some of the sites of these related projects already include residential land uses that would be removed with implementation of the related projects and as such, the total net number of dwelling units that would be created would be fewer than what has been estimated, and it is likely, as a result of natural growth, that many of the units will be occupied by people already residing in the City. Much of the growth in the City is targeted in transit-rich areas such as Downtown Los Angeles. The related project list includes applications and plans under consideration and some or all may not be constructed or may be constructed at lower unit counts than shown. In addition, the City is currently experiencing a strong market environment, and it is anticipated that growth will even out over time. Thus, cumulative growth is assessed over the 2020-2040 year time frame established in the SCAG housing growth forecast. However, for a conservative analysis, it is assumed that all estimated dwelling units would be net new units and all residents would be net new residents. The housing units associated with the related project would generate approximately 36,351 cumulative residents.¹

As shown on **Table 6.XIV-3**, cumulative residential population would represent approximately 22.07 percent of the population growth forecast between 2020 and 2040 for the City, and cumulative housing units would represent approximately 5.6 of the housing growth forecasts between 2020 and 2040 for the City. For a conservative analysis, the comparison of the Project's potential growth as compared to growth forecasts for the City presented above assumes that all of the Project's residents would relocate to the City. As shown on the table, the Project's population, housing, and employment growth falls within SCAG's growth projections for the City. Thus, the Project would not directly contribute to cumulative population growth. **Therefore, the Project's contribution to cumulative population growth in the City would not be considerable.**

¹ Based on a 2.74 persons per household rate as identified above in Table 6.XIV-2.

| Table 6.XIV-3 |
|---|
| Cumulative Comparison to Growth Forecasts (2020-2040) |

| Cumulative Population and Housing Growth | Forecast Citywide Growth ¹ | Cumulative % of Forecast Citywide Growth |
|---|---|--|
| 136,351 residents | +617,700 | 22.07 |
| 13,267 units | +234,900 | 5.6 |
| Refer to Table 6.XIV This conservatively as the Project. | -7-1. assumes that all of the cumulative projects woul | d have the same buildout year |

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

XV. PUBLIC SERVICES

Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services:

| | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|-----------------------------|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-----------|
| a. Fire protection? | | | \boxtimes | |
| b. Police protection? | | | \boxtimes | |
| c. Schools? | | | \boxtimes | |
| d. Parks? | | | \boxtimes | |
| e. Other public facilities? | | | \boxtimes | |

a. Fire protection?

Less Than Significant Impact. The Los Angeles Fire Department (LAFD) provides fire and emergency medical protection services to the Project Site. The Project Site is located in an urbanized area of the City that is currently served by existing LAFD services. Fire stations that would serve the Project Site are shown on **Table 6.XV-1**, below.

| No. | Address | Distance from Project Site (miles) |
|-----|----------------------------|---------------------------------------|
| 17 | 1601 South Santa Fe | 0.5 |
| 9 | 430 7 th Street | 1.5 |

Table 6.XV-1Fire Stations Serving the Project Site

| No. | Address | Distance from Project Site (miles) | | |
|---------|--|---------------------------------------|--|--|
| 4 | 450 East Temple Street | 1.8 | | |
| Source: | Source: LAFD, https://www.lafd.org/fire-stations/station-results, accessed April 2019. | | | |

Table 6.XV-1Fire Stations Serving the Project Site

Construction

Construction activities associated with the Project may temporarily increase demand for fire protection and emergency medical services. Construction activities may also cause the occasional exposure of combustible materials, such as wood, plastics, sawdust, coverings and coatings, to heat sources from machinery and equipment sparking, exposed electrical lines, welding activities, and chemical reactions in combustible materials and coatings.

To comply with California Department of Industrial Relations (Cal-OSHA) and state and City Fire and Building Code requirements, construction managers and personnel would be trained in fire prevention and emergency response, and fire suppression equipment specific to construction would be maintained on-site.¹ Project construction would comply with all applicable codes and ordinances related to the maintenance of mechanical equipment, handling and storage of flammable materials, and cleanup of spills of flammable materials. Thus, in light of City and state regulations and code requirements that would, in part, require personnel to be trained in fire prevention and emergency response, maintenance of fire suppression equipment, and implementation of proper procedures for storage and handling of flammable materials, construction impacts on fire protection and emergency medical services would be less than significant.

Construction activities also have the potential to affect fire protection services, such as emergency vehicle response, by adding construction traffic to the street network and by necessitating partial lane closures during street improvements and utility installations. These impacts, while potentially adverse, are considered to be less than significant if construction activities are temporary in nature and do not create continuing risks.

There are a number of factors that influence emergency response, including alarm transfer time, alarm answering and processing time, mobilization time, risk appraisal, geography, distance, traffic signals, and roadway characteristics. Nevertheless, it is acknowledged that the Project would incrementally increase traffic (as discussed in Section XVII., Transportation/Traffic), which could potentially delay emergency response times, the Project's potential impacts are minimal given these other factors.

¹ https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/1920.html

Overall, construction is not considered to be a high-risk activity, and the LAFD is equipped and prepared to deal with construction-related traffic and fires should they occur. Due to the limited duration of construction activities and compliance with applicable codes, Project construction would not be expected to adversely impact firefighting and emergency services to the extent that there would be a need for new or expanded fire facilities in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times, or other performance objectives of the LAFD. Therefore, impacts associated with construction of the Project would be less than significant.

Operation

As stated previously, the Project would increase the amount of developed square footage on the Project Site, which in turn, would generate new residents, visitors, and employees at the Project Site, and could increase the need for fire protection services at the sites.

Fire Flow

Prior to construction of the Project, the Water Operations Division of LADWP would perform a detailed fire-flow study at the time of permit review (plan check) in order to ascertain whether further water system or site-specific improvements would be necessary. In addition, the LAFD would review the plans for compliance with applicable City Fire Code, California Fire Code, City of Los Angeles Building Code, and National Fire Protection Association standards, thereby ensuring that the Project would not create any undue fire hazard. **Thus, fire flow to the Project Site would be adequate, and the associated impact would be less than significant.**

Response Distance

The nearest fire station with an engine and truck company is Station No. 17, approximately 0.5 miles from the Project Site. Additional fire stations within 2.0 miles include Station Nos. 9 and 4. LAFD's ability to provide adequate fire protection and emergency response services to a site is determined by the response distance and the degree to which emergency response vehicles can successfully navigate the given access ways and adjunct circulation system, which is largely dependent on roadway congestion and intersection level of service (LOS) along the response route., A fire sprinkler system would be included in the mixed-use buildings for all proposed land uses as part of the Project. In addition, the Project would not have unmitigated significant traffic impacts that would add to response delays. Further, the Project would be required to comply with applicable City Fire Code, California Fire Code, City of Los Angeles Building Code, and National Fire Protection Association standards, and would be required to include features such as an emergency and standby power system, a fire command center, established emergency procedures, emergency stairways, appropriately-sized exterior graphics, automatic fireextinguishing system, automatic smoke detection system, emergency voice/alarm communication system, manual alarm fire boxes, etc. Given the close proximity of the closest fire station with an engine and the fire protection systems that would be incorporated into the proposed building, Project impacts related to response distance and time would be less than significant.

Emergency Access

The LAFD would review the Project plans for compliance with the Los Angeles Fire Code, California Fire Code, City of Los Angeles Building Code, and National Fire Protection Association standards, thereby ensuring that the Project would not create any undue fire hazard. The Project would include an emergency response plan that would address the following: mapping of emergency exits, evacuation routes for vehicles and pedestrians, and locations of nearest hospitals and fire departments. **Through compliance with applicable provisions of the Fire Code, Project impacts related to emergency access would be less than significant.**

Cumulative Impacts

Implementation of the related projects could result in a net increase in the number of residents and employees in the Project area and could further increase the demand for fire protection services. Cumulative development requires the LAFD to continually evaluate the need for new or physically altered facilities in order to maintain adequate service ratios. Similar to the proposed Project, the related projects would be subject to the Fire Code and other applicable regulations of the LAMC including, but not limited to, automatic fire sprinkler systems for high-rise buildings and/or residential projects located farther than 1.5 miles from the nearest LAFD Engine or Truck Company to compensate for additional response time, and other recommendations made by the LAFD to ensure fire protection safety. Through the process of compliance, the ability of the LAFD to provide adequate facilities to accommodate future growth and maintain acceptable levels of service would be ensured. Furthermore, the increased demands for additional LAFD staffing, equipment, and facilities would be funded via existing mechanisms (e.g., property taxes and government funding) to which the Project and related projects would contribute. **Therefore, cumulative impacts related to fire protection services would be less than significant.**

b. Police protection?

Less Than Significant Impact. The Los Angeles Police Department (LAPD) provides police protection services to the Project Site. As discussed above, the Project would increase the number of residents and employees at the Project Site. Implementation of the Project could result in an increase in calls for police protection.

A significant impact may occur if the LAPD could not adequately serve a project, necessitating a new or physically altered station. The determination of whether a project could result in a significant impact on police protection shall be made considering the following factors: (a) the population increase resulting from the Project, based on the net increase of residential units or square footage of non-residential floor area; (b) the demand for police services anticipated at the time of project buildout compared to the expected level of service available; and (c) whether the project includes security and/or design features that would reduce the demand for police services.

Construction

Although there is the potential for Project construction to create an increase in demand for police protection services, the Project would provide security on the Project Site as needed and appropriate during the construction process. This security includes perimeter fencing, lighting, and security guards, thereby reducing the demand for LAPD services. The specific type and combination of construction site security features would depend on the phase of construction. The Project Applicant would install temporary construction fencing to secure the Project Site during the construction phase to ensure that valuable materials (e.g., building supplies and metals such as copper wiring), as well as construction equipment are not easily stolen or abused.

Construction activities also have the potential to affect police protection services, such as emergency vehicle response, by adding construction traffic to the street network and by necessitating partial lane closures during street improvements and utility installations. These impacts, while potentially adverse, are considered to be less than significant for the following reasons:

- (1) Emergency access would be maintained to the Project Site during construction through marked emergency access points approved by the LAPD;
- (2) Construction impacts are temporary in nature and do not cause lasting effects; and
- (3) Partial lane closures would be subject to City approval in accordance with applicable regulatory requirements and would not significantly affect emergency vehicles, the drivers of which normally have a variety of options for avoiding traffic, such as using their sirens to clear a path of travel or driving in the lanes of opposing traffic. Additionally, if there are partial closures to streets surrounding the Project Site, flagmen would be used to facilitate the traffic flow until such temporary street closures are complete.

Construction of the Project would not affect the LAPD's ability to respond to emergencies and there would not be a need for any additional new or expanded police facilities, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times, or other performance objectives of the LAPD. For these reasons, Project construction impacts on police services would be less than significant.

Operation

The Project would include project design features, namely security features within the parking facilities and exterior building areas such as appropriate lighting and gated access. The Project would include defensible spaces designed to reduce opportunity crimes and ensure safety and security. In addition, the lighting and landscaping design would ensure high visibility and the Project would provide for on-site security measures and controlled access systems for residents and tenants to minimize the demand for police protection services. The Project would incorporate crime prevention features into the design of the buildings and public spaces, such as lighting of entryways and public areas. The Project would feature the following:

- On-site security personnel;
- Security cameras;
- Perimeter lighting to supplement the street lighting and to provide increased visibility and security;
- Parking structure access control; and
- Residential units access control.

As detailed below, the Project would provide the LAPD with a diagram of each portion of the Project Site, showing Project access routes and additional access information as requested by the LAPD, to facilitate police response. Emergency access to the Project Site would be provided by the existing street system. The Project's direct minimal population increase and associated demand for police services, along with the provision of on-site security features, coordination with LAFD, and incorporation of crime prevention features, would not require the provision of new or physically altered police stations in order to maintain acceptable service ratios or other performance objectives for police protection. Therefore, with mitigation, Project impacts related to police protection services would be less than significant.

Cumulative Impacts

Implementation of the related projects listed on **Table 2-2** in **Section 2 (Project Description)** could result in a net increase in the number of residents and employees in the area of the Project Site and could further increase the demand for police protection services. Cumulative development requires the LAPD to continually evaluate the need for new or physically altered facilities in order to maintain adequate service ratios. Similar to the proposed Project, the related projects would be subject to the site plan review and approval requirements, recommendations of the LAPD related to crime prevention features, and other applicable regulations of the LAMC. Through the process of compliance, the ability of the LAPD to provide adequate facilities to accommodate future growth and maintain acceptable levels of service would be ensured. Furthermore, the increased demands for additional LAPD staffing, equipment, and facilities would be funded via existing mechanisms (e.g., property taxes and government funding) to which the Project and related projects would contribute. **Therefore, cumulative impacts related to police protection services would be less than significant.**

c. Schools?

Less Than Significant Impact. Los Angeles Unified School District (LAUSD) would provide school services for the Project Site. As shown on **Table 6.XV-2**, the Project would generate a total of approximately 44 students, including 24 elementary students, 6 middle school students, and 14 high school students. The elementary and middle schools and the Metropolitan High School serving the Project Site is currently operating over capacity, whereas the Jefferson High School Zone serving the Project Site is operating under capacity. Pursuant to the California Government Code Section 65995, the Project's required payment of the school fees established by the LAUSD

in accordance with existing rules and regulations regarding the calculation and payment of such fees would, by law, provide full and complete mitigation for any potential direct and indirect impacts to schools as a result of the Project. **Therefore, Project impacts to school services would be less than significant.**

| Land Use | Size | School Type | Student Generation Rate ¹ | Total Students Generated ² |
|---|---------------------------------|-------------------------|--|---|
| | | Elementary (K-6) | 0.2269/du | 24 |
| Residential | 106 du | Middle (7-8) | 0.0611/du | 6 |
| | | High (9-12) | 0.1296/du | 14 |
| | | | Total | 44 |
| du = dwelling unit ¹ Los Angeles Un | t ified School District, Stu | Ident Generation Rate (| Calculation, Table 3, Ma | rch 2017. |

Table 6.XV-2 Estimated Project Student Generation

Cumulative Impacts

The related projects listed in **Section 2 (Project Description)** could result in an increase in the number students in the Project area. However, similar to the applicant of the proposed Project, the applicants of all the related projects would be required to pay the applicable school fees to the LAUSD to ensure that no significant impacts to school services would occur. **Therefore, cumulative impacts to school services would be less than significant.**

d. Parks?

Less Than Significant Impact. The Los Angeles Department of Recreation and Parks (LADRP) operates and maintains park and recreational services and facilities in the area of the Project Site.

Per LAMC Section 12.21 F, the residential portions of the Project is required to provide common open space (both indoor and outdoor) and private open space. Specifically, 15,050 square feet of total open space is required for the type and number of residential units proposed. Of this total, a total of 5,300 square feet of open space is required in the form of private open space in total for the Proposed Project. In total, the Project is providing 22,482 square feet of common outdoor, private, and common indoor open space to satisfy these requirements. This is a surplus of 7,432 square feet of open space being provided beyond what is required per the LAMC. As shown in **Table 6.XV-3**, below, the Project proposes a third level common open space on the roof-top of the building, which also includes 3,763 square feet of indoor open space designed as a roof amenity.

In addition, the open spaces would include exterior and interior areas, providing passive enjoyment as well as allowing for an extensive array for recreational and social services for each resident. A portion of the open space areas is exterior spaces covered by building structure or trellis/solar arrays. Technically, these areas would not count toward the Project's LAMC-required open space requirements, but they would be an important amenity to all residents.

| Common Open Space Component | Size | | | |
|--|---|--|--|--|
| Common Outdoor Open Space (Open to Sky) Level 03 Courtyard Level R09/CO7 Rooftop Subtotal | 4,129 sf 10,828 sf <u>14,957 sf</u> | | | |
| <i>Private Open Space (Balconies)</i> Level L02 thru R08 | <u>5,300 sf</u> ¹ | | | |
| <i>Common Indoor Open Space</i> Level R09/C07 Roof Amenities | <u>3,763 sf</u> | | | |
| Total | 24,020 sf | | | |
| sf = square feet ¹ This includes all open space, not solely provided open space. | | | | |

Table 6.XV-3Private/Common Open Space Components

Section 12.33 of the LAMC requires applicants of new residential projects to pay applicable park fees based on the number of residential units to be developed. In accordance with Section 12.33 C.3 of the LAMC, qualified affordable housing units are exempt from the park fees payment requirements. Therefore, the Project would pay applicable park fees on all market-rate residential uses.

As discussed, the Project would exceed LAMC open space requirements, which are consistent with the Greater Downtown Housing Incentives, would provide additional exterior covered open space, and would be required to pay applicable park fees. Through compliance with the LAMC, Project impacts related to parks and recreational facilities would be less than significant.

Cumulative Impacts

The related projects listed in **Section 2 (Project Description)** could result in an increase demand for parks and recreational services. The extent to which the related residential projects include parks/recreational amenities is unknown. However, the applicants of these projects would be required to meet LAMC open space requirements and would be subject to the park fees pursuant to LAMC Section 12.33, ensuring that any potential impacts to parks and recreational facilities would be less than significant. As stated previously, the Project would not result in any significant impacts related to parks and recreational facilities. Therefore, cumulative impacts to park and recreational facilities would be less than significant.

e. Other public facilities?

Less Than Significant Impact. The libraries that serve the Project area include those shown on **Table 6.XV-4**. On February 8, 2007, the Board of the Library Commissioners approved a new Branch Facilities Plan, which includes criteria for developing new libraries and recommends new

size standards for the provision of Los Angeles Public Library (LAPL) facilities, including the following:²

- A 12,500 square foot facility for a community with less than 45,000 population.
- A 14,500 square foot facility for a community with more than 45,000 population and up to a 20,000 square foot for a Regional Branch.
- An additional Branch Library should be developed for a population equal to or in excess of 90,000 persons.

| Library | Size (sf) | Collection Size/ Circulation | | |
|--|--------------|--|--|--|
| Richard J. Riordan Central Library 630 5 th Street | 538,000 | Volumes - 2.6 million Circulation – 1.2 million | | |
| Chinatown Branch Library 639 N. Hill Street | 14,500 | Volumes - 74,709 Circulation – 193,627 | | |
| Echo Park Branch Library 1410 W. Temple Street | 17,543 | Volumes – 43,689 Circulation – 93,418 | | |
| Little Tokyo Branch Library 203 S. Los Angeles St. | 12,500 | Volumes – 66,634 Circulation – 142,247 | | |
| Benjamin Franklin Branch Library 2200 E. 1 st Street | 9,656 | Volumes – 35,545 Circulation – 98,218 | | |
| sf = square feet Source: Los Angeles Public Library | | | | |

Table 6.XV-4 Libraries Serving the Project Area

The Project's population increase would be 303 people and would not individually trigger any need for new services pursuant to the Branch Facilities Plan. As such, the Project would not conflict with or impede implementation of the applicable policies and goals related to libraries in the Framework Element or the Community Plan. To the extent that Project residents would travel farther within the 2.0-mile libraries service area, library usage would be expected to be dispersed between the Central Library and the other five local branch libraries identified by the LAPL. Overall, the Project would not be anticipated to result in a substantial increase in demand for library services for which current demand exceeds the ability of the facility to adequately serve the population. Based on the above, and pursuant to the library sizing standards recommended in the LAPL Branch Facilities Plan, operation of the Project would not create any new exceedance of the capacity of local libraries to adequately serve the existing residential population based on target service populations or as defined by the LAPL, which would result in the need for new or

² Los Angeles Public Library

altered facilities, or substantially increase the demand for library services for which current and future demand exceeds the ability of the facility to adequately serve the population. **Therefore**, **Project impacts on library services would be less than significant**.

Cumulative Impacts

Implementation of the related projects listed in **Section 2 (Project Description)** could increase the demand for library services in the Project area. The related residential projects would be subject to the standards to determine demand for library facilities used by the City and would likely be required to implement mitigation where applicable. In addition, the anticipated revenue to the General Fund generated by the related projects through business taxes and other revenue sources would help offset the increase in demand for library services and fund necessary library improvements. As such, the demand for library services created by these residential projects could be accommodated, and impacts would be less than significant. As stated previously, the **Project would not result in any significant impacts related to library services. Therefore, cumulative impacts to library services would be less than significant.**

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

XVI. RECREATION

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|----|---|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-----------|
| 2 | Would the project increase the use of existing | | | | |
| a. | neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated? | | | | |
| b. | Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities which might have an adverse | | | \boxtimes | |

physical effect on the environment?

a. Would the project Increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facilities would occur or be accelerated?

Less Than Significant Impact. Refer to the response to Checklist Question 14(a)(iv) (Public Services - Parks). A breakdown of common open space components for the Project Site is shown on **Table 6.XV-3**. All of the Project's proposed 106 dwelling units would entail a private balcony space consistent with the LAMC in addition to common outdoor and indoor open space. The Project would exceed LAMC requirements for open space with a surplus of 8,970 square feet of common open space amenities.

The Project's open spaces would include exterior and interior areas, providing passive enjoyment as well as allowing for an extensive array for recreational and social services for each resident. In addition to the open space meeting LAMC requirements, additional exterior open space areas are covered by building structure or trellis/solar arrays. Technically, these areas would not count toward the Project's LAMC-required open space requirements, but they would serve as an additional important amenity to all residents. Section 12.33 of the LAMC requires applicants of new residential projects to pay applicable park fees based on the number of residential units to be developed. However, in accordance with Section 12.33 C.3 of the LAMC, qualifying affordable housing units are exempt from the park fees payment requirements. Of the 106 proposed residential units, 9 units would be Very Low Income units. As discussed, the Project would exceed LAMC open space requirements, provide additional outdoor covered areas, and would be required to pay applicable park fees. Through compliance with the LAMC, Project impacts related to parks and recreational facilities would be less than significant.

b. Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment?

Less Than Significant Impact. The Project includes development of a variety of indoor and outdoor private and public open space areas that will serve Project residents and commercial occupants. No direct significant impacts would occur as a result of development of the open space facilities and impacts would be less than significant.

Cumulative Impacts

Refer to discussion of cumulative impacts related to parks and recreational facilities under response to Checklist Question 14(a)(iv) (Public Services – Parks).

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

XVII. TRANSPORTATION

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|----|---|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-----------|
| Wo | uld the project: | | | | |
| a. | Conflict with a program, plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system, including transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities? | | | | |
| b. | Would the project conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b)? | | \boxtimes | | |
| C. | Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)? | | | | |
| d. | Result in inadequate emergency access? | | | \boxtimes | |

The analysis in this section is based on the following (refer to Appendix G):

- **G-1** 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project Traffic Impact Study, Linscott, Law & Greenspan Engineers, March 7, 2019.
- **G-2** Updated LADOT Approval Letter, December 4, 2019.
- G-3 Vehicle Miles Traveled Analysis Memorandum, October 5, 2019.

a. Conflict with a program, plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system, including transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities?

Less Than Significant Impact.

Transportation Assessment Guidelines (2020) Analysis

As required by the City's Transportation Assessment Guidelines adopted in July of 2020 (TAG 2020), the ordinances, plans, policies, and programs listed below were reviewed for consistency with the Project. In short, the City has adopted programs, plans, ordinances and policies that establish the transportation planning framework for all travel modes. The overall goals of these policies are to achieve a safe, accessible, and sustainable transportation system for all users. Per the 2020 Guidelines, Section 2.1.4. identifies the methodology of which a project must be evaluated. As stated, a project that generally conforms with and does not obstruct the City's development policies and standards will generally be considered to be consistent. Since the Project requires a discretionary action and related improvements to the Public Right-of-Way (PROW), environmental analysis must provide substantiating information to help determine whether a project precludes the City's implementation of any adopted policy and/or program that was adopted to protect the environment.

These plans, policies, and programs include the following:

- 1. Mobility Plan 2035
- 2. Plan for Healthy LA
- 3. Specific Plans
- 4. LAMC Section 12.21.A.16 (Bicycle Parking)
- 5. LAMC Section 12.26.J (TDM Ordinance)
- 6. Vision Zero Action Plan
- 7. Vision Zero Corridor Plans
- 8. Streetscape Plans
- 9. Citywide Design Guidelines

These above mentioned plans and policies are discussed in further detail below.

1. Mobility Plan 2035

Policy 2.3 Pedestrian Infrastructure – Recognize walking as a component of every trip and ensure high quality pedestrian access in all site planning and public right-of-way modifications to provide a safe and comfortable walking environment.

While this is a citywide policy, the Project would support its implementation. Specifically, one of the primary objectives of the Project is to create a street-level identity for the Project Site and improve the pedestrian experience through the introduction of active street adjacent uses. Streetscape amenities provided by the Project would include street trees around the Site, pedestrian-scale lighting fixtures and elements, and open space. Therefore, the Project would not conflict with Mobility Plan Policy 2.3.

Policy 2.4 Neighborhood Enhanced Network – Provide a slow speed network of locally serving streets.

This is a citywide policy that does not apply to the Project because no changes to the adjacent streets are proposed as part of the Project. Therefore, the Project would not conflict with Mobility Plan Policy 2.4.

Policy 2.5 Transit Network—Improve the performance and reliability of existing and future bus service.

While this is a citywide policy, the Project would not conflict with its implementation. Furthermore, in 2008, Los Angeles County voters approved Measure R, a half-cent sales tax increase to finance new transportation projects and accelerate projects already in progress and an additional half-cent sales tax increase to fund transportation projects through Measure M in 2016. As such, the Project's net increase in transit trips would be partially offset by improvements to transit service in the Project area. Therefore, the Project would not conflict with Mobility Plan Policy 2.5.

Policy 2.6 Bicycle Networks – Provide safe, convenient, and comfortable local and regional bicycling facilities for people of all types and abilities.

While this is a citywide policy, the Project would support its implementation. Project visitors, patrons, and employees arriving by bicycle would have the same access opportunities as pedestrian visitors. Bicycle parking requirements per LAMC Section 12.21 A,16(a) include short-term and long-term parking. Short-term bicycle parking is characterized by bicycle racks that support the bicycle frame at two points. Long-term bicycle parking is characterized by an enclosure protecting all sides from inclement weather and secured from the general public. Therefore, the Project would not conflict with Mobility Plan Policy 2.6.

Policy 2.7 Vehicle Network – Provide vehicular access to the regional freeway system.

This is a citywide policy that does not apply to the Project because no changes to the adjacent streets are proposed as part of the Project. Therefore, the Project would not conflict with Mobility Plan Policy 2.7.

Policy 2.10 Loading Areas – Facilitate the provision of adequate on and off-street loading areas.

This is a citywide policy that does not apply to the Project because no changes to the adjacent streets are proposed as part of the Project. Therefore, the Project would not conflict with Mobility Plan Policy 2.10.

Mobility Plan Programs PL.1 and PK.10

Mobility Plan Program PL.1 requires driveway access to buildings from non-arterial streets or alleys (where feasible) in order to minimize interference with pedestrian access and vehicular movement. Implementation of the Project would not impede access to buildings from non-arterial streets or alleys. Therefore, the Project would not conflict with Mobility Plan Program PL.1.

Mobility Plan Program PK.10 directs the City to establish an incentive program to encourage projects to retrofit parking lots, structures, and driveways to include pedestrian design features. Implementation of the Project would not impede the establishment of an incentive program. Therefore, the Project would not conflict with Mobility Plan Program PK.10.

2. Plan for a Healthy Los Angeles

The Plan for a Healthy Los Angeles is an Element of the City's General Plan that provides a highlevel policy vision, along with measurable objectives and implementation programs, to elevate health as a priority for the City's future growth and development. A subsection of the Healthy Element provides health-related policies for several categories, one of which includes transportation. Overall, the Project would not detract the City from achieving those policies, such as traffic management and additional local bus services. The Proposed Project would not preclude the City from achieving its healthy living goals. Therefore, the Project would not conflict with the Plan for a Healthy Los Angeles Element.

3. Specific Plans

The Project is not located within a Specific Plan Area.

4. LAMC Section 12.21.A.16 (Bicycle Parking)

Los Angeles Municipal Code Section 12.21.A.16 establishes parameters related to bicycle parking spaces. As proposed under the Project, and in accordance with the updated Bicycle Parking Ordinance (Ordinance 185,480), the Project would be required to provide 112 long-term and 33 short-term bicycle parking spaces for a total of 145 spaces. The Project would meet the short-term bicycle parking requirements and would exceed the bicycle parking requirements by 2 spaces (one short term space and one long term space). Thus, the Project would not conflict with this section of the City's Municipal Code.

5. LAMC Section 12.26.J (TDM Ordinance)

Los Angeles Municipal Code Section 12.21.J. establishes parameters related to transportation demand management (TDM) and trip reduction measures. The Project proposes to implement

TDM strategies, which are described below in TRA-PDF-1 through TRA-PDF-3 as project design features and TRA-MM-1 through TRA-MM-3 as mitigation measure to reduce the Project's Household VMT to 6.0 miles, which matches the maximum allowed per Capita VMT. Thus, the Project would not conflict with this section of the City's Municipal Code.

6. Vision Zero Action Plan

While no Vision Zero Safety Improvements are currently planned near the Project Site, Project improvements associated with the pedestrian environment would not preclude future action plan improvements by the City. Therefore, the Project would not conflict with the Vision Zero Action Plan.

7. Vision Zero Corridor Plans

While no Vision Zero Safety Improvements are currently planned near the Project Site, Project improvements associated with the pedestrian environment would not preclude future corridor plan improvements by the City. Therefore, the Project would not conflict with the Vision Zero Corridor Plans.

8. <u>Streetscape Plans</u>

The location of the Project is currently not within a designated City of Los Angeles Streetscape Plan area. Therefore, the Project would not conflict with any streetscape plans.

9. <u>Citywide Design Guideline 2</u>

Citywide Design Guideline 2 recommends incorporating vehicular access such that it does not discourage and/or inhibit the pedestrian experience. Specifically, Guideline 2 calls for prioritizing pedestrian access first and automobile access second; orienting parking and driveways toward the rear or side of buildings and away from the public; and on corner lots, orienting parking as far from the corner as possible. The Project would prioritize pedestrian access by providing multiple pedestrian access points. Thus, the Project would not conflict with Citywide Design Guideline 2.

Overall, the Project would not conflict with a program, plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system, including transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities and impacts would be less than significant.

b. Conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b)?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated. This question was revised to address consistency with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.3, subdivision (b), which relates to use of vehicle miles traveled (VMT) as the methodology for evaluating traffic impacts. Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines were revised to incorporate Section 15064.3, Section 15064.3 as of July 1, 2020.

The CEQA Transportation Analysis Update establishes VMT as the City's formal method of evaluating a project's transportation impacts. As mentioned earlier, LADOT adopted its Transportation Assessment Guidelines in July of 2020. Threshold T-2.1 (Causing Substantial Vehicle Miles Traveled) of the Transportation Assessment Guidelines states that a residential project would result in a significant VMT impact if it would generate household VMT per capita more than 15 percent below the existing average household VMT per capita for the Area Planning Commission (APC) area in which it is located.

Similarly, an office project would result in a significant VMT impact if it would generate work VMT per employee more than 15 percent below the existing average work VMT per employee for the APC area in which it's located. Residents contribute to household VMT while employees (including retail and restaurant employees) contribute to work VMT.

Per the TAG, a Transportation Assessment (TA) is required when a project is likely to add 250 or more daily vehicle trips to the local street system. This trip generation assessment has been conducted to determine if the Project would generate 250 or more net daily vehicle trips and would, thereby, require the preparation of a TA.

The City has updated the TAG to ensure compliance with Section 15064.3, subdivision (b)(1) of the CEQA Guidelines, which asks if a development project would result in a substantial increase in VMT. To assist in determining which development projects would conflict with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.3, subdivision (b)(1), the TAG establishes two screening criteria to evaluate the requirement of further analysis of a land use project's impact based on VMT. Both of the following criteria must be met in order to require further analysis of a land use project's VMT contribution:

- 1. The land use project would generate a net increase of 250 or more daily vehicle trips.
- 2. The project would generate a net increase in daily VMT.

Net Project Trip Generation Assessment

Along with the updated TAG, LADOT developed the VMT Calculator (the VMT Calculator). The VMT Calculator estimates the daily vehicle trips, daily VMT, daily household VMT per capita, and daily work VMT per employee for land use projects. The VMT Calculator utilizes average daily trip generation rates from the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual (9th Edition, 2012) and empirical trip generation data to determine the base daily trips associated with a land use project. The number of daily trips is further refined using data from the Environmental Protection Agency's Mixed-Use Model and the City's Travel Demand Forecasting Model.

The VMT Calculator was utilized to determine the net daily trip generation for the Project. The VMT Calculator contains a set of land-use categories with trip generation rates and corresponding trip type data that can be chosen as best matching a project's characteristics. For the Project and

existing site land uses, the trip generation rates and trip type percentages for the most similar land uses were applied in the VMT Calculator.

It should be noted, that on April 25, 2019, the Los Angeles Department of Transportation (LADOT) issued a traffic assessment report to the Department of City Planning for the Project, which was subject to a transportation analysis dated March 7, 2019 prepared by Linscott, Law & Greenspan, Engineers (LLG). However, subsequent to the releasing of this report, on July 30, 2019, pursuant to Senate Bill (SB) 743 and the recent changes to Section 15064.3 of the State's CEQA Guidelines, the City of Los Angeles adopted VMT as the criteria by which to determine transportation impacts under CEQA. Therefore, in response to this action the applicant submitted a VMT analysis dated October 5, 2019 to DOT for the Project in addition to the previous analysis dated March 7, 2019. LADOT issued an updated traffic assessment letter dated December 4, 2019 approving the VMT analysis.

Additionally, under SB 375, when going forward with a SCEA, Project-specific and cumulative impacts associated with cars and light trucks on the regional transportation network are not required to be assessed, pursuant to PRC 21155.2(b) and 21159.28(a).

Vehicle Miles Traveled Analysis

VMT Calculation (CEQA Analysis)

A VMT calculation has been prepared for the Project using the LADOT VMT Calculator. The VMT calculation is provided in Appendix G-3. The results are discussed below.

Household VMT

As shown in Appendix G-3 to this SCEA, the Household VMT is calculated to be 7.6 miles per Capita. As provided in DOT's 2020 Guidelines, the threshold of significance applicable to the Project (located in an area under the jurisdiction of the City's Central Area Planning Commission) is 6.0 miles per Capita. Therefore, prior to consideration of potential mitigation measures, the Project's Household VMT would be calculated to have a significant impact. The Project proposes to implement transportation demand (TDM) strategies, which are described below in TRA-PDF-1 through TRA-PDF-3 as project design features and TRA-MM-1 through TRA-MM-3 as mitigation measure to reduce the Project's Household VMT to 6.0 miles, which matches the maximum allowed per Capita VMT. Therefore, the Project's Household VMT is considered to be less than significant with project design features and mitigation measures incorporated.

Work VMT

The Work VMT is calculated to be 8.9 miles per employee. As provided in DOT's 2020 Guidelines, the threshold of significance applicable to the Project (based on its location in the City's Central Area Planning Commission) is 7.6 miles per Employee. Therefore, prior to consideration of potential mitigation measures, the Project's Work VMT would be calculated to have a significant

impact. The Project proposes to implement TDM strategies, which are described below in TRA-PDF-1 through TRA-PDF-3 as project design features and TRA-MM-1 through TRA-MM-3 as mitigation measures, to reduce the Project's Work VMT to 7.0 miles, which is less than the maximum allowed per Employee VMT. Therefore, the Project's Work VMT is considered to be less than significant with project design features and mitigation measures incorporated.

TDM Strategies

As outlined in the data sheets from the VMT Calculator provided in Appendix G-3, the VMT calculation incorporates TDM strategies as project design features and CEQA-related mitigation measures. The TDM strategies are listed in Table 2.2-2 of the 2020 Guidelines and are discussed in detail below:

1. Reduce Parking Supply

The parking requirement for the Project per the LAMC (prior to consideration of allowable adjustments described below) would be 542 spaces. As such, the Project proposes to provide 402 parking spaces, which is less than the unadjusted LAMC requirement.

The Project is utilizing the following provisions from the Municipal Code to reduce vehicle parking on the site: LAMC 12.21 A.4 for the residential component and LAMC 12.21 A.4(x)(3) for the nonresidential component. Based on this, the minimum parking supply requirement for the Project per provisions of the Municipal Code would be 397 vehicle spaces. The Project proposes to provide 402 parking spaces (i.e., 140 spaces fewer than the 542 spaces required in the LAMC prior to consideration of allowable adjustments). The maximum available VMT reduction allowed in the VMT Calculator for reducing the Project parking supply is 13%.

2. Unbundle Parking

The strategy unbundles the parking costs from the property costs, requiring those who wish to purchase parking spaces to do so at an additional cost from the property cost. This strategy is applicable for residential components of development projects. At the time of initial opening of the development, the Project proposes as a Project feature to charge \$110 per month per parking space, separate from the monthly cost to live in the unit. The maximum available VMT reduction allowed in the VMT Calculator for providing unbundled parking is 26% of residential-based VMT.

3. Transit Subsidy

With regard to subsidization of transit fare for residents and employees of the Project Site, the subsidy must be proactively offered to each dwelling unit and/or employee at least once annually for a minimum of five years. The Project would offer \$0.75 per day to eligible employees and residents of the Project. Eligibility would be determined based on the employee or resident also not parking a vehicle on-site.

4. Voluntary Travel Behavior Change Program

The Project will assign staff to serve as the transportation management coordinator to inform Project residents and employees of available travel options as part of the Project's Voluntary Travel Behavior Change Program (VTBCP). As detailed below, this strategy involves the development of a travel behavior change program that targets individual attitudes, goals, and travel behaviors, educating participants on the impacts of their travel choices and the opportunities to alter their habits.

5. Bicycle Infrastructure

The Project is required to provide 9 short-term and 78 long-term bicycle parking spaces for the residential component. For the commercial component, the Project is required to provide 23 short-term spaces and 33 long-term spaces. Thus, the Project will provide the minimum number of short term and long-term bicycle parking spaces for the residential and commercial components. The maximum available VMT reduction allowed in the VMT Calculator for providing bike parking per the LAMC is 0.625%.

With regard to end-of-trip bicycle facilities to support safe and comfortable bicycle travel by providing amenities at destinations, this strategy applies to projects that include bicycle parking on-site per LAMC. Projects providing long-term bicycle parking secured from the general public in accordance with LAMC Section 12.21A.16(d)(2) and showers in accordance with LAMC Section 91.6307 qualify for this measure. The Project will provide short-term and long-term bicycle parking in accordance with LAMC Section 12.21A.16(d)(2). In addition, the Project will provide showers in accordance with LAMC Section 91.6307. The maximum available VMT reduction allowed in the VMT Calculator for including secure bike parking and showers is 0.625%.

6. Neighborhood Enhancement

Pedestrian network improvements throughout and around the Project Site are designed to encourage people to walk. This includes internally linking all uses within the Project Site with pedestrian facilities such as sidewalks and connecting the Project Site to the surrounding pedestrian network. The Project includes pedestrian access points directly to sidewalks on the adjacent streets. Specifically, a walk-in entrance to the Project's residential component is proposed via Bay Street. Whats more, a walk-in entrance to the Project's office and restaurant components is proposed via Mateo Street. Pedestrian access to the ground floor retail uses is also proposed via the adjacent streets.

Finally, the Project will improve existing sidewalks or construct new sidewalks on Bay Street, Mateo Street, and Sacramento Street adjacent to the Project Site, as part of the Project design. The new sidewalks are a substantial improvement upon the existing condition as sidewalks currently do not exist on Bay Street and Sacramento Street adjacent to the Project Site.

Level of Service Analysis (Non-CEQA Analysis)

During the preparation of the new CEQA guidelines, the State's Office of Planning and Research stressed that lead agencies can continue to apply traditional operational analysis requirements to inform land use decisions provided that such analyses were outside of the CEQA process. The authority for requiring non-CEQA transportation analysis and requiring improvements to address potential circulation deficiencies lies in the City of Los Angeles' Site Plan Review authority as established in LAMC Section 16.05. Therefore, DOT continues to require and review a project's site access, circulation and operational plan to determine if any access enhancements, transit amenities, intersection improvements, traffic signal upgrades, neighborhood traffic calming, or other improvements are needed.

In the transportation analysis dated March 7, 2019 by LLG, the analysis included a review of current and potential future operational deficiencies that may result from the project. To address these deficiencies, the applicant should be required to implement the following corrective measures, as identified by DOT:

TRA-CM-1: Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Plan

A preliminary TDM program shall be prepared and provided for DOT review prior to the issuance of the first building permit for this project and a final TDM program approved by DOT is required prior to the issuance of the first certificate of occupancy for the project. The preliminary plan will include, at a minimum, measures consistent with the City's Trip Reduction Ordinance. As recommended by the transportation study, the TDM program could include, but is not limited to the following:

- An on-site Transportation Information Center (TIC) where employees, visitors, and residents can obtain information regarding public transit, ridesharing, vanpool providers, bicycle facilities, and bicycle safety;
- A Transportation Coordinator responsible for implementing, maintaining, and monitoring g the TDM program;
- If after coordination with LADOT it is determined that the project site is eligible, the project will provide space for an Integrated Mobility Hub with a bicycle share kiosk and/or parking spaces for car-share vehicles;
- Carpool/Rideshare Matching Program which would provide rideshare matching services and preferential parking for commercial employees commuting to work in employer-registered carpools;
- Transportation subsidy which would offer discount transit passes to residents and commercial employees who do not purchase monthly automobile parking in the project site;
- Unbundled parking from the commercial leasing cost and from the housing cost;

- Convenient and secure bicycle storage within a bicycle locker, an attended cage, or a secure parking room;
- On-site lockers for employees who bicycle or use another active means of getting to work;
- Make a one-time fixed-fee contribution of \$50,000 prior to the issuance of the first certificate of occupancy for the project to the City's Bicycle Plan Trust Fund to implement bicycle improvements in the proposed project area;
- A Covenant and Agreement to ensure that the TDM program will be maintained.

TRA-CM-2: Transportation Management Organization (TMO)

Transportation Management Organization (TMO) In order to help alleviate current and future traffic congestion in the Arts District, the project proposes to fund a TMO. If an Arts District TMO will be established, the project proposes to fund the initiation of an Arts District TMO. Otherwise, if it is determined that FASTLinkDTLA can adequately serve the Arts District as well as the remainder of Downtown Los Angeles, the project proposes to fund the Arts District portion of the FASTLinkDTLA. The project agrees to the following:

- Commit funding up to \$200,000 prior to the issuance of the first certificate of occupancy for the project to cover the launch of the Arts District TMO or the Arts District portion of FASTLinkDTLA;
- Provide up to \$25,000 per year for nine additional years for annual dues as a charter member;
- Attend organizational meetings and prove traffic demand data to the TMO;
- Require commercial space tenants of all leases executed by the project as a landlord to participate in the TMO and that all subleases contain this same provision;
- Elect to provide some or all of the services required by this TDM Program through the TMO, in consultation with the City's Transportation Demand Program.

TRA-CM-3: Traffic Monitoring Plan for the TDM Program

In order to assess the project's actual trip generation and any subsequent TDM Plan (if deemed necessary), a traffic monitoring plan will be implemented once the project is built and occupied to at least 80%. A traffic monitoring plan will consist

of counting the number of automobiles coming from and going to the two project driveways during both AM and PM peak hours.

The monitoring program should be conducted annually to ensure compliance for a period of three years. If the project is found to not confirm to the trip reduction targets summarized in Attachment 4 of the LADOT Approval Letter, the project will have an additional year to meet the trip reduction levels. If the project continues to not meet the TDM goals, the City and project staff will coordinate on implementing further TDM strategies. The final traffic monitoring plan and TDM Plan will be prepared for and approved by the LADOT prior to the issuance of the first certificate of occupancy for the project.

Conclusion

As shown in the VMT Calculator output contained within Appendix G-3, the Project, with the above-mentioned TDM strategies, which are also listed as Mitigation Measures, below, is expected to generate 1,959 daily vehicle trips, a daily VMT of 14,134 miles, a Household VMT per Capita of 6.0 miles, and a Work VMT per Employee of 7.0 miles. The 2020 Guidelines state that the Household VMT per Capita threshold for the City's Central Area Planning Commission must be 6.0 miles or less. In addition, the applicable Work VMT per Employee threshold is 7.6 miles. Therefore, it can be concluded that the Project will not generate a significant VMT impact, and all potential impacts would be less than significant with project design features and mitigation measures incorporated.

Project Design Features

The following Project Design Features (PDFs) are implemented as part of the overall design of the Project:

- **TRA-PDF-1:** Reduce Parking Supply: This measure encourages alternative transportation choices. The degree of effectiveness of this measure varies based on the surrounding area, level of existing transit service, level of existing pedestrian and bicycle networks and other factors which would complement the shift away from single-occupant vehicle travel. The Project will provide 402 parking spaces (i.e., 140 spaces less than the 542 spaces required per LAMC prior to consideration of allowable adjustments).
- **TRA-PDF-2:** Bicycle Infrastructure: These improvements help reduce peak-hour vehicle trips by making commuting by bicycle easier and more convenient. The Project should provide a maximum commitment to implementing/improving on-street bicycle facilities, providing bicycle parking per the LAMC and providing secure ancillary bike facilities such as indoor bicycle parking/lockers, showers, and repair stations. The Project will provide the minimum number of short-term and long-term bicycle parking spaces for the residential and commercial components.

TRA-PDF-3: Neighborhood Enhancement: Providing a pedestrian access network to link areas of the Project site encourages people to walk instead of drive. The project should ensure a maximum commitment to providing pedestrian network improvements within the project and to off-site connections. The Project will include pedestrian access points directly to sidewalks on the adjacent streets. Specifically, a walk-in entrance to the Project's residential component is proposed via Bay Street. Additionally, a walk-in entrance to the Project's office and restaurant components is proposed via Mateo Street. Pedestrian access to the ground floor retail uses is proposed via adjacent streets. The Project will improve existing sidewalks or construct new sidewalks on Bay Street, Mateo Street and Sacramento Street adjacent to the site.

Mitigation Measures

To off-set potential significant impacts, the following Mitigation Measures (MM) are implemented as part of the overall design of the Project:

- **TRA-MM-1:** Unbundle Parking: Unbundling parking costs from property costs would require those who wish to purchase parking spaces to do so at an additional cost from the property cost. This removes the burden from those who do not wish to utilize a parking space. An assumption is made that the parking costs are passed through to the vehicle owners/drivers utilizing the parking spaces. The Project shall charge a minimum of \$110 per month per parking space, separately from the monthly cost to rent the unit.
- **TRA-MM-2:** Transit Subsidy: The availability of a subsidy provides a strong incentive to consider other commute trip alternatives. The Project shall provide a subsidy commensurate to the current daily rate and accessible to 100% of eligible residents. The Project shall offer a minimum of \$0.75 per day to eligible employees and residents of the Project. Eligibility shall be determined based on the employee or resident not parking a vehicle on-site.
- **TRA-MM-3:** Voluntary Travel Behavior Change Program: This strategy involves the development of a travel behavior change program that targets individual attitudes, goals, and travel behaviors, educating participants on the impacts of their travel choices and the opportunities to alter their habits. The Project shall assign staff to serve as the transportation management coordinator to inform Project residents and employees of available travel options.

c. Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)?

Less Than Significant Impact. A significant impact may occur if a project were to include a new roadway design, introduce a new land use or project features into an area with specific
transportation requirements and characteristics that have not been previously experienced in that area, or if project access or other features were designed in such a way as to create hazardous conditions. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the Project Applicant would be required to submit geometric design plans to the Bureau of Engineering, LAFD, and LADOT for approval to ensure that the Project would not create unacceptable or hazardous design features. Additionally, the Project does not propose the use of any incompatible transportation equipment, such as farm equipment and does not include any sharp curves, dangerous intersections, or incompatible uses. **Through compliance with existing City regulations, the Project would result in less than significant impacts related to increasing design hazards.**

d. Result in inadequate emergency access?

Less Than Significant Impact. A significant impact may occur if a project design would not provide emergency access meeting the requirements of the LAFD and LAPD, or in any other way threatened the ability of emergency vehicles to access and serve the Project Site. All Project driveways would be designed according to LADOT standards to ensure adequate access, including emergency access, to the Project Site. Furthermore, the drivers of emergency vehicles normally have a variety of options for avoiding traffic, such as using sirens to clear a path of travel or driving in the lanes of opposing traffic. As such, existing emergency access to the Project Site and surrounding uses would be maintained during operation of the Project.

Also, prior to issuance of a building permit, the Project Applicant would be required to submit parking and driveway plans to the Bureau of Engineering, LAFD, and LADOT for approval to ensure that the Project complies with code-required emergency access. Through compliance with existing City regulations, the Project would result in less than significant impacts related to emergency access.

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

XVIII. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES

Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public Resources Code section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is:

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|----|--|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-----------|
| a. | Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k), or | | | | |
| b. | A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1. In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resource Code Section 5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a California Native American tribe. | | | | |

The information and analysis of the Project's potential impacts to archaeological resources is based primarily on the following (refer to Appendix H):

H Tribal Cultural Resources Assessment, 1024 Mateo Street, SWCA, May 2019.

a. Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public Resources Code section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural value to a California Native American

tribe, and that is: Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code section 5020.1 (k)?

No Impact.

Project Impacts

As discussed above in Cultural Resources, in response to Checklist Question 5(a), the Project Site was not identified as eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places, California Register of Historical Resources, or for designation as a City of Los Angeles Historic-Cultural Monument. The buildings on the Project Site do not appear to be individually eligible for listing in the National Register, the California Register, or as an HCM, nor do the buildings appear to be a contributor to a potential Historic Preservation Overlay Zone (HPOZ). Thus, the Project Site does not meet the criteria to be considered a historical resource pursuant to Section 15064.5(a) of the CEQA Guidelines. Furthermore, the Project Site does not contain a tribal cultural resource," defined in Public Resources Code section 21074. Thus, demolition of the existing structures and development of the Project would not result in any impacts related to historic tribal resources.

b. Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public Resources Code section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is: A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1. In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resource to a California Native American tribe?

Less Than Significant Impact.

Cultural Setting

The Project Site is within the traditional territory of the Gabrielino Native American tribe. In general, it has proven very difficult or impossible to establish definitively the precise location of Native American villages occupied in the Ethnohistoric period. Native American place names referred to at the time of Spanish contact did not necessarily represent a continually occupied settlement within a discrete location. Instead, in at least some cases, the communities were represented by several smaller camps scattered throughout an approximate geography, shaped by natural features subject to change over generations. Many of the villages had long since been abandoned by the time ethnographers, anthropologists, and historians attempted to document any of their locations, at which point the former village sites were affected by urban and agricultural development, and Native American lifeways had been irrevocably changed. Thus, even with archaeological evidence, it can be difficult to conclusively establish whether any given

assemblage represents the remains of a former village site. Other indigenous villages and community sites were present throughout the City concurrently with Rancheria de los Poblanos (near First Street and Los Angeles Street intersection), including numerous smaller settlements along Commercial Street, and another Rancheria, Rancheria de los Pipimares, within downtown Los Angeles along 7th Street. This rancheria existed for approximately another 10 years, between 1836 and 1845, during which nearby landowners attempted to forcibly relocate them to obtain more land for agricultural use.

Methodology

CHRIS Records Search

On March 18, 2019, SWCA conducted a confidential search of the CHRIS records at the SCCIC on the campus of California State University, Fullerton, to identify previously documented cultural resources within a 0.5-mile radius of the Project Site, as well as any selectively chosen outside the radius to aid in the assessment of tribal cultural resource sensitivity. The SCCIC maintains records of technical studies and previously documented archaeological resources, including those that may be considered tribal cultural resources.

The information included in a confidential CHRIS records search is needed to assess the sensitivity for undocumented tribal cultural resources and to inform the impact analysis. The search included any previously recorded archaeological resources that could be considered tribal cultural resources within the Project Site and surrounding 0.5-mile area.

Archival Research

Concurrent with the CHRIS records search, SWCA also reviewed property-specific historical and ethnographic context research to identify information relevant to the Project Site. Research focused on a variety of primary and secondary materials relating to the history and development of the Project Site, including historical maps, aerial and ground photographs, ethnographic reports, and other environmental data. Historical maps drawn to scale were georeferenced using ESRI ArcMAP v10.5 to show precise relationships to the Project Site.

In addition, SWCA reviewed technical reports prepared for the Project, including a Site Characterization Report, a Phase I ESA, geophysical survey, and a Phase II ESA Report. Both the Site Characterization Report and Phase II ESA Report included geophysical testing. The Site Characterization report involved four bore holes to a depth of 30.5 feet. The geophysical survey used magnetometers, conductivity meters, metal detectors, and ground-penetrating radar to identify subsurface features.

Sensitivity Assessment

In circumstances where a known tribal cultural resource has not been identified, no previous studies have been conducted, and subsurface testing is not feasible because of existing

developments, the potential for an unidentified resource to be present in the form of a buried site is assessed indirectly. That determination considers past land uses, broadly, and an assessment of whether the setting is capable of containing buried materials. Lacking any data evidence for the presence or absence of a tribal cultural resources below the surface, the resulting sensitivity is by nature qualitative, ranging along a spectrum of increasing probability for encountering such material, designated here as low, moderate, and high. In general, areas with a favorable setting for habitation or temporary use, soil conditions capable of preserving buried material, and little to no disturbances are considered to have a high sensitivity.

In assessing the sensitivity for tribal cultural resources, the SWCA Tribal Cultural Resources Assessment considered whether the location was favorable for Native American habitation. Indicators of favorable habitability for Native Americans are proximity to natural features, other known sites, flat topography, and relatively dry conditions. Sensitivity for Native American-affiliated resources also considers Gabrielino ethnographic studies that describe the location of former Native American settlements, foraging and other indigenous land-use behaviors, as well as regional studies of archaeological site distribution.

Preservation potential for tribal cultural resources considers whether the physical setting is capable of containing buried materials and whether any such materials once present have been destroyed, removed, or otherwise not preserved at the location, either because of natural causes (e.g., erosion, flooding) or historical development. The preservation potential relies on an understanding of existing soil conditions and site history.

Project Impacts

<u>CHRIS</u>

The CHRIS records search identified a total of five previously documented archaeological resources within a 0.5-mile radius of the Project Site. None of the sites include components that could be considered a tribal cultural resource. The closest sites with physical remains that could be reliably associated with Native Americans are located approximately 1.5 miles north of the Project Site, near Union Station and the MWD Headquarters building. These include four sites: P-19-00007, P-19-001575/H, P-19-004662, and P-19-100515. Of these sites, only P-19-001575/H included a large and diverse assemblage of artifacts and features, which included human remains, in a location that largely retained its physical integrity. Although P-19-001575/H is in the purported location of the Gabrielino village known as Yaanga, a report prepared by Applied EarthWorks in 1999 did not identify conclusive evidence to support the association. Rather, scholarly research suggests Yaanga was likely located across a wide zone between the Los Angeles Plaza (located at 125 Paseo De La Plaza in Los Angeles) and present-day Union Station, approximately 1.3 miles north-northwest of the Project Site. The materials identified at P-19-00007, P-19-004662, and P-19-100515 include only isolated artifacts recovered from settings subject to extensive disturbances, both from historical developments and flooding along the Los Angeles River, which posed significant constraints on the ability of the resources to provide

important scientific information and contribute to our understanding of Native American lifeways.

Archival Research

Archival research concentrated on determining existing disturbances to the Project Site that could influence tribal cultural resources preservation potential. Beginning at least by 1849, historical maps indicate the Project Site or at least portions were likely plowed and planted as a corn field. The Project Site and surrounding area was subsequent developed as a residential block between the 1890s and 1910s, which was then subject to multiple episodes of redevelopment through the twentieth century as the area transitioned into an industrial sector. With the exception of the structure currently located in the southeast corner of the Project Site, all former buildings and structures in the Project Site were demolished and the building that currently occupies the Project Site was constructed.

The historical sequence of construction and demolition has altered the surface and near surface within the Project Site. Geotechnical work conducted for the Project estimates up to 2 feet of artificial fill within the Project Site. Variations likely exist in the depth of the Historic-period disturbances, which include several locations where sub-surface structures once existed or are still present. These are described in the Project's Phase I ESA. The report identified extant and former buildings and structures associated with the historical uses, which include a wash rack with a clarifier, grease pit, above-ground storage tank, and at least two underground storage tanks (USTs).

As a result of this work, the presence of several subsurface anomalies was identified and seemed to coincide with a previous service pump station, storage buildings, hydraulic hoists, and a grease pit. None of the anomalies were found to be consistent with the presence of any USTs, which seem to confirm that the USTs had been removed and backfilled when the 1975 permit was issued.

Native American Archaeological Resources File Search

On April 25, 2019, SWCA received the results of a Sacred Lands File (SLF) search from the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC). The NAHC letter indicated negative results. The NAHC letter is included within Appendix H.

Although five previously document archaeological resources were found within a 0.5 mile radius from the Project Site, no tribal cultural resources were identified in a CHRIS records search within the Project Site and a 0.5-mile radius. The SLF records search did not identify any sacred lands or sites in the Project Site. The closest known sites with Native American-affiliated materials on file at the CHRIS are mapped in approximately 1.5 miles north of the Project Site, between the Los Angeles Plaza, Union Station, and MWD Headquarters building. The Gabrielino village known as Yaanga (purported location of the Gabrielino village known as Yaanga) and several other important Historic-period Gabrielino sites (e.g., Pueblito, Rancheria de los Poblanos, and two unnamed rancherias) were located in the same approximate area, more than 1 mile from the

Project Site.

The Project Site is located in the floodplain of the Los Angeles River, which is currently located approximately 0.25 miles to the east of the Project Site. Shifts in the main channel of the Los Angeles River have occurred numerous times in recorded history, including two significant shifts in 1815 and 1825, the most recent which realigned the channel to its current location. The general proximity of the Project Site to areas of known habitation, the river, and broad travel corridors has the effect of an overall increase in the sensitivity for unknown tribal cultural resources, at least higher than low background levels, particularly for the physical remains of temporary open camps.

As mentioned earlier, preliminary geotechnical work at the Project Site reports up to 2 feet of artificial fill present within the Project Site. Prior soil testing included four samples taken at 5-foot intervals to a depth of 30 feet below grade. The sediment profiles described multiple alluvial layers of fine-grained sand and silty sand, some with gravel inclusions, extending down to 10 to 30 feet. Below this the soil consisted of poorly graded sand. This is typical of deposits within the Los Angeles River floodplain and reflects a mixture of high- and low-energy deposition. To the extent that the proposed ground disturbance extends into undisturbed alluvial soils buried beneath previously disturbed sediments, there may be some potential for preservation, but it is considered very unlikely for any tribal cultural resource to be present.

Based on the above considerations, the Tribal Cultural Resources Assessment (Appendix H) cites low potential for encountering tribal cultural resources within the Project Site.

Conclusion

The CHRIS search identified no previously recorded tribal cultural resources within the Project Site or 0.5-mile radius. An ethnographic literature review and archival research identified several former Native American communities located between 0.5 and 1.5 miles to the east-northeast of the Project Site, near the Los Angeles Plaza, Union Station, and eastern portions of the downtown area. The NAHC's search of the SLF did not identify any sacred lands or sites.

Ground disturbances for the Project will occur during the proposed demolition, site preparation, and grading phases. Grading is estimated to require up to 25 feet of excavation below the surrounding street elevation that will extend into the underlying alluvial soils. Although deeply buried deposits are possible, they are considered to have a very low probability of occurring within the Project Site. As a result, the potential for unidentified tribal cultural resources within the project site is found to be low.

Though unlikely, if present, any unidentified tribal cultural resources have the potential to be significant under CEQA. However, the Project Applicant would be required to implement the City's standard condition of approval related to the inadvertent discovery of tribal cultural resources that requires that in the event that objects or artifacts that may be tribal cultural resources are encountered during the course of any ground activities (excavating, digging, trenching, plowing, drilling, tunneling, quarrying, grading, leveling, removing peat, clearing, driving posts, augering,

backfilling, blasting, stripping topsoil or a similar activity), all such activities shall temporary cease on the project site until the potential tribal cultural resources are properly assessed and addressed pursuant to the process set forth below:

- Upon a discovery of a potential tribal cultural resource, the Applicant shall immediately stop all ground disturbance activities and contact the following: (1) all California Native American tribes that have informed the City they are traditionally and culturally affiliated with the geographic area of the proposed project; and (2) the Department of City Planning at (213) 978-1177.
- If the City determines, pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21074(a)(2), that the
 object or artifact appears to be tribal cultural resource, the City shall provide any affected
 tribe a reasonable period of time, not less than 14 days, to conduct a site visit and make
 recommendations to the Applicant and the City regarding the monitoring of future ground
 disturbance activities, as well as the treatment and disposition of any discovered tribal
 cultural resources.
- The Applicant shall implement the tribe's recommendations if a qualified archaeologist and by a culturally affiliated tribal monitor, both retained by the City and paid for by the Applicant, reasonably concludes that the tribe's recommendations are reasonable and feasible.
- The Applicant shall submit a tribal cultural resource monitoring plan to the City that includes all recommendations from the City and any affected tribes that have been reviewed and determined by the qualified archaeologist and by a culturally affiliated tribal monitor to be reasonable and feasible. The Applicant shall not be allowed to recommence ground disturbance activities until this plan is approved by the City.
- If the Applicant does not accept a particular recommendation determined to be reasonable and feasible by the qualified archaeologist or by a culturally affiliated tribal monitor, the Applicant may request mediation by a mediator agreed to by the Applicant and the City who has the requisite professional qualifications and experience to mediate such a dispute. The Applicant shall pay any costs associated with the mediation.
- The Applicant may recommence ground disturbance activities outside of a specified radius of the discovery site, so long as this radius has been reviewed by the qualified archaeologist and by a culturally affiliated tribal monitor and determined to be reasonable and appropriate.
- Copies of any subsequent prehistoric archaeological study, tribal cultural resources study or report, detailing the nature of any significant tribal cultural resources, remedial actions taken, and disposition of any significant tribal cultural resources shall be submitted to the South Central Coastal Information Center (SCCIC) at California State University,

Fullerton.

• Notwithstanding the above, any information determined to be confidential in nature, by the City Attorney's Office, shall be excluded from submission to the SCCIC or the general public under the applicable provisions of the California Public Records Act, California Public Resources Code, and shall comply with the City's AB 52 Confidentiality Protocols.

Compliance with this standard condition of approval would ensure that Project impacts related to unknown tribal cultural resources would be less than significant.

Cumulative Impacts

Impacts related to tribal cultural resources tend to be site-specific and are assessed on a site-bysite basis. The City would require the applicants of each of the related projects to assess, determine, and mitigate any potential impacts related to tribal cultural resources that could occur as a result of development, as necessary, through imposition of the above-referenced condition of approval. As discussed previously, through compliance with existing laws, Project impacts associated with historic, archaeological, and paleontological resources would be less than significant with mitigation. However, the occurrence of these impacts would be limited to the Project Site and would not contribute to any potentially significant cultural resources impacts that could occur at the sites of the related projects. As such, the Project would not contribute to any potential cumulative impacts related to tribal cultural resources. Therefore, cumulative impacts related to tribal resources would be less than significant.

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

XIX. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|----|--|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|-----------|
| Wc | ould the project: | | | | |
| a. | Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater treatment or storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications facilities, the construction or relocation of which could cause significant environmental effects? | | | | |
| b. | Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable future development during normal, dry and multiple dry years? | | | | |
| C. | Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project's projected demand in addition to the provider's existing commitments? | | | | |
| d. | Generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of the capacity of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals? | | | | |
| e. | Comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations related to solid waste? | | | | |

a. Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater treatment or storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications facilities, the construction or relocation of which could cause significant environmental effects?

Less Than Significant Impact. A significant impact may occur if a project would result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater or storm water drainage facilities

to such a degree that the capacity of facilities currently serving the Project Site would be exceeded.

The Project is consistent with the demographic projections for the City from both the 2012 and 2016 RTPs, as outlined in Section XIV, Population, Housing, and Employment, of this SCEA. Based on these projections, anticipated water demand for the Project would fall within the 2015 UWMP's projected water supplies for normal, single-dry, and multiple-dry years through the year 2040 and is within the 2015 UWMP's 25-year water demand growth projection.

Additionally, the 2015 UWMP contains a water shortage contingency plan for multi-year dry hydrological periods. This water shortage contingency plan was implemented on June 1, 2009, when the Board of Water and Power Commissioners (Board) adopted Shortage Year Rates, and the City Council implemented the landscape irrigation and prohibited use restrictions contained in the City's Water Conservation Ordinance. The City's Water Rate Ordinance, adopted in June 1995, was last amended by the Board, effective April 15, 2016. The revised rate ordinance restructured the rates to help further promote conservation. For example, single-family rates switched to a four-tier system that sends a strong price signal to deter against wasteful water use. The Board found that the price signals contained in the Water Rate Ordinance encourage conservation and support further reduction in citywide demand. Past and current implementation of water rate price signals and higher ordinance phases have resulted in reducing the total customer water usage, on average, by approximately 20.2 percent over the time period from June 2009 to March 2018.

As such, the Project would not require new or additional water supply or entitlements. **Therefore**, less than significant impacts related to water facility expansions would occur and the Project would be adequately served by the LADWP.

Wastewater Treatment

The Project Site is located within the service area of the Hyperion Treatment Plant (HTP), which has been designed to treat 450 million gallons per day (mgd) to full secondary treatment. Full secondary treatment prevents virtually all particles suspended in effluent from being discharged into the Pacific Ocean and is consistent with the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board's (LARWQCB) discharge policies for the Santa Monica Bay. The HTP currently treats an average daily flow of approximately 275 mgd.¹ Thus, there is approximately 175 mgd available capacity. As shown on **Table 6.XIX-1**, the Project would generate an increase of approximately 27,076 gallons of wastewater per day (or 0.027 mgd). With a remaining daily capacity of 150 mgd, the LAAFP would have adequate capacity to serve the Project.

¹ https://www.lacitysan.org/san/faces/wcnav_externalld/s-lsh-wwd-cw-p-hwrp?_adf.ctrl state=e9g2enwiy_5&_afrLoop=2223629005130851#!

| Land Use | Size | Wastewater Generation Rate ¹ | Total (gallons/day) | | | |
|--|------------------|--|--------------------------|--|--|--|
| Proposed Uses | Proposed Uses | | | | | |
| live/work Units | 106 du | 110 gpd/du | 11,660 | | | |
| Office | 92,740 sf | 120 gallons / 1,000 sf | 11,129 | | | |
| Restaurant | 13,126 sf | 300 gallons / 1,000 sf | 3,938 | | | |
| Retail | 13,978 sf | 25 gallons / 1,000 sf | 349 | | | |
| | | Net Total | 27,076 | | | |
| gpd = gallon per day sf = square feet du = dwelling unit Note: Wastewater generation is assumed to equal water consumption. | | | | | | |
| ' Source: City of Los Ange | les Bureau of Sa | nitation, Sewer Generation Rates | s Table, March 20, 2002. | | | |

 Table 6.XIX-1

 Estimated Wastewater Generation and Water Consumption

Additionally, LADWP owns and operates the Los Angeles Aqueduct Filtration Plant (LAAFP) located in the Sylmar community of the City. The LAAFP treats City water prior to distribution throughout LADWP's Central Water Service Area. The designated treatment capacity of the LAAFP is 600 mgd, with an average plant flow of 550 mgd during the summer months and 450 mgd in the non-summer months. Thus, the facility has between approximately 50 to 150 mgd of remaining capacity depending on the season.

As shown on **Table 6.XIX-1**, the Project would create an increased demand of approximately 27,076 gallons of water per day (or 0.027 mgd) and, therefore, generate a corresponding quantity of wastewater. With the remaining capacity of approximately 50 to 150 mgd, the LAAFP would have adequate capacity to serve the Project. With this, and as discussed earlier in this section, the Project would not require the construction of new wastewater treatment facilities, and impacts related to wastewater treatment would be less than significant.

Natural Gas

For a full discussion of Natural Gas capacities and distribution, please see **Section VI (Energy)**, in this SCEA.

Electricity

For a full discussion of electrical capacities and distribution, please see **Section VI (Energy)**, in this SCEA.

Telecommunications

For a full discussion of telecommunications, please see Section VI (Energy), in this SCEA.

Cumulative Impacts

Water Supply

Implementation of the Project in conjunction with the related projects would increase demand for water services provided by the City's water supply system. Through its UWMP, LADWP (through its UWMP) anticipates its projected water supplies will meet demand through the year 2035. In terms of the City's overall water supply condition, any related project that is consistent with the City's General Plan has been taken into account in the planned growth of the water system. In addition, any related project that conforms to the demographic projections from SCAG's RTP and is located in the service area is considered to have been included in LADWP's water supply planning efforts so that projected water supplies would meet projected demands.

For projects that meet the requirements established pursuant to SB 610, SB 221, and Sections 10910-10915 of the State Water Code, a water supply assessment demonstrating sufficient water availability is required on a project-by-project basis. Per California Resources Code Section 15206, a Water Supply Assessment is required when the following occurs:

(A) A proposed residential development of more than 500 dwelling units.

(B) A proposed shopping center or business establishment employing more than 1,000 persons or encompassing more than 500,000 square feet of floor space.

(C) A proposed commercial office building employing more than 1,000 persons or encompassing more than 250,000 square feet of floor space.

(D) A proposed hotel/motel development of more than 500 rooms.

(E) A proposed industrial, manufacturing, or processing plant, or industrial park planned to house more than 1,000 persons, occupying more than 40 acres of land, or encompassing more than 650,000 square feet of floor area.

Similar to the Project, each related project would be required to comply with City and State water code and conservation programs for both water supply and infrastructure.

As shown in **Table 6.XIX-3**, below, Cumulative Estimated Water Demand, the cumulative projects in combination with the Project would demand approximately 4,613,624 gpd (4.613 mgd) of water, with the Project accounting for approximately 0.59 percent of that projected increase.

| Land Use | Total sizes | Unit | Water Demand Rates | Total (gpd) |
|--------------------------|-------------|------|-----------------------|-------------|
| Residential ^a | 16,741 | du | 192 gallons / unit | 3,214,272 |
| Retail | 1,683,402 | sf | 32 gallons / 1,000 sf | 53,869 |

Table 6.XIX-2Cumulative Estimated Water Demand

| Land Use | Total sizes | Unit | Water Demand Rates | Total (gpd) | | | |
|---|---|---------------------------|------------------------------|-------------|--|--|--|
| Hotel | 1,492 | rooms | 153.6 gallons / room | 229,171 | | | |
| Office | 5,384,761 | sf | 153.6 gallons / 1,000 sf | 827,099 | | | |
| Restaurant | 563,543 | sf 384 gallons / 1,000 sf | | 216,400 | | | |
| Cinema | 793 | seats | 5.12 gallons / seat | 4,060 | | | |
| Health Club | 118,772 | sf | 0.32 gallons / sf | 38,007 | | | |
| School | 1,457 | students | 15.36 gallons / student | 22,379 | | | |
| Event Space | 21,789 | sf 384 gallons / 1,000 sf | | 8,367 | | | |
| | | | Cumulative Projects Subtotal | 4,613,624 | | | |
| | | | Project Total | 27,076 | | | |
| | Total (Cumulative Projects + Project) 4,640,700 | | | | | | |
| Note: sf = square feet; gpd = gallons per day Water consumption rates are assumed as 128 percent (nonresidential) and 118 percent (residential) of the wastewater generation rates. Source: Correspondence from Ali Poosti, Division Manager, Wastewater Engineering Services Division, Bureau | | | | | | | |

Table 6.XIX-2 Cumulative Estimated Water Demand

of Sanitation, June 23, 2017. Included in Appendix L-1.

City of Los Angeles CEQA Thresholds Guide, 2006, Exhibit M.2-12 Sewage Generation Factors.

^a In order to present a conservative estimate of impacts, the 2-bedroom rate has been used for all units.

The remaining daily capacity of the LAAFP is 125 million gallons of water per day. The total related water demand (cumulative projects + Project) is approximately 4.613 million gallons of water per day and represents approximately 3.3 percent of the total remaining daily capacity. Therefore, the LAAFP would have adequate capacity to treat the water demanded by the Project and cumulative projects.

Future development projects within the service area of the LADWP would be subject to the locally mandated water conservation programs, and citywide water conservation efforts would also be expected to partially offset the cumulative demand for water. The LADWP undertakes expansion or modification of water service infrastructure to serve future growth in the City as required in the normal process of providing water service. For these reasons, cumulative impacts related to water service would be less than significant.

Related projects that propose changing the zoning or other characteristics beyond what is within the General Plan would be required to evaluate the change under CEQA in an environmental document. The CEQA analysis, similar to this SCEA, would compare the existing to the proposed uses and the ability of LADWP supplies and infrastructure to provide a sufficient level of water service. Future development projects within the service area of LADWP would be subject to the locally mandated water conservation programs, and citywide water conservation efforts would also be expected to partially offset the cumulative demand for water. LADWP undertakes expansion or modification of water service infrastructure to serve future growth in the City as required in the normal process of providing water service. For these reasons, cumulative impacts related to water supply facilities and possible expansion of these facilities would be less than significant.

Wastewater Treatment

Implementation of the related projects could increase the need for wastewater treatment. The cumulative projects are served by the same sewer system as the Project Site, and thus are counted as part of cumulative analysis. As shown in **Table 6.XIX-3**, Cumulative Estimated Wastewater Generation, the cumulative projects in combination with the Project would generate approximately 4,274,035 gpd (4.27 mgd) of wastewater, with the Project accounting for approximately 0.63 percent of that projected increase in wastewater generation.

For each cumulative project, the City, as part of the building permit process, would confirm and ensure that there is sufficient capacity in the local and trunk lines to accommodate the cumulative project's wastewater flows. Further detailed gauging and evaluation would be needed as part of the permit process to identify a specific sewer connection point. If the public sewer has insufficient capacity, then the developer would be required to build sewer lines to a point in the sewer system with sufficient capacity. A final approval for sewer capacity and connection permit would be made at that time. Each cumulative project would also pay any required sewer connection fees.

The cumulative projects would rely on the wastewater treatment services provided by the HTP, as all cumulative projects are within the service boundaries of the HTP. The capacity of the HTP is 450 million gallons per day and the HTP's current average wastewater flow is 275 million gpd. The cumulative sewage generation would be well within the design capacity of the HTP, representing approximately 2.46 percent of the remaining capacity.² As such, the Project's incremental effect on cumulative impacts to wastewater treatment capacity would not be cumulatively considerable.

| Land Use | Total sizes | Unit | Wastewater Generation Rates | Total (gpd) |
|--------------------------|-------------|-------|--------------------------------|-------------|
| Residential ^a | 16,741 | du | 190 gallons / unit | 3,180,790 |
| Retail | 1,683,402 | sf | 25 gallons / 1,000 sf | 42,085 |
| Hotel | 1,492 | rooms | 120 gallons / room | 179,040 |
| Office | 5,384,761 | sf | 120 gallons / 1,000 sf | 646,171 |
| Restaurant | 563,543 | sf | 300 gallons / 1,000 sf | 169,063 |
| Cinema | 793 | seats | 4 gallons / seat | 3,172 |

 Table 6.XIX-3

 Cumulative Estimated Wastewater Generation

² 4.301 mgd / 175 mgd x 100% = 2.46%

| Land Use | Total sizes | Unit | Wastewater Generation Rates | Total (gpd) | | | |
|---|----------------------|----------|--------------------------------|-------------|--|--|--|
| Health Club | 118,772 | sf | 0.25 gallons / sf | 29,693 | | | |
| School | 1,457 | students | 12 gallons / student | 17,484 | | | |
| Event Space | 21,789 | sf | 300 gallons / 1,000 sf | 6,537 | | | |
| Cumulative Projects Subtotal 4,274,035 | | | | | | | |
| | Project Total 27,076 | | | | | | |
| | | Total (C | cumulative Projects + Project) | 4,301,111 | | | |
| Note: sf = square feet; DU = dwelling unit, gpd = gallons per day Source: Correspondence from Ali Poosti, Division Manager, Wastewater Engineering Services Division, Bureau of Sanitation, June 23, 2017. Included in Appendix L-1. City of Los Angeles CEQA Thresholds Guide, 2006, Exhibit M.2-12 Sewage Generation Factors. ^a Assumes all residential units are two-bedroom units. | | | | | | | |

Table 6.XIX-3 Cumulative Estimated Wastewater Generation

Natural Gas

For a full discussion of cumulative Natural Gas capacities and distribution, please see **Section VI (Energy)** in this SCEA.

b. Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable future development during normal, dry and multiple dry years?

Less Than Significant Impact. As mentioned above in Threshold a., the City receives water from five major sources. The amount of water obtained from these sources varies from year to year and is primarily dependent on weather conditions and demand. LADWP has adopted the 2015 UWMP to ensure that existing and projected water demand within its service area can be accommodated.

Even though the Proposed Project is not currently consistent with the City's General Plan land use designation, according to the LADWP, for any related project that is consistent with the City's General Plan and underlying land use designation, the projected water demand associated with that project is considered to be accounted for in the 2015 UWMP. Even though the Project is not consistent with the current land use designation of the City's General Plan, the Project Applicant would be required to comply with the water efficiency standards outlined in Los Angeles City Ordinance No. 180822 and in the Los Angeles Green Building Code (LAGBC) to minimize water usage. Therefore, less than significant Project impacts related to water supply would occur and the Project would be adequately served by the LADWP during both normal and dry years.

c. Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project's projected demand in addition to the provider's existing commitments?

Less Than Significant Impact. A significant impact may occur if a project would increase wastewater generation above what a provider allots to serve its existing commitments. The Project's wastewater generation would be sufficiently accommodated as part of the remaining 88 mgd of treatment capacity currently available at HTP, as mentioned above. Additionally, as shown on **Table 6.XIX-1**, the Project would demand an increase of approximately 27,076 gallons of water per day (or 0.027 mgd). With the remaining capacity of approximately 50 to 150 mgd, the LAAFP would have adequate capacity to serve the Project. **Therefore, impacts to wastewater treatment and its capacity would be less than significant**. Also, please refer to Section XIX, Threshold a., above for more information.

d. Generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of the capacity of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals?

Less Than Significant Impact. A significant impact may occur if a project were to increase solid waste generation to a degree that existing and projected landfill capacity would be insufficient to accommodate the additional solid waste or impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals.

The primary landfills that serve the City include Lancaster Landfill, Chiquita Canyon Landfill, Sunshine Canyon City/County Landfill, Azusa Landfill, and the Calabasas Landfill. Permitted capacity and average daily disposal amounts for these landfills are shown on **Table 6.XIX-4**. As shown, the combined remaining available daily intake at the landfills serving the City is roughly 10,362 tons.

| Landfill Facility | Estimated Remaining Life (years) | Estimated Remaining Disposal Capacity (million tons) | Permitted Intake (tons/day) | Daily Disposal (tons/day) | Available Daily Intake (tons/day) |
|----------------------|---|--|-----------------------------------|---------------------------------|---|
| Lancaster | 24 | 10.44 | 3,000 | 550 | 2,450 |
| Chiquita Canyon | | | | | |
| Expansion | 30 | - | 12,000 | - | - |
| Sunshine | | | | | |
| Canyon | 20 | 62.1 | 12,100 | 7,496 | 4,604 |
| Azusa | 28 | 56.33 | 6,500 | 1,183 | 5,317 |
| Calabasas | 12 | 5.9 | 3,500 | 951 | 2,549 |
| | | | | Total | 10,362 |

Table 6.XIX-4 Landfill Capacity

Source: County of Los Angeles, Countywide Integrated Waste Management Plan, 2016/17 Annual Report, December 2017.

As shown on **Table 6.XIX-5**, the Project would generate an increase of approximately 0.99 tons of solid waste per day. With a remaining daily capacity of 10,362 tons per day, the existing landfill capacity would be adequate to accommodate the Project's solid waste generation. **Therefore, Project impacts related to solid waste would be less than significant.**

| Land Use | Land Use Size Generation Rat | | Total (tpd) | | | |
|---|------------------------------|----------------------------------|------------------------|--|--|--|
| Proposed Uses | | | | | | |
| live/work Units | 106 du | 12.23 lbs/day/du | 1,296 | | | |
| Office | 92,740 sf | 6 lbs/day/1,000 sf | 556 | | | |
| Restaurant | 13,126 sf | 5 lbs/day/1,000 sf | 66 | | | |
| Retail | 13,979 sf | 5 lbs/day/1,000 sf | 70 | | | |
| | | Net Total | 0.99 | | | |
| <i>Ib = pound tpd = tons p</i> | er day | | | | | |
| ¹ Source: CalRecyclewebsi | ite: http://www.c | calrecycle.ca.gov/WasteChar/Wast | eGenRates/default.htm, | | | |
| 2014. | | | | | | |
| Note: Waste generation includes all materials discarded, whether or not they are later recycled or disposed of in a landfill. | | | | | | |

| Table 6.XIX-5 |
|----------------------------------|
| Estimated Solid Waste Generation |

Cumulative Impacts

As shown in **Table 6.XIX-6**, Cumulative Operation Estimated Solid Waste Generation, the cumulative projects in combination with the Project would generate approximately 128 tons per day of operational solid waste, with the Project accounting for approximately 0.05 percent of that projected increase in operational solid waste generation. Similar to the Project, the cumulative projects would participate in regional source reduction and recycling programs pursuant to AB 939, which would further reduce the amount of solid waste to be disposed of at the landfills described above. As shown on **Table 6.XIX-6**, the facilities serving the Project area would have adequate capacity to accommodate the solid waste generated by cumulative development. Similar to the Project, the related projects would be required by the City to participate in regional source reduction and recycling programs pursuant to AB 939, which would further reduce the amount of solid waste to be disposed of at the landfills described above. As shown on **Table 6.XIX-6**, the facilities serving the Project area would have adequate capacity to accommodate the solid waste generated by cumulative development. Similar to the Project, the related projects would be required by the City to participate in regional source reduction and recycling programs pursuant to AB 939, which would further reduce the amount of solid waste to be disposed of at the landfills identified on **Table 6.XIX-6**. Thus, cumulative development would not create the need for new or expanded landfills. Therefore, cumulative impacts on solid waste service would be less than significant.

 Table 6.XIX-6

 Cumulative Estimated Solid Waste Generation

| Land Use | Total sizes | Unit | Solid Waste Rates | Total (pounds) |
|--------------------------|-------------|------|-------------------|----------------|
| Residential ^a | 16,741 | du | 12.23 lbs/day/du | 204,742 |

| Land Use | Total sizes | Unit | Solid Waste Rates | Total (pounds) | | |
|--|-------------|-----------------|----------------------------|----------------|--|--|
| Retail | 1,683,402 | sf | 5 lbs/day/1,000 sf | 8,417 | | |
| Hotel | 1,492 | rooms | 2 lbs/day/room | 2,984 | | |
| Office | 5,384,761 | sf | 6 lbs/day/1,000 sf | 32,309 | | |
| Restaurant | 563,543 | sf | 5 lbs/day/1,000 sf | 2,818 | | |
| Cinema | 6,344 | sf ^a | 5 lbs/day/1,000 sf | 32 | | |
| Health Club | 118,772 | sf | 5 lbs/day/1,000 sf | 594 | | |
| School | 1,457 | students | 1 lb/day/student | 1,457 | | |
| Event Space | 21,789 | sf | 5 lbs/day/1,000 sf | 109 | | |
| | | Cun | nulative Projects Subtotal | 253,461 | | |
| | | | Project Total | 1,980 | | |
| Total (Cumulative Projects + Project) 255,441 | | | | | | |
| Note: sf = square feet | | | | | | |
| Rates: CalRecycle Estimated Solid Waste Generation Rates: http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/wastechar/wastegenrates/ | | | | | | |

 Table 6.XIX-6

 Cumulative Estimated Solid Waste Generation

^a Assumes 8 square feet per cinema seat (793 seats x 8 square feet/seat – 6,344 square feet).

e. Comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations related to solid waste?

Less Than Significant Impact. A significant impact may occur if a project would generate solid waste that was not disposed of in accordance with applicable regulations. Solid waste generated on-site by the Project will be disposed of in compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local regulations, related to solid waste, such as AB 939. The amount of project-related waste disposed of at area landfills would be reduced through recycling and waste diversion programs implemented by the City, in compliance with the City's Solid Waste Integrated Resources Plan, which is the long-range solid waste management policy plan for the City through 2025, and the Source Reduction and Recycling Element, which is the strategic action policy plan for diverting solid waste from landfills. The Project would also comply with applicable regulatory measures, including the provisions of City Ordinance No. 171,687 regarding recycling for all new construction and other recycling measures; implementation of a demolition and construction debris recycling plan, with the explicit intent of requiring recycling during all phases of site preparation and building construction, and the provision of permanent, clearly marked, durable, source-sorted bins to facilitate the separation and deposit of recyclable materials. Waste generated by the Project would not alter the projected timeline for landfills within the region to reach capacity. The Project would comply with federal, state, and local regulations, and as such, impacts would be less than significant.

Cumulative Impacts

All development in the City, including the Proposed Project and the related projects listed in **Section 2 (Project Description)** are required to comply with the City's recycling programs. **Thus, no cumulative impacts related to this issue would occur**.

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

XX. WILDFIRE

| | | Potentially Significant Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impac t |
|-------------------------------|--|--------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|------------------|
| lf loca classif project | ted in or near state responsibility areas or lands ied as very high fire hazard severity zones would the t: | | | | |
| a. | Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan? | | | | \boxtimes |
| b. | Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby expose project occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire? | | | | |
| C. | Require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel breaks, emergency water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment? | | | | |
| d. | Expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope | | | | \boxtimes |

a. Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?

No Impact. The City's General Plan Safety Element addresses public protection from unreasonable risks associated with natural disasters (e.g., fires, floods, earthquakes) and sets forth guidance for emergency response. Specifically, the Safety Element includes Exhibit H, Critical Facilities and Lifeline Systems, that identifies emergency evacuation routes, along with

instability, or drainage changes?

the location of selected emergency facilities. According to the Safety Element of the General Plan, the Project Site is located in proximity to a designated disaster route (i.e., San Pedro Street).¹ **Therefore, no impact would occur.**

b. Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby expose project occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire?

No Impact. As identified in the parcel profile report for the Project Site obtained from the City's ZIMAS mapping system, the Project Site is not within or near a Very High Fire Severity Zone.² The Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone was first established in the City in 1999 and replaced the older Mountain Fire District and Buffer Zones. A Very High Fire Severity Zone is one in which a site is near hilly and mountainous regions that are susceptible to regular fires. **Therefore, no impact would occur.**

c. Require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel breaks, emergency water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment?

No Impact. The Project Site is not within or near a Very High Fire Severity Zone.³ Nevertheless, the Project Site would not require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure that may exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment. **Therefore, no impact would occur.**

d. Expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage changes?

No Impact. The Project Site is not within or near a Very High Fire Severity Zone.⁴ Nevertheless, the Project Site would not expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope stability, or drainage changes. **Therefore, no impact would occur.**

Cumulative Impacts

As mentioned above, the Project Site nor the related projects are within or near a very high fire severity zone. Similar to the Project Site, other related projects would not require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure that may exacerbate fire risk or that may result in

- ³ Ibid.
- 4 Ibid.

¹ City of Los Angeles Department of Planning General Plan Safety Element, November 26, 1996, Exhibit H, Critical Facilities and Lifeline Systems.

² Ibid.

temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment. Additionally, these related projects are not expected to expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope stability, or drainage changes. **There would be no impacts associated with the Project, as it relates to cumulative impacts.**

6 INITIAL STUDY/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

XXI. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE

| | | Potentiall y Significan t Impact | Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated | Less Than Significant Impact | No Impact |
|----|--|---|--|------------------------------------|--------------|
| Wc | uld the project: | | | | |
| a. | Does the project have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory? | | | | |
| b. | Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)? | | | | |

 \square

 \square

 \boxtimes

c. Does the project have environmental effects, which will cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly? a) Does the project have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory?

Less Than Significant Impact.

The Project will not degrade the quality of the environment, reduce or threaten any fish or wildlife species (endangered or otherwise), or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or pre-history. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant.

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)?

Less Than Significant Impact.

Aesthetics

Development of the Project in conjunction with the Related Projects would result in an incremental intensification of existing prevailing land uses in an already heavily urbanized area of Los Angeles. For qualified projects, as per ZI No. 2452 and SB 743, aesthetic impacts "shall not be considered significant impacts on the environment." Thus, the Project would not be cumulatively considerable. Therefore, cumulative aesthetic impacts would be less than significant.

Agriculture and Forestry Resources

Development of the Project in combination with the Related Projects would not result in the conversion of State-designated agricultural land from agricultural use to a non-agricultural use, nor result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use. The Extent of Important Farmland Map Coverage maintained by the Division of Land Protection indicates that the Project Site and the surrounding area are not included in the Important Farmland category. The Project Site and the surrounding area are highly urbanized area and do not include any State-designated agricultural lands or forest uses. Therefore, no cumulative impact would occur.

Air Quality

AQMP Consistency

Cumulative development is not expected to result in a significant impact in terms of conflicting with, or obstructing implementation of the 2016 AQMP. As discussed previously, growth considered to be consistent with the AQMP would not interfere with attainment because this growth is included in the projections utilized in the formulation of the AQMP. Consequently, as long as growth in the Basin is within the projections for growth identified in the 2016 RTP/SCS, implementation of the AQMP will not be obstructed by such growth. In addition, as discussed previously, the population growth resulting from the Project would be consistent with the growth projections of the AQMP. Each related project would implement feasible air quality

ion measures to reduce the criteria air pollutants, if required due to any significant emissions impacts. In addition, each related project would be evaluated for its consistency with the land use policies set forth in the AQMP. Therefore, the Project's contribution to the cumulative impact would not be cumulatively considerable and, therefore, would be less than significant.

Construction and Operational Emissions

As discussed above, construction of the Project would not produce VOC, CO, SO_x, PM₁₀ and PM_{2.5} emissions in excess of SCAQMD's regional thresholds. However, NO_x emissions from diesel-fueled engines operating during the demolition phase would exceed the daily thresholds. Because this pollutant is a precursor regional O₃ formation, construction of the Project could contribute substantially to an existing violation of ozone air quality standards due to NO_x emissions prior to mitigation. Nonetheless, the Project would comply with regulatory requirements, including the SCAQMD Rule 403 requirements listed above and Mitigation Measure MM-AQ-1. Based on SCAQMD guidance, individual construction projects that exceed the SCAQMD's recommended daily thresholds for project-specific impacts would cause a cumulatively considerable increase in emissions for those pollutants for which the Air Basin is in non-attainment. Therefore, the Project's contribution to cumulative air quality impacts due to localized emissions would not be cumulatively considerable and, therefore, would be less than significant with mitigation.

Similar to the Project, the greatest potential for TAC emissions at each related project would generally involve diesel particulate emissions associated with heavy equipment operations during grading and excavation activities. According to SCAQMD methodology, health effects from carcinogenic air toxics are usually described in terms of individual cancer risk. "Individual Cancer Risk" is the likelihood that a person exposed to concentrations of TACs over a 30-year period will contract cancer, based on the use of standard risk-assessment methodology. Construction activities are temporary and short-term events, thus construction activities at each related project would not result in a long-term substantial source of TAC emissions. Additionally, the SCAQMD CEQA guidance does not require a health risk assessment for short-term construction activities, It is therefore not meaningful to evaluate long-term cancer impacts from construction activities,

which occur over relatively short durations. As such, given the short-term nature of these activities, cumulative toxic emission impacts during construction would be less than significant.

According to the SCAQMD, if an individual project results in air emissions of criteria pollutants that exceed the SCAQMD's recommended daily thresholds for project-specific impacts, then the project would also result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of these criteria pollutants. As operational emissions would not exceed any of the SCAQMD's regional or localized significance thresholds, the emissions of non-attainment pollutants and precursors generated by Project operations would not be cumulatively considerable.

With respect to TAC emissions, neither the Project nor any of the related projects (which are largely residential, retail/commercial, and office in nature), would represent a substantial source of TAC emissions, which are typically associated with large-scale industrial, manufacturing, and transportation hub facilities. The Project and related projects would be consistent with the recommended screening level siting distances for TAC sources, as set forth in CARB's Land Use Guidelines, and the Project and related projects would not result in a cumulative impact requiring further evaluation. However, the related projects could generate minimal TAC emissions related to the use of consumer products and landscape maintenance activities, among other things. Pursuant to AB 1807, which directs the CARB to identify substances as TACs and adopt airborne toxic control measures to control such substances, the SCAQMD has adopted numerous rules (primarily in Regulation XIV) that specifically address TAC emissions. These SCAQMD rules have resulted in and will continue to result in substantial Basin-wide TAC emissions reductions. As such, cumulative TAC emissions during long-term operations would be less than significant. Therefore, the Project would not result in any substantial sources of TACs that have been identified by the CARB's Land Use Guidelines, and thus, would not contribute to a cumulative impact.

Odor Impacts

With respect to odor impacts, potential sources that may emit odors during construction activities at each related project include the use of architectural coatings, solvents, and asphalt paving. Based on mandatory compliance with SCAQMD Rules, construction activities and materials used in the construction of the Project and related projects would not combine to create objectionable construction odors. None of the Related Projects is close to the Project Site. With respect to operations, SCAQMD Rule 402 (Nuisance) and SCAQMD Best Available Control Technology Guidelines would limit potential objectionable odor impacts from the Related Projects and the Project's long-term operations phase. Thus, cumulative odor impacts would be less than significant.

Biological Resources

The Project would not impact any protected trees. The Project would have no impact upon other biological resources. Development of the Project in combination with the related projects would not significantly impact wildlife corridors or habitat for any candidate, sensitive, or special status

species identified in local plans, policies, or regulations, or by the CDFG or the USFWS. No such habitat occurs in the vicinity of the Project Site or Related Projects due to the existing urban development. Development of any of the related projects would be subject to the City of Los Angeles Protected Tree Ordinance. The Project would not be cumulatively considerable since it is unknown if the Related Projects have potential significant impacts such as tree or habitat removal. Thus, cumulative impacts to biological resources will be less than significant.

Cultural Resources

The Project and Related Projects would comply with applicable federal, state, and city regulations that would preclude significant cumulative impacts regarding cultural resources. This resource area is site and locally specific so that each Related Project would need to be evaluated within its own site-specific context. In addition, any Related Project within a historic district or affecting a historic resource would require a historic resource evaluation to ensure that removal of an existing building, addition of a new building, and/or conversion would not impact the historic resource in the area. The Project will have no historic impact and a less than significant impact on archeological resources, paleontological resources, and human remains, with implementation of required mitigation measures. Cumulative impacts on cultural resource will be less than significant.

Each of the Related Projects would be evaluated within its own context with consideration of energy conservation features that could alleviate electrical demand. Each Related Projects would be required to be in compliance with Title 24 of the CCR (CalGreen) requiring building energy efficiency standards and would also be in compliance with the Los Angeles Green Building Code. Further, each Related Projects would need to be consistent with the building energy efficiency requirements of Title 24 as well as how SCG serves each location with its existing distribution infrastructure. Finally, each Related Projects would need to be consistent with how the LADWP serves each location with its existing distribution infrastructure. Therefore, cumulative impacts would be less than significant.

Energy

LADWP and SCG undertake system expansions and secure the capacity to serve their service areas and take into consideration general growth and development. Operation would result in the irreversible consumption use of non-renewable natural gas and would thus limit the availability of this resource. However, the continued use of natural gas would be on a relatively small scale and consistent with regional and local growth expectations for the area. The Related Projects would be in compliance with the City's Green Building Ordinance (for the City of Los Angeles) and would thus exceed the standards in Title 24 of the CCR requiring building energy efficiency standards.

All forecasted growth would incorporate design features and energy conservation measures, as required by Title 24 of the CCR (CalGreen) requiring building energy efficiency standards, and would also be in compliance with the LA Green Building Code, which would reduce the impact on natural gas demand. It is also anticipated that future developments would upgrade distribution

facilities, commensurate with their demand, in accordance with all established policies and procedures. There would be sufficient statewide supplies to accommodate the statewide requirements from 2018-2030. Thus, there is a plan to secure natural gas supplies to meet demand. Therefore, cumulative impacts would be less than significant.

Geology and Soils

Geotechnical hazards are site-specific and there is little, if any, cumulative geological relationship between the Project and any of the Related Projects. Like the Project, potential impacts related to geology and soils would be assessed on a case-by-case basis and, if necessary, the applicants of the Related Projects would be required to implement the appropriate mitigation measures. Furthermore, the analysis of the Project's geology and soils impacts concluded that Project impacts would be less than significant. Therefore, the Project would not make a cumulatively considerable contribution to any potential cumulative impacts, and cumulative geology and soil impacts would be less than significant.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

GHG analysis is a cumulative analysis and thus, there would be no cumulative significant impact as shown above (see Part 5.VIII of this SCEA). The Project's generation of GHG emissions would not make a cumulatively considerable contribution to GHG emissions and impacts would be less than significant.

Hazards and Hazardous Materials

Hazards are site-specific and there is little, if any, cumulative hazardous relationship between the Project and any of the Related Projects. Similar to the Project, potential impacts related to hazards would be assessed on a case-by-case basis and, if necessary, the applicants of the Related Projects would be required to implement the appropriate mitigation measures. Furthermore, the analysis of the Project's hazards and hazardous materials impact concluded that, through the implementation of the mitigation measures recommended above, Project impacts would be reduced to less than significant levels. Therefore, the Project would not make a cumulatively considerable contribution to any potential cumulative impacts, and cumulative hazard and hazardous materials impacts would be less than significant.

Hydrology and Water Quality

The Project Site and the surrounding areas are served by the existing City storm drain system. Runoff from the Project Site and adjacent urban uses is typically directed into the adjacent streets, where it flows to the nearest drainage improvements. It is likely that most, if not all, of the Related Projects would also drain to the surrounding street system. However, little if any additional cumulative runoff is expected from the Project Site and the related projects, since this part of the City is already fully developed with impervious surfaces. Under the requirements of the Low Impact Development Ordinance, each related project will be required to implement stormwater BMPs to retain or treat the runoff from a storm event producing ³/₄ inch of rainfall in a 24-hour period.

Mandatory structural BMPs in accordance with the NPDES water quality program will therefore result in a cumulative reduction to surface water runoff, as the development in the surrounding area is limited to infill developments and redevelopment of existing urbanized areas. Therefore, the Project would not make a cumulatively considerable contribution to impacting the volume or quality of surface water runoff, and cumulative impacts to the existing or planned stormwater drainage systems would be less than significant. Therefore, cumulative water quality impacts would be less than significant.

Land Use

Compliance with City's land use standards would ensure that any cumulative impacts related to land use would be less than significant. Further, all related projects would be individually evaluated for consistency with applicable land use standards. None of the Related Projects would physically divide an established community or conflict with a habitat conservation plan. The Project would not make a cumulatively considerable contribution to land use planning, and cumulative impacts would be less than significant. Therefore, cumulative land use impacts would be less than significant.

Mineral Resources

Development of the Project in combination with the Related Projects would not result in the loss of availability of mineral resources. The Project Site and the surrounding area are highly urbanized area and do not include any MRZ zones. Therefore, no cumulative impact would occur.

Noise

Development of the Project in conjunction with the Related Projects would result in an increase in construction-related and traffic-related noise as well as on-site stationary noise sources in the already urbanized area of the City of Los Angeles. Construction-period noise for the Project and each Related Project (that has not yet been built) would be localized in nature. None of the Related Projects are in close enough proximity to the Project Site to cause cumulative construction or stationary noise or vibration impacts. Any construction noise from the Related Project, were it to occur concurrently with the Project, would be attenuated by the distance across intervening streets and/or structures that break the line of sight from these sites to the nearby receptors.

Additionally, each of these Related Projects would be subject to LAMC Section 41.40, which limits the hours of allowable construction activities. Each related project would also be subject to Section 112.05 of the LAMC, which prohibits any powered equipment or powered hand tool from producing noise levels that exceed 75 dBA at a distance of 50 feet from the noise source within 500 feet of a residential zone. Noise levels are only allowed to exceed this noise limitation under

conditions where compliance is technically infeasible. With respect to cumulative traffic noise impacts, it should be noted that the Project's mobile source vehicular noise impacts are based on the predicted traffic volumes as presented in the Project Traffic Study (included as an appendix to this SCEA). Based on the Project's estimated trip generation, the Project plus future cumulative baseline conditions would not have the potential to create a significant cumulative impact. As such, the Project's noise volumes would not be cumulatively considerable. Thus, the cumulative impact associated with construction noise would be less than significant.

Population and Housing

The Related Projects would introduce additional residential, commercial/retail/restaurant, office, school, and other related uses to the City of Los Angeles. Any residential related projects would result in direct population growth. The related project growth would not exceed the projected growth. The net increase of employees is not cumulatively considerable as there are no thresholds for employee impacts. Because the Project would not displace any residents, and the population growth is within the expected projections, the Project's population growth would not be cumulatively considerable. Therefore, the Project's cumulative impacts to population and housing would be less than significant.

Public Services

Fire

Given the geographic range of the Related Projects, they would be served by a variety of fire stations.¹ The Project, in combination with the related projects, could increase the demand for fire protection services in the Project area. Specifically, there could be increased demands for additional LAFD staffing, equipment, and facilities over time. This need would be funded via existing mechanisms (e.g., property taxes, government funding, and developer fees) to which the Project and related projects would contribute. Similar to the Project, each of the Related Projects in the City of Los Angeles would be individually subject to LAFD review and would be required to comply with all applicable fire safety requirements of the LAFD in order to adequately mitigate fire protection impacts. Specifically, any related project that exceeded the applicable response distance standards described above would be required to install automatic fire sprinkler systems in order to mitigate the additional response distance. To the extent cumulative development causes the need for additional fire stations to be built throughout the City, the development of such stations would be on small infill lots within existing developed areas. Nevertheless, the development of any new fire stations would be subject to further CEQA review and evaluated on a case-by-case basis. However, as the LAFD does not currently have any plans for new fire stations to be developed in proximity to the Project Site, no impacts are currently anticipated to occur. On this basis, the Project would not make a cumulatively considerable contribution to fire

¹ LAFD Fire Station Finder: http://www.lafd.org/fire_stations/find_your_station.

protection services impacts, and, as such cumulative impacts on fire protection would be less than significant.

Police

The Project, in combination with the Related Projects, would increase the demand for police protection services in the Project area. Specifically, there would be an increased demand for additional LAPD staffing, equipment, and facilities over time. This need would be funded via existing mechanisms (e.g., sales taxes, government funding, and developer fees), to which the Project and Related Projects would contribute. In addition, each of the related projects would be individually subject to LAPD review and would be required to comply with all applicable safety requirements of the LAPD and the City of Los Angeles in order to adequately address police protection service demands. Furthermore, each of the related projects would likely install and/or incorporate adequate crime prevention design features in consultation with the LAPD, as necessary, to further decrease the demand for police protection services. To the extent cumulative development causes the need for additional police stations to be built throughout the City, the development of such stations would be on small infill lots within existing developed areas. Nevertheless, the siting and development of any new police stations would be subject to further CEQA review and evaluated on a case-by-case basis. However, as the LAPD does not currently have any plans for new police stations to be developed in proximity to the Project Site, no impacts are currently anticipated to occur. On this basis, the Project would not make a cumulatively considerable contribution to police protection services impacts, and cumulative impacts on police protection would be less than significant.

Schools

Given the geographic range of the Related Projects, they would be served by a variety of public schools depending on the location and service boundaries. The Project, in combination with the Related Projects is expected to result in a cumulative increase in the demand for school services. These Related Projects would have the potential to generate students that would attend the same schools as the Project. However, each of the projects would be responsible for paying mandatory school fees to mitigate the increased demands for school services. Overall, the payment of school fees in compliance with SB 50 would be mandatory and would provide full and complete mitigation of school impacts for the purposes of CEQA. Cumulative impacts on schools would be less than significant.

Parks and Recreation

Development of the Project in conjunction with the related projects could result in an increase in permanent residents residing in the Project area. Additional cumulative development would contribute to lowering the City's existing parkland to population ratio, which is currently below the preferred standard. However, each of the residential related projects is required to comply with payment of applicable park fees (Quimby or otherwise). Each residential related project would also be required to comply with the on-site open space requirements of the LAMC. Therefore,

with payment of the applicable recreation fees on a project-by-project basis, the Project would not make a cumulatively considerable impact to parks and recreational facilities and cumulative impacts would be less than significant.

Library

Given the geographic range of the Related Projects, they would be served by a variety of libraries.² Development of the related projects would likely generate additional demands upon library services. The LAPL has no plans for new or expanded libraries; however, the Related Projects, like the Project, would contribute to the City General Fund, which goes to, among other things, library services. Therefore, the cumulative impacts related to library facilities would be less than significant.

Traffic

Development of the Project in conjunction with the Related Projects would result in an increase in average daily vehicle trips and peak hour vehicle trips. The Traffic VMT analysis also includes a cumulative analysis and there would be no cumulative significant impact as shown above (see Part 5.VXVII of this SCEA). Thus, there would be no CMP intersections or freeways impacts. Therefore, the Project's cumulative impact is considered less than significant.

Utilities

Individual sewer and water infrastructure is location and site-specific and made on a case by case basis. Through the 2010 Urban Water Management Plan, the LADWP has demonstrated that it can provide adequate water supplies for the City through the year 2035. Demands on water consumption, wastewater generation, and solid waste generation resulting from the Project would be less than significant with implementation of provided mitigation measures (where applicable). These mitigation measures identified for the Project are standard mitigation measures from the City that would also apply to the Related Projects in the City. In addition, several of the Related Projects could be subject to SB 610, which requires a water supply assessment to evaluate whether total projected water supplies will meet the projected water demand. Ultimately, the wastewater and water facilities (HTP and LAAFP) and the Puente Hills MRF, Sunshine Canyon landfill, and Mesquite landfill have adequate capacity to accommodate the project and related projects along with the general growth within the City. The Project's contribution to cumulative wastewater, water, and solid waste impacts will not be cumulatively considerable and cumulative impacts would be less than significant.

Each of the related projects would be evaluated within its own context with consideration of energy conservation features that could alleviate electrical demand. Each related project would be required to be in compliance with Title 24 of the CCR (CalGreen) requiring building energy efficiency standards and would also be in compliance with the Los Angeles Green Building Code.

² LAPL Locations: http://www.lapl.org/branches.

Further, each related project would need to be consistent with how the LADWP serves each location with its existing distribution infrastructure. Therefore, cumulative impacts would be less than significant.

Further, each related project would need to be consistent with the building energy efficiency requirements of Title 24 as well as how SCG serves each location with its existing distribution infrastructure.

LADWP and SCG undertake system expansions and secure the capacity to serve their service areas and take into consideration general growth and development. Operation would result in the irreversible consumption use of non-renewable natural gas and would thus limit the availability of this resource. However, the continued use of natural gas would be on a relatively small scale and consistent with regional and local growth expectations for the area. The related projects would be in compliance with the City's Green Building Ordinance (for the City of Los Angeles) and would thus exceed the standards in Title 24 of the CCR requiring building energy efficiency standards.

All forecasted growth would incorporate design features and energy conservation measures, as required by Title 24 of the CCR (CalGreen) requiring building energy efficiency standards, and would also be in compliance with the LA Green Building Code, which would reduce the impact on natural gas demand. It is also anticipated that future developments would upgrade distribution facilities, commensurate with their demand, in accordance with all established policies and procedures. There would be sufficient statewide supplies to accommodate the statewide requirements from 2018-2030. Thus, there is a plan to secure natural gas supplies to meet demand. Therefore, cumulative impacts would be less than significant.

Tribal

Impacts related to tribal cultural resources tend to be site-specific and are assessed on a site-bysite basis. The City would require the applicants of each of the related projects to assess, determine, and mitigate any potential impacts related to tribal cultural resources that could occur as a result of development, as necessary, through imposition of the above-referenced condition of approval. As discussed previously, through compliance with existing laws, Project impacts associated with historic, archaeological, and paleontological resources would be less than significant with mitigation. However, the occurrence of these impacts would be limited to the Project Site and would not contribute to any potentially significant cultural resources impacts that could occur at the sites of the related projects. As such, the Project would not contribute to any potential cumulative impacts related to tribal cultural resources. Therefore, cumulative impacts related to tribal resources would be less than significant.

Wildfire

As mentioned above, the Project Site nor the related projects are within or near a very high fire severity zone. Similar to the Project Site, other related projects would not require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure that may exacerbate fire risk or that may result in

temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment. Additionally, these related projects are not expected to expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope stability, or drainage changes. There would be no impacts associated with the Project, as it relates to cumulative impacts.

c) Does the project have environmental effects, which will cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly?

Less Than Significant Impact.

A significant impact may occur if a project has the potential to result in significant impacts, as discussed in the preceding sections. As described throughout this environmental impact analysis, with implementation of the recommended mitigation measures, where applicable, the Project would not result in any unmitigated significant impacts. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant.

7 LIST OF MITIGATION MEASURES, PROJECT DESIGN FEATURES, REGULATORY COMPLIANCE MEASURES, AND CORRECTIVE MEASURES

MITIGATION MEASURES

MM-AQ-1. All off-road construction equipment greater than 50 hp shall meet U.S. EPA Tier 3 emission standards, to reduce NO_x, PM₁₀, and PM_{2.5} emissions at the Project Site. In addition, all construction equipment shall be outfitted with Best Available Control Technology devices certified by CARB. Any emissions control device used by the contractor shall achieve emissions reductions that are no less than what could be achieved by a Level 3 diesel emissions control strategy for a similarly sized engine as defined by CARB regulations.

During plan check, the Project Applicant shall make available to the lead agency and SCAQMD a comprehensive inventory of all off-road construction equipment, equal to or greater than 50 horsepower that shall be used during any portion of demolition/excavation activities and concrete pour days for the foundation for the Project. The inventory shall include the horsepower rating, engine production year, and certification of the specified Tier standard. A copy of each unit's certified tier specification, Best Available Control Technology documentation, and CARB or SCAQMD operating permit shall be available onsite at the time of mobilization of each applicable unit of equipment to allow the Construction Monitor to compare the on-site equipment with the inventory and certified Tier specification and operating permit. Off-road diesel-powered equipment within the construction inventory list described above shall meet Tier 4 CARB/U.S. EPA standards.

- **CULT-MM-1:** Retain a Qualified Archaeologist. Prior to the issuance of a demolition permit, the project proponent shall retain a qualified archaeologist, defined as an archaeologist who meets the Secretary of the Interior's (SOI) Standards for professional archaeology, during the excavation phase to carry out and ensure proper implementation of the mitigation measures related to archaeological resources. The qualified archaeologist shall submit a letter of retention to the project proponent no fewer than 15 days before demolition or excavation activities commence. The letter shall include a resume for the qualified archaeologist that demonstrates fulfillment of the SOI standards.
- CULT-MM-2: Prepare an Archaeological Resources Monitoring and Mitigation Plan (ARMMP). Prior to the commencement of demolition and excavation, an ARMMP shall be prepared. The ARMMP shall include, but not be limited to, a construction worker training program (described in CULT-MM-3), monitoring protocol for demolition and excavation activities, discovery and processing protocol for inadvertent discoveries of archaeological resources, and identification of a curation
facility should artifacts be collected. The ARMMP shall identify areas that require monitoring, provide a framework for assessing the geoarchaeological setting to determine whether sediments capable of preserving archaeological remains are present, and include a protocol for identifying the conditions under which additional or reduced levels of monitoring (e.g., spot-checking) may be appropriate. The duration and timing of the monitoring shall be determined based on the rate of excavation, geoarchaeological assessment, and, if present, the quantity, type, and spatial distribution of archaeological resources identified.

The ARMMP shall minimally include a historical context statement, research design, and methodology by which any newly identified archaeological sites will be evaluated for CRHR eligibility and as unique archaeological resources. The ARMMP will specify the specific types of archaeological sites likely to be encountered, the means by which significance will be assessed. If any archaeological resources are identified and are found not to be significant or do not retain integrity, then they will be recorded to a level sufficient to document the contents and condition. The ARMMP shall include a proactive identification and documentation protocol that would facilitate preservation or mitigation of impacts to any archaeological sites identified in a cost-effective manner. The ARMMP will include potential treatment plans to be implemented in the event a newly discovered archaeological resource is determined by the qualified archaeologist to constitute a "historical resource" pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(a) or a "unique archaeological resource" pursuant to PRC 21083.2(g). The ARMMP will require that if the treatment plans outlined therein are found to be infeasible or other alternatives are proposed, the qualified archaeologist shall coordinate with the project proponent and City Planning to amend the ARMMP with a formal treatment plan that would reduce impacts to the resource(s). The treatment plans stated in the ARMMP or prepared after the discovery of a historical resource, shall be in accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(f) for historical resources and Public Resources Code Sections 21083.2(b) for unique archaeological resources. Preservation in place (i.e., avoidance) is the preferred manner of treatment and if it is determined avoidance is not feasible, treatment may include but not be limited to any of the following depending on the type of resource and the significance evaluation:

- Prehistoric archaeological sites. Data recovery shall be conducted (i.e., excavation, laboratory processing and analysis) to remove the resource(s) and reduce potential impacts to less than significant where significance is determined under CRHR Criterion 4 and integrity is retained.
- **Historic-period archaeological sites.** If a Historic-period site, including but not limited to a refuse scatter or building foundation(s), is present and found to retain integrity, data recovery shall be conducted (i.e., excavation, laboratory

processing and analysis) to remove the resource(s) and reduce potential impacts to less than significant. In addition to data recovery, specific treatments shall be developed and implemented based on potential CRHR or eligibility criteria or as a unique archaeological resource as follows:

- Treatment Under Criteria 1 and 2, or as a unique archaeological resource: Treatment shall include interpretation for the public. Interpretive materials may include, but not be limited to, signage at the Project Site, relocating preserved materials in a publicly accessible display, or visual representations of recovered materials. The interpretive materials shall be prepared, at the expense of the project applicant, by professionals meeting the Secretary of the Interior standards in history or historical archeology. The details of the interpretive materials, including the form, content, and timing of their preparation, shall be completed to the satisfaction and subject to the approval of the Department of City Planning. The results of the historical and archaeological studies conducted for the Project shall be made available to the public through repositories such as the local main library branch or identified non-profit historic groups interested in the subject matter.
- Treatment Under Criterion 3: Architectural documentation of exposed features shall be conducted by producing narrative records, measured drawings, and photographs in conformance with HAER standards prior to any alteration or demolition activity.
- **Treatment Under Criterion 4:** No additional work; data recovery is sufficient.

The ARMMP shall summarize the requirements for tribal coordination in the event of an inadvertent discovery of Native American archaeological resources, including the applicable regulatory compliance measures or conditions of approval for the inadvertent discovery of tribal cultural resources to be carried out in concert. The ARMMP shall be prepared in compliance with Public Resources Code Section 5024.1, Title 14 California Code of Regulations, Section 15064.5 of the CEQA Guidelines, and PRC Sections 21083.2 and 21084.1.

CULT-MM-3: Worker Environmental Awareness Program (WEAP) Training. Before the commencement of initial demolition or excavation at the Project Site, the retained qualified archaeologist or their designee shall provide a WEAP training to on-site project personnel responsible for supervising demolition and excavation (i.e., foreman or supervisor) and machine operators. The WEAP training shall brief construction crews regarding the regulatory compliance requirements and

applicable mitigation measures that must be adhered to during demolition and excavation activities for the protection of archaeological resources. As an element of the WEAP training, the qualified archaeologist or their designee shall advise the construction crews on proper procedures to follow if an unanticipated archaeological resource is discovered during construction. The qualified archaeologist or their designee shall also provide the construction workers with contact information for the qualified archaeologist and their designee(s) and protocols to follow if inadvertent discoveries are made. In addition, workers shall be shown examples of the types of archaeological resources that would require notification of the archaeologist, if encountered. Once the ground disturbances have commenced, the need for additional or supplemental WEAP training shall be determined through consultation with the qualified archaeologist, project proponent or their designated project supervisor. Within five days of completing a WEAP training, a list of those in attendance shall be provided by the qualified archaeologist to the project proponent.

CULT-MM-4: Monitoring for Archaeological Resources. Before the commencement of demolition or excavation activities, an archaeological monitor shall be present during ground disturbing activities as stipulated in the ARMMP. The qualified archaeologist may designate an archaeologist to conduct the monitoring under their direction. The monitor shall have the authority to temporarily halt or redirect construction activities in soils that are likely to contain potentially significant archaeological resources, as determined by the qualified archaeologist. The monitor shall complete a daily log documenting construction activities and observations. The field observations shall include assessment of the geoarchaeological setting and whether sediments are identified that are no longer capable or unlikely to contain archaeological material (i.e., sterile), which may be encountered prior to reaching the total depth of excavation expected for the project. If initial archaeological monitoring identifies low archaeological sensitivity (i.e., sterile soil strata) below a certain depth or within a certain portion of the Project Site, a corresponding reduction of monitoring coverage would be appropriate. In the event that potentially significant archaeological resources are exposed during construction, work in the immediate vicinity of the find (within 8 meters [25 feet]) shall stop until a qualified archaeologist can evaluate the significance of the find. Construction activities may continue in other areas in coordination with the gualified archaeologist. If the discovery is determined by the qualified archaeologist to constitute a "historical resource" pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(a) or a "unique archaeological resource" pursuant to PRC 21083.2(g), and the treatments proposed in the ARMMP are found to be infeasible or other alternatives are proposed, the qualified archaeologist shall coordinate with the project proponent and the Department of City Planning to amend the ARMMP with a formal treatment plan that would reduce impacts to the resource(s). The treatment plan established for the resource(s) shall be in

accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(f) for historical resources and Public Resources Code Sections 21083.2(b) for unique archaeological resources. Preservation in place (i.e., avoidance) is the preferred manner of treatment and if it is determined avoidance is not feasible, treatment may include architectural documentation and archaeological data recovery (i.e., excavation, laboratory processing and analysis) to remove the resource(s) and reduce potential impacts to less than significant.

Within 30 days of concluding the archaeological monitoring, the qualified archaeologist shall prepare a memo stating that the archaeological monitoring requirement of the mitigation measure has been fulfilled and summarize the results of any archaeological finds. The memo shall be submitted to the project proponent and the Department of City Planning. Following submittal of the memo, the qualified archaeologist shall prepare a technical report documenting the methods and results of all work completed under the ARMMP, including, if any, treatment of archaeological materials, results of artifact processing, analysis, and research, and evaluation of the resource(s) for the California Register of Historical Resources. Once laboratory analysis is complete, any recovered archaeological materials shall be curated at a public, non-profit research institution that will ensure their long-term preservation and allow access to interested scholars and shall be done at the expense of the project applicant. Should no such institutions accept the materials, they shall be donated to an educational institution or historical society. The format and content of the report shall follow the California Office of Historic Preservation's Archaeological Resource Management Reports (ARMR): Recommended Contents and Format. Any archaeological resources identified shall be documented on appropriate California Department of Parks and Recreation 523-Series Forms. The report shall be prepared under the supervision of a qualified archaeologist and submitted to the Department of City Planning within 12 months of completion of the monitoring. The final draft of the report shall be submitted to the South Central Coastal Information Center.

GEO-MM-1: Prior to Project construction, the prime contractor and any subcontractor(s) shall be advised of the legal and/or regulatory implications of knowingly destroying paleontological or unique geologic resources or sites from the Project Sites. In addition, in the event that paleontological resources or sites, or unique geologic features are exposed during Project construction, work within 50 feet of the find shall stop until a qualified paleontologist can identify and evaluate the significance of the discovery and develop recommendations for treatment. Construction activities could continue in other areas of the Project Site. If the resource is found to be significant, recommendations would include a preparation of a Treatment Plan, which would require recordation, collection, and analysis of the discovery; preparation of a technical report; and curation of the collection and supporting

documentation in an appropriate depository. Any paleontological resources or sites, or unique geologic features shall be treated in accordance with state law.

- **HAZ-MM-1:** During excavation of the Project Site for the subterranean parking garage and prior to issuance of a Building Permit, if a UST is encountered, the Project Applicant shall procure a Division 5 Permit from the Los Angeles County Fire Department for removal of a UST and shall comply with the requirements of the permit.
- **HAZ-MM-2:** Prior to issuance of a Building Permit, the Soil Management Plan (SMP) dated May 27, 2020 and subsequent amendments shall be submitted to the Los Angeles County Fire Department for review and approval. The SMP shall be implemented during excavation and grading activities in areas of potential soil contamination to ensure site closure is properly implemented, and contaminated soil encountered is properly identified, removed, and disposed of off-site. The SMP shall include the following:
 - A qualified environmental consultant shall be present as necessary during grading and excavation activities to monitor compliance with the SMP and to actively monitor the soil and excavations for evidence of contamination.
 - Soil encountered during excavation or grading activities that appears to have been affected by hydrocarbons or other contamination shall be evaluated, based on appropriate laboratory analysis, by a qualified environmental consultant prior to off-site disposal at a licensed facility.
 - Identified contaminated soil shall be properly removed, handled, and transported to an appropriately licensed disposal facility, in accordance with the SMP.
 - Measures to protect construction workers from exposure to soils.
- **HAZ-MM-3:** Prior to start of construction, building controls such as liquid boot protection or a passive sub-slab vapor depressurization system as part of the footprint of the structure shall be included to the satisfaction of the Los Angeles Building and Safety Department.
- **HAZ-MM-4:** The design of the passive system shall include the provision to convert the passive system to an active depressurization system if vapor concentrations near the slab and in the parking structure exceed federal, state and/or local screening levels.
 - Vapor sampling of the parking area and passive sub-slab system shall be conducted either annually or semi-annually to periodically measure the contaminant concentrations in those areas.

- **HAZ-MM-5:** During excavation tasks, a photo-ionization detector (PID) shall be on site at all times. The PID shall be maintained in good working order, and shall be calibrated by the manufacturer at least once every three months and by experienced personnel on a daily basis. The calibration of the device shall be verified using hexane calibration gas at the beginning of each working day. In the event that inconsistent or erratic readings are experienced, or the PID becomes otherwise inoperable, all excavation activities will cease until it is repaired or replaced.
- HAZ-MM-6: All monitoring shall be conducted by an environmental professional provided by Remdox or other equally qualified professional, and the monitoring of soil will occur at a distance no more than 3 inches above the soil surface using the PID. Monitoring shall be initially conducted at a minimum frequency of one reading every fifteen minutes. Upon detection of VOC contamination, monitoring shall be conducted at a minimum rate of one reading for every five cubic yards excavated. All readings shall be taken no later than three minutes after each load of soil is excavated. All monitoring shall be conducted by trained personnel who are proficient in the use of the PID. Written records of PID monitoring and calibrations shall be kept in a format approved by the SCAQMD. The certification on all records shall be signed and dated on the day the measurements are observed. Upon detection of VOC-contaminated soil (defined by PID readings 50 ppmV or greater), the SCAQMD shall be notified within 24 hours. The Soil Monitoring Program is required by SCAQMD but is also designed to provide a framework for segregating the soil planned for export into three categories: Significantly Impacted Soil, Lightly Impacted Soil, and Non-Impacted Soil.
- **HAZ-MM-7:** Although not expected during this project, any VOC-contaminated soil greater 1000 ppmV shall be immediately stockpiled, covered with plastic sheeting and stored separately from non-VOC-contaminated soil. Once excavated, contaminated soil under these conditions will be considered contaminated at all times and will not be backfilled. A VOC contaminated stockpile shall not contain more than 500 cubic yards of soil.
- **HAZ-MM-8:** If the PID measurement is greater than 50 ppmV, but less than 1000 ppmV, the affected work area and load of soil shall be sprayed with water to suppress vapors. The contaminated soil in stockpiles shall be covered with plastic sheeting and secured so that no portion of the contaminated soil is exposed to the atmosphere.
- **HAZ-MM-9:** If the PID measurement is greater than 1000 ppmV, SCAQMD will be notified within one hour and the affected soil and working area shall be immediately sprayed with water. Contaminated soil once stockpiled and covered with plastic sheeting shall remain covered and undisturbed until removed from the site. In the unlikely event that any contaminated soils meet the criteria for designation as

hazardous waste it will be disposed of according to the applicable SCAQMD and City regulations.

- HAZ-MM-10: Any soil with readings greater than 50 ppmV via PID shall be considered potentially contaminated and placed in a separate stockpile from native soil that is not impacted. This material will require additional testing and separate disposal from the (highly unlikely) Significantly Impacted Soil and the (probably more voluminous) Non-Impacted Soil. Monitoring of the spoils during excavation using the PID is the primary mechanism for separation of the material into different piles that may not be comingled. Stockpiles may be expanded to a maximum of 500 cubic yards before disposal is required. Determining the fate and destination of the stockpiled soil will require sampling and profiling of the material as required by the waste-accepting facility. This will include laboratory testing for petroleum hydrocarbons, VOC, heavy metals, and other components at their discretion. Soil that passes the field screening and has less than 50 ppmV VOC will be considered Non-Impacted by the SCAQMD Rule 1166 standards, but still may be impacted enough to warrant discretionary disposal at an appropriate landfill. Because of the high sensitivity of chlorinated volatiles, Remdox recommends that all soils over 1 ppmV be contained in a separate pile from non-impacted soil.
- **TRA-MM-1:** Unbundle Parking: Unbundling parking costs from property costs would require those who wish to purchase parking spaces to do so at an additional cost from the property cost. This removes the burden from those who do not wish to utilize a parking space. An assumption is made that the parking costs are passed through to the vehicle owners/drivers utilizing the parking spaces. The Project shall charge a minimum of \$110 per month per parking space, separately from the monthly cost to rent the unit.
- **TRA-MM-2:** Transit Subsidy: The availability of a subsidy provides a strong incentive to consider other commute trip alternatives. The Project shall provide a subsidy commensurate to the current daily rate and accessible to 100% of eligible residents. The Project shall offer a minimum of \$0.75 per day to eligible employees and residents of the Project. Eligibility shall be determined based on the employee or resident not parking a vehicle on-site.
- **TRA-MM-3:** Voluntary Travel Behavior Change Program: This strategy involves the development of a travel behavior change program that targets individual attitudes, goals, and travel behaviors, educating participants on the impacts of their travel choices and the opportunities to alter their habits. The Project shall assign staff to serve as the transportation management coordinator to inform Project residents and employees of available travel options.

PROJECT DESIGN FEATURES

- **ENERGY-PDF-1:** The Project shall not include natural gas-fueled fireplaces in the proposed residential units.
- **ENERGY-PDF-2:** The Project shall provide vehicle parking spaces that would be pre-wired and capable of accommodating EV charging stations in accordance with Ordinance No. 186,485.
- **ENERGY-PDF-3:** Windows would be included in all living units and common spaces for natural daylight, reducing the need for overhead lighting impacting the need for electricity. High-performance dual-pane windows and exterior materials would be used in order to reduce the need for energy driven mechanical systems.
- **ENERGY-PDF-4:** Active energy conservation strategies would include implementing LED lighting with daylighting controls and dimming capabilities, installing motion detector controls for all circulation and auxiliary spaces, providing Energy Star qualified appliances.
- **ENERGY-PDF-5:** High-efficiency toilets with a flush volume of 1.0 gallon per flush, or less.
- **ENERGY-PDF-6:** Showerheads with a flow rate of 1.5 gpm or less.
- **ENERGY-PDF-7:** Residential bathroom faucets equipped with aerators to reduce flow to 1.0 gpm or less.
- **ENERGY-PDF-8:** Drip/subsurface irrigation (micro-irrigation)
- ENERGY-PDF-9: Micro-spray
- **ENERGY-PDF-10:** Proper hydro-zoning/zoned irrigation (group plants with similar water requirements)
- **ENERGY-PDF-11:** Drought-tolerant plants 50 percent of total landscaping
- **GHG-PDF-1:** The Project shall prohibit the use of natural gas-fueled fireplaces in the proposed live/work units.
- **GHG-PDF-2:** The Project shall provide filtered outside air supply sufficient to meet American Society of Heating, Refrigerating, and Air Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) 62.1 standards.
- **GHG-PDF-3:** Participation in fundamental refrigerant management to preclude the use of chlorofluorocarbons (CFCs) in heating, cooling, and ventilation (HVAC) systems.

- **GHG-PDF-4:** Use of adhesives, sealants, paints, finishes, and other materials that emit low quantities of volatile organic compounds (VOCs) and/or other air quality pollutants.
- **GHG-PDF-5:** Installation of a Low Impact Development (LID) compliant on-site stormwater treatment system, capable of treating the volume of stormwater runoff from a local 85th percentile storm event.
- **GHG-PDF-6:** Installation of pre-treatment stormwater infrastructure for the stormwater runoff tributary to the on-site stormwater treatment system.
- **GHG-PDF-7:** During construction of the Project, best management practices (BMPs) would be implemented to control stormwater runoff and minimize pollutant loading and erosion effects.
- **GHG-PDF-8:** During operation, BMPs would be implemented to minimize pollutant loading in stormwater runoff.
- **GHG-PDF-9:** Contractors would reference Partnership for Advancing Technology in Housing (PATH) and other current references for state-of-the-art construction methods, materials, and mechanical equipment and utilize same methods where applicable.
- **GHG-PDF-10:** Recycling and reuse of building and construction materials to the maximum extent feasible, including the on-site recycling and reuse of concrete removed during demolition and salvaging of existing appliances and fixtures.
- **GHG-PDF-11:** Use of sub-base in parking lots, fly ash-based concrete and recycled content in joists and joist girders when feasible.
- **GHG-PDF-12**: 15 percent of the roof area shall be set aside for future solar panels
- **GHG-PDF-13:** Waste diversion accounting shall be utilized.
- **GHG-PDF-14:** Installation of a "cool roof" that reflects the sun's heat and reduces urban heat island effect.
- **GHG-PDF-15:** At least 50 percent of construction and demolition debris from Project construction would be diverted from landfills.
- **GHG-PDF-16:** Provide on-site recycling containers to promote the recycling of paper, metal, glass, and other recyclable materials and adequate storage areas for such containers.
- **GHG-PDF-17:** Use of locally (within 500 miles) manufactured construction materials and of building materials with recycled content, where possible.

- **GHG-PDF-18:** Provision of EV charging stations in the parking structure in compliance with Ordinance No. 186,485
- **GHG-PDF-19:** Provision of parking spaces that are capable of supporting future electric vehicle charging equipment in compliance with Ordinance No. 186,485.
- GHG-PDF-20: Installation of Energy Star-labeled products and appliances, where appropriate.
- **GHG-PDF-21:** Meeting or exceeding Title 24, Part 6, California Energy Code baseline standard requirements for energy efficiency, based on the 2016 Energy Efficiency Standards requirements. Examples of design methods and technologies that could be implemented may include but would not be limited to high-performance glazing on windows, appropriately-oriented shading devices, high-efficiency boilers (if single metered); instantaneous water heaters (if individual meters), and enhanced insulation to minimize thermal gain.
- **GHG-PDF-22:** Application of energy-saving lighting technologies and components to reduce the Project's electrical usage profile. Examples of these components include occupancy-sensing controls (where applicable), use of light-emitting diode (LED) lighting or other energy-efficient lighting technologies where appropriate, and exterior lighting controlled by photo sensor and/or timeclocks to ensure safety and visibility while preventing unnecessary energy usage.
- **GHG-PDF-23:** Commissioning of building energy systems to verify that the Project's building energy systems are installed, calibrated, and performing to the Owner's Project requirements.
- **GHG-PDF-24:** Water conservation measures shall include:
 - High-efficiency toilets (with flush volume of 1.06 gallons of water per flush or less) throughout, including ultra-low-flow urinals in all nonresidential restrooms, as appropriate.
 - Residential lavatory faucets with a maximum flow rate of 1.2 gallons per minute and kitchen faucets with a maximum flow rate of 1.5 gallons per minute.
 - High-efficiency washers, whether within individual units (with water factor of 6.0 or less) and/or in common laundry rooms (commercial washers with water factor of 7.5 or less). Equipment is required to be Energy Star-certified.
 - High-efficiency dishwasher within individual units, using 3.5 gallons per cycle or less. Equipment is required to be Energy Star-certified.
 - No-flush or waterless urinals in all nonresidential restrooms as appropriate.

- Nonresidential lavatory faucets with a maximum flow rate of 0.4 gallon per minute and of a self-closing design (i.e., that would automatically turn off when not in use.
- Nonresidential kitchen faucets (except restaurant kitchens) with a maximum flow rate of 1.5 gallons per minute. Restaurant kitchen faucets shall have prerinse self-closing spray heads with a maximum flow rate of 1.6 gallons per minute.
- Installation of tankless and on-demand water heaters in commercial kitchens and restrooms, where appropriate.
- Water-saving pool filter.
- Pool/spa recirculating filtration equipment.
- Pool splash troughs around the perimeter that drain back into the pool.
- Leak detection system for swimming pools and Jacuzzi.
- Minimum irrigation system distribution uniformity of 75 percent.
- Use of proper hydro-zoning, turf minimization, zoned irrigation and use of native/drought-tolerant plant materials.
- Use of landscape contouring to minimize precipitation runoff.
- Use of landscape contouring to minimize precipitation runoff.
- **TRA-PDF-1:** Reduce Parking Supply: This measure encourages alternative transportation choices. The degree of effectiveness of this measure varies based on the surrounding area, level of existing transit service, level of existing pedestrian and bicycle networks and other factors which would complement the shift away from single-occupant vehicle travel. The Project will provide 402 parking spaces (i.e., 140 spaces less than the 542 spaces required per LAMC prior to consideration of allowable adjustments).
- **TRA-PDF-2:** Bicycle Infrastructure: These improvements help reduce peak-hour vehicle trips by making commuting by bicycle easier and more convenient. The Project should provide a maximum commitment to implementing/improving on-street bicycle facilities, providing bicycle parking per the LAMC and providing secure ancillary bike facilities such as indoor bicycle parking/lockers, showers, and repair stations. The Project will provide the minimum number of short-term and long-term bicycle parking spaces for the residential and commercial components.

TRA-PDF-3: Neighborhood Enhancement: Providing a pedestrian access network to link areas of the Project site encourages people to walk instead of drive. The project should ensure a maximum commitment to providing pedestrian network improvements within the project and to off-site connections. The Project will include pedestrian access points directly to sidewalks on the adjacent streets. Specifically, a walk-in entrance to the Project's residential component is proposed via Bay Street. Additionally, a walk-in entrance to the Project's office and restaurant components is proposed via Mateo Street. Pedestrian access to the ground floor retail uses is proposed via adjacent streets. The Project will improve existing sidewalks or construct new sidewalks on Bay Street, Mateo Street and Sacramento Street adjacent to the site.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE MEASURES

- **NOISE-RCM-1:** All diesel-powered construction vehicles shall be equipped with exhaust mufflers or other suitable noise reduction devices capable of achieving a sound attenuation of at least 3 dBA.
- **NOISE-RCM-2:** Temporary sound barriers capable of achieving a sound attenuation of at least 10 dBA shall be erected along the Project's boundaries.

CORRECTIVE MEASURES

TRA-CM-1: Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Plan

A preliminary TDM program shall be prepared and provided for DOT review prior to the issuance of the first building permit for this project and a final TDM program approved by DOT is required prior to the issuance of the first certificate of occupancy for the project. The preliminary plan will include, at a minimum, measures consistent with the City's Trip Reduction Ordinance. As recommended by the transportation study, the TDM program could include, but is not limited to the following:

- An on-site Transportation Information Center (TIC) where employees, visitors, and residents can obtain information regarding public transit, ridesharing, vanpool providers, bicycle facilities, and bicycle safety;
- A Transportation Coordinator responsible for implementing, maintaining, and monitoring g the TDM program;

- If after coordination with LADOT it is determined that the project site is eligible, the project will provide space for an Integrated Mobility Hub with a bicycle share kiosk and/or parking spaces for car-share vehicles;
- Carpool/Rideshare Matching Program which would provide rideshare matching services and preferential parking for commercial employees commuting to work in employer-registered carpools;
- Transportation subsidy which would offer discount transit passes to residents and commercial employees who do not purchase monthly automobile parking in the project site;
- Unbundled parking from the commercial leasing cost and from the housing cost;
- Convenient and secure bicycle storage within a bicycle locker, an attended cage, or a secure parking room;
- On-site lockers for employees who bicycle or use another active means of getting to work;
- Make a one-time fixed-fee contribution of \$50,000 prior to the issuance of the first certificate of occupancy for the project to the City's Bicycle Plan Trust Fund to implement bicycle improvements in the proposed project area;
- A Covenant and Agreement to ensure that the TDM program will be maintained.

TRA-CM-2: Transportation Management Organization (TMO)

Transportation Management Organization (TMO) In order to help alleviate current and future traffic congestion in the Arts District, the project proposes to fund a TMO. If an Arts District TMO will be established, the project proposes to fund the initiation of an Arts District TMO. Otherwise, if it is determined that FASTLinkDTLA can adequately serve the Arts District as well as the remainder of Downtown Los Angeles, the project proposes to fund the Arts District portion of the FASTLinkDTLA. The project agrees to the following:

- Commit funding up to \$200,000 prior to the issuance of the first certificate of occupancy for the project to cover the launch of the Arts District TMO or the Arts District portion of FASTLinkDTLA;
- Provide up to \$25,000 per year for nine additional years for annual dues as a charter member;
- Attend organizational meetings and prove traffic demand data to the TMO;
- Require commercial space tenants of all leases executed by the project as a landlord to participate in the TMO and that all subleases contain this same provision;

• Elect to provide some or all of the services required by this TDM Program through the TMO, in consultation with the City's Transportation Demand Program.

TRA-CM-3: Traffic Monitoring Plan for the TDM Program

In order to assess the project's actual trip generation and any subsequent TDM Plan (if deemed necessary), a traffic monitoring plan will be implemented once the project is built and occupied to at least 80%. A traffic monitoring plan will consist of counting the number of automobiles coming from and going to the two project driveways during both AM and PM peak hours.

The monitoring program should be conducted annually to ensure compliance for a period of three years. If the project is found to not confirm to the trip reduction targets summarized in Attachment 4 of the LADOT Approval Letter, the project will have an additional year to meet the trip reduction levels. If the project continues to not meet the TDM goals, the City and project staff will coordinate on implementing further TDM strategies. The final traffic monitoring plan and TDM Plan will be prepared for and approved by the LADOT prior to the issuance of the first certificate of occupancy for the project.

Appendix A: Air Quality and GHG CalEEMod Sheets

| | | 1024 Mateo Stre | et Existing - | - Los Angeles-South Coast Cou | nty, Summer | | |
|---|-------------------------------------|----------------------------|---------------------|---|----------------|--------------------|------------|
| | | Los | 1024 M Anaeles-S | lateo Street Existing South Coast County, Summer | | | |
| 1.0 Project Char | acteristics | | g | | | | |
| 1.1 Land Usage | | | | | | | |
| Land Us | Ж | Size | | Metric | Lot Acreage | Floor Surface Area | Population |
| Industrial F | Park | 16.96 | | 1000sqft | 1.29 | 16,960.00 | 0 |
| 1.2 Other Project | Characteristics | | | | | | |
| Urbanization | rban | Wind Speed (m/s) | 2.2 | Precipitation Freq (D: | ays) 33 | | |
| Climate Zone 1 | 1 | | | Operational Year | 2019 | | |
| Utility Company | os Angeles Department of | Water & Power | | | | | |
| CO2 Intensity 1: (Ib/MWhr) | 227.89 | CH4 Intensity (Ib/MWhr) | 0.029 | N2O Intensity (Ib/MWhr) | 0.006 | | |
| 1.3 User Entered (| Comments & Nor | ר-Default Data | | | | | |
| Project Characteristi | CS - | | | | | | |
| Land Use - Develop Vehicle Trips - Linsc | er information ott Law & Greensp | an, 1024 Mateo Street M | Mixed-Use F | Project traffic impact analysis, Ma | arch 2019 | | |
| Table Nar | ne | Column Name | | Default Value | New Value | | |
| tblLandU | æ | LotAcreage | | 0.39 | 1.29 | | |
| tblVehicleT | rips | DV_TP | | 19.00 | 0.00 | | |
| tblVehicleT | rips | PB_TP | | 2.00 | 0.00 | | |
| tblVehicleT | rips | PR_TP | | 79.00 | 100.00 | | |
| tblVehicleT | rips | ST_TR | | 2.49 | 31.25 | | |

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2

Page 1 of 1

Date: 3/17/2019 10:55 PM

| Ť | 1.0400€ 003 | 0.3970 | 7,167.7895 | 7,167.7895 | | 1.5097 | 0.0773 | 1.4323 | 5.4332 | 0.0820 | 5.3512 | 0.0704 | 22.3797 | 7.1299 | 1.8187 | Total |
|-------|----------------|----------|------------|------------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|----------|----------|----------|-------------|----------|
| | | 0.3959 | 7,110.8789 | 7,110.8789 | | 1.5061 | 0.0737 | 1.4323 | 5.4296 | 0.0784 | 5.3512 | 0.0701 | 22.3381 | 7.0824 | 1.4344 | Mobile |
| 003 | | 003 | | | | 003 | 003 | | 003 | 003 | | 004 | | | | |
| 0400e | <u>, 1</u> | 1.0900e- | 56.9069 | 56.9069 | | 3.6000e- | 3.6000e- | | 3.6000e- | 3.6000e- | | 2.8000e- | 0.0398 | 0.0474 | 5.2200e-003 | Energy |
| | | 005 | 003 | 003 | | 005 | 005 | | 005 | 005 | | | 003 | 005 | | |
| | | 1.0000e- | 3.7100e- | 3.7100e- | | 1.0000e- | 1.0000e- | | 1.0000e- | 1.0000e- | | 0.0000 | 1.7500e- | 2.0000e- | 0.3791 | Area |
| | | day | Ib/c | | | | | | | łay | Ib/c | | | | | Category |
| 20 | z | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | 0 | NOX | ROG | |

Mitigated Operational

| Total | Mobile | Energy | Area | Category | |
|-----------------|------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|----------|-------------------|
| 1.8187 | 1.4344 | 5.2200e-003 | 0.3791 | | ROG |
| 7.1299 | 7.0824 | 0.0474 | 2.0000e- 005 | | NOX |
| 22.3797 | 22.3381 | 0.0398 | 1.7500e- 003 | | CO |
| 0.0704 | 0.0701 | 2.8000e- 004 | 0.0000 | | S02 |
| 5.3512 | 5.3512 | | | Ib/c | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0820 | 0.0784 | 3.6000e- 003 | 1.0000e- 005 | lay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 5.4332 | 5.4296 | 3.6000e- 003 | 1.0000e- 005 | | PM10 Total |
| 1.4323 | 1.4323 | | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0773 | 0.0737 | 3.6000e- 003 | 1.0000e- 005 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 1.5097 | 1.5061 | 3.6000 e- 003 | 1.0000e- 005 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 7,167.7895 | 7,110.8789 | 56.9069 | 3.7100e- 003 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 7,167.7895 | 7,110.8789 | 56.9069 | 3.7100 e- 003 | Ib/d | Total CO2 |
| 0.3970 | 0.3959 | 1.0900e- 003 | 1.0000e- 005 | lay | CH4 |
| 1.0400e- 003 | | 1.0400e- 003 | | | N20 |
| 7,178.0242 | 7,120.7752 | 57.2451 | 3.9600e- 003 | | CO2e |

tblVehicleTrips tblVehicleTrips SU_TR WD_TR 0.73 6.83 31.25 31.25

2.0 Emissions Summary

2.2 Overall Operational

Unmitigated Operational

5.0 Energy Detail

| Industrial Park | Land Use |
|-----------------|----------|
| 0.548007 | LDA |
| 0.045751 | LDT1 |
| 0.200309 | LDT2 |
| 0.124119 | MDV |
| 0.017133 | LHD1 |
| 0.006025 | LHD2 |
| 0.018861 | MHD |
| 0.028423 | HHD |
| 0.002391 | OBUS |
| 0.002469 | UBUS |
| 0.004915 | MCY |
| 0.000672 | SBUS |
| 0.000925 | MH |

4.4 Fleet Mix

| Industrial Park 16.60 | Land Use H-W or (| |
|-----------------------|-------------------|--------------|
| 8.40 | C-W H-S or C-C | Miles |
| 6.90 | H-O or C-NW | |
| 59.00 | H-W or C-W | |
| 28.00 | H-S or C-C | Trip % |
| 13.00 | H-O or C-NW | |
| 100 | Primary | |
| 0 | Diverted | Trip Purpose |
| 0 | Pass-by | % ∈ |

4.3 Trip Type Information

| | Aver | age Daily Trip Rate | | Unmitigated | Mitigated |
|-----------------|---------|---------------------|--------|-------------|------------|
| Land Use | Weekday | Saturday Sunc | day | Annual VMT | Annual VMT |
| Industrial Park | 530.00 | 530.00 | 530.00 | 2,516,256 | 2,516,256 |
| Total | 530.00 | 530.00 | 530.00 | 2,516,256 | 2,516,256 |
| | | | | | |

4.2 Trip Summary Information

| 7,120.7752 | | 0.3959 | 7,110.8789 | 7,110.8789 | | 1.5061 | 0.0737 | 1.4323 | 5.4296 | 0.0784 | 5.3512 | 0.0701 | 22.3381 | 7.0824 | 1.4344 | Unmitigated |
|------------|-----|--------|------------|------------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|--------|--------|-------------|
| 7,120.7752 | | 0.3959 | 7,110.8789 | 7,110.8789 | | 1.5061 | 0.0737 | 1.4323 | 5.4296 | 0.0784 | 5.3512 | 0.0701 | 22.3381 | 7.0824 | 1.4344 | Mitigated |
| | | УĘ | lb/d; | | | | | | | day | Ib/ | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N2O | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | со | NOX | ROG | |

Percent Reduction 0.00 ROG 0.00 Ň 0.00 ဗိ 0.00 S 02 Fugitive PM10 0.00 Exhaust PM10 0.00 PM10 Total 0.00 Fugitive PM2.5 0.00 Exhaust PM2.5 0.00 PM2.5 Total 0.00 Bio- CO2 0.00 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 0.00 0.00 0.00 CH4 0.00 N20 0.00 CO2e

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

| | ROG | NOX | CO | SO2 | Fugitive PM10 | Exhaust PM10 | PM10 Total | Fugitive PM2.5 | Exhaust PM2.5 | PM2.5 Total | Bio- CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Total CO2 | CH4 | N2O | CO2e |
|-------------------------|-------------|--------|--------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-------------------|------------------|-----------------|----------|-----------|-----------|-----------------|-----------------|---------|
| Category | | | | | Ib/da | уғ | | | | | | | lb/da | уĘ | | |
| NaturalGas Mitigated | 5.2200e-003 | 0.0474 | 0.0398 | 2.8000e- 004 | | 3.6000e- 003 | 3.6000e- 003 | | 3.6000e- 003 | 3.6000e- 003 | | 56.9069 | 56.9069 | 1.0900e- 003 | 1.0400e- 003 | 57.2451 |
| NaturalGas | 5.2200e-003 | 0.0474 | 0.0398 | 2.8000e- | | 3.6000e- | 3.6000e- | | 3.6000e- | 3.6000e- | | 56.9069 | 56.9069 | 1.0900e- | 1.0400e- | 57.2451 |
| Unmitigated | | | | 004 | | 003 | 003 | | 003 | 003 | | | | 003 | 003 | |

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

<u>Unmitigated</u>

| Total | Industrial Park | Land Use | |
|-----------------|-----------------|----------|-------------------|
| | 483.708 | kBTU/yr | NaturalGas Use |
| 5.2200e- 003 | 5.2200e- 003 | | ROG |
| 0.0474 | 0.0474 | | NOX |
| 0.0398 | 0.0398 | | 8 |
| 2.8000e- 004 | 2.8000e- 004 | | S O2 |
| | | Ib/c | Fugitive PM10 |
| 3.6000e- 003 | 3.6000e- 003 | lay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 3.6000e- 003 | 3.6000e- 003 | | PM10 Total |
| | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 3.6000e- 003 | 3.6000e- 003 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 3.6000e-003 | 3.6000e-003 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 56.9069 | 56.9069 | | NBio-CO2 |
| 56.9069 | 56.9069 | Ib/c | Total CO2 |
| 1.0900e- 003 | 1.0900e- 003 | Jay | CH4 |
| 1.0400e- 003 | 1.0400e- 003 | | N20 |
| 57.2451 | 57.2451 | | CO2e |

Mitigated

| | NaturalGas Use | ROG | NOX | CO | S 02 | Fugitive PM10 | Exhaust PM10 | PM10 Total | Fugitive PM2.5 | Exhaust PM2.5 | PM2.5 Total | Bio- CO2 | NBio-CO2 | Total CO2 | CH4 | N20 | CO2e |
|-----------------|-------------------|-----------------|--------|--------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-------------------|------------------|-------------|----------|----------|-----------|-----------------|-----------------|---------|
| Land Use | kBTU/yr | | | | | Ib/c | lay | | | | | | | Ib/da | ay | | |
| Industrial Park | 0.483708 | 5.2200e- 003 | 0.0474 | 0.0398 | 2.8000e- 004 | | 3.6000e- 003 | 3.6000e- 003 | | 3.6000e- 003 | 3.6000e-003 | | 56.9069 | 56.9069 | 1.0900e- 003 | 1.0400e- 003 | 57.2451 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

| | Total |
|-----|-------------|
| | |
| 003 | 5.2200e- |
| | 0.0474 |
| | 0.0398 |
| 004 | 2.8000e- |
| | |
| 003 | 3.6000e- |
| 003 | 3.6000e- |
| | |
| 003 | 3.6000e- |
| | 3.6000e-003 |
| | |
| | 56.9069 |
| | 56.9069 |
| 003 | 1.0900e- |
| 003 | 1.0400e- |
| | 57.2451 |

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

| | ROG | NOX | со | SO2 | Fugitive PM10 | Exhaust PM10 | PM10 Total | Fugitive PM2.5 | Exhaust PM2.5 | PM2.5 Total | Bio- CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Total CO2 | CH4 | N2O | CO2e |
|-------------|--------|----------|----------|--------|------------------|-----------------|------------|-------------------|------------------|-------------|----------|-----------|-----------|----------|-----|----------|
| Category | | | | | Ib/d | ay | | | | | | | Ib/da | уғ | | |
| Mitigated | 0.3791 | 2.0000e- | 1.7500e- | 0.0000 | | 1.0000e- | 1.0000e- | | 1.0000e- | 1.0000e- | | 3.7100e- | 3.7100e- | 1.0000e- | | 3.9600e- |
| | | 005 | 003 | | | 005 | 005 | | 005 | 005 | | 003 | 003 | 005 | | 003 |
| Unmitigated | 0.3791 | 2.0000e- | 1.7500e- | 0.0000 | | 1.0000e- | 1.0000e- | | 1.0000e- | 1.0000e- | | 3.7100e- | 3.7100e- | 1.0000e- | | 3.9600e- |
| | | 005 | 003 | | | 005 | 005 | | 005 | 005 | | 003 | 003 | 005 | | 003 |

6.2 Area by SubCategory <u>Unmitigated</u>

| ROG NOX CO SO2 Fugitive PM10 Exhaust PM10 Fugitive PM10 Exhaust PM10 Fugitive PM2.5 Exhaust PM2.5 PM2.5 Total PM2.5 Bio-CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2 CC4 N2O CC2 CC4< | | To | | Landso | Prod | Cons | Coa | Archite | SubCa | | |
|---|-----|----------|-----|-------------|------|--------|------|---------|--------|-------|-------------|
| Rog NOx CO SO2 Fugitive pM10 Fugitive pM10 Fugitive pM10 Exhaust pM2.5 PM2.5 PM2.5 Bio-CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2 0.0431 Image: Signe S | | al | | aping | ucts | umer | ting | ectural | tegory | | |
| NOX CO SO2 Fugitive pM10 Exhaust PM10 Fugitive pM10 Exhaust PM2.5 PM2.5 Total PM2.5 Bio-CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2 CO4 N20 CO2 CO2 CH4 N20 CO2 CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2 CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2 | | 0.3791 | | 1.7000e-004 | | 0.3358 | | 0.0431 | | | ROG |
| CO SO2 Fugitive PM10 Exhaust PM10 PM10 Total PM10 Fugitive PM10 Exhaust PM2.5 PM2.5 | 005 | 2.0000e- | 005 | 2.0000e- | | | | | | | NOX |
| SO2 Fugitive PM10 Exhaust PM10 PM10 Fugitive PM2.5 Exhaust PM2.5 PM2.5 Total PM2.5 Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 C44 N20 CO2e Ib/day Ib/day 0.0000 0. | 003 | 1.7500e- | 003 | 1.7500e- | | | | | | | 00 |
| Fugitive PM10 Exhaust PM10 PM10 Total PM10 Fugitive PM10 Exhaust PM2.5 PM2.5 Total PM2.5 Bio-Co2 PM2.5 NBio-Co2 PM2.5 Total PM2.5 CO2 PM2.5 CO2 PM2.5 Total PM2.5 CO2 PM2.5 CO2 PM2.5 </td <td></td> <td>0.0000</td> <td></td> <td>0.0000</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>SO2</td> | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | | | | | | SO2 |
| Exhaust PM10 Total Fugitive PM2.5 Exhaust PM2.5 Total Bio-CO2 NBio-CO2 NBio-CO2 Itela CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e CO2e< | | | | | | | | | p/q | PM10 | Fugitive |
| PM10 Total PM2.5 Fugitive PM2.5 Exhaust PM2.5 PM2.5 Total PM2.5 Bio-Co2 PM2.5 NBio-Co2 PM2.5 Total CO2 PM2.5 CO2 PM2.5 CO2 PM2 | 005 | 1.0000e- | 005 | 1.0000e- | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | ау | PM10 | Exhaust |
| Fugitive PM2.5 Exhaust PM2.5 PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CO4 N20 CO2e CO2e PM2.5 PM2.5 0.0000 | 005 | 1.0000e- | 005 | 1.0000e- | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | | PM10 Total |
| Exhaust PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e PM2.5 0.0000< | | | | | | | | | | PM2.5 | Fugitive |
| PM2.5 Tetal Bio- Co2 NBio- Co2 Total Co2 CH4 N2O Co2e 0.0000< | 005 | 1.0000e- | 005 | 1.0000e- | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 | Exhaust |
| Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e Ib/day 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 3.7100e- 3.7100e- 1.0000e- 3.9600e- 0.0000 3.7100e- 3.7100e- 1.0000e- 3.9600e- 0.03 003 <td< td=""><td>005</td><td>1.0000e-</td><td>005</td><td>1.0000e-</td><td></td><td>0.0000</td><td></td><td>0.0000</td><td></td><td></td><td>PM2.5 Total</td></td<> | 005 | 1.0000e- | 005 | 1.0000e- | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | | PM2.5 Total |
| NBio- Co2 Total Co2 CH4 N2O Co2e Ib/day 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 3.7100e- 3.7100e- 1.0000e- 3.9600e- 0.0000 003 003 005 3.9600e- 003 003 | | | | | | | | | | | Bio- CO2 |
| Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e Ib/day 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 1.0000e- 0.0000 0.0000 3.7100e- 1.0000e- 3.9600e- 003 003 005 3.9600e- 003 | 003 | 3.7100e- | 003 | 3.7100e- | | | | | | | NBio-CO2 |
| lay 1.0000e- 005 005 CC2e 0.000000 | 003 | 3.7100e- | 003 | 3.7100e- | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | Ib/c | | Total CO2 |
| N2O 0.0000 0.0000 3.9600e- 003 | 005 | 1.0000e- | 005 | 1.0000e- | | | | | lay | | CH4 |
| CO2e 0.0000 3.9600e- 003 3.9600e- | | | | | | | | | | | N20 |
| | 003 | 3.9600e- | 003 | 3.9600e- | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | | CO2e |

Mitigated

| SubCategory Architectural Coating Consumer | ROG 0.0431 0.3358 | NOX | | | | Ib/day | PM10 | 0.0000 0.0000 | Fugitive PM2.5 | Exhaust PM2.5 0.00000 | PM2.5 Tota 0.0000 0.0000 | B. O | - CO2 | - CO2 NBio- CC | - CO2 NBio- CO2 Total C | - COZ NBio- COZ Total CO2 CH Ib/day | - CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 | 0.0000 |
|---|---|----------------------------------|-----------------|---------------|----|--------|---------------|-----------------|-------------------|-----------------------------|--------------------------------|-----------------|-----------------|---------------------------------|--------------------------------------|--|--|---|
| Consumer Products | 0.3358 | | | | | 0 | .0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.00 | 8 | 00 | 00 | 00 0.000 | 00 0.0000 | 00 0.0000 | 00 0.0000 |
| Landscaping | 1.7000e-004 | 2.0000e- 005 | - 1.7500 003 | le- 0.000 | 00 | 1 | 0000e- 005 | 1.0000e- 005 | | 1.0000e- 005 | | 0000e- 005 | 0000e- 005 | 0000e- 005 3.7100e 003 | 0000e- 005 003 003 003 | 0000e- 005 003 003 003 003 003 | 0000e- 005 003 003 003 003 005 | 0000e- 005 003 003 003 003 005 005 |
| Total | 0.3791 | 2.0000e- 005 | - 1.7500 003 | le- 0.00 | 00 | 1. | 0000e- 005 | 1.0000e- 005 | | 1.0000e- 005 | | 1.0000e- 005 | 1.0000e- 005 | 1.0000e- 005 003 | 1.0000e- 005 003 003 003 | 005 3.7100e- 3.7100e- 1.000 005 003 003 00 | 1.0000e- 005 003 003 003 003 005 | 1.0000e- 3.7100e- 005 003 003 005 |
| 7.0 Water D | etail | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 7.1 Mitigatio 8.0 Waste D | n Measu | res Wa | ter | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8.1 Mitigatio | etail | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9.0 Operation | n Measu | res Wa | ste | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9.0 Operatio | n Measu onal Off | res Wa | ste | Numbe | | Но | urs/Day | | Day | s/Year | | н | Horse Power | Horse Power | Horse Power Load Fact | Horse Power Load Factor | Horse Power Load Factor Fuel T | Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type |
| 9.0 Operatio | n Measu onal Offi ary Equ | res Wa | nt ste | Numbe | | Но | urs/Day | | Day | s/Year | | | Horse Power | Horse Power | Horse Power Load Fact | Horse Power Load Factor | Horse Power Load Factor Fuel T | Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type |
| 9.0 Operation 10.0 Station Fire Pumps a | n Measu onal Off ary Equ | res Wa | Senerat | tors Numbe | ă. | 공 | urs/Day | | Days | s/Year | | | Horse Power | Horse Power | Horse Power Load Fact | Horse Power Load Factor | Horse Power Load Factor Fuel T | Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type |
| 9.0 Operation 10.0 Station Fire Pumps a | n Measu onal Offi ary Equ nd Emer | res Wa | 3enerat | Numbe | | 공 공 | urs/Day | | Hour | s/Year | | | Horse Power | Horse Power | Horse Power Load Fact | Horse Power Load Factor | Horse Power Load Factor Fuel T | Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type |
| 9.0 Operatio Equination <u>Fire Pumps a</u> Equination | n Measu onal Offi ary Equ pment Type | res Wa road <u>gency C</u> | Generat | lors Numbe | | | urs/Day | | Hour | s/Year | | | Horse Power | Horse Power Horse Power | Horse Power Load Fact | Horse Power Load Factor | Horse Power Load Factor Fuel T | Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type |

Equipment Type Number

11.0 Vegetation

| | 1024 Mateo Street E | xisting - Los Angeles-South Coast Cou | nty, Annual | | |
|--------------------------------------|-------------------------------|--|----------------|--------------------|------------|
| | 1 Los Ar | 024 Mateo Street Existing ŋgeles-South Coast County, Annual | | | |
| 1.0 Project Characteristics | | igeres-sourr coast county, Annuar | | | |
| 1.1 Land Usage | | | | | |
| Land Uses | Size | Metric | Lot Acreage | Floor Surface Area | Population |
| Industrial Park | 16.96 | 1000sqft | 1.29 | 16,960.00 | 0 |
| 1.2 Other Project Characteristic | ò | | | | |
| Urbanization Urban | Wind Speed (m/s) 2.2 | Precipitation Freq (Da | iys) 33 | | |
| Climate Zone 11 | | Operational Year | 2019 | | |
| Utility Company Los Angeles Departme | nt of Water & Power | | | | |
| CO2 Intensity 1227.89 (Ib/MWhr) | CH4 Intensity (lb/MWhr) | 0.029 N2O Intensity (Ib/MWhr) | 0.006 | | |
| 1.3 User Entered Comments & I | Non-Default Data | | | | |
| Project Characteristics - | | | | | |
| Vehicle Trips - Linscott Law & Gree | nspan, 1024 Mateo Street Mixe | d-Use Project traffic impact analysis, Ma | arch 2019 | | |
| Table Name | Column Name | Default Value | New Value | | |
| tbLandUse | LotAcreage | 95:0 | 1.29 | | |
| tblVehicleTrips | DV_TP | 19.00 | 0.00 | | |
| tblVehicleTrips | PB_TP | 2.00 | 0.00 | | |
| tblVehicleTrips | PR_TP | 79.00 | 100.00 | | |
| tblVehicleTrips | ST_TR | 2.49 | 31.25 | | |

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2

Page 1 of 1

Date: 3/17/2019 10:56 PM

| Energy | Area | Category | | Mitigated O | Total | water | | Waste | Mobile | | Energy | Area | Category | | 2.2 Overall <u>Unmitigate</u> |
|-----------------------------|-----------------|----------|-------------------|-------------|-----------------|----------|-------|---------|------------|-----|----------|-----------------------------|----------|-------------------|----------------------------------|
| 9.5000e- 004 | 0.0692 | | ROG | perational | 0.3200 | | | | 0.2498 | 004 | 9.5000e- | 0.0692 | | ROG | d Operatio |
| 8.6500 e- 003 | 0.0000 | | NOX | | 1.3700 | | | | 1.3613 | 003 | 8.6500e- | 0.0000 | | NOX | <u>nal</u> |
| 7.2700e- 003 | 2.2000e- 004 | | CO | | 3.8967 | | | | 3.8892 | 003 | 7.2700e- | 2.2000e- 004 | | со | |
| 5.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | | SO2 | | 0.0124 | | | | 0.0123 | 005 | 5.0000e- | 0.0000 | | SO2 | |
| | | ton | Fugitive PM10 | | 0.9551 | | | | 0.9551 | | | | ton | Fugitive PM10 | |
| 6.6000e- 004 | 0.0000 | s/yr | Exhaust PM10 | | 0.0149 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0143 | 004 | 6.6000e- | 0.0000 | s/yr | Exhaust PM10 | |
| 6.6000e- 004 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total | | 0.9701 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.9694 | 004 | 6.6000e- | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total | |
| | | | Fugitive PM2.5 | | 0.2561 | | | | 0.2561 | | | | | Fugitive PM2.5 | |
| 6.6000e- 004 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 | | 0.0141 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0134 | 004 | 6.6000e- | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 | |
| 6.6000e- 004 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Tota | | 0.2702 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.2695 | 004 | 6.6000e- | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Tota | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 | | 5.5132 | 1.2440 | 2 | 4.2689 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 | |
| 132.1260 | 4.2000e- 004 | | NBio- CO2 | | 1,292.9508 | 20.44J I | 2 | 0.0000 | 1,132.3813 | | 132.1260 | 4.2000e- 004 | | NBio- CO2 | |
| 132.1260 | 4.2000e- 004 | MT | Total CO2 | | 1,298.4640 | 29.0074 | 20.00 | 4.2689 | 1,132.3813 | | 132.1260 | 4.2000 e- 004 | MT | Total CO2 | |
| 3.0800e- 003 | 0.0000 | /yr | CH4 | | 0.4484 | U. 1200 | 2 | 0.2523 | 0.0646 | 003 | 3.0800e- | 0.0000 | 7yr | CH4 | |
| 7.7000e- 004 | 0.0000 | | N2O | | 3.9300e- 003 | 003 | 2000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 004 | 7.7000e- | 0.0000 | | N20 | |
| 132.4331 | 4.5000e- 004 | | CO2e | | 1,310.8447 | 00.0000 | | 10.5760 | 1,133.9953 | | 132.4331 | 4.5000e- 004 | | CO2e | |

.

2.0 Emissions Summary

tblVehicleTrips tblVehicleTrips

WD_TR SU_TR

0.73 6.83

31.25 31.25

| | | Miles | | | Trip % | | | Trip Purpose | % |
|-----------------|------------|------------|-------------|------------|------------|-------------|---------|--------------|---------|
| Land Use | H-W or C-W | H-S or C-C | H-O or C-NW | H-W or C-W | H-S or C-C | H-O or C-NW | Primary | Diverted | Pass-by |
| Industrial Park | 16.60 | 8.40 | 6.90 | 59.00 | 28.00 | 13.00 | 100 | 0 | 0 |

4.3 Trip Type Information

| | Aver | age Daily Trip Rate | Unmitigated | Mitigated |
|-----------------|---------|---------------------|-------------|------------|
| Land Use | Weekday | Saturday Sunday | Annual VMT | Annual VMT |
| Industrial Park | 530.00 | 530.00 530.00 | 2,516,256 | 2,516,256 |
| Total | 530.00 | 530.00 530.00 | 2,516,256 | 2,516,256 |

4.2 Trip Summary Information

| | 0.0000 | 0.0646 | 1,132.3813 | 1,132.3813 | 0.0000 | 0.2695 | 0.0134 | 0.2561 | 0.9694 | 0.0143 | 0.9551 | 0.0123 | 3.8892 | 1.3613 | 0.2498 | Unmitigated |
|--------|--------|--------|------------|------------|---------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|-------------|
| 0.0000 | | 0.0646 | 1,132.3813 | 1,132.3813 | 0.0000 | 0.2695 | 0.0134 | 0.2561 | 0.9694 | 0.0143 | 0.9551 | 0.0123 | 3.8892 | 1.3613 | 0.2498 | Mitigated |
| | | ýr | MT/ | | | | | | | s/yr | ton | | | | | Category |
| N20 | | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio-CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | CO | NOX | ROG | |

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

| Percent Reduction | | Total 0. | Water | Waste | Mobile 0. |
|-------------------|---------------------|---------------|---------------|----------|------------|
| 0.00 | ROG | .3200 1 | | | .2498 1 |
| 0.00 | NOX | 1.3700 | | | 1.3613 |
| 0.0 | | 3.8967 | | | 3.8892 |
| 0. | د م | 0.0124 | | | 0.0123 |
| 00 0. | O2 Fug PI | 0.9551 | | | 0.9551 |
| 00 | itive Ext 110 Pl | 0.0149 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0143 |
| .00 | naust P M10 1 | 0.9701 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.9694 |
| 0.00 | M10 Fi otal F | 0.2561 | | | 0.2561 |
| 0.00 | ugitive M2.5 | 0.014 | 0.000 | 0.000 | 0.013 |
| 0.00 | Exhaust PM2.5 | 1 0.27 | 0 0.00 | 0 0.00 | 4 0.26 |
| 0.00 | PM2.5 Total | 702 5 | 000 1 | 000 4 | 395 0 |
| 0.00 | Bio- CC | .5132 1 | .2443 | .2689 | .0000 1 |
| 0.0 | 02 NBio- | ,292.9508 | 28.4431 | 0.0000 | ,132.3813 |
| 0 0. | CO2 Total | 1,298.4640 | 29.6874 | 4.2689 | 1,132.3813 |
| 00 | CO2 0 | 0.4484 | 0.1285 | 0.2523 | 0.0646 |
|).00 | CH4 | 3.9300 003 | 3.1600 003 | 0.000(| 0.000 |
| 0.00 | N20 | e- 1,310 | e- 33.8 | 0 10.5 | 0 1,133 |
| 0.00 | CO2e | 1.8447 | 3398 | 5760 | .9953 |

4.4 Fleet Mix

| Industrial Park | Land Use |
|-----------------|----------|
| 0.548007 | LDA |
| 0.045751 | LDT1 |
| 0.200309 | LDT2 |
| 0.124119 | MDV |
| 0.017133 | LHD1 |
| 0.006025 | LHD2 |
| 0.018861 | MHD |
| 0.028423 | HHD |
| 0.002391 | OBUS |
| 0.002469 | UBUS |
| 0.004915 | MCY |
| 0.000672 | SBUS |
| 0.000925 | MH |

5.0 Energy Detail

Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

| Unmitigated | Mitigated | NaturalGas | Unmitigated | Electricity | Mitigated | Electricity | Calegoly | Cotocos | |
|-----------------|-----------------|------------|-------------|-------------|-----------|-------------|----------|---------|-------------------|
| 9.3000e- 004 | 9 5000e- | 9.5000e- | | | | | | | ROG |
| 0.0300e- | 003 8 6500e- | 8.6500e- | | | | | | | NOX |
| 003 | 003 7 2700e- | 7.2700e- | | | | | | I | co |
| 005 | 5 0005 | 5.0000e- | | | | | | | SO2 |
| | | | | | | | | topp | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0000e- 004 | 6 6000e- | 6.6000e- | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | iyi | | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.0000e- 004 | 6 6000e- | 6.6000e- | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | | PM10 Total |
| | | | | | | | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0000e- 004 | 6 6000e- | 6.6000e- | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.0000e- 004 | 004 6 6000e- | 6.6000e- | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | 0 0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 9.42 IO | 9 4 2 1 6 | 9.4216 | | 122.7044 | | 122.7044 | | l | NBio- CO2 |
| 9.42 0 | 94216 | 9.4216 | | 122.7044 | | 122.7044 | M | MT | Total CO2 |
| 004 | 1 8000e- | 1.8000e- | 003 | 2.9000e- | 003 | 2.9000e- | iyı | h | CH4 |
| 004 | 1 70006- | 1.7000e- | 004 | 6.0000e- | 004 | 6.0000e- | | | N2O |
| 9.4770 | 9 4776 | 9.4776 | | 122.9556 | | 122.9556 | | | CO2e |

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

<u>Unmitigated</u>

| 9.4776 | 1.7000e- 004 | 1.8000e- 004 | 9.4216 | 9.4216 | 0.0000 | 6.6000e-004 | 6.6000e- 004 | | 6.6000e- 004 | 6.6000e- 004 | | 5.0000e- 005 | 7.2700e- 003 | 8.6500e- 003 | 9.5000e- 004 | | Total |
|--------|-----------------|------------------|-----------|-----------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-------------------|-----------------|
| 9.4776 | 1.7000e- 004 | 1.8000e- 004 | 9.4216 | 9.4216 | 0.0000 | 6.6000e-004 | 6.6000e- 004 | | 6.6000e- 004 | 6.6000e- 004 | | 5.0000 e- 005 | 7.2700e- 003 | 8.6500e- 003 | 9.5000e- 004 | 176554 | Industrial Park |
| | | ^r /yr | ΓM | | | | | | | ns/yr | tor | | | | | kBTU/yr | Land Use |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | CO | NOX | ROG | NaturalGas Use | |

<u>Mitigated</u>

| Total | Industrial Park | Land Use | |
|-----------------|-----------------|------------------|-------------------|
| | 176554 | kBTU/yr | NaturalGas Use |
| 9.5000e- 004 | 9.5000e- 004 | | ROG |
| 8.6500e- 003 | 8.6500e- 003 | | NOX |
| 7.2700e- 003 | 7.2700e- 003 | | CO |
| 5.0000e- 005 | 5.0000e- 005 | | SO2 |
| | | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| 6.6000e- 004 | 6.6000e- 004 | s/yr | Exhaust PM10 |
| 6.6000e- 004 | 6.6000e- 004 | | PM10 Total |
| | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 6.6000e- 004 | 6.6000e- 004 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 6.6000e-004 | 6.6000e-004 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 9.4216 | 9.4216 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 9.4216 | 9.4216 | LW | Total CO2 |
| 1.8000e- 004 | 1.8000e- 004 | ^{-/} yr | CH4 |
| 1.7000e- 004 | 1.7000e- 004 | | N20 |
| 9.4776 | 9.4776 | | CO2e |

5.3 Energy by Land Use - Electricity <u>Unmitigated</u>

| 122.9556 | 6.0000e- 004 | 2.9000e- 003 | 122.7044 | | Total |
|----------|-----------------|-----------------------------|-----------|--------------------|-----------------|
| 122.9556 | 6.0000e- 004 | 2.9000 e- 003 | 122.7044 | 220310 | Industrial Park |
| | Т/уг | M | | kWh/yr | Land Use |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | Electricity Use | |

Mitigated

| Use | Electricity |
|-----|-------------|
| | Total CO2 |
| | CH4 |
| | N20 |
| | CO2e |

| 122.9 | 6.0000e- 004 | 2.9000e- 003 | 122.7044 | | Total |
|-------|-----------------|-----------------|----------|--------|-----------------|
| | 004 | 003 | | | |
| 122.9 | 6.0000e- | 2.9000e- | 122.7044 | 220310 | Industrial Park |
| | | | | | |
| | ſ/yr | LW | | kWh/yr | Land Use |

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

| Unmitigated | Mitigated | Category | |
|-----------------|-----------------|----------|-------------------|
| 0.0692 | 0.0692 | | ROG |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | NOX |
| 2.2000e- 004 | 2.2000e- 004 | | со |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | SO2 |
| | | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | /yr | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total |
| | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 4.2000e- 004 | 4.2000e- 004 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 4.2000e- 004 | 4.2000e- 004 | MT, | Total CO2 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 'yr | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N20 |
| 4.5000e- 004 | 4.5000e- 004 | | CO2e |

| Architectural Coating | SubCategory | |
|--------------------------|-------------|-------------------|
| 7.8600e- 003 | | ROG |
| | | NOX |
| | | CO |
| | | SO2 |
| | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0000 | s/yr | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.0000 | | PM10 Total |
| | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 0.0000 | MT/ | Total CO2 |
| 0.0000 | ýr | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | | N20 |
| 0.0000 | | CO2e |

6.2 Area by SubCategory <u>Unmitigated</u>

| Total | Landscaping | Consumer Products |
|-----------------|-----------------------------|----------------------|
| 0.0692 | 2.0000e- 005 | 0.0613 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | |
| 2.2000e- 004 | 2.2000e- 004 | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | |
| | | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 |
| | | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 |
| 4.2000e- 004 | 4.2000e- 004 | 0.0000 |
| 4.2000e- 004 | 4.2000 e- 004 | 0.0000 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 |
| 4.5000e- 004 | 4.5000e- 004 | 0.0000 |

Mitigated

| 7 N Watar De | Total | Landscaping | Consumer Products | Architectural Coating | SubCategory | |
|--------------|-----------------|-----------------|----------------------|--------------------------|-------------|-------------------|
| stail | 0.0692 | 2.0000e- 005 | 0.0613 | 7.8600e- 003 | | ROG |
| | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | | | NOx |
| | 2.2000e- 004 | 2.2000e- 004 | | | | CO |
| | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | | | SO2 |
| | | | | | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | /yr | Exhaust PM10 |
| | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total |
| | | | | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| | 4.2000e- 004 | 4.2000e- 004 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| | 4.2000e- 004 | 4.2000e- 004 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | MT/ | Total CO2 |
| | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Yr | CH4 |
| | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N20 |
| | 4.5000e- 004 | 4.5000e- 004 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

| Category | Total CO2 | CH4 MT/ | N2O Yr | CO2e |
|-------------|-----------|------------|-----------|---------|
| | | | | |
| Mitigated | 29.6874 | 0.1285 | 3.1600e- | 33.8398 |
| | | | 003 | |
| Unmitigated | 29.6874 | 0.1285 | 3.1600e- | 33.8398 |
| | | | 003 | |

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

8.0 Waste Detail

| 33.8398 | 3.1600e- 003 | 0.1285 | 29.6874 | | Total |
|---------|-----------------|--------|-----------|------------------------|-----------------|
| 33.8398 | 3.1600e- 003 | 0.1285 | 29.6874 | 3.922 / 0 | Industrial Park |
| | Г/уг | M | | Mgal | Land Use |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | Indoor/Outd oor Use | |

Mitigated

| Total | Industrial Park | Land Use | |
|-----------------|-----------------|----------|------------------------|
| | 3.922 / 0 | Mgal | Indoor/Outd oor Use |
| 29.6874 | 29.6874 | | Total CO2 |
| 0.1285 | 0.1285 | M | CH4 |
| 3.1600e- 003 | 3.1600e- 003 | T/yr | N2O |
| 33.8398 | 33.8398 | | CO2e |

7.2 Water by Land Use <u>Unmitigated</u>

<u>Category/Year</u>

÷

8.2 Waste by Land Use <u>Unmitigated</u>

| Total | Industrial Park | Land Use | |
|---------|-----------------|----------|-------------------|
| | 21.03 | tons | Waste Disposed |
| 4.2689 | 4.2689 | | Total CO2 |
| 0.2523 | 0.2523 | M | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Т/уг | N2O |
| 10.5760 | 10.5760 | | CO2e |

<u>Mitigated</u>

| Land Use | |
|----------|-------------------|
| tons | Waste Disposed |
| | Total CO2 |
| M | CH4 |
| T/yr | N20 |
| | CO2e |

| Total | Industrial Park |
|---------|-----------------|
| | 21.03 |
| 4.2689 | 4.2689 |
| 0.2523 | 0.2523 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 |
| 10.5760 | 10.5760 |

9.0 Operational Offroad

| Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Days/Year |
|---|
| |

10.0 Stationary Equipment

Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators

| Equipment Type |
|----------------|
| Number |
| Hours/Day |
| Hours/Year |
| Horse Power |
| Load Factor |
| Fuel Type |

<u>Boilers</u>

| liber Defined Exclament | Equipment Type |
|-------------------------|-----------------|
| | Number |
| | Heat Input/Day |
| | Heat Input/Year |
| | Boiler Rating |
| | Fuel Type |

<u>User Defined Equipment</u>

Equipment Type Number

11.0 Vegetation

| | 1024 Mateo S | Street Existing - Lo | s Angeles-South Coast Count | y, Winter | | |
|---|----------------------------|-------------------------------|--|-------------|--------------------|------------|
| | | 1024 Mater Los Angeles-Sou | o Street Existing th Coast County, Winter | | | |
| 1.0 Project Characteristics | | | | | | |
| 1.1 Land Usage | | | | | | |
| Land Uses | Size | | Metric | Lot Acreage | Floor Surface Area | Population |
| Industrial Park | 16.96 | | 1000sqft | 1.29 | 16,960.00 | 0 |
| 1.2 Other Project Characteristics | | | | | | |
| Urbanization Urban | Wind Speed (m/s) | 2.2 | Precipitation Freq (Days) | 33 | | |
| Climate Zone 11 | | | Operational Year | 2019 | | |
| Utility Company Los Angeles Department of | √f Water & Power | | | | | |
| CO2 Intensity 1227.89 (Ib/MWhr) | CH4 Intensity (Ib/MWhr) | 0.029 | N2O Intensity (Ib/MWhr) | 0.006 | | |
| 1.3 User Entered Comments & No | n-Default Data | | | | | |
| Project Characteristics - Land Use - Developer information | | | | | | |
| Vehicle Trips - Linscott Law & Greensp | oan, 1024 Mateo Stree | t Mixed-Use Projec | ct traffic impact analysis, March | ר 2019 | | |
| | 2 | | | | | |

-

. .

| Table NameColumn NameDefault ValueNew ValuetblLandUseLotAcreage0.391.29tblVehicleTripsDV_TP19.000.00tblVehicleTripsPB_TP2.000.00 | 100.00 | 79.00 | PR_TP | tblVehicleTrips |
|--|-----------|---------------|-------------|-----------------|
| Table Name Column Name Default Value New Value tblLandUse LotAcreage 0.39 1.29 tblVehicleTrips DV_TP 19.00 0.00 | 0.00 | 2.00 | PB_TP | tblVehicleTrips |
| Table Name Column Name Default Value New Value tblLandUse LotAcreage 0.39 1.29 | 0.00 | 19.00 | DV_TP | tblVehicleTrips |
| Table Name Column Name Default Value New Value | 1.29 | 0.39 | LotAcreage | tblLandUse |
| | New Value | Default Value | Column Name | Table Name |

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2

Page 1 of 1

Date: 3/17/2019 10:57 PM

| Total | Mobile | Energy | Area | Category | |
|-----------------|------------|-----------------|-----------------------------|----------|-------------------|
| 1.7828 | 1.3985 | 2200e-003 | 0.3791 | | ROG |
| 7.3846 | 7.3372 | 0.0474 | 2.0000e- 005 | | NOx |
| 21.0495 | 21.0079 | 0.0398 | 1.7500e- 003 | | CO |
| 0.0669 | 0.0667 | 2.8000e- 004 | 0.0000 | | SO2 |
| 5.3512 | 5.3512 | | | lb/d | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0824 | 0.0788 | 3.6000e- 003 | 1.0000e- 005 | lay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 5.4336 | 5.4299 | 3.6000e- 003 | 1.0000e- 005 | | PM10 Total |
| 1.4323 | 1.4323 | | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0777 | 0.0741 | 3.6000e- 003 | 1.0000e- 005 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 1.5100 | 1.5064 | 3.6000e- 003 | 1.0000 e- 005 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 6,824.3670 | 6,767.4564 | 56.9069 | 3.7100e- 003 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 6,824.3670 | 6,767.4564 | 56.9069 | 3.7100 e- 003 | Ib/a | Total CO2 |
| 0.3923 | 0.3912 | 1.0900e- 003 | 1.0000e- 005 | łay | CH4 |
| 1.0400e- 003 | | 1.0400e- 003 | | | N20 |
| 6,834.4841 | 6,777.2351 | 57.2451 | 3.9600e- 003 | | CO2e |

Mitigated Operational

| Total | Mobile | Energy | | Area | Category | |
|-----------------|------------|-----------------------------|--------|----------|----------|-------------------|
| 1.7828 | 1.3985 | 5.2200 e- 003 | | 0.3791 | | ROG |
| 7.3846 | 7.3372 | 0.0474 | 005 | 2 0000e- | | NOX |
| 21.0495 | 21.0079 | 0.0398 | 003 | 1 7500e- | | 0 |
| 0.0669 | 0.0667 | 2.8000e- 004 | 0.0000 | 0 0000 | | SO2 |
| 5.3512 | 5.3512 | | | | Ib/c | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0824 | 0.0788 | 3.6000e- 003 | 005 | 1 0000e- | łay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 5.4336 | 5.4299 | 3.6000e- 003 | 005 | 1 0000e- | | PM10 Total |
| 1.4323 | 1.4323 | | | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0777 | 0.0741 | 3.6000e- 003 | 005 | 1 0000e- | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 1.5100 | 1.5064 | 3.6000 e- 003 | 005 | 1 0000e- | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 6,824.3670 | 6,767.4564 | 56.9069 | 003 | 3 7100e- | | NBio- CO2 |
| 6,824.3670 | 6,767.4564 | 56.9069 | 003 | 3 7100e- | Ib/c | Total CO2 |
| 0.3923 | 0.3912 | 1.0900e- 003 | 005 | 1 0000e- | lay | CH4 |
| 1.0400e- 003 | | 1.0400e- 003 | | | | N2O |
| 6,834.4841 | 6,777.2351 | 57.2451 | 003 | 3 9600e- | | CO2e |

tblVehicleTrips tblVehicleTrips SU_TR WD_TR 0.73 6.83 31.25 31.25

2.0 Emissions Summary

2.2 Overall Operational

Unmitigated Operational

5.0 Energy Detail

| Industrial Park | Land Use |
|-----------------|----------|
| 0.548007 | LDA |
| 0.045751 | LDT1 |
| 0.200309 | LDT2 |
| 0.124119 | MDV |
| 0.017133 | LHD1 |
| 0.006025 | LHD2 |
| 0.018861 | MHD |
| 0.028423 | HHD |
| 0.002391 | OBUS |
| 0.002469 | UBUS |
| 0.004915 | MCY |
| 0.000672 | SBUS |
| 0.000925 | MH |

4.4 Fleet Mix

| Industrial Park 🗧 16 | Land Use H-W of | |
|----------------------|-----------------|-------------|
| 3.60 | or C-W | |
| 8.40 | H-S or C-C | Miles |
| 6.90 | H-O or C-NW | |
| 59.00 | H-W or C-W | |
| 28.00 | H-S or C-C | Trip % |
| 13.00 | H-O or C-NW | |
| 100 | Primary | |
| 0 | Diverted | Trip Purpos |
| 0 | Pass-by | e % |

4.3 Trip Type Information

| | Aver | age Daily Trip Rate | œ | Unmitigated | Mitigated |
|-----------------|---------|---------------------|--------|-------------|------------|
| Land Use | Weekday | Saturday | Sunday | Annual VMT | Annual VMT |
| Industrial Park | 530.00 | 530.00 | 530.00 | 2,516,256 | 2,516,256 |
| Total | 530.00 | 530.00 | 530.00 | 2,516,256 | 2,516,256 |
| | | | | | |

4.2 Trip Summary Information

| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ſ |
|------|-----|--------|------------|------------|----------|------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|--------|--------|-------------|
| 6,77 | | 0.3912 | 6,767.4564 | 6,767.4564 | | 1.5064 | 0.0741 | 1.4323 | 5.4299 | 0.0788 | 5.3512 | 0.0667 | 21.0079 | 7.3372 | 1.3985 | Unmitigated |
| 6,77 | | 0.3912 | 6,767.4564 | 6,767.4564 | | 1.5064 | 0.0741 | 1.4323 | 5.4299 | 0.0788 | 5.3512 | 0.0667 | 21.0079 | 7.3372 | 1.3985 | Mitigated |
| | | ay | lb/d; | | | | | | | day | Ib/ | | | | | Category |
| Q | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Tota | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | со | NOX | ROG | |

Percent Reduction 0.00 ROG 0.00 Ň 0.00 ဗိ 0.00 S 02 Fugitive PM10 0.00 Exhaust PM10 0.00 PM10 Total 0.00 Fugitive PM2.5 0.00 Exhaust PM2.5 0.00 PM2.5 Total 0.00 Bio- CO2 0.00 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 0.00 0.00 0.00 CH4 0.00 N20 0.00 CO2e

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

| | ROG | NOX | СО | SO2 | Fugitive PM10 | Exhaust PM10 | PM10 Total | Fugitive PM2.5 | Exhaust PM2.5 | PM2.5 Total | Bio- CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Total CO2 | CH4 | N20 | CO2e |
|-------------|-------------|--------|--------|----------|------------------|-----------------|------------|-------------------|------------------|-------------|----------|-----------|-----------|----------|----------|---------|
| Category | | | | | Ib/d: | ау | | | | | | | lb/da | у | | |
| NaturalGas | 5.2200e-003 | 0.0474 | 0.0398 | 2.8000e- | | 3.6000e- | 3.6000e- | | 3.6000e- | 3.6000e- | | 56.9069 | 56.9069 | 1.0900e- | 1.0400e- | 57.2451 |
| Mitigated | | | | 004 | | 003 | 003 | | 003 | 003 | | | | 003 | 003 | |
| NaturalGas | 5.2200e-003 | 0.0474 | 0.0398 | 2.8000e- | | 3.6000e- | 3.6000e- | | 3.6000e- | 3.6000e- | | 56.9069 | 56.9069 | 1.0900e- | 1.0400e- | 57.2451 |
| Unmitigated | | | | 004 | | 003 | 003 | | 003 | 003 | | | | 003 | 003 | |

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

Unmitigated

| 57. | 1.0400e- 003 | 1.0900e- 003 | 56.9069 | 56.9069 | | 3.6000e-003 | 3.6000e- 003 | | 3.6000e- 003 | 3.6000e- 003 | | 2.8000e- 004 | 0.0398 | 0.0474 | 5.2200e- 003 | | Total |
|-----|-----------------|-----------------|-----------|-----------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|--------|--------|-----------------|-------------------|-----------------|
| 57 | 1.0400e- 003 | 1.0900e- 003 | 56.9069 | 56.9069 | | 3.6000e-003 | 3.6000e- 003 | | 3.6000e- 003 | 3.6000e- 003 | | 2.8000e- 004 | 0.0398 | 0.0474 | 5.2200e- 003 | 483.708 | Industrial Park |
| | | day | Ib/o | | | | | | | /day | dI | | | | | kBTU/yr | Land Use |
| 0 | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | со | NOx | ROG | NaturalGas Use | |

Mitigated

Industrial Park

0.483708

5.2200e-

0.0474

0.0398

2.8000e-004

3.6000e-003

3.6000e-003

3.6000e-003

3.6000e-003

56.9069

56.9069

1.0900e-003

1.0400e-003

57.2451

lb/day

003

Total

5.2200e-003

0.0474

0.0398

2.8000e-004

3.6000e-003

3.6000e-003

3.6000e-003

3.6000e-003

56.9069

6906.95

1.0900e-003

1.0400e-003

57.2451

Land Use

kBTU/yr

NaturalGas Use

ROG

NOX

СО

S 02

Fugitive PM10

Exhaust PM10 Total PM10

I Fugitive PM2.5

Exhaust PM2.5 Total Bio-CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 PM2.5

N20

CO2e

lb/day
| | ROG |
|-------|-------------|
| | NOX |
| | co |
| | SO2 |
| PM10 | Fugitive |
| PM10 | Exhaust |
| | PM10 Total |
| PM2.5 | Fugitive |
| PM2.5 | Exhaust |
| | PM2.5 Total |
| | Bio- CO2 |
| | NBio- CO2 |
| | Total CO2 |
| | CH4 |
| | N20 |
| | |

Mitigated

| 3.9600e- 003 | | 1.0000e- 005 | 3.7100e- 003 | 3.7100e- 003 | | 1.0000e- 005 | 1.0000e- 005 | | 1.0000e- 005 | 1.0000e- 005 | | 0.0000 | 1.7500e- 003 | 2.0000e- 005 | 0.3791 | Total |
|-----------------|-----|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|----------|-----------------------------|------------------|-------------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|-----------------|-----------------|-------------|--------------------------|
| 3.9600e- 003 | | 1.0000e- 005 | 3.7100e- 003 | 3.7100e- 003 | | 1.0000 e- 005 | 1.0000e- 005 | | 1.0000e- 005 | 1.0000e- 005 | | 0.0000 | 1.7500e- 003 | 2.0000e- 005 | 1.7000e-004 | Landscaping |
| 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | | (| | 0.3358 | Consumer Products |
| 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | | | | 0.0431 | Architectural Coating |
| | | lay | Ib/d | | | | | | | Чау | Ib/c | | | | | SubCategory |
| CO2e | N2O | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | CO | NOX | ROG | |

6.2 Area by SubCategory <u>Unmitigated</u>

| Unmitigated | Mitigated | Category | |
|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|----------|-------------------|
| 0.3791 | 0.3791 | | ROG |
| 2.0000e- 005 | 2.0000e- 005 | | NOX |
| 1.7500e- 003 | 1.7500e- 003 | | CO |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | SO2 |
| | | Ib/d | Fugitive PM10 |
| 1.0000e- 005 | 1.0000e- 005 | lay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 1.0000e- 005 | 1.0000e- 005 | | PM10 Total |
| | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 1.0000e- 005 | 1.0000e- 005 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 1.0000 e- 005 | 1.0000 e- 005 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 3.7100e- 003 | 3.7100e- 003 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 3.7100 e- 003 | 3.7100e- 003 | Ib/d | Total CO2 |
| 1.0000e- 005 | 1.0000e- 005 | ay | CH4 |
| | | | N20 |
| 3.9600e- 003 | 3.9600e- 003 | | CO2e |

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

| SubCategory | | | | | lb/day | | | | | | Ib/day | | |
|----------------|--------------|-----------------|-----------------|--------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|--------------------|-------------|-----------------|---------------|-----------------|-----------------|
| Architectural | 0.0431 | | | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | | .0000 | | 0.0000 |
| Coating | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Consumer | 0.3358 | | | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0 |).0000 | | 0.0000 |
| Landooping | 1 70000-004 | 2 0000e- | 1 75000 | | 1 0000- | 1 00000 | 1 0000 | 1 0000- | 7 2 | 1002 3 | 71000 | | |
| Landscaping | 1./UUUe-UU4 | 2.0000e- 005 | 1./500e- 003 | 0.0000 | 005 | 1.0000e- 005 | 1.0000 005 | •- 1.0000e- 005 | 3./ C | 100e- 3.)03 | /100e- 003 | 005 | 3.9600e- 003 |
| Total | 0.3791 | 2.0000e- 005 | 1.7500e- 003 | 0.0000 | 1.0000e- 005 | 1.0000e- 005 | 1.0000¢ 005 | +- 1.0000e- 005 | 3.7 | 100e- 3.)03 | 7100e- 003 | 1.0000e- 005 | 3.9600e- 003 |
| 7.0 Water D | etail | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 7.1 Mitigatio | n Measur | es Wate | T | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8.0 Waste E | etail | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8.1 Mitigatio | n Measur | es Wast | Φ | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9.0 Operatio | onal Offr | oad | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Equ | ipment Type | | 7 | lumber | Hours/Day | | Days/Year | Но | rse Power | Load | Factor | Fuel | Туре |
| 10.0 Station | ıary Equ | ipment | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Fire Pumps a | nd Emerc | lency Ge | nerators | 10. | | | | | | | | | |
| Equ | iipment Type | | 7 | Number | Hours/Day | | Hours/Year | Но | rse Power | Load | Factor | Fuel | Туре |
| <u>Boilers</u> | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Equ | iipment Type | | 7 | Jumber | Heat Input/Da | ау | Heat Input/Year | Во | iler Rating | Fue | І Туре | | |
| User Defined | Equipme | nt | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Equ | iipment Type | | 7 | lumber | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 D Vacata | tion | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ווית אבאבוט | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2

Page 1 of 1

Date: 3/18/2019 12:56 PM

1024 Mateo Street Future - Los Angeles-South Coast County, Summer

1024 Mateo Street Future

Los Angeles-South Coast County, Summer

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

| Enclosed Parking with Elevator | Strip Mall | High Turnover (Sit Down Restaurant) | General Office Building | Apartments Mid Rise | Land Uses | |
|--------------------------------|------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------------|---------------------|--------------------|--|
| 402.00 | 13.98 | 13.13 | 94.99 | 106.00 | Size | |
| Space | 1000sqft | 1000sqft | 1000sqft | Dwelling Unit | Metric | |
| 0.00 | 0.09 | 0.09 | 0.50 | 0.60 | Lot Acreage | |
| 160,800.00 | 13,979.00 | 13,126.00 | 94,990.00 | 123,225.00 | Floor Surface Area | |
| 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 303 | Population | |

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

| CO2 Intensity (Ib/MWhr) | Utility Company | Climate Zone | Urbanization |
|----------------------------|-----------------------|-------------------------|---------------------------|
| 1227.89 | Los Angeles Departmen | 11 | Urban |
| CH4 Intensity (Ib/MWhr) | t of Water & Power | | Wind Speed (m/s) |
| 0.029 | | | 2.2 |
| N2O Intensity (Ib/MWhr) | | Operational Year | Precipitation Freq (Days) |
| 0.006 | | 2022 | 33 |

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

Project Characteristics -

Land Use - Developer information

Construction Phase - Developer information

Off-road Equipment - Developer information

Off-road Equipment - Developer information

| 4.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentWitigated | tblConstEquipMitigation |
|-----------|--------------------------|--|--------------------------------------|
| 6.00 | 0.00 | Number OfEquipmentMitigated | tblConstEquipMitigation |
| 6.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 5.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 3.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 3.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 15.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 4.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 2.00 | 0.00 | Number Of Equipment Mitigated | tblConstEquipMitigation |
| 4.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tblConstEquipMitigation |
| 21.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tblConstEquipMitigation |
| 1.00 | 0.00 | Number Of Equipment Mitigated | tblConstEquipMitigation |
| 2.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tblConstEquipMitigation |
| 1.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tblConstEquipMittgation |
| 3.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tblConstEquipMitigation |
| 2.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tblConstEquipMitigation |
| 1.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 8.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tblConstEquipMitigation |
| 1.00 | 0.00 | Number Of Equipment Mitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 46 | 0 | CleanPavedRoadPercentReduction | tblConstDustMitigation |
| New Value | Default Value | Column Name | Table Name |
| | 403 control efficiencies | itigation - Assumes SCAQMD Rule | Construction Off-road Equipment M |
| | | SUC | Woodstoves - Consultant assumptic |
| | | arch 2019 | Vehicle Trips - LLG Traffic Study, M |
| | s landfill | r haul truck, 17 miles to Puente Hills | Trips and VMT - Assumes 10CY pe |
| | | g A, 545 tons from Building B | Demolition - 1,142 tons from buildin |

Grading - Developer information

Off-road Equipment - Developer information Off-road Equipment - Developer information Off-road Equipment - Developer information

| tblConstructionPhase | tblConstructionPhase | tblConstructionPhase | tbiConstructionPhase | tblConstructionPhase | tbiConstEquipMitigation | tbiConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation | tbiConstEquipMitigation | tbiConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation | tbiConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation |
|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------------|-------------------------------|----------------------------|
| NumDays | NumDays | NumDays | NumDays | NumDays | Tier | Number Of Equipment Mitigated | Number Of Equipment Mitigated | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated |
| 10.00 | 200.00 | 4.00 | 2.00 | 20.00 | No Change | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 |
| 68.00 | 442.00 | 66.00 | 5.00 | 22.00 | Tier 3 | 2.00 | 1.00 | 6.00 |

| tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblLandUse | tblLandUse | tblLandUse | tblLandUse | tblLandUse | tblLandUse | tblGrading | tblGrading | tblFireplaces | tblFireplaces | tblFireplaces |
|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|-------------------|------------------|----------------|---------------|-------------------|---------------|
| LoadFactor | HorsePower | LotAcreage | LotAcreage | LotAcreage | LotAcreage | LotAcreage | LandUseSquareFeet | MaterialExported | AcresOfGrading | NumberWood | NumberNoFireplace | NumberGas |
| 0.31 | 0.37 | 0.46 | 0.36 | 0.40 | 0.42 | 0.38 | 0.50 | 0.37 | 0.46 | 0.36 | 0.46 | 0.36 | 0.40 | 0.40 | 0.42 | 0.38 | 0.43 | 168.00 | 3.62 | 0.32 | 0.30 | 2.18 | 2.79 | 106,000.00 | 0.00 | 24.75 | 5.30 | 10.60 | 90.10 |
| 0.31 | 0.37 | 0.46 | 0.36 | 0.40 | 0.42 | 0.38 | 0.50 | 0.37 | 0.46 | 0.36 | 0.46 | 0.36 | 0.40 | 0.40 | 0.42 | 0.38 | 0.43 | 88.00 | 0.00 | 0.09 | 0.09 | 0.50 | 0.60 | 123,225.00 | 38,985.00 | 1.29 | 0.00 | 106.00 | 0.00 |

| tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbIOffRoadEquipment | tbIOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | - |
|------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|---------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------------------|------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|--------------------------|----------------------|--------------------------|----------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---|
| OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | LoadFactor | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 0.42 | 0.20 | 0.50 | 0.37 | 0.46 | 0.40 | 0.40 | 0.42 | 0.20 | |
| Other Construction Equipment | Excavators | Dumpers/Tenders | Bore/Drill Rigs | Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes | Sweepers/Scrubbers | Rubber Tired Loaders | Sweepers/Scrubbers | Signal Boards | Rubber Tired Loaders | Rough Terrain Forklifts | Other Material Handling Equipment | Other Construction Equipment | Generator Sets | Excavators | Dumpers/Tenders | Crushing/Proc. Equipment | Crawler Tractors | Concrete/Industrial Saws | Air Compressors | 0.42 | 0.20 | 0.50 | 0.37 | 0.46 | 0.40 | 0.34 | 0.42 | 0.20 | |

| Type Type Type Type Type Type Type tAmou tAmou |
|--|
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| - |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |

| tblVehicleTrips | tblTripsAndVMT | tblTripsAndVMT | tblTripsAndVMT | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment |
|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|
| PB_TP | HW_TTP | HS_TTP | HO_TTP | DV_TP | DV_TP | DV_TP | DV_TP | WorkerTripNumber | WorkerTripNumber | WorkerTripNumber | WorkerTripNumber | WorkerTripNumber | VendorTripNumber | VendorTripNumber | VendorTripNumber | VendorTripNumber | HaulingTripNumber | HaulingTripLength | HaulingTripLength | UsageHours | OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount | OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount | OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount |
| 3.00 | 40.20 | 19.20 | 40.60 | 40.00 | 20.00 | 19.00 | 11.00 | 37.00 | 184.00 | 65.00 | 18.00 | 103.00 | 0.00 | 58.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 4,873.00 | 20.00 | 20.00 | 6.00 | 8.00 | 6.00 | 6.00 | 6.00 | 7.00 | 8.00 | 1.00 | 3.00 | 1.00 |
| 0.00 | 40.00 | 19.00 | 41.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 32.00 | 300.00 | 20.00 | 12.00 | 20.00 | 2.00 | 10.00 | 2.00 | 2.00 | 3,899.00 | 17.00 | 17.00 | 8.00 | 6.00 | 8.00 | 8.00 | 8.00 | 8.00 | 6.00 | 2.00 | 2.00 | 2.00 |

| | ROG |
|-------|-------------|
| | NOX |
| | co |
| | SO2 |
| PM10 | Fugitive |
| PM10 | Exhaust |
| | PM10 Total |
| PM2.5 | Fugitive |
| PM2.5 | Exhaust |
| | PM2.5 Total |
| | Bio- CO2 |
| | NBio- CO2 |
| | Total CO2 |
| | CH4 |
| | N20 |
| | CO2e |

Unmitigated Construction

2.1 Overall Construction (Maximum Daily Emission)

2.0 Emissions Summary

.

| tbIWcodstoves | tbIW codstoves | tblVehicleTrips | tbl/VehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tbl/VehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips |
|---------------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|
| Number Noncatalytic | NumberCatalytic | WD_TR | WD_TR | WD_TR | WD_TR | SU_TR | SU_TR | SU_TR | SU_TR | ST_TR | ST_TR | ST_TR | ST_TR | PR_TP | PR_TP | PR_TP | PR_TP | PB_TP | PB_TP | PB_TP |
| 5.30 | 5.30 | 44.32 | 127.15 | 11.03 | 6.65 | 20.43 | 131.84 | 1.05 | 5.86 | 42.04 | 158.37 | 2.46 | 6.39 | 45.00 | 37.00 | 77.00 | 86.00 | 15.00 | 43.00 | 4.00 |
| 0.00 | 0.00 | 14.35 | 68.07 | 7.40 | 5.56 | 14.35 | 68.07 | 7.40 | 5.56 | 14.35 | 68.07 | 7.40 | 5.56 | 100.00 | 100.00 | 100.00 | 100.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 |

.

. ÷ ÷ ÷

| | ROG |
|-------|-------------|
| | NOX |
| | СО |
| | SO2 |
| PM10 | Fugitive |
| PM10 | Exhaust |
| | PM10 Total |
| PM2.5 | Fugitive |
| PM2.5 | Exhaust |
| | PM2.5 Total |
| | Bio- CO2 |
| | NBio- CO2 |
| | Total CO2 |
| | CH4 |
| | N20 |
| | CO2e |

N Unmitigated Operational

| N |
|-------|
| ò |
| /eral |
| Б |
| erat |
| tion |
| a |

| Percent Reduction | | Maximum | 2022 | 2021 | 2020 | Year | |
|-------------------|-------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|------|-------------------|
| 26.73 | ROG | 32.5344 | 32.5344 | 3.3589 | 4.4004 | | ROG |
| 22.86 | NOx | 76.9202 | 53.2334 | 42.9156 | 76.9202 | | NOx |
| -7.74 | 8 | 94.1441 | 84.6453 | 68.9932 | 94.1441 | | CO |
| 0.00 | SO2 | 0.1541 | 0.1485 | 0.1229 | 0.1541 | | SO2 |
| 48.64 | Fugitive PM10 | 2.4214 | 2.2786 | 2.0553 | 2.4214 | Ib/c | Fugitive PM10 |
| 15.08 | Exhaust PM10 | 4.1625 | 3.0772 | 2.4934 | 4.1625 | lay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 30.79 | PM10 Total | 5.3558 | 5.3558 | 4.5488 | 4.9782 | | PM10 Total |
| 52.32 | Fugitive PM2.5 | 1.1302 | 0.6358 | 0.5734 | 1.1302 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 10.80 | Exhaust PM2.5 | 4.1068 | 3.0700 | 2.4852 | 4.1068 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 15.76 | PM2.5 Total | 4.2575 | 3.7058 | 3.0586 | 4.2575 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.00 | Bio- CO2 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 0.00 | NBio-CO2 | 14,788.388 6 | 14,259.724 6 | 11,815.259 8 | 14,788.388 6 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 0.00 | Total CO2 | 14,788.388 6 | 14,259.724 6 | 11,815.259 8 | 14,788.388 6 | Ib/ | Total CO2 |
| 0.00 | CH4 | 3.3982 | 2.4502 | 1.9721 | 3.3982 | day | CH4 |
| 0.00 | N20 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N20 |
| 0.00 | CO2e | 14,873.342 6 | 14,320.978 7 | 11,864.561 4 | 14,873.342 6 | | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction

| Maximum | 2022 | 2021 | 2020 | Year |
|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|------|
| 36.8753 | 36.8753 | 7.2139 | 10.9037 | |
| 105.0558 | 63.4992 | 55.7952 | 105.0558 | |
| 84.7362 | 79.7648 | 65.4725 | 84.7362 | |
| 0.1541 | 0.1485 | 0.1229 | 0.1541 | |
| 5.9465 | 3.7878 | 3.4173 | 5.9465 | Ib/c |
| 5.3220 | 3.2323 | 2.9076 | 5.3220 | day |
| 8.1603 | 7.0201 | 6.3249 | 8.1603 | |
| 2.9930 | 1.0063 | 0.9077 | 2.9930 | |
| 5.0257 | 3.0577 | 2.7480 | 5.0257 | |
| 5.3644 | 4.0640 | 3.6557 | 5.3644 | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | |
| 14,788.388 6 | 14,259.724 6 | 11,815.259 8 | 14,788.388 6 | |
| 14,788.388 6 | 14,259.724 6 | 11,815.259 8 | 14,788.388 6 | Ib/c |
| 3.3982 | 2.4502 | 1.9721 | 3.3982 | day |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | |
| 14,873.342 6 | 14,320.978 7 | 11,864.561 4 | 14,873.342 6 | |

| 2 | 1 | Phase Number | Construc | 3.0 Con | Percent Red | | | Total | Mobile | Energy | Area | Categor | |
|------------|------------|-----------------|--------------|-----------|-------------|-------------------|---|----------------|----------------|--------------|---------------|---------|------------------|
| Site Pr | Demo | | tion | ıstru | luction | | | | | ` | | У | |
| reparation | lition | Phase | <u>Phase</u> | iction De | 0.00 | ROG | | 10.2743 | 4.4088 | 0.1483 | 5.7173 | | ROG |
| | | Name | | ətail | 0.0 | N | | 22.6862 | 21.2527 | 1.3320 | 0.1015 | | NOX |
| 0 | | | | | ō | × | | 71.1477 | 61.3229 | 1.0167 | 8.8081 | | СО |
| ite Prepa | Demolition | | | | 0.00 | 8 | ╟ | 0.232 | 0.224 | 8.090 003 | 4.7000 004 | | sos |
| ration | _ | Phase T | | | 0.00 | S 02 | ╟ | 27 18 | 11 18 | e oe | - Oe- | | |
| | | ype | | | 0.0(| Fugiti PM1 | | .2740 | .2740 | | | Ib/da | gitive M10 |
| 7/ | 6 | | | | | ive Ex 0 P | | 0.3313 | 0.1803 | 0.1024 | 0.0486 | ÿ | Exhaust PM10 |
| 1/2020 | 1/2020 | Start E | | | 0.00 | haust P M10 | | 18.605 | 18.45 | 0.102 | 0.048 | | PM10 Tr |
| | |)ate | | | 0.00 | M10 Tota | ╟ | 53 4.8 | 14 4.8 | 4 | 6 | | otal Fug Pl |
| 7/7/2020 | 6/30/2020 | End | | | 0.00 | I Fugitiv PM2. | | 8904 | 3904 | | | | gitive M2.5 |
| | 0 | Date | | | | /e Ex 5 PI | | 0.3192 | 0.1682 | 0.1024 | 0.0486 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| | | Num We | | | .00 | haust M2.5 | | 5.209 | 5.058 | 0.102 | 0.048 | | PM2.5 1 |
| σ | 5 | Days N ek | | | 0.00 | PM2.5 Total | ┣ | 7 0. | 7 | 4 | 6 O. | | otal Bio |
| | | Jum Day | | | 0.00 | Bio- CO | | 0000 2 | N | <u> </u> | 0000 | | - CO2 N |
| J | 22 | S | | | | D2 NBic | | 4,438.368 2 | 2,805.19C 9 | ,617.3160 | 15.8613 | | VBio- CO2 |
| | | Phas | | | .00 | 9-CO2 T | | 3 24,438. 2 |) 22,805. 9 |) 1,617.3 | 15.86 | | Total C |
| | | e Descri | | | 0.00 | otal CO2 | ╟ | 368 1. | 190 1.: | 160 0.(| 13 0.(| Ib/day | ()2 () |
| | | ption | | | 0.00 | CH4 | | 1815 | 1350 | 0310 | 0155 | | H4 |
| | | | | | 0.1 | z | | 0.0297 | | 0.0297 | 0.0000 | | N20 |
| | | | | | 00 | 20 | | 24,476.7 8 | 22,833.ť 4 | 1,626.92 | 16.248 | | C02€ |
| | | | | | 0.00 | CO2e | | 740 | 565 | 269 | 36 | | |

<u>Mitigated Operational</u>

| Total | Mobile | Energy | Area | Category |
|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|----------|
| 10.2743 | 4.4088 | 0.1483 | 5.7173 | |
| 22.6862 | 21.2527 | 1.3320 | 0.1015 | |
| 71.1477 | 61.3229 | 1.0167 | 8.8081 | |
| 0.2327 | 0.2241 | 8.0900e- 003 | 4.7000e- 004 | |
| 18.2740 | 18.2740 | | | Ib/c |
| 0.3313 | 0.1803 | 0.1024 | 0.0486 | łay |
| 18.6053 | 18.4544 | 0.1024 | 0.0486 | |
| 4.8904 | 4.8904 | | | |
| 0.3192 | 0.1682 | 0.1024 | 0.0486 | |
| 5.2097 | 5.0587 | 0.1024 | 0.0486 | |
| 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | |
| 24,438.368 2 | 22,805.190 9 | 1,617.3160 | 15.8613 | |
| 24,438.368 2 | 22,805.190 9 | 1,617.3160 | 15.8613 | Ib/d |
| 1.1815 | 1.1350 | 0.0310 | 0.0155 | ay |
| 0.0297 | | 0.0297 | 0.0000 | |
| 24,476.740 8 | 22,833.565 4 | 1,626.9269 | 16.2486 | |

| 5 | 4 | ω |
|-----------------------|-----------------------|-----------|
| Architectural Coating | Building Construction | Grading |
| Architectural Coating | Building Construction | Grading |
| 3/16/2022 | 10/8/2020 | 7/8/2020 |
| 6/17/2022 | 6/17/2022 | 10/7/2020 |
| ъ | ហ | ர |
| 88 | 442 | 66 |
| | | |

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 2.5

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 1.29

Acres of Paving: 0

Residential Indoor: 249,531; Residential Outdoor: 83,177; Non-Residential Indoor: 183,143; Non-Residential Outdoor: 61,048; Striped Parking

OffRoad Equipment

| Phase Name | Offroad Equipment Type | Amount | Usage Hours | Horse Power | Load Factor |
|------------------|-----------------------------------|--------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|
| Demolition | Air Compressors | 4 | 8.00 | 78 | 0.48 |
| Demolition | Concrete/Industrial Saws | 2 | 6.00 | 81 | 0.73 |
| Demolition | Crawler Tractors | N | 6.00 | 212 | 0.43 |
| Demolition | Crushing/Proc. Equipment | | 6.00 | 85 | 0.78 |
| Demolition | Dumpers/Tenders | 10 | 6.00 | 16 | 0.38 |
| Demolition | Excavators | 2 | 8.00 | 158 | 0.38 |
| Demolition | Generator Sets | 2 | 8.00 | 84 | 0.74 |
| Demolition | Other Construction Equipment | л | 8.00 | 172 | 0.42 |
| Demolition | Other Material Handling Equipment | N | 6.00 | 168 | 0.40 |
| Demolition | Rough Terrain Forklifts | 2 | 6.00 | 100 | 0.40 |
| Demolition | Rubber Tired Loaders | N | 6.00 | 203 | 0.36 |
| Demolition | Signal Boards | 2 | 6.00 | ŋ | 0.82 |
| Demolition | Sweepers/Scrubbers | | 8.00 | 64 | 0.46 |
| Site Preparation | Rubber Tired Loaders | 2 | 8.00 | 203 | 0.36 |
| Site Preparation | Sweepers/Scrubbers | | 8.00 | 64 | 0.46 |
| Site Preparation | Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes | N | 8.00 | 97 | 0.37 |
| Grading | Bore/Drill Rigs | <u> </u> | 8.00 | 221 | 0.50 |
| Grading | Dumpers/Tenders | 10 | 6.00 | 16 | 0.38 |
| Grading | Excavators | 2 | 8.00 | 158 | 0.38 |

| 0.40 | 747 | 10.8 | | Rubber Tired Dozers | |
|------|-----|--------|---|-----------------------------------|-----------------------|
| 0.41 | 187 | 1 8.00 | | Graders | Site Preparation |
| 0.41 | 187 | 6.00 | _ | Graders | Grading |
| 0.30 | 13 | 8.00 | | Pressure Washers | Architectural Coating |
| 0.42 | 172 | 8.00 | N | Other Construction Equipment | Architectural Coating |
| 0.20 | 68 | 8.00 | | Forklifts | Architectural Coating |
| 0.48 | 78 | 8.00 | N | Air Compressors | Architectural Coating |
| 0.45 | 46 | 6.00 | N | Welders | Building Construction |
| 0.50 | 78 | 6.00 | _ | Trenchers | Building Construction |
| 0.37 | 97 | 8.00 | N | Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes | Building Construction |
| 0.46 | 64 | 6.00 | _ | Sweepers/Scrubbers | Building Construction |
| 0.82 | 0 | 8.00 | N | Signal Boards | Building Construction |
| 0.40 | 100 | 8.00 | _ | Rough Terrain Forklifts | Building Construction |
| 0.30 | 13 | 6.00 | _ | Pressure Washers | Building Construction |
| 0.34 | 88 | 6.00 | _ | Other Material Handling Equipment | Building Construction |
| 0.42 | 172 | 6.00 | 6 | Other Construction Equipment | Building Construction |
| 0.74 | 84 | 8.00 | N | Generator Sets | Building Construction |
| 0.20 | 68 | 8.00 | _ | Forklifts | Building Construction |
| 0.38 | 16 | 8.00 | | Dumpers/Tenders | Building Construction |
| 0.29 | 231 | 8.00 | _ | Cranes | Building Construction |
| 0.73 | 81 | 6.00 | | Concrete/Industrial Saws | Building Construction |
| 0.56 | Q | 8.00 | N | Cement and Mortar Mixers | Building Construction |
| 0.48 | 78 | 8.00 | | Air Compressors | Building Construction |
| 0.31 | 63 | 8.00 | _ | Aerial Lifts | Building Construction |
| 0.37 | 97 | 8.00 | | Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes | Grading |
| 0.46 | 64 | 8.00 | _ | Sweepers/Scrubbers | Grading |
| 0.82 | 6 | 8.00 | | Signal Boards | Grading |
| 0.36 | 203 | 6.00 | | Rubber Tired Loaders | Grading |
| 0.40 | 100 | 6.00 | | Rough Terrain Forklifts | Grading |
| 0.42 | 172 | 8.00 | | Other Construction Equipment | Grading |

| Grading | Rubber Tired Dozers | 1 | 6.00 | 247 | 0.40 |
|------------------|---------------------------|---|------|-----|------|
| Site Preparation | Rubber Tired Dozers | 1 | 7.00 | 247 | 0.40 |
| Demolition | Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes | 3 | 8.00 | 97 | 0.37 |

Trips and VMT

| Phase Name | Offroad Equipment Count | Worker Trip Number | Vendor Trip Number | Hauling Trip Number | Worker Trip Length | Vendor Trip Length | Hauling Trip Length | Worker Vehicle Class | Vendor Vehicle Class | Hauling Vehicle Class |
|-----------------------|----------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|--------------------------|
| Demolition | 41 | 20.00 | 0.00 | 167.00 | 14.70 | 6.90 | 17.00 | LD_Mix | HDT_Mix | HHDT |
| Site Preparation | 7 | 12.00 | 2.00 | 0.00 | 14.70 | 6.90 | 20.00 | LD_Mix | HDT_Mix | HHDT |
| Grading | 26 | 20.00 | 2.00 | 3,899.00 | 14.70 | 6.90 | 17.00 | LD_Mix | HDT_Mix | HHDT |
| Building Construction | 28 | 300.00 | 10.00 | 0.00 | 14.70 | 6.90 | 20.00 | LD_Mix | HDT_Mix | HHDT |
| Architectural Coating | 7 | 32.00 | 2.00 | 0.00 | 14.70 | 6.90 | 20.00 | LD_Mix | HDT_Mix | ннот |

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Use Cleaner Engines for Construction Equipment

Replace Ground Cover

Water Exposed Area

Clean Paved Roads

3.2 Demolition - 2020

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

| 14,071.613 7 | | 3.3513 | 13,987.831 5 | 13,987.831 5 | | 5.2667 | 5.0183 | 0.2485 | 6.9550 | 5.3141 | 1.6409 | 0.1466 | 83.4357 | 103.0255 | 10.7534 | Total |
|-----------------|-----|--------|-----------------|-----------------|---------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|----------|---------|---------------|
| 14,071.613 7 | | 3.3513 | 13,987.831 5 | 13,987.831 5 | | 5.0183 | 5.0183 | | 5.3141 | 5.3141 | | 0.1466 | 83.4357 | 103.0255 | 10.7534 | Off-Road |
| 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | | | 0.2485 | 0.0000 | 0.2485 | 1.6409 | 0.0000 | 1.6409 | | | | | Fugitive Dust |
| | | ау | lb/d | | | | | | | day | Ib/ | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N2O | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio-CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | СО | NOX | ROG | |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| 14,0/1.013 7 | | 3.3313 | 13,987.831 5 | 13,987.831 5 | 0.0000 | 4.1914 | 4.0994 | 0.0921 | 4.7626 | 4.1340 | 0.6080 | 0.1400 | 92.8430 | 74.8899 | 4.2000 | Iotal |
|-----------------|-----|--------|-----------------|-----------------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|---------|--------|---------------|
| 7 | | | сл Сл | сл Сл | | | | 0 | 4 4000 | | 0 | | 0000 | 14 0000 | | |
| 14,071.613 | | 3.3513 | 13,987.831 | 13,987.831 | 0.0000 | 4.0994 | 4.0994 | | 4.1546 | 4.1546 | | 0.1466 | 92.8436 | 74.8899 | 4.2500 | Off-Road |
| 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | | | 0.0921 | 0.0000 | 0.0921 | 0.6080 | 0.0000 | 0.6080 | | | | | Fugitive Dust |
| | | ау | lb/d; | | | | | | | łay | Ib/c | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | CO | NOX | ROG | |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| Total | Worker | Vendor | Hauling | Category | |
|-----------------|-----------------|--------|-----------------|----------|-------------------|
| 0.1503 | 0.0920 | 0.0000 | 0.0583 | | ROG |
| 2.0303 | 0.0655 | 0.0000 | 1.9648 | | NOx |
| 1.3005 | 0.8757 | 0.0000 | 0.4248 | | 8 |
| 7.5800e- 003 | 2.3600e- 003 | 0.0000 | 5.2200e- 003 | | SO2 |
| 0.3364 | 0.2236 | 0.0000 | 0.1128 | Ib/d | Fugitive PM10 |
| 7.8400e- 003 | 1.8700e- 003 | 0.0000 | 5.9700e- 003 | lay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.3442 | 0.2254 | 0.0000 | 0.1188 | | PM10 Total |
| 0.0902 | 0.0593 | 0.0000 | 0.0309 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 7.4300e- 003 | 1.7200e- 003 | 0.0000 | 5.7100e- 003 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.0977 | 0.0610 | 0.0000 | 0.0366 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 800.5571 | 235.2226 | 0.0000 | 565.3345 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 800.5571 | 235.2226 | 0.0000 | 565.3345 | lb/c | Total CO2 |
| 0.0469 | 7.4200e- 003 | 0.0000 | 0.0395 | lay | CH4 |
| | | | | | N20 |
| 801.7289 | 235.4080 | 0.0000 | 566.3210 | | CO2e |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| ٧e | На | Cat | |
|-----------------|--------|-------|-------------------|
| ndor | uling | egory | |
| 7.1100e-003 | 0.0000 | | ROG |
| 0.2127 | 0.0000 | | NOX |
| 0.0557 | 0.0000 | | co |
| 5.2000e- 004 | 0.0000 | | S02 |
| 0.0128 | 0.0000 | Ib/d | Fugitive PM10 |
| 1.0000e- 003 | 0.0000 | ay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.0138 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total |
| 3.6900e- 003 | 0.0000 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 9.6000e- 004 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 4.6400e- 003 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 55.4049 | 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 55.4049 | 0.0000 | lb/d: | Total CO2 |
| 3.3800e- 003 | 0.0000 | ay | CH4 |
| | | | N20 |
| 55.4895 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| 3,453.63 | | 1.1080 | 3,425.9348 | 3,425.9348 | | 4.2715 | 1.3178 | 2.9537 | 7.2320 | 1.4324 | 5.7996 | 0.0354 | 15.2261 | 31.6027 | 2.8570 | Total |
|-----------|-----|--------|------------|------------|------------|------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|---------|--------|---------------|
| 3,453.635 | | 1.1080 | 3,425.9348 | 3,425.9348 | | 1.3178 | 1.3178 | | 1.4324 | 1.4324 | | 0.0354 | 15.2261 | 31.6027 | 2.8570 | Off-Road |
| 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | | | 2.9537 | 0.0000 | 2.9537 | 5.7996 | 0.0000 | 5.7996 | | | | | Fugitive Dust |
| | | ау | Ib/d | | | | | | | day | Ib/c | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | I Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Tota | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | ĉ | NOX | ROG | |

| 801.7289 | | 0.0469 | 800.5571 | 800.5571 | | 0.0661 | 7.4300e- 003 | 0.0586 | 0.2156 | 7.8400e- 003 | 0.2078 | 7.5800e- 003 | 1.3005 | 2.0303 | 0.1503 | Total |
|----------|-----|-----------------|-----------|-----------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|--------|--------|--------|----------|
| 235.4080 | | 7.4200e- 003 | 235.2226 | 235.2226 | | 0.0391 | 1.7200e- 003 | 0.0373 | 0.1360 | 1.8700e- 003 | 0.1342 | 2.3600e- 003 | 0.8757 | 0.0655 | 0.0920 | Worker |
| 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Vendor |
| 566.3210 | | 0.0395 | 565.3345 | 565.3345 | | 0.0270 | 5.7100e- 003 | 0.0213 | 0.0796 | 5.9700e- 003 | 0.0736 | 5.2200e- 003 | 0.4248 | 1.9648 | 0.0583 | Hauling |
| | | lay | lb/o | | | | | | | łay | Ib/c | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N2O | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | со | NOX | ROG | |

3.3 Site Preparation - 2020 <u>Unmitigated Construction On-Site</u>

| 1 | - | _ | |
|---|--------------|--------------|--|
| , | Jiiiiiugateu | Inmitiantod | |
| | | Construction | |
| | | | |

3.4 Grading - 2020

| | | 003 | | | | | 003 | | | 003 | | 003 | | | | |
|----------|-----|----------|-----------|-----------|---------|-------------|----------|----------|------------|----------|----------|----------|--------|--------|-------------|---------|
| 196.7343 | | 7.8300e- | 196.5385 | 196.5385 | | 0.0271 | 1.9900e- | 0.0251 | 0.0912 | 2.1200e- | 0.0891 | 1.9400e- | 0.5812 | 0.2520 | 0.0623 | Total |
| | | 003 | | | | | 003 | | | 003 | | 003 | | | | |
| 141.2448 | | 4.4500e- | 141.1335 | 141.1335 | | 0.0234 | 1.0300e- | 0.0224 | 0.0816 | 1.1200e- | 0.0805 | 1.4200e- | 0.5254 | 0.0393 | 0.0552 | Worker |
| | | 003 | | | | 003 | 004 | 003 | 003 | 003 | 003 | 004 | | | | |
| 55.4895 | | 3.3800e- | 55.4049 | 55.4049 | | 3.6100e- | 9.6000e- | 2.6600e- | 9.6100e- | 1.0000e- | 8.6100e- | 5.2000e- | 0.0557 | 0.2127 | 7.1100e-003 | Vendor |
| 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Hauling |
| | | ау | 10/0 | | | | | | | uay | | | | | | Савдоту |
| | | | 16/4 | | | | | | | | IL / | | | | | Cotomon |
| | | | | | | | PM2.5 | PM2.5 | | PM10 | PM10 | | | | | |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio-CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust | Fugitive | PM10 Total | Exhaust | Fugitive | SO2 | co | NOX | ROG | |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| | ROG | NOx | CO | SO2 | Fugitive PM10 | Exhaust PM10 | PM10 Total | Fugitive PM2.5 | Exhaust PM2.5 | PM2.5 Total | Bio- CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Total CO2 | CH4 | N20 | CO2e |
|---------------|--------|---------|---------|--------|------------------|-----------------|------------|-------------------|------------------|-------------|----------|------------|------------|--------|-----|------------|
| Category | | | | | Ib/d | ay | | | | | | | lb/da | ΎΕ | | |
| Fugitive Dust | | | | | 2.1487 | 0.0000 | 2.1487 | 1.0944 | 0.0000 | 1.0944 | | | 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 |
| Off-Road | 2.0347 | 27.3666 | 18.6912 | 0.0354 | | 1.2645 | 1.2645 | | 1.2022 | 1.2022 | 0.0000 | 3,425.9348 | 3,425.9348 | 1.1080 | | 3,453.6353 |
| Total | 2.0347 | 27.3666 | 18.6912 | 0.0354 | 2.1487 | 1.2645 | 3.4132 | 1.0944 | 1.2022 | 2.2966 | 0.0000 | 3,425.9348 | 3,425.9348 | 1.1080 | | 3,453.6353 |

| Worker | 0.0552 | 0.0393 | 0.5254 | 1.4200e- 003 | 0.1341 | 1.1200e- 003 | 0.1353 | 0.0356 | 1.0300e- 003 | 0.0366 | 141.1335 | 141.1335 | 4.4500e- 003 | 141.2448 |
|--------|--------|--------|--------|-----------------|--------|-----------------|--------|--------|-----------------|--------|----------|----------|-----------------|----------|
| Total | 0.0623 | 0.2520 | 0.5812 | 1.9400e- | 0.1469 | 2.1200e- | 0.1491 | 0.0393 | 1.9900e- | 0.0413 | 196.5385 | 196.5385 | 7.8300e- | 196.7343 |
| | | | | 003 | | 003 | | | 003 | | | | 003 | |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| Category | |
|----------|-------------------|
| | ROG |
| | NOx |
| | CO |
| | S02 |
| Ib/c | Fugitive PM10 |
| łay | Exhaust PM10 |
| | PM10 Total |
| | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| | PM2.5 Total |
| | Bio- CO2 |
| | NBio- CO2 |
| lb/d | Total CO2 |
| ау | CH4 |
| | N20 |
| | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| Total | Worker | Vendor | Hauling | Category | |
|------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------|----------|-------------------|
| 0.5527 | 0.0920 | 7.1100e-0C | 0.4536 | | ROG |
| 15.5693 | 0.0655 | 0.2127 | 15.2910 | | NOX |
| 4.2373 | 0.8757 | 0.0557 | 3.3059 | | СО |
| 0.0435 | 2.3600e- 003 | 5.2000e- 004 | 0.0406 | | SO2 |
| 1.1145 | 0.2236 | 0.0128 | 0.8782 | Ip/ | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0493 | 1.8700e- 003 | 1.0000e- 003 | 0.0465 | day | Exhaust PM10 |
| 1.1639 | 0.2254 | 0.0138 | 0.9246 | | PM10 Total |
| 0.3037 | 0.0593 | 3.6900e- 003 | 0.2407 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0471 | 1.7200e- 003 | 9.6000e- 004 | 0.0445 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.3508 | 0.0610 | 4.6400e- 003 | 0.2852 | | PM2.5 Tota |
| | | | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 4,690.3066 | 235.2226 | 55.4049 | 4,399.6791 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 4,690.3066 | 235.2226 | 55.4049 | 4,399.6791 | lb/c | Total CO2 |
| 0.3179 | 7.4200e- 003 | 3.3800e- 003 | 0.3071 | lay | CH4 |
| | | | | | N20 |
| 4,698.2535 | 235.4080 | 55.4895 | 4,407.3561 | | CO2e |

Off-Road Fugitive Dust Category Total 5.0305 5.0305 ROG 51.9557 51.9557 36.1932 0.0738 NOX 36.1932 8 0.0738 SO2 Fugitive PM10 4.6041 4.6041 -----Ib/day Exhaust PM10 2.3923 2.3923 0.0000 PM10 Total 6.9964 2.3923 4.6041 Fugitive PM2.5 2.4950 2.4950 Exhaust PM2.5 2.2138 0.0000 2.2138 PM2.5 Total 4.7088 2.2138 2.4950 Bio-CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 7,020.5328 7,020.5328 2.1502 7,020.5328 7,020.5328 2.1502 0.0000 lb/day CH4 N20 7,074.2869 7,074.2869 0.0000 CO2e

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| 8,171.8437 | | 1.8765 | 8,124.9302 | 8,124.9302 | | 3.1924 | 3.1924 | | 3.3785 | 3.3785 | | 0.0860 | 53.8250 | 60.8063 | 6.6332 | Total |
|------------|-----|--------|------------|------------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|---------|--------|----------|
| 8,171.8437 | | 1.8765 | 8,124.9302 | 8,124.9302 | | 3.1924 | 3.1924 | | 3.3785 | 3.3785 | | 0.0860 | 53.8250 | 60.8063 | 6.6332 | Off-Road |
| | | у | lb/da | | | | | | | day | Ib/ | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | CO | NOX | ROG | |

| | RUG | NUX | ω | SUZ | PM10 | Exnaust PM10 | PMTUTOTAL | PM2.5 | Exnaust PM2.5 | PMZ.5 Total | NBIO- CUZ | I otal CO2 | | NZO | CO76 |
|----------------------|-------------|-----------|--------|-----------------|-----------------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|------------|------------|-----------------|-----|------------|
| Category | | | | | lb/d | ау | | | | | | lb/da | ΎΕ | | |
| Hauling | 0.4536 | 15.2910 | 3.3059 | 0.0406 | 0.5728 | 0.0465 | 0.6192 | 0.1658 | 0.0445 | 0.2102 | 4,399.6791 | 4,399.6791 | 0.3071 | | 4,407.3561 |
| Vendor | 7.1100e-003 | 0.2127 | 0.0557 | 5.2000e- 004 | 8.6100 e- 003 | 1.0000e- 003 | 9.6100e- 003 | 2.6600e- 003 | 9.6000e- 004 | 3.6100e- 003 | 55.4049 | 55.4049 | 3.3800e- 003 | | 55.4895 |
| Worker | 0.0920 | 0.0655 | 0.8757 | 2.3600e- | 0.1342 | 1.8700e- | 0.1360 | 0.0373 | 1.7200e- | 0.0391 | 235.2226 | 235.2226 | 7.4200e- | | 235.4080 |
| | | | | 003 | | 003 | | | 003 | | | | 003 | | |
| Total | 0.5527 | 15.5693 | 4.2373 | 0.0435 | 0.7155 | 0.0493 | 0.7649 | 0.2058 | 0.0471 | 0.2529 | 4,690.3066 | 4,690.3066 | 0.3179 | | 4,698.2535 |
| 3.5 Building | Constru | ction - 2 | 020 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| <u>Unmitigated (</u> | Constructi | ion On-S | ite | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| 7,074.2869 | 2.1502 | 7,020.5328 | 7,020.5328 | 0.0000 | 2.8565 | 1.9321 | 0.9244 | 3.6906 | 1.9848 | 1.7058 | 0.0738 | 42.2648 | 41.1092 | 2.6236 | Total |
|------------|--------|------------|------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|---------|---------|--------|---------------|
| 7,074.2869 | 2.1502 | 7,020.5328 | 7,020.5328 | 0.0000 | 1.9321 | 1.9321 | | 1.9848 | 1.9848 | | 0.0738 | 42.2648 | 41.1092 | 2.6236 | Off-Road |
| 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | | 0.9244 | 0.0000 | 0.9244 | 1.7058 | 0.0000 | 1.7058 | | | | | Fugitive Dust |

| | ROG |
|-------|-------------|
| | NOX |
| | 8 |
| | SO2 |
| PM10 | Fugitive |
| PM10 | Exhaust |
| | PM10 Total |
| PM2.5 | Fugitive |
| PM2.5 | Exhaust |
| | PM2.5 Total |
| | Bio-CO2 |
| | NBio- CO2 |
| | Total CO2 |
| | CH4 |
| | N20 |
| | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| Total | Off-Road | Category | |
|------------|------------|----------|-------------------|
| 2.0576 | 2.057 | | ROG |
| 3 41.202 | 3 41.202 | | NOX |
| 5 56.6693 | 5 56.6693 | | СО |
| 0.0860 | 0.0860 | | SO2 |
| | | Ib/c | Fugitive PM10 |
| 2.4788 | 2.4788 | łay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 2.4788 | 2.4788 | | PM10 Total |
| | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 2.4716 | 2.4716 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 2.4716 | 2.4716 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 8,124.9302 | 8,124.9302 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 8,124.9302 | 8,124.9302 | Ib/d | Total CO2 |
| 1.8765 | 1.8765 | lay | CH4 |
| | | | N20 |
| 8,171.8437 | 8,171.8437 | | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| ſ | | | | | | |
|---|------------|------------|-----------------|---------|----------|-------------------|
| | Total | Worker | Vendor | Hauling | Category | |
| | 1.4162 | 1.3806 | 0.0356 | 0.0000 | | ROG |
| | 2.0459 | 0.9822 | 1.0637 | 0.0000 | | NOx |
| | 13.4141 | 13.1353 | 0.2787 | 0.0000 | | СО |
| | 0.0380 | 0.0354 | 2.5900e- 003 | 0.0000 | | SO2 |
| | 3.4173 | 3.3533 | 0.0640 | 0.0000 | Ib/d | Fugitive PM10 |
| | 0.0330 | 0.0280 | 5.0100e- 003 | 0.0000 | ay | Exhaust PM10 |
| | 3.4504 | 3.3813 | 0.0690 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total |
| | 0.9077 | 0.8893 | 0.0184 | 0.0000 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| | 0.0306 | 0.0258 | 4.7900e- 003 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| | 0.9384 | 0.9151 | 0.0232 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | | | | Bio- CO2 |
| | 3,805.3633 | 3,528.3386 | 277.0247 | 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| | 3,805.3633 | 3,528.3386 | 277.0247 | 0.0000 | lb/d | Total CO2 |
| | 0.1281 | 0.1112 | 0.0169 | 0.0000 | lay | CH4 |
| | | | | | | N20 |
| | 3,808.5670 | 3,531.1196 | 277.4473 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| Worker | Vendor | Hauling | Category | |
|------------|-----------------|---------|----------|-------------------|
| 1.2860 | 0.0304 | 0.0000 | | ROG |
| 0.8839 | 0.9709 | 0.0000 | | NOx |
| 12.0832 | 0.2538 | 0.0000 | | co |
| 0.0343 | 2.5700e- 003 | 0.0000 | | SO2 |
| 3.3533 | 0.0640 | 0.0000 | Ib/c | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0271 | 1.9900e- 003 | 0.0000 | day | Exhaust PM10 |
| 3.3804 | 0.0660 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total |
| 0.8893 | 0.0184 | 0.0000 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0250 | 1.9000e- 003 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.9143 | 0.0203 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 3,416.3096 | 274.8806 | 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 3,416.3096 | 274.8806 | 0.0000 | lb/d | Total CO2 |
| 0.1007 | 0.0162 | 0.0000 | ау | CH4 |
| | | | | N20 |
| 3,418.8261 | 275.2855 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| Total | Off-Road | Category | |
|------------|------------|----------|-------------------|
| 5.8976 | 5.8976 | | ROG |
| 53.9404 | 53.9404 | | NOX |
| 53.1354 | 53.1354 | | СО |
| 0.0861 | 0.0861 | | SO2 |
| | | Ib/da | Fugitive PM10 |
| 2.8785 | 2.8785 | ау | Exhaust PM10 |
| 2.8785 | 2.8785 | | PM10 Total |
| | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 2.7211 | 2.7211 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 2.7211 | 2.7211 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 8,124.0696 | 8,124.0696 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 8,124.0696 | 8,124.0696 | lb/d | Total CO2 |
| 1.8552 | 1.8552 | ау | CH4 |
| | | | N20 |
| 8,170.4498 | 8,170.4498 | | CO2e |

| 3,531.1196 | 0.1112 | 3,528.3386 | 3,528.3386 | 0.5860 | 0.0258 | 0.5602 | 2.0403 | 0.0280 | 2.0123 | 0.0354 | 13.1353 | 0.9822 | 1.3806 | Worker |
|------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|----------|--------|--------|----------|--------|----------|---------|--------|--------|----------|
| 3,531.1196 | 0.1112 | 3,528.3386 | 3,528.3386 | 0.5860 | 0.0258 | 0.5602 | 2.0403 | 0.0280 | 2.0123 | 0.0354 | 13.1353 | 0.9822 | 1.3806 | Worker |
| | | | | | 003 | | | 003 | | 003 | | | | |
| 277.4473 | 0.0169 | 277.0247 | 277.0247 | 0.0181 | 4.7900e- | 0.0133 | 0.0480 | 5.0100e- | 0.0430 | 2.5900e- | 0.2787 | 1.0637 | 0.0356 | Vendor |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Hauling |
| | ay | lb/d | | | | | | łay | Ib/c | | | | | Category |

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

3.5 Building Construction - 2022

| 3,694.1116 | | 0.1169 | 3,691.1902 | 3,691.1902 | | 0.6003 | 0.0269 | 0.5734 | 2.0844 | 0.0291 | 2.0553 | 0.0369 | 12.3370 | 1.8548 | 1.3164 | Total |
|------------|-----|--------|------------|------------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|---------|--------|--------|----------|
| 3,418.8261 | | 0.1007 | 3,416.3096 | 3,416.3096 | | 0.5851 | 0.0250 | 0.5602 | 2.0394 | 0.0271 | 2.0123 | 0.0343 | 12.0832 | 0.8839 | 1.2860 | Worker |
| 275.2855 | | 0.0162 | 274.8806 | 274.8806 | | 0.0152 | 1.9000e- 003 | 0.0133 | 0.0450 | 1.9900e- 003 | 0.0430 | 2.5700e- 003 | 0.2538 | 0.9709 | 0.0304 | Vendor |
| 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Hauling |
| | | ау | lb/d | | | | | | | day | Ib/c | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N2O | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | СО | NOX | ROG | |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| | | | | | | | | | | | | I | | | | |
|------------|-----|--------|------------|------------|----------|------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|---------|--------|----------|
| 8,170.4498 | | 1.8552 | 8,124.0696 | 8,124.0696 | 0.0000 | 2.4583 | 2.4583 | | 2.4644 | 2.4644 | | 0.0861 | 56.6561 | 41.0608 | 2.0426 | Total |
| 8,170.4498 | | 1.8552 | 8,124.0696 | 8,124.0696 | 0.0000 | 2.4583 | 2.4583 | | 2.4644 | 2.4644 | | 0.0861 | 56.6561 | 41.0608 | 2.0426 | Off-Road |
| | | ay | Ib/d | | | | | | | day | Ip/ | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N2O | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Tota | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | S02 | со | NOX | ROG | |

Total 1.3164 1.8548 12.3370 0.0369 3.4173 0.0291 3.4464 0.9077 0.0269 0.9346 3,691.1902 3,691.1902 0.1169 3,694.1116

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| Category | |
|----------|-------------------|
| | ROG |
| | NOx |
| | co |
| | SO2 |
| Ib/c | Fugitive PM10 |
| day | Exhaust PM10 |
| | PM10 Total |
| | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| | PM2.5 Total |
| | Bio- CO2 |
| | NBio- CO2 |
| lb/d | Total CO2 |
| ay | CH4 |
| | N20 |
| | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| 3,571.2881 | | 0.1066 | 3,568.6228 | 3,568.6228 | | 0.9336 | 0.0258 | 0.9077 | 3.4453 | 0.0280 | 3.4173 | 0.0356 | 11.3882 | 1.7217 | 1.2331 | Total |
|------------|-----|--------|------------|------------|---------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|---------|--------|--------|----------|
| 3,298.4113 | | 0.0910 | 3,296.1370 | 3,296.1370 | | 0.9135 | 0.0242 | 0.8893 | 3.3795 | 0.0263 | 3.3533 | 0.0331 | 11.1481 | 0.7984 | 1.2046 | Worker |
| 272.8768 | | 0.0156 | 272.4859 | 272.4859 | | 0.0201 | 1.6600e- 003 | 0.0184 | 0.0658 | 1.7400e- 003 | 0.0640 | 2.5500e- 003 | 0.2402 | 0.9233 | 0.0285 | Vendor |
| 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Hauling |
| | | lay | lb/d | | | | | | | day | Ib/ | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio-CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | co | NOX | ROG | |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| 8, | 1.8433 | 8,123.9813 | 8,123.9813 | | 2.3576 | 2.3576 | | 2.4927 | 2.4927 | | 0.0861 | 52.7070 | 48.5409 | 5.3774 | Total |
|-----|--------|------------|------------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|---------|--------|----------|
| | 1.8433 | 8,123.9813 | 8,123.9813 | | 2.3576 | 2.3576 | | 2.4927 | 2.4927 | | 0.0861 | 52.7070 | 48.5409 | 5.3774 | Off-Road |
| | Y | lb/day | | | | | | | day | Ip/ | | | | | Category |
| N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | со | NOX | ROG | |

| 2,173.2221 | | 0.4875 | 2,161.0353 | 2,161.0353 | | 0.6713 | 0.6713 | | 0.7085 | 0.7085 | | 0.0228 | 14.4323 | 12.9667 | 30.1305 | Total |
|------------|-----|--------|------------|------------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|---------|---------|-----------------|
| 2,173.2221 | | 0.4875 | 2,161.0353 | 2,161.0353 | | 0.6713 | 0.6713 | | 0.7085 | 0.7085 | | 0.0228 | 14.4323 | 12.9667 | 1.4894 | Off-Road |
| 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | | | | 28.6411 | Archit. Coating |
| | | ay | lb/d | | | | | | | day | /dI | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N2O | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | CO | NOX | ROG | |

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

| Ę | ω |
|---------|--------|
| 3 | 6 ⊳ |
| ±. | rc |
| s to | hit |
| 2 | ect |
| Ś | ün |
| ñ ŧ | al (|
| 2 | ő |
| Į | atir |
| כ | βL |
| 5 | 'N |
| Ť | 02 |
| - | N |

| Total | Worker | Vendor | Hauling | Category | |
|------------|------------|-----------------|---------|----------|-------------------|
| 1.2331 | 1.2046 | 0.0285 | 0.0000 | | ROG |
| 1.7217 | 0.7984 | 0.9233 | 0.0000 | | NOX |
| 11.3882 | 11.1481 | 0.2402 | 0.0000 | | СО |
| 0.0356 | 0.0331 | 2.5500e- 003 | 0.0000 | | SO2 |
| 2.0553 | 2.0123 | 0.0430 | 0.0000 | Ib/c | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0280 | 0.0263 | 1.7400e- 003 | 0.0000 | łay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 2.0833 | 2.0385 | 0.0448 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total |
| 0.5734 | 0.5602 | 0.0133 | 0.0000 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0258 | 0.0242 | 1.6600e- 003 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.5993 | 0.5843 | 0.0149 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 3,568.6228 | 3,296.1370 | 272.4859 | 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 3,568.6228 | 3,296.1370 | 272.4859 | 0.0000 | lb/d | Total CO2 |
| 0.1066 | 0.0910 | 0.0156 | 0.0000 | ay | CH4 |
| | | | | | N20 |
| 3,571.2881 | 3,298.4113 | 272.8768 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| Total | Off-Roa |
|------------|------------|
| | đ |
| 2.0273 | 2.0273 |
| 40.9117 | 40.9117 |
| 56.6410 | 56.6410 |
| 0.0861 | 0.0861 |
| | |
| 2.4497 | 2.4497 |
| 2.4497 | 2.4497 |
| | |
| 2.4448 | 2.4448 |
| 2.4448 | 2.4448 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 |
| 8,123.9813 | 8,123.9813 |
| 8,123.9813 | 8,123.9813 |
| 1.8433 | 1.8433 |
| | |
| 8,170.0626 | 8,170.0626 |

| | ROG |
|-------|-------------|
| | NOX |
| | 8 |
| | SO2 |
| PM10 | Fugitive |
| PM10 | Exhaust |
| | PM10 Total |
| PM2.5 | Fugitive |
| PM2.5 | Exhaust |
| | PM2.5 Total |
| | Bio-CO2 |
| | NBio- CO2 |
| | Total CO2 |
| | CH4 |
| | N20 |
| | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| 2,173.2221 | | 0.4875 | 2,161.0353 | 2,161.0353 | 0.0000 | 0.5964 | 0.5964 | | 0.5964 | 0.5964 | | 0.0228 | 15.3789 | 10.3302 | 29.1399 | Total |
|------------|-----|--------|------------|------------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|---------|---------|-----------------|
| 2,173.2221 | | 0.4875 | 2,161.0353 | 2,161.0353 | 0.0000 | 0.5964 | 0.5964 | | 0.5964 | 0.5964 | | 0.0228 | 15.3789 | 10.3302 | 0.4988 | Off-Road |
| 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | | | | 28.6411 | Archit. Coating |
| | | у | lb/da | | | | | | | day | Ib/c | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N2O | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | со | NOX | ROG | |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| | Total | | Worker | | Vendor | Hauling | Category | |
|-----|----------|-----|----------|-----|-------------|---------|----------|-------------------|
| | 0.1342 | | 0.1285 | | 5.7100e-003 | 0.0000 | | ROG |
| | 0.2698 | | 0.0852 | | 0.1847 | 0.0000 | | NOX |
| | 1.2372 | | 1.1891 | | 0.0480 | 0.0000 | | СО |
| 003 | 4.0400e- | 003 | 3.5300e- | 004 | 5.1000e- | 0.0000 | | SO2 |
| | 0.3705 | | 0.3577 | | 0.0128 | 0.0000 | lp/d | Fugitive PM10 |
| 003 | 3.1500e- | 003 | 2.8000e- | 004 | 3.5000e- | 0.0000 | lay | Exhaust PM10 |
| | 0.3736 | | 0.3605 | | 0.0132 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total |
| | 0.0986 | | 0.0949 | 003 | 3.6900e- | 0.0000 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 003 | 2.9100e- | 003 | 2.5800e- | 004 | 3.3000e- | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| | 0.1015 | | 0.0974 | 003 | 4.0200e- | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | | | | | | Bio- CO2 |
| | 406.0851 | | 351.5879 | | 54.4972 | 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| | 406.0851 | | 351.5879 | | 54.4972 | 0.0000 | lb/a | Total CO2 |
| | 0.0128 | 003 | 9.7000e- | 003 | 3.1300e- | 0.0000 | lay | CH4 |
| | | | | | | | | N20 |
| | 406.4059 | | 351.8305 | | 54.5754 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| Total | Worker | Vendor | Hauling | Category |
|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------------------|---------|----------|
| 0.1342 | 0.1285 | 5.7100e-003 | 0.0000 | |
| 0.2698 | 0.0852 | 0.1847 | 0.0000 | |
| 1.2372 | 1.1891 | 0.0480 | 0.0000 | |
| 4.0400e- 003 | 3.5300e- 003 | 5.1000e- 004 | 0.0000 | |
| 0.2233 | 0.2146 | 8.6100e- 003 | 0.0000 | Ib/c |
| 3.1500e- 003 | 2.8000e- 003 | 3.5000e- 004 | 0.0000 | day |
| 0.2264 | 0.2174 | 8.9600e- 003 | 0.0000 | |
| 0.0624 | 0.0598 | 2.6600 e- 003 | 0.0000 | |
| 2.9100e- 003 | 2.5800e- 003 | 3.3000e- 004 | 0.0000 | |
| 0.0653 | 0.0623 | 2.9900e- 003 | 0.0000 | |
| | | | | |
| 406.0851 | 351.5879 | 54.4972 | 0.0000 | |
| 406.0851 | 351.5879 | 54.4972 | 0.0000 | lb/d |
| 0.0128 | 9.7000e- 003 | 3.1300e- 003 | 0.0000 | ay |
| | | | | |
| 406.4059 | 351.8305 | 54.5754 | 0.0000 | |

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

| Unmitigated | Mitigated | Category | |
|-----------------|-----------------|----------|-------------------|
| 4.4088 | 4.4088 | | ROG |
| 21.2527 | 21.2527 | | NOx |
| 61.3229 | 61.3229 | | со |
| 0.2241 | 0.2241 | | SO2 |
| 18.2740 | 18.2740 | Ib/d | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.1803 | 0.1803 | ay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 18.4544 | 18.4544 | | PM10 Total |
| 4.8904 | 4.8904 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.1682 | 0.1682 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 5.0587 | 5.0587 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 22,805.190 9 | 22,805.190 9 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 22,805.190 9 | 22,805.190 9 | lb/o | Total CO2 |
| 1.1350 | 1.1350 | lay | CH4 |
| | | | N20 |
| 22,833.565 4 | 22,833.565 4 | | CO2e |

4.2 Trip Summary Information

| Total | Strip Mall | High Turnover (Sit Down Restaurant) | General Office Building | Enclosed Parking with Elevator | Apartments Mid Rise | Land Use | | |
|-----------|------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------------|--------------------------------|---------------------|------------|----------------------|--|
| 2,386.37 | 200.60 | 893.49 | 702.93 | 0.00 | 589.36 | Weekday | Ave | |
| 2,386.37 | 200.60 | 893.49 | 702.93 | 0.00 | 589.36 | Saturday | rage Daily Trip Rate | |
| 2,386.37 | 200.60 | 893.49 | 702.93 | 0.00 | 589.36 | Sunday | | |
| 8,593,690 | 691,932 | 2,865,920 | 2,768,716 | | 2,267,122 | Annual VMT | Unmitigated | |
| 8,593,690 | 691,932 | 2,865,920 | 2,768,716 | | 2,267,122 | Annual VMT | Mitigated | |

4.3 Trip Type Information

| | | Miles | | | Trip % | | | Trip Purpose | % |
|-------------------------------------|------------|------------|-------------|------------|------------|-------------|---------|--------------|---------|
| Land Use | H-W or C-W | H-S or C-C | H-O or C-NW | H-W or C-W | H-S or C-C | H-O or C-NW | Primary | Diverted | Pass-by |
| Apartments Mid Rise | 14.70 | 5.90 | 8.70 | 40.00 | 19.00 | 41.00 | 100 | 0 | 0 |
| Enclosed Parking with Elevator | 16.60 | 8.40 | 6.90 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | ο | ο | 0 |
| General Office Building | 16.60 | 8.40 | 6.90 | 33.00 | 48.00 | 19.00 | 100 | 0 | 0 |
| High Turnover (Sit Down Restaurant) | 16.60 | 8.40 | 6.90 | 8.50 | 72.50 | 19.00 | 100 | 0 | 0 |
| Strip Mall | 16.60 | 8.40 | 6.90 | 16.60 | 64.40 | 19.00 | 100 | 0 | 0 |

4.4 Fleet Mix

| | _ | _ | _ | | |
|------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------------|--------------------------------|---------------------|----------|
| Strip Mall | High Turnover (Sit Down Restaurant) | General Office Building | Enclosed Parking with Elevator | Apartments Mid Rise | Land Use |
| 0.546501 | 0.546501 | 0.546501 | 0.546501 | 0.546501 | LDA |
| 0.044961 | 0.044961 | 0.044961 | 0.044961 | 0.044961 | LDT1 |
| 0.204016 | 0.204016 | 0.204016 | 0.204016 | 0.204016 | LDT2 |
| 0.120355 | 0.120355 | 0.120355 | 0.120355 | 0.120355 | MDV |
| 0.015740 | 0.015740 | 0.015740 | 0.015740 | 0.015740 | LHD1 |
| 0.006196 | 0.006196 | 0.006196 | 0.006196 | 0.006196 | LHD2 |
| 0.020131 | 0.020131 | 0.020131 | 0.020131 | 0.020131 | MHD |
| 0.030678 | 0.030678 | 0.030678 | 0.030678 | 0.030678 | HHD |
| 0.002515 | 0.002515 | 0.002515 | 0.002515 | 0.002515 | OBUS |
| 0.002201 | 0.002201 | 0.002201 | 0.002201 | 0.002201 | UBUS |
| 0.005142 | 0.005142 | 0.005142 | 0.005142 | 0.005142 | MCY |
| 0.000687 | 0.000687 | 0.000687 | 0.000687 | 0.000687 | SBUS |
| 0.000876 | 0.000876 | 0.000876 | 0.000876 | 0.000876 | MH |

5.0 Energy Detail

Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

| NaturalGas Mitigated | Category | |
|-------------------------|----------|-------------------|
| 0.1483 | | ROG |
| 1.3320 | | NOX |
| 1.0167 | | CO |
| 8.0900e- 003 | | SO2 |
| | Ib/da | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.1024 | уғ | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.1024 | | PM10 Total |
| | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.1024 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.1024 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | Bio- CO2 |
| 1,617.3160 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 1,617.3160 | lb/da | Total CO2 |
| 0.0310 | ау | CH4 |
| 0.0297 | | N20 |
| 1,626.9269 | | CO2e |

| | | _ | | |
|----------------------------|-----------------------------------|------------------------|----------|-------------------|
| General Office Building | Enclosed Parking with Elevator | Apartments Mid Rise | Land Use | |
| 2.70917 | 0 | 2.6767 | kBTU/yr | NaturalGas Use |
| 0.0292 | 0.0000 | 0.0289 | | ROG |
| 0.2656 | 0.0000 | 0.2467 | | NOX |
| 0.2231 | 0.0000 | 0.1050 | | 8 |
| 1.5900e- 003 | 0.0000 | 1.5700e- 003 | | S O2 |
| | | | Ib/c | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0202 | 0.0000 | 0.0199 | lay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.0202 | 0.0000 | 0.0199 | | PM10 Total |
| | | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0202 | 0.0000 | 0.0199 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.0202 | 0.0000 | 0.0199 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 318.7255 | 0.0000 | 314.9059 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 318.7255 | 0.0000 | 314.9059 | Ib/ | Total CO2 |
| 6.1100e- 003 | 0.0000 | 6.0400e- 003 | day | CH4 |
| 5.8400e- 003 | 0.0000 | 5.7700e- 003 | | N2O |
| 320.6195 | 0.0000 | 316.7773 | | CO2e |

B.....

Mitigated

| 1,626.9269 | 0.0297 | 0.0310 | 1,617.3160 | 1,617.3160 | | 0.1024 | 0.1024 | | 0.1024 | 0.1024 | | 8.0800e- 003 | 1.0167 | 1.3320 | 0.1483 | | Total |
|------------|----------|----------|------------|------------|----------|-------------|----------|----------|------------|----------|----------|-----------------|----------|----------|----------|-------------------|-------------------|
| | 004 | 004 | | | | _ | 004 | | 004 | 004 | | 005 | 003 | 003 | 004 | | |
| 7.4333 | 1.4000e- | 1.4000e- | 7.3894 | 7.3894 | | 4.7000e-004 | 4.7000e- | | 4.7000e- | 4.7000e- | | 4.0000e- | 5.1700e- | 6.1600e- | 6.8000e- | 62.8098 | Strip Mall |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | 003 | | | | | Down Restaurant) |
| 982.0968 | 0.0179 | 0.0187 | 976.2952 | 976.2952 | | 0.0618 | 0.0618 | | 0.0618 | 0.0618 | | 4.8800e- | 0.6834 | 0.8136 | 0.0895 | 8298.51 | High Tumover (Sit |
| | 003 | 003 | | | | | | | | | | 003 | | | | | Building |
| 320.6195 | 5.8400e- | 6.1100e- | 318.7255 | 318.7255 | | 0.0202 | 0.0202 | | 0.0202 | 0.0202 | | 1.5900e- | 0.2231 | 0.2656 | 0.0292 | 2709.17 | General Office |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | with Elevator |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0 | Enclosed Parking |
| | 003 | 003 | | | | | | | | | | 003 | | | | | Rise |
| 316.7773 | 5.7700e- | 6.0400e- | 314.9059 | 314.9059 | | 0.0199 | 0.0199 | | 0.0199 | 0.0199 | | 1.5700e- | 0.1050 | 0.2467 | 0.0289 | 2676.7 | Apartments Mid |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | Чау | Ib/c | | | | | | | day | /dI | | | | | kBTU/yr | Land Use |
| | | | | | | | PM2.5 | PM2.5 | | PM10 | PM10 | | | | | Use | |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio-CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust | Fugitive | PM10 Total | Exhaust | Fugitive | S 02 | со | NOX | ROG | NaturalGas | |

NaturalGas 0.1483 Unmitigated 1.3320 1.0167 8.0900e-003 0.1024 0.1024 0.1024 0.1024 1,617.3160 1,617.3160 0.0310 0.0297 1,626.9269

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

Unmitigated

| Hearth | Consumer Products | Architectural Coating | SubCategory | | |
|--------|----------------------|--------------------------|-------------|-------------------|--|
| 0.0000 | 4.9143 | 0.5336 | | ROG | |
| 0.0000 | | | | NOX | |
| 0.0000 | | | | CO | |
| 0.0000 | | | | SO2 | |
| | | | lb/d | Fugitive PM10 | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | lay | Exhaust PM10 | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total | |
| | | | | Fugitive PM2.5 | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total | |
| 0.0000 | | | | Bio- CO2 | |
| 0.0000 | | | | NBio- CO2 | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Ib/d | Total CO2 | |
| 0.0000 | | | ау | CH4 | |
| 0.0000 | | | | N20 | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | CO2e | |

Unmitigated 6.2 Area by SubCategory

Unmitigated Mitigated Category 5.7173 5.7173 ROG 0.1015 0.1015 NOX 8.8081 8.8081 со 4.7000e-004 4.7000e-004 SO2 Fugitive PM10 lb/day Exhaust PM10 0.0486 0.0486 PM10 Total 0.0486 0.0486 Fugitive PM2.5 Exhaust PM2.5 0.0486 0.0486 PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 0.0486 0.0486 0.0000 0.0000 NBio-CO2 15.8613 15.8613 Total CO2 15.8613 15.8613 lb/day CH4 0.0155 0.0155 0.0000 0.0000 N20 16.2486 16.2486 CO2e

| 6.1 N | 6.0 / | | | | Sti | Down | High Tu |
|-----------|---------|-----|------------|-----|-------------|-------------|-------------|
| litigatio | ۹rea De | | Total | | ip Mall | Restaurant) | umover (Sit |
| n Measu | tail | | | | 0.0628098 | | 8.29851 |
| ires Area | | | 0.1483 | 004 | 6.8000e- | | 0.0895 |
| R. | | | 1.3320 | 003 | 6.1600e- | | 0.8136 |
| | | | 1.0167 | 003 | 5.1700e- | | 0.6834 |
| | | 003 | 8.0800e- | 005 | 4.0000e- | 003 | 4.8800e- |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | 0.1024 | 004 | 4.7000e- | | 0.0618 |
| | | | 0.1024 | 004 | 4.7000e- | | 0.0618 |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | 0.1024 | 004 | 4.7000e- | | 0.0618 |
| | | | 0.1024 | | 4.7000e-004 | | 0.0618 |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | 1,617.3160 | | 7.3894 | | 976.2952 |
| | | | 1,617.3160 | | 7.3894 | | 976.2952 |
| | | | 0.0310 | 004 | 1.4000e- | | 0.0187 |
| | | | 0.0297 | 004 | 1.4000e- | | 0.0179 |
| | | | 1,626.9269 | | 7.4333 | | 982.0968 |

| | ROG | NOX | СО | S02 | Fugitive PM10 | Exhaust PM10 | PM10 Total | Fugitive PM2.5 | Exhaust PM2.5 | PM2.5 Total | Bio- CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Total CO2 | CH4 | N20 | CO2e |
|------------------------------|-------------------------|----------|--------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|------------|-------------------|------------------|-------------|-----------|-----------|-------------|--------|----------|---------|
| SubCategory | | | | | lb/c | lay | | | | | | | Ip/ | day | | |
| Architectural Coating | 0.5336 | | | | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 |
| Consumer | 4.9143 | | | | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 |
| Products | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Hearth | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 |
| Landscaping | 0.2694 | 0.1015 | 8.8081 | 4.7000e- 004 | | 0.0486 | 0.0486 | | 0.0486 | 0.0486 | | 15.8613 | 15.8613 | 0.0155 | | 16.2486 |
| Total | 5.7173 | 0.1015 | 8.8081 | 4.7000e- 004 | | 0.0486 | 0.0486 | | 0.0486 | 0.0486 | 0000 | 15.8613 | 15.8613 | 0.0155 | 0.0000 | 16.2486 |
| 7.0 Water D | etail | | | | | | | | | | 0.0000 | | | | | |
| 7.1 Mitigatio 8.0 Waste E | n Measu)etail | res Wate | ň | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 8.1 Mitigatio | n Measu | res Wast | ē | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 9.0 Operatio | onal Offi | road | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Equ | ipment Type | | | Number | | Hours/Day | | Days | Year | ъ | rse Power | | _oad Factor | | uel Type | |
| Equ 10.0 Station | ipment Type iary Equ | lipment | H | Number | H | Hours/Day | | Days | Yeer | | rse Power | | Load Factor | | uel Type | |

Landscaping 0.2694 0.1015 8.8081 4.7000e-004 004 004 004 004 004 0.0486 0.0486 0.0486 0.0486 0.0486 0.0486 0.0486 0.0486 0.0000 15.8613 15.8613 0.0155 15.8613 15.8613 0.0155 0.0000 16.2486 16.2486

Mitigated

Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators

| Equipment Type |
|----------------|
| Number |
| Hours/Day |
| Hours/Year |
| Horse Power |
| Load Factor |
| Fuel Type |

Boilers

| | Equipment Type Number Heat Input/Day Heat Input/Year |
|--|--|
| | /Day Heat Input/Year |
| | Heat Input∕Year |
| | Boiler Rating |
| | Fuel Type |

<u>User Defined Equipment</u>

| Equipment Type | |
|--------------------|--|
| Number | |

11.0 Vegetation

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2

Page 1 of 1

Date: 3/18/2019 12:58 PM

1024 Mateo Street Future - Los Angeles-South Coast County, Annual

1024 Mateo Street Future

Los Angeles-South Coast County, Annual

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

| Land Uses | Size | Metric | Lot Acreage | Floor Surface Area | Population |
|-------------------------------------|--------|---------------|-------------|--------------------|------------|
| Apartments Mid Rise | 106.00 | Dwelling Unit | 0.60 | 123,225.00 | 303 |
| General Office Building | 94.99 | 1000sqft | 0.50 | 94,990.00 | 0 |
| High Turnover (Sit Down Restaurant) | 13.13 | 1000sqft | 0.09 | 13,126.00 | 0 |
| Strip Mall | 13.98 | 1000sqft | 0.09 | 13,979.00 | 0 |
| Enclosed Parking with Elevator | 402.00 | Space | 0.00 | 160,800.00 | 0 |
| | | | | | |

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

| CO2 Intensity (Ib/MWhr) | Utility Company | Climate Zone | Urbanization |
|-----------------------------|-----------------------|-------------------------|---------------------------|
| 1227.89 | Los Angeles Departmen | 11 | Urban |
| CH4 Intensity (Ib/MWhr) | t of Water & Power | | Wind Speed (m/s) |
| 0.029 | | | 2.2 |
| N2O Intensity (Ib/MW hr) | | Operational Year | Precipitation Freq (Days) |
| 0.006 | | 2022 | 33 |

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

Project Characteristics -

Land Use - Developer information

Construction Phase - Developer information

Off-road Equipment - Developer information

Off-road Equipment - Developer information

| Trips and VMT - Assumes 10CY pe | r haul truck, 17 miles to Puente Hill: | s landfill | |
|--------------------------------------|--|--------------------------|-----------|
| Vehicle Trips - LLG Traffic Study, M | arch 2019 | | |
| Woodstoves - Consultant assumption | Suc | | |
| Construction Off-road Equipment M | itigation - Assumes SCAQMD Rule | 403 control efficiencies | |
| Table Name | Column Name | Default Value | New Value |
| tblConstDustMitigation | CleanPavedRoadPercentReduction | 0 | 46 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 1.00 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 8.00 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 1.00 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 2.00 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 3.00 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 1.00 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 2.00 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 1.00 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 21.00 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 4.00 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 2.00 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 4.00 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 15.00 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 3.00 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 3.00 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 5.00 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 6.00 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 6.00 |
| tblConstEquipMitigation | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | 0.00 | 4.00 |

Grading - Developer information

Demolition - 1,142 tons from building A, 545 tons from Building B

Off-road Equipment - Developer information

Off-road Equipment - Developer information

Off-road Equipment - Developer information

| tblConstructionPhase | tblConstructionPhase | tblConstructionPhase | tblConstructionPhase | tblConstructionPhase | tblConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation | tbiConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation |
|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|
| NumDays | NumDays | NumDays | NumDays | NumDays | Tier | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated |
| 10.00 | 200.00 | 4.00 | 2.00 | 20.00 | No Change | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 |
| 68.00 | 442.00 | 66.00 | 5.00 | 22.00 | Tier 3 | 2.00 | 1.00 | 6.00 |

| tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbLandUse | tblLandUse | tbLandUse | tblLandUse | tblLandUse | tbLandUse | tblGrading | tblGrading | tblFireplaces | tblFireplaces | tblFireplaces |
|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|-------------------|------------------|----------------|---------------|-------------------|---------------|
| LoadFactor | HorsePower | LotAcreage | LotAcreage | LotAcreage | LotAcreage | LotAcreage | LandUseSquareFeet | MaterialExported | AcresOfGrading | NumberWood | NumberNoFireplace | NumberGas |
| 0.31 | 0.37 | 0.46 | 0.36 | 0.40 | 0.42 | 0.38 | 0.50 | 0.37 | 0.46 | 0.36 | 0,46 | 0.36 | 0.40 | 0.40 | 0.42 | 0.38 | 0,43 | 168.00 | 3.62 | 0.32 | 0.30 | 2.18 | 2.79 | 106,000.00 | 0.00 | 24.75 | 5.30 | 10.60 | 90.10 |
| 0.31 | 0.37 | 0.46 | 0.36 | 0.40 | 0.42 | 0.38 | 0.50 | 0.37 | 0.46 | 0.36 | 0.46 | 0.36 | 0.40 | 0.40 | 0.42 | 0.38 | 0.43 | 88.00 | 0.00 | 0.09 | 0.09 | 0.50 | 0.60 | 123,225.00 | 38,985.00 | 1.29 | 0.00 | 106.00 | 0.00 |
| tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment |
|------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|---------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------------------|------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|--------------------------|----------------------|--------------------------|----------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|
| OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | LoadFactor |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 0.42 | 0.20 | 0.50 | 0.37 | 0.46 | 0.40 | 0.40 | 0.42 | 0.20 | 0.29 |
| Other Construction Equipment | Excavators | Dumpers/Tenders | Bore/Drill Rigs | Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes | Sweepers/Scrubbers | Rubber Tired Loaders | Sweepers/Scrubbers | Signal Boards | Rubber Tired Loaders | Rough Terrain Forklifts | Other Material Handling Equipment | Other Construction Equipment | Generator Sets | Excavators | Dumpers/Tenders | Crushing/Proc. Equipment | Crawler Tractors | Concrete/Industrial Saws | Air Compressors | 0.42 | 0.20 | 0.50 | 0.37 | 0.46 | 0,40 | 0.34 | 0.42 | 0.20 | 0.29 |

| tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment |
|----------------------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|----------------------|------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|---------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|-------------------------|----------------------|-----------------------------------|------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|---------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|-------------------------|
| OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount | OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount | OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount | OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType |
| 1.00 | 1.00 | 1.00 | 1.00 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2.00 | 2.00 | 2.00 | 2.00 | Pressure Washers | Other Construction Equipment | Forklifts | Air Compressors | Welders | Trenchers | Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes | Sweepers/Scrubbers | Signal Boards | Rough Terrain Forklifts | Pressure Washers | Other Material Handling Equipment | Other Construction Equipment | Generator Sets | Forklifts | Dumpers/Tenders | Cranes | Concrete/Industrial Saws | Cement and Mortar Mixers | Air Compressors | Aerial Lifts | Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes | Sweepers/Scrubbers | Signal Boards | Rubber Tired Loaders | Rough Terrain Forklifts |

| tblVehicleTrips | tblTripsAndVMT | tblTripsAndVMT | tblTripsAndVMT | tblTripsAndVMT | tblTripsAndVMT | tblTripsAndVMT | tblTripsAndVMT | tblTripsAndVMT | tblTripsAndVMT | tblTripsAndVMT | tblTripsAndVMT | tblTripsAndVMT | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment |
|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|-------------------|-------------------|------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|
| PB_TP | HW_TTP | HS_TTP | HO_TTP | DV_TP | DV_TP | DV_TP | DV_TP | WorkerTripNumber | WorkerTripNumber | WorkerTripNumber | WorkerTripNumber | WorkerTripNumber | Vendor TripNumber | Vendor TripNumber | VendorTripNumber | Vendor TripNumber | HaulingTripNumber | HaulingTripLength | HaulingTripLength | UsageHours | OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount | OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount | OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount |
| 3.00 | 40.20 | 19.20 | 40.60 | 40.00 | 20.00 | 19.00 | 11.00 | 37.00 | 184.00 | 65.00 | 18.00 | 103.00 | 0.00 | 58.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 4,873.00 | 20.00 | 20.00 | 6.00 | 8.00 | 6.00 | 6.00 | 6.00 | 7.00 | 8.00 | 1.00 | 3.00 | 1.00 |
| 0.00 | 40.00 | 19.00 | 41.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 32.00 | 300.00 | 20.00 | 12.00 | 20.00 | 2.00 | 10.00 | 2.00 | 2.00 | 3,899.00 | 17.00 | 17.00 | 8.00 | 6.00 | 8.00 | 8.00 | 8.00 | 8.00 | 6.00 | 2.00 | 2.00 | 2.00 |

| | ROG |
|-------|-------------|
| | NOX |
| | СО |
| | SO2 |
| PM10 | Fugitive |
| PM10 | Exhaust |
| | PM10 Total |
| PM2.5 | Fugitive |
| PM2.5 | Exhaust |
| | PM2.5 Total |
| | Bio- CO2 |
| | NBio- CO2 |
| | Total CO2 |
| | CH4 |
| | N20 |
| | CO2e |

2.1 Overall Construction Unmitigated Construction

2.0 Emissions Summary

| tblWoodstoves | tblWoodstoves | tblVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips |
|--------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|
| NumberNoncatalytic | NumberCatalytic | WD_TR | WD_TR | WD_TR | WD_TR | SU_TR | SU_TR | SU_TR | SU_TR | ST_TR | ST_TR | ST_TR | ST_TR | PR_TP | PR_TP | PR_TP | PR_TP | PB_TP | PB_TP | PB_TP |
| 5.30 | 5.30 | 44.32 | 127.15 | 11.03 | 6.65 | 20.43 | 131.84 | 1.05 | 5.86 | 42.04 | 158.37 | 2.46 | 6.39 | 45.00 | 37.00 | 77.00 | 86.00 | 15.00 | 43.00 | 4.00 |
| 0.00 | 0.00 | 14.35 | 68.07 | 7.40 | 5.56 | 14.35 | 68.07 | 7.40 | 5.56 | 14.35 | 68.07 | 7.40 | 5.56 | 100.00 | 100.00 | 100.00 | 100.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 |

| 5 | 4 | 3 | 2 | 1 | Quarter | Percent Reduction | | Maximum | 2022 | 2021 | 2020 | Year | | |
|--------|--------|---------|--------|--------|--------------|-------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------|-----------------|------|-------------------|--|
| 6 | μ | 12 | -6 | 6- | St | 35.22 | ROG | 1.1914 | 1.1914 | 0.4391 | 0.2648 | | ROG | |
| 1-2021 | 1-2021 | -1-2020 | 1-2020 | 1-2020 | art Date | 21.66 | NOX | 5.6184 | 2.9263 | 5.6184 | 4.1257 | | NOX | |
| 8-31 | 5-31 | 2-28 | 11-3 | 8-31 | Enc | -6.58 | co | 8.9090 | 4.6033 | 8.9090 | 4.7337 | | со | |
| 1-2021 | 1-2021 | 3-2021 | 0-2020 | 1-2020 | d Date | 0.00 | SO2 | 0.0158 | 8.1200e- 003 | 0.0158 | 9.3800e- 003 | | SO2 | |
| | | | | | Maxir | 43.95 | Fugitive PM10 | 0.2635 | 0.1286 | 0.2635 | 0.1557 | ton | Fugitive PM10 | |
| | | | | | num Unmitig | 14.28 | Exhaust PM10 | 0.3254 | 0.1691 | 0.3254 | 0.1927 | s/yr | Exhaust PM10 | |
| 2.0703 | 2.0729 | 2.1206 | 2.3389 | 2.7654 | jated ROG + | 30.58 | PM10 Total | 0.5889 | 0.2977 | 0.5889 | 0.3484 | | PM10 Total | |
| | | | | | NOX (tons/qu | 44.50 | Fugitive PM2.5 | 0.0737 | 0.0360 | 0.0737 | 0.0589 | | Fugitive PM2.5 | |
| | | | | | uarter) | 9.69 | Exhaust PM2.5 | 0.3243 | 0.1686 | 0.3243 | 0.1898 | | Exhaust PM2.5 | |
| | | | | | Max | 19.67 | PM2.5 Total | 0.3980 | 0.2046 | 0.3980 | 0.2487 | | PM2.5 Tota | |
| | | | | | imum Mitiga | 0.00 | Bio- CO2 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 | |
| 1.5204 | 1.5231 | 1.5002 | 1.6975 | 2.1213 | ted ROG + N | 0.00 | NBio-CO2 | 1,381.1169 | 707.3025 | 1,381.1169 | 830.6406 | | NBio- CO2 | |
| | | | | | OX (tons/qua | 0.00 | Total CO2 | 1,381.1169 | 707.3025 | 1,381.1169 | 830.6406 | M | Total CO2 | |
| | | | | | rter) | 0.00 | CH4 | 0.2330 | 0.1214 | 0.2330 | 0.1658 | Т/уг | CH4 | |
| | | | | | | 0.00 | N20 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N20 | |
| | | | | | | 0.00 | CO2e | 1,386.941 | 710.3364 | 1,386.941; | 834.7865 | | CO2e | |

Mitigated Construction

| Maximum | 2022 | 2021 | 2020 | Year |
|------------|-----------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|
| 1.4261 | 1.4261 | 0.9421 | 0.5574 | |
| 7.2992 | 3.4737 | 7.2992 | 5.4017 | |
| 8.4496 | 4.3351 | 8.4496 | 4.3344 | |
| 0.0158 | 8.1200e- 003 | 0.0158 | 9.3800e- 003 | |
| 0.4372 | 0.2134 | 0.4372 | 0.3268 | tons |
| 0.3794 | 0.1754 | 0.3794 | 0.2468 | з/уг |
| 0.8167 | 0.3888 | 0.8167 | 0.5736 | |
| 0.1306 | 0.0568 | 0.1163 | 0.1306 | |
| 0.3586 | 0.1659 | 0.3586 | 0.2315 | |
| 0.4749 | 0.2227 | 0.4749 | 0.3621 | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | |
| 1,381.1180 | 707.3031 | 1,381.1180 | 830.6413 | |
| 1,381.1180 | 707.3031 | 1,381.1180 | 830.6413 | LW |
| 0.2330 | 0.1214 | 0.2330 | 0.1658 | ⁻ /yr |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | |
| 1,386.9430 | 710.3370 | 1,386.9430 | 834.7872 | |

| Area | Category | | <u>Mitigated Ope</u> |
|-----------------|----------|-------------------|----------------------|
| 1.0279 | | ROG | erational |
| 0.0127 | | NOX | |
| 1.1010 | | со | |
| 6.0000e- 005 | | SO2 | |
| | tons | Fugitive PM10 | |
| 6.0700e- 003 | s/yr | Exhaust PM10 | |
| 6.0700e- 003 | | PM10 Total | |
| | | Fugitive PM2.5 | |
| 6.0700e- 003 | | Exhaust PM2.5 | |
| 6.0700e- 003 | | PM2.5 Total | |
| 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 | |
| 1.7986 | | NBio- CO2 | |
| 1.7986 | MT | Total CO2 | |
| 1.7600e- 003 | 'yr | CH4 | |
| 0.0000 | | N2O | |
| 1.8426 | | CO2e | |

| Total | Watei | Waste | Mobile | Energ | Area | Catego | |
|------------|----------|----------|------------|-----------------|-----------------|--------|-------------------|
| | Ì | w | ÷ | Ì | | Ŷ | |
| 1.8169 | | | 0.7620 | 0.0271 | 1.0279 | | ROG |
| 4.2968 | | | 4.0411 | 0.2431 | 0.0127 | | NOX |
| 12.0013 | | | 10.7147 | 0.1855 | 1.1010 | | co |
| 0.0409 | | | 0.0394 | 1.4800e- 003 | 6.0000e- 005 | | SO2 |
| 3.2617 | | | 3.2617 | | | ton | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0576 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0329 | 0.0187 | 6.0700e- 003 | s/yr | Exhaust PM10 |
| 3.3193 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 3.2945 | 0.0187 | 6.0700e- 003 | | PM10 Total |
| 0.8743 | | | 0.8743 | | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0554 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0306 | 0.0187 | 6.0700e- 003 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.9297 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.9049 | 0.0187 | 6.0700e- 003 | | PM2.5 Tota |
| 71.6675 | 9.1401 | 62.5273 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 6,083.0540 | 305.4097 | 0.0000 | 3,634.4206 | 2,141.4250 | 1.7986 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 6,154.7214 | 314.5498 | 62.5273 | 3,634.4206 | 2,141.4250 | 1.7986 | ΠM | Total CO2 |
| 4.8783 | 0.9460 | 3.6953 | 0.1859 | 0.0494 | 1.7600e- 003 | ⁻/yr | CH4 |
| 0.0377 | 0.0237 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0141 | 0.0000 | | N20 |
| 6,287.9206 | 345.2500 | 154.9088 | 3,639.0684 | 2,146.8509 | 1.8426 | | CO2e |

| | 9 | 8 | 7 | 6 |
|---------|-----------|-----------|-----------|------------|
| | 6-1-2022 | 3-1-2022 | 12-1-2021 | 9-1-2021 |
| Highest | 8-31-2022 | 5-31-2022 | 2-28-2022 | 11-30-2021 |
| 3.0676 | 0.6094 | 3.0676 | 1.9033 | 2.0530 |
| 2.6071 | 0.5207 | 2.6071 | 1.4867 | 1.5091 |

2.2 Overall Operational Unmitigated Operational

| Phase Description | ar al 0utdoo | Horse Powe | Hours 8.00 | End Date 30/2020 7//2020 17/2022 17/2022 17/2022 17/2022 17/2022 17/2022 17/2022 17/2022 17/2022 17/2022 17/2022 17/2020 17/2022 17/2020 17/2022 17/20 | Date 67 | Start 6/1/2020 7/11/2020 10/8/2020 3/16/2022 | r: 83,177; | Phas Preparation ding Construe Iding | De Buistin Bui | tion e Prepa 49,531; | ndition Preparation Ing Constructing Construc- ling (Gra ding (Gra ding (Gra nase Name | Phase Number 1 2 3 3 4 5 Acres of Gr Acres of Gra Acres of Pay Residential OffRoad Equ OffRoad Equ |
|------------------------------------|--|---|-------------------------------|---|---|--|---|---|--|-----------------------------|--|---|
| Phase Description | al 0utdoo | S Num De | Num Day W eek 43; Non-F | End Date 30/2020 17/2022 17/2022 17/2022 Usage | Date | Start 6/1/2020 7/1/2020 7/18/2020 3/16/2022 | tion r: 83,177; | Phas Preparation ding Constru- iding Constru- initectural Coa hitectural Coa al Outdoo | De Site Iration Pha hase): 1.21 | e Prepa ading Pt | dition Preparation ing Constructing Construc- litectural Coat ding (Site ding (Gra nase Name | Phase Number 1 Den 2 Site 3 Gra 3 Gra 4 Built 5 Ard 6 Ard Acres of Gra Acres of Pa Residential OffRoad Equ |
| Phase Description | al Outdoo | S S Num De | 43; Non-F | End Date 7/2020 1/7/2022 17/2022 17/2022 17/2022 17/2022 | 2ate | Start 6/1/2020 7/1/2020 7/18/2020 3/16/2022 | r: 83,177; | Phas Preparation Iding Construc Iding Construc Initectural Coa Initectural Coa | De Site Bu Bu Bu Arc Arc Arc | tion e Prepa ading Pt | ndition Preparation Ing Constructing Construc- Itectural Coat Itectural Coat Itectural Coat Indoor: 24 | Phase Number 1 2 3 3 4 5 4 5 Acres of Gr Acres of Pa Residential OffRoad Equ |
| Phase Description | al Outdoo | S 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 | 43; Non-F | End Date 7/2020 7/7/2020 17/2022 17/2022 17/2022 17/2022 17/2022 | 2ate | Start 6/1/2020 7/1/2020 7/18/2020 3/16/2022 | tion 1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1. | Preparation Preparation Iding Construe Iding Construe Initectural Coa | De Slit Bu Arc Arc Arc Arc | tion e Prepa ading Pt | Preparation Preparation ling Constructing Construc- lectural Coat lectural Coat lectural Coat lectural Coat ling (Gra | Phase Number 1 2 3 3 4 5 4 5 Acres of Gr Acres of Pa Residential |
| Phase Description | 68 442 66 5 22 3 ^{3 3} 5 | <u>55555</u> Num De | Num Day | End Date 7/2020 9/7/2020 17/2022 17/2022 | 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 0 | Start 6/1/2020 7/1/2020 7/18/2020 3/16/2022 | | Preparation Preparation Iding Construe Idinectural Coa | De Site Bu Arc Arc Arc | tion e Prepa | ndition Preparation ling Constructing Construc- lectural Coat ding (Gra ding (Gra | Phase Number 1 2 3 3 4 5 4 5 Acres of Gr Acres of Pa |
| Phase Description | 68 442 66 5 22 ³⁴ S | 5 5 5 5 S Num De | Num Day Week | End Date 7/2020 9/7/2020 17/2022 17/2022 | 0410 0410 0410 0410 0410 0410 0410 0410 | Start 6/1/2020 7/1/2020 7/18/2020 3/16/2022 | ting ting ting ting ting ting ting ting | Preparation Preparation Iding Construc Iding Construction Iding Construction Iding Construction | De Site Grr Bu Arc Arc | tion e Prepa | dition Preparation ling Construc- ling Construc- lectural Coat | Phase Number 1 2 3 3 4 5 4 5 4 8 5 4 8 5 4 9 5 4 8 5 4 8 5 4 8 4 9 7 8 8 9 9 10 10 10 10 11 11 12 13 14 16 16 17 17 18 10 10 10 10 10 11 12 13 14 14 15 16 16 17 18 18 18 10 10 |
| Phase Description | 68 442 66 5 22 3 S | <u>5555</u> 50 Num De | Num Day | End Date 7/2020 7/72020 17/2022 17/2022 | 04te | Start 6/1/2020 7/1/2020 7/18/2020 3/16/2022 | | Phase): 2.5 | De Bu Bu | tion ting Prepa | dition Preparation ling Constructing Construction | Phase Number 1 2 3 3 6ra 4 Buil 5 Ard 5 |
| Phase Description | 68 442 66 5 22 ³⁴ 's | 55555 Num De | Num Day Week | End Date 30/2020 7/2020 17/2022 17/2022 | 0410 010 010 010 010 010 010 010 010 010 | Start 6/1/2020 7/1/2020 7/18/2020 10/8/2020 | tion | Phase Preparation ading Iding Construct | De Site Bu | ting | dition Preparation ling Construction | Phase Number 2 Den 2 Site 3 Gra 5 Ard |
| Phase Description | 442 5 5 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 | 5 5 5 Num De | Num Day Week | End Date 30/2020 7//2020 9/7/2022 | Date 6/ 7/7 | Start 6/1/2020 7/1/2020 7/8/2020 | tion | Phas molition Preparation ading | De Gra | tion | dition Preparation ling Construc | Phase Number 2 Site 3 Gra 4 Buil |
| Phase Description | 66 5 22 ³ 8 | <u>5</u> 5 <u>5</u> Zum D | Num Day Week | End Date 30/2020 7/2020 1/7/2020 | Date 6/ 7/ | Start 6/1/2020 7/1/2020 7/8/2020 | | Phas molition Preparation | De | | dition Preparation ling | Number 1 Den 2 Site 3 Gra |
| Phase Description | 3ys 5 | s Num Da | Num Day Week | End Date 30/2020 7/2020 | 0ate 6/ | Start 6/1/2020 7/1/2020 | | Phas nolition | De | | olition Preparation | Phase Number 1 Den 2 Site |
| Phase Description | ays | 5 S Num Da | Num Day Week | End Date 30/2020 | Date | Start 6/1/2020 | | Phas | De | | dition | Phase Number |
| Phase Description | sys | 's Num Da | Num Day Week | End Date | Date | Start | : | Phas | | | | Phase Number |
| | | | | | | | Type | | | e Name | Phase | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | n Phase | <u>Constructio</u> |
| | | | | | | | | | |)etail | uction D | 3.0 Constr |
| 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 | 00 0.0 | 0.00 0. | 0.00 0 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 00 0.00 | 0.00 0. | | 0.00 | Percent Reductio |
| CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 0 | CO2 NBio-C | 2.5 Bio- (tal | haust PM M2.5 Tc | Fugitive Ex PM2.5 P | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | sos | NOX | | ROG | |
| 6,154.7214 4.8783 0.0377 6,287.920 | 6,083.0540 6 | 71.6675 | 0.9297 | 43 0.0554 | 3 0.87 | .0576 3.31: | 3.2617 0. | 0.0409 | 12.0013 | 4.2968 | 1.8169 | Total |
| 314.5498 0.9460 0.0237 345.250 | 305.4097 | 9.1401 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0 | .0000 0.00 | 0 | | | | | Water |
| 62.5273 3.6953 0.0000 154.908 | 0.0000 | 62.5273 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0 | .0000 0.00 | 0. | | | | | Waste |
| 3,634.4206 0.1859 0.0000 3,639.06 | 3,634.4206 3 | 0.0000 | 0.9049 | 43 0.0306 | 5 0.87 | .0329 3.29 | 3.2617 0. | 0.0394 | 10.7147 | 4.0411 | 0.7620 | Mobile |
| 2,141.4250 0.0494 0.0141 2,146.85 | 2,141.4250 2 | 0.0000 | 0.0187 | 0.0187 | 7 | .0187 0.01; | <u>.</u> | 1.4800e- 003 | 0.1855 | 0.2431 | 0.0271 | Energy |

| Demolition | Crawler Tractors | 2 | 6.00 | 212 | 0.43 |
|-----------------------|-----------------------------------|----|------|-----|------|
| Demolition | Crushing/Proc. Equipment | 1 | 6.00 | 85 | 0.78 |
| Demolition | Dumpers/Tenders | 10 | 6.00 | 16 | 0.38 |
| Demolition | Excavators | 2 | 8.00 | 158 | 0.38 |
| Demoition | Generator Sets | 2 | 8.00 | 84 | 0.74 |
| Demolition | Other Construction Equipment | 5 | 8.00 | 172 | 0.42 |
| Demoition | Other Material Handling Equipment | 2 | 6.00 | 168 | 0.40 |
| Demolition | Rough Terrain Forklifts | 2 | 6.00 | 100 | 0.40 |
| Demolition | Rubber Tired Loaders | 2 | 6.00 | 203 | 0.36 |
| Demolition | Signal Boards | 2 | 6.00 | 6 | 0.82 |
| Demolition | Sweepers/Scrubbers | 1 | 8.00 | 64 | 0.46 |
| Site Preparation | Rubber Tired Loaders | 2 | 8.00 | 203 | 0.36 |
| Site Preparation | Sweepers/Scrubbers | 1 | 8.00 | 64 | 0.46 |
| Site Preparation | Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes | 2 | 8.00 | 97 | 0.37 |
| Grading | Bore/Drill Rigs | 1 | 8.00 | 221 | 0.50 |
| Grading | Dumpers/Tenders | 10 | 6.00 | 16 | 0.38 |
| Grading | Excavators | 2 | 8.00 | 158 | 0.38 |
| Grading | Other Construction Equipment | 2 | 8.00 | 172 | 0.42 |
| Grading | Rough Terrain Forklifts | 2 | 6.00 | 100 | 0.40 |
| Grading | Rubber Tired Loaders | 2 | 6.00 | 203 | 0.36 |
| Grading | Signal Boards | 2 | 8.00 | 0 | 0.82 |
| Grading | Sweepers/Scrubbers | 1 | 8.00 | 64 | 0.46 |
| Grading | Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes | 2 | 8.00 | 97 | 0.37 |
| Building Construction | Aerial Lifts | 1 | 8.00 | 63 | 0.31 |
| Building Construction | Air Compressors | 2 | 8.00 | 78 | 0.48 |
| Building Construction | Cement and Mortar Mixers | 2 | 8.00 | Q | 0.56 |
| Building Construction | Concrete/Industrial Saws | 1 | 6.00 | 81 | 0.73 |
| Building Construction | Cranes | - | 8.00 | 231 | 0.29 |
| Building Construction | Dumpers/Tenders | 1 | 8.00 | 16 | 0.38 |
| Building Construction | Forklifts | - | 8.00 | 89 | 0.20 |

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

| Architectural Coating | Building Construction | Grading | Site Preparation | Demolition | Phase Name |
|-----------------------|-----------------------|----------|------------------|------------|----------------------------|
| 7 | 28 | 26 | 7 | 41 | Offroad Equipment Count |
| 32.00 | 300.00 | 20.00 | 12.00 | 20.00 | Worker Trip Number |
| 2.00 | 10.00 | 2.00 | 2.00 | 0.00 | Vendor Trip Number |
| 0.00 | 0.00 | 3,899.00 | 0.00 | 167.00 | Hauling Trip Number |
| 14.70 | 14.70 | 14.70 | 14.70 | 14.70 | Worker Trip Length |
| 6.90 | 6.90 | 6.90 | 6.90 | 6.90 | Vendor Trip Length |
| 20.00 | 20.00 | 17.00 | 20.00 | 17.00 | Hauling Trip Length |
| _D_Mix | _D_Mix | _D_Mix | _D_Mix | _D_Mix | Worker Vehicle Class |
| HDT_Mix | HDT_Mix | HDT_Mix | HDT_Mix | HDT_Mix | Vendor Vehicle Class |
| HHDT | HHDT | ннот | HHDT | HHDT | Hauling Vehicle Class |

Trips and VMT

Grading Grading Demolition Demolition Site Preparation Architectural Coating Architectural Coating Architectural Coating Architectural Coating Building Construction Building Construction Building Construction Site Preparation Building Construction Welders Graders Trenchers Pressure Washers Rubber Tired Dozers Rubber Tired Dozers Rubber Tired Dozers Pressure Washers Air Compressors Signal Boards Rough Terrain Forklifts Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes Graders Other Construction Equipment Forklifts Sweepers/Scrubbers Other Material Handling Equipment Other Construction Equipment Generator Sets Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes The second se N N N N o N 8.00 6.00 8.00 8.00 6.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 6.00 6.00 8.00 6.00 8.00 8.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 8.00 7.00 172 187 187 172 247 247 247 100 88 ä 88 97 97 46 2 78 78 84 ü 0.30 0.4 0.20 0.48 0.4 0.50 0.3 0.46 0.82 0.40 0.30 0.3 0.4 0.7 0.3 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.4 0.4

| | | 004 | | | | 003 | 005 | 004 | 003 | 005 | 003 | 005 | | | 003 | |
|--------|--------|----------|-----------|-----------|---------|-------------|----------|----------|------------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|
| 7.8534 | 0.0000 | 4.7000e- | 7.8416 | 7.8416 | 0.0000 | 1.0600e- | 8.0000e- | 9.8000e- | 3.7200e- | 9.0000e- | 3.6300e- | 8.0000e- | 0.0139 | 0.0231 | 1.6700e- | Total |
| | | 005 | | | | 004 | 005 | 004 | 003 | 005 | 003 | 005 | 003 | 004 | 003 | |
| 2.2487 | 0.0000 | 7.0000e- | 2.2470 | 2.2470 | 0.0000 | 6.6000e- | 2.0000e- | 6.4000e- | 2.4300e- | 2.0000e- | 2.4100e- | 2.0000e- | 9.0600e- | 8.2000e- | 1.0200e- | Worker |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Vendor |
| | | 004 | | | | 004 | 005 | 004 | 003 | 005 | 003 | 005 | 003 | | 004 | |
| 5.6046 | 0.0000 | 4.0000e- | 5.5946 | 5.5946 | 0.0000 | 4.0000e- | 6.0000e- | 3.4000e- | 1.2900e- | 7.0000e- | 1.2200e- | 6.0000e- | 4.8200e- | 0.0223 | 6.5000e- | Hauling |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | lyr | MT, | | | | | | | ş∕yr | tons | | | | | Category |
| | | | | | | | PM2.5 | PM2.5 | | PM10 | PM10 | | | | | |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio-CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust | Fugitive | PM10 Total | Exhaust | Fugitive | SO2 | 0 | NOX | ROG | |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| Total | Off-Road | Fugitive Dust | Category | |
|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------------------|----------|-------------------|
| 0.1183 | 0.1183 | | | ROG |
| 1.1333 | 1.1333 | | | NOx |
| 0.9178 | 0.9178 | | | СО |
| 1.6100e- 003 | 1.6100e- 003 | | | S02 |
| 0.0181 | | 0.0181 | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0585 | 0.0585 | 0.0000 | s/yr | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.0765 | 0.0585 | 0.0181 | | PM10 Total |
| 2.7300e- 003 | | 2.7300 e- 003 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0552 | 0.0552 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.0579 | 0.0552 | 2.7300e- 003 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 139.5850 | 139.5850 | 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 139.5850 | 139.5850 | 0.0000 | MT | Total CO2 |
| 0.0334 | 0.0334 | 0.0000 | југ | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N20 |
| 140.4211 | 140.4211 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

Replace Ground Cover Water Exposed Area Clean Paved Roads

Use Cleaner Engines for Construction Equipment

3.2 Demolition - 2020

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

| | ROG |
|-------|-------------|
| | NOX |
| | 8 |
| | SO2 |
| PM10 | Fugitive |
| PM10 | Exhaust |
| | PM10 Total |
| PM2.5 | Fugitive |
| PM2.5 | Exhaust |
| | PM2.5 Total |
| | Bio-CO2 |
| | NBio- CO2 |
| | Total CO2 |
| | CH4 |
| | N20 |
| | CO2e |

3.3 Site Preparation - 2020 Unmitigated Construction On-Site

| Total | Worker | Vendor | Hauling | Category | |
|-----------------|-----------------------------|--------|-----------------------------|----------|-------------------|
| 1.6700e- 003 | 1.0200e- 003 | 0.0000 | 6.5000e- 004 | | ROG |
| 0.0231 | 8.2000e- 004 | 0.0000 | 0.0223 | | NOX |
| 0.0139 | 9.0600e- 003 | 0.0000 | 4.8200e- 003 | | СО |
| 8.0000e- 005 | 2.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | 6.0000e- 005 | | SO2 |
| 2.2500e- 003 | 1.4500e- 003 | 0.0000 | 8.0000e- 004 | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| 9.0000e- 005 | 2.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | 7.0000e- 005 | s/yr | Exhaust PM10 |
| 2.3300e- 003 | 1.4700e- 003 | 0.0000 | 8.6000e- 004 | | PM10 Total |
| 6.3000e- 004 | 4.0000 e- 004 | 0.0000 | 2.3000 e- 004 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 8.0000e- 005 | 2.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | 6.0000e- 005 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 7.1000e- 004 | 4.2000e- 004 | 0.0000 | 2.9000e- 004 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 7.8416 | 2.2470 | 0.0000 | 5.5946 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 7.8416 | 2.2470 | 0.0000 | 5.5946 | TM | Total CO2 |
| 4.7000e- 004 | 7.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | 4.0000e- 004 | у́л | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N20 |
| 7.8534 | 2.2487 | 0.0000 | 5.6046 | | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| Tot | Off-R | Fugitiv€ | Cate | |
|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------------------|-------------------|-------------------|
| a | oad | ∍ Dust | gory | |
| 0.0468 | 0.0468 | | | ROG |
| 0.8238 | 0.8238 | | | NOX |
| 1.0213 | 1.0213 | | | со |
| 1.6100e- 003 | 1.6100e- 003 | | | SO2 |
| 6.6900e- 003 | | 6.6900e- 003 | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0457 | 0.0457 | 0.0000 | з/уг | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.0524 | 0.0457 | 6.6900e- 003 | | PM10 Total |
| 1.0100e- 003 | | 1.0100 e- 003 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0451 | 0.0451 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.0461 | 0.0451 | 1.0100e- 003 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 139.5849 | 139.5849 | 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 139.5849 | 139.5849 | 0.0000 | ΓM | Total CO2 |
| 0.0334 | 0.0334 | 0.0000 | ^r /y r | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N2O |
| 140.4209 | 140.4209 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| Total | Worke | Vendc | Haulin | Catego | |
|-----------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|--------|--------|-------------------|
| | ~ | ~ | g | Ŷ | |
| 1.6000e- 004 | 1.4000e- 004 | 2.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | | ROG |
| 6.5000e- 004 | 1.1000e- 004 | 5.4000e- 004 | 0.0000 | | NOx |
| 1.3800e- 003 | 1.2300e- 003 | 1.5000e- 004 | 0.0000 | | СО |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | S02 |
| 3.6000e- 004 | 3.3000e- 004 | 3.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | s/yr | Exhaust PM10 |
| 3.6000e- 004 | 3.3000e- 004 | 3.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total |
| 1.0000e- 004 | 9.0000 e- 005 | 1.0000 e- 005 | 0.0000 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 1.0000e- 004 | 9.0000e- 005 | 1.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio-CO2 |
| 0.4306 | 0.3064 | 0.1242 | 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 0.4306 | 0.3064 | 0.1242 | 0.0000 | MT | Total CO2 |
| 2.0000e- 005 | 1.0000e- 005 | 1.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | у́уг | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N20 |
| 0.4311 | 0.3067 | 0.1244 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| Off-Road | Fugitive Dust | Category | |
|-----------------|-----------------|----------|-------------------|
| 5.0900e- 003 | | | ROG |
| 0.0684 | | | NOx |
| 0.0467 | | | co |
| 9.0000e- 005 | | | S02 |
| | 5.3700e- 003 | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| 3.1600e- 003 | 0.0000 | /yr | Exhaust PM10 |
| 3.1600e- 003 | 5.3700e- 003 | | PM10 Total |
| | 2.7400e- 003 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 3.0100e- 003 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 3.0100e- 003 | 2.7400e- 003 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 7.7699 | 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 7.7699 | 0.0000 | MT | Total CO2 |
| 2.5100e- 003 | 0.0000 | 'yr | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N20 |
| 7.8327 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

| Total | Off-Road | Fugitive Dust | Category |
|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|----------|
| 7.1400e- 003 | 7.1400e- 003 | | |
| 0.0790 | 0.0790 | | |
| 0.0381 | 0.0381 | | |
| 9.0000e- 005 | 9.0000e- 005 | | |
| 0.0145 | | 0.0145 | tons |
| 3.5800e- 003 | 3.5800e- 003 | 0.0000 | /yr |
| 0.0181 | 3.5800e- 003 | 0.0145 | |
| 7.3800e- 003 | | 7.3800e- 003 | |
| 3.2900e- 003 | 3.2900e- 003 | 0.0000 | |
| 0.0107 | 3.2900e- 003 | 7.3800e- 003 | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | |
| 7.7699 | 7.7699 | 0.0000 | |
| 7.7699 | 7.7699 | 0.0000 | MT |
| 2.5100e- 003 | 2.5100e- 003 | 0.0000 | /yr |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | |
| 7.8327 | 7.8327 | 0.0000 | |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

Г

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| 211.7836 | 0000.0 | 0.0644 | 210.1744 | 210.1744 | 0.0000 | 0.1554 | 0.0731 | 0.0823 | 0.2309 | 0.0790 | 0.1519 | 2.4300e- 003 | 1.1944 | 1.7145 | 0.1660 | Total |
|----------|--------|--------|-----------|-----------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|--------|--------|--------|---------------|
| 211.7836 | 0.0000 | 0.0644 | 210.1744 | 210.1744 | 0.0000 | 0.0731 | 0.0731 | | 0.0790 | 0.0790 | | 2.4300e- 003 | 1.1944 | 1.7145 | 0.1660 | Off-Road |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0823 | 0.0000 | 0.0823 | 0.1519 | 0.0000 | 0.1519 | | | | | Fugitive Dust |
| | | íyr | MT, | | | | | | | s/yr | tons | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | S02 | CO | NOX | ROG | |

3.4 Grading - 2020 <u>Unmitigated Construction On-Site</u>

| | ROG | NOX | CO | SO2 | Fugitive PM10 | Exhaust PM10 | PM10 Total | Fugitive PM2.5 | Exhaust PM2.5 | PM2.5 Total | Bio-CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Total CO2 | CH4 | N2O | CO2e |
|----------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|--------|------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-------------------|------------------|-----------------|---------|-----------|-----------|-----------------|--------|--------|
| Category | | | | | tons | s/yr | | | | | | | MT/ | уг | | |
| Hauling | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 |
| Vendor | 2.0000e- 005 | 5.4000e- 004 | 1.5000e- 004 | 0.0000 | 2.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | 2.0000e- 005 | 1.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | 1.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | 0.1242 | 0.1242 | 1.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | 0.1244 |
| Worker | 1.4000e- 004 | 1.1000e- 004 | 1.2300e- 003 | 0.0000 | 2.0000e- 004 | 0.0000 | 2.0000e- 004 | 6.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | 6.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | 0.3064 | 0.3064 | 1.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | 0.3067 |
| Total | 1.6000e- 004 | 6.5000e- 004 | 1.3800e- 003 | 0.0000 | 2.2000e- 004 | 0.0000 | 2.2000e- 004 | 7.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | 7.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | 0.4306 | 0.4306 | 2.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | 0.4311 |

| | Total |
|-----|----------|
| 003 | 5.0900e- |
| | 0.0684 |
| | 0.0467 |
| 005 | 9.0000e- |
| 003 | 5.3700e- |
| 003 | 3.1600e- |
| 003 | 8.5300e- |
| 003 | 2.7400e- |
| 003 | 3.0100e- |
| 003 | 5.7500e- |
| | 0.0000 |
| | 7.7699 |
| | 7.7699 |
| 003 | 2.5100e- |
| | 0.0000 |
| | 7.8327 |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| Category | |
|------------------|-------------------|
| | ROG |
| | NOX |
| | со |
| | SO2 |
| ton | Fugitive PM10 |
| s/yr | Exhaust PM10 |
| | PM10 Total |
| | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| | PM2.5 Total |
| | Bio- CO2 |
| | NBio- CO2 |
| MT | Total CO2 |
| ⁻ /yr | CH4 |
| | N20 |
| | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| Total | Off-Road | Fugitive Dust | Category | |
|-----------------|-----------------|---------------|----------|-------------------|
| 0.0866 | 0.0866 | | | ROG |
| 1.3566 | 1.3566 | | | NOx |
| 1.3947 | 1.3947 | | | CO |
| 2.4300e- 003 | 2.4300e- 003 | | | S02 |
| 0.0563 | | 0.0563 | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0655 | 0.0655 | 0.0000 | /yr | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.1218 | 0.0655 | 0.0563 | | PM10 Total |
| 0.0305 | | 0.0305 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0638 | 0.0638 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.0943 | 0.0638 | 0.0305 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 210.1741 | 210.1741 | 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 210.1741 | 210.1741 | 0.0000 | MT | Total CO2 |
| 0.0644 | 0.0644 | 0.0000 | íyr | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N20 |
| 211.7834 | 211.7834 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| | | | 5 | | < | | Ξ | Ca | | |
|-----|----------|-----|----------|-----|----------|-----|----------|--------|-------|-------------|
| | Total | | /orker | | endor | | auling | tegory | | |
| | 0.0184 | 003 | 3.0500e- | 004 | 2.4000e- | | 0.0152 | | | ROG |
| | 0.5294 | 003 | 2.4600e- | 003 | 7.1500e- | | 0.5198 | | | XON |
| | 0.1417 | | 0.0272 | 003 | 1.9400e- | | 0.1126 | | | СО |
| 003 | 1.4200e- | 005 | 7.0000e- | 005 | 2.0000e- | 003 | 1.3300e- | | | SO2 |
| | 0.0361 | 003 | 7.2300e- | 004 | 4.2000e- | | 0.0285 | tons | PM10 | Fugitive |
| 003 | 1.6300e- | 005 | 6.0000e- | 005 | 3.0000e- | 003 | 1.5400e- | s/yr | PM10 | Exhaust |
| | 0.0378 | 003 | 7.2900e- | 004 | 4.5000e- | | 0.0300 | | | PM10 Total |
| 003 | 9.8600e- | 003 | 1.9200e- | 004 | 1.2000e- | 003 | 7.8200e- | | PM2.5 | Fugitive |
| 003 | 1.5700e- | 005 | 6.0000e- | 005 | 3.0000e- | 003 | 1.4800e- | | PM2.5 | Exhaust |
| | 0.0114 | 003 | 1.9800e- | 004 | 1.5000e- | 003 | 9.3000e- | | | PM2.5 Total |
| | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | | Bio-CO2 |
| | 138.9994 | | 6.7409 | | 1.6396 | | 130.6189 | | | NBio- CO2 |
| | 138.9994 | | 6.7409 | | 1.6396 | | 130.6189 | MT. | | Total CO2 |
| 003 | 9.6700e- | 004 | 2.1000e- | 004 | 1.0000e- | 003 | 9.3600e- | '/yr | | CH4 |
| | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | | N20 |
| | 139.2413 | | 6.7462 | | 1.6422 | | 130.8528 | | | CO2e |

| 101.1162 | 0.0000 | 3.4300e- 003 | 101.0306 | 101.0306 | 0.0000 | 0.0281 | 9.4000e- 004 | 0.0272 | 0.1032 | 1.0000e- 003 | 0.1022 | 1.1100e- 003 | 0.3856 | 0.0671 | 0.0434 | Total |
|----------|--------|-----------------|-----------|-----------|----------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|-----------------|--------|-----------------|----------|
| 93.5272 | 0.0000 | 2.9500e- 003 | 93.4536 | 93.4536 | 0.0000 | 0.0274 | 7.9000e- 004 | 0.0266 | 0.1011 | 8.5000e- 004 | 0.1003 | 1.0300e- 003 | 0.3766 | 0.0341 | 0.0422 | Worker |
| 7.5890 | 0.0000 | 4.8000e- 004 | 7.5770 | 7.5770 | 0.0000 | 7.0000e- 004 | 1.5000e- 004 | 5.5000 e- 004 | 2.0700e- 003 | 1.5000e- 004 | 1.9200e- 003 | 8.0000e- 005 | 8.9500e- 003 | 0.0331 | 1.1100e- 003 | Vendor |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Hauling |
| | | '/yr | MT | | | | | | | s/yr | ton | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N2O | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | со | NOX | ROG | |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| Total | Off-Road | Category | |
|-----------------|-----------------|----------|-------------------|
| 0.2023 | 0.2023 | | ROG |
| 1.8546 | 1.8546 | | NOX |
| 1.6417 | 1.6417 | | CO |
| 2.6200e- 003 | 2.6200e- 003 | | S02 |
| | | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.1030 | 0.1030 | s/уг | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.1030 | 0.1030 | | PM10 Total |
| | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0974 | 0.0974 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.0974 | 0.0974 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 224.8098 | 224.8098 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 224.8098 | 224.8098 | MT | Total CO2 |
| 0.0519 | 0.0519 | у́л | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N20 |
| 226.1078 | 226.1078 | | CO2e |

| | | | | | | | | | | | | | 2020 | uction - : | Constru | 3.5 Building |
|----------|--------|-----------------|----------|----------|--------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|----------|-----------------|----------|-----------------|----------|------------|----------|--------------|
| 139.2413 | 0.0000 | 9.6700e- 003 | 138.9994 | 138.9994 | 0.0000 | 8.2700e- 003 | 1.5700e- 003 | 6.7000e- 003 | 0.0249 | 1.6300e- 003 | 0.0233 | 1.4200e- 003 | 0.1417 | 0.5294 | 0.0184 | Total |
| | | 004 | | | | 003 | 005 | 003 | 003 | 005 | 003 | 005 | | 003 | 003 | |
| 6.7462 | 0.0000 | 2.1000e- | 6.7409 | 6.7409 | 0.0000 | 1.2700e- | 6.0000e- | 1.2100e- | 4.4100e- | 6.0000e- | 4.3500e- | 7.0000e- | 0.0272 | 2.4600e- | 3.0500e- | Worker |
| | | 004 | | | | 004 | 005 | 005 | 004 | 005 | 004 | 005 | 003 | 003 | 004 | |
| 1.6422 | 0.0000 | 1.0000e- | 1.6396 | 1.6396 | 0.0000 | 1.2000e- | 3.0000e- | 9.0000e- | 3.1000e- | 3.0000e- | 2.8000e- | 2.0000e- | 1.9400e- | 7.1500e- | 2.4000e- | Vendor |
| | | 003 | | | | 003 | 003 | 003 | | 003 | | 003 | | | | |
| 130.8528 | 0.0000 | 9.3600e- | 130.6189 | 130.6189 | 0.0000 | 6.8800e- | 1.4800e- | 5.4000e- | 0.0202 | 1.5400e- | 0.0186 | 1.3300e- | 0.1126 | 0.5198 | 0.0152 | Hauling |

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

3.5 Building Construction - 2021 Unmitigated Construction On-Site

| Category | | | | | PM10 tons | PM10 | | PM2.5 | PM2.5 | | | | MT/ | vr | | |
|----------|-----------------|--------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|--------|----------|----------|-----------------|--------|----------|
| Category | | | | | tons | /yr | | | | | | | MT/ | yr. | | |
| Hauling | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 |
| Vendor | 1.1100e- 003 | 0.0331 | 8.9500e- 003 | 8.0000e- 005 | 1.3000e- 003 | 1.5000e- 004 | 1.4500e- 003 | 4.0000e- 004 | 1.5000e- 004 | 5.5000e- 004 | 0.0000 | 7.5770 | 7.5770 | 4.8000e- 004 | 0.0000 | 7.5890 |
| Worker | 0.0422 | 0.0341 | 0.3766 | 1.0300e- 003 | 0.0603 | 8.5000e- 004 | 0.0611 | 0.0168 | 7.9000e- 004 | 0.0176 | 0.0000 | 93.4536 | 93.4536 | 2.9500e- 003 | 0.0000 | 93.5272 |
| Total | 0.0434 | 0.0671 | 0.3856 | 1.1100e- | 0.0616 | 1.0000e- | 0.0626 | 0.0172 | 9.4000e- | 0.0182 | 0.0000 | 101.0306 | 101.0306 | 3.4300e- | 0.0000 | 101.1162 |
| | | | | 003 | | 003 | | | 004 | | | | | 003 | | |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| Total | Off-Road | Category | |
|-----------------|-----------------|----------|-------------------|
| 0.0628 | 0.0628 | | ROG |
| 1.2567 | 1.2567 | | NOx |
| 1.7284 | 1.7284 | | СО |
| 2.6200e- 003 | 2.6200e- 003 | | SO2 |
| | | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0756 | 0.0756 | /yr | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.0756 | 0.0756 | | PM10 Total |
| | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0754 | 0.0754 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.0754 | 0.0754 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 224.8095 | 224.8095 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 224.8095 | 224.8095 | MT/ | Total CO2 |
| 0.0519 | 0.0519 | ýr | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N2O |
| 226.1076 | 226.1076 | | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| Off-Road | Category | |
|----------|----------|-------------------|
| 0.2666 | | ROG |
| 5.3584 | | NOX |
| 7.3936 | | со |
| 0.0112 | | SO2 |
| | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.3216 | s/yr | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.3216 | | PM10 Total |
| | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.3208 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.3208 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 961.7880 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 961.7880 | MT, | Total CO2 |
| 0.2196 | 'yr | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | | N20 |
| 967.2789 | | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| _ | × | Ś | Η | Ca | |
|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------------------|--------|--------|-------------------|
| otal | orker | endor | auling | tegory | |
| 0.1725 | 0.1685 | 4.0500e- 003 | 0.0000 | | ROG |
| 0.2599 | 0.1312 | 0.1288 | 0.0000 | | NOX |
| 1.5154 | 1.4805 | 0.0349 | 0.0000 | | CO |
| 4.6100e- 003 | 4.2800e- 003 | 3.3000e- 004 | 0.0000 | | SO2 |
| 0.4372 | 0.4290 | 8.2200e- 003 | 0.0000 | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| 3.8000e- 003 | 3.5400e- 003 | 2.6000e- 004 | 0.0000 | з/уг | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.4410 | 0.4325 | 8.4800e- 003 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total |
| 0.1163 | 0.1139 | 2.3700 e- 003 | 0.0000 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 3.5100e- 003 | 3.2600e- 003 | 2.5000e- 004 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.1198 | 0.1172 | 2.6200e- 003 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 419.3288 | 387.1610 | 32.1678 | 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 419.3288 | 387.1610 | 32.1678 | 0.0000 | MT | Total CO2 |
| 0.0134 | 0.0114 | 1.9700e- 003 | 0.0000 | /yr | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N20 |
| 419.6630 | 387.4458 | 32.2171 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| Total | Off-Road | Category | |
|----------|----------|----------|-------------------|
| 0.7696 | 0.7696 | | ROG |
| 7.0392 | 7.0392 | | NOx |
| 6.9342 | 6.9342 | | со |
| 0.0112 | 0.0112 | | SO2 |
| | | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.3756 | 0.3756 | ;/yr | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.3756 | 0.3756 | | PM10 Total |
| | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.3551 | 0.3551 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.3551 | 0.3551 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 961.7892 | 961.7892 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 961.7892 | 961.7892 | MT. | Total CO2 |
| 0.2196 | 0.2196 | /yr | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N20 |
| 967.2800 | 967.2800 | | CO2e |

| Total | |
|----------|--|
| 0.2666 | |
| 5.3584 | |
| 7.3936 | |
| 0.0112 | |
| | |
| 0.3216 | |
| 0.3216 | |
| | |
| 0.3208 | |
| 0.3208 | |
| 0.0000 | |
| 961.7880 | |
| 961.7880 | |
| 0.2196 | |
| 0.0000 | |
| 967.2789 | |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| | Total | | Worker | | Vendor | (| Hauling | Category | | |
|-----|----------|-----|----------|-----|----------|---|---------|----------|-------|-------------|
| | 0.1725 | | 0.1685 | 003 | 4.0500e- | | 0.0000 | | | ROG |
| | 0.2599 | | 0.1312 | | 0.1288 | | 0.0000 | | | NOX |
| | 1.5154 | | 1.4805 | | 0.0349 | | 0.0000 | | | со |
| 003 | 4.6100e- | 003 | 4.2800e- | 004 | 3.3000e- | | 0.0000 | | | SO2 |
| | 0.2635 | | 0.2580 | 003 | 5.5400e- | | 0.0000 | tons | PM10 | Fugitive |
| 003 | 3.8000e- | 003 | 3.5400e- | 004 | 2.6000e- | | 0.0000 | s/yr | PM10 | Exhaust |
| | 0.2673 | | 0.2615 | 003 | 5.8100e- | | 0.0000 | | | PM10 Total |
| | 0.0737 | | 0.0720 | 003 | 1.7200e- | | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 | Fugitive |
| 003 | 3.5100e- | 003 | 3.2600e- | 004 | 2.5000e- | | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 | Exhaust |
| | 0.0772 | | 0.0752 | 003 | 1.9700e- | | 0.0000 | | | PM2.5 Total |
| | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | | Bio-CO2 |
| | 419.3288 | | 387.1610 | | 32.1678 | | 0.0000 | | | NBio- CO2 |
| | 419.3288 | | 387.1610 | | 32.1678 | | 0.0000 | MT/ | | Total CO2 |
| | 0.0134 | | 0.0114 | 003 | 1.9700e- | | 0.0000 | 'yr | | CH4 |
| | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | | N20 |
| | 419.6630 | | 387.4458 | | 32.2171 | | 0.0000 | | | CO2e |

3.5 Building Construction - 2022

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

| iotal 0.3227 2.9125 3.1624 | Off-Road 0.3227 2.9125 3.1624 | Category | |
|----------------------------|-------------------------------|----------|-------|
| 5.1600e- 003 | 5.1600e- 003 | | |
| | | tons/ | PM10 |
| 0.1496 | 0.1496 | ýr | PM10 |
| 0.1496 | 0.1496 | | |
| | | | PM2.5 |
| 0.1415 | 0.1415 | | PM2.5 |
| 0.1415 | 0.1415 | | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | |
| 442.1971 | 442.1971 | | |
| 442.1971 | 442.1971 | MT, | |
| 0.1003 | 0.1003 | /yr | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | |
| 444.7054 | 444.7054 | | |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| Category | |
|----------|-------------------|
| | ROG |
| | NOX |
| | со |
| | SO2 |
| ton | Fugitive PM10 |
| s/yr | Exhaust PM10 |
| | PM10 Total |
| | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| | PM2.5 Total |
| | Bio- CO2 |
| | NBio- CO2 |
| MT, | Total CO2 |
| ýr | CH4 |
| | N20 |
| | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| Total | Off-Road | Category | |
|-----------------|-----------------|----------|-------------------|
| 0.1216 | 0.1216 | | ROG |
| 2.4547 | 2.4547 | | NOX |
| 3.3985 | 3.3985 | | CO |
| 5.1600e- 003 | 5.1600e- 003 | | S02 |
| | | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.1470 | 0.1470 | ;/уг | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.1470 | 0.1470 | | PM10 Total |
| | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.1467 | 0.1467 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.1467 | 0.1467 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 442.1966 | 442.1966 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 442.1966 | 442.1966 | MT, | Total CO2 |
| 0.1003 | 0.1003 | /yr | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N20 |
| 444.7048 | 444.7048 | | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

Vendor Category Worker Hauling Total 1.7500e-003 0.0726 0.0000 0.0744 ROG 0.0545 0.0563 0.0000 0.1107 NOX 0.6272 0.0152 0.0000 0.6424 8 2.0500e-003 1.5000e-004 1.9000e-003 0.0000 SO2 3.7800e-003 0.1972 Fugitive PM10 0.0000 0.2010 tons/yr Exhaust PM10 1.6800e-003 1.1000e-004 1.5700e-003 0.0000 - 3.8900e-003 - 0.1988 PM10 Total 0.0000 0.2027 Fugitive PM2.5 1.0900e- 003 0.0524 0.0000 0.0535 1.5500e-003 1.0000e-004 1.4500e-003 Exhaust PM2.5 0.0000 PM2.5 Total 1.1900e-003 0.0538 0.0550 0.0000 Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 14.6599 14.6599 8.8000e (171.7479 171.7479 4.7300e (1003 003 003 003 186.4078 0.0000 Total CO2 186.4078 0.0000 MT/yr 5.6100e-003 0.0000 CH4 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 N20 171.8661 14.6818 186.5479 0.0000 CO2e

| 2.0427 3.9000e- 0.0000 004 | 2.0427 3.9000e- 004 | 2.0427 | 15 | 12.0427 | 0.0000 | 3.3900e- 003 | 1.0000e- 004 | 3.2900e- 003 | 0.0125 | 1.1000e- 004 | 0.0124 | 1.3000e- 004 | 0.0396 | 9.6700e- 003 | 4.5900e- 003 | Total |
|---|--|----------------------------------|-----------------------|--------------|--------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|----------|
| 0.0000 10.3812 10.3812 2.9000e- 0.0000 004 | 0.00000 10.3812 10.3812 2.9000e- 004 | 0.0000 10.3812 10.3812 | 0.0000 10.3812 | 0.0000 | | 3.2500e- 003 | 9.0000e- 005 | 3.1700e- 003 | 0.0120 | 1.0000e- 004 | 0.0119 | 1.1000e- 004 | 0.0379 | 3.2900e- 003 | 4.3900e- 003 | Worker |
| - 0.0000 1.6615 1.6615 1.0000e- 0.0000 004 004 | - 0.0000 1.6615 1.6615 1.0000e- 004 004 | - 0.0000 1.6615 1.6615 | 0.0000 1.6615 | 0.0000 | ĩ | 1.4000e 004 | 1.0000e- 005 | 1.2000 e- 004 | 4.4000e- 004 | 1.0000e- 005 | 4.3000e- 004 | 2.0000e- 005 | 1.7200e- 003 | 6.3800e- 003 | 2.0000e- 004 | Vendor |
| 0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 | 0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 | 0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 | 0 0.0000 0.0000 | 0 0.0000 | 0 | 0.000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Hauling |
| MTlýr | MT/yr | MT | | | | | | | | s/yr | tons | | | | | Category |
| otal Bio-CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O | Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 | Total Bio-CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 | otal Bio-CO2 NBio-CO2 | otal Bio-CO2 | otal | PM2.5 1 | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | co | NOX | ROG | |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| Total | Off-Road | Archit. Coating | Category | |
|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|----------|-------------------|
| 1.0244 | 0.0506 | 0.9738 | | ROG |
| 0.4409 | 0.4409 | | | NOX |
| 0.4907 | 0.4907 | | | CO |
| 7.7000e- 004 | 7.7000e- 004 | | | S02 |
| | | | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0241 | 0.0241 | 0.0000 | s/yr | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.0241 | 0.0241 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total |
| | | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0228 | 0.0228 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.0228 | 0.0228 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 66.6556 | 66.6556 | 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 66.6556 | 66.6556 | 0.0000 | MT, | Total CO2 |
| 0.0150 | 0.0150 | 0.0000 | /yr | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N20 |
| 67.0315 | 67.0315 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

Hauling Worker Vendor Total nnniş 1.7500e-003 0.0744 0.0726 0.0000 0.1107 0.0545 0.0563 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.6272 0.0152 0.6424 2.0500e-003 1.5000e-004 1.9000e-003 0.0000 2.5500e-003 0.1186 0.1212 1.6800e-003 1.1000e-004 1.5700e-003 0.0000 -- 2.6500e-003 -- 0.1202 0.0000 0.1228 0.0000 7.9000e- 004 0.0339 0.0331 1.5500e-003 1.0000e-004 1.4500e-003 0.0000 0.0000 8.9000e-004 0.0354 0.0345 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000
 14.6599
 14.6599
 8.8000e 004

 171.7479
 171.7479
 4.7300e 003
 0.0000 186.4078 186.4078 0.0000 5.6100e-003 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 186.5479 171.8661 14.6818

3.6 Architectural Coating - 2022 Unmitigated Construction On-Site

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

| | | 004 | | | | 003 | 004 | 003 | 003 | 004 | 003 | 004 | | 003 | 003 | |
|---------|--------|----------|-----------|-----------|---------|-------------|----------|----------|------------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|
| 12.0523 | 0.0000 | 3.9000e- | 12.0427 | 12.0427 | 0.0000 | 2.1900e- | 1.0000e- | 2.0900e- | 7.5600e- | 1.1000e- | 7.4600e- | 1.3000e- | 0.0396 | 9.6700e- | 4.5900e- | Total |
| | | 004 | | | | 003 | 005 | 003 | 003 | 004 | 003 | 004 | | 003 | 003 | |
| 10.3884 | 0.0000 | 2.9000e- | 10.3812 | 10.3812 | 0.0000 | 2.0900e- | 9.0000e- | 2.0000e- | 7.2600e- | 1.0000e- | 7.1700e- | 1.1000e- | 0.0379 | 3.2900e- | 4.3900e- | Worker |
| | | 004 | | | | 004 | 005 | 005 | 004 | 005 | 004 | 005 | 003 | 003 | 004 | |
| 1.6639 | 0.0000 | 1.0000e- | 1.6615 | 1.6615 | 0.0000 | 1.0000e- | 1.0000e- | 9.0000e- | 3.0000e- | 1.0000e- | 2.9000e- | 2.0000e- | 1.7200e- | 6.3800e- | 2.0000e- | Vendor |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Hauling |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | '/yr | MT | | | | | | | s/yr | tons | | | | | Category |
| | | | | | | | PM2.5 | PM2.5 | | PM10 | PM10 | | | | | |
| CO2e | 02N | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio-CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust | Fugitive | PM10 Total | Exhaust | Fugitive | SO2 | СО | NOX | ROG | |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| Total | Off-Road | Archit. Coating | Category | |
|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|----------|-------------------|
| 0.9908 | 0.0170 | 0.9738 | | ROG |
| 0.3512 | 0.3512 | | | NOx |
| 0.5229 | 0.5229 | | | CO |
| 7.7000e- 004 | 7.7000e- 004 | | | SO2 |
| | | | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0203 | 0.0203 | 0.0000 | s/yr | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.0203 | 0.0203 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total |
| | | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0203 | 0.0203 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.0203 | 0.0203 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 66.6555 | 66.6555 | 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 66.6555 | 66.6555 | 0.0000 | MT. | Total CO2 |
| 0.0150 | 0.0150 | 0.0000 | /yr | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N20 |
| 67.0314 | 67.0314 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| 0.000876 | 0.000687 | 0.005142 | 0.002201 | 0.002515 | 0.030678 | 0.020131 | 0.006196 | 0.015740 | 0.120355 | 0.204016 | 0.044961 | 0.546501 | Apartments Mid Rise |
|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|-------------------------------------|
| MH | SBUS | MCY | UBUS | OBUS | HHD | MHD | LHD2 | LHD1 | MDV | LDT2 | LDT1 | LDA | Land Use |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | 4.4 Fleet Mix |
| | 0 | | 0 | 0 | 1 | 19.00 | 64.40 | 16.60 | 90 | 6. | 8.40 | 16.60 | Strip Mall |
| | 0 | | 0 | 00 | 1(| 19.00 | 72.50 | 8.50 | 90 | 6. | 8.40 | 16.60 | High Turnover (Sit Down Restaurant) |
| | | 0 | 0 | 00 | 10 | 19.00 | 48.00 | 33.00 | 90 | 6. | 8.40 | 16.60 | General Office Building |
| | | 0 | 0 | 0 | | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 90 | 6 | 8.40 | 16.60 | Enclosed Parking with Elevator |
| | 0 | 0 | 0 | 00 | 1(| 41.00 | 19.00 | 40.00 | 70 | .8 | 5.90 | 14.70 | Apartments Mid Rise |

Apartments Mid Rise

0.120355 -----

0.030678

0.002201 ļ

4.3 Trip Type Information

Land Use

H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW

Primary

Diverted Trip Purpose %

Pass-by

Miles

Trip %

| | Ave | rage Daily Trip Rate | Û | Unmitigated | Mitigated |
|-------------------------------------|----------|----------------------|----------|-------------|------------|
| Land Use | Weekday | Saturday | Sunday | Annual VMT | Annual VMT |
| Apartments Mid Rise | 589.36 | 589.36 | 589.36 | 2,267,122 | 2,267,122 |
| Enclosed Parking with Elevator | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | | |
| General Office Building | 702.93 | 702.93 | 702.93 | 2,768,716 | 2,768,716 |
| High Turnover (Sit Down Restaurant) | 893.49 | 893.49 | 893.49 | 2,865,920 | 2,865,920 |
| Strip Mall | 200.60 | 200.60 | 200.60 | 691,932 | 691,932 |
| Total | 2,386.37 | 2,386.37 | 2,386.37 | 8,593,690 | 8,593,690 |

| Unmitigated 0.7620 4.0411 | Mitigated 0.7620 4.0411 | Category | ROG |
|---------------------------|-------------------------|----------|------------------|
| 10.7147 | 10.7147 | | C |
| 0.0394 | 0.0394 | | SUZ |
| 3.2617 | 3.2617 | tons/ | PM10 |
| 0.0329 | 0.0329 | 'yr | PM10 |
| 3.2945 | 3.2945 | | OMTU TOTAL |
| 0.8743 | 0.8743 | | PM2.5 |
| 0.0306 | 0.0306 | | Exnaust PM2.5 |
| 0.9049 | 0.9049 | | PMZ.5 Iotai |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | BIO- CUZ |
| 3,634.4206 | 3,634.4206 | | NBIO- CUZ |
| 3,634.4206 | 3,634.4206 | MT, | Iotal CUZ |
| 0.1859 | 0.1859 | уr | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | NZO |
| 3,639.0684 | 3,639.0684 | | COZe |

4.2 Trip Summary Information

| Enclosed Parking with Elevator | 0.546501 | 0.044961 | 0.204016 | 0.120355 | 0.015740 | 0.006196 | 0.020131 | 0.030678 | 0.002515 | 0.002201 | 0.005142 | 0.000687 | 0.000876 |
|-------------------------------------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|
| General Office Building | 0.546501 | 0.044961 | 0.204016 | 0.120355 | 0.015740 | 0.006196 | 0.020131 | 0.030678 | 0.002515 | 0.002201 | 0.005142 | 0.000687 | 0.000876 |
| High Turnover (Sit Down Restaurant) | 0.546501 | 0.044961 | 0.204016 | 0.120355 | 0.015740 | 0.006196 | 0.020131 | 0.030678 | 0.002515 | 0.002201 | 0.005142 | 0.000687 | 0.000876 |
| Strip Mall | 0.546501 | 0.044961 | 0.204016 | 0.120355 | 0.015740 | 0.006196 | 0.020131 | 0.030678 | 0.002515 | 0.002201 | 0.005142 | 0.000687 | 0.000876 |

5.0 Energy Detail

Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

| · | _ | | | | _ | | | | | | | |
|---|-------------|------------|-----------|------------|-------------|-------------|-----------|-------------|----|----------|-------------|------------|
| , | Unmitigated | NaturalGas | Mitigated | NaturalGas | Unmitigated | Electricity | Mitigated | Electricity | | Category | | |
| | | 0.0271 | | 0.0271 | | | | | | | | ROG |
| | | 0.2431 | | 0.2431 | | | | | | | | XON |
| 5 | | 0.1855 | | 0.1855 | | | | | | | | СО |
| | 003 | 1.4800e- | 003 | 1.4800e- | | | | | | | | S02 |
| | | | | | | | | | | tons | PM10 | Fugitive |
| | | 0.0187 | | 0.0187 | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | /yr | PM10 | Exhaust |
| | | 0.0187 | | 0.0187 | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | | | PM10 Total |
| | | | | | | | | | | | PM2.5 | Fugitive |
| | | 0.0187 | | 0.0187 | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | LW | PM2.5 | Exhaust | |
| | | 0.0187 | | 0.0187 | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | | PM2.5 Total | |
| | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | | | Bio-CO2 | |
| | | 267.7648 | | 267.7648 | | 1,873.6602 | | 1,873.6602 | | | NBio- CO2 | |
| | | 267.7648 | | 267.7648 | | 1,873.6602 | | 1,873.6602 | | | Total CO2 | |
| | 003 | 5.1300e- | 003 | 5.1300e- | | 0.0443 | | 0.0443 | | '/yr | | CH4 |
| | 003 | 4.9100e- | 003 | 4.9100e- | 003 | 9.1600e- | 003 | 9.1600e- | | | | N2O |
| | | 269.3560 | | 269.3560 | | 1,877.4949 | | 1,877.4949 | | | | CO2e |

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

Apartments Mid

Rise

976996 5.2700e- 0.0450 0.0192 003

2.9000e-004

3.6400e-003

3.6400e-003

3.6400e- 3.6400e-003 0.0000 003

52.1362 52.1362 1.0000e- 9.6000e- 52.4460 003 004

MT/yr

Land Use

kBTU/yr Use

Natural Gas

ROG

NOX

СО

SO2

Fugitive PM10

Exhaust PM10

PM10 Total Fugitive PM2.5

Exhaust PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2

CH4

N20

CO2e

tons/yr

Unmitigated

| Land Use | | |
|----------|-----|-------------|
| kWh/yr | Use | Electricity |
| | | Total CO2 |
| M | | CH4 |
| T/yr | | N20 |
| | | CO2e |

5.3 Energy by Land Use - Electricity <u>Unmitigated</u>

| | 003 | 003 | | | | | | | | | | 003 | | | | | |
|----------|----------|----------|-----------|-----------|---------|-------------|----------|----------|------------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|--------------------|--------------------|
| 269.3560 | 4.9100e- | 5.1300e- | 267.7648 | 267.7648 | 0.0000 | 0.0187 | 0.0187 | | 0.0187 | 0.0187 | | 1.4800e- | 0.1855 | 0.2431 | 0.0271 | | Total |
| | 005 | 005 | | | | | 005 | | 005 | 005 | | 005 | 004 | 003 | 004 | | |
| 1.2307 | 2.0000e- | 2.0000e- | 1.2234 | 1.2234 | 0.0000 | 9.0000e-005 | 9.0000e- | | 9.0000e- | 9.0000e- | | 1.0000e- | 9.4000e- | 1.1200e- | 1.2000e- | 22925.6 | Strip Mall |
| | 003 | 003 | | | | | | | | | | 004 | | | | 60 | Down Restaurant) |
| 162.5971 | 2.9600e- | 3.1000e- | 161.6366 | 161.6366 | 0.0000 | 0.0113 | 0.0113 | | 0.0113 | 0.0113 | | 8.9000e- | 0.1247 | 0.1485 | 0.0163 | 3.02896e+0 | High Turnover (Sit |
| | 004 | 003 | | | | | 003 | | 003 | 003 | | 004 | | | 003 | | Building |
| 53.0822 | 9.7000e- | 1.0100e- | 52.7686 | 52.7686 | 0.0000 | 3.6800e-003 | 3.6800e- | | 3.6800e- | 3.6800e- | | 2.9000e- | 0.0407 | 0.0485 | 5.3300e- | 988846 | General Office |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | with Elevator |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0 | Enclosed Parking |
| | 004 | 003 | | | | | 003 | | 003 | 003 | | 004 | | | 003 | | Rise |
| 52.4460 | 9.6000e- | 1.0000e- | 52.1362 | 52.1362 | 0.0000 | 3.6400e-003 | 3.6400e- | | 3.6400e- | 3.6400e- | | 2.9000e- | 0.0192 | 0.0450 | 5.2700e- | 976996 | Apartments Mid |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | ľ/yr | M | | | | | | | ıs/yr | tor | | | | | kBTU/yr | Land Use |
| | | | | | | | PM2.5 | PM2.5 | | PM10 | PM10 | | | | | Use | |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio-CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust | Fugitive | PM10 Total | Exhaust | Fugitive | SO2 | co | NOX | ROG | Natural Gas | |

Enclosed Parking 0 0.0000 with Elevator 0 0.0000 General Office 988846 5.3300e Building 003 003 High Tumover (Sit 3.02896e+0 0.0163 Down Restaurant) 06 1.2000e Strip Mall 22925.6 1.2000e Total 0.0271 0.0000 1.1200e- 003 0.1485 0.0485 0.2431 9.4000e-0.1855 0.1247 0.0407 0.0000 004 2.9000e-004 8.9000e-004 1.4800e-1.0000e-005 0.0000 003 9.0000e-005 3.6800e-003 0.0000 0.0113 0.0187 3.6800e-003 9.0000e-0.0113 0.0000 0.0187 005 3.6800e-003 9.0000e-0.0000 0.0113 0.0187 005 3.6800e-003 0.0000 9.0000e-005 0.0113 0.0187 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 267.7648 267.7648 5.1300e-161.6366 52.7686 0.0000 1.2234 161.6366 3.1000e-52.7686 0.0000 1.2234 1.0100e-2.0000e-0.0000 003 005 003 003 4.9100e-9.7000e-2.0000e-2.9600e-0.0000 005 003 003 004 0.0000 269.3560 162.5971 53.0822 1.2307

Mitigated

| 003 003 2 0.0124 2.5600e- 525.8923 003 003 003 00162 3.3600e- 688.6526 003 003 003 3 7.6200e- 1.5800e- 323.3537 003 003 003 003 8 2.4800e- 5.1000e- 105.3230 003 004 105.3230 | 9.1500e- 003 | 0.0443 | 1,873.6602 | | Total |
|---|-----------------|-----------------|------------|------------|-------------------|
| 003 003 2 0.0124 2.5600e- 525.8923 0 0.0162 3.3600e- 688.6526 0 0.03 003 003 3 7.6200e- 1.5800e- 323.3537 003 003 003 323.3537 | 5.1000e- 004 | 2.4800e- 003 | 105.1078 | 188717 | Strip Mall |
| 003 003 2 0.0124 2.5600e- 525.8923 0 0.0162 3.3600e- 688.6526 0 0.0162 0.03 003 3 7.6200e- 1.5800e- 323.3537 | 003 | 003 | | | Down Restaurant) |
| 003 003 2 0.0124 2.5600e- 525.8923 003 003 003 003 | 1.5800e- | 7.6200e- | 322.6933 | 579382 | High Tumover (Sit |
| 003 003 2 0.0124 2.5600e- 525.8923 0 0.0162 3.3600e- 688.6526 | 003 | | | 06 | Building |
| 003 003 2 0.0124 2.5600e- 525.8923 003 | 3.3600e- | 0.0162 | 687.2460 | 1.23392e+0 | General Office |
| 003 003 2 0.0124 2.5600e- 525.8923 | 003 | | 5 | | with Elevator |
| 003 003 | 2.5600e- | 0.0124 | 524.8182 | 942288 | Enclosed Parking |
| - | 003 | 003 | | | Rise |
| 9 5.5200e- 1.1400e- 234.2734 | 1.1400e- | 5.5200e- | 233.7949 | 419768 | Apartments Mid |

Mitigated

| | | | | ∍tail | 6.0 Area De |
|------------|----------|----------|------------|--------------------|--------------------|
| | 003 | | | | |
| 1,877.4949 | 9.1500e- | 0.0443 | 1,873.6602 | | Total |
| | 004 | 003 | | | |
| 105.3230 | 5.1000e- | 2.4800e- | 105.1078 | 188717 | Strip Mall |
| | 003 | 003 | | | Down Restaurant) |
| 323.3537 | 1.5800e- | 7.6200e- | 322.6933 | 579382 | High Turnover (Sit |
| | 003 | | | 06 | Building |
| 688.6526 | 3.3600e- | 0.0162 | 687.2460 | 1.23392e+0 | General Office |
| | 003 | | | | with Elevator |
| 525.8923 | 2.5600e- | 0.0124 | 524.8182 | 942288 | Enclosed Parking |
| | 003 | 003 | | | Rise |
| 234.2734 | 1.1400e- | 5.5200e- | 233.7949 | 419768 | Apartments Mid |
| | | | | | |
| | T/yr | M | | kWh/yr | Land Use |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | Electricity Use | |
| | | | | | |

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

Mitigated

| | | 003 | | | | 003 | 003 | | 003 | 003 | | 005 | | | | |
|--------|--------|----------|-----------|-----------|----------|-------------|----------|----------|------------|----------|----------|----------|--------|--------|--------|---------------|
| 1.8426 | 0.0000 | 1.7600e- | 1.7986 | 1.7986 | 0.0000 | 6.0700e- | 6.0700e- | | 6.0700e- | 6.0700e- | | 6.0000e- | 1.1010 | 0.0127 | 1.0279 | Total |
| | | 003 | | | | 003 | 003 | | 003 | 003 | | 005 | | | | |
| 1.8426 | 0.0000 | 1.7600e- | 1.7986 | 1.7986 | 0.0000 | 6.0700e- | 6.0700e- | | 6.0700e- | 6.0700e- | | 6.0000e- | 1.1010 | 0.0127 | 0.0337 | Landscaping |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Hearth |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Products |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | | | | 0.8969 | Consumer |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Coating |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | | | | 0.0974 | Architectural |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | /yr | MT, | | | | | | | ıs/yr | ton | | | | | SubCategory |
| | | | | | | | PM2.5 | PM2.5 | | PM10 | PM10 | | | | | |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust | Fugitive | PM10 Total | Exhaust | Fugitive | SO2 | СО | NOX | ROG | |

6.2 Area by SubCategory <u>Unmitigated</u>

| 1.8426 | 0.0000 | 1.7600e- 003 | 1.7986 | 1.7986 | 0.0000 | 6.0700e- 003 | 6.0700e- 003 | | 6.0700e- 003 | 6.0700e- 003 | | 6.0000e- 005 | 1.1010 | 0.0127 | 1.0279 | Unmitigated |
|--------|--------|-----------------------------|-----------|-----------|----------|-----------------|------------------|-------------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|--------|--------|--------|-------------|
| 1.8426 | 0.0000 | 1.7600 e- 003 | 1.7986 | 1.7986 | 0.0000 | 6.0700e- 003 | 6.0700e- 003 | | 6.0700e- 003 | 6.0700e- 003 | | 6.0000e- 005 | 1.1010 | 0.0127 | 1.0279 | Mitigated |
| | | /yr | MT | | | | | | | s/yr | ton | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N2O | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | СО | NOX | ROG | |

| 7 0 10/0402 1 | Total | Landscaping | Hearth | Consumer Products | Architectural Coating | SubCategory | |
|----------------|-----------------|-----------------|--------|----------------------|--------------------------|-------------|-------------------|
| J _242: | 1.0279 | 0.0337 | 0.0000 | 0.8969 | 0.0974 | | ROG |
| | 0.0127 | 0.0127 | 0.0000 | | | | NOX |
| | 1.1010 | 1.1010 | 0.0000 | | | | CO |
| | 6.0000e- 005 | 6.0000e- 005 | 0.0000 | | | | SO2 |
| | | | | | | tons | Fugitive PM10 |
| | 6.0700e- 003 | 6.0700e- 003 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | s/yr | Exhaust PM10 |
| | 6.0700e- 003 | 6.0700e- 003 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total |
| | | | | | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| | 6.0700e- 003 | 6.0700e- 003 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| | 6.0700e- 003 | 6.0700e- 003 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| | 1.7986 | 1.7986 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | МТ | NBio- CO2 |
| | 1.7986 | 1.7986 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Total CO2 |
| | 1.7600e- 003 | 1.7600e- 003 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | lуг | CH4 |
| | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N20 |
| | 1.8426 | 1.8426 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

| , | | | |
|-------------|-----------|----------|-----------|
| Unmitigated | Mitigated | Category | |
| 314.5498 | 314.5498 | | Total CO2 |
| 0.9460 | 0.9460 | MT/ | CH4 |
| 0.0237 | 0.0237 | ýr | N20 |
| 345.2500 | 345.2500 | | CO2e |

Indoor/Outd Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e oor Use

7.2 Water by Land Use <u>Unmitigated</u>

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

8.0 Waste Detail

| 345.2500 | 0.0237 | 0.9460 | 314.5498 | | Total |
|----------|----------|--------|-----------|-------------|--------------------|
| | 004 | | | 0.634682 | |
| 12.8701 | 8.5000e- | 0.0340 | 11.7657 | 1.03553 / | Strip Mall |
| | 003 | | | 0.254387 | Down Restaurant) |
| 35.9641 | 3.2200e- | 0.1306 | 31.7414 | 3.9854 / | High Turnover (Sit |
| | | | | 10.3476 | Building |
| 209.8297 | 0.0139 | 0.5545 | 191.8238 | 16.8829/ | General Office |
| | | | | | with Elevator |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0/0 | Enclosed Parking |
| | 003 | | | 4.35399 | Rise |
| 86.5861 | 5.6900e- | 0.2269 | 79.2189 | 6.90633 / | Apartments Mid |
| | | | | | |
| | T/yr | M | | Mgal | Land Use |
| | | | | oor Use | |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | Indoor/Outd | |

<u>Mitigated</u>

| 345.2500 | 0.0237 | 0.9460 | 314.5498 | | Total |
|----------|----------|--------|----------|-----------|--------------------|
| | 004 | | | 0.634682 | |
| 12.8701 | 8.5000e- | 0.0340 | 11.7657 | 1.03553 / | Strip Mall |
| | 003 | | | 0.254387 | Down Restaurant) |
| 35.9641 | 3.2200e- | 0.1306 | 31.7414 | 3.9854 / | High Turnover (Sit |
| | | | | 10.3476 | Building |
| 209.8297 | 0.0139 | 0.5545 | 191.8238 | 16.8829/ | General Office |
| | | | | | with Elevator |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0/0 | Enclosed Parking |
| | 003 | | | 4.35399 | Rise |
| 86.5861 | 5.6900e- | 0.2269 | 79.2189 | 6.90633 / | Apartments Mid |
| | | | | | |
| | T/yr | M | | Mgal | Land Use |

Category/Year

| Unmitigated | Mitigated | | |
|-------------|-----------|-----|-----------|
| 62.5273 | 62.5273 | | Total CO2 |
| 3.6953 | 3.6953 | MT | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 'yr | N20 |
| 154.9088 | 154.9088 | | CO2e |

÷

8.2 Waste by Land Use <u>Unmitigated</u>

| Total | Strip Mall | High Tumover (Sit Down Restaurant) | General Office Building | Enclosed Parking with Elevator | Apartments Mid Rise | Land Use | |
|----------|------------|---------------------------------------|----------------------------|-----------------------------------|------------------------|----------|-------------------|
| | 14.68 | 156.25 | 88.34 | 0 | 48.76 | tons | Waste Disposed |
| 62.5273 | 2.9799 | 31.7173 | 17.9322 | 0.0000 | 9.8978 | | Total CO2 |
| 3.6953 | 0.1761 | 1.8744 | 1.0598 | 0.0000 | 0.5850 | М | CH4 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Г/уг | N20 |
| 154.9088 | 7.3826 | 78.5784 | 44.4263 | 0.0000 | 24.5215 | | CO2e |

Mitigated

| Land Use tons MTyr Apartments Mid Rise 48.76 9.8978 0.5850 0.000 Enciosed Parking Generat Office 48.76 9.8978 0.5850 0.000 Enciosed Parking Building 0 0.00000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 Enciosed Parking Building 0 0.00000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 Building 14.68 2.9799 0.1761 0.000 Total 156.25 31.7173 1.8744 0.000 Joon Copperational Offroad 2.9799 0.1761 0.000 Jona Equipment Type Numbe Numbe Equipment Type Numbe Numbe Equipment Type Numbe | | Diaboaca | | | | |
|--|---------------------------------------|---------------|------------|----------|--------|----------|
| Apartments Mid 48.76 9.8978 0.5850 0.0000 24.52 Rise 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 With Elevator 156.25 31.7173 1.8744 0.0000 44.42 Building 14.68 2.9799 0.1761 0.0000 44.42 Total 14.68 2.9799 0.1761 0.0000 7.857 Simp Mail 14.68 2.9799 0.1761 0.0000 7.857 Down Restaurant) 14.68 2.9799 0.1761 0.0000 7.857 Simp Mail 14.68 2.9799 0.1761 0.0000 7.857 O.O Operational Offroad Equipment Type Number Mumber Mumber Soilers Equipment Type Number Number 4.0000 4.422 Ser Defined Equipment Type Number Number 4.0000 4.422 Ser Defined Equipment Type Number 4.0000 4.0000 4.0000 | Land Use | tons | | Z | IT/yr | |
| Rise 0 0.0000 7.3826 Building 14.68 2.9799 0.1761 0.0000 7.3826 0.0000 7.3826 Total 14.68 2.9799 0.1761 0.0000 7.3826 0.0000 7.3826 Total 62.5273 3.6953 0.0000 7.3826 0.0000 7.3826 Total 62.5273 3.6953 0.0000 154.9088 0.0000 7.3826 0.0000 7.3826 0.0000 154.9088 0.0000 154.9088 0.0000 154.9088 0.0000 154.9088 0.0000 154.9088 0.0000 154.9088 0.0000 154.9088 0.0000 | partments Mid | 4 8.76 | 9.8978 | 0.5850 | 0.0000 | 24.5215 |
| Enclosed Parking General Office Building 0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 General Office Building 163.23 17173 1.8744 0.0000 44.4263 Total 166.25 31.7173 1.8744 0.0000 7.8253 Total 14.68 2.9799 0.1761 0.0000 7.8253 Jown Restaurant) 14.68 2.9799 0.1761 0.0000 7.8253 Journal 14.68 2.9799 0.1761 0.0000 7.8253 Journal 62.5273 3.6953 0.0000 7.8256 Journal Equipment Type Number Ho Lequipment Type Number Ho Boilers Equipment Type Number Heat Lequipment Type Number Heat User Defined Equipment Type Number Heat Staperation Heat Heat | Rise | | | | | |
| Comment Office 88.3.4 17.9322 1.0598 0.0000 44.4263 Building 156.25 31.7173 1.8744 0.0000 78.5784 Down Restaurant) 14.68 2.9799 0.1761 0.0000 78.5784 Total 62.5273 3.6953 0.0000 78.5784 0.0000 78.5784 Journal Offroad 62.5273 3.6953 0.0000 7.3826 154.9088 Journal Offroad Equipment Type Number Hor Hor Journal Emergency Generators Equipment Type Hor Hor Boilers Equipment Type Number Hor Equipment Type Number Heat In User Defined Equipment Type Number Heat In Equipment Type Number Heat In | Enclosed Parking with Elevator | 0 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 |
| High Tumover (Sit) 136.25 31,7173 1.8744 0.0000 78.5784 Total 14.68 2.9799 0.1761 0.0000 78.5784 Total 62.5273 3.6953 0.0000 7.3826 0.0000 7.3826 Stip Mail 14.68 2.9799 0.1761 0.0000 7.3826 0.0000 7.3826 Stip Mail Equipment Type Number Number Hours Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators Kumber Hours Boilers Equipment Type Number Hours Equipment Type Number Heat Ing | General Office Building | 88.34 | 17.9322 | 1.0598 | 0.0000 | 44.4263 |
| Strip Mail 14.68 2.9799 0.1761 0.0000 7.3826 Total e2.5273 3.6953 0.0000 154.9088 J.O. Operational Offroad Number Hours Figure Ruipment Type Number Hours Equipment Type Number Hours Boilers Equipment Type Number Hours Equipment Type Number Hours Boilers Equipment Type Number Hours Equipment Type Number Hours Boilers Equipment Type Number Heat Ing Equipment Type Number Heat Ing I 10.0 Vegetation Strip Mail Number Heat Ing | High Tumover (Sit Down Restaurant) | 156.25 | 31.7173 | 1.8744 | 0.0000 | 78.5784 |
| Total 62.5273 3.6953 0.0000 154.9088 9.0 Operational Offroad Fequipment Type Number Hours Equipment Type Number Hours Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators Equipment Type Number Hours Boilers Equipment Type Number Hours Equipment Type Number Hours User Defined Equipment Type Number Heat Inp Equipment Type Number Heat Inp User Defined Equipment Type Number Heat Inp | Strip Mall | 14.68 | 2.9799 | 0.1761 | 0.0000 | 7.3826 |
| 9.0 Operational Offroad Equipment Type Number Hours 10.0 Stationary Equipment Hours Hours Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators Hours Equipment Type Number Hours Boilers Number Hours Equipment Type Number Hours Boilers Hours Hours Equipment Type Number Heat Inp Equipment Type Number Heat Inp Equipment Type Number Heat Inp | Total | | 62.5273 | 3.6953 | 0.0000 | 154.9088 |
| Equipment Type Number Hours 10.0 Stationary Equipment Integrationary Equipment Integrationary Integrationary Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators Integrationary Integrationary Integrationary Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators Integrationary Integrationary Integrationary Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators Integrationary Integrationary Integrationary Equipment Type Number Integrationary Equipment Type Number Integrationary | 9.0 Operati | ional Ofi | froad | | | |
| 10.0 Stationary Equipment Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators Equipment Type Number Boilers Equipment Type Number Hours Sequipment Type Number Heat Inp Equipment Type Equipment Type Number Heat Inp Equipment Type Number Heat Inp Inp Equipment Type Number Heat Inp Equipment Type Number Heat Inp Equipment Type Number | Eq | tuipment Typ | Û | | Number | |
| Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators Equipment Type Number Hours Boilers Sequipment Type Number Heat Inp Equipment Type Number Heat Inp User Defined Equipment Type Number Heat Inp Equipment Type Number Equipment Type Number Equipment Type Number Number Equipment Type Number Equipment Type Number Number Equipment Type Number Equipment Type Number Equipment Type <t< td=""><td>10.0 Statio</td><td>nary Eq</td><td>uipmen</td><td>Ŧ</td><td></td><td></td></t<> | 10.0 Statio | nary Eq | uipmen | Ŧ | | |
| Equipment Type Number Hours Boilers Image: Second S | Fire Pumps | and Eme | rgency (| ienerato | ors | |
| Boilers Number Heat Inp Equipment Type Number Heat Inp User Defined Equipment Fully Section Heat Inp Equipment Type Number Number | E | quipment Typ | æ | | Number | |
| Equipment Type Number Heat Inp User Defined Equipment Equipment Type Number 11.0 Vegetation | Boilers | | | | | |
| User Defined Equipment Equipment Type Number 11.0 Vegetation | Eq | quipment Typ | e | | Number | |
| Equipment Type Number 11.0 Vegetation | User Definec | d Equipm | <u>ent</u> | | | |
| 11.0 Vegetation | Ec | quipment Typ | e | | Number | |
| | 11.0 Veget | ation | | | | |

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2

Page 1 of 1

Date: 3/18/2019 12:59 PM

1024 Mateo Street Future - Los Angeles-South Coast County, Winter

1024 Mateo Street Future

Los Angeles-South Coast County, Winter

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

| Enclosed Parking with Elevator | Strip Mall | High Turnover (Sit Down Restaurant) | General Office Building | Apartments Mid Rise | Land Uses | |
|--------------------------------|------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------------|---------------------|--------------------|--|
| 402.00 | 13.98 | 13.13 | 94.99 | 106.00 | Size | |
| Space | 1000sqft | 1000sqft | 1000sqft | Dwelling Unit | Metric | |
| 0.00 | 0.09 | 0.09 | 0.50 | 0.60 | Lot Acreage | |
| 160,800.00 | 13,979.00 | 13,126.00 | 94,990.00 | 123,225.00 | Floor Surface Area | |
| 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 303 | Population | |

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

| CO2 Intensity (Ib/MWhr) | Utility Company | Climate Zone | Urbanization |
|----------------------------|-----------------------|-------------------------|---------------------------|
| 1227.89 | Los Angeles Departmen | 11 | Urban |
| CH4 Intensity (Ib/MWhr) | t of Water & Power | | Wind Speed (m/s) |
| 0.029 | | | 2.2 |
| N2O Intensity (Ib/MWhr) | | Operational Year | Precipitation Freq (Days) |
| 0.006 | | 2022 | 33 |

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

Project Characteristics -

Land Use - Developer information

Construction Phase - Developer information

Off-road Equipment - Developer information

Off-road Equipment - Developer information

| 4.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentWitigated | tblConstEquipMitigation |
|-----------|--------------------------|--|--------------------------------------|
| 6.00 | 0.00 | Number OfEquipmentMitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 6.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 5.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 3.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 3.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 15.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 4.00 | 0.00 | Number OfEquipmentMitigated | tblConstEquipMitigation |
| 2.00 | 0.00 | Number Of Equipment Mitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 4.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tbiConstEquipMittgation |
| 21.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tblConstEquipMitigation |
| 1.00 | 0.00 | Number Of Equipment Mitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 2.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 1.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tblConstEquipMitigation |
| 3.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 2.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tbiConstEquipMittgation |
| 1.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tbiConstEquipMitigation |
| 8.00 | 0.00 | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated | tblConstEquipMitigation |
| 1.00 | 0.00 | Number Of Equipment Mitigated | tbiConstEquipMittgation |
| 46 | 0 | CleanPavedRoadPercentReduction | tblConstDustMitigation |
| New Value | Default Value | Column Name | Table Name |
| | 403 control efficiencies | itigation - Assumes SCAQMD Rule | Construction Off-road Equipment M |
| | | SUC | Woodstoves - Consultant assumptic |
| | | arch 2019 | Vehicle Trips - LLG Traffic Study, M |
| | s landfill | r haul truck, 17 miles to Puente Hills | Trips and VMT - Assumes 10CY per |
| | | g A, 545 tons from Building B | Demolition - 1,142 tons from buildin |

Grading - Developer information

Off-road Equipment - Developer information Off-road Equipment - Developer information Off-road Equipment - Developer information

| tblConstructionPhase | tblConstructionPhase | tbiConstructionPhase | tbiConstructionPhase | tblConstructionPhase | tbiConstEquipMitigation | tbiConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation | tbiConstEquipMitigation | tbiConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation | tbiConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation | tblConstEquipMitigation |
|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------------|-------------------------------|----------------------------|
| NumDays | NumDays | NumDays | NumDays | NumDays | Tier | Number Of Equipment Mitigated | Number Of Equipment Mitigated | NumberOfEquipmentMitigated |
| 10.00 | 200.00 | 4.00 | 2.00 | 20.00 | No Change | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 |
| 68.00 | 442.00 | 66.00 | 5.00 | 22.00 | Tier 3 | 2.00 | 1.00 | 6.00 |

| tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblLandUse | tblLandUse | tblLandUse | tblLandUse | tblLandUse | tblLandUse | tblGrading | tblGrading | tblFireplaces | tblFireplaces | tblFireplaces |
|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|-------------------|------------------|----------------|---------------|-------------------|---------------|
| LoadFactor | HorsePower | LotAcreage | LotAcreage | LotAcreage | LotAcreage | LotAcreage | LandUseSquareFeet | MaterialExported | AcresOfGrading | NumberWood | NumberNoFireplace | NumberGas |
| 0.31 | 0.37 | 0.46 | 0.36 | 0.40 | 0.42 | 0.38 | 0.50 | 0.37 | 0.46 | 0.36 | 0.46 | 0.36 | 0.40 | 0.40 | 0.42 | 0.38 | 0.43 | 168.00 | 3.62 | 0.32 | 0.30 | 2.18 | 2.79 | 106,000.00 | 0.00 | 24.75 | 5.30 | 10.60 | 90.10 |
| 0.31 | 0.37 | 0.46 | 0.36 | 0.40 | 0.42 | 0.38 | 0.50 | 0.37 | 0.46 | 0.36 | 0.46 | 0.36 | 0.40 | 0.40 | 0.42 | 0.38 | 0.43 | 88.00 | 0.00 | 0.09 | 0.09 | 0.50 | 0.60 | 123,225.00 | 38,985.00 | 1.29 | 0.00 | 106.00 | 0.00 |

| tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbIOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbiOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbIOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tbIOffRoadEquipment | tbIOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | - |
|------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|---------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------------------|------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|--------------------------|----------------------|--------------------------|----------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---|
| OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | OffRoadEquipmentType | LoadFactor | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 0.42 | 0.20 | 0.50 | 0.37 | 0.46 | 0.40 | 0.40 | 0.42 | 0.20 | |
| Other Construction Equipment | Excavators | Dumpers/Tenders | Bore/Drill Rigs | Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes | Sweepers/Scrubbers | Rubber Tired Loaders | Sweepers/Scrubbers | Signal Boards | Rubber Tired Loaders | Rough Terrain Forklifts | Other Material Handling Equipment | Other Construction Equipment | Generator Sets | Excavators | Dumpers/Tenders | Crushing/Proc. Equipment | Crawler Tractors | Concrete/Industrial Saws | Air Compressors | 0.42 | 0.20 | 0.50 | 0.37 | 0.46 | 0.40 | 0.34 | 0.42 | 0.20 | |
| tblVehicleTrips | tblTripsAndVMT | tblTripsAndVMT | tblTripsAndVMT | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment | tblOffRoadEquipment |
|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|
| PB_TP | HW_TTP | HS_TTP | HO_TTP | DV_TP | DV_TP | DV_TP | DV_TP | WorkerTripNumber | WorkerTripNumber | WorkerTripNumber | WorkerTripNumber | WorkerTripNumber | VendorTripNumber | VendorTripNumber | VendorTripNumber | VendorTripNumber | HaulingTripNumber | HaulingTripLength | HaulingTripLength | UsageHours | OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount | OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount | OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount |
| 3.00 | 40.20 | 19.20 | 40.60 | 40.00 | 20.00 | 19.00 | 11.00 | 37.00 | 184.00 | 65.00 | 18.00 | 103.00 | 0.00 | 58.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 4,873.00 | 20.00 | 20.00 | 6.00 | 8.00 | 6.00 | 6.00 | 6.00 | 7.00 | 8.00 | 1.00 | 3.00 | 1.00 |
| 0.00 | 40.00 | 19.00 | 41.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 32.00 | 300.00 | 20.00 | 12.00 | 20.00 | 2.00 | 10.00 | 2.00 | 2.00 | 3,899.00 | 17.00 | 17.00 | 8.00 | 6.00 | 8.00 | 8.00 | 8.00 | 8.00 | 6.00 | 2.00 | 2.00 | 2.00 |

| | ROG |
|-------|-------------|
| | NOX |
| | co |
| | SO2 |
| PM10 | Fugitive |
| PM10 | Exhaust |
| | PM10 Total |
| PM2.5 | Fugitive |
| PM2.5 | Exhaust |
| | PM2.5 Total |
| | Bio- CO2 |
| | NBio- CO2 |
| | Total CO2 |
| | CH4 |
| | N20 |
| | CO2e |

Unmitigated Construction

2.1 Overall Construction (Maximum Daily Emission)

2.0 Emissions Summary

.

| tbIWcodstoves | tbIW codstoves | tblVehicleTrips | tbl/VehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tbl/VehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tbiVehicleTrips | tblVehicleTrips |
|---------------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|
| Number Noncatalytic | NumberCatalytic | WD_TR | WD_TR | WD_TR | WD_TR | SU_TR | SU_TR | SU_TR | SU_TR | ST_TR | ST_TR | ST_TR | ST_TR | PR_TP | PR_TP | PR_TP | PR_TP | PB_TP | PB_TP | PB_TP |
| 5.30 | 5.30 | 44.32 | 127.15 | 11.03 | 6.65 | 20.43 | 131.84 | 1.05 | 5.86 | 42.04 | 158.37 | 2.46 | 6.39 | 45.00 | 37.00 | 77.00 | 86.00 | 15.00 | 43.00 | 4.00 |
| 0.00 | 0.00 | 14.35 | 68.07 | 7.40 | 5.56 | 14.35 | 68.07 | 7.40 | 5.56 | 14.35 | 68.07 | 7.40 | 5.56 | 100.00 | 100.00 | 100.00 | 100.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 |

.

. ÷ ÷ ÷

| | ROG |
|-------|-------------|
| | NOX |
| | СО |
| | SO2 |
| PM10 | Fugitive |
| PM10 | Exhaust |
| | PM10 Total |
| PM2.5 | Fugitive |
| PM2.5 | Exhaust |
| | PM2.5 Total |
| | Bio- CO2 |
| | NBio- CO2 |
| | Total CO2 |
| | CH4 |
| | N20 |
| | CO2e |

N Unmitigated Operational

| ю |
|-----|
| Ş |
| era |
| all |
| 0 |
| ber |
| ati |
| ō |
| |
| a |

| Percent Reduction | | Maximum | 2022 | 2021 | 2020 | Year | |
|-------------------|-------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|------|-------------------|
| 26.58 | ROG | 32.6899 | 32.6899 | 3.5049 | 4.4121 | | ROG |
| 22.84 | NOX | 76.9469 | 53.3247 | 43.0081 | 76.9469 | | NOX |
| -7.82 | 8 | 94.1012 | 83.5995 | 67.9846 | 94.1012 | | CO |
| 0.00 | S02 | 0.1539 | 0.1463 | 0.1208 | 0.1539 | | SO2 |
| 48.64 | Fugitive PM10 | 2.4214 | 2.2786 | 2.0553 | 2.4214 | Ib/c | Fugitive PM10 |
| 15.08 | Exhaust PM10 | 4.1626 | 3.0773 | 2.4935 | 4.1626 | lay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 30.80 | PM10 Total | 5.3559 | 5.3559 | 4.5488 | 4.9783 | | PM10 Total |
| 52.32 | Fugitive PM2.5 | 1.1302 | 0.6358 | 0.5734 | 1.1302 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 10.80 | Exhaust PM2.5 | 4.1069 | 3.0700 | 2.4852 | 4.1069 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 15.76 | PM2.5 Total | 4.2576 | 3.7059 | 3.0587 | 4.2576 | | PM2.5 Total |
| 0.00 | Bio- CO2 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| 0.00 | NBio-CO2 | 14,763.462 8 | 14,037.751 6 | 11,608.168 4 | 14,763.462 8 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 0.00 | Total CO2 | 14,763.462 8 | 14,037.751 6 | 11,608.168 4 | 14,763.462 8 | Ib/c | Total CO2 |
| 0.00 | CH4 | 3.3993 | 2.4453 | 1.9671 | 3.3993 | day | CH4 |
| 0.00 | N20 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | N20 |
| 0.00 | CO2e | 14,848.446 2 | 14,098.883 5 | 11,657.346 5 | 14,848.446 2 | | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction

| Maximum | 2022 | 2021 | 2020 | Year |
|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|------|
| 37.0308 | 37.0308 | 7.3599 | 10.9155 | |
| 105.0826 | 63.5904 | 55.8877 | 105.0826 | |
| 84.6933 | 78.7190 | 64.4639 | 84.6933 | |
| 0.1539 | 0.1463 | 0.1208 | 0.1539 | |
| 5.9465 | 3.7878 | 3.4173 | 5.9465 | Ib/c |
| 5.3221 | 3.2323 | 2.9076 | 5.3221 | lay |
| 8.1611 | 7.0201 | 6.3249 | 8.1611 | |
| 2.9930 | 1.0063 | 0.9077 | 2.9930 | |
| 5.0258 | 3.0577 | 2.7481 | 5.0258 | |
| 5.3645 | 4.0640 | 3.6558 | 5.3645 | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | |
| 14,763.462 8 | 14,037.751 6 | 11,608.168 4 | 14,763.462 8 | |
| 14,763.462 8 | 14,037.751 6 | 11,608.168 4 | 14,763.462 8 | Ib/c |
| 3.3993 | 2.4453 | 1.9671 | 3.3993 | day |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | |
| 14,848.446 2 | 14,098.883 5 | 11,657.346 5 | 14,848.446 2 | |

| 2 | د | Phase Number | <u>Construc</u> | 3.0 Con | Percent Red | | | Total | Mobile | Energy | Area | Categor | |
|------------|-----------|-----------------|-----------------|---------|-------------|------------------|---|---------------|--------------|-------------------|-------------|---------|-------------------------------|
| Site Pr | Demo | | tion | ıstru | uction | | | | | · | | У | |
| eparation | ition | Phase | Phase | ction D | 0.00 | ROG | | 10.1450 | 4.2795 | 0.1483 | 5.7173 | | ROG |
| | | Name | | etail | 0.0 | N | | 23.2303 | 21.7968 | 1.3320 | 0.1015 | | NOX |
| (0) | | | | | 6 | X | | 67.811 | 57.9863 | 1.0167 | 8.8081 | | co |
| Site Prepa | Demolitio | | | | 0.00 | 8 | ┢ | 1 0.22 | 3 0.21 | 8.09(00 | 4.700 00 | | SC |
| aration | n | Phase | | | 0.00 | S OZ | | 18 1 | 32 1 | з _{Ое} - | 00e- 4 | | 22 |
| | | Туре | | | 0.(| Fugi P M | | 8.2740 | 8.2740 | | | Ib/d | -ugitive PM10 |
| | | | | | 00 | itive E 110 | | 0.3322 | 0.1812 | 0.1024 | 0.0486 | lay | Exhaus PM10 |
| 7/1/2020 | 6/1/2020 | Start | | | 0.00 | xhaust PM10 | ┢ | 18.6 | 18.4 | 0.10 | 0.0 | | t PM10 |
| | | Date | | | 0.00 | PM10 To | | 062 | 552 | 024 | 186 | | Total F |
| 7/7/202 | 6/30/20 | т | | | 0. | otal Fug PN | | 4.8904 | 4.8904 | | | | ⁻ ugitive PM2.5 |
| ö |)20 | nd Date | | | 00 | itive I I2.5 | | 0.3200 | 0.169(| 0.1024 | 0.0486 | | Exhaus PM2.5 |
| | | Nu | | | 0.00 | ≣xhaust PM2.5 | ┢ |) 5.2 |) 5.C | 4 0.1 | 6 0.C | | st PM2. |
| ы | ъ | m Days Neek | | | 0.00 | PM2.t Total | | 105 | 1595 | 024 | 1486 | | 5 Total |
| | | Num D | | | 0. | Bio- | | 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | | Bio- CO2 |
| σı | 22 | ays | | | 00 | CO2 N | | 23,344.: 7 | 21,711. | 1,617.3 | 15.86 | | NBio- C |
| | | П | | | 0.00 | IBio-CO2 | ┠ | 212 23,3 | 035 21,7 | 160 1,61 | 13 15 | | :02 Tot |
| | | hase De | | | 0.00 | Total C | | 344.212 7 | 711.035 5 | 17.3160 | 5.8613 | Ib/da | al CO2 |
| | | scription | | | 0 | .02 02 | | 1.1764 | 1.1299 | 0.0310 | 0.0155 | iy | CH4 |
| | | | | | .00 | H4 | | 0.029 | | 0.02 | 0.00(| | N2C |
| | | | | | 0.00 | N20 | ╟ |)7 23,3 | 21,7 | 97 1,62 |)0 16 | | 0 |
| | | | | | 0.00 | COZ | | 382.459 1 | 739.283 7 | 26.9269 | 3.2486 | | 302e |

.....

Mitigated Operational

| Total | Mobile | Energy | Area | Category |
|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|----------|
| 10.1450 | 4.2795 | 0.1483 | 5.7173 | |
| 23.2303 | 21.7968 | 1.3320 | 0.1015 | |
| 67.8111 | 57.9863 | 1.0167 | 8.8081 | |
| 0.2218 | 0.2132 | 8.0900e- 003 | 4.7000e- 004 | |
| 18.2740 | 18.2740 | | | Ib/c |
| 0.3322 | 0.1812 | 0.1024 | 0.0486 | lay |
| 18.6062 | 18.4552 | 0.1024 | 0.0486 | |
| 4.8904 | 4.8904 | | | |
| 0.3200 | 0.1690 | 0.1024 | 0.0486 | |
| 5.2105 | 5.0595 | 0.1024 | 0.0486 | |
| 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | |
| 23,344.212 7 | 21,711.035 5 | 1,617.3160 | 15.8613 | |
| 23,344.212 7 | 21,711.035 5 | 1,617.3160 | 15.8613 | Ib/d |
| 1.1764 | 1.1299 | 0.0310 | 0.0155 | ау |
| 0.0297 | | 0.0297 | 0.0000 | |
| 23,382.459 1 | 21,739.283 7 | 1,626.9269 | 16.2486 | |

| 5 | 4 | ω |
|-----------------------|-----------------------|-----------|
| Architectural Coating | Building Construction | Grading |
| Architectural Coating | Building Construction | Grading |
| 3/16/2022 | 10/8/2020 | 7/8/2020 |
| 6/17/2022 | 6/17/2022 | 10/7/2020 |
| ъ | ហ | ர |
| 88 | 442 | 66 |
| | | |

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 2.5

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 1.29

Acres of Paving: 0

Residential Indoor: 249,531; Residential Outdoor: 83,177; Non-Residential Indoor: 183,143; Non-Residential Outdoor: 61,048; Striped Parking

OffRoad Equipment

| Phase Name | Offroad Equipment Type | Amount | Usage Hours | Horse Power | Load Factor |
|------------------|-----------------------------------|--------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|
| Demolition | Air Compressors | 4 | 8.00 | 78 | 0.48 |
| Demolition | Concrete/Industrial Saws | 2 | 6.00 | 81 | 0.73 |
| Demolition | Crawler Tractors | N | 6.00 | 212 | 0.43 |
| Demolition | Crushing/Proc. Equipment | _ <u>_</u> | 6.00 | 85 | 0.78 |
| Demolition | Dumpers/Tenders | 10 | 6.00 | 16 | 0.38 |
| Demolition | Excavators | 2 | 8.00 | 158 | 0.38 |
| Demolition | Generator Sets | 2 | 8.00 | 84 | 0.74 |
| Demolition | Other Construction Equipment | л | 8.00 | 172 | 0.42 |
| Demolition | Other Material Handling Equipment | N | 6.00 | 168 | 0.40 |
| Demolition | Rough Terrain Forklifts | 2 | 6.00 | 100 | 0.40 |
| Demolition | Rubber Tired Loaders | N | 6.00 | 203 | 0.36 |
| Demolition | Signal Boards | 2 | 6.00 | ŋ | 0.82 |
| Demolition | Sweepers/Scrubbers | | 8.00 | 64 | 0.46 |
| Site Preparation | Rubber Tired Loaders | 2 | 8.00 | 203 | 0.36 |
| Site Preparation | Sweepers/Scrubbers | | 8.00 | 64 | 0.46 |
| Site Preparation | Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes | N | 8.00 | 97 | 0.37 |
| Grading | Bore/Drill Rigs | <u> </u> | 8.00 | 221 | 0.50 |
| Grading | Dumpers/Tenders | 10 | 6.00 | 16 | 0.38 |
| Grading | Excavators | 2 | 8.00 | 158 | 0.38 |

| 0.40 | 747 | 10.8 | | Rubber Tired Dozers | |
|------|-----|--------|---|-----------------------------------|-----------------------|
| 0.41 | 187 | 1 8.00 | | Graders | Site Preparation |
| 0.41 | 187 | 6.00 | _ | Graders | Grading |
| 0.30 | 13 | 8.00 | | Pressure Washers | Architectural Coating |
| 0.42 | 172 | 8.00 | N | Other Construction Equipment | Architectural Coating |
| 0.20 | 68 | 8.00 | | Forklifts | Architectural Coating |
| 0.48 | 78 | 8.00 | N | Air Compressors | Architectural Coating |
| 0.45 | 46 | 6.00 | N | Welders | Building Construction |
| 0.50 | 78 | 6.00 | _ | Trenchers | Building Construction |
| 0.37 | 97 | 8.00 | N | Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes | Building Construction |
| 0.46 | 64 | 6.00 | _ | Sweepers/Scrubbers | Building Construction |
| 0.82 | 0 | 8.00 | N | Signal Boards | Building Construction |
| 0.40 | 100 | 8.00 | _ | Rough Terrain Forklifts | Building Construction |
| 0.30 | 13 | 6.00 | _ | Pressure Washers | Building Construction |
| 0.34 | 88 | 6.00 | _ | Other Material Handling Equipment | Building Construction |
| 0.42 | 172 | 6.00 | 6 | Other Construction Equipment | Building Construction |
| 0.74 | 84 | 8.00 | N | Generator Sets | Building Construction |
| 0.20 | 68 | 8.00 | _ | Forklifts | Building Construction |
| 0.38 | 16 | 8.00 | | Dumpers/Tenders | Building Construction |
| 0.29 | 231 | 8.00 | _ | Cranes | Building Construction |
| 0.73 | 81 | 6.00 | | Concrete/Industrial Saws | Building Construction |
| 0.56 | Q | 8.00 | N | Cement and Mortar Mixers | Building Construction |
| 0.48 | 78 | 8.00 | | Air Compressors | Building Construction |
| 0.31 | 63 | 8.00 | _ | Aerial Lifts | Building Construction |
| 0.37 | 97 | 8.00 | | Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes | Grading |
| 0.46 | 64 | 8.00 | _ | Sweepers/Scrubbers | Grading |
| 0.82 | 6 | 8.00 | | Signal Boards | Grading |
| 0.36 | 203 | 6.00 | | Rubber Tired Loaders | Grading |
| 0.40 | 100 | 6.00 | | Rough Terrain Forklifts | Grading |
| 0.42 | 172 | 8.00 | | Other Construction Equipment | Grading |

| Grading | Rubber Tired Dozers | 1 | 6.00 | 247 | 0.40 |
|------------------|---------------------------|---|------|-----|------|
| Site Preparation | Rubber Tired Dozers | 1 | 7.00 | 247 | 0.40 |
| Demolition | Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes | 3 | 8.00 | 97 | 0.37 |

Trips and VMT

| Phase Name | Offroad Equipment Count | Worker Trip Number | Vendor Trip Number | Hauling Trip Number | Worker Trip Length | Vendor Trip Length | Hauling Trip Length | Worker Vehicle Class | Vendor Vehicle Class | Hauling Vehicle Class |
|-----------------------|----------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|--------------------------|
| Demolition | 41 | 20.00 | 0.00 | 167.00 | 14.70 | 6.90 | 17.00 | LD_Mix | HDT_Mix | HHDT |
| Site Preparation | 7 | 12.00 | 2.00 | 0.00 | 14.70 | 6.90 | 20.00 | LD_Mix | HDT_Mix | HHDT |
| Grading | 26 | 20.00 | 2.00 | 3,899.00 | 14.70 | 6.90 | 17.00 | LD_Mix | HDT_Mix | HHDT |
| Building Construction | 28 | 300.00 | 10.00 | 0.00 | 14.70 | 6.90 | 20.00 | LD_Mix | HDT_Mix | HHDT |
| Architectural Coating | 7 | 32.00 | 2.00 | 0.00 | 14.70 | 6.90 | 20.00 | LD_Mix | HDT_Mix | ннот |

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Use Cleaner Engines for Construction Equipment

Replace Ground Cover

Water Exposed Area

Clean Paved Roads

3.2 Demolition - 2020

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

| 14,071.613 7 | | 3.3513 | 13,987.831 5 | 13,987.831 5 | | 5.2667 | 5.0183 | 0.2485 | 6.9550 | 5.3141 | 1.6409 | 0.1466 | 83.4357 | 103.0255 | 10.7534 | Total |
|-----------------|-----|--------|-----------------|-----------------|---------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|----------|---------|---------------|
| 14,071.613 7 | | 3.3513 | 13,987.831 5 | 13,987.831 5 | | 5.0183 | 5.0183 | | 5.3141 | 5.3141 | | 0.1466 | 83.4357 | 103.0255 | 10.7534 | Off-Road |
| 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | | | 0.2485 | 0.0000 | 0.2485 | 1.6409 | 0.0000 | 1.6409 | | | | | Fugitive Dust |
| | | ау | lb/d | | | | | | | day | Ib/ | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N2O | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio-CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | СО | NOX | ROG | |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| 7 | | | 5 | 5 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|-----------------|-----|--------|-----------------|-----------------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|---------|--------|---------------|
| 14.071.613 | | 3.3513 | 13.987.831 | 13.987.831 | 0.0000 | 4.1914 | 4.0994 | 0.0921 | 4.7626 | 4.1546 | 0.6080 | 0.1466 | 92.8436 | 74.8899 | 4.2500 | Total |
| 14,071.613 7 | | 3.3513 | 13,987.831 5 | 13,987.831 5 | 0.0000 | 4.0994 | 4.0994 | | 4.1546 | 4.1546 | | 0.1466 | 92.8436 | 74.8899 | 4.2500 | Off-Road |
| 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | | | 0.0921 | 0.0000 | 0.0921 | 0.6080 | 0.0000 | 0.6080 | | | | | Fugitive Dust |
| | | ay | lb/d | | | | | | | łay | lb/c | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | CO | NOX | ROG | |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| L | V | < | н | Ca | |
|-----------------|-----------------|--------|-----------------|--------|-------------------|
| otal | orker | endor | uling | tegory | |
| 0.1621 | 0.1022 | 0.0000 | 0.0599 | | ROG |
| 2.0570 | 0.0725 | 0.0000 | 1.9846 | | NOX |
| 1.2576 | 0.8020 | 0.0000 | 0.4556 | | CO |
| 7.3300e- 003 | 2.2200e- 003 | 0.0000 | 5.1100e- 003 | | SO2 |
| 0.3364 | 0.2236 | 0.0000 | 0.1128 | Ib/d | Fugitive PM10 |
| 7.9500e- 003 | 1.8700e- 003 | 0.0000 | 6.0800e- 003 | lay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.3443 | 0.2254 | 0.0000 | 0.1189 | | PM10 Total |
| 0.0902 | 0.0593 | 0.0000 | 0.0309 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 7.5300e- 003 | 1.7200e- 003 | 0.0000 | 5.8100e- 003 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.0978 | 0.0610 | 0.0000 | 0.0368 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 775.6313 | 221.4841 | 0.0000 | 554.1472 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 775.6313 | 221.4841 | 0.0000 | 554.1472 | lb/o | Total CO2 |
| 0.0481 | 6.9800e- 003 | 0.0000 | 0.0411 | łay | CH4 |
| | | | | | N20 |
| 776.8325 | 221.6586 | 0.0000 | 555.1739 | | CO2e |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| Vendor | Hauling | Category | |
|-----------------------------|---------|----------|-------------------|
| 7.4400e-003 | 0.0000 | | ROG |
| 0.2127 | 0.0000 | | NOx |
| 0.0615 | 0.0000 | | со |
| 5.0000e- 004 | 0.0000 | | SO2 |
| 0.0128 | 0.0000 | Ib/d | Fugitive PM10 |
| 1.0200e- 003 | 0.0000 | ау | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.0138 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total |
| 3.6900 e- 003 | 0.0000 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 9.7000e- 004 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 4.6600e- 003 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 53.8898 | 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 53.8898 | 0.0000 | lb/d: | Total CO2 |
| 3.6000e- 003 | 0.0000 | ау | CH4 |
| | | | N20 |
| 53.9799 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| Total 2.8570 31.6027 15.2261 0.035 | Off-Road 2.8570 31.6027 15.2261 0.035 | Fugitive Dust | Category | ROG NOX CO SO2 |
|------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|---------------|----------|------------------|
| 1 5.7996 | - | 5.7996 | Ib/ | Fugitive PM10 |
| 1.4324 | 1.4324 | 0.0000 | 'day | Exhaust PM10 |
| 7.2320 | 1.4324 | 5.7996 | | PM10 Total |
| 2.9537 | | 2.9537 | | PM2.5 |
| 1.3178 | 1.3178 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 4.2715 | 1.3178 | 2.9537 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | | Bio-CO2 |
| 3,425.9348 | 3,425.9348 | | | NBio- CO2 |
| 3,425.9348 | 3,425.9348 | 0.0000 | lb/d; | Total CO2 |
| 1.1080 | 1.1080 | | ay | CH4 |
| | | | | N2O |
| 3,453.6353 | 3,453.6353 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

| 776.8325 | | 0.0481 | 775.6313 | 775.6313 | | 0.0662 | 7.5300e- 003 | 0.0586 | 0.2157 | 7.9500e- 003 | 0.2078 | 7.3300e- 003 | 1.2576 | 2.0570 | 0.1621 | Total |
|----------|-----|-----------------|-----------|-----------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|--------|--------|--------|----------|
| 221.6586 | | 6.9800e- 003 | 221.4841 | 221.4841 | | 0.0391 | 1.7200e- 003 | 0.0373 | 0.1360 | 1.8700e- 003 | 0.1342 | 2.2200e- 003 | 0.8020 | 0.0725 | 0.1022 | Worker |
| 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Vendor |
| 555.1739 | | 0.0411 | 554.1472 | 554.1472 | | 0.0271 | 5.8100e- 003 | 0.0213 | 0.0797 | 6.0800e- 003 | 0.0736 | 5.1100e- 003 | 0.4556 | 1.9846 | 0.0599 | Hauling |
| | | lay | lb/d | | | | | | | day | Ib/c | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | co | NOX | ROG | |

3.3 Site Preparation - 2020 <u>Unmitigated Construction On-Site</u>

| 1 | C | - | |
|---|------|---|--|
| | nr | | |
| | n | | |
| | цõ | | |
| | a | | |
| | ie (| | |
| | Z | | |
| | ò | | |
| | su | | |
| | T | • | |
| | uc | | |
| | Ï | | |
| | on | | |
| | C |) | |
| | 'n | | |
| | Ċ | 2 | |
| | te | • | |
| | | | |

3.4 Grading - 2020

| | | 003 | | | | | 003 | | | 003 | | 003 | | | | |
|----------|-----|----------|-----------|-----------|---------|-------------|----------|----------|------------|----------|----------|----------|--------|--------|-------------|----------|
| 186.9751 | | 7.7900e- | 186.7803 | 186.7803 | | 0.0271 | 2.0000e- | 0.0251 | 0.0912 | 2.1400e- | 0.0891 | 1.8300e- | 0.5427 | 0.2562 | 0.0688 | Total |
| | | 003 | | | | | 003 | | | 003 | | 003 | | | | |
| 132.9952 | | 4.1900e- | 132.8905 | 132.8905 | | 0.0234 | 1.0300e- | 0.0224 | 0.0816 | 1.1200e- | 0.0805 | 1.3300e- | 0.4812 | 0.0435 | 0.0613 | Worker |
| | | 003 | | | | 003 | 004 | 003 | 003 | 003 | 003 | 004 | | | | |
| 53.9799 | | 3.6000e- | 53.8898 | 53.8898 | | 3.6300e- | 9.7000e- | 2.6600e- | 9.6200e- | 1.0200e- | 8.6100e- | 5.0000e- | 0.0615 | 0.2127 | 7.4400e-003 | Vendor |
| 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Hauling |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | ау | lb/d | | | | | | | day | Ip/ | | | | | Category |
| | | | | | | | PM2.5 | PM2.5 | | PM10 | PM10 | | | | | |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio-CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust | Fugitive | PM10 Total | Exhaust | Fugitive | SO2 | 0 | NOX | ROG | |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| 3,453.6353 | | 1.1080 | 3,425.9348 | 3,425.9348 | 0.0000 | 2.2966 | 1.2022 | 1.0944 | 3.4132 | 1.2645 | 2.1487 | 0.0354 | 18.6912 | 27.3666 | 2.0347 | Total |
|------------|-----|--------|------------|------------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|---------|--------|---------------|
| 3,453.6353 | | 1.1080 | 3,425.9348 | 3,425.9348 | 0.0000 | 1.2022 | 1.2022 | | 1.2645 | 1.2645 | | 0.0354 | 18.6912 | 27.3666 | 2.0347 | Off-Road |
| 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | | | 1.0944 | 0.0000 | 1.0944 | 2.1487 | 0.0000 | 2.1487 | | | | | Fugitive Dust |
| | | ay | lb/d | | | | | | | day | Ib/c | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N2O | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | со | NOX | ROG | |

| Worker | 0.0613 | 0.0435 | 0.4812 | 1.3300e- | 0.1341 | 1.1200e- | 0.1353 | 0.0356 | 1.0300e- | 0.0366 | 132.8905 | 132.8905 | 4.1900e- | 132.9952 |
|--------|--------|--------|--------|----------|--------|----------|--------|--------|----------|--------|--------------|----------|----------|--------------|
| | | | | 003 | | 003 | | | 003 | | | | 003 | |
| Total | 0.0688 | 0.2562 | 0.5427 | 1.8300e- | 0.1469 | 2.1400e- | 0.1491 | 0.0393 | 2.0000e- | 0.0413 | 186.7803 | 186.7803 | 7.7900e- | 186.9751 |
| | | | | 003 | | 003 | | | 003 | | | | 003 | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| Category | |
|----------|-------------------|
| | ROG |
| | NOx |
| | co |
| | SO2 |
| Ib/c | Fugitive PM10 |
| day | Exhaust PM10 |
| | PM10 Total |
| | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| | PM2.5 Total |
| | Bio- CO2 |
| | NBio- CO2 |
| lb/d | Total CO2 |
| ay | CH4 |
| | N20 |
| | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| _ | × | < | ň | Ca | |
|------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------|--------|-------------------|
| otal | 'orker | endor | ₃uling | tegory | |
| 0.5758 | 0.1022 | 7.4400e-003 | 0.4662 | | ROG |
| 15.7298 | 0.0725 | 0.2127 | 15.4447 | | NOx |
| 4.4089 | 0.8020 | 0.0615 | 3.5454 | | со |
| 0.0425 | 2.2200e- 003 | 5.0000e- 004 | 0.0398 | | SO2 |
| 1.1145 | 0.2236 | 0.0128 | 0.8782 | Ib/d: | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0502 | 1.8700e- 003 | 1.0200e- 003 | 0.0473 | ay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 1.1647 | 0.2254 | 0.0138 | 0.9255 | | PM10 Total |
| 0.3037 | 0.0593 | 3.6900e- 003 | 0.2407 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0479 | 1.7200e- 003 | 9.7000e- 004 | 0.0452 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.3516 | 0.0610 | 4.6600e- 003 | 0.2860 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 4,587.9886 | 221.4841 | 53.8898 | 4,312.6147 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 4,587.9886 | 221.4841 | 53.8898 | 4,312.6147 | lb/d | Total CO2 |
| 0.3302 | 6.9800e- 003 | 3.6000e- 003 | 0.3196 | ау | CH4 |
| | | | | | N20 |
| 4,596.2435 | 221.6586 | 53.9799 | 4,320.6050 | | CO2e |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| 7,074.2869 | | 2.1502 | 7,020.5328 | 7,020.5328 | | 4.7088 | 2.2138 | 2.4950 | 6.9964 | 2.3923 | 4.6041 | 0.0738 | 36.1932 | 51.9557 | 5.0305 | Total |
|------------|-----|--------|------------|------------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|---------|--------|---------------|
| 7,074.2869 | | 2.1502 | 7,020.5328 | 7,020.5328 | | 2.2138 | 2.2138 | | 2.3923 | 2.3923 | | 0.0738 | 36.1932 | 51.9557 | 5.0305 | Off-Road |
| 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | | | 2.4950 | 0.0000 | 2.4950 | 4.6041 | 0.0000 | 4.6041 | | | | | Fugitive Dust |
| | | ay | lb/da | | | | | | | day | Ib/c | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | Ô | NOX | ROG | |

| 8,171.8437 | | 1.8765 | 8,124.9302 | 8,124.9302 | | 3.1924 | 3.1924 | | 3.3785 | 3.3785 | | 0.0860 | 53.8250 | 60.8063 | 6.6332 | Total |
|------------|-----|--------|------------|------------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|---------|--------|----------|
| 8,171.8437 | | 1.8765 | 8,124.9302 | 8,124.9302 | | 3.1924 | 3.1924 | | 3.3785 | 3.3785 | | 0.0860 | 53.8250 | 60.8063 | 6.6332 | Off-Road |
| | | у | lb/da | | | | | | | day | Ib/(| | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | CO | NOX | ROG | |

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

| | ROG | NOx | co | SO2 | Fugitive PM10 | Exhaust PM10 | PM10 Total | Fugitive PM2.5 | Exhaust PM2.5 | PM2.5 Total | Bio- CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Total CO2 | CH4 | N20 | CO2e |
|--------------|-------------|-----------|--------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-------------------|------------------|-----------------|----------|------------|------------|-----------------|-----|------------|
| Category | | | | | lb/d | lay | | | | | | | lb/da | уĘ | | |
| Hauling | 0.4662 | 15.4447 | 3.5454 | 0.0398 | 0.5728 | 0.0473 | 0.6201 | 0.1658 | 0.0452 | 0.2110 | | 4,312.6147 | 4,312.6147 | 0.3196 | | 4,320.6050 |
| Vendor | 7.4400e-003 | 0.2127 | 0.0615 | 5.0000e- 004 | 8.6100e- 003 | 1.0200e- 003 | 9.6200e- 003 | 2.6600e- 003 | 9.7000e- 004 | 3.6300e- 003 | | 53.8898 | 53.8898 | 3.6000e- 003 | | 53.9799 |
| Worker | 0.1022 | 0.0725 | 0.8020 | 2.2200e- | 0.1342 | 1.8700e- | 0.1360 | 0.0373 | 1.7200e- 003 | 0.0391 | | 221.4841 | 221.4841 | 6.9800e- | | 221.6586 |
| Total | 0.5758 | 15.7298 | 4.4089 | 0.0425 | 0.7155 | 0.0502 | 0.7657 | 0.2058 | 0.0479 | 0.2537 | | 4,587.9886 | 4,587.9886 | 0.3302 | | 4,596.2435 |
| 3.5 Building | Constru | ction - 2 | 020 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| Total | Off-Road | Fugitive Dust |
|------------|------------|---------------|
| 2.6236 | 2.6236 | |
| 41.1092 | 41.1092 | |
| 42.2648 | 42.2648 | |
| 0.0738 | 0.0738 | |
| 1.7058 | | 1.7058 |
| 1.9848 | 1.9848 | 0.0000 |
| 3.6906 | 1.9848 | 1.7058 |
| 0.9244 | | 0.9244 |
| 1.9321 | 1.9321 | 0.0000 |
| 2.8565 | 1.9321 | 0.9244 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | |
| 7,020.5328 | 7,020.5328 | |
| 7,020.5328 | 7,020.5328 | 0.0000 |
| 2.1502 | 2.1502 | |
| | | |
| 7,074.2869 | 7,074.2869 | 0.0000 |

| | ROG |
|-------|-------------|
| | NOX |
| | 8 |
| | S02 |
| PM10 | Fugitive |
| PM10 | Exhaust |
| | PM10 Total |
| PM2.5 | Fugitive |
| PM2.5 | Exhaust |
| | PM2.5 Total |
| | Bio-CO2 |
| | NBio- CO2 |
| | Total CO2 |
| | CH4 |
| | N20 |
| | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| 8,171.8437 | | 1.8765 | 8,124.9302 | 8,124.9302 | 0.0000 | 2.4716 | 2.4716 | | 2.4788 | 2.4788 | | 0.0860 | 56.6693 | 41.2026 | 2.0576 | Total |
|------------|-----|--------|------------|------------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|---------|--------|----------|
| 8,171.8437 | | 1.8765 | 8,124.9302 | 8,124.9302 | 0.0000 | 2.4716 | 2.4716 | | 2.4788 | 2.4788 | | 0.0860 | 56.6693 | 41.2026 | 2.0576 | Off-Road |
| | | ĄĘ | lb/da | | | | | | | lay | Ib/c | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | СО | NOX | ROG | |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| T | W | ۷e | На | Cat | |
|------------|------------|-----------------|--------|-------|-------------------|
| otal | orker | ndor | uling | egory | |
| 1.5703 | 1.5331 | 0.0372 | 0.0000 | | ROG |
| 2.1509 | 1.0874 | 1.0635 | 0.0000 | | NOx |
| 12.3377 | 12.0303 | 0.3074 | 0.0000 | | СО |
| 0.0359 | 0.0334 | 2.5200e- 003 | 0.0000 | | SO2 |
| 3.4173 | 3.3533 | 0.0640 | 0.0000 | Ib/d | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0331 | 0.0280 | 5.0900e- 003 | 0.0000 | ay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 3.4504 | 3.3813 | 0.0691 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total |
| 0.9077 | 0.8893 | 0.0184 | 0.0000 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0307 | 0.0258 | 4.8700e- 003 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.9384 | 0.9151 | 0.0233 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 3,591.7102 | 3,322.2612 | 269.4491 | 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 3,591.7102 | 3,322.2612 | 269.4491 | 0.0000 | lb/c | Total CO2 |
| 0.1227 | 0.1047 | 0.0180 | 0.0000 | lay | CH4 |
| | | | | | N2O |
| 3,594.7785 | 3,324.8790 | 269.8995 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| Wor | Ven | Haul | Cate | |
|------------|-----------------|--------|------|-------------------|
| ker | dor | ling | gory | |
| 1.4305 | 0.0319 | 0.0000 | | ROG |
| 0.9784 | 0.9689 | 0.0000 | | NOx |
| 11.0477 | 0.2808 | 0.0000 | | CO |
| 0.0323 | 2.5000e- 003 | 0.0000 | | SO2 |
| 3.3533 | 0.0640 | 0.0000 | Ib/c | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0271 | 2.0500e- 003 | 0.0000 | day | Exhaust PM10 |
| 3.3804 | 0.0661 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total |
| 0.8893 | 0.0184 | 0.0000 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0250 | 1.9600e- 003 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.9143 | 0.0204 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 3,216.7533 | 267.3455 | 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 3,216.7533 | 267.3455 | 0.0000 | lb/d | Total CO2 |
| 0.0947 | 0.0173 | 0.0000 | lay | CH4 |
| | | | | N20 |
| 3,219.1197 | 267.7770 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| | 0 | | |
|------------|------------|----------|-------------------|
| Total |)ff-Road | Category | |
| 5.8976 | 5.8976 | | ROG |
| 53.9404 | 53.9404 | | NOX |
| 53.1354 | 53.1354 | | СО |
| 0.0861 | 0.0861 | | SO2 |
| | | Ib/d | Fugitive PM10 |
| 2.8785 | 2.8785 | ay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 2.8785 | 2.8785 | | PM10 Total |
| | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 2.7211 | 2.7211 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 2.7211 | 2.7211 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 8,124.0696 | 8,124.0696 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 8,124.0696 | 8,124.0696 | lb/d | Total CO2 |
| 1.8552 | 1.8552 | ау | CH4 |
| | | | N20 |
| 8,170.4498 | 8,170.4498 | | CO2e |

| | | | | | | | | | | | 2021 | iction - 2 | Constru | 3.5 Building |
|------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|-----------------|--------|--------|-----------------|--------|-----------------|---------|------------|---------|--------------|
| 3,594.7785 | 0.1227 | 3,591.7102 | 3,591.7102 | 0.6041 | 0.0307 | 0.5734 | 2.0884 | 0.0331 | 2.0553 | 0.0359 | 12.3377 | 2.1509 | 1.5703 | Total |
| 3,324.8790 | 0.1047 | 3,322.2612 | 3,322.2612 | 0.5860 | 0.0258 | 0.5602 | 2.0403 | 0.0280 | 2.0123 | 0.0334 | 12.0303 | 1.0874 | 1.5331 | Worker |
| 269.8995 | 0.0180 | 269.4491 | 269.4491 | 0.0182 | 4.8700e- 003 | 0.0133 | 0.0481 | 5.0900e- 003 | 0.0430 | 2.5200e- 003 | 0.3074 | 1.0635 | 0.0372 | Vendor |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Hauling |
| | lay | lb/d | | | | | | day | Ib/ | | | | | Category |

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

3.5 Building Construction - 2022

| 3,486.8967 | | 0.1119 | 3,484.0988 | 3,484.0988 | | 0.6004 | 0.0269 | 0.5734 | 2.0845 | 0.0292 | 2.0553 | 0.0348 | 11.3284 | 1.9473 | 1.4624 | Total |
|------------|-----|--------|------------|------------|---------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|---------|--------|--------|----------|
| 3,219.1197 | | 0.0947 | 3,216.7533 | 3,216.7533 | | 0.5851 | 0.0250 | 0.5602 | 2.0394 | 0.0271 | 2.0123 | 0.0323 | 11.0477 | 0.9784 | 1.4305 | Worker |
| 267.7770 | | 0.0173 | 267.3455 | 267.3455 | | 0.0152 | 1.9600e- 003 | 0.0133 | 0.0451 | 2.0500e- 003 | 0.0430 | 2.5000e- 003 | 0.2808 | 0.9689 | 0.0319 | Vendor |
| 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Hauling |
| | | ay | lb/d | | | | | | | day | Ib/c | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N2O | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio-CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | со | NOX | ROG | |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| | | | | | | | | | | | | | ľ | | | I |
|------------|-----|--------|------------|------------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|---------|--------|----------|
| 8,170.4498 | | 1.8552 | 8,124.0696 | 8,124.0696 | 0.0000 | 2.4583 | 2.4583 | | 2.4644 | 2.4644 | | 0.0861 | 56.6561 | 41.0608 | 2.0426 | Total |
| 8,170.4498 | | 1.8552 | 8,124.0696 | 8,124.0696 | 0.0000 | 2.4583 | 2.4583 | | 2.4644 | 2.4644 | | 0.0861 | 56.6561 | 41.0608 | 2.0426 | Off-Road |
| | | ay | lb/d | | | | | | | day | Ib/c | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N2O | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | со | NOX | ROG | |

| Total | |
|------------|--|
| 1.4624 | |
| 1.9473 | |
| 11.3284 | |
| 0.0348 | |
| 3.4173 | |
| 0.0292 | |
| 3.4465 | |
| 0.9077 | |
| 0.0269 | |
| 0.9347 | |
| | |
| 3,484.0988 | |
| 3,484.0988 | |
| 0.1119 | |
| | |
| 3,486.8967 | |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| Category | |
|----------|-------------------|
| | ROG |
| | NOX |
| | co |
| | SO2 |
| Ib/c | Fugitive PM10 |
| day | Exhaust PM10 |
| | PM10 Total |
| | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| | PM2.5 Total |
| | Bio- CO2 |
| | NBio- CO2 |
| lb/d | Total CO2 |
| lay | CH4 |
| | N20 |
| | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| 3,371.2315 | | 0.1021 | 3,368.6786 | 3,368.6786 | | 0.9336 | 0.0259 | 0.9077 | 3.4454 | 0.0280 | 3.4173 | 0.0336 | 10.4411 | 1.8044 | 1.3735 | Total |
|------------|-----|--------|------------|------------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|---------|--------|--------|----------|
| 3,105.8449 | | 0.0855 | 3,103.7084 | 3,103.7084 | | 0.9135 | 0.0242 | 0.8893 | 3.3795 | 0.0263 | 3.3533 | 0.0311 | 10.1753 | 0.8836 | 1.3435 | Worker |
| 265.3866 | | 0.0167 | 264.9703 | 264.9703 | | 0.0202 | 1.7100e- 003 | 0.0184 | 0.0658 | 1.7900e- 003 | 0.0640 | 2.4800e- 003 | 0.2658 | 0.9208 | 0.0300 | Vendor |
| 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Hauling |
| | | ay | lb/d | | | | | | | day | Ib/c | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | СО | NOX | ROG | |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| | 433 | 813 1.8 | 8,123.98 | 8,123.9813 | | 2.3576 | 2.3576 | | 2.4927 | 2.4927 | | 0.0861 | 52.7070 | 48.5409 | 5.3774 | Total |
|-----|-----|---------|----------|------------|---------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|---------|--------|----------|
| | 433 | 813 1.8 | 8,123.98 | 8,123.9813 | | 2.3576 | 2.3576 | | 2.4927 | 2.4927 | | 0.0861 | 52.7070 | 48.5409 | 5.3774 | Off-Road |
| | | lb/day | | | | | | | | day | Ip/ | | | | | Category |
| V20 | H4 | 02 C | Total C | NBio- CO2 | Bio-CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | со | NOX | ROG | |

| 2,173.2221 | | 0.4875 | 2,161.0353 | 2,161.0353 | | 0.6713 | 0.6713 | | 0.7085 | 0.7085 | | 0.0228 | 14.4323 | 12.9667 | 30.1305 | Total |
|------------|-----|--------|------------|------------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|---------|---------|-----------------|
| 2,173.2221 | | 0.4875 | 2,161.0353 | 2,161.0353 | | 0.6713 | 0.6713 | | 0.7085 | 0.7085 | | 0.0228 | 14.4323 | 12.9667 | 1.4894 | Off-Road |
| 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | | | | 28.6411 | Archit. Coating |
| | | ay | lb/d | | | | | | | day | /dI | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N2O | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | CO | NOX | ROG | |

| - | - 2 |
|----------|-----|
| 3 | ī |
| 3 | |
| 2 | |
| | |
| ÷. | - |
| 2 | - 5 |
| ט | |
| + | |
| D | - 2 |
| 2 | |
| _ | |
| ר | |
| 5 | - 5 |
| ξ. | |
| ξ. | |
| <u>"</u> | |
| τ. | |
| - | |
| 5 | |
| <u> </u> | |
| | |
| 2 | |
| 3 | |
| _ | |
| | U. |
| ξ. | |
| | |
| 'n. | |
| ~ | |
| ÷., | - 1 |
| | |

| _ | |
|----------|--|
| _ | |
| 3 | |
| 2 | |
| ≝. | |
| + | |
| 5 | |
| | |
| | |
| ъ. | |
| 5 | |
| - | |
| | |
| × . | |
| 2 | |
| 2 | |
| n | |
| ± | |
| <u> </u> | |
| - | |
| | |
| - | |
| D | |
| 3 | |
| _ | |
| | |
| 5 | |
| 7 | |
| ŝ | |
| | |
| 4 | |
| | |

| 3.6 Architectu |
|----------------|
| ral Co |
| ating |
| - 2022 |
| |

| Tota | Work | Venc | Hauli | Categ | |
|------------|------------|-----------------|--------|-------|-------------------|
| 2 | (er | dor | ing | loiy | |
| 1.3735 | 1.3435 | 0.0300 | 0.0000 | | ROG |
| 1.8044 | 0.8836 | 0.9208 | 0.0000 | | NOX |
| 10.4411 | 10.1753 | 0.2658 | 0.0000 | | со |
| 0.0336 | 0.0311 | 2.4800e- 003 | 0.0000 | | SO2 |
| 2.0553 | 2.0123 | 0.0430 | 0.0000 | Ib/d | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0280 | 0.0263 | 1.7900e- 003 | 0.0000 | lay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 2.0834 | 2.0385 | 0.0448 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total |
| 0.5734 | 0.5602 | 0.0133 | 0.0000 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0259 | 0.0242 | 1.7100e- 003 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.5993 | 0.5843 | 0.0150 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 3,368.6786 | 3,103.7084 | 264.9703 | 0.0000 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 3,368.6786 | 3,103.7084 | 264.9703 | 0.0000 | lb/o | Total CO2 |
| 0.1021 | 0.0855 | 0.0167 | 0.0000 | lay | CH4 |
| | | | | | N20 |
| 3,371.2315 | 3,105.8449 | 265.3866 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| Total | Off-Road |
|------------|------------|
| | |
| 2.0273 | 2.0273 |
| 40.9117 | 40.9117 |
| 56.6410 | 56.6410 |
| 0.0861 | 0.0861 |
| | |
| 2.4497 | 2.4497 |
| 2.4497 | 2.4497 |
| | |
| 2.4448 | 2.4448 |
| 2.4448 | 2.4448 |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 |
| 8,123.9813 | 8,123.9813 |
| 8,123.9813 | 8,123.9813 |
| 1.8433 | 1.8433 |
| | |
| 8,170.0626 | 8,170.0626 |

| | ROG |
|-------|-------------|
| | NOx |
| | 8 |
| | SO2 |
| PM10 | Fugitive |
| PM10 | Exhaust |
| | PM10 Total |
| PM2.5 | Fugitive |
| PM2.5 | Exhaust |
| | PM2.5 Total |
| | Bio-CO2 |
| | NBio- CO2 |
| | Total CO2 |
| | CH4 |
| | N20 |
| | CO2e |

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

| 2,173.2221 | | 0.4875 | 2,161.0353 | 2,161.0353 | 0.0000 | 0.5964 | 0.5964 | | 0.5964 | 0.5964 | | 0.0228 | 15.3789 | 10.3302 | 29.1399 | Total |
|------------|-----|--------|------------|------------|----------|-------------|------------------|-------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|---------|---------|---------|-----------------|
| 2,173.2221 | | 0.4875 | 2,161.0353 | 2,161.0353 | 0.0000 | 0.5964 | 0.5964 | | 0.5964 | 0.5964 | | 0.0228 | 15.3789 | 10.3302 | 0.4988 | Off-Road |
| 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | | | | 28.6411 | Archit. Coating |
| | | ΎΕ | lb/da | | | | | | | Зау | Ib/c | | | | | Category |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio- CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust PM2.5 | Fugitive PM2.5 | PM10 Total | Exhaust PM10 | Fugitive PM10 | SO2 | со | NOX | ROG | |

Mitigated Construction On-Site

| Total | Worker | Vendor | Hauling | Category | |
|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------------------|---------|----------|-------------------|
| 0.1493 | 0.1433 | 5.9900e-003 | 0.0000 | | ROG |
| 0.2784 | 0.0943 | 0.1842 | 0.0000 | | NOX |
| 1.1385 | 1.0854 | 0.0532 | 0.0000 | | СО |
| 3.8200e- 003 | 3.3200e- 003 | 5.0000e- 004 | 0.0000 | | SO2 |
| 0.3705 | 0.3577 | 0.0128 | 0.0000 | Ib/d | Fugitive PM10 |
| 3.1600e- 003 | 2.8000e- 003 | 3.6000e- 004 | 0.0000 | ау | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.3736 | 0.3605 | 0.0132 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total |
| 0.0986 | 0.0949 | 3.6900 e- 003 | 0.0000 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 2.9200e- 003 | 2.5800e- 003 | 3.4000e- 004 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.1015 | 0.0974 | 4.0300e- 003 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 384.0563 | 331.0622 | 52.9941 | 0.0000 | lb/d | NBio- CO2 |
| 384.0563 | 331.0622 | 52.9941 | 0.0000 | | Total CO2 |
| 0.0125 | 9.1200e- 003 | 3.3300e- 003 | 0.0000 | lay | CH4 |
| | | | | | N20 |
| 384.3674 | 331.2901 | 53.0773 | 0.0000 | | CO2e |

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

| Total | Worker | Vendor | Hauling | Category |
|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|---------|----------|
| 0.1493 | 0.1433 | 5.9900e-003 | 0.0000 | |
| 0.2784 | 0.0943 | 0.1842 | 0.0000 | |
| 1.1385 | 1.0854 | 0.0532 | 0.0000 | |
| 3.8200e- 003 | 3.3200e- 003 | 5.0000e- 004 | 0.0000 | |
| 0.2233 | 0.2146 | 8.6100e- 003 | 0.0000 | lb/d |
| 3.1600e- 003 | 2.8000e- 003 | 3.6000e- 004 | 0.0000 | ay |
| 0.2264 | 0.2174 | 8.9700e- 003 | 0.0000 | |
| 0.0624 | 0.0598 | 2.6600e- 003 | 0.0000 | |
| 2.9200e- 003 | 2.5800e- 003 | 3.4000e- 004 | 0.0000 | |
| 0.0653 | 0.0623 | 3.0000e- 003 | 0.0000 | |
| | | | | |
| 384.0563 | 331.0622 | 52.9941 | 0.0000 | |
| 384.0563 | 331.0622 | 52.9941 | 0.0000 | lb/d: |
| 0.0125 | 9.1200e- 003 | 3.3300e- 003 | 0.0000 | ау |
| | | | | |
| 384.3674 | 331.2901 | 53.0773 | 0.0000 | |

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

| Unmitigated | Mitigated | Category | |
|-----------------|-----------------|----------|-------------------|
| 4.2795 | 4.2795 | | ROG |
| 21.7968 | 21.7968 | | NOx |
| 57.9863 | 57.9863 | | со |
| 0.2132 | 0.2132 | | SO2 |
| 18.2740 | 18.2740 | lb/c | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.1812 | 0.1812 | lay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 18.4552 | 18.4552 | | PM10 Total |
| 4.8904 | 4.8904 | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.1690 | 0.1690 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 5.0595 | 5.0595 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 21,711.035 5 | 21,711.035 5 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 21,711.035 5 | 21,711.035 5 | lb/c | Total CO2 |
| 1.1299 | 1.1299 | lay | CH4 |
| | | | N2O |
| 21,739.283 7 | 21,739.283 7 | | CO2e |

4.2 Trip Summary Information

| Total | Strip Mall | High Turnover (Sit Down Restaurant) | General Office Building | Enclosed Parking with Elevator | Apartments Mid Rise | Land Use | | |
|-----------|------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------------|--------------------------------|---------------------|------------|----------------------|--|
| 2,386.37 | 200.60 | 893.49 | 702.93 | 0.00 | 589.36 | Weekday | Ave | |
| 2,386.37 | 200.60 | 893.49 | 702.93 | 0.00 | 589.36 | Saturday | rage Daily Trip Rate | |
| 2,386.37 | 200.60 | 893.49 | 702.93 | 0.00 | 589.36 | Sunday |) | |
| 8,593,690 | 691,932 | 2,865,920 | 2,768,716 | | 2,267,122 | Annual VMT | Unmitigated | |
| 8,593,690 | 691,932 | 2,865,920 | 2,768,716 | | 2,267,122 | Annual VMT | Mitigated | |

4.3 Trip Type Information

| | | Miles | | | Trip % | | | Trip Purpose | % |
|-------------------------------------|------------|------------|-------------|------------|------------|-------------|---------|--------------|---------|
| Land Use | H-W or C-W | H-S or C-C | H-O or C-NW | H-W or C-W | H-S or C-C | H-O or C-NW | Primary | Diverted | Pass-by |
| Apartments Mid Rise | 14.70 | 5.90 | 8.70 | 40.00 | 19.00 | 41.00 | 100 | 0 | 0 |
| Enclosed Parking with Elevator | 16.60 | 8.40 | 6.90 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | ο | ο | 0 |
| General Office Building | 16.60 | 8.40 | 6.90 | 33.00 | 48.00 | 19.00 | 100 | 0 | 0 |
| High Turnover (Sit Down Restaurant) | 16.60 | 8.40 | 6.90 | 8.50 | 72.50 | 19.00 | 100 | 0 | 0 |
| Strip Mall | 16.60 | 8.40 | 6.90 | 16.60 | 64.40 | 19.00 | 100 | 0 | 0 |

4.4 Fleet Mix

| | _ | _ | _ | | |
|------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------------|--------------------------------|---------------------|----------|
| Strip Mall | High Turnover (Sit Down Restaurant) | General Office Building | Enclosed Parking with Elevator | Apartments Mid Rise | Land Use |
| 0.546501 | 0.546501 | 0.546501 | 0.546501 | 0.546501 | LDA |
| 0.044961 | 0.044961 | 0.044961 | 0.044961 | 0.044961 | LDT1 |
| 0.204016 | 0.204016 | 0.204016 | 0.204016 | 0.204016 | LDT2 |
| 0.120355 | 0.120355 | 0.120355 | 0.120355 | 0.120355 | MDV |
| 0.015740 | 0.015740 | 0.015740 | 0.015740 | 0.015740 | LHD1 |
| 0.006196 | 0.006196 | 0.006196 | 0.006196 | 0.006196 | LHD2 |
| 0.020131 | 0.020131 | 0.020131 | 0.020131 | 0.020131 | MHD |
| 0.030678 | 0.030678 | 0.030678 | 0.030678 | 0.030678 | HHD |
| 0.002515 | 0.002515 | 0.002515 | 0.002515 | 0.002515 | OBUS |
| 0.002201 | 0.002201 | 0.002201 | 0.002201 | 0.002201 | UBUS |
| 0.005142 | 0.005142 | 0.005142 | 0.005142 | 0.005142 | MCY |
| 0.000687 | 0.000687 | 0.000687 | 0.000687 | 0.000687 | SBUS |
| 0.000876 | 0.000876 | 0.000876 | 0.000876 | 0.000876 | MH |

5.0 Energy Detail

Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

| NaturalGas Mitigated | Category | |
|-------------------------|----------|-------------------|
| 0.1483 | | ROG |
| 1.3320 | | NOX |
| 1.0167 | | CO |
| 8.0900e- 003 | | SO2 |
| | Ib/da | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.1024 | уғ | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.1024 | | PM10 Total |
| | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.1024 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.1024 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | Bio- CO2 |
| 1,617.3160 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 1,617.3160 | lb/da | Total CO2 |
| 0.0310 | ау | CH4 |
| 0.0297 | | N20 |
| 1,626.9269 | | CO2e |

| | | _ | | |
|----------------------------|-----------------------------------|------------------------|----------|-------------------|
| General Office Building | Enclosed Parking with Elevator | Apartments Mid Rise | Land Use | |
| 2.70917 | 0 | 2.6767 | kBTU/yr | NaturalGas Use |
| 0.0292 | 0.0000 | 0.0289 | | ROG |
| 0.2656 | 0.0000 | 0.2467 | | NOX |
| 0.2231 | 0.0000 | 0.1050 | | 8 |
| 1.5900e- 003 | 0.0000 | 1.5700e- 003 | | S O2 |
| | | | Ib/c | Fugitive PM10 |
| 0.0202 | 0.0000 | 0.0199 | lay | Exhaust PM10 |
| 0.0202 | 0.0000 | 0.0199 | | PM10 Total |
| | | | | Fugitive PM2.5 |
| 0.0202 | 0.0000 | 0.0199 | | Exhaust PM2.5 |
| 0.0202 | 0.0000 | 0.0199 | | PM2.5 Total |
| | | | | Bio- CO2 |
| 318.7255 | 0.0000 | 314.9059 | | NBio- CO2 |
| 318.7255 | 0.0000 | 314.9059 | Ib/ | Total CO2 |
| 6.1100e- 003 | 0.0000 | 6.0400e- 003 | day | CH4 |
| 5.8400e- 003 | 0.0000 | 5.7700e- 003 | | N20 |
| 320.6195 | 0.0000 | 316.7773 | | CO2e |

B.....

Mitigated

| 1,626.9269 | 0.0297 | 0.0310 | 1,617.3160 | 1,617.3160 | | 0.1024 | 0.1024 | | 0.1024 | 0.1024 | | 8.0800e- 003 | 1.0167 | 1.3320 | 0.1483 | | Total |
|------------|----------|----------|------------|------------|----------|-------------|----------|----------|------------|----------|----------|-----------------|----------|----------|----------|-------------------|-------------------|
| | 004 | 004 | | | | _ | 004 | | 004 | 004 | | 005 | 003 | 003 | 004 | | |
| 7.4333 | 1.4000e- | 1.4000e- | 7.3894 | 7.3894 | | 4.7000e-004 | 4.7000e- | | 4.7000e- | 4.7000e- | | 4.0000e- | 5.1700e- | 6.1600e- | 6.8000e- | 62.8098 | Strip Mall |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | 003 | | | | | Down Restaurant) |
| 982.0968 | 0.0179 | 0.0187 | 976.2952 | 976.2952 | | 0.0618 | 0.0618 | | 0.0618 | 0.0618 | | 4.8800e- | 0.6834 | 0.8136 | 0.0895 | 8298.51 | High Tumover (Sit |
| | 003 | 003 | | | | | | | | | | 003 | | | | | Building |
| 320.6195 | 5.8400e- | 6.1100e- | 318.7255 | 318.7255 | | 0.0202 | 0.0202 | | 0.0202 | 0.0202 | | 1.5900e- | 0.2231 | 0.2656 | 0.0292 | 2709.17 | General Office |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | with Elevator |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0 | Enclosed Parking |
| | 003 | 003 | | | | | | | | | | 003 | | | | | Rise |
| 316.7773 | 5.7700e- | 6.0400e- | 314.9059 | 314.9059 | | 0.0199 | 0.0199 | | 0.0199 | 0.0199 | | 1.5700e- | 0.1050 | 0.2467 | 0.0289 | 2676.7 | Apartments Mid |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | Чау | Ib/c | | | | | | | day | /dI | | | | | kBTU/yr | Land Use |
| | | | | | | | PM2.5 | PM2.5 | | PM10 | PM10 | | | | | Use | |
| CO2e | N20 | CH4 | Total CO2 | NBio-CO2 | Bio- CO2 | PM2.5 Total | Exhaust | Fugitive | PM10 Total | Exhaust | Fugitive | S 02 | со | NOX | ROG | NaturalGas | |

NaturalGas 0.1483 Unmitigated 1.3320 1.0167 8.0900e-003 0.1024 0.1024 0.1024 0.1024 1,617.3160 1,617.3160 0.0310 0.0297 1,626.9269

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

Unmitigated

| Hearth | Consumer Products | Architectural Coating | SubCategory | | |
|--------|----------------------|--------------------------|-------------|-------------------|--|
| 0.0000 | 4.9143 | 0.5336 | | ROG | |
| 0.0000 | | | | NOX | |
| 0.0000 | | | | CO | |
| 0.0000 | | | | SO2 | |
| | | | lb/d | Fugitive PM10 | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | lay | Exhaust PM10 | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | PM10 Total | |
| | | | | Fugitive PM2.5 | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | Exhaust PM2.5 | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | PM2.5 Total | |
| 0.0000 | | | | Bio- CO2 | |
| 0.0000 | | | | NBio- CO2 | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | Ib/d | Total CO2 | |
| 0.0000 | | | ау | CH4 | |
| 0.0000 | | | | N20 | |
| 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | CO2e | |

Unmitigated 6.2 Area by SubCategory

Unmitigated Mitigated Category 5.7173 5.7173 ROG 0.1015 0.1015 NOX 8.8081 8.8081 со 4.7000e-004 4.7000e-004 SO2 Fugitive PM10 lb/day Exhaust PM10 0.0486 0.0486 PM10 Total 0.0486 0.0486 Fugitive PM2.5 Exhaust PM2.5 0.0486 0.0486 PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 0.0486 0.0486 0.0000 0.0000 NBio-CO2 15.8613 15.8613 Total CO2 15.8613 15.8613 lb/day CH4 0.0155 0.0155 0.0000 0.0000 N20 16.2486 16.2486 CO2e

| 6.1 N | 6.0 / | | | | Sti | Down | High Tu |
|-----------|-----------------|-----|------------|-------|-------------|-------------|-------------|
| litigatio | ∖ rea De | | Total | | ip Mall | Restaurant) | ımover (Sit |
| n Measu | tail | | | | 0.0628098 | | 8.29851 |
| ires Area | | | 0.1483 | 004 | 6.8000e- | | 0.0895 |
| ł | | | 1.3320 | 003 | 6.1600e- | | 0.8136 |
| | | | 1.0167 | 003 | 5.1700e- | | 0.6834 |
| | | 003 | 8.0800e- | 005 | 4.0000e- | 003 | 4.8800e- |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | 0.1024 | 004 | 4.7000e- | | 0.0618 |
| | | | 0.1024 | 004 | 4.7000e- | | 0.0618 |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | 0.1024 | 004 | 4.7000e- | | 0.0618 |
| | | | 0.1024 | | 4.7000e-004 | | 0.0618 |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | 1,617.3160 | | 7.3894 | | 976.2952 |
| | | | 1,617.3160 | | 7.3894 | | 976.2952 |
| | | | 0.0310 | 004 | 1.4000e- | | 0.0187 |
| | | | 0.0297 | 004 | 1.4000e- | | 0.0179 |
| | | | 1,626.9269 | ••••• | 7.4333 | | 982.0968 |

| | ROG | NOX | СО | S02 | Fugitive PM10 | Exhaust PM10 | PM10 Tota | I Fugitive PM2.5 | Exhaust PM2.5 | PM2.5 Tota | Bio- CO2 | NBio- CO | 2 Total CO | CH4 | N2O | | 002e |
|------------------------------|--------------------------|----------|------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|-----------|---------------------|------------------|------------|------------|----------|-------------|--------|-----------|--------|--------|
| SubCategory | | | | | lb/ | 'day | - | | | | | - | - | ı∕day | | | |
| Architectural Coating | 0.5336 | | | | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | | | 0 | .0000 |
| Consumer | 4.9143 | | | | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | | 0.0000 | | | 0 | 0000 |
| Products | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Hearth | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.0000 | 0.000 | 0 0 | .0000 |
| Landscaping | 0.2694 | 0.1015 | 8.8081 | 4.7000e- 004 | | 0.0486 | 0.0486 | | 0.0486 | 0.0486 | | 15.8613 | 15.8613 | 0.0155 | | 16 | 3.2486 |
| Total | 5.7173 | 0.1015 | 8.8081 | 4.7000e- | | 0.0486 | 0.0486 | _ | 0.0486 | 301 U U | 0.0000 | 15.8613 | 15.8613 | 0.0155 | 0.000 |)0 1(| 3.2486 |
| 7.0 Water D | etail | | | 004 | | | | | | 0.0480 | | | | | | ╞ | L |
| 7.1 Mitigatio 8.0 Waste E | n Measu)etail | res Wate | | 004 | | | | | | 0.0480 | | | | | | ╞ | |
| 8.1 Mitigatio | n Measu | res Wast | Ť | Q ¥ | | | | | | 0.0480 | | | | | | - | |
| | | | | Ç ¥ | | | | | | 0.0480 | | | | | | | |
| 9.0 Operatio | onal Offi | road | 0 1 | Ç ¥ | | | | | | U.U.400 | | | | | | | |
| 9.0 Operatio | onal Offi ipment Type | road | | Number | | Hours/Da | | Day | s/Year | | arse Power | | Load Factor | | Fuel Type | | |
| 9.0 Operatio | pmal Offi | lipment | | Number 24 | | Hours/Da | | Day | s/Year | | orse Power | | Load Factor | | Fuel Type | | |

Landscaping 0.2694 0.1015 8.8081 4.7000e-004 004 004 004 004 004 0.0486 0.0486 0.0486 0.0486 0.0486 0.0486 0.0486 0.0486 0.0000 15.8613 15.8613 0.0155 15.8613 15.8613 0.0155 0.0000 16.2486 16.2486

Mitigated

Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators

| Equipment Type |
|----------------|
| Number |
| Hours/Day |
| Hours/Year |
| Horse Power |
| Load Factor |
| Fuel Type |

Boilers

| ay Heat Input/Year | Boile |
|--------------------|-------|
| at Input/Year | |

<u>User Defined Equipment</u>

| Equipment Type | |
|--------------------|--|
| Number | |

11.0 Vegetation

1024 Mateo Street Project

GHG Emissions Impact Compared to "No Action Taken" Scenario

| Source | NAT (2022) | As Proposed (2022) | Reduction from NAT | Change from NAT |
|-----------------|------------|--------------------|--------------------|-----------------|
| Area | 2 | 2 | - | 0% |
| Energy | 3,701 | 2,147 | (1,555) | -42% |
| Mobile | 5,184 | 3,639 | (1,545) | -30% |
| Waste | 155 | 155 | - | 0% |
| Water | 345 | 345 | - | 0% |
| Construction | 98 | 98 | - | 0% |
| Total Emissions | 9,485 | 6,386 | (3,099) | -32.7% |

| Land Use | NAT | As Proposed | Difference |
|----------|-----------------------|-------------------------|----------------|
| Land Use | 106 live/work; 94,990 | 106 live/work; 94,990 s | None |
| Traffic | Up to 1,862 net ADT | Up to 1,862 net ADT | None |
| Area | Same as proposed | Project assumptions | None |
| Energy | No State measures | See below | State measures |
| Mobile | No State measures | See below | State measures |
| Waste | Reduce construction v | Reduce construction w | None |
| Water | Project assumptions | Project assumptions | None |

Mobile source emission: Pavley emission standards (19.8% reduction)

Low carbon fuel standard (7.2% reduction)

Vehicle efficiency measures (2.8% reduction)

Energy Production Assul Natural gas transmission and distribution efficiency measures (7.4% reduction)

Natural gas extraction efficiency measures (1.6% reduction)

Renewables (electricity) portfolio standard (33% reduction)

Appendix B: Tree Report 10-4-2016



Tree inventory and report 1024 Mateo Street 2023 East Sacramento Street 2018 East Bay Street Los Angeles, CA 90021 Assessors Parcel Numbers 5166011021 and 516611012

To Whom It May Concern:

On Friday, September 30th 2016 I visited the above-referenced properties in order to examine the existing tree stock so as to provide an index of trees, their location, size and condition.

I discovered 6 trees in total – a group of three trees on the property located at 2023 East Sacramento Street and 3 trees in the parkway strip fronting Mateo Street.

None of these trees qualify for the designation of Protected Tree under the species requirements set down in City of Los Angeles Ordinance 177404.

The trees on Sacramento street consist of 2 of the loathsome Trees of Heaven (*Allanthus altissima*) and one Mexican Fan Palm (*Washingtonia robusta*).

The trees on Mateo street consist of 2 immature volunteer *robusta* Palms and an immature ornamental varital I am unfamiliar with. The 2 Palms are quite small but will, in time, grow upwards to challenge the high-tension wires they are underneath.

Their companion tree, possibly an Acacia, is also quite small. It is poorly anchored and falling over towards the East – a good shove would knock it down comletely – and features a twin-leader trunk which has already suffered a splitting event, leaving both leaders growing out of a fractured trunk about 3' above grade. The presence of a section of rebar sticking up from the ground adjacent suggests that someone planted this tree, possibly from a houseplant, tied the tree to this makeshift stake and then abandoned the tree to its fate.

None of these 3 trees in the parkway strip fronting Mateo Street are viable in their location and all ought to be removed.

The Urban Lumberjack • Quality Tree Care





As for the trees fronting Sacramento Street, the 2 Trees of Heaven are weedy nuisances, self-seeding and greedy messes with a proven track record of invasive and unwelcome growth and they are overdue for elimination. Their companion Palm is slated for removal in the course of development.

In the index I have detailed these 6 trees, each of which is referenced by a letter designation assigned to each specimen on the enclosed Site Map.

In sum, none of the trees on these lots present an obstacle to development – 5 of them would argue for elimination notwithstanding the forthcoming development and the remaining specimen (the Sacramento Street Palm) is of little tangible value and can be removed at leisure.

Please get in touch if I may provide additional information.

Sincerely yours,

Steve Marshall ISA Certified Arborist The Urban Lumberjack LLC

The Urban Lumberjack • Quality Tree Care

Steve Marshall ISA Certified Arborist WE-8830A



Page 2

TREE INDEX PROPERTY ADDRESS 1024 Mateo, 2018 East Bay, 2023 E. Sacramento Assessors Parcel Numbers 516601121, 516611012

| Index Letter | Species | DBH | Height | Spread North/ South | Spread East/ West | Notes on Condition |
|-----------------|--|--------------------------------|--------|---------------------------|-------------------------|--|
| A. | Mexican Fan Palm Washingtonia robusta | 10.7" | 8' | | | Vigorous |
| В. | Tree of Heaven Allanthus altissima | 2.7" 2.8" 3.1" 5.2" | 22' | 17' | 19' | The usual multi-trunk weedy mess. |
| C. | Tree of Heaven Allanthus altissima | 4.0" 5.9" 6.5" 6.6" 8.1" | 24' | 29' | 33' | See note above. |
| D. | Mexican Fan Palm Washingtonia robusta | 4.2" | 5 ½' | | | Vigorous, sited in parkway strip, municipal wires overhead |
| E. | Mexican Fan Palm Washingtonia robusta | 17.1" | 10' | | | Vigorous, sited in parkway strip, municipal wires overhead. |
| F. | Acacia (?) | 2.3" 2.5" | 7' | 5' | 4' | Fractured trunk, poorly anchored. |

The Urban Lumberjack • Quality Tree Care

5937 Great Oak Circle, Los Angeles, CA 90042 (323) 664-9473 • www.theurbanlumberjack.com Insured • Bonded • CA Lic. #740167 Steve Marshall ISA Certified Arborist WE-8830A





Appendix C-1: Archaeological Resources Assessment Archaeological Resources Assessment for the 1024 Mateo Street Project, Los Angeles, California

APRIL 2019

PREPARED FOR

Mateo Arts, LLC

PREPARED BY

SWCA Environmental Consultants

This page intentionally left blank.

Archaeological Resources Assessment for the 1024 Mateo Street Project, Los Angeles, California

Prepared for

Mateo Arts, LLC 1875 Century Park East, Suite 1750 Los Angeles, CA 90067 Attn: Daniel A. Abrams and Sammi Shaaya

Prepared by

Chris Millington, M.A., RPA and Trevor Gittelhough, M.A., RPA

SWCA Environmental Consultants

51 West Dayton Street Pasadena, California 91105 (626) 240-0587 www.swca.com

SWCA Project No. 055465.00 SWCA CRRD Report No. 19-220

April 2019

Keywords: CEQA; archaeological sensitivity assessment; City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning; Arts District; Zanja No. 1; residential and industrial refuse and building foundations; 2018 E Bay St, 2016 E Bay St, 2010 E Bay St, 2006 E Bay St, 2006 1/2 E Bay St, 1000 S Mateo St, 1000 1/4 S Mateo St, 1010 S Mateo St, 1012 S Mateo St, 2023 E Sacramento St, 2023 1/2 E Sacramento St, 2019 E Sacramento St, 2019 1/2 E Sacramento St, 2015 E Sacramento St, 2015 1/2 E Sacramento St, 2011 E Sacramento St, 2009 E Sacramento St, 2007 E Sacramento St, 2005 E Sacramento St, 2001 E Sacramento St, 1026 S Mateo St, 1024 S Mateo St, 1020 S Mateo St, 1018 S Mateo St, 1014 S Mateo St; Los Angeles; Hollywood quadrangle; Township 1 South, Range 13 West, Section 9

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Purpose and Scope: Mateo Arts, LLC (the Applicant) retained SWCA Environmental Consultants (SWCA) to conduct an archaeological resources sensitivity assessment in support of the proposed 1024 Mateo Street Project located in the city of Los Angeles, California, within the Arts District neighborhood. The Applicant proposes to construct a mixed-income, eight-story mixed-use development containing approximately 106 Live/Work condominiums units and approximately 119,843 square feet of commercial space that includes 13,978 square feet of retail and 13,126 square feet of restaurant space (the Project). The Project site fronts along Mateo, Bay, and Sacramento Streets, and consists of 62,111 square feet (1.43 acres) of lot area. The following report addresses archaeological resources for the purpose of compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and with relevant portions of Public Resources Code (PRC) Section 5024.1, Title 14 California Code of Regulations (CCR) Section 15064.5 of the CEQA Guidelines, and PRC Sections 21083.2 and 21084.1. The City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning (City Planning) is the Lead Agency under CEQA for the Project. This report documents the methods and results of a confidential records search of the California Historical Resources Information System (CHRIS), sacred lands file (SLF) search through the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC), and archival research used to evaluate the presence or likelihood (i.e., sensitivity) of archaeological resources within the Project site and to inform the analysis of potential impacts in accordance with Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines.

Dates of Investigation: On March 18, 2019 SWCA conducted a confidential search of the CHRIS records at the SCCIC on the campus of California State University, Fullerton. On April XX, 2019, SWCA received the results of a SLF search from the NAHC.

Summary of Findings: This evaluation included a review of historical archival sources and archaeological records. No tribal cultural resources were identified in a CHRIS records search within the project site and a 0.5-mile radius. The SLF records search did not identify any sacred lands or sites in the project site. The closest known sites with Native American-affiliated materials on file at the CHRIS are mapped in approximately 1.5 miles north of the Project site, between the Los Angeles Plaza, Union Station, and MWD Headquarters building. The Gabrielino village known as Yaanga and several other important Historicperiod Gabrielino sites (e.g., Pueblito. Rancheria de los Poblanos, and two unnamed rancherias) were located in the same approximate area, more than 1 mile from the Project site. The general proximity of the Project site to areas of known habitation, the river, and broad travel corridors has the effect of an overall increase in the sensitivity for archaeological resources affiliated with Native Americans, particularly for the physical remains of temporary open camps. Subsequent development of the Project site between the 1890s and 1910s, and multiple episodes of redevelopment through the twentieth century would have displaced any former archaeological resources affiliated with Native Americans that were once present on the surface or near surface. Sediment profiles taken from soil sample locations in the Project site are typical of floodplain deposits within the Los Angeles River floodplain and reflect a mixture of high- and low-energy deposition, which is interpreted as reducing the overall archaeological sensitivity for archaeological resources affiliated with Native Americans. Overall, SWCA finds a low potential for encountering prehistoric and Historic-period Native American archaeological resources within the Project site.

One segments of the historical zanja system—Zanja No. 1—was historically located approximately 250 feet (76.2 m) from the Project site, between Mateo and Wilson Streets. A second, unnamed branch of the zanja was also mapped 300 feet (91.4 m) east of the Project site. While several overview maps depicting the zanja system trace the route of Zanja No. 1 either within or very near the Project site, an 1891 survey map was able to more precisely and reliably confirm its relative location. The survey map depicts the main channel of Zanja No. 1 as being constructed of a concrete conduit in the parcels northwest of the Project site and then transitioning into a wooden flume, within the former Leck property, directly east of the Project site. The unnamed segment to the east appears to have been constructed as an open earthen ditch, and is

described as an "old ditch," possibly an earlier route of the zanja. Because the 1891 survey map was drawn to scale and depicted streets are close to their current alignments, the map can be considered a reliable source for assessing the sensitivity for any physical remains of the zanja system within the Project site, and supports the conclusion that the project site has a **low sensitivity for Zanja No. 1 and any other zanja** system components.

The CHRIS records search and archival research identified five archaeological resources, four of which are Historic-period sites, within a 0.8-km (0.5-mile) radius of the Project site. One additional archaeological site, LAN-4460H, was also identified in the CHRIS search, although it was located outside the 0.5-mile radius. LAN-4460H is a Historic-period archaeological site identified during construction monitoring. The site contained a substantial deposit of domestic items and structural remains associated with residential development between the 1880s and 1920s. Because the historical developments of LAN-4460H so closely resemble those within the current Project site, including the existing conditions at the time of construction, the likelihood of encountering similar Historic-period archaeological resources is considered very high. Historic-period archaeological resources could be preserved below the current ground surface, especially within any sediments identified as artificial fill. Specifically, there is potential to encounter structural remains, features, and artifacts associated with the residential neighborhood from the 1890s to the mid-1920s. Refuse was commonly deposited in trash pits and privies prior to the establishment of sewer lines and trash services. Because these types of historical features were originally excavated into pits, which can extend several feet below the surface, they are frequently found preserved below subsequent modifications. The various industrial uses of the Project site from the mid-1920s through the 1950s are also likely to occur as archaeological deposits such as pieces of refuse, hardware, tools, buildings materials, machine parts, as well as former building foundations or other structural remains. The preservation potential is reduced in at least some portions of the Project site as a result of the construction and removal of some subterranean structures in the Project site after 1970. This includes hydraulic hoists, USTs, island pumps, a grease pit, wash-down drain, and clarifier that were identified in Phase I and II ESAs, and a Site Characterization Report. Overall, SWCA finds the Project site has a high sensitivity for containing Historic-period (non-Native American) archaeological resources.

Conclusion: The depth of excavation for the Project is approximately 25 feet below the surface, which would likely require excavation of underlying alluvial sediments and removal of any overlying artificial fill. The potential for unidentified archaeological resources within the Project site is found to be high. If present, any previously unidentified archaeological resources have the potential to be significant under CEQA. The total depth of excavation required for the Project is expected to be approximately 25 feet below the surface. Without mitigation, physical destruction of an archaeological resource eligible for listing in the CRHR would result in a significant impact under CEOA. To address potential impacts to previously undiscovered archaeological resources, the Project will include retaining a qualified archaeologist (MM Arch-1), producing and implementing a detailed ARMMP (MM Arch-2 and Arch-4), and conducting a worker training (MM Arch-3). Doing so will ensure any archaeological sites are identified and determined to be historical resources or unique archaeological resources, to which project-related impacts would be mitigated on the basis of their eligibility under each CRHR criterion and as a unique archaeological resource. Therefore, after mitigation, potential impacts to archaeological resources would be reduced to less than significant under CEQA. The measures described above address potential impacts to archaeological resources. In the event of a discovery of archaeological resources affiliated with Native Americans that might be considered tribal cultural resources, the City's standard condition of approval for the inadvertent discovery of tribal cultural resources will be followed.

Disposition of Data: The final report and any subsequent related reports will be submitted to Arts District Development, LLC; the Los Angeles Department of City Planning; and the SCCIC at California State University, Fullerton. Research materials and the report are also on file at the SWCA Pasadena Office.
CONTENTS

| MANAGEMENT SUMMARY | i |
|--|-----|
| CONTENTS | iii |
| TABLES | iv |
| FIGURES | iv |
| APPENDICES | vi |
| INTRODUCTION | 1 |
| PROJECT DESCRIPTION | 1 |
| REGULATORY SETTING | 2 |
| STATE REGULATIONS | 2 |
| California Environmental Quality Act | 2 |
| California Register of Historical Resources | |
| Treatment of Human Remains | |
| LOCAL REGULATIONS | 5 |
| Los Angeles Historic-Cultural Monuments | 5 |
| City of Los Angeles General Plan | 5 |
| METHODS | 5 |
| CHRIS RECORDS SEARCH | 5 |
| ARCHIVAL RESEARCH | 6 |
| SENSITIVITY ASSESSMENT | 6 |
| ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING | 7 |
| CULTURAL SETTING | 8 |
| PREHISTORY | |
| Prehistoric Overview | |
| ETHNOGRAPHIC OVERVIEW | |
| Native American Communities in Los Angeles | |
| HISTORY | |
| Spanish Period (1769–1822) | |
| Mexican Period (1822–1848) | 14 |
| American Period (1848–Present) | 14 |
| Los Angeles: From Pueblo to City | |
| Historical Development of the Arts District Neighborhood | |
| RESULTS | |
| CHRIS RECORDS SEARCH | |
| Previously Conducted Studies | |
| Previously Recorded Cultural Resources | |
| ARCHIVAL RESEARCH | |

| NATIVE AMERICAN COORDINATION | 30 |
|--|----|
| SACRED LANDS FILE SEARCH | 30 |
| SENSITIVITY ASSESSMENT | 30 |
| PREHISTORIC AND HISTORIC-PERIOD NATIVE AMERICAN ARCHAEOLOGICAL | |
| RESOURCES | 30 |
| HISTORIC-PERIOD ARCHAEOLOGICAL RESOURCES | 30 |
| Zanja No. 1 | 32 |
| Household and Industrial Refuse and Building Foundations | 32 |
| IMPACTS TO HISTORIC-PERIOD ARCHAEOLOGICAL SITES | 33 |
| Household and Industrial Refuse and Building Foundations | 33 |
| RECOMMENDED MITIGATION MEASURES | 35 |
| FEASIBILITY OF PRESERVATION IN PLACE | 35 |
| CONCLUSION | 39 |
| REFERENCES CITED | 40 |

Tables

| Table 1. Previously Conducted Cultural Resource Studies within 0.5 Mile of the Project Site | |
|---|----|
| Table 2. Previously Recorded Resources Within 0.5 Mile of the Project Site | 24 |
| Table 3. Residential Developments within Project Lots | |

Figures

| Figure 1. Project site plotted on city map of Los Angeles. | .A-1 |
|---|------|
| Figure 2. Project site with associated parcels on a 2013 aerial and street map | A-2 |
| Figure 3. Former street addresses associated with each lot in the Project Site | A-3 |
| Figure 4. Project site and 0.5-mile records search radius plotted on USGS 7.5-minute quadrangle | A-4 |
| Figure 5. Surficial geology from Bedrossian and Roffers (2012) and former courses of the Los Angeles River from Gumprecht (2001) | A-5 |
| Figure 6. Project site plotted on McCawley's (1996:36) map of Gabrielieno placenames cited in ethongraphic sources. | A-6 |
| Figure 7. Project site plotted on a map of Native American and historical sites in the Los Angeles Basin published by the Southwest Museum (1962) and re-printed in Johnston (1962) | A-7 |
| Figure 8. Project site plotted on the Kirkman-Harriman map (Kirkman 1938) | A-8 |
| Figure 9. Historical reference points associated with Gabrielino settlement in the downtown Los Angeles area. The base map is a reconstruction of the late nineteenth century topography (gray contours) that includes former stream courses, irrigation channels (zanjas), and parcels composing the downtown "Lower District" (now downtown Los Angeles). Sources for the locations are indicated in the legend and footer. | A-9 |
| Figure 10. Project site plotted on a Gumprecht's (2001) map of the Los Angeles Zanja system | A-10 |

| Figure 11. Project site plotted on an appended draft of Hancock's 1857 map, which was based on Ord's original map of the City (Ord 1849). The parcel overlapped by the Project site was identified as a corn field in Ord's original map. The colored property lines were added after 1857 |
|---|
| Figure 12. Bird's eye view of Los Angeles facing southwest illustrated by E.S. Glover in 1877. The Project site is located in the area southwest of 7th and Alameda Streets |
| Figure 13. Illustration of Los Angeles by H.B. Elliott in 1891 facing southwest showing the vicinity of the Project site and an early alignment of Zanja No. 1. The zanja alignment corresponds to the same approximate route depicted by Ord, Hancock, and Hanson's survey maps. The Project site is located in the open space between the Los Angeles River and Alameda Street, south of 7th Street |
| Figure 14. View of 7th Street at Mateo Street, facing west toward Alameda Street, 1933. (Source: USC Libraries Special Collections, Dick Whittington Studio, File DW-1933-05-27-153, Image 2) |
| Figure 15. View of 7th Street at Mateo Street, facing east towards the Los Angeles River, 1933. (Source: USC Libraries Special Collections, Dick Whittington Studio, File DW-1933-05-27- 153, Image 3) |
| Figure 16. Project site plotted on the original plat for the City of Los Angeles, surveyed in 1858 by Henry Hancock and published in 1859. The city limits are outlined light red. The historic core—including the Los Angeles Plaza and pueblo site—are located in the center |
| Figure 17. The project site plotted on Stevenson's 1884 real estate map. The project site is in a parcel owned by Lorenzo Leck, and Zanja No. 1 is located directly within the Project site A-15 |
| Figure 18. The Project site plotted on Rowan and Koeberle's 1886 map of Los Angeles. Note the alignment of Zanja No. 1 east of the Project site |
| Figure 19. Project site plotted on a map from Hall's (1888) irrigation report. The map depicts Zanja No. 1 west of Project site |
| Figure 20. 1891 parcel map showing detailed location of Zanja No. 1 in relation to the Project Site. The green line on the left is labeled as "Old Willow Hedge." |
| Figure 21. 1891 parcel map projected on a 2013 aerial photograph with current street alignments A-19 |
| Figure 22. 1891 parcel map with detailed views of the labels (insets) identifying the location and materials (concrete pipe and wood flume) of Zanja No. 1 and unnamed spurs, labeled "Old Ditch." |
| Figure 23. Project site plotted on an 1887 city map. This map is an updated version of Rowan and Koeberle's earlier 1886 map, showing the extensive development that occurred at the time. Zanja No. 1 can still be seen north of 7th Street but appears to longer exist within the Project site. |
| Figure 24. Project site plotted on USGS 7.5-minute topographic quadrangles from 1894 to 2018. Note that Mateo Street was present but not included in the 1894 map |
| Figure 25. Project site plotted on Los Angeles street maps published between 1895 and 1935. Note railway spurs and street car tracks |
| Figure 26. Project site plotted on Sanborn Fire Insurance maps from 1900 to 1953 |
| Figure 27. Project site plotted on a 1921 Baist Real Estate map |
| Figure 28. Project site plotted on aerial photographs from 1927, 1930, 1938, and 1956 A-26 |
| Figure 29. Previous and extant Subsurface structures identified in the Phase II ESA (Johannes 2015) overlaid on 1906 Sanborn Insurance Map |

| Figure 30. Geophysical survey results (Feldman 2015) superimposed on the 1906 Sanborn | |
|--|------|
| Insurance Map. | A-28 |
| Figure 31. Archaeological resources identified in the CHRIS records search | B-1 |
| Figure 32. Archaeological features (gray dots) from Site P-19-004460 plotted on a 1906 Sanborn | |
| map. The site was recorded during archaeological monitoring for the La Kretz Innovation | |
| Campus Project (Bray and Vader 2014:72). The features indicated here were recorded | |
| between 10 and 43 inches below the surface | B-2 |
| Figure 33. Site P-19-004460 and the Project site plotted on a 1927 aerial photograph | B-3 |

Appendices

Appendix A. Report Figures

Appendix B. Confidential Report Figures (Not for Public Distribution)

Appendix C. Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File (SLF) Search Results Letter

INTRODUCTION

Mateo Arts, LLC (the Applicant) retained SWCA Environmental Consultants (SWCA) to conduct an archaeological resources sensitivity assessment in support of the proposed 1024 Mateo Street Project located in the city of Los Angeles, California, within the Arts District neighborhood. The Applicant proposes to construct a mixed-income, eight-story mixed-use development containing approximately 106 Live/Work condominiums units and approximately 119,843 square feet of commercial space that includes 13,978 square feet of retail and 13,126 square feet of restaurant space (the Project). The Project site fronts along Mateo, Bay, and Sacramento Streets, and consists of 62,111 square feet (1.43 acres) of lot area.

The following report addresses archaeological resources¹ for the purpose of compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and with relevant portions of Public Resources Code (PRC) Section 5024.1, Title 14 California Code of Regulations (CCR) Section 15064.5 of the CEQA Guidelines, and PRC Sections 21083.2 and 21084.1. The City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning (City Planning) is the Lead Agency under CEQA for the Project. This report documents the methods and results of a confidential records search of the California Historical Resources Information System (CHRIS), sacred lands file (SLF) search through the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC), and archival research used to evaluate the presence or likelihood (i.e., sensitivity) of archaeological resources within the Project site and to inform the analysis of potential impacts in accordance with Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines.

SWCA Senior Archaeologist Chris Millington, M.A., Registered Professional Archaeologist (RPA), managed the project, co-authored the report, and prepared all figures. SWCA Staff Archaeologist Trevor Gittelhough, M.A., RPA, conducted background research and co-authored the report. SWCA Principal Investigator Heather Gibson, Ph.D., RPA, provided additional review of the report. All non-confidential figures in the report are included in Appendix A; Appendix B contains confidential report figures; Appendix C contains the SLF results letter. Copies of the report are on file with the Applicant, City Planning, and the South Central Coastal Information Center (SCCIC) at California State University, Fullerton. All background materials are on file with SWCA's office in Pasadena, California.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The Project site is in the city of Los Angeles within the Arts District neighborhood, which is currently characterized with commercial and industrial properties (Figure 1). The Project site consists of 62,111 square feet (1.43 acres) of lot area and fronts along Mateo, Bay, and Sacramento Streets at the following addresses: 2001–2005 Sacramento Street, 1024 Mateo Street, and 2016 Bay Street. The County of Los Angeles Assessor's Office lists the assessor parcel numbers (APNs) as 5166-011-012 and 5166-011-021, which contain lot numbers 73 and 75–84 (Figure 2). Figure 3 includes the former street addresses listed for each of the lots.² This location is plotted in Section 9 of Township 1 South, Range 13 West as depicted on the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) Hollywood, California, 7.5-minute topographic quadrangle (Figure 4).

¹ The report pertains only to archaeological resources and distinguishes different types of archaeological sites based on cultural and temporal affiliations, referred to here as prehistoric and Historic-period sites. Assessment of buildings, structures, objects, and other elements of the historical built environment, as well as paleontological and tribal cultural resources, is not included here. For purposes of this report, the terms "archaeological resource" and "archaeological site" are used synonymously; however, any such references are categorically distinct from a "unique archaeological resource" or "historical resources," as defined under CEQA, and should not be used interchangeably. Additional definitions are provided in subsequent sections.

² Prior to 1950, 2007 and 2011 E. Sacramento Street were listed as 2005 and 2009 E. Sacrament Street. Subsequent changes to the parcel and lots were associated with additional changes in street address that are not fully detailed in this report. (See below, Results: Archival Research.)

The Applicant proposes to construct a mixed-income, eight-story mixed-use development containing approximately 106 Live/Work condominiums units and approximately 119,843 square feet of commercial space including 13,978 square feet of retail and 13,126 square feet of restaurant space. One level of subterranean parking will serve as a base for the building, which will require no more than 25 feet of excavation below the current grade. The site is currently occupied to the north by a single 17,400-square-foot industrial building used by MV Transportation for bus maintenance and offices, and a 4,800-square-foot structure used for storage. The remainder of the lot is paved with asphalt, which is used for parking, vehicle maintenance, and fueling, and includes some temporary structures. The Project proposes to demolish the extant buildings and asphalt, and excavate up to 25 feet below the current grade.

REGULATORY SETTING

State Regulations

The California Office of Historic Preservation (OHP), a division of the California Department of Parks and Recreation (DPR), performs certain duties described in the California PRC and maintains the California Historic Resources Inventory and the California Register of Historical Resources (CRHR). The state-level regulatory framework also includes CEQA, which requires the identification, and mitigation if necessary, of substantial adverse impacts that may affect the significance of eligible historical and archaeological resources.

California Environmental Quality Act

CEQA requires a lead agency to analyze whether historic and/or archaeological resources may be adversely affected by a proposed project. Under CEQA, a "project that may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historic resource is a project that may have a significant effect on the environment" (PRC Section 21084.1). Answering this question is a two-part process: first, the determination must be made whether the proposed project involves cultural resources. Second, if cultural resources are present, the proposed project must be analyzed for a potential "substantial adverse change in the significance" of the resource.

HISTORICAL RESOURCES

According to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5, for the purposes of CEQA, historical resources are:

- A resource listed in, or formally determined eligible...for listing in the CRHR (PRC 5024.1, 14 CCR 4850 et seq.).
- A resource included in a local register of historical resources, as defined in PRC Section 5020.1(k) or identified as significance in a historic resources survey meeting the requirements of PRC Section 5024.1(g).
- Any object, building, structure, site, area, place, record, or manuscript that the lead agency determines to be eligible for national, state, or local landmark listing; generally, a resource shall be considered by the lead agency to be historically significant (and therefore a historic resource under CEQA) if the resource meets the criteria for listing on the CRHR (as defined in PRC Section 5024.1, 14 CCR 4852).

Resources nominated to the CRHR must retain enough of their historic character or appearance to convey the reasons for their significance. Resources whose historic integrity (as defined above) does not meet National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) criteria may still be eligible for listing in the CRHR.

According to CEQA, the fact that a resource is not listed in or determined eligible for listing in the CRHR or is not included in a local register or survey shall not preclude the lead agency from determining that the resource may be a historical resource (PRC Section 5024.1). Pursuant to CEQA, a project with an effect that may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource may have a significant effect on the environment (CEQA Guidelines, Section 15064.5[b]).

Substantial Adverse Change and Indirect Impacts to Historical Resources

CEQA Guidelines specify that a "substantial adverse change in the significance of an historical resource means physical demolition, destruction, relocation, or alteration of the resource or its immediate surroundings such that the significance of an historical resource would be materially impaired" (CEQA Guidelines, Section 15064.5). Material impairment occurs when a project alters in an adverse manner or demolishes "those physical characteristics of an historical resource that convey its historical significance and that justify its inclusion" or eligibility for inclusion in the NRHP, CRHR, or local register. In addition, pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15126.2, the "direct and indirect significant effects of the project on the environment shall be clearly identified and described, giving due consideration to both the short-term and long-term effects."

ARCHAEOLOGICAL RESOURCES

In terms of archaeological resources, PRC Section 21083.2(g) defines a unique archaeological resource as an archaeological artifact, object, or site about which it can be clearly demonstrated that without merely adding to the current body of knowledge, there is a high probability that it meets any of the following criteria:

- (1) Contains information needed to answer important scientific research questions and that there is a demonstrable public interest in that information.
- (2) Has a special and particular quality such as being the oldest of its type or the best available example of its type.
- (3) Is directly associated with a scientifically recognized important prehistoric or historic event or person.

California Register of Historical Resources

Created in 1992 and implemented in 1998, the CRHR is "an authoritative guide in California to be used by state and local agencies, private groups, and citizens to identify the state's historical resources and to indicate what properties are to be protected, to the extent prudent and feasible, from substantial adverse change" (PRC Sections 21083.2 and 21084.1). Certain properties, including those listed in or formally determined eligible for listing in the NRHP and California Historical Landmarks numbered 770 and higher, are automatically included in the CRHR. Other properties recognized under the California Points of Historical Interest program, identified as significant in historical resources surveys, or designated by local landmarks programs, may be nominated for inclusion in the CRHR. According to PRC Section 5024.1(c), a resource, either an individual property or a contributor to a historic district, may be listed in the CRHR if the State Historical Resources Commission determines that it meets one or more of the following criteria, which are modeled on NRHP criteria:

- **Criterion 1:** It is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of California's history and cultural heritage.
- Criterion 2: It is associated with the lives of persons important in our past.

- **Criterion 3:** It embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region, or method of construction, or represents the work of an important creative individual, or possesses high artistic values.
- Criterion 4: It has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in history or prehistory.

Resources nominated to the CRHR must retain enough of their historic character or appearance to convey the reasons for their significance. Resources whose historic integrity does not meet NRHP criteria may still be eligible for listing in the CRHR. While all sites are evaluated according to all four of the CRHR criteria, the eligibility for archaeological resources is typically considered under Criterion 4. Most prehistoric archeological sites are lacking identifiable or important association with specific persons or events of regional or national history (Criteria 1 and 2), or lacking the formal and structural attributes necessary to qualify as eligible under Criterion 3.

An archaeological site may be considered significant if it displays one or more of the following attributes: chronologically diagnostic, functionally diagnostic, or exotic artifacts; datable materials; definable activity areas; multiple components; faunal or floral remains; archeological or architectural features; notable complexity, size, integrity, time span, or depth; or stratified deposits. Determining the period(s) of occupation at a site provides a context for the types of activities undertaken and may well supply a link with other sites and cultural processes in the region. Further, well-defined temporal parameters can help illuminate processes of culture change and continuity in relation to natural environmental factors and interactions with other cultural groups. Finally, chronological controls might provide a link to regionally important research questions and topics of more general theoretical relevance. As a result, the ability to determine the temporal parameters of a site's occupation is critical for a finding of eligibility under Criterion 4 (information potential). A site that cannot be dated is unlikely to possess the quality of significance required for CRHR eligibility or be considered a unique archaeological resource. The content of an archeological site provides information regarding its cultural affiliations, temporal periods of use, functionality, and other aspects of its occupation history. The range and variability of artifacts present in the site can allow for reconstruction of changes in ethnic affiliation, diet, social structure, economics, technology, industrial change, and other aspects of culture.

Treatment of Human Remains

The disposition of burials falls first under the general prohibition on disturbing or removing human remains under California Health and Safety Code (CHSC) Section 7050.5. More specifically, remains suspected to be Native American are treated under CEQA at CCR Section 15064.5; PRC Section 5097.98 illustrates the process to be followed if remains are discovered. If human remains are discovered during excavation activities, the following procedure shall be observed:

• Stop immediately and contact the County Coroner:

1104 N. Mission Road Los Angeles, CA 90033 323-343-0512 (8 am to 5 pm Monday through Friday) or 323-343-0714 (After hours, Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays)

- If the remains are determined to be of Native American descent, the Coroner has 24 hours to notify the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC).
- The NAHC will immediately notify the person it believes to be the most likely descendant (MLD) of the deceased Native American.
- The MLD has 48 hours to make recommendations to the owner, or representative, for the treatment or disposition, with proper dignity, of the human remains and grave goods.

• If the owner does not accept the MLD's recommendations, the owner or the MLD may request mediation by the NAHC.

Local Regulations

Los Angeles Historic-Cultural Monuments

Local landmarks in Los Angeles are known as Historic-Cultural Monuments (HCMs) and are under the aegis of the City Planning, Office of Historic Resources (OHR). An HCM, monument, or local landmark is defined in the Cultural Heritage Ordinance as follows:

[A] Historic-Cultural Monument (Monument) is any site (including significant trees or other plant life located on the site), building or structure of particular historic or cultural significance to the City of Los Angeles, including historic structures or sites in which the broad cultural, economic or social history of the nation, State or community is reflected or exemplified; or which is identified with historic personages or with important events in the main currents of national, State or local history; or which embodies the distinguishing characteristics of an architectural type specimen, inherently valuable for a study of a period, style or method of construction; or a notable work of a master builder, designer, or architect whose individual genius influenced his or her age (Municipal Code Section 22.171.7).

City of Los Angeles General Plan

The Conservation Element of the City of Los Angeles General Plan, adopted in September 2001, contains an objective (II-5) to protect the City's archaeological resources for historical, cultural, research and/or educational purposes. The Conservation Element establishes a policy to "continue to identify and protect significant archaeological and paleontological sites and/or resources known to exist or that are identified during land development, demolition of property modification activities" (City of Los Angeles 2001:II-5–6).

METHODS

The following section presents an overview of the methodology used to identify the potential for archaeological resources within the Project site.

CHRIS Records Search

On March 18, 2019, SWCA conducted a confidential search of the CHRIS records at the SCCIC on the campus of California State University, Fullerton, to identify previously documented cultural resources within a 0.8-km (0.5-mile) radius of the Project site, as well as any selectively chosen outside the radius to aid in the assessment of archaeological resource sensitivity. The SCCIC maintains records of previously documented archaeological resources and technical studies; it also maintains copies of the OHP's portion of the Historic Resources Inventory.

Confidential CHRIS results include specific information on the nature and location of sensitive archaeological sites, which should not be disclosed to the public or unauthorized persons and are exempt from the Freedom of Information Act. The information included in a confidential CHRIS records search is needed to assess the sensitivity for undocumented archaeological resources and to inform the impact analysis. The search included any previously recorded archaeological resources (i.e., excludes historic buildings) within the Project site and surrounding 0.8-km (0.5-mile) area.

Archival Research

Concurrent with the confidential CHRIS records search, SWCA also reviewed property-specific historical and ethnographic context research to identify information relevant to the Project site. Research focused on a variety of primary and secondary materials relating to the history and development of the Project site, including historical maps, aerial and ground photographs, ethnographic reports, and other environmental data. Historical maps drawn to scale were georeferenced using ESRI ArcMAP v10.5 to show precise relationships to the Project site. Sources consulted included the following publicly accessible data sources: City of Los Angeles OHR (SurveyLA); City of Los Angeles Department of Building and Safety (building permits); David Rumsey Historical Map Collection; Huntington Library Digital Archives; Library of Congress; Los Angeles Public Library Map Collection; Sanborn Fire Insurance Company Maps (Sanborn maps); USGS historical topographic maps; University of California, Santa Barbara, Digital Library (aerial photographs); and University of Southern California Digital Library.

In addition, SWCA reviewed technical reports prepared for the project, including a Site Characterization Report (Buchanan 2015), a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) Report (Mahmood 2015), geophysical survey (Feldman 2015), and a Phase II ESA Report (Johannes 2015). Both the Site Characterization Report and Phase II ESA Report included geophysical testing. The Site Characterization report involved four bore holes to a depth of 30.5 feet. The geophysical survey used magnetometers, conductivity meters, metal detectors, and ground-penetrating radar to identify subsurface features (Feldman 2015).

Sensitivity Assessment

In circumstances where a known archaeological resource has not been identified, no previous archaeological studies have been conducted, and subsurface testing is not feasible because of existing developments, the potential for an unidentified resource to be present (i.e., sensitivity) in the form of a buried archaeological site is assessed indirectly. That determination considers past land uses, broadly, and an assessment of whether the setting is capable of containing buried materials (i.e., preservation potential) in the form of an archaeological site. Specific factors are considered for different types of archaeological sites on the basis of their cultural-temporal affiliation. Specifically, SWCA assessed the sensitivity of the Project site for archaeological resources associated with Prehistoric and Historic-period Native Americans, and those affiliated with non-Native Americans from the Historic-period. Lacking any data evidence for the presence or absence of archaeological material below the surface, the resulting sensitivity is by nature qualitative, ranging along a spectrum of increasing probability for encountering such material, designated here as low, moderate, and high. In general, areas with a favorable setting for habitation or temporary use, soil conditions capable of preserving buried material, and little to no disturbances are considered to have a high sensitivity. Areas lacking these traits are considered to have low sensitivity. Areas with a combination of these traits are considered to have moderate sensitivity.

In assessing the sensitivity for archaeological resources affiliated with Native Americans, SWCA considers whether the location was favorable for Native American habitation. Indicators of favorable habitability for Native Americans are proximity to natural features (e.g., perennial water source, plant or mineral resource, animal habitat), other known sites, flat topography, and relatively dry conditions. Sensitivity for Native American-affiliated resources also considers Gabrielino ethnographic studies that describe the location of former Native American settlements, foraging and other indigenous land-use behaviors, as well as regional studies of archaeological site distribution. Assessing the sensitivity of Historic-period archaeological resources considers historical land uses on the basis of available documents including maps, photographs, permits, oral histories, and other documents. Sites with developments in the nineteenth or early twentieth centuries are considered to have increased archaeological sensitivity.

Preservation potential for both types of resources considers whether the physical setting is capable of containing buried archaeological materials and whether any such materials once present have been destroyed, removed, or otherwise not preserved at the location, either because of natural causes (e.g., erosion, flooding) or historical development. The preservation potential relies on an understanding of existing soil conditions and site history. In urban settings, site-specific soil conditions are obtained through geotechnical studies. More generalized information on existing soil conditions for a given location is also assessed on the basis of soil surveys and geologic studies. For areas in which there was intensive historical use that modified the surface and near-surface (e.g., from grading or large-scale excavation), or for areas where there is evidence that the preservation potential is poor, there is reduced sensitivity.

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING

The Project site is in the Los Angeles Basin, a broad, level plain defined by the Pacific Ocean to the west, the Santa Monica Mountains and Puente Hills to the north, and the Santa Ana Mountains and San Joaquin Hills to the south. This extensive alluvial wash basin is filled with Quaternary alluvial sediments deposited as unconsolidated material eroded from the surrounding hills. Several major watercourses drain the Los Angeles Basin, including the Los Angeles, Rio Hondo, San Gabriel, and Santa Ana rivers. The Project site and vicinity are within a fully urbanized setting on an open aspect plain at an elevation of 74 meters (243 feet) above mean sea level. This site is located in the northern portion of the Peninsular Ranges Geomorphic Province and approximately 6 miles south of the Raymond Fault Zone. The Project site is on a broad alluvial plain with a slightly southern aspect, located south of the Santa Monica Mountains and west of the Los Angeles River.

The south-flowing Los Angeles River is currently located approximately 0.5 km (0.31 mile) east of the Project site; however, historically the channel has shifted courses several times during flood events, with the main channel shifting its location relative to the Project site twice in the last 100 years (Figure 5). The first recorded shift of the river occurred in 1815 when floodwaters overflowed the former channel, shifting the course, previously located to the east of the Project site, at least 0.8 km (0.5 mile) to the southwest, near the present route of North Spring Street, now west of the Project site. That flood destroyed structures built as part of the original Los Angeles Pueblo and is presumed to have also destroyed a Native American village site (Yaanga) also located north of the Project site (Gumprecht 2001:139-141). At that time and before 1825, the river flowed west within the Los Angeles Basin, discharging into the Ballona Wetlands along what is now Ballona Creek, near Santa Monica. Flooding in 1825 then produced the most dramatic shift historically observed in the river's course as the newly formed channel overflowed its banks and shifted its course again, relocating the channel back east of the Project site, now flowing fully south and emptying into the bay near San Pedro. Subsequent shifts occurred along the braided streams within the broader, southflowing flood plain. The Los Angeles River flooded multiple times, including a catastrophic flood in 1938. Flood events such as these can produce substantial deposits of alluvial sediments within the respective floodplains. Alluvial terraces formed where flooding water eroded into adjacent hillsides. In the downtown Los Angeles area, the backslopes in the location of Bunker Hill delineate the edge of the historical floodplain.

The earliest soil surveys of the area were conducted before 1920 as county-wide effort focused on agricultural productivity. The report from 1919 define the soils in the Project site as the Hanford loam series (Nelson et al. 1919:55). Hanford loam is described as varying between 12 and 72 inches deep, consisting of a brown, friably, light-textured, micaceous loam. While the soil unit generally lacked gravel inclusions, the study notes that small patches and low strips of gravel occur in the courses of streamways where flooding had occurred, as in an area north of Exposition Park in the former westward course of the Los Angeles River. Contemporary soil reports from the U.S. Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation Service still retain approximately the same description for the Hanford series. Other recent works published by the California Geological Survey synthesized previous studies of the surficial geology and designated a

more detailed typology (Bedrossian and Roffers 2012; Bedrossian et al. 2012:16). According to the Bedrossian and Roffers (2012) map, the Project site falls within surficial deposits defined as Young Alluvial Valley Deposits (abbreviated Qya), which were created during the late Pleistocene and Holocene—after approximately 11,700 years ago and before approximately 1000 years ago. The Qya unit is further divided into subunits. The Project site is in the Qya2 subunit (Figure 5), defined for sediments deposited in the late Pleistocene. Qya soils generally consist of unconsolidated to slightly consolidated, undissected to slightly dissected clay, silt, sand, and gravel along stream valleys and alluvial flats of large rivers (the Los Angeles River). The spatial extent of the Qya unit generally correlates with the Hanford loam described in 1919.

Preliminary results of the geotechnical report prepared for the Project (in preparation) identified up to 2 feet of artificial fill in the Project site. Limited soil testing in the Project site was conducted in 2015 by Certified Environmental Consultants, Inc. (CEC) as part of a Phase II ESA (Johannes 2015). The Phase II ESA also included a geophysical survey completed by Geovision Geophysical Services (GGS), which used magnetometers, high-frequency metal detectors, and ground-penetrating radar equipment to search for underground storage tanks (Feldman 2015). The GCS survey identified several surficial metallic objects and three sub-surface anomalies, none of which were considered to be consistent with a large underground storage tank (Feldman 2015). Further results of the geophysical survey are discussed below (see Results: Archival Research).

Anderson Environmental conducted additional soil testing in 2015 and summarized the results in a Site Characterization Report (Buchanan 2015). For their study, Anderson Environmental drilled four bores with six-inch samples taken at 5-foot intervals to a depth of 30 feet below grade. Bore logs completed for the sample locations characterized the soil composition at each of the sample depths. The sediment profiles identified multiple alluvial layers of fine-grained sand and silty sand, some with gravel inclusions, extending down to 10 to 30 feet. Below this the soil consisted of poorly graded sand. Three of the bores identified a stratum of decomposing granite mixed with sand between 15 and 25 feet below the surface.

CULTURAL SETTING

Prehistory

Prehistoric Overview

In the last several decades, researchers have devised numerous prehistoric chronological sequences to aid in understanding cultural changes in southern California. Building on early studies and focusing on data synthesis, Wallace (1955, 1978) developed a prehistoric chronology for the southern California coastal region that is still widely used today and is applicable to near-coastal and many inland areas. Four horizons are presented in Wallace's prehistoric sequence: Early Man, Milling Stone, Intermediate, and Late Prehistoric. Although Wallace's 1955 synthesis initially lacked chronological precision due to a paucity of absolute dates (Moratto 1984:159), this situation has been alleviated by the availability of thousands of radiocarbon dates obtained by southern California researchers in the last three decades (Byrd and Raab 2007:217). As such, several revisions were subsequently made to Wallace's 1955 synthesis using radiocarbon dates and projectile point assemblages (e.g., Koerper and Drover 1983; Koerper et al. 2002; Mason and Peterson 1994). The summary of prehistoric chronological sequences for southern California coastal and near-coastal areas presented below is a composite of information in Wallace (1955) and Warren (1968), as well as more recent studies, including Koerper and Drover (1983).

HORIZON I: EARLY MAN (CA. 10,000-6,000 BC)

The earliest accepted dates for archaeological sites on the southern California coast are from two of the northern Channel Islands, located off the coast of Santa Barbara. On San Miguel Island, Daisy Cave clearly establishes the presence of people in this area approximately 10,000 years ago (Erlandson 1991:105). On

Santa Rosa Island, human remains have been dated from the Arlington Springs site to approximately 13,000 years ago (Johnson et al. 2002). Present-day Orange and San Diego counties contain several sites dating from 9,000 to 10,000 years ago (Byrd and Raab 2007:219; Macko 1998:41; Mason and Peterson 1994:55–57; Sawyer and Koerper 2006). Although the dating of these finds remains controversial, several sets of human remains from the Los Angeles Basin (e.g., "Los Angeles Man," "La Brea Woman," and the Haverty skeletons) apparently date to the Middle Holocene, if not earlier (Brooks et al. 1990; Erlandson et al. 2007:54).

Recent data from Horizon I sites indicate that the economy was a diverse mixture of hunting and gathering, with a major emphasis on aquatic resources in many coastal areas (e.g., Jones et al. 2002), and a greater emphasis on large-game hunting inland.

HORIZON II: MILLING STONE (6,000-3,000 BC)

Set during a drier climatic regime than the previous horizon, the Milling Stone horizon is characterized by subsistence strategies centered on collecting plant foods and small animals. The importance of the seed processing is apparent in the dominance of stone grinding implements in contemporary archaeological assemblages, namely milling stones (metates) and handstones (manos). Recent research indicates that Milling Stone horizon food procurement strategies varied in both time and space, reflecting divergent responses to variable coastal and inland environmental conditions (Byrd and Raab 2007:220).

HORIZON III: INTERMEDIATE (3,000 BC-AD 500)

The Intermediate horizon is characterized by a shift toward a hunting and maritime subsistence strategy, along with a wider use of plant foods. An increasing variety and abundance of fish, land mammal, and sea mammal remains are found in sites from this horizon along the California coast. Related chipped stone tools suitable for hunting are more abundant and diversified, and shell fishhooks became part of the toolkit during this period. Mortars and pestles became more common during this period, gradually replacing manos and metates as the dominant milling equipment and signaling a shift away from the processing and consuming of hard seed resources to the increasing importance of the acorn (e.g., Glassow et al. 1988; True 1993).

HORIZON IV: LATE PREHISTORIC (AD 500-HISTORIC CONTACT)

In the Late Prehistoric horizon, there was an increase in the use of plant food resources in addition to an increase in land and sea mammal hunting. There was a concomitant increase in the diversity and complexity of material culture during the Late Prehistoric horizon, demonstrated by more classes of artifacts. The recovery of a greater number of small, finely chipped projectile points suggests increased use of the bow and arrow rather than the atlatl (spear thrower) and dart for hunting. Steatite cooking vessels and containers are also present in sites from this time, and there is an increased presence of smaller bone and shell circular fishhooks; perforated stones; arrow shaft straighteners made of steatite; a variety of bone tools; and personal ornaments such as beads made from shell, bone, and stone. There was also an increased use of asphalt for waterproofing and as an adhesive. Late Prehistoric burial practices are discussed in the Ethnographic Overview section below.

By AD 1000, fired clay smoking pipes and ceramic vessels were being used at some sites (Drover 1971, 1975; Meighan 1954; Warren and True 1961). The scarcity of pottery in coastal and near-coastal sites implies that ceramic technology was not well developed in that area, or that occupants were trading with neighboring groups to the south and east for ceramics. The lack of widespread pottery manufacture is usually attributed to the high quality of tightly woven and watertight basketry that functioned in the same capacity as ceramic vessels.

During this period, there was an increase in population size accompanied by the advent of larger, more permanent villages (Wallace 1955:223). Large populations and, in places, high population densities are characteristic, with some coastal and near-coastal settlements containing as many as 1,500 people. Many of the larger settlements were permanent villages in which people resided year-round. The populations of these villages may have also increased seasonally.

In Warren's (1968) cultural ecological scheme, the period between AD 500 and European contact, which occurred as early as 1542, is divided into three regional patterns: Chumash (Santa Barbara and Ventura counties), Takic/Numic (Los Angeles, Orange, and western Riverside counties), and Yuman (San Diego County). The seemingly abrupt introduction of cremation, pottery, and small triangular arrow points in parts of modern-day Los Angeles, Orange, and western Riverside counties at the beginning of the Late Prehistoric period is thought to be the result of a Takic migration to the coast from inland desert regions. Modern Gabrielino, Juaneño, and Luiseño people in this region are considered the descendants of the Uto-Aztecan, Takic-speaking populations that settled along the California coast in this period.

Ethnographic Overview

The Project site is in an area historically occupied by the Gabrielino (Bean and Smith 1978:538; Kroeber 1925: Plate 57). Surrounding native groups included the Chumash and Tatataviam/Alliklik to the north, the Serrano to the east, and the Luiseño/Juaneño to the south. There is well-documented interaction between the Gabrielino and many of their neighbors in the form of intermarriage and trade.

The name "Gabrielino" (sometimes spelled Gabrieleno or Gabrieleño) denotes those people who were administered by the Spanish from Mission San Gabriel. This group is now considered a regional dialect of the Gabrielino language, along with the Santa Catalina Island and San Nicolas Island dialects (Bean and Smith 1978:538). In the post-European contact period, Mission San Gabriel included natives of the greater Los Angeles area, as well as members of surrounding groups such as Kitanemuk, Serrano, and Cahuilla. There is little evidence that the people we call Gabrielino had a broad term for their group (Dakin 1978:222); rather, they identified themselves as an inhabitant of a specific community with locational suffixes (e.g., a resident of Yaanga was called a Yabit, much the same way that a resident of New York is called a New Yorker; Johnston 1962:10).

Native words suggested as labels for the broader group of Native Americans in the Los Angeles region include Tongva (or Tong-v; Merriam 1955:7–86) and Kizh (Kij or Kichereno; Heizer 1968:105), although there is evidence that these terms originally referred to local places or smaller groups of people within the larger group that we now call Gabrielino. Nevertheless, many present-day descendants of these people have taken on Tongva as a preferred group name because it has a native rather than Spanish origin (King 1994:12). The term Gabrielino is used in the remainder of this report to designate native people of the Los Angeles Basin and their descendants.

The Gabrielino subsistence economy was centered on gathering and hunting. The surrounding environment was rich and varied, and the tribe exploited mountains, foothills, valleys, deserts, riparian, estuarine, and open and rocky coastal eco-niches. Like that of most native Californians, acorns were the staple food (an established industry by the time of the Early Intermediate period). Inhabitants supplemented acorns with the roots, leaves, seeds, and fruits of a variety of flora (e.g., islay, cactus, yucca, sages, and agave). Freshwater and saltwater fish, shellfish, birds, reptiles, and insects, as well as large and small mammals, were also consumed (Bean and Smith 1978:546; Kroeber 1925:631–632; McCawley 1996:119–123, 128–131).

The Gabrielino used a variety of tools and implements to gather and collect food resources. These included the bow and arrow, traps, nets, blinds, throwing sticks and slings, spears, harpoons, and hooks. Groups

residing near the ocean used oceangoing plank canoes and tule balsa canoes for fishing, travel, and trade between the mainland and the Channel Islands (McCawley 1996:7). Gabrielino people processed food with a variety of tools, including hammer stones and anvils, mortars and pestles, manos and metates, strainers, leaching baskets and bowls, knives, bone saws, and wooden drying racks. Food was consumed from a variety of vessels. Catalina Island steatite was used to make ollas and cooking vessels (Blackburn 1963; Kroeber 1925:629; McCawley 1996:129–138).

At the time of Spanish contact, the basis of Gabrielino religious life was the Chinigchinich cult, centered on the last of a series of heroic mythological figures. Chinigchinich gave instruction on laws and institutions, and also taught the people how to dance, the primary religious act for this society. He later withdrew into heaven, where he rewarded the faithful and punished those who disobeyed his laws (Kroeber 1925:637–638). The Chinigchinich religion seems to have been relatively new when the Spanish arrived. It was spreading south into the southern Takic groups even as Christian missions were being built and may represent a mixture of native and Christian belief and practices (McCawley 1996:143–144).

Deceased Gabrielino were either buried or cremated, with inhumation more common on the Channel Islands and the neighboring mainland coast, and cremation predominating on the remainder of the coast and in the interior (Harrington 1942; McCawley 1996:157). Remains were buried in distinct burial areas, either associated with villages or without apparent village association (Altschul et al. 2007). Cremation ashes have been found in archaeological contexts buried within stone bowls and in shell dishes (Ashby and Winterbourne 1966:27), as well as scattered among broken ground stone implements (Cleland et al. 2007). Archaeological data such as these correspond with ethnographic descriptions of an elaborate mourning ceremony that included a variety of offerings, including seeds, stone grinding tools, otter skins, baskets, wood tools, shell beads, bone and shell ornaments, and projectile points and knives. Offerings varied with the sex and status of the deceased (Dakin 1978:234–365; Johnston 1962:52–54; McCawley 1996:155–165).

Native American Communities in Los Angeles

The Project site is within the traditional territory of the Gabrielino (King 2004; McCawley 1996:36–40). In general, it has proven very difficult or impossible to establish definitively the precise location of Native American villages occupied in the Ethnohistoric period (McCawley 1996:31–32). Native American place names referred to at the time of Spanish contact did not necessarily represent a continually occupied settlement within a discrete location. Instead, in at least some cases, the communities were represented by several smaller camps scattered throughout an approximate geography, shaped by natural features subject to change over generations (see Johnston 1962:122). Many of the villages had long since been abandoned by the time ethnographers, anthropologists, and historians attempted to document any of their locations, at which point the former village sites were affected by urban and agricultural development, and Native American lifeways had been irrevocably changed. Alternative names and spellings for communities, and conflicting reports on their meaning or locational reference, further confound efforts at relocation. McCawley quotes Kroeber (1925:616) in his remarks on the subject, writing that "the opportunity to prepare a true map of village locations 'passed away 50 years ago''' (McCawley 1996:32). Thus, even with archaeological evidence, it can be difficult to conclusively establish whether any given assemblage represents the remains of the former village site.

Although the precise location of any given village is subject to much speculation, it is clear the greater Los Angeles area once contained many Gabrielino villages, including several concentrated along the banks of major waterways and near the coast (Figure 6). This type of settlement pattern concentrated along waterways is reflected in historical maps published by the Southwest Museum (1962; reprinted in Johnston 1962) and George Kirkman (1938), shown here with the Project site plotted in Figure 7 and Figure 8, respectively. Maps such as these convey a general sense of significant historical areas based on the

geographic information available at the time and are considered as a representational depiction of these locations rather than explicit geographic points.

The closest ethnographically documented village to the Project site is Yaanga (alternative spellings and names include Yang-na, Yangna, and Yabit). Though the actual location is disputed, generally Yaanga is believed to have been located near present-day Union Station (McCawley 1996:57), approximately 2.7 km (1.7 miles) north northwest of the Project site (Figure 9)³. Historical records place Yaanga near Los Angeles's original plaza, located near present-day Union Station. Historians and archaeologists have presented multiple possible village locations in this general area; however, like the pueblo itself, it is likely that the village was relocated from time to time due to major shifts of the Los Angeles River during years of intense flooding. Dillon (1994) presented an exhaustive review of the potential locations, most within several blocks of the pueblo plaza. Johnston (1962:122) concluded that "in all probability Yangna lay scattered in a fairly wide zone along the whole arc [from the base of Fort Moore Hill to Union Station], and its bailiwick included as well seed-gathering grounds and oak groves where seasonal camps were set up." A second village, known as Geveronga, has also been described in ethnographic accounts as immediately adjoining the Pueblo of Los Angeles, though much like Yaanga, its location can only be inferred from ethnographic information (McCawley 1996:57).

Aside from the ethnographic evidence suggesting the location of these villages, little direct, indisputable archaeological evidence for the location of either village has been produced to date. Archaeological materials reportedly were unearthed during the construction of Union Station in 1939, and "considerably more" in 1970 during the rebuilding of the Bella Union Hotel on the 300 block of North Main Street (Johnston 1962:121; Robinson 1979:12). The preponderance of available evidence indicates that there were one or more early Historic-period Native American communities west of the Los Angeles River near the original pueblo site. This assumption is supported through several lines of ethnographic evidence, including the expedition journal of Fr. Juan Crespi and engineer Miguel Costansó, both of whom were associated with the 1769 Portolá expedition. The notes from these sources indicate the village was located between 2.0 and 2.4 km (1.3 and 1.5 miles) west-southwest from the Los Angeles River on high-level ground. The Pueblo of Los Angeles was documented to have been founded directly adjacent to this village. The location of Yaanga was also referenced by long-time Los Angeles resident Narciso Botello and Gabrielino consultant José María Zalvidea, who indicated that Yaanga was originally located adjacent to the original site of the Los Angeles plaza (Morris et al. 2016:112).

After the settlement of Los Angeles in 1781, Yaanga faced many new challenges because of its proximity to the new city. The history of the indigenous inhabitants after the incorporation of the City of Los Angeles is one of forced relocation and adaptation. The Native Americans who left the newly secularized mission lands and came to Los Angeles attempted to resettle near the original location of Yaanga, choosing a location near First and Los Angeles Streets called Rancheria de Los Poblanos. This rancheria existed for approximately 10 years, between 1826 and 1836, after which the indigenous population was again forced to relocate, to a plot of land near Commercial and Alameda Streets (Morris et al. 2016).

This rancheria existed for approximately another 10 years, between 1836 and 1845, during which nearby land owners attempted to forcibly relocate them to obtain more land for agricultural use. When they were

³ Historical points of reference relevant to the former Yaanga village site discussed in this section are depicted in Figure 7. The map also includes other ethnographically significant locations that are discussed in the previous section. These include the former courses of the Los Angeles River (as reported by Gumprecht 2001), the Los Angeles Plaza, former locations of the Aliso Tree and Bella Union Hotel, multiple locations of Yaanga described in various documents, and several rancherias occupied by Gabrielino during the Mexican and early Historic periods. The sites are plotted on a topographic prepared by Crandell (2010), which depicts historical contours and former stream courses, as well as elements of the built environment, including zanjas and city blocks that formed the "Lower District" (now downtown Los Angeles).

finally successful, the Native American community was once again forced to relocate even further east, across the Los Angeles River to a site called Pueblito, which itself was razed in 1847, at which time legislation was passed to require the indigenous population to live in dispersed settlements or with their employers throughout the city. Other indigenous villages and community sites were present throughout the city concurrently with Rancheria de los Poblanos, including numerous smaller settlements along Commercial Street, and another Rancheria, Rancheria de los Pipimares, within downtown Los Angeles along 7th Street.

History

Post-contact history for the state of California is generally divided into three periods: the Spanish period (1769–1822), Mexican period (1822–1848), and American period (1848–present). Although Spanish, Russian, and British explorers visited the area for brief periods between 1529 and 1769, the Spanish period in California begins with the establishment in 1769 of a settlement at San Diego and the founding of Mission San Diego de Alcalá, the first of 21 missions constructed between 1769 and 1823. Independence from Spain in 1821 marks the beginning of the Mexican period, and the signing of the Treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo in 1848, ending the Mexican–American War, signals the beginning of the American period, when California became a territory of the United States.

Spanish Period (1769–1822)

Spanish explorers made sailing expeditions along the coast of southern California between the mid-1500s and mid-1700s. In search of the legendary Northwest Passage, Juan Rodríquez Cabríllo stopped in 1542 at present-day San Diego Bay. With his crew, Cabríllo explored the shorelines of present Catalina Island as well as San Pedro and Santa Monica bays. Much of the present California and Oregon coastline was mapped and recorded in the next half-century by Spanish naval officer Sebastián Vizcaíno. Vizcaíno's crew also landed on Santa Catalina Island and at San Pedro and Santa Monica bays, giving each location its long-standing name. The Spanish crown laid claim to California based on the surveys conducted by Cabríllo and Vizcaíno (Bancroft 1886:96–99; Gumprecht 2001:35).

More than 200 years passed before Spain began the colonization and inland exploration of Alta California. The 1769 overland expedition by Captain Gaspar de Portolá marks the beginning of California's Historic period, occurring just after the King of Spain installed the Franciscan Order to direct religious and colonization matters in assigned territories of the Americas. With a band of 64 soldiers, missionaries, Baja (lower) California Native Americans, and Mexican civilians, Portolá established the Presidio of San Diego, a fortified military outpost, as the first Spanish settlement in Alta California. In July 1769, while Portolá was exploring Southern California, Franciscan Fr. Junípero Serra founded Mission San Diego de Alcalá at Presidio Hill, the first of the 21 missions that would be established in Alta California by the Spanish and the Franciscan Order between 1769 and 1823.

The Portolá expedition first reached the present-day boundaries of Los Angeles in August 1769, thereby becoming the first Europeans to visit the area. Father Juan Crespí, a member of the expedition, named the campsite by the river Nuestra Señora la Reina de los Angeles de la Porciúncula or "Our Lady the Queen of the Angeles of the Porciúncula." Two years later, Fr. Junípero Serra returned to the valley to establish a Catholic mission, the Mission San Gabriel Arcángel, on September 8, 1771 (Engelhardt 1927). In 1781, a group of 11 Mexican families traveled from Mission San Gabriel Arcángel to establish a new pueblo called El Pueblo de la Reyna de Los Angeles ("the Pueblo of the Queen of the Angels"). This settlement consisted of a small group of adobe-brick houses and streets and would eventually be known as the Ciudad de Los Angeles ("City of Angels").

A major emphasis during the Spanish period in California was the construction of missions and associated presidios to integrate the Native American population into Christianity and communal enterprise. Incentives were also provided to bring settlers to pueblos or towns, but just three pueblos were established during the Spanish period, only two of which were successful and remain as California cities (San José and Los Angeles). Several factors kept growth within Alta California to a minimum, including the threat of foreign invasion, political dissatisfaction, and unrest among the indigenous population.

Mexican Period (1822–1848)

After more than a decade of intermittent rebellion and warfare, New Spain (Mexico and the California territory) won independence from Spain in 1821. In 1822, the Mexican legislative body in California ended isolationist policies designed to protect the Spanish monopoly on trade, and decreed California ports open to foreign merchants.

Extensive land grants were established in the interior during the Mexican period, in part to increase the population inland from the more settled coastal areas where the Spanish had first concentrated their colonization efforts. The secularization of the missions following Mexico's independence from Spain resulted in the subdivision of former mission lands and establishment of many additional ranchos.

During the supremacy of the ranchos (1834–1848), landowners largely focused on the cattle industry and devoted large tracts to grazing. Cattle hides became a primary southern California export, providing a commodity to trade for goods from the east and other areas in the United States and Mexico. The number of nonnative inhabitants increased during this period because of the influx of explorers, trappers, and ranchers associated with the land grants. The rising California population contributed to the introduction and rise of diseases foreign to the Native American population, who had no associated immunities.

American Period (1848–Present)

War in 1846 between Mexico and the United States began at the Battle of Chino, a clash between resident Californios and Americans in the San Bernardino area. This battle was a defeat for the Americans and bolstered the Californios' resolve against American rule, emboldening them to continue the offensive in later battles at Dominguez Field and in San Gabriel (Beattie 1942). However, this early skirmish was not a sign of things to come and the Americans were ultimately the victors of this two-year war. The Mexican–American War officially ended with the Treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo in 1848, which resulted in the annexation of California and much of the present-day southwest, ushering California into its American period.

California officially became a state with the Compromise of 1850, which also designated Utah and New Mexico (with present-day Arizona) as U.S. territories. Horticulture and livestock, based primarily on cattle as the currency and staple of the rancho system, continued to dominate the southern California economy through 1850s. The Gold Rush began in 1848; with the influx of people seeking gold, cattle were no longer desired mainly for their hides, but also as a source of meat and other goods. During the 1850s cattle boom, rancho vaqueros drove large herds from southern to northern California to feed that region's burgeoning mining and commercial boom. Cattle were at first driven along major trails or roads such as the Gila Trail or Southern Overland Trail, then were transported by trains when available. The cattle boom ended for southern California as neighbor states and territories drove herds to northern California at reduced prices. Operation of the huge ranchos became increasingly difficult, and droughts severely reduced their productivity (Cleland 1941).

On April 4, 1850, only two years after the Mexican–American War and five months prior to California's achieving statehood, Los Angeles was officially incorporated as an American city. Settlement of the Los Angeles region continued steadily throughout the Early American period. Los Angeles County was

established on February 18, 1850, one of 27 counties established in the months prior to California's acquiring official statehood in the United States. At that time, the city was bordered on the north by the Los Felis and the San Rafael Land Grants and on the south by the San Antonio Luge Land Grant. Many of the ranchos in the area now known as Los Angeles County remained intact after the United States took possession of California; however, a severe drought in the 1860s resulted in many of the ranchos being sold or otherwise acquired by Americans. Most of these ranchos were subdivided into agricultural parcels or towns (Dumke 1944).

Ranching retained its importance through the mid-nineteenth century, and by the late 1860s, Los Angeles was one of the top dairy production centers in the country (Rolle 2003). By 1876, the county had a population of 30,000 (Dumke 1944:7). Los Angeles maintained its role as a regional business center, and the development of citriculture in the late 1800s and early 1900s further strengthened this status (Caughey and Caughey 1977). These factors, combined with the expansion of port facilities and railroads throughout the region, contributed to the impact of the real estate boom of the 1880s on Los Angeles (Caughey and Caughey 1977; Dumke 1944). By the late 1800s, government leaders recognized the need for water to sustain the growing population in the Los Angeles area. Irish immigrant William Mulholland personified the City's efforts for a stable water supply (Dumke 1944; Nadeau 1997). By 1913, the City of Los Angeles had purchased large tracts of land in the Owens Valley, and Mulholland planned and completed the construction of the 240-mile aqueduct that brought the valley's water to the city (Nadeau 1997).

Los Angeles continued to grow in the twentieth century, in part due to the discovery of oil in the area and its strategic location as a wartime port. The county's mild climate and successful economy continued to draw new residents in the late 1900s, with much of the county transformed from ranches and farms into residential subdivisions surrounding commercial and industrial centers. Hollywood's development into the entertainment capital of the world and southern California's booming aerospace industry were key factors in the county's growth in the twentieth century.

Los Angeles: From Pueblo to City

On September 4, 1781, 44 settlers from Sonora, Mexico, accompanied by the governor, soldiers, mission priests, and several Native Americans, arrived at a site along the Rio de Porciúncula (later renamed the Los Angeles River), which was officially declared El Pueblo de Nuestra Señora de los Angeles de Porciúncula, or the Town of Our Lady of the Angels of Porciúncula (Robinson 1979:238; Ríos-Bustamante 1992; Weber 1980). The site chosen for the new pueblo was elevated on a broad terrace 0.8 km (0.5 mile) west of the river (Gumprecht 2001). By 1786, the area's abundant resources allowed the pueblo to attain self-sufficiency, and funding by the Spanish government ceased.

Efforts to develop ecclesiastical property in the pueblo began as early as 1784 with the construction of a small chapel northwest of the plaza. Though little is known about this building, it was located at the pueblo's original central square near the corner of present-day Cesar Chavez Avenue and North Broadway (Newcomb 1980:67–68; Owen 1960:7). Following continued flooding, however, the pueblo was relocated to its current location on higher ground, and the new town plaza soon emerged.

Alta California became a state in 1821, and the town slowly grew as the removal of economic restrictions attracted settlers to Los Angeles. The population continued to expand throughout the Mexican period and on April 4, 1850, only 2 years after the Mexican–American War and 5 months prior to California earning statehood, the City of Los Angeles was formally incorporated. Los Angeles maintained its role as a regional business center in the early American period and the transition of many former rancho lands to agriculture, as well as the development of citriculture in the late 1800s, further strengthened this status (Caughey and Caughey 1977). These factors, combined with the expansion of port facilities and railroads throughout the

region, contributed to the real estate boom of the 1880s in Los Angeles (Caughey and Caughey 1977; Dumke 1944).

Newcomers poured into the city, nearly doubling the population between 1870 and 1880, resulting in an increased demand for public transportation options. At the end of the nineteenth century numerous privately owned passenger rail lines were in place. Though early lines were horse and mule drawn, they were soon replaced by cable cars in the early 1880s and by electric cars in the late 1880s and early 1890s. Many of these early lines were subsequently consolidated into Henry E. Huntington's Los Angeles Railway Company (LARy) in 1898, which reconstructed and expanded the system into the twentieth century and became the main streetcar system for central Los Angeles, identified by their iconic "yellow cars." During this period, Huntington also developed the much larger Pacific Electric system (also known as the "red cars") to serve the greater Los Angeles area. Just as the horse-and-buggy street cars were replaced by electric cars along the same routes, gas-powered buses (coaches) eventually served former yellow car routes. Both the red cars and LARy served Los Angeles until they were eventually discontinued in the early 1960s.

Los Angeles continued to grow outward from the city core in the twentieth century in part due to the discovery of oil and its strategic location as a wartime port. The military presence led to the growth in the aviation and eventually aerospace industries in the city and region. Hollywood became the entertainment capital of the world through the presence of the film and television industries and continues to tenuously maintain that position. With nearly 4 million residents, Los Angeles is the second largest city in the United States (by population), and it remains a city with worldwide influence that continues to struggle with its population's growth and needs.

THE LOS ANGELES ZANJA SYSTEM

From Los Angeles' beginnings as a small pueblo, water was understood as a crucial force to control and use if the city was to survive. Since the 1770s, a canal known as the Zanja Madre had been diverting water from the Los Angeles River to the camp that would become the Pueblo of Los Angeles. The pueblo's residents used this water for ranching, agriculture, drinking, bathing, and washing clothes (Newmark 1977). Though gravity was sufficient to force the water down the zanja onto the pueblo lands, the flow of water was not smooth and continuous as the ditch was frequently impeded by debris and damaged during heavy rainfall. Though at this time the maintenance of the zanja was the responsibility of all residents of the pueblo, the ayuntamiento (town council) realized early on that one person had to be in charge of ensuring the functionality of the zanja and to regularly inspect it. To this aim the ayuntamiento appointed a rotating position known as the zanjero, whose job was to properly inspect, maintain, and coordinate repairs of the zanja. Every week a new City official would be in charge of the zanjas and every head of household was required to contribute some share, be it monetary, or labor, to the maintenance of the zanjas, though many simply supplied Native American labor in order to fulfill their contribution (Gumprecht 2001:60; Hoffman and Stern 2007:3).

Californians were still using the using the publicly owned zanjas after California's entrance into the union, and by this time the roles and duties of the zanjero had ballooned and he was in charge of issuing permits, overseeing deputy zanjeros, and collecting fees. Because the position had become so important, Mayor Stephen Foster established a permanent zanjero position, eliminating the rotating schedule that was used during the Spanish and Mexican periods, and providing stability to the office. The position quickly became one of the most important appointed positions in Los Angeles (Gumprecht 2001:60). At the time property owners were still "required to contribute a certain amount of time..." to devote to maintaining the zanja, underlying the importance of the zanja system to the young city (Gumprecht 2001:60). Though the duties and importance of the zanjeros changed over time, one thing that remained constant from the Spanish into the American period was the importance of Native American labor in the pueblo's functioning; not only

did Native American laborers make up the majority of the farm labor, fixing the zanja often fell upon their shoulders (Hoffman and Stern 2007:3–4).

As the budding city grew, new zanjas needed to be built to irrigate increasingly more farmlands. In 1857 the first offshoot was completed—Zanja No. 1, which ran between Alameda Street and the Los Angeles River. By 1870 there were a total of eight zanjas covering approximately 80 km (50 miles) that connected to the Zanja Madre (Figure 10). At this early time the zanjas were little more than earthen ditches; none were covered or lined, allowing residents to easily steal water.

Though the zanjas were a crucial water supply in early Los Angeles, they also served as waste disposal and a sewer system for early residents (Sklar 2008:19). Dead animals were frequently found in the zanjas. and in some cases even deceased people. Not surprisingly, dysentery during this period was common. Despite the public knowledge that the zanja water was unsanitary people continued bathing, washing, and dumping in the zanjas. Over time the City attempted to stop the constant bathing and washing in the main zanja; however, even after a law was passed explicitly prohibiting "bathing, washing clothes, dumping refuse, and the slaughter of cattle in the zanjas," all practices remained commonplace (Gumprecht 2001:62). Zanja No. 8 was singled out as being exceptionally foul, and one City official even recommended that all drainages to other zanjas from Zanja No. 8 be cut off so as to preserve the others. As residents became fed up with the contamination of the zanjas, Angelenos realized that sewers were necessary.

The first sewer was privately constructed for the Bella Union Hotel, which used a square wooden pipe crossing Los Angeles Street to a connection with the zanja. At this time in the early 1860s, however, City engineers were focused more on mapping, constructing sidewalks, and installing lights than on developing a sewer network. After the Civil War, more settlers arrived in Los Angeles and within a few years the need for a sewer system became apparent. Despite the public awareness of sewage problems, sewer construction continued at a haphazard pace and without massive public investment until 1885, at which point the completion of the railroad to the city had cause exorbitant growth in overall population and density, and the sewage problem had become dire (Sklar 2008).

The zanjas all began their lives as crudely constructed earthen ditches; however, over time it became necessary to modernize and update the zanjas. This first happened in 1877 when the City created its first comprehensive plan to improve and extend the zanjas using a bond measure of \$75,000. Sometime during this period many of the original zanjas were upgraded to cement or wrought iron pipe. Useful in determining the status of each zanja during this period is William Hall's 1888 study on irrigation in California. In this work, Hall describes each zanja segment, providing information on construction type and length. Hall used the terms "low service" and "high service" to reference locations where the zanja diverted water from the Los Angeles River, and separated the city's irrigation works into eastern and western districts based on the location with respect to the river.

By 1888, nearly 50 percent of the zanjas in Los Angeles were made of some type of conduit, be it wooden flumes, cement- or masonry-lined canals, cement and iron pipe, or brick culverts. In one section of Hall's report he estimates the cost of the zanja system to-date and his explanation for the difficulty of such a task provides important information on the materials and integrity of the various segments.

The difficulty of arriving at the original cost of works, constructed by 'piecemeal,' in a period of twelve years, under no definite plan, and supervised by successive city officials (and this refers only to the works regarded as permanent and not to the long-built earthen ditches) changes almost every year, without any system of keeping accounts of construction segregated from ordinary maintenance expense, can scarcely be appreciated until one attempts the task. Much of the work has been done several times over; ditches have been flumed, and after a time the flumes replaced with pipe; pipe-lines have been, locally but radially, altered and enlarged; iron pipe substituted for cement pipe, and vice

versa; and no small part of the work has been abandoned and fallen into disuse (Hall 188: 547–548).

Many projects to improve the system, such as constructing a tunnel to replace part of the Zanja Madre, were started but never completed (Hall 1888: 565). Though the zanjas were improved greatly between 1870 and 1888, when Hall conducted his study, the water system in Los Angeles was crude and not in-keeping with the rapid development occurring. The last twenty years of the nineteenth century brought many changes to Los Angeles; the real estate boom of the 1880s created a fivefold population increase in the city by 1890. This population increase had the added result of decreasing the city's irrigation needs, as many of the original vineyards and orchards had already been abandoned, while also increasing the city's domestic water needs (Hoffman and Stern 2007:19). Two years after Hall's 1888 survey the zanjas began to be abandoned, starting first with Zanja No. 5. Slowly property owners began requesting zanjas be abandoned, as the unused structures now served as impediments to development, and fertile land that once held rows of orchards and vines was now far more valuable for homes (Gumprecht 2001:89). By 1904 all the zanjas had been abandoned; most were filled in, although some continued to be used as sewers (Hoffman and Stern 2007:19).

Los Angeles continued to grow outward from the city core in the twentieth century in part due to the discovery of oil and its strategic location as a wartime port. The military presence led to the aviation and eventually aerospace industries having a large presence in the city and region. Hollywood became the entertainment capital of the world through the presence of the film and television industries. With nearly four million residents, Los Angeles is the second largest city in the United States (by population), and it remains a city with worldwide influence that continues to struggle with its population's growth and needs.

Zanja No. 1

This Zanja segment was documented by Hall in 1888 as part of the low service system of the western district. At this time of Hall's inventory, Zanja No. 1 was constructed in three different ways across a length of 3573.7 m (11,725 feet) that extended from the end of Zanja 6-1, south to the city boundary (Figure 10). Of this length, 2933.7 m (9,625 feet) was described as open ditch, 396.24 m (1,300 feet) of 40.6 cm (16-in.) cement pipe, and 243.84 m (800 feet) of wooden flume (Hall 1888:545). Beginning at First Street, Zanja No. 1 flowed down Hewitt Street in a box flume and across Second and Third Streets before it turned east where it split with Zanja No. 2 at Fourth Street. Here at least some of its cement pipe construction was present as it was exposed by Mr. Ghiotto, Central District Supervisor of the Water Distribution Division, in 1948 (Layne 1957). Upon reaching Molino Street it turned south and ran parallel to the street, across Palmetto Street and down Mateo and Lemon Streets to the city limits, where it divided into additional channels that extended to the orchards and vineyards further south (Gumprecht 2001:77). At 7th Street it was split into two distinct channels that passed on either side of Lorenzo Leck's vineyard. The western channel was recorded in a parcel map as being constructed of both concrete pipe and as a wooden box flume, indicating that it was the primary distribution as the eastern channel had no indications of modification (discussed in detail below in Results: Archival Research).

Historical Development of the Arts District Neighborhood

Maps and illustrations depicting pre-1880s Los Angeles capture an important, pre-industrial phase of the city's history, before small farms gave way to residential, commercial, and industrial developments. These documents depict the Project site within what was, for most of the nineteenth century, one of several abutting agricultural properties—mostly vineyards, but also fruit and nut trees—located immediately south of the city's historic core and west of the Los Angeles River (Figure 11–Figure 13). Farms in this area varied in size and shape—ranging up to approximately 50 acres with boundaries defined within a non-linear street grid—and were irrigated by water from Zanja Nos. 1, 2, 3, and 4 (Figure 10). The 1880s population

boom resulted quickly in the subdivision of these small farms into lots, which were sold for primarily residential and commercial properties.

Through the late 1890s and first decade of the twentieth century, the area showed signs of residential development within what is now known as the Arts District neighborhood. By 1906, the Project site was mostly developed-only two lots of the block remained undeveloped. The Wood and Iron Preserving Company and the Los Angeles Cooperage Company are among some of the industrial facilities nearby. However, larger scale industrial and commercial developments quickly came to define the area. The rapid industrialization of the neighborhood was heavily influence by its proximity to several railways and freight depots. Atchison, Topeka, and Santa Fe (AT&SF) Railway, built in 1887, ran just east of the Project site along the Los Angeles River, while Southern Pacific Railway tracks ran along Alameda Street to the west. By 1906 a rail line extended west from the main AT&SF railroad through Sacramento Street, and another along the southern edge of Violet Street, splitting into eight different spurs by the time it reached Wilson Avenue. The City Council's decision to create an industrial district between Main Street and the river, and subsequent zoning changes in the 1910s quickened the conversion of the area into a fully industrial sector, with few remaining residences and an increasing number of manufacturers establishing warehouses and other facilities (Bray and Strauss 2015). Smaller gauge railroad spurs were constructed along many of the smaller streets to connect each block to the primary rail lines. By the 1930s very few dwellings or residential buildings remained in the neighborhood otherwise characterized by commercial properties such as restaurants, drug stores, and general stores situated between industrial facilities (Figure 14 and Figure 15). As is the case with several of the former dwellings once located in the Project site, many of the houses were relocated from the Arts District area to other locations in the city.

With the growth in automobile sales and the demise of Los Angeles's public transportation system, many of the freight railroads and light-rail passenger trains gave way to the trucking industry, bus lines, and personal automobiles. The 2016 SurveyLA report on the Central City North Community Plan Area by the Historic Resource Group (HRG) describes the post-1950s development of the Arts District neighborhood as follows (footnotes in the original are converted here to in-text citations):

By the 1960s, however, the character of the area was evolving away from that of an industrial center. Industry on the whole struggled to adapt to the postwar challenges of containerization and other new technologies (Los Angeles Conservancy 2016). Railroads had given way to the trucking industry, and businesses in the area were constrained by the physical demands such methods placed on their operations. Furthermore, outlying fledgling industrial centers such as Vernon and the City of Commerce were comparatively undeveloped and offered plentiful land at lower prices, presenting many companies with an opportunity to relocate and construct newer and more efficient facilities (Miller 2014:28). As a result, by the 1970s many buildings in the industrial district were vacant.

However, the area found new life as artists and other creative types began to congregate amidst the vacant buildings and empty lots. Priced out of established artists' colonies in neighborhoods such as Venice and Hollywood, Los Angeles' industrial district provided many with an opportunity to live and work inexpensively in vast warehouse buildings (Los Angeles Conservancy 2016). Soon, the area was home to a number of avant-garde art galleries, giving rise to the group of early artists now called the "Young Turks" (Miller 2014). Many of the area's most prominent industrial buildings found new life as gallery space and underground hangouts for a burgeoning art and music scene. In 1981, the City of Los Angeles implemented the Artist-in-Residence Program, which legalized the residential use of formerly industrial buildings for artists, legitimizing their efforts (Los Angeles Conservancy 2016). In the mid-1990s, the area was officially designated as the Arts District by the City. A subsequent wave of development began in 1999 with the passage of the Adaptive Reuse Ordinance which relaxed zoning codes and allowed for the conversion of pre-1974 commercial and industrial buildings into residences for artists and non-artists alike (Los Angeles Conservancy 2016). (HRG 2016:14–15)

RESULTS CHRIS Records Search

Previously Conducted Studies

Results of the records search at the SCCIC indicate that 37 cultural resource studies have been conducted within 0.8 km (0.5 mile) of the Project site. Only one of these studies, LA-13239—a map study of the zanja system—directly intersects the Project site. The results of this search are summarized below in Table 1.

| SCCIC Report Number | Title | Study Type | Author: Affiliation | Year | Relationship to Project Site |
|---------------------------|--|--------------------------------|---|------|------------------------------------|
| LA- 02577 | Results of a Records Search Phase Conducted for the Proposed Alameda Corridor Project, Los Angeles County, California | Literature search | Wlodarski, Robert J.: Historical, Environmental, Archaeological, Research, Team | 1992 | Outside |
| LA- 02644 | The Results of a Phase 1 Archaeological Study for the Proposed Alameda Transportation Corridor Project, Los Angeles County, California | Archaeological, Field study | Wlodarski, Robert J.: Historical, Environmental, Archaeological, Research, Team | 1992 | Outside |
| LA- 02788 | Archaeological Literature and Records Review, and Impact Analysis for the Eastside Corridor Alternatives Los Angeles, California | Literature search | Brown, Joan C.: RMW Paleo Associates, Inc. | 1992 | Outside |
| LA- 02950 | Consolidated Report: Cultural Resource Studies for the Proposed Pacific Pipeline Project | Archaeological, Field study | Anonymous: Peak & Associates, Inc. | 1992 | Outside |
| LA- 03103 | Cultural Resources Impact Mitigation Program Angeles Metro Red Line Segment 1 | Monitoring | Greenwood, Roberta S. | 1993 | Outside |
| LA- 03115 | Addendum Report: Results of a Phase 1 Archaeological Study of the Proposed Construction of the Whittier Boulevard Shaft Site East Central Interceptor Sewer Project, East-west Alignment, Los Angeles County | Archaeological, Field study | Wlodarski, Robert J.: Historical, Environmental, Archaeological, Research, Team | 1995 | Outside |
| LA- 03813 | An Archival Study of a Segment of the Proposed Pacific Pipeline, City of Los Angeles, California | Literature search | Anonymous: Peak & Associates, Inc. | 1992 | Outside |
| LA- 04044 | Environmental Impact Report: Seismic Retrofit of Olympic Boulevard and North Broadway Bridges Over the Angeles River | Management/ planning | Unknown: City of Los Angeles | 1995 | Outside |

Table 1. Previously Conducted Cultural Resource Studies within 0.5 Mile of the Project Site

| SCCIC Report Number | Title | Study Type | Author: Affiliation | Year | Relationship to Project Site |
|---------------------------|--|---|--|------|------------------------------------|
| LA- 04074 | Sixth Street Viaduct Over Los Angeles River Earthquake Damages - W.O. E6000000 Determination of Effect Report | Architectural/ historical | Ohara, Cindy L.: City of Los Angeles | 1989 | Outside |
| LA- 04220 | Seismic Retrofit of Olympic Boulevard Bridge Over the Los Angeles River | Architectural/ historical | Lee, Portia | n.d. | Outside |
| LA- 04625 | Historic Property Survey Report for the Proposed Alameda Corridor from the Ports of Long Beach and Los Angeles to Downtown Los Angeles in Los Angeles County, California | Other research | Starzak, Richard: Myra L. Frank & Associates | 1994 | Outside |
| LA- 04834 | Cultural Resources Inventory Report for Williams Communications, Inc. Proposed Fiber Optic Cable System Installation Project, Los Angeles to Anaheim, Los Angeles and Orange Counties | Archaeological, Field study | Ashkar, Shahira: Jones & Stokes Associates, Inc. | 1999 | Outside |
| LA- 04835 | Cultural Resources Inventory Report for Williams Communications, Inc. Proposed Fiber Optic Cable System Installation Project, Los Angeles to Riverside, Los Angeles and Riverside Counties | Archaeological, Field study | Ashkar, Shahira: Jones & Stokes Associates, Inc. | 1999 | Outside |
| LA- 04883 | Negative Archaeological Survey Report - Highway Project Description | Archaeological, Field study | Storey, Noelle: Caltrans | 2000 | Outside |
| LA- 05430 | Cultural Resource Assessment for Pacific Bell Wireless Facility Sm 003-02, County of Los Angeles, Ca | Archaeological, Field study | Duke, Curt: LSA Associates, Inc. | 2000 | Outside |
| LA- 06348 | Cultural Resource Assessment for Pacific Bell Wireless Facility Sm 003-02, County of Los Angeles, California | Archaeological, Field study | Duke, Curt: LSA Associates, Inc. | 2000 | Outside |
| LA- 06837 | Cultural Resources Monitoring: Northeast Interceptor Sewer Project | Monitoring | Greenwood, Roberta S.: Greenwood and Associates | 2003 | Outside |
| LA- 07425 | City of Los Angeles Monumental Bridges 1900-1950: Historic Context and Evaluation Guidelines | Architectural/ historical, Evaluation | McMorris, Christopher: JRP Historical Consulting | 2004 | Outside |
| LA- 07427 | Caltrans Historic Bridge Inventory Update: Metal Truss, Movable, and Steel Arch Bridges | Architectural/ historical, Evaluation | McMorris, Christopher: JRP Historical Consulting | 2004 | Outside |

Table 1. Previously Conducted Cultural Resource Studies within 0.5 Mile of the Project Site

| SCCIC Report Number | Title | Study Type | Author: Affiliation | Year | Relationship to Project Site |
|---------------------------|--|--|--|------|------------------------------------|
| LA- 08252 | Request for Determination of Eligibility for Inclusion in the National Register of Historic Places/Historic Bridges in California: Concrete Arch, Suspension, Steel Girder and Steel Arch | Architectural/ historical, Evaluation, Other research | Snyder, John W., Stephen Mikesell, and Pierzinski: Caltrans | 1986 | Outside |
| LA- 08733 | Cultural Resources Records Search Results and Site Visit for Sprint Nextel Telecommunications Facility Candidate Ca8283e (van Wyck) 601 South Santa Fe Avenue, Los Angeles, Los Angeles County, California | Archaeological, Field study | Bonner, Wayne H. and Sarah A. Williams: Michael Brandman Associates | 2006 | Outside |
| LA- 09110 | Cultural Resources Records Search and Site Visit Results for Sprint Nextel Candidate LA73XC116B (Hardwood), South Santa Fe Avenue, Los Angeles, Los Angeles County, California | Archaeological, Field study | Bonner, Wayne H.: Michael Brandman Associates | 2007 | Outside |
| LA- 09271 | Archaeological Resources Assessment and Evaluation of "Maintenance of Way" Building for the Asphalt Plant No. 1 Street Services Truck Route Project City of Los Angeles, California | | Strauss, Monica, Candace Ehringer, and Angel Tomes: EDAW, Inc | 2007 | Outside |
| LA- 10451 | Finding of Effect - 6th Street Viaduct Seismic Improvement Project | Architectural/ historical | Chasteen, Carrie: Parsons | 2008 | Outside |
| LA- 10452 | Historical Resources Evaluation Report - 6th Street Viaduct Seismic Improvement Project | | Smith, Francesca: Parsons | 2007 | Outside |
| LA- 10506 | Cultural Resources Monitoring: North Outfall Sewer - East Central Interceptor Sewer Project | Monitoring | Greenwood, Roberta S., Scott Savastio, and Peter Messick: Greenwood and Associates | 2004 | Outside |
| LA- 10638 | Preliminary Historical/ Archaeological Resources Study, Southern California Regional Rail Authority (SCRRA) River Subdivision Positive Train Control Project, City of Los Angeles, Los Angeles County, California | Archaeological, Field study | Tang, Bai "Tom": CRM Tech | 2010 | Outside |
| LA- 10789 | Cultural Resources Technical Report for the Olympic and Mateo Street Improvements Project, City of Los Angeles, Los Angeles County, California | Archaeological, Field study | Carmack, Shannon and Cheryle Hunt: SWCA Environmental Consultants | 2010 | Outside |

| Table 1. Previousl | y Conducted | Cultural Re | source Studies | within 0.5 | Mile of the | Project Site |
|--------------------|-------------|--------------------|----------------|------------|-------------|--------------|
|--------------------|-------------|--------------------|----------------|------------|-------------|--------------|

| SCCIC Report Number | Title | Study Type | Author: Affiliation | Year | Relationship to Project Site |
|---------------------------|---|--|---|------|------------------------------------|
| LA- 10887 | Historic Property Survey Report for the North Outfall Sewer-East Central Interceptor Sewer, City of Los Angeles, County of Los Angeles, California | Other research | Starzak, Richard, Alma Carlisle, Gail Miller, Catherine Barner, and Jessica Feldman: Myra L. Frank& Associates, Inc. | 2001 | Outside |
| LA- 11048 | American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Funded Security Enhancement Project (PRJ29112359) - Improved Access Controls, Station Hardening, CCTV Surveillance System, and Airborne Particle Detection at Los Angeles Station and Maintenance Yard, LA, CA | Archaeological, Field study | Speed, Lawrence: URS | 2009 | Outside |
| LA- 11166 | Archaeological Monitoring Report - Asphalt Plant No. 1 Project, 2484 East Olympic Boulevard, Los Angeles, California | Monitoring | Slawson, Dana N.: Greenwood and Associates | 2011 | Outside |
| LA- 11409 | Construction Phase Cultural Resources Monitoring and Treatment Plan for the City of Los Angeles North Outfall - East Central Interceptor Sewer Project | Management/ planning, Monitoring | Horne, Melinda C.: Myra L. Frank & Associates | 2000 | Outside |
| LA- 11618 | Los Angeles Wholesale Terminal Market Historic Resource Report | Architectural/ historical, Evaluation, Other research | Grimes, Teresa, Jessica MacKenzie, and Jessica Fatone: Christopher A. Joseph & Associates | 2007 | Outside |
| LA- 11642 | Westside Subway Extension Project, Historic Properties and Archaeological Resources Supplemental Survey Technical Reports | Archaeological, Field study, Other research | Daly, Pam and Nancy Sikes: Cogstone | 2012 | Outside |
| LA- 11785 | Final Environmental Impact Statement/Final Environmental Impact Report for the Westside Subway Extension | Management/ planning | Rogers, Leslie: U.S. Department of Transportation Fedreral Transit Admin. & LA County Metro Transit Authority | 2012 | Outside |
| LA- 12586 | Archaeological Survey Report for the 6th Street Viaduct Improvement Project City of Los Angeles Los Angeles County, California | Archaeological, Architectural/ Historical, Evaluation, Field study | Glenn, Brian and Patrick Maxon: BonTerra Consulting | 2008 | Outside |
| LA- 13239 | Extent of Zanja Madre | Map Only | Gust, Sherri: Cogstone | 2017 | Within |

Table 1. Previously Conducted Cultural Resource Studies within 0.5 Mile of the Project Site

Previously Recorded Cultural Resources

The CHRIS records search identified a total of five previously documented archaeological resources within a 0.8-km (0.5-mile) radius of the Project site (Table 2), none of which were recorded within the Project site (Figure 31⁴). Four of the resources are Historic-period archaeological sites, of which three contained only small quantities of historic materials (P-19-03777, P-19-004192, P-19-004193). The fourth site, P-19-003683, was identified during construction monitoring in 2003 for the North Outfall Sewer–East Central Interceptor near the intersection of Mission Road and Jesse Street, north of 7th Street, on the east side of the Los Angeles River. The site included more than 100 artifacts deposited between the 1880s and 1930s. In addition to the resources identified in the 0.5-mile radius, SWCA also acquired records for Site P-19-003287 (LAN-4460H). This is a Historic-period archaeological site that consisted of early twentieth-century refuse deposits and structural foundations. The site was buried below existing developments and identified in 2004 during construction monitoring for the La Kretz Innovation Campus Project, located within the Arts District neighborhood approximately 0.75 mile north of the Project site. The site is included here because of its relevance to the current analysis and is described in greater detail below.

| Primary Number | Trinomial | Time Period | Resource Type | Resource Description | Recording Year, Name, Affiliation | Relationship to Project Site |
|-------------------|--------------------|----------------|--------------------|---|---|---------------------------------|
| P-19- 003683 | | Historic | Site | Domestic refuse, ca. 1880s–1930s | 2003 (Alice Hale) | Outside |
| P-19- 003777 | CA-LAN- 003777H | Historic | Site | Isolated pieces of industrial debris, wooden posts, mid- nineteenth to mid- twentieth century | 2008 (Candace Ehringer, Frank Humphries, EDAW, Inc.); 2011 (Dana Slawson, Greenwood and Associates) | Outside |
| P-19- 004192 | CA-LAN- 004192H | Historic | Site | Historic brick and glass fragment, early to middle twentieth century | 2010 (L. Solis, N. Orsi, URS Corporation) | Outside |
| P-19- 004193 | CA-LAN- 004193H | Historic | Site | Concrete foundation near the 6th Street Viaduct, ca. 1930s. | 2010 (L. Solis, N. Orsi, URS Corporation) | Outside |
| P-19- 186804 | | Historic | Structure, Site | Burlington Northern & Santa Fe Railroad, Atchison Topeka & Santa Fe RR | 2002 (Daniel Ballester and Bail "Tom" Tang, CRM Tech); 2007 (Steven McCormick); 2007 (Francesca G. Smith and Caprice D. Harper, Parsons); 2011 (Pam Daly, Cogstone) | Outside |

Table 2. Previously Recorded Resources Within 0.5 Mile of the Project Site

⁴ Figures depicting the site boundary are included in a confidential appendix (Appendix B) and have been excluded from publicly circulated drafts of this report. Also, note that the figure numbers listed in this section do not follow the sequence in the preceding and subsequent sections.

The closest sites that with physical remains that could be reliably associated with Native Americans are located approximately 1.5 miles north of the Project site, near Union Station and the MWD Headquarters building. These include four sites: P-19-00007, P-19-001575/H, P-19-004662, and P-19-100515. Of these sites, only P-19-001575/H included a large and diverse assemblage of artifacts and features, which included human remains, in a location that largely retained its physical integrity. Archaeological data recovery was conducted for the site and the results were published by Goldberg et al. (1999). Although P-19-001575/H is in the purported location of the Gabrielino village known as Yaanga, Goldberg et al. did not identify conclusive evidence to support the association. Rather, scholarly research suggests Yaanga was likely located across a wide zone between the Los Angeles plaza and present-day Union Station, approximately 2.1 km (1.3 miles) north-northwest of the Project site. The materials identified at P-19-00007, P-19-004662, and P-19-100515 include only isolated artifacts recovered from settings subject to extensive disturbances, both from historical developments and flooding along the Los Angeles River, which posed significant constraints on the ability of the resources to provide important scientific information and contribute to our understanding of Native American lifeways.

CA-LAN-4460H

LAN-4460H was a site with archaeological resources from the Historic period that was identified in 2014 by Environmental Science Associates during construction monitoring within the boundaries of a city block bound by Fifth Street to the north, Colyton Street to the west, Palmetto Street to the south, and South Hewitt Street to the east (Figure 31). The site included 27 features-25 refuse deposits and two structural remains—observed between 10 and 43 inches below the ground surface (Figure 32). The refuse deposits consisted of varied historic archaeological materials consistent with residential refuse, such as bottles and ceramic or earthenware dishes. Diagnostic artifacts from these refuse piles place the material as having been deposited within the latter half of the nineteenth century and the early part of the twentieth century. These were scattered throughout the site but, based on inspection of Sanborn Fire Insurance maps, were found to be primarily located in the backyards of the residential buildings present between 1884 and 1955 (Figure 32). Among the features documented, Environmental Science Associates identified two AT&SF railroad spurs that serviced the Palmetto Street neighborhoods. Environmental Science Associates also documented a rectangular brick foundation, the size and location of which indicated that it was a structural feature related either to the building at 548 Colyton Street-the home of the Sunset Telegraph and Telephone Company in 1906 and the National Creamery and Produce Company in 1921-or a portion of the later Barker Brothers Warehouse Complex. The site was recorded during construction of the La Kretz Innovation Campus Project and the results were documented in a technical report submitted to the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (Bray and Vader 2014). That project area and surrounding neighborhood were developed at the same time as the current Project site and went through similar cycles of redevelopment through the 1920s during the conversion of the property into more industrial uses (Figure 33).

Archival Research

The Project site is located within the original limits of the City of Los Angeles patent boundary and on the southern periphery the city's historic core, centered around the pueblo site and plaza (Figure 11 and Figure 16). The first survey maps of the city were made first by Lieutenant E. O. C. Ord in 1849 and then updated and expanded by Henry Hancock and George Hanson in 1853 and 1857. According to these maps, the Project site is situated on what was the southern periphery of agricultural lands established in the Los Angeles River floodplain, outside the historic core (Figure 11). Although there is some margin of error when plotting these early survey maps on a contemporary street map, the Project site appears to have been located partially within or near a former agricultural plot identified on Ord's map as a corn field, outside of which was undeveloped land within the floodplain. As discussed above, the agricultural fields were irrigated through a series of ditches known as zanjas, which were formally managed as part of a water

conveyance system established by the Spanish. Under American control, the main arteries of the zanja system were formally designated and given names, but the system still included many smaller ditches and water control features that reflect the primarily agricultural land use practices outside the residential and commercial parts of the city. The crops in the lands surrounding the Project site were irrigated from water taken from the south-flowing Zanja No. 1 (Figure 10).

With the transition from agricultural to urban setting, streets and property lines in this part of the city were partly established according to the boundaries of the former agricultural plots. For example, the northern edge of the agricultural field mapped near the Project site became 7th Street, and its western edge became a smaller arterial street known Lemon Street (now Wilson Street). In comparing city maps from the 1880s that include property lines and zanja alignments, there is some variation in the location of parcels boundaries and the alignment of Zanja No. 1 relative to the Project site (Figure 17-Figure 19). However, the more reliable maps by Stevenson (1884) and Rowan and Koeberle (1886) make it apparent that the agricultural field in which the Project site is plotted on earlier maps was subdivided into two properties: a northern half owned by J. Kiefer, and a southern half, which includes the Project site, owned by Lorezo Leck, a German merchant who came to Los Angeles in 1849. According to these maps, the north of the Kiefer parcel was bound by 7th Street. Lemon Street formed the western boundary of the Kiefer parcel and part of the Leck property. The north-south running Mateo Street would eventually bisect the two properties. Along with the map included in William Hall's 1888 irrigation report, maps from this period clearly show Zanja No. 1 running on a north-south alignment through the middle portions of the Kiefer and Leck properties. Because of the scale at which the maps were produced, the exact position of Zanja No. 1 relative to the Project site cannot be reliably determined from these maps alone, similarly for later maps of the zanja system that used these original sources for reference (for example, Gumprecht 2001).

One map was identified that was drawn to scale using street alignments that reliably fit the contemporary grid and parcel boundaries. Alfred S. Solano conducted a survey in 1891 that included the parcels east of Alameda Street to the Los Angeles River, and south of 7th Street to 20th Street (Figure 20 and Figure 21). At this time, several of the street alignments and parcel boundaries established in this area have been retained to the present day, and because the map was drawn to scale, it could be reliably matched with contemporary street maps and aerial photographs. Solano's survey map included a more detailed route of Zanja No. 1 that also included several smaller, unnamed irrigation channels and ditches. According to the 1891 map, Zanja No. 1 splits at 7th Street and has one segment continuing south, initially in concrete conduit and then wooden flume, 265 feet west of the Project site (Figure 22). The other segment turns east and runs as an open ditch for 620 feet along 7th Street, then flows south along the property line, approximately 200 feet east of the Project site. The notes in the map identify the segment to the east of the Project site as having a "gas pipe on bank of zanja," which splits again and is labeled "gas pipe bottom of old ditch" (Figure 22). The other large-scale overview maps of the city that include the zanja system components did not typically include this type of small-scale variation in the zanja paths or include smaller unnamed or older segments.

The 1880s population boom in Los Angeles quickly manifested in the sale and subdivision of agricultural properties like Leck and Kiefer's. The Project site was developed as part of the Hiscock and Smiths First Addition Tract. Sale of parcels within the Hiscock and Smiths First Addition Tract had commenced by 1900, at which point residential developments had already begun in the adjacent areas. An updated version of Rowan and Koeberle's map in 1886 shows the various lots delineated within the tract, south of a preserved segment of Zanja No. 1, north of 7th Street (Figure 23). The development of this tract established Sacramento and Bay Streets, which have remained in the same alignment to the present day (Figure 24 and Figure 25).

Review of Sanborn Fire Insurance maps, newspaper articles, building permits, and the City Directory document the development of the Project site as part of a residential block, before conversion to its use as

a service station or truck yard. Table 3 summarizes the residential history for the respective lots within the Project site (ca.1891–1938), including former addresses and occupants, and estimates of construction and demolition dates. The first Sanborn Fire Insurance maps showing the Project site were published in 1900 and show five single-story dwellings located in Lots 78–82 and two detached structures at the back of Lots 80 and 79 (Figure 26). The construction dates for the dwellings are not known but based on review of the City Directories, it appears they were constructed as early as 1891.

The Sanborn map from 1910 shows all but one of the lots in the Project site was developed with singlestory dwellings, as were most of the lots in the block. Street car maps show the Project site being served by a line as early as 1910 that ran along Mateo Street as part of the Los Angeles Railway Company's Santa Fe Avenue Line before becoming the "J" Line in 1920 (Figure 25). All 14 of the residential buildings present in the 1910 Sanborn map were also still present in the 1921 when the Baist Real Estate map was published (Figure 27), but by 1927 the entire south half of the Project site was vacant and the northern half was almost entirely re-developed with commercial and industrial buildings (Figure 28). Several building permits approved in 1925 indicate that at least six of the dwellings were relocated. By 1930, Lot 78 (2016 Bay Street) contained the only dwelling in the Project site and was either relocated or demolished by 1938. Aerial photographs from 1927 to 1938 show that all but Lots 80, 82, and 84 remained largely vacant and unpaved (Figure 28); Lots 80, 82, and 84 were developed with what appear to have been six industrial buildings, plus a small restaurant located at 1010–1012 Mateo Street that Sanborn maps indicate was present at least until the mid-1950s.

In the early 1950s the Project site was developed as a storage, repair, and re-fueling yard for the Transfer Company. A certificate of completion was issued from the City in 1941 for a service station located at 2007 Sacramento Street, within Lots 81 and 83. The storage shed structure currently in the southeast corner of the Project site (Lot 73) can be seen in aerial photographs beginning in 1948. It was likely constructed around the same time the Project site was being redeveloped in the early 1940s, and was likely re-purposed for various uses throughout the history of the Project site.

After 1950 storage buildings in Lots 80 and 82 and an auto shop in Lots 77 and 79 were demolished. By 1956 only the office building located in the northwest corner of the Project site (Lot 87, 1000 Mateo Street) and possibly the restaurant were the only remaining structures constructed before 1950. Between 1953 and 1958 a small office building was also present in the middle of the Project site (behind the restaurant). In the 1950s railway spurs had been constructed along Sacramento Street, south of the Project site, connecting to the Southern Pacific Railroad Company tracks along Alameda Street. In the early 1960s the service station was still in operation and an auto laundry facility was present in the southeastern portion of the Project site within Lots 73 and 75.

With the exception of the structure in the southeast corner of the Project site, all former buildings and structures in the Project site were demolished and the building that currently occupies the Project site was constructed. The property history after 1961 is further summarized in the Project's Phase I ESA prepared by Environmental Managers & Auditors, Inc. (Mahmood 2015). The report identified extant and former buildings and structures associated with the historical uses, which included a wash rack with a clarifier, grease pit, above-ground storage tank, and at least two underground storage tanks (USTs). A 1975 grading permit for the storage tank backfill was approved but did not specify whether the tanks would be or already had been removed.

| Lot | Current Street Address | Associated Addresses | Building Type | Selected Permits | Earliest City Directory Listing | Residential Construction | Residential Demolition- Relocation | Construction Notes |
|-----|---------------------------|---------------------------|--------------------------------|--|---|-----------------------------|--|--------------------------------|
| 76 | 2018 E Bay St | 2018 E Bay St | Single-story dwelling | | 1905 (B. James, carpenter, Killefer- Griffith Manufacturing Co.) | ca.1900 | 1927–1930 | |
| 78 | 2016 E Bay St | 2016 E Bay St | Single-story dwelling | | 1896 (William W. Riner, warehouse, S.I. Merrill Oil Co.) | pre-1900 | 1930–1938 | |
| 80 | 2010 E Bay St | 2010 E Bay St | Single-story dwelling | 1926 - New Construction (garage) | 1891 (Joseph J. Northmore, driver, Wells Fargo & Co.) | pre-1900 | 1921–1927 | |
| 82 | 2006 E Bay St | 2006 E Bay St | Single-story dwelling | 1923 - Relocation | 1901 (Ambrose Searl, teacher) | pre-1900 | 1923 | Wood foundation |
| | | 2006 ½ E Bay St | Detached building | 1910 - New construction | | 1910 | 1923 | 12 x 24 feet; sleeping room |
| 84 | 1000 S Mateo St | 1000 S Mateo St | Non-residential | | | | | |
| | | 1000 ¼ S Mateo St | Non-residential | | | | | |
| | | 1010 S Mateo St | Non-residential | | | | | |
| | | 1012 S Mateo St | Non-residential | | | | | |
| 73 | 2023 E Sacramento St | 2023 E Sacramento St | Single-story dwelling | 1914 - Plumbing; 1925 - Relocation | | ca.1900 | 1925 | |
| | | 2023 ½ E Sacramento St | Detached building/structure | | | ca.1900 | 1925 | |
| 75 | 2019 E Sacramento St | 2019 E Sacramento St | Single-story dwelling | 1914 - Plumbing; 1925 - Relocation | 1904 (Albert Edmiston, teamster) | ca.1900 | 1925 | |
| | | 2019 ½ E Sacramento St | Detached building/structure | | | ca.1900 | 1925 | |

Table 3. Residential Developments within Project Lots

| Lot | Current Street Address | Associated Addresses | Building Type | Selected Permits | Earliest City Directory Listing | Residential Construction | Residential Demolition- Relocation | Construction Notes |
|-----|---------------------------|---------------------------|--------------------------------|---------------------------------------|---|-----------------------------|--|---|
| 77 | 2015 E Sacramento St | 2015 E Sacramento St | Single-story dwelling | 1914 - Plumbing; 1925 - Relocation | 1904 (Luther Torrey; Albert Torrey, Deputy Sheriff) | ca.1900 | 1925 | |
| | | 2015 ½ E Sacramento St | Detached building/structure | | | ca.1900 | 1925 | |
| 79 | 2011 E Sacramento St | 2011 E Sacramento St | Non-residential | | | | | |
| | | 2009 E Sacramento St | Single-story dwelling | 1914 - Plumbing; 1925 - Relocation | 1900 (Richard Collins, driver) | pre-1900 | 1925 | |
| 81 | 2007 E Sacramento St | 2007 E Sacramento St | Non-residential | | | | | |
| | | 2005 E Sacramento St | Single-story dwelling | 1914 - Plumbing; 1925 - Relocation | 1900 (Chase Roe, clerk, M.A. Newmark & Co.) | pre-1900 | 1925 | 12-inch footings; concrete foundation, 12 inches below surface |
| | | 2001 E Sacramento St | Auto Service Station | 1941 - Certificate of Completion | | | | |
| 83 | 1026 S Mateo St | 1026 S Mateo St | Non-residential | | | | | |
| | | 1024 S Mateo St | Single-story dwelling | 1905 - New construction | 1907 (William B. & Bernard O'Connor, car cleaner) | 1905 | 1921–1927 | Wood foundation, 22 x 22 ft. |
| | | 1020 S Mateo St | Single-story dwelling | 1905 - New construction | 1909 (Charles H. Gesselman, cooper) | 1905 | 1921–1927 | Wood foundation, 22 x 22 ft. |
| | | 1018 S Mateo St | Single-story dwelling | 1905 - New construction | 1907 (Amos V. Boatright, engineer) | 1905 | 1921–1927 | Wood foundation, 22 x 22 ft. |
| | | 1014 S Mateo St | Single-story dwelling | 1905 - New construction | 1907 (Samuel H. Smith, painter) | 1905 | 1921–1927 | Wood foundation, 22 x 22 ft. |

The Phase I ESA concluded that additional work was required to assess the presence or absence of these subsurface structures, and a Phase II ESA and geophysical survey were conducted (Feldman 2015; Johannes 2015). As a result of this work, the presence of several subsurface anomalies was identified and seemed to coincide with a previous service pump station, storage buildings, hydraulic hoists, and a grease pit (Figure 29 and Figure 30). None of the anomalies were found to be consistent with the presence of any USTs, which seem to confirm that the USTs had been removed and backfilled when the 1975 permit was issued (Johannes 2015:3–4). The geophysical survey concluded that anomalies were reliably detected to a depth of 8 feet below grade, except where constraints prevented any investigation (Feldman 2015:5). Geotechnical work conducted for the Project (currently underway) estimates up to 2 feet of artificial fill within the Project site, which provides a good approximation of the area in which Historic-period archaeological deposits are likely to be encountered. Interpretations of the geophysical survey data and findings in the Phase II ESA with respect to archaeological sensitivity are discussed below (see Sensitivity Assessment: Historic-Period Archaeological Resources).

NATIVE AMERICAN COORDINATION

Sacred Lands File Search

On April XX, 2019, SWCA received the results of a Sacred Lands File (SLF) search from the NAHC. The NAHC letter indicated negative results. The NAHC letter is included in Appendix B.

SENSITIVITY ASSESSMENT

The physical environment of the Project site has undergone massive alterations in the last 170 or more years—from its existence as a corn field on the Los Angeles River flood plain in the mid-nineteenth century, to one of many residential neighborhoods developed during the population boom of the 1880s, to cycles of redevelopment and conversion into commercial and industrial uses during the nineteenth century. As a result, most of the sediments below the paved surfaces within the Project site have been subject to at least some amount of ground disturbance, which, in most cases, diminishes the likelihood that any archaeological resources once present are still preserved. More recent construction of underground structures associated with the operation of a service station have likely compromised the archaeological preservation potential within portions of the Project site. The following section considers the historical land uses and physical setting to assess the likelihood that different types of archaeological resources could exist below the surface within the Project site.

Prehistoric and Historic-Period Native American Archaeological Resources

No archaeological resources with Native Americans components were identified in a CHRIS records search within the project site and a 0.5-mile radius. The SLF records search did not identify any sacred lands or sites in the project site. The closest known sites with Native American-affiliated materials on file at the CHRIS are mapped in approximately 1.5 miles north of the Project site, between the Los Angeles Plaza, Union Station, and MWD Headquarters building. The Gabrielino village known as Yaanga and several other important Historic-period Gabrielino sites (e.g., Pueblito. Rancheria de los Poblanos, and two unnamed rancherias) were located in the same approximate area, more than 1 mile from the Project site.

The Project site is located in the floodplain of the Los Angeles River, which is currently located approximately 0.4 km (0.25 miles) to the east of the Project site. Shifts in the main channel of the Los Angeles River have occurred numerous times in recorded history, including two significant shifts in 1815 and 1825, the most recent which realigned the channel to its current location. The significance of the Los Angeles River to the Gabrielino is well-documented in ethnographic works and oral history. Waterways

likely also influenced the location of footpaths and travel corridors used by foragers, increasing the likelihood that temporary camps may have been located within these travel corridors. The general proximity of the Project site to areas of known habitation, the river, and broad travel corridors has the effect of an overall increase in the sensitivity for unknown archaeological resources, at least higher than low background levels, particularly for the physical remains of temporary open camps. Such camps are typically identified by the presence of hearth features, ground stone and other types of artifact assemblages.

Additional criteria are required to distinguish levels of sensitivity for archaeological resource potential. Specifically, the scale of the Project site, land use history, depositional (soil) setting, and existing subsurface disturbances must also be considered and given weight in determining the sensitivity. Beginning at least by 1849, the Project site or at least portions were likely plowed and planted as a corn field. Subsequent development as a residential block between the 1890s and 1910s, and multiple episodes of redevelopment through the twentieth century would have displaced any former archaeological resources affiliated with Native Americans that were once present on the surface or near surface. This significantly reduces the sensitivity for prehistoric or Historic-period Native American archaeological resources within the Project site but does not preclude the potential for archaeological deposits to be preserved as more deeply buried sites.

Prehistoric or Historic-period Native American archaeological sites can be preserved as deeply buried deposits that underlay Historic-period disturbances, particularly in Quaternary alluvium—soils deposited through flood events between 11,700 and 1000 years ago. It has been demonstrated elsewhere in the downtown portion of Los Angeles that deeply buried Native American archaeological sites can exist within alluvium below Historic-period disturbances and may also be intermixed with Historic-period debris. Alluvial deposits within the Los Angeles Basin can be massive, extending hundreds of feet below the surface, and may contain sediments deposited before human occupation of North America. Furthermore, most accumulations of alluvial sediments in the Los Angeles Basin were formed by a combination of high-and low-energy depositional events. High-energy events are less likely to have preserved any material remains left on the surface by Native Americans, while low-energy floods tend to produce more favorable environments for the preservation of cultural materials. Thus, low-energy Quaternary alluvial sediments have the greatest potential for preserving tribal cultural resources. There is no absolute measure of depth below the surface in which sediments with these properties occur and site-specific conditions must be considered. Also, such soil conditions are an indicator of a setting favorable for preservation, but the presence of soils with these properties is not an absolute indicator of archaeological resources presence.

Preliminary geotechnical work at the Project site reports up to 2 feet of artificial fill present within the Project site. Prior soil testing included four samples taken at 5-foot intervals to a depth of 30 feet below grade. The sediment profiles described multiple alluvial layers of fine-grained sand and silty sand, some with gravel inclusions, extending down to 10 to 30 feet. Below this the soil consisted of poorly graded sand. Three of the bores identified a stratum of decomposing granite mixed with sand between 15 and 25 feet below the surface. This is typical of deposits within the Los Angeles River floodplain and reflects a mixture of high- and low-energy deposition. Although subtle variations may exist within the alluvial substratum that were not distinguished here, which could have relevance for tribal cultural resource preservation potential, SWCA interprets the disturbances from flood events represented in the soil profiles as having a net reduction in the sensitivity for archaeological resources affiliated with Native Americans. To the extent that the proposed ground disturbance extends into undisturbed alluvial soils buried beneath previously disturbed sediments, there may be some potential for preservation, but it is considered very unlikely for any resource to be present.

Based on the above considerations, SWCA finds a <u>low potential for encountering prehistoric or</u> <u>Historic-period Native American archaeological resources</u> within the Project site.

Historic-Period Archaeological Resources

Zanja No. 1

One segment of the Los Angeles zanja system—Zanja No. 1—was historically located approximately 250 feet (76.2 m), between Mateo and Wilson Streets. A second, unnamed branch of the zanja was also mapped 300 feet (91.4 m) east of the Project site. While several overview maps depicting the zanja system trace the route of Zanja No. 1 either within or very near the Project site, an 1891 survey map was able to more precisely and reliably confirm its relative location. The survey map depicts the main channel of Zanja No. 1 as being constructed of a concrete conduit in the parcels northwest of the Project site and then transitioning into a wooden flume, within the former Leck property, directly east of the Project site. The unnamed segment to the east appears to have been constructed as an open earthen ditch, and is described as an "old ditch," possibly an earlier route of the zanja. Because the 1891 survey map was drawn to scale and depicted streets are close to their current alignments, the map can be considered a reliable source for assessing the sensitivity for any physical remains of the zanja system within the Project site, and supports the conclusion that the project site has a **low sensitivity for Zanja No. 1 and any other zanja system components**.

Household and Industrial Refuse and Building Foundations

A CHRIS records search and archival research identified five archaeological resources, four of which are Historic-period sites, within a 0.8-km (0.5-mile) radius of the Project site. One additional archaeological site, LAN-4460H, was also identified in the CHRIS search, although it was located outside the 0.5-mile radius. LAN-4460H is a Historic-period archaeological site identified during construction monitoring. The site contained a substantial deposit of domestic items and structural remains associated with residential development between the 1880s and 1920s. Archival research documents the land use history of the Project site in its conversion from agriculture in the mid-nineteenth century, to mixed residential and industrial properties in the 1880s, to primarily industrial uses after the 1910s. Because the historical developments of LAN-4460H so closely resemble those within the current Project site, including the existing conditions at the time of construction, the likelihood of encountering similar Historic-period archaeological resources is considered very high.

Prior to the development of the site as a residential block, the Project site was partially within a former corn field identified on maps published between 1849 and 1857. Plowing and other ground disturbances from any other agricultural uses would have disturbed any native surface sediments and displaced any archaeological material that might have been located within the Project site. Though no specific figures are available for middle nineteenth century agricultural practices in Los Angeles, plow zones observed in archaeological contexts typically do not extend more than a few feet (less than 1 m) below the surface.

Historic-period archaeological resources could be preserved below the current ground surface, especially within any sediments identified as artificial fill. Specifically, there is potential to encounter structural remains, features, and artifacts associated with the residential neighborhood from the 1890s to the mid-1920s. Refuse was commonly deposited in trash pits and privies prior to the establishment of sewer lines and trash services. Because these types of historical features were originally excavated into pits, which can extend several feet below the surface, they are frequently found preserved below subsequent modifications. The various industrial uses of the Project site from the mid-1920s through the 1950s are also likely to occur as archaeological deposits such as pieces of refuse, hardware, tools, buildings materials, machine parts, as well as former building foundations or other structural remains. The preservation potential is reduced in at least some portions of the Project site as a result of the construction and removal of some subterranean structures in the Project site after 1970. This includes hydraulic hoists, USTs, island pumps, a grease pit, wash-down drain, and clarifier that were identified in Phase I and II ESAs, and a Site Characterization Report.
A geophysical survey conducted as part of the Phase II ESA identified several subsurface anomalies, which are also frequently used to detect buried archaeological features. An anomaly in the southwestern portion of the Project site was interpreted as the location of the island pumps and one of the USTs, which suggested that the UST was likely removed and backfilled as a 1975 permit suggested. Any archaeological features once located in the footprint of this anomaly was likely destroyed and the sensitivity is considered to be low for that location. The presence of reinforced concrete in large areas on the eastern side of the Project site constrained the ability to identify subsurface anomalies in that location. Plotting the geophysical survey results onto the 1906 Sanborn map shows no obvious correlations that would suggest the presence of intact foundations, but the variability in the results across the survey area suggests there is likely to be portions of the Project site that have been subject to less disturbance than others, and have an increased likelihood of preserving intact archaeological features.

For these reasons, SWCA finds the Project site has a <u>high sensitivity for containing Historic-period (non-Native American) archaeological resources.</u>

IMPACTS TO HISTORIC-PERIOD ARCHAEOLOGICAL SITES Household and Industrial Refuse and Building Foundations

The potential for unidentified Historic-period archaeological resources within the Project site is found to be high. Specifically, there is potential to encounter structural remains, features, and artifacts associated with the Historic-period domestic and industrial use of the Project site beginning in the 1890s. These resources have not been confirmed archaeologically and may occur across the entire horizontal extent of the Project site, with the highest potential in soils described as fill, estimated to extend at least 2 feet below the surface. If a Historic-period refuse deposit or building foundation is present in the Project site, it would be evaluated for significance under the CRHR and as a unique archaeological resource as required by the mitigation measures defined below.

CONSIDERATIONS FOR RESOURCE SIGNIFICANCE

Significance for most archaeological sites of this type is typically found under Criterion 4, but significance can also be found eligible under Criteria 1 and 2 where the archaeological materials can be correlated with a historically significant event or person. The nature of Historic-period refuse scatters and building foundations are such that they are not commonly found eligible for the CRHR under Criterion 3, i.e., refuse scatters and buildings foundations do not typically convey any distinctive characteristics in type, period, region, or method, and they are not the focus of masterful design or artistry. As such, a more detailed discussion of the considerations under Criterion 3 is omitted from the subsequent section. Determining the integrity and the extent (horizontal and vertical) of the archaeological remains is an important component of CRHR eligibility evaluation. Information on the horizontal distribution and vertical depth of the cultural material provides baseline data about the site (e.g., size, presence or absence of subsurface components, discrete activity areas) that contribute to a determination of the site's integrity. For an archeological site to be considered CRHR eligible, it must be considered significant under the CRHR criteria for evaluation and possess the quality of integrity (location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association). The integrity of an archeological site, particularly the elements of location, setting, and association, can be seriously impacted by disturbance due to natural or cultural transformations.

CRHR Criteria 1 and 2. An archaeological site can be found significant where a direct association can be demonstrated with a historically significant event (Criterion 1) or person (Criterion 2). No known historically significant events or persons were identified that have direct associations with the location of the Project site. Additional archival research would be required in order to assess whether any archaeological materials identified in the Project site (if present) are significant under Criteria 1 and 2. The same integrity considerations described under Criterion 4 would equally apply when determining CRHR

eligibility under Criteria 1 and 2. For any refuse deposits or building foundations identified in the Project site, the CRHR eligibility under Criteria 1 and 2 is considered to be unlikely compared to Criterion 4, but cannot be categorically ruled out.

CRHR Criterion 4. Properties that are significant under Criterion 4 have yielded, or have the potential to yield, information important to the history of the local area, California or the nation. The Project site has a history of residential and industrial development from the last decades of the nineteenth century and the first half of the twentieth century. Although much is known about the history of late nineteenth- and early twentieth-century Los Angeles, questions remain about details of daily life for the diverse people who came to make Los Angeles their home in this period. Archaeological deposits that date to this key period of growth for the city have the potential to contribute to the understanding of individuals and communities and industrial development in the early twentieth century. When historical archaeological investigations integrate both archival and archaeological data sets, they are even better positioned to meet this potential. Archaeological materials from refuse deposits could provide household- and community-level data, although certain types of data have the potential to answer some research questions better than others. For instance, economic status and consumer choices can be ascertained through an analysis of household artifacts, and the spatial organization of a neighborhood can be understood through analysis of structural remains. Refuse from household activities is one of the main sources of archaeological information in historically settled areas. Refuse can be discarded during everyday activities or can be intentionally deposited in disposal areas. Concentrated disposal areas such as privies, trash pits, and wells constitute one of the best sources of information on residents and their behavioral patterns. Refuse from commercial activities may also be identified. A variety of historical businesses operated within or adjacent to the Project site in the late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries, including a cooperage, wood and iron manufacture, offices, restaurant, warehouse storage, freight and shipping, automotive manufacturing, repair, and service stations, and wire rope production. Much like household activities, industrial activities resulted in discard of refuse as part of daily activities or in intentional deposition of refuse in disposal areas.

Assessing the integrity of archaeological materials is important for establishing the eligibility of sites under Criterion 4. The integrity of any refuse deposits or building foundations depends on whether or not surfaces or features are preserved, and also includes the potential for identifying and analyzing horizontal and vertical spatial patterning in past behavior. If post-depositional natural or cultural processes have disturbed the context of the artifacts, potential information can be lost or its value highly compromised. As a result, a site with poor integrity often has a diminished capacity to yield information important in history (Criterion 4). Exploring both the horizontal and vertical aspects of the site allows for an evaluation of the information potential of the site and determination of the level of disturbance, if any.

Unique archaeological resource. For a Historic-period refuse scatter or building foundation to be considered a unique archaeological resource it must contain information needed to answer important scientific research questions of public interest, possess a unique quality such as being the oldest or best example of a resource type, or be directly associated with a scientifically recognized important historic event or person. A historic archaeological site that does not meet the significance threshold for any CRHR eligibility criteria is unlikely to be considered a unique archaeological resource.

If present, Historic-period refuse scatters or building foundations have the potential to be significant under CEQA and would require mitigation to avoid potentially significant impacts. Implementation of MM Arch-1 through Arch-4 will ensure that previously unrecorded archaeological resources are properly identified by a qualified archaeologist so that they can be evaluated for the CRHR under the applicable criteria. Specifically, MM Arch-4 requires an archaeological monitor to be present during excavation or grading in the area of sensitivity so that any Historic-period archaeological sites are identified, and impacts are avoided. MM Arch-2 requires preparation of an Archaeological Resources Monitoring and Mitigation Plan (ARMMP) that addresses the means by which CRHR eligibility will be assessed in the event of a discovery.

This includes but is not limited to the considerations under Criterion 1, 2, and 4 discussed above. The ARMMP will also outline a procedure for treatment of any Historic-period archaeological sites determined to be historical resources under CEQA such that potentially adverse impacts are reduced to less than significant levels.

RECOMMENDED MITIGATION MEASURES

Construction at the Project site would adhere to applicable regulatory compliance measures intended to avoid creating or to reduce significant impacts to archeological resources in the event of a discovery during grading, excavation, or other ground disturbing activities. As noted above, certain soils at the Project site have high sensitivity based on reviewed archival materials and databases. Given the likelihood of encountering previously unrecorded resources, mitigation measures are required to ensure that potential impacts to archeological resources that may be present in the Project site are less than significant. The mitigation measures recommended here have been developed in accordance with, and incorporate the performance standards of the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for professional archaeology, Public Resources Code Section 5024.1, Title 14 California Code of Regulations, Sections 15064.5 and 15126.4 of the CEQA Guidelines, and PRC Sections 21083.2 and 21084.1, Office of Historic Preservation's *Archaeological Resource Management Reports (ARMR): Recommended Contents and Format*, and the guidelines of the City of Los Angeles General Plan Conservation Element.

Feasibility of Preservation in Place

According to CEQA Guidelines 15126.4(b)(3), preservation in place (i.e., avoidance) is the preferred manner of treatment of a significant archaeological site. If avoidance is not feasible, treatment may include archaeological data recovery (i.e., excavation, laboratory processing, and analysis) to obtain important information and thereby reduce potential impacts under Criterion 4 to less than significant. Architectural documentation of engineered properties may reduce potential impacts under Criterion 3 to less than significant. Treatment options for impacts to properties eligible under Criteria 1 and 2 are described below.

Preservation in place may include any of the following: planning construction to avoid archaeological sites; incorporating archaeological sites into a park, greenspace, or open space; covering the archaeological site with a layer of chemically stable soil; and deeding the site into a permanent conservation easement. There are no known, previously recorded archaeological sites identified in the Project site; therefore, planning for avoidance is not applicable to this Project. Archaeological sensitivity was assessed as high for the entire horizontal extent of the Project site and extending to an estimated depth of 2 feet. The Project design currently includes approximately 25 feet of excavation below grade to meet the geotechnical requirements for the building foundations and accommodate two levels of subterranean parking, which precludes the potential for incorporating any archaeological sites that may be discovered during construction into a park, greenspace, or open space, protecting the archaeological site under a soil stratum, or deeding the property into a conservation easement. Thus, if a previously unrecorded archaeological resource is identified within the Project site and found to be significant, it is very unlikely that preservation in place will be a feasible form of mitigation under any of the examples listed in CEQA Guidelines. As a result, mitigation measures including, but not limited to, architectural documentation in conformance with HAER standards and archaeological data recovery is proposed in the event that a previously unrecorded archaeological site is identified during construction and found to meet CRHR eligibility.

The recommended mitigation measures presented here provide a framework for mitigating impacts to a variety of resource types. Under MM Arch-2, an ARMMP must be prepared that further describes treatment of the specific archaeological resources that may be identified during the archaeological monitoring (implemented under MM Arch-4) and outlines protocols to follow in the event that a resource is found to meet CRHR eligibility criteria. The recommended mitigation measures are as follows:

- MM Arch-1: Retain a Qualified Archaeologist. Prior to the issuance of a demolition permit, the project proponent shall retain a qualified archaeologist, defined as an archaeologist who meets the Secretary of the Interior's (SOI) Standards for professional archaeology, during the excavation phase to carry out and ensure proper implementation of the mitigation measures related to archaeological resources. The qualified archaeologist shall submit a letter of retention to the project proponent no fewer than 15 days before demolition or excavation activities commence. The letter shall include a resume for the qualified archaeologist that demonstrates fulfillment of the SOI standards.
- **MM Arch-2: Prepare an Archaeological Resources Monitoring and Mitigation Plan** (ARMMP). Prior to the commencement of demolition and excavation, an ARMMP shall be prepared. The ARMMP shall include, but not be limited to, a construction worker training program (described in MM Arch-3), monitoring protocol for demolition and excavation activities, discovery and processing protocol for inadvertent discoveries of archaeological resources, and identification of a curation facility should artifacts be collected. The ARMMP shall identify areas that require monitoring, provide a framework for assessing the geoarchaeological setting to determine whether sediments capable of preserving archaeological remains are present, and include a protocol for identifying the conditions under which additional or reduced levels of monitoring (e.g., spotchecking) may be appropriate. The duration and timing of the monitoring shall be determined based on the rate of excavation, geoarchaeological assessment, and, if present, the quantity, type, and spatial distribution of archaeological resources identified.

The ARMMP shall minimally include a historical context statement, research design, and methodology by which any newly identified archaeological sites will be evaluated for CRHR eligibility and as unique archaeological resources. The ARMMP will specify the specific types of archaeological sites likely to be encountered, the means by which significance will be assessed. If any archaeological resources are identified and are found not to be significant or do not retain integrity, then they will be recorded to a level sufficient to document the contents and condition. The ARMMP shall include a proactive identification and documentation protocol that would facilitate preservation or mitigation of impacts to any archaeological sites identified in a costeffective manner. The ARMMP will include potential treatment plans to be implemented in the event a newly discovered archaeological resource is determined by the qualified archaeologist to constitute a "historical resource" pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(a) or a "unique archaeological resource" pursuant to PRC 21083.2(g). The ARMMP will require that if the treatment plans outlined therein are found to be infeasible or other alternatives are proposed, the qualified archaeologist shall coordinate with the project proponent and City Planning to amend the ARMMP with a formal treatment plan that would reduce impacts to the resource(s). The treatment plans stated in the ARMMP or prepared after the discovery of a historical resource, shall be in accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(f) for historical resources and Public Resources Code Sections 21083.2(b) for unique archaeological resources. Preservation in place (i.e., avoidance) is the preferred manner of treatment and if it is determined avoidance is not feasible, treatment may include but not be limited to any of the following depending on the type of resource and the significance evaluation:

- **Prehistoric archaeological sites.** Data recovery shall be conducted (i.e., excavation, laboratory processing and analysis) to remove the resource(s) and reduce potential impacts to less than significant where significance is determined under CRHR Criterion 4 and integrity is retained.
- **Historic-period archaeological sites.** If a Historic-period site, including but not limited to a refuse scatter or building foundation(s), is present and found to retain integrity, data recovery shall be conducted (i.e., excavation, laboratory processing and

analysis) to remove the resource(s) and reduce potential impacts to less than significant. In addition to data recovery, specific treatments shall be developed and implemented based on potential CRHR or eligibility criteria or as a unique archaeological resource as follows:

- Treatment Under Criteria 1 and 2, or as a unique archaeological resource: Treatment shall include interpretation for the public. Interpretive materials may include, but not be limited to, signage at the Project site, relocating preserved materials in a publicly accessible display, or visual representations of recovered materials. The interpretive materials shall be prepared, at the expense of the project applicant, by professionals meeting the Secretary of the Interior standards in history or historical archeology. The details of the interpretive materials, including the form, content, and timing of their preparation, shall be completed to the satisfaction and subject to the approval of the Department of City Planning. The results of the historical and archaeological studies conducted for the Project shall be made available to the public through repositories such as the local main library branch or identified non-profit historic groups interested in the subject matter.
- **Treatment Under Criterion 3:** Architectural documentation of exposed features shall be conducted by producing narrative records, measured drawings, and photographs in conformance with HAER standards prior to any alteration or demolition activity.
- **Treatment Under Criterion 4:** No additional work; data recovery is sufficient.

The ARMMP shall summarize the requirements for tribal coordination in the event of an inadvertent discovery of Native American archaeological resources, including the applicable regulatory compliance measures or conditions of approval for the inadvertent discovery of tribal cultural resources to be carried out in concert. The ARMMP shall be prepared in compliance with Public Resources Code Section 5024.1, Title 14 California Code of Regulations, Section 15064.5 of the CEQA Guidelines, and PRC Sections 21083.2 and 21084.1.

MM Arch-3: Worker Environmental Awareness Program (WEAP) Training. Before the commencement of initial demolition or excavation at the Project site, the retained qualified archaeologist or their designee shall provide a WEAP training to on-site project personnel responsible for supervising demolition and excavation (i.e., foreman or supervisor) and machine operators. The WEAP training shall brief construction crews regarding the regulatory compliance requirements and applicable mitigation measures that must be adhered to during demolition and excavation activities for the protection of archaeological resources. As an element of the WEAP training, the qualified archaeologist or their designee shall advise the construction crews on proper procedures to follow if an unanticipated archaeological resource is discovered during construction. The qualified archaeologist or their designee shall also provide the construction workers with contact information for the qualified archaeologist and their designee(s) and protocols to follow if inadvertent discoveries are made. In addition, workers shall be shown examples of the types of archaeological resources that would require notification of the archaeologist, if encountered. Once the ground disturbances have commenced, the need for additional or supplemental WEAP training shall be determined through consultation with the qualified archaeologist, project proponent or their designated project supervisor. Within five days of completing a WEAP training, a list of those in attendance shall be provided by the qualified archaeologist to the project proponent.

MM Arch-4: Monitoring for Archaeological Resources. Before the commencement of demolition or excavation activities, an archaeological monitor shall be present during ground disturbing activities as stipulated in the ARMMP. The qualified archaeologist may designate an archaeologist to conduct the monitoring under their direction. The monitor shall have the authority to temporarily halt or redirect construction activities in soils that are likely to contain potentially significant archaeological resources, as determined by the qualified archaeologist. The monitor shall complete a daily log documenting construction activities and observations. The field observations shall include assessment of the geoarchaeological setting and whether sediments are identified that are no longer capable or unlikely to contain archaeological material (i.e., sterile), which may be encountered prior to reaching the total depth of excavation expected for the project. If initial archaeological monitoring identifies low archaeological sensitivity (i.e., sterile soil strata) below a certain depth or within a certain portion of the Project site, a corresponding reduction of monitoring coverage would be appropriate. In the event that potentially significant archaeological resources are exposed during construction, work in the immediate vicinity of the find (within 8 meters [25 feet]) shall stop until a qualified archaeologist can evaluate the significance of the find. Construction activities may continue in other areas in coordination with the qualified archaeologist. If the discovery is determined by the qualified archaeologist to constitute a "historical resource" pursuant to CEOA Guidelines Section 15064.5(a) or a "unique archaeological resource" pursuant to PRC 21083.2(g), and the treatments proposed in the ARMMP are found to be infeasible or other alternatives are proposed, the qualified archaeologist shall coordinate with the project proponent and the Department of City Planning to amend the ARMMP with a formal treatment plan that would reduce impacts to the resource(s). The treatment plan established for the resource(s) shall be in accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(f) for historical resources and Public Resources Code Sections 21083.2(b) for unique archaeological resources. Preservation in place (i.e., avoidance) is the preferred manner of treatment and if it is determined avoidance is not feasible, treatment may include architectural documentation and archaeological data recovery (i.e., excavation, laboratory processing and analysis) to remove the resource(s) and reduce potential impacts to less than significant.

Within 30 days of concluding the archaeological monitoring, the qualified archaeologist shall prepare a memo stating that the archaeological monitoring requirement of the mitigation measure has been fulfilled and summarize the results of any archaeological finds. The memo shall be submitted to the project proponent and the Department of City Planning. Following submittal of the memo, the qualified archaeologist shall prepare a technical report documenting the methods and results of all work completed under the ARMMP, including, if any, treatment of archaeological materials, results of artifact processing, analysis, and research, and evaluation of the resource(s) for the California Register of Historical Resources. Once laboratory analysis is complete, any recovered archaeological materials shall be curated at a public, non-profit research institution that will ensure their long-term preservation and allow access to interested scholars, and shall be done at the expense of the project applicant. Should no such institutions accept the materials, they shall be donated to an educational institution or historical society. The format and content of the report shall follow the California Office of Historic Preservation's Archaeological Resource Management Reports (ARMR): Recommended Contents and Format. Any archaeological resources identified shall be documented on appropriate California Department of Parks and Recreation 523-Series Forms. The report shall be prepared under the supervision of a qualified archaeologist and submitted to the Department of City Planning within 12 months of completion of the monitoring. The final draft of the report shall be submitted to the South Central Coastal Information Center.

CONCLUSION

This evaluation included a review of historical archival sources and archaeological records. A CHRIS records search did not identify any known archaeological sites in the Project site. The SLF results returned by the NAHC were negative. Background research indicates that subsurface archaeological deposits are commonly encountered during construction projects in downtown Los Angeles and previously unrecorded Historic-period archaeological sites have a high likelihood of occurring within the Project site. Specifically, there is potential to encounter domestic and industrial refuse associated with residences from about 1891 to 1938, as well as construction material and building foundations associated with the residences, as well as those from several industrial and commercial buildings present after 1925. These resources have the highest probability to occur in the soil strata defined as fill, which are estimated to extend at least 2 feet below the surface. The total depth of excavation required for the Project is expected to be approximately 25 feet below the surface. Without mitigation, physical destruction of an archaeological resource eligible for listing in the CRHR would result in a significant impact under CEQA. To address potential impacts to previously undiscovered archaeological resources, the Project will include retaining a qualified archaeologist (MM Arch-1), producing and implementing a detailed ARMMP (MM Arch-2 and Arch-4), and conducting a worker training (MM Arch-3). Doing so will ensure any archaeological sites are identified and determined to be historical resources or unique archaeological resources, to which project-related impacts would be mitigated on the basis of their eligibility under each CRHR criterion and as a unique archaeological resource.

Therefore, after mitigation, potential impacts to archaeological resources would be reduced to less than significant under CEQA. The measures described above address potential impacts to archaeological resources. In the event of a discovery of archaeological resources affiliated with Native Americans that might be considered tribal cultural resources, the City's standard condition of approval for the inadvertent discovery of tribal cultural resources will be followed.

REFERENCES CITED

Altschul, Jeffrey H., John G. Douglass, Richard Ciolek-Torrello, Sarah Van Galder, Benjamin R. Vargas, Kathleen L. Hull, Donn R. Grenda, Jeffrey Homburg, Manuel Palacios-Fest, Steven Shelley, Angela Keller, and David Maxwell

- 2007 Life at the Nexus of the Wetlands and Coastal Prairie, West Los Angeles. *Proceedings of the* Society for California Archaeology 20:34–42.
- Ashby, G. E., and J. W. Winterbourne
 - 1966 A Study of Primitive Man in Orange County and Some of Its Coastal Areas. *Pacific Coast Archaeological Society Quarterly* 2(1):5–52.
- Bancroft, Hubert Howe
 - 1886 *History of California, Volume 1, 1542-1800.* The History Company Publishers, San Francisco, California.
- Bean, Lowell J., and Charles R. Smith
 - 1978 Gabrielino. In *California*, edited by Robert F. Heizer, pp. 538–549. Handbook of North American Indians, Vol. 8, William C. Sturtevant, general editor, Smithsonian Institution Press, Washington, DC.
- Beattie, George William
 - 1942 Battle of Chino. *The Quarterly: Historical Society of Southern California*. 24(4):143–160.
- Bedrossian, Trinda L., CEG, and Peer D. Roffers
 - 2012 Geological Compilation of Quaternary Surficial Deposits in Southern California Los Angeles 30' × 60' Quadrangle. CGS Special Report 217. California Geological Survey

Bedrossian, Trinda L., Peter D. Roffers, Cheryle A. Hayhurst, Jermey T. Lancaster, and William R. Short

- 2012 Geological Compilation of Quaternary Surficial Deposits in Southern California. CGS Special Report 217. California Geological Survey
- Blackburn, Thomas
 - 1963 *Ethnohistoric Descriptions of Gabrielino Material Culture*. Annual Report, Archaeological Survey. University of California, Los Angeles.

Bray, Madeleine, and Michael Vader

2014 Archaeological Resources Monitoring Report for the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power La Kretz Innovation Campus Project, Los Angeles County, California. Prepared for Los Angeles Department of Water and Power by Environmental Science Associates.

Brooks, Sheilagh, Richard A. Brooks, G. E. Kennedy, J. Austin, James R. Firby, Louis A. Payen, Peter J. Slota, Jr., Christine A. Prior, and R. E. Taylor

1990 The Haverty Human Skeletons: Morphological, Depositional, and Geochronological Characteristics. *Journal of California and Great Basin Anthropology* 12(1):60–83.

Buchanan, Diana

2015 Site Characterization Report: 1024 Mateo Street; 2016 Bay Street; 2001, 2005, and 2025 Sacramento Street, Los Angeles, California 90021. Technical report prepared by Anderson Environmental.

Byrd, Brian F., and L. Mark Raab

2007 Prehistory of the Southern Bight: Models for a New Millennium. In *California Prehistory*, edited by Terry L. Jones and Kathryn A. Klar, pp. 215–228. Altimira Press, Lanham, Maryland.

Caughey, John, and LaRee Caughey

1977 Los Angeles, Biography of a City. University of California Press, Berkeley and Los Angeles.

City of Los Angeles

2001 *Conservation Element of the City of Los Angeles General Plan.* City Plan Case No. 2001-0413-GPA, Council File No. 01-1094.

Cleland, Robert Glass

1941 *The Cattle on a Thousand Hills: Southern California, 1850-80.* The Huntington Library, San Marino, California.

Cleland, James H., Andrew L. York, and Lorraine M. Willey

2007 *Piecing Together the Prehistory of Landing Hill: A Place Remembered.* EDAW Cultural Publications No. 3. EDAW, Inc., San Diego, California.

Crandell, John

2010 *Homage to Downtown: In Search of Place and Memory in Ancient L.A.* Visions of L.A., Los Angeles, California.

Dakin, Susanna Bryant

1978 A Scotch Paisano in Old Los Angeles: Hugo Reid's Life in California, 1832-1852 Derived from His Correspondence. Originally published 1939. University of California Press, Berkeley, Los Angeles, and London, United Kingdom.

Dillon, B. D.

1994 *Alameda District Plan, Los Angeles, California: Prehistoric and Early Historic Archaeological Research.* On file, South Central Coastal Information Center, California, Historic Resources Information System, University of California, Los Angeles.

Drover, Christopher E.

- 1971 Three Fired-Clay Figurines from 4-Ora-64, Orange County, California. *Pacific Coast Archaeological Society Quarterly* 7(4):73–86.
- 1975 Early Ceramics from Southern California. *The Journal of California Anthropology* 2(1):101–107.

Dumke, Glenn S.

1944 *The Boom of the Eighties in Southern California*. Huntington Library Publications, San Marino, California.

Elliot, H.B.

1891 Los Angeles, Cal., population of city and environs 65,000. [map] Southern California Land Co., Los Angeles, California. Retrieved from the Library of Congress, https://www.loc.gov/item/75693095/.

Engelhardt, Zephyrin

1927 San Gabriel Mission and the Beginning of Los Angeles. Mission San Gabriel, San Gabriel, California.

Erlandson, Jon M.

1991 Early Maritime Adaptations on the Northern Channel Islands. In *Hunter-Gatherers of Early Holocene Coastal California*, edited by J. M. Erlandson and R. Colten, pp. 101–112. Perspectives in California Archaeology, Vol. 1. Institute of Archaeology, University of California, Los Angeles.

Erlandson, Jon M., Torben C. Rick, Terry L. Jones, and Judith F. Porcasi

2007 One if by Land, Two if by Sea: Who Were the First Californians? In *California Prehistory: Colonization, Culture, and Complexity,* edited by Terry L. Jones and Kathryn A. Klar, pp. 53–62. Altamira Press, Lanham, Maryland.

Feldman, Emily

2015 *Geophysical Investigation at 2016 Bay Street, Los Angeles, California.* Technical report submitted by GeoVision Geophysical Services.

Glassow, Michael A., L. Wilcoxon, and J. M. Erlandson

1988 Cultural and Environmental Change During the Early Period of Santa Barbara Channel Prehistory. In *The Archaeology of Prehistoric Coastlines*, edited by G. Bailey and J. Parkington, pp. 64–77. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, United Kingdom.

Glover, Eli Sheldon

1877 *Birds eye view of Los Angeles, California* [Map]. Published by A. L. Bancroft & Co., San Francisco, California. Retrieved from the Library of Congress, https://www.loc.gov/item/75693093.

Goldberg, Susan K., B.J. Adams, C. Denardo, S.A. Williams, M.J. Wyss, M.C. Robinson, S.L. Martin, M.S. Shackley, T.M. Oringer, J.L. McVicar, and Beta Analytic Inc

1999 The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California Headquarters Facility Project, The People of Yaanga?: Archaeological Investigations at CA-LAN-1575/H. Report prepared by Applied EarthWorks, Inc., Hemet, California. On-file at the South Central Coastal Information Center, California Status University, Fullerton.

Gumprecht, Blake

2001 *The Los Angeles River: Its Life, Death, and Possible Rebirth.* Johns Hopkins University Press, Baltimore, Maryland.

Hall, William S.

1888 Irrigation in California [Southern]: The Field, Water-Supply, and Work, Organization and Operation in San Diego, San Bernardino, And Los Angeles Counties. The Second Part of the

Report of the State Engineer of California on Irrigation and the Irrigation Question. Sate Office. Sacramento, California

Hancock, Henry

- 1857 Map of the City Of Los Angeles Showing the Confirmed Limits Surveyed in August 1857 by Henry Hancock U.S. Dep. Survey. Plan de la Ciudad De Los Angeles. Surveyed by E.O.C. Ord, Lt. U.S.A. and Wm. R. Hutton, Assistant, August 29, 1849. Donation Lots Surveyed by H. Hancock in August and April 1853, Geo. Hanson, Asst. Bancroft & Thayer, Los Angeles.
- 1859 *Plat of the City Lands of Los Angeles.* [map] Huntington Library, Solano-Reeve Collection. Unique Digital Identifier 313205.

Hansen, George

1855 *Los Angeles: Vigné Vineyard sold to Barela and Sainsevain.* [map] Huntington Library, Solano-Reeve Collection. Unique Digital Identifier 313167.

Harrington, John P.

1942 Culture Element Distributions: XIX Central California Coast. University of California Anthropological Records 7(1):1–46.

Heizer, Robert F.

1968 *Village Names in Twelve California Mission Records.* Reports of the University of California Archaeological Survey 74.

Hoffman, Abraham and Teena Stern

2007 The Zanjas and the Pioneer Water Systems for Los Angeles. *Southern California Quarterly* 89(1): 1-22.

Johannes, David

2015 Phase II Environmental Site Assessment Report for Commercial Property Located at 1024 Mateo Street, 2016 Bay Street, and 2001, 2005, and 2025 Sacramento Street, within the City of Los Angeles, California. Technical report submitted by Certified Environmental Consultants, Inc.

Johnson, J. R., T. W. Stafford, Jr., H. O. Ajie, and D. P. Morris

2002 Arlington Springs Revisited. In *Proceedings of the Fifth California Islands Symposium*, edited by D. R. Brown, K. C. Mitchell, and H. W. Chaney, pp. 541–545. Santa Barbara Museum of Natural History, Santa Barbara, California.

Johnston, Bernice E.

1962 *California's Gabrielino Indians*. Frederick Webb Hodge Anniversary Publication Fund 8, Southwest Museum, Los Angeles, California.

Jones, Terry L., Richard T. Fitzgerald, Douglas J. Kennett, Charles Miksicek, John L. Fagan, John Sharp, and Jon M. Erlandson

2002 The Cross Creek Site and Its Implications for New World Colonization. *American Antiquity* 67:213–230.

King, Chester D.

1994 Native American Placenames in the Santa Monica Mountains National Recreation Area, Agoura Hills. Topanga Anthropological Consultants, California.

Kirkman, George W.

 1938 Kirkman-Harriman Pictorial and Historical Map of Los Angeles County 1860-1937 [Map]. Retrieved from Los Angeles Public Library Online Map Collection. Call Number 91.7941 L88Ki.

Koerper, Henry C., and Christopher E. Drover

1983 Chronology Building for Coastal Orange County: The Case from CA-ORA-119-A. *Pacific Coast Archaeological Society Quarterly* 19(2):1–34.

Koerper, Henry C., Roger D. Mason, and Mark L. Peterson

2002 Complexity, Demography, and Change in Late Holocene Orange County. In *Catalysts to Complexity, Late Holocene Societies of the California Coast*, edited by Jon M. Erlandson and Terry L. Jones, pp. 63–81. Perspectives in California Archaeology Vol. 6. Costen Institute of Archaeology, University of California, Los Angeles.

Kroeber, Alfred J.

1925 *Handbook of the Indians of California*. Bulletin 78, Bureau of American Ethnology, Smithsonian Institution. Government Printing Office, Washington, DC. Reprinted 1976 by Dover Publications, Inc., New York.

Layne, Gregg J.

1952 Water and Power for a Great City: A History of the Department of Water and Power of the City of Los Angeles. Los Angeles. California.

Los Angeles Conservancy.

2016 *The Arts District: History and Architecture in Downtown L.A.* Retrieved from https://www.laconservancy.org (accessed April 2016).

McCawley, William

1996 *The First Angelinos: The Gabrielino Indians of Los Angeles*. Malki-Ballena Press, Banning, California.

Macko, Michael E.

1998 The Muddy Canyon Archaeological Project: Results of Phase II Test Excavations and Phase III Data Recovery Excavations at Archaeological Sites within the Crystal Cove Planned Community, Phase IV, Tentative Tract 15447, San Joaquin Hills, Orange County, California. Report on file, South Central Coastal Information Center, California State University, Fullerton.

Mahmood, Khalid

2015 Phase I Environmental Site Assessment of the Property Located at 2025 Sacramento Street, 1024 Mateo Street and 2016 Bay Street (Also Includes 2001-2005 Sacramento Street) Los Angeles, CA 91402. Technical report submitted by Environmental Managers & Auditors, Inc.

Mason, Roger D., and Mark L. Peterson

1994 Newport Coast Archaeological Project: Newport Coast Settlement Systems–Analysis and Discussion, Vol. 1, part 1 of 2. Prepared by the Keith Companies. Copies on file at the South Central Coastal Information Center, California State University, Fullerton.

Meighan, Clement W.

1954 A Late Complex in Southern California Prehistory. *Southwestern Journal of Anthropology* 10(2):215–227.

Merriam, Clinton Hart

1955 Studies of California Indians. University of California Press. Berkeley, California.

Miller, Lindsey

2014 Isolation and Authenticity in Los Angeles' Arts District Neighborhood. Master's thesis, University of Southern California.

Moratto, M. J.

1984 California Archaeology. Academic Press, New York.

Morris, Susan L., John R. Johnson, Steven J. Schwartz, René L. Vellanoweth, Glenn J. Farris, and Sara L. Schwebel

2016 The Nicoleños in Los Angeles: Documenting the Fate of the lone Woman's Community. Journal of California and Great Basin Anthropology 36(1):91–118.

Nadeau, Remi

1997 The Water Seekers. 4th ed. Revised. Crest Publishers, Santa Barbara, California.

Nelson, James William, C.J. Zinn, A.T. Strahorn, E.B. Watson, and J.E. Dunn

1919 *Soil Survey of the Los Angeles area, California.* United States Department of Agriculture. Bureau of Soils.

Newcomb, Rexford

1980 Architectural Observations (1822). In *The Old Plaza Church*, compiled and edited by Francis J. Weber, pp. 66–70. Libra Press Limited, Leicestershire, United Kingdom.

Newmark, Harris

1977. Reminiscences of the Fifties. *Los Angeles: Biography of a City*, edited by John Caughey and LaRee Caughey, pp. 132–140. University of California Press, Berkeley.

Ord, E. O. C.

1849 Plan de la Ciudad De Los Angeles. Surveyed by E.O.C. Ord, Lt. U.S.A. and Wm. R. Hutton, Assistant, August 29, 1849. [Map]

Owen, Thomas J.

1960 The Church by the Plaza: A History of the Pueblo Church of Los Angeles. *The Historical Society of Southern California Quarterly* March:5–28.

Pierce, B. W. & Semi-Tropic Homestead Co.

1894 *Los Angeles, California, 1894.* [Map] Retrieved from the Library of Congress, https://www.loc.gov/item/75693096/.

Ríos-Bustamante, Antonio

1992 *Mexican Los Angeles: A Narrative and Pictorial History.* Floricanto Press, Mountain View, California.

Robinson, W. W.

1979 Land in California: The Story of Mission Lands, Ranchos, Squatters, Mining Claims, Railroad Grants, Land Scrip, Homesteads. University of California Press, Berkeley.

Rolle, Andrew F.

2003 California A History. Revised and expanded 6th Ed. Harlan Davidson, Wheeling, Illinois.

Rowan, V.J. and T.G. Koeberle

- 1886 *Map of the City of Los Angeles, California.* [map] Schmidt Label & Litho Co., San Francisco, California.
- 1887 Map of the City of Los Angeles. California. Compiled From Surveys Made By The City Surveyor During 1886, and from Records On File In The County Recorders Office. [map] Schmidt Label & Litho Co., San Francisco, California.

Sawyer, William A., and Henry C. Koerper

2006 The San Joaquin Hills Venus: A Ceramic Figurine from CA-ORA-1405-B. In *Contributions* from Orange County Presented in Remembrance of John Peabody Harrington, edited by Henry C. Koerper, pp. 13–34. Coyote Press Archives of California Prehistory No. 53. Coyote Press, Salinas, California.

Sklar, Anna

2008 Brown Acres: An intimate History of the Los Angeles Sewers. Angel City Press, Santa Monica, California.

Solano, Alfred

1891Los Angeles—Parcel about $1 \times 3/4$ mile south of Seventh Street, West of Los Angeles River.[map] Huntington Library, Solano-Reeve Collection. Unique Digital Identifier 313685.

Southwest Museum

1962 The Gabrielino Indians at the Time of the Portola Expedition. [Map] Los Angeles Public Library Online Map Collection. Call Number R 91.7941 L88Los.

Stevenson, Henry J.

1884 *Map of the City of Los Angeles, California* [Map]. Huntington Library, Rare Book Maps Collection. Unique Digital Identifier 164406.

True, Delbert L.

1993 Bedrock Milling Elements as Indicators of Subsistence and Settlement Patterns in Northern San Diego County, California. *Pacific Coast Archaeological Society Quarterly* 29(2):1–26.

Wallace, W. J.

- 1955 A Suggested Chronology for Southern California Coastal Archaeology. *Southwestern Journal of Anthropology* 11(3):214–230.
- 1978 Post-Pleistocene Archaeology, 9000 to 2000 B.C. In *California*, edited by Robert F. Heizer, pp. 25–36. Handbook of North American Indians Vol. 8, William G. Sturtevant, general editor. Smithsonian Institution, Washington, DC.

Warren, Claude N.

1968 Cultural Tradition and Ecological Adaptation on the Southern California Coast. In *Archaic Prehistory in the Western United States*, edited by C. Irwin-Williams. *Eastern New Mexico University Contributions in Anthropology* 1(3):1–14, Portales, New Mexico.

Warren, Claude N., and D. L. True

1961 The San Dieguito Complex and its Place in California Prehistory. *Archaeological Survey Annual Report for 1960-1961*, pp. 246–337. University of California, Los Angeles.

Weber, Francis J.

1980 Nuestra Señora de Los Angeles (1966). In *The Old Plaza Church, A Documentary History,* compiled and edited by Francis J. Weber, pp. 203–211. Libra Press Limited, Hong Kong.

Women's University Club of L.A.

1929 *Los Angeles as It Appeared in 1871* [Map]. Issued by the Women's University Club of L.A., California. Library of Congress Control No. 75690623.

Appendix A.

Report Figures

This page intentionally left blank.



Figure 1. Project site plotted on city map of Los Angeles.



Figure 2. Project site with associated parcels on a 2013 aerial and street map.

| | BAY/ST | | | | | | |
|--|---------------------------|--------------------------------|--|---|--------------------------------|---|--|
| 0 ST | Lot 84 1000 S MATEO ST | Lot 82 2006 E BAY ST | Lot 80 2010 E BAY ST | Lot 78 2016 E BAY ST | Lot 76 2018 E BAY ST | | |
| MATE | Lot 83 1026 S MATEO ST | Lot 81 2007 E SACRAMENTO ST | Lot 79 2011 E SACRAMENTO ST | Lot 77 2015 E SACRAMENTO ST | Lot 75 2019 E SACRAMENTO ST | Lot 73 2023 E SACRAMENTO ST | |
| SAC RAMENTO ST | | | | | | | |
| Streets (Centerlin Lots Project Site | e) | Lots: City of Los Bureau o | 50 15 1:750 Angeles, Depari f Engineering, M http://maps.lacit AD 1983 UTM Z 4/6/2019 | 100 F MM 30 tment of Public \ apping Division y.org/ one 11N | eet sters Vorks, | 51 West Pasadena, Phone: Fax: 6 www | t Dayton Street California 91105 626.240.0587 28.240.0687 2.8wca.com |

Figure 3. Former street addresses associated with each lot in the Project Site.



Figure 4. Project site and 0.5-mile records search radius plotted on USGS 7.5-minute quadrangle.



Figure 5. Surficial geology from Bedrossian and Roffers (2012) and former courses of the Los Angeles River from Gumprecht (2001).



Figure 6. Project site plotted on McCawley's (1996:36) map of Gabrielieno placenames cited in ethongraphic sources.



Figure 7. Project site plotted on a map of Native American and historical sites in the Los Angeles Basin published by the Southwest Museum (1962) and re-printed in Johnston (1962).



Figure 8. Project site plotted on the Kirkman-Harriman map (Kirkman 1938).



Figure 9. Historical reference points associated with Gabrielino settlement in the downtown Los Angeles area. The base map is a reconstruction of the late nineteenth century topography (gray contours) that includes former stream courses, irrigation channels (zanjas), and parcels composing the downtown "Lower District" (now downtown Los Angeles). Sources for the locations are indicated in the legend and footer.



Figure 10. Project site plotted on a Gumprecht's (2001) map of the Los Angeles Zanja system.



Figure 11. Project site plotted on an appended draft of Hancock's 1857 map, which was based on Ord's original map of the City (Ord 1849). The parcel overlapped by the Project site was identified as a corn field in Ord's original map. The colored property lines were added after 1857.



Figure 12. Bird's eye view of Los Angeles facing southwest illustrated by E.S. Glover in 1877. The Project site is located in the area southwest of 7th and Alameda Streets.



Figure 13. Illustration of Los Angeles by H.B. Elliott in 1891 facing southwest showing the vicinity of the Project site and an early alignment of Zanja No. 1. The zanja alignment corresponds to the same approximate route depicted by Ord, Hancock, and Hanson's survey maps. The Project site is located in the open space between the Los Angeles River and Alameda Street, south of 7th Street.



Figure 14. View of 7th Street at Mateo Street, facing west toward Alameda Street, 1933. (Source: USC Libraries Special Collections, Dick Whittington Studio, File DW-1933-05-27-153, Image 2)



Figure 15. View of 7th Street at Mateo Street, facing east towards the Los Angeles River, 1933. (Source: USC Libraries Special Collections, Dick Whittington Studio, File DW-1933-05-27-153, Image 3)



Figure 16. Project site plotted on the original plat for the City of Los Angeles, surveyed in 1858 by Henry Hancock and published in 1859. The city limits are outlined light red. The historic core—including the Los Angeles Plaza and pueblo site—are located in the center.



Figure 17. The project site plotted on Stevenson's 1884 real estate map. The project site is in a parcel owned by Lorenzo Leck, and Zanja No. 1 is located directly within the Project site.



Figure 18. The Project site plotted on Rowan and Koeberle's 1886 map of Los Angeles. Note the alignment of Zanja No. 1 east of the Project site.



Figure 19. Project site plotted on a map from Hall's (1888) irrigation report. The map depicts Zanja No. 1 west of Project site.



Figure 20. 1891 parcel map showing detailed location of Zanja No. 1 in relation to the Project Site. The green line on the left is labeled as "Old Willow Hedge."



Figure 21. 1891 parcel map projected on a 2013 aerial photograph with current street alignments.


Figure 22. 1891 parcel map with detailed views of the labels (insets) identifying the location and materials (concrete pipe and wood flume) of Zanja No. 1 and unnamed spurs, labeled "Old Ditch."



Figure 23. Project site plotted on an 1887 city map. This map is an updated version of Rowan and Koeberle's earlier 1886 map, showing the extensive development that occurred at the time. Zanja No. 1 can still be seen north of 7th Street but appears to longer exist within the Project site.



Figure 24. Project site plotted on USGS 7.5-minute topographic quadrangles from 1894 to 2018. Note that Mateo Street was present but not included in the 1894 map.



Figure 25. Project site plotted on Los Angeles street maps published between 1895 and 1935. Note railway spurs and street car tracks.



Figure 26. Project site plotted on Sanborn Fire Insurance maps from 1900 to 1953.



Figure 27. Project site plotted on a 1921 Baist Real Estate map.



Figure 28. Project site plotted on aerial photographs from 1927, 1930, 1938, and 1956.



Figure 29. Previous and extant Subsurface structures identified in the Phase II ESA (Johannes 2015) overlaid on 1906 Sanborn Insurance Map.



Figure 30. Geophysical survey results (Feldman 2015) superimposed on the 1906 Sanborn Insurance Map.

Appendix B.

Confidential Report Figures

[CONFIDENTIAL—NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION]

Archaeological and other heritage resources can be damaged or destroyed through uncontrolled public disclosure of information regarding their location. This appendix contains sensitive information regarding the nature and location of archaeological sites, which should not be disclosed to the general public or unauthorized persons and are exempt from public disclosure pursuant to the Public Records Act (California Code of Regulations Section 15120(d)). This page intentionally left blank.



Figure 31. Archaeological resources identified in the CHRIS records search.



Figure 32. Archaeological features (gray dots) from Site P-19-004460 plotted on a 1906 Sanborn map. The site was recorded during archaeological monitoring for the La Kretz Innovation Campus Project (Bray and Vader 2014:72). The features indicated here were recorded between 10 and 43 inches below the surface.



Figure 33. Site P-19-004460 and the Project site plotted on a 1927 aerial photograph.

Appendix C.

Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File (SLF) Search Results Letter

This page intentionally left blank.

Appendix C-2: Native American Heritage Commission

NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE COMMISSION Cultural and Environmental Department 1550 Harbor Blvd., Suite 100 West Sacramento, CA 95691 Phone: (916) 373-3710 Email: <u>nahc@nahc.ca.gov</u> Website: <u>http://www.nahc.ca.gov</u> Twitter: @CA_NAHC



April 25, 2019

Chris Millington SWCA

VIA Email to: cmillington@swca.com

RE: 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Development Project, Los Angeles County

Dear Mr. Millington:

A record search of the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File (SLF) was completed for the information you have submitted for the above referenced project. The results were <u>negative</u>. However, the absence of specific site information in the SLF does not indicate the absence of cultural resources in any project area. Other sources of cultural resources should also be contacted for information regarding known and recorded sites.

Attached is a list of Native American tribes who may also have knowledge of cultural resources in the project area. This list should provide a starting place in locating areas of potential adverse impact within the proposed project area. I suggest you contact all of those indicated; if they cannot supply information, they might recommend others with specific knowledge. By contacting all those listed, your organization will be better able to respond to claims of failure to consult with the appropriate tribe. If a response has not been received within two weeks of notification, the Commission requests that you follow-up with a telephone call or email to ensure that the project information has been received.

If you receive notification of change of addresses and phone numbers from tribes, please notify the NAHC. With your assistance, we can assure that our lists contain current information. If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at my email address: steven.quinn@nahc.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

Quin

Steven Quinn Associate Governmental Program Analyst

Attachment

Native American Heritage Commission Native American Contact List Los Angeles County 4/25/2019

Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians - Kizh Nation

Andrew Salas, Chairperson P.O. Box 393 Gabrieleno Covina, CA, 91723 Phone: (626) 926 - 4131 admin@gabrielenoindians.org

Gabrieleno/Tongva San Gabriel

Band of Mission IndiansAnthony Morales, ChairpersonP.O. Box 693GabrielenoSan Gabriel, CA, 91778Phone: (626) 483 - 3564Fax: (626) 286-1262GTTribalcouncil@aol.com

Gabrielino /Tongva Nation

Sandonne Goad, Chairperson 106 1/2 Judge John Aiso St., Gabrielino #231 Los Angeles, CA, 90012 Phone: (951) 807 - 0479 sgoad@gabrielino-tongva.com

Gabrielino Tongva Indians of

California Tribal CouncilRobert Dorame, ChairpersonP.O. Box 490GabrielinoBellflower, CA, 90707Phone: (562) 761 - 6417Fax: (562) 761-6417gtongva@gmail.com

Gabrielino-Tongva Tribe

Charles Alvarez, 23454 Vanowen Street West Hills, CA, 91307 Phone: (310) 403 - 6048 roadkingcharles@aol.com

Gabrielino

This list is current only as of the date of this document. Distribution of this list does not relieve any person of statutory responsibility as defined in Section 7050.5 of the Health and Safety Code, Section 5097.94 of the Public Resource Section 5097.98 of the Public Resource Code.

This list is only applicable for contacting local Native Americans with regard to cultural resources assessment for the proposed 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Development Project, Los Angeles County.

Appendix D-1: Geotechnical Investigation



BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC.

April 16, 2019 BG 23028

Dart Partners, LLC, & Mateo Arts, LLC 20501 Ventura Boulevard, Suite 295 Woodland Hills, California 91364

Attention: Mr. Sammi Shaaya

Subject

Transmittal of Geotechnical Engineering Exploration Proposed Eight-Story Mixed-Use Building over Subterranean Parking Lots 73 and 75 - 84, Hiscock and Smiths First Addition Tract 2006 - 2018 East Bay Street, 1000 - 1026 South Mateo Street, and 2001 - 2023 East Sacramento Street (AKA 1024 Mateo Street) Los Angeles, California

Dear Mr. Shaaya:

Byer Geotechnical has completed our report dated April 16, 2019, which describes the geotechnical engineering conditions with respect to the proposed project. The reviewing agency for this document is the City of Los Angeles, Department of Building and Safety (LADBS). The reviewing agency requires two unbound copies, one with a wet signature, a CD (PDF format), an application form, and a filing fee. Copies of the report have been distributed as follows:

- (1) Addressee (Email and Mail)
- (3) Gensler, Attention: Joel Miller (Email and Mail)

It is our understanding that Gensler will file the report and CD with the LADBS. Please review the report carefully prior to submittal to the governmental agency. Questions concerning the report should be directed to the undersigned. Byer Geotechnical appreciates the opportunity to offer our consultation and advice on this project.

Very truly yours, BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC.

Raffi S. Babayan Senior Project Engineer



BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC.

GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING EXPLORATION PROPOSED EIGHT-STORY MIXED-USE BUILDING OVER SUBTERRANEAN PARKING LOTS 73 AND 75 - 84, HISCOCK AND SMITHS FIRST ADDITION TRACT 2006 - 2018 EAST BAY STREET, 1000 - 1026 SOUTH MATEO STREET, AND 2001 - 2023 EAST SACRAMENTO STREET (AKA 1024 MATEO STREET) LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA FOR DART PARTNERS, LLC, AND MATEO ARTS, LLC BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC., PROJECT NUMBER BG 23028 APRIL 16, 2019

GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING EXPLORATION PROPOSED EIGHT-STORY MIXED-USE BUILDING OVER SUBTERRANEAN PARKING LOTS 73 AND 75 - 84, HISCOCK AND SMITHS FIRST ADDITION TRACT 2006 - 2018 EAST BAY STREET, 1000 - 1026 SOUTH MATEO STREET, AND 2001 - 2023 EAST SACRAMENTO STREET (AKA 1024 MATEO STREET) LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA FOR DART PARTNERS, LLC, AND MATEO ARTS, LLC BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC., PROJECT NUMBER BG 23028 APRIL 16, 2019

INTRODUCTION

This report has been prepared per our signed Agreement and summarizes findings of Byer Geotechnical, Inc., geotechnical engineering exploration performed on the subject site. The purpose of this study is to evaluate the nature, distribution, engineering properties, and geologic hazards of the earth materials underlying the site with respect to construction of the proposed project. This report is intended to assist in the design and completion of the proposed project and to reduce geotechnical risks that may affect the project. The professional opinions and advice presented in this report are based upon commonly accepted exploration standards and are subject to the AGREEMENT with TERMS AND CONDITIONS, and the <u>GENERAL CONDITIONS AND NOTICE</u> section of this report. No warranty is expressed or implied by the issuing of this report.

BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC. 1461 East Chevy Chase Drive, Suite 200 • Glendale, California 91206 • tel 818.549.9959 • fax 818.543.3747 • www.byergeo.com

PROPOSED PROJECT

The scope of the proposed project was determined from consultation with Mr. Sammi Shaava and the preliminary plans prepared by Gensler, dated February 20, 2019. Final plans have not been prepared and await the conclusions and recommendations of this report. The project consists of construction of an eight-story mixed-use building generally over one subterranean parking level. The first two levels of the proposed building will consist of retail, residential units, building amenities, and additional parking spaces. The southeast corner of the building will extend beyond the subterranean garage that is planned at grade. The upper four to five levels will consists of residential units, office space fronting on Sacramento Street, and a restaurant also fronting on Sacramento Street. In addition, a swimming pool is planned at the roof over the north portion of the proposed building. Retaining walls up to 19 feet high are planned to support the excavation for the proposed subterranean parking level. Column loads (dead and live) are expected to be moderate to high. The access ramp to the subterranean parking level is planned in the northeast corner of the building via Bay Street. In addition, access to the ground and second floor parking spaces is provided via Sacramento Street, with an access ramp to the second floor planned in the southeast corner of the building. The existing one-story commercial/industrial building and associated metal canopy and parking areas are to be removed from the site.

RESEARCH

Research of agency records was conducted to locate geotechnical reports for the subject property. No geotechnical or geologic reports for the subject property were located.

EXPLORATION

The scope of the field exploration was determined from our initial site visit and consultation with Mr. Sammi Shaaya. The preliminary plans prepared by Gensler, dated February 20, 2019, were a guide to our work on this project. Exploration was conducted using techniques normally applied to

BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC.

1461 East Chevy Chase Drive, Suite 200 • Glendale, California 91206 • tel 818.549.9959 • fax 818.543.3747 • www.byergeo.com

this type of project in this setting. This report is limited to the area of the exploration and the proposed project as shown on the enclosed Site Plan and cross sections. The scope of this exploration did not include an assessment of general site environmental conditions for the presence of contaminants in the earth materials and groundwater. Conditions affecting portions of the property outside the area explored are beyond the scope of this report.

Exploration was conducted on March 18, 2019, with the aid of a hollow-stem-auger drill rig. It included drilling five borings to approximate depths of 21¹/₂ to 40.2 feet below existing grade. Samples of the earth materials were obtained and delivered to our soils engineering laboratory for testing and analysis. The borings tailings were visually logged by the project soils engineer. Following drilling, logging, and sampling, the borings were backfilled, mechanically tamped, and patched with asphalt.

Office tasks included laboratory testing of selected soil samples, review of published maps and photos for the area, review of our files, review of agency files, preparation of cross sections, preparation of the Site Plan, engineering analysis, and preparation of this report. Earth materials exposed in the borings are described on the enclosed Log of Borings. Appendix I contains a discussion of the laboratory testing procedures and results. The proposed project and the locations of the borings are shown on the enclosed Site Plan. Subsurface distribution of the earth materials and the proposed project are shown on Sections A, B, and C.

SITE DESCRIPTION

The subject property consists of a relatively-level and partially-graded parcel located within the north portion of the Los Angeles Basin in the Downtown section of the city of Los Angeles, California (34.0310° N Latitude, 118.2318° W Longitude). As depicted on the enclosed Aerial Vicinity Map, the property is bounded by Bay Street on the north, Sacramento Street on the south, one-story commercial/industrial buildings and associated parking lot on the east, and Mateo Street on the west. The property is located approximately 1,000 feet north of the Santa Monica (10) Freeway and 1,400

feet west of the Los Angeles River. A one-story commercial/industrial building and a metal canopy currently occupy the north and southeast portions of the site, respectively. Parking areas comprise the remaining portions of the site and are covered with asphalt and concrete pavement. The property is currently operated as a bus parking and maintenance facility for public transportation. The surrounding area has been developed with commercial and industrial establishments.

Past grading on the site has consisted of placing minor amounts of fill to create a level pad for the existing structures and parking areas. Physical relief is about two feet from the northeast to the southwest corners of the site.

The site is devoid of vegetation. Surface drainage is by sheetflow runoff down the contours of the land to the south-southwest.

GROUNDWATER

Groundwater was not encountered in the borings drilled to a maximum depth of 40.2 feet below existing grade. In *Seismic Hazard Zone Report 029*, the California Geological Survey (CGS) has estimated the historically-highest groundwater level at the site was between 150 and 200 feet below ground surface (CGS, 1998), as shown on the enclosed Historic-High Groundwater Map. Seasonal fluctuations in groundwater levels occur due to variations in climate, irrigation, development, and other factors not evident at the time of the exploration. Groundwater levels may also differ across the site. Groundwater can saturate earth materials causing subsidence or instability of slopes.

METHANE ZONES

The City of Los Angeles Ordinance No. 175790 established methane mitigation requirements and includes construction standards to control methane intrusion into buildings. The subject property is not mapped within either a Methane Zone or Methane Buffer Zone.

EARTH MATERIALS

Fill (Afu)

Fill, associated with previous site grading, underlies the subject site to a maximum observed depth of 2½ feet in Borings 1, 3, and 4. Greater depths of fill may occur locally. The fill consists of silty sand that is dark olive-brown, slightly moist to moist, and contains varying amounts of brick, concrete, and asphalt debris. The existing fill is not suitable for support of any type of structure. Based on the current configuration of the proposed building, fill is expected to be entirely removed during the excavation for the subterranean parking level.

Alluvium (Qa)

Natural alluvium underlies the subject site and was encountered in the borings. The alluvium consists of a thick layer of sand that is tan, light olive-brown, and light yellowish-brown, slightly moist to dry, and loose in the upper $7\frac{1}{2}$ to 10 feet, becoming medium dense to very dense with depth. The alluvium contains varying amounts of fine- to coarse-grained gravel.

GENERAL SEISMIC CONSIDERATIONS

Regional Faulting

The subject property is located in an active seismic region. Moderate to strong earthquakes can occur on numerous local faults. The United States Geological Survey, California Geological Survey (CGS), private consultants, and universities have been studying earthquakes in southern California for several decades. Early studies were directed toward earthquake prediction and estimation of the effects of strong ground shaking. Studies indicate that earthquake prediction is not practical and not sufficiently accurate to benefit the general public. Governmental agencies now require earthquake-

resistant structures. The purpose of the code seismic-design parameters is to prevent collapse during strong ground shaking. Cosmetic damage should be expected.

Southern California faults are classified as "active" or "potentially active." Faults from past geologic periods of mountain building that do not display evidence of recent offset are considered "potentially active." Faults that have historically produced earthquakes or show evidence of movement within the past 11,000 years are known as "active faults." No known active faults cross the subject property, and the property is not located within a currently-designated Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zone (CGS, 2000). Therefore, the potential for surface rupture onsite is considered very low.

The known regional local active and potentially-active faults that could produce the most significant ground shaking on the site include the Hollywood and Santa Monica Faults. Other faults that are located near the site are the Puente Hills and the Upper Elysian Park blind thrusts; however, these faults are considered inactive (ICBO, 1998). Forty-two faults were found within a 100-kilometer-radius search area from the site using EZ-FRISK V7.65 computer program. The results of seismic-source analysis are listed in Appendix II. The closest mapped "active" fault is the Hollywood Fault, a Type B fault that is located 9.7 kilometers (6 miles) north-northeast of the site. The Hollywood Fault is capable of producing a maximum moment magnitude of 6.7 and an average slip rate of 1.0 \pm 0.5 millimeters per year (Cao et al., 2003). The San Andreas Fault, a Type A fault, is located 56.7 kilometers (35.2 miles) northeast of the site. General locations of regional active faults with respect to the subject site are shown on the enclosed Regional Fault Map (Appendix II).

Seismic Design Coefficients

The following table lists the applicable City of Los Angeles Building Code seismic coefficients for the project:

| SEISMIC COEFFICIENTS (2017 City of Los Angeles Building Code - Based on ASCE 7-10 Standard) | | | | |
|--|-----------------------|----------------------|--|--|
| Latitude = 34.0310° N Longitude = 118.2318° W | Short Period (0.2s) | One-Second Period | | |
| Earth Materials and Site Class from Table 20.3-1, ASCE Standard 7-10 | Alluvium - D | | | |
| Mapped Spectral Accelerations from Figures 1613.3.1 (1) and 1613.3.1 (2) and USGS | $S_s = 2.291 (g)$ | $S_1 = 0.802 (g)$ | | |
| Site Coefficients from Tables 1613.3.3 (1) and 1613.3.3 (2) and USGS | F _A = 1.0 | $F_{v} = 1.5$ | | |
| Maximum Considered Spectral Response Accelerations from Equations 16-37 and 16-38, 2013 CBC | $S_{MS} = 2.291 (g)$ | $S_{M1} = 1.203 (g)$ | | |
| Design Spectral Response Accelerations from Equations 16-39 and 16-40, 2013 CBC | $S_{DS} = 1.527(g)$ | $S_{D1} = 0.802 (g)$ | | |
| Maximum Considered Earthquake Geometric Mean (MCE _G) Peak Ground Acceleration, adjusted for Site Class effects | $PGA_{M} = 0.859 (g)$ | | | |

Reference: U.S. Geological Survey, Geologic Hazards Science Center, U. S. Seismic Design Maps, http://earthquake.usgs.gov/designmaps/us/application.php

The mapped spectral response acceleration parameter for the site for a 1-second period (S_1) is greater than 0.75g. Therefore, the project is considered to be in Seismic Design Category E.

The principal seismic hazard to the proposed project is strong ground shaking from earthquakes produced by local faults. Modern buildings are designed to resist ground shaking through the use of shear panels, moment frames, and reinforcement. Additional precautions may be taken, including strapping water heaters and securing furniture to walls and floors. It is likely that the subject property will be shaken by future earthquakes produced in southern California.

Ground Motion

Probabilistic seismic hazard deaggregation analysis was performed on the subject site. Seismic parameters were determined using currently-available earthquake and fault information utilizing data from the United States Geological Survey (USGS) National Seismic Hazard Mapping Project (USGS, 2017). An averaging of three Next Generation Attenuation relations (Chiou-Youngs, 2008; Boore-Atkinson, 2008; and Campbell-Bozorgnia, 2008) were incorporated in the analysis. An average shear-wave velocity (Vs30) of 259 meters-per-second (Site Class D) was used in the analysis. Hazard deaggregation indicates a predominant modal earthquake magnitude of 6.51 (Mw) at a modal distance of 5.6 kilometers. The Peak Horizontal Ground Acceleration (PHGA) with a 10-percent probability of exceedance in 50 years is estimated to be 0.47g on the subject site. These ground motions could occur at the site during the life of the project. Results of the analysis are graphically presented in the enclosed "Seismic Hazard Deaggregation Chart" (Appendix II).

Based on a Site Class D, the MCE_G peak ground acceleration adjusted for Site Class effects, PGA_M , is 0.859g. The pseudo-static seismic coefficient (k_h) was derived according to the guidelines of the LADBS memorandum dated July 16, 2014. The horizontal pseudo-static seismic coefficient (k_h) was taken as one-third of the PGA_M (0.29g) and was used in the seismic calculations for the cantilever and restrained subterranean retaining walls.

Liquefaction

The CGS has not mapped the site within an area where historic occurrence of liquefaction or geological, geotechnical, and groundwater conditions indicate a potential for permanent ground displacement such that mitigation as defined in Public Resources Code Section 2693 (c) would be required, as shown on the enclosed Seismic Hazard Zones Map.

BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC.

1461 East Chevy Chase Drive, Suite 200 • Glendale, California 91206 • tel 818.549.9959 • fax 818.543.3747 • www.byergeo.com

The historic groundwater level is between 150 and 200 feet. Therefore, the liquefaction potential is considered to be nil.

Seiches and Tsunamis

Seiches are large waves generated in enclosed bodies of water, such as lakes and reservoirs, in response to ground shaking. Tsunamis are waves generated in large bodies of water by fault displacement or major ground movement. The site is not located near any lake or reservoir. Furthermore, the site is at an average elevation of about 242 feet above mean sea level and is located approximately 13¹/₂ miles from the shoreline. Therefore, the risk to the project from seiches or tsunamis is considered nil.

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

General Findings

The conclusions and recommendations of this exploration are based upon review of the preliminary plans, review of published maps, five borings, research of available records, laboratory testing, engineering analysis, and years of experience performing similar studies on similar sites. It is the finding of Byer Geotechnical, Inc., that development of the proposed project is feasible from a geotechnical engineering standpoint, provided the advice and recommendations contained in this report are included in the plans and are implemented during construction.

The recommended bearing material is the undisturbed firm alluvium, which is expected at the bottom of the excavation for the subterranean parking level. Conventional foundations may be used to support the proposed eight-story building over one subterranean parking level. Deepened foundations consisting of friction piles should be used to support the southeast, at-grade portion of the proposed building, as shown on Section C.

Soils to be exposed at finished grade are expected to exhibit a very low expansion potential.

Geotechnical issues affecting the project include temporary excavations up to 21 feet in height, including an estimate of the foundation embedment depth. Temporary shoring, consisting of soldier piles and continuous lagging, and possibly rakers, is recommended to facilitate the construction of the subterranean retaining walls and to support offsite improvements. Recommendations for temporary shoring are included in the "Temporary Excavations" section of this report.

FOUNDATION DESIGN

Spread Footings

Continuous and/or pad footings may be used to support the proposed eight-story building over one subterranean parking level, provided they are founded in undisturbed firm alluvium. Continuous footings should be a minimum of 12 inches in width. Pad footings should be a minimum of 24-inches square. The following chart contains the recommended design parameters.

| Bearing Material | Minimum Embedment Depth of Footing (Inches) | Vertical Bearing (psf) | Coefficient of Friction | Passive Earth Pressure (pcf) | Maximum Earth Pressure (psf) |
|---------------------|---|------------------------------|----------------------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|
| Alluvium | 24 | 2,000 | 0.36 | 220 | 5,500 |

Increases in the bearing value are allowable at a rate of 400 pounds-per-square-foot for each additional foot of footing width or depth to a maximum of 5,500 pounds-per-square-foot. For bearing calculations, the weight of the concrete in the footing may be neglected.

The bearing value shown above is for the total of dead and frequently applied live loads and may be increased by one-third for short duration loading, which includes the effects of wind or seismic

BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC.

1461 East Chevy Chase Drive, Suite 200 • Glendale, California 91206 • tel 818.549.9959 • fax 818.543.3747 • www.byergeo.com

forces. When combining passive and friction for lateral resistance, the passive component should be reduced by one-third.

Footings adjacent to retaining walls should be deepened below a 1:1 plane from the bottom of the lower retaining wall, or the footings should be designed as grade beams to bridge from the wall to the l:l plane.

All continuous footings should be reinforced with a minimum of four #4 steel bars: two placed near the top and two near the bottom of the footings. Footings should be cleaned of all loose soil, moistened, free of shrinkage cracks, and approved by the geotechnical engineer prior to placing forms, steel, or concrete.

Deepened Foundations - Friction Piles

Cast-in-place, concrete friction piles are recommended to support the southeast, at-grade portion of the proposed building, as shown on Section C. Piles should be a minimum of 24 inches in diameter and a minimum of eight feet into the alluvium below the subterranean parking level. The structural engineer may design piles that are deeper or larger in diameter depending on final loads. Piles may be assumed fixed at eight feet into the alluvium. The piles may be designed for a skin friction of 500 pounds-per-square-foot for that portion of pile in contact with the alluvium.

The friction value is for the total of dead and frequently applied live loads and may be increased by one-third for short duration loading, which includes the effects of wind or seismic forces. Resistance to lateral loading may be provided by passive earth pressure within the alluvium.

Passive earth pressure may be computed as an equivalent fluid having a density of 220 pounds-percubic-foot. The maximum allowable earth pressure is 5,500 pounds-per-square-foot. For design of isolated piles, the allowable passive and maximum earth pressures may be increased by 100 percent. Piles spaced more than 2½-pile diameters on center may be considered isolated.

Piles spaced more than three-pile diameters center-to-center may be considered isolated for axial capacity. The axial capacity of piles placed in a group closer than three-pile diameters should be reduced. The pile-group-efficiency factor shown in the following table should be applied for the total axial capacity of the individual piles:

| Pile Group Efficiency Table - Axial Capacity | | | | |
|--|-------------------|---------|---------|--|
| Pile Spacing | Group Efficiency* | | | |
| (in pile diameter "D") | 2 Piles | 3 Piles | 4 Piles | |
| 2.50 D | 88% | 80% | 76% | |
| 2.25 D | 87% | 78% | 73% | |
| 2.00 D | 85% | 75% | 70% | |
| 1.75 D | 83% | 72% | 67% | |
| 1.50 D | 81% | 69% | 63% | |
| 1.25 D | 79% | 64% | 57% | |

* Reference: Converse-Labarre Equation, Bowles, Foundation Analysis and Design, 1997.

The lateral capacity of piles placed in a group closer than eight-pile diameters should be reduced. The pile-group-efficiency factor shown in the following table should be applied for the total lateral capacity of the individual piles:

| Pile Group Efficiency Table - Lateral Capacity | | | |
|--|------------------|--|--|
| Pile Spacing | Group Efficiency | | |
| (in pile dimension "D") | Group Enterency | | |
| 7 D | 85% | | |
| 6 D | 80% | | |
| 5 D | 70% | | |
| 4 D | 60% | | |
| 3 D | 40% | | |

1461 East Chevy Chase Drive, Suite 200 • Glendale, California 91206 • tel 818.549.9959 • fax 818.543.3747 • www.byergeo.com

Foundation Settlement

Settlement of the foundation system is expected to occur on initial application of loading. A total settlement of one-half to one inch may be anticipated. Differential settlement should not exceed one-half of an inch across the footprint of the proposed building.

RETAINING WALLS

General Design

Cantilever retaining walls up to 12 feet high, with a level backslope and uniform vehicular surcharge of 300 pounds, may be designed for an active equivalent fluid pressure of 43 pounds-per-cubic-foot (See Calculation Sheet #1). Retaining walls should be provided with a subdrain or weepholes covered with a minimum of 12 inches of ³/₄-inch crushed gravel.

Subterranean retaining walls, which will be restrained, should be designed for the at-rest lateral earth pressure of 38H, where H is the height of the wall. The diagram illustrates the trapezoidal distribution of earth pressure. The design earth pressures assume that the walls are free draining. Surcharge loads from vehicular traffic and adjacent buildings should be added to the at-rest pressure for restrained retaining walls.



Seismic analysis of the proposed cantilever and restrained retaining walls over six feet high indicates that no additional loading due to seismic forces is required since the calculated seismic thrust is less than the design active and at-rest thrusts for a retained height up to 19 feet (see Calculation Sheets #2 - #4).

Subterranean retaining walls should be provided with a subdrain covered with a minimum of 12 inches of ³/₄-inch crushed gravel. An alternative subdrain system consisting of Miradrain and gravel pockets connected to a solid pipe outlet may be used behind the subterranean retaining walls. The gravel pockets should be placed at the bottom of the retaining wall, midway between the shoring bays. A sump pump will be required for basement subdrains. The gravel pockets should be required for basement subdrains. The gravel pockets should be materials behind the lagging.

Backfill

Retaining wall backfill should be compacted to a minimum of 95 percent of the maximum dry density as determined by ASTM D 1557-12, or equivalent. Where access between the retaining wall and the temporary excavation prevents the use of compaction equipment, retaining walls should be backfilled with ³/₄-inch crushed gravel to within two feet of the ground surface. Where the area between the wall and the excavation exceeds 18 inches, the gravel must be vibrated or wheel-rolled, and tested for compaction. The upper two feet of backfill above the gravel should consist of a compacted-fill blanket to the surface. Restrained walls should not be backfilled until the restraining system is in place.

Foundation Design

Retaining wall footings may be sized per the "Spread Footings" section of this report.
Retaining Wall Deflection

It should be noted that non-restrained retaining walls can deflect up to one percent of their height in response to loading. This deflection is normal and results in lateral movement and settlement of the backfill toward the wall. The zone of influence is within a 1:1 plane from the bottom of the wall. Hard surfaces or footings placed on the retaining wall backfill should be designed to avoid the effects of differential settlement from this movement. Decking that caps a retaining wall should be provided with a flexible joint to allow for the normal deflection of the retaining wall. Decking that does not cap a retaining wall should not be tied to the wall. The space between the wall and the deck will require periodic caulking to prevent moisture intrusion into the retaining wall backfill.

TEMPORARY EXCAVATIONS

Temporary excavations will be required to construct the subterranean parking level of the proposed building and to support offsite improvements during construction. The excavations are expected be up to 21 feet in height, including an estimate of the foundation embedment depth, and will expose minor fill over alluvium. The fill and alluvium are capable of maintaining vertical excavations up to five feet. Where vertical excavations exceed five feet in height, the upper portion should be trimmed to 1:1 (45 degrees).

Vertical excavations removing support from adjacent footings or adjacent to property lines will require the use of temporary shoring such as soldier piles. Design values can be found in the "Soldier Piles" design below.

The geologist should be present during grading to see temporary slopes. All excavations should be stabilized within 30 days of initial excavation. Water should not be allowed to pond on top of the excavations nor to flow toward them. No vehicular surcharge should be allowed within three feet of the top of the cut.

BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC.

1461 East Chevy Chase Drive, Suite 200 • Glendale, California 91206 • tel 818.549.9959 • fax 818.543.3747 • www.byergeo.com

Soldier Piles

Drilled, cast-in-place concrete soldier piles may be utilized as temporary shoring to support excavations to construct the subterranean parking level of the proposed building and to support offsite properties and improvements. The piles should be a minimum of 18 inches in diameter and a minimum of eight feet into the alluvium below the excavation. Piles may be assumed fixed at three feet into the alluvium below the excavation. The piles may be designed for a skin friction of 500 pounds-per-square-foot for that portion of pile in contact with the alluvium below the excavation. Piles should be spaced a maximum of eight feet on center. Shoring spacing may be increased up to 10 feet on center in local areas such as ramp approaches and corners of shoring. The piles may be designed for the lateral pressures shown in the following table:

| Location of Shoring | Shoring Height (feet) | Shoring Height (feet) Type of Surcharge (pounds) Maximum Surcharge (pounds) | | Active Equivalent Fluid Pressure (pcf) | At-Rest Pressure | Reference |
|----------------------------------|-----------------------------|--|------------------------|--|---------------------|-------------------------|
| Along N, S, &W Property Lines | 21 | Vehicle | 300 Uniform Load | 34 | 22H | Calculation Sheet #5 |
| Along E Property Line | 21 | Building | 2,000 Point Load | 39 | 25H | Calculation Sheet #6 |

If rakers are incorporated in the temporary shoring system, the soldier piles should be designed for the at-rest lateral earth pressures shown on the table above (trapezoidal distribution), where is H is the shoring height.

The equivalent fluid pressure should be multiplied by the pile spacing. The piles may be included in the permanent retaining wall. Where a combination of sloped embankment and shoring is used, the pressure will be greater and must be determined for each combination.

Lateral Design

The friction value is for the total of dead and frequently applied live loads and may be increased by one-third for short duration loading, which includes the effects of wind or seismic forces. Resistance to lateral loading may be provided by passive earth pressure within the alluvium.

Passive earth pressure may be computed as an equivalent fluid having a density of 220 pounds-percubic-foot. The maximum allowable earth pressure is 5,500 pounds-per-square-foot. For design of isolated piles, the allowable passive and maximum earth pressures may be increased by 100 percent. Piles spaced more than 2½-pile diameters on center may be considered isolated.

<u>Rakers</u>

Rakers may be used to internally brace the soldier piles. The raker bracing could be supported laterally by temporary concrete footings (deadmen) or by the permanent interior footings. For design of temporary footings or deadmen, poured with the bearing surface normal to rakers inclined at 45 degrees, a bearing value of 4,000 pounds-per-square-foot may be used, provided the shallowest point of the footing is at least one foot below the lowest adjacent grade.

Tieback Anchors

Tieback anchors may be used to resist lateral loads. Conventional, drilled friction anchors or pressure-grouted anchors may be used. The active wedge adjacent to the shoring is defined by a plane drawn at 35 degrees with the vertical through the bottom of the excavation. The friction anchors should extend at least 15 feet beyond the active wedge or to a greater length if necessary to develop the desired resistance. For design purposes, it is estimated that drilled friction anchors a minimum of 10 feet beyond the active wedge will develop an average friction value of 500 pounds-per-square-foot. For pressure-grouted anchors, the average friction may be increased to 2,000 pounds-per-square-foot. Only the frictional resistance developed beyond the active wedge will be

effective in resisting lateral loads. If anchors are spaced no closer than six feet, on center, no reduction in the capacity of the anchors is necessary. The anchors may be installed at angles of 20 to 40 degrees below the horizontal. Tieback anchors should be tested during installation in accordance with the specifications of the shoring engineer.

Lagging

Continuous lagging is anticipated between the soldier piles. The soldier piles should be designed for the full anticipated lateral pressure. However, the pressure on the lagging will be less due to arching in the soils. Lagging should be designed for the recommended earth pressure, but may be limited to a maximum value of 400 pounds-per-square-foot. The space behind lagging should be backfilled with cement slurry.

Lagging should be placed behind the front flange of the shoring steel I-beams. In some cases, the shoring is designed with the lagging behind the rear flange of the shoring steel I-beams. This is to maximize the interior area and position the walls as near the property lines as possible. During the installation of lagging behind the rear flange, the shoring is not supporting the excavation while the lagging is placed and backfilled. This can cause damage to adjacent offsite improvements, such as buildings, site walls, sidewalks, etc. If lagging is to be placed behind the rear flange of the I-beams, the lagging should be installed in slot cuts (ABC method), where lagging is installed and slurry-backfilled in the "A" slots before the "B" and "C" slots are excavated for lagging. Also, the maximum vertical height exposed should be no more than five feet.

Deflection

Some deflection of the shored embankment should be anticipated. Where shoring is planned adjacent to existing structures, it is recommended that lateral deflection not exceed one-half of an inch. For shoring not surcharged by a structure, the allowable deflection is deferred to the structural engineer. If greater deflection occurs during construction, additional bracing or anchors may be

necessary to minimize deflection. If desired to reduce the deflection of the shoring, a greater active pressure could be used in the shoring design.

FLOOR SLABS

The subterranean garage floor slabs should be cast over undisturbed firm alluvium and reinforced with a minimum of #4 bars on 16-inch centers, each way. The concrete slab of the at-grade portion of the building should be cast over certified compacted fill. The existing fill should be removed and replaced as certified compacted fill. Slabs that will be provided with a floor covering should be protected by a polyethylene plastic vapor barrier. The barrier should be sandwiched between the layers of sand, about two inches each, to prevent punctures and aid in the concrete cure. A low-slump concrete may be used to minimize possible curling of the slab. The concrete should be allowed to cure properly before placing vinyl or other moisture-sensitive floor covering.

It should be noted that cracking of concrete slabs is common. The cracking occurs because concrete shrinks as it cures. Control joints, which are commonly used in exterior decking to control such cracking, are normally not used in interior slabs. The reinforcement recommended above is intended to reduce cracking and its proper placement is critical to the performance of the slab. The minor shrinkage cracks, which often form in interior slabs, generally do not present a problem when carpeting, linoleum, or wood floor coverings are used. The slab cracks can, however, lead to surface cracks in brittle floor coverings such as ceramic tile.

EXTERIOR CONCRETE DECKS

Decking should be cast over approved compacted fill and reinforced with a minimum of #3 bars placed 18 inches on center, each way. Decking that caps a retaining wall should be provided with a flexible joint to allow for the normal one to two percent deflection of the retaining wall. Decking that does not cap a retaining wall should not be tied to the wall. The space between the wall and the

deck will require periodic caulking to prevent moisture intrusion into the retaining wall backfill. The subgrade should be moistened prior to placing concrete.

DRAINAGE

Control of site drainage is important for the performance of the proposed project. Pad and roof drainage should be collected and transferred to the street or approved location in non-erosive drainage devices. Drainage should not be allowed to pond on the pad or against any foundation or retaining wall. Planters located within retaining wall backfill should be sealed to prevent moisture intrusion into the backfill. Drainage control devices require periodic cleaning, testing, and maintenance to remain effective.

Low-Impact Development (LID) Requirements

Typically, infiltration systems are utilized in areas underlain by pervious granular earth materials that have high percolation characteristics. In addition, infiltration systems are normally planned at least 10 feet from adjacent property lines or public right-of-way and 10 feet from a 1:1 plane projected from the bottom of adjacent structural foundations. Since the proposed building is planned to occupy the entire site, onsite infiltration is not recommended.

As an alternative, a biofiltration system, a capture-and-reuse system, or equivalent, may be installed on the site in accordance with the City of Los Angeles Best Management Practices (City of Los Angeles, 2011). A planter box may be used to capture and treat storm-water runoff through different soil layers before discharging water to the street storm drain. The planter box should be an impermeable rigid structure that is equipped with an underdrain to prevent water infiltration to the underlying subsurface earth materials. Planter boxes may be situated aboveground and placed adjacent to buildings. Planter boxes should be designed as freestanding and for an inward equivalent fluid pressure of 43 pounds-per-cubic-foot. This fluid pressure includes possible vehicular

surcharge. Byer Geotechnical, Inc., should be provided with the final plans to verify the location of the planter boxes.

Irrigation

Control of irrigation water is a necessary part of site maintenance. Soggy ground and perched water may result if irrigation water is excessively applied. Irrigation systems should be adjusted to provide the minimum water needed. Adjustments should be made for changes in climate and rainfall.

WATERPROOFING

Interior and exterior retaining walls are subject to moisture intrusion, seepage, and leakage, and should be waterproofed. Waterproofing paints, compounds, or sheeting can be effective if properly installed. Equally important is the use of a subdrain that daylights to the atmosphere. The subdrain should be covered with ³/₄-inch crushed gravel to help the collection of water. Landscape areas above the wall should be sealed or properly drained to prevent moisture contact with the wall or saturation of wall backfill.

PLAN REVIEW

Formal plans ready for submittal to the building department should be reviewed by Byer Geotechnical. Any change in scope of the project may require additional work.

SITE OBSERVATIONS DURING CONSTRUCTION

The building department requires that the geotechnical engineer provide site observations during grading and construction. Foundation excavations should be observed and approved by the geotechnical engineer or geologist prior to placing steel, forms, or concrete. The engineer/geologist

should observe bottoms for fill, compaction of fill, temporary excavations, shoring, lagging, raker footings, installation and testing of tieback anchors, if any, and subdrains. All fill that is placed should be approved by the geotechnical engineer and the building department prior to use for support of structural footings and floor slabs.

Please advise Byer Geotechnical, Inc., at least 24 hours prior to any required site visit. The building department stamped plans, the permits, and the geotechnical reports should be at the job site and available to our representative. The project consultant will perform the observation and post a notice at the job site with the findings. This notice should be given to the agency inspector.

FINAL REPORTS

The geotechnical engineer will prepare interim and final compaction reports upon request. The geologist will prepare reports summarizing pile excavations.

CONSTRUCTION SITE MAINTENANCE

It is the responsibility of the contractor to maintain a safe construction site. The area should be fenced and warning signs posted. All excavations must be covered and secured. Soil generated by foundation excavations should be either removed from the site or placed as compacted fill. Soil should not be spilled over any descending slope. Workers should not be allowed to enter any unshored trench excavations over five feet deep. Water shall not be allowed to saturate open footing trenches.

GENERAL CONDITIONS AND NOTICE

This report and the exploration are subject to the following conditions. Please read this section carefully; it limits our liability.

In the event of any changes in the design or location of any structure, as outlined in this report, the conclusions and recommendations contained herein may not be considered valid unless the changes are reviewed by Byer Geotechnical, Inc., and the conclusions and recommendations are modified or reaffirmed after such review.

The subsurface conditions, excavation characteristics, and geologic structure described herein have been projected from test excavations on the site and may not reflect any variations that occur between these test excavations or that may result from changes in subsurface conditions.

Fluctuations in the level of groundwater may occur due to variations in rainfall, temperature, irrigation, and other factors not evident at the time of the measurements reported herein. Fluctuations also may occur across the site. High groundwater levels can be extremely hazardous. Saturation of earth materials can cause subsidence or slippage of the site.

If conditions encountered during construction appear to differ from those disclosed herein, notify us immediately so we may consider the need for modifications. Compliance with the design concepts, specifications, and recommendations requires the review of the engineering geologist and geotechnical engineer during the course of construction.

THE EXPLORATION WAS PERFORMED ONLY ON A PORTION OF THE SITE, AND CANNOT BE CONSIDERED AS INDICATIVE OF THE PORTIONS OF THE SITE NOT EXPLORED.

This report, issued and made for the sole use and benefit of the client, is not transferable. Any liability in connection herewith shall not exceed the Phase I fee for the exploration and report or a negotiated fee per the Agreement. No warranty is expressed, implied, or intended in connection with the exploration performed or by the furnishing of this report.

THIS REPORT WAS PREPARED ON THE BASIS OF THE PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FURNISHED. FINAL PLANS SHOULD BE REVIEWED BY THIS OFFICE AS ADDITIONAL GEOTECHNICAL WORK MAY BE REQUIRED.

BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC.

1461 East Chevy Chase Drive, Suite 200 • Glendale, California 91206 • tel 818.549.9959 • fax 818.543.3747 • www.byergeo.com

Byer Geotechnical appreciates the opportunity to provide our service on this project. Any questions concerning the data or interpretation of this report should be directed to the undersigned.



 $\label{eq:starses} S:\BOM_23028_Dart_LLC_\&_Mateo_LLC_Geotechnical_4.16.19.wpd$

Enc: List of References

Appendix I - Laboratory Testing and Log of Borings Laboratory Testing (2 Pages) Shear Test Diagram Consolidation Curves (5 Pages) Log of Borings 1 - 5 (8 Pages) Appendix II - Calculations and Figures Seismic Sources (2 Pages) Seismic Hazard Deaggregation Chart Retaining Wall Calculation Sheets #1 - #4 (4 Pages) Soldier Pile Calculation Sheets #5 and #6 (2 Pages) Aerial Vicinity Map **Regional Topographic Map** Historic Topographic Map **Regional Geologic Map Regional Fault Map** Seismic Hazard Zones Map Historic-High Groundwater Map

> In Pocket: Site Plan Sections A, B, and C (3 Sheets)

xc: (4) Addressee (Email and Mail)

REFERENCES

2017 City of Los Angeles Building Code.

- Bedrosian, T. L., et al. (2010), Geologic Compilation of Quaternary Surficial Deposits in Southern California, Special Report 217 (Revised).
- California Building Standards Commission (2016), **2015 California Building Code**, Based on the 2016 International Building Code (IBC), Title 24, Part 2, Vol. 1 and 2.
- California Department of Conservation (1999), State of California, Seismic Hazard Zones, Los Angeles Quadrangle, Official Map, Division of Mines and Geology.
- California Department of Conservation (1998, updated 2001), Seismic Hazard Zone Report 029, Seismic Hazard Zone Report for the Los Angeles 7.5-Minute Quadrangle, Los Angeles County, California.
- California Department of Conservation (2008), Special Publication 117A, Guidelines for Evaluating and Mitigating Seismic Hazards in California.
- California Geological Survey (Formerly California Division of Mines and Geology), 2000, Digital Images of Official Maps of Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zones, Southern Region, DMG CD 2000-003.

Cao, T., et al. (2003), The Revised 2002 California Probabilistic Seismic Hazard Maps, June, 2003.

- City of Los Angeles (2011), **Development Best Management Practices Handbook**, Working Draft of LID Manual, Part B, Department of Public Works, Sanitation Division, Fourth Edition, June 2011.
- City of Los Angeles, Department of Building and Safety (2014), Geology and Soils Engineering Firms Practicing in the City of Los Angeles, Correspondence Regarding 2014 Los Angeles Building Code (LABC) Requirements, dated July 16, 2014.
- Dibblee, T. W. (1989), Geologic Map of the Los Angeles Quadrangle, Los Angeles County, California, 1:24,000 scale, Dibblee Foundation, Santa Barbara, California, Map DF-22.
- ICBO (1998), Maps of Known Active Fault Near-Source Zones in California and Adjacent Portions of Nevada.
- Jennings, C. W., and Bryant, W. A. (2010), Fault Activity Map of California, California Geological Survey, 150th Anniversary, Map No. 6.
- U.S. Geological Survey, Geologic Hazards Science Center, U. S. Seismic Design Maps, http://earthquake.usgs.gov/designmaps/us/application.php.

Software

EZ-FRISK 7.65, Risk Engineering, Inc.

April 16, 2019 BG 23028

APPENDIX I

Laboratory Testing and Log of Borings

LABORATORY TESTING

Undisturbed and bulk samples of the alluvium were obtained from the borings and transported to the laboratory for testing and analysis. The samples were obtained by driving a ring-lined, barrel sampler conforming to ASTM D 3550-01 with successive drops of the sampler. Experience has shown that sampling causes some disturbance of the sample. However, the test results remain within a reasonable range. The samples were retained in brass rings of 2.50 inches outside diameter and 1.00 inch in height. The samples were stored in close fitting, waterproof containers for transportation to the laboratory.

Moisture-Density

The dry density of the samples was determined using the procedures outlined in ASTM D 2937-10. The moisture content of the samples was determined using the procedures outlined in ASTM D 2216-10. The results are shown on the enclosed Log of Borings.

Maximum Density

The maximum dry density and optimum moisture content of the future compacted fill were determined using the procedures outlined in ASTM D 1557-12, a five-layer standard. The results are shown in the following table.

| Boring | Depth (Feet) | Earth Soil Type and Material Color | | Maximum Density (pcf) | Optimum Moisture % | Expansion Index |
|--------|---|---------------------------------------|---------------------------|-----------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------|
| 3 | 0 - 10 Fill/ Silty Sand Alluvium Olive-Brown | | Silty Sand Olive-Brown | 118.0 | 13.0 | 11-Very Low |

Expansion Test

To find the expansiveness of the soil, a swell test was performed using the procedures outlined in ASTM D 4829-11. Based upon the testing, soils to be exposed at finish grade are expected to exhibit a very low expansion potential.

LABORATORY TESTING (Continued)

Shear Tests

Shear tests were performed on samples of alluvium using the procedures outlined in ASTM D 3080-11 and a strain controlled, direct-shear machine manufactured by Soil Test, Inc. The rate of deformation was 0.025 inch per minute. The samples were tested in an artificially saturated condition. Following the shear test, the moisture content of the samples was determined to verify saturation. The results are plotted on the enclosed Shear Test Diagram.

Consolidation

Consolidation tests were performed on *in situ* samples of the alluvium using the procedures outlined in ASTM D 2435-11. Results are graphed on the enclosed Consolidation Curves.



BYER GEOTECHNICAL INC. CONSOLIDATION CURVE #1 1461 E. CHEVY CHASE DRIVE, #200, GLENDALE, CA 91206 tel 818.549.9959 BG: 23028 ENGINEER: <u>RSB</u> CLIENT: <u>Dart Partners, LLC, & Mateo Arts, LLC</u> Earth Material: Alluvium

| Sample Location: | B2-15' | Specific Gravity: | 2.65 |
|----------------------|--------|---------------------------|-------|
| Dry Weight (pcf): | 111.2 | Initial Void Ratio: | 0.49 |
| Initial Moisture: | 1.7% | Compression Index (Cc): | 0.075 |
| Initial Saturation: | 9.2% | Recompression Index (Cr): | 0.024 |
| Water Added at (psf) | 1237 | | |
| | | | |



| BYER | CONSOLIDATION CURVE #2 |
|--|--|
| GEOTECHNICAL INC. 1461 E. CHEVY CHASE DRIVE, #200, GLENDALE, CA 91206 tel 818.549.9959 fax 818.543.3747 | BG: <u>23028</u> ENGINEER: <u>RSB</u> CLIENT: <u>Dart Partners, LLC, & Mateo Arts, LLC</u> |
| Earth Material: Alluvium Sample Location: B1-20' Dry Weight (pcf): 104.2 Initial Moisture: 4.1% Initial Saturation: 18.5% Water Added at (psf) 1237 | Specific Gravity:2.65Initial Void Ratio:0.59Compression Index (Cc):0.076Recompression Index (Cr):0.023 |



BYER **CONSOLIDATION CURVE #3** GEOTECHNICAL INC. BG: 23028 ENGINEER: RSB CLIENT: Dart Partners, LLC, & Mateo Arts, LLC 1461 E. CHEVY CHASE DRIVE, #200, GLENDALE, CA 91206 tel 818.549.9959 fax 818.543.3747

| Earth Material: | Alluvium | | |
|----------------------|----------|---------------------------|-------|
| Sample Location: | B3-25' | Specific Gravity: | 2.65 |
| Dry Weight (pcf): | 115.5 | Initial Void Ratio: | 0.43 |
| Initial Moisture: | 2.9% | Compression Index (Cc): | 0.058 |
| Initial Saturation: | 17.8% | Recompression Index (Cr): | 0.018 |
| Water Added at (psf) | 1237 | | |



BYER GEOTECHNICAL INC. CONSOLIDATION CURVE #4 1461 E. CHEVY CHASE DRIVE, #200, GLENDALE, CA 91206 tel 818.549.9959 BG: 23028 fax 818.543.3747 ENGINEER: <u>RSB</u>

| Earth Material: | Alluvium | | |
|----------------------|----------|---------------------------|-------|
| Sample Location: | B5-30' | Specific Gravity: | 2.65 |
| Dry Weight (pcf): | 108.8 | Initial Void Ratio: | 0.52 |
| Initial Moisture: | 4.4% | Compression Index (Cc): | 0.054 |
| Initial Saturation: | 22.4% | Recompression Index (Cr): | 0.019 |
| Water Added at (psf) | 1237 | | |



| BYER | CONSOLIDATION CURVE #5 | | | | | | |
|---|--|--------------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| GEOTECHNICAL INC. 1461 E. CHEVY CHASE DRIVE, #200, GLENDALE, CA 91206 tel 818.549.9959 fax 818.543.3747 | BG: <u>23028</u> ENGINEE CLIENT: <u>Dart Partners, LLC, & Mate</u> | ER: <u>RSB</u> so Arts, LLC | | | | | |
| Earth Material: Alluvium Sample Location: B1-35' Dry Weight (pcf): 131.3 Initial Moisture: 2.1% Initial Saturation: 21.5% | Specific Gravity: Initial Void Ratio: Compression Index (Cc): Recompression Index (Cr): | 2.65 0.26 0.120 0.021 | | | | | |

Water Added at (psf)

1237



| | BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC. LOG OF BORING 1461 E. CHEVY CHASE DR., SUITE 200 GLENDALE, CA 91206 | | | | | | | | | | |
|-------------------|--|-----------------------------|--|-------------------|--------------|-------------------------|------------------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------|-------------------|--------------------|
| | | H | GLENDALE, CA 9/206 818.549.9959 TEL | | | | | BGN | No. <u>2</u> | 302 | 3 |
| | | | 818.543.3747 FAX | | | | | PAG | E <u>1</u> | OF 2 | |
| C P | CLIENTDart Partners, LLC, & Mateo Arts, LLC REPORT DATE4/16/19 DRILL DATE3/18/19 PROJECT LOCATION 1024 South Mateo Street, Los Angeles, CA LOGGED BY RSB | | | | | | | | | | |
| C | CONTRACTOR 2R Drilling DRILLING METHOD Hollow-Stem Auger HOLE SIZE 8-inch diameter | | | | | | | | | | |
| C | RIV | 'E WE | EIGHT 140-Pound Automatic Hammer HAMMER DROP | <u>30 Inc</u> | ches | | | ELE | V. ТО | P OF | HOLE <u>243 ft</u> |
| | (ff) | o DEPTH (ft) | EARTH MATERIAL DESCRIPTION | GRAPHIC SYMBOL | USCS UNIT | SAMPLE TYPE & NUMBER | BLOW COUNT (Per 6 Inches) | MOISTURE CONTENT (%) | DRY UNIT WT. (pcf) | SATURATION (%) | TYPE OF TEST |
| | | | Surface: 5" asphalt over 3" base. | | CM | | | | | | |
| Ì | | | (SM) FILL (AIU): 0.65' - 2.5': Silty SAND, olive-brown, slightly moist to moist, fine sand, some brick and concrete debris | | SIVI | | | | | | |
| LUGS.GPJ | 40 | | (SM) ALLUVIUM (Qa): 2.5': Silty SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist, loose, fine sand. | | SМ | S 1 | 2 2 2 | 12.1 | | | |
| | - | _ 5 _ | (SP) 5': SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist, medium dense, fine sand, trace medium sand. | | SP | R1 | 4 7 9 | 5 | 97.1 | 18.8 | |
| U24 S MAIEU SI L | 35 _ | | (SP) 7.5': SAND, tan, slightly moist to dry, medium dense, fine to medium sand, trace coarse sand, trace fine gravel up to 1/2" angular. | | SP | S 2 | 6 7 7 | 1.5 | | | |
| | - | <u> 10</u> - - | (SP) 10': SAND, tan to light olive-brown, slightly moist to dry, medium dense, fine to medium sand, trace coarse sand, some fine to coarse gravel at tip of sampler. | | SP | R2 | 8 14 15 | 1.5 | 104.7 | 6.8 | Direct Shear |
| 1 - 23999/23 | :30 | | | | | | | | | | |
| - 61:21 61/91/4 - | - | <u></u> | (SP) 15': SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist to dry, dense, fine to medium sand, some coarse sand, some fine to coarse gravel up to 1.5" angular to subrounded. | | SP | S3 | 7 14 16 | 3.1 | | | |
| | 25 | | | | | 1 | | | | | |
| | - | | | | | | | | | | |
| | - | | (SP) 20': SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist, medium dense, fine to medium sand, some coarse sand, trace fine gravel up to 3/4" angular. | | SP | R3 | 10 13 19 | 4.1 | 104.2 | 18.4 | Consolidation |
| | 20 | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Sta | 25 ndard | Penetration Bing Sample | | | | | | | | |

| | BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC. LOG OF BORING 1461 E. CHEVY CHASE DR., SUITE 200 GLENDALE, CA 91206 | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|---|-----------|--|---|--------------|-------------------------|------------------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------|-------------------|--------------------|
| | | Í. | 818.549.9959 TEL | | | | | BG I | No. 2 | 302 | B |
| | | | OI0.545.5747 FAA | | | 1/16 | /10 | PAG | E <u>2</u> | OF 2 | 2/18/19 |
| F | PROJECT LOCATION _1024 South Mateo Street, Los Angeles, CA LOGGED BY _RSB | | | | | | | | | | |
| 0 | CONTRACTOR 2R Drilling DRILLING METHOD Hollow-Stem Auger HOLE SIZE 8-inch diameter | | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | RIV | | EIGHT _140-Pound Automatic Hammer HAMMER DROP _ | <u>30 Inc</u> | ches | | | ELE | <u>V. то</u> | P OF | HOLE <u>243 ft</u> |
| | | (#) 25 | EARTH MATERIAL DESCRIPTION | GRAPHIC SYMBOL | USCS UNIT | SAMPLE TYPE & NUMBER | BLOW COUNT (Per 6 Inches) | MOISTURE CONTENT (%) | DRY UNIT WT. (pcf) | SATURATION (%) | TYPE OF TEST |
| | _ | | (SP) 25': Gravelly SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist to dry, dense to very dense, fine to medium sand, some coarse sand, fine to coarse gravel up to 1.5" angular. | | SP | S4 | 12 23 20 | 2.2 | | | |
| | 215 | | | 。 ()) () () () () () () () () () () () (| | | | | | | |
| | - | 30 | (SP) 30': Gravelly SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist to dry, very dense, fine to medium sand, some coarse sand, fine to coarse gravel up to 2" angular. | | SP | R4 | 30 50/5" | 1.5 | 127.1 | 13.2 | |
| | 210 | | | | | | | | | | |
| | - | | (SP) 35': Gravelly SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist to dry, very dense, fine to medium sand, some coarse sand, fine to coarse gravel up to 2.5" angular to subrounded. | >₀ ○ ○ ○ | SP | R 5 | 50/5" | 2.1 | 131.3 | 21.5 | Consolidation |
| | 205 | | | 0 0 0 0 | 7 | | | | | | |
| | | 40 | (SP) 40': From soil cuttings: Gravelly SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist to dry, very dense, fine to medium sand, some coarse sand, fine to coarse gravel up to 2.5" angular. | <u> </u> | SP_/ | R 6 | 50/2" | <u> </u> | | | No Recovery |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Sta | indard | Penetration Ring Sample | | | | | | | | |

| | BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC. LOG OF BORING 1461 E. CHEVY CHASE DR., SUITE 200 GLENDALE, CA 91206 B2 | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|---|-----------------|---|-------------------|--------------|-------------------------|------------------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|-----------------|
| | | Í. | 818.549.9959 TEL 818 543 3747 FAX | | | | | BGN | No. 2 | 3028 | 3 |
| c | LIE | NT _[| Dart Partners, LLC, & Mateo Arts, LLC REF | PORT | DATE | 4/16/ | /19 | DRIL | L DA | TE _3 | 8/18/19 |
| P | RO | JECT | LOCATION 1024 South Mateo Street, Los Angeles, CA | | | | | LOG | GED | BY <u>F</u> | <u>RSB</u> |
| | | /E WE | EIGHT 140-Pound Automatic Hammer HAMMER DROP | <u>30 Inc</u> | ches | en A | uger | ELE | e 5121 V. TO | e <u>o-ii</u> P OF | HOLE _242 ft |
| | (ft) | o DEPTH (ft) | EARTH MATERIAL DESCRIPTION | GRAPHIC SYMBOL | USCS UNIT | SAMPLE TYPE & NUMBER | BLOW COUNT (Per 6 Inches) | MOISTURE CONTENT (%) | DRY UNIT WT. (pcf) | SATURATION (%) | TYPE OF TEST |
| | _ | | Surface: 5" asphalt over 3" base. (SM) FILL (Afu): | | SM | : 0 | | | | | |
| | 240 | | 0.65' - 2.5': Silty SAND, olive-brown, slightly moist, fine sand. (SM) ALLUVIUM (Qa): (SM) 2.5': Silty SAND, olive-brown, moist, loose, fine sand, trace medium sand. | | SM SM | R1 | 4 4 6 | 7.6 | 105.4 | 35.2 | |
| | - | 5 | (SM) 5': Silty SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist, loose, fine sand. | | SM | S1 | 1 2 3 | 17.7 | | | |
| | | | (SP) 7.5': SAND, light olive-brown to light yellowish-brown, slightly moist, medium dense, fine to medium sand, some coarse sand, trace fine gravel up to 1/2" angular. | | SP | R2 | 5 11 16 | 4.2 | 1 10.8 | 22.6 | Direct Shear |
| | | | (SP) 10': SAND, tan to light olive-brown, slightly moist to dry, medium dense, fine to medium sand, trace coarse sand. | | SP | S2 | 3 6 9 | 4.7 | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | 25 | | (SP) 15': SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist to dry, medium dense, fine to medium sand, some coarse sand, some fine to coarse gravel up to 2" angular to subrounded. | | SP | R3 | 6 10 9 | 1.7 | 111.2 | 9.2 | Consolidation |
| | | | (CD) 200 CAND light ding brown clighthe maint to dry | | ¢D. | | _ | | | | |
| | _ | | medium dense, fine to medium sand, some coarse sand, some fine gravel up to 1" angular. | | 5" | S3 | / 8 8 | 6.5 | | | |
| | Rin | a Sam | End at 21.5 Feet; No Groundwater; Fill to 2 Feet. | | | | | | | | |

| | BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC. LOG OF BORING 1461 E CHEVY CHASE DR., SUITE 200 GLENDALE, CA 91206 | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------|--|--|---------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|-------------------------|------------------------------|-------------------------|----------------------|--|-------------------------|--|
| | F | GLENDALE, CA 91206 818.549.9959 TEL | | | | | BG N | lo. <u>2</u> | 3028 | <u> </u> | |
| | -NIT I | 818.543.3747 FAX | | | 4/16 | 10 | | E <u>1 (</u> | OF 2 | | |
| PRC | PROJECT LOCATION _1024 South Mateo Street, Los Angeles, CA LOGGED BY RSB | | | | | | | | | | |
| CON | NTRA | CTOR 2R Drilling DRILLING METHO | D Ho | ollow-S | item A | uger | HOLI | E SIZI | E <u>8-i</u> r | nch diameter | |
| DRI | VEW | EIGHT 140-Pound Automatic Hammer HAMMER DROP | <u>30 Inc</u> | hes_ | | | ELE | | P OF | HOLE <u>243 ft</u> | |
| ELEVATION (ft) | DEPTH (ft) | EARTH MATERIAL DESCRIPTION | GRAPHIC SYMBOL | USCS | SAMPLE TYPE & NUMBER | BLOW COUNT (Per 6 Inches) | MOISTURE CONTENT (%) | DRY UNIT WT (pcf) | SATURATION (%) | TYPE OF TEST | |
| | | Surface: 5" asphalt, no base. | ×××× | SM | | | - | | | | |
| ļ | † - | (SM) FILL (Aru): 0.45' - 2.5': Silty SAND, dark olive-brown, slightly moist to moist, fine sand, trace asphalt debris. | | | | | | | | | |
| 240 | | (SM) ALLUVIUM (Qa): 2.5': Silty SAND, olive-brown, moist, loose, fine sand. | | SM | S1 | 1 2 1 | 11.1 | | | | |
| | 5 | (SP) 5': SAND, tan to light olive-brown, slightly moist, medium dense, fine sand, some medium sand. | | SP | Bag1 R1 | 4 9 12 | 4.7 | 100.5 | 19.2 | Max, El Direct Shear | |
| 235 | + - + - + - | (SP) 7.5': SAND, tan to light olive-brown, slightly moist to dry, loose, fine sand, some medium to coarse sand. | | SP | S2 | 2 3 4 | 3.7 | | | | |
| | 10 | (SM) 10': Silty SAND, dark olive-brown, very moist, loose, fine sand. | | SM | R2 | 3 4 4 | 30.9 | 89.9 | 97.7 | | |
| 230 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 410/13 12.13 - 1.120 | | (SP) 15': Gravelly SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist, medium dense, fine to medium sand, some coarse sand, fine to coarse gravel up to 1.5" angular. | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | SP | S 3 | 6 8 7 | 3.7 | | | | |
| 225 225 | | | | - - - - - - - - | | | | | | | |
| | | (SP) 20': SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist, medium dense, fine to medium sand, some coarse sand. | • - | SP | R3 | 11 16 18 | 4 | 113.9 | 23.5 | | |
| 220 220 | + - -+ - | | | | | | | | | | |
| Б В | 25 ulk Sar | nple Standard Penetration Ring Sample | | | | | | | <u>† </u> | | |

| CLIE PRO CON DRIN | BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC. LOG OF BORING B3 H61 E. CHEVY CHASE DR., SUITE 200 B3 GLENDALE, CA 91206 B6 No. 23028 818.549.9959 TEL B6 No. 23028 818.543.3747 FAX PAGE 2 OF 2 CLIENT Dart Partners, LLC, & Mateo Arts, LLC REPORT DATE 4/16/19 PROJECT LOCATION 1024 South Mateo Street, Los Angeles, CA DRILL DATE 3/18/19 CONTRACTOR 2R Drilling DRILLING METHOD Hollow-Stem Auger DRIVE WEIGHT 140-Pound Automatic Hammer HAMMER DROP 30 Inches ELEV. TOP OF HOLE 243 ft | | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------------|--|---|--|----|----|-------------------|-----|-----------------------|-------------------|-----------------|--|--|
| ELEVATION (ft) | HL der 6 Inches) 22 | | | | | | | DRY UNIT WT. (pcf) | SATURATION (%) | TYPE OF TEST | | |
| 215 | | (SP) 25': Gravelly SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist to dry, dense, fine to medium sand, some coarse sand, fine to coarse gravel up to 2" angular to subrounded. | | SP | R4 | 10 24 31 | 2.9 | 115.4 | 17.9 | Consolidation | | |
| | 30 | (SP) 30': Gravelly SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist to dry, very dense, fine to medium sand, some coarse sand, fine to coarse gravel up to 1.5" angular to subrounded. | | SP | R5 | 28 35 50/4" | 6.6 | 114.6 | 39.3 | | | |
| | | End at 31.5 Feet; No Groundwater; Fill to 2.5 Feet. | | | | | | | | | | |

| | | BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC. LOG OF BORING 1461 E. CHEVY CHASE DR., SUITE 200 CLENIDALE CA 9/206 | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|---|---|---|-------------------|--------------|-------------------------|------------------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------|--------------------|-----------------|--|
| | BG No. 23028 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | CLIENT Dart Partners LLC REPORT DATE 1/16/19 DRILL DATE 3/18/19 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| F | CLIENI Dart Partners, LLC, & Mateo Arts, LLC REPORT DATE 4/16/19 DRILL DATE 3/18/19 PROJECT LOCATION 1024 South Mateo Street, Los Angeles, CA LOGGED BY RSB | | | | | | | | | | | |
| CONTRACTOR <u>2R Drilling</u> DRILLING METHOD Hollow-Stem Auger HOLE SIZE <u>8-inch diameter</u> | | | | | | | | | | | nch diameter | |
| DRIVE WEIGHT _140-Pound Automatic Hammer HAMMER DROP _30 Inches ELEV. TOP OF HOLE _243 | | | | | | | | | | HOLE <u>243 ft</u> | | |
| | ELEVATION (ft) | o DEPTH (ft) | EARTH MATERIAL DESCRIPTION | GRAPHIC SYMBOL | USCS UNIT | SAMPLE TYPE & NUMBER | BLOW COUNT (Per 6 Inches) | MOISTURE CONTENT (%) | DRY UNIT WT. (pcf) | SATURATION (%) | TYPE OF TEST | |
| | 0 | | Surface: 8" asphalt over 3" base. | | SM | | | | | 2 | | |
| _ | - | | (SM) FILL (Atu): 0.65' - 2.5': Silty SAND, dark olive-brown, slightly moist, fine sand, some medium sand, some fine gravel, trace concrete debris. | | SIVI | | | | | | | |
| | - 240 | | (SM) ALLUVIUM (Qa): 2.5': Silty SAND, olive-brown, moist, loose, fine sand, some medium sand. | | 511 | R1 | 2 3 5 | 11.8 | 107.2 | 57.9 | | |
| | - | 5 | (SP) 5': SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist, loose, fine sand, trace medium sand, some silt. | | SP | S1 | 2 2 2 | 14.1 | | | | |
| | 235 | | (SP) 7.5': SAND, tan, slightly moist to dry, medium dense, fine to medium sand, some coarse sand, trace fine gravel. | | SP | R2 | 4 7 10 | 2.4 | 105.1 | 11.1 | | |
| | - | <u>10</u> | (SP) 10 ¹ : SAND, tan, slightly moist to dry, medium dense, fine to medium sand, trace coarse sand, trace fine gravel. | | SP | S 2 | 3 8 11 | 2.2 | | | | |
| | 230 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | - | <u>15</u> | (SP) 15': SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist to dry, medium dense, fine to medium sand, some coarse sand, trace fine gravel up to 3/4" angular. | | SP | R3 | 10 14 23 | 2.3 | 127 | 20.5 | | |
| | 225 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | - | 20 | (SP) 20': SAND, tan to light olive-brown, slightly moist to dry, medium dense, fine sand, some medium to coarse sand, trace fine gravel. | | SP | S 3 | 8 10 8 | 1.7 | | | | |
| | sand, trace fine gravel. 8 End at 21.5 Feet; No Groundwater; Fill to 2.5 Feet. | | | | | | | | | | | |

| | BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC. LOG OF BORING 1461 E. CHEVY CHASE DR., SUITE 200 GLENDALE CA 9/206 | | | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------|---|---------------|---|-----------------------|--------------|-------------------------|------------------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|-----------------|
| | BI8.549.9959 TEL 818.543.3747 FAX | | | | | | | | | | |
| | CLIENT Dart Partners, LLC, & Mateo Arts, LLC REPORT DATE 4/16/19 DRILL DATE 3/18/19 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 | PRO | JECT | LOCATION 1024 South Mateo Street, Los Angeles, CA | | | | | LOG | GED | BY _[| RSB |
| | CON DRIV | TRAC /E WE | EIGHT 140-Pound Automatic Hammer HAMMER DROP | <u>и на</u> 30 Inc | ches | Stem A | uger | ELE | E SIZI V. TOI | e <u>8-11</u> P OF | HOLE 243 ft |
| | ELEVATION (ft) | DEPTH (ft) | EARTH MATERIAL DESCRIPTION | GRAPHIC SYMBOL | USCS UNIT | SAMPLE TYPE & NUMBER | BLOW COUNT (Per 6 Inches) | MOISTURE CONTENT (%) | DRY UNIT WT. (pcf) | SATURATION (%) | TYPE OF TEST |
| | | | Surface: 5" asphalt, no base. (SM) FILL (Afu): 0.45' - 1': Silty SAND, dark olive-brown, moist, fine sand. (SM) ALLUVIUM (Qa): | | SM SM | | | | | | |
| I LOGS.GPJ | 240 | | (SM) 2.5': Silty SAND, olive-brown, moist, loose, fine sand. | | SM | S1 | 1 2 3 | 17.2 | | | |
| | - | _ 5 _ | (SM) 5': Silty SAND, olive-brown, moist, loose, fine sand. | | SM | R1 | 2 3 7 | 16.3 | 104.8 | 74.8 | |
| 4 S MAIEU SI L | 235 | | (SP) 7.5': SAND, tan to light olive-brown, slightly moist, loose, fine sand, trace medium sand. | | SP | S2 | 2 3 4 | 6.7 | | | |
| AALEU ARIS 102 | _ | 10 | (SP) 10': SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist to dry, medium dense, fine to medium sand, some coarse sand, trace fine gravel. | | SP | R2 | 9 16 23 | 3.6 | 112.2 | 20.3 | Direct Shear |
| 0 - 23999/23028 | _ 230 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 19 12:20 - P://2300 | - | 15 | (SP) 15': SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist to dry, dense, fine to medium sand, some coarse sand, some fine gravel up to 3/4" angular | | SP | \$3 | 7 11 21 | 2.9 | | | |
| YER.GU1 - 4/16/ | 225 | | | | | | | | | | |
| SID US B | _ | 20 | | | | | | | | | |
| | - | | (SP) 20': SAND, light olive-brown, slightly moist to dry, medium dense to dense, fine to medium sand, some coarse sand, trace fine gravel. | | SP | R3 | 12 17 27 | 7.8 | 101 | 32.6 | |
| ING LOG BYER | 220 | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Sta Tes | 25 Indard | Penetration Ring Sample | | | | | | | | |

| | BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC. LOG OF BORING 1461 E CHEVY CHASE DR., SUITE 200 B5 | | | | | | | | | |
|-------------------|---|---|-------------------|--------------|-------------------------|------------------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------|-------------------|-----------------|
| | BG No. 23028 | | | | | | | | | |
| | | 818.543.3747 FAX | | | | | PAG | E <u>2</u> | QF 2 | |
| CLIE | NT _[| Dart Partners, LLC, & Mateo Arts, LLC RE | PORT | DATE | 4/16/ | /19 | DRIL | L DA | TE _3 | 8/18/19 |
| PRO | JECT | LOCATION 1024 South Mateo Street, Los Angeles, CA | | | | | LOG | GED | BY _F | RSB |
| CON | TRAC | CTOR 2R Drilling DRILLING METHO | DD Ho | llow-S | tem A | uger | HOL | E SIZ | E <u>8-ir</u> | nch diameter |
| DRI\ | /E WE | EIGHT 140-Pound Automatic Hammer HAMMER DROP | <u>30 Inc</u> | hes | | | ELE | V. ТО | P OF | HOLE 243 ft |
| ELEVATION (ft) | HLd30 25 | EARTH MATERIAL DESCRIPTION | GRAPHIC SYMBOL | USCS UNIT | SAMPLE TYPE & NUMBER | BLOW COUNT (Per 6 Inches) | MOISTURE CONTENT (%) | DRY UNIT WT. (pcf) | SATURATION (%) | TYPE OF TEST |
| 215 | 30 | (SP) 25': SAND, tan to light olive-brown, slightly moist to dry, dense, fine sand, some medium to coarse sand, some fine to coarse gravel up to 2" angular. | | SP | R4 | 10 19 32 | 3.5 | 108 | 17.5 | |
| | | (SP) 30': SAND, tan to light olive-brown, slightly moist to dry, dense, fine sand, some medium to coarse sand, some fine to coarse gravel up to 1.5" angular. | | SP | R5 | 17 23 37 | 4.4 | 108.8 | 22.6 | Consolidation |
| | End at 31.5 Feet; No Groundwater; Fill to 1 Foot. | | | | | | | | | |

April 16, 2019 BG 23028

APPENDIX II

Calculations and Figures

SEISMIC SOURCES EZ-FRISK V7.65



DETERMINISTIC CALCULATION OF PEAK GROUND ACCELERATION BASED ON DIGITIZED FAULT DATA

BG: <u>23028</u>

CLIENT: Dart Partners, LLC, & Mateo Arts, LLC

ENGINEER: <u>RSB</u>

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: <u>Proposed Multi-Story Building over One Subterranean Parking</u> Level

SITE COORDINATES: LATITUDE: 34.0310 LONGITUDE: -118.2318

SEARCH RADIUS: 100 km

ATTENUATION RELATIONS: CHIOU-YOUNGS (2007) NGA USGS 2008 MRC BOORE-ATKINSON (2008) NGA USGS 2008 MRC CAMPBELL-BOZORGNIA (2008) NGA USGS 2008 MRC

| | APPRO | IMATE | MAXIMUM | PEAK |
|---------------------------------|-------|-------|-----------|--------------|
| FAULT NAME | DISTA | NCE | EATHQUAKE | GROUND |
| | | | MAGNITUDE | ACCELERATION |
| | (km) | (mi) | (Mw) | (g) |
| Puente Hills (LA) | 4.2 | 2.6 | 7.0 | 0.758 |
| Elysian Park (Upper) | 5.0 | 3.1 | 6.7 | 0.540 |
| Puente Hills | 5.2 | 3.2 | 7.1 | 0.681 |
| Hollywood | 9.7 | 6.0 | 6.7 | 0.347 |
| Santa Monica | 10.0 | 6.2 | 7.4 | 0.434 |
| Raymond | 10.1 | 6.3 | 6.8 | 0.358 |
| Puente Hills (Santa Fe Springs) | 11.5 | 7.2 | 6.7 | 0.450 |
| Newport-Inglewood | 12.1 | 7.5 | 7.5 | 0.372 |
| Verdugo | 13.3 | 8.3 | 6.9 | 0.318 |
| Elsinore | 17.4 | 10.8 | 7.9 | 0.341 |
| Sierra Madre | 20.4 | 12.7 | 7.2 | 0.269 |
| Sierra Madre Connected | 20.4 | 12.7 | 7.3 | 0.277 |
| Puente Hills (Coyote Hills) | 22.1 | 13.7 | 6.9 | 0.266 |
| Palos Verdes | 26.7 | 16.6 | 7.3 | 0.228 |
| Palos Verdes Connected | 26.7 | 16.6 | 7.7 | 0.261 |
| Clamshell-Sawpit | 26.9 | 16.7 | 6.7 | 0.188 |

SEISMIC SOURCE SUMMARY DETERMINISTIC SITE PARAMETERS

| | APPROXIMATE | | MAXIMUM | PEAK |
|--|-------------|------|-----------|--------------|
| FAULT NAME | DIST | ANCE | EATHQUAKE | GROUND |
| | | | MAGNITUDE | ACCELERATION |
| | (km) | (mi) | (Mw) | (g) |
| Malibu Coast | 27.0 | 16.8 | 7.0 | 0.205 |
| Sierra Madre (San Fernando) | 28.1 | 17.5 | 6.7 | 0.182 |
| Anacapa-Dume | 29.6 | 18.4 | 7.2 | 0.231 |
| Northridge | 31.7 | 19.7 | 6.9 | 0.230 |
| San Gabriel | 32.2 | 20.0 | 7.3 | 0.202 |
| San Jose | 32.2 | 20.0 | 6.7 | 0.164 |
| Chino | 39.1 | 24.3 | 6.8 | 0.142 |
| Santa Susana, alt 1 | 40.6 | 25.2 | 6.9 | 0.149 |
| San Joaquin Hills | 46.5 | 28.9 | 7.1 | 0.162 |
| Cucamonga | 47.1 | 29.3 | 6.7 | 0.121 |
| Holser, alt 1 | 49.6 | 30.8 | 6.8 | 0.126 |
| Simi-Santa Rosa | 52.4 | 32.6 | 6.9 | 0.120 |
| Imp Extensional Gridded, Char, Normal | 40.1 | 24.9 | 7.0 | 0.138 |
| Imp Extensional Gridded, Char, Strike Slip | 40.1 | 24.9 | 7.0 | 0.165 |
| Imp Extensional Gridded, GR, Normal | 39.9 | 24.8 | 7.0 | 0.139 |
| Imp Extensional Gridded, GR, Strike Slip | 39.9 | 24.8 | 7.0 | 0.166 |
| Southern San Andreas | 56.7 | 35.2 | 8.2 | 0.199 |
| Oak Ridge Connected | 57.0 | 35.4 | 7.4 | 0.154 |
| Oak Ridge (Onshore) | 59.1 | 36.7 | 7.2 | 0.142 |
| San Cayetano | 66.4 | 41.3 | 7.2 | 0.176 |
| San Jacinto | 68.0 | 42.2 | 7.9 | 0.152 |
| Cleghorn | 77.2 | 48.0 | 6.8 | 0.077 |
| Santa Ynez (East) | 83.9 | 52.1 | 7.2 | 0.089 |
| Santa Ynez Connected | 84.2 | 52.4 | 7.4 | 0.099 |
| Coronado Bank | 88.5 | 55.0 | 7.4 | 0.094 |
| Ventura-Pitas Point | 90.6 | 56.3 | 7.0 | 0.081 |

42 Faults found within a 100 km Search Radius.Closest Fault to the Site: Puente Hills (LA)Distance = 4.21 km (2.62mi)Largest Peak Ground Acceleration: 0.758 gThe San Andreas Fault is Located Aproximately 56.7 km (35.2 mi) from the Site.





BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC. 1461 E CHEVY CHASE DR., SLITE 200 CLENDALE, CA 91206 818.549.99959 TEL 818.543.3747 FAX

| R | E | TA | 11/ | ١G | WA | ۱LL |
|---|---|----|-----|----|----|-----|
| | | | | | | |

BG: 23028 ENGIN

ENGINEER: RSB

CLIENT: Dart Partners, LLC, & Mateo Arts, LLC

CALCULATION SHEET # 1

CALCULATE THE DESIGN ACTIVE EQUIVALENT FLUID PRESSURE (EFP) FOR THE PROPOSED RETAINING WALL. ASSUME BACKFILL IS SATURATED AND THERE IS NO HYDROSTATIC PRESSURE THE RETAINED HEIGHT AND BACKSLOPE AND SURCHARGE CONDITIONS ARE LISTED BELOW. USE THE MONONOBE-OKABE METHOD FOR SEISMIC FORCES.

CALCULATION PARAMETERS

| EARTH MATERIAL: | Alluvium | WALL HEIGHT | | 12 feet |
|--------------------|---------------------|------------------------------|-----|------------|
| SHEAR DIAGRAM: | 1 | BACKSLOPE ANGLE: | | 0 degrees |
| COHESION: | 200 psf | SURCHARGE: | | 300 pounds |
| PHI ANGLE: | 31 degrees | SURCHARGE TYPE: | | u Uniform |
| DENSITY | 125 pcf | INITIAL FAILURE ANG | LE: | 20 degrees |
| SAFETY FACTOR: | 1.5 | FINAL FAILURE ANGLI | E: | 70 degrees |
| WALL FRICTION | 0 degrees | INITIAL TENSION CRA | CK: | 10 feet |
| CD (C/FS): | 133.3 psf | FINAL TENSION CRAC | K: | 20 feet |
| PHID = ATAN(TAN(PH | HI)/FS) = | 21.8 degrees | | |
| HORIZONTAL PSEUE | O STATIC SEISMIC CO | DEFFICIENT (k _h) | 0 a | |
| VERTICAL PSEUDO | STATIC SEISMIC COEF | FICIENT (k _v) | 0 g | |

CALCULATED RESULTS

| CRITICAL FAILURE ANGLE | 48 degrees |
|--|------------------|
| AREA OF TRIAL FAILURE WEDGE | 64.5 square feet |
| TOTAL EXTERNAL SURCHARGE | 0.0 pounds |
| WEIGHT OF TRIAL FAILURE WEDGE | 8058.7 pounds |
| NUMBER OF TRIAL WEDGES ANALYZED | 561 trials |
| LENGTH OF FAILURE PLANE | 14.9 feet |
| DEPTH OF TENSION CRACK | 0.9 feet |
| HORIZONTAL DISTANCE TO UPSLOPE TENSION CRACK | 10.0 feet |
| CALCULATED HORIZONTAL THRUST ON WALL | 1899.1 pounds |
| CALCULATED EQUIVALENT FLUID PRESSURE | 26.4 pcf |
| DESIGN EQUIVALENT FLUID PRESSURE | 43.0 pcf |

CONCLUSION:

THE CALCULATION INDICATES THAT CANTILEVER RETAINING WALLS UP TO 12 FEET HIGH, WITH LEVEL BACKSLOPE AND VEHICULAR SURCHARGE, MAY BE DESIGNED FOR AN ACTIVE EQUIVALENT FLUID PRESSURE OF 43 POUNDS-PER-CUBIC-FOOT.



BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC. H6I E CHEVY CHASE DR., SLITE 200 CLENDALE, CA 91206 818.549.9959 TEL 818.543.3747 FAX **RETAINING WALL**

BG: 23028 ENGINEER: <u>RSB</u> CLIENT: <u>Dart Partners, LLC, & Mateo Arts, LLC</u>

CALCULATION SHEET # 2

CALCULATE THE DESIGN SEISMIC FORCE FOR THE PROPOSED RETAINING WALL. ASSUME BACKFILL IS SATURATED AND THERE IS NO HYDROSTATIC PRESSURE THE RETAINED HEIGHT AND BACKSLOPE AND SURCHARGE CONDITIONS ARE LISTED BELOW. USE THE MONONOBE-OKABE METHOD FOR SEISMIC FORCES.

CALCULATION PARAMETERS

| EARTH MATERIAL: | Alluvium | WALL HEIGHT | | 12 feet |
|--------------------|-----------------------|----------------------------|--------|------------|
| SHEAR DIAGRAM: | 1 | BACKSLOPE ANGLE: | | 0 degrees |
| COHESION: | 200 psf | SURCHARGE: | | 300 pounds |
| PHI ANGLE: | 31 degrees | SURCHARGE TYPE: | | U Uniform |
| DENSITY | 125 pcf | INITIAL FAILURE ANGLI | Ξ: | 20 degrees |
| SAFETY FACTOR: | 1 | FINAL FAILURE ANGLE | : | 70 degrees |
| WALL FRICTION | 0 degrees | INITIAL TENSION CRAC | K: | 10 feet |
| CD (C/FS): | 200.0 psf | FINAL TENSION CRACK | <: | 20 feet |
| PHID = ATAN(TAN(PI | -II)/FS) = 3 | 1.0 degrees | | |
| HORIZONTAL PSEU | DO STATIC SEISMIC COE | FFICIENT (k _h) | 0.29 g | |
| VERTICAL PSEUDO | STATIC SEISMIC COEFFI | ICIENT (k _v) | 0 g | |

CALCULATED RESULTS

CRITICAL FAILURE ANGLE AREA OF TRIAL FAILURE WEDGE TOTAL EXTERNAL SURCHARGE WEIGHT OF TRIAL FAILURE WEDGE NUMBER OF TRIAL WEDGES ANALYZED LENGTH OF FAILURE PLANE DEPTH OF TENSION CRACK HORIZONTAL DISTANCE TO UPSLOPE TENSION CRACK **CALCULATED HORIZONTAL THRUST ON WALL** 42 degrees 79.2 square feet 600.0 pounds 10496.4 pounds 561 trials 16.1 feet 1.2 feet 12.0 feet **2264.2 pounds**

CONCLUSIONS:

THE CALCULATION INDICATES THAT NO ADDITIONAL SEISMIC LOADING IS REQUIRED FOR CANTILEVER RETAINING WALLS UP TO 12 FEET HIGH, WITH LEVEL BACKSLOPE AND VEHICULAR SURCHARGE (CALCULATED SEISMIC THRUST IS LESS THAN THE DESIGN ACTIVE THRUST OF 3,096 POUNDS).



BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC. H6I E CHEVY CHASE DR., SLITTE 200 CLENDALE, CA 92206 818,549,9959 TEL 818,543,3747 FAX **RETAINING WALL**

BG: 23028 ENGINEER: RSB CLIENT: Dart Partners, LLC, & Mateo Arts, LLC

CALCULATION SHEET # 3

CALCULATE THE DESIGN SEISMIC FORCE FOR THE PROPOSED RETAINING WALL. ASSUME BACKFILL IS SATURATED AND THERE IS NO HYDROSTATIC PRESSURE THE RETAINED HEIGHT AND BACKSLOPE AND SURCHARGE CONDITIONS ARE LISTED BELOW. USE THE MONONOBE-OKABE METHOD FOR SEISMIC FORCES.

CALCULATION PARAMETERS

| EARTH MATERIAL: | Alluvium | WALL HEIGHT | | 19 feet |
|--------------------|----------------------|-----------------------------|--------|------------|
| SHEAR DIAGRAM: | 1 | BACKSLOPE ANG | SLE: | 0 degrees |
| COHESION: | 200 psf | SURCHARGE: | | 300 pounds |
| PHI ANGLE: | 31 degrees | SURCHARGE TYP | PE: | u Uniform |
| DENSITY | 125 pcf | INITIAL FAILURE | ANGLE: | 20 degrees |
| SAFETY FACTOR: | 1 | FINAL FAILURE A | NGLE: | 70 degrees |
| WALL FRICTION | 0 degrees | INITIAL TENSION | CRACK: | 10 feet |
| CD (C/FS): | 200.0 psf | FINAL TENSION C | CRACK: | 30 feet |
| PHID = ATAN(TAN(PH | H)/FS) = 3 | 31.0 degrees | | |
| HORIZONTAL PSEUE | O STATIC SEISMIC CO | EFFICIENT (k _h) | 0.29 g | |
| VERTICAL PSEUDO | STATIC SEISMIC COEFF | FICIENT (k _v) | 0 g | |

CALCULATED RESULTS

CRITICAL FAILURE ANGLE AREA OF TRIAL FAILURE WEDGE TOTAL EXTERNAL SURCHARGE WEIGHT OF TRIAL FAILURE WEDGE NUMBER OF TRIAL WEDGES ANALYZED LENGTH OF FAILURE PLANE DEPTH OF FAILURE PLANE DEPTH OF TENSION CRACK HORIZONTAL DISTANCE TO UPSLOPE TENSION CRACK CALCULATED HORIZONTAL THRUST ON WALL 45 degrees 180.0 square feet 2400.0 pounds 24900.0 pounds 1071 trials 25.5 feet 1.0 feet 18.0 feet **8931.7 pounds**

CONCLUSIONS:

THE CALCULATION INDICATES THAT NO ADDITIONAL SEISMIC LOADING IS REQUIRED FOR RESTRAINED RETAINING WALLS UP TO 19 FEET HIGH, WITH LEVEL BACKSLOPE AND VEHICULAR SURCHARGE (CALCULATED SEISMIC THRUST IS LESS THAN THE DESIGN AT-REST THRUST OF 10,974.4 POUNDS).



BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC. H6I E CHEVY CHASE DR., SLITE 200 CLENDALE, CA 91206 818549.9959 TEL 818543.3747 FAX **RETAINING WALL**

BG: 23028 ENGINEER: <u>RSB</u> CLIENT: <u>Dart Partners, LLC, & Mateo Arts, LLC</u>

CALCULATION SHEET # 4

CALCULATE THE DESIGN SEISMIC FORCE FOR THE PROPOSED RETAINING WALL. ASSUME BACKFILL IS SATURATED AND THERE IS NO HYDROSTATIC PRESSURE THE RETAINED HEIGHT AND BACKSLOPE AND SURCHARGE CONDITIONS ARE LISTED BELOW. USE THE MONONOBE-OKABE METHOD FOR SEISMIC FORCES.

CALCULATION PARAMETERS

| EARTH MATERIAL: | Alluvium | WALL HEIGHT | | 19 feet |
|--------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------------|--------|-------------|
| SHEAR DIAGRAM: | 1 | BACKSLOPE ANGL | -E: | 0 degrees |
| COHESION: | 200 psf | SURCHARGE: | | 2000 pounds |
| PHI ANGLE: | 31 degrees | SURCHARGE TYP | E: | P Point |
| DENSITY | 125 pcf | INITIAL FAILURE A | NGLE: | 20 degrees |
| SAFETY FACTOR: | 1 | FINAL FAILURE AN | IGLE: | 70 degrees |
| WALL FRICTION | 0 degrees | INITIAL TENSION (| CRACK: | 1 feet |
| CD (C/FS): | 200.0 psf | FINAL TENSION CI | RACK: | 30 feet |
| PHID = ATAN(TAN(PH | HI)/FS) = 3 | 31.0 degrees | | |
| HORIZONTAL PSEUE | OO STATIC SEISMIC COI | EFFICIENT (k _h) | 0.29 g | |
| VERTICAL PSEUDO | STATIC SEISMIC COEFF | ICIENT (k _v) | 0 g | |

CALCULATED RESULTS

CRITICAL FAILURE ANGLE AREA OF TRIAL FAILURE WEDGE TOTAL EXTERNAL SURCHARGE WEIGHT OF TRIAL FAILURE WEDGE NUMBER OF TRIAL WEDGES ANALYZED LENGTH OF FAILURE PLANE DEPTH OF FAILURE PLANE DEPTH OF TENSION CRACK HORIZONTAL DISTANCE TO UPSLOPE TENSION CRACK **CALCULATED HORIZONTAL THRUST ON WALL** 52 degrees 135.8 square feet 2000.0 pounds 18980.5 pounds 1530 trials 19.5 feet 3.6 feet 12.0 feet **9211.1 pounds**

CONCLUSIONS:

THE CALCULATION INDICATES THAT NO ADDITIONAL SEISMIC LOADING IS REQUIRED FOR RESTRAINED RETAINING WALLS UP TO 19 FEET HIGH, WITH LEVEL BACKSLOPE AND BUILDING SURCHARGE (CALCULATED SEISMIC THRUST IS LESS THAN THE DESIGN AT-REST THRUST OF 10,974.4 POUNDS).


BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC. H6I E CHEVY CHASE DR., SLITE 200 CLENDALE, CA 91206 818.549.9959 TEL 818.543.3747 FAX

|--|

BG: 23028 ENGINEER: RSB CLIENT: Dart Partners, LLC, & Mateo Arts, LLC

CALCULATION SHEET # 5

CALCULATE THE DESIGN MINIMUM EQUIVALENT FLUID PRESSURE (EFP) FOR PROPOSED SHORING PILE. ASSUME BACKFILL IS SATURATED AND THERE IS NO HYDROSTATIC PRESSURE THE RETAINED HEIGHT AND BACKSLOPE AND SURCHARGE CONDITIONS ARE LISTED BELOW. USE THE MONONOBE-OKABE METHOD FOR SEISMIC FORCES.

CALCULATION PARAMETERS

| EARTH MATERIAL: | Alluvium | RETAINED LENGTH | | 21 feet |
|--------------------|-----------------------|----------------------------|-----|------------|
| SHEAR DIAGRAM: | 1 | BACKSLOPE ANGLE: | | 0 degrees |
| COHESION: | 200 psf | SURCHARGE: | | 300 pounds |
| PHI ANGLE: | 31 degrees | SURCHARGE TYPE: | | U Uniform |
| DENSITY | 125 pcf | INITIAL FAILURE ANGLI | E: | 20 degrees |
| SAFETY FACTOR: | 1.25 | FINAL FAILURE ANGLE | : | 70 degrees |
| PILE FRICTION | 0 degrees | INITIAL TENSION CRAC | K: | 10 feet |
| CD (C/FS): | 160.0 psf | FINAL TENSION CRACK | K: | 30 feet |
| PHID = ATAN(TAN(PI | HI)/FS) = 29 | 5.7 degrees | | |
| HORIZONTAL PSEUE | DO STATIC SEISMIC COE | FFICIENT (k _h) | 0 g | |
| VERTICAL PSEUDO | STATIC SEISMIC COEFFI | CIENT (k _v) | 0 g | |

| CALCULATED RESULTS | |
|--|-------------------|
| CRITICAL FAILURE ANGLE | 54 degrees |
| AREA OF TRIAL FAILURE WEDGE | 159.1 square feet |
| TOTAL EXTERNAL SURCHARGE | 1200.0 pounds |
| WEIGHT OF TRIAL FAILURE WEDGE | 21089.3 pounds |
| NUMBER OF TRIAL WEDGES ANALYZED | 1071 trials |
| LENGTH OF FAILURE PLANE | 23.8 feet |
| DEPTH OF TENSION CRACK | 1.7 feet |
| HORIZONTAL DISTANCE TO UPSLOPE TENSION CRACK | 14.0 feet |
| CALCULATED THRUST ON PILE | 7466.3 pounds |
| CALCULATED EQUIVALENT FLUID PRESSURE | 33.9 pcf |
| DESIGN EQUIVALENT FLUID PRESSURE | 34.0 pcf |

CONCLUSIONS:

THE PROPOSED TEMPORARY SHORING UP TO 21 FEET HIGH, WITH LEVEL BACKSLOPE AND VEHICULAR SURCHARGE, MAY BE DESIGNED FOR AN ACTIVE EQUIVALENT FLUID PRESSURE OF 34 POUNDS-PER-CUBIC-FOOT. IF PILES ARE USED, THE FLUID PRESSURE SHOULD BE MULTIPLIED BY THE PILE SPACING.



BYER GEOTECHNICAL, INC. HGI E CHEVY CHASE DR., SLITE 200 CLENDALE CA 91206 81854939959 TEL 8185432747 FAX SOLDIER PILE

BG: 23028 ENGINEER: RSB CLIENT: Dart Partners, LLC, & Mateo Arts, LLC

CALCULATION SHEET # 6

CALCULATE THE DESIGN MINIMUM EQUIVALENT FLUID PRESSURE (EFP) FOR PROPOSED SHORING PILE. ASSUME BACKFILL IS SATURATED AND THERE IS NO HYDROSTATIC PRESSURE THE RETAINED HEIGHT AND BACKSLOPE AND SURCHARGE CONDITIONS ARE LISTED BELOW. USE THE MONONOBE-OKABE METHOD FOR SEISMIC FORCES.

CALCULATION PARAMETERS

| EARTH MATERIAL: | Alluvium | RETAINED LENGTH | 21 feet |
|--------------------|-----------------------|---------------------------------|-------------|
| SHEAR DIAGRAM: | 1 | BACKSLOPE ANGLE: | 0 degrees |
| COHESION: | 200 psf | SURCHARGE: | 2000 pounds |
| PHI ANGLE: | 31 degrees | SURCHARGE TYPE: | P Point |
| DENSITY | 125 pcf | INITIAL FAILURE ANGLE: | 20 degrees |
| SAFETY FACTOR: | 1.25 | FINAL FAILURE ANGLE: | 70 degrees |
| PILE FRICTION | 0 degrees | INITIAL TENSION CRACK: | 1 feet |
| CD (C/FS): | 160.0 psf | FINAL TENSION CRACK: | 30 feet |
| PHID = ATAN(TAN(PI | HI)/FS) = 2 | 5.7 degrees | |
| HORIZONTAL PSEUE | DO STATIC SEISMIC COE | EFFICIENT (k _h) 0 g | |
| VERTICAL PSEUDO | STATIC SEISMIC COEFF | ICIENT (k _v) 0 g | |

CALCULATED RESULTS **CRITICAL FAILURE ANGLE** 62 degrees AREA OF TRIAL FAILURE WEDGE 112.8 square feet TOTAL EXTERNAL SURCHARGE 2000.0 pounds WEIGHT OF TRIAL FAILURE WEDGE 16103.8 pounds NUMBER OF TRIAL WEDGES ANALYZED 1530 trials LENGTH OF FAILURE PLANE 19.2 feet DEPTH OF TENSION CRACK 4.1 feet HORIZONTAL DISTANCE TO UPSLOPE TENSION CRACK 9.0 feet CALCULATED THRUST ON PILE 8409.7 pounds CALCULATED EQUIVALENT FLUID PRESSURE 38.1 pcf **DESIGN EQUIVALENT FLUID PRESSURE** 39.0 pcf

CONCLUSIONS:

THE PROPOSED TEMPORARY SHORING UP TO 21 FEET HIGH, WITH LEVEL BACKSLOPE AND BUILDING SURCHARGE, MAY BE DESIGNED FOR AN ACTIVE EQUIVALENT FLUID PRESSURE OF 39 POUNDS-PER-CUBIC-FOOT. IF PILES ARE USED, THE FLUID PRESSURE SHOULD BE MULTIPLIED BY THE PILE SPACING.









BYER GEOTECHNICAL INC. 1461 E. CHEVY CHASE DR., SUITE 200 GLENDALE, CA 91206 818,549,9959 TEL

818.543.3747 FAX

REGIONAL FAULT MAP

BG: 23028 DART PARTNERS, LLC & MATEO ARTS, LLC

CONSULTANT: RSB

JTR

DRAWN BY :

SCALE: 1'' = 12 MILES

REFERENCE: JENNINGS, C.W., AND BRYANT, W.A., 2010, FAULT ACTIVITY MAP OF CALIFORNIA GEOLOGICAL SURVEY, 150th ANNIVERSARY, MAP No 6.





BYER GEOTECHNICAL INC. 1461 E CHEVY CHASE DR., SUITE 200 GLENDALE, CA 91206 818,549,9959 TEL

818.543.3747 FAX

HISTORIC-HIGH GROUNDWATER MAP

BG: 23028 DART PARTNERS, LLC & MATEO ARTS, LLC

CONSULTANT : RSB DRAWN BY : JTR

SCALE: 1'' = 4000'

REFERENCE: CGS, 1998, Seismic Hozard Zone Report for the Los Angeles 7.5-Minute Quadrangle, Los Angeles County, California, Seismic Hazard Zone Report 029.





LEGEND B5 �

B5 TD = 31.5' Afu 0 to 1' Qa 1' to TD No GW C C LOCATION AND NUMBER OF BORING TOTAL DEPTH (FEET) DEPTH OF EXISTING FILL (FEET) DEPTH OF ALLUVIUM (FEET) NO GROUNDWATER ENCOUNTERED

LINE OF CROSS SECTION

| CHAPTER SCALE C C RAPPIIC SCALE | | | | ESTABLISHED PER C.E.F.B. 123–217–193 | |
|--|------|---------------------------------|-----|---|-------------|
| CRAPHIC SCALE | | | | | |
| Cranting of the second | | 4 | | | |
| CRAPHIC SCALE 1 mod = 50 J. 1 mod = 50 J. | | | | | |
| 1 min - 20 // | 20 1 | GRAPHIC SCALE 5 10 5 0 10 20 | 40 | | |
| 10 Sev Liss FF List 1 is 77.78 | | 1 inch = 20 ft. | | | |
| D Service R | | | | | |
| TP SWI MAG | | | | | |
| ID SW LASS PR | | | | | |
| UD SKW LAOS FER | | | | | |
| PD S&W LACS FR C.E.F.B. 123-217-193 | | | | | |
| D SW LASS PER C.E.F.B. 123-217-193 | | | | | |
| PD S&W LACS PER CE.F.B. 123-217-193 | | | | | |
| FD SAW LACS PER C.E.F.B. 123-217-193 | | | | | |
| FD S&W LACS PER C.E.F.B. 123-217-193 | | | | | |
| FD S&W LACS PER C.E.F.B. 123-217-193 | | | | | |
| FD S&W LACS PER C.E.F.B. 123-217-193 | | | | | |
| FD S&W LACS PER C.E.F.B. 123-217-193 | | | | | |
| FD S&W LACS PER C.E.F.B. 123–217–193 | | | | | |
| FD S&W LACS PER C.E.F.B. 123–217–193 | | | | | |
| | | | | FD S&W LACS P C.E.F.B. 123–217–1 | ER 93 |
| APRI | | | 1 | | APRIL 16, |
| BYER GEOTECHNICAL | RA | BYEK GEOTECHNICAL INC | SIT | E PLAN | 0 A D T C - |



| | | | | APRIL 16, 2019 |
|----|---|--|-------------------------|-------------------------------------|
| | B | BYER GEOTECHNICAL INC. 1461 E. CHEVY CHASE DR., SUITE 200 | SECTION A | |
| | | | BG: 23028 DART PARTNERS | S, LLC & MATEO ARTS, LLC |
| | | GLENDALE, CA 91206 818.549.9959 TEL | CONSULTANT : RSB | SCALE: $1 \parallel - 20 \parallel$ |
| ·, | | 818.543.3747 FAX | DRAWN BY : JTR | SCALE. $1^{\circ} = 20^{\circ}$ |





APRIL 16, 2019 🛔



| | | | APRIL 16, 2019 | |
|---------------------|--|--|-------------------------------------|--|
| BYE | BYER GEOTECHNICAL INC. 1461 E. CHEVY CHASE DR., SUITE 200 | SECTION C | | |
| INC 1461 E. CH | | BG: 23028 DART PARTNERS, LLC & MATEO ARTS, LLC | | |
| GLENDA 818.549.9 | ale, CA 91206 1959 Tel | CONSULTANT : RSB | SCALE: $1 \parallel - 20 \parallel$ | |
| 818.543.3 | 747 FAX | DRAWN BY : JTR | SCALE. $1^{-1} = 20^{-1}$ | |

Appendix D-2: Soils Report Approval Letter BOARD OF BUILDING AND SAFETY COMMISSIONERS

> VAN AMBATIELOS PRESIDENT

E. FELICIA BRANNON VICE PRESIDENT

JOSELYN GEAGA-ROSENTHAL GEORGE HOVAGUIMIAN JAVIER NUNEZ CITY OF LOS ANGELES

CALIFORNIA



ERIC GARCETTI MAYOR DEPARTMENT OF BUILDING AND SAFETY 201 NORTH FIGUEROA STREET LOS ANGELES, CA 90012

FRANK M. BUSH GENERAL MANAGER SUPERINTENDENT OF BUILDING

OSAMA YOUNAN, P.E. EXECUTIVE OFFICER

SOILS REPORT APPROVAL LETTER

December 9, 2019

LOG # 111029 SOILS/GEOLOGY FILE - 2

Dart Partners, LLC & Mateo Arts, LLP 20501 Ventura Blvd., Suite 295 Woodland Hills, CA 91364

 TRACT:
 HISCOCK AND SMITHS FIRST ADDITION (M R 25-11)

 LOT(S):
 73, 75-84

 LOCATION:
 2006-2018 E. Bay St., 1000-1026 S. Mateo ST, 2001 - 2023 E. Sacramento St.

| CURRENT REFERENCE | REPORT | DATE OF | |
|-------------------|------------|------------|-------------------------|
| REPORT/LETTER(S) | <u>No.</u> | DOCUMENT | PREPARED BY |
| Soils Report | BG 23028 | 04/16/2019 | Byer Geotechnical, Inc. |
| Oversized Doc(s). | ** | * * | ** |

The Grading Division of the Department of Building and Safety has reviewed the referenced report that provides recommendations for the proposed eight-story mixed-use building over one subterranean parking. The earth materials at the subsurface exploration locations consist of up to 2.5 feet of uncertified fill underlain by sand. The consultants recommend to support the proposed structures on conventional and piles foundations bearing on native undisturbed soils.

The referenced report is acceptable, provided the following conditions are complied with during site development:

(Note: Numbers in parenthesis () refer to applicable sections of the 2017 City of LA Building Code. P/BC numbers refer the applicable Information Bulletin. Information Bulletins can be accessed on the internet at LADBS.ORG.)

- 1. The soils engineer shall review and approve the detailed plans prior to issuance of any permit. This approval shall be by signature on the plans that clearly indicates the soils engineer has reviewed the plans prepared by the design engineer; and, that the plans included the recommendations contained in their reports (7006.1).
- 2. All recommendations of the report that are in addition to or more restrictive than the conditions contained herein shall be incorporated into the plans.

- 3. A copy of the subject and appropriate referenced reports and this approval letter shall be attached to the District Office and field set of plans (7006.1). Submit one copy of the above reports to the Building Department Plan Checker prior to issuance of the permit.
- 4. A grading permit shall be obtained for all structural fill and retaining wall backfill (106.1.2).
- 5. All man-made fill shall be compacted to a minimum 90 percent of the maximum dry density of the fill material per the latest version of ASTM D 1557. Where cohesionless soil having less than 15 percent finer than 0.005 millimeters is used for fill, it shall be compacted to a minimum of 95 percent relative compaction based on maximum dry density. Placement of gravel in lieu of compacted fill is only allowed if complying with LAMC Section 91.7011.3.
- 6. Existing uncertified fill shall not be used for support of footings, concrete slabs or new fill (1809.2, 7011.3).
- 7. Drainage in conformance with the provisions of the Code shall be maintained during and subsequent to construction (7013.12).
- 8. The applicant is advised that the approval of this report does not waive the requirements for excavations contained in the General Safety Orders of the California Department of Industrial Relations (3301.1).
- 9. Temporary excavations that remove lateral support to the public way, adjacent property, or adjacent structures shall be supported by shoring. Note: Lateral support shall be considered to be removed when the excavation extends below a plane projected downward at an angle of 45 degrees from the bottom of a footing of an existing structure, from the edge of the public way or an adjacent property. (3307.3.1)
- 10. Prior to the issuance of any permit that authorizes an excavation where the excavation is to be of a greater depth than are the walls or foundation of any adjoining building or structure and located closer to the property line than the depth of the excavation, the owner of the subject site shall provide the Department with evidence that the adjacent property owner has been given a 30-day written notice of such intent to make an excavation (3307.1).
- 11. The soils engineer shall review and approve the shoring and/or underpinning plans prior to issuance of the permit (3307.3.2).
- 12. Prior to the issuance of the permits, the soils engineer and/or the structural designer shall evaluate the surcharge loads used in the report calculations for the design of the retaining walls and shoring. If the surcharge loads used in the calculations do not conform to the actual surcharge loads, the soil engineer shall submit a supplementary report with revised recommendations to the Department for approval.
- 13. Unsurcharged temporary excavations over 5 feet exposing soil shall be trimmed back at a gradient not exceeding 1:1, as recommended.
- 14. Shoring shall be designed for the lateral earth pressures specified in the section titled "Soldier Piles" starting on page 16 of the 04/16/2019 report; all surcharge loads shall be included into the design.

- 15. Shoring shall be designed for a maximum lateral deflection of 1 inch, provided there are no structures within a 1:1 plane projected up from the base of the excavation. Where a structure is within a 1:1 plane projected up from the base of the excavation, shoring shall be designed for a maximum lateral deflection of ½ inch, or to a lower deflection determined by the consultant that does not present any potential hazard to the adjacent structure.
- 16. A shoring monitoring program shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the soils engineer.
- 17. All foundations shall derive entire support from native undisturbed soils, as recommended and shall be approved by the geologist and soils engineer by inspection.
- 18. Footings supported on approved compacted fill or expansive soil shall be reinforced with a minimum of four (4), ½-inch diameter (#4) deformed reinforcing bars. Two (2) bars shall be placed near the bottom and two (2) bars placed near the top of the footing.
- 19. Slabs placed on approved compacted fill shall be at least 3¹/₂ inches thick and shall be reinforced with ¹/₂-inch diameter (#4) reinforcing bars spaced a maximum of 16 inches on center each way.
- 20. The seismic design shall be based on a Site Class D as recommended. All other seismic design parameters shall be reviewed by LADBS building plan check.
- 21. Retaining walls shall be designed for the lateral earth pressures specified in the section titled "Retaining Walls" starting on page 13 of the 04/16/2019 report. All surcharge loads shall be included into the design.
- 22. All retaining walls shall be provided with a standard surface backdrain system and all drainage shall be conducted in a non-erosive device to the street in an acceptable manner (7013.11).
- 23. With the exception of retaining walls designed for hydrostatic pressure, all retaining walls shall be provided with a subdrain system to prevent possible hydrostatic pressure behind the wall. Prior to issuance of any permit, the retaining wall subdrain system recommended in the soils report shall be incorporated into the foundation plan which shall be reviewed and approved by the soils engineer of record (1805.4).
- 24. Installation of the subdrain system shall be inspected and approved by the soils engineer of record and the City grading/building inspector (108.9).
- 25. Basement walls and floors shall be waterproofed/damp-proofed with an LA City approved "Below-grade" waterproofing/damp-proofing material with a research report number (104.2.6).
- 26. Prefabricated drainage composites (Miradrain, Geotextiles) may be only used in addition to traditionally accepted methods of draining retained earth.
- 27. All roof, pad and deck drainage shall be conducted to the street in an acceptable manner in non-erosive devices or other approved location in a manner that is acceptable to the LADBS and the Department of Public Works (7013.10).

Page 4 2006-2018 E. Bay St., 1000-1026 S. Mateo ST, 2001 - 2023 E. Sacramento St.

- 28. An on-site storm water infiltration system at the subject site shall not be implemented, as recommended.
- 29. All concentrated drainage shall be conducted in an approved device and disposed of in a manner approved by the LADBS (7013.10).
- 30. The soils engineer shall inspect all excavations to determine that conditions anticipated in the report have been encountered and to provide recommendations for the correction of hazards found during grading (7008 & 1705.6).
- 31. Prior to pouring concrete, a representative of the consulting soils engineer shall inspect and approve the footing excavations. The representative shall post a notice on the job site for the LADBS Inspector and the Contractor stating that the work inspected meets the conditions of the report. No concrete shall be poured until the LADBS Inspector has also inspected and approved the footing excavations. A written certification to this effect shall be filed with the Grading Division of the Department upon completion of the work. (108.9 & 7008.2)
- 32. Prior to excavation an initial inspection shall be called with the LADBS Inspector. During the initial inspection, the sequence of construction; [shoring; ABC slot cuts; underpinning; pile installation;] protection fences; and, dust and traffic control will be scheduled (108.9.1).
- 33. Installation of shoring, underpinning, slot cutting and/or pile excavations shall be performed under the inspection and approval of the soils engineer (1705.8).
- 34. Prior to the placing of compacted fill, a representative of the soils engineer shall inspect and approve the bottom excavations. The representative shall post a notice on the job site for the LADBS Inspector and the Contractor stating that the soil inspected meets the conditions of the report. No fill shall be placed until the LADBS Inspector has also inspected and approved the bottom excavations. A written certification to this effect shall be included in the final compaction report filed with the Grading Division of the Department. All fill shall be placed under the inspection and approval of the soils engineer. A compaction report together with the approved soil report and Department approval letter shall be submitted to the Grading Division of the Department upon completion of the compaction. In addition, an Engineer's Certificate of Compliance with the legal description as indicated in the grading permit and the permit number shall be included (7011.3).
- 35. No footing/slab shall be poured until the compaction report is submitted and approved by the Grading Division of the Department.

LIU

Geotechnical Engineer II

Log No. 111029 213-482-0480

cc: Byer Geotechnical, Inc., Project Consultant LA District Office Appendix E-1: Phase I ESA

PHASE I ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT OF THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2025 SACRAMENTO STREET, 1024 MATEO STREET AND 2016 BAY STREET (ALSO INCLUDES 2001-2005 SACRAMENTO STREET) LOS ANGELES, CA 91402

Prepared for:

Bank of America N.A. US Trust-Real Estate Services 515 S. Flower Street 28th Floor Los Angeles, CA 90071

Prepared by:

Environmental Managers & Auditors, Inc. 26500 Agoura Road, #102-374 Calabasas, CA 91302

Project No. 2015-786-25

June 2015



Environmental Managers & Auditors, Inc.



June 30, 2015

Bank of America N.A US Trust Real-Estate Services 515 S. Flower Street Los Angeles CA. 90071

To whom it may concern:

In accordance with Bank of America's request and authorization, Environmental Managers & Auditors Inc. (EMA) performed a review of potential environmental liabilities associated with the property located at 2001-2005 Sacramento Street, 1024 Mateo Street and 2016 Bay Street, Los Angeles, California, in June 2016. The purpose of this assessment was to identify potential environmental concerns associated with the property (exclusive of geologic stability or flood potential), building construction, and use. This investigation was conducted by EMA and consisted solely of the activities described in the Scope of Work section of this report. The findings, conclusions and recommendations presented herein are subject to the limitations discussed in Section 1.3 and the agreement for Environmental Consulting Services.

A brief report summarizing our findings is enclosed. Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned at your convenience. EMA appreciates the opportunity to be of professional services to Bank of America on this project.

Sincerely,

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGERS & AUDITORS, INC.

Kheled Myl.

Khalid Mahmood, R.E.A. Project Director

Enclosure

26500 Agoura Rd, Suite 102-374, Calabasas, CA 91302 | Phone: (818) 704-4404 | Fax: (818) 704-4401 Los Angeles | San Francisco | Dallas | Las Vegas | Phoenix | Washington D.C.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| Section | Title | Page |
|---------|---|----------------------------------|
| | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | 4 |
| 1.0 | INTRODUCTION | 7 |
| | Purpose Detailed Scope of Services Significant Assumptions Special Terms and Conditions Limitations Limiting Conditions and Methodology Used User Reliance | 7 7 8 8 8 8 |
| 2.0 | SITE DESCRIPTION | 9 |
| | 2.1 Location and Legal Description 2.2 Site and Vicinity Characteristics 2.3 Description of Structures 2.4 Current Use of the Property 2.5 Current Adjacent Properties | 9 9 9 9 10 |
| 3.0 | USER PROVIDED INFORMATION | 11 |
| | 3.1 Title Records 3.2 Environmental Liens or Activity and Use Limitation 3.3 Specialized Knowledge 3.4 Commonly Known or Reasonably Ascertainable Information 3.5 Valuation Reduction for Environmental Issues 3.6 Reason for performing Phase 1 ESA | 11 11 11 11 11 11 |
| 4.0 | REGULATORY AGENCY RECORDS SEARCH | 13 |
| | 4.1 Federal Sources4.2 California State Sources4.3 Local Sources | 13 20 24 |

1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| Section | Title | Page |
|---------|--|--|
| 5.0 | ENVIRONMENTAL SETTINGS | 28 |
| | 5.1 Physical Characteristic5.2 Geology and Hydrogeology | 28 28 |
| 6.0 | HISTORICAL SITE USAGE | 29 |
| | 6.1 Aerial Photographs 6.2 Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps 6.3 City Directories Records 6.4 Historical Topographic Maps 6.5 Prior Assessment Reports 6.6 Zoning/Land Use Records 6.7 Recorded Land Title Records 6.8 Additional Historical Records Sources 6.9 Historical Use Information on Adjoining Properties 6.10 Data Failure | 29 30 34 34 34 34 34 34 34 34 |
| 7.0 | SITE RECONNAISSANCE | 36 |
| | 7.1 Aboveground Storage Tanks 7.2 Underground Storage Tanks 7.3 Water and Wastewater 7.4 Hazardous Materials/Wastes 7.5 Air Emissions 7.6 PCBs 7.7 Solid Waste 7.8 Asbestos Containing Materials (ACMs) 7.9 Pesticides 7.10 Radon 7.11 Wetlands 7.12 Oil Wells 7.13 Landfills | 36 36 36 37 37 37 37 37 38 38 38 38 38 38 |
| | | |

9.0 FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 41

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| Section | Title | Page |
|---------|-------|------|
| | | |

10.0SIGNATURE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROFESSIONAL43

LIST OF FIGURE

Figure No. Title

- 1 SITE LOCATION MAP
- 2 SITE VICINITY MAP
- 3 SITE LAYOUT MAP

LIST OF APPENDICES

- A PHOTOGRAPHS
- B GOVERNMENT DATABASE REPORT
- C BUILDING DEPARTMENT RECORDS
- D HISTORICAL AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
- E SANBORN FIRE INSURANCE MAPS
- F HISTORICAL CITY DIRECTORIES

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Environmental Managers & Auditors, Inc (EMA) has performed a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) in general accordance with ASTM 1527-13 for the property located at 2001-2005 Sacramento Street ; 1024 Mateo Street; 2016 Bay Street, Los Angeles, California.

The Phase I Environmental Site Assessment is designed to provide Bank of America an assessment concerning environmental conditions (limited to those issues identified in the report) as they exist at the property. This assessment was conducted utilizing generally accepted ESA industry standards in accordance with ASTM E 1527-13, Standard Practice for Environmental Site Assessments: Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Process.

The address of the subject property is 2001-2005 Sacramento Street, 1024 Mateo Street, and 2016 Bay Street, Los Angeles, California (herein referred as subject property). The subject property is located in a commercial and industrial area in the City of Los Angeles, California. According to County of Los Angeles Assessor's Office, the assessor's parcel number (APN) of the subject property is 5166-011-021. All adjoining areas consist of commercial and industrial buildings.

During the site reconnaissance, the subject property was observed to be occupied by MV Transportation Inc. MV Transportation, Inc. is engaged in the auto repair and service business for MTA buses. The subject property consists of a rectangular shaped parcel with a steel frame automotive repair and service building with associated offices in the northwestern portion and a steel frame storage shed in the southeastern portion of the property. The remaining portions of the site are utilized to park MTA busses. During the site reconnaissance, a drainage and a three compartment belowground clarifier were observed in the southeastern portion of the site. This area is utilized to wash vehicles. The wastewater generated from automotive washing operations is collected in the belowground clarifier and subsequently discharged into the city sewer. During the site reconnaissance, a large propane tank was observed in the middle of the property. Storm drainage is accomplished via drains located at the property which direct surface water to storm drains in the surrounding streets. No other significant structures and/or features were observed at the subject property.

During the site reconnaissance, significant quantities of hazardous materials/ hazardous wastes (i.e. brake fluids, motor oil, transmission oil, coolants, batteries, waste oil, waste anti-freeze, etc.). were observed in the automotive repair/service building and the storage shed. The hazardous materials/hazardous wastes were stored in 55-gallon and 250-gallon containers and placed in secondary containments. Significant stains were observed in the vicinity of hazardous materials/hazardous waste storage containers. The hazardous wastes generated at the site are picked up by Safety Kleen for proper disposal.

The subject property is bounded by Bay Street to the north, beyond which are Casita International, Zacatecas Imports, and other industrial developments, LAZ- Express and other industrial developments to the east, Selected Textiles, NSM, Intaglio Inc. and other industrial developments to the south, and Sacramento Street to the west beyond which are CDL Scrap Metals, Pegasus Inc., and other industrial developments.

A review of records available at the City of Los Angeles Department of Building and safety revealed that the subject property was previously occupied by a service station and Wash Rack with a clarifier and Grease Pit and a junk yard. The owner of the service station is indicated Standard Oil Company. A further review of records indicated that an application for grading permit for the storage tank backfill was filed on August 22, 1975. It is unknown whether the tank(s) were abandoned in-place by backfilling. It is unknown how many tanks were installed/removed and/or abandoned in-place associated with the former auto service station owned by Standard Oil Company.

Review of government database report revealed that the subject property tenants, Consolidated Fibers and MV Transportation, are listed on the Hazardous Waste Information System (HWIS) database. The database report indicated that Consolidated Fibers and MV Transportation generated waste oil and unspecified organic liquid mixtures at the site. It should be noted that potential for environmental concern is not necessarily present simply because a property is listed on this database. HWIS does not track violators and the presence of a facility on the HWIS database does not necessarily indicate that an environmental concern exists at that facility. The presence of these facilities on the HWIS database is not, in itself, considered to represent an environmental concern.

A further review of government regulatory databases revealed no off-site facilities of concern identified in the immediate vicinity that may have potentially impacted the subject site.

FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS, OPINIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Findings

A recognized environmental condition (REC) refers to the presence or likely presence of any hazardous substances or petroleum products in, on, or at a property: due to release to the environment; under conditions indicative of a release to the environment; or under conditions that pose a material threat of a future release to the environment. The following was identified during the course of this assessment:

• EMA identified recognized environmental conditions in connection with the property during the course of this assessment. The recognized environmental conditions included drainage/belowground clarifier associated with auto washing operations at the site. In addition, significant stains were observed in the vicinity of hazardous materials/hazardous wastes storage areas at the site.

A controlled recognized environmental condition (CREC) refers to a REC resulting from a past release of hazardous substances or petroleum products that has been addressed to the satisfaction of the applicable regulatory authority, with hazardous substances or petroleum products allowed to remain in place subject to the implementation of required controls. The following was identified during the course of this assessment:

• EMA did not identify any controlled recognized environmental conditions during the course of this assessment.

A *historical recognized environmental condition (HREC)* refers to a past release of any hazardous substances or petroleum products that has occurred in connection with the property and has been addressed to the satisfaction of the applicable regulatory authority or meeting unrestricted use criteria established by a regulatory authority, without subjecting the property to any required controls. The following was identified during the course of this assessment:

• EMA identified historical recognized environmental conditions during the course of this assessment. The recognized environmental conditions included operation of a service station, Wash Rack with a clarifier, grease pit and a junk yard at the site in the past. The owner of the service station was indicated Standard Oil Company. A further review of records indicated that an application for grading permit for the storage tank backfill was filed on August 22, 1975. It is unknown whether the tank(s) were abandoned in-place by backfilling. It is unknown how many tanks were installed/removed and/or abandoned in-place associated with the former auto service station owned by Standard Oil Company at the site.

CONCLUSIONS, OPINIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

EMA has performed a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment in conformance with the scope and limitations of ASTM Practice E1527-13 of 2001-2005 Sacramento Street; 1024 Mateo Street; 2015 Bay Street, Los Angeles, Los Angeles County, California (the "subject property"). Any exceptions to, or deletions from, this practice are described in Section 1.5 of this report. This assessment has revealed evidence of recognized environmental conditions in connection with the property. Based on the conclusions, EMA recommends further investigation at the site. Further investigation should be conducted in eth following potential areas of concern:

- Conduct a geophysical survey to determine presence and/or absence of underground storage tanks at the site.
- Conduct subsurface investigation (i.e. sampling and laboratory analyses, etc.) in the vicinity of former underground storage tanks, former and current clarifiers, grease pit, and hazardous materials/hazardous wastes storage areas.

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Environmental Managers & Auditors, Inc (EMA) was retained by Bank of America to conduct a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) of the property located at 2001-2005 Sacramento Street ; 1024 Mateo Street; and 2016 Bay Street, Los Angeles, California (herein referred as subject property). The protocol used for this assessment is in general conformance with ASTM E 1527-13, Standard Practice for Environmental Site Assessments: Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Process.

On June 25, 2015, EMA conducted a site reconnaissance to assess the possible presence of petroleum products and hazardous materials at the subject property. EMA's investigation included a review of aerial photographs, historical city directories, a reconnaissance of adjacent properties, background research, and a review of available local, state, and federal regulatory records regarding the presence of petroleum products and/or hazardous materials at the subject property.

1.1 <u>Purpose</u>

The purpose of this Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) was to identify existing or potential Recognized Environmental Conditions (as defined by ASTM Standard E-1527-13) in connection with the Property. EMA understands that the findings of this study will be used by Bank of America to evaluate a pending financial transaction in connection with the subject property.

1.2 Detailed Scope of Services

The scope of work for this ESA is in general accordance with the requirements of ASTM Standard E 1527-13. EMA warrants that the findings and conclusions contained herein were accomplished in accordance with the methodologies set forth in the Scope of Work. These methodologies are described as representing good commercial and customary practice for conducting an Environmental Site Assessment of a property for the purpose of identifying recognized environmental conditions. No other warranties are implied or expressed.

1.3 Significant Assumptions

There is a possibility that even with the proper application of these methodologies there may exist on the subject property conditions that could not be identified within the scope of the assessment or which were not reasonably identifiable from the available information. EMA believes that the information obtained from the records review and the interviews concerning the site is reliable. However, EMA cannot and does not warrant or guarantee that the information provided by these other sources is accurate or complete. The methodologies of this assessment are not intended to produce all inclusive or comprehensive results, but rather to provide Bank of America with information relating to the subject property.

1.4 Special Terms and Conditions

This report is intended for the sole use of Bank of America. Any party other than Bank of America who wishes to use this report to identify recognized environmental conditions in the process of making appropriate inquiry into the site or surrounding properties should notify EMA by executing the "Application of Authorization to Use" which follows this document. Based on the intended use of the report, EMA may require that additional work be performed and that an updated report be issued. Non-compliance with any of these requirements by Bank of America or anyone else will release EMA from any liability resulting from the use of this report by any unauthorized party.

1.5 <u>Limitations</u>

To a large extent, the conclusions reached during this Phase I ESA rely on information gathered from public and private sources. The lack of evidence regarding the presence of hazardous materials resulting from a reasonable and mutually agreed-upon scope of work does not guarantee the absence of such materials. It only indicates that no hazardous materials were found as a result of the investigation. The limited nature of the scope of work for a Phase I ESA precludes EMA from providing any warranty or guarantee regarding the absence of hazardous materials. The report is not a guarantee that chemical contamination does not exist at or beneath the site. This report does not specifically address the quality of groundwater beneath the site. The quality of groundwater can only be ascertained by physical testing. EMA has provided its best professional judgment and performed the agreed-upon services in accordance with standard and accepted consulting practices and procedures. The environmental conditions may vary considerably from those observed during this investigation. Should any additional data become available, these data should be reviewed by EMA and the conclusions presented herein modified as appropriate.

This report has been prepared in accordance with EMA's standard terms and conditions. No other warranty, expressed or implied, is made.

1.6 Limiting Conditions and Methodology Used

The environmental site assessment was performed in general accordance with the methodology set forth in ASTM Standard E-1527-13, Standard Practice for Environmental Site Assessment: Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Process. There were no limiting conditions encountered during the Phase I ESA.

1.7 <u>User Reliance</u>

All reports, both verbal and written, are for the benefit of Bank of America. This report has no other purpose and may not be relied upon by any other person or entity without the written consent of EMA.

2.0 SITE DESCRIPTION

2.1 Location and Legal Description

The address of the subject property is 2001-2005 Sacramento Street; 1024 Mateo Street; 2016 Bay Street, Los Angeles, California (herein referred as subject property). The subject property is located in a residential and industrial area in the City of Los Angeles, California. According to County of Los Angeles Assessor's Office, the assessor's parcel number (APN) of the subject property is 5166-011-021. All adjoining areas consist of commercial and industrial buildings.

2.2 Site and Vicinity Characteristics

The subject property is located in a commercial and industrial area in the City of Los Angeles, California. All adjoining areas consist of commercial and industrial buildings. Access to the subject property is from Bay Street to the north, Sacramento Street to eth south and Mateo Street to the west. Parking is located in the southern and eastern portions of the property. Northwestern portion of the property is occupied by an automotive repair and serviced building with associated offices while southeastern portion of the property is occupied by a storage shed. Storm drainage is accomplished via drains located at the property which direct surface water to storm drains in the surrounding streets.

2.3 <u>Description of Structures</u>

During the site reconnaissance, the subject property was observed to be occupied by MV Transportation Inc. MV Transportation, Inc. is engaged in the auto repair and service business for MTA buses. The subject property consists of a rectangular shaped parcel with a steel frame automotive repair and service building with associated offices in the northwestern portion and a steel frame storage shed in the southeastern portion of the property. The remaining portions of the site are utilized to park MTA busses. During the site reconnaissance, a drainage and a three compartment belowground clarifier were observed in the southeastern portion of the site. This area is utilized to wash vehicles. The wastewater generated from automotive washing operations is collected in the belowground clarifier and subsequently discharged into the city sewer. During the site reconnaissance, a large propane tank was observed in the middle of the property. Storm drainage is accomplished via drains located at the property which direct surface water to storm drains in the surrounding streets. No other significant structures and/or features were observed at the subject property.

2.4 <u>Current Use of the Property</u>

At the time of EMA's site visit, the subject property was observed to be occupied by MV Transportation Inc. MV Transportation, Inc. is engaged in the auto repair and service business for MTA buses. The subject property consists of a rectangular shaped parcel with a steel frame automotive repair and service building in the northwestern portion of

the subject property and a steel frame storage shed in the southeastern portion of the property. The remaining portions of the site are utilized to park MTA busses. During the site reconnaissance, a drainage and a three compartment clarifier were observed in the southeastern section of the site. This area is utilized to wash vehicles. The wastewater generated from automotive washing operations is collected in the belowground clarifier and subsequently discharged into the city sewer. During the site reconnaissance, a large propane tank was observed in the middle of the property. Storm drainage is accomplished via drains located at the property which direct surface water to storm drains in the surrounding streets. No other significant structures and/or features were observed at the subject property.

During the site reconnaissance, significant quantities of hazardous materials/ hazardous wastes (i.e. brake fluids, motor oil, transmission oil, coolants, batteries, waste oil, waste anti-freeze, etc.) were observed in the automotive repair/service building and the storage shed. The hazardous materials/hazardous wastes were stored in 55-gallon and 250-galolon containers and placed in to secondary containments. Significant stains were observed in the vicinity of hazardous materials/hazardous waste storage containers. The hazardous wastes generated at the site are picked up by Safety Kleen for proper disposal.

2.5 <u>Current Adjacent Properties</u>

The subject property is bounded by Bay Street to the north, beyond which are Casita International, Zacatecas Imports, and other industrial developments, LAZ- Express and other industrial developments to the east, Selected Textiles, NSM, Intaglio Inc. and other industrial developments to the south, and Sacramento Street to the west beyond which are CDL Scrap Metals, Pegasus Inc., and other industrial developments.

3.0 USER PROVIDED INFORMATION

Pursuant to ASTM E 1527-13, EMA requested the following site information from Mr. Dean Mariani (the Key Site Contact).

3.1 Title Records

EMA requested title records from the Key Site Contact; however, title records were not available at the site and were not provided to EMA for review.

3.2 Environmental Liens or Activity and Use Limitation

EMA requested information from the Key Site Contact regarding knowledge of environmental liens, activity and use limitations for the Property. The site contact was not aware of any environmental liens associated with the Property. In addition, the site contact had no knowledge of any use or activity limitations

3.3 Specialized Knowledge

EMA inquired with the Key Site Contact regarding any specialized knowledge of environmental conditions associated with the Property. The User and Key Site Manager were not aware of any environmental conditions associated with the Property.

3.4 Commonly Known or Reasonably Ascertainable Information

EMA inquired with the Key Site Contact regarding any commonly known or reasonably ascertainable information within the local community about the Property that is material to recognized environmental conditions in connection with the Property. The User and Key Site Manager were not aware of any information within the local community about the Property that is material to recognized environmental conditions in connection within the local community about the Property.

3.5 Valuation Reduction for Environmental Issues

EMA inquired with the Key Site Contact regarding any knowledge of reductions in property value due to environmental issues. The site contact was not aware of any valuation reductions associated with the Property.

3.6 Reason for Performing Phase I ESA

The purpose of this ESA was to identify existing or potential Recognized Environmental Conditions (as defined by ASTM Standard E-1527-13) in connection with the Property. This ESA was also performed to permit the User to satisfy one of the requirements to

qualify for the innocent landowner, contiguous property owner, or bona fide prospective purchaser limitations on scope of Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA) (42 U.S.C. §9601) liability (hereinafter, the "landowner liability protections," or "LLPs"). ASTM Standard E-1527-13 constitutes "all appropriate inquiry into the previous ownership and uses of the property consistent with good commercial or customary practice" as defined at 42 U.S.C. §9601(35) (B).

4.0 REGULATORY AGENCY RECORDS SEARCH

The purpose of Government database lists is to document the location of known Federal and State superfund sites or other known or potential hazardous waste sites within a oneeighth to one mile radius of the subject property. The review will also serve to indicate the possibility that the subject property may become a "border zone property@, defined as a property located within 2000 feet of a State-designated hazardous waste property.

EMA obtained a Government record report prepared by BBL of Solana Beach, California. This computer generated report is attached to this preliminary environmental site assessment report as Appendix B and consists of Government listed properties within a one-eighth to one-mile radius of the subject property which store and use hazardous materials or have had a release of hazardous materials to soil or groundwater. The study area for this preliminary environmental site assessment includes a one-eighth to one mile radius for Federal, State and local database sources to meet the ASTM standards.

Appendix B includes a complete copy of the regulatory agency database search report generated by BBL for select agency databases only. The accuracy of the results of the report in Appendix B is constrained by the limits of care and professional skill exercised by the EMA's sub-consultant. For completeness and quality control, additional agency records were investigated personally by EMA personnel.

EMA makes no claims as to the completeness or accuracy of the referenced sources. BBL's review of these records can be only as current as their listings, and may not represent the entire sum of known or potential hazardous waste of contaminated sites.

EMA reviewed the following agency lists to evaluate whether there are sites within the study area that may pose potential environmental concerns relative to the site.

4.1 Federal Sources

4.1.1 National Priority List

The National Priorities List (NPL) is the United States Environmental Protection Agency's (USEPA) list of prioritized Superfund sites with significant risk to human health and the environment. These sites receive remedial funding under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Conservation and Liability Act (CERCLA).

No properties within a one mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.1.2 <u>Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act</u> <u>Information System</u>

United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Information System (CERCLIS) January 9, 1992 - CERCLIS provides information for businesses or properties that are on or being considered for the federal Superfund Program according to the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA). Under this program, a business or property is identified and a preliminary assessment is performed to assess whether the site shall become a federal Superfund site.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Six sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property

4.1.3 <u>CERCLIS-NFRAP</u>

As of February 1995, CERCLIS sites designated ANo Further Remedial Action Planned@ (NFRAP) have been removed from CERCLIS. NFRAP sites may be sites where, following an investigation, no contamination was found, contamination was removed quickly without the need for the site to be placed on the NPL, or the contamination was not serious enough to require Federal Superfund action or NPL consideration.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Six sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property

4.1.4 Federal Facilities (FEDFAC)

As part of the CERCLA program, federal facilities with known or suspected environmental problems, the Federal Facilities Hazardous Waste Compliance Docket is tracked separately to comply with a Federal Court order.

No properties within a one mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.1.5 Federal ERNS list

The Emergency Response Notification System (ERNS) is a national database used to collect information on reported accidental releases of oil and hazardous substances. The database contains information from spill reports made to federal authorities including the EPA, the US Coast Guard, the National Response Center and the Department of Transportation.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Seventeen sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.1.6 Federal RCRA TSD facilities list

The EPA's Resources Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) Program identifies and tracks hazardous waste from the point of generation to the point of disposal. The RCRA Facilities database is a compilation by the EPA of reporting facilities that generate, transport, treat, store or dispose of hazardous waste.

No properties within a one mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.1.7 Federal RCRA small& Large Generators list

The EPA's Resources Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) Program identifies small hazardous waste generator sites, who generate less than 100 kg/month of non-acutely hazardous waste and large hazardous waste generator sites, who generate more than 100 kg/month of non-acutely hazardous waste. The RCRA Facilities database is a compilation by the EPA of reporting facilities that generate hazardous waste.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Eighty-three sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.1.8 EPA CORRACTS

The EPA maintains this database of RCRA facilities which are undergoing "corrective action". A "corrective action order" is issued pursuant to RCRA section 3008 (h) when there has been a release of hazardous waste or constituents into the environment from RCRA facility. Corrective actions may be required beyond the facility's boundary and can be required regardless of when the release occurred, even if it predates RCRA.

The subject property is not listed on this database. One site is listed on this database. This site is not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, this site is not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property
4.1.9 <u>Site Enforcement Systems (SETS)</u>

When expanding Superfund money at a CERCLA site, EPA must conduct a search to identify parties that with potential financial responsibility for remediation of uncontrolled hazardous wastes sites. EPA regional Superfund Waste Management Staff issue a notice to the potentially responsible party (PRP). The status field contains the EPA ID number and name of the site where the actual pollution occurred.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Five sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.1.10 Enforcement Docket System (DO)

DOCKET tracks civil judicial cases against environmental polluters, while CDETS processes court settlements, called consent decrees.

No properties within a one-half mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.1.11 Criminal Docket System (C-DOCKET)

The Criminal Docket System is a comprehensive automated system for tracking criminal enforcement actions. C-Docket handles data for all environmental status and tracks enforcement from the initial stage of investigations through conclusion.

No properties within a one-half mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.1.12 Federal Enforcement Dockets

The US EPA, office of Enforcement, maintains a list of sites under enforcement by the US EPA.

No properties within a one mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.1.13 Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act (SARA)

Title III of the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act, Section 313, also known as Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986 requires owners or operators of facilities with more than 10 employees and are listed under Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Codes 20 through 39 to report the manufacturing, processing or use of more than a threshold of certain chemical or chemical categories listed under section 313. This data base is also known as Toxic Release Information System (TRIS).

The subject property is not listed on this database. Six sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.1.14 Nuclear Regulatory Commission Licenses (NC)

The Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards has been mandated to protect the public health and safety, the common defense and security, and the environment by licensing, inspection and environmental impact assessment for all nuclear facilities and activities and for the import and export of special nuclear material.

No properties within a one-half mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.1.15 PCB Waste Handler Database (PCB)

The US EPA tracks generators, transporters, commercial stores and/or brokers and disposers of PCBs in accordance with the Toxic Substance Control Act.

The subject property is not listed on this database. One site is listed on this database. This site is not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, this site is not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property

4.1.16 Permit Compliance System (PCS)

PCS is a database which contains data on NPDES permit holding facilities. PCS was developed by The US EPA to meet the information need of the NPDES program under the Clean Water Act. PCS tracks permit, compliance, and enforcement states of NPDES facilities.

No properties within a one-half mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.1.17 AIRS Facility System (AFS)

AFS contains emissions and compliance data on air pollution point sources tracked by USEPA and State and Local environmental agencies.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Eight sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.1.18 Section Seven Tracking System (SSTS)

SSTS evolved from the FIFRA and TSCA Enforcement System. SSTS tracks the registration of all pesticide producing establishments and tracks annually the types and amounts of pesticides, active ingredients, and devices that are produced, sold or distributed each year.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Three sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.1.19 FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System (FIFRA)

NCDB supports implementation of the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Control Act (FIFRA) and the Toxic Substance Control Act (TSCA).

The subject property is not listed on this database. Four sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.1.20 Federal Facilities Information System (FFIS)

Federal Facilities Information System (FFIS) contains a list of all Treatment Storage and Disposal Facilities owned and operated by federal agencies.

No properties within a one-half mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.1.21 Chemicals in Commerce Information System (CICIS)

CICIS contains an inventory of chemicals manufactured in commerce or imported for Toxic Substance Control Act regulated commercial purposes. CICIS allow EPA to maintain a comprehensive listing of over 70,000 chemical substances that are manufactured or imported and are regulated under TSCA.

The subject property is not listed on this database. One site is listed on this database. This site is not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the

distance and status, this site is not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property

4.1.22 EPA Facility Index System (FINDS)

The US EPA maintains an index system of all facilities which are regulated or have been assigned an identification number for other purposes.

The subject property is not listed on this database. One site is listed on this database. These sites is not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, this site is not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.1.23 Hazardous Material Incident Report System (HMIRS)

The Hazardous Material Report Incident Subsystem HMIRS of the Research and Special Programs Administration (RSPA) Hazardous Materials Information System was established in 1971 to fulfill the requirements of the Federal hazardous material transportation law. Part 171 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations (49 CFR) contains the incident reporting requirements of carriers of hazardous materials. An unintentional release of hazardous materials meeting the criteria set forth in Section 171.16, 49 CFR, must be reported on DOT Form 5800.1. The data from the reports received are subsequently entered in the HAZMAT database.

The subject property is not listed on this database.

4.2 <u>California State Sources</u>

4.2.1 <u>State Response Sites</u>

The Site Mitigation and Brownfield Reuse Database (SMBRD) identify certain potential hazardous waste sites. These are confirmed release sites where DTSC is involved in remediation, either in a lead or oversight capacity and deemed generally high-priority and high potential risk.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Eight sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.2.2 <u>Cal Sites - No Further Action</u>

This section includes the sites on the Calsite list, which have been flagged for no further action by the California Environmental Protection Agency, Department of Toxics Substance Control (DTSC) in accordance with Section 25359.6 of the California Health and Safety Code.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Twenty sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.2.3. School Property Evaluation Program

This category of The Site Mitigation and Brownfield Reuse Program Database contains proposed and existing school sites that are being evaluated by DTSC for possible hazardous materials contamination. In some cases, these properties may be listed in the Cal-Sites category depending on the level of threat to public health and safety or the environment they pose.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Three sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.2.4 Voluntary Clean Up Program

This category contains low threat level properties with either confirmed or unconfirmed releases and the project proponents have requested that DTSC oversee investigation and/or cleanup activities and have agreed to provide coverage for DTSC=s costs.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Eight sites are listed on this database. These sites is not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.2.5 <u>Properties Needing Further Evaluation</u>

This category of The Site Mitigation and Brownfields Reuse Program Database contains properties that are suspected of being contaminated. These are unconfirmed contaminated properties that need to be assessed using the PEA process.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Four sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.2.6 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks

The leaking underground storage tanks (LUST) list in the City of Los Angeles is maintained by the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) City of Los Angeles Fire Department. The LUST list is a compilation of all investigations conducted by the RWQCB in response to reports of hazardous materials leaking from USTs.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Fifty-nine sites are listed on this database. Based on the distance and status, the above listed LUST sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the property.

4.2.7 Solid Waste Information System (SWIS)

This list is maintained by the California Integrated Waste Management Board. In 1977, this list was created to identify active and inactive sanitary landfills, transfer stations, and disposal facilities.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Seven sites are listed on this database. These sites is not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.2.8 <u>Underground Storage Tank Registrations Database</u>

The California State Water Regional Control Board, Office of Underground Storage Tanks maintains an inventory of registered underground storage tanks.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Seventy-six sites are listed on this database. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.2.9 Hazardous Waste and Substance Site List (CORTESE List)

The CORTESE List is compiled by the California State Office of Planning and Research and provides information concerning identified hazardous waste/substance sites within the State of California. The CORTESE List contains the following information:

- Records that have been compiled by the CAL-EPA DTSC. These are abandoned hazardous waste sites.
- Records that have been compiled by the Environmental Health Division of Cal EPA. These sites contain contaminated public drinking water wells that serve less than 200 connections (small Wells) and more than 200 connections (large wells).
- Sites included under the Hazardous Substance Cleanup Bond Act, pursuant to Section 25356 of the California Health and Safety Code.
- Records compiled by the State Water Resources Control Board (WRCB). These are the sites of reported UST leaks that have been investigated by the WRCB.
- Records compiled by the California Waste Management Board. These are solid waste disposal facilities from which there is a known migration of hazardous wastes.

No properties within a one mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.2.10 Hazardous Waste Information System

The DTSC maintains a database keeping track of the movement and disposal of hazardous waste. The data is used to support the Tanner legislation, AB 2948.

The subject property is listed on this database. In addition, two hundred and twenty-one additional sites are listed on this database. The subject property tenants, Consolidated Fibers and MV Transportation, are listed on this database. The database report indicated that Consolidated Fibers and MV Transportation generated waste oil and unspecified organic liquid mixtures at the site. It should be noted that potential for environmental concern is not necessarily present simply because a property is listed on this database. HWIS does not track violators and the presence of a facility on the HWIS database does not necessarily indicate that an environmental concern exists at that facility. The presence of these facilities on the HWIS database is not, in itself, considered to represent an environmental concern.

4.2.11 Toxic Release

The California Regional Water Quality Control Boards for local Department of Health Services keeps track of toxic releases to the environment. These lists are known as Unauthorized Release, Spill, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanups, Non-Tank Release, Toxics List or similar, depending on the local agency.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Twenty-five sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the property.

4.2.12 Toxic Pits

The California Water Quality Control Board, Division of Loan Grants maintains an inventory of sites with toxic pits in the state.

No properties within a one mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.2.13 Solid Waste Assessment Test

This program, provided for under the Calderon legislation, requires that disposal sites with more than 50,000 cubic yards of waste provide sufficient information to the regional water quality control board to determine whether or not the site has discharged hazardous substances which will impact the environment.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Two sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.3 Local Sources

4.3.1 <u>City of Los Angeles Department of Building and Safety</u>

Records from the City of Los Angeles Department of Building and Safety (CLADBS) were reviewed for evidence indicating the developmental history of the subject property, and for the presence of documentation relative to underground storage tanks. Following is a summary of building records available at the CLABSD:

2001- Sacramento Street

| 6/9/1941 | Building permit for New Building. |
|------------|--|
| 6/9/1941 | Purpose of building is a Wash Rack and Service Station |
| 8/31/1941 | Certificate of Completion for Auto Service Station (Wash Rack Completion). |
| 12/16/1949 | Building Permit for New Building. |
| 12/16/1949 | Application to Erect New building. Purpose of building indicated as Grease Pit. Owner named is Standard oil. |
| 5/28/1952 | Building Permit for New Building |
| 9/03/1952 | Certificate of Occupancy, 1 Story, Type IIIA, 10x10 Restroom addition to existing 10 X 20 office. G-1 Occupancy. |
| 2/25/1959 | Present use is a Wash Rack, Size is 20 X 30, clarifier pit and wash tank. |
| 9/10/1970 | Building permit for new building. |
| 9/30/1970 | Application for sign permit. Exchange sign on existing column and footage (same area). The size of the sign is indicated as 5' X 36' X 25' feet high. Owner named is Standard Oil. |
| 9/10/1972 | Building permit. |
| 8/22/1973 | Grading permit. |
| 9/19/1973 | Grading Completion File. |
| 9/25/1973 | Engineers Certificate of Compliance for compacted earth fills. Description of Grading, Classification of the soil and tabulation of |

the test results. Owner named is Standard Oil.

- 10/7/1973 Approval granted for compacted fill as described in the compaction report dated 09/19/1973. Owner named is Standard Oil.
- 10/02/1973 Grading Completion File.
- 8/22/1975 Application for Grading Permit and for Grading Certificate. Purpose of grading was for the storage tank backfill. Owner named is Standard Oil. Permit #76629.
- 8/22/1975 Application filed to demolish/Handwreck. The present use of building is indicated as a service station. The plot plan provided indicated presence of tanks in the southeastern portion of the site. Owner named is Standard oil. Permit #76630.
- 8/22/1975 Application filed to demolish/Handwreck. Present use of the building is indicated as canopy (service station). Owner named is Standard Oil. Permit #76631.
- 8/22/1975 Application filed to demolish/Handwreck. Present use of the building is for restrooms. Owner named is Standard Oil. Permit #76632.
- 8/22/1975 Application filed to demolish/Handwreck. Present use of building is indicated as a Tire Shop. Owner named is Standard Oil. Permit #76633.
- 8/22/1975 Application to Add-Alter-Repair-Demolish and for Certificate of Occupancy. Present use of building indicated is a Storeroom. Demolish Handwreck. Owner named is Standard Oil. Permit #76634.

2005- Sacramento Street

- 7/01/1914 Building permit.
- 7/01/1914 Mechanical permit.
- 6/17/1925 Building permit and application to alter, repair and demolish. Single family dwelling. Owner indicated as Charles Lsntz.
- 6/29/1926 Application to alter, repair and demolish. General repairs, building moved, new concrete foundation and connect plumbing, gas and sewer line. Owner indicated as Charles Lsntz.

1024 Mateo Street

- 3/13/1905 Application to Build, 4 Room 1 Story residence.
- 3/13/1905 Building permit.
- 7/01/1914 Building permit.
- 7/01/1914 Mechanical permit and application for installation of plumbing, Sewer or cesspool, Gas fitting and old gas pipe line inspection.
- 12/23/1974 Affidavit for Lot tie.

2016 Bay Street

- 12/02/1949 Application to alter, repair, or demolish and for a Certificate of Occupancy.
- 12/4/1975 Certificate of Occupancy. 1 Story, Type V, 80'x150' warehouse building. 24 required parking spaces provided.
- 3/24/1975 Application to Add-Alter-Repair-Demolish and for Certificate of Occupancy. Present use of the building indicated as a Truck Scale. Owner named is Consolidated Fiber, Inc.
- 4/04/1975 Application for Grading Permit and for Grading Certificate. Owner named is Consolidated Fiber, Inc.
- 9/10/1980 Certificate of Occupancy.
- 8/12/1981 Certificate of Occupancy.
- 4/01/1982 Certificate of Occupancy.
- 6/16/1983 Certificate of Occupancy. Use of land for junk yard. Storage yard only.
- 2/02/1984 Certificate of Occupancy. Use of land for junk yard.
- 4/05/1985 Certificate of Occupancy. Use of land for junk yard. Storage only.
- 3/08/1994 Application filed for the demolition of loading dock. Owner is indicated Stacey Construction Inc.

- 12/18/2006 Application for building permit and Certificate of Occupancy. Install New 68' X 11'6 X 6" Concrete pad for L.P.G tank.
- 2/09/2012 Certificate of Occupancy. Use of land for junk yard.

Copies of the building department records are presented in Appendix C.

4.3.2 City of Los Angeles Fire Department

Records from the City of Los Angeles Department Fire Department (CLAFD) were requested for review for evidence indicating the presence of Underground Storage Tanks (USTs) and for the use of hazardous materials. The records were not available at the time this report was prepared. Upon availability of records, if any, the report will be updated as deemed necessary.

4.3.3 County of Los Angeles Department of Public Health

Records from the County of Los Angeles Department of Public Health were requested for review for the presence of Underground Storage Tanks (USTs) and for the use of hazardous materials. The records were not available at the time this report was prepared. Upon availability of records, if any, the report will be updated as deemed necessary.

4.3.4 County of Los Angeles Department of Public Works

Records from the County of Los Angeles Department of Public Works were requested for review for the presence of Underground Storage Tanks (USTs) and for the use of hazardous materials. The records were not available at the time this report was prepared. Upon availability of records, if any, the report will be updated as deemed necessary.

4.3.5 South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD)

A file review was conducted at the South Coast Air Quality Management District. No records were found for the subject property.

4.3.6 Department of Toxic Substances Control

Records from the Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) were reviewed. No records for the hazardous materials and/or USTs were found for the subject property.

4.3.7 California Regional Quality Control Board- Los Angeles Region

Records from the California Regional Quality Control Board - Los Angeles Region were reviewed No records for the hazardous materials and/or USTs were found for the subject property.

5.0 ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING

5.1 Geology and Hydrogeology

The geologic Map of California indicated that the geology of the area within the subject site consist of alluvial fill. The U.S. Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation Service, Report and General Soil Map of Los Angeles County indicate that the soil in the area defined as Hanford association, 2 to 5 percent slopes. The Hanford soils are over 60 inches deep, are well drained, and have moderately rapid subsoil permeability. They have pale-brown coarse sandy loam surface layers about 8 inches thick underlain by light yellowish-brown coarse sandy loam and gravely loamy coarse sand substratum.

Hydrologically, the site lies within the Los Angeles Forebay Area of the Central Groundwater Basin (CDWR, 1961). Depth to eth first groundwater is estimated approximately 120 feet belowground surface (CDWR, 1961).

6.0 HISTORICAL SITE USAGE

Based on the historical documents, the subject property has been occupied by the current industrial buildings since early 1970's. Prior to the current development, the subject property was occupied by single family dwelling and auto service station Wash Rack.

6.1 <u>Aerial Photographs</u>

Historical and current usage of the subject property and adjacent areas was investigated by reviewing aerial photographs provided by the BBL.

The historical aerial photographs available from 1947 to Present were reviewed. Following is a description of aerial photographs.

- Recent A building structure appears in the northwestern portion of the property. The propane tank observed in the middle of the property during site reconnaissance is visible in the aerial photographs. Several large vehicles are present at the subject property. Surrounding areas are fully developed.
- 5/31/1994 A building structure appears in the northwestern portion of the property. The propane tank is visible in the middle of the property. Surrounding areas are fully developed.
- 5/26/1995 A building structure appears in the northwestern portion of the property. The propane tank is visible in the middle of the property. Surrounding areas are fully developed.
- 10/20/1980 A building structure appears in the northwestern portion of the property. The canopies are visible in the southwestern portion of the site. The canopies appear to be related to the service station previously operated at the site as noted in the building department records. Surrounding areas are fully developed.
- 10/31/1979 A building structure appears in the northwestern portion of the property. A structure also appears in the southern section of the property. Surrounding areas are developed.
- 3/17/1973 Aerial photo is not legible.
- 9/13/1968 Some structures appear on the subject property. Vehicles are visible at the site. Surrounding areas are fully developed.

Copies of the aerial photographs are presented in Appendix D.

6.2 <u>Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps</u>

These maps were prepared for fire insurance underwriting purposes, and describe the construction and relative fire-resistance of buildings, depict the locations of fire-prevention devices, gasoline storage tanks, water lines, cistern, and any potentially flammable materials in the site vicinity over time. A search of Sanborn fire insurance maps conducted by BBL indicated that no mapping was done for the subject area.

Date Description

- 1900 Dwellings are present at the subject property.
- July 1953An office in the northwestern corner, gas and oil activity in the south-
western portion, a restaurant in the west-central portion and an office
in the in the middle of the property are present. The office noted in
the northwestern corner is associated with Transfer Cos. Truck Yard.
- July 1958 Same as in July 1953.
- July 1961 Gas and oil activities appear in the northwestern, middle and southcentral portions of the property. Auto Laundry is present in the southeastern portion of the property.

Copies of eth sanborn maps are presented in Appendix E.

6.3 <u>City Directories Records</u>

City Directories have been published for many cities and towns across the United States since the 18th Century. Originally a list of town residents, the City Directory became a tool for locating individuals and businesses in a particular urban or suburban area. For each address within an area, City Directories list the name of each resident or, if a business operates from that address, the name and the type of business. This historic overview of occupants of a given property is a valuable tool for companies involved in assessing the historic prior use of any resident or commercial property.

BBL performed the City Directories search. The following is the result of City Directory Search:

2015

1024 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2020 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST No Commercial Listings SELECTED TEXTILES GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings MORTON SCRAP METAL PLAYETHICS MO SEWING INC CASITA INTERNATIONAL

| 931 MATEO ST | PLUMA IMPORT INC |
|--|---|
| Source: | Combo1 |
| 2014 | |
| 1024 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings |
| 1100 MATEO ST | SELECTED TEXTILES |
| 1901 SACRAMENTO ST | GELTMAN INDUSTRIES |
| 2001 SACRAMENTO ST | No Commercial Listings |
| 2020 SACRAMENTO ST | MORTON SCRAP METAL |
| 2030 SACRAMENTO ST | ISY INC |
| 2036 SACRAMENTO ST | PLAYETHICS |
| 2038 SACRAMENTO ST | STONE NARA |
| 2039 SACRAMENTO ST | MO SEWING INC |
| 930 MATEO ST | CASITA INTERNATIONAL |
| 931 MATEO ST | PLUMA IMPORT INC |
| Source: | Combo1 |
| 2012 | |
| | |
| 1024 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings |
| | |
| 1901 SACRAMENTO ST | GELTMAN INDUSTRIES |
| 2001 SACRAMENTO ST | |
| 2020 SACRAMENTO ST | |
| 2038 SACRAMENTO ST | BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC |
| 2000 OAORAMENTO OT | LITTLE SUN INC |
| 2039 SACRAMENTO ST | MO SEWING INC |
| 930 MATEO ST | BX3USA INC |
| | CASITA INTERNATIONAL |
| 931 MATEO ST | PLUMA IMPORT INC |
| Source: | Combo1 |
| 2010 | |
| 1024 MATEO ST | No Commercial Lictings |
| | SELECTED TEXTILES |
| 1901 SACRAMENTO ST | GELEGTED TEXTILES |
| 2001 SACRAMENTO ST | No Commercial Listings |
| 2020 SACRAMENTO ST | MORTON SCRAP METAL |
| 2030 SACRAMENTO ST | ISY INC |
| 2036 SACRAMENTO ST | GIFTWAY INC |
| 2038 SACRAMENTO ST | BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC |
| 2039 SACRAMENTO ST | MO SEWING INC |
| 930 MATEO ST | BX3USA INC |
| | CASITA INTERNATIONAL |
| | OPTIMA TRADING CO |
| 931 MATEO ST | PLUMA IMPORT INC |
| Source: | Combo1 |
| 2008 | |
| | |
| 1024 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings |
| 1100 MATEO ST | SELECTED TEXTILES |
| 1901 SACRAMENTO ST | GELIMAN INDUSTRIES |
| | |
| 2020 SACRAMENTO ST | |
| 2022 SACKAMENTO ST | INTAGLIO |
| 2030 SACKAWENTO ST | ISY INC |
| 2020 SACDAMENTO ST | |
| 2038 SACRAMENTO ST | ISY INC BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC |
| 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST | ISY INC BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC M O SEWING INC CASITA INTERNACIONAL |
| 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST | ISY INC BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC M O SEWING INC CASITA INTERNACIONAL KOP ZIPDER INC |
| 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST | ISY INC BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC M O SEWING INC CASITA INTERNACIONAL KPP ZIPPER INC OPTIMA TRADING CO |

| 931 MATEO ST | PLUMA IMPORT INC |
|---|--|
| Source: | Combo1 |
| 2006 | |
| 1024 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2020 SACRAMENTO ST 2022 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings MORTON SCRAP METAL INTAGLIO ISY INC TEX VISION GIFTWAY BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC CASITA INTERNACIONAL KPP ZIPPER OPTIMA TRADING CO PLUMA IMPORT INC |
| Source: | Combo1 |
| 2004 | |
| 1024 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2020 SACRAMENTO ST 2022 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 931 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings T A GREENE CO GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings MORTON SCRAP METAL INTAGLIO GIFTWAY BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC TEX VISION PLUMA IMPORT INC |
| | |
| Source: | Combo1 |
| Source: 2000 | Combo1 |
| Source: 2000 1024 MATEO ST 1038 MATEO ST 100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST 931 MATEO ST | Combo1 No Commercial Listings C W PRODUCE T A GREENE CO GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings ASALING IMPORT & EXPORT INC U & I KNIT BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC MODA PRODUCTION GOLDEN PLATING CORP KIDSSMILE IMPORT |
| Source: 2000 1024 MATEO ST 1038 MATEO ST 100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST 931 MATEO ST Source: | Combo1 No Commercial Listings C W PRODUCE T A GREENE CO GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings ASALING IMPORT & EXPORT INC U & I KNIT BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC MODA PRODUCTION GOLDEN PLATING CORP KIDSSMILE IMPORT Combo1 |
| Source: 2000 1024 MATEO ST 1038 MATEO ST 1000 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST 931 MATEO ST 931 MATEO ST Source: 1998 | Combo1 No Commercial Listings C W PRODUCE T A GREENE CO GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings ASALING IMPORT & EXPORT INC U & I KNIT BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC MODA PRODUCTION GOLDEN PLATING CORP KIDSSMILE IMPORT Combo1 |
| Source: 2000 1024 MATEO ST 1038 MATEO ST 1038 MATEO ST 1001 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 301 MATEO ST 1024 MATEO ST 1038 MATEO ST 1001 SACRAMENTO ST 2011 SACRAMENTO ST 2011 SACRAMENTO ST 2013 SACRAMENTO ST 2014 SACRAMENTO ST 2014 SACRAMENTO ST 2015 SACRAMENTO ST 2025 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 MATEO ST 931 MATEO ST 931 MATEO ST 931 MATEO ST | Combo1 No Commercial Listings C W PRODUCE T A GREENE CO GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings ASALING IMPORT & EXPORT INC U & I KNIT BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC MODA PRODUCTION GOLDEN PLATING CORP KIDSSMILE IMPORT Combo1 No Commercial Listings C W PRODUCE T A GREENE CO GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings FLORES PRODUCE FULL CIRCLE SPORTSWEAR BEVERLY EMBROIDERY INC GOLDEN PLATING CORP KIDSSMILE IMPORT Combo1 |

1994

1005 MATEO ST 1024 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST

2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2014 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST

Source:

Combo1

GELTMAN REZEX CORP

1990

1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST No Commercial Listings No Commercial Listings

SUMMIT PULP AND PAPER INC

No Commercial Listings

No Commercial Listings

MEDIA LITHOGRAPHICS INC

GOLDEN PLATING CORP

FLORES PRODUCE

T A GREENE CO INC

1985

1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST No Commercial Listings No Commercial Listings CONSOLIDTAED FIBRES-SETTSU INC

1980

1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST No Commercial Listings No Commercial Listings CONSOLIDTAED FIBRES-SETTSU INC

1976

1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST No Commercial Listings No Commercial Listings No Listings

1971

1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST No Commercial Listings FENTONS R TR No Listings

1961

1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST No Commercial Listings FENTONS R TR No Listings

1956

1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST No Commercial Listings FENTONS R TR No Listings

A summary of city directories search is presented in Appendix F.

6.4 <u>Historical Topographic Maps</u>

EMA obtained historical topographic map from topozone.com.

Date:1972Description:No production wells or other significant surface features are
as depicted as present on the USGS map.

6.5 <u>Prior Assessment Reports</u>

Although requested, no previously prepared environmental reports such as Phase I or II Environmental Site Assessments, lead-based paint surveys, lead-in-water surveys, asbestos surveys or geotechnical reports prepared by other consultants were provided for EMA's review.

6.6 <u>Zoning/Land Use Records</u>

Records of the local government were reviewed to determine current and historical uses of the subject property permitted by the local government. According to the City Los Angeles Building Department, the subject property is zoned C-2 commercial.

6.7 <u>Recorded Land Title Records</u>

Review of a 50-year chain of title was not included in the scope of the assessment. A title report was requested from the Client, but was not received prior to issuance of this report. As a result, the information required for review of recorded land title records is considered not to be readily ascertainable.

6.8 Additional Historical Record Sources

Historical use of the Property was researched using standard historical sources. No other research was conducted or deemed necessary for this assessment

6.9 <u>Historical Use Information on Adjoining Properties</u>

A review of the historical records revealed that the surrounding areas were used for commercial and industrial purposes in the past.

6.10 Data Failure

The objective of historical research is to develop a history of the previous uses of the subject property and surrounding area, in order to help identify the likelihood release of hazardous substances as a result of past activities. The agreed scope of work requires the assessor to attempt to identify use of the Property at 5-year intervals from 1940 to the present, or, if the Property was already developed in 1940, to the first date of development, but recognizes that data failure frequently occurs, making this impossible. When data failure occurs, ASTM

E 1527-13 requires the assessor to document the data failure and assess the potential impact on the ability of the EP to identify recognized environmental conditions.

Information developed in the course of this assessment is adequate to satisfy the requirements of the scope of assessment. No related data failure has been identified.

7.0 SITE RECONNAISSANCE

On June 25, 2015, EMA personnel conducted an inspection of the site located at 2001-2005 Sacramento Street, 1024 Mateo Street, and 2016 Bay Street, Los Angeles, California, to assess the current on-site activities that may pose potential impact to the subsurface conditions of the subject site.

During the site visit, EMA personnel inspected the subject site regarding potential environmental concerns including the presence of the UST's or AST's, spray booths, pits, clarifiers, and/or sumps, quantities and types of hazardous/toxic materials and wastes stored, treated, used, generated, or disposed of as part of present or previous tenants business activities, unusual stains or odors, and knowledge of hazardous material spills on the subject site. The subject site was inspected for evidence of any staining and/or spills.

Environmental considerations associated with the site and the study area is discussed in the following sections.

7.1 Aboveground Storage Tanks

During the site reconnaissance, with the exception of a large propane tank, no other aboveground fuel storage tanks were observed on the subject property. No environmental concerns were noted in the vicinity of propane tank.

7.2 <u>Underground Storage Tanks</u>

During the site reconnaissance, manways, vent pipes, fill connections, concrete pads and saw cuts were not observed in the paved areas of the site.

7.3 <u>Water and Wastewater</u>

During the site reconnaissance, a drainage and a three compartment clarifier were observed in the southeastern section of the site. This area is utilized to wash vehicles. The wastewater generated from automotive washing operations is collected in the below ground clarifier and subsequently discharged into the city sewer via this clarifier.

7.4 <u>Hazardous Materials/Wastes</u>

During the site reconnaissance, significant quantities of hazardous materials/ hazardous wastes (i.e. brake fluids, motor oil, transmission oil, coolants, batteries, waste oil, waste anti-freeze, etc.) were observed in the automotive repair/service building and the storage shed. The hazardous materials/hazardous wastes were stored in 55-gallon and 250-gallon containers and placed in to secondary containments. Significant stains were observed in the vicinity of hazardous materials/hazardous waste storage containers. The hazardous wastes generated at the site are picked up by Safety Kleen for proper disposal.

7.5 <u>Air Emissions</u>

No air emission sources requiring permits were observed at the subject property during the site reconnaissance.

7.6 <u>PCBs</u>

In general, all PCB-designated transformers were required to be replaced with non-PCBdesignated transformers when PCBs were designated as a carcinogen by the EPA in 1977. Transformers are currently classified as PCB-containing if their cooling oils contain greater than 50 milligrams per liter (ppm) total PCBs.

During the site reconnaissance, no pad-mounted electrical transformer were observed on the subject property.

7.7 Solid Waste

Solid waste on the subject property is collected in a 10-cubic yard dumpsters situated in the storage shed. The dumpsters were noted to contain miscellaneous cardboard at the time of the Property reconnaissance and no indication of potentially hazardous material disposal was noted during EMA's reconnaissance.

7.8 Asbestos Containing Materials (ACMs)

The potential for the presence of friable ACM was evaluated based on the age of the improvements, dates of renovation and other relevant information. Appendix G of the USEPA Guidance Document: Managing Asbestos in Place - A Building Owner's Guide to Operations and Maintenance Programs for Asbestos-Containing Materials (the Green Book) was used as a guide in identifying suspect materials and the definition of suspect ACM and presumed asbestos containing material is taken from 29 CRF Parts 1910, et al. Occupational Exposure to Asbestos; Final Rule. It should be noted that asbestos may still be utilized in some non-friable products, such as sheet vinyl flooring, vinyl floor tiles, floor tile mastic, joint compound, asbestos-cement board and roofing materials, as these materials may still be manufactured and installed in the United States. The level of the preliminary evaluation performed was not designed to comply with the survey requirements of the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (AHERA), 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 763, National Emission Standard for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) 40 CFR 61, Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) 29 CFR Part 1926.1101, or other local, state or federal regulations, but has been conducted per accepted industry practices to satisfy the scope of work of the rating agencies and/or lenders. A finding in this report of "ACM is not a significant concern" or "No significant asbestos was identified" should not be interpreted as "the building is asbestos free".

Based on the original date of construction (prior to 1981) construction materials may contain asbestos and the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) regulation 29 CFR 1926.1101, requires certain construction materials to be presumed to contain asbestos, for purposes of this regulation. All thermal system insulation (TSI) and surfacing material that are present in a building constructed prior to 1982 and have not been appropriately tested are presumed asbestos containing material (PACM). No asbestos sampling was conducted as part of this assignment.

7.9 <u>Pesticides</u>

No visual evidence of pesticides use on the property was observed during the site reconnaissance. A review of the historical aerial photographs did not reveal the presence of any agricultural activities and/or nursery at the subject site.

7.10 <u>Radon</u>

High radon readings are typically found and tested in areas of geologic activity, and in cold-weather climates where structures have inadequate ventilation and below grade construction. Radon levels of 4 picocuries per liter (pCi/L) or greater are considered significant readings.

The US EPA has prepared a map to assist National, State, and local organizations to target their resources and to implement radon-resistant building codes. The map divides the country into three Radon Zones, Zone 1 being those areas with the average predicted indoor radon concentration in residential dwellings exceeding the EPA Action limit of 4.0 picoCuries per Liter (pCi/L). It is important to note that the EPA has found homes with elevated levels of radon in all three zones, and the EPA recommends site specific testing in order to determine radon levels at a specific location. However, the map does give a valuable indication of the propensity of radon gas accumulation in structures. Review of the EPA Map of Radon Zones places the Property in Zone 2, where average predicted radon levels are between 2.0 and 4.0 pCi/L.

7.11 <u>Wetland</u>

There are no wetlands on the subject property or within the vicinity of the subject property. The review of aerial photographs, topographic maps and personal interviews with local agencies staff did not indicate the presence of wetlands site on the subject property, nor in the vicinity of the subject site.

7.12 Oil Wells

California Division of Oil and Gas (DOG) maps and records were researched for data regarding the presence of petroleum-producing properties and/or "wildcat" oil or gas wells in the site vicinity. No oil and gas wells were identified on the subject site.

7.13 Landfills

There are no landfills on the subject property or within the vicinity of the subject property. A review of historical aerial photographs, topographic maps, personal interviews with local agencies staff and government database report did not indicate the presence of landfills site on the subject property, nor in the vicinity of the subject site.

8.0 INTERVIEWS

8.1 Interviews with Owner

The owner was not available for an interview at the time of the site inspection.

8.2 Interviews with Site Manager

The Key Site Contact, Mr. Dean Mariani, was available for an interview at the time of the site inspection.

8.3 Interviews with Occupants

Property occupants were available for interview at the time of site inspection.

8.4 Interviews with Local Government Offices

City of Los Angeles Building and Safety Department

City of Los Angeles Fire Department

County of Los Angeles Department of Public Health

County of Los Angeles Department of Public Works

South Coast Air Quality Management District

California Regional Water Quality Control Board

9.0 FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

9.1 Findings

A recognized environmental condition (REC) refers to the presence or likely presence of any hazardous substances or petroleum products in, on, or at a property: due to release to the environment; under conditions indicative of a release to the environment; or under conditions that pose a material threat of a future release to the environment. The following was identified during the course of this assessment:

• EMA identified recognized environmental conditions in connection with the property during the course of this assessment. The recognized environmental conditions included drainage/belowground clarifier associated with auto washing operations at the site. In addition, significant stains were observed in the vicinity of hazardous materials/hazardous wastes storage areas at the site.

A controlled recognized environmental condition (CREC) refers to a REC resulting from a past release of hazardous substances or petroleum products that has been addressed to the satisfaction of the applicable regulatory authority, with hazardous substances or petroleum products allowed to remain in place subject to the implementation of required controls. The following was identified during the course of this assessment:

• EMA did not identify any controlled recognized environmental conditions during the course of this assessment.

A *historical recognized environmental condition (HREC)* refers to a past release of any hazardous substances or petroleum products that has occurred in connection with the property and has been addressed to the satisfaction of the applicable regulatory authority or meeting unrestricted use criteria established by a regulatory authority, without subjecting the property to any required controls. The following was identified during the course of this assessment:

• EMA identified historical recognized environmental conditions during the course of this assessment. The recognized environmental conditions included operation of a service station, Wash Rack with a clarifier, grease pit and a junk yard at the site in the past. The owner of the service station was indicated Standard Oil Company. A further review of records indicated that an application for grading permit for the storage tank backfill was filed on August 22, 1975. It is unknown whether the tank(s) were abandoned in-place by backfilling. It is unknown how many tanks were installed/removed and/or abandoned in-place associated with the former auto service station owned by Standard Oil Company at the site.

CONCLUSIONS, OPINIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

EMA has performed a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment in conformance with the scope and limitations of ASTM Practice E1527-13 of 2001-2005 Sacramento Street; 1024 Mateo Street; 2015 Bay Street, Los Angeles, Los Angeles County, California (the "subject property"). Any exceptions to, or deletions from, this practice are described in Section 1.5 of this report. This assessment has revealed evidence of recognized environmental conditions in connection with the property. Based on the conclusions, EMA recommends further investigation at the site. Further investigation should be conducted in eth following potential areas of concern:

- Conduct a geophysical survey to determine presence and/or absence of underground storage tanks at the site.
- Conduct subsurface investigation (i.e. sampling and laboratory analyses, etc.) in the vicinity of former underground storage tanks, former and current clarifiers, grease pit, and hazardous materials/hazardous wastes storage areas, etc.

10.0 SIGNATURES OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROFESSIONALS

We declare that, to the best of our professional knowledge and belief, we meet the definition of *Environmental professional* as defined in §312.10 of 40 CFR 312" and We have the specific qualifications based on education, training, and experience to assess a *property* of the nature, history, and setting of the subject *property*. We have developed and performed the all appropriate inquiries in conformance with the standards and practices set forth in 40 CFR Part 312.

Kholed Malel

Khalid Mahmood Project Director **FIGURES**







APPENDIX A

PHOTOGRAPHS

APPENDIX A

PHOTOGRAPHS



Photograph Number 1: View of subject property taken from south.



Photograph Number 2: Interior view of auto repair/service building.



Photograph Number 3: Interior view of office area.



Photograph Number 4: View of the property taken from northwest.


Photograph Number 5: Entrance to the property from Bay Street.



Photograph Number 6: Hazardous Materials/Hazardous Wastes storage drums observed in the auto repair/service building.



Photograph Number 7: 250-gallon waste oil container observed inside the auto repair/service building.



Photograph Number 8: View of propane tank observed in the middle of parking lot.



Photograph Number 9: View of storage shed in the southeastern portion of the site.



Photograph Number 10: Batteries observed in the storage shed.



Photograph Number 11: Parts cleaning units observed in the storage shed.



Photograph Number 12: Belowground clarifier/drainage observed in eth southeastern portion of the site.



Photograph Number 13: Industrial to the south.



Photograph Number 14: Industrial to the east.



Photograph Number 15: Industrial to the north.



Photograph Number 16: Industrial to the west.

APPENDIX B

GOVERNMENT DATABASE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL RECORD SEARCH

for the site

2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST; 1024 MATEO ST; AND 2016 BAY ST LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA

Performed for

ENV MANAGERS & AUDITORS

06-18-2015



INTRODUCTION

This document, prepared in accordance with ASTM Standard E-1527-13 and 40 CFR 312.26; Reviews of Federal, State, Tribal, and local government records on 06-18-2015 at the request of ENV MANAGERS & AUDITORS, reports the findings of BBL's investigation of environmental concerns in the vicinity of 2001-2005 Sacramento St;1024 Mateo St;2016 Bay St, Los Angel CA.

A total of 600 records were identified, representing 352 separate sites. Of these records, 1 relates to the subject site.

A total of 3 records with incomplete location information were found that could be close by the subject site.

The identified sites are grouped into two separate categories - sites with known environmental concerns (135) and sites which have just operating permits (217).

The report is divided into the following segments:

- Overview Table An overview of all the identified records of concern summarized by distance and source.
- Topographic Map of the surrounding area of the subject site.
- Contour Map of the surrounding area of the subject site.
- Present Aerial Photograph of the surrounding area of the subject site.

• Summary - listing of the identified records grouped by site and in order of distance to the subject property grouped into the categories of sites with Known Environmental Concerns and Operating Permits Only.

- Detailed Report describing the sources investigated and the resulting findings.
- Fire Insurance Map review describing the area of the subject site.

| | SUB | JEC | T SITE | INFO | RMA | TION | 1 | | | | |
|--------------------------------------|--|--|-------------------------|------|----------|--|----------------|--|----------|-------------------|-------|
| Address City Present Tenant | 2001-2005 SACRAMEN BAY ST LOS ANGEL CA 90021 No Commercial Listing No Commercial Listing | TO S |) ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 | | | County Latitude Longitude Easting Northing Zone | | LOS ANGEL 34° 1' 52" 118° 13' 5 386242m 3766109m 11 | | ELES ?" 56" | |
| Environm | nental Concerns | Pag e | Search Dist | Site | < 1/8 | 1/8- 1/4 | 1/4- 1/2 | 1/2- 1/1 | area | un kwn | total |
| National Pri | iority List | 1 | 1 mile | | | | | | | | |
| CERCLIS | | 1 | 1 mile | | | | 1 | 5 | | | 6 |
| NFRAP | -1141 | 3 | 1 mile | | <u> </u> | 1 | 3 | 2 | <u> </u> | | 6 |
| Federal Fac | Clities | 4 | 1 mile | | 3 | 6 | 6 | 2 | | | 17 |
| Hazardous | Material Incident Report System | 9 | subject | | 2 | 0 | 0 | 2 | | 1 | 3 |
| Targeted B | rownfields Assessments | 11 | 1 mile | | 2 | | | | | | Ŭ |
| Site Enforce | ement Tracking System | 11 | 1 mile | | | | 1 | 4 | | | 5 |
| Enforcemer | nt Docket (DOCKET/CDETS) | 12 | 1/2 mile | | | | | | | | |
| C-Docket | | 12 | 1/2 mile | | ļ | | | | ļ | | |
| | Compliance Information System | 12 | 1 mile | | | 1 | 4 | 4 | | | 5 |
| | 5 In Facilities | 13 | 1 mile | | | | 1 | | | | 1 |
| Clandestine | e Drug Laboratories | 14 | 1 mile | | | | | | | | |
| Indian LUS | T/VCP/UST | 14 | 1 mile | | | | | | | | |
| Federal Lea | ad | 15 | 1 mile | | | | | | | | |
| State Resp | onse | 15 | 1 mile | | 1 | 1 | 3 | 3 | | | 8 |
| Voluntary C | Cleanup Program | 16 | 1/2 mile | | | 1 | 5 | 2 | | | 8 |
| Military Eva | Needing Further Evaluation | 24 | 1/2 mile | | 1 | | 2 | 1 | | | 4 |
| Expedited F | Remedial Action | 26 | 1/2 mile | | | | 1 | 3 | | | 4 |
| Border Zon | le | 27 | 1/2 mile | | | | | | | | |
| School Prop | perty Evaluation Program | 27 | 1/2 mile | | 1 | | 2 | | | | 3 |
| SMBRPD L | and Use Restrictions | 28 | 1/2 mile | | | | 3 | | | | 3 |
| HWMP Dee | ed/Land Use Restrictions | 29 | 1/2 mile | | | | | | | | |
| | Action | 29 | 1 mile | | 1 | 1 | 1 | 2 | | | 3 |
| | - No Further Action | 30 | 1/2 mile | | 1 | 4 | 10 | 4 | | 1 | 20 |
| Cortese | | 39 | 1 mile | | | | 10 | | | | 20 |
| Leaking Un | derground Storage Tanks | 40 | 1 mile | | | 1 | 6 | 52 | | | 59 |
| Solid Waste | e Information System | 56 | 1 mile | | | | 3 | 4 | | | 7 |
| Well Investi | igation Program | 58 | 1 mile | | | | | | | | |
| Drinking Wa | ater Program | 59 | 1 mile | | | | <u> </u> | 05 | | | 05 |
| L and Dispo | ases Seal Sites | 59 65 | 1 mile | | | | 1 | 25 | | | 25 |
| Toxic Pits | Sai Sites | 65 | 1 mile | | | | <u> </u> | ' | | | 2 |
| Solid Waste | e Assessment Test | 66 | 1 mile | | | | | 2 | | | 2 |
| Environme | ntal Concern References | | | | 11 | 16 | 49 | 117 | | 2 | 195 |
| Environme | ntal Concern Sites | | | | 8 | 13 | 28 | 84 | | 2 | 135 |
| Operating | g Permits | | | | | | | | | | |
| RCRA Gen | erators | 66 | 1/2 mile | | 13 | 8 | 36 | 26 | | | 83 |
| SARA Litle | III, section 313 (TRIS) | 82 94 | 1/2 mile | | 1 | | 1 | 4 | | | 6 |
| PCR Waste | Handlers Database | 04 84 | 1/2 mile | | | | 1 | | | | 1 |
| Permit Com | npliance System (PCS) | 84 | 1/2 mile | - | | | † ⁻ | | | | |
| AIRS Facili | ty System (AFS) | 85 | 1/2 mile | | 1 | 2 | 2 | 3 | | | 8 |
| Section Sev | ven Tracking System | 86 | 1/2 mile | | | 1 | | 2 | | | 3 |
| FIFRA/TSC | CA tracking system | 87 | 1/2 mile | | | 1 | 2 | 1 | | | 4 |
| Federal Fac | cilities Information System (FFIS) | 87 | 1/2 mile | | | | | 1 | | | 1 |
| | A Facility Index System | 88 88 | 1/2 mile | | | | | 1 | | | 1 |
| Hazardous | Waste Information System | Erro | 1/2 mile | 1 | 41 | 34 | 100 | 45 | | 1 | 222 |
| | | r! Boo kma rk not defi ned | | | | | | | | | |
| Undergrour | nd Storage Tanks | 143 | 1/2 mile | | 12 | 10 | 32 | 22 | | | 76 |
| | ~ | - | | | | | | | | | |

| Operating Permits References | 1 | 68 | 56 | 174 | 105 | 1 | 405 |
|------------------------------|---|----|----|-----|-----|---|-----|
| Operating Permits Sites | 1 | 45 | 37 | 90 | 43 | 1 | 217 |
| Total References | 1 | 79 | 72 | 223 | 222 | 3 | 600 |
| Total Sites | 1 | 53 | 50 | 118 | 127 | 3 | 352 |

* The classification by distance takes into consideration physical property sizes by assuming a standard size.







APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF IDENTIFIED SITES WITH OPERATING PERMITS ONLY WITHIN HALF A MILE AT 2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL

06-18-2015

CONSOLIDATED FIBERS CONSOLIDATED FIBRES, INC 2. 3. JM BUS BODY REPAIR INTAGLIO CORP CONSOLIDATED FIBRES/SETTSU INC 4. 5. 6. T A GREENE CO INC GOLDEN PLATING, INC. ATLANTIC CHEMICAL CORPORATION MEDIA LITHOGRAPHICS INC ELITES SCREEN PRINTING DBA R2 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. WEST CENTRAL PRODUCE INC RANCHO ROBLES PROPERTIES INC WEST CENTRAL PRODUCE INC 12. 13. 14. 15. CALIFORNIA DEPT OF TRANSPORTAT LOUDLABS 16. DEFUSION DBA HAN CHOLO CLOTHIN THE DOOR CONTROLS INC S D HERMAN CO 17. 18 GOLDEN FLOWERS 19 WESTERN ELECTROCHEMICAL COMPAN 20 21. REZEX CORP DHL EXPRESS C/O ABX AIR INC SECOND SIGHT PICTURES 22. 23. 24. THEATRICAL CREATIONS INC 25 FORMER BURLEY SEAL PRODUCTS CO 26. AIRBORNE EXPRESS CORSARO DAL HALBERT BROS 27 28 JOAN B CORP DIESEL COACH SERVICES HALBERT BROTHERS, INC. 29. 30 31. K & K LIFT ALL DW FINISHING 32. 33 34. HALSTED & HOGGAN INC 35. 36. STAN ACKERMAN 7 BAY TRUCK STATION BROWN, WILLIAM ALBEE COLLECTION 37. 38 39. DOOR CONTROLS INC. ZULA PRODUCTION SHIRT TIME CO 40. 41. HALBERT BROTHERS INC 42. 43 I A IMPRINTS 44. J AND J AUTO REPAIR 45. . ALLEN PRIME MEATS 46. 47. INK IT INC A B IMPORT CORP VALLEY FRUIT AND PRODUCE 48 49. METAL RECYCLING YARD UNITED MELON DISTRIBUTORS, INC 50. 51 DP TRADING INC 52. ADVANCED ELECTRONICS PACKG 53. 54. UNOCAL 55. CROSS DECATURE ST AND 7TH ST. 56 CARLOS Y RAMON H & H LABOR SUPPLY INC 57. FLETES CARBURETOR SERVICE GORDON BRUSH MFG CO INC 58. 59 60. SAM'S BODY SHOP LA DYE & WASH WORKS MICHAEL J. KAMEN ARTISTICA METAL DESIGNS 61 62. 63. WANG FASHIONS J AND D STORE FIXTURES 64 65. 66 CUSTOM CONTAINER CORP. WOLFE CREATIONS OF CAL, INC 67 68 BEST MAINTENANCE SUPPLY CO 69. TARA-LOID INC 70. NORM LANGER DEAN AND ASSOCIATES EXXON #7-8407 (FORMER) 71 72. 73. MARTYS PATIO 74. 75. FRICTION MATERIALS INC FRED KORT 76. LOS ANGELES USD METROPOLITAN H 77. 78. LA IMPORTS BERG ELECTRIC IMPERIAL TOY NATIONAL RESOURCES INC 79 80. 81 LOS ANGELES UNIFIED SCHOOL DIS DEFRANCO COMPANY TANIMURA DISTRIBUTING INC 82 83. 84. BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTA FE 85. 2472 E 8TH ST 86. BAILEY & SCHMITZ COMPANY 87 UNKNOWN THE KOREA TIMES LOS ANGELES IN 88 89 SWEETHEART CUP CORP AAD DISPOSAL 90 SOUTH SANTA FE PARTNERS

AMERICAN MOVING PARTS 92. 93. ADECO, INC AVALON PROPERTY SERVICES INC 94 LOS ANGELES TIMES, OLYMPIC FAC LOS ANGELES TIMES 95 96. 97. VICTOR CEPORIUS 1401 S SANTA FE AVE RECTIFIER ENGINEERING CO., INC 98 99. FRICTION MATERIALS COMPANY YUN CHO PRINTING 100. 101. 102 MALKI SHEEL SERVICE 103 ESSEX CORP TIERZERO 104 ALPHOMEGA 2121 E 7TH PLACE. LLC 105 106 GREYHOUND LINES INC 107 LINEAR CITY LLC MOORE MANUFACTURING, INC. 108 109. MILK DISTRIBUTION LLC 110 111 LINEAR CITY LLC 1700 E 7TH ST 112 1X OCEAN PRINTEX INC SANTA FE/W.A. GRANT 113. 114 115 A-1 BROOM AND SUPPLY COMPANY 116 MESA CONSULTENTS DISTRIBUTING STATION 5 117. F&F AUTO/TRUCK BODY SHOP INC A E P INDUSTRIES 118. 119 PRKASIN COMPANY 120 BROMLEY PRODUCTIONS LIMITED LI A-1 BROWN & SUPPLY INC 121 122 CONWAY MATEO LLC 123 TEAM SPORTS WEAR 124 PENSKE TRUCK LEASING PROPERTY 125. MISSION FURNITURE MFG CO# ISADORE IRVING CANTOR 126 127 128 GENERAL PRINTING INK DIVISION 129 JOEL UNANGST BARAN CO 130 VICTOR VALDEZ EXLEY EXPRESS 131. 132 WILSON STREET CORPORATION 133 CALIFORNIA RECLAMATION/US BRAS E G SMITH CONSTRUCTION PRD INC 134 135. SO CAL GAS/LA-ALAMEDA MGP WESTERN WAREHOUSING - L.A. 136 137 GREYHOUND LINES INC 138 COMMERCIAL IRON WORKS CITY OF LOS ANGELES DEPT OF PU 139 140 APEX WHOLESALE PRODUCE INC 7TH SPACE PARTNERS 141 142 METAL PREPARATIONS 143 LOWE DEV CHAFFEE WHOLESALE 144 145 SUN TOME CORPORATION AMERICAN PRODUCE CO 146 147 ARROW RECYCLING SOLUTIONS INC 148 149 MUTUAL LIQUID GAS/EQUIPMENT CO STATE WIDE SALES CO. INC. 150 COMMERCIAL OIL 151 152 PACIFIC BELL 153 2172 E 7TH ST SHELL 154 Y & R FASHION INC 155 CHAFFEE WAREHOUSE 156. 157 **MISSION ROAD RECYCLING & TRANS** OIL DYNAMICS 158 159 UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD 160 LA CITY - SOUTH CENTRAL SANITA EVERGREEN AES 161 MACK TRUCKS INC. BRYCE HELLMAN FAMILY PARTNERSH 162 163 MOLIEF ENTERPRISES 164 165 CHEFS CHOICE EGG COMPANY, INC. ATC PROPERTIES LLC 166. SPIRIT ACTIVEWEAR INC LOS ANGELES TIMES/WHOLESALE ST INTERNATIONAL FAMILY INC 167 168 169. BANK OF AMERICA NA AMS EXOTIC 170. 171. 172 EXCLUSIVELY NATURAL COMPANY CLEVELAND WRECKING CO NATIONAL AUTOMOTIVE CENTER 173 174 CENTRAL CITY COMMUNITY RECYCLI MILES INTERNATIONAL METAL CO L 175 176 177 LOONEY BINS/DOWNTOWN DIVERSION 178 FIRE STATION 17 ANGELUS WESTERN PAPER FIBERS, 179. 4TH STREET RAILYARD PUREX CORP TURCO PRODS 180 181

CITY SANITATION

182

190. L N COLOR QUINN HEALTH PANTRY VOLKSWORKS 191. 192. 193 UNION CENTRAL COLD STORAGE INC 194 YRC USF REDDAWAY U S BRASS 195. UNOCAL 196 BUTLER WASH RACK 197 HONOLULU FREIGHT SERVICE 198. SUPERB PARTNERS LIPKIN REALTY 199. 200. OVERLAND TERMINAL LLC WESTERN LEAD PRODUCTS COMPANY BASF WYANDOTTE METROPOL DIST 201 202 203. STOVER SEED COMPANY WILSTAC, INC DBA AD ART CO 204. 205. 206. UNK METROPOLITAN DISTRIBUTION CO 207 DRYWHIT METAL PRODUCTS COMPANY 208. LOS ANGELES GUN CLUB 209. 210. KONET CO INC ENIVRONMENTAL TRANSLOADING SER 211. ALBERTS ORGANICS THOMAS LIN PROPERTY 212 213. 6TH STREET LOFTS LLC MOBILE REFIGERATION SERVICE 214 215. BLUE DIAMOND APPARELL 216. ST. MAINT. SERVICE YARD AMERICAN PRESIDENT LINES LTD 217 218. 219 SHOWA MARINE & COLD STORAGE 220 NADELL AND CO INC 221. MURPHY INDUSTRIAL COATINGS INC PROGRESSIVE PRODUCE CORP LUMARYS TIRE SERVICE 222 223. UNION ICE COMPANY, THE 224. 225 BOO-TO ENTERPRISES INC STERICYCLE INC 226. 227. LOS ANGELES CITY/COMMUNITY DEV 228. J&J DIESEL WINTER & BAIN MFG. 229. EASTERN SMELTING AND REFINING ACME DIE CUTTING SERVICE 230 231. LA STRUCTURAL YARD ZONE #1 NORTHEAST EAST INTER. SEWER 232 233 S. E. RYKOFF & CO. ELEVATOR RESEARCH AND MANUFACT AESTHETIC FRAME DESIGN 234 235. 236 237 SUN CHEMICAL CORP **OLIVER & WILLIAMS ELEVATORS** 238 UNIVERSAL DYEING & PRINTING, I 239. L A IMAGES 240. 2200 JESSE ST 241 MILLS-MILLER-MILLS 242. NICKABOODS, INCORPORATED COMPLETE PARTS CLEANER SERVICE 243 244 245. SAFFOLA QUALITY FOODS BABA ENTERPRISES 246 247. L.A. NUT HOUSE ASPHALT PLANT #1, SITE 8/25 LOS ANGELES SIGNAL DEPOT 248 249 250 J.J.TRUCK REPAIR 251 INK MAKERS INC OLIVER WILSON ST 252. 7TH STREET SHOP FLEET SERVICES C & W CHEMICAL COMPANY, INC. 253. 254 LINSOL CORP 255. CLIFF WALLS MACHINERY 256 KRUSE METALS 257. EASTERN SMELTING AND REFINING JOEL & ARONOFF WEST INC 258 259 260 JOHN MORRELL & CO SPILO, CHARLES G MERRILL YOUNG 261 262. 263. CENTURY SCREEN PRINTING COAST PRODUCE 264 A-1 EXPRESS DELIVERY SERVICE 265 LA PUMPING PLANT #10 AMERICOLD LOGISTICS PLANT NUMB 266 267. 268 ATLAS LUMBER COMPANY, INC 269 G.M. PROCTOR & SONS INC SUNLAND TIRE CO INC 270. NATIONAL AEROSOL PRODS CO A-ABBEY METALS INTERNATIONAL 271 272 GOLDEN STATE MUTUAL LIFE INS. 273.

INDEX OF SITES LISTED BY MAP NUMBERS

91

EEMA8998

183

184.

185

186

187.

188

189.

ALL NU ICE CO INC

T-A FINISHING INC

CHEVRON USA

ECI PRINTING

ZIMMERMAN, STEPHEN

CITY OF LA - BUREAU OF STREET THE CALIFORNIA ENDOWMENT

EEMA8998

274 DELTA CME PAT & SONS POULTRY INC 275. DOWNTOWN FUEL STOP 276. CTD MACHINES INC SOS METALS INC 277 278. 279. CONSOLIDATED FACILITES 7TH ST L.A. PUBLIC WORKS MAINT TEXACO TRUCK STOP (FORMER) 280. 281. A&S METAL RECYCLING INC 7TH ST & ANDERSON ST DUMP-L A 282 283. 284. MOUREN-LAURENS OIL METRO DIVISION 1 MAINTENACE FA ANGELICA TEXTILE SERVICES 285 286. 287. **BUNCH & BUNCH SANDBLASTING** SEARS ROEBUCK & CO 288 289. ALCO PLATING CORP 76 PRODUCTS STATION #4010 LA MTA DIVISION 1 290. 291. SAND BAGGER TIRE 2 292. RYDER TRUCK RENTAL #91 293 294. ZIMMERMAN DEVELOPMENT INC ACTA NORTH - LA PRINT WORKSITE ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-004-SFG 295. 296. 297. CALTRANS- ALAMEDA MAINTENANCE 298 ACTA NORTH - MACCARTHY CO. WATER CHEMISTS INC. 299. 300. ROLO TRANSPORTATION ALAMEDA PETROLEUM TRUCK STOP 301. ACTA NORTH - TRIM CONNECTOR ALAMEDA PETROLEUM TRUCK STOP D & M POLISHING AND PLATING 302. 303 304. 305. ACTA NORTH- SMILE KNIT FACILIT 306. MOBIL #11-LID SEARS #1008/8128 307. SUPERFINE TEXACO ECKDAHL WAREHOUSE CO 308 309. ACTA NORTH - PERMANENT EXCLUSI ACTA NORTH - SANTA FE LIQUOR 310. 311. ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-009-SFG 312. 313. ACTA NORTH - TRINITY SPORTS RENTEX 314. ACTA NORTH- INDUSTRIAL MEDICA 315. 316. SHELL SERVICE STATION SIKA CHEMICAL CORP. 317. ACTA- PARCERLS NE-038/039,NE-1 Laidlaw/Washington Blvd. Close HOLLENBECK HOME TRUST 318. 319. 320. 321. LA CITY-WASHINGTON BLVD LANDFI AMTRAK 322. 323. VACAN LOT/CTMC LLC 324 HANNAM CHAIN USA PROTO TOOL CO., INC 325. ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-019-SFG CENTRAL REPAIR YARD 326. 327 328. PACE ENTERPRISES 329 FORMER ACE PLATING MOBIL #11-EKT 330. ACTA NORTH - PRONTO MONEY ACTA NORTH - CJ FASHIONS ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-022-SFG 331 332 333. 334. ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-024-SFG 335. SHELL 336. ACTA NORTH - K & K APPAREL ACTA NORTH - PACEL NE - 040 IWP FACILITY - TRUCK SCALE ARE ACTA NORTH - PERMANENT EXCLUSI ACTA NORTH - COPIES & PAPER 337 338. 339 340. 341. INDUSTRIAL WIRE PRODUCTS CORP 342 LINDA VISTA HOSPITAL LA MED DEPOT 343. ENTERPRISE SALES FIRST NATIONWIDE BANK 344 345. AGEN TRANSFER & RECYCLING CENT 346. 347 EQUILLON BULK FUEL DISTRIBUTIO 348. EKCO METALS LOS ANGELES DIE CASTING 349. UNKNOWN LOCATIONS PUREX CORP TURCO PRODS YELLOW FREIGHT SYSTEM INC UNOCAL SO CAL. DIV. PIPE LINE

INDEX OF SITES LISTED BY MAP NUMBERS



TOPOGRAPHIC MAP OF THE VICINITY OF THE SUBJECT SITE LOCATED AT 2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL



Elevation Contour overview map (6*6 mile)



Elevation Profiles (±1 mile)

CONTOUR DATA IN THE VICINITY OF THE SUBJECT SITE LOCATED AT 2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL



Seismic Hazards in the vicinity of the subject site located at 2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL

06-18-2015

EEMA8998



2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST 1024 MATEO ST 2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL

ENVIRONMENTAL RECORD SEARCH

SUMMARY

| KNOWN ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS | Page: | 14 |
|---|-------|------------|
| 2001-2005 | Date: | 06-18-2015 |
| SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL CA | Job: | EEMA8998 |

| ; ADDRE | SS | | CITY | LOCATION | SOU- RCE | STA- TUS | PA GE | MAP LOC | DIR |
|-------------------|----|--------------------------------|-----------------|--|--------------------------------------|---------------|----------------------------------|------------|-----|
| ['] KNO\ | W | N ENVIRONMENTAL CONCE | RNS, WITHIN 1/4 | 4 MILE OF THE SUBJECT SITE | | | | | |
| 930 | | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | GOLDEN PLATING, INC. GOLDEN PLATING, INC. GOLDEN PLATING, INC. GOLDEN PLATING, INC. GOLDEN PLATING INC GOLDEN PLATING INC | HI FE SC ME HWIS RCRA | S | 30 24 27 25 89 67 | 7 | Ν |
| 2348 | Е | 8TH ST | LOS ANGELES | WESTERN ELECTROCHEMICAL COMPAN | SR | | 15 | 20 | SE |
| 1900 | | SACRAMENTO ST | LOS ANGELES | DHL EXPRESS C/O ABX AIR INC DHL EXPRESS C/O ABX AIR INC PRICE, STERN & SLOAN DHL EXPRESS INC FIRST VEHICLE SERVICES INC #48 | HM HM HWIS HWIS HWIS | | 9 10 92 92 92 | 22 | W |
| 1026 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | FORMER BURLEY SEAL PRODUCTS CO | CS-nfa | REFOA | 32 | 25 | Е |
| 910 | | WILSON ST | LOS ANGELES | AIRBORNE EXPRESS | HM | | 10 | 26 | NW |
| | | SANTA FE AVE & 8TH ST,ON THE L | LOS ANGELES | | ERNS | | 5 | 45 | SE |
| 2130 | | VIOLET ST | LOS ANGELES | METAL RECYCLING YARD | ERNS | | 5 | 50 | NE |
| 2101 | E | 8TH ST | LOS ANGELES | UNOCAL UNOCAL | ERNS ERNS | | 5 6 | 54 | SW |
| | | DECATURE ST & 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | CROSS DECATURE ST AND 7TH ST. | ERNS | | 6 | 55 | NW |
| 1321 | | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | TARA-LOID INC | CS-nfa | NFA | 32 | 69 | S |
| 700 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | DEAN AND ASSOCIATES DEAN AND ASSOCIATES DEAN & ASSOCIATES _ | SR CS-nfa HWIS | CERT | 15 32 99 | 71 | NE |
| 1935 | E | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | EXXON #7-8407 (FORMER) DA VINCI ENGINEERING VARALINA EXXON STATION EXXON RAS #7-8407 | LUST HWIS UST HWIS | CLSD 87981 | 40 99 145 99 | 72 | N |
| 1807 | Е | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | LA IMPORTS | ERNS | | 6 | 77 | NW |
| 2060 | E | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | IMPERIAL TOY FRED KORT 2060 E. 7TH ST. LLC IMPERIAL TOY FRED KORT | IS UST HWIS AFS UST | 2014 | 12 146 101 85 146 | 79 | Ν |
| 2472 | E | 8TH ST | LOS ANGELES | | ERNS ERNS ERNS | | 6 6 6 | 85 | E |
| 2101 | E | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | BAILEY & SCHMITZ COMPANY BAILEY AND SCHMITZ CO BAILEY & SCHMITZ COMPANY | HI NFRAP CS-nfa | NFA | 30 3 32 | 86 | NE |
| | | SANTA MONICA FWY & MATEO | LOS ANGELES | UNKNOWN | ERNS | | 7 | 87 | S |
| | | HWY 10 & SANTA FE | LOS ANGELES | AAD DISPOSAL | ERNS | | 7 | 90 | SE |
| 2000 | | 8TH ST | LOS ANGELES | LOS ANGELES TIMES, OLYMPIC FAC | VC | | 16 | 95 | W |
| 1401 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | | ERNS | | 7 | 98 | SE |
| 1803 | E | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | RECTIFIER ENGINEERING CO., INC | CS-nfa | NFA | 32 | 99 | NW |

KNOWN ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS, WITHIN 1/4 - 1/2 MILE OF THE SUBJECT SITE

| 1412 \$ | S SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | MOORE MANUFACTURING, INC. | CS-nfa NF | A 3 | 33 1 | 109 | SE |
|---------|----------------|-------------|---|--|-----------------------------|--------------------------------|-----|----|
| 1700 I | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | | ERNS | 7 | 7 1 | 112 | NW |
| 2144 I | E 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | SANTA FE/W.A. GRANT SANTA FE/W.A. GRANT W.A. GRANT & COMPANY GRANT & COMPANY SANTA FE RAILWAY | VC VC CS-nfa NF UST 879 HWIS | 1 1 A 3 981 1 1 | 16 1 16 33 147 106 | 114 | NE |

| KNOWN ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS | Page: | 15 |
|---|-------|------------|
| 2001-2005 | Date: | 06-18-2015 |
| SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL CA | Job: | EEMA8998 |

| , | ADDRES | SS | CITY | LOCATION | SOU- RCE | STA- TUS | PA GE | MAP LOC | DIR |
|---|--------|--------------------------------|------------------|---|--|----------------------------------|--|------------|-----|
| | 2300 E | E OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | PENSKE TRUCK LEASING PROPERTY PENSKE TRUCK LEASING CO LP HERTZ PENSKE TRUCK LEASING INC PENSKE TRUCK LEASING CO.,L.P. HERTZ PENSKE TRUCK LEASING INC PENSKE TRUCK LEASING CO. LP. HERTZ PENSKE TRUCK RENTAL | VC RCRA UST UST UST HWIS HWIS | S A2&A9 2014 87&A9 | 17 71 147 147 147 108 109 | 125 | S |
| | 2450 | HUNTER ST | LOS ANGELES | GENERAL PRINTING INK DIVISION | CS-nfa | NFA | 33 | 128 | SE |
| | 634 | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | EXLEY EXPRESS EXLEY EXPRESS MICHEAL KANG | NFRAP CS-nfa HWIS | NFA | 3 33 110 | 132 | N |
| | 1321 S | 5 WILSON ST | LOS ANGELES | WILSON STREET CORPORATION WILSON STREET CORPORATION MARTIN METALS INC. MILSON STREET CORPORATION WILSON STREET CORPORATION WILSON STREET CORPORATION MARTIN METALS INC WILSON ST CORPORATION MARTIN METALS INC. | SC FE CS-nfa FE VC SR LU RCRA HWIS HWIS | REFOA X | 27 24 34 25 17 15 29 71 110 110 | 133 | SW |
| | 1331 S | S WILSON ST,/1346-50 ELWOOD ST | LOS ANGELES | CALIFORNIA RECLAMATION/US BRAS | FE | | 25 | 134 | SW |
| | 1331 5 | S WILSON ST | LOS ANGELES | ARROW ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS | RCRA | | 71 | 134 | SW |
| | 725 S | S CHANNING ST | LOS ANGELES | SO CAL GAS/LA-ALAMEDA MGP ALAMEDA MANUFACTURED GAS PLANT SO CAL GAS/LA-ALAMEDA MGP FARMERS PRODUCE PROJECT SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO INC ALAMEDA LA MGP SITE | CS-nfa VC VC HWIS HWIS RCRA | VCP VCP L | 34 18 19 110 110 72 | 136 | NW |
| | 1614 E | E 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | GREYHOUND LINES INC LOS ANGELES MAINTENANCE CENTER GREYHOUND BUS LINE INC LOS ANGELES MAINTENANCE CENTER CRUZ LINES GREYHOUND LINES INC GREYHOUND LINES INC. | LUST UST HWIS UST HWIS RCRA UST | 87&A9 87&93 L 2014 | 40 148 111 148 111 72 148 | 138 | NW |
| | 1614 E | 7TH ST,IN STREET AT | LOS ANGELES | SUBURBAN PROPANE | HWIS | | 111 | 138 | NW |
| | 1614 E | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | GREYHOUND LINES INC | HWIS | | 111 | 138 | NW |
| | 2424 | PORTER ST | LOS ANGELES | COMMERCIAL IRON WORKS COMMERCIAL IRONWORKS COMMERCIAL IRON WORKS | CS-nfa HWIS AFS | NFA | 35 111 85 | 139 | SE |
| | 641 S | S IMPERIAL ST | LOS ANGELES | METAL PREPARATIONS METAL PREPARATIONS METAL PREPARATIONS INC | SETS HWIS HWIS | | 11 112 112 | 143 | N |
| | 2172 E | E 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | LA SOUTH CENTRAL LA SOUTH CENTRAL LA 7TH ST CONSOLIDATED FAC SOUTH CENTRAL LA SOUTH CENTRAL | ERNS HWIS HWIS RCRA UST RCRA | L 8798A L | 7 113 113 73 149 73 | 153 | NE |
| | 1520 S | S SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | SHELL FORMER SHELL SERVICE STATION SHELL OIL SERVICE STATION SHELL OIL CO BOUTROS SHELL SHELL OIL SERVICE STATION BOUTROS SHELL GARCIA AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR SHELL OIL CO #204-4534-2908 | LUST LUST RCRA HWIS UST UST HWIS HWIS | NRA 95A S 87&A9 2014 | 40 41 149 73 114 149 149 114 114 | 154 | SE |
| | 840 S | 5 MISSION RD | LOS ANGELES (CIT | MISSION ROAD RECYCLING & TRANS WTR MISSION RD RECYCLING/XFER THE HOME DEPOT WASTE TRANSFER AND RECYCLING WASTE TRANSFER AND RECYCLING | SWIS SWIS HWIS HWIS RCRA | ACTIV S | 56 56 114 115 73 | 157 | E |
| | 718 5 | S ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | CENTRAL CITY COMMUNITY RECYCLI | CS-nfa | NFA | 35 | 175 | NW |

| KNOWN ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS | Page: | 16 |
|---|-------|------------|
| 2001-2005 | Date: | 06-18-2015 |
| SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL CA | Job: | EEMA8998 |

| ; / | ADDRI | ESS | : | CITY | LOCATION | SOU- | STA- | PA | MAP | DIR |
|-----|-------|-----|------------------------|------------------|---|--|--|---|-----|--------------|
| | 2424 | Е | OLYMPIC BLVD, BUILD #2 | LOS ANGELES (CIT | LOONEY BINS/DOWNTOWN DIVERSION | RCE SWIS | IUS | GE 56 | 177 | SE |
| | 2424 | E | OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO - O SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO OLYMPIC SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO OLYMPIC SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO SO CAL GAS/OLYMPIC BASE MGP SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO - O SO CAL GAS/OLYMPIC BASE MGP SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO - O SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO - O SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO - O SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO CENTRAL STATION OLYMPIC CENTRAL STATION (OLYMPIC BASE) N G V ECOTRANS GROUP L L C GLOBAL CONSTRUCTION SO CA GAS CO OLYMPIC BASE OLYMPIC | RV CS-nfa CA EP CA SR SC VC LU NFRAP VC PCB HWIS UST UST UST HWIS HWIS UST | COM 87&A9 87&A9 87 87 87 | 14 35 30 26 30 15 28 20 29 4 20 84 118 150 151 151 119 119 119 151 | 177 | SE |
| | 2424 | Е | OLYMPIC BLVD, BLDG 3 | LOS ANGELES | NGV ECOTRANS GROUP, LLC | HWIS | | 119 | 177 | SE |
| | 2424 | Е | OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | OLYMPIC | UST | 87 | 151 | 177 | SE |
| | 2424 | Е | OLYMPIC BLVD, BLDG 3 | LOS ANGELES | DOWNTOWN DIVERSION | HWIS | | 120 | 177 | SE |
| | 2424 | E | OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO - O | UST RCRA | 2014 L | 151 74 | 177 | SE |
| | 2424 | Е | OLYMPIC BLVD, BLDG 3 | LOS ANGELES | DOWNTOWN DIVERSION | HWIS | | 120 | 177 | SE |
| | 2424 | E | OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO - O SO CALIF GAS CO OLYMPIC BASE | FIFRA HWIS | | 87 120 | 177 | SE |
| | 2474 | | PORTER ST | LOS ANGELES (CIT | ANGELUS WESTERN PAPER FIBERS, LA CITY FIRE DEPARTMENT ANGELUS WESTERN PAPER STOCK IN ANGELUS WESTERN PAPER FIBRE | SWIS LUST UST HWIS | CLSD 87981 | 57 41 151 120 | 179 | SE |
| | | Е | 7TH ST & SOUTH MISSION | LOS ANGELES | 4TH STREET RAILYARD | ERNS | | 8 | 180 | NE |
| | | | INDUSTRIAL ST | LOS ANGELES | PUREX CORP TURCO PRODS | NFRAP | | 4 | 181 | NW |
| | | | 7TH ST & MISSION RD | LOS ANGELES | CITY SANITATION LA CITY SANITATION DEPT. LA CITY SANITATION DEPT. | ERNS ERNS ERNS | | 8 8 8 | 182 | NE |
| | 2222 | E | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | CITY OF LA - BUREAU OF STREET LA CONSOLIDATED FACILITIES LA 7TH STREET WEST CONSOLIDATED FACILITIES CONSOLIDATED FACILITIES TH STREET CONSOLIDATED FACILI CITY OF LA GENERAL SERVICES TTH STREET CONSOLIDATED FACILI CONSOLIDATED FACILITIES CITY WAREHOUSE CORP LA CONSOLIDATED FACILITIES CONSOLIDATED FACILITIES LA 7TH STREET WEST | LUST HWIS UST UST RCRA HWIS RCRA UST HWIS UST HWIS | 2014 87&93 L S 2010 87&93 | 41 122 152 152 74 122 75 152 122 122 122 123 | 186 | NE |
| | 1000 | S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | THE CALIFORNIA ENDOWMENT | LD | CLSD | 65 | 187 | SW |
| | 1800 | E | OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | UNOCAL UNOCAL #0152 FORMER CONOCO PHILLIPS #250152 UNOCAL SVC STA #0152 H & H OLYMPIC SERVICE H & H OLYMPIC SERVICE SERVICE STATION 0152 TOSCO CORPORATION #30305 UNOCAL SVC STA #0152 UNION OIL SERVICE STATION 0152 | ERNS LUST HWIS HWIS RCRA HWIS UST HWIS UST RCRA UST | CLSD 87&A9 2014 87 | 8 41 125 125 76 125 153 125 153 76 153 | 196 | SW |
| | 2182 | E | 11TH ST | LOS ANGELES | WESTERN LEAD PRODUCTS COMPANY INTERNATIONAL LEAD CO. INTERNATIONAL LEAD CO. RSR CORP QUEMETCO INC | CERCL SR LU HWIS RCRA | A S | CN 15 29 126 76 | 1 | 202 S |

| KNOWN ENVIRONMENTAL CONCE | NOWN ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS | | | | | |
|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|--|---|---|--------------|--|
| 2001-2005 | | | Date: 0 | 5-18-20 ⁻ | 15 | |
| SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST | ;2016 BAY ST, L0 | OS ANGEL CA | Job: E | EMA899 | 98 | |
| | | | | | | |
| ; ADDRESS | CITY | LOCATION | SOU- STA- | PA MAP | DIR | |
| | | QUEMETCO INC THERESA & FRANK LICHTENBERG QUEMETCO INC QUEMETCO CORPORATION | HWIS HWIS HWIS HWIS | 126 126 126 127 | | |
| 1349 CHANNING ST | LOS ANGELES | UNK | ERNS | 9 206 | SW | |
| 660 S MYERS ST | LOS ANGELES | DRYWHIT METAL PRODUCTS COMPANY | CS-nfa NFA | 36 208 | NE | |
| 1451 E 6TH ST | LOS ANGELES | ST. MAINT. SERVICE YARD CITY OF L A GENERAL SERVICES SIXTH STREET CLEANING YARD LA ST MAINT STORAGE YARD | LUST CLSD HWIS UST 8798I RCRA S | 41 217 129 153 77 | Ν | |
| 660 S ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | UNION ICE COMPANY, THE | CS-nfa NFA | 37 224 | NW | |
| KNOWN ENVIRONMENTAL CONC | ERNS, WITHIN 1 | 1/2 - 3/4 MILE OF THE SUBJECT | SITE | | | |
| 1410 ELWOOD ST | LOS ANGELES | WINTER & BAIN MFG. WINTER & BAIN, INC WINTER & BAIN, INC | SETS HWIS RCRA | 11 229 132 78 | SW | |
| 2200 E 11TH ST,2200-2201 | LOS ANGELES | EASTERN SMELTING AND REFINING | CERCLA | CN 2 | 230 S | |
| 2200 E 11TH ST | LOS ANGELES | NATIONAL AEROSOL PRODUCTS | HWIS | 132 230 | S | |
| MISSION & JESSE AVE | LOS ANGELES | NORTHEAST EAST INTER. SEWER NOS-ECIS PROJECT | LD CLSD LD CLSD | 65 233 65 | NE | |
| 590 S SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | SUN CHEMICAL CORP BUTTERFIELD (SUN CHEMICAL CORP SUN CHEMICAL CORP BUTTERFIELD (SUN CHEMICAL CORP SUN CHEMICAL CORP BASF INMONT/SUN CHEMICAL BUTTERFIELD (SUN CHEMICAL BUTTERFIELD (SUN CHEMICAL SUN CHEMICAL CORP BASF INMONT/SUN CHEMICAL SUN CHEMICAL CORP INMONT CORPORATION BASE CORPORATION COATINGS & IN SUN CHEMICALS WORKING BEAR PRODUCTIONS NEW LINE CINEMA INMONT CORP BASE CORPORATION COATINGS & IN SUN CHEMICAL CORP UNITED TECHNOLOGIES INMONT COR BASE CORPORATION COATINGS & IN SUN CHEMICAL CORP | NT INACT CS-nfa AWP NT ASSM CS-nfa AWP LUST INACT LUST OPEN NT 1 VC NT ASSM NT INACT CS-nfa NFA AFS HWIS HWIS HWIS HWIS HWIS HWIS HWIS SARA CICIS | 59 237 37 59 59 38 42 42 42 42 42 42 42 42 134 134 134 134 135 79 135 154 88 88 | Ν | |
| 2200 JESSE ST | LOS ANGELES | | ERNS | 9 241 | NE | |
| 2484 E OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | ASPHALT PLANT #1, SITE 8/25 LA ASPHALT PLANT #1 L A CITY MAINTENANCE ASPHALT P LA CITY MAINT ASPHALT PLT ASPHALT PLANT NO. 1 - K140 ASPHALT PLANT #1 LA ASPHALT PLANT #1 | LUST CLSD RCRA S HWIS RCRA S UST 2014 UST 87&A9 HWIS | 42 248 80 137 80 154 155 138 | SE | |
| LOS ANGELES SIGNAL DEPOT | LOS ANGELES | LOS ANGELES SIGNAL DEPOT | ME | 26 249 | W | |
| 1328 WILLOW ST | LOS ANGELES | C & W CHEMICAL COMPANY, INC. C & W CHEMS CO INC ROGMA CONSTRUCTION SERVICES IN C & W CHEMICAL CO INC C AND W CHEMICALS | CS-nfa NFA RCRA S HWIS HWIS UST 8798I | 39 254 80 138 138 155 | Ν | |
| 2220 E 11TH ST | LOS ANGELES | EASTERN SMELTING AND REFINING EASTERN SMELTING AND REFINING | VC VC VCP | 22 258 23 | S | |
| 2233 JESSE ST | LOS ANGELES | AMERICOLD LOGISTICS PLANT NUMB GLACIER COLD STORAGE LTD TERMINAL REFRIGERATING COMPANY AMERICOLD LOGISTICS PLANT NUMB TERMINAL REFRIGERATING COMPANY | IS HWIS RCRA FN HWIS | 13 267 141 81 88 141 | NE | |
| 2193 E 14TH ST | LOS ANGELES | NATIONAL AEROSOL PRODS CO NATIONAL AEROSOL NATIONAL AEROSOL | CERCLA FE CS-nfa | CN 2 25 39 | 271 S | |

| KNOWN ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS | Page: | 18 |
|---|-------|------------|
| 2001-2005 | Date: | 06-18-2015 |
| SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL CA | Job: | EEMA8998 |

| ; ADDRI | ESS | | CITY | LOCATION | SOU- | STA- | PA | MAP | DIR |
|---------|-----|----------------------------|----------------|---|---|-------------------|--|-----|--------|
| ard | NA | | HWIG | NATIONAL AEROSOL PRODUCTS CO. NATIONAL AEROSOL PRODS CO NATIONAL AEROSOL PRODUCTS CO NATIONAL AEROSOL PRODS CO NATIONAL AEROSOL PRODUCTSCO NATIONAL AEROSOL PRODS CO UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD | ERNS SARA UST RCRA UST PE HWIS 142 | 2013 L 2014 | 9 84 156 82 156 87 142 | LUC | |
| aiu | IN/ | TIONAL AEROSOL PRODUCTS CO | HWIS | | 142 | | | | |
| 1931 | | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | A-ABBEY METALS INTERNATIONAL A ABBEY METALS INTL A-ABBEY METALS INTERNATIONAL | LUST HWIS UST | CLSD 2010 | 42 142 156 | 272 | S |
| 1112 | | LONG BEACH AVE | LOS ANGELES | GOLDEN STATE MUTUAL LIFE INS. | LUST | CLSD | 43 | 273 | W |
| 2300 | E | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | 7TH ST L.A. PUBLIC WORKS MAINT 7TH ST. CONSOLIDATED FACILITY 7TH ST. CONSOLIDATED FACILITY | LUST UST UST | CLSD 2014 | 43 157 157 | 280 | E |
| 1345 | E | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | TEXACO TRUCK STOP (FORMER) LEVILOFF REFEREE SHIP COMMERCIAL SUPER SERVICE | LUST HWIS UST | CLSD 8798A | 43 143 157 | 281 | NW |
| 1960 | | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | A&S METAL RECYCLING INC | CA | | 30 | 282 | S |
| | | 7TH ST & ANDERSON | LOS ANGELES | 7TH ST & ANDERSON ST DUMP-L A | SW | 6 | 66 | 283 | NE |
| 641 | S | COMPTON AVE | LOS ANGELES | MOUREN-LAURENS OIL | CERCL | A | SA | 2 | 284 SW |
| 1130 | Е | 6TH ST | LOS ANGELES | METRO DIVISION 1 MAINTENACE FA RTD DIVISION 1 - ALAMEDA | LUST UST | ASSM 95A | 43 157 | 285 | NW |
| 1225 | | RIO VISTA AVE | LOS ANGELES | ANGELICA TEXTILE SERVICES | LUST | CLSD | 43 | 286 | E |
| 1930 | | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | BUNCH & BUNCH SANDBLASTING | NFRAP | , | 4 | 287 | S |
| 2555 | Е | OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | SEARS ROEBUCK & CO | LUST | NRA | 44 | 288 | SE |
| 1400 | | LONG BEACH AVE | LOS ANGELES | ALCO PLATING CORP | CERCL | A | CN | 2 | 289 SW |
| 791 | S | CENTRAL AVE | LOS ANGELES | 76 PRODUCTS STATION #4010 | LUST | CLSD | 44 | 290 | W |
| 624 | S | CENTRAL AVE | LOS ANGELES | LA MTA DIVISION 1 | LUST | CLSD | 44 | 291 | NW |
| 649 | S | ANDERSON ST | LOS ANGELES | SAND BAGGER TIRE 2 | SWIS | | 57 | 292 | NE |
| 1508 | S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | RYDER TRUCK RENTAL #91 | LUST | | 44 | 293 | SW |
| 560 | S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | ZIMMERMAN DEVELOPMENT INC ZIMMERMAN DEVELOPMENT INC | NT LUST | CLSD CLSD | 60 44 | 294 | NW |
| 1960 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - LA PRINT WORKSITE ACTA NORTH - LA PRINT WORKSITE | LUST NT | CLSD CLSD | 45 60 | 295 | S |
| 2000 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-004-SFG ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-004-SFG | NT LUST | CLSD CLSD | 60 45 | 296 | S |
| KNO | w | N ENVIRONMENTAL CONCE | RNS, WITHIN 3/ | 4 - 1 MILE OF THE SUBJECT SIT | E | | | | |

| 1740 | Е | 15TH ST | LOS ANGELES (CIT | CALTRANS- ALAMEDA MAINTENANCE | SWIS | | 57 | 297 | SW |
|------|---|--------------|------------------|--|------------|--------------|----------|-----|----|
| 2010 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - MACCARTHY CO. ACTA NORTH - MACCARTHY CO. | LUST NT | CLSD CLSD | 45 60 | 298 | S |
| 1275 | s | BOYLE AVE | LOS ANGELES | WATER CHEMISTS INC. | LUST | CLSD | 45 | 299 | Е |
| 536 | | SEATON ST | LOS ANELES | ROLO TRANSPORTATION | LUST | CLSD | 45 | 300 | NW |
| 1631 | S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | ALAMEDA PETROLEUM TRUCK STOP | LUST | CLSD | 46 | 301 | SW |
| 2018 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - TRIM CONNECTOR ACTA NORTH - TRIM CONNECTOR | NT LUST | CLSD CLSD | 60 46 | 302 | S |
| 1625 | S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | ALAMEDA PETROLEUM TRUCK STOP | LUST | CLSD | 46 | 303 | SW |
| 1250 | Е | 5TH ST | LOS ANGELES | D & M POLISHING AND PLATING | IS | | 13 | 304 | Ν |
| 2026 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH- SMILE KNIT FACILIT ACTA | NT LUST | CLSD CLSD | 61 47 | 305 | S |

KNOWN ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS

2001-2005

SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL CA

 Page:
 19

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998

| ADDRESS | 5 | CITY | LOCATION | SOU- | STA- | PA | MAP | DIR |
|---------|-----------------------|---------------|--|--------------------------|------------------------------|----------------------|-----|-----|
| | | | ACTA NORTH- SMILE KNIT FACILIT | <i>RCE</i> LUST | <i>TUS</i> CLSD | GE 47 | LOC | |
| 1166 S | SOTO ST | LOS ANGELES | MOBIL #11-LID | LUST | CLSD | 47 | 306 | Е |
| 2650 E | OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | SEARS #1008/8128 | LUST | CLSD | 47 | 307 | SE |
| 500 S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | SUPERFINE TEXACO ARCO | LUST LUST | CLSD | 47 48 | 308 | NW |
| 501 S | ANDERSON ST | LOS ANGELES | ECKDAHL WAREHOUSE CO | LUST | NRA | 48 | 309 | NE |
| 2047 S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - PERMANENT EXCLUSI ACTA NORTH - PERMANENT EXCLUSI | NT LUST | CLSD CLSD | 61 48 | 310 | S |
| 2050 S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - SANTA FE LIQUOR ACTA NORTH - SANTA FE LIQUOR | NT LUST | CLSD CLSD | 61 48 | 311 | S |
| 2056 S | SANTA FE AVE, 2058 | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-009-SFG | NT | CLSD | 61 | 312 | S |
| 2056 S | SANTA FE AVE,& 2058 | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-009-SFG | LUST | CLSD | 48 | 312 | S |
| 2066 S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - TRINITY SPORTS ACTA NORTH - TRINITY SPORTS | NT LUST | CLSD CLSD | 61 48 | 313 | S |
| 1600 S | COMPTON AVE | LOS ANGELES | RENTEX DOMESTIC LINEN SUPPLY | SETS LUST | | 11 49 | 314 | SW |
| 2112 S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH- INDUSTRIAL MEDICA ACTA NORTH- INDUSTRIAL MEDICA | NT LUST | CLSD CLSD | 61 49 | 315 | S |
| 1410 S | SOTO ST | LOS ANGELES | SHELL SERVICE STATION | LUST | CLSD | 49 | 316 | SE |
| 1372 E | 15TH ST | LOS ANGELES | SIKA CHEMICAL CORP. | SETS | | 12 | 317 | W |
| 2426 E | WASHINGTON BLVD | LOS ANGELES | ACTA- PARCERLS NE-038/039,NE-1 ACTA- PARCERLS NE-038/039,NE-1 | NT LUST | CLSD CLSD | 62 49 | 318 | S |
| 1950 E | WASHINGTON BLVD | LOS ANGELES | Laidlaw/Washington Blvd. Close LA CITY WASHINGTON BLVD LAIDLAW/WASHINGTON BLVD. CLOSE | SWIS SWIS SWIS | CLSD | 57 58 58 | 319 | SW |
| 573 S | BOYLE AVE | BOYLE HEIGHTS | HOLLENBECK HOME TRUST | LUST | CLSD | 49 | 320 | NE |
| 1919 E | WASHINGTON BLVD | LOS ANGELES | LA CITY-WASHINGTON BLVD LANDFI | SW | | 66 | 321 | SW |
| 2435 E | WASHINGTON BLVD | LOS ANGELES | AMTRAK | SR | | 15 | 322 | S |
| 2455 E | WASHINGTON BLVD | LOS ANGELES | VACAN LOT/CTMC LLC | LUST | | 50 | 323 | S |
| 2740 E | OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | HANNAM CHAIN USA | IS | | 13 | 324 | SE |
| 2209 S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | PROTO TOOL CO., INC. | SETS | | 12 | 325 | S |
| 2214 S | SANTA FE AVE, 2226 | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-019-SFG | NT | CLSD | 62 | 326 | S |
| 2214 S | SANTA FE AVE,& 2226 S | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-019-SFG | LUST | CLSD | 50 | 326 | S |
| 2214 S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-017/018 ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-017/018 ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-017/018 ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-017/018 | LUST NT NT LUST | CLSD CLSD CLSD CLSD | 50 62 62 50 | 326 | S |
| 2469 E | WASHINGTON BLVD | LOS ANGELES | CENTRAL REPAIR YARD | LUST | CLSD | 50 | 327 | S |
| 360 S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | PACE ENTERPRISES | LUST | NRA | 51 | 328 | NW |
| 719 S | TOWNE AVE | LOS ANGELES | FORMER ACE PLATING ACE PLATING CO., INC. | NT SR | ASSM | 62 16 | 329 | NW |
| 909 S | SOTO ST | LOS ANGELES | MOBIL #11-EKT | LUST | CLSD | 51 | 330 | Е |
| 2520 E | WASHINGTON BLVD | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - PRONTO MONEY | LUST | CLSD | 53 | 331 | S |
| 2312 S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - CJ FASHIONS ACTA NORTH - CJ FASHIONS | NT LUST | CLSD CLSD | 62 53 | 332 | S |
| 2320 S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-022-SFG ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-022-SFG | NT LUST | CLSD CLSD | 62 53 | 333 | S |

KNOWN ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS

2001-2005

SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL CA

 Page:
 20

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998

| . VDDB | -00 | | CITY | LOCATION | SOUL | STA- | D٨ | MAD | פוח |
|---|------------------|--|---|---|---|---|--|---|---|
| 2328 | s | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-024-SEG | RCE NT | TUS | GE 63 | LOC 334 | S |
| | - | | | ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-024-SFG | LUST | CLSD | 54 | | - |
| 1541 | S | CENTRAL AVE | LOS ANGELES | SHELL | LUST | CLSD | 54 | 335 | W |
| 2300 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - K & K APPAREL ACTA NORTH - K & K APPAREL | LUST NT | CLSD CLSD | 54 63 | 336 | S |
| 2540 | Е | WASHINGTON BLVD, EAST | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - PACEL NE - 040 | LUST | CLSD | 54 | 337 | S |
| 2540 | Е | WASHINGTON BLVD | LOS ANGELES | ALAMEDA CORRIDOR - L.A. RIVER | NT | 2 | 63 | 337 | S |
| 2451 | E | 23RD ST | LOS ANGELES | IWP FACILITY - TRUCK SCALE ARE IWP FACILITY | LUST NT | CLSD 1 | 54 63 | 338 | S |
| 2451 | Е | 23RD ST , EAST | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE - 042 | LUST | CLSD | 54 | 338 | S |
| 2451 | E | 23RD ST | LOS ANGELES | IWP FACILITY - FORMER TRUCK SC ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE - 042 IWP FACILITY - FORMER TRUCK SC IWP FACILITY - FORMER TRUCK SC | NT NT NT NT | CLSD CLSD 9 9 | 63 63 64 64 | 338 | S |
| 2460 | E | 23RD ST | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - PERMANENT EXCLUSI ACTA NORTH - PERMANENT EXCLUSI | LUST NT | CLSD CLSD | 55 64 | 339 | S |
| 2324 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | ACTA NORTH - COPIES & PAPER ACTA NORTH - COPIES & PAPER | LUST NT | CLSD CLSD | 55 64 | 340 | S |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| 2417 | Е | 23RD ST,& 2451 | LOS ANGELES | INDUSTRIAL WIRE PRODUCTS CORP | NFRAP | | 4 | 341 | S |
| 2417 610 | E S | 23RD ST,& 2451 ST LOUIS ST | LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES | INDUSTRIAL WIRE PRODUCTS CORP | NFRAP LUST | CLSD | 4 55 | 341 342 | S NE |
| 2417 610 | E S | 23RD ST,& 2451 ST LOUIS ST LA MED DEPOT | LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES | INDUSTRIAL WIRE PRODUCTS CORP LINDA VISTA HOSPITAL LA MED DEPOT | NFRAP LUST ME | CLSD | 4 55 26 | 341 342 343 | S NE SW |
| 2417 610 901 | E S E | 23RD ST,& 2451 ST LOUIS ST LA MED DEPOT 3RD ST | LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES | INDUSTRIAL WIRE PRODUCTS CORP LINDA VISTA HOSPITAL LA MED DEPOT ENTERPRISE SALES ENTERPRISE SALES CO | NFRAP LUST ME CERCL IS | CLSD | 4 55 26 CN 13 | 341 342 343 3 | s NE SW 344 N |
| 2417 610 901 2309 | E S S | 23RD ST,& 2451 ST LOUIS ST LA MED DEPOT 3RD ST SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES | INDUSTRIAL WIRE PRODUCTS CORP LINDA VISTA HOSPITAL LA MED DEPOT ENTERPRISE SALES ENTERPRISE SALES CO FIRST NATIONWIDE BANK | NFRAP LUST ME CERCL IS HI | CLSD | 4 55 26 CN 13 31 | 341 342 343 3 3 | s NE SW 344 N |
| 2417 610 901 2309 2620 | E S E S | 23RD ST,& 2451 ST LOUIS ST LA MED DEPOT 3RD ST SANTA FE AVE WASHINGTON BLVD | LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES | INDUSTRIAL WIRE PRODUCTS CORP LINDA VISTA HOSPITAL LA MED DEPOT ENTERPRISE SALES ENTERPRISE SALES CO FIRST NATIONWIDE BANK AGEN TRANSFER & RECYCLING CENT | NFRAP LUST ME CERCL IS HI SWIS | CLSD A PLND | 4 55 26 CN 13 31 58 | 341 342 343 3 345 346 | S NE SW 344 N S SE |
| 2417 610 901 2309 2620 2015 | E S E E | 23RD ST,& 2451 ST LOUIS ST LA MED DEPOT 3RD ST SANTA FE AVE WASHINGTON BLVD LONG BEACH AVE | LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES | INDUSTRIAL WIRE PRODUCTS CORP LINDA VISTA HOSPITAL LA MED DEPOT ENTERPRISE SALES ENTERPRISE SALES CO FIRST NATIONWIDE BANK AGEN TRANSFER & RECYCLING CENT EQUILLON BULK FUEL DISTRIBUTIO | NFRAP LUST ME CERCL IS HI SWIS NT | CLSD A PLND 1 | 4 55 26 CN 13 31 58 64 | 341 342 3 3 343 345 345 346 347 | S NE SW 344 N S SE SW |
| 2417 610 901 2309 2620 2015 1700 | E S E E | 23RD ST,& 2451 ST LOUIS ST LA MED DEPOT 3RD ST SANTA FE AVE WASHINGTON BLVD LONG BEACH AVE PERRINO PL | LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES | INDUSTRIAL WIRE PRODUCTS CORP LINDA VISTA HOSPITAL LA MED DEPOT ENTERPRISE SALES ENTERPRISE SALES CO FIRST NATIONWIDE BANK AGEN TRANSFER & RECYCLING CENT EQUILLON BULK FUEL DISTRIBUTIO EKCO METALS EKCO METALS EKCO METALS EKCO METALS EKCO METALS EKCO METALS | NFRAP LUST ME CERCL IS SWIS NT LUST CA NT ME LUST | CLSD A PLND 1 ASSM 1 INACT CLSD | 4 55 26 CN 13 31 58 64 55 30 64 64 26 55 | 341 342 343 3 345 346 347 348 | S NE SW 344 N S SE SW SE |
| 2417 610 901 2309 2620 2015 1700 340 | E S E | 23RD ST,& 2451 ST LOUIS ST LA MED DEPOT 3RD ST SANTA FE AVE WASHINGTON BLVD LONG BEACH AVE PERRINO PL | LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES | INDUSTRIAL WIRE PRODUCTS CORP LINDA VISTA HOSPITAL LA MED DEPOT ENTERPRISE SALES ENTERPRISE SALES CO FIRST NATIONWIDE BANK AGEN TRANSFER & RECYCLING CENT EQUILLON BULK FUEL DISTRIBUTIO EKCO METALS EKCO METALS EKCO METALS EKCO METALS EKCO METALS EKCO METALS EKCO METALS EKCO METALS | NFRAP LUST ME CERCL IS HI SWIS NT LUST CA NT NT ME LUST SR | CLSD A PLND 1 ASSM 1 INACT CLSD | 4 55 26 CN 13 31 58 64 55 30 64 64 26 55 16 | 341 342 343 3 345 346 347 348 | S NE SW 344 N S SE SW SE |
| 2417 610 901 2309 2620 2015 1700 340 SITE | E S E | 23RD ST,& 2451 ST LOUIS ST LA MED DEPOT 3RD ST SANTA FE AVE WASHINGTON BLVD LONG BEACH AVE PERRINO PL CROCKER ST WITH UNKNOWN OR NON-S | LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES | INDUSTRIAL WIRE PRODUCTS CORP LINDA VISTA HOSPITAL LA MED DEPOT ENTERPRISE SALES ENTERPRISE SALES CO FIRST NATIONWIDE BANK AGEN TRANSFER & RECYCLING CENT EQUILLON BULK FUEL DISTRIBUTIO EKCO METALS EKCO METALS | NFRAP LUST ME CERCL IS HI SWIS NT LUST CA NT NT ME LUST SR | CLSD A PLND 1 ASSM 1 INACT CLSD | 4 55 26 CN 13 31 58 64 55 30 64 64 26 55 16 | 341 342 343 3 345 346 347 348 349 | S NE SW 344 N S SE SW SE |
| 2417 610 901 2309 2620 2015 1700 340 SITE | E S E | 23RD ST,& 2451 ST LOUIS ST LA MED DEPOT 3RD ST SANTA FE AVE WASHINGTON BLVD LONG BEACH AVE PERRINO PL CROCKER ST WITH UNKNOWN OR NON-S INDUSTRIAL ST | LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES LOS ANGELES PECIFIC LOCAT | INDUSTRIAL WIRE PRODUCTS CORP LINDA VISTA HOSPITAL LA MED DEPOT ENTERPRISE SALES ENTERPRISE SALES CO FIRST NATIONWIDE BANK AGEN TRANSFER & RECYCLING CENT EQUILLON BULK FUEL DISTRIBUTIO EKCO METALS EKCO METALS | NFRAP LUST ME CERCL IS HI SWIS NT LUST CA NT NT ELUST SR CS-nfa | CLSD A PLND 1 ASSM 1 INACT CLSD NFA | 4 555 26 CN 13 31 58 64 55 30 64 26 55 16 39 | 341 342 343 3 345 346 347 348 349 | S NE SW 344 N S SE SW SE |

_

OPERATING PERMITS ONLY

2001-2005

SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL CA

 Page:
 21

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998

| ; , | ADDRESS | 3 | CITY | LOCATION | SOU- RCE | STA- TUS | PA GE | MAP LOC | DIR |
|-----|---------|--------------------------|----------------|---|--|-------------------|--|------------|-----|
| ; | OPER/ | ATING PERMITS ONLY, WITH | IN 1/4 MILE OF | THE SUBJECT SITE | | | | | |
| | 2016 | BAY ST | LOS ANGELES | CONSOLIDATED FIBERS MV TRANSPORTATION INC | HWIS HWIS | | 89 89 | 1 | |
| | 1005 | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | CONSOLIDATED FIBRES, INC 1X CONSILDATED FIBERS | UST HWIS | 8798A | 143 89 | 2 | S |
| | 2026 | BAY ST | LOS ANGELES | JM BUS BODY REPAIR JM BUS BODY REPAIR | HWIS RCRA | S | 89 67 | 3 | Е |
| | 2022 | SACRAMENTO ST | LOS ANGELES | INTAGLIO CORP | HWIS | | 89 | 4 | SE |
| | 2025 | SACRAMENTO ST | LOS ANGELES | CONSOLIDATED FIBRES/SETTSU INC | UST | 1998A | 144 | 5 | SE |
| | 1100 | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | T A GREENE CO INC T A GREENE CO INC | HWIS RCRA | S | 89 67 | 6 | S |
| | 2030 | SACRAMENTO ST | LOS ANGELES | ATLANTIC CHEMICAL CORPORATION ATLANTIC CHEM CORP | HWIS RCRA | S | 90 67 | 8 | SE |
| | 2036 | SACRAMENTO ST | LOS ANGELES | MEDIA LITHOGRAPHICS INC MEDIA LITHOGRAPHICS INC | HWIS RCRA | S | 90 68 | 9 | SE |
| | 915 | MATEO ST, STE 302 | LOS ANGELES | ELITES SCREEN PRINTING DBA R2 | HWIS | | 90 | 10 | Ν |
| | 2017 E | VIOLET ST | LOS ANGELES | WEST CENTRAL PRODUCE INC. WEST CENTRAL PRODUCE | UST HWIS | 2014 | 144 90 | 11 | N |
| | 1910 | BAY ST | LOS ANGELES | RANCHO ROBLES PROPERTIES INC | HWIS | | 90 | 12 | W |
| | 2045 E | VIOLET ST | LOS ANGELES | WEST CENTRAL PRODUCE INC WEST CENTRAL PRODUCE, INC WEST CENTRAL PRODUCE, INC | HWIS UST HWIS | 2014 | 90 144 90 | 13 | NE |
| | 2300 E | 8TH ST | LOS ANGELES | CALIFORNIA DEPT OF TRANSPORTAT | HWIS | | 91 | 14 | S |
| | 2314 E | 8TH ST | LOS ANGELES | LOUDLABS | HWIS | | 91 | 15 | S |
| | 1202 | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | DEFUSION DBA HAN CHOLO CLOTHIN | HWIS | | 91 | 16 | S |
| | 2334 E | | LOS ANGELES | THE DOOR CONTROLS INC | HWIS | | 91 | 17 | S |
| | 2339 E | 8TH ST | LOS ANGELES | S D HERMAN CO | HWIS | | 91 | 18 | S |
| | 2341 E | 8TH ST | LOS ANGELES | GOLDEN FLOWERS | HWIS | | 91 | 19 | S |
| | 1901 | SACRAMENTO ST | LOS ANGELES | REZEX CORP RANCHO ROBLES PROP INC REZEX CORP | HWIS HWIS RCRA | | 91 92 68 | 21 | W |
| | 935 S | WILSON ST | LOS ANGELES | SECOND SIGHT PICTURES EMPIRE GAS INC OF LOS ANGELES | HWIS AFS | | 92 85 | 23 | NW |
| | 1005 S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | THEATRICAL CREATIONS INC THEATRICAL CREATIONS INC | HWIS RCRA | S | 92 68 | 24 | Е |
| | 807 | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | CORSARO DAL | HWIS | | 92 | 27 | Ν |
| | 2110 | BAY ST | LOS ANGELES | HALBERT BROS | HWIS | | 93 | 28 | Е |
| | 1119 S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | JOAN B CORP | HWIS | | 93 | 29 | Е |
| | 826 | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | DIESEL COACH SERVICES AMERICAN PRODUCE CO AMERICAN PRODUCE AMERICAN PRODUCE CO MAMORU GEORGE SHIBUKAWA DIESEL COACH SERVICES DIESEL COACH AMERICAN PRODUCE COMPANY DIESEL COACH & TRUCK SERVICE | HWIS HWIS RCRA UST HWIS HWIS HWIS UST HWIS | S 2013 2014 | 93 93 68 144 93 93 93 144 93 | 30 | Ν |
| | 2116 | BAY ST | LOS ANGELES | HALBERT BROTHERS, INC. | UST | 87&93 | 144 | 31 | Е |
| | 939 S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | K & K LIFT ALL | HWIS | | 94 | 32 | NE |
| | 823 | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | DW FINISHING | HWIS | | 94 | 33 | Ν |

| OPERATING PERMITS ONLY | Page: | 22 |
|---|-------|------------|
| 2001-2005 | Date: | 06-18-2015 |
| SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL CA | Job: | EEMA8998 |

| ; ADDRE | SS | | CITY | LOCATION | SOU- RCE | STA- TUS | PA GE | MAP LOC | DIR |
|---------|----|------------------------------|-------------|--|---|---------------|---|------------|-----|
| 935 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | HALSTED & HOGGAN INC | HWIS | | 94 | 34 | NE |
| 821 | | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | STAN ACKERMAN I.G. HING SERVICE CO. IG KING SERVICE CO | HWIS UST HWIS | 87&93 | 94 144 94 | 35 | Ν |
| 930 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | 7 BAY TRUCK STATION 7 BAY TRUCK STATION 7 BAY TRUCK STOP LOUIE'S FLEET MAINTENANCE | UST HWIS HWIS UST | 2014 87&A9 | 144 94 94 145 | 36 | NE |
| 1220 | | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | BROWN, WILLIAM GRAND PRIX AUTO BODY, INC. | HWIS HWIS | | 95 95 | 37 | S |
| 1109 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | ALBEE COLLECTION | RCRA | S | 68 | 38 | SE |
| 2334 | Е | 8TH ST | LOS ANGELES | DOOR CONTROLS INC. | HWIS | | 95 | 39 | SE |
| 2123 | | BAY ST | LOS ANGELES | ZULA PRODUCTION | RCRA | S | 68 | 40 | Е |
| 2125 | | BAY ST | LOS ANGELES | SHIRT TIME CO | HWIS | | 95 | 41 | Е |
| 2116 | | SACRAMENTO ST | LOS ANGELES | HALBERT BROTHERS INC HALBERT BROTHERS, INCORPORATED | HWIS UST | 1998A | 95 145 | 42 | Е |
| 1201 | S | SANTA FE AVE, UNIT 1 | LOS ANGELES | LA IMPRINTS | HWIS | | 95 | 43 | SE |
| 1201 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | LOS ANGELES IMPRINTS LOS ANGELES IMPRINTS LOS ANGELES IMPRINTS | RCRA HWIS HWIS | S | 68 95 96 | 43 | SE |
| 1127 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | J AND J AUTO REPAIR J AND J AUTO REPAIR | RCRA HWIS | S | 69 96 | 44 | SE |
| 2312 | | DAMON ST | LOS ANGELES | ALLEN PRIME MEATS SHIPLY/DE PUTE MEAT CO INC | UST UST | 2014 87&A9 | 145 145 | 46 | S |
| 1218 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | INK IT INC P M DESIGNS | HWIS RCRA | S | 96 69 | 47 | SE |
| 1219 | s | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | A B IMPORT CORP | HWIS | | 96 | 48 | SE |
| 1800 | | BAY ST | LOS ANGELES | VALLEY FRUIT AND PRODUCE | HWIS | | 96 | 49 | W |
| 1811 | | SACRAMENTO ST | LOS ANGELES | UNITED MELON DISTRIBUTORS, INC | UST | 8798A | 145 | 51 | W |
| 725 | | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | DP TRADING INC | HWIS | | 96 | 52 | Ν |
| 2159 | | BAY ST | LOS ANGELES | HILL BROS. CHEMICAL CO. HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL CO HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL COMPANY HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL CO HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL CO ADVANCED ELECTRONICS PACKG HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL COMPANY | UST HWIS SARA HWIS HWIS SARA | 8798A | 145 96 97 83 97 96 82 | 53 | E |
| 2222 | | DAMON ST | LOS ANGELES | CARLOS Y RAMON CARLOS Y RAMON INTERSTATE BLDG MATERIALS | HWIS RCRA HWIS | | 97 69 97 | 56 | S |
| 703 | | MATEO ST, 703-711,AND 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | H & H LABOR SUPPLY INC | HWIS | | 97 | 57 | Ν |
| 703 | | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | H & H LABOR SUPPLY INC | HWIS | | 97 | 57 | Ν |
| 706 | | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | FLETES CARBURETOR SERVICE | HWIS | | 97 | 58 | Ν |
| 2150 | | SACRAMENTO ST | LOS ANGELES | GORDON BRUSH MFG CO INC | HWIS | | 98 | 59 | Е |
| 710 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | SAM'S BODY SHOP | HWIS | | 98 | 60 | NE |
| 2159 | | SACRAMENTO ST | LOS ANGELES | LA DYE & WASH WORKS LOS ANGELES DYE & WASH WORKS N&G INDUSTRIAL PROPERTIES | HWIS HWIS HWIS | | 98 98 98 | 61 | E |
| 2030 | Е | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | MICHAEL J. KAMEN | HWIS | | 98 | 62 | Ν |

LOS ANGELES

ARTISTICA METAL DESIGNS

2424 E 8TH ST

98 **63** SE

HWIS

| OPERATING PERMITS ONLY | Page: | 23 |
|---|-------|------------|
| 2001-2005 | Date: | 06-18-2015 |
| SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL CA | Job: | EEMA8998 |

| , | ADDRE | ESS | | CITY | LOCATION | SOU- | STA- | PA | MAP | DIR |
|---|-------|-----|--------------|-------------|---|---|------------|---|-----|-----|
| | 1926 | Е | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | WANG FASHIONS | HWIS | 105 | 98 | 64 | Ν |
| | 1920 | Е | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | J AND D STORE FIXTURES | HWIS | | 99 | 65 | Ν |
| | 1919 | Е | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | CUSTOM CONTAINER CORP. | HWIS | | 99 | 66 | Ν |
| | 2433 | Е | 8TH ST | LOS ANGELES | WOLFE CREATIONS OF CAL, INC WOLFE CREATIONS OF CAL, INC | RCRA HWIS | | 69 99 | 67 | SE |
| | 1922 | E | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | BEST MAINTENANCE SUPPLY CO BEST HILLYARD HILLYARD FLOOR CARE SUPPLY | PE PE PE | | 86 86 86 | 68 | N |
| | 2012 | Е | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | NORM LANGER | HWIS | | 99 | 70 | Ν |
| | 1934 | Е | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | MARTYS PATIO | HWIS | | 99 | 73 | Ν |
| | 2029 | Е | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | FRICTION MATERIALS INC FRICTION MATERIALS CO OF LA | HWIS UST | 2014 | 99 146 | 74 | Ν |
| | 2040 | Е | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | FRED KORT | UST | 2014 | 146 | 75 | Ν |
| | 727 | S | WILSON ST | LOS ANGELES | LOS ANGELES USD METROPOLITAN H LOS ANGELES USD METROPOLITAN H METROPOLITAN HIGH SCHOOL | RCRA HWIS HWIS | S | 69 100 100 | 76 | NW |
| | 2000 | E | 8TH ST | LOS ANGELES | BERG ELECTRIC LOS ANGELES TIMES COMMUNICATIO LOS ANGELES TIMES COMMUNICATIO PROFESSIONAL COURIER INC DBA B FLINT GROUP LOS ANGELES TIMES COMMUNICATIO LOS ANGELES TIMES OLYMPICFACIL ENCON TECHNOLOGIES INC PROFESSIONAL COURIER SOUTH INC LOS ANGELES TIMES | HWIS FIFRA AFS HWIS HWIS RCRA UST HWIS HWIS HWIS | L 2014 | 100 87 85 100 100 69 146 100 100 101 | 78 | SW |
| | 2450 | E | 8TH ST | LOS ANGELES | NATIONAL RESOURCES INC AMTRAK STATION NATIONAL RESOURCES INC NATIONAL RESOURCES, INC | RCRA HWIS HWIS HWIS | Х | 69 101 101 101 | 80 | SE |
| | 715 | S | WILSON ST | LOS ANGELES | LOS ANGELES UNIFIED SCHOOL DIS | HWIS | | 102 | 81 | NW |
| | 1000 | | LAWRENCE ST | LOS ANGELES | DEFRANCO COMPANY | HWIS | | 102 | 82 | W |
| | 1700 | | BAY ST | LOS ANGELES | TANIMURA DISTRIBUTING INC | HWIS | | 102 | 83 | W |
| | 2470 | Е | 8TH ST | LOS ANGELES | BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTA FE | HWIS | | 102 | 84 | Е |
| | 2017 | Е | 8TH ST | LOS ANGELES | THE KOREA TIMES LOS ANGELES IN | HWIS | | 102 | 88 | W |
| | 2155 | Е | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | SWEETHEART CUP CORP | HWIS | | 102 | 89 | NE |
| | 1745 | Е | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | SOUTH SANTA FE PARTNERS | HWIS | | 102 | 91 | NW |
| | 695 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | AMERICAN MOVING PARTS FRICTION MATERIALS CO. | HWIS HWIS | | 102 103 | 92 | NE |
| | 676 | | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | ADECO, INC ADECO MARKOWITZ, RON FEDERAL ARMORED EXPRESS INC ADECO DUNBAR ARMORED INC LA FEDERAL ARMORMED SERVICES I DUNBAR ARMORED | UST HWIS HWIS RCRA HWIS HWIS HWIS | 8798A X | 146 103 103 103 70 103 103 104 | 93 | Ν |
| | 1495 | | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | AVALON PROPERTY SERVICES INC | HWIS | | 104 | 94 | S |
| | 1150 | | LAWRENCE ST | LOS ANGELES | LOS ANGELES TIMES | UST | 1998A | 146 | 96 | W |
| | 2117 | Е | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | VICTOR CEPORIUS | HWIS | | 104 | 97 | NE |
| | 675 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | FRICTION MATERIALS COMPANY | UST | 1998A | 146 | 100 | NE |
| | 1371 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | YUN CHO PRINTING | RCRA | S | 70 | 101 | SE |
| | 1750 | Е | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | MALKI SHEEL SERVICE | UST | 1998A | 147 | 102 | NW |

| OPERATING PERMITS ONLY | Page: | 24 |
|---|-------|------------|
| 2001-2005 | Date: | 06-18-2015 |
| SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL CA | Job: | EEMA8998 |

| ; ADDRE | ESS | | CITY | LOCATION | SOU- | STA- | PA | MAP | DIR |
|---------|-----|-------------------------------|-------------------|--|---|--------|---|-------------|-----|
| 673 | | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | ESSEX CORP MOBIL OIL CORPORATION MISSION FURNITURE MFG CO. MISSION FURNITURE MFG CO. 673 MATEO LLC ESSEX CORP | HWIS HWIS HWIS RCRA HWIS HWIS | 105 | GE 104 104 104 70 104 104 | 103 | Ν |
| 680 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | TIERZERO | HWIS | | 105 | 104 | NE |
| 1855 | | INDUSTRIAL ST | LOS ANGELES | A-1 NOVELTY | UST | 1998A | 147 | 108 | Ν |
| OPE | R/ | ATING PERMITS ONLY, WITH | IN 1/4 - 1/2 MILE | OF THE SUBJECT SITE | | | | | |
| 2324 | | HUNTER ST | LOS ANGELES | ALPHOMEGA | HWIS | | 105 | 105 | SE |
| 2121 | Е | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | 2121 E 7TH PLACE, LLC | HWIS | | 105 | 106 | NE |
| 1716 | Е | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | GREYHOUND LINES INC | HWIS | | 105 | 107 | NW |
| 1855 | | INDUSTRIAL ST | LOS ANGELES | LINEAR CITY LLC PLAY BY PLAY INC | HWIS HWIS | | 105 105 | 108 | N |
| 2324 | | PORTER ST | LOS ANGELES | MILK DISTRIBUTION LLC | HWIS | | 105 | 11 0 | S |
| 1820 | | INDUSTRIAL ST | LOS ANGELES | LINEAR CITY LLC FOR THE PEOPLE PRODUCTIONS | HWIS HWIS | | 106 106 | 111 | N |
| 2350 | | PORTER ST | LOS ANGELES | 1X OCEAN PRINTEX INC | HWIS | | 106 | 113 | SE |
| 2416 | | HUNTER ST | LOS ANGELES | A-1 BROOM AND SUPPLY COMPANY | HWIS | | 106 | 115 | SE |
| 1790 | | INDUSTRIAL ST | LOS ANGELES | MESA CONSULTENTS | HWIS | | 106 | 116 | NW |
| 1504 | | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | DISTRIBUTING STATION 5 | UST | 87 | 147 | 117 | S |
| 2323 | | PORTER ST | LOS ANGELES | F&F AUTO/TRUCK BODY SHOP INC LIBERTY BODY SHOP | HWIS HWIS | | 106 107 | 118 | S |
| 2222 | Е | OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | A E P INDUSTRIES POUR LE BEBE A E P IND A E P INDUSTRIES POUR LE BEBE POR LE BEBE INC (DBA) BABY GUE A E P INDUSTRIES LOS ANGELES SERVICE STATION POUR LE BEBE | HWIS HWIS RCRA HWIS AFS HWIS RCRA HWIS RCRA | S S | 107 107 70 107 85 107 70 107 70 | 119 | S |
| 2184 | Е | OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | PRKASIN COMPANY | HWIS | | 107 | 120 | S |
| 2476 | | HUNTER ST | LOS ANGELES | BROMLEY PRODUCTIONS LIMITED LI E L MANAGEMENT CO | HWIS HWIS | | 108 108 | 121 | SE |
| 2436 | | HUNTER ST | LOS ANGELES | A-1 BROWN & SUPPLY INC | HWIS | | 108 | 122 | SE |
| 647 | | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | CONWAY MATEO LLC | HWIS | | 108 | 123 | Ν |
| 1503 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | TEAM SPORTS WEAR | RCRA | S | 71 | 124 | SE |
| 652 | S | IMPERIAL ST | LOS ANGELES | MISSION FURNITURE MFG CO# MISSION FURNITURE MFG CO# | HWIS RCRA | S | 109 71 | 126 | Ν |
| 2307 | Е | OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | ISADORE IRVING CANTOR | HWIS | | 109 | 127 | S |
| 2486 | | HUNTER ST | LOS ANGELES | JOEL UNANGST | HWIS | | 109 | 129 | SE |
| 635 | | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | BARAN CO DR ARTEMUS BRADFORD ROBOTICS P | HWIS HWIS | | 109 109 | 130 | Ν |
| 2323 | E | OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | VICTOR VALDEZ PACIFIC LOFT PARTNERS LLC | HWIS HWIS | | 109 109 | 131 | S |
| 1333 | S | WILSON ST | LOS ANGELES | E G SMITH CONSTRUCTION PRD INC E G SMITH CONSTRUCTION PRD INC | RCRA HWIS | Х | 71 110 | 135 | SW |
| 780 | S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | WESTERN WAREHOUSING - L.A. ADOLF COORS CO. | UST HWIS | 87981 | 147 111 | 137 | W |
| | | 7TH ST, VIADUCT OVER LA RIVER | LOS ANGELES | CITY OF LOS ANGELES DEPT OF PU | HWIS | | 112 | 140 | NE |

| OPERATING PERMITS ONLY | Page: | 25 |
|---|-------|------------|
| 2001-2005 | Date: | 06-18-2015 |
| SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL CA | Job: | EEMA8998 |

| ; ADDRESS | 5 | CITY | LOCATION | SOU- RCE | STA- TUS | PA MAF GE LOC | P DIR |
|-----------|------------------------|-------------|---|-------------------------------------|---------------|--|-------|
| 1580 | JESSE ST | LOS ANGELES | APEX WHOLESALE PRODUCE INC KATHERINE M JOHANSEN TRUST | UST HWIS | 8798A | 148 141 112 | NE |
| 2140 E | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | 7TH SPACE PARTNERS NORM SOLOMON & GARY OSHEROFF NORM SOLOMON & GARY OSHEROFF 7TH PLACE PARTNERS | HWIS UST UST HWIS | 2014 | 112 142 148 148 112 | NE |
| 748 S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | LOWE DEV | HWIS | | 112 144 | w |
| 800 S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | CHAFFEE WHOLESALE | UST | 1998A | 148 145 | w |
| 1804 E | 8TH ST | LOS ANGELES | SUN TOME CORPORATION | HWIS | | 113 146 | w |
| 2160 E | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | AMERICAN PRODUCE CO AMERICAN PRODUCE CO BSTCO CO | SARA SARA HWIS | | 83 147 83 113 | NE |
| 1333 | WILSON ST | LOS ANGELES | ARROW RECYCLING SOLUTIONS INC | RCRA | | 72 148 | SW |
| 744 S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | MUTUAL LIQUID GAS/EQUIPMENT CO | UST | 1998A | 148 149 | w |
| 742 S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | STATE WIDE SALES CO. INC. STATE WIDE SALES COMPANY,INC | UST UST | 87&A9 2014 | 149 150 149 | W |
| 2441 | PORTER ST | LOS ANGELES | COMMERCIAL OIL | UST | 8798A | 149 151 | SE |
| 806 S | ALAMEDA ST | COMPTON | PACIFIC BELL | HWIS | | 113 152 | w |
| 800 | MC GARRY ST, 2ND FLOOR | LOS ANGELES | Y & R FASHION INC | HWIS | | 114 155 | w |
| 800 | MC GARRY ST | LOS ANGELES | MAP WAREHOUSE INC CHAFFE WAREHOUSE | UST HWIS | 95981 | 150 155 114 | w |
| 821 S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | CHAFFEE WAREHOUSE CHAFFEE WHSE. | HWIS UST | 87 | 114 156 150 | w |
| 1540 S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | OIL DYNAMICS WALTER SEYMOUR & ERNEST COKER | HWIS HWIS | | 115 158 115 | SE |
| | 11TH & LEMON ST | LOS ANGELES | UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD | HWIS | | 115 159 | S |
| 786 S | MISSION RD | LOS ANGELES | LA CITY - SOUTH CENTRAL SANITA CONSOLIDATED FACILITIES BUREAU OF SANITATION | HWIS UST UST | 2014 19&A9 | 115 160 150 150 | E |
| 785 S | MISSION RD | LOS ANGELES | EVERGREEN AES | HWIS | | 116 161 | Е |
| 2340 E | OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | MACK TRUCKS INC. MACK TRUCKS, INC. UNIVERSAL MACK SALES & SVC MACK TRUCKS INC | HWIS UST HWIS RCRA | 8798I S | 116 162 150 116 73 | S |
| 777 S | MISSION RD | LOS ANGELES | BRYCE HELLMAN FAMILY PARTNERSH SUNNY SALLY INC LOS ANGELES SALAD CO LOS ANGELES SALAD CO J HELLMAN PRODUCE INCORPORATED | HWIS HWIS HWIS HWIS UST | 1998A | 116 163 116 116 116 150 | E |
| 1600 S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | MOLIEF ENTERPRISES MOHLIS REALTY 1 X L. A. WRECKING | UST HWIS HWIS | 1998A | 150 164 117 117 | S |
| 658 | MESQUIT ST | VAN NUYS | CHEFS CHOICE EGG COMPANY, INC. | HWIS | | 117 165 | NE |
| 728 S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | ATC PROPERTIES LLC | HWIS | | 117 166 | w |
| 2150 E | 10TH ST | LOS ANGELES | SPIRIT ACTIVEWEAR INC SPIRIT ACTIVEWEAR | RCRA HWIS | Х | 73 167 117 | S |
| 1321 | WHOLESALE ST | LOS ANGELES | LOS ANGELES TIMES/WHOLESALE ST LOS ANGELES TIMES | HWIS RCRA | х | 117 168 74 | NW |
| 614 | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | INTERNATIONAL FAMILY INC | HWIS | | 117 169 | N |
| 722 S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | BANK OF AMERICA NA | HWIS | | 117 170 | NW |
| 720 S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | AMS EXOTIC | HWIS | | 118 171 | NW |

| OPERATING PERMITS ONLY | Page: | 26 |
|---|-------|------------|
| 2001-2005 | Date: | 06-18-2015 |
| SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL CA | Job: | EEMA8998 |

| ; ADDRE | ESS | | CITY | LOCATION | SOU- | STA- | PA | MAP | DIR |
|---------|-----|---------------------------------|-------------|--|--|---------------|---------------------------------------|-----|-----|
| 1618 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | EXCLUSIVELY NATURAL COMPANY | HWIS | 103 | GE 118 | 172 | S |
| 840 | S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | CLEVELAND WRECKING CO | HWIS | | 118 | 173 | W |
| 2363 | Е | OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | NATIONAL AUTOMOTIVE CENTER | HWIS | | 118 | 174 | S |
| 1910 | Е | OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | MILES INTERNATIONAL METAL CO L LOS ANGELES SCRAP IRON & METAL | HWIS HWIS | | 118 118 | 176 | SW |
| 1601 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | FIRE STATION 17 LOS ANGELES FIRE STATION 17 CITY OF L A GENERAL SERVICES LOS ANGELES FIRE STA 17 FIRE STATION #17 CITY OF LA GENERAL SERVICES | UST UST HWIS RCRA HWIS HWIS | 87&A9 2014 | 151 151 120 74 120 120 | 178 | S |
| 1549 | | INDUSTRIAL ST | LOS ANGELES | ALL NU ICE CO INC ALL NU ICE CO INC | HWIS RCRA | х | 121 74 | 183 | NW |
| 937 | S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | T-A FINISHING INC MING HSEUH CHEN JAMES CHOU MING HSEUH CHEN MING HSUH CHEN | HWIS UST HWIS UST HWIS | 2014 | 121 152 121 152 121 | 184 | SW |
| 955 | S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | ZIMMERMAN, STEPHEN ZIMMERMAN DEVELOPMENT INC. | HWIS UST | 19981 | 121 152 | 185 | SW |
| 901 | S | ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | CHEVRON USA EDEN MARKETING CORPORATION 96923 | HWIS FIFRA UST | 87&A9 | 123 87 153 | 188 | SW |
| 747 | | WAREHOUSE ST, F1 5 | LOS ANGELES | ECI PRINTING | HWIS | | 123 | 189 | W |
| 747 | | WAREHOUSE ST | LOS ANGELES | E C I PRINTING AMERICAN APPAREL | RCRA HWIS | S | 75 123 | 189 | W |
| 1381 | E | 6TH ST | LOS ANGELES | L N COLOR L N COLOR L & N COLOR LAB LN COLOR | HWIS RCRA HWIS HWIS | S | 124 75 124 124 | 190 | N |
| 680 | S | MYERS ST | LOS ANGELES | QUINN HEALTH PANTRY | HWIS | | 124 | 191 | NE |
| 1448 | Е | 6TH ST | LOS ANGELES | VOLKSWORKS VOLKSWORKS | RCRA HWIS | S | 75 124 | 192 | N |
| 1525 | | INDUSTRIAL ST | LOS ANGELES | UNION CENTRAL COLD STORAGE INC UNION CENTRAL COLD STORAGE INC | HWIS RCRA | S | 124 75 | 193 | NW |
| | | 10TH ST & LAWRENCE ST, SW CORNE | LOS ANGELES | YRC USF REDDAWAY | HWIS | | 124 | 194 | SW |
| 1350 | | ELWOOD ST | LOS ANGELES | U S BRASS U S BRASS U.S. BRASS DIV. HOUSEHOLD MFG | RCRA HWIS HWIS | S | 76 124 125 | 195 | SW |
| 1367 | E | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | BUTLER WASH RACK BUTLER WASH RACK | RCRA HWIS | | 76 125 | 197 | NW |
| 2524 | | PORTER ST | LOS ANGELES | HONOLULU FREIGHT SERVICE | HWIS | | 125 | 198 | SE |
| 1701 | S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | SUPERB PARTNERS | HWIS | | 126 | 199 | S |
| 2170 | Е | 11TH ST | LOS ANGELES | LIPKIN REALTY | HWIS | | 126 | 200 | S |
| 1807 | Е | OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | OVERLAND TERMINAL LLC | HWIS | | 126 | 201 | SW |
| 1366 | Е | 6TH ST | LOS ANGELES | BASF WYANDOTTE METROPOL DIST BASF WYANDOTTE CORP/METRO | RCRA HWIS | х | 76 127 | 203 | N |
| 1415 | Е | 6TH ST | LOS ANGELES | STOVER SEED COMPANY STOVER SEED COMPANY | UST HWIS | 87981 | 153 127 | 204 | N |
| 1427 | E | 6TH ST | LOS ANGELES | WILSTAC, INC DBA AD ART CO AD ART CO | HWIS RCRA | S | 127 76 | 205 | N |
| 1340 | E | 6TH ST | LOS ANGELES | METROPOLITAN DISTRIBUTION CO METROPOLITAN DISTRIBUTION CENT METROPOLITAN DISTRIBUTION CTR METRO BUSINESS ARCHIVES | HWIS HWIS UST HWIS | 87981 | 127 127 153 127 | 207 | N |

OPERATING PERMITS ONLY

2001-2005

SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL CA

 Page:
 27

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998

| ADDRESS | CITY | LOCATION | SOU- | STA- | PA MAP | DIR |
|-----------------------------|-------------------|---|------------------------------|-------|-------------------------------------|-----|
| | | METRO BUSINESS ARCHIVES JUSTICE PRODUCTIONS METROPOLITAN DISTRIBUTION CTRS | HWIS HWIS RCRA | 103 | 127 128 77 | |
| 1375 E 6TH ST,STE 7 | LOS ANGELES | LOS ANGELES GUN CLUB | HWIS | | 128 209 | Ν |
| 1362 LAWRENCE ST | LOS ANGELES | KONET CO INC | HWIS | | 128 210 | SW |
| 1333 E 6TH ST | LOS ANGELES | ENIVRONMENTAL TRANSLOADING SER WILLIAM EDGARDO LOPEZ ENVIRONMENTAL TRANSLOADING SER | HWIS HWIS HWIS | | 128 211 128 128 | Ν |
| 1330 E 6TH ST | LOS ANGELES | ALBERTS ORGANICS | HWIS | | 129 212 | Ν |
| 1438 E 6TH ST | LOS ANGELES | THOMAS LIN PROPERTY | HWIS | | 129 213 | Ν |
| 1309 E 6TH ST | LOS ANGELES | 6TH STREET LOFTS LLC | HWIS | | 129 214 | Ν |
| 1740 E OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | MOBILE REFIGERATION SERVICE MOBILE REFRIGERATION SERVICE | HWIS UST | 19981 | 129 215 153 | SW |
| 1359 CHANNING ST | LOS ANGELES | BLUE DIAMOND APPARELL COAST LIGHTING BABA ENTERPRISES COAST LIGHTING | HWIS HWIS HWIS RCRA | S | 129 216 129 129 77 | SW |
| 1301 E 6TH ST | LOS ANGELES | AMERICAN PRESIDENT LINES LTD ALBE MARLE CORPORATION AMERICAN PRESIDENT LINES LTD | RCRA HWIS HWIS | х | 77 218 130 130 | Ν |
| 668 S ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | SHOWA MARINE & COLD STORAGE SHOWA MARINE AND COLD STORAGE | HWIS HWIS | | 130 219 130 | NW |
| 1313 E 6TH ST, ST | LOS ANGELES | NADELL AND CO INC | RCRA | т | 77 220 | NW |
| 1313 E 6TH ST | LOS ANGELES | NADELL & CO INC EAGLE USA TRANSLOADING SERVICES CO BAYER CORP | HWIS HWIS HWIS HWIS | | 130 220 130 131 131 | NW |
| RTE 10 & 10/60 SEPERATION | LOS ANGELES | MURPHY INDUSTRIAL COATINGS INC | HWIS | | 131 221 | Е |
| 1266 E 6TH ST | LOS ANGELES | PROGRESSIVE PRODUCE CORP | HWIS | | 131 222 | Ν |
| 600 S SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | LUMARYS TIRE SERVICE LUMARYS TIRE SERVICE, INC | HWIS UST | 1998A | 131 223 154 | Ν |
| 1291 E 6TH ST | LOS ANGELES | BOO-TO ENTERPRISES INC | HWIS | | 131 225 | NW |
| 654 S MYERS ST | LOS ANGELES | STERICYCLE INC ENVIRONMENTAL TRANSLOADING SVC | HWIS RCRA | | 131 226 77 | NE |
| 843 S NAOMI AVE | LOS ANGELES | LOS ANGELES CITY/COMMUNITY DEV OLYMPIC PLATING AND POLIS OLYMPIC PLATING AND POLIS | HWIS HWIS RCRA | s | 132 227 132 78 | W |
| 919 MC GARRY ST | LOS ANGELES | J&J DIESEL J&J DIESEL | HWIS RCRA | S | 132 228 78 | SW |
| 1330 CHANNING ST | LOS ANGELES | KRUSI METALS MANUFACTURING CO. | HWIS | | 139 257 | SW |
| 1700 S SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | SUNLAND TIRE CO INC | HWIS | | 142 270 | S |
| OPERATING PERMITS ONLY, WIT | HIN 1/2 - 3/4 MIL | E OF THE SUBJECT SITE | | | | |

| 1266 E | 6TH ST | LOS ANGELES | PROGRESSIVE PRODUCE CORPORATIO PROGRESSIVE PRODUCE COMPANY | HWIS UST | 87981 | 131 222 154 | NW |
|--------|--------------|-------------|---|------------------------------------|-------|--|----|
| 581 | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | ACME DIE CUTTING SERVICE ACME DIE CUTTING SERVICE | HWIS RCRA | S | 132 231 78 | Ν |
| 2474 E | OLYMPIC BLVD | LOS ANGELES | LA STRUCTURAL YARD ZONE #1 LA STRUCTURAL YARD ZONE #1 | RCRA HWIS | S | 78 232 132 | SE |
| 761 | TERMINAL ST | LOS ANGELES | S. E. RYKOFF & CO. LOOFAH PRODUCTIONS LLC S E RYKOFF CO SE RYKOFF S E RYKOFF CO | HWIS HWIS HWIS RCRA PE | S | 133 234 133 133 78 86 | W |

| OPERATING PERMITS ONLY | Page: | 28 |
|---|-------|------------|
| 2001-2005 | Date: | 06-18-2015 |
| SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL CA | Job: | EEMA8998 |

| ; ADDRESS | S | CITY | LOCATION | SOU- | STA- | PA MA | AP DIR |
|-----------|-------------------------|-------------|---|--|------------|--|--------------|
| | | | SE RYKOFF & CO S.E. RYKOFF S E RYKOFF CO S E RYKOFF & COMPANY ALAMEDA PRODUCE MARKET S E RYKOFF CO S.E.RYKOFF & CO OF LOS ANGELES ALAMEDA PRODUCE MARKET LLC | RCE HWIS HWIS UST HWIS RCRA HWIS HWIS | 8798A S | GE LC 133 133 133 154 133 79 134 134 | |
| 1420 | ELWOOD ST | LOS ANGELES | ELEVATOR RESEARCH AND MANUFACT | HWIS | | 134 23 | 5 SW |
| 1275 E | 6TH ST | LOS ANGELES | AESTHETIC FRAME DESIGN AESTHETIC FRAME DESIGN | RCRA HWIS | S | 79 23 134 | 6 NW |
| 1411 S | WILSON ST | LOS ANGELES | OLIVER & WILLIAMS ELEVATORS OLIVER & WILLIAMS ELEVATORS OLIVER & WILLIAMS ELEVATORS | HWIS HWIS HWIS | | 135 23 135 135 | 8 S |
| 2303 E | 11TH ST | LOS ANGELES | UNIVERSAL DYEING & PRINTING, I UNIVERSAL DYEING AND PRINTING | HWIS RCRA | E | 136 23 79 | 9 S |
| 584 | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | L A IMAGES | RCRA | S | 79 24 | 0 N |
| 942 | LONG BEACH AVE, 942-944 | LOS ANGELES | MILLS-MILLER-MILLS | HWIS | | 136 24 | 2 w |
| 1401 | ELWOOD ST | LOS ANGELES | NICKABOODS, INCORPORATED ABOOD, NICK | UST HWIS | 19981 | 154 24 136 | 3 SW |
| 582 | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | COMPLETE PARTS CLEANER SERVICE COMPLETE PARTS CLEANER SERVICE ELIE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES IN | HWIS HWIS HWIS | | 136 24 136 136 | 4 N |
| 633 S | MISSION RD | LOS ANGELES | SAFFOLA QUALITY FOODS VENTURA FORRS VENTURA FORRS WILSEY FOODS INC SAFFOLA QUALITY FOODS INC | HWIS UST UST HWIS RCRA | 2014 S | 136 24 154 154 137 79 | .5 NE |
| 1395 | CHANNING ST | LOS ANGELES | BABA ENTERPRISES | HWIS | | 137 24 | 6 SW |
| 737 | TERMINAL ST | LOS ANGELES | L.A. NUT HOUSE UNITED SIGNATURE FOODS UNITED SIGNATURE FOODS S E RYKOFF & CO UNITED SIGNATURE FOODS | AFS RCRA FIFRA HWIS SARA | S | 86 24 80 87 137 83 | 7 W |
| 938 | LONG BEACH AVE | LOS ANGELES | J.J.TRUCK REPAIR | HWIS | | 138 25 | 0 w |
| 944 | LONG BEACH AVE | LOS ANGELES | INK MAKERS INC INK MAKERS INC | RCRA HWIS | | 80 25 138 | 5 1 w |
| 1418 | ELWOOD ST | LOS ANGELES | OLIVER WILSON ST LIVER WILSON ST | HWIS RCRA | | 138 25 80 | 2 SW |
| 2266 E | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | 7TH STREET SHOP FLEET SERVICES | UST | 87&93 | 155 25 | 3 E |
| 1330 | WILLOW ST | LOS ANGELES | LINSOL CORP | HWIS | | 138 25 | 5 N |
| 580 | MATEO ST | LOS ANGELES | CLIFF WALLS MACHINERY | HWIS | | 139 25 | 6 N |
| 1330 | CHANNING ST | LOS ANGELES | KRUSE METALS | HWIS | | 139 25 | 7 SW |
| 1323 | WILLOW ST | LOS ANGELES | JOEL & ARONOFF WEST INC JOEL & ARONOFF WEST INC | RCRA HWIS | S | 81 25 139 | 9 N |
| 1335 | WILLOW ST | LOS ANGELES | JOHN MORRELL & CO JOHN MORRELL & COMPANY JOHN MORRELL & CO MORRELL AND COMPANY JOHN MORRELL & CO. JOHN MORRELL & COMPANY | SARA HWIS SARA HWIS UST HWIS | 1998 | 83 26 139 83 139 155 139 | 1 0 N |
| 585 S | SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | SPILO, CHARLES G CHARLES G. SPILO | HWIS UST | 87981 | 139 26 155 | 5 1 N |
| 1926 E | 14TH ST | LOS ANGELES | MERRILL YOUNG MERRILL YOUNG MERRILL YOUNG KELLOW BROWN CO. | AFS HWIS RCRA HWIS | S | 86 26 140 81 140 | 2 SW |
| 1421 | LAWRENCE ST | LOS ANGELES | CENTURY SCREEN PRINTING | HWIS | | 140 26 | 3 SW |

| OPERATING PERMITS ONLY | Page: | 29 |
|---|-------|------------|
| 2001-2005 | Date: | 06-18-2015 |
| SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL CA | Job: | EEMA8998 |

| ADDRES | S | CITY | LOCATION | SOU- RCE | STA- TUS | PA MAR | DIR |
|---------|----------------|-------------|--|---|--------------------|--|-----|
| | | | PJS SCREEN PRINTING | RCRA | S | 81 | |
| 2155 E | E 14TH ST | LOS ANGELES | COAST PRODUCE COAST PRODUCE COLTON, HENRY JM HARMON CONSTRUCTION CO | UST UST HWIS HWIS | 2014 2010 | 155 264 155 140 140 | S |
| 2163 E | E 14TH ST | LOS ANGELES | A-1 EXPRESS DELIVERY SERVICE COAST PRODUCE COAST PRODUCE COMPANY COAST PRODUCE COAST PRODUCE A1 EXPRESS DELIVERY SERVICE IN | HWIS RCRA UST HWIS HWIS HWIS | X 2014 | 140 265 81 156 140 141 141 | S |
| 2251 E | E 11TH ST | LOS ANGELES | LA PUMPING PLANT #10 LA PUMPING PLANT #10 | HWIS RCRA | S | 141 266 81 | S |
| 2170 E | 14TH ST | LOS ANGELES | ATLAS LUMBER COMPANY, INC | UST | 87981 | 156 268 | S |
| 651 S | S RIO ST | LOS ANGELES | G.M. PROCTOR & SONS INC | HWIS | | 141 269 | NE |
| 1700 S | S SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | SUNLAND TIRE CO INC 1700 SANTA FE LTD | HWIS HWIS | | 141 270 141 | S |
| 1751 S | S SANTA FE AVE | LOS ANGELES | DELTA CME DELTA CME EXPRESS CO DELTA LINES | HWIS RCRA HWIS UST | S 8798l | 142 274 82 142 156 | S |
| 927 5 | S NAOMI AVE | LOS ANGELES | PAT & SONS POULTRY INC | UST | 87981 | 156 275 | W |
| 1400 S | S ALAMEDA ST | LOS ANGELES | DOWNTOWN FUEL STOP | UST | 2014 | 156 276 | SW |
| 2300 E | E 11TH ST | LOS ANGELES | CTD MACHINES INC CTD MACHINES INC | HWIS HWIS | | 142 277 143 | S |
| 1920 \$ | S IMPERIAL ST | LOS ANGELES | SOS METALS INC | RCRA | S | 82 278 | S |
| 2310 E | 7TH ST | LOS ANGELES | CONSOLIDATED FACILITES CONSOLIDATED FACILITES 7TH STREET CONSOLIDATED FACILI | UST UST RCRA | 2013 87&93 L | 157 279 157 82 | Е |

SITES WITH UNKNOWN OR NON-SPECIFIC LOCATION

| IMPERIAL HWY, E OF BLOOM- | LOS ANGELES | UNOCAL SO CAL. DIV. PIPE LINE | HWIS | 143 |
|---------------------------|-------------|-------------------------------|------|-----|
|---------------------------|-------------|-------------------------------|------|-----|

_
06-18-2015 Date:

EEMA8998-C Job:

| NPL CERCLA NFRAP FedFac ERNS HM TB SETS CDETS CD IS RV TSD LB | NATIONAL PRIORITY LIST CERCLIS NFRAP FEDERAL FACILITIES EMERGENCY RESPONSE NOTIFICATION SYSTEM HAZARDOUS MATERIAL INCIDENT REPORT SYSTEM TARGETED BROWNFIELDS ASSESSMENTS SITE ENFORCEMENT TRACKING SYSTEM ENFORCEMENT TRACKING SYSTEM ENFORCEMENT TRACKING SYSTEM ENFORCEMENT TRACKING SYSTEM CORCACTS CORACTS RCRA - TSD FACILITIES I Incinerator CLANDESTINE DRUG LABORATORIES | D | Land Disposal | т | Storage/Treatment |
|--|---|----------------|---|-------------|--|
| П | INDIAN LUST/VCP/UST | | | | |
| FL SR VC FE EP BZ CA LU DR CS-nfa CS LUST SWIS WIP | FEDERAL LEAD STATE RESPONSE VOLUNTARY CLEANUP PROGRAM PROPERTIES NEEDING FURTHER EVALUATION MILITARY EVALUATION SITES EXPEDITED REMEDIAL ACTION BORDER ZONE SCHOOL PROPERTY EVALUATION PROGRAM SMBRPD LAND USE RESTRICTIONS CORRECTIVE ACTION HISTORICAL SITES CALSITES - NO FURTHER ACTION CORTESE LEAKING UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS 0 No action 1 Leak being confirmed 3A Site workplan submitted SOLID WASTE INFORMATION SYSTEM WELL INVESTIGATION PROGRAM DEINKING WATER PROGRAM | 38 5C 5R | Prel site assmnt underway Pollution characterization Remediation plan | 7 8 9 | Remedial action underway Post remedial action monitoring Case closed |
| NT | TOXIC RELEASES | | | | |
| 20 | Land Disposal Sites | | | | |
| TP SW RCRA | TOXIC PITS SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENT TEST RCRA GENERATORS | т | Transnorter | s | Small Generator |
| SARA Nucl PCB | SARA TITLE III,SECTION 313 (TRIS) NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION LICENSEES PCB WASTE HANDLERS DATABASE PCB Waste Handlers Database | | Talloportor | Ū | |
| PCS AFS PE FIFRA FIFS CICIS FN HWIS | PCB Waste Handlers Database 03/08 PERMIT COMPLIANCE SYSTEM (PCS) AIRS FACILITY SYSTEM (AFS) SECTION SEVEN TRACKING SYSTEM FIFRA/TSCA TRACKING SYSTEM FEDERAL FACILITIES INFORMATION SYSTEM (FFIS) CHEMICALS IN COMMERCE INFORMATION SYSTEM FINDS EPA FACILITY INDEX SYSTEM HAZAPDOLIS WASTE INFORMATION SYSTEM | | | | |

HWIS UST

HAZARDOUS WASTE INFORMATION SYSTEM UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS

INTRODUCTION

BBL has used its best effort but makes no claims as to the completeness or accuracy of the referenced government sources or the completeness of the search. Our records are frequently updated but only as current as their publishing date and may not represent the entire field of known or potential hazardous waste or contaminated sites. To ensure complete coverage of the subject property and surrounding area, sites may be included in the list if there is any doubt as to the location because of discrepancies in map location, zip code, address, or other information in our sources. For additional information call 858 793-0641.

In accordance with ASTM E-1527-13, the following government sources have been searched for sites at the street address, within the distances of the subject location as listed below.

FEDERAL SOURCES

NPL National Priority List

EPA has prioritized sites with significant risk to human health and the environment. These sites receive remedial funding under the Comprehensive Environmental Response Conservation and Liability Act (CERCLA).

No listings within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

CERCLISComprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Information System

CERCLIS is a database used by the EPA to track activities conducted under the Comprehensive Environmental Response and Liability Act CERCLA (1980) and the amendment the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act SARA (1986).

Sites to be included are identified primarily by the reporting requirements of hazardous substances Treatment, Storage and Disposal (TSD) facilities and releases larger than specific Reportable Quantities (RQ), established by EPA.

Using the National Oil and hazardous Substance Pollution Contingency Plan (National Contingency Plan) the EPA set priorities for cleanup.

The EPA rates National Contingency Plan sites according to a quantitative Hazard Ranking System (HRS) based on the potential health risk via any one or more pathways: groundwater, surface water, air, direct contact, and fire/explosion.

The EPA and state agencies seek to identify potentially responsible parties (PRP) and ultimately Responsible Parties (RP) who can be required to finance cleanup activities, either directly or through reimbursement of federal Superfund expenditures.

Any Institutional/Engineering controls issued under CERCLA are described in the status detail for each site. Sites delisted from the NPL list are included here.

This list has been researched within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

Site:WESTERN LEAD PRODUCTS COMPANYAddress:2182 E 11TH STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:202 - about .4 mile S of the subject

Page: 2 Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

Status: CN - Combined PA/SI Review Start Needed

EPA ID#: CA0001368091

Discovery of this Hazardous Waste site was brought to EPA's attention on 02/15/96. Another party is managing cleanup work at a non-NPL site on 04/28/97. The Preliminary Assessment, consisting of collecting and documenting existing information about the source and nature of the site hazard was completed on 06/11/98.

Other Cleanup Activity: State-Lead Cleanup as of 5/1/2007 8/06: CA DTSC I&SED AND CONSENT ORDER;" 0:00:00.

| Site: | EASTERN SMELTING AND REFINING |
|----------|---|
| Address: | 2200 E 11TH ST,2200-2201 |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 230 - about .5 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | CN - Combined PA/SI Review Start Needed |

EPA ID#: CA0001368067

Discovery of this Hazardous Waste site was brought to EPA's attention on 02/15/96. The Preliminary Assessment, consisting of collecting and documenting existing information about the source and nature of the site hazard was completed on 06/30/98. 8/06: OCA CA DTSC Lead - VCP 8/06: OCA CA DTSC Lead - VCP"

Other Cleanup Activity: State-Lead Cleanup as of 8/9/2006 0:00:00.

Site: NATIONAL AEROSOL PRODS CO Address: 2193 E 14TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 271 - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: CN - Combined PA/SI Review Start Needed

EPA ID#: CAD008252355

Discovery of this Hazardous Waste site was brought to EPA's attention. Surveys were conducted before EPA Superfund involvement. The Preliminary Assessment, consisting of collecting and documenting existing information about the source and nature of the site hazard.

SI Start Needed as of 8/8/2006 0:00:00.

| Site: | MOUREN-LAURENS OIL |
|----------|---------------------------------------|
| Address: | 641 S COMPTON AVE |
| Map Loc: | 284 - about .6 mile SW of the subject |
| Status: | SA - Superfund Alternative Site |

EPA ID#: CASFN0905407

Removal Only Site (No Site Assessment Work Needed) as of 11/20/2000 0:00:00.

| Site: | ALCO PLATING CORP |
|----------|---|
| Address: | 1400 LONG BEACH AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 289 - about .6 mile SW of the subject |
| Status: | CN - Combined PA/SI Review Start Needed |
| | |

EPA ID#: CAD008292435

Discovery of this Hazardous Waste site was brought to EPA's attention on 11/20/92.

"13064433

DELETED 2001 PA START. mm"

Page: 3 Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

Other Cleanup Activity: State-Lead Cleanup as of 9/10/2013 0:00:00.

Site:ENTERPRISE SALESAddress:901 E 3RD STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:344 - about 1. mile N of the subjectStatus:CN - Combined PA/SI Review Start Needed

EPA ID#: CAN000905934

EPA issued notice letters to potentially responsible parties informing them of their potential liability under CERCLA and inviting them to discuss involvement at the site. An Administrative Order was issued by the EPA unilaterally (under section 106 of SARA). The point at which all parties have responded to a notice of intent to comply with an enforcement action was achieved. Oversight was provided of Potentially Responsible Party (PRP) response action for removals, including all activities for monitoring and supervising the performance of PRPs to determine whether such performance is consistent with the requirements of the administrative orders on consent, unilateral administrative orders, consent decrees, judicial decrees, information agreements, and compliance schedules.

CONTAMINENTS: - potentially responsible party removal

Dirt - potentially responsible party removal

Dirt - potentially responsible party removal

asbestos - removal

Two-story building. Manufacturer of janitorial supplies. Two-story building. Manufacturer of janitorial supplies."

Removal Only Site (No Site Assessment Work Needed) as of 9/16/2002 0:00:00.

NFRAP No Further Remedial Action Planned sites (CERCLIS)

As of February 1995, CERCLIS sites designated 'No Further Remedial Action Planned' NFRAP have been removed from CERCLIS. NFRAP sites may be sites where, following an initial investigation, no contamination was found, contamination was removed quickly without the site being placed on the NPL, or the contamination was not serious enough to require Federal Superfund action or NPL consideration.

EPA has removed these NFRAP sites from CERCLIS to lift unintended barriers to the redevelopment of these properties. This policy change is part of EPA's Brownfields Redevelopment Program to help cities, states, private investors and affected citizens promote economic redevelopment of unproductive urban sites.

This list has been researched within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

 Site:
 BAILEY AND SCHMITZ CO

 Address:
 2101 E 7TH ST

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 86 - about .2 mile NE of the subject

 Status:
 EPA ID#: CAD982359689

Discovery of this Hazardous Waste site was brought to EPA's attention on 11/01/87. The Preliminary Assessment, consisting of collecting and documenting existing information about the source and nature of the site hazard was completed on 08/24/89.

NFRAP as of 8/24/1989 0:00:00.

 Site:
 EXLEY EXPRESS

 Address:
 634 MATEO ST

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 132 - about .3 mile N of the subject

 Status:
 EPA ID#: CAD981161078

Discovery of this Hazardous Waste site was brought to EPA's attention on 11/01/85. The Preliminary Assessment, consisting of collecting and documenting existing information about the source and nature of the site hazard was completed on 01/18/89. The Preliminary Assessment, consisting of collecting and documenting existing information about the source and nature of the site hazard was completed on 02/01/86.

NFRAP as of 1/18/1989 0:00:00.

Site:SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO - OAddress:2424 E OLYMPIC BLVDCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:177 - about .4 mile SE of the subjectStatus:

EPA ID#: CAD981422017

Discovery of this Hazardous Waste site was brought to EPA's attention on 06/01/81. The Preliminary Assessment, consisting of collecting and documenting existing information about the source and nature of the site hazard was completed on 02/22/89. The Preliminary Assessment, consisting of collecting and documenting existing information about the source and nature of the site hazard was completed on 09/01/84.

NFRAP as of 2/22/1989 0:00:00.

Site:PUREX CORP TURCO PRODSAddress:INDUSTRIAL STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:181 - about .4 mile NW of the subjectStatus:

EPA ID#: CAD980636146

Discovery of this Hazardous Waste site was brought to EPA's attention on 06/01/81. The Preliminary Assessment, consisting of collecting and documenting existing information about the source and nature of the site hazard was completed on 12/01/86.

NFRAP as of 12/1/1986 0:00:00.

Site:BUNCH & BUNCH SANDBLASTINGAddress:1930MATEO STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:287Status:

EPA ID#: CAD981170004

Discovery of this Hazardous Waste site was brought to EPA's attention on 01/01/86. The Preliminary Assessment, consisting of collecting and documenting existing information about the source and nature of the site hazard was completed on 05/01/86.

NFRAP as of 5/1/1986 0:00:00.

Site:INDUSTRIAL WIRE PRODUCTS CORPAddress:2417 E 23RD ST,& 2451City:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:341 - about .9 mile S of the subjectStatus:

EPA ID#: CAD122033913

Discovery of this Hazardous Waste site was brought to EPA's attention on 06/01/86. The Preliminary Assessment, consisting of collecting and documenting existing information about the source and nature of the site hazard was completed on 04/01/88. The Preliminary Assessment, consisting of collecting and documenting existing information about the source and nature of the site hazard was completed on 06/01/87.

NFRAP as of 4/1/1988 0:00:00.

FEDFAC Federal Facilities

As part of the CERCLA program, federal facilities with known or suspected environmental problems, the Federal Facilities Hazardous Waste Compliance Docket is tracked separately to comply with a Federal Court order.

No listings within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

ERNS Emergency Response Notification System

The ERNS is a national computer database used to store information on unauthorized releases of oil and hazardous substances. The program is a cooperative effort of the Environmental Protection Agency, the Department of Transportation Research and Special Program Administration's John Volpe National Transportation System Center and the National Response Center.

There are primarily five Federal statutes that require release reporting the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA) section 103; the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act (SARA) Title III Section 304; the Clean Water Act of 1972(CWA) section 311(b)(3); and the Hazardous Material Transportation Act of 1974(HMTA section 1808(b).

This list has been researched within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

| Site: | |
|----------|--|
| Address: | SANTA FE AVE & 8TH ST,ON THE LOS ANGELES |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 45 - about .1 mile SE of the subject |
| Status: | 9000009050 UNKNOWN MATERIAL (04/24/1990) |
| | SANTA FE AND 8TH STREET ON THE LOS ANGELES RIVER REPORTING A RED DYE SHEEN SIGHTING RESPONSE CREW ENROUTE SHEEN INFORMATION UNKNOWN SUSPECTS RESPONSIBLE PARTY COULD BE THE ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS |
| Site: | METAL RECYCLING YARD |
| Address: | 2130 VIOLET ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 50 - about .1 mile NE of the subject |
| Status: | 1000957568 |
| | On 10/20/10 an incident was discovered. CALLER STATED THAT CALLER AND 14 OF HER FELLOW NEIGHBORS ARE COMPLAINING THAT RAIN WATER IS WASHING MATERIALS OFF THE OLD EQUIPMENT AT A METAL RECYCLING YARD AND INTO GROUND WATER. ALSO BLACK DUST EMANATES FROM THE YARD ALL DAY |
| | NONE. |
| Site: | UNOCAL |
| Address: | 2101 E 8TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 54 - about .1 mile SW of the subject |
| Status: | 9200006834 0GASOLINE: AUTOMOTIVE (4.23G PB/G (01/13 |

2101 EAST 8TH ST STORAGE TANK/UNKNOWN TANKS WERE REMOVED ALONG WITH CONTAMINATED SOIL YANK-A-TANK

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | UNOCAL 2101 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 54 - about .1 mile SW of the subject 9200000909 GASOLINE: AUTOMOTIVE (4.23G PB/G (01/13 |
|---|---|
| | 2101 EAST 8TH ST STORAGE TANK/UNKNOWN TANKS WERE REMOVED ALONG WITH CONTAMINATED SOIL |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | CROSS DECATURE ST AND 7TH ST. DECATURE ST & 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 55 - about .2 mile NW of the subject 0200628668 |
| | On 11/09/02 an incident involving 25 gallon(s) of OTHER OIL, caused by equipment failure, occurred. TRANSFORMER FELL TO THE GROUND RELEASING THE MATERIAL |
| | CLEANING UP ANY REMAINING MATERIAL THAT CAN BE FOUND. NONE |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LA IMPORTS 1807 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 77 - about .2 mile NW of the subject 8900029657 PAINTS OR LACQUER (12/08/1989) |
| | SPRAY GUNS/FURNITURE SPRAYING OPERATION NO ACTION TAKEN NO COMPLAINTS OF ILL EFFECTS DUE TO SPRAYING. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | 2472 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 85 - about .2 mile E of the subject 0000539771 |
| | On 24-AUG-00 an incident, caused by operator error, occurred. THE CALLER STATED THAT A WORKER DRIVING A CONSTRUCTION TRACTOR RAN INTO AN ELBOW FITTING ON A STORAGE TANK CAUSING A SPILL HAZMAT ON SITE / PUMP OUT MATERIAL FROM CLARIFIER / DIG UP CONTAMINATED SOIL. THE CALLER WILL NOTIFY: WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD/ CA OES. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | 2472 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 85 - about .2 mile E of the subject 0600787378 |
| | On 02/06/06 an incident involving 105 gallon(s) of OIL, FUEL: NO. 1-D, caused by equipment failure, occurred. CALLER STATED DUE TO A FAULTY NOZZLE THERE WAS A RELEASE OF MATERIALS ONTO THE GROUND |
| | THE SPILL WAS CONTAINED WITH BOOMS AND PADS. A CONTRACTOR (CLEAN HARBORS) WAS CALLED AND THE RELEASE WAS CLEANED UP NO ADDITIONAL INFORMATION |

Site: Address: 2472 E 8TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 85 - about .2 mile E of the subject Status: 0200594852 On 02/24/02 an incident involving 5000 gallon(s) of OIL: DIESEL was discovered. THE MATERIAL SPILLED FROM AN STORAGE TANK AT A RAIL YARD DUE TO UNKNOWN CAUSES.. MATERIAL CONTAINED. THE CALLER HAD NO ADDITIONAL INFORMATION .. Site: UNKNOWN Address: SANTA MONICA FWY & MATEO City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 87 - about .2 mile S of the subject Status: 96 487060 02/12/96 WESTBOUND ON SANTA MONICA FREEWAY AT THE MATEO OFF RAMP A BARREL ON A TRUCK FELL OFF AT THE OFF RAMP. UNKNOWN HOW MUCH OF DRUM ACTUALLY LEAKED. CHP RESPONDED TO ACCIDENT AT 15:37. CHP JUST NOW DISCOVERING WHAT WAS IN BBL. CALTRANS TO C/U AAD DISPOSAL Site: HWY 10 & SANTA FE Address: LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 90 - about .2 mile SE of the subject Status: 96 479496 02/12/96 SINGLE VEHICLE ACCIDENT/DISPOAL RUPTURED ROAD CLOSED FOR APPROX 1 HR CLEANED UP SPILLED MATERIAL/EXCAVATED AFFECTED SOIL Site: Address: 1401 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 98 - about .2 mile SE of the subject Status: 1201027076 On 10/11/12 an incident, caused by natural phenomenon, occurred. THE CALLER REPORTED THAT NON-PCB MINERAL OIL DISCHARGED FROM A POLE TOP TRANSFORMER DUE TO A LIGHTNING STRIKE. THE CALLER STATED THAT IT IS UNKNOWN IF THERE IS DRAINAGE IMPACT AT THIS TIME. OPERATORS ARE INVESTIGATING AND TRACKING THE RUNOFF.. OPERATOR ARE TRACKING THE DISCHARGE TO DETERMINE IF THERE IS OR HAS BEEN STORM DRAIN IMPACT THE CALLER WILL NOTIFY CA-EMA, USCG, FISH & GAME AND REGIONAL OFFICES .. Site: 1700 E 7TH ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 112 - about .3 mile NW of the subject Status: 0700822693 On 01/02/07 an incident involving 92 gallon(s) of RAW SEWAGE, caused by equipment failure, was discovered. CALLER IS REPORTING A DISCHARGE OF RAW SEWAGE FROM A 8" SEWER MAIN LINE DUE TO A BLOCKAGE IN THE LINE ... CA OES, LA DHS, CA RWQCB.

2172 E 7TH ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 153 - about .4 mile NE of the subject Status: 0400720153 On 04/26/04 an incident involving 275 gallon(s) of HYDRAULIC OIL, caused by equipment failure, occurred. THE CALLER STATED THAT THERE WAS A BROKEN FITTING ON A HYDRAULIC OIL PUMP THAT RESULTED IN A RELEASE OF MATERIAL .. CLEANED UP. THE CALLER HAD NO ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. 4TH STREET RAILYARD Site: Address: E 7TH ST & SOUTH MISSION LOS ANGELES City: - about .4 mile NE of the subject Map Loc: 180 Status: 1100985447 On 08/10/11 an incident, caused by derailment, occurred. CALLER IS REPORTING THAT A LOCOMOTIVE DERAILED DUE TO UNKNOWN CAUSES ... CA-OES, CA HWY PATROL. LAPD, PUC & WATER. Site: **CITY SANITATION** Address: 7TH ST & MISSION RD City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 182 - about .4 mile NE of the subject Status: 9000017546 DIESEL FUEL (05/14/1990) 7TH AND MISSION ROAD CITY SANITATION YD VANDALS STOLE PUMP AND TURNED ON PUMP/IT RAN OVERNIGHT FD HANDLED CLEAN UP. SOME MATERIAL WENT INTO SOTRM DRAIN & WAS NOT REC OVERABLE LA CITY SANITATION DEPT. Site: Address: 7TH ST & MISSION RD Citv: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 182 - about .4 mile NE of the subject Status: 9000014949 OIL: DIESEL (05/13/1990) 7 TH ST AND MISSION ST. VANDALS OPENED FUEL PUMPS AT THE FACILITY AND LET MATERIAL RUN OUT CITY HAZMAT IS ON SCENE Site: LA CITY SANITATION DEPT. Address: 7TH ST & MISSION RD LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 182 - about .4 mile NE of the subject Status: 9000017633 1600 GAL of DIESEL #2 (05/13/1990) 7TH STREET AND MISSION STREET VANDALS TURNED ON PUMPS OVERNIGHT/FLOW TO SEWER TO RIVER FIRE DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EPA ASSISTANCE. ALSO ON SCENE FLOOD CONTROL/CO. FD CHIEF WARD=FD/FRANK SELVANTAS=CODOH EPA/OSCDISPATCHED R. RANDALL TAT TO SCENE. ESTIMATED 1,000 GALS. DIES EL SPILLED TO RIVER, 10 MILE LIGHT SHEEN OBSERVED. CITY OF LA FUNDIN G RESPONSE. BOOMS ** UNOCAL Site: Address: 1800 E OLYMPIC BLVD City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 196 - about .4 mile SW of the subject

Status: 8900000570 35 GAL of GASOLINE (01/12/1989) SERVICE STATION 1800 E. OLYMPIC VAPOR HOSE ON GAS PUMP BROKE, SPILLING GASOLINE ONTO ASPHALT. WORKERS WERE ABLE TO CONTAIN SPILL. MATERIAL PICKED UP WITH SORBENT. WILL NOTIFY OES Site: UNK Address: 1349 CHANNING ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 206 - about .4 mile SW of the subject Status: 8900012825 25 GAL of ETHYL ETHER ANHYDROUS (05/22 1349 S CHANNING ST 5 EA 5 GAL CONTAINERS-IN ALLEYWAY CONTAINERS NOT LEAKING ILLEGAL DUMPING CAOES-89-06233 Site: Address: 2200 JESSE ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 241 - about .5 mile NE of the subject Status: 0600797495 On 05/17/06 an incident involving 0.5 gallon(s) of STYRENE MONOMER occurred. CALLER STATED THERE WAS A RELEASE OF MATERIALS FROM A RAILROAD TANK CAR DUE TO UNKNOWN CAUSES. THERE IS A RELEASE OF MATERIALS ANYTIME THE CAR IS MOVED. THIS IS UNDER INVESTIGATION .. CALLER STATED THE LOS ANGELES FIRE DEPARTMENT IS INVESTIGATING AND UNION PACIFIC STAFF WILL TAKE OVER ONCE THEY ARE DONE ... CALIFORNIA HIGHWAY PATROL LOG NUMBER 975, NO ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.. Site: NATIONAL AEROSOL PRODUCTS CO. Address: 2193 E 14TH ST LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 271 - about .5 mile S of the subject 8900011016 200 GAL of METHYLENE CHLORIDE (06/08/1 Status: MATERIAL SPILLED FROM VENT PIPE OF UNDERGROUND TANK WHEN DELIVERY DRIVER FILLED TANK TOO QUICKLY. NO ACTION TAKEN AS OF YET, PENDING ADVICE OF MANUFACTURER, OCCIDENTAL CO., ON MATERIAL IN SOIL. MATERIAL ON CONCRETE EVAPORATED. CALLER GIVEN NUMBER TO CA OES.

HMIRS Hazardous Material Incident Report System

The Hazardous Material Report Incident Report Subsystem HMIRS of the Research and Special Programs Administration (RSPA) Hazardous Material Information System was established in 1971 to fulfill the requirements of the Federal hazardous material transportation law. Part 171 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations (49 CFR) contains the incident reporting requirements of carriers of hazardous materials. An unintentional release of hazardous materials meeting the criteria set forth in Section 171.16, 49 CFR, must be reported on DOT Form 5800.1. The data from the reports received are subsequently entered in the HAZMAT database.

This list has been researched within the street address of the subject site.

Site: DHL EXPRESS C/O ABX AIR INC Address: 1900 SACRAMENTO ST City: Map Loc: Status:

22 - about .1 mile W of the subject

LOS ANGELES

id: 2008080576

On 6/10/2008, an incident occured involving PYRIDINE.

On 8/27/2008, an incident occured involving 1 LGA of PAINT RELATED MATERIAL.

FILE-08-120 DOT SHIPPER- ALDRICH CHEMICAL AWB#- MKE 33632880886 ELAFREIGHT WAS DOUBLE STACKED CRUSHING BOTTOM PACKAGE CAUSING LEAK

ON 06/10/2008 AT 1313 EST THE HAZMAT HOTLINE RECEIVED A PHONE CALL FROM THE LOS ANGELES DHL EXPRESS STATION LOCATED AT 1900 SACRAMENTO ST. LOS ANGELES CA 90021. CINQUE FROM THE LOS ANGELES DHL EXPRESS STATION REPORTED THAT THEY HAD A LEAKING SHIPMENT. THE HOTLINE CONTACTED HMHTTC SPILL RESPONSE. UPON ARRIVAL THEY FOUND THIS SHIPMENT TO BE A FIBERBOARD BOX CONTAINING 1 X 1 QUART GLASS BOTTLE OF PYRIDINE.DUE TO THE SHIPMENT BEING DROPPED AND THE GLASS BOTTLE BREAKING A TOTAL OF 1 QUART OF THE PRODUCT WAS LOST. THIS SHIPMENT ARRIVED INTO THE LOS ANGELES DHL EXPRESS STATION V A TRUCK* 8304 WHICH HAD SHUTTLED FROM FLYT 807 N789AX.THIS SHIPMENT WAS DECLARED AS PYRIDINE CLASS 3 UN1282 WITH THE SHIPPERS DECLARATION FOR DANGEROUS GOODS ATTACHED.CLEAR OF SCENE: 1636 EST. C/A TAKEN AGAINST LOADER REVIEW PROPER LOADING PROCEDURES SUPERIONO COMMENT PROVIDED

R PACKAGING

Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: DHL EXPRESS C/O ABX AIR INC 1900 SACRAMENTO ST LOS ANGELES 22 - about .1 mile W of the subject

id: 2008080576

On 6/10/2008, an incident occured involving PYRIDINE. On 8/27/2008, an incident occured involving 1 LGA of PAINT RELATED MATERIAL. FILE-08-120 DOT SHIPPER- ALDRICH CHEMICAL AWB#- MKE 33632880886 ELAFREIGHT WAS DOUBLE STACKED CRUSHING BOTTOM PACKAGE CAUSING LEAK ON 06/10/2008 AT 1313 EST THE HAZMAT HOTLINE RECEIVED A PHONE CALL FROM THE LOS ANGELES DHL EXPRESS STATION LOCATED AT 1900 SACRAMENTO ST. LOS ANGELES CA 90021. CINQUE FROM THE LOS ANGELES DHL EXPRESS STATION REPORTED THAT THEY HAD A LEAKING SHIPMENT. THE HOTLINE CONTACTED HMHTTC SPILL RESPONSE. UPON ARRIVAL THEY FOUND THIS SHIPMENT TO BE A FIBERBOARD BOX CONTAINING 1 X 1 QUART GLASS BOTTLE OF PYRIDINE.DUE TO THE SHIPMENT BEING DROPPED AND THE GLASS BOTTLE BREAKING A TOTAL OF 1 QUART OF THE PRODUCT WAS LOST. THIS SHIPMENT ARRIVED INTO THE LOS ANGELES DHL EXPRESS STATION V A TRUCK* 8304 WHICH HAD SHUTTLED FROM FLYT 807 N789AX.THIS SHIPMENT WAS DECLARED AS PYRIDINE CLASS 3 UN1282 WITH THE SHIPPERS DECLARATION FOR DANGEROUS GOODS ATTACHED.CLEAR OF SCENE: 1636 EST. C/A TAKEN AGAINST LOADER REVIEW PROPER LOADING PROCEDURES SUPERIONO COMMENT PROVIDED

R PACKAGING

Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: AIRBORNE EXPRESS 910 WILSON ST LOS ANGELES 26 - about .1 mile NW of the subject

id: 2003071181

On 07/17/2003, an incident involving a aircraft occured. PAINT was released.

One container (CONT MTL) failed due to ramming. One container (4G) failed due to ramming.

AT APPROXIMATELY 1930 HRS MY DOCKMAN RENE RODRIGUEZ ADVISED ME THAT A BOX HAD BEEN DAMAGED BY A C-CONTAINER. ONCE I LOCATED THE BOX I TURNED IT OVER AS IT APPEARED TO BE LEAKING FROM THE BOTTOM. I PLACED LATEX GLOVES ON MY HANDS, PLACED THE BOX IN A CLEAR PLASTIC BAG THEN PLACED THE ITEM IN A SECOND BAG AND TIED IT OFF TO PREVENT ANY ADDITIONAL LEAKING/VAPORS RELEASE. AT APPROXIMATELY 1955 I CONTACTED OUR HAZ-MAT HOTLINE AND SPOKE WITH DONALD OSBORNE WHO INSTRUCTED ME TO IMMEDIATELY FILL OUT OUR COMPANIES "INITIAL SPILL REPORT". BECAUSE THERE WAS NO IMMEDIATE THREAT TO LIFE OR PROPERTY, DONALD ALSO ADVISED ME THAT NO SPILL TEAM WOULD NEED TO BE CALLED. MOST, IF NOT ALL OF THE CLASS 3, PAINT MATERIAL WAS ABSORBED BY THE FIBER BOARD BOX, TOTAL LEAKAGE WAS APPROXIMATELY 2-3 OZS.

Site: YELLOW FREIGHT SYSTEM INC Address: SANTA FE AVE

Page: 11 Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

City: VERNON Status:

id: 1996050438

On 04/29/1996, an incident involving a van occured. RESIN SOLUTION was released.

One container (DRUM MTL) failed due to improper loading.

TBA Targeted Brownfields Assessments

EPA's Targeted Brownfields Assessment (TBA) program is designed to help states, tribes, and municipalities—especially those without EPA Brownfields Assessment Pilots/Grants—minimize the uncertainties of contamination often associated with brownfields. Targeted Brownfields Assessments supplement and work with other efforts under EPA's Brownfields Program to promote the cleanup and redevelopment of brownfields. EPA's TBA assistance is available through two sources: directly from EPA through EPA Regional Brownfields offices under Subtitle A of the law, and from state or tribal voluntary response program offices receiving funding under Subtitle C of the law

No listings within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

SETS Site Enforcement Tracking System (SETS)

When expanding Superfund monies at a CERCLA (Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act) Site, EPA must conduct a search to identify parties with potential financial responsibility for remediation of uncontrolled hazardous waste sites. EPA regional Superfund Waste Management Staff issue a notice letter to the potentially responsible party (PRP). The status field contains the EPA ID number and name of the site where the actual pollution occurred.

This list has been researched within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

Site:METAL PREPARATIONSAddress:641 S IMPERIAL STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:143 - about .3 mile N of the subjectStatus:id: 19791

Site: WINTER & BAIN MFG. Address: 1410 ELWOOD ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 229 - about .5 mile SW of the subject Status: id: 32768

Site: RENTEX Address: 1600 S COMPTON AVE City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 314 - about .8 mile SW of the subject Status: id: 25002 Site:SIKA CHEMICAL CORP.Address:1372 E 15TH STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:317 - about .8 mile W of the subjectStatus:id: 27021

Site: PROTO TOOL CO., INC. Address: 2209 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 325 - about .9 mile S of the subject Status: id: 24205

DO Enforcement Docket System (DOCKET)/Consent Decree Tracking System (CDETS)

DOCKET tracks civil judicial cases against environmental polluters, while CDETS processes court settlements, called consent decrees.

No listings within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

CD Criminal Docket System (C-DOCKET)

The Criminal Docket System is a comprehensive automated system for tracking criminal enforcement actions. C-Docket handles data for all environmental statues and tracks enforcement actions from the initial stages of investigations through conclusion.

No listings within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

ICIS Integrated Compliance Information System (ICIS)

ICIS is the Integrated Compliance Information System and provides a database that, when complete, will contain integrated Enforcement and Compliance information across most of EPA's programs. The vision for ICIS is to replace EPA's independent databases that contain Enforcement data with a single repository for that information. Currently, ICIS contains all Federal Administrative and Judicial enforcement actions. This information is maintained in ICIS by EPA in the Regional offices and it Headquarters. A future release of ICIS will replace the Permit Compliance System (PCS) which supports the NPDES and will integrate that information with Federal actions already in the system. ICIS also has the capability to track other activities occurring in the Region that support Compliance and Enforcement programs. These include; Incident Tracking, Compliance Assistance, and Compliance Monitoring.

This list has been researched within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

Site: IMPERIAL TOY Address: 2060 E 7TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 79 - about .2 mile N of the subject Status: Permit id#: 110037578975

An Administrative Order was opened in accordance with sec 610 - Non Essential Products Containing Chlorofluorocarbons Violation of Labeling information, Imports Violation.

 Page:
 13

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

08/08/2008: COMPLAINT/PROPOSED ORDER 08/08/2008: FINAL ORDER ISSUED 09/18/2008: ENFORCEMENT ACTION DATA ENTERED APO Complaint & Conclusion Site: AMERICOLD LOGISTICS PLANT NUMB 2233 JESSE ST Address: LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 267 - about .5 mile NE of the subject Status: Permit id#: 110000528484 Site: **D & M POLISHING AND PLATING** Address: 1250 E 5TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 304 - about .7 mile N of the subject Status: Permit id#: 110018943312 An Administrative Order/Unilateral Administrative Order Without Adjudication was opened in accordance with sec 106A - Imminent & Substantial Endangerment Order Violation of Other/Miscellaneous. 05/20/2004: COMPLAINT/PROPOSED ORDER 05/20/2004: ENFORCEMENT ACTION CLOSED 05/20/2004: FINAL ORDER ISSUED 08/16/2004: ENFORCEMENT ACTION DATA ENTERED Respondent is owner of site on which plating operations released heavy metals to the environment and contaminated the ambient soils. This Order instructs Respondent to clean up the affected soils and take other measures to prevent further contamination. Site: HANNAM CHAIN USA 2740 E OLYMPIC BLVD Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 324 - about .9 mile SE of the subject Status: Permit id#: 110010679140 ENTERPRISE SALES CO Site: Address: 901 E 3RD ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 344 - about 1. mile N of the subject Status: Permit id#: CAD980819213

RCRA RCRA Violators List (CORRACTS)

The Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 provides for "cradle to grave" regulation of hazardous wastes. RCRA requires regulation of hazardous waste generators, transporters, and storage/treatment/disposal sites. Evaluation to potential violations, ranging from manifest requirements to hazardous waste discharges, is typically conducted by the US EPA. This database is also known as Corrective Action Report (CORRACTS)

If enforcement is required, it is typically delegated to a state agency.

| | Page: | 14 |
|--|-------|------------|
| 2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;20 | Date: | 06-18-2015 |
| 16 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL | Job: | EEMA8998-C |

Any Institutional/Engineering controls issued under CORRACTS are described in the status detail for each site

This list has been researched within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

Site:SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO - OAddress:2424 E OLYMPIC BLVDCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:177 - about .4 mile SE of the subjectStatus:id: CAD981422017XI XX X X

06/30/1995: RFA COMPLETED 06/30/1997: CA PRIORITIZATION-LOW CA PRIORITY 06/30/1997: STABILIZATION MEASURES EVALUATION-FACILITY NOT AMENABLE TO STABILIZATION 07/09/2010: REMEDY CONSTRUCTION-REMEDY CONSTRUCTED 07/09/2010: HUMAN EXPOSURES CONTROLLED DETERMINATION-YES, APPLICABLE AS OF THIS DATE 07/09/2011: REMEDY CONSTRUCTION-REMEDY CONSTRUCTED 09/30/2011: REMEDY CONSTRUCTION-REMEDY CONSTRUCTED 09/30/2011: HUMAN EXPOSURES CONTROLLED DETERMINATION-YES, APPLICABLE AS OF THIS DATE 09/30/2011: RELEASE TO GW CONTROLLED DETERMINATION-YES, APPLICABLE AS OF THIS DATE 09/30/2011: RELEASE TO GW CONTROLLED DETERMINATION-YES, APPLICABLE AS OF THIS DATE

RCRA-D Resource Conservation and Recovery Information System - Treatment, Storage & Disposal

The Environmental Protection Agency regulates the treatment, storage and disposal of hazardous material through the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). All hazardous waste TSD facilities are required to notify EPA of their existence by submitting the Federal Notification of Regulated Waste Activity Form (EPA Form 8700-12) or a state equivalent form as well as part A (EPA form 8700-23) and Part B of their Hazardous Waste Permit Application.

| Status Codes: | 1 | Incinerator |
|---------------|---|---|
| | Т | Storage/Treatment facility other than Incinerator |
| | D | Land Disposal Facility |

No listings within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

CDL Clandestine Drug Laboratories

No listings within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

The U.S. Department of Justice ("the Department") provides this information as a public service. It contains addresses of some locations where law enforcement agencies reported they found chemicals or other items that indicated the presence of either clandestine drug laboratories or dumpsites. In most cases, the source of the entries is not the Department, and the Department has not verified the entry and does not guarantee its accuracy.

INDN Indian REservation LUST/VCP/UST

This database includes all environmental records from Indian Reservations such as Leaking Underground Tanks (LUST), Voluntary Cleanup Program (VCP) and Underground Storage Tanks (UST)

No listings within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

CALIFORNIA STATE SOURCES

FL State Response Sites - Federal Lead

The Site Mitigation and Brownfields Reuse Database (SMBRD) identifies certain high priority hazardous were the U.S. EPA is the lead agency. These sites are typically proposed, on or delisted from the National Priority List.

No listings within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

SR State Response Sites

The Site Mitigation and Brownfields Reuse Database (SMBRD) identifies certain potential hazardous waste sites. These are confirmed release sites where DTSC is involved in remediation, either in a lead or oversight capacity and deemed generally high-priority and high potential risk.

The information has been compiled into this database by the California Environmental Protection Agency, Department of Toxic Substance Control (DTSC) in accordance with Section 25359.6 of the California Health and Safety Code.

This list has been researched within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

| Site: | WESTERN ELECTROCHEMICAL COMPAN |
|----------|---------------------------------------|
| Address: | 2348 E 8TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 20 - about .1 mile SE of the subject |
| Status: | Priority Rank |
| Site: | DEAN AND ASSOCIATES |
| Address: | 700 S SANTA FE AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 71 - about .2 mile NE of the subject |
| Status: | Priority Rank |
| Site: | WILSON STREET CORPORATION |
| Address: | 1321 S WILSON ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 133 - about .3 mile SW of the subject |
| Status: | Priority Rank |
| Site: | SOUTHERN CALIF GAS CO- OLYMPIC |
| Address: | 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 177 - about .4 mile SE of the subject |
| Status: | Priority Rank |
| Site: | INTERNATIONAL LEAD CO. |
| Address: | 2182 E 11TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 202 - about .4 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | Priority Rank |
| Site: | AMTRAK |
| Address: | 2435 E WASHINGTON BLVD |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |

Page: 16 Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

322 - about .9 mile S of the subject Map Loc: Status: **Priority Rank** Site: ACE PLATING CO., INC. Address: 719 S TOWNE AVE City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 329 - about .9 mile NW of the subject Status: **Priority Rank** Site: LOS ANGELES DIE CASTING Address: 340 CROCKER ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 349 - about 1. mile NW of the subject **Priority Rank** Status:

VCP Voluntary Cleanup Program

This category contains low threat level properties with either confirmed or unconfirmed releases and the project proponents have requested that DTSC oversee investigation and/or cleanup activities and have agreed to provide coverage for DTSC's costs.

This list has been researched within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

Site: LOS ANGELES TIMES, OLYMPIC FAC Address: 2000 8TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 95 - about .2 mile W of the subject Status: id: 71003158

Site:SANTA FE/W.A. GRANTAddress:2144 E 7TH STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:114 - about .3 mile NE of the subjectStatus:

id: 19330375 091696 MANU - PRIMARY METAL INDUSTRIES

Past use include manufacturing - other, residential area. Potential contaminents of concern include Lead, No Contaminants found. Confirmed contaminents of concern include Lead, No Contaminants found. The Soil, Soil is potentialy affected. The present status - VOLUNTARY CLEANUP PROGRAM was reported as of 1996-09-16. The lead agency for this site is DTSC. The program manger is Shahir Haddad from Cleanup Chatsworth. Funding is provided by RESPONSIBLE PARTY.

Completed tasks:

1996-05-31: Voluntary Cleanup Agreement. DTSC s

Completed tasks:

1996-09-04: Preliminary Endangerment Assessment Report. DTSC reviewed a Preliminary Endangerment Assessment for theigned a Voluntary Cleanup Agreement with Santa Fe for the completion and review of a Preliminary Endangerment Assessment.

site under a Voluntary Cleanup Agreement. Based on the information and data presented, DTSC determined that the hazardous constituents remaining at the site do not constitute a threat to human health or the environment.

1995-09-13: Site Screening. The Department received a Non-Emergency Hazardous Substance Release Report dated January 31, 1995. Review of the document indicates that the site is contaminated with elevated levels of heavy metals such as lead, copper and zinc. Foundry operations existed at the site from at least 1906 until 1990, operated by W.G. Grant & Co. Santa Fe Railway is the current owner of the site. RP removed USTs from the site without any regulatory agency oversight. Due to evidence of a release, DTSC is recommending that a PEA be conducted to evaluate the site. On September 13, 1995, DTSC notified the RP thereof.

| Site: | SANTA FE/W.A. GRANT |
|----------|---------------------------------------|
| Address: | 2144 E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 114 - about .3 mile NE of the subject |

Status:

id: 19330375 091696 MANU - PRIMARY METAL INDUSTRIES

Past use include manufacturing - other, residential area. Potential contaminents of concern include Lead, No Contaminants found. Confirmed contaminents of concern include Lead, No Contaminants found. The Soil, Soil is potentialy affected. The present status - VOLUNTARY CLEANUP PROGRAM was reported as of 1996-09-16. The lead agency for this site is DTSC. The program manger is Shahir Haddad from Cleanup Chatsworth. Funding is provided by RESPONSIBLE PARTY.

Completed tasks:

1996-05-31: Voluntary Cleanup Agreement. DTSC s

Completed tasks:

1996-09-04: Preliminary Endangerment Assessment Report. DTSC reviewed a Preliminary Endangerment Assessment for theigned a Voluntary Cleanup Agreement with Santa Fe for the completion and review of a Preliminary Endangerment Assessment.

site under a Voluntary Cleanup Agreement. Based on the information and data presented, DTSC determined that the hazardous constituents remaining at the site do not constitute a threat to human health or the environment.

1995-09-13: Site Screening. The Department received a Non-Emergency Hazardous Substance Release Report dated January 31, 1995. Review of the document indicates that the site is contaminated with elevated levels of heavy metals such as lead, copper and zinc. Foundry operations existed at the site from at least 1906 until 1990, operated by W.G. Grant & Co. Santa Fe Railway is the current owner of the site. RP removed USTs from the site without any regulatory agency oversight. Due to evidence of a release, DTSC is recommending that a PEA be conducted to evaluate the site. On September 13, 1995, DTSC notified the RP thereof.

Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status:

Site:

City: Map Loc:

Status:

Address:

PENSKE TRUCK LEASING PROPERTY 2300 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 125 - about .3 mile S of the subject

id: 60001416

Past use include underground storage tanks. Potential contaminents of concern include Tetrachloroethylene (PCE), TPH-diesel. Confirmed contaminents of concern include Tetrachloroethylene (PCE), TPH-diesel. The Soil is potentialy affected. The present status - VOLUNTARY CLEANUP PROGRAM was reported as of 2012-01-31. The lead agency for this site is SMBRP. Funding is provided by RESPONSIBLE PARTY. Completed tasks: 2011-03-01: Voluntary Cleanup Agreement. VCA ex Completed tasks: 2011-08-26: No Further Action Letter. NFA Issue Completed tasks: 2011-08-26: Preliminary Endangerment Assessment Report. NFA issued 2011-03-07: Phase 1. Document was submitted ad. 2011-10-18: Cost Recovery Closeout Memo. Sent to CRU ecuted s background information on 3/7/2011. DTSC did not review or approved document. 2011-09-08: Voluntary Cleanup Agreement Termination Notification. VCA end letter sent. WILSON STREET CORPORATION 1321 S WILSON ST LOS ANGELES 133 - about .3 mile SW of the subject id: 71002216 Past use include metal reclamation. Potential contaminents of concern include Copper and compounds, Nickel, Zinc. Confirmed contaminents of concern include Copper and compounds, Nickel, Zinc. The Soil is potentially affected. Future land use restriction have been placed on this site. The present status - was reported as of 2008-08-27.

The lead agency for this site is TPCAB. The program manger is Johnson Abraham from Southern California Schools & Brownfields Outreach.

Completed tasks:

1997-12-21: Phase I Verification. Inspection re Completed tasks: 2003-12-08: Phase I Verification. Inspection re Completed tasks: 2006-02-06: Consent Agreement.

Completed tasks: 2007-11-06: Corrective Action Completion Determ Completed tasks: 2008-08-27: Land Use Restriction.

Completed tasks:

2009-01-09: Acknowledgement of Satisfaction.

Completed tasks: 2011-01-19: Certification. Remedial Action Cert Completed tasks: 2012-11-30: Correspondence. Completed tasks: 2012-12-05: Correspondence. Mailed out the lett Completed tasks: 2013-03-22: Land Use Restriction - Site Inspect Completed tasks: 2013-06-03: Land Use Restriction Monitoring Reper. ification completed. ination. ion/Visit. ort. 2014-01-30: Land Use Restriction Monitoring Report. port sent on 12/21/1997 port sent on 12/8/2003 ALAMEDA MANUFACTURED GAS PLANT

 Site:
 ALAMEDA MANUFACTURED GAS PLANT

 Address:
 725 S CHANNING ST

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 136 - about .3 mile NW of the subject

 Status:
 VCP - Voluntary Cleanup Program

id: 19490227 060895 ELECTRIC, GAS & SANITARY SERVICES

Past use include manufactured gas plant. Potential contaminents of concern include * ORGANIC MONOMER WASTE, INCLUDING UNREACTED RESINS, * OTHER ORGANIC SOLIDS, * CONTAMINATED SOIL, * UNSPECIFIED SLUDGE WASTE, * POLYMERIC RESIN WASTE, * UNSPECIFIED ORGANIC LIQUID MIXTURE, * SULFUR SLUDGE, Arsenic, Lead, Cyanide (free), Polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs). Confirmed contaminents of concern include * ORGANIC MONOMER WASTE, INCLUDING UNREACTED RESINS, * OTHER ORGANIC SOLIDS, * CONTAMINATED SOIL, * UNSPECIFIED SLUDGE WASTE, * POLYMERIC RESIN WASTE, NORGANIC SOLIDS, * CONTAMINATED SOIL, * UNSPECIFIED SLUDGE WASTE, * POLYMERIC RESIN WASTE, * UNSPECIFIED ORGANIC LIQUID MIXTURE, * SULFUR SLUDGE, Arsenic, Lead, Cyanide (free), Polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs). The Groundwater (other than drinking water), Soil is potentialy affected. The present status - VOLUNTARY CLEANUP PROGRAM was reported as of 2014-06-24.

The lead agency for this site is SMBRP. Funding is provided by RESPONSIBLE PARTY.

Completed tasks at Onsite :

2009-01-06: Certification. site was

Completed tasks:

2001-04-26: Voluntary Cleanup Agreement.

Completed tasks:

2002-12-04: Removal Action Workplan. Removal Ac

Completed tasks:

2003-03-18: CEQA - Initial Study/ Neg. Declarat

Completed tasks:

2013-09-24: Annual Oversight Cost Estimate. Letcertified.

ion. Special Initial Study, Negative Declaration, and De Minimis Impter sent out

tion Workplan Approved

2002-12-31: Preliminary Endangerment Assesact Finding were prepared and made available for public review. No sment Report. DTSC approved site characterization activities in December 2002. Contaminants of concern included PAH's & BTEX. A RAW invverbal or written comments were received. DTSC approved the CEQA documents on 3/18/2003. DTSC approved RAW on 3/18/03. Proposed remoolving excavation will be implemented for the Site.

1993-05-20: Preliminary Endangerment Assessment Report. The Department completed val activities consists of removing approximately 615 cubic yards of contaminated soil. Chemicals of potential concern previously identreview of the PEA. A Manufactured Gas Plant (MGP) was operated at the site in the late 1800s and early 1900s. Gas was produced from crified in the soil include the following: Lampslack, PAH's, and BTEX. Removal Activities are anticipated to last approximately 30 days.ude oil for distribution in the site area. Several companies operated at the site. In 1909, the site was owned by the Los Angeles Gas

and Electric Corp., which merged with the Southern Calfornia Gas Company in 1937. SoCalGas owned the property until 1976, and sold to the current owners. The MGP was dismantled sometime before 1906. The byproducts from the manufactured gas operation were tars, oils, sludges, and lampblack. Elevated levels of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAH), heavy metals such as lead and arsenic and cyanides were found at the site. The PEA concluded that there was contamination at the site above screening values. Therefore, the Department recommended that further investigation or assessment at the site was necessary.

1992-04-08: Site Screening.

2004-05-05: Removal Action Workplan. SRAW approved.

2007-03-06: Fieldwork. Field work was accomplished.

2007-02-22: Technical Workplan. Additional Soil Gas investigation was implemented on the site. 2007-03-01: Site Characterization Report. Results were evaluated and approved by DTSC TOX, Geologist & PM.

Completed tasks at Onsite :

2008-10-17: Removal Action Completion Report. Closure report approved.

Completed tasks at Off-Site :

2010-08-11: Technical Workplan. Workplan approved.

2012-12-21: Remedial Investigation Report. Report was approved.

2014-06-27: Removal Action Completion Report. RACR Approved

2013-01-28: Removal Action Workplan.

Completed tasks:

2014-01-06: Fieldwork. During the site visit I observed that contractors for the Gas Co. had completed the excavation of lamp black along the western/southern corner property boundary and were in the process of restoring the planters and parking lot spaces.

Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: SO CAL GAS/LA-ALAMEDA MGP 725 S CHANNING ST LOS ANGELES 136 - about .3 mile NW of the subject

id: 19490227 060895 ELECTRIC, GAS & SANITARY SERVICES

Past use include manufactured gas plant. Potential contaminents of concern include * ORGANIC MONOMER WASTE, INCLUDING UNREACTED RESINS, * OTHER ORGANIC SOLIDS, * CONTAMINATED SOIL, * UNSPECIFIED SLUDGE WASTE, * POLYMERIC RESIN WASTE, * UNSPECIFIED ORGANIC LIQUID MIXTURE, * SULFUR SLUDGE, Arsenic, Lead, Cyanide (free), Polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs). Confirmed contaminents of concern include * ORGANIC MONOMER WASTE, INCLUDING UNREACTED RESINS, * OTHER ORGANIC SOLIDS, * CONTAMINATED SOIL, * UNSPECIFIED SLUDGE WASTE, * POLYMERIC RESIN WASTE, * UNSPECIFIED ORGANIC LIQUID MIXTURE, * SULFUR SLUDGE, Arsenic, Lead, Cyanide (free), Polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs). The Groundwater (other than drinking water), Soil is potentially affected. The present status - VOLUNTARY CLEANUP PROGRAM was reported as of 2014-06-24.

The lead agency for this site is SMBRP. Funding is provided by RESPONSIBLE PARTY.

Completed tasks at Onsite :

2009-01-06: Certification. site was

Completed tasks:

2001-04-26: Voluntary Cleanup Agreement.

Completed tasks:

2002-12-04: Removal Action Workplan. Removal Ac

Completed tasks:

2003-03-18: CEQA - Initial Study/ Neg. Declarat

Completed tasks:

2013-09-24: Annual Oversight Cost Estimate. Letcertified.

ion. Special Initial Study, Negative Declaration, and De Minimis Impter sent out

tion Workplan Approved

2002-12-31: Preliminary Endangerment Assesact Finding were prepared and made available for public review. No sment Report. DTSC approved site characterization activities in December 2002. Contaminants of concern included PAH's & BTEX. A RAW invverbal or written comments were received. DTSC approved the CEQA documents on 3/18/2003. DTSC approved RAW on 3/18/03. Proposed remoolving excavation will be implemented for the Site.

1993-05-20: Preliminary Endangerment Assessment Report. The Department completed val activities consists of removing approximately 615 cubic yards of contaminated soil. Chemicals of potential concern previously identreview of the PEA. A Manufactured Gas Plant (MGP) was operated at the site in the late 1800s and early 1900s. Gas was produced from crified in the soil include the following: Lampslack, PAH's, and BTEX. Removal Activities are anticipated to last approximately 30 days.ude oil for distribution in the site area. Several companies operated at the site. In 1909, the site was owned by the Los Angeles Gas

and Electric Corp., which merged with the Southern Calfornia Gas Company in 1937. SoCalGas owned the property until 1976, and sold to the current owners. The MGP was dismantled sometime before 1906. The byproducts from the manufactured gas operation were tars, oils, sludges, and lampblack. Elevated levels of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAH), heavy metals such as lead and arsenic and cyanides were found at the site. The PEA concluded that there was contamination at the site above screening values. Therefore, the Department recommended that further investigation or assessment at the site was necessary.

1992-04-08: Site Screening.

2004-05-05: Removal Action Workplan. SRAW approved.

2007-03-06: Fieldwork. Field work was accomplished.

2007-02-22: Technical Workplan. Additional Soil Gas investigation was implemented on the site.

2007-03-01: Site Characterization Report. Results were evaluated and approved by DTSC TOX, Geologist & PM.

Completed tasks at Onsite :

2008-10-17: Removal Action Completion Report. Closure report approved.

Completed tasks at Off-Site :

2010-08-11: Technical Workplan. Workplan approved.

2012-12-21: Remedial Investigation Report. Report was approved.

2014-06-27: Removal Action Completion Report. RACR Approved

2013-01-28: Removal Action Workplan.

Completed tasks:

2014-01-06: Fieldwork. During the site visit I observed that contractors for the Gas Co. had completed the excavation of lamp black along the western/southern corner property boundary and were in the process of restoring the planters and parking lot spaces.

Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 177 - about .4 mile SE of the subject

id: 80001471

The present status - was reported as of 2013-05-13. The lead agency for this site is WM, the regulatory agency is SMBRP,. Completed tasks: 1995-06-30: RCRA Facility Assessment Report.

Completed tasks: 1997-06-30: Interim Measures Questionnaire.

Completed tasks: 2010-07-09: * Other Instrument.

Completed tasks: 2011-09-30: Groundwater Migration Controlled.

Completed tasks: 2011-09-30: Human Exposure Controlled.

Completed tasks: 2011-09-30: Remedy Constructed.

Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status:

SO CAL GAS/OLYMPIC BASE MGP 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 177 - about .4 mile SE of the subject

id: 19490179

Contaminants: LEAD, CHROMIUM (VI), CADMIUM, ARSENIC, ORGANIC LIQUIDS WITH METALS, UNSPECIFIED OIL CONTAINING WASTE, AQUEOUS SOLUTION WITH METALS, UNSPECIFIED ALKALINE SOLUTIONS

Program: RCRA 3012

Actions:

DEED RESTRICTIONS - completed on 05/23/91. DISCOVERY - completed on 09/29/83. I/SE, IORSE, FFA, FFSRA, VCA, EA - completed on 12/30/86. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN - completed on 02/28/87. REMEDIAL INVESTIGATION / FEASIBILITY STUDY - completed on 07/31/90. REMEDIAL ACTION PLAN / RECORD OF DECISION - completed on 04/23/91. DESIGN - completed on 09/05/91. FINAL REMEDIAL ACTION (CAP) - completed on 12/16/91. CERTIFICATION - completed on 12/24/91. OPERATION & MAINTENANCE - is scheduled to be completed on 06/30/11. AMENDED ORDER/AGREEMENT, CHAPTER 6.5 TRANSITION - completed on 01/05/99. The Southern California Gas (SCG), Olympic Base Site was once a gas manufacturing plant where oil was converted into gas for lighting, heating, and cooking. Residues from the gasification process, mainly consisting of a material "lamp black" were discovered at the site. "Lamp Black" contains varying amounts of a family of compounds called polynuclear or polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PNAs or PAHs). The plant was built in the period 1907-1908 by the City Gas Company. In 1908, the Domestic Gas Company purchased and took over the operations of City Gas. In 1910, SCG was incorporated and became the successor of Domestic Gas. SCG operated the plant until 1927, when the service for 100% natural gas started. The plant operated on a standby basis until 1952, when all gas manufacturing operations ceased and the plant was dismantled. SCG has administrative facilities on other portions of the facility. A Consent Order was signed in December 1986, which addressed the work needed to complete the Remedial Investigation/- Feasibility Study (RI/FS) process. The RI report was approved by the Department on September 17, 1987. The RI found that soil from about 2 to 12 feet below ground surface is contaminated. The contaminants are not readily vaporized, nor do they enter aqueous phase solution. Groundwater aquifers beneath the site are unsaturated to a depth of 90 feet. Air monitoring at the site does not indicate that the contaminants are emitting vapors to the air. SCG then submitted a FS report in May 1988. DHS has reviewed the FS report and requested a full Health Risk Assessment (HRA) based on appropriate biological receptors and exposure pathways on October 20, 1988. The HRA was approved by the Department on June 4, 1990. The FS was revised by SCG and the report approved on July 19, 1990. The RP submitted a draft RAP on August 20, 1990, as requested by the Department. The Department has published a fact sheet on the findings of the RI/FS. The RAP meeting with the community was held on November 17, 1990 and the RAP was subsequently approved in January of 1991. The RAP proposed an asphalt cap on the site, groundwater monitoring, and a deed restriction. Groundwater monitoring is necessary as the region the site is located in is currently experiencing a drought; however, if this should change the groundwater table will rise, possibly impacting the conclusions of the RI. The deed restriction, protected the integrity of the cap by limiting land use and excavation of the waste. The Department directed the RP to prepare a Remedial Design and Implementation (RD&I) plan. The plan included engineering specifications for the asphalt cap, permits, and a schedule for completion of the cap. The cap will be repaired as necessary; necessary; it is expected to require replacement every ten years. This operation and maintenance program will last for 20 years.

(01/14/99) Transition to Chapter 6.5.

(01/21/97) Report for repair of asphalt was submitted.

(01/31/84) Preliminary Assessment Done (RCRA 3012): Multiple operations including transmission bases, truck storage, meter reading, customer service, craft shops, and a training center (1965- 1980). Waste includes barium. Landfill on southeast end of the property. Hazardous waste materials include residues from wash rack activities and caustic cleaning materials. PA submitted to U.S. EPA.

(01/31/95) January-February. Trenching for pipe-line abandonment and reroute another high pressure pipeline was done.

(02/13/02) Site visit for Deed Restriction.

(03/04/04) Site visit for Deed Restriction.

(04/09/03) Site annual visit for updating Deed Restriction for the site. Updated (description, photos) was completed, approved and filed 04/15/03.

(04/15/03) Site visit for Deed Restriction.

(05/11/00) Collection of lampblack samples for an interutility project/ subject Environmentally Acceptable Endpoints.

(05/19/04) Additional maintenance report was submitted to DTSC.

(05/26/99) SB 47 reauthorized the site under Chapter 6.8.

(06/25/96) The gas company conducted the 4th annual asphalt cap inspection at the site.

(07/02/01) Summary of laboratory results was sent to DTSC.

(07/06/98) The Gas Company submitted the yearly monitoring report and the 5th Annual Asphalt inspection at the site.

(07/21/91) Former gas manufacturing plant (oil converted to gas). Contaminant of concern is lamp black.

(08/02/96) The Gas Company submitted the yearly monitoring report. The areas of old asphalt will be replaced with new asphalt pavement within 90 days.

(09/29/83) Facility Identified: ERRIS.

(12/11/03) Periodic Monitoring Report - Asphalt Cap Inspection was submitted to DTSC.

(12/16/91) The Final Remedial Action consisted of placing an asphalt cap on the unpaved portions of the Olympic Base Site which would be maintained according to the requirements set forth in the RAP. A deed restriction was recorded on the property. The design of the cap was prepared and included in the RAP workplan.

Site:BUTTERFIELD (SUN CHEMICAL CORPAddress:590 S SANTA FE AVECity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:237 - about .5 mile N of the subjectStatus:id: 19281223

| | Page: | 22 |
|--|-------|------------|
| 2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;20 | Date: | 06-18-2015 |
| 16 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL | Job: | EEMA8998-C |

Past use include paint manufacturing. Potential contaminents of concern include Benzene, Ethylbenzene, Xylenes. Confirmed contaminents of concern include Benzene, Ethylbenzene, Xylenes. The Soil, Groundwater (other than drinking water), Soil is potentialy affected. The present status - CLEAN LOAN PROGRAM was reported as of 2012-12-07.

22

The lead agency for this site is SMBRP. The program manger is Jessy Fierro from Cleanup Chatsworth. Funding is provided by RESPONSIBLE PARTY.

. Completed tasks:

2002-02-04: Clean Loan Agreement. Response Acti

Completed tasks:

2008-02-11: Monitoring Plan. Ground Water Monit Completed tasks:

2008-09-28: Letter - Demand. DTSC sent first de

Completed tasks:

2013-04-08: Voluntary Cleanup Agreement. VCA si

Completed tasks:

2013-11-17: Fieldwork. Sampling activities have

Completed tasks:

2014-01-23: Annual Oversight Cost Estimate. Upd begun to delineate contamination.

Completed tasks at Groundwater :ated Cost Estimate completed.

gned by Butterfield owner and DTSC to conduct additional investigatimand letter to RP to recover the CLEAN Loan. on Agreement (RAA) approved and signed by proponent and DTSC.

oring Work scheduled.

2006-02-27: Pilot/Treatability Study Report. DTSC sent letter in reponse to Soil Vapor Extraction (SVE) Report.on and remediation, if necessary.

2014-08-28: Monitoring Report.

2005-03-30: Site Characterization Workplan. Meeting scheduled to discuss the cost for the additional assessment. 2006-02-27: Monitoring Report. Letter and comments sent to RP.

2008-06-26: Site Characterization Workplan.

2008-08-01: Monitoring Report. OK

2013-12-02: Site Characterization Workplan. Workplan approved to conduct sampling for data gaps.

2014-06-30: Site Characterization Report. Based on the elevated concentrations in the groundwater, DTSC requires submittal of a pilot study workplan that would evaluate potential remedies.

Future tasks:

CEQA - NOTICE OF EXEMPTION due in 2014-12-30

Future tasks: COMMUNITY PROFILE due in 2014-12-21

Future tasks: FACT SHEETS due in 2014-11-21

PUBLIC NOTICE due Future tasks: REMOVAL ACTION WORKPLAN due in 2015-06-30 in 2014-10-09

Future tasks: **CERTIFICATION** due in 2015

Future tasks: **REMOVAL ACTION COMPLETION REPORT due in 2015**

Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status:

EASTERN SMELTING AND REFINING 2220 E 11TH ST

LOS ANGELES 258 - about .5 mile S of the subject

id: 19330382 091900 MANU - PRIMARY METAL INDUSTRIES

Contaminants: METAL DUST & MACHINING WASTE, LEAD

Actions

SITE SCREENING - completed on 11/07/94.

I/SE, IORSE, FFA, FFSRA, VCA, EA (VCA) - completed on 09/19/00.

PRELIMINARY ENDANGERMENT ASSESSMENT - completed on 06/13/03.

The Eastern Smelting and Refining Site is located in an industrial area of Los Angeles, approximately five miles south of the Los Angeles downtown area. The Site is currently a warehouse used by Bestoys for storing boxed inventory. A small asphalt parking area is adjacent to the warehouse. A US-EPA Preliminary Assessment Report was completed by DTSC in 1998; the result indicated that further investigation was necessary. the Responsible Party entered into a VCA with DTSC to perform a Prelimanry Endangerment Assessment (PEA) for the Site. The PEA investigation which began in 2001 indicated elevated levels of lead. In June 2003, DTSC approved the PEA with Further Action.

(02/16/96) A PA is being conducted by DTSC for US EPA.

(02/22/02) Soil sampling performed at proposed locations.

(06/13/03) DTSC approves PEA Report. The PEA investigative activities conducted at the former smeltingsite identified arsenic (3410 mg/kg), and lead (25,700 mg/kg). DTSC concluded that the current conditions (building and pavement intact, no exposed soil) at the Site does not pose a potential threat to industrial workers. Due to elevated levels of the above-mentioned metals in the soil, if there is any demolition of the building or parking lot, or development at the Site, the responsible party(s) will be required to submit a Removal Action Workplan or Remedial Action Plan to DTSC for approval.

(06/20/02) DTSC sent comments on PEA Report to RPs, requiring additional sampling to determine vertical extent in one area.

(06/30/98) Completed a Preliminary Assessment (PA) of the site.

(09/19/00) DTSC entered into a Voluntary Cleanup Agreement (Agreement) (Docket Number HSA-A 99/00-171) with Whittaker Corporation (Proponent) to conduct a Preliminary Endangerment Assessment.

(10/15/98) PEA is recommended by US-EPA.

(11/07/94) DTSC received an information letter for 3 possible hazardous substance release sites allegedly associated with Quemetco/RSR Corp, a lead smelter.

(11/07/01) DTSC approved PEA WP with the condition that further sampling may be necessary.

Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status:

EASTERN SMELTING AND REFINING 2220 E 11TH ST LOS ANGELES 258 - about .5 mile S of the subject VCP - Voluntary Cleanup Program

id: 19330382 091900 MANU - PRIMARY METAL INDUSTRIES

Contaminants: METAL DUST & MACHINING WASTE, LEAD

Actions:

SITE SCREENING - completed on 11/07/94.

I/SE, IORSE, FFA, FFSRA, VCA, EA (VCA) - completed on 09/19/00.

PRELIMINARY ENDANGERMENT ASSESSMENT - completed on 06/13/03.

The Eastern Smelting and Refining Site is located in an industrial area of Los Angeles, approximately five miles south of the Los Angeles downtown area. The Site is currently a warehouse used by Bestoys for storing boxed inventory. A small asphalt parking area is adjacent to the warehouse. A US-EPA Preliminary Assessment Report was completed by DTSC in 1998; the result indicated that further investigation was necessary. the Responsible Party entered into a VCA with DTSC to perform a Prelimanry Endangerment Assessment (PEA) for the Site. The PEA investigation which began in 2001 indicated elevated levels of lead. In June 2003, DTSC approved the PEA with Further Action.

(02/16/96) A PA is being conducted by DTSC for US EPA.

(02/22/02) Soil sampling performed at proposed locations.

(06/13/03) DTSC approves PEA Report. The PEA investigative activities conducted at the former smeltingsite identified arsenic (3410 mg/kg), and lead (25,700 mg/kg). DTSC concluded that the current conditions (building and pavement intact, no exposed soil) at the Site does not pose a potential threat to industrial workers. Due to elevated levels of the above-mentioned metals in the soil, if there is any demolition of the building or parking lot, or development at the Site, the responsible party(s) will be required to submit a Removal Action Workplan or Remedial Action Plan to DTSC for approval.

(06/20/02) DTSC sent comments on PEA Report to RPs, requiring additional sampling to determine vertical extent in one area.

(06/30/98) Completed a Preliminary Assessment (PA) of the site.

(09/19/00) DTSC entered into a Voluntary Cleanup Agreement (Agreement) (Docket Number HSA-A 99/00-171) with Whittaker Corporation (Proponent) to conduct a Preliminary Endangerment Assessment.

(10/15/98) PEA is recommended by US-EPA.

(11/07/94) DTSC received an information letter for 3 possible hazardous substance release sites allegedly associated with Quemetco/RSR Corp, a lead smelter.

(11/07/01) DTSC approved PEA WP with the condition that further sampling may be necessary.

FE Properties Needing Further Evaluation

This category of Envirostor, formerly The Site Mitigation and Brownfields Reuse Program Database SMBRPD, contains properties that are suspected, but unconfirmed, contaminated sites that need or have gone through an investigation and assessment process. If a site is found to have confirmed contamination, it will change from Evaluation to either a State Response or Voluntary Cleanup site type. Sites found to have no contamination at the completion of the investigation and assessment process result in a No Action Required (for Phase 1 assessments) or No Further Action (for Phase 2 assessments) determination.

This list has been researched within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

Site:GOLDEN PLATING, INC.Address:930 MATEO STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:7 - about 7. mile N of the subjectStatus:id: 71002675

The present status - was reported as of . The lead agency for this site is .

Site:WILSON STREET CORPORATIONAddress:1321 S WILSON STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:133 - about .3 mile SW of the subjectStatus:

id: 71002216

Past use include metal reclamation. Potential contaminents of concern include Copper and compounds, Nickel, Zinc. Confirmed contaminents of concern include Copper and compounds, Nickel, Zinc. The Soil is potentialy affected. Future land use restriction have been placed on this site. The present status - was reported as of 2008-08-27. The lead agency for this site is TPCAB. The program manger is Johnson Abraham from Southern California Schools & Brownfields Outreach. Completed tasks: 1997-12-21: Phase I Verification. Inspection re Completed tasks: 2003-12-08: Phase I Verification. Inspection re Completed tasks: 2006-02-06: Consent Agreement. Completed tasks: 2007-11-06: Corrective Action Completion Determ Completed tasks: 2008-08-27: Land Use Restriction. Completed tasks: 2009-01-09: Acknowledgement of Satisfaction. Completed tasks: 2011-01-19: Certification. Remedial Action Cert Completed tasks: 2012-11-30: Correspondence. Completed tasks: 2012-12-05: Correspondence. Mailed out the lett Completed tasks:

2013-03-22: Land Use Restriction - Site Inspect Completed tasks:

 Page:
 25

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| | 2013-06-03: Land Use Restriction Monitoring Reper. ification completed. ination. ion/Visit. ort. 2014-01-30: Land Use Restriction Monitoring Report. port sent on 12/21/1997 port sent on 12/8/2003 |
|---|--|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | MARTIN METALS INC. 1321 S WILSON ST LOS ANGELES 133 - about .3 mile SW of the subject |
| Status. | id: 19330385 |
| | (07/15/04) DTSC received an SB 1248 Notification for site assessment and local oversight by LA County Fire Department - Site Mitigation Unit of remediation of an active gererator that refines precious metals from scrap electronic parts. Past environmental assessments have found heavy metal contamination in shallow soils. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | CALIFORNIA RECLAMATION/US BRAS 1331 S WILSON ST,/1346-50 ELWOOD ST LOS ANGELES 134 - about .3 mile SW of the subject |
| Status. | id: 70000169 |
| | The present status - was reported as of 2002-08-02. The lead agency for this site is LA CNTY FIRE DEPT. (BILLING AND UST), LOS ANGELES COUNTY. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | NATIONAL AEROSOL 2193 E 14TH ST LOS ANGELES 271 - about .5 mile S of the subject |
| Status. | id: 19220018 |
| | Actions: PRELIMINARY ENDANGERMENT ASSESSMENT (PASI) - completed on 03/16/01. This facility was built in 1947. In 1970 Grow Group Inc. purchased this facility and became National Aerosol Products. Grow Group Inc. on behalf of National Aerosol Company removed three underground storage tanks, one 12,000 gallon methylene chloride tank, one 5,000 gallon toluene tank, and one 1,500 gallon Naptha tank. The tank removal was overseen by Los Angeles City Fire Department. |
| | |

(11/01/01) Based on confirmatory soil analysis, No Further Action required.

ME Military Evaluation Sites

This category the Site Mitigation and Brownfields Reuse Program Database SMBRPD, contains Formerly Used Defense Sites (FUDS) and Open or Closed military facilities with confirmed or unconfirmed releases and where DTSC is involved in investigation and/or remediation, either in a lead or support capacity. Sites with confirmed releases are generally considered high-priority and high potential risk.

This list has been researched within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

Site: GOLDEN PLATING, INC. Address: 930 MATEO ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 7 - about 7. mile N of the subject Status: id: 71002675 Site:

City:

Site:

City:

Site:

City:

The present status - was reported as of . The lead agency for this site is . LOS ANGELES SIGNAL DEPOT Address: LOS ANGELES SIGNAL DEPOT LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 249 - about .5 mile W of the subject Status: id: 80001030 The present status - was reported as of 2005-07-01. The lead agency for this site is SMBRP. Funding is provided by DERA. LA MED DEPOT Address: LA MED DEPOT LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 343 - about 1. mile SW of the subject Status: id: 80000307 The present status - was reported as of 2005-07-01. The lead agency for this site is SMBRP. Funding is provided by DERA. **EKCO METALS** 1700 PERRINO PL Address: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 348 - about 1. mile SE of the subject Status: id: 80001375 Future land use restriction have been placed on this site. The present status - was reported as of 2014-08-13. The lead agency for this site is WM, the regulatory agency is SMBRP,. The program manger is Maria Fabella from Cleanup Chatsworth. Completed tasks: 1998-06-01: RCRA Facility Assessment Report. Completed tasks: 2001-06-05: Land Use Restriction. Completed tasks:

2010-02-02: Other Report.

Completed tasks:

2014-06-24: Land Use Restriction - Site Inspection/Visit. LUC Site Inspection Completed. No LUC Violations observed. Requested facility to sample exposed soil at the eastern side of property boundary for possible on-site and off-site soil contamination of chemical of potential concern and inorganics.

Future tasks: RFI REPORT due in 2015-03-03

EP **Expedited Remedial Action Program**

The Expedited Remedial Action Program is a pilot program limited to 30 sites. These are confirmed release sites worked on by Responsible Parties with oversight of the cleanup by DTSC. These confirmed sites are generally high-priority and high potential risk.

This list has been researched within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO Site: 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD Address: LOS ANGELES City: 177 - about .4 mile SE of the subject Map Loc:

Status:

id: 80001471

The present status - was reported as of 2013-05-13. The lead agency for this site is WM, the regulatory agency is SMBRP,. Completed tasks: 1995-06-30: RCRA Facility Assessment Report.

Completed tasks: 1997-06-30: Interim Measures Questionnaire.

Completed tasks: 2010-07-09: * Other Instrument.

Completed tasks: 2011-09-30: Groundwater Migration Controlled.

Completed tasks: 2011-09-30: Human Exposure Controlled.

Completed tasks: 2011-09-30: Remedy Constructed.

BZ Border Zone Properties

These sites went through the Hazardous Waste Property or Border Zone Property evaluation and formal determination process. (Chapter 6.5, Health and Safety Code section 25221.)

No listings within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

SCH School Property Evaluation Program Properties

This category the Site Mitigation and Brownfields Reuse Program Database (SMBRPD), contains proposed and existing school sites that are being evaluated by DTSC for possible hazardous materials contamination. School sites are further defined as Cleanup (remedial actions occurred) or Evaluation (no remedial action ccurred) based on completed activities. All proposed school sites that will receive State funding for acquisition or construction are required to go through a rigorous environmental review and cleanup process under DTSC's oversight.

This list has been researched within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

Site: GOLDEN PLATING, INC. Address: 930 MATEO ST City: LOS ANGELES 7 - about 7. mile N of the subject Map Loc: Status: id: 71002675 The present status - was reported as of . The lead agency for this site is . Site: WILSON STREET CORPORATION 1321 S WILSON ST Address: LOS ANGELES City: 133 - about .3 mile SW of the subject Map Loc: Status: id: 71002216

| Page: | 28 |
|-------|------------|
| Date: | 06-18-2015 |
| Job: | EEMA8998-C |

| | Past use include metal reclamation. Potential contaminents of concern include Copper and compounds, Nickel, Zinc. Confirmed contaminents of concern include Copper and compounds, Nickel, Zinc. The Soil is potentially affected. Future land use restriction have been placed on this site. The present status - was reported as of 2008-27. The lead agency for this site is TPCAB. The program manger is Johnson Abraham from Southern California Schools & Brownfields Outreach. Completed tasks: 1997-12-21: Phase I Verification. Inspection re Completed tasks: 2003-12-08: Phase I Verification. Inspection re Completed tasks: 2006-02-06: Consent Agreement. Completed tasks: 2007-11-06: Corrective Action Completion Determ Completed tasks: 2009-01-09: Acknowledgement of Satisfaction. Completed tasks: 2009-01-09: Acknowledgement of Satisfaction. Completed tasks: 2012-11-30: Correspondence. Completed tasks: 2012-11-30: Correspondence. Mailed out the lett Completed tasks: 2013-06-31: Land Use Restriction - Site Inspect Completed tasks: 2013-03-22: Land Use Restriction Monitoring Reper. ification completed. ination. ion/Visit. ort. 2014-01-30: Land Use Restriction Monitoring Report. 2014-01-30: Land Use Restriction Monitoring Report. |
|---|--|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 177 - about .4 mile SE of the subject |
| | id: 80001471 |
| | The present status - was reported as of 2013-05-13. The lead agency for this site is WM, the regulatory agency is SMBRP,. Completed tasks: 1995-06-30: RCRA Facility Assessment Report. |
| | Completed tasks: 1997-06-30: Interim Measures Questionnaire. |
| | Completed tasks: 2010-07-09: * Other Instrument. |
| | Completed tasks: 2011-09-30: Groundwater Migration Controlled. |
| | Completed tasks: 2011-09-30: Human Exposure Controlled. |
| | Completed tasks: 2011-09-30: Remedy Constructed. |

LUR Brownfields Reuse Program Facility Sites with Land Use Restrictions

| | Page: | 29 |
|--|-------|------------|
| 2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;20 | Date: | 06-18-2015 |
| 16 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL | Job: | EEMA8998-C |

The DTSC Site Mitigation and Brownfields Reuse Program (SMBRP) list includes sites cleaned up under the program's oversight and generally does not include current or former hazardous waste facilities that required a hazardous waste facility permit. The list represents land use restrictions that are active. Some sites have multiple land use restrictions.

This list has been researched within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

| Site: | WILSON STREET CORPORATION |
|---------------------|---------------------------------------|
| Address: | 1321 S WILSON ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: Status: | 133 - about .3 mile SW of the subject |
| | id: 71002216 |

Site: SO CAL GAS/OLYMPIC BASE MGP 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 177 - about .4 mile SE of the subject Status: id: 19490179

INTERNATIONAL LEAD CO. Site: 2182 E 11TH ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 202 - about .4 mile S of the subject Status: id: 19390044

DR Hazardous Waste Management Program Facility Sites with Deed / Land Use Restriction

The DTSC Hazardous Waste Management Program (HWMP) has developed a list of current or former hazardous waste facilities that have a recorded land use restriction at the local county recorder's office. The land use restrictions on this list were required by the DTSC HWMP as a result of the presence of hazardous substances that remain on site after the facility (or part of the facility) has been closed or cleaned up. The types of land use restriction include deed notice, deed restriction, or a land use restriction that binds current and future owners.

No listings within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

CA Hazardous Waste sites - Permitted and Corrective Action

Permitted and Corrective Action sites are RCRA-permitted facilities undergoing cleanup activities or permitted to handle Hazardous Waste.

This list has been researched within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 177 - about .4 mile SE of the subject |
|---|---|
| | id: 80001471 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO OLY 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 177 - about .4 mile SE of the subject |

id: CA

Site: A&S METAL RECYCLING INC Address: 1960 MATEO ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 282 - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: id:

Site: EKCO METALS Address: 1700 PERRINO PL City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 348 - about 1. mile SE of the subject Status: id: 80001375

HIS Historical Site

This category of The Site Mitigation and Brownfields Reuse Program Database (SMBRPD), contains sites from an older database where no site type was identified. Most of these sites have a status of Referred or No Further Action. DTSC is working to clean up this data by identifying an appropriate site type for each Historic site.

This list has been researched within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

Site: GOLDEN PLATING, INC. Address: 930 MATEO ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 7 - about 7. mile N of the subject Status: id: 71002675 The present status - was reported as of . The lead agency for this site is . Site: **BAILEY & SCHMITZ COMPANY** Address: 2101 E 7TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 86 - about .2 mile NE of the subject Status: id: 19250029 113088 MANU - FURNITURE & FIXTURES Contaminants: CONTAMINATED SOIL, OTHER PESTICIDE CONTAINERS, 30 GALLONS OR MORE, WASTE OIL & MIXED OIL

Program: CERCLA II

Actions: DISCOVERY - completed on 12/17/82. SITE SCREENING - completed on 05/18/87.

(01/01/88) ON CORTESE LIST

(01/05/89) SUBMIT TO EPA NO FURTHER ACTION UNDER CERCLA 2

(01/11/83) GROUND PHOTOS PICTURES TAKEN. CONDITIONS THE SAME.

(01/15/88) SUBMIT TO EPA NFA FOR CERCLA2

(01/24/83) QUEX RETURN FROM ""FRICTION"". ACTIVITY- SERVICE TRUCK PARTS. CLAIM ALL WASTE DISPOSED OF TO ""TRASH PICKUP.""

(02/22/83) L A CO ASSESS. OWNERSHIP STILL ""BAILEY SCHMITZ,""2131 HUMBOLDT, L A 90031.

(03/10/83) HAINES CONFIRMS ADDRESS; PHONE 223-4231.

(03/30/83) FACILITY DRIVE-BY HUMBOLDT ST VACANT. PHONE DISCONNECTED.

(05/12/83) FINAL STRATEGY SITE REFERRED: TO HWMB/ENF

(05/18/87) SITE SCREENING DONE RATIONALE - POSS ONSITE CONTAM

(07/14/87) FACILITY DRIVE-BY BUILDING CONVERTED INTO 20 UNIT APART- MENT COMPLEX - NO SIGN OF BBLS OR HAZ- ARDOUS WASTE

(08/01/89) DELETED FROM CORTESE

(09/01/87) REPORTED FOR PROP65

(11/30/88) PRELIM ASSESS DONE BBLS BELONGED TO JUNK MAN UP THE STREET REMOVED AT NEW OWNERS REQUEST. GRADING & LIMITED SOIL WAS BROUGHT IN BEFORE AN ASPHALT DRIVEWAY WAS CONSTRUCTED

(12/17/82) FACILITY IDENTIFIED ID FROM DRIVE-BYS TO VICINITY. FACILITY DRIVE-BY SITE INACTIVE. DISP OF OIL TO DRUMS & GROUND. DISP OF AUTO PARTS. SUSPECT DISP FROM ""FRICTION MATERIALS"" AT 695 S.SANTA FE (BRAKE & CLUTCH SHOP).

(12/18/82) SITE FACES 690 BLOCK OF S. SANTA FE AVE.

Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: FIRST NATIONWIDE BANK 2309 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 345 - about 1. mile S of the subject

id: 19340758 042694 MANU - FABRICATED METAL PRODUCTS

Past use include manufacturing - metal, metal finishing. Potential contaminents of concern include * HALOGENATED ORGANIC COMPOUNDS, * HALOGENATED SOLVENTS, * HYDROCARBON SOLVENTS, * CONTAMINATED SOIL, * Sludge - Halogenated Compounds, * UNSPECIFIED OIL CONTAINING WASTE, * UNSPECIFIED SOLVENT MIXTURES, * WASTE OIL & MIXED OIL, * ORGANIC LIQUIDS (NONSOLVENTS) WITH HALOGENS, * UNSPECIFIED ORGANIC LIQUID MIXTURE. The Soil is potentialy affected. The present status - was reported as of 1994-04-26.

The lead agency for this site is .

Completed tasks:

1993-11-30: Site Screening. The site is identif

Completed tasks:

1994-04-26: Preliminary Endangerment Assessment Report. PEA reviewed by DTSC staff. Levels of contaminants observeied from RP, who likes to submit a PEA. The site consists of 1.53 acd are protective of human health and the environment DTSC recommendsres of land and includes a 75,000 sq.ft. two storey building. Phase I investigation revealed no information regarding hazardous waste a No Further Action.

ctivities conducted at the site. Further sampling reveals that concentration of oil & grease ranged from 590 to 9900 mg/kg and perchloroethylene (PCE) ranged from 0.89 to 17.0 mg/kg. Due to the evidence of on-site contamination, Department recommends a PEA.

CALS CALSITES - No Further Action

This section includes the sites on the Calsite list, which have been flagged for no further action by the California Environmental Protection Agency, Department of Toxic Substance Control (DTSC) in accordance with Section 25359.6 of the California Health and Safety Code.

This list has been researched within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | FORMER BURLEY SEAL PRODUCTS CO 1026 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 25 - about .1 mile E of the subject |
|---|---|
| Status: | id: 19300242 091704 MANU - RUBBER & MISC PLASTICS PRODUCTS |
| | (09/17/04) DTSC received an SB 1248 Notification for site assessment and local oversight by LA County Fire Department - Site Mitigation Unit of a former rubber seal manufacturer. Future site use is proposed ground floor shops with upstairs residential lofts. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | TARA-LOID INC 1321 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 69 - about .2 mile S of the subject |
| Status. | id: 1935029506161983 35 0 0 0 0 |
| | FACILITY DRIVE-BY NOW MARIKIAN BROS, PRODUCE TRANSPORT. RATIONALFACILITY IDENTIFIED ID D BY LOS ANGELES CHAM COMM DIR 63-64. MANUFACHAINES NOW ID MARIKIAN BROS. (10/02/82) QUEST RECEIVED. 12 EMPLOYEES AT LOC. SAWDUST/SHAVINGS WASTE DISPOSEDQUESTIONNAIRE SENT (02/01/83) OFF SITE HAULER) C M D REFUSE REMOVAL SERVICE (02/16/83) E FOR NFA NO PROBLEM BASED ON DRIVEBY. (06/16/83) TURE DIAMOND TOOLS. (10/01/82) |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | DEAN AND ASSOCIATES 700 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 71 - about .2 mile NE of the subject |
| Status: | id: 19490206 063087 ELECTRIC, GAS & SANITARY SERVICES |
| | Actions: CERTIFICATION - completed on 06/30/87. |
| | (04/18/89) SITE IS ON 1989 BOND EXPENDITURE PLAN FOR COST RECOVERY ONLY. |
| | (06/30/87) 5000 gallons of liquid treated and discharged-570 cubic yards hazardous solids removed. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | BAILEY & SCHMITZ COMPANY 2101 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 86 - about .2 mile NE of the subject |
| Status. | id: 1905814119250029 |
| Site: | RECTIFIER ENGINEERING CO., INC |

Address: 1803 E 7TH ST

| City: Map Loc: | LOS ANGELES 99 - about .2 mile NW of the subject |
|---|---|
| Status. | id: 1936022306161983 36 0 0 0 0 0 |
| | FACILITY DRIVE-BY NOW KIMCO - KIM S WORLD TRADE. RATIONALE FORFACILITY IDENTIFIED ID D BY LOS ANGELES CHAM COMM DIR 63-64. RECTIFI NFA NO PROBLEM BASED ON DRIVEBY. (06/16/83) ERS BATTERY CHARGING EQUIPMENT. (10/01/82) |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | MOORE MANUFACTURING, INC. 1412 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 109 - about .3 mile SE of the subject |
| Status. | id: 1930011306161983 30 0 0 0 0 0 |
| | FACILITY DRIVE-BY BRICK BLDG VACANT FOR LEASE SIGN. (06/16/83)FACILITY IDENTIFIED ID FROM LA CHAM COMM DIR 1963-64. RUBBER PROD, H OSE, PLASTIC PIPES. (10/20/82) |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | W.A. GRANT & COMPANY 2144 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 114 - about .3 mile NE of the subject |
| Olalus. | id: 1905426519330375 |
| Site: | GENERAL PRINTING INK DIVISION |
| Address: City: Map Loc: | LOS ANGELES 128 - about .3 mile SE of the subject |
| Olaldo. | id: 1928108402051988 28 0 0 0 0 0 |
| | FACILITY DRIVE-BY NO NUMBER ON BLDG. SEEMS TO BE USED AS A STUDIO FACILITY IDENTIFIED ID FROM LA CHAM COMM DIR 1969-70. DIVISION OF SUSITE SCREENING DONE PAL RECOMMENDED BASED ON LACK OF INFO. (02/05/88) N CHEMICAL CORP. MFG-INKS, PRINTING INKS. (01/20/83) OR RESIDENCE. E (06/16/83) |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | EXLEY EXPRESS 634 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 132 - about .3 mile N of the subject |
| Status. | id: 1942002104091987 42C 0 0 0 0 0 |
| | AGENT SAYS NOT THE SAME PROPERTY (12/29/82) CONTACT OWNER) JAY D ANTONI 375-3334. (03/22/83) FACILITY DRIVE-BY ASAP. NEW BLDG ON SITE (04/01/85) FACILITY DRIVE-BY ASAP. NEW BLDG ON SITE (04/01/85) FACILITY DRIVE-BY ASP. FENCED EMPTY LOT W/ RUBBLE (05/22/84) FACILITY DRIVE-BY SITE LEASED TO PAVING CO. NOW COVERED BY TONS OFFACILITY DRIVE-BY TAKE PICTURES. MAJOR SIGNS STILL ON SITE. REALFACILITY IDENTIFIED ID FROM DRIVE-BYS TO VICINITY. FACILITY DRIVE-BYFINAL STRATEGY SITE REFERRED) TO HWMB/ENF (05/12/83) INSPECTION OTHER SLADDEN ENGINEERING. SOIL INSP.NO EVIDNC OF BURIPHONE F-U TO MAJOR PROPERTIES, 747- 4151. AGENT WILL INSPECT, TELLSITE SCREENING DONE CERCLIS SITE. (04/09/87) TRUCKING FIRMS ON SITE SINCE 1958 TO 83. SOURCE ACT) TRUCKING FIRM. VACANT LOT W/ GRP 3 WASTES. DISP OF USED CRANKCASE OIL - DIESEL F DIRT - GRAVEL. NO CLEAN-UP. (04/11/83) OWNER. (12/28/82) DIESEL OIL DISP. TRESPASSERS DUMP ON PROPERTY. STORAGE OF DIRT, PAVIED FUEL STORAGE TANKS. (11/14/84) TOR INSP ON 12/28 WAS TO ADV 608 MATEO, FORMERLY CORONET FOODS,INC SAME AS 12/17 (01/11/83) ILTERS. SMALL SUMP FILLED W/ OIL. OIL TO GROUND. (12/17/82) NG FRAGMENTS. ENF HISTORY) 5/12/83 DHS ASP REFERRAL FOR DUMPING OF GRP3 WASTES - ABAND GAS OIL SUMP. SUBMIT TO EPA (09/01/85) |

Page: 34 Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

| Site: Address: City: | MARTIN METALS INC. 1321 S WILSON ST LOS ANGELES |
|--|---|
| Map Loc: | 133 - about .3 mile SW of the subject |
| Clatab. | id: 19330385 071504 MANU - PRIMARY METAL INDUSTRIES |
| | (07/15/04) DTSC received an SB 1248 Notification for site assessment and local oversight by LA County Fire Department - Site Mitigation Unit of remediation of an active gererator that refines precious metals from scrap electronic parts. Past environmental assessments have found heavy metal contamination in shallow soils. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | SO CAL GAS/LA-ALAMEDA MGP 725 S CHANNING ST LOS ANGELES 136 - about .3 mile NW of the subject |
| Status: | id: 19490227 060895 ELECTRIC, GAS & SANITARY SERVICES |
| | Contaminants: UNSPECIFIED ORGANIC LIQUID MIXTURE, OTHER ORGANIC SOLIDS, SULFUR SLUDGE, UNSPECIFIED SLUDGE WASTE, CYANIDES, POLYMERIC RESIN WASTE, ORGANIC MONOMER WASTE, INCLUDING UNREACTED RESINS, LEAD, ARSENIC, CONTAMINATED SOIL |
| | Program: TOWN GAS |
| | Actions: SITE SCREENING - completed on 04/08/92. PRELIMINARY ENDANGERMENT ASSESSMENT - completed on 05/20/93. PRELIMINARY ENDANGERMENT ASSESSMENT (PEAE) - completed on 12/31/02. CEQA INCLUDING NEGATIVE DECS - completed on 03/18/03. REMOVAL ACTION WORKPLAN - completed on 03/18/03. REMOVAL ACTION - is scheduled to be completed on 03/30/05. CERTIFICATION - is scheduled to be completed on 07/30/05. Site located at 725 Chemming Street, Los Angeles, California, approximately 2.5 acres. From 1887 util 1906 an oil gas plant was operated at site. MGP may have been converted to a natural gas storage site in approximately 1906. Records indicate that MGP equipment may have been removed by 1930. Site is currently used as a Greyhound Bus parking lot. |
| | (01/27/02) DTSC submitted comments regarding Draft RI-WP. |
| | (03/11/02) Soil gas activities occured. |
| | (03/18/02) March 18-19 soil matrix sampling activities occurred. |
| | (03/18/03) Special Initial Study, Negative Declaration, and De Minimis Impact Finding were prepared and made available for public review. No verbal or written comments were received. DTSC approved the CEQA documents on 3/18/2003. DTSC approved RAW on 3/18/03. Proposed removal activities consists of removing approximately 615 cubic yards of contaminated soil. Chemicals of potential concern previously identified in the soil include the following: Lampslack, PAH's, and BTEX. Removal Activities are anticipated to last approximately 30 days. |
| | (04/03/02) Awaiting submittal of RI Report. |
| | (04/07/92) The site is approximately 2.5 acre in size, entirely paved or built up on and is presently occupied by an industrial firm that uses the site as a storate/warehouse facility for wooden crates. The surrounding area is fully developed with commercial and industrial occupancy. In the early 1900s, the site was used by gas companies for the production of ""manufactured gas" from this oepration were tars, oils, sludges, lampblack etc, which were sold for various industrial uses. Some of these byproduct residues have been found in soils at former towne gas plants sites. Out of these polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAH) are hazardous. Also, elevated levels of heavy metals such as lead and arsenic and cyanides were found at few sites. A PEA is required at the site to determine, if any emergency removal action is required at the site to reduce the potential threat to public health and the environment. The Dept received a Notice of Intent dated March 20, 1992 to initiate a PEA. |
| | (04/30/01) A multi site master agreement was signed on 4/30/2001 under Colto MGP- Calsite 36490107, Elsinore, Fullerton, LA/Alameda, and Pasadena MGPs. |

(05/20/93) The Department completed review of the PEA. A Manufactured Gas Plant (MGP) was operated at the site in the late 1800s and early 1900s. Gas was produced from crude oil for distribution in the site area. Several companies operated at the site. In 1909, the site was owned by the Los Angeles Gas and Electric Corp., which merged with the Southern Calfornia Gas Company in 1937. SoCalGas owned the property until 1976, and sold to the

current owners. The MGP was dismantled sometime before 1906. The byproducts from the manufactured gas operation were tars, oils, sludges, and lampblack. Elevated levels of polycyclic aromatic hydro- carbons (PAH), heavy metals such as lead and arsenic and cyanides were found at the site. The PEA concluded that there was contamination at the site above screening values. Therefore, the Department recommended that further investigation or assessment at the site was necessary.

(05/24/95) As of May 2, 1995 an agreement between S.Cal Gas and DTSC was reached in which S.Cal will investigate and remediate MPG sites. S.Cal will contact DTSC selecting sites and establishing schedules.

(10/19/01) Scope Meeting/Site walk with Gas Company and DTSC.

(11/01/01) DTSC awaiting submittal of Draft Remedial Investigation Workplan (RI-WP).

(12/15/01) Received Draft RI-WP.

(12/31/02) DTSC approved site characterization activities in December 2002. Contaminants of concern included PAH's & BTEX. A RAW involving excavation will be implemented for the Site.

Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status:

COMMERCIAL IRON WORKS 2424 PORTER ST LOS ANGELES 139 - about .3 mile SE of the subject id: 1933035501071988 33 0 0 0 0

FACILITY DRIVE-BY LRG PLANT, UNABLE TO ADQ VIEW. SIGN SAYS FOUNDEFACILITY IDENTIFIED ID FROM DRIVE-BYS TO VICINITY. (12/17/82) SITE SCREENING DONE PAL BASED ON LACK OF INFO. (01/07/88) RS - MACHINISTS SINCE 1912. (06/16/83)

Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status:

CENTRAL CITY COMMUNITY RECYCLI 718 S ALAMEDA ST LOS ANGELES 175 - about .4 mile NW of the subject

id: 1949015606161983 49 00 00

FACILITY DRIVE-BY NEW, CLEAN, STATE-OF THE ART. AREA OK. RATIONALEFACILITY IDENTIFIED ID FROM NEWSPAPER ARTICLE. OPERATOR-- ECOLO-HAUL FOR NFA NO PROBLEM BASED ON DRIVEBY. (06/16/83) . PRIOR USE (03/11/83)

Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: SOUTHERN CALIF GAS CO, OLYMPIC 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 177 - about .4 mile SE of the subject

id: 19490179 122491 ELECTRIC, GAS & SANITARY SERVICES

Contaminants: LEAD, CHROMIUM (VI), CADMIUM, ARSENIC, ORGANIC LIQUIDS WITH METALS, UNSPECIFIED OIL CONTAINING WASTE, AQUEOUS SOLUTION WITH METALS, UNSPECIFIED ALKALINE SOLUTIONS

Program: RCRA 3012

Actions:

DEED RESTRICTIONS - completed on 05/23/91. DISCOVERY - completed on 09/29/83. I/SE, IORSE, FFA, FFSRA, VCA, EA - completed on 12/30/86. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN - completed on 02/28/87. REMEDIAL INVESTIGATION / FEASIBILITY STUDY - completed on 07/31/90. REMEDIAL ACTION PLAN / RECORD OF DECISION - completed on 04/23/91. DESIGN - completed on 09/05/91. FINAL REMEDIAL ACTION (CAP) - completed on 12/16/91. CERTIFICATION - completed on 12/24/91. OPERATION & MAINTENANCE - is scheduled to be completed on 06/30/11. AMENDED ORDER/AGREEMENT, CHAPTER 6.5 TRANSITION - completed on 01/05/99. The Southern California Gas (SCG), Olympic Base Site was once a gas manufacturing plant where oil was converted into gas for lighting, heating, and cooking. Residues from the gasification process, mainly consisting of a material "lamp black" were discovered at the site. ""Lamp Black"" contains varying amounts of a family of compounds called polynuclear or polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PNAs or PAHs). The plant was built in the period 1907-1908 by the
City Gas Company. In 1908, the Domestic Gas Company purchased and took over the operations of City Gas. In 1910, SCG was incorporated and became the successor of Domestic Gas. SCG operated the plant until 1927, when the service for 100% natural gas started. The plant operated on a standby basis until 1952, when all gas manufacturing operations ceased and the plant was dismantled. SCG has administrative facilities on other portions of the facility. A Consent Order was signed in December 1986, which addressed the work needed to complete the Remedial Investigation/- Feasibility Study (RI/FS) process. The RI report was approved by the Department on September 17, 1987. The RI found that soil from about 2 to 12 feet below ground surface is contaminated. The contaminants are not readily vaporized, nor do they enter aqueous phase solution. Groundwater aquifers beneath the site are unsaturated to a depth of 90 feet. Air monitoring at the site does not indicate that the contaminants are emitting vapors to the air. SCG then submitted a FS report in May 1988. DHS has reviewed the FS report and requested a full Health Risk Assessment (HRA) based on appropriate biological receptors and exposure pathways on October 20, 1988. The HRA was approved by the Department on June 4, 1990. The FS was revised by SCG and the report approved on July 19, 1990. The RP submitted a draft RAP on August 20, 1990, as requested by the Department. The Department has published a fact sheet on the findings of the RI/FS. The RAP meeting with the community was held on November 17, 1990 and the RAP was subsequently approved in January of 1991. The RAP proposed an asphalt cap on the site, groundwater monitoring, and a deed restriction. Groundwater monitoring is necessary as the region the site is located in is currently experiencing a drought; however, if this should change the groundwater table will rise, possibly impacting the conclusions of the RI. The deed restriction, protected the integrity of the cap by limiting land use and excavation of the waste. The Department directed the RP to prepare a Remedial Design and Implementation (RD&I) plan. The plan included engineering specifications for the asphalt cap, permits, and a schedule for completion of the cap. The cap will be repaired as necessary; necessary; it is expected to require replacement every ten years. This operation and maintenance program will last for 20 years.

(01/14/99) Transition to Chapter 6.5.

(01/21/97) Report for repair of asphalt was submitted.

(01/31/84) Preliminary Assessment Done (RCRA 3012): Multiple operations including transmission bases, truck storage, meter reading, customer service, craft shops, and a training center (1965- 1980). Waste includes barium. Landfill on southeast end of the property. Hazardous waste materials include residues from wash rack activities and caustic cleaning materials. PA submitted to U.S. EPA.

(01/31/95) January-February. Trenching for pipe-line abandonment and reroute another high pressure pipeline was done.

(02/13/02) Site visit for Deed Restriction.

(03/04/04) Site visit for Deed Restriction.

(04/09/03) Site annual visit for updating Deed Restriction for the site. Updated (description, photos) was completed, approved and filed 04/15/03.

(04/15/03) Site visit for Deed Restriction.

(05/11/00) Collection of lampblack samples for an interutility project/ subject Environmentally Acceptable Endpoints.

(05/19/04) Additional maintenance report was submitted to DTSC.

(05/26/99) SB 47 reauthorized the site under Chapter 6.8.

(06/25/96) The gas company conducted the 4th annual asphalt cap inspection at the site.

(07/02/01) Summary of laboratory results was sent to DTSC.

(07/06/98) The Gas Company submitted the yearly monitoring report and the 5th Annual Asphalt inspection at the site.

(07/21/91) Former gas manufacturing plant (oil converted to gas). Contaminant of concern is lamp black.

(08/02/96) The Gas Company submitted the yearly monitoring report. The areas of old asphalt will be replaced with new asphalt pavement within 90 days.

(09/29/83) Facility Identified: ERRIS.

(12/11/03) Periodic Monitoring Report - Asphalt Cap Inspection was submitted to DTSC.

(12/16/91) The Final Remedial Action consisted of placing an asphalt cap on the unpaved portions of the Olympic Base Site which would be maintained according to the requirements set forth in the RAP. A deed restriction was recorded on the property. The design of the cap was prepared and included in the RAP workplan.

Site: DRYWHIT METAL PRODUCTS COMPANY Address: 660 S MYERS ST

| City: Map Loc: | LOS ANGELES 208 - about .4 mile NE of the subject |
|--|---|
| Status. | id: 1934056410081982 34 0 0 0 0 0 |
| | FACILITY IDENTIFIED LA CHAM COMM DIR 1963-64. METAL PRODUCTS. (10/08/82) |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | UNION ICE COMPANY, THE 660 S ALAMEDA ST LOS ANGELES 224 - about .5 mile NW of the subject |
| Status: | id: 1920001806161983 20 0 0 0 0 0 |
| | FACILITY DRIVE-BY LARGE FACILITY ALONG INDUSTRIAL ST. OLDER BLDGS,FACILITY IDENTIFIED ID FROM DRIVE-BYS TO VICINITY. SIGNS) DRY ICE - CHEMICAL DIVISION (12/17/82) RR TRACKS. ADV QUEX. (06/16/83) |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | BUTTERFIELD (SUN CHEMICAL CORP 590 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 237 - about .5 mile N of the subject |
| Olalus. | id: 19281223 040302 MANU - CHEMICALS & ALLIED PRODUCTS |
| | Program: CLEAN LOAN PROGRAM |
| | Actions: I/SE, IORSE, FFA, FFSRA, VCA, EA (RAA) - completed on 02/04/02. The site is located at 590 South Santa Fe Avenue, Los Angeles, California. The site consists of two land parcels totaling approximately 2.68 actes of land and is located witin an indus- industrial portion of the City of Los Angeles. Historically the site has been used for chemeical or paint manufacturing. The site was formerly under the oversight of the California Regional Water Quality Control Board (CRWQCB). (CRWQCB) has overseen the site investiation and remediation since approximately 1986. Previous sampling activities have confirmed both soil and groundwater contamination. Contaminants of concern identified in the groundwater and soil include benzene, ethyl benzene, 1,1- dichlorethane, 1,1-dichloroethene, 4-methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK), toluene, and total xylene. The toluene, and xylene appear to be primarily located within the groundwater beneath the northern portion of the site whereas MIBK has been identified in the groundwater along the southwest corner of the site and may extend beyond the site boundary. |
| | (01/04/02) Scoping meeting held between Bitterfield and DTSC to discuss further site characterization along with the Response Action Agreement (RAA). |
| | (01/16/04) DTSC's comments on Work Scope for Pilot Study. |
| | (02/02/05) Meeting with RP to Finalize the workplan. |
| | (02/04/02) RAA approved and signed. Response Action Agreement - (RAA): Document agreed upon by proponent and DTSC. RAA describes task and timelines associated with project. |
| | (02/07/02) Draft site characterization work plan (WP) submitted to DTSC, DTSC requested and revised WP and time task schedule by 3/8/02. |
| | (03/13/02) DTSC notified that WP will be delivered by 3/22/02. |
| | (03/14/04) The Greenfield Company submitted Air Sparge and Soil Va[por Extraction Pilot Study Test Report. |
| | (03/28/05) Extended Pilot Testing Plan received. |
| | (04/03/02) DTSC informed that WP will be hand delivered on 4/4/02. |
| | (05/19/05) Extended Pilot Testing work started. |
| | (06/17/02) Butterfield Trails Corporation submitted Site Characterization Update Investigation Workplan. |
| | (07/18/03) Butterfield Trails Corporations submitted Draft Workplan to perform Interim Remediation Activities. |
| | (08/25/03) DTSC's comments on Draft Workplan to perform Interim Remeditation Activities. |
| | (09/03/02) DTSC's comments on Site Characterization Update Investigation Workplan. |

(12/07/01) DTSC commenced review of submitted documents for work previously conducted on site.

(12/10/01) Scoping meeting held between proponent and DTSC.

(12/20/01) First Draft of Response Action Agreement (RAA) sent to proponent and DTSC legal department.

Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status:

590 S SANTA FÈ AVE LOS ANGELES 237 - about .5 mile N of the subject

BUTTERFIELD (SUN CHEMICAL CORP

id: 19281223 040302 MANU - CHEMICALS & ALLIED PRODUCTS

Program: CLEAN LOAN PROGRAM

Actions:

I/SE, IORSE, FFA, FFSRA, VCA, EA (RAA) - completed on 02/04/02.

The site is located at 590 South Santa Fe Avenue, Los Angeles, California. The site consists of two land parcels totaling approximately 2.68 actes of land and is located witin an indus- industrial portion of the City of Los Angeles. Historically the site has been used for chemeical or paint manufacturing. The site was formerly under the oversight of the California Regional Water Quality Control Board (CRWQCB). (CRWQCB) has overseen the site investiation and remediation since approximately 1986. Previous sampling activities have confirmed both soil and groundwater contamination. Contaminants of concern identified in the groundwater and soil include benzene, ethyl benzene, 1,1-dichloroethene, 4-methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK), toluene, and total xylene. The toluene, and xylene identified in the groundwater beneath the northern portion of the site whereas MIBK has been identified in the groundwater of the site and may extend beyond the site boundary.

(01/04/02) Scoping meeting held between Bitterfield and DTSC to discuss further site characterization along with the Response Action Agreement (RAA).

(01/16/04) DTSC's comments on Work Scope for Pilot Study.

(02/02/05) Meeting with RP to Finalize the workplan.

(02/04/02) RAA approved and signed. Response Action Agreement - (RAA): Document agreed upon by proponent and DTSC. RAA describes task and timelines associated with project.

(02/07/02) Draft site characterization work plan (WP) submitted to DTSC, DTSC requested and revised WP and time task schedule by 3/8/02.

(03/13/02) DTSC notified that WP will be delivered by 3/22/02.

(03/14/04) The Greenfield Company submitted Air Sparge and Soil Va[por Extraction Pilot Study Test Report.

(03/28/05) Extended Pilot Testing Plan received.

(04/03/02) DTSC informed that WP will be hand delivered on 4/4/02.

(05/19/05) Extended Pilot Testing work started.

(06/17/02) Butterfield Trails Corporation submitted Site Characterization Update Investigation Workplan.

(07/18/03) Butterfield Trails Corporations submitted Draft Workplan to perform Interim Remediation Activities.

(08/25/03) DTSC's comments on Draft Workplan to perform Interim Remeditation Activities.

(09/03/02) DTSC's comments on Site Characterization Update Investigation Workplan.

(12/07/01) DTSC commenced review of submitted documents for work previously conducted on site.

(12/10/01) Scoping meeting held between proponent and DTSC.

(12/20/01) First Draft of Response Action Agreement (RAA) sent to proponent and DTSC legal department.

Site: INMC Address: 590 S City: LOS Map Loc: 237 Status:

INMONT CORPORATION 590 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 237 - about .5 mile N of the subject



| | id: 1928112711141986 28 0 0 0 0 |
|--|--|
| | FACILITY IDENTIFIED ID FROM DRIVE-BYS TO VICINITY. FACILITY DRIVE-BYSITE SCREENING DONE DRUMS ARE VISIBLE. (11/14/86) ADJ TO RR TRAX - LA RIVER. MANY DRUM -RAW MAT L OR PRODUCT NOT TOO BAD. HWMB FILES FOR |
| | ANAHEIM FAC - PAC TEL HELP ID MFG PAINTS, RESINS - INK. (12/17/82) |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | C & W CHEMICAL COMPANY, INC. 1328 WILLOW ST LOS ANGELES 254 - about .5 mile N of the subject |
| Status. | id: 1928115001021988 28 0 0 0 0 |
| | FACILITY DRIVE-BY BLDG NEWLY PAINTED NO ID. SMALL, PAVED YARD. NOFACILITY IDENTIFIED ID FROM DRIVE-BYS TO VICINITY. (12/17/82) SITE SCREENING DONE PAL RECOMMENDED BASED ON LACK OF INFO. (01/07/88 VIS PROBS ADVISE QUEX. (06/16/83)) |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | NATIONAL AEROSOL 2193 E 14TH ST LOS ANGELES 271 - about .5 mile S of the subject |
| Status. | id: 19220018 103101 MANU - TEXTILE MILL PRODUCTS |
| | Actions: PRELIMINARY ENDANGERMENT ASSESSMENT (PASI) - completed on 03/16/01. This facility was built in 1947. In 1970 Grow Group Inc. purchased this facility and became National Aerosol Products. Grow Group Inc. on behalf of National Aerosol Company removed three underground storage tanks, one 12,000 gallon methylene chloride tank, one 5,000 gallon toluene tank, and one 1,500 gallon Naptha tank. The tank removal was overseen by Los Angeles City Fire Department. |
| | (11/01/01) Based on confirmatory soil analysis, No Further Action required. |
| Site: Address: City: | PUREX CORP TURCO PRODS INDUSTRIAL ST LOS ANGELES |
| Status. | id: 1928118801191984 28 0 0 0 0 |
| | FACILITY IDENTIFIED ID FROM ERRIS (09/29/83) SITE SCREENING DONE MFG DETERGENTS/SOAPS. FAC MAY NO LONGER EXIST (1SOURCE ACT) PROD OF CLEANING COMPOUND SUBMIT TO EPA (01/19/84) 2/04/87) |

CORTESE State of California Office of Planning and Research

This database is a consolidation of information from various sources. It is maintained by the State Office of Planning and Research and lists potential and confirmed hazardous waste or substances sites.

Facilities that have been reported elsewhere in this report will not be included in the listing below.

| Status Codes: | WRCBT | Tank leaks. Compiled by Water Resource Control Board |
|---------------|--------------|---|
| | DHS1 | Abandoned hazardous waste site. |
| | | Compiled by Toxic Substance Control Div. of DHS |
| | DHS2 | Contaminated public water drinking wells serving less than 200 connections. Compiled by Env. Health Div. of DHS |
| | DHS3 DHS5 | Contaminated public water drinking wells serving more than 200 connections Sites pursuant to section 25356 of the Health and Safety Code (see BEP) |

CWMB Solid waste disposal sites with known migration of hazardous waste

No listings within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

LUST Leaking Underground Storage Tanks - California State

The Leaking Underground Storage Tanks Information System is maintained by the State Water Resource Board pursuant to Section 25295 of the Health and Safety Code.

This section includes tank cases located on militay installation.

| Status Codes: | 0 | No action |
|---------------|----|---|
| | 1 | Leak being confirmed |
| | ЗA | Prel site assessment workplan submitted |
| | 3B | Prel site assessment underway |
| | 5C | Pollution characterization |
| | 5R | Remediation plan |
| | 7 | Remedial action underway |
| | 8 | Post remedial action monitoring |
| | 9 | Case closed |
| | Р | Case purged from agency list |

This list has been researched within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

Site:EXXON #7-8407 (FORMER)Address:1935 E 7TH STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:72 - about .2 mile N of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 03700643, .

AQUIFER USED FOR DRINKING WATER SUPPLY

Site:GREYHOUND LINES INCAddress:1614 E 7TH STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:138 - about .3 mile NW of the subjectStatus:--

The case, 03770957, .

SOIL

1994-01-01: TANK REMOVAL REPORT / UST

SAMPLING REPORT 2005-02-01: SOIL AND WATER INVESTIGATION WORKPLAN 2005-11-01: SOIL AND WATER INVESTIGATION WORKPLAN

 Site:
 SHELL

 Address:
 1520 S SANTA FE AVE

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 154 - about .4 mile SE of the subject

 Status:
 NRA

Site:FORMER SHELL SERVICE STATIONAddress:1520 S SANTA FE AVECity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:154 - about .3 mile SE of the subjectStatus:--

The case, 000005293, .

Site:LA CITY FIRE DEPARTMENTAddress:2474 PORTER STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:179 - about .4 mile SE of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 03700648, .

OTHER GROUNDWATER (USES OTHER THAN DRINKING WATER)

| Site: | CITY | OF LA - BUREAU OF STREET |
|----------|------|-----------------------------------|
| Address: | 2222 | E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS | ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 186 | - about .4 mile NE of the subject |
| Status: | | |
| | | |

The case, 03720097, .

SOIL

1993-08-01: TANK REMOVAL REPORT / UST

SAMPLING REPORT 1994-03-24: PRELIMINARY SITE ASSESSMENT REPORT 1994-04-18: CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN / REMEDIAL ACTION PLAN 2002-09-01: SITE ASSESSMENT REPORT 2004-01-05: SOIL AND WATER INVESTIGATION REPORT 2006-03-17: REMEDIAL PROGRESS REPORT 2006-04-24: CORRESPONDENCE 2006-05-17: STAFF LETTER 2006-07-18: REMEDIAL PROGRESS REPORT 2006-07-18: REMEDIAL PROGRESS REPORT 2008-05-05: REQUEST FOR CLOSURE 2014-09-10: STATE WATER BOARD – CLOSURE ORDER

Site:UNOCAL #0152 FORMERAddress:1800 E OLYMPIC BLVDCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:196 - about .4 mile SW of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 03700649, .

SOIL

Site:ST. MAINT. SERVICE YARDAddress:1451 E 6TH STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:217 - about .4 mile N of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The aquifer is potentially impacted. The case, 03793035, .

SOIL

Site:SUN CHEMICAL CORPAddress:590 S SANTA FE AVECity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:237 - about .5 mile N of the subjectStatus:INACT - Inactive

The case, 048C1697, .

Site:SUN CHEMICAL CORPAddress:590 S SANTA FE AVECity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:237 - about .5 mile N of the subjectStatus:OPEN -

The case, 002048C00, .

 Site:
 SUN CHEMICAL CORP

 Address:
 590 S SANTA FE AVE

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 237 - about .5 mile N of the subject

 Status:
 ASSM - Site Assessment

The case, 04761666, .

Site:ASPHALT PLANT #1, SITE 8/25Address:2484 E OLYMPIC BLVDCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:248 - about .5 mile SE of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The aquifer is potentially impacted. The case, 03700654, is managed by the Regional Water Quality Board.

SOIL

2009-06-11: STAFF LETTER

2009-07-13: OTHER REPORT / DOCUMENT 2010-02-12: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER

Site:A-ABBEY METALS INTERNATIONALAddress:1931 MATEO STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:272 - about .5 mile S of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 03774420, .

SOIL

1995-05-19: STAFF LETTER 2011-10-26: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER - #1

1995-02-27: SITE ASSESSMENT REPORT

Site:GOLDEN STATE MUTUAL LIFE INS.Address:1112 LONG BEACH AVECity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:273 - about .5 mile W of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 03705510, .

SOIL

Site:7TH ST L.A. PUBLIC WORKS MAINTAddress:2300 E 7TH STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:280 - about .5 mile E of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 03779702, .

SOIL

2009-06-26: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION

LETTER

 Site:
 TEXACO TRUCK STOP (FORMER)

 Address:
 1345 E 7TH ST

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 281 - about .5 mile NW of the subject

 Status:
 CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 03700645, .

AQUIFER USED FOR DRINKING WATER SUPPLY

1997-12-12: * HISTORICAL ENFORCEMENT

Site:METRO DIVISION 1 MAINTENACE FAAddress:1130 E 6TH STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:285 - about .6 mile NW of the subjectStatus:ASSM - Site Assessment

The case, 000000634, .

2001-06-22: SITE ASSESSMENT REPORT 2002-11-19: CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN / REMEDIAL ACTION PLAN 2004-11-08: MONITORING REPORT - OTHER 2004-11-16: RISK ASSESSMENT REPORT 2004-11-19: REQUEST FOR CLOSURE 2006-02-16: NOTICE TO COMPLY 2006-04-13: SOIL AND WATER INVESTIGATION WORKPLAN 2006-04-13: TECHNICAL CORRESPONDENCE / ASSISTANCE / OTHER 2006-06-27: OTHER REPORT / DOCUMENT 2006-06-27: OTHER REPORT / DOCUMENT 2006-07-18: SITE ASSESSMENT REPORT 2007-01-24: PILOT STUDY/ TREATABILITY REPORT 2007-02-05: INTERIM REMEDIAL ACTION PLAN 2007-07-20: REQUEST FOR CLOSURE

Site:ANGELICA TEXTILE SERVICESAddress:1225City:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:286Status:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 03718930, .

SOIL

Site:SEARS ROEBUCK & COAddress:2555 E OLYMPIC BLVDCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:288 - about .6 mile SE of the subjectStatus:NRA -

Site:76 PRODUCTS STATION #4010Address:791 S CENTRAL AVECity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:290 - about .6 mile W of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 03700647, .

SOIL

| Site: | LA MTA DIVISION 1 |
|----------|---------------------------------------|
| Address: | 624 S CENTRAL AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 291 - about .6 mile NW of the subject |
| Status: | CLSD - Case Closed |
| | |

The case, 03700642, .

SOIL

| Site: | RYDER TRUCK RENTAL #91 |
|----------|---------------------------------------|
| Address: | 1508 S ALAMEDA ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 293 - about .6 mile SW of the subject |
| Status: | |

The case, 03700651, .

SOIL

1998-10-08: TANK REMOVAL REPORT / UST

SAMPLING REPORT 1999-07-30: SOIL AND WATER INVESTIGATION REPORT 2000-02-09: CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN / REMEDIAL ACTION PLAN 2002-03-14: SOIL AND WATER INVESTIGATION WORKPLAN 2003-04-10: TECHNICAL CORRESPONDENCE / ASSISTANCE / OTHER 2004-04-05: SOIL AND WATER INVESTIGATION REPORT 2004-10-25: STAFF LETTER 2006-09-19: SITE ASSESSMENT REPORT 2007-11-20: CAP/RAP - FEASIBILITY STUDY REPORT

Site:ZIMMERMAN DEVELOPMENT INCAddress:560 S ALAMEDA STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:294 - about .6 mile NW of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 046K1651, .

Site:ACTA NORTH - LA PRINT WORKSITEAddress:1960 S SANTA FE AVECity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:295 - about .6 mile S of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 603763452, .

2002-12-18: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER

Site:ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-004-SFGAddress:2000 S SANTA FE AVECity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:296 - about .7 mile S of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 603749698, .

2003-05-16: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER

| Site: | ACTA NORTH - MACCARTHY CO. |
|----------|--------------------------------------|
| Address: | 2010 S SANTA FE AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 298 - about .7 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | CLSD - Case Closed |
| | |

The case, 603724740, .

2002-11-04: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER

| Site: | WATER CHEMISTS INC. |
|----------|--------------------------------------|
| Address: | 1275 S BOYLE AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 299 - about .7 mile E of the subject |
| Status: | CLSD - Case Closed |

The aquifer is potentially impacted. The case, 03700670, .

SOIL

| Site: | ROLO TRANSPORTATION |
|----------|---------------------------------------|
| Address: | 536 SEATON ST |
| City: | LOS ANELES |
| Map Loc: | 300 - about .7 mile NW of the subject |
| Status: | CLSD - Case Closed |

The case, 03792226, is managed by the Regional Water Quality Board.

SOIL

2006-01-31: STAFF LETTER

2006-03-03: OTHER REPORT / DOCUMENT 2007-01-20: SOIL AND WATER INVESTIGATION WORKPLAN 2007-07-17: SOIL AND WATER INVESTIGATION REPORT 2008-01-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2008-07-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2008-07-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2008-12-17: STAFF LETTER 2009-01-15: SOIL AND WATER INVESTIGATION WORKPLAN 2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;20 16 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL Page: 46 Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

2009-02-18: STAFF LETTER 2009-03-18: WELL INSTALLATION REPORT 2009-04-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2009-09-21: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER Monitoring well: MW1 active lat/long: 34.0404317/-118.236648 depth to gw: 96.5 - 98.3 .5 UG/L 2008-03-17 (max 66 UG/L 2008-03-17) sample data: B7 BZME 1.2 UG/L 2008-03-17 e data: ΒZ .5 UG/L 2008-03-17 (max 66 UG/L 2008-03-17) 1.2 UG/L 2008-03-17 BZME DRO 754 UG/L 2008-06-04 (max 5330 UG/L 2007-06-04) GRO 62 UG/L 2009-06-25 (max 786 UG/L 2008-03-17) OILM 591 PPM 2007-06-04 (max 2320 PPM 2007-06-04) XYLENE6 UG/L 2008-03-17) OILM 591 PPM 2007-06-04 (max 2320 PPM 2007-06-04) 1.1 UG/L 2008-06-04 (max 5.5 UG/L 2008-03-17) **XYLENES** S 1.1 UG/L 2008-06-04 (max 5.5 UG/L 2008-03-17) Monitoring well: MW2 active 34.0403135/-118.2365096 lat/long: 97.02 - 97.02 depth to gw: Monitoring well: MW2 active lat/long: 34.0403135/-118.2365096 depth to gw: 97.02 - 97.02 sample data: ΒZ .6 UG/L 2009-06-25 (max 1.1 UG/L 2009-05-28) BZME 24 UG/L 2009-06-25 58.2 PPM 2009-05-28 (max 1340 PPM 2009-05-28) DRO 34.6 PPM 2009-05-28 (max 327 PPM 2009-05-28) GRO OILM 58.9 PPM 2009-05-28 (max 2420 PPM 2009-05-28) XYLENES .099 PPM 2009-05-28 (max 58.9 PPM 2009-05-28) Monitoring well: MW3 active lat/long: 34.0402482/-118.2367007 depth to gw: 97.18 - 97.18 MW3 active Monitoring well: lat/long: 34.0402482/-118.2367007 depth to gw: 97.18 - 97.18 .002 PPM 2009-05-28 (max 58.9 PPM 2009-05-28) sample data: ΒZ Site: ALAMEDA PETROLEUM TRUCK STOP Address: 1631 S ALAMEDA ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 301 - about .7 mile SW of the subject Status: CLSD - Case Closed The case, 03779269, . SOIL ACTA NORTH - TRIM CONNECTOR Site: Address: 2018 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 302 - about .7 mile S of the subject Status: CLSD - Case Closed The case, 99992906, . 2002-07-18: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER Site: ALAMEDA PETROLEUM TRUCK STOP 1625 S ALAMEDA ST

Address:1625 S ALAMEDA STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:303 - about .7 mile SW of the subject

2004-07-28: SOIL VAPOR EXTRACTION (SVE)

Status: CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 03756291, .

SOIL

2007-10-15: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER

Site:AAddress:2City:LMap Loc:3Status:C

ACTA 2026 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 305 - about .7 mile S of the subject CLSD - Case Closed

Drinking water/well is impacted. The case, 03760880, .

SOIL

Site:ACTA NORTH- SMILE KNIT FACILITAddress:2026 S SANTA FE AVECity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:305 - about .7 mile S of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 603716167, .

2002-06-06: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER

 Site:
 MOBIL #11-LID

 Address:
 1166 S SOTO ST

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 306 - about .7 mile E of the subject

 Status:
 CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 03700663, .

SOIL

Site:SEARS #1008/8128Address:2650 E OLYMPIC BLVDCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:307 - about .7 mile SE of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 03739167, .

SOIL

Site:SUPERFINE TEXACOAddress:500 S ALAMEDA STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:308 - about .7 mile NW of the subjectStatus:--

The case, 000004817, .

1989-05-22: SITE ASSESSMENT REPORT 1989-07-28: CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN / REMEDIAL ACTION PLAN 1993-10-07: REQUEST FOR CLOSURE 1999-01-06: OTHER REPORT / DOCUMENT

Site:ARCOAddress:500 S ALAMEDA STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:308 - about .7 mile NW of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 03700539, .

SOIL

1989-05-22: SITE ASSESSMENT REPORT 1989-07-28: CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN / REMEDIAL ACTION PLAN 1993-10-07: REQUEST FOR CLOSURE 1999-01-06: SITE ASSESSMENT REPORT

 Site:
 ECKDAHL WAREHOUSE CO

 Address:
 501 S ANDERSON ST

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 309 - about .8 mile NE of the subject

 Status:
 NRA

| Site: | ACTA NORTH - PERMANENT EXCLUSI |
|----------|--------------------------------------|
| Address: | 2047 S SANTA FE AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 310 - about .8 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | CLSD - Case Closed |

The case, 603724043, .

2002-11-21: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER

| Site: | ACTA NORTH - SANTA FE LIQUOR |
|----------|--------------------------------------|
| Address: | 2050 S SANTA FE AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 311 - about .8 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | CLSD - Case Closed |

The case, 99992907, .

2002-07-18: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER

Site:ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-009-SFGAddress:2056 S SANTA FE AVE,& 2058City:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:312 - about .8 mile S of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 603793555, .

Site:ACTA NORTH - TRINITY SPORTSAddress:2066 S SANTA FE AVECity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:313 - about .8 mile S of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 99992908, .

2002-07-18: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER

Site:DOMESTIC LINEN SUPPLYAddress:1600 S COMPTON AVECity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:314 - about .8 mile SW of the subjectStatus:--

The case, 03700646, .

OTHER GROUNDWATER (USES OTHER THAN DRINKING WATER)

1968-06-27: OTHER REPORT / DOCUMENT

1993-06-29: OTHER REPORT / DOCUMENT 1993-07-01: PRELIMINARY SITE ASSESSMENT REPORT 1993-07-01: TANK REMOVAL REPORT / UST SAMPLING REPORT 1995-07-27: CAP/RAP - FEASIBILITY STUDY REPORT 1996-01-24: TECHNICAL CORRESPONDENCE / ASSISTANCE / OTHER 2014-09-21: CLEAN UP FUND - CASE CLOSURE REVIEW SUMMARY REPORT (RSR) 2014-10-27: NOTIFICATION - PUBLIC NOTICE OF CASE CLOSURE

Site:ACTA NORTH- INDUSTRIAL MEDICAAddress:2112 S SANTA FE AVECity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:315 - about .8 mile S of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 603780270, .

2002-07-17: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER

Site:SHELL SERVICE STATIONAddress:1410 S SOTO STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:316 - about .8 mile SE of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 03753581, .

SOIL

2002-12-23: TANK REMOVAL REPORT / UST

SAMPLING REPORT 2009-03-16: SITE ASSESSMENT REPORT 2013-05-09: NOTICE OF VIOLATION - #20139 2014-04-02: NOTIFICATION - PUBLIC NOTICE OF CASE CLOSURE 2014-06-25: STATE WATER BOARD – CLOSURE ORDER 2014-11-17: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER - #11/6/2014

Site:ACTA- PARCERLS NE-038/039,NE-1Address:2426 E WASHINGTON BLVDCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:318 - about .8 mile S of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 603738391, .

2003-06-20: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER

Site: HOLLENBECK HOME TRUST Address: 573 S BOYLE AVE City: BOYLE HEIGHTS

 Page:
 50

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

320 - about .8 mile NE of the subject Map Loc: Status: CLSD - Case Closed The case, 03700835, . AQUIFER USED FOR DRINKING WATER SUPPLY Site: VACAN LOT/CTMC LLC 2455 E WASHINGTON BLVD Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 323 - about .9 mile S of the subject Status: - -The case, 000006072, . 2014-07-21: REFERRAL TO REGIONAL BOARD 2014-12-09: STAFF LETTER 2014-12-18: STAFF LETTER 2015-01-09: OTHER REPORT / DOCUMENT ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-019-SFG Site: Address: 2214 S SANTA FE AVE,& 2226 S LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 326 - about .9 mile S of the subject Status: CLSD - Case Closed The case, 603716817, . 2003-03-14: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER Site: ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-017/018 Address: 2214 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 326 - about .9 mile S of the subject Status: CLSD - Case Closed The case, 603706738, . 2003-05-19: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER Site: ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-017/018 Address: 2214 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 326 - about .9 mile S of the subject CLSD - Case Closed Status: The case, 603765975, . CENTRAL REPAIR YARD Site: Address: 2469 E WASHINGTON BLVD City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 327 - about .9 mile S of the subject Status: CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 03700644, .

SOIL

PACE ENTERPRISES Site: Address: 360 S ALAMEDA ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 328 - about .9 mile NW of the subject Status: NRA -Site: MOBIL #11-EKT Address: 909 S SOTO ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 330 - about .9 mile E of the subject Status: CLSD - Case Closed Drinking water/well is impacted. The case, 03700674, is managed by the Regional Water Quality Board. AQUIFER USED FOR DRINKING WATER SUPPLY 2003-01-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2003-01-17: * NO ACTION 2003-04-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2003-07-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2003-10-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2004-01-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2004-02-10: SOIL AND WATER INVESTIGATION WORKPLAN 2004-04-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2004-06-15: CAP/RAP - FEASIBILITY STUDY REPORT 2004-07-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2004-07-16[.] UNKNOWN 2004-10-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2005-01-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2005-04-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2005-07-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2005-08-10: INTERIM REMEDIAL ACTION PLAN 2005-10-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2005-10-31: SOIL AND WATER INVESTIGATION REPORT 2006-01-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2006-04-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2006-05-24: SOIL VAPOR EXTRACTION (SVE) 2006-07-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2006-10-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2007-01-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2007-04-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2007-07-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2007-10-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2008-01-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2008-04-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2008-07-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2008-08-13: SOIL AND WATER INVESTIGATION WORKPLAN 2008-10-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2008-12-18: SOIL AND WATER INVESTIGATION REPORT 2009-01-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2009-04-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2009-06-15: STAFF LETTER 2009-07-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2009-09-18: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER 2009-09-18: NOTIFICATION - PRECLOSURE MW01 active Monitoring well: lat/long: 34.034142/-118.2160656 depth to gw: 33 - 35.9 181 MG/L 2009-01-07 sample data: ALK 25.3 UG/L 2007-04-25 (max 1630 UG/L 2004-02-23) B7 BZME .63 UG/L 2007-11-12 (max 864 UG/L 2003-06-25) DIPE < 10 UG/L 2006-07-26 .52 UG/L 2007-11-12 (max 245 UG/L 2005-06-08) EBZ < 10 UG/L 2006-07-26 ETBE ETHANOL < 500 UG/L 2006-07-26 .139 MG/L 2008-10-14 (max 4.93 MG/L 2008-07-14) FE2 28.9 UG/L 2008-01-21 (max 17400 UG/L 2003-03-11) GRO GROC4C12 146 UG/L 2007-04-25 (max 2070 UG/L 2006-01-25)

 Page:
 52

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| | MTBE NO3N OXYGEN PHCG SO4 TAME TBA XYLENES XYLENES XYLENES1314 XYLO | 1.39 UG/L 2009-01-07 (max 73.3 UG/L 2003-11-24) 4.13 MG/L 2009-01-07 3.47 MG/L 2009-01-07 2300 UG/L 2006-07-26 (max 12600 UG/L 2003-11-24) 637 MG/L 2009-01-07 < 10 UG/L 2006-07-26 (max 120 UG/L 2006-04-26) .53 UG/L 2006-07-26 (max 2350 UG/L 2003-11-24) 48 UG/L 2002-09-23 53 UG/L 2002-09-23 |
|---|---|---|
| Monitoring well: lat/long: depth to gw: | MW02 active 34.034098/-118.216 35.33 - 35.94 | 1551 |
| Monitoring well: lat/long: depth to gw: sample data: | MW02 active 34.034098/-118.216 35.33 - 35.94 BZ BZME DIPE EBZ ETBE ETHANOL GRO MTBE PHCG TAME TBA XYLENES XYLENES1314 XYLO | 1551 1160 UG/L 2004-02-23 (max 3500 UG/L 2003-06-25) 532 UG/L 2004-02-23 (max 862 UG/L 2003-03-11) < 2 UG/L 2002-09-23 239 UG/L 2004-02-23 (max 455 UG/L 2003-06-25) < 2 UG/L 2002-09-23 < 100 UG/L 2002-09-23 12800 UG/L 2004-02-23 (max 12800 UG/L 2002-09-23) 4150 UG/L 2004-02-23 (max 12800 UG/L 2002-09-23) 4150 UG/L 2004-02-23 (max 4860 UG/L 2002-09-23) 3.4 UG/L 2004-02-23 (max 120 UG/L 2002-09-23) 506 UG/L 2004-02-23 (max 120 UG/L 2002-09-23) 506 UG/L 2004-02-23 (max 11 UG/L 2003-03-11) 1.1 UG/L 2002-09-23 (max 1.1 UG/L 2002-09-23) |
| Monitoring well: lat/long: depth to gw: | MW03 active 34.0341793/-118.21 31.11 - 35.93 | 61745 |
| Monitoring well: lat/long: depth to gw: sample data: | MW03 active 34.0341793/-118.21 31.11 - 35.93 ALK BZ BZME DIPE EBZ ETBE ETHANOL FE2 GRO GROC4C12 MTBE NO3N OXYGEN PHCG SO4 TAME TBA XYLENES XYLENES1314 XYLO | 61745 193 MG/L 2009-01-07 (max 244 MG/L 2008-07-14) 1.35 UG/L 2007-11-12 (max 5700 UG/L 2003-11-24) .53 UG/L 2007-11-12 (max 2440 UG/L 2002-12-18) < 2 UG/L 2006-10-25 (max 20 UG/L 2002-09-23) 1.02 UG/L 2006-10-25 (max 20 UG/L 2002-09-23) < 100 UG/L 2006-10-25 (max 1000 UG/L 2002-09-23) .107 MG/L 2008-01-0-25 (max 1000 UG/L 2002-09-23) .107 MG/L 2008-07-14 (max 100 MG/L 2002-12-18) 664 UG/L 2008-07-14 (max 12.1 UG/L 2003-11-24) 11.6 MG/L 2008-01-07 (max 12.1 UG/L 2003-11-24) 11.6 MG/L 2009-01-07 (max 11.8 MG/L 2008-10-14) 3.61 MG/L 2009-01-07 (max 20400 UG/L 2003-11-24) 230 UG/L 2006-10-25 (max 20 UG/L 2003-11-24) 231 MG/L 2009-01-07 (max 261 MG/L 2008-07-14) < 2 UG/L 2006-10-25 (max 20 UG/L 2002-09-23) < 10 UG/L 2006-10-25 (max 3350 UG/L 2003-11-24) 550 UG/L 2008-01-21 (max 3350 UG/L 2003-11-24) 550 UG/L 2002-09-23 310 UG/L 2002-09-23 |
| Monitoring well: lat/long: depth to gw: | MW04 active 34.0341793/-118.21 36.24 - 36.4 | 61745 |
| Monitoring well: lat/long: depth to gw: sample data: | MW04 active 34.0341793/-118.21 36.24 - 36.4 BZ BZME DIPE EBZ ETBE | 61745 1.4 UG/L 2004-02-23 (max 310 UG/L 2003-06-16) 1.4 UG/L 2003-11-24 < 1.1 UG/KG 2003-06-16 (max 1.4 UG/KG 2003-06-16) < 1.1 UG/KG 2003-06-16 < 1.1 UG/KG 2003-06-16 |

Page: 53 Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

ETHANOL < 530 UG/KG 2003-06-16 MTBE < 2.1 UG/KG 2003-06-16 (max 530 UG/KG 2003-06-16) PHCG 65.4 UG/L 2003-11-24 TAME < 1.1 UG/KG 2003-06-16 (max 65.4 UG/KG 2003-06-16) 5 UG/KG 2003-06-16 (max 21 UG/KG 2003-06-16) TBA XYLENES 1.8 UG/L 2003-11-24 XYLENES1314 < 2.1 UG/KG 2003-06-16 < 1.1 UG/KG 2003-06-16 (max 2.1 UG/KG 2003-06-16) XYLO Monitoring well: MW05 active 34.0339759/-118.2161162 lat/long: depth to gw: 33.16 - 37.48 Monitoring well: MW05 active 34.0339759/-118.2161162 lat/long: depth to gw: 33.16 - 37.48 sample data: ALK 243 MG/L 2009-01-07 (max 348 MG/L 2008-07-14) ΒZ .39 UG/L 2006-10-25 (max 243 UG/L 2006-04-26) BZME .48 UG/L 2008-04-14 (max 1 UG/L 2006-04-26) CH4 595 UG/L 2009-01-07 DIPE < 2 UG/L 2006-10-25 < 1 UG/L 2006-10-25 (max 2 UG/L 2006-04-26) EBZ < 2 UG/L 2006-10-25 FTBF ETHANOL < 100 UG/L 2006-10-25 FE2 9.04 MG/L 2009-01-07 (max 15.3 MG/L 2008-07-14) GRO 341 UG/L 2008-07-14 (max 459 UG/L 2008-04-14) .57 UG/L 2006-10-25 (max 1 UG/L 2006-04-26) MTBE NO3N 6.37 MG/L 2009-01-07 OXYGEN 5.34 MG/L 2009-01-07 .29 UG/L 2009-05-26 (max 5.34 UG/L 2009-05-26) PCE PHCG 61 UG/L 2006-10-25 (max 100 UG/L 2006-04-26) SO4 471 MG/L 2009-01-07 TAME < 2 UG/L 2006-10-25 36.8 UG/L 2008-01-21 TBA TCLME .57 UG/L 2009-05-26 (max 36.8 UG/L 2009-05-26) **XYLENES** .35 UG/L 2008-04-14 (max 1 UG/L 2006-04-26) MW06 active Monitoring well: 34.0340446/-118.21627 lat/long: depth to gw: 36.1 - 37.91 Monitoring well: MW06 active lat/long: 34.0340446/-118.21627 depth to gw: 36.1 - 37.91 sample data: ACE 13.2 UG/L 2009-05-26 ACTA NORTH - PRONTO MONEY Address: 2520 E WASHINGTON BLVD LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 331 - about .9 mile S of the subject Status: CLSD - Case Closed The case, 99992917, . 2002-08-29: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER ACTA NORTH - CJ FASHIONS Address: 2312 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 332 - about .9 mile S of the subject Status: CLSD - Case Closed The case, 99992910, . 2002-07-25: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-022-SFG

2320 S SANTA FE AVE Address:

Site:

City:

Site:

City:

Site:

 Page:
 54

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 333 - about .9 mile S of the subject Status: CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 603720851, .

2003-05-27: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER

| Site: | ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-024-SFG |
|----------|--------------------------------------|
| Address: | 2328 S SANTA FE AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 334 - about .9 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | CLSD - Case Closed |

The case, 603747743, .

2003-05-21: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER

| Site: | SHELL |
|----------|----------------------------------|
| Address: | 1541 S CENTRAL AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | - about .9 mile W of the subject |
| Status: | CLSD - Case Closed |
| | |

The case, 03700653, .

SOIL

Site:ACTA NORTH - K & K APPARELAddress:2300 S SANTA FE AVECity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:336 - about .9 mile S of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 99992909, .

2002-07-25: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER

Site:ACTA NORTH - PACEL NE - 040Address:2540 E WASHINGTON BLVD, EASTCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:337 - about .9 mile S of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 603770417, .

2003-03-07: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER

Site:IWP FACILITY - TRUCK SCALE AREAddress:2451 E 23RD STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:338 - about .9 mile S of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 603785102, .

2002-12-10: COMPLAINT

Site: ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE - 042 Address: 2451 E 23RD ST , EAST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 338 - about .9 mile S of the subject Status: CLSD - Case Closed The case, 603797227, . 2003-03-07: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER 2003-04-03: OTHER REPORT / DOCUMENT 2003-04-10: * NO ACTION Site: ACTA NORTH - PERMANENT EXCLUSI

Address: City: Map Loc: Status:

ACTA NORTH - PERMANENT EXCLUSI 2460 E 23RD ST LOS ANGELES 339 - about .9 mile S of the subject CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 99992916, .

2002-08-26: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER

| Site: | ACTA NORTH - COPIES & PAPER |
|----------|--------------------------------------|
| Address: | 2324 S SANTA FE AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 340 - about .9 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | CLSD - Case Closed |

The case, 99992911, .

2002-08-06: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER

Site:LINDA VISTA HOSPITALAddress:610 S ST LOUIS STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:342 - about .9 mile NE of the subjectStatus:CLSD - Case Closed

The case, 03792895, .

AQUIFER USED FOR DRINKING WATER SUPPLY

2000-12-12: STAFF LETTER 2004-04-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2004-07-15: MONITORING REPORT - QUARTERLY 2004-10-15: NOTIFICATION - PRECLOSURE 2004-10-29: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER 2005-01-14: UNKNOWN

 Site:
 EKCO METALS

 Address:
 1700
 PERRINO PL

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 348
 - about
 1. mile SE of the subject

 Status:
 ASSM - Site Assessment

The case, 43701699, .

 Site:
 EKCO METALS

 Address:
 1700 PERRINO PL

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 348 - about 1. mile SE of the subject

 Status:
 CLSD - Case Closed

The aquifer is potentially impacted. The case, 03700675, .

SOIL

SWIS Solid Waste Information System

Inspection:

MONTHLY

As legislated under the Solid Waste Management and Resource Recovery Act of 1972, the California Waste Management Board maintains lists of certain facilities, i.e. Active solid waste disposal sites, Inactive or Closed solid waste disposal sites and Transfer facilities.

This list has been researched within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

Site: **MISSION ROAD RECYCLING & TRANS** 840 S MISSION RD Address: LOS ANGELES (CITY) City: Map Loc: 157 - about .4 mile E of the subject Status: id: 19-AR-1183 Unit: 01 Activity: LARGE VOLUME TRANSFER/PROC FACILITY Status: ACTIVE (Operational) PERMITTED (Regulatory) Inspection: MONTHLY Waste: CONSTRUCTION/DEMOLITION, GREEN MATERIALS, MIXED MUNICIPAL PERMITDATE Permit Date: 500000 TONS/YEAR Capacity: WASTE MANAGEMENT INC - BRADLEY LF & MISS Operator: 9081 TUJUNGA AVENUE, 2ND FLOOR SUN VALLEY CA 818-7676180 WASTE MANAGEMENT INC - BRADLEY LF & MISS Owner: 9081 TUJUNGA AVENUE, 2ND FLOOR SUN VALLEY CA 818-7676180 Site: WTR MISSION RD RECYCLING/XFER Address: 840 S MISSION RD City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 157 - about .4 mile E of the subject Status: ACTIV - Active id: E 1200 TP ACTIVE Site: LOONEY BINS/DOWNTOWN DIVERSION 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD, BUILD #2 Address: City: LOS ANGELES (CITY) Map Loc: 177 - about .4 mile SE of the subject Status: id: 19-AR-1224 Unit: 01 Activity: LARGE VOL CDI DEBRIS PROC. FACILITY ACTIVE Status: (Operational) PERMITTED (Regulatory)

| | Waste: | CONSTRUCTION/DEMOLITION |
|---|--|---|
| | Permit Date: Capacity: Operator: | PERMITDATE 525000 TONS/YEAR LOONEY BINS, INC./DOWNTOWN DIVERSION INC 12153 MONTAGUE ST. PACOIMA CA |
| | Owner: | 818-4858341 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY 8315 CENTURY PARK CT., CP21E SAN DIEGO CA - |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | ANGELUS WI 2474 PORTE LOS ANGELE 179 - about | ESTERN PAPER FIBERS, ER ST ES (CITY) A nile SE of the subject |
| Status. | id: 19-AR-1185 | |
| | Unit: Activity: Status: | 01 LARGE VOLUME TRANSFER/PROC FACILITY ACTIVE (Operational) |
| | Inspection: | MONTHLY |
| | Waste: | MIXED MUNICIPAL |
| | Permit Date: Capacity: Operator: | PERMITDATE 700 TONS/DAY ANGELUS WESTERN PAPER FIBERS, INC. 2474 PORTER STREET LOS ANGELES CA |
| | Owner: | 213-6239221 BLOOM INVESTMENT 30 PROSPECT DRIVE PIEDMONT CA 510-2541500 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | SAND BAGGI 649 S ANDER LOS ANGELE 292 - about | ER TIRE 2 SON ST S 6 mile NE of the subject |
| Status: | id: 19-TI-1160 | |
| | Unit: Activity: Status: | 01 TIRE DEALER ACTIVE (Operational) EXCLUDED (Regulatory) |
| | Inspection: | NONE |
| | Waste: Tires: | TIRES, PASSENGER 3500 3/24/00 3500 3/24/00Operator: SAND BAGGER TIRES 2 649 SOUTH ANDERSON LOS ANGELES CA 323-2654662 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | CALTRANS-7 1740 E 15TH LOS ANGELE 297 - about | ALAMEDA MAINTENANCE ST S (CITY) 7 mile SW of the subject |
| Claius. | id: 19-AR-1245 | |

Site: Laidlaw/Washington Blvd. Close Address: 1950 E WASHINGTON BLVD

 Page:
 58

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELE 319 - about CLSD - Closed | S .8 mile SW of the subject | |
|---|--|--|-------------------|
| | id: 19-CR-5501 | | |
| | Unit: Activity: Status: Inspection: | 01 SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SIT CLOSED (Operational) UNPERMITTED (Regulatory) NONE | Ē |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | LA CITY WAS 1950 E WASH LOS ANGELE 319 - about | HINGTON BLVD IINGTON BLVD S .8 mile SW of the subject | |
| Status: | id: 19-AA-5501 | | |
| | Unit: Activity: Status: | 01 SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SIT CLOSED (Operational) | ТЕ topu) |
| | Inspection: | QUARTERLY | lory) |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | LAIDLAW/WA 1950 E WASH LOS ANGELE 319 - about | SHINGTON BLVD. CLOSE IINGTON BLVD S (CITY) .8 mile S of the subject | 5 |
| Status. | id: 19-AR-5501 | | |
| | Unit: Activity: Status: | 01 SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SIT CLOSED (Operational) UNPERMITTED | E (Regulatory) |
| | Inspection: | QUARTERLY | |
| | Permit Date: | PERMITDATE | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | AGEN TRANS 2620 E WASH LOS ANGELE 346 - about PLND - Planned | SFER & RECYCLING CEN INGTON BLVD S 1. mile SE of the subject | Т |
| | id: 19-AR-1184 | | |
| | Unit: Activity: Status: | 01 LARGE VOLUME TRANSFER/ PLANNED (Operational) | PROC FACILITY |
| | Inspection: | NONE | |

WIP Well Investigation Program

The Well Investigation Program (AB1803) identifies groundwater that is already contaminated and empowers the California Department of Health Services and local health officers to order ongoing monitoring programs. The focus of this program is to monitor and protect drinking water.

No listings within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

WQ Drinking Water Program

The California Health and Safety Code section 116275-116300 stipulates that it is the intent of the Legislature to improve laws governing drinking water quality to improve upon the minimum requirements of the federal Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1986, to establish primary drinking water standards that are at least as stringent as those established under the federal Safe Drinking Water Act, and to establish a program under this chapter that is more protective of public health than the minimum federal requirements.

In order to provide for the orderly and efficient delivery of safe drinking water the State Department of Health Services collect information on the quality of public drinking water wells under the California Drinking Program.

Below, the latest and maximum analysis of contaminants are reported (only positive reading are included). MCL is the Maximum Contaminant Level or enforceable drinking water standard. RPHL is the Recommended Public Health Level. Additional information is available upon request.

No listings within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

REGIONAL SOURCES

NT Toxic Releases

The California Regional Water Quality Control Boards or local Department of Health Services keeps track of toxic releases to the environment. These lists are known as Unauthorized Releases, Spill, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanups (SLIC), Non-Tank Releases, Toxics List or similar, depending on the local agency.

This list has been researched within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

| Site: | SUN CHEMICAL CORP |
|---------------------|---|
| Address: | 590 S SANTA FE AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: Status: | 237 - about .5 mile N of the subject INACT - Inactive |

id: SL0002048C00

000

Site:SUN CHEMICAL CORPAddress:590 S SANTA FE AVECity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:237 - about .5 mile N of the subjectStatus:ASSM - Site Assessment

id: SL204761666 , substance: PET, VOC

000 19

Site:BASF INMONT/SUN CHEMICALAddress:590 S SANTA FE AVECity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:237 - about .5 mile N of the subjectStatus:1 - Leak being confirmed.

id: 4-441 , substance: VOCS

 Page:
 60

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

BASF INMONT/SUN CHEMICAL Site: Address: 590 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 237 - about .5 mile N of the subject Status: ASSM - Site Assessment id: T0603700541 04 900130034 000 9 A Site: SUN CHEMICAL CORP Address: 590 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 237 - about .5 mile N of the subject Status: **INACT** - Inactive id: SL2048C1697, substance: PET, VOC 000 DT Site: ZIMMERMAN DEVELOPMENT INC Address: 560 S ALAMEDA ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 294 - about .6 mile NW of the subject Status: CLSD - Case Closed id: SL2046K1651 000 Site: ACTA NORTH - LA PRINT WORKSITE Address: 1960 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 295 - about .6 mile S of the subject CLSD - Case Closed Status: id: SL0603763452 0001 2002-12-18: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER Site: ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-004-SFG 2000 S SANTA FE AVE Address: LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 296 - about .7 mile S of the subject Status: CLSD - Case Closed id: SL0603749698 0001 2003-05-16: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER Site: ACTA NORTH - MACCARTHY CO. Address: 2010 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 298 - about .7 mile S of the subject Status: CLSD - Case Closed id: SL0603724740 0001 2002-11-04: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER Site: ACTA NORTH - TRIM CONNECTOR Address: 2018 S SANTA FE AVE

City: LOS ANGELES

2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;20 16 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL
 Page:
 61

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

Map Loc: 302 - about .7 mile S of the subject Status: CLSD - Case Closed id: SI 599992906 0001 2002-07-18: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER Site: ACTA NORTH- SMILE KNIT FACILIT Address: 2026 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 305 - about .7 mile S of the subject Status: CLSD - Case Closed id: SL0603716167 0001 2002-06-06: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER Site: ACTA NORTH - PERMANENT EXCLUSI Address: 2047 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES 310 - about .8 mile S of the subject Map Loc: Status: CLSD - Case Closed id: SL0603724043 0001 2002-11-21: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER Site: ACTA NORTH - SANTA FE LIQUOR Address: 2050 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 311 - about .8 mile S of the subject Status: CLSD - Case Closed id: SL599992907 0001 2002-07-18: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER Site: ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-009-SFG Address: 2056 S SANTA FE AVE, 2058 City: LOS ANGELES 312 - about .8 mile S of the subject Map Loc: Status: CLSD - Case Closed id: SL0603793555 000 ACTA NORTH - TRINITY SPORTS Site: Address: 2066 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES 313 - about .8 mile S of the subject Map Loc: Status: CLSD - Case Closed id: SL599992908 0001 2002-07-18: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER ACTA NORTH- INDUSTRIAL MEDICA Site: Address: 2112 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 315 - about .8 mile S of the subject Status: CLSD - Case Closed id: SL0603780270 0001 2002-07-17: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ACTA- PARCERLS NE-038/039,NE-1 2426 E WASHINGTON BLVD LOS ANGELES 318 - about .8 mile S of the subject CLSD - Case Closed |
|---|--|
| | id: SL0603738391 |
| | 0001 2003-06-20: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-019-SFG 2214 S SANTA FE AVE, 2226 LOS ANGELES 326 - about .9 mile S of the subject CLSD - Case Closed |
| | id: SL0603716817 |
| | 0001 2003-03-14: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-017/018 2214 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 326 - about .9 mile S of the subject CLSD - Case Closed |
| | id: SL0603706738 |
| | 0001 2003-05-19: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-017/018 2214 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 326 - about .9 mile S of the subject CLSD - Case Closed |
| | id: SL0603765975 |
| | 000 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | FORMER ACE PLATING 719 S TOWNE AVE LOS ANGELES 329 - about .9 mile NW of the subject ASSM - Site Assessment |
| | id: T1000004814 |
| | 0001 2013-08-30: STAFF LETTER 2013-12-10: CORRESPONDENCE 2014-01-06: STAFF LETTER |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ACTA NORTH - CJ FASHIONS 2312 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 332 - about .9 mile S of the subject CLSD - Case Closed |
| | id: SL599992910 |
| | 0001 2002-07-25: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-022-SFG 2320 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 333 - about .9 mile S of the subject |

| Status: | CLSD - Case Closed |
|---|--|
| | id: SL0603720851 |
| | 0001 2003-05-27: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE-024-SFG 2328 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 334 - about .9 mile S of the subject CLSD - Case Closed |
| | id: SL0603747743 |
| | 0001 2003-05-21: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ACTA NORTH - K & K APPAREL 2300 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 336 - about .9 mile S of the subject CLSD - Case Closed |
| | id: SL599992909 |
| | 0001 2002-07-25: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ALAMEDA CORRIDOR - L.A. RIVER 2540 E WASHINGTON BLVD LOS ANGELES 337 - about .9 mile S of the subject 2 |
| | |
| | id: 4-0747 , substance: TPH/VOC/METAL |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | id: 4-0747 , substance: TPH/VOC/METAL IWP FACILITY 2451 E 23RD ST LOS ANGELES 338 - about .9 mile S of the subject 1 - Leak being confirmed. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | id: 4-0747 , substance: TPH/VOC/METAL IWP FACILITY 2451 E 23RD ST LOS ANGELES 338 - about .9 mile S of the subject 1 - Leak being confirmed. id: 4-0968 , substance: VOC, TPH. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | id: 4-0747 , substance: TPH/VOC/METAL IWP FACILITY 2451 E 23RD ST LOS ANGELES 338 - about .9 mile S of the subject 1 - Leak being confirmed. id: 4-0968 , substance: VOC, TPH. IWP FACILITY - FORMER TRUCK SC 2451 E 23RD ST LOS ANGELES 338 - about .9 mile S of the subject CLSD - Case Closed |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | id: 4-0747 , substance: TPH/VOC/METAL IWP FACILITY 2451 E 23RD ST LOS ANGELES 338 - about .9 mile S of the subject 1 - Leak being confirmed. id: 4-0968 , substance: VOC, TPH. IWP FACILITY - FORMER TRUCK SC 2451 E 23RD ST LOS ANGELES 338 - about .9 mile S of the subject CLSD - Case Closed id: SL204DP |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | id: 4-0747 , substance: TPH/VOC/METAL IWP FACILITY 2451 E 23RD ST LOS ANGELES 338 - about .9 mile S of the subject 1 - Leak being confirmed. id: 4-0968 , substance: VOC, TPH. IWP FACILITY - FORMER TRUCK SC 2451 E 23RD ST LOS ANGELES 338 - about .9 mile S of the subject CLSD - Case Closed id: SL204DP 000 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Sitatus: | id: 4-0747 , substance: TPH/VOC/METAL IWP FACILITY 2451 E 23RD ST LOS ANGELES 338 - about .9 mile S of the subject 1 - Leak being confirmed. id: 4-0968 , substance: VOC, TPH. IWP FACILITY - FORMER TRUCK SC 2451 E 23RD ST LOS ANGELES 338 - about .9 mile S of the subject CLSD - Case Closed id: SL204DP 000 ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE - 042 2451 E 23RD ST LOS ANGELES 338 - about .9 mile S of the subject CLSD - Case Closed |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | id: 4-0747 , substance: TPH/VOC/METAL IWP FACILITY 2451 E 23RD ST LOS ANGELES 338 - about .9 mile S of the subject 1 - Leak being confirmed. id: 4-0968 , substance: VOC, TPH. IWP FACILITY - FORMER TRUCK SC 2451 E 23RD ST LOS ANGELES 338 - about .9 mile S of the subject CLSD - Case Closed id: SL204DP 000 ACTA NORTH - PARCEL NE - 042 2451 E 23RD ST LOS ANGELES 338 - about .9 mile S of the subject CLSD - Case Closed id: SL0603797227 |

0001 2003-03-07: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER 2003-04-03: OTHER REPORT / DOCUMENT 2003-04-10: 2* NO ACTION

 Page:
 64

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

IWP FACILITY - FORMER TRUCK SC Site: Address: 2451 E 23RD ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 338 - about .9 mile S of the subject Status: 9 - Case Closed. id: SL204DP , substance: PET Site: IWP FACILITY - FORMER TRUCK SC Address: 2451 E 23RD ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 338 - about .9 mile S of the subject Status: 9 - Case Closed. id: SL204DP , substance: PET Site: **ACTA NORTH - PERMANENT EXCLUSI** Address: 2460 E 23RD ST City: LOS ANGELES 339 - about .9 mile S of the subject Map Loc: Status: CLSD - Case Closed id: SL599992916 0001 2002-08-26: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER Site: ACTA NORTH - COPIES & PAPER Address: 2324 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 340 - about .9 mile S of the subject Status: CLSD - Case Closed id: SL599992911 0001 2002-08-06: CLOSURE/NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER Site: EQUILLON BULK FUEL DISTRIBUTIO 2015 LONG BEACH AVE Address: LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 347 - about 1. mile SW of the subject Status: 1 - Leak being confirmed. id: 4-1002 , substance: TPH/BTEX **EKCO METALS** Site: 1700 PERRINO PL Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 348 - about 1. mile SE of the subject Status: 1 - Leak being confirmed. id: 4-1069 , substance: TPH, VOCS, PCBS Site: EKCO METALS 1700 PERRINO PL Address:

City:

Status:

LOS ANGELES

INACT - Inactive

Map Loc: 348 - about 1. mile SE of the subject

id: SLT43701699

000

LD Land Disposal Sites

The Land Disposal program managed by the State Water Control Board, regulates the waste discharge to land for treatment, storage and disposal in waste management units. Waste management units include waste piles, surface impoundments, and landfills. California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 23, (Chapter 15) contains the regulatory requirements for hazardous waste. CCR Title 27, contains the regulatory requirements for wastes other than hazardous waste.

This list has been researched within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

| Site: | THE CALIFORNIA ENDOWMENT |
|----------|---------------------------------------|
| Address: | 1000 S ALAMEDA ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 187 - about .4 mile SW of the subject |
| Status: | CLSD - Case Closed |

id: L10009031380

000

| Site: | NORTHEAST EAST INTER. SEWER |
|----------|---------------------------------------|
| Address: | MISSION & JESSE AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 233 - about .5 mile NE of the subject |
| Status: | CLSD - Case Closed |

id: L10009158058

000

| Site: | NOS-ECIS PROJECT |
|----------|---------------------------------------|
| Address: | MISSION & JESSE AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 233 - about .5 mile NE of the subject |
| Status: | CLSD - Case Closed |
| | |

id: L10001809954

000

TPC Toxic Pits

The Toxic Pits Clean-Up Act (Katz Bill) places strict limitations on the discharge of liquid hazardous wastes into surface impoundment, toxic ponds, pits and lagoons. Regional Water Quality Control Boards are required to inspect all surface impoundment annually, in addition, every facility was required to file a Hydrogeological Assessment Report. Recent legislation allows the Department of Health Services to exempt facilities that

closed on or before December 31, 1985, if a showing is made that no significant environmental risk remains (AB1046).

Special exemption provisions have been created for surface impoundment that receive mining wastes.

No listings within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

SWAT Solid Waste Assessment Test - Regional

This program, provided for under the Calderon legislation (Section 13273 of the Water Code), requires that disposal sites with more than 50,000 cubic yards of waste provide sufficient information to the regional water quality control board to determine whether or not the site has discharged hazardous substances which will impact the environment.

Site operators are required to file Solid Waste Assessment Test reports on a staggered basis. Operators of the 150 highest ranking (Rank 1) sites were required to submit Solid Waste Assessment Tests by July 1, 1987, Rank 2 in 1988 and so on.

Operators submit water quality tests to the Regional Water Quality Control Board, describing surface and groundwater quality and supply; and the geology within 1 mile of the site. Air quality tests are submitted to the local Air Quality Management District or Air Pollution Control District.

This program is currently not funded and thus not updated.

Status Codes: Facilities or sites are ranked within each region on a scale 1-15 according to priority.

This list has been researched within 1 mile radius of the subject site.

| Site: | 7TH ST & ANDERSON ST DUMP-L A |
|----------|---------------------------------------|
| Address: | 7TH ST & ANDERSON |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 283 - about .6 mile NE of the subject |
| Status: | 6 - Case Reopened |

6

Site:LA CITY-WASHINGTON BLVD LANDFIAddress:1919 E WASHINGTON BLVDCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:321 - about .8 mile SW of the subjectStatus:

OPERATING PERMITS

Various agencies issue operating permits or regulate the handling, movements, storage and disposal of hazardous materials and require mandatory reporting. The inclusion in this section does not imply that an environmental problem exists presently or has in the past.

RCRA-G Resource Conservation and Recovery Information System - Generators

The Environmental Protection Agency regulates generators of hazardous material through the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). All hazardous waste generators are required to notify EPA of their existence by submitting the Federal Notification of Regulated Waste Activity Form (EPA Form 8700-12) or a state equivalent form. The notification form provides basic identification information and specific waste activities.

Status Codes: L - Generators who generate at least 1000 kg/mo of non-acutely hazardous waste

- (or 1 kg/mo of acutely hazardous waste).
- S Generators who generate 100 kg/mo but less than 1000 kg/mo of non-acutely haz waste.
- T Transporter.

This list has been researched within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | JM BUS BODY REPAIR 2026 BAY ST LOS ANGELES 3 - about .0 mile E of the subject S - Small Generator |
|---|---|
| | Permit id#: CAD982368672 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Activities at this facility include: AUTOMOTIVE BODY, PAINT, AND INTERIOR REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | T A GREENE CO INC 1100 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 6 - about .0 mile S of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD982487464 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Activities at this facility include: COMMERCIAL, INDUSTRIAL, AND INSTITUTIONAL ELECTRIC LIGHTING FIXTURE MANUFACTURING |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | GOLDEN PLATING INC 930 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 7 - about .0 mile N of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD139410401 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Activities at this facility include: ELECTROPLATING, PLATING, POLISHING, ANODIZING, AND COLORING On 08/13/1990 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by EPA. A violation was discovered on 08/13/1990 of LDR - General. On 08/01/1991 written informal was issued. On 08/13/1990 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by EPA. A violation was discovered on 08/13/1990 of LDR - General. On 01/18/1991 written informal was issued. On 08/13/1990 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by EPA. A violation was discovered on 08/13/1990 of RCRA regulations. On 08/01/1991 written informal was issued. On 08/13/1990 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by EPA. A violation was discovered on 08/13/1990 of RCRA regulations. On 08/01/1991 written informal was issued. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ATLANTIC CHEM CORP 2030 SACRAMENTO ST LOS ANGELES 8 - about 7. mile SE of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD000819623 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. |
| | |

 Page:
 68

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | MEDIA LITHOGRAPHICS INC 2036 SACRAMENTO ST LOS ANGELES 9 - about .0 mile SE of the subject S - Small Generator |
|---|--|
| | Permit id#: CAD982467631 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Activities at this facility include: PRINTING |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | REZEX CORP 1901 SACRAMENTO ST LOS ANGELES 21 - about .1 mile SW of the subject Permit id#: CAD982005571 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | THEATRICAL CREATIONS INC 1005 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 24 - about .1 mile E of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD008499352 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | AMERICIAN PRODUCE 826 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 30 - about .1 mile N of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD981967300 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ALBEE COLLECTION 1109 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 38 - about .1 mile SE of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CA0000341461 |
| | Acknowledge date 09/23/1994. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ZULA PRODUCTION 2123 BAY ST LOS ANGELES 40 - about .1 mile E of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CA0000198903 |
| | Acknowledge date 07/08/1994. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | LOS ANGELES IMPRINTS 1201 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 43 - about .1 mile SE of the subject |

Page: 69 Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

Status: S - Small Generator

Permit id#: CAR000098418

Site:J AND J AUTO REPAIRAddress:1127 S SANTA FE AVECity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:44 - about .1 mile SE of the subjectStatus:S - Small Generator

Permit id#: CAD983660986

Acknowledge date 03/11/1993.

Site:P M DESIGNSAddress:1218 S SANTA FE AVECity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:47 - about .1 mile SE of the subjectStatus:S - Small Generator

Permit id#: CAR000091256

Site: CARLOS Y RAMON Address: 2222 DAMON ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 56 - about .2 mile S of the subject Status: Permit id#: CAD982415077

Site: WOLFE CREATIONS OF CAL, INC Address: 2433 E 8TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 67 - about .2 mile SE of the subject Status: Permit id#: CAD008312563

 Site:
 LOS ANGELES USD METROPOLITAN H

 Address:
 727 S WILSON ST

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 76 - about .2 mile NW of the subject

 Status:
 S - Small Generator

Permit id#: CAD982022568

Acknowledge date 03/31/1991.

Site:LOS ANGELES TIMES COMMUNICATIOAddress:2000 E 8TH STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:78 - about .2 mile W of the subjectStatus:L - Large Generator

Permit id#: CAD983637471

Acknowledge date 08/16/2000. Activities at this facility include: NEWSPAPER PUBLISHERS

Site: NATIONAL RESOURCES INC

2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;20 16 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL

2450 E 8TH ST

Address:

Page: 70 Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

City: LOS ANGELES 80 - about .2 mile SE of the subject Map Loc: Status: Permit id#: CAD981430036 Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Site: ADECO Address: 676 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 93 - about .2 mile N of the subject Status: Permit id#: CAD028453231 Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Site: YUN CHO PRINTING Address: 1371 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 101 - about .2 mile SE of the subject Status: S - Small Generator Permit id#: CA0000148874 Acknowledge date 07/08/1994. Site: MISSION FURNITURE MFG CO. Address: 673 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 103 - about .2 mile N of the subject Status: Permit id#: CAD981400385 Site: A E P IND Address: 2222 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 119 - about .3 mile S of the subject Status: Permit id#: CA0000245829 Site: A E P INDUSTRIES Address: 2222 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 119 - about .3 mile S of the subject Status: S - Small Generator Permit id#: CAD981368491 Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Activities at this facility include: COATED PAPER BAG AND POUCH MANUFACTURING Site: POUR LE BEBE Address: 2222 E OLYMPIC BLVD City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 119 - about .3 mile S of the subject Status: S - Small Generator Permit id#: CAD008309916

Acknowledge date 05/13/1993.

71 Page: Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

| | Activities at this facility include: CUT AND SEW APPAREL MANUFACTURING |
|---|--|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | TEAM SPORTS WEAR 1503 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 124 - about .3 mile SE of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD983668641 |
| | Acknowledge date 09/08/1993. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | PENSKE TRUCK LEASING CO LP 2300 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 125 - about .3 mile S of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD981974041 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Activities at this facility include: TRUCK, UTILITY TRAILER, AND RV (RECREATIONAL VEHICLE) RENTAL AND LEASING |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | MISSION FURNITURE MFG CO# 652 S IMPERIAL ST LOS ANGELES 126 - about .3 mile N of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD009546052 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Activities at this facility include: NONUPHOLSTERED WOOD HOUSEHOLD FURNITURE MANUFACTURING |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | MARTIN METALS INC 1321 S WILSON ST LOS ANGELES 133 - about .3 mile SW of the subject |
| | Permit id#: CAD008377129 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. On 11/21/1991 a focused compliance inspection of converted from v2 rcrainfo was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 07/21/1992 of TSD - General Facility Standards. On 07/21/1992 final 3008(a) compliance order was issued. On 11/21/1991 a focused compliance inspection of converted from v2 rcrainfo was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 03/27/1992 of TSD - General Facility Standards. On 07/21/1992 final 3008(a) compliance order was issued. On 07/21/1993 a follow-up inspection was performed by the State. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ARROW ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS |
| | 1331 S WILSON ST LOS ANGELES 134 - about .3 mile SW of the subject |
| | Permit id#: CAR000099150 |
| | This facility is a transporter, used oil transporter. Activities at this facility include: SPECIALIZED FREIGHT (EXCEPT USED GOODS) TRUCKING, LOCAL |
| Site: | E G SMITH CONSTRUCTION PRD INC |

1333 S WILSON ST Address:
| City: Map Loc: | LOS ANGELES 135 - about .3 mile SW of the subject |
|---|--|
| Status: | Permit id#: CAD981569213 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ALAMEDA LA MGP SITE 725 S CHANNING ST LOS ANGELES 136 - about .3 mile NW of the subject L - Large Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAR000177840 |
| | Activities at this facility include: REMEDIATION SERVICES |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | GREYHOUND LINES INC 1614 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 138 - about .3 mile NW of the subject L - Large Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD981439342 |
| | Acknowledge date 10/12/1999. Activities at this facility include: Activities at this facility include: Activities at this facility include: CHARTER BUS INDUSTRY INTERURBAN AND RURAL BUS TRANSPORTATION OTHER SUPPORT ACTIVITIES FOR ROAD TRANSPORTATION |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ARROW RECYCLING SOLUTIONS INC 1333 WILSON ST LOS ANGELES 148 - about .3 mile SW of the subject Permit id#: CAR000050161 This facility is a transporter.Acknowledge date 10/29/1999. Activities at this facility include: SPECIALIZED FREIGHT (EXCEPT USED GOODS) TRUCKING, LOCAL On 03/24/2006 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 03/24/2006 of Transporters - Manifest and Recordkeeping. On 03/30/2006 written informal was issued. On 03/24/2006 of Transporters - General. On 03/30/2006 written informal was issued. On 03/24/2006 of Transporters - General. On 03/30/2006 written informal was issued. On 03/24/2006 of Transporters - Manifest and Recordkeeping. On 03/01/2006 single site ca/fo was issued. On 03/24/2006 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 03/24/2006 of Transporters - Manifest and Recordkeeping. On 03/01/2006 written informal was issued. On 03/24/2006 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 03/24/2006 of Transporters - Manifest and Recordkeeping. On 03/01/2006 written informal was issued. On 03/24/2006 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 03/24/2006 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 03/24/2006 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 03/24/2006 of Transporters - Pre-transport. On 10/18/2011 written informal was issued. On 10/18/2011 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 10/18/2011 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 10/18/2011 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 10/18/2011 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed |
| | Un 10/18/2011 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 10/18/2011 of State Statute or Regulation. On 10/18/2011 written informal was issued. |

On 10/18/2011 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 10/18/2011 of Transporters - General. On 10/18/2011 written informal was issued. On 03/24/2006 a significant non-complier was performed by the State.

On 10/18/2011 a significant non-complier was performed by the State. On 08/10/2006 a not a significant non-complier was performed by the State. On 04/05/2012 a not a significant non-complier was performed by the State.

Site:LA 7Address:2172City:LOSMap Loc:153Status:L - La

LA 7TH ST CONSOLIDATED FAC 2172 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 153 - about .4 mile NE of the subject L - Large Generator

Permit id#: CAD981962699

Acknowledge date 03/31/1991.

 Site:
 LA SOUTH CENTRAL

 Address:
 2172 E 7TH ST

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 153 - about .4 mile NE of the subject

 Status:
 L - Large Generator

Permit id#: CAD981692619

Activities at this facility include: Activities at this facility include: COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT (EXCEOTHER AUTOMOTIVE MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE PT AUTOMOTIVE AND ELECTRONIC) REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE

 Site:
 SHELL OIL CO

 Address:
 1520 S SANTA FE AVE

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 154 - about .3 mile SE of the subject

 Status:
 S - Small Generator

Permit id#: CAD981406101

Acknowledge date 07/21/1998.

Site:WASTE TRANSFER AND RECYCLINGAddress:840 S MISSION RDCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:157 - about .4 mile E of the subjectStatus:S - Small Generator

Permit id#: CAD983650953

Acknowledge date 02/16/1993. Activities at this facility include: SOLID WASTE COLLECTION

 Site:
 MACK TRUCKS INC

 Address:
 2340 E OLYMPIC BLVD

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 162 - about .4 mile S of the subject

 Status:
 S - Small Generator

Permit id#: CAD981655582

Acknowledge date 07/16/1992.

Site: SPIRIT ACTIVEWEAR INC Address: 2150 E 10TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 167 - about .4 mile S of the subject Status: Permit id#: CAR000087403 Acknowledge date 01/01/0001.

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | LOS ANGELES TIMES 1321 WHOLESALE ST LOS ANGELES 168 - about .4 mile NW of the subject |
|---|---|
| Status: | Permit id#: CAD982500860 |
| | Acknowledge date 09/23/1994. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO - O 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 177 - about .4 mile SE of the subject L - Large Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD981422017 |
| | Activities at this facility include: Activities at this facility include: Activities at this facility include: ELECTRIC BULK POWER TRANSMISSION AND CONTROL NATURAL GAS DISTRIBUTION On 02/23/1996 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. On 02/09/2004 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by a State contractor. On 09/13/2011 a financial record review was performed by EPA. On 02/09/2001 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. On 02/09/2001 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. On 02/09/2001 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. On 02/21/2001 a financial record review was performed by the State. On 02/21/2003 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. On 02/03/2004 a financial record review was performed by the State. On 02/20/2006 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. On 06/12/2006 a financial record review was performed by the State. On 06/12/2006 a financial record review was performed by the State. On 06/12/2006 a financial record review was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 06/12/2006 of TSD - Financial Requirements. On 06/13/2006 written informal was issued. On 10/29/2007 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. On 10/31/2007 a financial record review was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 10/31/2007 of TSD - Financial Requirements. On 06/13/2006 written informal was issued. On 10/31/2007 a financial record review was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 10/31/2007 of TSD - Financial Requirements. On 11/01/2007 written informal was issued. On 09/16/2008 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. On 10/06/2008 a financial record review was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 10/06/2008 of State Statute or Regulation. On 10/07/2008 written informal was |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES FIRE STA 17 1601 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 178 - about .4 mile S of the subject Permit id#: CAD981690209 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ALL NU ICE CO INC 1549 INDUSTRIAL ST LOS ANGELES 183 - about .4 mile NW of the subject Permit id#: CAD980888572 Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | 7TH STREET CONSOLIDATED FACILI 2222 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 186 - about .4 mile NE of the subject |

| Status: | L - Large Generator |
|---|---|
| | Permit id#: CAD981692379 |
| | Activities at this facility include: Activities at this facility include: AUTOMOTIVE BODY, PAINT, AND INTERIOR REPAIR AND MAINTENGENERAL AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR ANCE |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | 7TH STREET CONSOLIDATED FACILI 2222 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 186 - about .4 mile NE of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAR000140434 |
| | Activities at this facility include: Activities at this facility include: Activities at this facility include: AUTOMOTIVE BODY, PAINT, INTERIOR, AND GLASS REPAIR EDUCATIONAL SUPPORT SERVICES GENERAL AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | E C I PRINTING 747 WAREHOUSE ST LOS ANGELES 189 - about .4 mile W of the subject S - Small Generator Permit id#: CAB000088963 |
| | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | L N COLOR 1381 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 190 - about .4 mile N of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD983638636 |
| | Acknowledge date 07/16/1992. Activities at this facility include: PHOTOFINISHING |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | VOLKSWORKS 1448 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 192 - about .4 mile N of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD982050726 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | UNION CENTRAL COLD STORAGE INC 1525 INDUSTRIAL ST LOS ANGELES 193 - about .4 mile NW of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD981583891 |

Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Activities at this facility include: REFRIGERATED WAREHOUSING AND STORAGE

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | U S BRASS 1350 ELWOOD ST LOS ANGELES 195 - about .4 mile SW of the subject S - Small Generator |
|---|---|
| | Permit id#: CAT080012545 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Activities at this facility include: PLUMBING AND HEATING EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES (HYDRONICS) WHOLESALERS |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | H & H OLYMPIC SERVICE 1800 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 196 - about .4 mile SW of the subject |
| Olalus. | Permit id#: CAD982052854 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | UNOCAL SVC STA #0152 1800 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 196 - about .4 mile SW of the subject Permit id#: CAD981646607 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | BUTLER WASH RACK 1367 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 197 - about .4 mile NW of the subject Permit id#: CAD981172547 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | QUEMETCO INC 2182 E 11TH ST LOS ANGELES 202 - about .4 mile S of the subject S - Small Generator Permit id#: CAR000066969 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | BASF WYANDOTTE METROPOL DIST 1366 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 203 - about .4 mile N of the subject |
| | Permit id#: CAT080029861 |
| | Acknowledge date 10/18/1999. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | AD ART CO 1427 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 205 - about .4 mile N of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD067754929 2Acknowledge date 02/16/1993. |

| | Acknowledge date 02/16/1993. Activities at this facility include: Activities at this facility include: INDUSTRIAL DESIGN SERVICES SIGN MANUFACTURING |
|---|--|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | METROPOLITAN DISTRIBUTION CTRS 1340 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 207 - about .4 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | Permit id#: CAD006814370 |
| | This facility is a transporter. Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | COAST LIGHTING 1359 CHANNING ST LOS ANGELES 216 - about .4 mile SW of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD981643034 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LA ST MAINT STORAGE YARD 1451 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 217 - about .4 mile N of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD981988322 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | AMERICAN PRESIDENT LINES LTD 1301 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 218 - about .4 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | Permit id#: CAR000013243 |
| | Acknowledge date 09/10/1996. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | NADELL AND CO INC 1313 E 6TH ST, ST LOS ANGELES 220 - about .4 mile NW of the subject T - Transporter |
| | Permit id#: CAD047456678 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ENVIRONMENTAL TRANSLOADING SVC 654 S MYERS ST LOS ANGELES 226 - about .4 mile NE of the subject Permit id#: CAD020763751 |
| | This facility is a transporter. Acknowledge date 05/02/1997. |

On 06/26/1998 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 06/28/1998 of Transporters - General. On 06/28/1998 written informal was issued. On 01/28/2000 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 01/28/2000 of Transporters - Manifest and Recordkeeping. On 01/28/2000 written informal was issued. Site: OLYMPIC PLATING AND POLIS Address: 843 S NAOMI AVE City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 227 - about .5 mile W of the subject Status: S - Small Generator Permit id#: CAD008253205 Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Activities at this facility include: Activities at this facility include: FABRICATED PIPE AND PIPE FITTING MANUFACTURING INSTITUTIONAL FURNITURE MANUFACTURING On 03/31/1981 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by EPA. Site: **J&J DIESEL** 919 MC GARRY ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 228 - about .5 mile SW of the subject Status: S - Small Generator Permit id#: CAD981634629 Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Site: WINTER & BAIN, INC Address: 1410 ELWOOD ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 229 - about .5 mile SW of the subject Status: Permit id#: CAD008315145 Site: ACME DIE CUTTING SERVICE 581 MATEO ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 231 - about .5 mile N of the subject Status: S - Small Generator Permit id#: CAD054836523 Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Activities at this facility include: Activities at this facility include: OTHER COMMERCIAL AND SERVICE INDUSTRY MACHINERY MANUFACSPECIAL DIE AND TOOL, DIE SET, JIG, AND FIXTURE MANUFACTURING TURING Site: LA STRUCTURAL YARD ZONE #1 2474 E OLYMPIC BLVD Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 232 - about .5 mile SE of the subject Status: S - Small Generator Permit id#: CAD981988447 Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Site: SE RYKOFF 761 TERMINAL ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 234 - about .5 mile W of the subject Status: S - Small Generator Permit id#: CAD982349748

 Page:
 79

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

Acknowledge date 03/31/1991.

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | S E RYKOFF CO 761 TERMINAL ST LOS ANGELES 234 - about .5 mile W of the subject S - Small Generator |
|---|---|
| | Permit id#: CAD981392095 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Activities at this facility include: ALL OTHER MISCELLANEOUS FOOD MANUFACTURING |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | AESTHETIC FRAME DESIGN 1275 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 236 - about .5 mile NW of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD982416364 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | BASE CORPORATION COATINGS & IN 590 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 237 - about .5 mile N of the subject |
| Status. | Permit id#: CAD055779417 |
| | Acknowledge date 10/18/1999. Activities at this facility include: Activities at this facility include: PAINT AND COATING MANUFACTURING PRINTING INK MANUFACTURING On 10/21/1999 a compliance evaluation inspection on-site was performed by EPA. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | UNIVERSAL DYEING AND PRINTING 2303 E 11TH ST LOS ANGELES 239 - about .5 mile S of the subject E - Conditionally Exempt SQG |
| | Permit id#: CAR000201822 |
| | Activities at this facility include: TEXTILE AND FABRIC FINISHING MILLS |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | L A IMAGES 584 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 240 - about .5 mile N of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAR000050849 |
| | Acknowledge date 04/07/1999. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SAFFOLA QUALITY FOODS INC 633 S MISSION RD LOS ANGELES 245 - about .5 mile NE of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD131290330 |
| | |

Site:

Acknowledge date 03/31/1991.

UNITED SIGNATURE FOODS

| Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | 737 TERMINAL ST LOS ANGELES 247 - about .5 mile W of the subject S - Small Generator Permit id#: CAD981368277 |
|---|---|
| | Acknowledge date 11/03/1998. Activities at this facility include: Activities at this facility include: ALL OTHER MISCELLANEOUS FOOD MANUFACTURING ALL OTHER MISCELLANEOUS MANUFACTURING EXTERMINATING AND PEST CONTROL SERVICES FATS AND OILS REFINING AND BLENDING PULP MILLS SOAP AND OTHER DETERGENT MANUFACTURING |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LA ASPHALT PLANT #1 2484 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 248 - about .5 mile SE of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD981988389 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LA CITY MAINT ASPHALT PLT 2484 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 248 - about .5 mile SE of the subject S - Small Generator |
| | Permit id#: CAD981438120 |
| | Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | INK MAKERS INC 944 LONG BEACH AVE LOS ANGELES 251 - about .5 mile W of the subject Permit id#: CAD058032285 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LIVER WILSON ST 1418 ELWOOD ST LOS ANGELES 252 - about .5 mile SW of the subject Permit id#: CAD981635626 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | C & W CHEMS CO INC 1328 WILLOW ST LOS ANGELES 254 - about .5 mile N of the subject S - Small Generator |

Permit id#: CAD048478499

Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. On 06/04/1985 a focused compliance inspection of converted from v2 rcrainfo was performed by the State. A violation was discovered on 06/04/1985 of RCRA regulations. On 06/04/1985 written informal was issued.

Site: JOEL & ARONOFF WEST INC 1323 WILLOW ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 259 - about .5 mile N of the subject Status: S - Small Generator

Permit id#: CAD077236487

Acknowledge date 03/31/1991.

Site: MERRILL YOUNG Address: 1926 E 14TH ST City: LOS ANGELES 262 - about .5 mile SW of the subject Map Loc: Status: S - Small Generator

Permit id#: CAD982507311

Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Activities at this facility include: Activities at this facility include: OTHER COMMERCIAL PRINTING PRINTING

Site: PJS SCREEN PRINTING Address: 1421 LAWRENCE ST LOS ANGELES City: 263 - about .5 mile SW of the subject Map Loc: Status: S - Small Generator

Permit id#: CAD981390628

Acknowledge date 03/31/1991.

COAST PRODUCE Site: 2163 E 14TH ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 265 - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: Permit id#: CAR000082263

LA PUMPING PLANT #10 Site: Address: City:

Status:

2251 E 11TH ST LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 266 - about .5 mile S of the subject S - Small Generator

Permit id#: CAD981989817

Acknowledge date 03/31/1991.

Site: TERMINAL REFRIGERATING COMPANY Address: 2233 JESSE ST LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: - about .5 mile NE of the subject 267 Status: Permit id#: CAD006909014

 Page:
 82

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

Site: NATIONAL AEROSOL PRODS CO Address: 2193 E 14TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 271 - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: L - Large Generator Permit id#: CAD008252355 Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Activities at this facility include: Activities at this facility include: METAL CAN MANUFACTURING PAINT AND COATING MANUFACTURING Site: DELTA CME Address: 1751 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 274 - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: S - Small Generator Permit id#: CAD980884308 Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Site: SOS METALS INC Address: 1920 S IMPERIAL ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 278 - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: S - Small Generator Permit id#: CAD081726069 Acknowledge date 03/31/1991. Site: 7TH STREET CONSOLIDATED FACILI Address: 2310 E 7TH ST

> L - Large Generator Permit id#: CAD981575657

279 - about .6 mile E of the subject

LOS ANGELES

Activities at this facility include: Activities at this facility include: AUTOMOTIVE BODY, PAINT, AND INTERIOR REPAIR AND MAINTENGENERAL AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR ANCE

SARA SARA Title III, section 313 (TRIS)

City:

Map Loc:

Status:

Title III of the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act,Section 313, also known as Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986 requires owners or operators of facilities with more than 10 employees and are listed under Standard Industrial Classification(SIC) Codes 20 through 39 to report the manufacturing, processing or use of more than a threshold of certain chemical or chemical categories listed under section 313. This database is also known as Toxic Release Information System (TRIS).

Below summary information for the last five year period is reported grouping the releases into air, water, underground injection, land, public offsite treatment (potw) and transportation offsite.

This list has been researched within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

Site: HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL COMPANY

| Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | 2159 BAY ST LOS ANGELES 53 - about .1 mile E of the subject | | | | | |
|---|---|----|--|--|--|--|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL CO 2159 BAY ST LOS ANGELES 53 - about .2 mile E of the subject | | | | | |
| | air: 1835102823 water: 977553696 inj: 808466720 land: 1279799602 potw: 844251724 tran | 1: | | | | |
| | air: 811356737 water: 1095380273 inj: 892349774 land: 1163468858 potw: 1377849921 tran 1380929605 | 1: | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: | AMERICAN PRODUCE CO 2160 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES | | | | | |
| Map Loc: | 147 - about .3 mile NE of the subject | | | | | |
| Olalus. | air: 1835102823 water: 977553696 inj: 808466720 land: 1380790578 potw: 844123715 tran | 1: | | | | |
| | air: 811356737 water: 1095380273 inj: 876162382 land: 1163468858 potw: 1377849921 tran 1380929605 | 1: | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | AMERICAN PRODUCE CO 2160 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 147 - about .3 mile NE of the subject | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | BASE CORPORATION COATINGS & IN 590 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 237 - about .5 mile N of the subject | | | | | |
| Status: | air: 1835102823 water: 977553696 ini: 808466720 land: 1396847409 notw: 894583622 tran | ŋ. | | | | |
| | 1330851897 air: 811356737 water: 1095380273 inj: 825830734 land: 1163468858 potw: 1377849921 tran | n: | | | | |
| | 1380929605 | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: | UNITED SIGNATURE FOODS 737 TERMINAL ST LOS ANGELES | | | | | |
| Map Loc: | 247 - about .5 mile W of the subject | | | | | |
| Status. | air: 1835102823 water: 977553696 inj: 808466720 land: 1498558770 potw: 927352395 tran | 1: | | | | |
| | air: 811356737 water: 1095380273 inj: 960048462 land: 1163468858 potw: 1377849921 tran 1380929605 | 1: | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | JOHN MORRELL & CO 1335 WILLOW ST LOS ANGELES 260 - about .5 mile N of the subject | | | | | |
| Site: Address: | JOHN MORRELL & CO 1335 WILLOW ST | | | | | |

City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 260 - about .5 mile N of the subject Status: air: 1835102823 water: 977553696 inj: 808466720 land: 1212822321 potw: 827477326 tran: 1463104307 air: 811356737 water: 1095380273 inj: 842607950 land: 1163468858 potw: 1377849921 tran: 1380929605 Site: NATIONAL AEROSOL PRODS CO Address: 2193 E 14TH ST LOS ANGELES Citv: Map Loc: 271 - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: air: 1835102823 water: 977553696 inj: 808466720 land: 1414410546 potw: 844254286 tran: 1160984881 air: 811356737 water: 1095380273 inj: 926494030 land: 1163468858 potw: 1377849921 tran: 1380929605

NC Nuclear Regulatory Commission Licensees

The Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards has been mandated (10 CFR Ch 1.42) to protect the public health and safety, the common defense and security, and the environment by licensing, inspection, and environmental impact assessment for all nuclear facilities and activities, and for the import and export of special nuclear material.

No listings within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

PCB PCB Waste Handlers Database

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency tracks generators, transporters, commercial stores and/or brokers and disposers of PCB's in accordance with the Toxic Substance Control Act. x

This list has been researched within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

Site: SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO - O Address: 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 177 - about .4 mile SE of the subject Status: Permit id#: CAD981422017

PCS Permit Compliance System

PCS is a database that contains data on National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit holding facilities. PCS was developed by The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency to meet the information needs of the NPDES program under the Clean Water Act. PCS tracks permit, compliance, and enforcement states of NPDES facilities.

No listings within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

AFS AIRS Facility System

AFS contains emissions and compliance data on air pollution point sources tracked by the U.S. EPA and state and local environmental regulatory agencies. There are seven "criteria pollutants" for which data must be reported to EPA and stored in AIRS: PM10 (particulate matters less than 10 microns in size), carbon monoxide, sulfur dioxide, nitrogen dioxide, lead, reactive volatile organic compounds (VOC), and ozone.

AFS replaces the former Compliance Data System (CDS), the National Emission Data System (NEDS), and the Storage and Retrieval of Aeromatic Data (SAROAD).

This list has been researched within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

Site:EMPIRE GAS INC OF LOS ANGELESAddress:935 S WILSON STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:23 - about .1 mile NW of the subjectStatus:Permit id#: CAD072284227

Site:LOS ANGELES TIMES COMMUNICATIOAddress:2000 E 8TH STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:78 - about .2 mile W of the subjectStatus:

Permit id#: CAD983637471

Pollutants: VOC

Site:IMPERIAL TOYAddress:2060 E 7TH STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:79 - about .2 mile N of the subjectStatus:

Permit id#: 110037578975

Pollutants: CFC

Site:POUR LE BEBEAddress:2222 E OLYMPIC BLVDCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:119 - about .3 mile S of the subjectStatus:Permit id#: CAD008309916

 Site:
 COMMERCIAL IRON WORKS

 Address:
 2424
 PORTER ST

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 139
 - about
 .3 mile SE of the subject

 Status:
 Permit id#: CAD006491120

Site:BASE CORPORATION COATINGS & INAddress:590 S SANTA FE AVECity:LOS ANGELES

Map Loc: 237 - about .5 mile N of the subject Status: Permit id#: CAD055779417

Site: L.A. NUT HOUSE Address: 737 TERMINAL ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 247 - about .5 mile W of the subject Status: Permit id#: CAD983570219

Site: MERRILL YOUNG Address: 1926 E 14TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 262 - about .5 mile SW of the subject Status: Permit id#: CAD982507311

PE Section Seven Tracking System (SSTS)

SSTS evolved from the FIFRA and TSCA Enforcement System (FATES). SSTS tracks the registration of all pesticide producing establishments and tracks annually the types and amounts of pesticides, active ingredients, and devices that are produced, sold or distributed each year.

This list has been researched within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

 Site:
 BEST MAINTENANCE SUPPLY CO

 Address:
 1922 E 7TH ST

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 68 - about .2 mile N of the subject

 Status:
 Permit id#: CAD007860570

Site: BEST HILLYARD Address: 1922 E 7TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 68 - about .2 mile N of the subject Status: Permit id#: CAD981671795

 Site:
 HILLYARD FLOOR CARE SUPPLY

 Address:
 1922 E 7TH ST

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 68 - about .2 mile N of the subject

 Status:
 Permit id#: CA0000614602

Site: S E RYKOFF CO Address: 761 TERMINAL ST

City: LOS ANGELES

Map Loc:
Status:234
- about .5 mile W of the subjectSite:
Address:Permit id#: CAD981392095Site:
Address:NATIONAL AEROSOL PRODS COAddress:
City:
LOS ANGELES2193 E 14TH STCity:
LOS ANGELESLOS ANGELESMap Loc:
Status:
Permit id#: CAD008252355

FIFRA FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System/ National Compliance Database (FTTS/NCDB)

NCDB supports implementation of the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Control Act (FIFRA) and the Toxic Substance Control Act (TSCA).

This list has been researched within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES TIMES COMMUNICATIO 2000 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 78 - about .2 mile W of the subject Permit id#: CAD983637471 | | | | | |
|---|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO - O 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 177 - about .4 mile SE of the subject | | | | | |
| Status. | Permit id#: CAD981422017 | | | | | |
| | 85Program ID: 109#19890413CA001 1 86Program ID: 109#19950125T01CA 1 87Program ID: 109#19960424T01CA 1 | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | EDEN MARKETING CORPORATION 901 S ALAMEDA ST LOS ANGELES 188 - about .4 mile SW of the subject | | | | | |
| Status: | Permit id#: 110022297646 | | | | | |
| | 37Program ID: C09#F-ADL-04-19 | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | UNITED SIGNATURE FOODS 737 TERMINAL ST LOS ANGELES 247 - about .5 mile W of the subject | | | | | |
| olalus. | Permit id#: CAD981368277 | | | | | |
| | 48Program ID: 109#199309272718 1 | | | | | |

FFIS Federal Facilities Information System (FFIS)

Federal Facilities Information System (FFIS) contains a list of all Treatment Storage and Disposal Facilities (TSDs) owned and operated by federal agencies.

No listings within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

CICIS Chemicals in Commerce Information System (CICIS)

Chemicals in Commerce Information System contains an inventory of chemicals manufactured in commerce or imported for Toxic Substances Control Act regulated commercial purposes. CICIS allows EPA to maintain a comprehensive listing of over 70,000 chemical substances that are manufactured or imported and are regulated under TSCA.

This list has been researched within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

 Site:
 BASE CORPORATION COATINGS & IN

 Address:
 590 S SANTA FE AVE

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 237 - about .5 mile N of the subject

 Status:
 Permit id#: CAD055779417

FINDS FINDS EPA Facility Index System

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency maintains an index system of all facilities which are regulated or have been assigned an identification number for other purposes.

Facilities that have been reported elsewhere in this report will not be listed under this category.

This list has been researched within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

 Site:
 AMERICOLD LOGISTICS PLANT NUMB

 Address:
 2233 JESSE ST

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 267 - about .5 mile NE of the subject

 Status:
 Permit id#: 110000528484

HWIS Hazardous Waste Information System

The Department of Toxic Substance Control, California Environmental Protection Agency, maintains a a data base keeping track of the movement and disposal of hazardous waste. The data is used to support the Tanner legislation, AB 2948.

Status Codes: EPA Facility Permit Number

- CAL State permanent number
 - CAC State provisional or emergency number
 - CAH State prov or perm number for household hazardous waste collections
 - CAI State permanent number for exotic pest detection
 - CAS State permanent number issued by county for emergency response
 - CAE State prov number for hazardous waste removal caused by natural disasters
 - CAX State permanent or provisional number issued prior to 1987. No longer used.
 - CLU State permanent number issued by county for clandestine lab cleanup
 - CAR Federal permanent number
 - CA Federal permanent number

CAD - Federal permanent or provisional number. State provisional before 1988. CAT - Federal permanent number CAP - Federal provisional or emergency number

This list has been researched within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | CONSOLIDATED FIBERS 2016 BAY ST LOS ANGELES 1 - the subject site EPA ID#: CAC000877320 | | |
|---|--|-------------------|--|
| | Waste oil and mixed oil | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 1.67 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | MV TRANSPORTATION IN 2016 BAY ST LOS ANGELES 1 - the subject site EPA ID#: CAL000311558 | С | |
| | Unspec organic liquid mixture Other organic solids | ton ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 .29 .1 .9 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | 1X CONSILDATED FIBERS 1005 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 2 - about .0 mile N of the EPA ID#: CAC000902120 | 8 e sub | oject |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 2.5 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | JM BUS BODY REPAIR 2026 BAY ST LOS ANGELES 3 - about .0 mile E of the EPA ID#: CAD982368672 | e sub | vject |
| | Aq sol with org residues > 10% Unspecified solvent mixture | ton ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .13 .16 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | INTAGLIO CORP 2022 SACRAMENTO ST LOS ANGELES 4 - about .0 mile SE of th EPA ID#: CAL000218337 | ie su | bject |
| | Off-spec, aged or surplus org Unspec organic liquid mixture Other organic solids | ton ton ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 .18 .18 .22 .17 .44 .22 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | T A GREENE CO INC 1100 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 6 - about 7. mile S of the EPA ID#: CAD982487464 | e sub | oject |
| Site: Address: City: | GOLDEN PLATING INC 930 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES | | |

Page: 90 Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

| Map Loc: Status: | 7 - about .0 mile N of the subject EPA ID#: CAD139410401 | | | |
|---|--|---|--|--|
| | Liq with cyanides>1 g/l ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 25.21 | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ATLANTIC CHEMICAL CORPO 2030 SACRAMENTO ST LOS ANGELES 8 - about .0 mile SE of the se EPA ID#: CAD000819623 | DRATION ubject | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | MEDIA LITHOGRAPHICS INC 2036 SACRAMENTO ST LOS ANGELES 9 - about .0 mile SE of the su EPA ID#: CAD982467631 | ubject | | |
| | Restricted Metal Sludge ton Off-spec, aged or surplus org ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .02 .6 1.5 | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ELITES SCREEN PRINTING D 915 MATEO ST, STE 302 LOS ANGELES 10 - about .0 mile N of the s EPA ID#: CAL000344590 | IBA R2 Subject | | |
| | Unspecified solvent mixture ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .01 | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | WEST CENTRAL PRODUCE 2017 E VIOLET ST LOS ANGELES 11 - about .1 mile N of the s EPA ID#: CAC000895064 | subject | | |
| | Tank Bottom waste ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 2.5 | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | RANCHO ROBLES PROPERT 1910 BAY ST LOS ANGELES 12 - about .1 mile W of the s EPA ID#: CAP400480494 | IES INC subject | | |
| | Unspecified aqeous solution ton Contaminated soil ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 1 .12 1 .05 | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | WEST CENTRAL PRODUCE IN 2045 E VIOLET ST LOS ANGELES 13 - about .1 mile NE of the EPA ID#: CAC001462400 | NC subject | | |
| | Tank Bottom waste ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 1.46 | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | WEST CENTRAL PRODUCE, I 2045 E VIOLET ST LOS ANGELES 13 - about .1 mile NE of the EPA ID#: CAL000232133 | INC subject | | |

| | Oil/water sludge | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .52 |
|---|---|--------------|---|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | CALIFORNIA DEPT OF TR 2300 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 14 - about .1 mile S of t EPA ID#: CAC001158944 | RANS | PORTAT |
| | Aq sol with org residues<10% | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 1.95 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOUDLABS 2314 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 15 - about .1 mile S of t EPA ID#: CAL000371577 | the su | ıbject |
| | Unspecified solvent mixture | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .07 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | DEFUSION DBA HAN CHO 1202 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 16 - about .1 mile S of t EPA ID#: CAL000329368 | DLO (| CLOTHIN |
| | Aq sol with org residues > 10% | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .13 .35 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | THE DOOR CONTROLS IN 2334 E LOS ANGELES 17 - about .1 mile S of t EPA ID#: CAC002552012 | NC the su | ıbject |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 2.24 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | S D HERMAN CO 2339 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 18 - about .1 mile S of t EPA ID#: CAC001471432 | the su | bject |
| | Unspec oil cont waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .1 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | GOLDEN FLOWERS 2341 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 19 - about .1 mile S of t EPA ID#: CAL000196637 | the su | ıbject |
| | Inorganic solid waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .3 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | REZEX CORP 1901 SACRAMENTO ST LOS ANGELES 21 - about .1 mile W of EPA ID#: CAD982005571 | the s | ubject |
| | Halogenated solvents Liq with hal org>1g/l | ton ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 1.37 .23 |

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | RANCHO ROBLES PROP IN 1901 SACRAMENTO ST LOS ANGELES 21 - about .1 mile W of the EPA ID#: CAP400480506 | IC e si | ubject |
|---|---|-------------|--|
| | Waste oil and mixed oil to Oil/water sludge to | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 11.67 .88 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | PRICE, STERN & SLOAN 1900 SACRAMENTO ST LOS ANGELES 22 - about .1 mile W of the EPA ID#: CAC000783304 | e sı | ubject |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | DHL EXPRESS INC 1900 SACRAMENTO ST LOS ANGELES 22 - about .1 mile W of the EPA ID#: CAC002640716 | e sı | ubject |
| | Off-spec,aged/surplus inorg to Off-spec, aged or surplus org to Lab waste chemicals to | on ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 .01 .07 .01 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | FIRST VEHICLE SERVICES 1900 SACRAMENTO ST LOS ANGELES 22 - about .1 mile W of the EPA ID#: CAL000341099 | INC e su | C #48 ubject |
| | Aq sol with org residues<10% to Off-spec,aged/surplus inorg to Off-spec, aged or surplus org to | ton ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 .06 .08 .18 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SECOND SIGHT PICTURES 935 S WILSON ST LOS ANGELES 23 - about .1 mile NW of th EPA ID#: CAL000116853 | he s | subject |
| | Latex waste t Paint sludge t | ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 .46 1.08 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | THEATRICAL CREATIONS II 1005 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 24 - about .1 mile E of the EPA ID#: CAD008499352 | NC e su | bject |
| | Unspecified solvent mixture | on | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .45 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | CORSARO DAL 807 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 27 - about .1 mile N of the EPA ID#: CAC000657752 | e su | bject |

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | HALBERT BROS 2110 BAY ST LOS ANGELES 28 - about .1 mile E of EPA ID#: CAC000016949 | the su | ubject | |
|---|---|-----------------|--------------|---|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | JOAN B CORP 1119 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 29 - about .1 mile E of EPA ID#: CAL000373016 | the su | ubject | |
| | Latex waste Latex waste | ton ton | <u>88-91</u> | <u>92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 1.22 .4 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | DIESEL COACH SERVICE 826 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 30 - about .1 mile N of EPA ID#: CAL000313255 | ES the si | ubject | |
| | | | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| | Other organic solids | ton | | .7 1.05 .45 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | AMERICAN PRODUCE C 826 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 30 - about .1 mile N of EPA ID#: CAD981967300 | O the si | ubject | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | MAMORU GEORGE SHIE 826 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 30 - about .1 mile N of EPA ID#: CAC002110712 | 3UKA\ the si | WA ubject | |
| | Tonk Pottom wests | ton | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| | Empty non-pesticide cont>30 g | al ton | | 10 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | DIESEL COACH SERVICE 826 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 30 - about .1 mile N of EPA ID#: CAL000258958 | ES the si | ubject | |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil Other organic solids | ton ton | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 6.25 5.42 .3 .2 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | DIESEL COACH 826 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 30 - about .1 mile N of EPA ID#: CAC002187976 | the s | ubject | |
| | Other organic solids | ton | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| O .1. | | | | cu. |
| Site: Address: City: | DIESEL COACH & TRUC 826 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES | K SEF | RVICE | |

Page: 94 Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

Map Loc: 30 - about .1 mile N of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAC002731872 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Tank Bottom waste 2.71 ton Site: K & K LIFT ALL 939 S SANTA FE AVE Address: LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 32 - about .1 mile NE of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAL922555361 **DW FINISHING** Site: Address: 823 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 33 - about .1 mile N of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAL000329713 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Unspecified solvent mixture ton .47 1.06 .65 Site: HALSTED & HOGGAN INC Address: 935 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 34 - about .1 mile NE of the subject EPA ID#: CAC002638988 Status: 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Unspec oil cont waste .25 ton STAN ACKERMAN Site: 821 MATEO ST Address: Citv: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 35 - about .1 mile N of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAC001329984 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Unspec oil cont waste ton 10 Contaminated soil 30.34 ton Site: IG KING SERVICE CO Address: 821 MATEO ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 35 - about .1 mile N of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAL931063454 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Aq sol with org residues<10% ton .44 .4 7 BAY TRUCK STATION Site: 930 S SANTA FE AVE Address: LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: - about .1 mile NE of the subject 36 Status: EPA ID#: CAL000251242 <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12</u>/13 14/15 Unspecified solvent mixture ton .1 Waste oil and mixed oil 1.22 ton **7 BAY TRUCK STOP** Site: Address: 930 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES 36 - about .1 mile NE of the subject Map Loc: Status: EPA ID#: CAC002121872

| | Aq sol with org residues<10% Waste oil and mixed oil | ton ton | <u>88-91</u> | <u>92-95 96/97</u> | 7 <u>98/99</u> 4.41 1.17 | 00/01 | <u>02/03</u> | <u>04/05</u> | 06/07 | <u>08/09</u> | <u>10/11</u> | <u>12/13 1</u> | <u>14/15</u> |
|---|---|---------------------------------|--------------|--------------------|--------------------------------|---------------------|----------------------|---------------------|---|---|-----------------------------------|------------------------------|---------------|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | BROWN, WILLIAM 1220 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 37 - about .1 mile S of th EPA ID#: CAC000663456 | ne su | bject | | | | | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | GRAND PRIX AUTO BODY 1220 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 37 - about .1 mile S of th EPA ID#: CAL000291338 | ', INC ne su |). bject | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Aq sol with org residues > 10% Unspecified solvent mixture Waste oil and mixed oil Other organic solids | ton ton ton ton | <u>88-91</u> | <u>92-95 96/97</u> | 7 98/99 | <u>00/01</u> | <u>02/03</u> | <u>04/05</u> .22 | <u>06/07</u> .12 .7 | <u>08/09</u> .13 .54 .11 .2 | <u>10/11</u> .37 .51 .21 | <u>12/13 1</u> .26 .21 | 1 <u>4/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | DOOR CONTROLS INC. 2334 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 39 - about .1 mile SE of 1 EPA ID#: CAX000101915 | the s | ubject | | | | | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SHIRT TIME CO 2125 BAY ST LOS ANGELES 41 - about .1 mile E of th EPA ID#: CAL000080895 | ne su | bject | | | | | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | HALBERT BROTHERS INC 2116 SACRAMENTO ST LOS ANGELES 42 - about .1 mile E of th EPA ID#: CAD981571755 | ; ne su | bject | | | | | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LA IMPRINTS 1201 S SANTA FE AVE, UN LOS ANGELES 43 - about .1 mile SE of t EPA ID#: CAC002732800 | NIT 1 the s | ubject | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Unspecified solvent mixture | ton | <u>88-91</u> | <u>92-95 96/97</u> | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 1</u> .05 | 14/15 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES IMPRINTS 1201 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 43 - about .1 mile SE of 1 EPA ID#: CAR000098418 | the s | ubject | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Hydrocarbon solvents Hydrocarbon solvents Hydrocarbon solvents Hydrocarbon solvents Hydrocarbon solvents Unspec organic liquid mixture | ton ton ton ton ton | <u>88-91</u> | <u>92-95 96/97</u> | <u>7 98/99</u> | <u>00/01</u> .29 | <u>02/03</u> 1.39 | <u>04/05</u> .7 | 06/07 .04 .06 .06 .08 .16 .18 | <u>08/09</u> | <u>10/11</u> | <u>12/13 1</u> | 1 <u>4/15</u> |

| 2001-2005 SACRAM 16 BAY ST, LOS AN | ENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;20 GEL | | | | Page: Date: Job: | 96 06-18-2015 EEMA8998-C |
|---|---|----------------|--|--|------------------------------|---|
| | Liq with hal org>1g/l to | on | .0 | 9.24 | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES IMPRINTS 1201 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 43 - about .1 mile SE of the EPA ID#: CAC002181230 | e sut | oject | | | |
| | | <u>i</u> | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00 | /01 02/03 0 | 4/05 06/07 | 7 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/1 |
| | Hydrocarbon solvents to Unspecified solvent mixture to Unspec organic liquid mixture to | on on on | | | | .12 .3 .23 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | J AND J AUTO REPAIR 1127 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 44 - about .1 mile SE of the EPA ID#: CAD983660986 | e sut | oject | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | INK IT INC 1218 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 47 - about .1 mile SE of the EPA ID#: CAR000091256 | e sut | oject | | | |
| | Liq with hal org>1g/l to | on <u>i</u> | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00</u> .2 | ////////////////////////////////////// | 4/05 06/07 | <u>7 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | A B IMPORT CORP 1219 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 48 - about .1 mile SE of the EPA ID#: CAL000236104 | e sut | oject | | | |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil to | <u>i</u> | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00 | <u>/01 02/03 0</u> 32 | 04/05 06/07 | 7 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | VALLEY FRUIT AND PRODU 1800 BAY ST LOS ANGELES 49 - about .1 mile W of the EPA ID#: CAL000181645 | JCE e sub | pject | .02 | | |
| | Ag sol with org residues<10% to | on | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00</u> .25 | /01 02/03 0 | 4/05 06/07 | 7 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | DP TRADING INC 725 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 52 - about .1 mile N of the EPA ID#: CAL000260456 | sub | ject | | | |
| | Hydrocarbon solvents to Unspecified solvent mixture to Unspecified solvent mixture to | on on on | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00</u> | // <u>01 02/03 0</u> | 0 <u>4/05 06/07</u> 76 .2 | 7 <u>08/09 10/11 12/13 14/18</u> .13 .05 .18 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ADVANCED ELECTRONICS 2159 BAY ST LOS ANGELES 53 - about .1 mile E of the EPA ID#: CAX000091561 | PAC subj | CKG ject | | | |
| Site [.] | HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL | CO | 1 | | | |

 Page:
 97

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | 2159 BAY ST LOS ANGELES 53 - about .2 mile E of EPA ID#: CAC002281385 | the su | ıbject | |
|---|---|---------------------|---------------------------------|--|
| | Ashestes containing waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-9</u> | 5 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| Citor | | | | 28.00 |
| Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | 2159 BAY ST LOS ANGELES 53 - about .2 mile E of EPA ID#: CAC002745369 | the su | ibject | |
| | Off-spec,aged/surplus inorg | ton | <u>88-91 92-9</u> | <u>5 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .5 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | HILL BROTHERS CHEMIC 2159 BAY ST LOS ANGELES 53 - about .1 mile E of EPA ID#: CAD982337008 | CAL C | :O ıbject | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | CARLOS Y RAMON 2222 DAMON ST LOS ANGELES 56 - about .2 mile S of EPA ID#: CAD982415077 | the su | ıbject | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | INTERSTATE BLDG MATH 2222 DAMON ST LOS ANGELES 56 - about .2 mile S of EPA ID#: CAC000938448 | ERIAL the su | -S ıbject | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | H & H LABOR SUPPLY IN 703 MATEO ST, 703-711 LOS ANGELES 57 - about .2 mile N of EPA ID#: CAC000604560 | C ,AND the su | 7TH ST ıbject | |
| | Asbestos containing waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-9</u> 4.21 | 5 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | H & H LABOR SUPPLY IN 703 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 57 - about .2 mile N of EPA ID#: CAC000604560 | C the su | ıbject | |
| | Asbestos containing waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-9</u> 4.21 | 5 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | FLETES CARBURETOR S 706 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 58 - about .2 mile N of EPA ID#: CAL000097238 | SERVI | CE ıbject | |
| | Hydrocarbon solvents Liq with hal org>1g/l | ton ton | <u>88-91 92-9</u> .07 .22 | 5 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |

| Site: | GORDON BRUSH MFG CO INC |
|----------|---|
| Address: | 2150 SACRAMENTO ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 59 - about .2 mile E of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAL000072096 |
| | Org liquids with restr metals ton 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| Site: | SAM'S BODY SHOP |
| Address: | 710 S SANTA FE AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 60 - about .2 mile NE of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAX000108993 |
| Site: | LA DYE & WASH WORKS |
| Address: | 2159 SACRAMENTO ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 61 - about .2 mile E of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAL000088083 |
| Site: | LOS ANGELES DYE & WASH WORKS |
| Address: | 2159 SACRAMENTO ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 61 - about .2 mile E of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAL000074204 |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil ton 1.08 .83 Liq with hal org>1g/l ton .03 .03 |
| Site: | N&G INDUSTRIAL PROPERTIES |
| Address: | 2159 SACRAMENTO ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 61 - about .2 mile E of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAC001401032 |
| | B8-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Unspecified ageous solution Inorganic solid waste ton .46 Unspec oil cont waste ton 1.38 |
| Site: | MICHAEL J. KAMEN |
| Address: | 2030 E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 62 - about .2 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAC000240857 |
| Site: | ARTISTICA METAL DESIGNS |
| Address: | 2424 E 8TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 63 - about .2 mile SE of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAX000041087 |
| Site: | WANG FASHIONS |
| Address: | 1926 E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 64 - about .2 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAL000081292 |

 Page:
 99

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| Site: | J AND D STORE FIXTURES |
|----------|--|
| Address: | 1920 E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 65 - about .2 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAC000821640 |
| Site: | CUSTOM CONTAINER CORP. |
| Address: | 1919 E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 66 - about .2 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAP982520975 |
| | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Tank Bottom waste ton 3.5 |
| Site: | WOLFE CREATIONS OF CAL, INC |
| Address: | 2433 E 8TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 67 - about .2 mile SE of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAD008312563 |
| Site: | NORM LANGER |
| Address: | 2012 E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 70 - about .2 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAC002353239 |
| | Asbestos containing waste ton 1.76 |
| Site: | DEAN & ASSOCIATES |
| Address: | 700 S SANTA FE AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 71 - about .2 mile NE of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAD082199407 |
| Site: | DA VINCI ENGINEERING |
| Address: | 1935 E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 72 - about .2 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAC000228025 |
| Site: | EXXON RAS #7-8407 |
| Address: | 1935 E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 72 - about .2 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAL000011923 |
| Site: | MARTYS PATIO |
| Address: | 1934 E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 73 - about .2 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAC001361848 |
| | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Waste oil and mixed oil ton 6.26 |
| Site: | FRICTION MATERIALS INC |
| Address: | 2029 E 7TH ST |

| Page: | 100 |
|-------|------------|
| Date: | 06-18-2015 |
| lahi | |

EEMA8998-C Job:

| City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES 74 - about .2 mile N of EPA ID#: CAC002574787 | the su | ubject |
|---|--|-------------------|---|
| | Tank Bottom waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 1.66 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES USD MET 727 S WILSON ST LOS ANGELES 76 - about .2 mile NW o EPA ID#: CAD982022568 | ROPC f the s | OLITAN H subject |
| | Asbestos containing waste Inorganic solid waste Other organic solids | ton ton ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 139 .3 .03 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | METROPOLITAN HIGH SC 727 S WILSON ST LOS ANGELES 76 - about .2 mile NW o EPA ID#: CAD000302471 | CHOC | OL subject |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | BERG ELECTRIC 2000 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 78 - about .2 mile SW o EPA ID#: CAC000286489 | f the s | subject |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | PROFESSIONAL COURIE 2000 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 78 - about .2 mile W of EPA ID#: CAL000347708 | R INC | C DBA B subject |
| | Oil/water sludge | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 3.13 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | FLINT GROUP 2000 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 78 - about .2 mile W of EPA ID#: CAC002698484 | the su | subject |
| | Other organic solids | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .04 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ENCON TECHNOLOGIES 2000 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 78 - about .2 mile W of EPA ID#: CAC002565940 | INC the su | subject |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .75 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | PROFESSIONAL COURIE 2000 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 78 - about .2 mile W of EPA ID#: CAC002252993 | R SO the su | DUTH INC |

 Page:
 101

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| | Off-spec, aged or surplus org | ton | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | <u>00/01</u> .2 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
|---|---|--------------------------|--------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|----------------------|---------------------|---------------------|--------------|-----------------------------|--------------|--------------|---------------------------|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | LOS ANGELES TIMES 2000 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 78 - about 2 mile SW of | the | subject | | | | | | | | | | |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAD983637471 | | Jubjeet | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Sol (PH>12.5) with restr metals Sol without metals (PH >12.5) | ton ton | <u>88-91</u> | <u>92-95</u> | <u>96/97</u> | <u>98/99</u> .02 | <u>00/01</u> | <u>02/03</u> .04 | <u>04/05</u> | <u>06/07</u> | <u>08/09</u> | <u>10/11</u> | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| | Aq sol with org residues<10% Unspecified aqeous solution Unspecified aqeous solution Unspecified aqeous solution | ton ton ton ton | | 44.14 79.31 | 42.04 | 3.58 11.66 | | 1.82 | | 6.25 1.1 1.14 1.14 | | | |
| | Off-spec,aged/surplus inorg Asbestos containing waste Restricted Metal Sludge Inorganic solid waste | ton ton ton ton | | .15 | .1 | .23 | .95 | 2.35 | .34 | .1 | .83 | .24 | 06 |
| | Hydrocarbon solvents Unspecified solvent mixture Waste oil and mixed oil | ton ton ton | | .78 14.59 | 4.58 1.15 36.49 | 2.76 .48 96.74 | .35 .66 51.51 | .9 34.08 | | .45 | 4.94 | 14.34 | 10.77 |
| | Unspec oil cont waste Tank Bottom waste Off-spec, aged or surplus org Off-spec, aged or surplus org | ton ton ton ton | | .13 13.54 | 6.63 | 30.86 1.46 .63 | .3 | 23.56 1.35 | 12.09 | 18.28 | 10.53 | 41.49 | 82.56 |
| | Off-spec, aged or surplus org Org liquids with restr metals Unspec organic liquid mixture | ton ton ton | .32 | 34.02 | 48.8 | .54 25.19 | 169 | 164 | 55.91 | 2.25 22.63 | 10.05 | 0.4 | _ |
| | Photochemical waste Auto shredder waste Lig with hal org>1g/l | ton ton ton ton | .32 | 1.15 1.38 11.05 | 8.22 .34 6.72 | .71 | .06 | 7.55 15.36 | 5.12 | 3.92 | .38 | 2.1 | .5 |
| | Liquids with pH<2 Liq with pH<2 & restr metals | ton ton | | | 1.61 | .5 .35 | .22 | | .35 | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | 2060 E. 7TH ST. LLC 2060 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 79 - about .2 mile NE of EPA ID#: CAC002739738 | the s | ubject | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Asbestos containing waste | ton | <u>88-91</u> | <u>92-95</u> | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> 2.4 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | AMTRAK STATION 2450 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 80 - about .2 mile SE of EPA ID#: CAC001438568 | the s | ubject | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Asbestos containing waste | ton | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | <u>00/01</u> 117 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | NATIONAL RESOURCES I 2450 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 80 - about .2 mile SE of EPA ID#: CAD981430036 | NC the s | ubject | | | | | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | NATIONAL RESOURCES, 2450 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 80 - about .2 mile SE of EPA ID#: CAD981395486 | INC the s | ubject | | | | | | | | | | |

 Page:
 102

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES UNIFIED SC 715 S WILSON ST LOS ANGELES 81 - about .2 mile NW of EPA ID#: CAL000008063 | CHOOL DIS the subject | |
|---|---|---|--|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | DEFRANCO COMPANY 1000 LAWRENCE ST LOS ANGELES 82 - about .2 mile W of th EPA ID#: CAC000291065 | the subject | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | TANIMURA DISTRIBUTING 1700 BAY ST LOS ANGELES 83 - about .2 mile W of th EPA ID#: CAC001025776 | G INC | |
| | Polychlorinated biphenyls | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 | 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | BURLINGTON NORTHERN 2470 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 84 - about .2 mile E of th EPA ID#: CAC002211985 | N SANTA FE | |
| | Contaminated soil | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03</u> ton 273 | 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | THE KOREA TIMES LOS AI 2017 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 88 - about .2 mile W of th EPA ID#: CAL000235947 | NGELES IN | |
| | | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03</u> | 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| | Sol (PH>12.5) with restr metals Unspecified aqeous solution Waste oil and mixed oil Off-spec, aged or surplus org Unspec organic liquid mixture Photochemical waste Liq with hal org>1g/l | ton ton ton ton ton ton | 1.98 11.31 18.06 21.77 .83 .66 .33 .19 .19 2.31 2.08 11.46 .44 1.46 .4 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SWEETHEART CUP CORP 2155 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 89 - about .2 mile NE of t EPA ID#: CAX000124735 | the subject | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SOUTH SANTA FE PARTN 1745 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 91 - about .2 mile NW of EPA ID#: CAC000081629 | IERS the subject | |
| Site: Address: City: | AMERICAN MOVING PART 695 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES | rs | |

103 Page: 2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;20 06-18-2015 Date: 16 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL EEMA8998-C Job: Map Loc: 92 - about .2 mile NE of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAL000285556 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Inorganic solid waste ton .01 Unspecified solvent mixture ton Waste oil and mixed oil .83 ton FRICTION MATERIALS CO. Site: Address: 695 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 92 - about .2 mile NE of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAD041156019 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15

| | Asbestos containing waste Unspecified solvent mixture Waste oil and mixed oil Oil/water sludge Other organic solids | ton ton ton ton | .87 | 2.08 | .67 | 1.59 | .04 3.99 1.4 | .45 |
|---|---|--------------------------|----------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|---------------------|--------------------|-------------------------------------|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ADECO 676 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 93 - about .2 mile N of th EPA ID#: CAD028453231 | ne su | bject | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | MARKOWITZ, RON 676 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 93 - about .2 mile N of th EPA ID#: CAC000646392 | ne sul | bject | | | | | |
| | Unspec oil cont waste | ton | <u>88-91</u> 2.08 | 92-95 96/ | /97 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | FEDERAL ARMORED EXP 676 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 93 - about .2 mile N of th EPA ID#: CAL000036806 | RESS | S INC | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | DUNBAR ARMORED INC 676 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 93 - about .2 mile N of th EPA ID#: CAL000067644 | ne sul | bject | | | | | |
| | Aq sol with org residues > 10% Aq sol with org residues<10% | ton ton | <u>88-91</u> | <u>92-95 96/</u> .46 1.4 | <u>/97 98/99</u> 48 1.58 | <i>00/01</i> .16 | 02/03 | 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| | Unspecified aqeous solution | ton | | 1.13 | | | | |

| | Waste oil and mixed oil | ton | 2.08 | | | | |
|----------|--------------------------------|------------|----------------|----------------|-------------|--|--|
| | Oil/water sludge | ton | | .27 | '.41 | | |
| | Unspec organic liquid mixture | ton | .23 | | | | |
| | Other organic solids | ton | 1.95 | | | | |
| Site: | LA FEDERAL ARMORMED SERVICES I | | | | | | |
| Address: | 676 MATEO ST | | | | | | |
| Citv: | LOS ANGELES | | | | | | |
| Map Loc: | 93 - about .2 mile N of | the subjec | t | | | | |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAL000263926 | | | | | | |
| | | 00 | 04 00 05 00/07 | 00/00 00/04 00 | 00 04/05 00 | | |

Waste oil and mixed oil

ton

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | DUNBAR ARMORED 676 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 93 - about .2 mile N of the su EPA ID#: CAC001410168 | ubject |
|---|--|--|
| | Tank Bottom waste ton Empty non-pesticide cont>30 gal ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .83 5.6 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | AVALON PROPERTY SERVICE 1495 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 94 - about .2 mile S of the su EPA ID#: CAC002750882 | ES INC Ibject |
| | Unspecified aqeous solution ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .06 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | VICTOR CEPORIUS 2117 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 97 - about .2 mile NE of the s EPA ID#: CAC002331065 | subject |
| | Asbestos containing waste ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 8.59 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ESSEX CORP 673 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 103 - about .3 mile N of the s EPA ID#: CAC000755608 | subject |
| | Asbestos containing waste ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 2.53 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | MOBIL OIL CORPORATION 673 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 103 - about .2 mile N of the s EPA ID#: CAC000530200 | subject |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | MISSION FURNITURE MFG CC 673 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 103 - about .2 mile N of the s EPA ID#: CAD981400385 |). subject |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | 673 MATEO LLC 673 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 103 - about .3 mile N of the s EPA ID#: CAC002586400 | subject |
| | Asbestos containing waste ton Inorganic solid waste ton Oil/water sludge ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 311 15.17 98.41 |
| Site: Address: | ESSEX CORP 673 MATEO ST | |

 Page:
 105

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES 103 - about .3 mile N of EPA ID#: CAC001242320 | the s | subject |
|---|---|-------------------|---|
| | Unspec organic liquid mixture | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .21 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | TIERZERO 680 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 104 - about .3 mile NE of EPA ID#: CAC002645721 | f the | subject |
| | Unspecified aqeous solution Waste oil and mixed oil Latex waste | ton ton ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 .99 4.94 .08 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ALPHOMEGA 2324 HUNTER ST LOS ANGELES 105 - about .3 mile SE of EPA ID#: CAX000093781 | the | subject |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | 2121 E 7TH PLACE, LLC 2121 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 106 - about .3 mile NE of EPA ID#: CAC002553482 | f the | subject |
| | Asbestos containing waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .5 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | GREYHOUND LINES INC 1716 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 107 - about .3 mile NW o EPA ID#: CAC000650424 | of the | subject |
| | Contaminated soil | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LINEAR CITY LLC 1855 INDUSTRIAL ST LOS ANGELES 108 - about .3 mile N of EPA ID#: CAL000275222 | the s | subject |
| | Polychlorinated biphenyls | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .32 266 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | PLAY BY PLAY INC 1855 INDUSTRIAL ST LOS ANGELES 108 - about .3 mile N of EPA ID#: CAC002284441 | the s | subject |
| | Other organic solids | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .4 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | MILK DISTRIBUTION LLC 2324 PORTER ST LOS ANGELES 110 - about .3 mile S of | the s | ubject |

Status: EPA ID#: CAL000337073 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Off-spec, aged or surplus org ton .09 .07 Off-spec, aged or surplus org .13 ton Site: LINEAR CITY LLC Address: 1820 INDUSTRIAL ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 111 - about .3 mile N of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAC002630405 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Unspecified ageous solution ton 1.05 Other organic solids .84 ton FOR THE PEOPLE PRODUCTIONS Site: Address: 1820 INDUSTRIAL ST City: LOS ANGELES - about .3 mile N of the subject Map Loc: 111 Status: EPA ID#: CAC001211376 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Aq sol with org residues > 10% .15 ton Other organic solids .02 ton Site: **1X OCEAN PRINTEX INC** Address: 2350 PORTER ST City: LOS ANGELES - about .3 mile SE of the subject Map Loc: 113 Status: EPA ID#: CAC000905752 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Unspec oil cont waste 3.9 ton Site: SANTA FE RAILWAY 2144 E 7TH ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 114 - about .3 mile NE of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAC000754520 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Contaminated soil ton 75.01 A-1 BROOM AND SUPPLY COMPANY Site: Address: 2416 HUNTER ST LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 115 - about .3 mile SE of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAC000500624 Site: MESA CONSULTENTS Address: 1790 INDUSTRIAL ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 116 - about .3 mile NW of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAC001214400 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Inorganic solid waste 1.61 ton Site: F&F AUTO/TRUCK BODY SHOP INC Address: 2323 PORTER ST LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 118 - about .3 mile S of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAL912473370

| | Unspecified solvent mixture | ton | <u>88-91</u> | <u>92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01</u> .21 | 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
|---|--|--------------------------|----------------------|--|--|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LIBERTY BODY SHOP 2323 PORTER ST LOS ANGELES 118 - about .3 mile S EPA ID#: CAL000124018 | of the | subject | | |
| | Unspecified solvent mixture | ton | <u>88-91</u> | <u>92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01</u> .13 .23 | 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | A E P INDUSTRIES 2222 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 119 - about .3 mile S EPA ID#: CAD981368491 | of the s | subject | | |
| | Hvdrocarbon solvents | ton | <u>88-91</u> 4.42 | <u>92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01</u> 1.56 | 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| | Off-spec, aged or surplus org | ton | | 1.75 | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | POUR LE BEBE 2222 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 119 - about .3 mile S EPA ID#: CAD008309916 | of the s | subject | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | A E P INDUSTRIES 2222 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 119 - about .3 mile S EPA ID#: CAX000128413 | of the s | subject | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | POR LE BEBE INC (DBA 2222 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 119 - about .3 mile S EPA ID#: CAL000059852 |) BAB | Y GUE subject | | |
| | Unspecified aqeous solution Unspecified solvent mixture Waste oil and mixed oil Other organic solids Empty containers<30 gal | ton ton ton ton | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 13.14 42.07 7.68 7.17 6.25 1.67 20.29 26.65 8.23 .18 .3 | 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES SERVIC 2222 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 119 - about .3 mile S EPA ID#: CAL000213581 | E STA | ΓΙΟΝ subject | | |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil Unspec organic liquid mixture Other organic solids Empty containers<30 gal | ton ton ton | <u>88-91</u> 1.28 | 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 1.66 3.2 44.31 3.6 | <u>02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 3765 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | PRKASIN COMPANY 2184 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 120 - about .3 mile S EPA ID#: CAC002603268 | of the s | subject | | |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil | ton | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | <u>06/07</u> .66 | 08/09 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
|---|--|--|----------------|------------|---------------------|---------------------------|---------|-------|----------------------------|--|--------------|-------|--------------------|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | BROMLEY PRODUCTIONS 2476 HUNTER ST LOS ANGELES 121 - about .3 mile SE o EPA ID#: CAC002595883 | S LIM f the | ITED subjec | LI | | | | | | | | | |
| | Latex waste Unspec organic liquid mixture | ton ton | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | <u>96/97</u> | <u>98/99</u> | 00/01 | 02/03 | <u>04/05</u> .06 .06 | <u>06/07</u> | <u>08/09</u> | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | E L MANAGEMENT CO 2476 HUNTER ST LOS ANGELES 121 - about .3 mile SE o EPA ID#: CAC001110304 | f the | subjec | ct | | | | | | | | | |
| | Empty non-pesticide cont>30 gal | ton | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | <u>96/97</u> .18 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | 12/13 14/15 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | A-1 BROWN & SUPPLY IN 2436 HUNTER ST LOS ANGELES 122 - about .3 mile SE o EPA ID#: CAC000246081 | C f the | subjec | ct | .10 | | | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | CONWAY MATEO LLC 647 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 123 - about .3 mile N of EPA ID#: CAC002116000 | the s | subject | t | | | | | | | | | |
| | Other organic solids | ton | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | 96/97 | <u>98/99</u> .84 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | PENSKE TRUCK LEASING 2300 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 125 - about .3 mile S of EPA ID#: CAD981974041 | CO. | L.P. | t | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | 12/13 14/15 |
| | Aq sol with org residues > 10% Aq sol with org residues<10% Unspecified ageous solution Hydrocarbon solvents Unspecified solvent mixture Waste oil and mixed oil | ton ton ton ton | .6 .1 | .25 .05 | .83 .28 .19 | 1.04 .33 .13 .03 | .87 | 1.94 | 1.78 | .32 | .36 .02 | .62 | .58 |
| | Oil/water sludge | ton | 6.67 | 1.00 | | | | 50.52 | 25 | | | 18.76 | 6 17.93 |
| | Unspec organic liquid mixture Unspec organic liquid mixture Other organic solids | ton ton ton ton ton ton ton ton ton ton | 1.18 | 6.24 | .23 | 11.25 | 5 13.21 | .2 | .25 14.37 | .04 .12 .16 .2 .25 .27 .31 .33 .37 .52 .58 | | | |
| | Empty non-pesticide cont>30 gal Liq with hal org>1g/l | ton ton | .5 | 1.44 | | | .1 | | | | | | |

109 Page: Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

| | Hydrocarbon solvents | ton | 00-91 92 | .08 |
|---|---|--------------------|-----------------------|--|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | PACIFIC LOFT PARTNE 2323 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 131 - about .3 mile S EPA ID#: CAC002589240 | RS LLC | subject | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | VICTOR VALDEZ 2323 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 131 - about .3 mile S EPA ID#: CLU970016711 | of the s | subject | |
| | Asbestos containing waste | ton | <u>88-91 92</u> | 2-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 .84 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | DR ARTEMUS BRADFO 635 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 130 - about .4 mile N EPA ID#: CAC001505472 | RD RO | BOTICS | Ρ |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | BARAN CO 635 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 130 - about .3 mile N EPA ID#: CAC000523536 | of the s | subject | |
| | Unspec oil cont waste | ton | <u>88-91 92</u> | 2 <u>-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 2.91 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | JOEL UNANGST 2486 HUNTER ST LOS ANGELES 129 - about .3 mile SE EPA ID#: CAC002237865 | E of the | subject | |
| | Unspecified aqeous solution | ton | <u>88-91 92</u> .4 | 2-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 42 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ISADORE IRVING CANT 2307 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 127 - about .3 mile S EPA ID#: CAC001004920 | OR of the s | ubject | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | MISSION FURNITURE N 652 S IMPERIAL ST LOS ANGELES 126 - about .3 mile N EPA ID#: CAD009546052 | NFG CO of the s |)# subject | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | HERTZ PENSKE TRUCH 2300 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 125 - about .3 mile S EPA ID#: CAX000217497 | K RENT | AL subject | |

Page: 110 Date: 06-18-2015

2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;20 16 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL

Job: EEMA8998-C

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | MICHEAL KANG 634 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 132 - about .4 mile N of EPA ID#: CAC002700172 | the s | subject |
|---|---|--|--|
| | Tank Bottom waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .42 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | WILSON ST CORPORATIO 1321 S WILSON ST LOS ANGELES 133 - about .3 mile SW o EPA ID#: CAC002594387 | DN of the | subject |
| | Unspec organic liquid mixture | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 2.08 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | MARTIN METALS INC. 1321 S WILSON ST LOS ANGELES 133 - about .3 mile SW of EPA ID#: CAD008377129 | of the | subject |
| | | | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: | Sol without metals (PH >12.5) Off-spec,aged/surplus inorg Inorganic solid waste Waste oil and mixed oil Unspec oil cont waste Tank Bottom waste Polychlorinated biphenyls Off-spec, aged or surplus org Unspecified sludge Baghouse waste Contaminated soil Liq with nickel > 134 mg/l Liq with selenium>100 mg/l Liq with PCB > 50 mg/l Liquids with pH<2 E G SMITH CONSTRUCTION 1333 S WILSON ST LOS ANGELES | ton ton ton ton ton ton ton ton ton ton | .75 .41 65.45 .12 .12 1.87 .38 .12 11.97 1.05 216 4.58 1.25 1.69 .68 RD INC |
| Map Loc: Status: | 135 - about .3 mile SW (EPA ID#: CAD981569213 | of the | subject |
| | | | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> |
| 0.1 | Unspecified ageous solution | ton | .22 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | FARMERS PRODUCE PRO 725 S CHANNING ST LOS ANGELES 136 - about .3 mile NW (EPA ID#: CAC000145261 | OJEC | subject |
| | Contaminated soil | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 75.84 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 725 S CHANNING ST LOS ANGELES 136 - about .3 mile NW (EPA ID#: CAC002568338 | GAS of the | CO INC subject |
| | Contaminated soil | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> |
| | | 1011 | |

| B8-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15Tank Bottom wasteton 3.33 Site:GREYHOUND BUS LINE INCAddress:1614 E 7TH STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:138- about .3 mile NW of the subjectStatus:EPA ID#: CAC002346983B8-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15Absestos containing wasteton1.68Site:CRUZ LINESAddress:1614 E 7TH STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:138Site:SUBURBAN PROPANEAddress:1614 E 7TH ST,IN STREET ATCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:138Site:SUBURBAN PROPANEAddress:1614 E 7TH ST,IN STREET ATCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:138Site:SUBURBAN PROPANEAddress:1614 E 7TH ST,IN STREET ATCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:138Address:1614 E 7TH ST,IN STREET ATCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:138About .3 mile NW of the subject | Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ADOLF COORS CO. 780 S ALAMEDA ST LOS ANGELES 137 - about .3 mile W of EPA ID#: CAC000205133 | the | subjec | t | | | | | | | | | |
|---|---|---|--|----------------------|-------|------------|-------|-------|-------|-------|----------|-------|-------|--------------------|
| Site: GREYHOUND BUS LINE INC Address: 1614 E 7TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 138 - about .3 mile NW of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAC002346983 | | Tank Bottom waste | ton | <u>88-91</u> 3.33 | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Asbestos containing waste ton 1.68 Site: CRUZ LINES 1.68 Address: 1614 E 7TH ST 1.68 City: LOS ANGELES 1.00 Map Loc: 138 - about .3 mile NW of the subject Site: SUBURBAN PROPANE Address: 1614 E 7TH ST,IN STREET AT City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 138 - about .3 mile NW of the subject Site: SUBURBAN PROPANE Address: 1614 E 7TH ST,IN STREET AT City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 138 - about .3 mile NW of the subject | Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | GREYHOUND BUS LINE IN 1614 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 138 - about .3 mile NW of EPA ID#: CAC002346983 | NC of the | subje | ct | | | | | | | | | |
| Asbestos containing waste ton 1.68 Site: CRUZ LINES Address: 1614 E 7TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 138 Site: EPA ID#: CAP999001800 Site: SUBURBAN PROPANE Address: 1614 E 7TH ST,IN STREET AT City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 138 - about .3 mile NW of the subject | | | 4 | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | 12/13 14/15 |
| Site: CRUZ LINES Address: 1614 E 7TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 138 - about .3 mile NW of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAP999001800 Site: SUBURBAN PROPANE Address: 1614 E 7TH ST,IN STREET AT City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 138 - about .3 mile NW of the subject | | Aspestos containing waste | ton | | | | | 1.68 | | | | | | |
| Site:SUBURBAN PROPANEAddress:1614 E 7TH ST,IN STREET ATCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:138- about.3 mile NW of the subject | Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | CRUZ LINES 1614 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 138 - about .3 mile NW c EPA ID#: CAP999001800 | of the | subje | ct | | | | | | | | | |
| Status: EPA ID#: CAC001302368 | Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SUBURBAN PROPANE 1614 E 7TH ST,IN STREET LOS ANGELES 138 - about .3 mile NW o EPA ID#: CAC001302368 | T AT | subje | ct | | | | | | | | | |
| 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 | | | | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | 12/13 14/15 |
| Unspec organic liquid mixture ton .21 Other organic solids ton .35 | | Unspec organic liquid mixture Other organic solids | ton ton | | | .21 .35 | | | | | | | | |
| Site:GREYHOUND LINES INCAddress:1614 E 7TH STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:138 - about .3 mile NW of the subjectStatus:EPA ID#: CAD981439342 | Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | GREYHOUND LINES INC 1614 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 138 - about .3 mile NW c EPA ID#: CAD981439342 | of the | subje | ct | | | | | | | | | |
| 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 | | | | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| Sol without metals (PH >12.5) ton .31 Ag sol with org residues<10% ton .25 22.39.7.01 7.78 36.44.21.63.8.12 18.21.32.74.11.28 | | Sol without metals (PH >12.5) Ag sol with org residues<10% | ton ton | | 25 | 22.39 | .31 | 7.78 | 36.44 | 21.63 | 8.12 | 18.21 | 32.74 | 11.28 |
| Aq sol with org residues<10% ton 5.88 | | Aq sol with org residues<10% | ton | | 0.77 | | | | | | | 57.06 | 10.0 | 5.88 |
| Asbestos containing waste ton 4.21 52.23 32 | | Asbestos containing waste | ton | 4.21 | 2.11 | | | | 52.23 | | 32 | 57.90 | 18.9 | |
| Inorganic solid waste ton .1 Oxvaenated solvents ton .96 | | Inorganic solid waste Oxvgenated solvents | ton ton | .96 | | | | | .1 | | | | | |
| Hydrocarbon solvents ton 1.82 .79 .21 Waste oil and mixed oil ton 85.69.52.54.13.24.217 .255 .2048.222 .22.37.38.78.67.54 | | Hydrocarbon solvents Waste oil and mixed oil | ton | 1.82 | 52 54 | .79 | .21 | 255 | 2048 | 222 | <u> </u> | 38 78 | 67 54 | |
| Oil/water sludge ton 20.85 .83 .33 127 238 | | Oil/water sludge | ton | 00.00 | 20.85 | .83 | 217 | 200 | .33 | | 22.57 | 50.70 | 127 | 238 |
| Unspec oil cont waste ton 68.37 147 244 .72 Unspec oil cont waste ton .38 | | Unspec oil cont waste Unspec oil cont waste | ton ton | | | | | | 68.37 | | | 147 | 244 | .72 .38 |
| Tank Bottom waste ton 10.41 | | Tank Bottom waste | ton ton | 10.41 5.83 | | | | | | | | | | |
| Other organic solids ton .2 1.6 .55 1.7 .36 2.1 2.84 | | Other organic solids | ton | 0.00 | 10.5 | .2 | 1.6 | .55 | 1.7 | | .36 | 2.1 | 2.84 | |
| Liq with arsenic>500 mg/l ton 2.08 | | Liq with arsenic>500 mg/l | ton | | 42.5 | | | | | 2.08 | | | | |
| Liq with hal org>1g/l ton 1.5 .52 | | Liq with hal org>1g/l | ton | | 1.5 | .52 | | | | | | | | |
| Site: COMMERCIAL IRONWORKS | Site: | COMMERCIAL IRONWOR | <s< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></s<> | | | | | | | | | | | |
| City: LOS ANGELES | City: | LOS ANGELES | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Map Loc: 139 - about .3 mile SE of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAC000615072 | Map Loc: Status: | 139 - about .3 mile SE of EPA ID#: CAC000615072 | f the | subjec | t | | | | | | | | | |

| | Oil/water sludge | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 4.37 |
|---|---|--------------------------|--|
| Site: Address: City: | CITY OF LOS ANGELES D 7TH ST, VIADUCT OVER I LOS ANGELES | EPT _A RI | OF PU IVER |
| Map Loc: Status: | 140 - about .3 mile NE c EPA ID#: CAL000146279 | of the | subject |
| | Asbestos containing waste Inorganic solid waste Other organic solids Paint sludge | ton ton ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 .06 1.05 2.7 8.43 16.86 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | KATHERINE M JOHANSEN 1580 JESSE ST LOS ANGELES 141 - about .3 mile NE c EPA ID#: CAC002115024 | N TR | UST e subject |
| | | | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil Tank Bottom waste | ton ton | 5.84 1.46 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | 7TH SPACE PARTNERS 2140 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 142 - about .3 mile NE c EPA ID#: CAC000620024 | of the | subject |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | 7TH PLACE PARTNERS 2140 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 142 - about .3 mile NE c EPA ID#: CAC000984256 | of the | subject |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil Contaminated soil | ton ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .52 9 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | METAL PREPARATIONS 641 S IMPERIAL ST LOS ANGELES 143 - about .3 mile N of EPA ID#: CAL000008320 | the s | subject |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | METAL PREPARATIONS I 641 S IMPERIAL ST LOS ANGELES 143 - about .3 mile N of EPA ID#: CAL000009608 | NC the s | subject |
| | Aq sol with metals>restr levels Inorganic solid waste Halogenated solvents Other organic solids Liq with hal org>1g/l | ton ton ton ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 12.49 4.58 17.3 20.13 13.04 16.39 9.7 16.94 .5 2 1.5 8.25 5.41 1.34 .9 .1.25 1.38 1.14 |
| Site: Address: City: | LOWE DEV 748 S ALAMEDA ST LOS ANGELES | | |

Tank Bottom waste

ton

.2

144 - about .3 mile W of the subject Map Loc: Status: EPA ID#: CAC000574000 Site: SUN TOME CORPORATION Address: 1804 E 8TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 146 - about .3 mile W of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAC000204813 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Unspec oil cont waste ton 2.08 Site: BSTCO CO Address: 2160 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 147 - about .4 mile NE of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAD000301580 Site: PACIFIC BELL Address: 806 S ALAMEDA ST City: COMPTON Map Loc: 152 - about .4 mile W of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAL000018000 LA SOUTH CENTRAL Site: 2172 E 7TH ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 153 - about .4 mile NE of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAD981692619 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Aq sol with org residues<10% ton 1.9 3.95 7.21 5.95 2.05 2.03 1.22 Unspecified ageous solution ton .32 174 6.04 .79 .34 Inorganic solid waste .32 1.98 11.01 4 3.31 5.24 1.14 122 .6 ton Unspecified solvent mixture ton .74 Waste oil and mixed oil 56.32 6 17.8 15.62 33.15 46.23 ton .32 .96 Oil/water sludge 12.92 68.8 5.42 ton Unspec oil cont waste .3 12.51 .75 ton Tank Bottom waste ton .2 Off-spec, aged or surplus org ton .05 .88 .46 .24 3.69 2.18 Off-spec, aged or surplus org .93 ton Org liquids with halogens ton 3.49 Org liquids with restr metals ton .75 Unspec organic liquid mixture .49 3.11 2.99 14.59 .23 ton Other organic solids 1.22 .85 .5 .8 ton Empty non-pesticide cont>30 gal ton .2 .2 Contaminated soil 1014 ton Lig with lead > 500 mg/l .61 ton Lig with hal org>1g/l ton .27 4.11 5.25 2.01 Site: LA SOUTH CENTRAL Address: 2172 E 7TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 153 - about .4 mile NE of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAD981692619 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Aq sol with org residues<10% ton 3.95 5.95 2.05 2.03 1.9 7.21 1.22 Unspecified ageous solution .32 174 6.04 .79 .34 ton 3.31 5.24 Inorganic solid waste ton .32 1.98 1.14 122 11.01 4 .6 Unspecified solvent mixture .74 ton 15.62 33.15 46.23 Waste oil and mixed oil .32 .96 56.32 6 17.8 ton Oil/water sludge 12.92 68.8 ton 5.42 Unspec oil cont waste ton 12.51 .3 .75

| 2001-2005 S/ 16 BAY ST, L | ACRAMI .OS ANG | ENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2 GEL | 0 | | | | | | Pa Da Jo | ige: ate: b: | 114 06-1 EEN | 8-201 1A899 | 15 98-C |
|---|--------------------------------------|---|--|----------------------|--------------|-------------|--------------------|-----------------------|----------------|--------------------|--------------------|----------------|-------------------------|
| | | Off-spec, aged or surplus org Off-spec, aged or surplus org Org liquids with halogens Org liquids with restr metals Unspec organic liquid mixture Other organic solids Empty non-pesticide cont>30 gal Contaminated soil | ton ton ton ton ton ton | .49 | 3.49 3.11 | .75 2.99 | 14.59 | .05 | .88 | .46 1.22 .2 | .24 .23 .85 | 3.69 .5 | 2.18 .93 .8 .2 |
| | | Liq with lead > 500 mg/l Liq with hal org>1g/l | ton ton | .61 .27 | 4.11 | 5.25 | 2.01 | | | | | | |
| Site Ado City Maj Sta | e: dress: /: p Loc: tus: | BOUTROS SHELL 1520 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 154 - about .4 mile SE of EPA ID#: CAL921743819 | the | subjec | st | | | | | | | | |
| Site Ado City Ma Sta | e: dress: /: p Loc: tus: | GARCIA AUTOMOTIVE RE 1520 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 154 - about .3 mile SE of EPA ID#: CAL000263859 | PAIF the | R subjec | zt | | | | | | | | |
| | | Oil/water sludge | ton | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 00/0 | <u>1 02/03</u> .94 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site Ado City Maj Sta | e: dress: /: p Loc: tus: | SHELL OIL CO #204-4534-2 1520 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 154 - about .3 mile SE of EPA ID#: CAD981406101 | 2908 the | subjec | ct | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 00/0 | 1 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | 12/13 14/15 |
| | | Sol without metals (PH >12.5) Aq sol with org residues<10% Tank Bottom waste Empty non-pesticide cont>30 gal Empty containers<30 gal | ton ton ton ton | | | | 2.92 .15 | .32 1.3 2 | | | | | .23 |
| Site Ado City Ma Sta | e: dress: /: p Loc: tus: | Y & R FASHION INC 800 MC GARRY ST, 2ND LOS ANGELES 155 - about .4 mile W of EPA ID#: CAL000271586 | FLO the | OR subjec | t | | | | | | | | |
| | | Unspec organic liquid mixture | ton | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 00/0 | 1 02/03 | .12 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site Ado City Ma Sta | e: dress: /: p Loc: tus: | CHAFFE WAREHOUSE 800 MC GARRY ST LOS ANGELES 155 - about .4 mile W of EPA ID#: CAC000287969 | the | subjec | t | | | | | | | | |
| Site Ado City Ma _l Sta | e: dress: /: p Loc: tus: | CHAFFEE WAREHOUSE 821 S ALAMEDA ST LOS ANGELES 156 - about .4 mile W of EPA ID#: CAC000195328 | thes | subjec | t | | | | | | | | |
| | | Tank Bottom waste | ton | <u>88-91</u> 1.66 | 92-95 | 96/97 | <u>98/99 00/01</u> | 1 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site Ado | e: dress: | THE HOME DEPOT 840 S MISSION RD | | | | | | | | | | | |

 Page:
 115

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES 157 - about .4 mile E of EPA ID#: CAC002753934 | the s | subject | | | | | | | | | |
|---|---|-------------------|--------------------|--------------------------|----------------------------|-------|---------------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|---------|--------------------|
| | | | 88-91 92- | 95 96/97 | 7 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 3 04/05 | 5 06/07 | 7 08/09 | 0 10/11 | 12/13 14/15 |
| | Sol without metals (PH >12.5) Off-spec, aged or surplus org | ton ton | | | | | | | | | | <u> </u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | WASTE TRANSFER AND I 840 S MISSION RD LOS ANGELES 157 - about .4 mile E of EPA ID#: CAD983650953 | RECY the s | CLING | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 88-91 92- | 95 96/97 | 7 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 3 04/05 | 5 06/07 | 7 08/09 | 0 10/11 | 12/13 14/15 |
| | Aq sol with org residues<10% Off-spec,aged/surplus inorg Oxygenated solvents Unspecified solvent mixture | ton ton ton | .06 | .02 | .2 | | | .08 | .45 | | | |
| | Unspec oil cont waste Polychlorinated biphenyls | ton ton | | .2 | .2 | | .3 .7 | | | | | |
| | Latex waste | ton ton | | | | | | .02 | | .02 21 | | |
| | Off-spec, aged or surplus org | ton | 4.0 | | | .2 | | | .02 | .36 | .26 | .17 |
| | Unspec organic liquid mixture | ton | .13 | 1.06 | | | | | .18 | .15 | | |
| | Other organic solids Empty containers<30 gal | ton ton | .2 | .66 | | .35 | .15 | .09 | .07 | | | |
| | Lab waste chemicals | ton ton | 37 | .3 38 | 22 | | .12 | | | | | |
| | Liq with hal org>1g/l Liq with pH<2 & restr metals | ton ton | .27 | .50 | 2.2 | | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | OIL DYNAMICS 1540 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 158 - about .4 mile SE o EPA ID#: CAD980695290 | f the | subject | | | | | | | | | |
| | Ag sol with org residues<10% | ton | <u>88-91 92-</u> | 95 96/97 | 7 <u>98/99</u> .72 | 00/01 | <u>02/03</u> .84 | 3 04/05 | 5 06/07 | 7 08/09 | 0 10/11 | 12/13 14/15 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | WALTER SEYMOUR & ER 1540 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 158 - about .4 mile SE o EPA ID#: CAC000038596 | NEST | T COKER subject | | | | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | UNION PACIFIC RAILROA 11TH & LEMON ST LOS ANGELES 159 - about .4 mile S of EPA ID#: CAC001353008 | D the s | subject | | | | | | | | | |
| | Empty containers<30 gal Contaminated soil Auto shredder waste | ton ton ton | <u>88-91 92-</u> | 9 <u>5 96/97</u> 1710 | 7 <u>98/99</u>) 630 | 00/01 | 02/03 | <u>3 04/05</u> | <u>5 06/07</u> | <u>7 08/09</u> | 0 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LA CITY - SOUTH CENTRA 786 S MISSION RD LOS ANGELES 160 - about .4 mile E of EPA ID#: CAL000304259 | AL SA the s | ANITA subject | | | | | | | | | |

88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15

| 2001-2005 SACRAM 16 BAY ST, LOS AN | IENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST GEL | ;20 | | | Page: Date: Job: | 116 06-18-2015 EEMA8998-C |
|---|--|--------------------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|------------------------|---|
| | Tank Bottom waste Tank Bottom waste Contaminated soil | ton ton ton | | | .14 .2 1 | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | EVERGREEN AES 785 S MISSION RD LOS ANGELES 161 - about .4 mile E c EPA ID#: CAC002680786 | of the s | subject | | | |
| | Off-spec, aged or surplus org | ton | <u>88-91 :</u> | 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 | 02/03 04/05 06/07 | <u>7 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .38 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | MACK TRUCKS INC. 2340 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 162 - about .4 mile S of EPA ID#: CAX000130922 | of the s | subject | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | UNIVERSAL MACK SALE 2340 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 162 - about .4 mile S of EPA ID#: CAD981655582 | S & S' of the s | VC subject | | | |
| | Unspecified aqeous solution Waste oil and mixed oil Other organic solids | ton ton ton | <u>88-91 (</u> 1.51 3.33 .55 | 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 | 02/03 04/05 06/07 | <u>7 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | BRYCE HELLMAN FAMIL 777 S MISSION RD LOS ANGELES 163 - about .4 mile E c EPA ID#: CAC002599007 | Y PAF | RTNER | SH | | |
| | | | 88-91 | 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 | 02/03 04/05 06/07 | 7 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil Lab waste chemicals Lab waste chemicals Lab waste chemicals | ton ton ton ton | | | 2 .02 .02 | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SUNNY SALLY INC 777 S MISSION RD LOS ANGELES 163 - about .4 mile E c EPA ID#: CAL000147339 | of the s | subject | | | |
| | Aq sol with org residues<10% | ton | <u>88-91 :</u> | <u>92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01</u> .19 | 02/03 04/05 06/07 | 7 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES SALAD C 777 S MISSION RD LOS ANGELES 163 - about .4 mile E c EPA ID#: CAC002349169 | O of the s | subject | | | |
| | Aq sol with org residues<10% | ton | <u>88-91 </u> | <u>92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01</u> .22 | 02/03 04/05 06/07 | 7 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES SALAD C 777 S MISSION RD LOS ANGELES 163 - about .4 mile E c EPA ID#: CAL000225072 | O of the s | subject | | | |

 Page:
 117

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| | Lig with hal org>1g/l | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .12 |
|---|--|-------------------|--|
| e 1 | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | MOHLIS REALTY 1600 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 164 - about .4 mile S o EPA ID#: CAC000859760 | f the s | ubject |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | 1 X L. A. WRECKING 1600 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 164 - about .4 mile S o EPA ID#: CAC001070624 | f the s | ubject |
| | Tank Bottom waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 2.71 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | CHEFS CHOICE EGG CC 658 MESQUIT ST VAN NUYS 165 - about .4 mile NE EPA ID#: CAC000178805 | MPAN of the | IY, INC. subject |
| otatus. | LFA 1D#. CACOUT70003 | | |
| | Tank Bottom waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .41 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ATC PROPERTIES LLC 728 S ALAMEDA ST LOS ANGELES 166 - about .4 mile W o EPA ID#: CAC001404080 | of the s | subject |
| | Tank Bottom waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 4.59 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SPIRIT ACTIVEWEAR 2150 E 10TH ST LOS ANGELES 167 - about .4 mile S o EPA ID#: CAR000087403 | f the s | ubject |
| | | | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| | Hydrocarbon solvents Other organic solids Liq with hal org>1g/l | ton ton ton | .16 .28 .12 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES TIMES/W 1321 WHOLESALE ST LOS ANGELES 168 - about .4 mile NW EPA ID#: CAD982500860 | HOLE: | SALE ST subject |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | INTERNATIONAL FAMILY 614 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 169 - about .4 mile N c EPA ID#: CAX000243287 | TINC | subject |
| Site: Address: | BANK OF AMERICA NA 722 S ALAMEDA ST | | |

 Page:
 118

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES 170 - about .4 mile NW of the subject EPA ID#: CAC002677509 | |
|---|---|--|
| | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10</u> Off-spec, aged or surplus org ton .1 | <u>)/11 12/13 14/15</u> 2 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | AMS EXOTIC 720 S ALAMEDA ST LOS ANGELES 171 - about .4 mile NW of the subject EPA ID#: CAC002718195 | |
| | Sol without metals (PH >12.5) ton Unspecified ageous solution ton Off-spec, aged or surplus org ton Empty non-pesticide cont>30 gal ton Liquids with pH<2 | V <u>11 12/13 14/15</u> .8 .15 .4 .01 .04 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | EXCLUSIVELY NATURAL COMPANY 1618 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 172 - about .4 mile S of the subject EPA ID#: CAC001236944 | |
| | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10 Aq sol 2 <ph<12.5 anions="" reactive="" td="" ton<=""> .11 .</ph<12.5> | <u>//11 12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | CLEVELAND WRECKING CO 840 S ALAMEDA ST LOS ANGELES 173 - about .4 mile W of the subject EPA ID#: CAD000302422 | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | NATIONAL AUTOMOTIVE CENTER 2363 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 174 - about .4 mile S of the subject EPA ID#: CAL000069229 | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | MILES INTERNATIONAL METAL CO L 1910 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 176 - about .4 mile SW of the subject EPA ID#: CAL000353312 | |
| | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10 Waste oil and mixed oil ton | <u>//11 12/13 14/15</u> .21 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES SCRAP IRON & METAL 1910 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 176 - about .4 mile SW of the subject EPA ID#: CAL000216524 | |
| | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10 Waste oil and mixed oil ton 4.58 | <u>)/11 12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 177 - about .4 mile SE of the subject | |

| Status: | EPA ID#: CAX000234088 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|--|--|----------------------|---------------------|---------------------|-------------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|--------------------|------------------|-------------------|--------------------|--------------------|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | N G V ECOTRANS GROUP 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 177 - about .4 mile SE of EPA ID#: CAL000093406 | LLC | C subjec | t | | | | | | | | | |
| | Aq sol with org residues<10% Oxygenated solvents Unspecified solvent mixture Waste oil and mixed oil Other organic solids Empty containers<30 gal | ton ton ton ton ton | <u>88-91</u> | <u>92-95</u> .23 | <u>96/97</u> .57 | <u>98/99</u> 3.81 .33 5.88 | 00/01 5.6 .38 .76 7.9 .8 .07 | <u>02/03</u> .62 .05 3.85 | <u>04/05</u> | <u>06/07</u> | <u>08/09</u> | <u>10/11</u> | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | GLOBAL CONSTRUCTION 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 177 - about .4 mile SE of EPA ID#: CAC002671037 | the s | subjec | t | | | | | | | | | |
| | Asbestos containing waste | ton | <u>88-91</u> | <u>92-95</u> | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | <u>10/11</u> .4 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SO CA GAS CO OLYMPIC 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 177 - about .4 mile SE of EPA ID#: CAD981422017 | BASE the s | ubjec | t | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| | Aq sol with org residues<10% Unspecified ageous solution Asbestos containing waste Inorganic solid waste Oxygenated solvents Hydrocarbon solvents | ton ton ton ton ton ton | 4.02 .05 28.47 | 1.25 8.49 .04 | .21 | .41 .07 | .27 .05 | .5 5.04 .01 | .02 7.08 .03 | .21 .04 .1 | .05 | | .12 .05 1.54 |
| | Unspecified solvent mixture Waste oil and mixed oil Oil/water sludge | ton ton ton | 3.04 3.12 | 1.67 48.24 | 6.23 | 3.44 | 3.42 | 7.22 | 1.78 | .76 | | | |
| | Unspec oil cont waste Tank Bottom waste | ton ton | 16.34 2.08 | 6.88 | .13 | .77 | .34 | .52 | .08 1.87 | | .21 | | |
| | Polychlorinated biphenyls Polychlorinated biphenyls Adhesives Latex waste Off-spec, aged or surplus org | ton ton ton ton ton | .02 | .13 | .02 | 183 | 20.57 | 5.88 | 16.79 | .42 | .08 .03 .01 | .02 | 35.24 18.83 |
| | Org liquids with halogens Unspec organic liquid mixture | ton ton | 1 | .02 .02 | 66 | 55 | 1 0 | 21 | .14 | .1 | 02 | | 04 |
| | Paint sludge Empty non-pesticide cont>30 gal | ton ton | . 1 2.34 9.47 | .22 .59 .09 | .00 | .55 | 1.2 | .51 | .5 | .10 | .02 | | .04 |
| | Lab waste chemicals Gas scrubber waste Contaminated soil | ton ton ton | 20.71 | .08 185 | .27 | .06 | | | | .8 | | | .02 |
| | Liq with PCB > 50 mg/l Solids with hal org >1g/kg Liquids with pH<2 | ton ton ton | | .36 19.27 .07 | | | | | | .08 | | | .03 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | NGV ECOTRANS GROUP, 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD,BL LOS ANGELES 177 - about .4 mile SE of EPA ID#: CAL000208652 | LLC DG 3 the s | subjec | t | 00/07 | 00/00 | 00/04 | 00/00 | 0.4/05 | 00/07 | | | |

Aq sol with org residues<10% ton

<u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .14 .12

 Page:
 120

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| Site: Address: City: | DOWNTOWN DIVERSION 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD, BI LOS ANGELES | LDG | 3 | | | | | | |
|---|--|---|--------------------------|-------------------------------|---------------|-----------------------------|------------------------|---|--------------------|
| Map Loc: Status: | 177 - about .4 mile SE of EPA ID#: CAL000334138 | f the s | subject | | | | | | |
| | Unspecified alkaline solution | ton | <u>88-91 92</u> | 2-95 96/97 98/99 | 0 00/01 02/03 | 04/05 06/07 0 | <u>8/09</u> 01 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| | Aq sol with org residues<10% Unspec oil cont waste Off-spec, aged or surplus org Unspec organic liquid mixture Other organic solids Lab waste chemicals Household waste Liquids with pH<2 | ton ton ton ton ton ton ton | | | | | 63 18 1.22 01 | .08 .54 .03 .5 1.12 .16 .01 | .03 .02 .86 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | DOWNTOWN DIVERSION 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD,BL LOS ANGELES 177 - about .4 mile SE of EPA ID#: CAL000297207 | DG 3 | subject | | | | | | |
| | Household waste | ton | <u>88-91 92</u> | 2-95 96/97 98/99 | 0 00/01 02/03 | <u>04/05 06/07 0</u> .3 | 8/09 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SO CALIF GAS CO OLYMF 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 177 - about .4 mile SE of EPA ID#: CAD980636153 | PIC B | ASE subject | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | CITY OF L A GENERAL SE 1601 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 178 - about .4 mile S of EPA ID#: CAD981690209 | RVIC | CES ubject | | | | | | |
| | Oil/water sludge Tank Bottom waste | ton ton | <u>88-91 92</u> 18.34 | .63 | 0 00/01 02/03 | 04/05 06/07 0 | 8/09 | <u>10/11</u> | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | FIRE STATION #17 1601 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 178 - about .4 mile S of EPA ID#: CAC000306889 | the s | ubject | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | CITY OF LA GENERAL SE 1601 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 178 - about .4 mile S of EPA ID#: CAL000047641 | RVIC the s | ES ubject | | | | | | |
| | Aq sol with org residues > 10% Other organic solids | ton ton | <u>88-91 92</u> .7 | 2 <u>-95 96/97 98/99</u> 2 | 00/01 02/03 | <u>04/05 06/07 0</u> .23 | 8/09 | <u>10/11</u> | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ANGELUS WESTERN PAP 2474 PORTER ST LOS ANGELES 179 - about .4 mile SE of EPA ID#: CAL000097637 | ER F | TBRE subject | | | | | | |

| | | | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 0 | 8/09 10 | 0/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
|---|---|--------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|-------|--------------|---------------------|------------|--------------------|---------|----------------|------|--------------------|
| | Waste oil and mixed oil | ton | | | 4.17 | | | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ALL NU ICE CO INC 1549 INDUSTRIAL ST LOS ANGELES 183 - about .4 mile NW o EPA ID#: CAD980888572 | of the | subje | ct | | | | | | | | | |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil | ton | <u>88-91</u> 4.57 | <u>92-95</u> 4.17 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 0 | 8/09 10 | 0/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | T-A FINISHING INC 937 S ALAMEDA ST LOS ANGELES 184 - about .4 mile SW of EPA ID#: CAC000808800 | of the | subje | ct | | | | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | JAMES CHOU 937 S ALAMEDA ST LOS ANGELES 184 - about .4 mile SW o EPA ID#: CAC000672832 | of the | subje | ct | | | | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | MING HSUH CHEN 937 S ALAMEDA ST LOS ANGELES 184 - about .4 mile SW of EPA ID#: CAC000722144 | of the | subje | ct | | | | | | | | | |
| | Tank Bottom waste | ton | <u>88-91</u> | <u>92-95</u> .1 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 0 | <u>8/09 10</u> | 0/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ZIMMERMAN, STEPHEN 955 S ALAMEDA ST LOS ANGELES 185 - about .4 mile SW of EPA ID#: CAC000217081 | of the | subje | ct | | | | | | | | | |
| Site: | LA CONSOLIDATED FACI | ITIE | S | | | | | | | | | | |
| City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES 186 - about .4 mile E of EPA ID#: CAD981575657 | the s | ubject | | | | | | | | | | |
| | An sol with orn residues-10% | ton | <u>88-91</u> | <u>92-95</u> | 96/97 | <u>98/99</u> | 00/01 | 02/03 | <u>04/05</u> | 06/07 0 | 8/09 10 | 0/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| | Unspecified solvent mixture | ton ton ton ton | 1.49 8 | 2.62 3.54 | 1.28 | 1.13 | 3.53 1.54 .45 | .89 | 1.67 .33 .79 | | | | 11 |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil | ton | .0 | 3.28 | 29.19 | 4.17 | 9.67 | 34.51 | 3.49 | | | | |
| | Unspec oil cont waste | ton | 12.08 | 1.15 | 17.56 | 6.33 | 10.85 | 61.91 5 | 9.98 | 4.50 | | | |
| | Latex waste | ton ton | .62 | 1.27 3.37 | | | | | | 4.58 | | | |
| | Otf-spec, aged or surplus org Unspec organic liquid mixture | ton ton | 5.16 | .8 .87 | .12 | | | | | | | | |
| | Other organic solids Contaminated soil | ton ton | 6.03 | .2 528 | | | .06 | | | | | | |
| | Liq with lead > 500 mg/l | ton | .99 | 40.47 | 0.40 | 0.54 | 4.40 | 00.00 | | | | | |
| | ∟iq with hai org>1g/l | ton | 4.12 | 16.14 | 9.19 | 6.54 | 1.18 | 36.28 | .41 | | | | |

 Page:
 122

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| Site: Address: City: | LA 7TH STREET WEST 2222 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES | 4h a a | | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------------|--|------------|--------------|--------------|------------|---------------|---------------|----------------|--------------|---------------|---------------|--------------------|--------------------|
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAD981692379 | the s | ubject | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Ag col with org raciduce <10% | ton | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | 96/97 | <u>98/99</u> | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| | Unspecified ageous solution | ton | .32 | | 12 | 0.14 | 13.41 | 168 | 2.7 | 1.99 | .81 | 3.04 | |
| | Inorganic solid waste | ton | .64 | | .12 | | .15 | 492 | 5.31 | 2.1 | | 5.75 | 2.97 |
| | Hydrocarbon solvents | ton | 1.31 | .86 | .81 | .44 | | .10 | .4 | .25 | 07 | | |
| | Unspecified solvent mixture | ton | 4.05 | 0.79 | .4 | | | 0.54 | 44 70 | 4457 | .07 | .05 | 22.05 |
| | Oil/water sludge | ton | 1.25 | 1.75 | .58 .08 | | 4.17 | 2.51 | 28.14 | 14.57 6.01 | 25.24 4.17 | 44.44 | 32.95 |
| | Unspec oil cont waste Tank Bottom waste | ton | 1.69 | | | 1.15 | 1.77 | 39.62 | .35 | .04 | 2.5 .04 | .08 | .72 |
| | Off-spec, aged or surplus org Off-spec, aged or surplus org | ton ton | | .38 | .22 | | .92 | 2.76 | 2.19 | .85 | .2 | 3.7 | 2.08 .6 |
| | Off-spec, aged or surplus org Org liquids with halogens | ton ton | | 3.12 | | | | | | | | | .5 |
| | Org liquids with restr metals Unspec organic liquid mixture | ton ton | | 2.99 | 1 3.13 | | 4.21 | 2.49 | | | 9.51 .58 | | .22 |
| | Other organic solids Empty non-pesticide cont>30 gal | ton ton | | .06 .12 | | | .35 .1 | 1.2 .39 | 1.65 | .3 | .55 | .72 | 1.56 .01 |
| | Empty containers<30 gal Liq with hal org>1g/l | ton ton | 1.47 | .04 26.33 | 17.96 | 10.02 | .24 | .12 | .28 | .08 | | | |
| | | ton | | | .08 | | | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: | CITY OF LA GENERAL SE 2222 E 7TH ST | RVIC | ES | | | | | | | | | | |
| City: Map Loc: | LOS ANGELES | f tha | subior | ` † | | | | | | | | | |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAR000140434 | i uio | Subjec | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Inorganic solid waste | ton | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | <u>02/03</u> | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | <u>10/11</u> 45 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: | | | | | | | | .0 | | | | . 10 | |
| Address: | 2222 E 7TH ST | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| City: Map Loc: | LOS ANGELES 186 - about .4 mile NE o | f the | subjec | t | | | | | | | | | |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAC002553343 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Inorganic solid waste | ton | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil | ton | | | | | | 2.08 | | | | | |
| Site: | LA CONSOLIDATED FACIL | ITIE | S | | | | | | | | | | |
| City: | LOS ANGELES | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Map Loc: Status: | 186 - about .4 mile E of EPA ID#: CAD981575657 | the s | ubject | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 88-91 | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | 12/13 14/15 |
| | Aq sol with org residues<10% Unspecified aqeous solution | ton ton | | 1.25 5 | | 6.48 | 11.57 | 7 16.45 | 9.18 1.67 | | | | |
| | Asbestos containing waste Oxygenated solvents | ton ton | 1.49 | 2.62 | 1.28 | 1.13 | 3.53 1.54 | .89 | .33 .79 | | | | |
| | Hydrocarbon solvents Unspecified solvent mixture | ton ton | .8 | 3.54 | | | .45 .11 | | | | | | .11 |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil Oil/water sludge | ton ton | 12.08 | 3.28 | 29.19 | 4.17 13.57 | 9.67 56.27 | 34.51 61.91 | 3.49 9.98 | | | | |
| | Unspec oil cont waste Tank Bottom waste | ton ton | .62 | 1.15 1.27 | 17.56 | 6.33 | 10.85 | 5 | | 4.58 | | | |
| | Latex waste | ton | | 3.37 | | | | | | | | | |

 Page:
 123

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| | Off-spec, aged or surplus org Unspec organic liquid mixture Other organic solids Contaminated soil Liq with lead > 500 mg/l Liq with hal org>1g/l | ton ton ton ton ton | 5.16 6.03 .99 4.12 | .8 .87 .2 528 16.14 | .12 9.19 | 6.54 | .06 1.18 | 36.28 | .41 | | | | |
|---|--|---------------------------------|-----------------------------|---------------------------------|--------------|--------------|---------------------|---------------------|----------------|---------------|---------------|--------------|--|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LA 7TH STREET WEST 2222 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 186 - about .4 mile E of EPA ID#: CAD981692379 | the su | ıbject | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 88-91 | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| | Aq sol with org residues<10% Unspecified aqeous solution Off-spec,aged/surplus inorg | ton ton ton | .32 | | .12 | 6.14 | 13.41 | 21.75 168 | 15.91 2.7 | 6.24 1.99 | 3.34 .81 | 3.84 | 0.07 |
| | Inorganic solid waste Oxygenated solvents | ton ton | .64 | 86 | 81 | 11 | .15 | 492 .18 | 5.31 | 2.1 | | 5.75 | 2.97 |
| | Unspecified solvent mixture Unspecified solvent mixture | ton ton | 2 | .00 6.79 | .4 | .44 | | | .4 | .20 | .07 | .05 | |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil Oil/water sludge | ton ton | 1.25 | 1.75 | .58 .08 | | 4.17 | 2.51 50.98 | 11.79 28.14 | 14.57 6.01 | 25.24 4.17 | 44.44 | 32.95 |
| | Unspec oil cont waste Tank Bottom waste Off-spec, aged or surplus org Off-spec, aged or surplus org Off-spec, aged or surplus org | ton ton | 1.69 | | | 1.15 | 1.77 | 39.62 | .35 | .04 | 2.5 .04 | .08 | .72 |
| | | ton ton ton | | .38 | .22 | | .92 | 2.76 | 2.19 | .85 | .2 | 3.7 | 2.08 .6 .5 |
| | Org liquids with halogens Org liquids with restr metals | ton ton | | 3.12 2.99 | 1 3 13 | | 4 21 | 2 49 | | | 9.51 58 | | 22 |
| | Other organic solids Empty non-pesticide cont>30 gal | ton ton | | .06 | 0.1.0 | | .35 .1 | 1.2 .39 | 1.65 | .3 | .55 | .72 | 1.56 .01 |
| | Liq with hal org>1g/l Liquids with pH<2 | ton ton | 1.47 | .04 26.33 | 17.96 .08 | 10.02 | .24 | .12 | .28 | .08 | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | CHEVRON USA 901 S ALAMEDA ST LOS ANGELES 188 - about .4 mile SW o EPA ID#: CAC000051509 | f the s | subjec | rt | | | | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | ECI PRINTING 747 WAREHOUSE ST, F1 LOS ANGELES 189 - about .4 mile W of | 5 the s | ubject | : | | | | | | | | | |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAR000088963 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Liq with hal org>1g/l | ton | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 | 96/97 | <u>98/99</u> | <u>00/01</u> .27 | <u>02/03</u> .24 | 04/05 | <u>06/07</u> | 08/09 | <u>10/11</u> | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | AMERICAN APPAREL 747 WAREHOUSE ST LOS ANGELES 189 - about .4 mile W of EPA ID#: CAL000377000 | the s | ubject | : | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 88-91 | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | 12/13 14/15 |
| | Off-spec,aged/surplus inorg Inorganic solid waste Halogenated solvents Unspecified solvent mixture Waste oil and mixed oil Unspec oil cont waste | ton ton ton ton ton | | | | | | | | | | | 3.82 .39 .23 2.84 3.17 51 |
| | Unspec oil cont wate Off-spec, aged or surplus org | ton ton | | | | | | | | | | | .64 4.6 |

 Page:
 124

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| | Off-spec, aged or surplus org Other organic solids Empty containers<30 gal | ton ton ton | | | | | .04 .12 .12 |
|---|--|-------------------|-------------------------|---------------------------------|-------------------|-----------------------------|--------------------|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | L N COLOR 1381 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 190 - about .4 mile N of th EPA ID#: CAD983638636 | he sı | ıbject | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | L & N COLOR LAB 1381 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 190 - about .4 mile N of th EPA ID#: CAL921564545 | he sı | ıbject | | | | |
| | Restricted Metal Sludge | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 9</u> 52 | 9 <u>6/97 98/99 00/01</u> 17 | 02/03 04/05 06/07 | 7 08/09 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| | Photochemical waste | ton | .02 | .14 | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LN COLOR 1381 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 190 - about .4 mile N of th EPA ID#: CAL000095551 | he sı | ıbject | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | QUINN HEALTH PANTRY 680 S MYERS ST LOS ANGELES 191 - about .4 mile NE of EPA ID#: CAD981378425 | the s | ubject | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | VOLKSWORKS 1448 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 192 - about .4 mile N of th EPA ID#: CAD982050726 | he sı | ıbject | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | UNION CENTRAL COLD ST 1525 INDUSTRIAL ST LOS ANGELES 193 - about .4 mile NW of EPA ID#: CAD981583891 | ORA | GE INC | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | YRC USF REDDAWAY 10TH ST & LAWRENCE ST, LOS ANGELES 194 - about .4 mile SW of EPA ID#: CAC002188055 | SW (| CORNER O Subject | F | | | |
| | Inorganic solid waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 </u> | 96/97 98/99 00/01 | 02/03 04/05 06/07 | <u>7 08/09 10/11</u> .35 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | U S BRASS 1350 ELWOOD ST LOS ANGELES 195 - about .4 mile SW of EPA ID#: CAT080012545 | the s | subject | | | | |

Site: U.S. BRASS DIV. HOUSEHOLD MFG Address: 1350 ELWOOD ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 195 - about .4 mile SW of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAD981462039 Site: CONOCO PHILLIPS #250152 Address: 1800 E OLYMPIC BLVD City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 196 - about .4 mile SW of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAL000277991 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Aq sol with org residues<10% ton 1.51 Tank Bottom waste .2 ton Site: UNOCAL SVC STA #0152 Address: 1800 E OLYMPIC BLVD City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 196 - about .4 mile SW of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAD981646607 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Aq sol with org residues > 10% ton .64 Aq sol with org residues<10% ton 1.59 Unspecified ageous solution .46 ton Waste oil and mixed oil ton 1.67 Site: H & H OLYMPIC SERVICE Address: 1800 E OLYMPIC BLVD City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 196 - about .4 mile SW of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAD982052854 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Aq sol with org residues<10% .91 ton .15 Oil/water sludge 3 4 1 2.5 ton Unspec oil cont waste ton .3 Other organic solids .02 ton Site: **TOSCO CORPORATION STATION #303** 1800 E OLYMPIC BLVD Address: LOS ANGELES City: 196 - about .4 mile SW of the subject Map Loc: Status: EPA ID#: CAL000139083 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Aq sol with org residues<10% ton .04 2.6 Unspecified ageous solution .37 ton Site: BUTLER WASH RACK 1367 E 7TH ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES 197 - about .4 mile NW of the subject Map Loc: Status: EPA ID#: CAD981172547 Site: HONOLULU FREIGHT SERVICE Address: 2524 PORTER ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 198 - about .4 mile SE of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAC001241528 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Tank Bottom waste ton .84

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SUPERB PARTNERS 1701 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 199 - about .4 mile S of EPA ID#: CAC000753080 | of the s | subject |
|---|--|-------------------|--|
| | Oil/water sludge | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 1.67 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LIPKIN REALTY 2170 E 11TH ST LOS ANGELES 200 - about .4 mile S o EPA ID#: CAC002685072 | of the s | subject |
| | Tank Bottom waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 1.46 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | OVERLAND TERMINAL L 1807 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 201 - about .4 mile SW EPA ID#: CAC002637473 | LC of the | e subject |
| •••••• | | | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> |
| | Other organic solids | ton | .08 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | RSR CORP 2182 E 11TH ST LOS ANGELES 202 - about .4 mile S of EPA ID#: CAC002603113 | of the s | subject |
| | Conteminated acil | 40.0 | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| | Contaminated soil Contaminated soil Contaminated soil | ton ton ton | 18 23 23 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | QUEMETCO INC 2182 E 11TH ST LOS ANGELES 202 - about .4 mile S of EPA ID#: CAC002587198 | of the s | subject |
| | Contaminated soil | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 4.2 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | THERESA & FRANK LICH 2182 E 11TH ST LOS ANGELES 202 - about .4 mile S of EPA ID#: CAC000575632 | ITENE | BERG subject |
| | Asbestos containing waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .71 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | QUEMETCO INC 2182 E 11TH ST LOS ANGELES 202 - about .4 mile S of EPA ID#: CAP000053892 | of the s | subject |
| | | | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| | Inorganic solid waste | ton | 10 |

 Page:
 127

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| Site: | QUEMETCO CORPORATION |
|----------|---|
| Address: | 2182 E 11TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 202 - about .4 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAC000745752 |
| | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Inorganic solid waste ton 86.81 |
| Site: | BASF WYANDOTTE CORP/METRO |
| Address: | 1366 E 6TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 203 - about .4 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAT080029861 |
| Site: | STOVER SEED COMPANY |
| Address: | 1415 E 6TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 204 - about .4 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAC000252401 |
| Site: | WILSTAC, INC DBA AD ART CO |
| Address: | 1427 E 6TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 205 - about .4 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAD067754929 |
| | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| | Unspecified solvent mixtureton5.25.37Oil/water sludgeton.44Off-spec, aged or surplus orgton3.12Unspec organic liquid mixtureton2.24Organic solids with halogenston.09Other organic solidston.53Paint sludgeton3.47Photochemical wasteton.06Liq with hal org>1g/lton.171.21.28 |
| Site: | METROPOLITAN DISTRIBUTION CO |
| Address: | 1340 E 6TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 207 - about .4 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAX000044131 |
| Site: | METROPOLITAN DISTRIBUTION CENT |
| Address: | 1340 E 6TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 207 - about .4 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAD006814370 |
| Site: | METRO BUSINESS ARCHIVES |
| Address: | 1340 E 6TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 207 - about .4 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAC001088208 |
| | Unspec organic liquid mixture ton .15 |
| Site: | METRO BUSINESS ARCHIVES |
| Address: | 1340 E 6TH ST |

 Page:
 128

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES 207 - about .4 mile N of the subject EPA ID#: CAC000212025 |
|---|---|
| | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| | Asbestos containing waste ton .06 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | JUSTICE PRODUCTIONS 1340 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 207 - about .4 mile N of the subject EPA ID#: CAC000240593 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES GUN CLUB 1375 E 6TH ST,STE 7 LOS ANGELES 209 - about .4 mile N of the subject EPA ID#: CAL000284615 |
| | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> |
| | Other organic solids ton .25 .07 .12 143 .54 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | KONET CO INC 1362 LAWRENCE ST LOS ANGELES 210 - about .4 mile SW of the subject EPA ID#: CAC001408296 |
| | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Tank Bottom waste ton 7 09 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ENIVRONMENTAL TRANSLOADING SER 1333 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 211 - about .4 mile N of the subject EPA ID#: CAC001141968 |
| | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| | Inorganic solid wasteton.48Unspec organic liquid mixtureton.23Other organic solidston.21Liquids with pH<2 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | WILLIAM EDGARDO LOPEZ 1333 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 211 - about .4 mile N of the subject EPA ID#: CAC001017024 |
| | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Contaminated soil ton .21 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ENVIRONMENTAL TRANSLOADING SER 1333 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 211 - about .4 mile N of the subject EPA ID#: CAD020763751 |
| | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Inorganic solid waste ton Unspec oil cont waste ton Empty containers<30 gal |

 Page:
 129

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ALBERTS ORGANICS 1330 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 212 - about .4 mile N of EPA ID#: CAC000911136 | the s | subject |
|---|---|--------------------------|---|
| | Unspec oil cont waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .8 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | THOMAS LIN PROPERTY 1438 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 213 - about .4 mile N of EPA ID#: CAP601252777 | the s | subject |
| | Sol without metals (PH >12.5) Unspecified alkaline solution Inorganic solid waste Waste oil and mixed oil Unspec oil cont waste | ton ton ton ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 .04 .23 .9 .69 .46 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | 6TH STREET LOFTS LLC 1309 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 214 - about .4 mile N of EPA ID#: CAC002584159 | the s | subject |
| | Asbestos containing waste Off-spec, aged or surplus org | ton ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 .58 .33 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | MOBILE REFIGERATION S 1740 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 215 - about .4 mile SW o EPA ID#: CAL000001979 | SER\ | VICE e subject |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | BLUE DIAMOND APPAREI 1359 CHANNING ST LOS ANGELES 216 - about .4 mile SW of EPA ID#: CAL922945177 | _L of the | e subject |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | COAST LIGHTING 1359 CHANNING ST LOS ANGELES 216 - about .4 mile SW o EPA ID#: CAD981643034 | of the | e subject |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | BABA ENTERPRISES 1359 CHANNING ST LOS ANGELES 216 - about .4 mile SW of EPA ID#: CAL913474550 | of the | e subject |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | CITY OF L A GENERAL SE 1451 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 217 - about .4 mile N of EPA ID#: CAD981988322 | RVI the s | CES subject |

| | | | 88-91 | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 (| 08/09 1 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
|---|--------------------------------|--------|--------------|--------------|--------------------|-------|-------|-------------|--------|---------|---------|-------|--------------------|
| | Inorganic solid waste | ton | | | | .02 | | | | | | | - |
| Waste oil and mixed oil Oil/water sludge | ton ton | 6.25 | | | .42 | | | | | : | 3.8 | .3 | |
| | Unspec oil cont waste | ton | 0.20 | .18 | | | | | | | 57.34 | 5 | |
| | Off-spec, aged or surplus org | ton | | 7 | | .02 | | .33 | .07 | | | | |
| | Contaminated soli | ION | | .7 | | | | | | | | | |
| Site: | ALBE MARLE CORPORAT | ION | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Address: | 1301 E 6TH ST | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| City: Map Loc: | 218 - about 4 mile N of | tha a | ubiect | | | | | | | | | | |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAC001270352 | 110 5 | ubjeci | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Inspecified ageous solution | ton | <u>88-91</u> | <u>92-95</u> | <u>96/97</u> 23 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 (| 08/09 1 | 10/11 | <u>12/13 14/15</u> |
| | Inorganic solid waste | ton | | | 1.84 | | | | | | | | |
| Citer | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Address: | AMERICAN PRESIDENT L | INES | LID | | | | | | | | | | |
| Citv: | LOS ANGELES | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Map Loc: | 218 - about .4 mile N of | the s | ubject | | | | | | | | | | |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAR000013243 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 88-91 | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 (| 08/09 1 | 10/11 | 12/13 14/15 |
| | Unspec organic liquid mixture | ton | 0001 | 02 00 | .17 | 00/00 | 00/01 | 02/00 | 0 1/00 | 00/07 0 | 0,00 | 10/11 | 12/10/11/10 |
| | Other organic solids | ton | | | 2.32 | .4 | | | | | | | |
| | Empty non-pesticide com>30 gai | ton | | | 1.43 | | | | | | | | |
| Site: | SHOWA MARINE & COLD | STOF | RAGE | | | | | | | | | | |
| Address: | 668 S ALAMEDA ST | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| City: | LOS ANGELES | f the | aubia | ~+ | | | | | | | | | |
| Status: | 219 - about .4 mile NVV (| n the | subjec | 1 | | | | | | | | | |
| Otatus. | LFA 1D#. 0AL000044307 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 0:4-1 | | | | ~- | | | | | | | | | |
| Address: | SHOWA MARINE AND CO | LDS | IORAG | σE | | | | | | | | | |
| City: | LOS ANGELES | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Map Loc: | 219 - about .4 mile NW of | of the | subjed | ct | | | | | | | | | |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAL000187839 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 88-91 | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 (| 08/09 1 | 10/11 | 12/13 14/15 |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil | ton | 0001 | 02 00 | 2.06 | 00/00 | 00/01 | 1.24 | 0 1/00 | 1.25 | 0,00 | 10/11 | 1.19 |
| | Liq with hal org>1g/l | ton | | | | | | | | .38 | | 1.14 | |
| Site: | NADELL & CO INC | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Address: | 1313 E 6TH ST | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| City: | LOS ANGELES | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Map Loc: | 220 - about .4 mile NW of | of the | subjeo | ct | | | | | | | | | |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAD047456678 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 88-91 | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 (| 08/09 1 | 10/11 | 12/13 14/15 |
| | Unspecified alkaline solution | ton | | | | | | 3.52 | | | | | |
| | Unspec organic liquid mixture | ton | | | | | | .41 3.77 | | | | | |
| | Other organic solids | ton | | | | | | .7 | | | | | |
| Site | FAGLELISA | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Address: | 1313 E 6TH ST | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| City: | LOS ANGELES | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Map Loc: | 220 - about .4 mile N of | the s | ubject | | | | | | | | | | |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAC001422160 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 88-91 | 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 (| 08/09 1 | 10/11 | 12/13 14/15 |
| | Other organic solids | ton | | | - | .5 | | | | | | | |

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | TRANSLOADING SERVICE 1313 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 220 - about .4 mile NW o EPA ID#: CAX000092965 | S C | O subject |
|---|---|---------------------|--|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | BAYER CORP 1313 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 220 - about .4 mile N of EPA ID#: CAC002455055 | the s | subject |
| | Org liquids with halogens | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .2 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | MURPHY INDUSTRIAL CO RTE 10 & 10/60 SEPERATI LOS ANGELES 221 - about .4 mile E of EPA ID#: CAP601255630 | ATIN ON the s | NGS INC |
| | Inorganic solid waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 9 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | PROGRESSIVE PRODUCE 1266 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 222 - about .4 mile N of EPA ID#: CAC002274097 | CO the s | RP |
| | l ig with hal org>1g/l | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | PROGRESSIVE PRODUCE 1266 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 222 - about .5 mile NW o EPA ID#: CAL000072717 | CO | RPORATIO |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LUMARYS TIRE SERVICE 600 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 223 - about .5 mile N of EPA ID#: CAC001463184 | the s | subject |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil Tank Bottom waste Empty non-pesticide cont>30 gal | ton ton ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 8.88 2.08 10 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | BOO-TO ENTERPRISES IN 1291 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 225 - about .5 mile NW o EPA ID#: CAC000635656 | IC of the | subject |
| | Asbestos containing waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 9.26 |
| Site: Address: City: | STERICYCLE INC 654 S MYERS ST LOS ANGELES | | |

Page: 132 Date: 06-18-2015 Job:

| Map Loc: | 226 - about .5 mile NE of the subject |
|----------|--|
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAL000190216 |
| | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| | Inorganic solid wastetonInorganic solid wastetonUnspec organic liquid mixturetonOther organic solidstonOther organic solidstonPhotochemical wasteton.49.44 |
| Site: | LOS ANGELES CITY/COMMUNITY DEV |
| Address: | 843 S NAOMI AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 227 - about .5 mile W of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAX000081844 |
| Site: | OLYMPIC PLATING AND POLIS |
| Address: | 843 S NAOMI AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 227 - about .5 mile W of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAD008253205 |
| | Unspecified sludge ton 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| Site: | J&J DIESEL |
| Address: | 919 MC GARRY ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 228 - about .5 mile SW of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAD981634629 |
| Site: | WINTER & BAIN, INC |
| Address: | 1410 ELWOOD ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 229 - about .5 mile SW of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAD008315145 |
| | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 |
| | Oil/water sludgeton9.888.8913.68.724.1456.26Unspec oil cont wasteton6.67Unspec organic liquid mixtureton.33Other organic solidston.1.17 |
| Site: | NATIONAL AEROSOL PRODUCTS |
| Address: | 2200 E 11TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 230 - about .5 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAC000188223 |
| Site: | ACME DIE CUTTING SERVICE |
| Address: | 581 MATEO ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 231 - about .5 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAD054836523 |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil ton .46 .46 Oil/water sludge ton .46 |
| Site: | LA STRUCTURAL YARD ZONE #1 |
| Address: | 2474 E OLYMPIC BLVD |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 232 - about .5 mile SE of the subject |

EEMA8998-C

| Status: | EPA ID#: CAD981988447 | | |
|---|--|--------------------------|---|
| | Waste oil and mixed oil Off-spec, aged or surplus org Other organic solids Empty non-pesticide cont>30 gal Contaminated soil | ton ton ton ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 .02 .04 .02 .02 .02 .02 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | S. E. RYKOFF & CO. 761 TERMINAL ST LOS ANGELES 234 - about .5 mile W of EPA ID#: CAX000077032 | the | subject |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOOFAH PRODUCTIONS L 761 TERMINAL ST LOS ANGELES 234 - about .5 mile W of EPA ID#: CAC002560381 | LC | subject |
| | Unspecified aqeous solution | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 1.6 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | S E RYKOFF CO 761 TERMINAL ST LOS ANGELES 234 - about .5 mile W of EPA ID#: CAD981392095 | the | subject |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SE RYKOFF & CO 761 TERMINAL ST LOS ANGELES 234 - about .5 mile W of EPA ID#: CAD982349748 | the | subject |
| | Aq sol with org residues<10% Org liquids with restr metals | ton ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 14.6 .23 .33 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | S.E. RYKOFF 761 TERMINAL ST LOS ANGELES 234 - about .5 mile W of EPA ID#: CAC000564992 | the | subject |
| | Asbestos containing waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .25 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | S E RYKOFF CO 761 TERMINAL ST LOS ANGELES 234 - about .5 mile W of EPA ID#: CAD981392095 | the | subject |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ALAMEDA PRODUCE MAR 761 TERMINAL ST LOS ANGELES 234 - about .5 mile W of EPA ID#: CAC001274552 | RKET | r subject |
| | Ashestos containing waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 25 28 |
| | | | 20.20 |

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | S.E.RYKOFF & CO OF LO 761 TERMINAL ST LOS ANGELES 234 - about .5 mile W of EPA ID#: CAC000293881 | S AN | GELES subject |
|---|--|--------------------------|--|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ALAMEDA PRODUCE MA 761 TERMINAL ST LOS ANGELES 234 - about .5 mile W of EPA ID#: CAL000373282 | RKET | LLC subject |
| | Off-spec,aged/surplus inorg Asbestos containing waste Unspec oil cont waste Off-spec, aged or surplus org Other organic solids | ton ton ton ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 14 .06 1.62 .08 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ELEVATOR RESEARCH A 1420 ELWOOD ST LOS ANGELES 235 - about .5 mile SW EPA ID#: CAC001332904 | ND N of the | IANUFACT subject |
| | Unspec oil cont waste Other organic solids | ton ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> 4.8 .1 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | AESTHETIC FRAME DESI 1275 E 6TH ST LOS ANGELES 236 - about .5 mile NW EPA ID#: CAD982416364 | GN of the | subject |
| | Halogenated solvents Oxygenated solvents Other organic solids Empty containers<30 gal | ton ton ton ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 .13 .2 .08 .2 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SUN CHEMICALS 590 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 237 - about .5 mile N of EPA ID#: CAC002467327 | f the s | subject |
| | Other organic solids | ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | WORKING BEAR PRODUC 590 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 237 - about .5 mile N of EPA ID#: CAC002353903 | CTIOI | NS |
| | Unspecified solvent mixture Latex waste Other organic solids | ton ton ton | <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .04 .12 .07 |
| Site: Address: City: | NEW LINE CINEMA 590 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES | | |

Page: 135 Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

- about .5 mile N of the subject Map Loc: 237 Status: EPA ID#: CAC001220272 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Oxygenated solvents ton .21 Site: INMONT CORP 590 S SANTA FE AVE Address: LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 237 - about .5 mile N of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAD055779417 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Sol (PH>12.5) with restr metals ton .88 Sol without metals (PH >12.5) ton .23 Aq sol with org residues > 10%ton .22 Aq sol with org residues<10% 147 5.21 ton Off-spec,aged/surplus inorg ton .08 Asbestos containing waste ton 42.14 Inorganic solid waste ton .7 Unspecified solvent mixture 183 ton Off-spec, aged or surplus org ton .1 12.53 Unspec organic liquid mixture 19.41 ton Other organic solids 44.03 .04 ton Paint sludge 25.27 ton Contaminated soil ton 63.21 Liq with hal org>1g/l .23 ton .04 Liquids with pH<2 .04 ton Liq with pH<2 & restr metals ton .04 .2 Site: SUN CHEMICAL CORP Address: 590 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 237 - about .5 mile N of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAL912675535 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Aq sol with org residues<10% 2.75 ton Other organic solids ton .15 Site: **OLIVER & WILLIAMS ELEVATORS** Address: 1411 S WILSON ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 238 - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAX000086876 **OLIVER & WILLIAMS ELEVATORS** Site: Address: 1411 S WILSON ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: - about .5 mile S of the subject 238 Status: EPA ID#: CAC001022672 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Waste oil and mixed oil 2.14 ton **OLIVER & WILLIAMS ELEVATORS** Site: 1411 S WILSON ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: - about .5 mile S of the subject 238 Status: EPA ID#: CAL000179798 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Waste oil and mixed oil 13.08 16.96 ton Oil/water sludge ton .32 10.38 4.68 9.08 330 4.55 Other organic solids 1.85 ton

 Page:
 136

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | UNIVERSAL DYEING & PR 2303 E 11TH ST LOS ANGELES 239 - about .5 mile S of EPA ID#: CAR000201822 | INTI | ING, I subject | |
|---|---|--------------------------|--|-----|
| | | | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14 | /15 |
| | Halogenated solvents Oxygenated solvents Waste oil and mixed oil | ton ton ton | 4.13 .54 .33 2.3 | |
| Site: Address: City: | MILLS-MILLER-MILLS 942 LONG BEACH AVE, 9 LOS ANGELES | 942-9 | 944 | |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAC001506658 | the | subject | |
| | | | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14 | /15 |
| | Halogenated solvents Hydrocarbon solvents | ton ton | .06 .13 | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ABOOD, NICK 1401 ELWOOD ST LOS ANGELES 243 - about .5 mile SW of EPA ID#: CAC000255569 | of the | e subject | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | COMPLETE PARTS CLEAN 582 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 244 - about .5 mile N of EPA ID#: CAL000273894 | NER | R SERVICE subject | |
| | Aq sol with org residues > 10% Aq sol with org residues<10% Hydrocarbon solvents | ton ton ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14 .08 .07 11.18 2.66 15.29 3.21 | /15 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | COMPLETE PARTS CLEAN 582 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 244 - about .5 mile N of EPA ID#: CAC002567942 | NER | R SERVICE subject | |
| | Aq sol with org residues<10% Hydrocarbon solvents | ton ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14 .32 19.53 .32 65.54 | /15 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: | ELIE ENVIRONMENTAL SE 582 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 244 - about .5 mile N of | ERVI | VICES IN | |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAL000203192 | | | |
| | Aq sol with org residues > 10% Aq sol with org residues<10% Hydrocarbon solvents Unspec oil cont waste | ton ton ton ton | 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14 .03 6.86 135 7.38 148 2.71 1.7 | /15 |
| Site: Address: City: | SAFFOLA QUALITY FOOD 633 S MISSION RD LOS ANGELES | S | | |
| Nap Loc: Status: | 245 - about .5 mile NE 0 EPA ID#: CAL000026042 | i the | subject | |

 Page:
 137

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | WILSEY FOODS INC 633 S MISSION RD LOS ANGELES 245 - about .5 mile NE of EPA ID#: CAD131290330 | f the s | subjec | t | | | | | | | |
|---|---|--------------------------|---------|-------|-------|-----------------------------|------------|-------|-------|-----------|-------------------------|
| | | | 88-01 | 02-05 | 06/07 | 08/00 | 00/01 | 02/02 | 01/05 | 06/07 | 08/00 10/11 12/12 11/15 |
| | Aq sol with org residues > 10% Unspecified aqeous solution Unspecified aqeous solution Off-spec,aged/surplus inorg | ton ton ton ton | 00-91 | 92-90 | 90/97 | <u>96/99</u> 2.74 .23 | .67 2.7 | 1.57 | 2.8 | .2 .41 | 00/09 10/11 12/13 14/13 |
| | Halogenated solvents | ton | 22 | 2.07 | 2.07 | 2.48 | .89 | | | | |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil | ton | .22 | | | 5.46 | | 2.08 | 3.89 | 4.45 | 3.08 |
| | Tank Bottom waste | ton | .32 | | | | | 3947 | | | |
| | Off-spec, aged or surplus org | ton ton | 44 | | | | | .9 | | | |
| | Organic solids with halogens | ton | .91 | | | | | | | | |
| | Other organic solids | ton | | | | .34 | 26 | | | | |
| | Liq with hal org>1g/l | ton | | | | .69 | .20 | | | | |
| | Liquids with pH<2 | ton | 2.25 | 1.38 | | | | | .08 | | |
| Sito | BABA ENTERDRISES | | | | | | | | | | |
| Address: | 1395 CHANNING ST | | | | | | | | | | |
| City: | LOS ANGELES | | | | | | | | | | |
| Map Loc: | 246 - about .5 mile SW o | of the | subje | ct | | | | | | | |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAL000066467 | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Site: | S E RYKOFF & CO | | | | | | | | | | |
| City: | LOS ANGELES | | | | | | | | | | |
| Map Loc: | 247 - about .5 mile W of | the s | subject | t | | | | | | | |
| Status: | EPA ID#: CAD981368277 | | , | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 00 01 | 02.05 | 06/07 | <u>00/00</u> | 00/01 | 02/02 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 00/00 10/11 12/12 11/15 |
| | Sol without metals (PH >12.5) | ton | 00-91 | .41 | 90/97 | 90/99 | .55 | 02/03 | 04/03 | 00/07 | 00/03 10/11 12/13 14/13 |
| | Aq sol with metals>restr levels | ton | | | | | .08 | | | | |
| | Aq sol with org residues<10% | ton | 1 1 1 | 1 8/ | | .66 | .32 | | | | |
| | Off-spec,aged/surplus inorg | ton | 1.11 | 1.04 | 14.16 | | .48 | | | | |
| | Asbestos containing waste | ton | | 13.15 | .59 | .17 | | | | | |
| | Inorganic solid waste | ton | .03 | .78 | .02 | .12 | .32 | | | | |
| | Hydrocarbon solvents | ton | | | | .81 | .02 | | | | |
| | Unspecified solvent mixture | ton | .22 | 0.44 | 00 | 00 | 07 | | | | |
| | Oil/water sludge | ton ton | 1.26 | 2.44 | .23 | .69 | .37 | | | | |
| | Unspec oil cont waste | ton | | .69 | .23 | | .83 | | | | |
| | Pesticide rinse water | ton | .02 | | 25 | | | | | | |
| | Off-spec, aged or surplus org | ton | .28 | | .35 | | 1.45 | | | | |
| | Unspec organic liquid mixture | ton | 2.22 | | .23 | | | | | | |
| | Other organic solids | ton | 1.32 | | | .4 | .01 | | | | |
| | Photochemical waste | ton | .55 | | .2 | | .03 | | | | |
| | Lab waste chemicals | ton | | | | | .37 | | | | |
| | Detergent & soaps | ton | .22 | | | 02 | 07 | | | | |
| | ∟iquius witti p⊓ <z< td=""><td>ion</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>.02</td><td>.07</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></z<> | ion | | | | .02 | .07 | | | | |
| Site: Address: | L A CITY MAINTENANCE A 2484 E OLYMPIC BLVD | SPH | ALT F |) | | | | | | | |
| City: | LUS ANGELES | 4 h - | | | | | | | | | |
| iviap Loc: Status: | 248 - about .5 mile SE of EPA ID#: CAD981438120 | the | sudjec | τ | | | | | | | |

 Page:
 138

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LA ASPHALT PLANT #1 2484 E OLYMPIC BLVD LOS ANGELES 248 - about .5 mile SE o EPA ID#: CAD981988389 | f the | ubject | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|--|--------------------------|----------------------------|----------------------|---------------------|------------|-------|------------|-------|---------------------|---------------|------------|----------|
| | | | 00 01 02 05 | 06/07 | 00/00 | 00/01 | 02/02 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 00/00 | 10/11 | 12/12 11/1 | 5 |
| | Aq sol with org residues<10% Asbestos containing waste Oxygenated solvents | ton ton ton | .32 | 90/97 | .63 16.86 .07 | .31 | 40.96 | 6 .86 | .44 | .59 | .5 | 2/13 14/1 | 2 |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil Unspec oil cont waste Tank Bottom waste | ton ton ton | 42.92 83.4 1.88 .5 | .83 14.77 | 1.46 17.1 | 1.05 | | 1.66 .2 | | | 10.26 2.81 | | |
| | Off-spec, aged or surplus org Other organic solids Empty non-pesticide cont>30 gal Contaminated soil | ton ton ton ton | .5 1 2 .4 | 2.5 | .12 .25 .34 | .01 .52 | 6 | | | | .75 .4 | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | J.J.TRUCK REPAIR 938 LONG BEACH AVE LOS ANGELES 250 - about .5 mile W of EPA ID#: CAL000014171 | f the s | ubject | | | | | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | INK MAKERS INC 944 LONG BEACH AVE LOS ANGELES 251 - about .5 mile W of EPA ID#: CAD058032285 | f the s | ubject | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Unspec oil cont waste Unspec organic liquid mixture | ton ton | <u>88-91 92-95</u> .97 | <u>96/97</u> 1.38 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | 12/13 14/1 | <u>5</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | OLIVER WILSON ST 1418 ELWOOD ST LOS ANGELES 252 - about .5 mile SW of EPA ID#: CAD981635626 | of the | subject | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 88-91 92-95 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | 12/13 14/1 | 5 |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil Other organic solids | ton ton | 20.14 | | .06 | | | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ROGMA CONSTRUCTION 1328 WILLOW ST LOS ANGELES 254 - about .5 mile N of EPA ID#: CACO02628074 | SER the s | ICES IN | | | | | | | | | | |
| Olalus. | LFA ID#. 0A0002020074 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil | ton | <u>88-91 92-95</u> | <u>96/97</u> | <u>98/99</u> | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | <u>08/09</u> .42 | 10/11 | 12/13 14/1 | <u>5</u> |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | C & W CHEMICAL CO INC 1328 WILLOW ST LOS ANGELES 254 - about .5 mile N of EPA ID#: CAD048478499 | the s | bject | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Tank Bottom waste | ton | <u>88-91 92-95</u> 6.26 | 96/97 | 98/99 | 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 | 12/13 14/1 | <u>5</u> |
| Site: Address: | LINSOL CORP 1330 WILLOW ST | | | | | | | | | | | | |

LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 255 - about .5 mile N of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAX000241406 Site: CLIFF WALLS MACHINERY Address: 580 MATEO ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 256 - about .5 mile N of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAL000080864 Site: **KRUSE METALS** 1330 CHANNING ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 257 - about .5 mile SW of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAC001328832 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Waste oil and mixed oil .66 ton Site: KRUSI METALS MANUFACTURING CO. 1330 CHANNING ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 257 - about .4 mile SW of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAX000143461 Site: JOEL & ARONOFF WEST INC Address: 1323 WILLOW ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 259 - about .5 mile N of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAD077236487 Site: JOHN MORRELL & COMPANY Address: 1335 WILLOW ST LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 260 - about .5 mile N of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAC001076924 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Sol without metals (PH >12.5) ton .15 Aq sol with org residues<10% .5 ton 1.08 Waste oil and mixed oil ton Off-spec, aged or surplus org ton .54 Unspec organic liquid mixture .29 ton Empty non-pesticide cont>30 gal ton .42 Site: MORRELL AND COMPANY Address: 1335 WILLOW ST LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 260 - about .5 mile N of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAD982317182 Site: JOHN MORRELL & COMPANY Address: 1335 WILLOW ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 260 - about .5 mile N of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAC000229681 Site: SPILO, CHARLES G Address: 585 S SANTA FE AVE

City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 261 - about .5 mile N of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAC000520840 Site: MERRILL YOUNG Address: 1926 E 14TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 262 - about .5 mile SW of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAD982507311 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Waste oil and mixed oil ton .66 Off-spec, aged or surplus org ton 4.15 1.46 Unspec organic liquid mixture 2.58 1.28 7.5 ton Empty non-pesticide cont>30 gal ton .58 .31 Photochemical waste .41 .26 .09 ton Lig with chrom(IV)>500mg/I 1.46 ton KELLOW BROWN CO. Site: Address: 1926 E 14TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 262 - about .5 mile SW of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAX000078931 CENTURY SCREEN PRINTING Site: Address: 1421 LAWRENCE ST LOS ANGELES City: 263 - about .5 mile SW of the subject Map Loc: Status: EPA ID#: CAD981390628 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Oxygenated solvents ton .83 Site: COLTON, HENRY Address: 2155 E 14TH ST City: LOS ANGELES 264 - about .5 mile S of the subject Map Loc: Status: EPA ID#: CAC000251473 Site: JM HARMON CONSTRUCTION CO Address: 2155 E 14TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 264 - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAC002450639 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Unspec oil cont waste ton .22 A-1 EXPRESS DELIVERY SERVICE Site: 2163 E 14TH ST Address: LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 265 - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAX000048967 Site: COAST PRODUCE Address: 2163 E 14TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 265 - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAR000082263

Aq sol with org residues<10% .18 ton Site: COAST PRODUCE Address: 2163 E 14TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 265 - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAL921743824 A1 EXPRESS DELIVERY SERVICE IN Site: 2163 E 14TH ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES 265 - about .5 mile S of the subject Map Loc: Status: EPA ID#: CAL000014679 LA PUMPING PLANT #10 Site: 2251 E 11TH ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 266 - about .5 mile S of the subject EPA ID#: CAD981989817 Status: Site: GLACIER COLD STORAGE LTD 2233 JESSE ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 267 - about .5 mile NE of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAL000265106 <u>88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15</u> .32 <u>266</u> 2.05 2.09 .38 2.7 .87 Waste oil and mixed oil ton Site: TERMINAL REFRIGERATING COMPANY Address: 2233 JESSE ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 267 - about .5 mile NE of the subject EPA ID#: CAD006909014 Status: 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Aq sol with org residues<10% ton .12 .08 Hydrocarbon solvents ton .42 Waste oil and mixed oil 6.87 3.96 ton .09 Other organic solids ton Site: G.M. PROCTOR & SONS INC Address: 651 S RIO ST City: LOS ANGELES 269 - about .5 mile NE of the subject Map Loc: Status: EPA ID#: CAC002565169 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Inorganic solid waste ton .32 Waste oil and mixed oil .2 ton Site: SUNLAND TIRE CO INC Address: 1700 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 270 - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAL000058724 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 1.42 Aq sol with org residues > 10% ton Unspecified ageous solution ton .73 Site: 1700 SANTA FE LTD 1700 S SANTA FE AVE Address:

City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 270 - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAD981425150 Site: SUNLAND TIRE CO INC Address: 1700 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 270 - about .4 mile S of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAL000076626 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Aq sol with org residues > 10%ton .23 .63 Unspecified solvent mixture .05 .04 ton UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD Site: Address: 2193 E 14TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 271 - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAC002630751 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Unspecified solvent mixture ton .54 Site: NATIONAL AEROSOL PRODUCTS CO 2193 E 14TH ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES 271 - about .5 mile S of the subject Map Loc: EPA ID#: CAD008252355 Status: 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Oxygenated solvents ton 20.01 44.35 18.97 Unspecified solvent mixture ton 1 Unspec oil cont waste .21 ton Tank Bottom waste ton .99 Off-spec, aged or surplus org 19.43 ton Other organic solids ton .9 Empty non-pesticide cont>30 gal ton 16.01 Liq with hal org>1g/l 66.71 17.3 ton Site: A ABBEY METALS INTL Address: 1931 MATEO ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 272 - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAP000193276 88-91 92-95 96/97 98/99 00/01 02/03 04/05 06/07 08/09 10/11 12/13 14/15 Paint sludge ton 3 Site: DELTA CME Address: 1751 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES 274 - about .5 mile S of the subject Map Loc: Status: EPA ID#: CAD980884308 EXPRESS CO Site: Address: 1751 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: EPA ID#: CAX000244160 Site: CTD MACHINES INC 2300 E 11TH ST Address: LOS ANGELES City:

| 2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;20 | |
|--|--|
| 16 BAY ST. LOS ANGEL | |

Page: 143 Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

| Map Loc: Status: | 277 - about .5 mile S of EPA ID#: CAL000008675 | the s | ubject | | | | | | | | | |
|---|---|-------------------|--------------|----------------------------------|---------------------------|-------|-------|-------|-------|----------------|----------|------------|
| | | | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 96/97 | 98/99 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 1 | 2/13 14 | /15 |
| | Aq sol with org residues > 10% Unspecified aqeous solution | ton ton | | .23 | | | .22 | | .46 | | | |
| | Waste oil and mixed oil Off-spec, aged or surplus org | ton ton | .2 | | .92 | .9 | .33 | .31 | | | | |
| | Unspec organic liquid mixture Other organic solids | ton ton | | | .48 | .44 | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | CTD MACHINES INC 2300 E 11TH ST LOS ANGELES 277 - about .5 mile S of EPA ID#: CAC002247225 | the s | ubject | | | | | | | | | |
| | Unspec oil cont waste | ton | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 96/97 | <u>98/99 00/01</u> .41 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | <u>10/11 1</u> | 12/13 14 | /15 |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LEVILOFF REFEREE SHIF 1345 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 281 - about .5 mile NW of EPA ID#: CAC000924744 | of the | subjec | ot | | | | | | | | |
| | A 1 1/1 1 400/ | | <u>88-91</u> | 92-95 96/97 | 98/99 00/01 | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | 10/11 1 | 12/13 14 | /15 |
| | Aq sol with org residues<10% Unspec organic liquid mixture Other organic solids | ton ton ton | | 28.73 | .08 .04 | | | | | | | |
| Site: Address: City: Status: | UNOCAL SO CAL. DIV. PIF IMPERIAL HWY, E OF BLC LOS ANGELES EPA ID#: CAC001010256 | Pe lin Dom- | NE | | | | | | | | | |
| | Other organic solids Contaminated soil | ton ton | <u>88-91</u> | <u>92-95 96/97</u> 328 160 | <u>98/99 00/01</u> | 02/03 | 04/05 | 06/07 | 08/09 | <u>10/11 1</u> | 12/13 14 | <u>/15</u> |

UST Permitted Underground Storage Tanks - State Water Quality Control Board

The Corteses Bill (AB2013), enacted in 1983, required registration of all underground storage tanks (UST) with the State Water Quality Control Board by July 1, 1984. About 176,000 tanks and surface impounds were registered between 1984 and 1987. An amendment (AB 1413) was passed in 1987, effectively removing the State Board from the registration process starting January 1, 1988. The data reflects the information collected by the state between 1984 and 1987 as well as recent time and includes all tanks and surface impounds in use or closed after 1974.

Home and farm heating fuel tanks with capacities of 1,100 gallons or less and "structures such as sumps, separators, storm drains, catch basins, oil field gathering lines, refinery pipelines, lagoons, evaporation ponds, well cellars, separation sumps, lined and unlined pits, sumps and lagoons" except those defined as UST under HSWA or may be regulated to protect water quality under the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act are excluded.

This list has been researched within half of a mile radius of the subject site.

| Site: | CONSOLIDATED FIBRES, INC | | |
|----------|------------------------------------|----|--------------------|
| Address: | 1005 MATEO ST | | |
| City: | LOS ANGELES | | |
| Map Loc: | 2 - about .0 mile S of the subject | | |
| Status: | 00000041255 WASTE PAPER RECYCLIN | 87 | yÃ" yÃ"_ (198798A) |
Page: 144 Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

Activity: WASTE PAPER RECYCLI

| Site: | CONSOLIDATED FIBRES/SETTSU INC |
|----------|-------------------------------------|
| Address: | 2025 SACRAMENTO ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 5 - about .0 mile SE of the subject |
| Status: | íÅ" íÅ"_ (191998A) |

| Site: | WEST CENTRAL PRODUCE INC. |
|----------|-------------------------------------|
| Address: | 2017 E VIOLET ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 11 - about .1 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | 90021 23637 (192014) |

Site:WEST CENTRAL PRODUCE, INCAddress:2045 E VIOLET STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:13 - about .1 mile NE of the subjectStatus:90021 25051 (192014)

| Site: | AMERICAN PRODUCE CO |
|----------|-------------------------------------|
| Address: | 826 MATEO ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 30 - about .1 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | 00000020509 87 ¢'' ¢''_ (192013) |

Site:AMERICAN PRODUCE COMPANYAddress:826MATEO STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:30- about .1 mile N of the subjectStatus:90021 23995 (192014)

Site:HALBERT BROTHERS, INC.Address:2116 BAY STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:31 - about .1 mile E of the subjectStatus:0000006613 TRUCKING8792 60871 (1987&93)

Activity: TRUCKING

Site:I.G. HING SERVICE CO.Address:821 MATEO STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:35 - about .1 mile N of the subjectStatus:0000055526 FORKLIFT REPAIR8792 63806 (1987&93)

Activity: FORKLIFT REPAIR

| Site: | 7 BAY TRUCK STATION |
|----------|---------------------|
| Address: | 930 S SANTA FE AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |

2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;20 16 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL Page: 145 Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

Map Loc: 36 - about .1 mile NE of the subject Status: 90021 24476 (192014) Site: LOUIE'S FLEET MAINTENANCE Address: 930 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 36 - about .1 mile NE of the subject Status: 00000055465 GAS STATION 87 ÈÃ" ÈÃ" (1987&A9) Activity: GAS STATION HALBERT BROTHERS, INCORPORATED Site: Address: 2116 SACRAMENTO ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 42 - about .1 mile E of the subject Status: I@" I@" (191998A) Site: ALLEN PRIME MEATS Address: 2312 DAMON ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 46 - about .1 mile S of the subject Status: 90021 24028 (192014) SHIPLY/DE PUTE MEAT CO INC Site: Address: 2312 DAMON ST LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 46 - about .2 mile S of the subject Status: 00000061316 WHOLESALE MEAT 8792 ïÃ" iÃ" (1987&A9) Activity: WHOLESALE MEAT Site: UNITED MELON DISTRIBUTORS, INC Address: 1811 SACRAMENTO ST LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 51 - about .1 mile W of the subject Status: 00000007730 PRODUCE DISTR. 8792 ÷Â" ÷Â"_ (198798A) Activity: PRODUCE DISTR. Site: HILL BROS. CHEMICAL CO. Address: 2159 BAY ST LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 53 - about .1 mile E of the subject Status: 00000050804 FACTORY 87 †i" †i"_ (198798A) Activity: FACTORY Site: VARALINA EXXON STATION Address: 1935 E 7TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 72 - about .2 mile N of the subject 8792 ~_" ~_"_ (198798I) Status: 0000029341 GAS STATION

Activity: GAS STATION

 Page:
 146

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | FRICTION MATERIALS CO OF LA 2029 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 74 - about .2 mile N of the subject 90021 25049 (192014) | |
|---|--|----|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | FRED KORT 2040 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 75 - about .2 mile N of the subject 90021 24107 (192014) | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES TIMES OLYMPICFACIL 2000 E 8TH ST LOS ANGELES 78 - about .2 mile W of the subject 90021 23572 (192014) | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | FRED KORT 2060 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 79 - about .2 mile N of the subject 90021 24111 (192014) | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | FRED KORT 2060 E 7TH ST LOS ANGELES 79 - about .2 mile N of the subject 24111 (19) | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | ADECO, INC 676 MATEO ST LOS ANGELES 93 - about .2 mile N of the subject 00000034007 WHOLESALER-BEVERAGE 87 14 | -" |
| | Activity: WHOLESALER-BEVERAGE | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELES TIMES 1150 LAWRENCE ST LOS ANGELES 96 - about .2 mile W of the subject <Ç" <Ç"_ (191998A) | |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | FRICTION MATERIALS COMPANY 675 S SANTA FE AVE LOS ANGELES 100 - about .2 mile NE of the subject áÄ" áÄ"_ (191998A) | |

¹+"_ (198798A)

 Page:
 147

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| Site: | MALKI SHEEL SERVICE |
|----------|--|
| Address: | 1750 E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 102 - about .3 mile NW of the subject |
| Status: | ÅÇ" ÅÇ"_ (191998A) |
| Site: | A-1 NOVELTY |
| Address: | 1855 INDUSTRIAL ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 108 - about .3 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | ߯" ߯"_ (191998A) |
| Site: | GRANT & COMPANY |
| Address: | 2144 E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 114 - about .3 mile NE of the subject |
| Status: | 00000047326 FOUNDRY SPY MFG. 8792 ¹ %" ¹ %"_ (198798I) |
| | Activity: FOUNDRY SPY MFG. |
| Site: | DISTRIBUTING STATION 5 |
| Address: | 1504 MATEO ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 117 - about .3 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | 00000064818 WATER/ELECTRIC UTILI 87 63801 (1987) |
| | Activity: WATER/ELECTRIC UTIL |
| Site: | HERTZ PENSKE TRUCK LEASING INC |
| Address: | 2300 E OLYMPIC BLVD |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 125 - about .3 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | 19024737 (19A2&A9) |
| Site: | PENSKE TRUCK LEASING CO.,L.P. |
| Address: | 2300 E OLYMPIC BLVD |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 125 - about .3 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | 90021 23575 (192014) |
| Site: | HERTZ PENSKE TRUCK LEASING INC |
| Address: | 2300 E OLYMPIC BLVD |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 125 - about .3 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | 00000060894 TRUCK LEASING aK"_ (1987&A9) |
| | Activity: TRUCK LEASING |
| Site: | WESTERN WAREHOUSING - L.A. |
| Address: | 780 S ALAMEDA ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 137 - about .3 mile W of the subject |
| Status: | 00000006521 PRODUCE WHSE 87 Ï_" [_"_ (198798I) |

| | Activity: | PRODUCE WHSE |
|---|---|--|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELE 1614 E 7TH S LOS ANGELE 138 - about 00000003024 BL | S MAINTENANCE CENTER T S .3 mile NW of the subject JS MAINT. & FUELING 8792 ÿ&" ÿ&"_ (1987&A9) |
| | Activity: | BUS MAINT. & FUELIN |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELE 1614 E 7TH S LOS ANGELE 138 - about 00000003027 BL | S MAINTENANCE CENTER T S .3 mile NW of the subject JS MAINT. & FUELING 8792 60182 (1987&93) |
| | Activity: | BUS MAINT. & FUELIN |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | GREYHOUNE 1614 E 7TH S LOS ANGELE 138 - about 90021 24986 (19 | D LINES INC. T S .3 mile NW of the subject 92014) |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | APEX WHOLI 1580 JESSE LOS ANGELE 141 - about 00000068675 PF | ESALE PRODUCE INC ST S .3 mile NE of the subject RODUCE DELIVERY 8792 ,Ä" ,Ä"_ (198798A) |
| | Activity: | PRODUCE DELIVERY |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | NORM SOLO 2140 E 7TH S LOS ANGELE 142 - about 90021 24110 (19 | MON & GARY OSHEROFF T S .3 mile NE of the subject 92014) |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | NORM SOLO 2140 E 7TH S LOS ANGELE 142 - about 24110 (19) | MON & GARY OSHEROFF T S .3 mile NE of the subject |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | CHAFFEE WH 800 S ALAME LOS ANGELE 145 - about | HOLESALE DA ST S .3 mile W of the subject û! û!_ (191998A) |
| Cite | | |

Site:MUTUAL LIQUID GAS/EQUIPMENT COAddress:744 S ALAMEDA STCity:LOS ANGELES

2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;20 16 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL
 Page:
 149

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| Map Loc: | 149 - about .3 mile W of the subject |
|---|--|
| Status: | ÚÄ" ÚÄ"_ (191998A) |
| Site: | STATE WIDE SALES CO. INC. |
| Address: | 742 S ALAMEDA ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 150 - about .4 mile W of the subject |
| Status: | 00000005352 PRIVATE USE 87 ÞÅ" ÞÅ"_ (1987&A9) |
| | Activity: PRIVATE USE |
| Site: | STATE WIDE SALES COMPANY,INC |
| Address: | 742 S ALAMEDA ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 150 - about .4 mile W of the subject |
| Status: | 90021 23975 (192014) |
| Site: | COMMERCIAL OIL |
| Address: | 2441 PORTER ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 151 - about .4 mile SE of the subject |
| Status: | 00000005219 OIL COMPANY 8792 ÙÂ" ÙÂ"_ (198798A) |
| | Activity: OIL COMPANY |
| Site: | SOUTH CENTRAL |
| Address: | 2172 E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 153 - about .4 mile NE of the subject |
| Status: | 00000047123 CITY OF LOS ANGELES 8792 —I" —I"_ (198798A) |
| | Activity: CITY OF LOS ANGELES |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SHELL OIL SERVICE STATION1520 S SANTA FE AVELOS ANGELES154 - about .3 mile SE of the subject0006089919001208 (1995A) |
| Site: | SHELL OIL SERVICE STATION |
| Address: | 1520 S SANTA FE AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 154 - about .4 mile SE of the subject |
| Status: | 00000052591 RURAL FARM USE 00060899 55 (1987&A9) |
| | Activity: RURAL FARM USE |
| Site: | BOUTROS SHELL |
| Address: | 1520 S SANTA FE AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 154 - about .3 mile SE of the subject |
| Status: | 90021 24963 (192014) |

 Page:
 150

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| Site: | MAP WAREHOUSE INC |
|----------|---|
| Address: | 800 MC GARRY ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 155 - about .4 mile W of the subject |
| Status: | 1901ç_"_ (199598I) |
| Site: | CHAFFEE WHSE. |
| Address: | 821 S ALAMEDA ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 156 - about .4 mile W of the subject |
| Status: | 00000064461 WAREHOUSE & TRUCKING 87 60484 (1987) |
| | Activity: WAREHOUSE & TRUCKIN |
| Site: | CONSOLIDATED FACILITIES |
| Address: | 786 S MISSION RD |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 160 - about .4 mile E of the subject |
| Status: | 90023 24063 (192014) |
| Site: | BUREAU OF SANITATION |
| Address: | 786 S MISSION RD |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 160 - about .4 mile E of the subject |
| Status: | &Æ" &Æ"_ (1919&A9) |
| Site: | MACK TRUCKS, INC. |
| Address: | 2340 E OLYMPIC BLVD |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 162 - about .4 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | 00000005056 SALES & SERVICE 87 €F" €F"_ (198798I) |
| | Activity: SALES & SERVICE |
| Site: | J HELLMAN PRODUCE INCORPORATED |
| Address: | 777 S MISSION RD |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 163 - about .4 mile E of the subject |
| Status: | őÄ" őÄ"_ (191998A) |
| Site: | MOLIEF ENTERPRISES |
| Address: | 1600 S SANTA FE AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 164 - about .4 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | 1Ä" 1Ä"_ (191998A) |
| Site: | CENTRAL STATION |
| Address: | 2424 E OLYMPIC BLVD |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 177 - about .4 mile SE of the subject |
| Status: | 00000007547 PUBLIC UTILITY 87 64194 (1987&A9) |

| | Activity: | PUBLIC UTILITY |
|---|--|--|
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | OLYMPIC 2424 E OLYMI LOS ANGELE 177 - about 00000007477 PU | PIC BLVD S .4 mile SE of the subject BLIC UTILITY 87 ·4" ·4"_ (1987&A9) |
| | Activity: | PUBLIC UTILITY |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | CENTRAL ST/ 2424 E OLYMI LOS ANGELE 177 - about 00000007548 PU | ATION (OLYMPIC BASE) PIC BLVD S .4 mile SE of the subject BLIC UTILITY 87 64195 (1987) |
| | Activity: | PUBLIC UTILITY |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | OLYMPIC 2424 E OLYMI LOS ANGELE 177 - about 00000007522 PU | PIC BLVD S .4 mile SE of the subject BLIC UTILITY 87 64193 (1987) |
| | Activity: | PUBLIC UTILITY |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | OLYMPIC 2424 E OLYMI LOS ANGELE 177 - about 00000007478 PU | PIC BLVD S .4 mile SE of the subject BLIC UTILITY 87 64192 (1987) |
| | Activity: | PUBLIC UTILITY |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | SOUTHERN C 2424 E OLYMI LOS ANGELE 177 - about 90021 25089 (19 | CALIFORNIA GAS CO PIC BLVD S .4 mile SE of the subject 12014) |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | FIRE STATION 1601 S SANTA LOS ANGELE 178 - about 00000047445 FIF | N 17 A FE AVE S .4 mile S of the subject RE STATION 87 Ý_" Ý_"_ (1987&A9) |
| | Activity: | FIRE STATION |
| Site: Address: City: Map Loc: Status: | LOS ANGELE 1601 S SANTA LOS ANGELE 178 - about 90021 24979 (19 | S FIRE STATION 17 A FE AVE S .4 mile S of the subject ⁽²⁰¹⁴⁾ |

Site: ANGELUS WESTERN PAPER STOCK IN Address: 2474 PORTER ST

 Page:
 152

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

| City: | LOS ANGELES |
|----------|---|
| Map Loc: | 179 - about .4 mile SE of the subject |
| Status: | 00000041197 WASTE PAPER 87 k " k "_ (198798I) |
| | Activity: WASTE PAPER |
| Site: | MING HSEUH CHEN |
| Address: | 937 S ALAMEDA ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 184 - about .4 mile SW of the subject |
| Status: | 90021 25491 (192014) |
| Site: | MING HSEUH CHEN |
| Address: | 937 S ALAMEDA ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 184 - about .4 mile SW of the subject |
| Status: | 25491 (19) |
| Site: | ZIMMERMAN DEVELOPMENT INC. |
| Address: | 955 S ALAMEDA ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 185 - about .4 mile SW of the subject |
| Status: | Å" Å"_ (191998I) |
| Site: | CONSOLIDATED FACILITIES |
| Address: | 2222 E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 186 - about .4 mile E of the subject |
| Status: | 90023 24013 (192014) |
| Site: | CONSOLIDATED FACILITIES |
| Address: | 2222 E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 186 - about .4 mile E of the subject |
| Status: | 00000047122 WAREHOUSE 8792 60193 (1987&93) |
| | Activity: WAREHOUSE |
| Site: | CONSOLIDATED FACILITIES |
| Address: | 2222 E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 186 - about .4 mile NE of the subject |
| Status: | 6722 1905024013 . (192010) |
| Site: | CONSOLIDATED FACILITIES |
| Address: | 2222 E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 186 - about .4 mile E of the subject |
| Status: | 00000047128 REPARI SHOP 8792 60194 (1987&93) |

Activity: REPARI SHOP

 Page:
 153

 Date:
 06-18-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998-C

2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;20 16 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL

| Site: | 96923 |
|----------|--|
| Address: | 901 S ALAMEDA ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 188 - about .4 mile SW of the subject |
| Status: | 00000062931 GAS STATION 87 àÿ! àÿ!_ (1987&A9) |
| | Activity: GAS STATION |
| Site: | SERVICE STATION 0152 |
| Address: | 1800 E OLYMPIC BLVD |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 196 - about .4 mile SW of the subject |
| Status: | 00000006400 GAS STATION 87 hE" hE"_ (1987&A9) |
| | Activity: GAS STATION |
| Site: | TOSCO CORPORATION #30305 |
| Address: | 1800 E OLYMPIC BLVD |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 196 - about .4 mile SW of the subject |
| Status: | 90021 24190 (192014) |
| Site: | UNION OIL SERVICE STATION 0152 |
| Address: | 1800 E OLYMPIC BLVD |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 196 - about .4 mile SW of the subject |
| Status: | 00000056099 GAS STATION 87 64183 (1987) |
| | Activity: GAS STATION |
| Site: | STOVER SEED COMPANY |
| Address: | 1415 E 6TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 204 - about .4 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | 00000068291 WHOLESALE SEED 8792 <_" <_"_ (198798I) |
| | Activity: WHOLESALE SEED |
| Site: | METROPOLITAN DISTRIBUTION CTR |
| Address: | 1340 E 6TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 207 - about .4 mile N of the subject |
| Status: | 00000041552 P_" P_" (198798I) |
| Site: | MOBILE REFRIGERATION SERVICE |
| Address: | 1740 E OLYMPIC BLVD |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 215 - about .4 mile SW of the subject |
| Status: | ‡_" ‡_"_ (191998I) |
| Citer | |

 Site:
 SIXTH STREET CLEANING YARD

 Address:
 1451 E 6TH ST

 City:
 LOS ANGELES

 Map Loc:
 217 - about .4 mile N of the subject

 Status:
 0000047121 SERVICE YARD
 8792 ;M" ;M"_ (198798I)

Activity: SERVICE YARD Site: PROGRESSIVE PRODUCE COMPANY Address: 1266 E 6TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 222 - about .5 mile NW of the subject 8792 0_" 0_"_ (198798I) Status: 00000017274 OWN TANK Activity: OWN TANK Site: LUMARYS TIRE SERVICE, INC Address: 600 S SANTA FE AVE City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 223 - about .4 mile N of the subject Status: àÄ" àÄ"_ (191998A) Site: S E RYKOFF & COMPANY Address: 761 TERMINAL ST LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 234 - about .5 mile W of the subject 8792 Œ_" Œ_"_ (198798A) Status: 00000017283 Site: UNITED TECHNOLOGIES INMONT COR 590 S SANTA FE AVE Address: City: LOS ANGELES 237 - about .5 mile N of the subject Map Loc: Status: 00000017676 INK MFG. CO. 87 _ð! _ð!_ (198798l) Activity: INK MFG. CO. Site: NICKABOODS, INCORPORATED 1401 ELWOOD ST Address: City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 243 - about .5 mile SW of the subject '_" '_"_ (191998l) Status: Site: **VENTURA FORRS** Address: 633 S MISSION RD City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 245 - about .5 mile NE of the subject Status: 90023 24114 (192014) Site: **VENTURA FORRS** Address: 633 S MISSION RD LOS ANGELES City:

Map Loc: 245 - about .5 mile NE of the subject Status: 24114 (19)

Site:ASPHALT PLANT NO. 1 - K140Address:2484 E OLYMPIC BLVDCity:LOS ANGELES

2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;20 16 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL

248 - about .5 mile SE of the subject

Map Loc:

Page: 155 Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

Status: 90021 23939 (192014) Site: ASPHALT PLANT #1 Address: 2484 E OLYMPIC BLVD City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 248 - about .5 mile SE of the subject 00000047047 ASPHALT PLANT 8792 ‰÷! ‰÷!_ (1987&A9) Status: Activity: ASPHALT PLANT Site: 7TH STREET SHOP FLEET SERVICES Address: 2266 E 7TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 253 - about .5 mile E of the subject Status: 00000047108 REPAIR SHOP 8792 60197 (1987&93) Activity: **REPAIR SHOP** Site: C AND W CHEMICALS 1328 WILLOW ST Address: LOS ANGELES City: 254 - about .5 mile N of the subject Map Loc: Status: 00000017605 CHEM. DIST. 8792 &]" &]"_ (198798I) Activity: CHEM. DIST. Site: JOHN MORRELL & CO. Address: 1335 WILLOW ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 260 - about .5 mile N of the subject Status: Õ_" Õ_"_ (191998I) CHARLES G. SPILO Site: 585 S SANTA FE AVE Address: LOS ANGELES City: Map Loc: 261 - about .5 mile N of the subject 00000050932 MSTER DIST. BEAUTY I 87 V_" V_" (198798I) Status: Activity: MSTER DIST. BEAUTY COAST PRODUCE Site: Address: 2155 E 14TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 264 - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: 90021 24086 (192014) COAST PRODUCE Site: Address: 2155 E 14TH ST City: LOS ANGELES Map Loc: 264 - about .5 mile S of the subject Status: 6801 1905024086 . (192010)

| Site: | COAST PRODUCE COMPANY |
|----------|---|
| Address: | 2163 E 14TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 265 - about .5 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | 90021 23921 (192014) |
| Site: | ATLAS LUMBER COMPANY, INC |
| Address: | 2170 E 14TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 268 - about .5 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | 00000004852 LUMBER YARD 8792 ^¾" ^¾"_ (198798I) |
| | Activity: LUMBER YARD |
| Site: | NATIONAL AEROSOL PRODUCTS CO |
| Address: | 2193 E 14TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 271 - about .5 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | 00000064091 FARM 8792 +_œ +_œ_ (192013) |
| Site: | NATIONAL AEROSOL PRODUCTSCO |
| Address: | 2193 E 14TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 271 - about .5 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | 90021 23991 (192014) |
| Site: | A-ABBEY METALS INTERNATIONAL |
| Address: | 1931 MATEO ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 272 - about .5 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | 6698 1905023993 . (192010) |
| Site: | DELTA LINES |
| Address: | 1751 S SANTA FE AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 274 - about .5 mile S of the subject |
| Status: | 00000016982 TRUCK TERMINAL 87 _6" _6"_ (198798I) |
| | Activity: TRUCK TERMINAL |
| Site: | PAT & SONS POULTRY INC |
| Address: | 927 S NAOMI AVE |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 275 - about .5 mile W of the subject |
| Status: | 00000000518 POULTRY PROCESSOR 8792 9'" 9''_ (198798I) |
| | Activity: POULTRY PROCESSOR |
| Site: | DOWNTOWN FUEL STOP |
| Address: | 1400 S ALAMEDA ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |

Map Loc: 276 - about .5 mile SW of the subject

90021 24043 (192014)

Status:

Page: 157 Date: 06-18-2015 Job: EEMA8998-C

| Site: | CONSOLIDATED FACILITES | | |
|----------|--------------------------------------|----|--------------|
| Address: | 2310 E 7TH ST | | |
| City: | LOS ANGELES | | |
| Map Loc: | 279 - about .5 mile E of the subject | | |
| Status: | 00000047076 CITY MAINT. YARD 8792 | Ι" | I"_ (192013) |

| Site: | CONSOLIDATED FACILITES | | |
|----------|--------------------------------------|-------|-----------|
| Address: | 2310 E 7TH ST | | |
| City: | LOS ANGELES | | |
| Map Loc: | 279 - about .5 mile E of the subject | | |
| Status: | 00000019646 GAS STATION 8792 | 60199 | (1987&93) |

Activity: GAS STATION

| Site: | 7TH ST. CONSOLIDATED FACILITY |
|----------|--------------------------------------|
| Address: | 2300 E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 280 - about .5 mile E of the subject |
| Status: | 23936 (19) |

Site:7TH ST. CONSOLIDATED FACILITYAddress:2300 E 7TH STCity:LOS ANGELESMap Loc:280 - about .5 mile E of the subjectStatus:90023 23936 (192014)

| Site: | COMMERCIAL SUPER SERVICE |
|----------|--|
| Address: | 1345 E 7TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 281 - about .5 mile NW of the subject |
| Status: | 0000008084 GAS STATION 8792 Ã" Ã"_ (198798A) |

Activity: GAS STATION

| Site: | RTD DIVISION 1 - ALAMEDA |
|----------|---------------------------------------|
| Address: | 1130 E 6TH ST |
| City: | LOS ANGELES |
| Map Loc: | 285 - about .5 mile NW of the subject |
| Status: | 00033833 19055431 (1995A) |

E&s0C

APPENDIX C

BUILDING DEPARTMENT RECORDS

2001 SACRAMENTO STREET

Document Search . Summary Report



There are two ways to request a copy of the document image. 1) By fax using the request form. Click on the following link http://www.ladbs.org/permits/permit_related_forms/Research_Request_form.pdf to download the request form 2) in person. Bring the following summary to one of the following Record counters.

COUNTER HOURS

MONDAY, TUESDAY, THURSDAY, FRIDAY: 7:30 AM to 4:30 PM WEDNESDAY: 9:00 AM to 4:30 PM

| Metro | Van Nuys | |
|-----------------------|--------------------|--|
| 201, N Figueroa St. | 6262 Van Nuys Blvd | |
| 1st Floor, Room 110 | Record Counter | |
| Record Counter | Van Nuys,CA 91401 | |
| Los Angeles, CA 90012 | | |

Assessor Number 5166011021

| Document Type | Sub Type | Document Date | Document Number | Reel Batch Frame | - |
|-------------------|-------------------|---------------|-----------------|----------------------|---|
| AFFIDAVIT | MISCELLANEOUS | 1/12/1959 | AFF 25260 | HIST: M0010 007 0243 | - |
| AESIDAVIT | I OT TIE | 12/23/1974 | AFF 40460 | HIST M0017 008 0309 | |
| BUILDING PERMIT | BLDG-NEW | 3/11/1910 | 1910LA02067 | HIST: P1015 002 1311 | - |
| BUILDING PERMIT | 4 | 7/1/1914 | 1914LA13672 | HIST: P1040 002 1618 | |
| BUILDING DERMIT | BUDG-NEW | 1/12/1926 | 1926LA01124 | HIST: P1156 001 2248 | |
| BUILDING PERMIT | BLDG-NEW | 1/12/1926 | 1926LA01125 | HIST: P1156 001 2250 | - |
| RUILDING PERMIT | BLDG-NEW | 1/12/1926 | 1926LA01126 | HIST: P1156 001 2252 | |
| RUILDING PERMIT | BLDG-NEW | 1/12/1926 | 1926LA01128 | HIST: P1156 001 2256 | |
| AUII DING PERMIT | BLDG-NEW | 1/19/1926 | 1926LA01952 | HIST: P1156 002 0863 | |
| AULTING PERMIT | BLDG-ALTER/REPAIR | 11/24/1931 | 1931LA25014 | HIST: P1225-001-0525 | - |
| ALIII DING PERMIT | BLDG-NEW | 5/20/1938 | 1938LA14969 | HIST. P1288 001 1212 | _ |
| BUILDING PERMIT | BLDG-NEW | 6/9/1941 | 1941 14005 | HIST: P1341 001 0521 | |
| BUILDING PERMIT | BLDG-NEW | 1/12/1949 | 1949 00551 | HIST: P1423 001 1590 | - |
| RUILDING PERMIT | BLDG-ALTER/REPAIR | 12/10/1949 | 1949 28710 | HIST: P1428 001 2466 | - |
| RUILDING PERMIT | BLDG-NEW | 12/16/1949 | 1949 29754 | HIST: P1428.002 0701 | - |
| BUILDING PERMIT | BLDG-NEW | 9/27/1950 | 1950 24452 | HIST. P1442 001 2057 | - |
| BUILDING PERMIT | BLDG-ALTER/REPAIR | 10/10/1950 | 1950 22238 | HIST: P1441 002 2339 | - |
| | | | | | |

6/23/2015

Page 1

Document Search Summary Report

| 1 | | | | | | | | | 3 | | 5 | 2 | 5 | > | 3 | 2 | > | | 5 | > | | | in) | T | Ι | 1 | - |
|------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|----------------------|---------------------|----------------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|----------------------|----------------------|-------------------|-------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|--|--|
| Reel Batch Frame | HIST, P1448 002 0040 | HIST: P1459 002 0319 | HIST: P1641 001 2527 | HIST: P1678 002 2184 | HIST P1678 002 2186 | HIST P1679 002 2694 | HIST P1678 002 2188 | HIST: P1679 002 2691 | HIST P1787 001 1798 | HIST: P1803 002 2399 | HIST. 00000 000 0000 HIST. P1810 002 0536 | HIST, 00000 000 0000 HIST, P1810 002 0538 | HIST: 00000-000 000 0000 HIST: P1810 002 0540 | HIST: 00000 000 0000 HIST: P1810 002 0542 | HIST: 00000 000 0000 HIST: P1810 002 0544 | HIST: 00000 000 0000 HIST: P1810 002 0546 | HIST: 00000 000 0000 HIST: P1820 002 1926 | HIST: 00000 000 0000 HIST: P1820 002 1928 | HIST: 00000 000 0000 HIST: P1821 002 1134 | HIST: P0436 003 0256 | HIST: P0525 005 0053 | HIST P702 5 373 | | HIST: 0111 2 3589 | HIST: 0197 2 3364 | IDIS: 00691 03707 0000 HIST: 0452 HIST: 0197 2 3380 | IDIS: 00691 03707 0000 HIST: 0452 HIST: 0197 2 3380 |
| Document Number | 1951LA11374 | 1952LA30767 | 1955LA23350 | 1959LA22238 | 1959LA22239 | 1959LA23043 | 1959LA23147 | 1959LA25203 | 1970LA16626 | 1972LA57244 | 1973LA76629 | 1973LA76630 | 1973LA76631 | 1973LA76632 | 1973LA76633 | 1973LA76634 | 1975LA03886 | 1975LA03887 | 1975LA05812 | 1994LA15589 | 1995H037506 | 99020-10000-03331 | 06020-10000-04364 | | | 1950LA22238 | 1950LA24452 |
| Document Date | 6/26/1951 | 5/28/1952 | 8/24/1955 | 1/16/1959 | 1/16/1959 | 1/27/1959 | 1/27/1959 | 2/25/1959 | 0/10/10/10 | 9/10/1972 | 8/22/1973 | 8/22/1973 | 8/22/1973 | 8/22/1973 | 8/22/1973 | 8/22/1973 | 2/24/1975 | 2/24/1975 | 4/4/1975 | 3/8/1994 | 4/28/1995 | 11/24/1999 | 12/18/2006 | | | 8/29/1951 | 8/29/1951 |
| Sub Type | DG-ALTER/REPAIR | DG-ALTER/REPAIR | DG-ALTER/REPAIR | DG-NEW | DG-ALTER/REPAIR | DG-ALTER/REPAIR | DG-ALTER/REPAIR | DG-ALTER/REPAIR | DG-NEW | GN | RADING | LDG-DEMOLITION | LDG-DEMOLITION | LDG-DEMOLITION | LDG-DEMOLITION | LDG-DEMOLITION | EW CONSTRUCTION | IEW CONSTRUCTION | RADING | LDG-DEMOLITION | LTERATION | IONBLDG-NEW | NONBLOG-NEW | | | | |
| Document Tune | al III DING PERMIT | BIII DING PERMIT | ALLI DING PERMIT | BIIII DING PERMIT | RUILDING PERMIT | BI BI DING DERMIT | Beilt DING PERMIT | BUILDING PERMIT | BILLIDING PERMIT | BUILDING PERMIT | BUILDING PERMIT | BUILDING PERMIT | BUILDING PERMIT | BUILDING PERMIT B | BUILDING PERMIT B | BUILDING PERMIT B | BUILDING PERMIT | BUILDING PERMIT | BUILDING PERMIT | BUILDING PERMIT | RUILDING PERMIT | BUILDING PERMIT | BUILDING PERMIT | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY |

Page 2

Document Search ; Summary Report

| Document Type | Sub Type | Document Date | Document Number | Reel Batch Frame | |
|--------------------------|-----------------|---------------|-------------------|---|-----|
| CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | | 9/3/1952 | 1952LA30767 | IDIS_00724_01476_0000 HIST_0517 HIST_0230_1_2534 | 2) |
| CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | | 10/9/1959 | 1959LA22238 | IDIS: 00691 03705 0000 HIST: 0452 HIST: 0197 2 3376 HIST: 0197 2 3378 | \$ |
| CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | | 4/18/1960 | 1959LA23043 | IDIS: 00724 01478 0000 HIST: 0517 HIST: 0230 1 2538 | ÷ |
| CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | | 8/25/1960 | 1959LA23147 | IDIS: 00691 03706 0000 HIST: 0452 HIST: 0197 2 3379 | зØ. |
| CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | | 8/20/1964 | 1964LA58014 | HIST: 0197 2 3396 | |
| CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | | 11/18/1966 | | HIST: 0197 2 3309 | |
| CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | | 12/4/1975 | 1975LA03887 | HIST: 0305 2 0767 | |
| CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | | 9/10/1980 | | HIST: 00002 005 0412 | _ |
| CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | | 8/12/1981 | | HIST: 00002 005 0410 | |
| CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | | 4/1/1982 | | HIST 00002 005 0411 | |
| CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | | 6/16/1983 | | HIST 00025 001 0471 | |
| CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | | 6/16/1983 | | HIST: 00025 001 0471 | _ |
| CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | | 2/2/1984 | | HIST: 00026 001 0490 | |
| CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | | 4/5/1985 | | HIST M0092 004 0045 | |
| CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | | 1/30/1986 | | HIST M0151 001 0364 | |
| CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | | 2/9/2012 | 06020-10000-04364 | | ġ |
| CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | | 2/9/2012 | CERT 42664 | | (d) |
| COMMISSION | BAAB BOARD FILE | 12/31/1975 | BF 752070 | HIST B0047 004 0489 | |
| GRADING | COMPACTION FILE | 9/19/1973 | | HIST, G0005 030 0173 | 4 |
| GRADING | COMPACTION FILE | 10/2/1973 | | HIST. G0005 030 0172 | 1 |
| PLAN MAINTENANCE | | 2/24/1975 | 1975LA03886 | HIST: M911 2 221 | _ |
| PLAN MAINTENANCE | | 2/24/1975 | 1975LA03887 | HIST. M911 2 221 | _ |

Page 3

Document Search | Summary Report



http://www.ladbs.org/permits/permit_related_forms/Research_Request_form.pdf to download the request form. 2) in person. Bring the following summary to one of the following Record counters. There are two ways to request a copy of the document image. 1) By fax using the request form. Click on the following link.

COUNTER HOURS MONDAY, TUESDAY, THURSDAY, FRIDAY: 7:30 AM to 4:30 PM. WEDNESDAY: 9:00 AM to 4:30 PM

| Metro | Van Nuys | |
|-----------------------|--------------------|---|
| 201, N. Figueroa St. | 6262 Van Nuys Blvd | |
| 1st Flaor, Room 110 | Record Counter | |
| Record Counter | Van Nuys,CA 91401 | |
| Los Angeles, CA 90012 | | _ |

- 2005 SACRAMENTO

| HIST SIDIS | IDIS: P5517. 00 0001 HIST: P1459_0 HIST: P1459_0 IDIS: P5536_0 | HIST P1448 002 00- IDIS P5517 00040 0 0001 HIST: P1448 00 HIST: P1459 002 03 IDIS P5536 01843 0 0001 HIST: P1459 00 | IDIS: P5482 00704 0000 th 0001 HIST: P1428 002 070 HIST: P1448 002 0040 IDIS: P5517 00040 0000 th 0001 HIST: P1448 002 004 HIST: P1459 002 0319 IDIS: P5536 01843 0000 th 0001 HIST: P1459 002 0319 | HIST: P1428 002 0701 HIST: P1428 002 0701 1018: P5482 00704 0000 thru P 0001 HIST: P1448 002 0040 1018: P5517 00040 0000 thru P 0001 HIST: P1448 002 0040 HIST: P1459 002 0319 1018: P5536 01843 0000 thru P 1018: P5536 01843 0000 thru P 1018: P5536 01843 0000 thru P | IDIS: P5346 01781 0000 thru P5 0001 HIST: P1341 001 0521 HIST: P1428 002 0701 IDIS: P5482 00704 0000 thru P5 0001 HIST: P1428 002 0701 HIST: P1448 002 0040 0001 HIST: P1448 002 0040 HIST: P1448 002 0040 P5 0001 HIST: P1448 002 0040 HIST: P1459 002 0319 IDIS: P5536 01843 0000 thru P5 0001 HIST: P1459 002 0319 | | |
|---|--|---|--|---|---|--|---|
| | 1951LA11374 1015 P551 0001 HIST | 1951LA11374 HIST P144 1951LA11374 IDIS P551 0001 HIST | 1949LA29754 1018: P548 1951LA11374 HIST P144 1951LA11374 1018: P551 0001 HIST | 1949 29754 HIST: P142 1949LA29754 IDIS: P548 1951LA11374 IDIS: P541 1951LA11374 HIST: P144 1951LA11374 HIST: P144 1951LA11374 HIST: P144 | 1941LA14005 1015: P5346 1015: P5346 1015: P5346 10001 HIST 1949LA29754 1015: P5488 10001 HIST 1951LA11374 10001 HIST 1951LA11374 10001 HIST 1951LA11374 10001 HIST 1951LA11374 10001 HIST 10001 HIST 1951LA11374 10001 HIST 100001 HIST 10001 HIST 10000 HIST 100001 HIST 10000 HIST 100000 HIST 1000000 HIST 10000000 HIST 10000000000 HIST 1000000000000000000000000000000000000 | 5 002 0319 6 01843 0000 thru P5536 P1459 002 0319 | 6 01843 002 P1459 002 |
| | 1951LA1137 | 1951LA1137 | 1949LA2975 1951LA1137 1951LA1137 | 1949LA29754 1949LA2975 1951LA1137 1951LA1137 | 1941LA1400 1949LA29754 1949LA2975 19451LA1137 1951LA1137 | 7 HIST: P1459 002 0319 7 IDIS: P5536 01843 0000 thru P5538 0001 HIST: P1459 002 0319 | 7 HIST P1459 002 0315 7 IDIS P5536 01843 00 0001 HIST P1459 002 |
| | 1951LA11374 | 1951LA11374 1951LA11374 | 1949LA29754 1951LA11374 1951LA11374 | 1949_29754 1949LA29754 1951LA11374 1951LA11374 | 1941LA14005 1949_2554 1949LA29754 1951LA11374 1951LA11374 | HIST P1459 002 0319 | HIST P1459 002 031 |
| 1941 14005 HIST 1941LA14005 HIST 1949 29754 D000 1949 LA29754 HIST 1951LA11374 HIST 1951LA11374 HIST | 1941 14005 HIST: P1341 0 1941LA14005 IDIS: P5346 0 0001 HIST: P11 1949LA29754 HIST: P1428 0 1949LA29754 IDIS: P5482 00 1945LA29754 IDIS: P5482 00 | 1941 14005 HIST P1341 001 055 1941LA14005 IDIS P5346 01781 0 1941LA14005 0001 HIST P1341 00 1942 29754 HIST P1428 002 072 | 1941_14005 HIST_P1341_001_0521 1941LA14005 IDIS: P5246_01781_0000 th 0001 HIST_P1341_001_052 | 1941 14005 HIST P1341 001 0521 | | 48 | 00 thru P50 2631 |
| 1926LA19179 (DIS: 1941LA14005 (DIS: 1941LA14005 (DIS: 1943LA14005 (DIS: 1943LA14005 (DIS: 1943LA11374 (DIS: 1951LA11374 (DIS: 1951LA11374 (DIS: | 1926LA19179 (DIS: P5048 02 1941LA14005 (DIS: P5048 02 1941LA14005 (DIS: P5346 07 1942LA14005 (DIS: P5346 07 1942LA29754 (DIS: P5482 00 1949LA29754 (DIS: P5482 00 1015: P5482 00 | 1926LA19179 IDIS: P5048 02373 0 0001 HIST: P1162 00 1941 14005 HIST: P1341 001 055 1941LA14005 IDIS: P5346 01781 0 1005: P5346 01781 0 0001 HIST: P1341 00 1949 29754 HIST: P1428 002 070 | 1926LA19179 IDIS: P5048 02373 0000 thr 1941 14005 HIST: P1162 001 263 1941LA14005 HIST: P5346 01781 0000 thr 1941LA14005 IDIS: P5346 01781 0000 thr | 1926LA19179 (DIS: P5048 02373 0000 thru P 0001 HIST: P1162 001 2631 1941 14005 HIST: P1341 001 0521 | 1926LA19179 IDIS: P5048 02373 0000 thru P5 0001 HIST: P1162 001 2631 | 8 | 00 thru P502 1494 |
| 1925LA21417 [0]S 1925LA21417 [0]S 1926LA19179 [0]S 1941 14005 [1]S 1941LA14005 [1]S 1942 29754 [1]S 1949LA29754 [1]S 1949LA29754 [1]S 1951LA11374 [1]S | 1925LA21417 IDIS P5028 00 1925LA21417 IDIS P5048 02 1926LA19179 0001 HIST: P1 1941 14005 HIST: P1341 0 1941LA14005 HIST: P1248 0 1943LA29754 HIST: P1428 0 1949LA29754 HIST: P1428 0 | 1925LA21417 1015, P5028, 00747, 0 1925LA21417 0001 HIST: P1148, 00 1926LA19179 0001 HIST: P1148, 00 19411, 14005 HIST: P1341, 001, 055 19411, A14005 HIST: P1341, 001, 055 1943, 29754 0001 HIST: P1341, 001, 055 1944, 123, 005 HIST: P1341, 001, 055 1949, 29754 HIST: P1428, 002, 077 | 1925LA21417 IDIS, P5028, 00747, 0000 th 1925LA21417 IDIS, P5028, 00747, 0000 th 1926LA19179 IDIS, P5048, 02373, 0000 th 1941, 14005 HIST, P1162, 001, 263 1941, 14005 HIST, P1341, 001, 0521 1941, 14005 IDIS, P5346, 01781, 000, 052 | 1925LA21417 IDIS P5028 00747 0000 thru P 1925LA21417 IDIS P5048 02373 0000 thru P 1926LA19179 IDIS P5048 02373 0000 thru P 1941 14005 HIST P1162 001 2631 | 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028 00747 0000 thru P5 0001 HIST: P1148 001 1494 1926LA19179 IDIS: P5048 02373 0000 thru P5 0001 HIST: P1162 001 2631 | | |
| 1914LA13674 HIST 1925LA21417 1018 1925LA21417 1018 1925LA214179 0001 1925LA19179 0001 1941LA14005 1018 1941LA14005 1018 1943L2154 1018 1943L2154 1018 1943L217374 1018 | 1914LA13674 HIST: P1040_0 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028_00 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028_00 1925LA19179 IDIS: P5048_02 1941_14005 HIST: P1341_0 1941_14005 HIST: P1341_0 1941_14005 HIST: P1341_0 1941_24005 HIST: P1341_0 1943_23754 HIST: P1342_0 1944_LA14005 HIST: P1428_0 1949_LA14005 HIST: P1428_0 1949_LA14005 HIST: P1428_0 | 1914LA13674 HIST: P1040 002 162 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028 00747 0 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028 00747 0 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028 00747 0 1925LA19179 IDIS: P5048 02373 0 1925LA19179 IDIS: P5048 02373 0 1941 14005 HIST: P1341 001 05 1941LA14005 IDIS: P5346 0178 01 05 1943 14005 HIST: P1428 002 07 1943 29754 HIST: P1428 002 07 | 1914LA13674 HIST: P1040_002_1622 1925LA21417 IDIS_P5028_00747_0000_th 1925LA21417 IDIS_P5028_00747_0000_th 1926LA19179 IDIS_P5048_02373_0000_th 1926LA19179 IDIS_P5048_02373_000_th 1926LA19179 IDIS_P5048_02373_000_th 1941_14005 HIST: P1162_001_0521 1941LA14005 IDIS_P5346_01781_001_0521 1941LA14005 IDIS_P5346_01781_001_0521 | 1914LA13674 HIST: P1040_002_1622 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028_00747_0000 thru P 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028_00747_0000 thru P 1925LA19179 IDIS: P5048_02373_0000 thru P 1925LA19179 IDIS: P5048_02373_0000 thru P 1925LA19179 IDIS: P5048_02373_0000 thru P 1941_14005 HIST: P1162_001_2631 | 1914LA13674 HIST: P1040 002 1622 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028 00747 0000 thru P5 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028 00747 0000 thru P5 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028 00747 0000 thru P5 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5048 02373 0000 thru P5 1926LA19179 IDIS: P5048 02373 0000 thru P5 | | |
| AFF 40460 HIST 1914LA13674 HIST 1925LA21417 IDIS 1925LA21417 IDIS 1925LA21417 IDIS 1925LA21417 IDIS 1925LA19179 IDIS 1941 14005 1941 14005 1941LA14005 IDIS 1942 29754 1943 29754 1943LA1374 HIST | AFF 40460 HIST: M0017 1914LA13674 HIST: P1040 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028 1925LA19179 IDIS: P5048 1926LA19179 IDIS: P5048 1941 14005 1941 HIST: P1341 1941 14005 1941 IDIS: P5346 1941 14005 1941 IDIS: P5346 1941 14005 1943 IDIS: P5346 1944 IDIS: P5342 1949LA29754 IDIS: P5482 | AFF 40460 HIST: M0017 008 03 1914LA13674 HIST: P1040 002 162 1925LA21417 DIS: P5028 00747 0 1925LA21417 DIS: P5048 02373 0 1925LA19179 DIS: P5048 02373 0 1941 14005 HIST: P1142 001 05 1941LA14005 DIDIS: P5346 0121 05 1942 29754 HIST: P1428 002 07 1943 29754 HIST: P1428 002 07 | AFF 40460 HIST: M0017 008 0309 1914LA13674 HIST: P1040 002 1622 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028 00747 0000 1149 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028 00747 0000 1149 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028 00747 0000 1149 1925LA19179 IDIS: P5048 02373 0000 1149 1926LA19179 IDIS: P5048 02373 0000 1149 1941 14005 HIST: P1162 001 263 1941LA14005 IDIS: P5346 01781 0000 051 1941LA14005 IDIS: P5346 01781 0000 052 | AFF 40460 HIST: M0017 008 0309 1914LA13674 HIST: P1040 002 1622 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028 00747 0000 thru P 1925LA19179 IDIS: P5028 00747 0000 thru P 1925LA19179 IDIS: P5028 00747 0000 thru P 1926LA19179 IDIS: P5028 0011462 001 1926LA19179 IDIS: P5048 02373 0000 thru P 1941 14005 HIST: P1162 011 2631 | AFF 40460 HIST: M0017 008 0309 1914LA13674 HIST: P1040 002 1622 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5028 00747 0000 thru P5 1925LA21417 IDIS: P5048 02373 0000 thru P5 | | rame |

Page 1

Document Search ... Summary Report

| Document Date Document Number Reel Batch F 2/25/1959 1959LAZ5203 0001 HIST: P1679 002 2/25/1959 1970LA15626 HIST: P1787 001 1798 9/10/1970 1970LA15626 HIST: P1787 001 1798 9/20/1970 1970LA16626 0001 HIST: P1787 001 1798 9/20/1970 1970LA16626 0001 HIST: P1787 001 1789 9/20/1972 1973LA76629 0001 HIST: P1787 000 000 000 000 8/22/1973 1973LA76639 002 0536 8/22/1973 1973LA76630 002 0538 8/22/1973 1973LA76631 002 0538 8/22/1973 1973LA76632 002 0538 8/22/1973 1973LA76633 002 0540 8/22/1973 1973LA76633 002 0542 8/22/1973 1973LA76633 002 0544 8/22/1973 1973LA76633 002 0544 8/22/1973 1973LA76633 002 0544 8/22/1973 1973LA76633 002 0544 8/22/1973 1973LA76633 002 0542 8/22/1973 1973LA76053 002 0544 <t< th=""><th>Sub Type Document Date Document Number Reef Batch F BLDG-ALTER/REPAIR 2/25/1958 1958LA25203 0015: F9782 00966 000 BLDG-ALTER/REPAIR 2/25/1958 1970LA16626 0011157: F1787 001 BLDG-ALEW 9/10/1972 1970LA16626 0001 HIST: F1587 001 BLDG-ALEW 9/10/1972 1970LA16626 0001 HIST: F1587 001 SIGN 9/10/1972 1973LA5629 000 SIGN 9/10/1972 1973LA76639 000 BLDG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 1973LA76639 002 BLDG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 1973LA76631 002 6540 BLDG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 1973LA76631 002 6540 BLDG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 1973LA76631 002 6540 BLDG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 1973LA76632 002 6540 BLDG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 1973LA76633 002 6540 BLDG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 1973LA76633 002 0540 BLDG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 1973LA76633 002 0540 BLDG-DE</th><th>ame</th><th>0 thru P5782</th><th></th><th>0'thru P5903</th><th></th><th>HIST: P1810</th><th>HIST. P1810</th><th>HIST: P1810</th><th>HIST, P1810</th><th>HIST: P1810</th><th>00 thru 00724</th><th>00 HIST: 0517</th><th>ł</th><th></th><th>A H DENEO</th></t<> | Sub Type Document Date Document Number Reef Batch F BLDG-ALTER/REPAIR 2/25/1958 1958LA25203 0015: F9782 00966 000 BLDG-ALTER/REPAIR 2/25/1958 1970LA16626 0011157: F1787 001 BLDG-ALEW 9/10/1972 1970LA16626 0001 HIST: F1587 001 BLDG-ALEW 9/10/1972 1970LA16626 0001 HIST: F1587 001 SIGN 9/10/1972 1973LA5629 000 SIGN 9/10/1972 1973LA76639 000 BLDG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 1973LA76639 002 BLDG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 1973LA76631 002 6540 BLDG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 1973LA76631 002 6540 BLDG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 1973LA76631 002 6540 BLDG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 1973LA76632 002 6540 BLDG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 1973LA76633 002 6540 BLDG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 1973LA76633 002 0540 BLDG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 1973LA76633 002 0540 BLDG-DE | ame | 0 thru P5782 | | 0'thru P5903 | | HIST: P1810 | HIST. P1810 | HIST: P1810 | HIST, P1810 | HIST: P1810 | 00 thru 00724 | 00 HIST: 0517 | ł | | A H DENEO |
|--|--|-----------------|---|---------------------|---|---------------------|----------------------------------|----------------------------------|----------------------------------|---------------------------------|----------------------------------|--|--|---------------------|----------------------|------------------------------|
| Document Date Document Number 2/25/1958 1959LA25203 9/10/1970 1970LA16626 9/30/1970 1970LA16626 9/30/1972 1970LA16626 9/10/1972 1972LA57244 8/22/1973 1972LA57244 8/22/1973 1973LA76629 8/22/1973 1973LA76630 8/22/1973 1973LA76631 8/22/1973 1973LA76633 8/13/1941 1973LA76633 9/19/1952 1952LA30767 9/19/1973 1952LA30767 9/19/1973 1952LA30767 | Sub Type Document Date Document Number BLDG-ALTER/REPAIR 2/25/1959 1959LA25203 BLDG-ALTER/REPAIR 2/25/1959 1970LA16626 BLDG-NEW 9/10/1972 1970LA16626 SIGN 9/30/1970 1970LA16626 SIGN 9/30/1972 1972LA57244 SIGN 9/30/1972 1972LA57244 SIGN 9/30/1972 1972LA57244 BLDG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 1973LA76633 COMPACTION | Keel Batch Fr | IDIS: P5782 00966 000 0001 HIST: P1679 002 | HIST P1787 001 1798 | IDIS: P5903 02364 000 0001 HIST: P1787 001 | HIST P1803 002 2399 | HIST. 00000 000 0000 002 0536 | HIST: 00000 000 0000 002 0538 | HIST: 00000 000 0000 002 0540 | HIST 00000 000 0000 002 0542 | HIST: 00000 000 0000 002 0544 | IDIS: 00724 01477 000 01477 0001 HIST: 0517 | IDIS: 00724 01476 000 HIST: 0230 1 2534 | HIST G0005 030 0173 | HIST: G0005 030 0172 | THE PARTY AND ADDRESS OF THE |
| Document Date 2/25/1959 9/10/1970 9/30/1970 9/30/1972 9/10/1972 8/22/1973 | Sub Type Document Date BL DG-ALTER/REPAIR 2/25/1959 BL DG-NEW 2/25/1959 BL DG-NEW 9/30/1970 SIGN 9/30/1970 SIGN 9/30/1970 SIGN 9/30/1970 SIGN 9/30/1970 SIGN 9/30/1970 BL DG-NEM 9/30/1970 BL DG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 BL DG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 BL DG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 BL DG-DEMOLITION 8/22/1973 COMPACTION 8/22/1973 COMPACTION 8/13/1941 SIZDI SIGN 8/13/1941 BL DG-DEMOLITION 8/13/1941 BL DG-DEMOLITION 8/13/1941 BL DG-DEMOLITION 8/13/1941 BL DG-DEMOLITION 8/13/1942 BL DG-DEMOLITION 8/13/1943 | Document Number | 1959LA25203 | 1970LA16626 | 1970LA16626 | 1972LA57244 | 1973LA76629 | 1973LA76630 | 1973LA76631 | 1973LA76632 | 1973LA76633 | 1941LA14005 | 1952LA30767 | | | |
| | SUB TYPE BLDG-ALTER/REPAIR BLDG-NEW SIGN SIGN SIGN GRADING BLDG-DEMOLITION BLDG-DEMOLITION BLDG-DEMOLITION BLDG-DEMOLITION BLDG-DEMOLITION COMPACTION FILE | Document Date | 2/25/1959 | 9/10/1970 | 9/30/1970 | 9/10/1972 | 8/22/1973 | 8/22/1973 | 8/22/1973 | 8/22/1973 | 8/22/1973 | 8/13/1941 | 9/3/1952 | 9/19/1973 | 10/2/1973 | |

Page 2

Document Search : Summary Report



There are two ways to request a copy of the document image. 1) By fax using the request form. Click on the following link http://www.ladbs.org/permits/permit_related_forms/Research_Request_form.pdf to download the request form. 2) in person. Bring the following summary to one of the following Record counters.

COUNTER HOURS

MONDAY, TUESDAY, THURSDAY, FRIDAY; 7:30 AM to 4:30 PM WEDNESDAY: 9:00 AM to 4:30 PM

ĩ

| Metro | Van Nuys | |
|------------------|--------------------|--|
| N. Figueroa St. | 6262 Van Nuys Bivd | |
| loor, Room 110 | Record Counter | |
| ord Counter | Van Nuys, CA 91401 | |
| Angeles,CA 90012 | | |

2016 BAY Address:

| | ė. | 4 | | 3 | | 7 | è | | | 10- | | ¢ | | ė. |
|------------------|---|--|---------------------|--|--|---|----------------------|----------------------|-------------------|-------------------|--------------------------|----------------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|
| Reel Batch Frame | IDIS: B503 00130 0000 thru B503 00130 0001 | IDIS: P5481 02458 0000 thru P5481 0001 HIST: P1428 001 2466 | HIST P1428 001 2466 | HIST: 00000 000 0000 HIST: P1820 002 1926 | HIST: 00000 000 0000 HIST: P1820 002 1928 | HIST: 00000 000 000 HIST: P1821 002 1134 | HIST: P0436 003 0256 | HIST: P0525 005 0053 | HIST: P702 5 373 | | HIST: 0305 2 0767 | IDIS: 00816 00956 0000 HIST 0426 | HIST: C0002 005 0412 | IDIS: 00537 01596 0000 |
| Document Number | | 1949LA28710 | 1949 28710 | 1975LA03886 | 1975LA03887 | 1975LA05812 | 1994LA15589 | 1995HO37506 | 99020-10000-03331 | 06020-10000-04364 | 1975LA03887 | 1975LA03687 | | |
| Document Date | 5/3/2007 | 12/2/1949 | 12/10/1949 | 2/24/1975 | 2/24/1975 | 4/4/1975 | 3/8/1994 | 4/28/1995 | 11/24/1999 | 12/18/2006 | 12/4/1975 | 12/4/1975 | 9/10/1980 | 9/10/1980 |
| Sub Type | MISCELLANEOUS | BLDG-DEMOLITION | BLDG-ALTER/REPAIR | NEW CONSTRUCTION | NEW CONSTRUCTION | GRADING | BLDG-DEMOLITION | ALTERATION | NONBLDG-NEW | NONBLDG-NEW | | | | |
| Document Type | ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL | SUILDING PERMIT | ALLI DING PERMIT | BUILDING PERMIT | SUILDING PERMIT | SUILDING PERMIT | BUILDING PERMIT | BUILDING PERMIT | BUILDING PERMIT | BUILDING PERMIT | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY |

Page 1

Document Search - Summary Report

| | - | | (ii) | 141 | | ψ | 14 | | | ġ) | ø | | b, | <u>(1</u>) | | 16 | | | 60 | Ø | | | jî. | | ND. | s. | 10 | Þ | ¢. |
|------------------|--|--------------------------|--------------------------|--|--------------------------|--------------------------|--|--------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|--|--------------------------|--------------------------|--|--------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|---|--------------------------|--------------------------|----------------------|------------------|-------------------|------------------|------------------|---|---------------|---------------|---------------|
| Heel Batch Frame | IDIS: 00735 01540 0000 HIST: C0020 00050 0412 | HIST: 00002 005 0410 | IDIS: 00537 01597 0000 | IDIS: 00735 01538 0000 HIST: 00020 00050 0410 | HIST: 00002, 005, 0411 | IDIS: 00537 01598 0000 | 101S: 00735 01539 0000 HIST: 00020 00050 0411 | HIST: 00025 001 0471 | HIST: 00025_001_0471 | IDIS: 00537 01599 0000 | IDIS: 00758 00390 0000 HIST: 00250 00010 0471 | HIST: 00026 001 0490 | IDIS: 00546 00444 0000 | IDIS: 00759 00420 0000 HIST: 00260 00010 0490 | HIST: M0092 004 0045 | IDIS: 00550 03419 0000 | HIST M0151 001 0364 | IDIS, 00501 04854 0000 HIST M1260 009 0116 | | | HIST: B0047 004 0489 | HIST: M911 2 221 | HIST: J4118 1 92 | HIST: M911 2 221 | HIST- J4118 1 92 | IDIS: R654 00790 0000 thru R654 00790 0004 | | | |
| Document Number | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 99020-10000-03331 | 06020-10000-04364 | CERT 42664 | BF 752070 | 1975LA03886 | 1975LA03886 | 1975LA03887 | 1975LA03887 | | | | |
| Document Date | 9/10/1980 | 8/12/1981 | 8/12/1981 | 8/12/1981 | 4/1/1982 | 4/1/1982 | 4/1/1982 | 6/16/1983 | 6/16/1983 | 6/16/1983 | 6/16/1983 | 2/2/1984 | 2/2/1984 | 2/2/1984 | 4/5/1985 | 4/5/1985 | 1/30/1986 | 10/25/2000 | 2/9/2012 | 2/9/2012 | 12/31/1975 | 2/24/1975 | 2/24/1975 | 2/24/1975 | 2/2A/1975 | 5/17/2007 | 8/2/2010 | 5/21/2014 | 5/21/2014 |
| Sub Type | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | BAAB BOARD FILE | | | | | MISCELLANEOUS | MISCELLANEOUS | MISCELLANEOUS | MISCELLANFOUS |
| Document Type | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF DCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF DCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY | COMMISSION | PLAN MAINTENANCE | PI AN MAINTENANCE | PLAN MAINTENANCE | PLAN MAINTENANCE | RANGE FILE | RANGE FILE | RANGE FILE | DAMOR CILC |

Page 2

1. A. W. W. W. Statute History A. A. CITY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF BUILDING AND SAFETY 520-No BUILDING DIVISION CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 13 1991 Los Angeles, Calif. A dd syn. Street, THIS CERTIFIES that ling, located at 2,00 ann nanalan which Building Permit No 4005 was issued Vinne G. 197 1. seen inspected and found to comply with Building Ordinance provisions. BOARD OF BUILDING AND SAFETY. STATAL. By. Chief Clerk. 118

| | | | | and the second s |
|--|--|--|--|--|
| ELECT. DIV. | ERECT A CERTIFIC | A NEW BUILD AND FOR A ATE OF OCCUPA | O O CITY ING BUILE BUILE | Form B-1-SAM-5-40 OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF DING AND SAFETED |
| 77-78-79 | - 80-81-82 | -83-84 His | Lese & SMIT | HS ADDITION |
| 10 D D | | (C 2- | 1 0 | |
| MIR. 25 F. | 11 - Carr 9 | COUNTY OF | HOS ANGELE | S |
| Tract | 0 | | | 00 |
| - | - | | 1.1. 210 Ma | 1 |
| acation of Building 200 | 1 SAORAMA | HTO ST. | | |
| | Manora d | o Seet | | -ici. |
| Selfween what cross streets. | 1047.00 5 | | | Deputy. |
| CSE INK OR INDELIBLE | GREAT I | D. | Contraction C | 2 anna |
| 1. Purpose of building | Store. Durelling. Apartm | ent liques, Hotel or after p | Purposes | Rooms |
| 2. Owner STANDAR | Die G. C | PE GALIEL | | _ Phone /11/-27// |
| · | - 14 De 10 | Int Name) | los And | TELP'S |
| J. Uwner's address | - Children and | | 0 | 0 |
| 4. Certificated Architect | | i | Jeense No | Phone |
| 5. Licensed Engineer | | S | tate No. | Phone |
| Marc | Lupura | 5 | itate | - |
| . Contractor MOROZ | AN NUPRCE | D.0 | arenus No | Phone (P-1 |
| Contractor's address.7 ALUATION OF PRO | POSED WORK | haduding all labor and m haduding all labor and m hadune, heating, wratilati ing fire sormklar, steer multipromit inst-in or the | alertal and all permanent ing water supply plants real wires and elevales | 5_1866 0 |
| State how many buildings on lot and give use of east play | NOW } | tilbore, Dwyitng, Apartete | af House, Hotel on othe | (purpose) |
| 10. Size of new building | 1 * 4F-4_No. | StoriesHeight to | highest point_0_ | Size kt |
| II, Material Exterior Wall | REIN FORCE | CONC. | Type of Roo | fing No Roof_ |
| Per L Lat | Fanting: Widels | Depth in Cr. | aund wa | dth of Wall |
| Atcessory | coomig: wider | beput in Ort | | 0 |
| 2. Buiklings (b) | Size of Studs | | Material of | 0 1001 0 |
| structures (c) | Size of Floor Joists. | 0 X | Size of Rafter | 0 2 0 |
| I berchy certify that to building or construction will will not employ any per- men's Compensation Insura | the best of my know ork will comply will son in violation of ace o | vledge and belief the th all laws, and that in the Labyr Code of th Sign h | above application is the doing of the w he State of Califor tere Slaudard to her | s correct and that this ork authorized thereby nia relating to Work- Chan HE Paul op Authorized Agents Prin O |
| | - FOR DE | PARTMENT USE ON | (LY | feeting as the |
| | FUN DE | | | |
| PLAN CHEC | RING | REDEPORCED | 0 | 670 |
| Date Date | KING | REINFORCED | O Bidg. | Per ETO |
| Date 13392 | RING | REINFORCED CONCRETE Bbls. 0 Cement0 | FEES , Cert. | Per E TO |
| PLAN CHEC Date UL -7 Receipt No. 13892- Valuation 5 | | REINFORCED CONCRETE Bbls. 0 Cement Tons of Rein- | FEES | Per E TO |



APPLICATION TO CTTT OF LOS ANGELES ALTER, REPAIR, or DEMOLISH DEPARTMENT DF BUILDING AND SAFETY AND FOR A Certificate of Occupancy BUILDING DIVISION Lot No. Tract. Location of Building 2001 Jache portwai by Departy USE INK OR INDELIBLE PENCIL 1. Present use of building_ 2. State how long building has been used for present 3. Use of building AFTER alteration or moving ... & Owner I di - Ou 5. Owner's Address 10 P. O. State 6, Certificated Architect 7. Licensed Engineer. C. 8. Contractor 9. Contractor's Addre 10, WALUATION OF PROPOSED WORK II. State how many buildings NOW on lot and give use of each. 12. Size of existing building 20 x 3 J Number of storie a hist Height to highest poin 13. Material Exterior Walks LAPON Exterior framework Describe briefly all proposed construction and TTTE ELBCT Door 2 見たいのかけ NEW CONSTRUCTION 15. Size of Addition _____ Size of Lot____ x ___ Number of Stories when complete. 16. Footing: Width ____ Depth in Ground ____ Width of Wall ____ Size of Floor Joists ____ DATE 17. Size of Studio x Material of Floor Size of Rafters x Type of Roofing I hereby certify that is the best of my knowledge and belief the above application is corr if that this building or construction work will camply with all laws, and that in the dalar 153080 the Laker Code the work authorized th by I will put a in vi State of California relating to Workson Sim h TRACER DISTRICT OFFICE THE DEPARTMENT USE ONLY LAN CHECKING OCCUPATION SHAW NO. Standor ŝ Bidg. 1 .

| | 3 | 3 | APPLIC ALTER, REPA AND Certificate | ATION TO IR, or DEMOLISH of Occupancy | CITY OF LOS ANGELE DEPARTMENT OF BUILDING AND SAFE BUILDING DIVISION |
|--------------------------------------|------------------------------|---|--|---|--|
| Lot | No. | Lots 77, 78 | 79, 80, 81, 82 | , 83, 84 | - Accession in the second s |
| Trac Local Belo USE 1. J | Noen Noen INI Prese | Hisdock & S of Building E. Conser What cross streets? OR INDELIBLE at use of building. | Mature Stree Mature Stree Maleo Saoramento and PENCIL Sarilce Statio | tilon Mi.R. 25, Pa te Los Angelos Number and Streets Bey Gtt n Office nouse. Hotel or other purpose) | Fe 11, City & Coun Approved b City Engine Depu Familles, 0. Rooms 1 |
| 2. 5 | State Use c | how long building of building AFTER | g has been used for pre- alteration or moving.01 | sent occupancy Two yea fice & Rest Rooms I Colifornia | Pamilles. 0 Rooms . 3 Phone 15 ch 2711 |
| 4. 0 | Owno Owno Certi | er's Address 605 ficated Architect | W. Olympic Blvd. | P. O. LOS. State License No State SOC. State License No State | An jolos Phone 64 Phone At 0-5 |
| 8. 0 | Cont | ractor Shandar | d 011 Company | State License No | Phone |
| 10. | VAL | UATION OF PRO | POSED WORK | ng all labor and material and all p t, heating, ventilating, water supply e sprinkler, electrical wiring and ent therein or thereon. | elevator s.1500.00 |
| 11. 3 | State on lo Size | how many buildings and give use of each of existing building | NOW 4.Service.S | Istore Dwelling Apartment Hous | Botel or other purpose) ight to highest point 12! |
| 13. 1 | Mate | rial Exterior Walls | Concrete Block | Masonry 1 | frameworkCone31k |
| 14. | Duso | ribe briefly all pro | posed construction and 1 of a 10! X 10! | work: Concrete block res | troom, incl. |
| Occu | VPE (| fixtures, .el | Lectrical and plu | mbing. | |
| pane | OF R | ange an X | | | |
| Q. | ECI | | NEW | CONSTRUCTION | 10 |
| | IPT | 15. Size of Addit | ion 10' x 10' Size of | Lot 270x 170 Number nd 12" Width of Wall 8" | of Stories when complete Size of Floor Joists x |
| | DATE ISSUED | 17. Size of Studs I hereby cert and that this but the work author State of Californ | x. Material of Flo tify that to the best of r ilding or construction w ized thereby J will not the relating to Workmer | onCond. Size of Rafters? ny knowledge and belief t ork will comply with all employ any person in viol i's Compensation Insurance | x 6Type of Roofing. of he above application is co- laws, and that in the doin ation of the Labor Code of t. A. (A) |
| | TRAC | DISTRICT | FOR DEP | X Sign here | Owner or Authorized Agenti |
| | ER | PLA | N CHECKING | OCCUPANCY SURVE | Y Investigation Fee 5 |
| 1.4 | Z | | | | Cart of |



| Bldg, Fet | | 10-10-10-1 | | |
|--|---|--|--|--|
| - | m 2 | CITY OF LOS A | NGELES | |
| 0 | DEPA | RTMENT OF BUILD | ING AND SAFE | ry . |
| 1 | | BUILDING DIV | NOISI | |
| - | Applies | tion for the Free | tion of a Bu | ilding |
| 1.1 | Applica | NON IOF CHE LICE | tion of a be | and the second |
| | | CLASS "D | | |
| To the B fourtent of lect to U ad the p upon any for any f permit. | loard of Building and Safety Commis polication is hereby made to the Buo of Building, for a building permit in he following conditions, which are bet armit: frat: That the permit dues not grant wattret, alley on other public place of scond: That the permit does not gran purpose that is, or may hereafter be airdi. That the granting of the permit | stoners of the City of Los Anguets and of Duliding and Eafety Commissi- scourdance with the description and reby agreed to by the undersigned app any right or privilege to erect any of any right or privilege to use any in probabiled by ordinance of the City o a does not affect or prejudice any elab | oners of the City of Los An for the purpose hereinsfor- licant and which shall be dee building or other structure is milding or other structure to f Los Angules. n of title to, or right of pos | geles, through the office of the Superi set forth. This application is made so med sonditions entering into this carrent herein described, or any portion there herein described, or any portion there essaion in, the property described in su |
| Lot No | 0 | | | |
| 275 21 | | | | |
| | ***** | | *********************************** | |
| Tract. | | | | |
| | 200 | s/ Sansana | ento So. | Approved by City Engineer |
| Locati | ion of Building | (House Number and | Sireel) | |
| Betwe | en what cross streets | nates and Ja | nta te | Deputy. |
| Deene | ten many er vas sa commune | | | |
| USE | INK OR INDELIBLE PE | NGIL DD DI | 2 | |
| 1. 1 | Purpose of building | North Back (| anopy P | amilies |
| | MA P | re, Realdence, Apariment Honsp. Rotel | minal Co | 20: prome /a 375 |
| 2. | Owner (Print Nama) f.K. [.U.L. | 10 Cost | * F | 0 |
| 3. (| Owner's address | 7 surance | ueo o- | 1000 |
| 4. (| Certificated Architect | | State No | Phone |
| | 5. Ba | to Brown | State No.44 | 446 phone 142270 |
| 5. | Licensed Engineer. | | State | And Annual States of the states of the |
| 6. | Contractor | and | License No | Phone |
| 7 | Contractor's address | | ******* | 540- |
| | | Including all b | abor and material and all p | plumb-le 304 |
| | VALUATION OF PROPO | | | abaya ter / Warwellis afferte an all answerters |
| 8. | THEORY OF THE T | SED WORK {ing, fire sprint | lor, elestrical wiring and/or sin or thereon. | |
| 8. | State how many buildings NOV | SED WORK {ing. new april | tion, electrical wiring and/or ain or thereon. | (or any other purpose) |
| 8. | State how many buildings NOV on lot and give use of each. | W] Statum Bund (Bure, Realds X 3.0. No. Stories | lin, electrical wiring and/er sin or thereon. Month House, Hotat Height to highest po | for any other purpose) int/5 Size lot/40 x.80 |
| 8. (9.) 10. | State how many buildings NOV on lot and give use of each. Size of new building. 4.8 | W] Statum Burn (Burn, Reside | in or thereon. In or thereon. Ince, Apartment House, Hotat Height to highest po | for any other purpose) int/5 Size lot/40 x 80 |
| 8. (9.) 10. 11. | State how many buildings NOV on lot and give use of each. Size of new building | N) Station Brue (Bure, Reside x.2.0No. Stories | is, destrict wiring and/er | for any other purpose) int/5 Size lot/40 x.S. epth in ground 2 |
| 8. (9.) 10. 11. 12. | State how many buildings NOV on lot and give use of each. Size of new building./ | N Statum Bund (Bure, Realds X. 3. 0. No. Stories | in or thereon. In or thereon. Height to highest po b) Concernent. D well. Size | or any other purpose) int/5 Size lot/40 x.20 epth in ground.2 |
| 8. (9.) 10. 11. 12. 18. | State how many buildings NOV on lot and give use of each. Size of new building | W) Status (Bure, Reside (Bure, Reside x 3.0. No. Stories | is, electrical wiring and/er sin or thereon. Height to highest po (a) ferment House, Heter Height to highest po (a) ferment J. D wall | for any other purpose) int/5_Size lot/40 x.80 epth in ground 2. of redwood sillx |
| 8. (9.) 10. 11. 12. 18. | State how many bulldings NOV on jot and give use of each. Size of new bullding./ | No. Stories | in or thereon. Height to highest po ist) framewith House, Heist Height to highest po ist) framewith D well | or any other purpose) int/5_Size lot/40 x.S. of redwood sill. (Interior bearing). 1 of roof. |
| 8. (9.) 10. 11. 12. 18. 14. | State how many buildings NOV on lot and give use of each. Size of new building | SED WORK (Int. The april equipment the W) Status (Bure, Reside x3.0. No. Stories | ier, Apaktional House, House, House, Height to highest po (a) ferrer | of redwood sill. |

I have carefully examined and read the above completed Application and know the same is true and correct, and here-by certify and agree that if a permit is issued all the provisions of the Building Ordinance and State Laws will be complied with whether herein specified or not; I also certify that plans and specifications filed will conform to all the Building

| (3) This building will be not less than 10 feet from any other building used for residential purposes on this lot. | (4) There will be an unobstructed passageway at least 10 feet wide, extending from any dwelling on lot to a Public Street or Public Alley at least 10 feet in width. |
|---|---|
| Sign here | Sign here |
| REMARKS: 5-6-41 C | OK for gane |
| | 21 |
| ŝ | RECEINE |
| | VA HATI NO |
| | PAIJ |
| | |
| | - |
| | |
| | |
| I | 4 hat there is |
| | cor for this |
| quilding or work. | 0 00 |
| (Signed) | Casel Lity |
| | |
| | |
| | *************************************** |
| 101111111111111111111111111111111111111 | |
| | |
| | |
| •(644449 | - |
| | |
| | · · |
| | |

1

° .

ĝ

 (\cdot)

| | CITY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF BUILDING AND SAFETY |
|--|--|
| Building 2001 Sacramento | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY |
| Permit No. and Year LA 30767 - 1952 Certificate | NOTE: Any change of use or occupancy Must be approved by the Department of Building and Safety. |
| This contifies that, so far as ascertained by or made known to complies with the applicable requirements of the Municipal | o the undersigned, the building at above address Code, as follows: Ch 1, as to permitted uses; Ch. |
| 9, Arts. I, 3, 4, and 5; and with applicable requirements of | state mousing more for foresting occupantion |
| 1 Story, Type IIIA, 10x10 Res | coupency. |
| existing load office. der | acabara, . |
| | |
| Owner | |
| Owner's Standard Oil Co. | |
| 605 West Olympic Blvd. | Restored and the second se |
| Los Angeles 15, Califo | ornia |
| Form B-05a-10M-5-52 G. E. MORRIS, Superintendent of E | Building B.JOHN D. MILLER hg |
| a. | |
| | |
| | |
| | |

Rm 750 APPLICATION TO ALTER - REPAIR - DEMOLISH, Form E-3 AND FOR CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY DEPT. OF BUILDING AND SAFETY CITY OF LOS ANGELES 1. Applicant to Complete Numbered Items Only. 2. Plot Plan Required on Back of Original. INSTRUCTIONS: 123-217 DIST MAP T. LEGAL LOT TRACT -No-legal 33 BLK. Suma HISCOCK & AND SMITH'S FIRST HO APPROVED 2. BUILDING ADDRESS ZONE .3-3 Μ Case Hateo 2001 Sacrements .00 FIRE DIST 3. BETWEEN CROSS STREETS 60 II Sacramento 4 Bay AND INSIDE NEW USE OF BUILDING 4. PRESENT USE OF BUILDING same wash rack KEY COR LOT XX PHONE 5. OWNER Standard Oil of California 42311 REV. COR. MA ZONE LOT SIZE OWNER'S ADDRESS 0. B W. Olympic STATE LICENSE PHONE 7. CERT ARCH STATE LICENSE REAR ALLEY PHONE B. LIC. ENGR 6764 84408 DO SIDE ALLEY C.C. Carpenter BLDG. LINE STATE LICENSE PHONE CONTRACTOR 9. Miller & Miller 10. CONTRACTOR'S ADDRESS 65121 01250 WE ZONE AFFIDAVITS P. 0. 34 LA. B. Vd. 5941 Venice NO. OF EXISTING BUILDINGS ON LOT AND USE SIZE OF EXISTING BLOG. | STORIES HEIGHT 11. 20430 DISTRICT OFFICE 3 L.A. St. 1026 Mateo ROOFING SPRINKLERS ROOF OTHER WOOD MATERIAL WOOD METAL CONC. BLOCK MATERIAL **n** REQ'D. SPECIFIED 12. CONST. CONCRETE CONC. m BLDG, AREA VALUATION: TO INCLUDE ALL FIXED EQUIPMENT REQUIRED TO OPERATE AND USE PROPOSED BUILDING. 13. 500. DWELL VALUATION, APPROVED STORIES HEIGHT SIZE OF ADDITION UNITS de O V APPLICATION CHECKED PARKING EXT. WALLS ROOFING NEW Asakura* (DESCRIBE) PLANE PECKED GUEST VERIFIED FILE WITH 2 ac P PLANSORPROVED CONT. INS I certify that in doing the work authorized hereby I will not employ any person in violation of the Labor Code of the State of California relating to workmen's compensation insurance. INSPECTOR APPLICATION APP inVine 4 SIGNED C/0 0.5. 1150 I.F. P.C. 30, HAU TAX. OCC S.P.C. TYP 3 16 G CASHIER'S USE ONLY VALIDATION 1.00 B - 2 CS FEB-25-59 11970 LA25203 3.501 CS FE8-25-59 11971 This Form Whon Froperly Validated is a Permit to De the Welk Described.

(V) ١. 10 1 NO SENIOR 11 13 N ON . 101 ٠ O 110 10 45 a 1

| S CITY OF LOS ANGELES | APPLICATION | FOR INSPE | CTION O | FSIGNS | DEPT. OF | 865 8-5-Rev. 10-68 BUILDING AND SAFETY |
|-----------------------------|---|---------------|--------------|------------------|-------------|---|
| INSTRUCTIONS: 1. Appl | licant to Complete N | lumbared Item | s Only. | 2. Plot Plan R | equired | on Back of Original. |
| 1. LEGAL LOT | 2 8 | K. TRACY | 1000 | las 1 a | -el | CENSUS TRACT |
| A THE AS SICH AD NEW WAT | OK | All | ococ | 407.2m | ang | DIST. MAP |
| Tigh Exchang | e Sign- Mx | isting C | 3 Lot | Ftg Ha | at | 123217 |
| S. dos ADDRESS 2001 | Sacramento | st. | | Cedda | ron | 20NE 3-3 |
| 4. BETWEEN CROSS STREETS | And | Sort | Ť | -2 | | FIRE DIST. |
| -110 | 2015 | AND | PHONE | _ | - | LOT (TYPE) |
| 5. OWNER'S NAME | +1 | | TTAA S | 711 | | Corner |
| B. OWNER'S ADDRESS | 2.2 | | P.0, 80X | ZIP | | LOT SIZE - |
| 605 W. Oly | moic | | LA | 90054 | 1 | 50×105 |
| 7. ARCHITECT OR ENGINEER | | ones | STATE LI | CENSE NO. PHO | NE DIT 1 | |
| Ralph Yong | | 9764 | STATELL | CENSE NO. PHO | NE | ALLEY |
| B. CONTRACTOR P.B.R. CO | | 1873 | 317 | 11A8 2 | 205 | 1 |
| 9. LENDER | | BRANCH | ADDRESS | - | | BLDG. LINE |
| | and a second second | | | | | |
| 10. SIZE OF SIGN | HEIGHT ABOVE | | TO | TAL COPY AREA | | 2 5 2 C D |
| D' X DD | GRADE OFT. | ROOF F | Ti | 000 | | 23200 |
| 11. ILLUMINATION TO BE USED | HIDIDECT TO FLAS | HING TI OTHE | P | | | |
| 12. MATERIAL OF | SUPPORTING FRAME | FRAME OF SUR | FACE | SURFACE OF SIGN | | |
| CONSTRUCTION | St1 | St1 & | Alum | LTOX | | BICTOLOT APPLAC |
| 13. JOB ADDRESS | ammonto | 2000 | | | | DISTRICT OFFICE |
| S VALUATION TO L | NCLUDE ALL FIXED | | | | | GRADING |
| EQUIPMENT REQ | UIRED TO OPERATE | 1500. | | | | / |
| 15. SIZE OF EXISTING BUILDI | NG TYPE STOP | RIES EXT. WA | LLS | ROOF CONST. | | HIGHWAY DED. |
| | | | | | | COME |
| 15. TYPE OF SIGN OR NEW WOL | RK Stom Partet | 0.01 & 1 | ta Is | ame Are | 1 10 | yes |
| CREEWAY NOT REDUIR | STELL WYTER | 001 0 1 | INS | PECETON ACTIVITY | 4/ | ZONSO BY DA |
| CLEARANCE REQUIRED | | | COMB. | EN. MAJ.S. | CONS. | Skonsult |
| FREEWAY CLEARANCE | 57 S. 7 | | FREEWAY CH | ECKED | | FILED WITH |
| FLASHING LIGHTS Yes | No II | | | h | | EDECULAR AL CARES |
| ANIMATIONS Yes | No 🗖 | 1 | PLANS CHECK | (ED AL) | | IL BATA |
| OTHER TO COLO A DODON | (A) (7) | | PLANS APOR | NHD XA | | DATE |
| REQUIRES: BOARD APPROV | AL CI | | n.[| ia l | | 9-29-70 |
| P.C. No. CONT. INSP | | 1 | APELCITON | APPROVED | | NSPECTOR |
| | | | p | | 1-1-1 | L |
| P.C. 12 S.P.C. | G.P.1. | 1100 | F. / | 0.5. | 0/0 | TPIST |
| OL N CUTOV EVOLDEE EN HOLE | THE AFTER FEE IS DAID | PERMIT EXPLOS | S ONE VEAR | AFTER FEE IS | ALD OR S | IX MONTHS AFTER |
| SEP-30-7 | is not commenced. 70 5271 70 5271 | 1 LALA | 1662 1662 | 6 T = | 60 | 9.10 9.10 14.00 |
| 8 | | | Q. | | | |

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

I certify that in doing the work authorized hereby, I will not employ any person in violation of the Labor Code of the State of California relating to workmen's compensation insurance. "This assemblished an application for inspection, the insurance of which is not an application for inspection.

| 001 Sacramento St. Build CC Owne | ing DEPARTMENT OF BUILDING AND SAFETY |
|--|---|
| Owne Addr | er's CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANC |
| Permit Number | Date Certificate Issued: |
| This certifies that, so far as ascertained building at the above address complies ipal Code, as follows: Chapter 1, as to p ticles 1, 3, 4, and 5; and with the applic | with the applicable requirements of the Munic- permitted uses of said property; Chapter 9, Ar- able requirements of the State Housing Act,- |
| This certifies that, so far as ascertained building at the above address complies ipal Code, as follows: Chapter 1, as to p ticles 1, 3, 4, and 5; and with the applica for the following occupancies: | with the applicable requirements of the Munic- permitted uses of said property; Chapter 9, Ar- able requirements of the State Housing Act,— |
| - | A | PLICATIO | N FOR INSP | PECTION OF | SIGHS | | Aur. 25-48 |
|---|---|---|---|---|---|--|---|
| OTY OF LOS AND | I. Asalicat | et tu Complete | Numbered Ite | mi Only. 2. | Plot Plan Require | den Buck | of Original |
| T. LECAL LOT | 03 | | BLR. TRACT | Y | but not | CENSUS 1 | MET |
| THE OF SILL O | M NEW WORK | | The second | LOCOCO | - +. coman | DIST WA | 00 |
| 197 SXC | thing 9 | Siane & | ristor | 001 : | The | 125 | all f |
| CE ACE ACCRESS | 2001 Sr | erment | n St. | | Ligencourt | m 3 | 1-3_ |
| . BETWEEN CHOSE | STRUT A | 21 | un Sert | 6 to | - | FIRE DET | - |
| WNER'S NAME | mau | 0 | and an and | PRONE | | LOTITVE | 0 |
| atina | ard Cli | | | P.0 505 | EP. | 107 5121 | 107 |
| BOD V | 0154 | te | | Τψ | 900-1 | 50× | (13) |
| ARCHITECT BA | ENGINEER | | 976 | STATE LICE | TAG 2711 | | |
| . CONTRACTOR | | | 4,015 | STATE LICE | NSEND PHONE | A1764 | - |
| LENGER | · 40. | | Lit | ADDRESS | 1.446 2.551.47 | 8.00.0.0 | PL. |
| | | | | 1 100 | CORE CARA | 40000 | TH. |
| SIZE OF SIEN | 36 1 | CRADE 25 | ALC: NOT | 11 3 | 60 | 252 | 60 |
| ILLUMINATION | TO BE USED SI | NGLE FACE | DOUBLE FACE 2 | | | 10.00 | |
| MATERIAL OF | ARCT. D UND | PORTING FRAME | FRAME OF ST | URFACE SA | REACE OF TION | 1 | |
| CONSTRUCTION | | St1 | St1 2 | alum | Flex | mistaire | 908 |
| 13. 334 | 100AKSS | re tiento | | | | 4 | A |
| 14. VALU | ATION TO INCLU | DE ALL FIXED | - 1500 | 2. | | CRADING | - |
| AND SIZE OF EXISTI | NG BUILDING | TYPE 5 | TORUES DOT P | WALLS | ROOF CONST | HIGHWAY | DED. |
| | | | 100 | | - | 1000 | _ |
| 2) THE OF SIGN O | TUPP 21 | in Tris | t 501 A | Ftg (Ss | me Ares) | 2 | e- |
| EEWAY N | OT REQUISED | 1 | | INSPE 200 | THE MALS CONS | 12 Mar | 1 40 |
| EEWAY ELEABANCE | E CONTRACTOR CONTRACTO | - | | I REEWAY CHES | DEED | FILEDW | iti |
| ASHING LIGHTE Y | | 3 | | In the owner | | autor | 5.746/6 |
| NIMATIONS Y | fen 🗆 Ho [| 5 | | PLANS CHECKE | TU | the | ATA |
| CN TRAFF | IC APPROVAL | 3 | | PLANS APRROV | E | CALL 2 | 4-70 |
| Ne. II | CONT INSP. |] | | APR AND | PPROVED | harcen | of 1 |
| | | 10.01 | 10.0 | P | Ins leve | 1-4 | VEILT |
| C | S.P.C. | G.P.J. | 14.00 | - | 0.5. | 1.1 | |
| CHECK EXPIRES | SIX MONTHS | AFTER FEL IS PA | ID. PERMIT EXPIN | RES ONE YEAR A | FTEN FEE IS PAID OF | SIA MONTH | S AFTER |
| | 0.70.70 | | | | | | |
| SE | 1-30-70 | 2611 | 17 P | 10020 | 1 - 1 | 10 | 9.10 |
| | 1-20-10 | 2011 | | -10000 | 1-1 | 03 | 14.00 |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | and the second | | | | |
| | | STATE | MENT OF RE | L.PONSIBILIT | Y | | La Valhia |
| L pertify that in | doing the t | STATE | MENT OF RE | CSPONSIBILIT | Y any person in vio | alation of t | he Labor |
| I centify that in Code of the Sta "This perm | doing the tree of Californit is on opp | STATI | MENT OF RE ad hereby, I w a workmen's di spection, the a | ESPONSIBILIT cill not employ compensation issoance of with sol outborize | Y any person in vis inturance, nich ir not on app or permit nor uh | plation of t | he Lobor |
| I certify inst in Code of the Sto "This perm station of the w os authorizing o | i doing the i re of Califor nit is an app rork specifier in permitting | state work authorize nice relating to lication for in therein. This the visibilition | MENT OF RU a workmen's d spection, the o permit does n or failure to c | ESPONSIBILIT all not employ compensation scionce of with not outhorize comply with o | Y any person in vic inturance. Nich is not an app to permit, nor uh any applicable law | olation of t roval or an all it Le c v. Neither | he Labor outhor- onstrued the City shall be |
| I certify incl. m Code of the Sta "This perm isotion of the w os authorizing to this Angeles, responsible for 1 | i doing the te of Califor nit is an app rork specifier r permitting nor any bo the performa | stati work authoriz nia relating f lication for in d herein. This the violation ad, departme ince or result | ement of Ri ad hereby, I w a workmen's di spection, the of permit does n or failure to c n, afficer pr ped any work. | ESPONSIBILIT all not employ ampensation statance of with sol puthonce comply with a employee the described here the to puthon | y any person in vic imminance. sich is not an app av applicable law reof make any w rein, or the condition 2 1.4 M m | noval or an all it Le c v. Neither arranty or lan of the | he Lobor outhor- onstrued the City shall be property |
| certify inst m Code of the Sna "The permission of the w is authorizing to t bas Angeles, esponsible for t or sail upon th | i doing the i te of Califor nit is on oppo- rork specifier or only bo the performo- the performo- the performo- | stati nic relating h lication for in 4 herein. This "he visitation ard, departme nice or results is a perform | ed hereby, I w a workmen's a spection, the a permit does n or failurs to c not, affices or rel any work ed | toponsibilition and an and a second s | y any person in vio insurance. Nich is not an app is permit, nor wh any applicable law reat make any w ein, or the condi- 22 L.A.M.C.) | alation of t reval or an all it be o v. Neither arranty or lan of the | he Labor outhor- ontrued the City shall be property |
| certify inst in Code of the Sta "This permission of the se is authorizing to this Angeles, esponsible for t or soil upon the Signed | i doing the interest californit is on oppion not specifies on oppion not specifies on oppion not only bother on oppion not only bother on oppion not only bother oppion not only bother oppion not only bother oppion not op | stati nia relating f lication for in 4 herein. This "he visibilion ard, departme neo or results b is perform a spect | enterna of Ri ad hereby, I = o workmen's di spectian, the o permit does n or failure to c an, officer pr ped any work ed | ESPONSIBILIT all not employ associated with sout pulliprice comply with a employee the described here to Soc. 91.021 | y any person in via impurance. Nich is not on app ny applicable law proof make ony w ren, or the condi- 22 LAMCJ | elation of t reval or an all it Le c , Neither arranty or lon of the | he Labor outhor- onstrued the City shall be property |
| I certify that in Code of the Sta "This permission of the sector is authorizing o thes Angeles, responsible for t or soil upon the Signed | i doing the te of Colifor nit is on opp nork specifier or any bo the performs of any bo the performs of any bo | STATI work authoris lication for in a herein. This herein. This and, departme mac or result k ja perform z 2001 Looress Appen | AMENT OF RE ad hereby, I a o workmen's ci spectian, the of permit does no or failure to or failure to or failure to ant, officer or ped any work. Cutture Cutture WED | ESPONSIBILIT all not employ complexities assume of who outputters comply with a comply with described her res Sec. 91.021 | Y any person in via impurance. Nich is not on app nic permit, new sh we opticable law read make any we ein, or the condition 2 LA M Cl | noval or an noval or an nall in Le c Neither arranty or lan of the | he Labor outhor- onstrued the City shall be property |
| certify inst in Code of the Sta "This permission of the se sationstating of the Angeles, esponsible for the sail upon the Signed Signed | i doing the te of Colifor nit is on opp nork specifier or permitting nor only boo the performa you want to tower ing | stati work authoris nio relating 1 lication for in therein. This the visibilities d. deportme and, deportme with k a perform k | AMENT OF RE ad hereby, I a a workmen's of spection, the d permit does n or failure to or failure to real day work edISe CUMMA WED STIM REQUERTS | ESPONSIBILIT series and a series of while the series of t | Y any person in vio impurance. Nich is not on app is permit, ner sh any applicable law preof make onry in ent, or the condition of LAMC) | noval or an all it be c . Neither arranty or lan at the | he Labor outhor- onstrued the City shall be property / Daty 2.9/70 |
| certify ind in ode of the Sta "This perm of an of the with southeating u is Las Angeles, sponsible for t r soil uppn t signed rou of Engineer | a doing the 1 te of Colifor nit is on opp nork specifier or permitting nor only bo the performs you such way to war | STATI work authoris no relating 1 lication for in therein. This therein. | EMENT OF RE ad hereby, I = a workmen's a spection, the of permit does n or failure to red day work, ed | ESPONSIBILIT cill not employ issuance of whot outhous sout outhorize comply with a described have e Sec. 91.021 | Y any person in vio impurance. Nich is not on app in permit, neu sh ny oppicable law preot make onn w ent, or the condition D2 L.A.M.C.) | eletion of the noval or arr and it be a Neither arranty or ion of the | he Labor outhor- construed the City the |
| certify indi m ode of the Sta "This perm ration of the w is authorizing to the Ampelon esponsible for t r sail upon the Signed rou of Engineer nicipal Arts Cor | e doing the 1 ne of Collifor not specifier of permitting not only boo he permitting the performance wing | STATI work outhors no relating 1 ine velating 1 therein. This ihe visibilion d, departme mce or results k a perfort south Lookess Appent Noteen Appent Noteen Appent Noteen Appent Dehoves can | EMENT OF RE ed hereby, I = a workmen's a permit does n or failurs to cont affices or permit does n or failurs to red any work ed. JSen COMPLETE TSUE D TSUE D COMPLETES | ESPONSIBILIT content employs annoensation stoance of with sot quitherize comployee the described here e Sec. 91,021 | y any person in vic insurance. Insurance. In permit, nor un proprior by permit, nor un proof make only we rein, or the condition of L.A.M.C.) | olation of the roval or an all it be c k. Neither arranty or arranty or arranty or arranty or | he Labor outhor- contrued the City shall be property / Daty 2-9/10 |
| certify indi in ode al the Stal "This permit ration of the w is authorizing to this Angelou esponsible for t risal upport Signed rou of Engineer nicipal Arts Cor rd of Building | e doing the 1 ne of Colifor nil is on opp ork specifier permitting nor ony bo he permitting the performa- tion any bo to such we to any bo to such we to any bo to any bo to any bo to any bo to any bo to any bo to any bo | STATI work outhors no relating 1 iscation for in therein. This "he visibilinn ad. departme more or result is a perfort a spini Looks S APPER Notimeral School Defeores rak cut = | EMENT OF RE ad hereby, I ad a workmen's a spection. The o permit does n or failure to red day work edISen CUMMU NED This sequence ESSUE D Histor | ESPONSIBILIT cill not employ compensation scuonce of with sot quitherize comply with c escribed here e Soc. 91.020 | y any person in vio insurance. Insurance. In a construction of an app in permit, nor which any applicable lay read make any w rein, or the condition of LAMCJ | olation of the roval or an all it be c s. Neither arranty or arranty or arranty or arranty or | he Labor outhor- contrued the City shall be property / Daty 2-9/10 |
| i certify indi in Code of the Sta "This permission of the w so authorizing to t bas Angeles, esponsible for t or soil upon the Signed repu of Engineer inscipal Arts Con and C Bauldong sty Camerica and | in doing the 1 ne of Collifor nill is on oppo- rork specifier of any bo- he performe you such we have been any to such we have been any how we have been how been any how we have been any how been how been any how we have been how been how how been how how | STATI work outhors: mo relating ' ine velocition ' therein. This 'he velocition ad. department the perform a perform a spent bookss asees Pickers an Approvision for Approvision for | AMENT OF RE ad hereby, I ad a workmen's of spection, the of permit does n or failure to red any work ed." | ESPONSIBILIT cill not employ compensation issuance of with sto publicities comply with c employee the described here e Soc. 91,021 2 2 2 | Y any person in vio insurance. Nich is not an app the permit, new whi any applicable law reat make any w ein, or the candit D2 L.A.M.C.) | olation of the roval or an all it be c v. Neither arranty or lon of the | he Labor outhor- contrued the City shall be property |
| L certify inst in Code of the Sta "This permission of the wiss sauthorizing to it tops Angeles, esponsible for to signed repuiled Engineer necroal Arts Com- nicipal Arts Com- rid of Building ety Commission Hac | i doing the 1 ne of Califor nill is an opp nor any bo nor any bo he performa- got such we were such we have any bo house the such we have any bo house the such we have any bo house the such we have a s | STATI work outhors: mo relating ' herein. This 'he visibilion ad. department is performed a spentruck with the spentruck with the spentruck with the spentruck with the spentruck with the spentruck with the spentruck approved the sp | MENT OF RE ad hereby, I a o workmen's d spectian, the e permit does no or failure to c an, affrees or pel any work ed." "ISer COUMO The Response COMPLETE ISSUE | ESPONSIBILIT cill not employ componention ssouthce of with out putherize comply with c described here e Soc. 91 (02) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 | Y any person in vio impurance. Nich is not an app inv applicable law proof make only w rend make only w rend make only w rend make only w | olation of the roval or an all it be c v. Neither aranty or ion of the | he Labor outhor- construed the City shall be property 2.9/70 |
| certify ind in Tode of the Sta "This permitted of the w s authorizing to sponsible for t r soil upon the Signed rou of Engineer scipal Arts Con id of Buildong ty Commission for sping | i doing the the of Colifor nit is an opp nork specifier or permitting nor only bo the performa- ting the performa- ting menusuoners aro | STATI work outhors: morelating T lication for in d herein. This "he visibilion ad, departme more or result in a perform a partit Lookess Append Defeoved to the commany bible Defeoved to Appended to | IMENT OF RE ad hereby, I a o workmen's d spectian, the a permit does n or failure to c an, affree pr pel any work ed." "ISer COUMA WED This Regulate COMPLETE ISSUE ISSUE | ESPONSIBILIT cill not employ complexibility complexibility described here e Sec. 91 (02) 2 2 | Y any person in vio impurance. Nich is not on app in permit, nor wh may applicable law recot make bie to any applicable law recot make bier any applicable l | olation of the noval or an nall it be c . Neither arranty or lon of the | he Labor outhor- construed the City shall be property / Daty 2.9/70 |

N R 3 3 NBTEO -EXIS U 00 SACRAMENTO from a second to log of a sign of the second of the sign of the si V7 26 30 30 1 1 8 8 5 8 Industry and

| | FOR COMPACTED EARTH FILLS | GRADING SEP 2 |
|---|--|--|
| | 2001 SACAANE | 10 |
| Job address: | Los Angeles, California 2001 SACRAMENT | 0 ST - LTE |
| Soil Testing Agency: | FOUNDATION ENGINEERING COMP 704 South Spring Street Los Angeles, California | ANY 873-5032 90014 |
| Owner: | Standard 011 Company of Cali Western Operations, Inc. 605 W. Olympic Blvd. | ifornia 624-2711 |
| | Los Angeles, California | 90015 |
| Grading Plan by: | Standard Oil Company of Cali | fornia |
| Grading Contractor: | Anthony Torres | 443-3864 |
| | South El Monte, California | 91733 |
| Date work started: Date fill completed: | 8/31/73 Per 9/17/73 Dat | mit No.: 19747 e: 8/22/73 |
| Note: See attached rep of the soil and | port for description of the gra- tabulation of the test results | ding, classification |
| Date of Certificate: | September 19, 1973 | |
| I hereby testing of the f of these the work City Bui of Build clude lo | certify that I have personally and inspection during placement ill described in this report, a inspections and tests it is my was done in full compliance wi lding Code and the regulations ing and Safety. This certificat cation, elevation, grades, or of THO Cive | y supervised the t and c spaction and on the basis y opinion that ith the Los Angeles of the Department ation does not in- timensions of fills. |

0 1

ε

G 1

NEERING

CO

| -201 | BUILDING | AND SAFETY |
|---------|--|---|
| | | |
| | Standard Oil Company of Californis Western Operations, Inc. 605 West Olympic Boulevard Los Angeles, California 90015 | |
| | TRACT: LOT: LOCATION: 2001 Sectometry Street Add. 123-217 | 1973 |
| | Fill soil classification, per Table 25-A: silty Good, Send Clay | |
| | Lots having compacted fill: See report for location of tank bec | ±6111. |
| 00172 | <pre>described in the compaction report dated prepared by</pre> | , Report Collowing net from |
| 0 2 0 5 | B. Pooting tearing pressure for all other explorates shall not value of <u>1500</u> 105, per sq. ft. at <u>13</u> incress minim. approved compared surface. C. Continuous fortings per Cole Section F1.5112 are required. D. All footings supported partly or wholly in compared fill an reinforced continuously with at least one number - isr st the section of the sectio | exceed a m, telow mail te e tij |
| 0.0. | and bottom of the footing. E. Slope erosion control, planting, and irrigating of fill slop runoff control are required as per fode Section global. Building or structure footings shall be set task i feet from of slopes 20 feet or less in vertical neight where the support between 1% noricontal to 1 vertical and 2 noricontal to 1 ver where the vertical height of slope exceeds 11 feet and the s angle is as described above, the set task shall be increased for each additional 5 feet in vertical height over 1 feet to maximum set task of 10 feet. For slopes exceeding 10 feet vertical height, the set tack shall be 40 feet exceeding 10 feet | es, and the face angle is rtical. lops lops i foot the mitted |
| | | |

| 25 | NS: 1. Applicant to Complete Humi | hered Items Only. of Original. | |
|--|--|---|---|
| 1. 07.7 | 7 78 79,80 SLK. THACT | | 123-217 |
| HE | 2,83,84ataached | | CENSUS TRACT |
| A CHARGE OF | GAASINE took bookfill | 1 | IONE OUDIC |
| B. AN ADORES | Scorage Lank Dackill | - | FINE BRT. J |
| 4. ALTWEEN CH | Koal Stiers | D | LOT TAPL |
| H. OWNERS IN | life | Santa re Mone | 170x126 |
| 4. owners L | dard 011 ei | W 189-1000 | IRREG |
| 7. RAN 87/1 | GVILTE 30 | ATE LICOSE No PHONE UST | ALLEY / |
| B. FOUNDATION | ENGINEER ST. | ATE LICENSE NE PHONE | BEDG LINE |
| D. Diak amit | NBT II | ATE LICENSE ME / CHL No. PHONE | AFFICAVITS |
| TO. CONTRACTOR | dation Engra. St | ATE LICENSE My PHONE | CCPD |
| VI. CONTRACTOR | Acoust 2550g | 5 | |
| SE. 63800 | Tyler ADDWESS EI M | onte are | |
| 18. 24 | AGGARSS | | DIST. OFFICE |
| G 14 20 | 01 Sacramento St | 100 | BRIT. SUL |
| TR. HAVEREN | IC YARDS OUT | VARGALE APPROVED | GRADING |
| SLOPE | CUT FILL | APPLICATION CHECKED | HIGHWAY DED. |
| FILLS | YES X NO | TANG DIEDEPA | 1.000 |
| WALL MED D | D. YES IND | COMMECTIONS VERSED | CONS |
| APPENVED S | LENCY | mails applying | ZOWED BY |
| SONO | AMOUNT | - AND TICA ANNOVED | flores |
| | DATE POSTED | | INSPECTOR |
| D SURKY | a . | ride to | INAUX |
| P.C. | - 50° 1 | DAT 122 | kg |
| P.L.W. | MONTHS AFTER FEE 18 PAID IF COMMIT | костнов IS нот самирисар. 5 0 •76629 S — 1 | CK 50. |
| P.C. Mr. | BUTTLE AFTER FEE IS PAID IF CREAT HOWTLE AFTER FEE IS PAID IF CREAT BUTTLE AFTER FEE IS PAID IF CREATE BUTTLE AFTER FEE IS PAID IF CREATE FOR THE LATTERFACE OF PROJECTION IS THE AFTER FEE IS PAID IF CREATE THE LATTERFACE OF PROJECTION OF THE BUTTLE AFTER FEE IS PAID IF CREATE THE LATTERFACE OF PROJECTION OF THE BUTTLE AFTER FEE IS PAID IF CREATE THE LATTERFACE OF PROJECTION OF THE BUTTLE AFTER FEE IS PAID IF CREATE THE LATTERFACE OF PROJECTION OF THE PROJECTION OF THE BUTTLE AFTER FEE IS PAID IF CREATE THE LATTERFACE OF PROJECTION OF THE PROJECTION OF T | RUCTION IS NOT COMMUNICED. 5 0 •76629 S - 1 COS EXEMPEDATIONALITY and 1 will not employ any person in men's comparisation insurfance. In the source of which is not an i t does not authorize or permit, nor hore to comply with any applicable incer are any law described haven, or the com Class Sec. 91.0202 LAMC.) Intellive Tract Map is under my owner | violation of the La sporoval or an auth shall it be constru- law. Neither the Cr warranty or shall driven of the proper ship or land on wh |
| F.C. M. All and a sufficient of the sufficiency of the sufficiency of the sufficiency of the sufficiency of su | BUTTLE ATTER FEE IS PAID IT CREAT HOWTLE ATTER FEE IS PAID IT CREAT MILE 22-00 19747 1 BYATTEREMENT IS THE OF CHIFTONIA Relating To work State of California relating to work portion is an explication for impact is an explication for impact is an explication for impact the content is an explication for a south application for impact for the certornance or results of an particle such work is performed. The certornance or results of an particle such work is performed. The certornance or results of an particle such work is performed. The certornance or results of an particle such work is performed. The certornance of the tertornance of an particle such works in performance. | EUCTION IS NOT COMMUNICED. 5 0 •76629 S - 1 COS EXEMPCONTINUENTY any 1 will not employ any person in men's competentiation insurance. I does not authorize or permit, nor hore to comply with any applicable incer an amployee thereof make any y work described havein, or the com Class Sec. 91.0202 LAMC.) Intellive Tract Map is Londer my owner Signature/Date | violation of the La sporoval or an auth shall it be constru- law. Neither the Cr warranty or shall driven of the prope- |
| P.C. MR. All and a second sec | BUTTIS AFTER FEE IS PAID IT CREAT HOFTIS AFTER FEE IS PAID IT CREAT INFO 22-00 19747 1 BTATTERING TO THE AND THE AND IT CREAT I STATE OF CRITCONIA RELATING TO WORK POTOT A DECISION AND AND AND AND AND STATEMENT IN AND AND AND AND AND AND STATEMENT IN AND AND AND AND AND AND STATEMENT AND AND AND AND AND AND AND STATEMENT AND | RUCTION IS NOT COMMUNICED. 5 0 •76629 S - 1 COS EXEMPCONTINENTLY any 1 will not employ any person in men's compensation insulance. any the locamode of which is not an in does not authorize or permit, not fure to comply with any application (fice ar employer thereof make any y work described hyperin, or the com Class Sec. 91.0202 LAJAC.) Intellive Tract Map is under my owner Signature/Date | violetion of the La sporoval or an auth dual is be constin law. Naither the Constin law. Naither the prope warranty or shall driven of the prope |
| P.C. MR. All and a second sec | BUTTOS AFTER FEE IS PAID IT ORIGIT MONTHS AFTER FEE IS PAID IT ORIGIT MIC-22-00 19747 1 BTATEMENT To be doing the work authorized have State of California relating to work permit is an application for brancher is an application for brancher is an application for brancher is an application or results of an officit such work is performed. There is have the been granted. Internet Application I applied and ancholad in the Termits I have been granted. I down it Applied I applied and ancholad in the Termits I have been granted. | RUCTION IS NOT COMMUNICED. 5 0 •76629 S - 1 Color Estimation Communication S - 1 Color Telefor Communication Insurface. Insurf's Compositional Insurface. Inter an complex with any applicable Name to complex with any applicable Signature/Complex Signature/Complex | violation of the La sporoval or an auth shall it be constr law. Neither the C warranty or shall driven of the proper |
| P.C. MR. | BUTTOS AFTER FEE 16 PAID 17 ORIENT MINING AFTER FEE 16 PAID 17 ORIENT MINING ATTER FEE 16 PAID 17 ORIENT MINING AND | COF ESSOCIONMENTITY COF ESSOCIONMENTITY adv 1 will not employ any person in men's comparisation insurfance. In the bearners of which is not an i in the seamce of which is not an in- it data not authorize or permit, nor hore to comply with any applicable incer ar amplayee thereof make any y work described haven, or the com Clast Sec. 91.0202 LAMC.) Mattive Tract Map is under my owner Signature/Date | violation of the La sporoval or an auth shalt it be constr that it be sentences of the proper |
| F.C. ME. | Norma Aritin FEE is FAID IF CREAT HURTING AFIELD FEE IS FAID IF CREAT FEE ALL 19747 I BYATTEREMENT IF In doire like work authorized have State of California relating to work permit is an explication for imperiation as work appointed bareau. The permit rig or permitting the visitation or fai when nor any band department, or there or beneficient for imperiation of the Lindowney is performed. When a Application a did of the land included in the Ter- ts have been grammed. | RUCTION IS NOT COMMUNICED. 5 0 •76629 S - 1 • OF EXPORTMENTITY any 1 will not employ any person in men's comparisation insurance. on, the locarnes of which is not an i close not authorize or permit, nor fore to comply with any applicable fore an amployee thereof make any y work described by with any applicable Dist Sec. 91.0202 LAMC.) Maline Tract Map is under my owner Signature/Dote | violation of the La sporoval or an auth shalt it be constru- ter the the proper ship or land on wh |

| 9. LCI | | cook & Codete | T orst, with |
|---|---|---|--|
| Lista 75 | A BI B2 | st Addn | 123-217 |
| R. HAPLENY LA | | | 2065.0 |
| 109 6 | erv. station () d | emolish | M3-3 |
| 2001 | Sacramento St. | | TT |
| 4. ALTWEEN O | AND Sant | a Re | TARC |
| Stan | dand 011 | HRONE AROUND | TAT SIZE |
| O. SWHERS AD | CALLS CITY | 409-1000 Zip | 10011 |
| 7. INCINE | W. OLYMPIC LA STATE LIGINGE SI | 90051 PHONE | ALLE |
| D. ANDRITECT | STATE LICENCE IN | PHONE | also LINE |
| | STATE COPPLET IN | ha/we | thomas |
| Haro | ld Morris 255095 | 443-3864 | AFF2526 |
| 10. SRANCH | ADDRESS | CITY | SEE CCH |
| WIDTH AND | TING BLOG. STORIES MELENT NO OF EXISTING BUT | LOINGS ON LOT AND USE | |
| 12. CONST. MATT | MAL EXT. WALLS ROOT | FLOOR | |
| 15. 18 | mor inti | conc | GIST OFFIC |
| 200. | Sacramento St. | | LA |
| San San | HE PHOPOLED EULIDING | ohed 5 | 1 |
| 1. NEW WORK: IDesirfeet | demoltab /benthmark | 1 Mars Lo | CANDING |
| | 19745 | | RIGHWAY DED. |
| NEW USE OF BUILD | SIL SIL | STORIES MEIGHT | FLOOD |
| TYHE De | anolish pran | arcitexel | CONS. |
| IL | OCC. | carnesy. | yes |
| MET- 1440 | O OCC. TOTAL PLAN |) l | flores |
| UNITS CO | ROOMS PARRINS REQ 0 PROVIDED APP | ICHION AND DEVED | FILE WITH |
| WWWWIC | CONT. | IN SECONDA ACTIVITY | INS-FETCH |
| Planto | (28 | the sea ton's coas | |
| and the second se | | | and the second se |
| 1-1360 | | 0.5. CAO | TER FEE IS PAID ON |
| I contify that Code of the 1 This per tration of the second of the 1 This per | STATEMENT OF RESPON- In doing the work authorized her by 1 - 11 rots make of California relation for impettion, the issue STATEMENT OF RESPON- In doing the work authorized her by 1 - 11 rots in doing the work authorized her by 1 - 11 rots in the of California relation for impettion, the issue work specified herein. This permit does not an sor permitting the violation or failure to comp a, nor any board, department, officer or any the sorthware the issue of any work depart | 0.5. C/0 PRANT COPIES WE YEAR AF COMMENCER 000000000000000000000000000000000000 | THE FE IS HALD AN THE FEE IS HALD AN THE FEE IS HALD AN THE FEE IS HALD AN THE FEE IS HALD AN THE CONSTRUCT Neither the City restrict the City restrict the City restrict the City |
| I contify that Code of the 1 Code of the 1 This privation of the mean authorizing of Los Angels numerical super- report to the 1 Signed | STATEMENT OF RESPON- In doing the work authorized hen by I with each main the sense of respective diverse of a sense of | 0.5. C/0 PENNIT COPIERS WHE YEAR AF COMMENCER 000000000000000000000000000000000000 | THE TER FLE IS MAILE AN THE CONSTRUCT I I I be construct I I I be construct I I I be construct Neither the City rearity or shall be a of the property |
| I contify that Code of the 1 Code of the 1 This per trained of the 1 Signed J | ADDENS APPROVED | 0.5. C/0 PRANT EXPRES WE YEAR AF COMMENCED. \$66338 \$ = 100 \$66338 \$ = 100 \$66338 \$ = 100 \$66338 \$ = 100 \$66338 \$ = 100 \$ \$ = 100 \$ \$ = 100 \$ \$ = 100 \$ \$ = 100 \$ \$ = 100 \$ \$ = 100 \$ \$ = 100 \$ \$ = 100 \$ \$ = 100 \$ \$ = 100 \$ \$ = 100 \$ \$ = 100 \$ \$ \$ = 100 \$ \$ \$ \$ = 100 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ | tion of the Labor north or an author Neither the City rearty or shall be n of the property |
| I contify that Code of the S Locatify that Code of the S This per tastion of the s authorizing of Loc Argentition of solid upon y Signed Durness of Engineering | ADDRESS AFFORDED | 0.5. C/0 PRANET COPIECS WHE YEAR AF COMMERCED. \$6938 \$=40 \$6938 \$=40 \$6938 \$=40 \$6938 \$=40 \$6938 \$=40 \$6938 \$=40 \$\$100000000000000000000000000000000000 | tion of the Labor oval or an author if the construed Neither the City rearity or shall be n of the property |
| I Contribution of the second s | SP.C. SALVANDER C. P. C.P.I. PAAN DICKY COURSES STR MONTHLY ATTER FOR IT AND PAAN DICKY COURSES STR MONTHLY ATTER FOR IT AND PAAN DICKY COURSES STR MONTHLY ATTER FOR IT AND PAAN DICKY COURSES STR MONTHLY ATTER FOR IT AND PAAN DICKY COURSES STR MONTHLY ATTER FOR IT AND PAAN DICKY COURSES STR MONTHLY ATTER FOR IT AND STATEMEDIATE OF RESPONSE STATEMEDIATE OF RESPONSES STR STATEMEDIATE OF RESPONSES STATEMEDIATE OF RESPONSES STATEMEDIATE OF RESPONSES STATEMEDIATE OF RESPONSES STATEMEDIATE OF AND STATEMEDIATE OF RESPONSES STATEMEDIATE OF AND STATEMEDIATE OF RESPONSES STATEMEDIATE STATEMEDIA STATEMEDIATE STATEMEDIA STATEMEDIATE | 0.5. C/0 PRANELT COPERCS WHE YEAR AF COMMERNEED. 669380 S = 400 remplage any person in viola remplage any remplage any remplage remplage any remplage < | tion of the Labor oval or an author if the construct Neither the City rearry or shall be n of the property -13=73 |
| I contributions Cont | SP.C. SALVER STREMENT OF RESPONSE SP.C. STATEMENT OF RESPONSE | 0.5. C/0 PRANELT COPIERS WHE YEAR AF COMMERNEED. 666380 S = 4.0 VSUBILITY remplog any person in viella Signature./Data BJA BJA HZ B-J | tion of the Labor real presence of the Carbon real presence of the Carbon real presence of the Carbon real presence of the Carbon Neither the City is the construction Neither the City really or an sucher- in of the property -13=73 |
| I contribut the contribution of the second set the second second set the second seco | STATEMENT OF RESPONSION OF A STATEMENT OF A | 0.5. C/0 PRANT COMMES WE YEAR AF COMMESNEED. Stability Stability Stability Templog any person in vield ensation Insurance. new of which is not an approximation insurance. System any applicable taw. System any applicable taw. Signature./Date RJA HZ HZ | THE TE PLE IS PAULD AN THE CONSTRUCT THE PLE IS PAULD AN THE PLE IS PAULD AND THE PL |
| I contify that Code of the 1 Code of the 1 Code of the 1 This per tration of the m outborning of Los Argen reporting Signed Surrow of Engineering | SP.C. SALASSES STREAMONTES ATTER FOR BE AND PLAN DREX PERFORMES STREAMONTES ATTER FOR BE AND PLAN DREX PERFORMES STREAMONTES ATTER FOR BE AND DISTING ATTER FOR STREAMONTES ATTER FOR BE AND DISTING ATTER FOR STREAMONTES ATTER FOR BE STATEMENT OF RESPON- IN STATEMENT OF RESPON- IN STAT | 0.5. C/0 PLANET EXPERS: WE YEAR AF COMMENCER 000000000000000000000000000000000000 | the res of the Labor The res of the Labor ovel or an author If the construed Neither the City rearity or shall be n of the property -13-73 -13-73 |
| I contify that Code of the 1 Code of the 1 This per trained of the 1 This per trained of the second | ADDEDITION OF A CONTRACT OF RESPONDENCE OF ADDEDITION OF A CONTRACT O CONTR | 0.5. C/0 PRANET COPERS WE YEAR AF COMMENCER \$66338 \$ = 12 \$66338 \$ = 12 \$66338 \$ = 12 \$66338 \$ = 12 \$66338 \$ = 12 \$66338 \$ = 12 \$66338 \$ = 12 \$66338 \$ = 12 \$66338 \$ = 12 \$ \$ = 12 \$ \$ \$ = 12 \$ \$ \$ \$ = 12 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ | the recent of the Labor tion of the Labor which of the Labor which of the Labor heither the City rearity or shall be n of the property -13=73 L3=73 |
| I contribute the contribution of the set of | ADDRESS APPROVED ADDR | 0.3. C/0 PRANELT COMMESS WHE YEAR AF COMMESNEED. \$\$\$38 \$= 18 \$\$\$38 \$= 18 \$\$\$\$38 \$= 18 \$ | The Tree File All Parts of the Labor of the Labor of the Labor of the Labor oral or an author is the Construct or shall be n of the property |
| Losettily share Code of the s This per Losettily share Code of the s This per tastion of tast | APPE AND A CONTRACTOR OF A DESCRIPTION OF A DESCRIPT | 0.3. C/0 PERMIT COMMES WE YEAR AF COMMESNEED. \$\$\$38 \$= 18 \$\$\$438 \$= 18 \$\$\$538 \$= 18 \$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$ \$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$ \$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$ \$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$ \$ | The FT Kg Test FEE IS FAILD AN Test FEE IS FAIL TEST FEE IS |
| I contribut the Code of the 1 Code of the 1 Code of the 1 Code of the 1 This per- tration of the 1 This per- tration of the 1 Code of | ADDRESS CONTRACTOR OF RELATION OF REL | 0.3. C/0 PERMIT EXPERS WE YEAR AF COMMENCED. \$\$\$38 \$ = \$8 \$\$\$38 \$ = \$8 #MUBILITY remploy any person in visit remploy any person 10,2002 LAMCI Signature/Date HZ B-J | TTP /T Kg TER FEE E FAID A TER FEE E FAID A TER FEE E FAID A A tion of the Labour oval or an author Neither the City rearity or shall be n of the property -13=73 -3=73 -3=73 |



| | the second s | and and | DC I |
|---|--|--|--|
| unit 2 | 78,00,92, 90 HA THAT | 1.1. | DC- |
| SEC | see attached His | aget the smill | -123-21 |
| a mile | 41981.83 12 | Adda. | 20EE |
| (23) | restrooms | domo ld at | 100000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| a. 106 A50 | DI Skanomante de | GEBOILED. | 1113133 |
| 4. SCINE | A CASSI STRATS | | TI |
| B. Owight | AND Sa | nta Fe | THR |
| Sta | indard 011 480 | -1000 | LOT SILL |
| 60° | W. Olympia atv | tir | 270x19 |
| 7. Incintti | STATE UCEN | 90051 | IERE |
| B. ANDETTER | T OR DESIGNER STATE LICES | E No. PHONE | acente |
| B. CONTRACT | STATE USING | ENS. PHONE | Arroward |
| TO. MANON | 01d Morris 255095 | 443-3864 | AFF25 |
| LENDER | 10' X 30' | CITY | CCPD |
| WIDTH DE | CENETH DE TONIES HEIGHT NO BE EXISTING | BUILDINGS BY 137 AND USE | |
| TR. CONST. MO | TRAL BAT WALLS | 1 100 | |
| - 19. 2 | Istark W | ood conc | |
| 2 200 | Sacramento St. | C. C | pist orrice |
| J 14. VA | LUATION TH INCLOSE ALL FINES | * 1 | LA CELT GAM |
| 18. 100 1000 | D LEE PROPOSED BUILDING \$ 500. | huo of thins | 0 1 |
| (Deater the) | demolish/handwronk | 1 1 = # 1020 | Charles |
| | SC# 19711~ | | HIGHWAY DLD |
| NEW CEE OF SUP | Volue | Inkies The | and the second |
| THE U | enoush. | and a starter in | 1,000 |
| TITE | boc Pr | Vol o | tows |
| 10 | 0 000 TOTAL PL | AS ANTHONY CO | 1 JONED TO |
| THEL | ALEXY TRADE TO A | 1.1 | flores |
| UNITS O | BOOKS C | Kap | -Fall wros |
| BARDING LINE | CORT. | THE BACK ON ACTIVITY | PROFESSION |
| SPOCIFIED | 6 | SHE CELL DHAN'S | Cons |
| 3 RAG | an the in an | 6'a 10 | TWHET |
| and the second se | and the second se | | 10.00 |
| 7.1 B. | PLAN OHER EXPENSES SIX NORTHES AFTER FEE IS PAL | IS PERMIT EXPLANT AND VI | 1.8.8 |
| 72 m. | PLAN ONCOL COMPANY UN NORTHEL AFTER FEC IS FAIL INTER AFTER FEE IS FAID IF CONSTRUCTION IS N | TO PERMIT EXPIRES ONE YES | AN AFTER FALL IS PAUL ON |
| i | MAR DIES COUNTY OF IS AND IF CONTINUETION IS A | 76631 S - | 2 CK 6.9 |
| i i | MAR DIES COUNTY OF IS AND IF CONTINUETION IS A | то манит солаез оне то сонинения 76631 S — | 2 CK 6.9 |
| | MAR DE CONTRE LE MARTINE ANTER ACC IL PAR | то релина сортана оне чел сонименско 76631 S — | 2 CK 6.9 |
| | MAR DATAS COUNTY OF IS AND IF CONTINUETION IS A | The second secon | 2 CK 6.9 |
| | MAR DELCE COUNTY OF BOATING ANTIES FOR IL PAR | To Commences one video To Commences | 2 CK 6.9 |
| | TATEMENT OF STATEMENT OF STATEM | To Commences one villed to the second | 2 CK 6.9 |
| richard Mari | AND CHIEFE COMPARE LO MONTHE ATTER FEC IS PAID MATTER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS N MATER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS N MATER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS NO STATEMENT OF ESSMO In chang the work authorized handby I will no | NASHBELITY | 2 CK 6.9 |
| I contriby their Code of Hard | And Dates contex to aparties arts arts is had ment arts res is had if continue to it is M-22-13 19750 5 • STATEMENT OF sessed in doing the work authorized handy 1 will no State of California relating to without's com- mid is an application for workforder's com- | NASHBELITY of complexity 76631 S — RESUBELITY of comploy any persons in permation insurance | 2 CK 6.9 |
| I certify that Code of the 1 "This per isstation of the | TATE ONCO CONTRET CO BOATINE AFTER FEC IS PAID INC. 22-TO 19750 CONTINUETION IS N STATEMENT OF BESPO In doing the work authorized handby I will no State of California relating to wildformer's comp mid is an application for inspecting, the estate work specified herein. This person fiders not a | Not of which is not in an an anti- | 2 CK 6.9 |
| I contriby their Code of the 1 "This per instation of the satisfication of the satisfication of the | TATEMENT OF CONTRET OF ADDITION OF THE TATE OF THE TATEMENT ATTER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS IN TATEMENT ATTER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS IN TATEMENT ATTER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS IN TATEMENT OF THE TATEMENT OF THE PAID IS A TO THE PAID IN CONTRACT OF THE PAID IS A TO THE PAI | NOT COMMENCED TO COMMENCED T | violation of the Labor Political or en subsystem (are, Neerbur the City |
| P.L. M. | TATEMENT OF CONTRET OF ADDITION AFTER FECT IF PAR MATTER FEETS PAID IF CONTINUETION IF IN MATER FEETS 19750 C STATEMENT OF EASING In doining the work authorized handby I will no State of California relating to wildformer's comp mind is an application for insponding, the state work specified berein. This portal does not a to permitting the violation of failure to comp in damy board, department, bifficer or or the performance or results will are book does the performance of the torus | Not of which is not in a subjection of the subject | violation of the Labor bill of the entropy working of the Labor bolt of the entropy and the construction from of the property |
| P.L. M. | TATEMENT OF LESS AND IT CONTINUETION IS NOT THE TELL IS PAID IT CONTINUETION IS PAID IT CONTINUETIONI IS PAID I | Not of which is not in one of which is the second s | violation of the Copy and Anny or shall be https://www.com/anny.co |
| P.L. M. | TATE ONCO CONTRET CO BOATINE ATTE FOL IL PAR MATTER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUCTION IS IN MATER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUCTION IS IN MATER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETOR IS IN MATER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETOR IS IN STATEMENT OF INSTANCE IN diang the work authorized handby I will no State of California relating to wildformer's comp mind is an application for inspace to comp the partition department, differe or comp is not any board, department, officer or comp is not any board, department, officer or comp is not any board, department, is follow or comp is not any board, department, officer or comp is not any board, department, is follow or comp is not any board, department, is follow or comp is not any work department. State back Mater Pairs Ages | A PERMIT EXPLANS ONE YEL TERMENETS TERMENE | violation of the coperty and the property |
| P.L. M. | TANK CHICK COPPERS CO. BORTHEL ANTER FEE IS PAID MATTER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS IN MATER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS IN MATER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS IN MATER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS IN STATEMENT OF INSTANCE IN COLONY IN THE INSTANCE IS COMPANY IN COLONY DOWN AND ADDRESSION OF FAILURE IS COMPANY IN COLONY DOWN ADDRESSION OF FAILURE IS COMPANY IN | A PERMIT EXPLANS ONE YEL TO COMMENCED TO C | violation of the coverna wield of the set of the coverna wield of the set output whether an output and any of the coverna and the property |
| P.L. M. | TANK CHECK COMPARY CON MONTHER MATTER FEE IS PAID MATTER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS IN MATTER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS IN MATTER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS IN MATTER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS IN STATEMENT OF INSTANCE IN COMPARY IN INTER FEE IS AND IN INTER FEE IS NOT AND INFORMATION OF INSTANCE IS COMPARY IN COMPARY IN INTER FEE IS IN INTER FEE IS IN INTER FAMILY INTER FAMILY | A PERMIT EXPLANS ONE YEL TO COMMENCED TO C | violation of the Labor bolt of the environment with the environment half it her en with the bolt of the environment half it her en with the charter of the property and any of the property Bar 13=73 |
| PL M. | Ann Children Correct Co. Boarnes Artes rec is PAD Minima Artes res is PAD in Continuerion is in MARCEST 19750 C | A PERMIT EXPLANTS ONE YEL TO COMMENCESS TO COMMEN | violation of the Eutoer Ben 13-73 |
| P.L. M. | Annota content to acontent arts res is had ment arts res is had in continue to it in Arts res is had in continue to it in Arts res is had in continue to it in Arts res is had been and any of the second in doing the work authorized handby I will no state of California relating to wildforeit's com- mid is an application for insomities, the state work specified between for insomities are to a permitting the violation or failure to comp he partor and a results of any work dead like back wildformed. State Ments a Agent Annotas are agent State of Selfers are agent by Calif are licent State of Selfers are agent and any work dead and are performed. State State be State of Selfers are agent and are agent are agen | A COMMENCES ONE YEL TO COMMENCES TO COMMEN | violation of the Labor bit with the control of the labor with the control of the labor with the control of the labor with the control of the property 8-13-73 |
| PL M. | And Child Contract to acather with rec is had and the res is had in continue to it is AC-22-13 197505 • • STATEMENT OF ESSME in duing the work authorized handy I will no State of California mitains to wildowed is and or permitting the work authorized handy I will no state of California mitains to wildowed the state work poet/ised hormon. This powerly duing not a to permitting the violation for macmonidia, the state work poet/ised hormon. This powerly duing not a to permitting the violation of fadars to comp the performance or mathing to any work does the performance or mathing to any work does the performance or mathing to any work does the performance or states The performance of the states to compare have Admitted armswere State of States Sta | A COMMENCES ONE YEL TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMPLY M CO | violation of the Labor bit with the control of the labor with the control of the labor with the control of the labor and the property |
| AL M. | TAAM CHECK COMPARY CON MONTHER ATTER FEE IS PAID MATTER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS IN MATER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS IN MATER FEE IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS IN STATEMENT OF CONTINUETION IS AND IN CONTINUES AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND IN CONTINUES IN AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND IN CONTINUES AND | A COMMENCES ONE YEL TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMPLY MICROSOFT TO COMPLY MICROSOFT TO COMPLY TO COMPL | Violetion of the Labor And the of the Labor Notetion of the Labor And it is construct and of the property - 8-13-73 13-73 |
| P.L. M. | And Child Contrarts to apartner arts res is rail And Child Contrarts to a souther arts res is rail And the rest is rail if continuences is a STATEMENT OF ELESSON In duing the work authorited heavily I will no State of California mitiany to wildform is in the State of California mitiany to wildform is in the south specified herein. This possible at the count work specified herein. This possible of the count to possible density of the souther and to comp the performance, or souths will any work to comp Amenda any board, department. States to comp Amenda any board, department. State Specifies State Spec | A PERMIT EXPIRES ONE YEU TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMPLETE TO COMPLETE | Violetion bi the Labor Notetion bi the Labor Notetion bi the Labor Net in the control watering or shall be litter of the property 8-13-73 |
| P.L. M. | And Child Contrarts to apartner arts for it particular arts for it particular arts for it particular arts for the particular a | A PERMIT EXPIRES ONE YEL TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMPLY MESHELITY MESHEL | Violetion bi the Labor Violetion bi the Labor Nation bi the Labor Nation bi the company and the property 8-13-73 |
| PL B. | Anne Child Conners up and the ATTER FEE IS PAR MARTER FEE IS PARD IF CONTINUETION IS IN MARTER FEE IS PARD IF CONTINUETION IS IN MARTER FEE IS PARD IF CONTINUETION IS IN MARTER FEE IS PARD IF CONTINUETION IS IN STATEMENT OF MEMORY OF MEMORY IN Children I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I | A PERMIT EXPLICES ONE YEL TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMPLETE TO COMPLETE | Violetion bi the Labor Note in the second be wold in bi the Labor half it be chostowed from of the property 8-13-73 |
| P.L. B. | Ann Child Contrart up and the ATTER FEEL IS AND IF CONTINUETION IS IN ATTER FEEL IS AND IF CONTINUETION IS IN ATTER FEEL IS AND IF CONTINUETION IS IN ATTER FEEL IS AND IF CONTINUETION IS IN STATEMENT OF ELEMANT IN Children I and Antherited hamady I will re- State of California methanisted hamady I will re- ment is an application for imaginolida, the state work specified florein. This power of the count of permitting the workshow of any work decorre- tion performance or insults will any work decorre- tion performance or insults will any work decorre- Memory board, department, settinger or emp State States of the state of any work decorre- State States of the state of the state Memory board, department, settinger or emp State States of the state of the state Memory board, department, settinger or emp State States of the state of the state Memory Board, department, settinger or emp States of the state of the state Memory Board, department, settinger or emp States of the state of the state Memory Board, department, settinger or emp States of the state of the state Memory Board of the state of the state of the state Memory Board of the state of the state of the state Memory Board of the state of the state of the state of the state Memory Board of the state of the s | A PERSONAL AND A PERS | Violation bi the Labor Notation bi the Labor Nation bi the Labor Nation bi the Labor Nation of the property 8-13-73 |
| PL M. | Ann Child Contrart up and the ATTER FILL IN AN ATTER FILL IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS IN ATTER FILL IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS IN ATTER FILL IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS IN ATTER FILL IS PAID IF CONTINUETION IS AN ATTER FILL IS AND IF CONTINUETION IS AN ATTER FILL IS AND | A PERSONAL AND A PERS | Violation bi the Labor Violation bi the Labor Nation bi the Labor Nation of the property 8-13-73 |
| AL M. | And Child Contrary to a contrary arts arts in the particular fee is pain in Continuence in the particular fee is pain in Continuence in the particular fee p | A PERSONAL AND A PERS | Violation of the Labor Nation of the Labor Nation of the Labor Nation of the property 8-13-73 |
| PL B. | And Child Contrary to a contrary arts arts in the particular feel is pain in Continuence in the particular feel is pain in Continuence in the particular feel is pain in the particular feel is pain in the particular feel is particular for improviding the state of California metaling to explore a particular to the particular fee is particular for improviding the state of california metaling to explore the contrary board, department, stifliger or employed to any board, department, stifliger or employed to any board, department, stifliger or employed to be particular to explore the contrary board, department, stifliger or employed to any board, department, stifliger or employed to be particular to the particu | A COMMENCES ONE YEL TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMMENCES TO COMPLETE A COMPLETE A COMPLETE A COMPLETE A COMPLETE A COMPLETE A COMMENT A | Violation of the Labor Nation of the Labor Nation of the Labor Nation of the property 8-13-73 |

-

| 3 any ar 1 | APPLICA | HO FOR CERTIFICA | TE OF OCCUPAN | ICY DEFT. OF | BULLER-CAR BAR |
|--|---|--|---|-----------------------------------|-----------------------|
| INSTRUMTION | ts: Applicant to | Complete Humborod | Items Only. | | DC-1 |
| 1. 767 | 9,90, 82,84 | HACT HISC | ock & Smit | bs | 123-217 |
| DESCR 11+13 | 1,01,03 | lst. | Addn. | | 2065 |
| 890-50 | anony (See | (Sta.) News | domoits' | | M7-7 |
| 3. 308 ABCARS | Conservation (Sector | 01 | 107-1067-1-7-51 | | "नोहर चेठा |
| 4. SETWEEN C | ASS STREETS | 440 | Conto Do | | TUpil |
| S. DWNER'S MA | ME | 100 1000 | Danta Re | Hawf | 181 1127 (270 |
| B. OWNERS AD | ONESS | 409-1000 | 1 | | 1-cull |
| 7. ENGINEER | . Olympic | TATE LIC | UNSE No. P | HOME | PALSO |
| B. ABOUTECT | R DESIGNER | TATE LIC | LASE NO. P | NONE | AND LINE |
| D. CONTRACTOR | 1.00 | LTATE LID | INC No 2 | INE | an isavits |
| Harol | d Mavis | 2550955 ADDRESS | 443-3864 | ΨY. | 25260 |
| 11. SIZE OF LXD | TING ALDS STORIES | HTIGHY INC IN 1935 | 165 -500 DINES (15 10) | 240 151 | COPD |
| WIDTH 25 | ENGTH 16 1 | 13 5 | | 004 | 1.4 |
| OF EXESTING ALL | SCATS | m | 51 | DUIDO | her arrist |
| 2 | 001 Sacram | ento St. | | | LA_ |
| J 14. VALU | PRENT REQUIRED TO UP | MATE \$ 200 | | 1.197.0 | 1 |
| 15. new work (Depender) | demolia | bardgreek | | 10.00 | L'ANNING . |
| | ADI No | Sewer | | | Priceman DLO |
| NEW DE CHINE | und. | SOX & ACT | 1110+ 11 | sairs while? | /ium |
| THE | GROUP USC | | PLANE DUIDED | | Vers |
| MOS NOC | MAN OCC | HAC | PLANS APPROVED | 1 | DECORDER OF |
| OWDL - 4040 | Sufst Pater | at wide weathers | white | C | fut with |
| CHATTERS COMPANY | (DAL) | | Non | a attracts | 401554266 |
| SHOFILD | (HSP) | | CONS CUT | MAJ S CONS | |
| 9,0 | SPC | 20 IK / | 1. 10.2 | K// B- | 11PG1 |
| P.C. Ha. | PLAN CHECE EAPLARS | SEE MONTRS AFTER 11- | IS NOT COMMENCED | HER ONE YEAR AND | TH CUT IS HATD ON SHE |
| i | MIG-22-78 | 19751 E | .76632 | 5-21 | K 630 |
| ž | | | -10036 | | |
| § | - | | | | |
| 3 | | | | | |
| | | STATEMENT OF | LESPONSIBILITY | | 10.000 |
| L sertify that Code of the | set drong the work. State of Calvisimie i | easing to - men's | combensation inc | LIFANCE, | use of the |
| "This p | ermit is an applicat | ion for inspect on, the ent. This perm 1 does | not with a real | permit, nor thus | Har Har Har Colla |
| Tentered of the | en perioding the | emiation or to tom to department, | s concelly with any as simplicities share | applicable law at make one was | rante or shall be |
| at authorizing of Los Angel | the partic work it | Selement of a c work | or tec 91 (202) | LANCI | the new products |
| as authorising of Los Angel responsible to an soil update | | and the second se | 1 | /Dati: | |
| as authorizing of Los Argen responsible to an soil uplay Signed | 10 | ne | Signature | | |
| sa authorisin of Los Ange responsible for soil using Signed Co Bureau of | Guesens Arter | i Agent I | Signature Fill à | 8-22-75 | |
| at authoriting of Los Argen responded to an soit upage Soned Co Bureau of Ingineering | ANGENTS APPE | Agent Agent All TCATE | รายบ คือได้ สายบ คือได้ | 8-32-73 | |
| a authorizin of Los Ange responsible to or soit upage Signed Co Durate of Ingineering | A HOLENS AVIET | Agent) (C) | รายข <mark>รีญั</mark> ลั | 8-22-73 | |
| a authorizing of Los Argent responsible to or soit using Signed Co human of Engineering | Ancient Survey | Again NI LARK + MING SIC WIT OPP 12817 NI PALA US FUE | รายนาย สายชาติปีกั | 8-22-73 | |
| sa authorisin of Lea Angain responsible for or soil users Soned Co Numerical Inginanting | ANGENES APPER | April (C) SIC NOT APPLY A THINK SIC NOT APPLY TO THE IC PACE US FOR TOTAL REQUI | area Filia area Filia area | 8-22-73 | |
| sa authorising of Lea Angal responsible for an soil users Signed Durean of Ingineering | HIGHER AFTER STREE | Agent) 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 | รัฐสาม สาย <mark>คี่มี</mark> กั เหต | 8-22-73 | |
| Conservation | SUMMER ATTE | Again) (1) (2) (2) (3) C MUT (PPN - 2007 (3) C MUT (3) C MUT (3) C MUT (3) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4 | รัฐณาณา สายปรีย์นี้ เหตุ เหตุ เหตุ | 8-22-73 | |
| Epreservation | Shines Armin Shines Armin Shines Huamay 62540 In 685 G.D.A.M. Dreak Sina I Britan Sin Mul | August August All Larth + Hallow Site with Armin (2007) (12 Million Gradient Gradient Site with Armin (2007) (1104) Site with Armin (2007) Site of All Site of All Site of All Site Site of All Site of All Site of All Site Site of All Site of All Site of All Site Site of All Site of All Site of All Site Site of All Site of All Site of All Site Site of All Site of All Site of All Site Site of All Site of All Site of All Site Site of All Site of All Site of All Site of All Site Site of All Site of All Site of All Site of All Site Site of All Site of All Site of All Site of All Site Site of All Site of All Site of All Site of All Site of All Site Site of All Site of | ร และ สุญาณีที่มีกั เหต ระสาม กับ เป็ มีมี - เขาสร์- | 8-22-73 | 22-73 |
| Conservation | HARMAN ANTON SPHERE SPHERE HARMAN ACTIVE IN 1980 COLOURS UNREAST IN 11 DIRECTOR I | Agenti Agenti Si Carto - Anno Si Carto Anno Jani Ti Paciti Uto Paci Suiti I anno Carto - Anno Suiti I anno | Signature Vita Niti () Niti () Niti () Niti () Niti () Niti () | 8-22-73 | 20-75 |

| 3 anna | 7 AMBRIDS AND FOR | ADDIAL | OF RECIPAIR | DEMOLISH | 845 8-3-8.1-78 |
|---|--|---|--|---|--|
| INSTRUCTION | IS: Applicant to Complete | Numbered Its | ma Oniv. | DEFT. O | BUILDING AND SAFETY |
| 11-1917 | 9.90,82,84 ME | THAT AN | | 1.7 | PC-1 |
| | _ see attached | IT | 100007 | mon | 123-217 |
| R. HELEN | 19 21.83 | 151 4 | del | | 2065.00 |
| (08) | tire shop | 1 7 | demoli | sh | X046 M3-3 |
| 2001 | Sacramento St. | | | 1.000 | PINE PINT |
| Mate | DES STREETS | us Sant | n Pa | | Lat Grand Land |
| Stand | land 017 | SHE BUILD | SA TO | (ONE | LOT LINE |
| . OWNERS ADD | ESH CLARK | CITY | 480 | -1000 | 170x135 |
| V. INCIDEN | . Olympic | STATE LIZENSE | 900 | 051 | INTEG |
| A. ANOITTELY OF | DISIENT | STATE OPTIG | Re de | | 1 |
| a caura conta | -sautes | STATE LISEASE | | ONE | Hild ling |
| Harol | d Morris 2 | 55095 | Nº 443-3 | B6h | APROVIS |
| LENDER | ADDRESS | and a | en | Y | CCPD |
| A SIZE OF EXAN | ING BLOG STOPLES HEIGHT | OF ERISTING B | UN DINGS ON LEY | AND LIE | |
| . COUNT BATES | IAL XYT WALLS | #05F | 10 | NOR NO. | |
| 15, 26 2 | syn | mt1 | | conc | |
| 2001 | Sacramento St. | | | | LA |
| BUIN | AENT REBUIRED O OFLAATE | 300. | Threeof | 5 | CALT SOIL |
| . HEW WORK | dama line dr | | 74= | \$1820 | CALONC - |
| | demotish/handwrs | rck | | | HUSEWAY APA |
| W USE OF BUILDIN | Se 11/43 | A CALADITION | 1216 | ALEA THEORY | 7 |
| PEAN | OLISH | The second | TA | HILD MILIGHT | 10,000 |
| TV | ect. | 1 | to Ten | 0:01 | Yes |
| -600 | OCC. Th | 14 7 | S Internet | 0 | Tiopes |
| IL On | GALL FARKING BEG'D | MONIDED APP | tota uno | y I | FILE with |
| 190.285 | and the second s | - 1 | Nop | | 2 |
| Thes / | (NSP) | 40 | 11 (CEN) | MAL S 2005 | INSPECTOR |
| 14421 | par is file | 1 601 | 0.5 | 6/1 | torus T |
| B | AN CHECK EXPIRES SIX MONTHS AT | TER FET IS PAIR | - | A ONE VEAP AFTE | THE IS PAIR OF THE |
| Ala | 19752 | 5 •7 | 5633 S | — 2 CK | 6.95 |
| ade of the Sta "This permit sature of the us a sufficiency of the Argelia, recording for self sport atta- grand Letter grand Letter | to of Celifornia relating to work in is an application for impact of permitting the work in the memory ner, ary board, department, of he gerformapics or results of ar the mach gent is performed of the celifornia of the based performance of the Desire a Assult | hmen's comp hmen's comp in, the issue it dires not at thiser to comp filicer or eno ty work descr (See Sec | I enabley any g enabled in insus near of which in uthorize as per dy with any as hyper theraid i fixed herein, in 91,0202 LA Signeture/D | ance: ance: not an applica- mit, nor shall i make any warrer the condition o LM(C) | ser i ser author- i ser construind rether rike City http: or shall be si the property |
| eu el | ADMINES'S APPROVED | | RAJ | 8-13 | -73 |
| | STE NOT AND | INDURING HEAD | - | | 3 |
| | STETAIG | | HZ | Bulle | 73 |
| | D'C.N.A | CRATER. | 120000 | Contraction of the | Second and |
| | The second se | A DIREA | | | 1 |
| | THESHIRAY INSIGATION | | | Contract of the second s | |
| | BEDRETAY INCOLATION | STATES . | | | |
| | PLACE DI LABORITOR | Starting | 100 | | - |
| overlan | PLICE STATISTICS | MARKED | MR. CODULE | d au | |
| | BEDWAY INCLUSION | 304100 | | d and | A |

| 132 1776, 78, 82, 82, 82, 84 182 157 162 172 162 172 163 163 172 163 172 <th172< th=""> <th172< th=""> 172</th172<></th172<> | INSTRUCTIONS. | Anothernal by Compilers | Humbered Heme C | Daly. | - | Ne-1 |
|--|--|---|--|--|---|---|
| The second se | In the stand | 70 60.02 80 | THACT AL | Lu | 1-1 | DIST |
| 1 1 <td>出 770</td> <td>o Hee attached</td> <td>17</td> <td></td> <td>Jan 1 and</td> <td>123-217 codus m</td> | 出 770 | o Hee attached | 17 | | Jan 1 and | 123-217 codus m |
| A MARCH TAR & MARRING If and another and the set of analose Case Case <thcase< th=""> <thcas< th=""></thcas<></thcase<> | 141 | 781,83 | 151 | ALL | | 2065.00 |
| 1 2015 Sa or samento St. If the set 4 Stantardows Tweet As Santa Pe If the set 5 Stantardows Tweet Stantardows Tweet If the set 5 Stantardows Tweet Stantardows Tweet If the set 5 Stantardows Tweet Stantardows Tweet If the set 6 Weet Stantardows Tweet If the set 7 The set Stantardows Tweet If the set 8 Weet If the set If the set 9 March Merris If the set If the set 9 March Merris If the set If the set 10 March Merris If the set If the set 11 March Merris If the set If the set 12 March Merris If the set If the set 13 March Merris If the set If the set 14 March Merris If the set If the set If the set 15 March Merris If the set If the set If the set 16 March Merris If the set If the set If the set 17 March Merris If the set If the set If the set 18 Mar | R. PRESLAT USE A | FRADIK | sew use or nor | olish | | M3-3 |
| 2012 SACTAMENDO ST. AND Santa Pe Of Hasting Matter And Stanta Pe If all and the standard of the sta | S. SON ADDRESS | | - WSU | YAANII_ | | THE OIST |
| Matter Ave Santa Per • Seardard Oll Or 489-1000 • Seardard Coll Or 10001 • Seardard Coll Or 10001 • Seardard Coll Or 10001 • Seardard Coll Interference Interference • Seardard Coll Or Interference • Seardard Coll Interference Interference • Seardard Col | 4. MYWER CHES | Sacramento St. | and the state | - | | the let |
| The matrix and Oil Hadron Hadron Hadron • Standard Oily Oily Oily File File <t< td=""><td>Mateo</td><td></td><td>AND Sant</td><td>a Fe</td><td>-</td><td>Lor sitt</td></t<> | Mateo | | AND Sant | a Fe | - | Lor sitt |
| • Mean Addeds City Dial C | Standa | ard Oil | | 489-10 | 00 | 190x135 |
| T. Description The This was an intermed and the second and the sec | 6. OWNERS ADOM | Olympic | LA | 900 | 51 | PRES |
| Ladometric to to basis and matrix information List information Prime Red (information prime) ** Harrold Morris 255095 #433-3864 APP25260 ** Control of the information of the informa | 7. ENLINES | - o Lymp Le | STATE DICENSE NO. | PHON | - | autry / |
| ************************************ | B. ANDITECT OF | SISRADA | TATE LICENSE No. | PHON | - | BLOG LINE |
| Harvold Mopris 255095 443-3864 APP25260 18 States States States CODE 11 States States States States CODE 11 States States States States States 12 States States States States States 13 States States States States States 14 States States States States States 15 States States States States States 16 States States States States States 17 States States States States States 18 States States States States States 19 States States States States States 10 States States States States States 11 States States States States States 11 States States States States States 12 States States States States States </td <td>-</td> <td></td> <td>LTATE LICENSE No.</td> <td>Pricht</td> <td></td> <td>APPEARIN</td> | - | | LTATE LICENSE No. | Pricht | | APPEARIN |
| 16. Example ADDRESS ADDRESS ADDRESS ADDRESS ADDRESS ADDRESS CCPD 11. Starts of TEXTING ALLS 11.33 11.31 ADDRESS ADDRESS ADDRESS CCPD 31. The Starts of TEXTING ALLS 11.31 Model Model Model Model ADDRESS 31. The Starts of TEXTING ALLS CP MALL Model Model Model ADDRESS ADDRESS 31. The Starts of TEXTING ALLS CP MALL Model Model ADDRESS ADDRESS ADDRESS 31. The Starts of TEXTING ALLS CP MALL Model Model ADDRESS ADDR | Harold | 1 Morris | 255095 | 443-3 | 864 | AFF25260 |
| II. Start of a centrum ALM II. Start of a centrum ALM Model Start Start of a centrum ALM Start of a centrum ALM II. Start of a centrum ALM Model Start Start of a centrum ALM Start of a centrum ALM II. Start of a centrum ALM Model Start of a centrum ALM Start of a centrum ALM Start of a centrum ALM II. Start of a centrum ALM Model Start of a centrum ALM Start of a centrum ALM Start of a centrum ALM II. Start of a centrum ALM Model Start of a centrum ALM Start of a centrum ALM Start of a centrum ALM II. Start of a centrum ALM Model Start of a centrum ALM Start of a centrum ALM Start of a centrum ALM II. Start of a centrum ALM II. Start of a centrum ALM II. Start of a centrum ALM II. Start of a centrum ALM II. Start of a centrum ALM | 10, BRANCH | ADDRESS | | city | | CCPD |
| 1 1 <td>11. 507 8 1251</td> <td>NE BLINE STUDIES NEIGHT</td> <td>NO OF EXISTING BUILD</td> <td>NINGS ON LOT AN</td> <td>p use</td> <td></td> | 11. 507 8 1251 | NE BLINE STUDIES NEIGHT | NO OF EXISTING BUILD | NINGS ON LOT AN | p use | |
| Production Product WG COTIC Cotic Cotic 3 12-12 Sacramento St. LA 13 12-12 Sacramento St. LA 14 Textender in the second in a pression of a second in a sector in a second of a second in a second | The CHET BATER | AL POT WALLS IN + | 6404 | FLOOP | | |
| 3 2015 Saör samento St. IA 3 14. VALUATION TO RECOVER LANDON 8 300. F. U.S. of 5 97 561 14. VALUATION TO RECOVER LANDON 8 300. F. U.S. of 5 97 561 15. VALUATION TO RECOVER LANDON 100. F. U.S. of 5 97 561 16. VALUATION TO RECOVER LANDON 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 17. VALUATION TO RECOVER LANDON 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 17. VALUATION TO RECOVER LANDON 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 17. VALUATION TO RECOVER LANDON 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 17. VALUATION TO RECOVER LANDON 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 18. ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 18. ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 18. ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 18. ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 18. ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 111 of ADDITION 1111 of ADDITION 18. ADDITION < | OF DEISTING ALSO | BAN WELL | Wd | CO | ne | ANT OFFICE |
| The resultation of the model in advance # 300. Five of the control of the model in advance The resultation of the model in advance W. State (2000) Capting The resultation of the model in advance W. State (2000) Capting The resultation of the model in advance W. State (2000) Capting The resultation of the model in advance W. State (2000) Capting The resultation of the model in advance W. State (2000) Caste (2000) The resultation of the model in advance W. State (2000) Caste (2000) The resultation of the model in advance W. State (2000) Caste (2000) The resultation of the model in advance W. State (2000) Caste (2000) The resultation of the model in advance W. State (2000) Caste (2000) The resultation of the model in advance (2000) Caste (2000) Caste (2000) The resultation of the model in advance (2000) Caste (2000) Caste (2000) The resultation of the model in advance (2000) Caste (2000) Caste (2000) The resultation of the model in advance (2000) Caste (2000) Caste (2000) The resultation of the model in advance (2000) Caste (2000) Caste (2000) <t< td=""><td>2 2015 3</td><td>Saoramento St.</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>LA</td></t<> | 2 2015 3 | Saoramento St. | | | | LA |
| And the Properties Building The New Colspan="2" | J 14. VALUAT | ION TO INCLUDE ALL FIRED | 300. F | ive of | 5 | y son |
| Owner Gemolish/handwreck High ar kit (Plausbeig) S.C.**//9 Hit of some intermediation in the some intermediation intermediatintermediate intermediation intermediate | TH. NEW WORK | E PROPESED BLALDING | | TV. #1 | 820 | CHARING |
| Marke Order S.C The second control of the solution Totals mile in the second control of the solution MW UPT OF RELEVANCE MARK INCOME Market Intervention The second control of the solution The second control of the solution MW UPT OF RELEVANCE Market Intervention Market Intervention The second control of the solution The second control of the solution MW UPT OF RELEVANCE Market Intervention Market Intervention The second control of the solution The second control of the solution MW UPT OF RELEVANCE Market Intervention Market Intervention The second control of the solution The second control of the solution MW UPT OF RELEVANCE Market Intervention Market Intervention The second control of the solution of the solution of the solution The second control of the solution of the solutin the solution of the solution | for L' | demolish/handwi | reck | | | HIGHWAY ELD |
| ANY OF CALLSHIP The of Advision The of Advision The of Advision The of Advision NM TV TV <td>Placeon</td> <td>() S.C.# 191</td> <td>The of stations</td> <td>Dida</td> <td>to the second</td> <td>1.000</td> | Placeon | () S.C.# 191 | The of stations | Dida | to the second | 1.000 |
| The second se | NEW LITE OF BUILDIN | oLISH | SIZE OF ADDITION | 11- | | |
| Image: Control of the second of the secon | THE TU | ecc. | 127 | S LAC. | eign | yes |
| Ame GO Vice Intervention Intervention Intervention Intervention Intervention Intervention Intervention Intervention Intervention Intervention | R.bs | WLX . | VOTAL PLANT | THANK | | Tiores |
| Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Institution Instituti | 600 | ALLEY TRIBUILS MAD | PROVIDED AND | ATION AND | | THE WITH |
| Interview | ant O | 0- | - Ke | april | | and a |
| AND COLUMN Important Contracts and the provide state of the state of contract of the state of | LogisLD4 | COMPT. | | SEN 2 M | ALTIVITY ALS CONS | INCRETON |
| Note Note Note PEC is Interment Detter PEC is Anto if Construction PLANIT Expirets one vice Artis PEC is Anto if Construction Note 22.703 19753 976534 S 20.80 Note 22.703 19753 976534 S 20.80 6.8 Note 22.703 19753 976534 S 20.80 6.8 Note 22.703 19753 976534 S 20.80 6.8 Note 22.703 19753 6.8 976534 S 20.80 6.8 Note 22.703 19753 5.706534 S -2.000 6.8 Note 10010 10010 10010 10010 10010 10010 10010 10010 10010 10010 10010 10010 10010 10010 10010 10010 10010 10010 100 | SPECIAL | THE HALL BALL | ISPI | 103 | 16 a | TUPIST - |
| TE is Present process has monthly Artip FEC is PAID in Construction of the Construction of Construction of Construction of the Construction of the Construction of C | | 36- | / | | | I KS |
| Arr sold Lating, seguel South Sold, Signatures Signatures/Date: Sugnand Signatures/Date: Signatures/Date: Burnaul of Engineering Annexes: Minister Provide Rep 0 RAJ 8-1 1-7/3 Stores: Minister Provide Stores: Minister Provide Rep 0 RAJ 8-1 3-73 Store: Store | I cartify that I Code of the St "This per isation of the magnetized for respondible for | STATEM n doing the work authorized rate of California relating to mark specified laters. This s or permitting the visibilion s are any board, department We performance or results. | Ebit OF RESPON hereby 2 will not worknien's compe- gection, the Issuen erfailure to compi- of any work dencir of any work dencir | Statute amploy any p match insur- ce of which a horse or per y with any a oyee theread bad herean, o 91 0202 L | ergon in violat ince. I no: At apoint mit, no: At apoint mit, no: Atal plicable las. I the condition M C 1 | ion of the Labor of or an author it be constraint Neither the City carry or shall be of the property |
| Durmation Allowers Movement RAJ B-1 :/' :- Enginementing Servers No. Monthly Movement RAJ B-1 :/' :- Servers Servers No. Monthly Movement RAJ B-1 :/' :- Servers Servers No. Monthly Movement RAJ B-1 :/' :- Servers Servers No. Monthly Movement RAJ B-1 :/' :- Servers Servers No. Movement RAJ B-1 :/' :- Servers Servers Servers Servers B-1 :/' :- Classervers Servers Servers | LOL BOHL PENDIA AC | my Jone | | Signeture/R | Awity: | |
| Engineering Sinter A UNITER ADDITION SEADS | Signed Ve | ADDRESS APPROVED | | RAJ | 8-17- | 75 |
| | Signed Ve | SERVERS NO LIVE | LE. PLUMATING MED D | 11/2 | 0.10 | 10 |
| PC 604 Secondary Sec | Signed Ve Burness of Engineering | 60,004 | APPENDING STATES | 114 | 0=13= | 13 |
| Comparently States Annual Contraction Cont | Signed Ve Burness of Engineering | SPC NO. | arritigants. | | | |
| | Signed Ve Burnets of Engineering | SPE NOT SPE FAL SPE FAL | I IIIIIII | - | | |
| Composition Contract | Signed Ve Burnets of Engineering | SPC HOT SPC HOT SPC HOT SPC HOT SPC HOT | | | | 1211-1-14 |
| Commentant International Contraction Contraction Contraction | Signed 19 Burnaus of Engineering | SPC HOT SPC HO | ersant Tomore | | an | - |
| | Signed 19 Burnaus of Engineering | SPC HOT SPC HOT SPC HOT SPC HOT SPC HOT | ernicael entropy | | | NOTO THE |
| | Support of Engineering | SPC HOT SPC HOT SPC HOT PTC HOT PTC HOT THE HAAY DEDUCTION THE HAAY DEDUCTION THE HAAY DEDUCTION THE HAAY DEDUCTION | E PART DE | CT REVENUES | STAR. | |
| | Support Burnets of Engineering | SPC HOT SPC HOT SPC HOT SPC HOT SPC HOT THE HOT SPC HOT SPC HOT SPC HOT SPC HOT SPC HOT SPC HO | BULLARD BELAND DEFLATS | C APPENDIX | - | |

APPLICATION FOR INSPECTION OF NEW BUILDING NG MALEL AND FOR CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY CITY OF LOS ANGEL ES INSTRUCTIONS: 1. Applicant to Complete Numbered Items Only. 2. Plat Plan Required on Back of Origin T. LTEAL LOT BLK. Hiscock & Smith DEST, MAP 123-217 73 & 75 -84 First addion 2065.00 23 Truck Scale 2016 Bay St. 13-3 4. servers chess states itr inner Term 110 Spr/thru Consolidated Fibre Inc 627-7351 1208 240 . Mateo Vt. \$17+ LA 7. Meneral Wallis STATE LICENCE THE PHONE 4.129 STATE LIZENSE NO . ARCHITECT OR DESIGNER PRONT BLOG SIME e. compaction Edico Cont. Inc ATTICAVITS A205227 714/531-4300 ZI 912 TO. BRANCH ADDRESS Dity omp fill 11. SIZE OF NEW REDE 50 STORES (HEREA' INO DE LARLING GUILDUS ON LOT AND INT WIDTH TO LENGTH 50 12. MATARIX OF 50 FAT WALLS NOD STORE COTIC 1500 PSF CCPD 460 Ate 2016 Bay St. VALUATION TO INCLUDE ALL FIRE LOUPMENT BEDURED TO DELATE AND USE PROPOSED BEILDING \$ 19,000 14 COT Mile 2 of 2 TV 139,000 CANDING HIGHWAY LED PURPOSE OF BUILDING stier's appert lipe: TAUCK SCALE m ANCINE 2945 HIS MISC yes TINY BLOG. VITAL RATHRONGO DWELL UNITS 6,057 PARKING NEGD PROVINC Deserte O CHA CONTRACTOR NOOM CONT INSPECTOR Section 2 INCO 5-8 640 280 2.0 TABLET . 101,50 5. W4221 PLAN CHECK LIFICES SIX MONTHS AFTER HE IS FAIL FINGET LAPLASS THE HEAR AFTER FES. IS PAIL OF BE MENTHS AFTER YES, IS PART IF LINGTENTION IS NOT SOUND POLIS 1-24-75 46435 LA 1-6CK 367.62 ŝ FER-24-18 53257 5 • 3886 S-1CK 101.50 CASH ER & L'TE STATEMENT OF RETPONSIBILITY I certify that is doing the wink authorizant hereby I will in thereping the pro-Code of the State of California relating to workeren's compensation insurance Code is the State of California relating to working a compensation incorpore This series in an application for insuction, the matcher of which is not in applicable to address as authorizing or permitting the violation to the insuction of permit and permitting the matcher instance of Las Applies, no matcher the violation to the insuction of the any opplicable for the process in results as authorizing or permitting the violation instance in state with any opplicable for the process in results as authorizing the violation in a state in the permitting the matcher in the formation of the process in results on the process the process the process in the process as authorizing the violation of the process the process the process in the process as authorizing the violation of the process the process the process in the process about the which with a performance of the process the process in the process the process of the process in the process the process in the process the process of the process in the process in the process in the process the process of the process in the process in the process in the process the process of the process in the process in the process in the process the process of the process in the process in the process in the process the process in the Bureeu it Engineering SEC PAID JEC MERI DO NOW A Shum 1-24-75 H SHWAY GEL TITLE #101.14E SHALLYD FLOOD CLEANANCE Construiton APPRENTO FOR ISSUE NTAL Thompson1=24-7* LINNES THAT SO IN A ME STOL Fore 2 11-7 PRIVATE SEMANE PISTER ATTENDED Plan Plane WHATTER JOBS SHEWE uners as Drawan 0. St. Beatle 11-20 2 Brens & Secondand



| and a deside | | | DEPT. OF BUILDING AND SAFET |
|-------------------|--|--|--|
| 2. Phil P | ten Regulized au | e Humbernd Ituma Osiy. Beck of Original. | |
| 75-84 | R.C. | Hiscock & Smith | 081.34-217 |
| | 4 | First Addition | CONFIG 2 MATT ON |
| uilding | Site r | menansation | 2005.00 |
| Bay St | and a | Acparadolo: | THE BILT |
| aman | | | 2 |
| - | 45 | o Term. | cor/thru |
| Idated | Fibre In | 627-7351 | 1 pres |
| inteo Vt | | LA | |
| A. Brin | dley | CE 15480 | ALLEY |
| Howsen | | STATE LICENSE ME PRONE | ALGE LINE |
| ST | | STATE LICENSE RE / Care, the PHONE | AFTICALITY |
| | | STATE LICENSE IN MARKET | ZI 912 |
| onst. I | 12. | A205227 | comp fill |
| . Harper | · Sa | nta Ana 92703 | 1500 DSC |
| | SCAESS | CITY | CCPD |
| 2016 | Boy Ct | | BIST BIFICE |
| Le leur | - Jay bu | | LA OUT OUT |
| and least | | TYDOAL ATTENTS | - thousand |
| CU17 - | - 111 | Ain | - Casing |
| Wa XX | 80 | THIN CHEXID | HUTHWAY DED. |
| int in the second | NC X | X nin deal | nope |
| undatio | n Eng | contentions lighties | suis. |
| | in this. | PLAN ANTANES | Nes Meb Ir |
| TATLAN | ρ | APPLICATION WINNED | Asasp |
| 2 POSTED | | | 0 |
| - | - | rillino. A | Desircation |
| - 35 | 5.00 1 | 5/2 21 125 LVS | TYPEST |
| AR DIEDK FINHA | ES SEA MONTHS AN | TER PEE IS PAID. PERMIT EXPIRES ONE TE | AN AFTER FEE IS FAID OR SIX |
| | | A NUMBER OF ANY ANY COMMENSION | |
| | 122222 | 50 · 5812 U- | 6 CK 230.75 |
| 4-0 | *>>*> | • 5812 U - | 1 CK 355.00 |
| | | | |
| | 75-84 autilding Bay St. at many ildated Mass Howser Howser Howser Howser 2016 Bay St. Harpen Mary 2016 Bay St. Harpen | 75-84 Addie Uilding Site p Bay St. Bay St. Bay St. Bay St. Bay St. Bay St. Bay St. Bay St. Bay St. Bay St. And Standley Howser Howser Stand Howser Stand Harper Sa Mars Const. Inc. Konts Harper Sa Mars Const. Inc. Konts Harper Sa Mars Const. Inc. Konts Harper Sa Mars Const. Inc. Mars Cons | 75-84 Hiscock & Smith First Addition Addite Hiscock & Smith First Addition Bay St. BY THEME Hat bere Inc. 627-7351 Hat bere Inc. 627-7351 Hat bere Ser Hat been for the first we have Howser First Leve a hose Howser First Leve a hose Howser Statistics a hose Onst. Inc. A205227 Harper Sants Ana 92703 Harper Sants Ana 92703 Har |

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY L certify that in doing the work authorized hereby I will not employ any person in violation of the Labor Code of the Date of California relating to worksman's compensation insurance. "This permit is an application for inspection, the issuance of which is not an approval of an author-ization of the work specified herein. This permit does not authorize or permit, nor shall it be construed of the Angeles, nor any brend, department, officer to comply with any applicable law heighter the City responsible for the performance or multiplication or failure to comply with any applicable law heighter the City responsible for the performance or multiplication and employed burned makes any warranty or shall be or soil upon which such work is performed." (See Sec. 91.0202 LA.M.C.) Sense Sec. 91.0202 LA.M.C.)

I service that all of the land included in the Textetive Tract Map is under my semerahip or land or which offsite rights have been granited.

| | iOnner ar Agneti | Signature/Date |
|----------------|--|--|
| Burrant of | ADDRESS APPROVED | 900 TA 3956/25 |
| primeering | SERVENAY | 200 48 1010/15 |
| | FLIPTO ELEARANCE | |
| | DESCRIME TO WATERCOURTS AFTERNESS | |
| | COMPANY IN MANYORMATIC ANY INVESTIG | |
| CC. | -CONTRACT PUBLIC ADDRESSION ANY DESIGNATION | |
| pressing | (Research printing stationers | |
| | It Designed to sold out | 21 You - 19 19 19 |
| and the second | Contraction of the second second | Conference of the second s |
| | and the second s | and the second sec |

| A INSPECTION | 110 (B) (B) (40)(1) | NOT OF BETTER OF TO REP. | ADD-ALTER- AIR-DEMOLISH FOR CERTIFICATE OCCUPANCY |
|--|---|---|--|
| INSTRUCTION | Applicant la Comul | inin fountbored lienes Cinis | |
| 1. 10. 70- | IL O HAT | opd Gaith- Int a | 1236217 |
| mux B | Elea Pa | Mitton R825-11 | 2060 |
| I support and st or open | Brenth Ack | the p Report | alui |
| 3 15 minter | uoca antico est | Relieve | 1 Annual Trans Set |
| A RETRETER DRIVE STATES | treet 2014 C | Bay St | 11 9 |
| Noton Stront | DAY ST. SI | scragento Street | INT |
| Stacy Constru | ation Inc. | 2131232-3203 | -40x135 |
| 1912 E. Verna | n Ave. Vernor | 90059 | 120057 |
| Khan Engineer | ing/ It is at / | /7141771-5426 | 15.* |
| BL ANIMITIES OF DESIGNER | Po of M. A | elline applif the period | TAPS DIS' |
| A PERCON DI PROVAT | pinter pint | PR INSTORY | 100 minutes |
| O. Paterine C. | A DIA CE ME A LA | 1200 10/1 15 X 100/ | CCPD-TH |
| Stacy Const. In | 10- 158916-14/3 | 79275 2131232-5203 | CPG 1500/7 |
| WIELH /9/-121461-75 | 00 37- | WELF DING DOLK | 21 1572 |
| IN EACHTHE MATERIAL | RC wall due | e Trank | 25 102201 |
| 13. an assering | w Street | MULTING ALL AND | 1.9 |
| 14. 14. 10.000 | ALL DER | + 1000 | HAT OH THE MAD |
| T the rule water | Rest, and a | 1000 | LA |
| timiniati Diano, t | undwreck no 80 r | eq 'd | manue and |
| 3.00.00 | | | 785 1.000 |
| tenne. | 1 De 460371 (8) 11/184 | 10.54 | will write |
| A CONTRACT | MAN THE R | Alt tria | 10min-/11 3 19 |
| the Puedows | 11Mm | Thursday former in 10 | TEPLET |
| il inters | Panagi Prepigrar | HIT MALLER ACTIONS | Man Color |
| P.P.Z | 1 1 × +0 | the face Jule and | 1 |
| 55.00 | and the second s | | OLUMNIN IN |
| - 14 | | 10 11/14 15 135 - 19 FURD | - 11 H |
| 1200 0.50 | Control of Solars of State and dr. | 1 3 60 | 1.17 |
| - 12 - | - I many particular to the | 10 01 | 201 |
| 1/4 146 | C grantel a serveral grantel du feu State of S \$ 5. Shi Shi Shi A. | 18 | |
| Nut 1945 | A 10 YOLANE | 1 (9014/F, -190) (* | |
| M Yes. | ARGID SPEC | 3 03/08/94 03:29:50PT LAD | 7-0945 6 21 |
| 19882 | 100 NO | INVITCE \$ 0024245 BD | 42.00 |
| | A real of a second | OHE STOP SURCH | 0.50 |
| and the lease | and the state of the | SYS DEV | 2,55 |
| ALCONT | | DECA | \$4.05 \$3.75 |
| 0404349488010 | 19.0 | | |
| CONCERNING ANY INCOME. | | 241.0 | 15590 |
| | | | 13364 |
| PLANE Delpara | | | 1 - C - N |
| New backing the prove | | | |
| need beloets a sendaring VII analas renals VI seneral tel with participation in Seneral participation | - edetourise | | |
| tent bapan a un dang Walang Matuk U tang Matuk U tang Matuk U tang Mat | n part of the second se | | |
| nandi Delpagan al an an catrony VIII income and the catrony for any nanone and the strong the sector strong to the sector strong to the sector strong to the strong to the sector strong to the sector | ndertigeben Produktionen and Produktionen Produktionen | | |
| Control Delphin and Control VI and Control Second States Second | nderselan Patriagenetical Patri | 0.0000000000000000000000000000000000000 | - |
| Level Degication presentations (VE) increased (VE) (VE) (VE) VE) (VE) VE | DECLARATIONS AN | D CERTIFICATIONS | - |
| Land Darford II Land School VI Landon Million VI Landon Million Charles - Sector and School - Sector and Scho | DECLARATIONS AN UCENSED CONTING | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARATION | n initaa ahaa |
| Hyerk Delice(in the set of the second second in the second second second in the second sec | DECLARATIONS AN UCENNED CONTACT WITH THE | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARATION | i pi Dona si ali pa |
| Alexandro Davidski mali se se | DECLARATIONS AN UCENTRO CONTACT UCENTRO CONTAC | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARATION | iniburus sature Initi |
| Handrid Dalphan Handrid Dalphan Handrid Handrid Handrid Handrid Handrid | Declarations and a second and a second and a second a sec | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARATION TO DECLARATION | an bener safar en Transforment safar Standard an age |
| Travel Daily of the comparison of t | DECLARATIONS AN LICENSED CONTINC WITH THE CONTINCT OFFICE ADDRESS OF THE CONTINUE OFFICE ADDRESS OF THE CONTINUE ADDRESS OF THE CONTINUE OFFICE ADDRESS OF THE CONTINUE | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARATION DESCRIPTION DESCRIPTION DECLARATION | an Donard Salaha Mari Mari Mari Jana Mangalan Mari Jana Mangalan Mari Jana Mangalan Mari Jana Mangalan |
| Hy and David (1) Hy and Charlow (17) Hy and Hard (17)<td>DECLARATIONS AN LICENSED CONTINC WITH THE STREET</td><td>D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARATION Depart I needed to decrement Depart I needed to decrement Declaration</td><td>and Demand and a first met. The second second second second to the second second second second second second second second second second to the second secon</td> | DECLARATIONS AN LICENSED CONTINC WITH THE STREET | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARATION Depart I needed to decrement Depart I needed to decrement Declaration | and Demand and a first met. The second second second second to the second second second second second second second second second second to the second secon |
| An and Deal (Carl) in Ministry (Carl) in Ministry (Carl) Ministry (Carl) in Ministry Ministry (Carl) Ministry (Carl) | DECLARATIONS AN UCENSED CONTINUE WITH THE PROPERTY OF THE PROP | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARATION Departs I and the second | and Demand and Para Intel Mark Mark Mark (Second Se |
| Hyerki Dalička i Kolektova i | | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARS FOOD Description of the second seco | and Develop 2 and page and Develop 2 and page based. The second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second s |
| numb Design of the second seco | | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARATION TORS DECLARATION DECLARATION DECLARATION TORS IN A CONSTRUCT ON A CONSTRUCT TORS IN A CONSTRUCT ON A CONSTRUCT TORS IN A CONSTRUCT ON A CONSTRUCT TORS IN A CONSTRUCT ON A CONSTRUCT O | and Descurse is of the sector of the sector of the sector of the sector of the sector of the sector of the sector of the sector of the sector of the sector of the sector of the sector of the sector of the sector of the sector of the sector |
| Hard Daligner in in set and Annue VII in second annue VII in second annue VII in second in set and Annue VII in second in second second annue VII in second annue VIII in second an | | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARATION DECLARATION DECLARATION | and Designer 2 and the sector of the sector |
| Hyerki Daličkaj in su stručka presentacija in Stručka in Urzawa in Stručka in Struč | Description Descr | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARATION DEEX AND DECLARATION | |
| Handi Dali Cali H Handi Chali Cali H<td></td><td>D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARATION Depart Internet Sector Depart Internet Sector Declaration Declaration Victor Report</td><td></td> | | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARATION Depart Internet Sector Depart Internet Sector Declaration Declaration Victor Report | |
| ng web Deal Carl of the second access of the access of the second access of the access of the second access of the access of the second acces of the second access of the second access of the second | | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARATION Description of the second secon | and Designer 2 of PA |
| seek balance of a server of a | | D CERTIFICATIONS TONS DECLARATION Development in a constraint of the second sec | and Designer 2 of Page and Designer 2 of Page |
| Hawki Kali Kali Kali Kali Kali Kali Kali Kal | | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLANATION DECLANATION DECLANATION VICTOR | and Domains is of the met. The second secon |
| Handrid Dali Chaim Handrid Dali Chai | | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARATION TORS DECLARATION DECLARATION | and bounce and man well with the second second second the second |
| Handrid Dali Chaira Handrid Dali Chaira< | | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARS TOO DECLARATION TORE INTERNATION TORELARATION VICTOR | |
| Hyerken Deel Chair (M. 1999) All and the second seco | | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARATION Depart I and the second | |
| Harden Deel Charlon (M. Service) and the Antonio (M. Service) | | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARSTON Depart I new Advancement Depart I and the Advancement Depart I and the Advancement Depart I and the Advancement Depart I and the Advancement I and the Advancement I and the Advancement I advanc | |
| Harden Dael Chair (M. 1999) And A. 1999 | | | |
| Handrid Darighting Handrid Darighting, Vick and an and a straighting of the and and a straighting of the analysis of | | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLANATION DECLANATION DECLANATION VICTOR COMPLEXICATION NON DECLANATION | |
| Hard Kaling M. Hard K. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. Hard K. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. Hard K. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. Hard K. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. Hard K. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. Hard K. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. Hard K. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. Hard K. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. Hard K. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. Hard K. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. Hard K. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. Hard K. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. Hard K. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. Hard K. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. Hard K. & Kaling M. & Kaling M. | | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARATION TORS DECLARATION INTERNATION DECLARATION INTERNATION INTERNATION AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AN | |
| Handrid Darighterin Handrid Darighterin Handrid Marken, Mithamanna Markana, Mithamanna Markanaa Markana, Mithamanna Markana, Mi | | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARS TOO DEPART IN COMPLETE AND ADDRESS OF THE DECLARS TOOL TORS IN THE DECLARS TOOL TORS IN THE DECLARS TOOL AND ADDRESS OF THE DECLARS TOOL ADDRESS OF THE DECLARS TOOL AND ADDRESS OF THE DECLARS TOOL ADDRESS OF THE DECLARS TOOL ADDRESS OF THE DECLARS TOOL ADDRESS OF THE DECLARS TOOL ADDRESS OF THE DECLARS TOOL ADDRESS OF THE DECLARS TOOL ADDRESS OF THE DECLARS TOOL ADDRESS OF THE DECLARS TOOL ADDRESS OF THE DECLARS TOOL ADDRESS OF THE DECLARS TOOL ADDRESS OF THE DECLARS TOOL ADDRESS OF THE DECLARS TOOL ADDRESS OF THE DECLARS TOOL ADDRESS OF THE DECLARS TOOL ADDRESS OF TOOL ADD | |
| An and a conservation of the second second | | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARSTON DEPART INC. INC. TORELARATION TORELARATION VICTOR COMPLEXATION INCLUS VICTOR | |
| | | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARSTON Depart I needed to decrement interview of the second | |
| And Carlin C. A cardinal and a cardinal | | D CERTIFICATIONS TORS DECLARSTON Days - I have a series of the series of | |
| | | DECLARATION TORS DECLARATION TORS DECLARATION TORS I AND | |
| | | DICINITICATIONS TORS DECLARATION TORS DECLARATION INTERNATIONI INTERNATION INTERNATIONI INTERNATIONI INTERNATIONI INTERNATIONI INTERNATIONI INTERNATIONI INTERNATIONI INTERNATIONALIZIONALIZIONALIZIONI INTERNATIONI INTERNA | |



TO ADD-ALTER-REPAIR-DEMOLISH AND FOR CERTIFICATE DF OCCUPANCT APPLICAT THE RELATE MALLER AND IN ANY THE AND THE PARTIES. 3 " 18057-0 C FROM INSTITUCTIONS | Applicant to Complete Numbered Demi Only Institute TIONA | Appleant to Complete momenta term, term
 Institute TIONA | Appleant to Complete momenta term, term
 Institute Time
 The second seco 1234217 2060 NS-1 N3-1 a start seets for the set of the 12,489 15. 15. AT MENIS * "N50' W. Katella ⁶⁹ 92667 Orange CCPD 700 TH H 1726 M 72 102394 3 12 2016 R. Bay Street. 3 14 Walter Barting and Street. 1000 GatulAst NO DUME 24 FILE FILE Local Man TES HOUSE The set of Aller String 00010 ---- Thi + 144 SQ THEY ALTORNEY CONTRACTOR CO the same shirts 74LA 15589 All Andre La Alle III. Index de Carlon III. - Angle Index de Carlon III. Index de Carlon III. Index de Carlon III. And it of the summer of the -----DECLARATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS UCENSES CONTRACTORS DECLARATION And Bernstein 1 mar OWNER-DUILDER DECLARATION Owned A-DOLLDEN DECLARATION A second Vide Corda 11.1 de avenue autorian. wohness courtecation oscianarion (a) A second state of state of state of the second state of the CERTIFICATE OF EXELUTION FROM WOMENES COMPLETATION INNUMAES of the local Associate Sec. the second second second second CONSTRUCTION LENDISC ADENCY Garanne 5.55 ments Victor Const. Cardon Cardon



2005 SACRAMENTO STREET

All applications must be filled out by applicant



11

3.

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS

Application for the installation of Plumbing, Sewer or Cesspool, Gas Fitting and Old Gas Pipe Inspection Plaus and specifications and such other data as will enable the depariment to overtalo witcheit the proposed work will conform to the requireused so the State Laws and City Ordinances must be filed.

This form to be used only where there is no new crection, construction, alteration or repair being made to building, and where a building permit has not been issued.

To the Board of Public Works of the City of Los Angeles:

Application is hereby made to lise Board of Public Works of the City of Los Argeles, through the office of the Chief Inspector of Bulldings, for a permit nonstrum and install the work hereitafter set forth. This application is made subject to the following conditions, which are hereby agreed to by the under signed applicant and which that he descent conditions entering into the exercise of the permit.

First: That the permit does not grant any right or privilege to construct or install the work therein described or any portion thereaf upon any street, all, nr other Public place or portion thereof.

Second That the permit does not grant any righter privilege to use any of the work therein described or any purtion thereof for any purpose that is may be bereaster prohibited by Ordinance of the City of Los Angeles.

USE INK OR INDELIBLE PENCILI

Location by Street and Number where work herein described is proposed to be dono

| | No. 2005 |
|----|--|
| | Saeramesta |
| | |
| 1. | What purpose is the building used for? |
| 2, | Owner's Name |
| 3, | Contractor's Name |
| 4, | Contractor's Address |
| 5. | State the number of Plumbing Fistures to be abstalled or altered |
| 6. | Specify if there is a Sewer or Cesspool to be constructed on the premises. |
| 7, | State the number of Gas Outlets to be installed or altered |
| 8. | Is the work to be done in a new or old building? |
| 9, | If in an old building, are there any alterations or repairs or change of purpose being made to same; and if so |
| | what is your estimate of the cost of the construction work |

I bereby certify that I have carefully examined and read the above application, that the same is truand correct and that the work berein described is to be done in accordance with all the provisions of the Building Ordinances of the City of Los Augeles, whether herein specified or not.

| | 4 ,2 | | and other data must also |
|--|--|--|---|
| - | BERADT | DARD OF PUBLIC WORKS | DINCE |
| | DEPART | MENT OF BU | LDINGS, |
| - | Application to | Alter, Repai | ir or Demolish |
| To the Doard of | Public Works of the City of Los Angeles; | to of the City of Los Argeles, | through the office of the Chief In |
| Buildings, for a subject to the fo | building purmit in accordance with the deact blowing conditions, which are hereby agreed to of the permits | ption and for the purpose har by the undersigned applicant a | ainalter set forth. This application |
| pertion thereof. | at the permit does not grant any right or upon any streat, alloy, or other public place of that the narrel does not grant any right dr | privilege to ered any building ir pertion thereof. privilege to use any building | or other structure therein describe |
| partion thermal, Third: Ti | for any purpose that is, or may breather be that the granting of the permit does not affect | or prejuited by ordinance of the C or prejuites any claim of till | a to, or right of prasession in, the |
| - | REMOVED FROM | RE | MOVED TO |
| TAKE TO | LotBlock | Lot | Block |
| REAR OF | Tract descoge & dass | Tract | |
| ANNEX | 1st achd. | Metropolita | n |
| CITY CLERK |] | and the sumation of the second s | |
| PLEASE VERIFY | [| | |
| .0 | | 736 | |
| TAKE TO | Book Page T.F. B. Page | BookPag | F. B. Page |
| BOUTH | From No. 2005 Shoramento | | |
| BITTATION | | and the second se | Street \ |
| ENGINEER | 2473 Falt 7th | +5+5+4 | Shila - La Street |
| ENGINEER PLEASE VERIFY | To No. Balat 7hh | TSETEST & VI | allerde Street |
| ENGINEER PLEASE VERIFY | To No. Bank 7kh | T. Sata ST & VI | alverde Street |
| ENGINEER PLEASE VERIFY | To No | TSTOTE | Allerde Street |
| ENGINEER PLEASE VERIFY 1. What p 2. What p | To No | T. Joto J. & // R INDELIBLE PE I for? Drolling, one iter. Drolling, one | INCIL) |
| ENGINEER PLEASE VERIFY What p What p What p Owner | To No | T. Jota J. & // R INDELIBLE PE i for? Dmelling, one iter? Dmelling, one | Street St |
| I. What p 3. Owner | To No | A INDELIBLE PE i for) Duplling, one iter) Duplling, one iter) Duplling, o | Street ENCIL) family pe family Phone (A 5221 |
| ENGINEER PLEASE VERIFY 1. What p 2. What p 3. Owner 4. Owner | To No | A TOTATE VA R INDELIBLE PE i for) Intelling, one iter) Intelling, or dg 01 by | Street Street Street Street Street Street Phone Street Phone Phone Phone Phone Phone |
| ENGINEER PLEASE VERIFY What p What p Owner Owner Archite Contrast | To No | A INDELIBLE PE i for) Duplling, one iter) Duplling, one iter) Duplling, o | Street ENCIL) family phone (A. 5221 Phone Phone |
| ENGINEER PLEASE VERIFY What p What p What p Owner Owner Archite Contract Contract | (To No. 2473 Ealet 7kh (USE INK OF urpose is the present Building now uses urpose will Building be used for hereal a name Charles Lants a address 314 711cox Bl a address Samo tor's name Samo | A INDELIBLE PE i for? Dwolling, one iter? Dwolling, one dg oily | Street ENCIL) family no family Phone (A 5221 Phone Phone |
| ENGINEER PLEASE VERIFY What p What p What p Owner' Owner' Archite Contract Contract Contract VALUE | To No. 2473 Eakt 7kh (USE INK OF urpose is the present Building new used urpose will Building be used for hereal a name Ghar Los Lants a address 314 711cox 31 et's name Same stor's name Same | A STATE // | Street St |
| ENGINEER PLEASE VERIFY What p What p What p Owner Owner Archite Contract VALU/ Contract | To No | A STATE AND | Street Street ENCIL) family phone (A 5221 Phone Phone Phone Phone Phone Phone Phone Phone Phone Phone Phone Phone Phone Phone |
| ENGINEER PLEASE VERIPY What p What p What p Owner Owner Archite Contract Contract VALUA Class of | To No | A Stradier, Paliting, Sing of present Build | Street Street ENCIL) family Phone (A 5221 Phone Ph |
| ENGINEER PLEASE VERIPY What p Owner' Owner' Owner' Owner' Owner' Contract Contract VALU/ Class of Number | To No | A STATE AND A STAT | Street Street ENCIL) family phone (A 5221 Phone |
| ENGINEER PLEASE VERIFY What p What p Owner Owner Owner Archite Contract Contract Contract VALU/ Class of Number State her | To No | A Size of present Build | Street Street ENCIL) family Phone (A 5221 Phone P |
| ENGINEER PLEASE VERIPY What p What p Owner Owner Owner Archite Contract Contract VALUA Class of Number State pr | To No | A Size of present Build Rosidence Age (1 hor) Age (1 h | Street Street ENCIL) family Phone (A 5221 Phone Phon |
| I. What p PLEASE VERIPY 2. What p 3. Owner 4. Owner 5. Archite 6. Contrac 7. Contrac 8. VALU/ 9. Class of 10. Number 11. State ho 12. State pu BE MA | To No | A STATE CALL AND A STATE AND A | Street Street Street ENCILI fomily no family Phone (A 5221 Phone |
| ENGINEER PLEASE VERIPY 1. What p 2. What p 3. Owner 4. Owner 5. Archite 6. Contrac 5. Archite 6. Contrac 7. Contrac 8. VALU/ 9. Class of 10. Number 11. State ho 12. State pu BE MA | To No | A Size of present Build Rocidence Age of present Build Age of present Build | Street Street ENCILI family Phone (A 5221 Phone Phon |

| 13. | Size of new addition 2000 x. No. of Stories in height |
|-----|---|
| 14. | Material of exterior walls |

1.4

41.1

14

I have carefully examined and read the above application and know the same is true and correct, an that all provisions of the Ordinances and Laws governing Building Construction will be complied with whether herein specified or not. Per lat ant

κ.

| APPLICATION | O.K. h |
|--------------------|-----------|
| CONSTRUCTION | о. к. A |
| ZONING | о.к. |
| SET-BACK LINE | о.к. |
| DRD. 33761 (N. S.) | 0.K. 1951 |
| FIRE DISTRICT | 0.K |

REMARKS

| | 14 |
|------|--|
| | Law I |
| | I locas |
| | olly and a second s |
| | initial Dassie initia Power |
| | The second se |
| | III ha BE UII was a well welling - the Chi Bertin |
| | Sheres 20 100 miles (roll BD) |
| | Jept and data in the total in the |
| | |
| | 100 March 1 DUDING I A ALLOCK |
| | ALCO DE TOTAL AND A AND |
| | En al another and a second sec |
| | |
| | Uwnot |
| | |
| | |
| | *************************************** |
| | |
| 6.72 | |
| 2 | |
| - | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |

All Applications Must be Filled Out by Applicant ANS AND SPECIFICATIONS BUILDING DIVISION Bldg.Farm 3 d other data must also be filed DEPARTMENT OF BUILDING AND SAFETY 55310 Application to Alter, Repair or Demolish To the Board of Building and Safety Commissioners of the City of Les Angeles: Application is hereby made to the Board of Building and Safety Commissioners of the City of Les Angeles, through the office of the Superintendent of Building, for a building permit in accordance with the description and for the purpose hereisafter set forth. This appli-cation is made subject to the following conditions, which are bureby agreed to by the undersigned applicant and which shall be described conditions entering fate the extreme of the permit: First: Thus the permit does not grant any right or priviles to erect any building or other structure therein described, or any portion thereof. These the permit does not grant any right or priviles to use any building or other structure therein described, for any portion thereof. These the permit does not grant any right or priviles to use any building or the structure therein described, for any portion. thereof. These the permit does not grant any right or priviles to use any building or the structure therein described, for any portion thereof. These the granting of the permit does not affect or priviles to use any building or the structure therein described, for any more there any permit does not grant any right or priviles to use any building or the structure therein described, for any portion thereof. These the granting of the permit does not affect or preludice any right or presented the City of Les Angeles. Third: These the granting of the permit does not affect or preludice any right or presented in such permit described in such permit. REMOVED FROM REMOVED TO REMOVED TO REMOVED FROM Dumen Block TAKE TO Blo 1.0 ROOM No. 6 REAR OF ŝ 177.1.1. Trac NORTH ANNEX Ist Floor CITY CLERK PLEASE VERIFY TAKE TO FIRST FLOOR 242 SO. BROADWAY Book F. B. Pao 6 200 eet From No ENGINEER th PLEASE Doto Street To No .. DELIBLE PEN USE INK OR IN ox 20 What purpose is the present Building now used for ŧ. 2, What purpose will Building be used for h Owner's name Phone. 1 3. 4. Owner's address.S 1.1.3.1. 0 , 5, Architect's name ... 7Phone 6. Contractor's name $\boldsymbol{\Gamma}$ 7. Contractor's address Including Plumbing, Gas Pliting, Hawara, Cesspools, Elsvatora, Painting, Vinlahing, all Labor, etc.) P VALUATION OF PROPOSED WORK ŝ 8. Class of present Building No. of rooms at present 9. 100 13 5 Size of present Building ... e 10. Number of stories in height State how many buildings are on this lot 11. malu Aure State purpose buildings on lot are used for. 12. (Apartment House, Hotel, Residence, or purpees, STATE ON FOLLOWING LINES EXACTLY WHAT ALTERATIONS, ADDITIONS, ETC., WILL BE DE TO THIS BUILDING MA M 00

No. of Stories in height 13. Size of new addition Material of foundatio 2 Size wall. 6 Depth below ground crite Size footings 14. Size of interior bearing studs. Size of Redwood Mudsills 15. Size of interior non-bearing stude ... Size of exterior stods. 16.

- Second floor joists, Size of first floor joists 17. Z
- 18. . Will all provisions of State Housing Act be complied with? ..

1

× ï

14

5120 8 ÷

50

ł

26

51 κ.

I have carefully examined and read the above blank and know the some is true and correct, and that all provisions of the Ordinances and Laws governing Building Construction will be complied with, whether herein specified or not. ŝ

2 (Sign here) au e Acres (Owner or Authorized Agent)

... ... ĸ.

| о. к. | |
|-------|--|
| о.к. | AD |
| O. K. | (1) |
| O. K. | h |
| O. K. | |
| О.К. | The |
| | О. К. О. К. О. К. О. К. О. К. О. К. |

REMARKS

There will be an Unobstructed pitashgeway, at least 18 leat wide, extending from any dwolling on lat ta a public streat, or to a public siley at least 10 feet in width -100 n 1 Owner or Authorized Agent ð, 14

1024 MATEO STREET

Y APPLICATION FOR PERMIT TO BUILD. de muce 21 Los Angeles, Ual. Ward TO THE SUPERINTENDENT OF BUILDINGS : B uld The undersigned hareby applies for a permit to. na follows : -25 Character of Building, number of staries and room 1. A. ton T t 3 33 Le goation Block wie Lot 8 Assessor Aclal is Rock Da uno Please Verify F. B. page M. B. page District No. No. 102 Ò Engineer 3. Please 18 16 Vorify dare Purpose of the Buildin 4. 10 Owner's name. 5. e, ain Anucsla Owner's address. 6. Row O M 7. Architect's name. ourl Ŋ Builder's name 8. o. mate NA and au // Builder's address. 9. Estimated Cost of the Proposed Improvements, # 500 00 10. ne Size of Building-No. feet front 22 No. feet rear YV No. feet deep. 11. Least depth of the foundations below surfal of ground. 12. n Material of foundation_ 13. i an ela Character of ground_ 14 Kind of chimneys to be used Brick Stack Flues to gri 15. Number of fire escapes to be used, and where placed 10. What load will each floor carry per square foot. 17. Public Halls, Churches, Theatres-scaling capacity 18. Manner of construction of light wells_ 19. Number of interlar brick walls or columns 10. Ist stary Thickness of external walls-cellar or basement 31. 511 story. and story Ard story Ath story Bihstory. Sth story Tthe story _ Uth story . =

ģ

8

ß

ŝ

All applications must be filled out by applicant



3

2

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT OF BUILDINGS

Application for the installation of Plumbing, Sewer or Cesspool, Gas Fitting and Old Gas Pipe Inspection

Plaus and aprolifications and such other data as will enable the depart-ment to ascertain whether the proposed work will conform to the riquire-ments of the State Laws and City Ordinances must be filed.

This form to be used only where there is no new erection, construction, alteration or repair being made to building, and where a building permit has not been issued.

To the Board of Public Works of the City of Los Angeles:

Application is htreby made to the Board of Public Works of the Cliv of Los Argetes, through the office of the Chief Inspector of Sulldings, for a pinnit to construct and install the work hereinsiter as forth. This application is made subject to the following conditions, which are hereby agreed to by the ander signed applicant and which shall be deemed conditions entering into the vertice of the pressit.

First: That the permit does not grant my right or privilege to construct or initial the work therein described of any portion thereof spec any street, alter or other Public place or portion thereof,

Second: That the permit does not grant any right or privilega to use any of the work therein described or any portion thereoffor any purpose that is or may be bareafter prohibited by Ordinance of the City of Los Angeles,

(USE INK OR INDELIBLE PENCIL)

Location by Street and Number where work herein described is proposed to be done

| | No. 10.24 11 |
|-----|---|
| | Malester Street |
| | L. |
| 1, | What purpose is the building used for? |
| 3. | Owner's Name |
| 3. | Contractor's Name |
| \$. | Contractor's Address |
| 5. | State the number of Plumbing Fixtures to be installed or altered |
| | Specify if there is a Sewer or Cesspool to be constructed on the premises |
| 7. | State the number of Gas Outleis to be installed or altered |
| 8. | Is the work to be done in a new or old bailding? |
| 9. | If in an old building, are there any alterations or repairs or change of purpose being made to same; and if so, |
| | what is your estimate of the cost of the construction work |

I hereby certify that I have carefully examined and read the above application, that the same is true and correct and that the work herein described is to be done in accordance with all the provisions of the Building Ordinances of the City of Los Angeles, whether herein specified or not.

2016 BAY STREET

| 3 | ALTER, Certif | REPAIR, C | OR DEMO | DLISH | CITY OF L DETA BUILDING BUILDIN | AND SAFETT |
|--|--|---|--|---|--|---|
| 78-5 | 0-8)-84 | 1.8 . 84 | | 1 | 1 | T- |
| Lot No CO P. | 151 | istal | 1.4. | d 4 | Pall | No. and the second |
| Tract HLOC | OFR I chines | · Isr (mag | shot - | 13-10/1 +3 | 17.11 | |
| Location of Building | - 2016 | Bay St. | | 1.1 | | Approved by. City Engineer |
| | 244-6 | (Eldige Hung) | wer and Street | 1, | 1 | |
| Between what cross | streets_1122ea | A Sachau | nedo | | | · Deputy. |
| USE INK OR INDE | IBLE PENCIL | e At | | 0 | e | |
| 1. Present use of bi | Bors, Desting Ap | Artzonat Banne, Esc | tel ar ather purp | Families_ | Re | Come |
| 2 State how long | building has been us | ed for present | cocupancy_ | | | |
| . 3. Use of building | AFTER alteration or a | noving De | miligh | Families | Re | ma |
| 4 Owner | Robert A- | enton | | | Phone L | A 0618 |
| 5. Owner's Address | · 20.01 Sac | 2 annere 10 | - P. (| D | 1-1-21 | |
| 5. Certificated Arch | ultect | | Lice | se No | Pb | |
| 7. Licensed Engine | er | | Lice | se No | Pb | |
| 8. Contractor | myin al | riems | · State | se No 31 | 090 PD | me A. |
| 9. Contractor's Add | ires 42.55 Ba | lition an | clour. | Chy | | TRAFT |
| TO VALUATION O | PROPOSED WORK | fighting al | I laber and malett | al and all permit | unant) e | 125- |
| The transmost of | | | families allowed date | with the wind at | The second se | |
| | r r nor oblo worus |) rife ' wie abi | runkler, slaction mercia ar charada. | wiring and al | ferrow] . 4 | 1 |
| 11. State how many on lot and give t | buildings NOW |) squipesent t | inkler, electrical herein ar therein, Dwelling, Aperts | wiring and al | ter at attes by | upier, |
| 11. State how many on lot and give u 12. Size of existing | building NOW] | Number of st | indier, sleeved hereis or therea. Dwellag, Apera tories high | wiring and all acat House, El | tat or other pu | point_10 |
| 11. State how many on lot and give 1 12. Size of existing 13. Material Exterior | building NOW } building 20 x 20 r Walls Tim | Number of st | indir, steronal hereis ar marsa. Dwellag, Apara ories high | ent Reuse. E. IHeigi Exterio | tat or other pant to highest | point 10 |
| State how many on lot and give 1 Size of existing Material Exterior Describe briefly | buildings NOW] building 20 x 20 f | Wood, Steel w | Dwelling, Apero orles high | wirth and all acast Rouse. E. JHeig Exterio | nat or other part to highest r framework | point 10 (U.swd (Weed or Seed) |
| State how many on lot and give 1 Size of existing Material Exterior Describe briefly | building NOW] building 20 x20 r Walls all proposed construct OC ('1 S) | Weod, Steal of Weod, Steal of Weod, Steal of Children and World | Dwellag, Apero orles high | Anticag and | tat or other part to highest r framework | ippine, point 10 (U.med (Wood or Shoed) |
| State how many on lot and give 1 Size of existing Material Exterior Describe briefly | building NOW] building 20 x 20' r Walls all proposed construct Dema / 1 S / | Wood, Steel w (Wood, Steel w tion and work | Dwelling Apero orles high | erst Rouse E | to highest to highest tramework | point 10 (U.swd (Weed or Steel) |
| State how many on lot and give 1 Size of existing Material Exterior Describe briefly | building NOW] the of each building 20 x20 r Walls all proposed construct Demma / 1 S / | Weod, Steal of Weod, Steal of Children, Carl | Dwellag Apero orles high | Anticag and | reasor other put to highest r tramework | ippine, point_,/O (U.med (Wood or Shoed) |
| 11. State how many on lot and give 12. Size of existing 13. Material Exterio 14. Describe briefly | buildings NOW] ise of each building_20_x20 r Walls all proposed construct Dama [1, 5] | Weod, Steal work | Dwelling Apero ories high | wirth and | to highest tramework | ill over d (U over d (Wood or Stood) |
| 11. State how many on lot and give 12. Size of existing 13. Material Exterio 14. Describe briefly | buildings NOW] the of each building 20 x20 r Walls all proposed construct Demma / 1 S / | Weod, Steal of Weod, Steal of China and Wark | Dwelling Aparts orles high | wirth and | reasor other put to highest r framework | IVprese, point_/O (U shord (Weed or Shoed) |
| 11. State how many on lot and give 12. Size of existing 13. Material Exterio 14. Describe briefly | buildings NOW] ise of each building 20 x20 r Walls all proposed construct Demog [1 5] | Weod, Steal work (Weod, Steal work) (Weod, Steal wo | Dwelling Apero forles high | wirting and all acost Reques. En JHeigi Exterio | tories when | complete |
| State how many on lot and give Size of existing Material Exterior Describe briefly CC Size of Addition. Footing: Width | buildings NOW] ise of each building 20 x20 r Walls all proposed construe Demth of Good | Weod, Steel w the CONST of Lot | Dwelling Aparts orles high | wirth and all | tories when | complete |
| Size of Addition Size of Sinds | buildings NOW] ise of each building 20 x 20' r Walls all proposed construct Depth in Cont X Material of | VEW CONST of Lot | Inveiling Apero orles high (orles high) (orles high) (TRUCTION (Noted for W Size of Raf | umber of S all | tories when Type of | complete Joists |
| State how many on lot and give Size of existing Material Exterior Describe briefly C.C. Size of Addition Footing: Width Size of Studs I hereby certify | buildings NOW] ise of each building 20 x20 r Walls all proposed construct Depth in Coord Depth in Coord Material of that to the best of my | Vew CONST of Lot | RUCTION Size of Raf | umber of S all sove applic | tories when Size of Floor Type of | complete Joists Roofing eet and that this |
| State how many on lot and give Size of existing Material Exterior Describe briefly Describe briefly 14. Describe briefly 15. Size of Addition. 16. Footing: Width. 17. Size of Studs. I hereby certify building of construct I will not construct | buildings NOW] ise of each building 20 x 20 r Walls all proposed construct Depth in Cont Depth in Cont Material of that to the best of my tion work will compl | VEW CONST of Lot | Inveiling Apero Developed a Discovery (orles high) r Missoury) c: TRUCTION Fidth of W Size of Raf d belief the a rs, and that in r Code of the | umber of S all State of d | tories when Size of Floor Type of the workau | complete Joists Roofing eet and that this thorized thereby Jating to Work- |
| State how many on lot and give Size of existing Material Exterio Describe briefly Describe briefly Describe briefly Size of Addition Footing: Width Size of Studs I hereby certify building or construct will not employ a men's Compensation | buildings NOW] | VEW CONST of Lot | RUCTION Size of Raf d belief the a r Code of the | umber of S all State of G State of G | tories when Size of Floor the workau children is cite the workau california inc. | complete Joists Rooting there thereby Jating to Work- |
| State how many on lot and give Size of existing Material Exterior Describe briefly Describe briefly Describe briefly Size of Addition Footing: Width Size of Stude I hereby certify bailding of construct will not employ a men's Compensation | buildings NOW] | VEW CONST of Lot | Inveiling Apero Inveiling Apero Inveil | umber of S all State of G | tories when Size of Floor Type of the worksau Corner of Anthe Corner | complete Joint 10 (U. or d (Wood or Bood) 2 complete Joists Rooting eet and that this thorized thereby lating to Work- X b-r |
| 11. State how many on lot and give 12. Size of existing 13. Material Exterio 14. Describe briefly 15. Size of Addition. 16. Footing: Width. 17. Size of Studs. I hereby certify building or construct I will not employ a mero's Compensation DISTRICT OFFICE | buildings NOW] | VEW CONST of Lot | RUCTION Ridth of W Size of Raf d belief the a r, and that in r Code of the Sign ber By | umber of S all State of G State of G | tories when Size of Floor the works the works tories at Floor the works the | complete Joists Reading eet and that this thorized thereby Jating to Work- |
| 11. State how many on lot and give 12. Size of existing 13. Material Exterior 14. Describe briefly 15. Size of Addition 16. Footing: Width 17. Size of Studs I hereby certify sailding or construct I will not employ a men's Compensation DISTRICT OFFICE | buildings NOW] | VEW CONST af Lot | TRUCTION | umber of S all State of G State of G State of G State of G State of G State of G | tories when Size of Floor Type of the works of the works of the works of the works of the works of the works of the works of the works of the works | complete Joists Roofing eet and that this thorized thereby Jating to Work- |
| 11. State how many on lot and give 12. Size of existing 13. Material Exterior 14. Describe briefly 24. 15. Size of Addition 16. Footing: Width 17. Size of Studs 17. Size of Studs 17. Size of Studs 18. Footing: Width 17. Size of Studs 19. Addition of construct 1 will not employ a meto's Compensation DISTRICT OFFICE PLAN | buildings NOW] | VEW CONST af Lot Floor I Floor I Floor I DEPARTME CHANGE OF | RUCTION Fidth of W Size of Raf d belief the a r Code of the Sign her By NT USE ONI OCCUPANCY | umber of S and Lord and and and Land Heigh Exterio C. (1) I. C. (1) I. C. (1) I. C. (2) I. C. (2 | tories when Size of Floor China Size of Floor tories when Size of Floor the worksuu California re Compar or Anth Compar or Anth | complete Joint 10 (U and (Wood or Store) (Wood or Store) Toolsts Rooting eet and that this thorized thereby lating to Work- Work- Correct Agents |
| 11. State how many on lot and give 12. Size of existing 13. Material Exterio 14. Describe briefly (CC) 15. Size of Addition 16. Footing: Width 17. Size of Studs 17. Size of Studs 18. Footing: Width 17. Size of Studs 19. Size of | buildings NOW] | Vew CONST of Lot Floor knowledge an y with all law n of the Labb | Inveiling Apero Developed a Discovery (orles high) Sign bar rest of Raf d belief the a rest of that in r Code of the Sign bar By NT USE ONI OCCUPANCY Sq. Ft | FEES | tories when Size of Floor Type of the workau Carl 2. 20. (1) tories when Size of Floor Type of the workau alifornia in Carl 2. 20. (1) Budg. Per. (1) Carl 2. (1) Carl 3. (1) Carl 4. (1) | complete Joint 10 (Wood as Store) |



2016 BAY ST., LOS ANGELES

Address of Building ()

CITY OF LOS ANGELES CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

NOTE: Any change of use or occupancy must be approved by the Department of Building and Safety. This certifies that, so far as ascertained by or made known to the undersigned, the building at the above address complies with the applicable requirements of the Municipal Code, as follows: Ch. 1, as to permitted uses. Ch. 9, Arts 1, 3, 4, and 5; and with applicable requirements of State Housing Law-for following occupancies

Issued 9-10-80 Permit No. and Year ANNUAL, INSPECTION - 1980

USE OF LAND FOR STORAGE YARD FOR MAIN LOT LOCATED AT 1005 MATEO ST. Inspected per Section 12.26F TWENTY FOUR REQUIRED PARKING SPACES PROVIDED M-3 Zone

0 0 2 0 0 5 0 0 4 1 2 Security First National Bank Tr.

Owner's

Tr. #07-2-00271-1

Address

P.O. Box 60802 Terminal Annex

Form B-950 RI:cga

2016 E. BAY ST., LOS ANGELES, CA CITY OF LOS ANGELES



CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

Note: Any change of use or occupancy must be approved by the Department of Building and Safety. This certifies that, so far as ascertained or made known to the undersigned, the vacant land, building or portion of a building described below and located at the above address complies with the applicable construction requirements (Chapter 9) and/or the applicable zoning requirements (Chapter 1) of the Los Angeles Municipal Code for the use, or occupancy group in which it is classified

ANNUAL INSPECTION - 1981 Permit No. and Year Issued 8-12-81 USE OF LAND FOR JUNK YARD "STORAGE ONLY" Main location at 1005 MATEO ST. Inspected per Section 12:26F TWENTY-FOUR REQUIRED PARKING SPACES PROVIDED M-3 Zone 2 0 0 0 Security First National Bank TR Owner TR # 07-2-00271-1 Owner's P.O. Box 60802 Terminal Annex Address HB:cga Angeles CA 90060 HB:cga R. MATSUMURA

BAS 95a (R. 1.77)

2016 E. BAY ST., LOS ANGELES



CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Note: Any change of use or occupancy must be approved by the Department of Building and Safety. This certifies that, so far as ascertained or made known to the undersigned, the vacant land, building or portion of a building described below and located at the above address complies with the applicable construction requirements (Chapter 9) and/or the applicable zoning requirements (Chapter 1) of the Los Angeles Municipal Code for the use, or occupancy group in which it is classified

ANNUAL'INSPECTION - 1982 Permit No. and Year Issued 4-1-82 USE OF LAND FOR JUNK YARD "STORAGE ONLY" MAIN LOCATION AT 1005 MATEO ST. Inspected per Section 12.26F Twenty-four Required Parking Spaces Provided M3 Zone 02005 0 Owner Security First National Bank Owner's TR # 07-2-00271-1 Address P.O. BOc 60802 Terminal Annex Los Angeles,50009000005008500881634 R. L. HOVIOUS BF:Cga BAS 95a (R. 1.77)

| Address of Building | 2016 E. BAY STREET LOS ANGELES |
|--|---|
| bunung | CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY |
| Note: Any change This certifies that, so far a below and located at the a requirements (Chapter 1) of | of use or occupancy must be approved by the Department of Building and Safety. s ascertained or made known to the undersigned, the vacant land, building or portion of a building described bove address complies with the applicable construction requirements (Chapter 9) and/or the applicable zoning the Los Angeles Municipal Code for the use, or occupancy group in which it is classified. |
| Issued 6-16- | 83 Permit No. and Year ANNUAL INSPECTION 1983 |
| "STORAGE | TARD UNLI |
| TWENTY-F | d per Section 12.26F OUR REQUIRED PARKING SPACES PROVIDED 3 ZONE |
| MAIN TAR Inspecte TWENTY-F XXX M XXX M XXX M XXX M | d per Section 12.26F OUR REQUIRED PARKING SPACES PROVIDED 3 ZONE. R: Consolidated Fibres, Inc. 2016 E. Bay Street Los Angeles, Ca. 90021 |

2016 E. BAY STREET

CITY OF LOS ANGELES



Note: Any change of use or occupancy must be approved by the Department of Building and Safety. This certifies that, so far as ascertained or made known to the undersigned, the vacant land, building or portion of a building described below and located at the above address complies with the applicable construction requirements (Chapter 9) and/or the applicable zoning requirements (Chapter 1) of the Los Angeles Municipal Code for the use, or occupancy group in which it is classified

Issued 2-2-84 Permit No. and Year ANNUAL INSPECTION 1984

USE OF LAND FOR JUNK YARD - STORAGE YARD ONLY INspected per Section 12.26F TWENTY-FOUR REQUIRED PAVED PARKING SPACES M3 ZONE

02500100490

| Consolidated Fibers, Inc. |
|-------------------------------|
| 2016 E. Bay Street |
| Los Angeles, Ca. 90021 |
| 5000504200500008498 J. CARNEY |
| |

B&S 95a (R. 177)

2016 EAST BAY STREET" 5

CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY



Note: Any change of use or occupancy must be approved by the Department of Building and Safety. This certifies that, so far as ascertained or made known to the undersigned, the vacant land, building or portion of a building described below and located at the above address complies with the applicable construction requirements (Chapter 9) and/or the applicable zoning requirements (Chapter 1) of the Los Angeles Municipal Code for the use, or occupancy group in which it is classified.

Issued 4-5-85 Permit No. and Year ANNUAL INSPECTION 1985

USE OF LAND FOR JUNK YARD - STORAGE ONLY Inspected per Section 12.26F TWENTY-FOUR REQUIRED PAVED PARKING SPACES M3 ZONE

| QMMMCOPERATOR: | Consolidated Fibers Inc. |
|--------------------|--|
| Owner's Address | 2016 E. Bay Street Los Angeles, Ca. 90021 |
| Station and a | 5666517266566663421 B. BRUCE |

BAS 95a (R. 1.77)
| 116 E. Bay St | | Plan Check # B Event Code: | 06LA12462 Printed. | 12/18/06 04:33 PM |
|--|---|--|--|---|
| onbldg-New formercial lun Check at Counter lan Check | City of Los Angeles - Depart APPLICATION FOR AND CERTIFICATI | ment of Building and Safety BUILDING PERMIT E OF OCCUPANCY | Last Status: Ready Status Date: 12/18 | to Issue 2006 |
| INACT ALOCK ISCOCK AND SMITHS FI | KOIIIS 78 | MR 25-11 | TABERTLID 4071845 123A217 199 | <u>2 ASSESSOR PARCEL #</u> 5166 - 011 - 021 |
| ABCELISFORMATION rea Planning Commission - Central ADBS Branch Office - LA ouncil District - 14 ntpt: Fill Grd CFG-1500 mpt. Fill Grd FG | Centilved Neighborhood C Community Plan Area - C Census Tract - 2060 50 District Map - 123A217 Energy Zone - 9 | ouncit - Downtown Los Angel Fire Di entral City North Near So Parking Thoma Thoma | strict - 2 purce Zone Distance - 9.7 g Dist CCPD a Brothers Map Grid - 634-H s Brothers Map Grid - 634-H | 6 |
| Marters M3-1/ | | | | |
| 4. DOCUMENTS ZI - ZI-2129 Exclude State Enterprizit ZI - ZI-2317 Central Industrial Red ORD - ORD-164855-SA2320 CRA - ZI 2317 CENTRAL INDUS | nse ZJ CPC - CPC-1986-607-GPC levela CPC - CPC-1995-352-CPU CPC - CPC-1997-423 STRIA CPC - CPC-2001-4642-CRA | CDBG - FEZ-Los Angeles CDBG - LARZ-Central City CDBG - SEZ-Eastside State En AFF - AFF-25260 | ierprise ? | |
| Eabricator Reqd - Shop Welds | | | | |
| 5. FROPERTY OWNER, JENANT, APPL Owner(1) Security First Natl Bk Tr | O P O Box 54029 Te | tim Annex LOS ANGELI | ES CA 90054 ES, CA 90021 | |
| EDOPERTY OWNER, JENANT, APPL Owner(s) Security First Natl Bk Tr Trans MV Transportation Applean (Releasing Contrator) Robert Hernandez - 2.00057796.051 | RANT INFORMATION 0 P O Box 54029 Te 2016 Bay St 4016 3/4 Puente Av PROPOSEO USE (23) Miscellaneous Bidg/Structure | ETTE ABDEX LOS ANGELS LOS ANGELS e "A" BALDWIN P. ENCREPTION OF WORK STALL NEW 68" X 11"-6" X 6" CONCI | ES CA 90054 ES, CA 90021 ARK, CA 91706 RETE PAD FOR L.P.G. TAN | (626) 922-4112 К |
| Security First Natl Bk Tr Security First Natl Bk Tr Mv Transportation Appleant (Reintening Contract) Robert Hernandez - INSTINGUE Security Sin & Uni Appleant Sin & Uni Appleant Sin & Uni Appleant Sin & Uni Appleant Sin & Uni | CANTINGEMATION 0 P O Box 54029 Te 2016 Bay St. 4016 3/4 Puente Av PROPOSEDUSE (23) Miscellaneous Bidg/Structure NS | Erm Annex LOS ANGELI LOS ANGELI LOS ANGELI E "A" BALDWIN P. EXCREPTION OF WORK STALL NEW 68" X 11"-6" X 6" CONCI For information Call toll- Overde (A | ES CA 90054 ES, CA 90021 ARK, CA 91706 RETE PAD FOR L.P.G. TAN and/or papection registin origina free (888) LA4E (Courty, call (213) 412-0000 or o | (626) 922-4112 K Eng within LA County. BUILD (524-2845) tait space halls.org |
| A PROPERTY OWNER DENAST. APPL Owners) Security First Natl Bk Tr Mv Transportation Applease (Reinforming Cantenard) Robert Hernandez - <u>INVESTINGUEE</u> | EMALION A Coord OK: | Erm Annex LOS ANGELI LOS ANGELI LOS ANGELI E "A" BALDWIN P. EXCREPTION OF WORK STALL NEW 68" X 11"-6" X 6" CONCI STALL NEW 68" X 11"-6" X 6" CONCI Call toll- Ouerde LA For Cashler 4, 5 For Cashler 4, 5 La | ES CA 90054 ES, CA 90021 ARK, CA 91706 RETE PAD FOR L.P.G. TAN and/or papection registra organ free (888) LA4E County, cell (213) 492-0000 or of 5000 Lenet of Builto A 01 26 175790 12/1 | (626) 922-4112 K Eng within LA County. BUILD (524-2845) tait space haths.org W/Q #on 62 004364 or 8/06 05 9.37 PP |
| A PROPERTY OWNER, DENAST, APPL Owner() Security First Natl Bk Tr Transportation Appleary (Relationship Character) Robert Hernandez - 2.EXISTING USE R. APPLICATION PROCESSING PROD BLDG, PC By. Chad Doi OK for Cashier: John Francis Signature Permit Valuation: S9,800 FINAL TOTAL Combildg-New Permit Free Subjoint Nonbildg-New Permit Free Subjoint Nonbildg-New | EANT INFORMATION 0 P O Box 54029 Te 2016 Bay St. 4016 3/4 Puente Av EROPOSED USE (23) Miscellaneous Bidg/Structure (23) Miscellaneous Bidg/Structure DAS PC By a Coord OK: Date: 192.47 162.50 0.00 | Erm Annex LOS ANGELS LOS ANGELS LOS ANGELS E "A" BALDWIN P EXCEPTION OF WORK STALL NEW 68" X 11"-6" X 6" CONCI For information Call toll- Outside LA For Cashleri's U EJ ON EJ ON EJ ON EJ ON EJ | ES CA 90054 ES, CA 90021 ARK, CA 91706 RETE PAD FOR L.P.G. TAN and/or papertion registin origina free (888) LA4E County, call (213) 412-0000 ar o SEO0/2 ment of Builton A 01 26 175790 12/1 ILOING PERMIT CONN COMMERCIAL E STOP SURCH STEMS DEVT FEE IT PLANNING SURCH SCELLANEOUS | (626) 922-4112 K. BUILD (524-2845) and www balls.org W0.9 #0 n.0 - 201-94 v 8/06 0 5 2 3 2 P. \$162 \$2 \$3 \$49 \$9 \$5 |
| A PROPERTY OWNER DENANT, APPL Owner() Security First Natl Bk Tr Train MV Transportation Appleare (Reinburster Cantrastor) Robert Hernandez - <u>INSTINGUSE</u> <u>INSTINGUSE</u> | ICANT INFORMATION 0 P O Box 54029 Te 2016 Bay St 4016 3/4 Puente Av EEOPOSLO USE (23) Miscellaneous Bidg/Structure EMALION DAS PC By Date: Date: 192.47 162.50 0.00 2.06 3.29 | Erm Annex LOS ANGELS LOS ANGELS LOS ANGELS E "A" BALDWIN P. EXCRIPTION OF WORK STALL NEW 68" X 11".6" X 6" CONCI Call toll- Outside LA For Unformation Call toll- Outside LA For Cashler's, 13 L. Stall New Stall Toll- Outside LA For Cashler's, 13 L. | ES CA 90054 ES, CA 90021 ARK, CA 91706 RETE PAD FOR L.P.G. TAN and/or propection requests origina free (888) LA44 County, call (213) 492-0000 or of Seggin ment of Builto A 01 26 175790 12/1 FLOING PERMIT CONN COMMERCIAL E STOP SURCH STEPS DEVT FEE IT PLANNING SURCH SCELLANEOUS Totol Dus Chock: | (626) 922-4112 K song within LA County. BUILD (524-2845) uit sowe balls.org W/05 #0:n62:004364 8/06:05:3757 \$162; \$2 \$162; \$2 \$162; \$2 \$162; \$2 \$162; \$2 \$162; \$2 \$162; \$2 \$162; \$2 \$162; \$2 \$162; \$2 \$162; \$5 \$162; \$162; \$155; \$162; \$162; \$162; \$155; \$162; \$155; \$162; \$162; \$155; \$162; \$162; \$162; \$155; \$162; \$155; \$162; \$155; \$162; \$155; \$162; \$155; \$155; \$162; \$155; |
| A PROPERTY OWNER DENAST. APPL Owner() Security First Nail Bk Tr Train MV Transportation Appleari (Resource) Robert Hernandez - <u>REMERANDER UNE</u> <u>REMERANDER UNE UNE UNE UNE UNE UNE UNE UNE UN</u> | ICANTINYORMATION 0 P O Box 54029 Te 2016 Bay St. 4016 3/4 Puente Av ENOPOSED USE (23) Miscellaneous Bidg/Structure DAS PC By: Date: PC Valuation 192.47 162.50 0.00 2.06 3.29 9.87 9.75 5.00 0.00 | Erm Annex LOS ANGELS LOS ANGELS LOS ANGELS BALDWIN P. BALDWIN P. BALDWIN P. BALDWIN P. BALDWIN P. Call toll- Ouerde LA For Cashler's G BU EA DO EA EA DO EA EA EA EA EA EA EA EA EA EA EA EA EA | ES CA 90054 ES, CA 90021 ARK, CA 91706 RETE PAD FOR L.P.G. TAN and/or papertion registin on pro- free (888) LA4E County, call (213) 412-0000 ar of SeSON Lenent of Builton A 01 26 175790 12/1 ILOING PERMIT CONM COMMERCIAL E STOP SURCH STEMS DEVT FEE IT PLANNING SURCH SCELLANEOUS Totol Dua Chack: CIGLA | (626) 922-4112 K Eury within LA County. SUILD (524-2845) sain synw hathstorg W/0 #0 n \$2001582 v \$766 05137PP \$162 \$23 \$3 \$9 \$162 \$3 \$172 0.2500 |
| A PROPERTY OWNER DENAST. APPL Owner() Security First Nail Bk Tr Trees MV Transportation Applear() (Interamble Contractor) Robert Hernandez - | ICANTINYORMATION 0 P O Box 54029 Te 2016 Bay St. 4016 3/4 Puente Av EROPOSEOUSE (23) Miscellaneous Bidg/Structure (23) Miscellaneous Bidg/Structure DAS PC By. Date: Date: 192.47 162.50 0.00 2.06 3.29 9.87 9.75 5.00 0.00 Total Bend(%) Due: | Erm Annex LOS ANGELS LOS ANGELS LOS ANGELS Excarption of WORK STALL NEW 68" X 11"-6" X 6" CONCI For tisformation Call toll- Outside LA For Cashler 5 15 60 61 61 71 71 | ES CA 90054 ES, CA 90021 ARK, CA 91706 RETE PAD FOR L.P.G. TAN and/or papection registin origina free (888) LA4E COUNTY, call (213) 492-0000 as o SS 08/9 ment of Builto A 01 26 175790 12/1 ILOING FERMIT COMM COMMERCIAL E STOP SURCH STEMS DEVT FEE IT PLANNING SURCH SCELLANEOUS Totol Dua Chack: CIGL A | (626) 922-4112 K sum within LA County. BUILLD (324-2845) and wave balls.org W/0 #on 0 201-54/9 8/06 04:03:2PP \$162, \$2, \$1, \$1, \$2, \$2, \$2, \$2, \$2, \$2, \$2, \$2, \$2, \$2 |

| structure (ZC): 0 SqR / SqR) Floor Area (ZC): 0 SqR / SqR) Mise. Oce. Group: 0 SqR / SqR) Mise. Oce. Group: 0 SqR / SqR) Parking Req'd for Bidg (Auto+Bicycle): 0 Sta | data in the former "samber / samber - implies "samps" | a strandard raped , and , Landard Ann | 0 | 6020 - 10000 - 04364 |
|--|--|--|--|--|
| APPLICATION COMMENTS | | 1 | In the event that any hos (i.e | 1.36) is filled in capacity. If |
| | | | is protoble that additional ini- electronically and could not restrictions. Nevertheless, do eacouds that required by Sec Safety Code of the State of t | ormation has been capitand be primed due to space e information proted base 19825 of the Health and "althoma |
| Building Relevated From | | | | |
| CONTRACTOR ARCHITECT. & ENGINEER NAME) 51-R Electric) Taylor, Phillip O | ADDRESS 4016 3/4 Puente Avenue #A, Bal 5090 Viewridge Way, Oce | dwin Park, CA 91706 anside, CA 92056 | CLASS LICENSIA A. 559792 C13115 | TROALS 626-922-4112 |
| PERMIT EXPIRATION/REFUNDS: This p period of 180 days (See: 49.0602 LAMC). (LAMC). The pomulies may be entited to re | ermat exproses two years after the date of the permit iss Claims for refund of fees paid must be filed within on hindurection of permit fees if the Department fully to | waver. This permit will also expire a year from the date of expiration 5 conduct an inspection within 60 d | if no construction work is p or permits granted by LADB sys of receiving a request for | erformed for x continuous 5 (Sec. 22.12 & 22.13 final impection (H5 17951) |
| I hereby affirm under penalty of perjury that my license is in full force and effect. The fi- ability to take prime constructs or subcontra- License Class. A Lic. Not. 5 | I am licensed under the provisions of Chapter 9 (con- pliniving applies to B contractors only: 1 understand th ob involving specially trades. S9792 Contractor: S1-R ELEC | remencing with Section 7000) of D te Israitances of Section 7057 of th CTRIC | vision 3 of the Basiness and e Beakess and Professional | Professions Code, and Code related to my |
| I hereby affirm, under penality of perjury, or ()) have and will maintain a certificate or which this period is issued. ()) have and will maintain workerd com- | IK WORKERS' COMPENS are of the following declarations f consent in self insure for workers' compensation, as pentation insurance, as imported by Section 1700 of 0 er and policy number are | provided for by Section 3700 of th et Labor Code, for the performance | e Labor Code, for the perfur t of the work for which this ; | number of the work for errart is asserd. My |
| Camer | an and here's results and a | Policy Namber | | |
| Sentify that in the performance of the laws of California, and agree that if is provision. | work for which this permit is issued. I shall not emplo- bouid became subject to the workers' compensation (| by any person in any mainten so as provisions of Section 3700 of the L | to become subject to the win abor Code, I shall forthwith | tens' compression |
| WARNING: FAILURE TO SECURE WOR AND CIVIL FINES UP TO ONE HUNDRE IN SECTION 3706 OF THE LABOR COD | KERS COMPENSATION COVERAGE IS UNLAW ID THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$100,000), IN ADDITI E. (NTEREST, AND ATTORNEY'S FEES | ION TO THE COST OF COMPEN | SATION, DAMAGES AS | ROVIDED FOR |
| certify that somfication of suberson removal is rober (609) 306-2326 and the nonfication form at <u>www.agn</u> section 6716 and 6717 of the Labor Code. Information | IT ASBESTOS REMOVAL DECLARAT noi applicable or has been submined to the AQMD m <u>al.pov</u> Lead sale cumuracion practices are required on to available as Noshh Services for LA County at (BD | TON / LEAD HAZARD WARNEN r EPA as per section 1987.7.5 of the when doing repairs that destarb pan o) 524-5325 of the State of Californ | G e Health and Saïtty Code II 14 in pre-1978 buildings die 15 au (806) 397-1373 or <u>ww</u> | durtunum is svailable at n the presence of lead per w othe ca novechildlead |
| hereby affere under penalty of perjury thas there is a under a nume (if any): | 78 CONSTRUCTION LENDING conservation lending agency for the performance of it Lender's address | AGENCY DECLARATION be work for which this permit is its | urd (Sec. 3097; Civil Code) | |
| | 21. FINAL DECL | AKATION | | and the second second |
| certify that (have read this application INCLUDING comply with all city and county ordinances and take to purposes. I realize that this permus is an application to comply with any applicable law. Furthermore, techno- serformance or results of any work described hereis, i work, will not destroy or unmasurably interfere with a with sach catement, a substitute easement(s) caloffactor | THE ABOVE DECLARATIONS and stain that the a avec relating to building construction, and hereby auth <i>n</i> inspection and that it does not approve or suffurther the Eity of Los Angeles not any board, department a sour the condition of the property nor the soil spins whe my access or withty essential belonging to others and ony to the holder(s) of the eatenent will be provided (| hove information INCLUDING To orace representatives of this city to the work specified heterin and # d efficer, or employee thereof, make, ich such work is performed. I furth located on my property, but in the Sec. 91.0106.4.3.4 LAMC1 | IE ABOVE DECLARATION enter upon the above-memory sea not authorize or permit a sea not authorize or permit any warrany, nor shall be re- er affirm under penalty of ps event such work does destro | CS is correct. Expression and property for inspection inspection in failure to pensible fail the quey, due the proposed y or unversionably interfere. |
| By signing below, I certify that: (1) I accept all the declarations above namely the Construction Lending Agney Declaration as (2) This permit is being obtained with the conservation (3) This permit is being obtained with the conservation of the second seco | e Licensed Commercor's Declaration. Workers' Compe de Final Declaration, and ni of the logal owner of the pagesty | enation Declaration. Asbestos Res | noval Declaration I lead Ha | and warring. |
| | 1- N/ 1/ | Date 17 | 1810L Mar | Automoted Agenti |





CITY OF LOS ANGELES CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY



2016 E BAY ST ADDRESS OF BUILDING:

NOTE: Any change of use of occupancy must be approved by the Department of Building and Safety.

- [X] This certifies that, so far as ascertained or made known to the undersigned, the vacant land, building or portion of building described below and located at the address complies with the applicable construction requirements (Chapter 9) and/or the applicable zoning requirements (Chapter 1) of the Los Angeles Municipal Code for the use, or occupancy group in which it is classified.* (Non-Residential Uses)
- This certifies that, so far as ascertained by or make known to the undersigned, the building or portion of U. building described below and located at the above address complies with the applicable requirements of the Municipal Code, as follows: Ch. 1, as to permitted uses, Ch. 9, Arts. 1,3,4, and 5; and with applicable requirements of State Housing Law-for following occupancies." (Residential uses)

0

-0

Permit No. and Year: 99020-10000-03331

- USE OF LAND FOR JUNK YARD. 0
- [X] No Change in Parking Requirement. ÷ Total Parking Required:
 - + Disabled: + Compact: = Standard: Total Parking Provided:
- 0
- ALSO SUBJECT TO ANY AFFIDAVITS OR BUILDING AND ZONING CODE MODIFICATIONS WHETHER LISTED ABOVE OR NOT.

Bureau: Issued By/Office: CEB (LA)-VN-WLA-SP-C.D. #: 14

Division:

GI-MS-MSS-EQ-BMI-(VEIP):

SECURITY FIRST NATIONAL BANK TRUST OWNER: OWNER'S POBOX 54029 TERMINAL ANNEX ADDRESS: LOS ANGELES CA 90054

BY: B.KING/rz 08-8-95C (R.11/89

Issued: OCTOBER 25, 2000

Page 1 of 2

CITY OF LOS ANGELES CALIFORNIA



MAYOR

CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

| OWNER SECURITY FIRST NATL BK T | SECURITY FIRST NATL BK TR | | No hudding or senseture or portion thereof and no trailer park or pertion thereof shall be used or occupied until a Contificate of Occupiercy has linen. | | | | |
|--|---|---|---|--|--|-----------------------|--|
| 0 P O BOX 54029 TERM ANNE | x | | CERTIFICATE BY: | RICKEY | Issued-Valid JACKSON | DATE: 02/09/2012 | |
| LOS ANGELES CA | | 90054 | | | | | |
| ADDRESS: 2016 E BAY ST 90021 | | | | | | | |
| LEGAL DESCRIPTION TRACT HISCOCK AND SMITHS FIRST ADDITION | BLOCK | 1071 78 | 0 AI | D CO.MAPBER MR25-11 | PARCEL PIN 123A217 19 | AES 9 5166-011-021 | |
| This entities that, so fac as escentained in made known to shove addrem(ei) complete with the applicable conservation stanicipal Code for the use and occupancy group in which COMMENT INSTALL NEW 68" X 11"-6" X 6" CO | the undersigned, the variant has in requirements (Chapter 9) on a ra-classified and in subject 6 NCRETE PAD FOR L.P.G. | ad, tsuihting or por at/or the applicable to any atfidavits or TANK. | tion of building discri c auting requirements building and coming o | and hereiny and located of (Chapter 1) of the kins a add modefications when | nt the Angeles Opp Historian | | |
| USE PRIMARY (Miscellaneous Bldg/Structure () | othex -) None | | | | | | |
| STRUCTURAL INVENTORY TTEM DESCRIPTION Floor Area (ZC) Misc. Ore. Group Parking Reg'd for Bidg (Auto+Bicscle) | CHANGED B Sign 0 Sqft 0 Stalls | TUTAL | | | Ð | DBS | |
| | | | APP CER BRA COL BUR DIV STA STA | ROYAL THEICATE NUMBER NCU OFFICE NCU DISTRUCT EAU, ESION TUS TUS AV TUS BY TUS DATE: | 12664 LA IA INSPECTN BLDGINSP Coffi Issued RICKEY JACK 92.09/2012 | SON | |
| | | | APP EST | ROVED BY | IIICKEV JACK | SON | |

08-19-613

| gei 2 of 2 | | | | | 0 | erillicate Not **43 |
|---|--|---|--|--|--|---|
| PERMIT DETAIL PERMIT NUMBER PERMIT AUDRESS 06020-10000-04364 2016 E Bay Sy | PERMIT DESCRIPTION INSTALL NEW 60'S 11- | N 6" X 6" CONCHETE PAD F | DRLP,G TANK | | STATU CieD to RICHI | S - DATE - 11Y null - 1299/2012 V - JACKSON |
| PARCEL INFORMATION Area Dismissi Control Court District CFG 1946 Court District 14 For District 14 For District 2 Parking Dist. FCFD Zami M2-1 | Craman Tract: 2006.58 Coupl. Fill Ged., FG District Map: 123A217 LADBS Branch Office: LA Thomas Bunthers Map Critil, 834-1 | 14 | Caratillad No Community Energy Zon Near Source Thumas Bro | ighborhood (*) Plan Arise: Cr e: 9 : Zane Dottaoc obaes Map Ge | ranedi Gewatanon atrat Çity Narth 1: 9,7 14: 834 HT | Las Angeles |
| PARCEL DOCUMENT Affidavit (ATT) AFF-25240 City Flamsing Cates (CFC) CPC-1997-423 | City Planning Caves (CPC) CPC-1986-627-GPC City Planning Cases (CPC) CPC-1981-643-CRA Community Development Block Genul (CBBG) MEZ-Entroide Stats Patterprise Zone Zoning Information File (ZI) ZI-3129 Exclude State Enterprise Zone | | City Planning Cases (CPC) CPC-1995-352-CPE Community Development Mark Grant (CDBG) F02-Los Angeles Community Reducedogment Area (CRA) (2) 2117 CENTRO | | PE GITEZ-Los 1117 CENTRAL | |
| Landmany Development that Gran (Color) LARZ-Control City Ordinance (URD) ORD-164835-8A2320 | | | ENDENTRA Zoning Info Redevelopm | INDUSTRIAL REDEV PROCT Zoning Information File (ZI) ZI-ZS17 Central Industrial Redevelopment Propert | | |
| CHECKLIST ITEMS Attackment - Plot Plan | Fabricator Repl - Shop Weld | | | | | |
| PROPERTY OWNER, DENANT, APPLICANT I | NFORMATION | | | | | |
| OWNER(5) Security First Natl Bk. Te | 0 P () Bai 54029 Term | 40.803 | LOS ANGELES O | A 90054 | | |
| TENANT - Ny Transpurtation | 2016 Bay St. | | LOS ANGELES, | CA 90021 | | |
| APPLICANT Relationship Contactor Robert Rermandise- | 4016 3/4 Parnie Ave. "A | + | BALDWIN PARM | CA 91766 | | (626) 922-4112 |
| BUILDING RELOCATED FROM | | | | | | |
| (CIONTRACTOR, IAIRCHITECT & IEINGINE NAME (C) 51-R Electric (E) Taylor, Phillip O | R INFORMATION ADDRESS 4016 3/4 Pointe Avenue #A. 5090 Vieweldge Way. | Baldwin Park, CA 917 Oceanside, CA 92956 | 16 | CLASS A NA | LJCENSE# 559792 C13115 | PHONE # (626) 922-4112 |
| SITE IDENTIFICATION-ALL ADDRESS 2016 E BAY ST 90021 | | | | | | |
| LEGAL DESCRIPTION-ALL TRACT HISCOCK AND SMITHS FIRST ADDITION | 11.5K.B LOT(1) 78 | AND | CO MAP REF # M R 25-11 | | PARCEL PIN 123A217 199 | AFN \$168-011-02 |

APPENDIX D

AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS

06-26-2015



2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL



Scale: 1 inch to 400 feet

UTM North is straight up

Longitude: -118° 13' 56" Latitude: 34° 1' 52.4" UTM Easting: UTM Northing: UTM Zone:

386242 meters 3766109 meters NAD 11

County: LOS ANGELES

NAPP 6858 65 Project: Quadrangle: LOS ANGELES SW Date: 1994 05 31 "BLACK AND WHITE FILM" Film Type:

> Source: U.S. Dept of Interior, Geological Survey

AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH OF THE VICINITY OF THE SUBJECT SITE LOCATED AT 2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL

06-26-2015

EEMA8998



2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL

06-26-2015

EEMA8998



Source: U.S. Dept of Interior, Geological Survey

AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH OF THE VICINITY OF THE SUBJECT SITE LOCATED AT 2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL



Source: U.S. Dept of Interior, Geological Survey

AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH OF THE VICINITY OF THE SUBJECT SITE LOCATED AT 2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL

EEMA8998



2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL

APPENDIX E

SANBORN FIRE INSURANCE MAPS







APPENDIX F

CITY DIRECTORIES

HISTORICAL TENANT REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this Historical Tenant Report is to identify the tenants (be it the owner or lessee) of 2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 MATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGEL over the last 50 years.

Sources for the research includes various city directories, street address directories and criss-cross directories published from 1920 forward. The actual site address as well as neighboring addresses on the same block are also investigated for informational purposes, and to cover a potential address change of the subject site.

BBL has used its best effort but makes no claims as to the completeness of the referenced sources or completeness of the search. For additional information call (619) 793-0641.

DIRECTORY INFORMATION

The three general types of directories researched for the Historical Tenant Report are the 1) city directory, 2) street address directory, and 3) criss-cross directory. All three either are devoted to or have sections that list the Tenant and telephone number of given street addresses by their street name and address. These telephone directories, not as readily available to the public as white pages or yellow pages, are excellent for uncovering names, business names and the nature of businesses as listed by street address.

In addition to the actual site address the following neighboring addresses have been researched for commercial listings as well:

1005 MATEO ST 1024 MATEO ST 1038 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2014 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST 2020 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST 931 MATEO ST

The actual site address, as it is known presently, is marked by blue text in the findings of the search as reported on the following pages.

 Page:
 1

 Date:
 06-30-2015

 Job:
 EEMA8998

2015

| 1024 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2020 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST 931 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings SELECTED TEXTILES GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings MORTON SCRAP METAL PLAYETHICS MO SEWING INC CASITA INTERNATIONAL PLUMA IMPORT INC |
|--|--|
| Source: | Combo1 |
| 2014 | |
| 1024 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2020 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST 931 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings SELECTED TEXTILES GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings MORTON SCRAP METAL ISY INC PLAYETHICS STONE NARA MO SEWING INC CASITA INTERNATIONAL PLUMA IMPORT INC |
| Source: | Combo1 |
| 2012 | |
| 1024 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2020 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings SELECTED TEXTILES GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings MORTON SCRAP METAL ISY INC BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC LITTLE SUN INC MO SEWING INC BX3USA INC CASITA INTERNATIONAL |
| 931 MATEO ST | PLUMA IMPORT INC |
| Source: | Combo1 |
| 2010 | |
| 1024 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2020 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings SELECTED TEXTILES GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings MORTON SCRAP METAL ISY INC GIFTWAY INC BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC MO SEWING INC BX3USA INC CASITA INTERNATIONAL OPTIMA TRADING CO PLUMA IMPORT INC |
| Source: | Combo1 |
| 2008 | |

1024 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST No Commercial Listings SELECTED TEXTILES GELTMAN INDUSTRIES

| HISTORICAL TENANT REPORT 2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 M ATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGELES | | | 2 06-30-2015 EEMA8998 |
|---|--|--|-----------------------------|
| 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2020 SACRAMENTO ST 2022 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings MORTON SCRAP METAL INTAGLIO ISY INC BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC M O SEWING INC CASITA INTERNACIONAL KPP ZIPPER INC OPTIMA TRADING CO | | |
| Source: | Combo1 | | |
| 2006 | | | <u> </u> |
| 1024 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2020 SACRAMENTO ST 2022 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings MORTON SCRAP METAL INTAGLIO ISY INC TEX VISION GIFTWAY BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC CASITA INTERNACIONAL KEP ZIPPER | | |
| 931 MATEO ST | OPTIMA TRADING CO PLUMA IMPORT INC | | |
| Source: | Combo1 | | |
| 2004 | | | <u> </u> |
| 1024 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2020 SACRAMENTO ST 2022 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 931 MATEO ST Source: | No Commercial Listings T A GREENE CO GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings MORTON SCRAP METAL INTAGLIO GIFTWAY BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC TEX VISION PLUMA IMPORT INC Combo1 | | |
| 2000 | | | <u> </u> |
| 1024 MATEO ST 1038 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST 931 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings C W PRODUCE T A GREENE CO GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings ASALING IMPORT & EXPORT INC U & I KNIT BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC MODA PRODUCTION GOLDEN PLATING CORP KIDSSMILE IMPORT | | |
| Source: | Combo1 | | |
| 1998 1024 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings | | |
| 1029 MATEO ST | | | |

1038 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2014 SACRAMENTO ST No Commercial Listings C W PRODUCE T A GREENE CO GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings FLORES PRODUCE

| HISTORICAL TENANT REPORT 2001-2005 SACRAMENTO ST;1024 M ATEO ST;2016 BAY ST, LOS ANGELES | | | 3 06-30-2015 EEMA8998 |
|---|---|--|-----------------------------|
| | | | |
| 2022 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST 931 MATEO ST | FULL CIRCLE SPORTSWEAR BEVERLY EMBROIDERY INC GOLDEN PLATING CORP KIDSSMILE IMPORT | | |
| Source: | Combo1 | | |
| 1994 | | | <u>.</u> |
| 1005 MATEO ST 1024 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2014 SACRAMENTO ST | SUMMIT PULP AND PAPER INC No Commercial Listings T A GREENE CO INC GELTMAN REZEX CORP No Commercial Listings FLORES PRODUCE | | |
| 930 MATEO ST | GOLDEN PLATING CORP | | |
| Source: | Combo1 | | |
| 1990 | | | |
| 1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST | No Commercial Listings No Commercial Listings | | |
| 1985 | | | |
| 1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST | No Commercial Listings No Commercial Listings CONSOLIDTAED FIBRES-SETTSU INC | | |
| 1980 | | | <u>.</u> |
| 1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST | No Commercial Listings No Commercial Listings CONSOLIDTAED FIBRES-SETTSU INC | | |
| 1976 | | | <u> </u> |
| 1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST | No Commercial Listings No Commercial Listings No Listings | | |
| 1971 | | | <u> </u> |
| 1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST | No Commercial Listings FENTONS R TR No Listings | | |
| 1961 | | | <u> </u> |
| 1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST | No Commercial Listings FENTONS R TR No Listings | | |
| 1956 | | | <u> </u> |
| 1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST | No Commercial Listings FENTONS R TR No Listings | | |

Appendix E-2: Phase II ESA



PHASE II ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT REPORT FOR COMMERCIAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1024 MATEO STREET, 2016 BAY STREET, AND 2001, 2005 AND 2025 SACRAMENTO STREET, WITHIN THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA

For submittal to

Property-Ownership Representatives 515 South Flower Street, 28th Floor Los Angeles, California 90071 CA9-512-28-14

Prepared by

Certified Environmental Consultants, Inc.

David R. Johannes, KG, REA, CES President



CEC Project Number 15-1775 August 13, 2015



TABLE OF CONTENTS

| 1.0 | INTRODUCTION | 1 |
|------|--|-------------|
| | Purpose Involved Parties | 1 1 |
| 2.0 | SITE DESCRIPTION | 1 |
| 3,0 | RECENT SAMPLING AND ANALYTICAL ACTIVITIES | 2 |
| | 3.1 Geophysical Surveying 3.2 Soil Sampling 3.3 Soil-Vapor Sampling | 2 2 3 |
| 4.0 | DISCUSSION OF ADDITIONAL-INVESTIGATION FINDINGS | 4 |
| 5.0 | LIMITATIONS | 4 |
| 6.0 | REGULATORY REFERENCES | 5 |
| TABL | ES Table 1 - Soil-Sampling Title 22 Metal Analytical Results Table 2 - Soil-Vapor Sampling Analytical Results | |
| FIGU | RES Figure 1 - Site Location Map Figure 2 - Assessor's Parcel Map Figure 3 - Recent Sample Locations | |
| APPE | NDICES Appendix A - Previous Phase I Report (excerpts) Appendix B - Geophysical Surveying Report Appendix C - Soil-Sample Analytical Report Appendix D - Soil-Vapor Sampling Analytical Report | |

i

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Certified Environmental Consultants, Inc. (CEC) recently completed additional-due-diligence activities, which included completion of subsurface investigation through the use of geophysical surveying techniques, and the collection and analysis of soil-vapor samples and physical soil samples, from selected site locations, based on historical site records (see following section), current site features, and the results of the geophysical-surveying activities.

The subject site's location is shown on Figure 1 - Site Location Map. The site location is further delineated on Figure 2 - Assessor's Parcel Map. This report describes the sampling procedures that were followed and underlying rationale, and provides a summary of the investigation's findings.

1.1 Purpose

The purpose of the recent sampling program was to investigate if adverse environmental conditions are present at the site, as related to potential environmental concerns that had been identified for the land by others, as described in a previously prepared Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (Phase I) report for the subject site. The previous report had been prepared by Environmental Managers & Auditors, Inc. (EMA), out of Calabasas, California, and was dated June 30, 2015.

Specifically, the earlier EMA report identified past use of portions of the site for service-station (automotive) activities, and prior use of the northern part of the site as a "junk yard", and the current-day presence of a wash-down drain and associated clarifier, as representing potential environmental conditions of concern. Copies of the text portion of the previous Phase I report, as well as pertinent historical site-usage documents that were appended to the Phase I report, have been provided as Appendix A for reference.

1.2 Involved Parties

This Phase II report was prepared on behalf of current property-ownership representatives, in general accordance with the terms and conditions outlined in a proposal dated July 1, 2015, and subsequent electronic communications.

2.0 SITE DESCRIPTION

The site consists of multiple, contiguous, rectangle-shaped commercial parcels, which collectively occupy an area situated between Bay and Sacramento Streets to the north and south, respectively, with Mateo Street along the western boundary, and additional commercial properties and Santa Fe Street to the east, as reflected on Figure 2.

The northern portion of the property currently is occupied by a bus-maintenance/offices building, and the southeastern portion of the site is occupied by a three-sided storage shed. Additional current-day features at the site include a wash-down drain and clarifier at a washing station that is located adjacent to the storage shed, and a large, above-ground storage tank (AST) that is used for storage of liquefied propane, and fixtures that were deemed to be indicative of the presence of municipal services (potable water and sanitary sewer) and private-utility (natural gas and electricity) connections.

МаксоПтр

The remainder of the site is open space that is covered with asphalt and concrete pavement. This open area of the site is used a bus storage/staging area. Asphalt and/or concrete flooring was present inside the warehouse/office building, and inside the storage shed.

Multiple gates along the adjacent streets provide access to the site. However, a monitored driveway off Bay Street provides the primary access point for the site's on-site parking/storage areas.

The site buildings currently are occupied by personnel affiliated with a municipal-bus maintenance and services business. Additional site information is included in Appendix A. The general layout of the site can be seen on previously referenced Figure 2, as well as on Figure 3 - Recent Sample Locations.

3.0 RECENT SAMPLING AND ANALYTICAL ACTIVITIES

The herein-described sampling program was completed in order to screen the site's subsurface environment for the presence of adverse petroleum and/or chemical impacts, and assess the nature of any detected environment impacts, at specific locations that were related to previously identified historical site activities/features, geophysical surveying activities, as well as current physical fixtures.

3.1 Geophysical Surveying

In an effort to screen the site for the presence of in-place underground storage tanks (USTs) or other features of potential concern, the services of Geovision Geophysical Services (GGS), out of Corona, California, were utilized. Geophysical surveying activities were completed at the site on July 24 and July 29, 2015. Specifically, GGS inspected the subsurface environment at accessible areas of the site using magnetometer, high-frequency metal detection, conductivity and/or ground-penetrating radar equipment.

Site personnel assisted in moving buses and other vehicles and generally provided access to open areas of the site. The presence of the buildings, the AST, and a few broken-down vehicles, limited access to some areas. However, GGS personnel generally were able to screen portions of the site that were previously identified as having been used for historical service-station operations. The various GGS personnel were not given any of the known site-history information, in order to ensure objective interpretation of the result data.

A copy of GGS's recent report is included in Appendix B. With the exception of a linear feature that was identified by GGS's conductivity instruments (see Figure 4 in GGS report), subsurface anomalies generally coincided with past service-station operations, such as previous pump islands, storage buildings, hydraulic hoists, and a "grease pit", as reflected in historical records provided in Appendix A.

No subsurface features that were consistent with the presence of USTs were identified in the screened areas. This finding, in conjunction with a prior grading-permit reference that pertained to "storage tank backfill", would be consistent with the prior removal of the site's former USTs.

3.2 Soil Sampling

As discussed below, soil-vapor sampling activities were completed to screen for petroleum and/or other chemical impacts at suspect areas of the property. As part of the vapor-probe installition at two locations

MateoIIrpt

(SV-6 and SV-7), which were located on a portion of the site that was reported to have at one time been used as junk yard, representative soil samples were collected from depths of roughly 1 foot below grade. These recent sample locations are depicted on Figure 3.

The samples were collected in driven, stainless-steel tubes, which were sealed and capped, and placed in an iced cooler, pending delivery to the laboratory. The samples subsequently were delivered to American Scientific Laboratories, LLC (ASL), located in Los Angeles, California, under chain of custody. Following a compositing of the two samples, the soils were analyzed by for Title 22 Metals, using EPA Method 6010B/7471A.

The analytical report indicated the presence of arsenic at a concentration of 1.68 parts per million (ppm). This concentration was slightly greater than a published Environmental Screening Level (ESL) for this compound in shallow soils at commercial properties. The remaining Title 22 metals were reported at concentrations that were well below the respective ESL values, or were not detected.

These recent soil-sample data are summarized in Table 1 - Soil-Sampling Title 22 Analytical Results. Additionally, copies of ASL's analytical report and sample-custody form are included in Appendix C.

3.3 Soil-Vapor Sampling

CEC's recent subsurface-screening activities culminated with the collection and analysis of soil-vapor samples. For these services, a specialty contractor was utilized for providing access holes in the flooring/pavement surfaces, and subsequent collection of representative soil-vapor samples from beneath the floor slab/pavement. Soil-vapor samples were collected at eight locations that were deemed most likely to exhibit chemical and/or petroleum impacts, if present, based on previously discussed rationale (see Figure 3).

These additional services were provided by Optimal Technology (OT), operating out of Thousand Oaks, California. Upon collection, OT's personnel transferred the various soil-vapor samples directly into an on-site analytical instrument that was housed in a mobile laboratory. The soil-vapor samples were analyzed for the presence of volatile organic compounds (VOCs) by EPA Method 8021B. Following sample collection, the temporary vapor probes were removed and the boreholes were back-filled with inert material, and the floor/pavement surfaces were patched to match existing grade.

The soil-vapor analytical report indicated the presence of tetrachloroethene, also known as perchloroethene, or PCE, in each of the collected soil-vapor samples. The reported PCE values in soil vapors ranged from 3.69 to 22.42 parts per billion by volume (ppbv). Each of these values exceeds the recommended screening level for PCE in commercial-site soil vapors of 0.603 ppbv (California Human Health Screening Levels).

The soil-vapor screening did not identify the presence of any of the most common VOCs that are associated with gasoline and other petroleum products (benzene, ethylbenzene, toluene, and total xylenes). This finding is deemed to be consistent with a lack of fuel-related environmental impacts at the site.

The recent soil-vapor data are summarized in Table 2 - Soil-Vapor Sampling Analytical Results. Additionally, copies of OT's analytical report are included in Appendix D.

Mateollrp

4.0 DISCUSSION OF ADDITIONAL-INVESTIGATION FINDINGS

No subsurface features that would be consistent with the presence of USTs were identified in the screened areas. This finding, in conjunction with a prior grading-permit reference for "storage tank backfill", is deemed to be consistent with the prior removal of the site's former USTs.

The described soil-sample analytical report indicated the presence of arsenic at a concentration of 1.68 ppm. This concentration was slightly greater than the published ESL for this compound in shallow soils at commercial properties. The remaining Title 22 metals were reported at concentrations that were well below the respective ESL values, or were not detected.

The described soil-vapor analytical report indicated the presence of tetrachloroethene, also known as perchloroethene, or PCE, in each of the collected samples. The reported PCE values in soil vapor ranged from 3.69 to 22.42 ppbv. Each of these values exceeds the screening level for PCE in commercial-site soil vapors of 0.603 ppbv (California Human Health Screening Levels).

The soil-vapor screening did not identify the presence of any of the most common VOCs that are associated with gasoline and other petroleum products (benzene, ethylbenzene, toluene, and total xylenes). This finding is deemed to be consistent with a lack of present-day, fuel-related environmental impacts at the site.

5.0 LIMITATIONS

No site assessment activities, no matter how extensive or expensive, can guarantee the absence of hazardous or otherwise regulated materials at a particular site. Despite the use of reasonable care, CEC and other well-qualified and competent environmental professionals may fail to detect the presence of hazardous/regulated substances at a property. In addition, CEC and other environmental professionals may under or over estimate the amount and/or extent of hazardous or regulated substances present. Further, no comment can be made regarding future site conditions or the performance of construction materials.

CEC assumes no responsibility for conditions that were not readily apparent at the time of its work, or for the accuracy or completeness of information provided or compiled by others. The professional services provided for this report and the related investigation are intended to meet the degree of skill and care ordinarily exercised by other environmental professionals in the region practicing under similar conditions and circumstances. No other warranty or guarantee, express or implied, is made.

This report has been prepared on behalf of ownership interests, as authorized and requested by current property-ownership representatives, to be used solely by these authorized personnel in evaluating the potential impact of hazardous/regulated materials at the site. This report is not intended for use by other parties, and may not contain sufficient detail for use by others. Any use of or reliance upon the information by another party shall be at the sole risk of such third party, and without legal recourse against CEC, its employees, or officers, regardless of whether such action is based upon contract, tort or statute.

This report is not a legal opinion. CEC's comments are based on its understanding of current regulations and experience with similar projects. A qualified environmental attorney should be

consulted for a legal opinion on any related matters, including site ownership/management requirements and options.

The site was not sampled for nor inspected for radon, mold, or other indoor-air-quality concerns. Sampling and/or inspecting the site for radon, mold or other indoor-air-quality issues, such as vapor intrusion, would require use of specialty sampling equipment and outside laboratory analyses. If desired, such additional services would necessitate an increase in CEC's scope of work.

6.0 REGULATORY REFERENCES

<u>California Human Health Screening Levels, Environmental Screening Levels; Screening for</u> <u>Environmental Concerns at Sites with Contaminated Soil and Ground Water</u>, California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Francisco Region, Interim Final, 2008. Tables

ŝ

Table 1Soil-Sampling Title 22 Analytical Results1024 Mateo Street, 2016 Bay Street, 2001, 2005 and 2025 Sacramento StreetLos Angeles, California

| | Sample Identification/Location (1) | Environmental Screening |
|-------------------|------------------------------------|-------------------------------|
| Title 22 Metal | SV-6/SV-7 (compsite) | Lével - Comm. Property (2) |
| Antimony | ND | 40 |
| Arsenic | 1.68 | 1.6 |
| Barrium | 112 | 1500 |
| Beryllium | ND | 8 |
| Cadmium | 1.08 | 7.4 |
| Chromium | 37.4 | 7500 |
| Cobalt | 8.22 | 80 |
| Copper | 23.8 | 230 |
| Lead | 60.8 | 750 |
| Mercury | 0.0763 | 10 |
| Molybdenum | 1.93 | 40 |
| Nickel | 29.4 | 150 |
| Selenium | ND | 10 |
| Silver | ND | 40 |
| Thallium | ND | 16 |
| Vanadium | 33.4 | 200 |
| Zinc | 116 | 600 |

Notes:

(1) Former junk yard portion of site, see provided figures for physical depiction of sample locations

(2) Environmental Screening Levels (ESLs) for Shallow Soils at Commercial Properties, Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Francisco Region, Interim Draft, 2008

Bold type face = Exceeds recommended screening level

Table 2Soil-Vapor Sampling Analytical Results1024 Mateo Street, 2016 Bay Street, 2001, 2005 and 2025 Sacramento StreetLos Angeles, California

| Sample I.D. | Sample Location (1) | Benzene (2) | Toluene (2) | Ethyl- benzene (2) | Xylenes (2) | PCE (3) | Other VOCs (4) |
|----------------|--|----------------|----------------|--------------------------|----------------|------------|----------------------|
| SV-1 | Adjacent to current clarifier/wash drain | ND | ND | ND | ND | 3.69 | ND |
| SV-2 | At former grease-pit location | ND | ND | ND | ND | 14.54 | ND |
| SV-3 | At former UST location | ND | ND | ND | ND | 22.42 | ND |
| SV-4 | At former hydraulic hoists location | ND | ND | ND | ND | 21.32 | ND |
| SV-5 | At former pump-islands location | ND | ND | ND | ND | 21.81 | ND |
| SV-6 | At former UST location | ND | ND | ND | ND | 13.78 | ND |
| SV-7 | Adjacent to current waste-stoarge area | ND | ND | ND | ND | 11.76 | ND |
| SV-8 | S. of main bld., at conduc. anomoly loc. | ND | ND | ND | ND | 11.72 | ND |

Notes:

(1) See provided figures for physical depiction of sample locations

(2) Common volatile gasoline constituents by EPA Method 8021B

(3) Tetrachloroethene/Perchloroethene by EPA Method 8021B

(4) Other volatile organic compounds measured by Method 8021B, see report for listing of method analytes

ND = Not detected above method detection limits

Bold type face = Exceeds recommended screening level

Figures






CERTIFIED ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS, INC.

Appendix A Previous Phase I Report (excerpts)

PHASE I ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT OF THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2025 SACRAMENTO STREET, 1024 MATEO STREET AND 2016 BAY STREET (ALSO INCLUDES 2001-2005 SACRAMENTO STREET) LOS ANGELES, CA 91402

Prepared for:

Bank of America N.A. US Trust-Real Estate Services 515 S. Flower Street 28th Floor Los Angeles, CA 90071

Prepared by:

Environmental Managers & Auditors, Inc. 26500 Agoura Road, #102-374 Calabasas, CA 91302

Project No. 2015-786-25

June 2015



Environmental Managers & Auditors, Inc.



June 30, 2015

Bank of America N.A US Trust Real-Estate Services 515 S. Flower Street Los Angeles CA. 90071

To whom it may concern:

In accordance with Bank of America's request and authorization, Environmental Managers & Auditors Inc. (EMA) performed a review of potential environmental liabilities associated with the property located at 2001-2005 Sacramento Street, 1024 Mateo Street and 2016 Bay Street, Los Angeles, California, in June 2016. The purpose of this assessment was to identify potential environmental concerns associated with the property (exclusive of geologic stability or flood potential), building construction, and use. This investigation was conducted by EMA and consisted solely of the activities described in the Scope of Work section of this report. The findings, conclusions and recommendations presented herein are subject to the limitations discussed in Section 1.3 and the agreement for Environmental Consulting Services.

A brief report summarizing our findings is enclosed. Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned at your convenience. EMA appreciates the opportunity to be of professional services to Bank of America on this project.

Sincerely,

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGERS & AUDITORS, INC.

Kholes Mulil

Khalid Mahmood, R.E.A. Project Director

Enclosure

26500 Agoura Rd, Sulte 102-374, Calabasas, CA 91302 | Phone: (818) 704-4404 | Fax: (818) 704-4401 Los Angeles | San Francisco | Dallas | Las Vegas | Phoenix | Washington D.C.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| Section | | Title | |
|---------|---|---|----------------------------------|
| | EXEC | UTIVE SUMMARY | 4 |
| 1. | 0 INTR | ODUCTION | 7 |
| | 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 | Purpose Detailed Scope of Services Significant Assumptions Special Terms and Conditions Limitations Limiting Conditions and Methodology Used User Reliance | 7 7 8 8 8 8 |
| 2.0 | 2.0 SITE DESCRIPTION | | 9 |
| | 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 | Location and Legal Description Site and Vicinity Characteristics Description of Structures Current Use of the Property Current Adjacent Properties | 9 9 9 9 10 |
| 3.(| 0 USEF | | 11 |
| | 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.4 3.5 3.6 | Title Records Environmental Liens or Activity and Use Limitation Specialized Knowledge Commonly Known or Reasonably Ascertainable Information Valuation Reduction for Environmental Issues Reason for performing Phase 1 ESA | 11 11 11 11 11 11 |
| 4.(| 4.0 REGULATORY AGENCY RECORDS SEARCH | | 13 |
| | 4.1 4.2 4.3 | Federal Sources California State Sources Local Sources | 13 20 24 |

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| Section | Title | Page |
|---------|--|--|
| 5.0 | ENVIRONMENTAL SETTINGS | 28 |
| | 5.1 Physical Characteristic5.2 Geology and Hydrogeology | 28 28 |
| 6.0 | HISTORICAL SITE USAGE | 29 |
| | 6.1 Aerial Photographs 6.2 Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps 6.3 City Directories Records 6.4 Historical Topographic Maps 6.5 Prior Assessment Reports 6.6 Zoning/Land Use Records 6.7 Recorded Land Title Records 6.8 Additional Historical Records Sources 6.9 Historical Use Information on Adjoining Properties 6.10 Data Failure | 29 30 34 34 34 34 34 34 34 34 |
| 7.0 | SITE RECONNAISSANCE | 36 |
| | 7.1 Aboveground Storage Tanks 7.2 Underground Storage Tanks 7.3 Water and Wastewater 7.4 Hazardous Materials/Wastes 7.5 Air Emissions 7.6 PCBs 7.7 Solid Waste 7.8 Asbestos Containing Materials (ACMs) 7.9 Pesticides 7.10 Radon 7.11 Wetlands 7.12 Oil Wells 7.13 Landfills | 36 36 36 37 37 37 37 37 38 38 38 38 38 38 |
| 8.0 | INTERVIEWS | 40 |
| 9.0 | FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS | 41 |

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section

Title

Page

43

10.0 SIGNATURE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROFESSIONAL

LIST OF FIGURE

Figure No. Title

| 1 SI | <i>TELOCA</i> | TION | MAP |
|------|----------------------|------|-----|
|------|----------------------|------|-----|

2 SITE VICINITY MAP

3 SITE LAYOUT MAP

LIST OF APPENDICES

| A | PHOTOGRAPHS |
|---|-------------------------------|
| В | GOVERNMENT DATABASE REPORT |
| С | BUILDING DEPARTMENT RECORDS |
| D | HISTORICAL AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS |
| E | SANBORN FIRE INSURANCE MAPS |
| F | HISTORICAL CITY DIRECTORIES |

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Environmental Managers & Auditors, Inc (EMA) has performed a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) in general accordance with ASTM 1527-13 for the property located at 2001-2005 Sacramento Street ; 1024 Mateo Street; 2016 Bay Street, Los Angeles, California.

The Phase I Environmental Site Assessment is designed to provide Bank of America an assessment concerning environmental conditions (limited to those issues identified in the report) as they exist at the property. This assessment was conducted utilizing generally accepted ESA industry standards in accordance with ASTM E 1527-13, Standard Practice for Environmental Site Assessments: Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Process.

The address of the subject property is 2001-2005 Sacramento Street, 1024 Mateo Street, and 2016 Bay Street, Los Angeles, California (herein referred as subject property). The subject property is located in a commercial and industrial area in the City of Los Angeles, California. According to County of Los Angeles Assessor's Office, the assessor's parcel number (APN) of the subject property is 5166-011-021. All adjoining areas consist of commercial and industrial buildings.

During the site reconnaissance, the subject property was observed to be occupied by MV Transportation Inc. MV Transportation, Inc. is engaged in the auto repair and service business for MTA buses. The subject property consists of a rectangular shaped parcel with a steel frame automotive repair and service building with associated offices in the northwestern portion and a steel frame storage shed in the southeastern portion of the property. The remaining portions of the site are utilized to park MTA busses. During the site reconnaissance, a drainage and a three compartment belowground clarifier were observed in the southeastern portion of the site. This area is utilized to wash vehicles. The wastewater generated from automotive washing operations is collected in the belowground clarifier and subsequently discharged into the city sewer. During the site reconnaissance, a large propane tank was observed in the middle of the property. Storm drainage is accomplished via drains located at the property which direct surface water to storm drains in the surrounding streets. No other significant structures and/or features were observed at the subject property.

During the site reconnaissance, significant quantities of hazardous materials/ hazardous wastes (i.e. brake fluids, motor oil, transmission oil, coolants, batteries, waste oil, waste anti-freeze, etc.). were observed in the automotive repair/service building and the storage shed. The hazardous materials/hazardous wastes were stored in 55-gallon and 250-gallon containers and placed in secondary containments. Significant stains were observed in the vicinity of hazardous materials/hazardous waste storage containers. The hazardous wastes generated at the site are picked up by Safety Kleen for proper disposal.

The subject property is bounded by Bay Street to the north, beyond which are Casita International, Zacatecas Imports, and other industrial developments, LAZ- Express and other industrial developments to the east, Selected Textiles, NSM, Intaglio Inc. and other industrial developments to the south, and Sacramento Street to the west beyond which are CDL Scrap Metals, Pegasus Inc., and other industrial developments.

A review of records available at the City of Los Angeles Department of Building and safety revealed that the subject property was previously occupied by a service station and Wash Rack with a clarifier and Grease Pit and a junk yard. The owner of the service station is indicated Standard Oil Company. A further review of records indicated that an application for grading permit for the storage tank backfill was filed on August 22, 1975. It is unknown whether the tank(s) were abandoned in-place by backfilling. It is unknown how many tanks were installed/removed and/or abandoned in-place associated with the former auto service station owned by Standard Oil Company.

Review of government database report revealed that the subject property tenants, Consolidated Fibers and MV Transportation, are listed on the Hazardous Waste Information System (HWIS) database. The database report indicated that Consolidated Fibers and MV Transportation generated waste oil and unspecified organic liquid mixtures at the site. It should be noted that potential for environmental concern is not necessarily present simply because a property is listed on this database. HWIS does not track violators and the presence of a facility on the HWIS database does not necessarily indicate that an environmental concern exists at that facility. The presence of these facilities on the HWIS database is not, in itself, considered to represent an environmental concern.

A further review of government regulatory databases revealed no off-site facilities of concern identified in the immediate vicinity that may have potentially impacted the subject site.

FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS, OPINIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Findings

A recognized environmental condition (REC) refers to the presence or likely presence of any hazardous substances or petroleum products in, on, or at a property: due to release to the environment; under conditions indicative of a release to the environment; or under conditions that pose a material threat of a future release to the environment. The following was identified during the course of this assessment:

 EMA identified recognized environmental conditions in connection with the property during the course of this assessment. The recognized environmental conditions included drainage/belowground clarifier associated with auto washing operations at the site. In addition, significant stains were observed in the vicinity of hazardous materials/hazardous wastes storage areas at the site. A controlled recognized environmental condition (CREC) refers to a REC resulting from a past release of hazardous substances or petroleum products that has been addressed to the satisfaction of the applicable regulatory authority, with hazardous substances or petroleum products allowed to remain in place subject to the implementation of required controls. The following was identified during the course of this assessment:

• EMA did not identify any controlled recognized environmental conditions during the course of this assessment.

A historical recognized environmental condition (HREC) refers to a past release of any hazardous substances or petroleum products that has occurred in connection with the property and has been addressed to the satisfaction of the applicable regulatory authority or meeting unrestricted use criteria established by a regulatory authority, without subjecting the property to any required controls. The following was identified during the course of this assessment:

EMA identified historical recognized environmental conditions during the course of this assessment. The recognized environmental conditions included operation of a service station, Wash Rack with a clarifier, grease pit and a junk yard at the site in the past. The owner of the service station was indicated Standard Oil Company. A further review of records indicated that an application for grading permit for the storage tank backfill was filed on August 22, 1975. It is unknown whether the tank(s) were abandoned in-place by backfilling. It is unknown how many tanks were installed/removed and/or abandoned in-place associated with the former auto service station owned by Standard Oil Company at the site.

CONCLUSIONS, OPINIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

EMA has performed a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment in conformance with the scope and limitations of ASTM Practice E1527-13 of 2001-2005 Sacramento Street; 1024 Mateo Street; 2015 Bay Street, Los Angeles, Los Angeles County, California (the "subject property"). Any exceptions to, or deletions from, this practice are described in Section 1.5 of this report. This assessment has revealed evidence of recognized environmental conditions in connection with the property. Based on the conclusions, EMA recommends further investigation at the site. Further investigation should be conducted in eth following potential areas of concern:

- Conduct a geophysical survey to determine presence and/or absence of underground storage tanks at the site.
- Conduct subsurface investigation (i.e. sampling and laboratory analyses, etc.) in the vicinity of former underground storage tanks, former and current clarifiers, grease pit, and hazardous materials/hazardous wastes storage areas.

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Environmental Managers & Auditors, Inc (EMA) was retained by Bank of America to conduct a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) of the property located at 2001-2005 Sacramento Street; 1024 Mateo Street; and 2016 Bay Street, Los Angeles, California (herein referred as subject property). The protocol used for this assessment is in general conformance with ASTM E 1527-13, Standard Practice for Environmental Site Assessments: Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Process.

On June 25, 2015, EMA conducted a site reconnaissance to assess the possible presence of petroleum products and hazardous materials at the subject property. EMA's investigation included a review of aerial photographs, historical city directories, a reconnaissance of adjacent properties, background research, and a review of available local, state, and federal regulatory records regarding the presence of petroleum products and/or hazardous materials at the subject property.

1.1 <u>Purpose</u>

The purpose of this Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) was to identify existing or potential Recognized Environmental Conditions (as defined by ASTM Standard E-1527-13) in connection with the Property. EMA understands that the findings of this study will be used by Bank of America to evaluate a pending financial transaction in connection with the subject property.

1.2 Detailed Scope of Services

The scope of work for this ESA is in general accordance with the requirements of ASTM Standard E 1527-13. EMA warrants that the findings and conclusions contained herein were accomplished in accordance with the methodologies set forth in the Scope of Work. These methodologies are described as representing good commercial and customary practice for conducting an Environmental Site Assessment of a property for the purpose of identifying recognized environmental conditions. No other warranties are implied or expressed.

1.3 Significant Assumptions

There is a possibility that even with the proper application of these methodologies there may exist on the subject property conditions that could not be identified within the scope of the assessment or which were not reasonably identifiable from the available information. EMA believes that the information obtained from the records review and the interviews concerning the site is reliable. However, EMA cannot and does not warrant or guarantee that the information provided by these other sources is accurate or complete. The methodologies of this assessment are not intended to produce all inclusive or comprehensive results, but rather to provide Bank of America with information relating to the subject property.

1.4 Special Terms and Conditions

This report is intended for the sole use of Bank of America. Any party other than Bank of America who wishes to use this report to identify recognized environmental conditions in the process of making appropriate inquiry into the site or surrounding properties should notify EMA by executing the "Application of Authorization to Use" which follows this document. Based on the intended use of the report, EMA may require that additional work be performed and that an updated report be issued. Non-compliance with any of these requirements by Bank of America or anyone else will release EMA from any liability resulting from the use of this report by any unauthorized party.

1.5 Limitations

To a large extent, the conclusions reached during this Phase I ESA rely on information gathered from public and private sources. The lack of evidence regarding the presence of hazardous materials resulting from a reasonable and mutually agreed-upon scope of work does not guarantee the absence of such materials. It only indicates that no hazardous materials were found as a result of the investigation. The limited nature of the scope of work for a Phase I ESA precludes EMA from providing any warranty or guarantee regarding the absence of hazardous materials. The report is not a guarantee that chemical contamination does not exist at or beneath the site. This report does not specifically address the quality of groundwater beneath the site. The quality of groundwater can only be ascertained by physical testing. EMA has provided its best professional judgment and performed the agreed-upon services in accordance with standard and accepted consulting practices and procedures. The environmental conditions may vary considerably from those observed during this investigation. Should any additional data become available, these data should be reviewed by EMA and the conclusions presented herein modified as appropriate.

This report has been prepared in accordance with EMA's standard terms and conditions. No other warranty, expressed or implied, is made.

1.6 Limiting Conditions and Methodology Used

The environmental site assessment was performed in general accordance with the methodology set forth in ASTM Standard E-1527-13, Standard Practice for Environmental Site Assessment: Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Process. There were no limiting conditions encountered during the Phase I ESA.

1.7 User Reliance

All reports, both verbal and written, are for the benefit of Bank of America. This report has no other purpose and may not be relied upon by any other person or entity without the written consent of EMA.

2.0 SITE DESCRIPTION

2.1 Location and Legal Description

The address of the subject property is 2001-2005 Sacramento Street; 1024 Mateo Street; 2016 Bay Street, Los Angeles, California (herein referred as subject property). The subject property is located in a residential and industrial area in the City of Los Angeles, California. According to County of Los Angeles Assessor's Office, the assessor's parcel number (APN) of the subject property is 5166-011-021. All adjoining areas consist of commercial and industrial buildings.

2.2 Site and Vicinity Characteristics

The subject property is located in a commercial and industrial area in the City of Los Angeles, California. All adjoining areas consist of commercial and industrial buildings. Access to the subject property is from Bay Street to the north, Sacramento Street to eth south and Mateo Street to the west. Parking is located in the southern and eastern portions of the property. Northwestern portion of the property is occupied by an automotive repair and serviced building with associated offices while southeastern portion of the property is occupied by a storage shed. Storm drainage is accomplished via drains located at the property which direct surface water to storm drains in the surrounding streets.

2.3 Description of Structures

During the site reconnaissance, the subject property was observed to be occupied by MV Transportation Inc. MV Transportation, Inc. is engaged in the auto repair and service business for MTA buses. The subject property consists of a rectangular shaped parcel with a steel frame automotive repair and service building with associated offices in the northwestern portion and a steel frame storage shed in the southeastern portion of the property. The remaining portions of the site are utilized to park MTA busses. During the site reconnaissance, a drainage and a three compartment belowground clarifier were observed in the southeastern portion of the site. This area is utilized to wash vehicles. The wastewater generated from automotive washing operations is collected in the belowground clarifier and subsequently discharged into the city sewer. During the site reconnaissance, a large propane tank was observed in the middle of the property. Storm drainage is accomplished via drains located at the property which direct surface water to storm drains in the surrounding streets. No other significant structures and/or features were observed at the subject property.

2.4 <u>Current Use of the Property</u>

At the time of EMA's site visit, the subject property was observed to be occupied by MV Transportation Inc. MV Transportation, Inc. is engaged in the auto repair and service business for MTA buses. The subject property consists of a rectangular shaped parcel with a steel frame automotive repair and service building in the northwestern portion of

the subject property and a steel frame storage shed in the southeastern portion of the property. The remaining portions of the site are utilized to park MTA busses. During the site reconnaissance, a drainage and a three compartment clarifier were observed in the southeastern section of the site. This area is utilized to wash vehicles. The wastewater generated from automotive washing operations is collected in the belowground clarifier and subsequently discharged into the city sewer. During the site reconnaissance, a large propane tank was observed in the middle of the property. Storm drainage is accomplished via drains located at the property which direct surface water to storm drains in the surrounding streets. No other significant structures and/or features were observed at the subject property.

During the site reconnaissance, significant quantities of hazardous materials/ hazardous wastes (i.e. brake fluids, motor oil, transmission oil, coolants, batteries, waste oil, waste anti-freeze, etc.) were observed in the automotive repair/service building and the storage shed. The hazardous materials/hazardous wastes were stored in 55-gallon and 250-galolon containers and placed in to secondary containments. Significant stains were observed in the vicinity of hazardous materials/hazardous waste storage containers. The hazardous wastes generated at the site are picked up by Safety Kleen for proper disposal.

2.5 Current Adjacent Properties

The subject property is bounded by Bay Street to the north, beyond which are Casita International, Zacatecas Imports, and other industrial developments, LAZ- Express and other industrial developments to the east, Selected Textiles, NSM, Intaglio Inc. and other industrial developments to the south, and Sacramento Street to the west beyond which are CDL Scrap Metals, Pegasus Inc., and other industrial developments.

3.0 USER PROVIDED INFORMATION

Pursuant to ASTM E 1527-13, EMA requested the following site information from Mr. Dean Mariani (the Key Site Contact).

3.1 Title Records

EMA requested title records from the Key Site Contact; however, title records were not available at the site and were not provided to EMA for review.

3.2 Environmental Liens or Activity and Use Limitation

EMA requested information from the Key Site Contact regarding knowledge of environmental liens, activity and use limitations for the Property. The site contact was not aware of any environmental liens associated with the Property. In addition, the site contact had no knowledge of any use or activity limitations

3.3 Specialized Knowledge

EMA inquired with the Key Site Contact regarding any specialized knowledge of environmental conditions associated with the Property. The User and Key Site Manager were not aware of any environmental conditions associated with the Property.

3.4 Commonly Known or Reasonably Ascertainable Information

EMA inquired with the Key Site Contact regarding any commonly known or reasonably ascertainable information within the local community about the Property that is material to recognized environmental conditions in connection with the Property. The User and Key Site Manager were not aware of any information within the local community about the Property that is material to recognized environmental conditions in connection within the local community about the Property that is material to recognized environmental conditions in connection within the local community about the Property that is material to recognized environmental conditions in connection with the Property.

3.5 Valuation Reduction for Environmental Issues

EMA inquired with the Key Site Contact regarding any knowledge of reductions in property value due to environmental issues. The site contact was not aware of any valuation reductions associated with the Property.

3.6 Reason for Performing Phase I ESA

The purpose of this ESA was to identify existing or potential Recognized Environmental Conditions (as defined by ASTM Standard E-1527-13) in connection with the Property. This ESA was also performed to permit the User to satisfy one of the requirements to

qualify for the innocent landowner, contiguous property owner, or bona fide prospective purchaser limitations on scope of Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA) (42 U.S.C. §9601) liability (hereinafter, the "landowner liability protections," or "LLPs"). ASTM Standard E-1527-13 constitutes "all appropriate inquiry into the previous ownership and uses of the property consistent with good commercial or customary practice" as defined at 42 U.S.C. §9601(35) (B).

4.0 REGULATORY AGENCY RECORDS SEARCH

The purpose of Government database lists is to document the location of known Federal and State superfund sites or other known or potential hazardous waste sites within a oneeighth to one mile radius of the subject property. The review will also serve to indicate the possibility that the subject property may become a "border zone property@, defined as a property located within 2000 feet of a State-designated hazardous waste property.

EMA obtained a Government record report prepared by BBL of Solana Beach, California. This computer generated report is attached to this preliminary environmental site assessment report as Appendix B and consists of Government listed properties within a one-eighth to one-mile radius of the subject property which store and use hazardous materials or have had a release of hazardous materials to soil or groundwater. The study area for this preliminary environmental site assessment includes a one-eighth to one mile radius for Federal, State and local database sources to meet the ASTM standards.

Appendix B includes a complete copy of the regulatory agency database search report generated by BBL for select agency databases only. The accuracy of the results of the report in Appendix B is constrained by the limits of care and professional skill exercised by the EMA's sub-consultant. For completeness and quality control, additional agency records were investigated personally by EMA personnel.

EMA makes no claims as to the completeness or accuracy of the referenced sources. BBL's review of these records can be only as current as their listings, and may not represent the entire sum of known or potential hazardous waste of contaminated sites.

EMA reviewed the following agency lists to evaluate whether there are sites within the study area that may pose potential environmental concerns relative to the site.

4.1 Federal Sources

4.1.1 National Priority List

The National Priorities List (NPL) is the United States Environmental Protection Agency's (USEPA) list of prioritized Superfund sites with significant risk to human health and the environment. These sites receive remedial funding under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Conservation and Liability Act (CERCLA).

No properties within a one mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.1.2 <u>Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act</u> <u>Information System</u>

United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Information System (CERCLIS) January 9, 1992 - CERCLIS provides information for businesses or properties that are on or being considered for the federal Superfund Program according to the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA). Under this program, a business or property is identified and a preliminary assessment is performed to assess whether the site shall become a federal Superfund site.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Six sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property

4.1.3 CERCLIS-NFRAP

As of February 1995, CERCLIS sites designated ANo Further Remedial Action Planned@ (NFRAP) have been removed from CERCLIS. NFRAP sites may be sites where, following an investigation, no contamination was found, contamination was removed quickly without the need for the site to be placed on the NPL, or the contamination was not serious enough to require Federal Superfund action or NPL consideration.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Six sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property

4.1.4 Federal Facilities (FEDFAC)

As part of the CERCLA program, federal facilities with known or suspected environmental problems, the Federal Facilities Hazardous Waste Compliance Docket is tracked separately to comply with a Federal Court order.

No properties within a one mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.1.5 Federal ERNS list

The Emergency Response Notification System (ERNS) is a national database used to collect information on reported accidental releases of oil and hazardous substances. The database contains information from spill reports made to federal authorities including the EPA, the US Coast Guard, the National Response Center and the Department of Transportation.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Seventeen sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.1.6 Federal RCRA TSD facilities list

The EPA's Resources Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) Program identifies and tracks hazardous waste from the point of generation to the point of disposal. The RCRA Facilities database is a compilation by the EPA of reporting facilities that generate, transport, treat, store or dispose of hazardous waste.

No properties within a one mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.1.7 Federal RCRA small& Large Generators list

The EPA's Resources Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) Program identifies small hazardous waste generator sites, who generate less than 100 kg/month of non-acutely hazardous waste and large hazardous waste generator sites, who generate more than 100 kg/month of non-acutely hazardous waste. The RCRA Facilities database is a compilation by the EPA of reporting facilities that generate hazardous waste.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Eighty-three sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.1.8 EPA CORRACTS

The EPA maintains this database of RCRA facilities which are undergoing "corrective action". A "corrective action order" is issued pursuant to RCRA section 3008 (h) when there has been a release of hazardous waste or constituents into the environment from RCRA facility. Corrective actions may be required beyond the facility's boundary and can be required regardless of when the release occurred, even if it predates RCRA.

The subject property is not listed on this database. One site is listed on this database. This site is not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, this site is not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property

4.1.9 <u>Site Enforcement Systems (SETS)</u>

When expanding Superfund money at a CERCLA site, EPA must conduct a search to identify parties that with potential financial responsibility for remediation of uncontrolled hazardous wastes sites. EPA regional Superfund Waste Management Staff issue a notice to the potentially responsible party (PRP). The status field contains the EPA ID number and name of the site where the actual pollution occurred.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Five sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.1.10 Enforcement Docket System (DO)

DOCKET tracks civil judicial cases against environmental polluters, while CDETS processes court settlements, called consent decrees.

No properties within a one-half mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.1.11 Criminal Docket System (C-DOCKET)

The Criminal Docket System is a comprehensive automated system for tracking criminal enforcement actions. C-Docket handles data for all environmental status and tracks enforcement from the initial stage of investigations through conclusion.

No properties within a one-half mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.1.12 Federal Enforcement Dockets

The US EPA, office of Enforcement, maintains a list of sites under enforcement by the US EPA.

No properties within a one mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.1.13 Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act (SARA)

Title III of the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act, Section 313, also known as Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986 requires owners or operators of facilities with more than 10 employees and are listed under Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Codes 20 through 39 to report the manufacturing, processing or use of more than a threshold of certain chemical or chemical categories listed under section 313. This data base is also known as Toxic Release Information System (TRIS).

The subject property is not listed on this database. Six sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.1.14 Nuclear Regulatory Commission Licenses (NC)

The Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards has been mandated to protect the public health and safety, the common defense and security, and the environment by licensing, inspection and environmental impact assessment for all nuclear facilities and activities and for the import and export of special nuclear material.

No properties within a one-half mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.1.15 PCB Waste Handler Database (PCB)

The US EPA tracks generators, transporters, commercial stores and/or brokers and disposers of PCBs in accordance with the Toxic Substance Control Act.

The subject property is not listed on this database. One site is listed on this database. This site is not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, this site is not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property

4.1.16 Permit Compliance System (PCS)

PCS is a database which contains data on NPDES permit holding facilities. PCS was developed by The US EPA to meet the information need of the NPDES program under the Clean Water Act. PCS tracks permit, compliance, and enforcement states of NPDES facilities.

No properties within a one-half mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.1.17 AIRS Facility System (AFS)

AFS contains emissions and compliance data on air pollution point sources tracked by USEPA and State and Local environmental agencies.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Eight sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.1.18 Section Seven Tracking System (SSTS)

SSTS evolved from the FIFRA and TSCA Enforcement System. SSTS tracks the registration of all pesticide producing establishments and tracks annually the types and amounts of pesticides, active ingredients, and devices that are produced, sold or distributed each year.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Three sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.1.19 FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System (FIFRA)

NCDB supports implementation of the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Control Act (FIFRA) and the Toxic Substance Control Act (TSCA).

The subject property is not listed on this database. Four sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.1.20 Federal Facilities Information System (FFIS)

Federal Facilities Information System (FFIS) contains a list of all Treatment Storage and Disposal Facilities owned and operated by federal agencies.

No properties within a one-half mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.1.21 Chemicals in Commerce Information System (CICIS)

CICIS contains an inventory of chemicals manufactured in commerce or imported for Toxic Substance Control Act regulated commercial purposes. CICIS allow EPA to maintain a comprehensive listing of over 70,000 chemical substances that are manufactured or imported and are regulated under TSCA.

The subject property is not listed on this database. One site is listed on this database. This site is not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the

distance and status, this site is not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property

4.1.22 EPA Facility Index System (FINDS)

The US EPA maintains an index system of all facilities which are regulated or have been assigned an identification number for other purposes.

The subject property is not listed on this database. One site is listed on this database. These sites is not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, this site is not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.1.23 Hazardous Material Incident Report System (HMIRS)

The Hazardous Material Report Incident Subsystem HMIRS of the Research and Special Programs Administration (RSPA) Hazardous Materials Information System was established in 1971 to fulfill the requirements of the Federal hazardous material transportation law. Part 171 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations (49 CFR) contains the incident reporting requirements of carriers of hazardous materials. An unintentional release of hazardous materials meeting the criteria set forth in Section 171.16, 49 CFR, must be reported on DOT Form 5800.1. The data from the reports received are subsequently entered in the HAZMAT database.

The subject property is not listed on this database.

4.2 <u>California State Sources</u>

4.2.1 State Response Sites

The Site Mitigation and Brownfield Reuse Database (SMBRD) identify certain potential hazardous waste sites. These are confirmed release sites where DTSC is involved in remediation, either in a lead or oversight capacity and deemed generally high-priority and high potential risk.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Eight sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.2.2 Cal Sites - No Further Action

This section includes the sites on the Calsite list, which have been flagged for no further action by the California Environmental Protection Agency, Department of Toxics Substance Control (DTSC) in accordance with Section 25359.6 of the California Health and Safety Code.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Twenty sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.2.3. School Property Evaluation Program

This category of The Site Mitigation and Brownfield Reuse Program Database contains proposed and existing school sites that are being evaluated by DTSC for possible hazardous materials contamination. In some cases, these properties may be listed in the Cal-Sites category depending on the level of threat to public health and safety or the environment they pose.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Three sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.2.4 Voluntary Clean Up Program

This category contains low threat level properties with either confirmed or unconfirmed releases and the project proponents have requested that DTSC oversee investigation and/or cleanup activities and have agreed to provide coverage for DTSC=s costs.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Eight sites are listed on this database. These sites is not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.2.5 Properties Needing Further Evaluation

This category of The Site Mitigation and Brownfields Reuse Program Database contains properties that are suspected of being contaminated. These are unconfirmed contaminated properties that need to be assessed using the PEA process.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Four sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.2.6Leaking Underground Storage Tanks

The leaking underground storage tanks (LUST) list in the City of Los Angeles is maintained by the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) City of Los Angeles Fire Department. The LUST list is a compilation of all investigations conducted by the RWQCB in response to reports of hazardous materials leaking from USTs.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Fifty-nine sites are listed on this database. Based on the distance and status, the above listed LUST sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the property.

4.2.7 Solid Waste Information System (SWIS)

This list is maintained by the California Integrated Waste Management Board. In 1977, this list was created to identify active and inactive sanitary landfills, transfer stations, and disposal facilities.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Seven sites are listed on this database. These sites is not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.2.8 Underground Storage Tank Registrations Database

The California State Water Regional Control Board, Office of Underground Storage Tanks maintains an inventory of registered underground storage tanks.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Seventy-six sites are listed on this database. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.2.9 Hazardous Waste and Substance Site List (CORTESE List)

The CORTESE List is compiled by the California State Office of Planning and Research and provides information concerning identified hazardous waste/substance sites within the State of California. The CORTESE List contains the following information:

- Records that have been compiled by the CAL-EPA DTSC. These are abandoned hazardous waste sites.
- Records that have been compiled by the Environmental Health Division of Cal EPA. These sites contain contaminated public drinking water wells that serve less than 200 connections (small Wells) and more than 200 connections (large wells).
- Sites included under the Hazardous Substance Cleanup Bond Act, pursuant to Section 25356 of the California Health and Safety Code.
- Records compiled by the State Water Resources Control Board (WRCB). These are the sites of reported UST leaks that have been investigated by the WRCB.
- Records compiled by the California Waste Management Board. These are solid waste disposal facilities from which there is a known migration of hazardous wastes.

No properties within a one mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.2.10 Hazardous Waste Information System

The DTSC maintains a database keeping track of the movement and disposal of hazardous waste. The data is used to support the Tanner legislation, AB 2948.

The subject property is listed on this database. In addition, two hundred and twenty-one additional sites are listed on this database. The subject property tenants, Consolidated Fibers and MV Transportation, are listed on this database. The database report indicated that Consolidated Fibers and MV Transportation generated waste oil and unspecified organic liquid mixtures at the site. It should be noted that potential for environmental concern is not necessarily present simply because a property is listed on this database. HWIS does not track violators and the presence of a facility on the HWIS database does not necessarily indicate that an environmental concern exists at that facility. The presence of these facilities on the HWIS database is not, in itself, considered to represent an environmental concern.

4.2.11 Toxic Release

The California Regional Water Quality Control Boards for local Department of Health Services keeps track of toxic releases to the environment. These lists are known as Unauthorized Release, Spill, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanups, Non-Tank Release, Toxics List or similar, depending on the local agency.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Twenty-five sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the property.

4.2.12 Toxic Pits

The California Water Quality Control Board, Division of Loan Grants maintains an inventory of sites with toxic pits in the state.

No properties within a one mile radius, including the subject property, appear on this list.

4.2.13 Solid Waste Assessment Test

This program, provided for under the Calderon legislation, requires that disposal sites with more than 50,000 cubic yards of waste provide sufficient information to the regional water quality control board to determine whether or not the site has discharged hazardous substances which will impact the environment.

The subject property is not listed on this database. Two sites are listed on this database. These sites are not located in the immediate vicinity of the subject property. Based on the distance and status, these sites are not considered a recognized environmental condition to the subject property.

4.3 Local Sources

•

4.3.1 City of Los Angeles Department of Building and Safety

Records from the City of Los Angeles Department of Building and Safety (CLADBS) were reviewed for evidence indicating the developmental history of the subject property, and for the presence of documentation relative to underground storage tanks. Following is a summary of building records available at the CLABSD:

2001- Sacramento Street

| 6/9/1941 | Building permit for New Building. |
|------------|--|
| 6/9/1941 | Purpose of building is a Wash Rack and Service Station |
| 8/31/1941 | Certificate of Completion for Auto Service Station (Wash Rack Completion). |
| 12/16/1949 | Building Permit for New Building. |
| 12/16/1949 | Application to Erect New building. Purpose of building indicated as Grease Pit. Owner named is Standard oil. |
| 5/28/1952 | Building Permit for New Building |
| 9/03/1952 | Certificate of Occupancy, 1 Story, Type IIIA, 10x10 Restroom addition to existing 10 X 20 office. G-1 Occupancy. |
| 2/25/1959 | Present use is a Wash Rack, Size is 20 X 30, clarifier pit and wash tank. |
| 9/10/1970 | Building permit for new building. |
| 9/30/1970 | Application for sign permit. Exchange sign on existing column and footage (same area). The size of the sign is indicated as 5' X 36' X 25' feet high. Owner named is Standard Oil. |
| 9/10/1972 | Building permit. |
| 8/22/1973 | Grading permit. |
| 9/19/1973 | Grading Completion File. |
| 9/25/1973 | Engineers Certificate of Compliance for compacted earth fills. Description of Grading, Classification of the soil and tabulation of |

the test results. Owner named is Standard Oil.

- 10/7/1973 Approval granted for compacted fill as described in the compaction report dated 09/19/1973. Owner named is Standard Oil.
- 10/02/1973 Grading Completion File.
- 8/22/1975 Application for Grading Permit and for Grading Certificate. Purpose of grading was for the storage tank backfill. Owner named is Standard Oil. Permit #76629.
- 8/22/1975 Application filed to demolish/Handwreck. The present use of building is indicated as a service station. The plot plan provided indicated presence of tanks in the southeastern portion of the site. Owner named is Standard oil. Permit #76630.
- 8/22/1975 Application filed to demolish/Handwreck. Present use of the building is indicated as canopy (service station). Owner named is Standard Oil. Permit #76631.
- 8/22/1975 Application filed to demolish/Handwreck. Present use of the building is for restrooms. Owner named is Standard Oil. Permit #76632.
- 8/22/1975 Application filed to demolish/Handwreck. Present use of building is indicated as a Tire Shop. Owner named is Standard Oil. Permit #76633.
- 8/22/1975 Application to Add-Alter-Repair-Demolish and for Certificate of Occupancy. Present use of building indicated is a Storeroom. Demolish Handwreck. Owner named is Standard Oil. Permit #76634.

2005- Sacramento Street

- 7/01/1914 Building permit.
- 7/01/1914 Mechanical permit.
- 6/17/1925 Building permit and application to alter, repair and demolish. Single family dwelling. Owner indicated as Charles Lsntz.
- 6/29/1926 Application to alter, repair and demolish. General repairs, building moved, new concrete foundation and connect plumbing, gas and sewer line. Owner indicated as Charles Lsntz.

1024 Mateo Street

3/13/1905 Application to Build, 4 Room 1 Story residence.

- 3/13/1905 Building permit.
- 7/01/1914 Building permit.
- 7/01/1914 Mechanical permit and application for installation of plumbing, Sewer or cesspool, Gas fitting and old gas pipe line inspection.
- 12/23/1974 Affidavit for Lot tie.

2016 Bay Street

- 12/02/1949 Application to alter, repair, or demolish and for a Certificate of Occupancy.
- 12/4/1975 Certificate of Occupancy. 1 Story, Type V, 80'x150' warehouse building. 24 required parking spaces provided.
- 3/24/1975 Application to Add-Alter-Repair-Demolish and for Certificate of Occupancy. Present use of the building indicated as a Truck Scale. Owner named is Consolidated Fiber, Inc.
- 4/04/1975 Application for Grading Permit and for Grading Certificate. Owner named is Consolidated Fiber, Inc.
- 9/10/1980 Certificate of Occupancy.
- 8/12/1981 Certificate of Occupancy.
- 4/01/1982 Certificate of Occupancy.
- 6/16/1983 Certificate of Occupancy. Use of land for junk yard. Storage yard only.
- 2/02/1984 Certificate of Occupancy. Use of land for junk yard.
- 4/05/1985 Certificate of Occupancy. Use of land for junk yard. Storage only.
- 3/08/1994 Application filed for the demolition of loading dock. Owner is indicated Stacey Construction Inc.

- 12/18/2006 Application for building permit and Certificate of Occupancy. Install New 68' X 11'6 X 6" Concrete pad for L.P.G tank.
- 2/09/2012 Certificate of Occupancy. Use of land for junk yard.

Copies of the building department records are presented in Appendix C.

4.3.2 City of Los Angeles Fire Department

Records from the City of Los Angeles Department Fire Department (CLAFD) were requested for review for evidence indicating the presence of Underground Storage Tanks (USTs) and for the use of hazardous materials. The records were not available at the time this report was prepared. Upon availability of records, if any, the report will be updated as deemed necessary.

4.3.3 County of Los Angeles Department of Public Health

Records from the County of Los Angeles Department of Public Health were requested for review for the presence of Underground Storage Tanks (USTs) and for the use of hazardous materials. The records were not available at the time this report was prepared. Upon availability of records, if any, the report will be updated as deemed necessary.

4.3.4 County of Los Angeles Department of Public Works

Records from the County of Los Angeles Department of Public Works were requested for review for the presence of Underground Storage Tanks (USTs) and for the use of hazardous materials. The records were not available at the time this report was prepared. Upon availability of records, if any, the report will be updated as deemed necessary.

4.3.5 South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD)

A file review was conducted at the South Coast Air Quality Management District. No records were found for the subject property.

4.3.6 Department of Toxic Substances Control

Records from the Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) were reviewed. No records for the hazardous materials and/or USTs were found for the subject property.

4.3.7 California Regional Quality Control Board- Los Angeles Region

Records from the California Regional Quality Control Board - Los Angeles Region were reviewed No records for the hazardous materials and/or USTs were found for the subject property.

5.0 ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING

5.1 Geology and Hydrogeology

The geologic Map of California indicated that the geology of the area within the subject site consist of alluvial fill. The U.S. Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation Service, Report and General Soil Map of Los Angeles County indicate that the soil in the area defined as Hanford association, 2 to 5 percent slopes. The Hanford soils are over 60 inches deep, are well drained, and have moderately rapid subsoil permeability. They have pale-brown coarse sandy loam surface layers about 8 inches thick underlain by light yellowish-brown coarse sandy loam and gravely loamy coarse sand substratum.

Hydrologically, the site lies within the Los Angeles Forebay Area of the Central Groundwater Basin (CDWR, 1961). Depth to eth first groundwater is estimated approximately 120 feet belowground surface (CDWR, 1961).

6.0 HISTORICAL SITE USAGE

Based on the historical documents, the subject property has been occupied by the current industrial buildings since early 1970's. Prior to the current development, the subject property was occupied by single family dwelling and auto service station Wash Rack.

6.1 <u>Aerial Photographs</u>

Historical and current usage of the subject property and adjacent areas was investigated by reviewing aerial photographs provided by the BBL.

The historical aerial photographs available from 1947 to Present were reviewed. Following is a description of aerial photographs.

- Recent A building structure appears in the northwestern portion of the property. The propane tank observed in the middle of the property during site reconnaissance is visible in the aerial photographs. Several large vehicles are present at the subject property. Surrounding areas are fully developed.
- 5/31/1994 A building structure appears in the northwestern portion of the property. The propane tank is visible in the middle of the property. Surrounding areas are fully developed.
- 5/26/1995 A building structure appears in the northwestern portion of the property. The propane tank is visible in the middle of the property. Surrounding areas are fully developed.
- 10/20/1980 A building structure appears in the northwestern portion of the property. The canopies are visible in the southwestern portion of the site. The canopies appear to be related to the service station previously operated at the site as noted in the building department records. Surrounding areas are fully developed.
- 10/31/1979 A building structure appears in the northwestern portion of the property. A structure also appears in the southern section of the property. Surrounding areas are developed.
- 3/17/1973 Aerial photo is not legible.
- 9/13/1968 Some structures appear on the subject property. Vehicles are visible at the site. Surrounding areas are fully developed.

Copies of the aerial photographs are presented in Appendix D.

6.2 Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps

These maps were prepared for fire insurance underwriting purposes, and describe the construction and relative fire-resistance of buildings, depict the locations of fire-prevention devices, gasoline storage tanks, water lines, cistern, and any potentially flammable materials in the site vicinity over time. A search of Sanborn fire insurance maps conducted by BBL indicated that no mapping was done for the subject area.

| Date | Description |
|-----------|--|
| 1900 | Dwellings are present at the subject property. |
| July 1953 | An office in the northwestern corner, gas and oil activity in the south- western portion, a restaurant in the west-central portion and an office in the in the middle of the property are present. The office noted in the northwestern corner is associated with Transfer Cos. Truck Yard. |
| July 1958 | Same as in July 1953. |
| July 1961 | Gas and oil activities appear in the northwestern, middle and south- central portions of the property. Auto Laundry is present in the southeastern portion of the property. |

Copies of eth sanborn maps are presented in Appendix E.

6.3 <u>City Directories Records</u>

City Directories have been published for many cities and towns across the United States since the 18th Century. Originally a list of town residents, the City Directory became a tool for locating individuals and businesses in a particular urban or suburban area. For each address within an area, City Directories list the name of each resident or, if a business operates from that address, the name and the type of business. This historic overview of occupants of a given property is a valuable tool for companies involved in assessing the historic prior use of any resident or commercial property.

BBL performed the City Directories search. The following is the result of City Directory Search:

2015

1024 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2020 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST No Commercial Listings SELECTED TEXTILES GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings MORTON SCRAP METAL PLAYETHICS MO SEWING INC CASITA INTERNATIONAL

| 931 MATEO ST | PLUMA IMPORT INC | | |
|--|--|--|--|
| Source: | Combo1 | | |
| 014 | | | |
| 1024 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2020 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST | No Commercial Listings SELECTED TEXTILES GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings MORTON SCRAP METAL ISY INC PLAYETHICS | | |
| 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST 931 MATEO ST | STONE NARA MO SEWING INC CASITA INTERNATIONAL PLUMA IMPORT INC | | |
| Source: | Combo1 | | |
| 012 | | | |
| 1024 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2020 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings SELECTED TEXTILES GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings MORTON SCRAP METAL ISY INC BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC LITTLE SUN INC MO SEWING INC BX3USA INC CASITA INTERNATIONAL | | |
| 931 MATEO ST | PLUMA IMPORTING | | |
| Source: | Combo1 | | |
| 010 | | | |
| 1024 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2020 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST 931 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings SELECTED TEXTILES GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings MORTON SCRAP METAL ISY INC GIFTWAY INC BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC MO SEWING INC BX3USA INC CASITA INTERNATIONAL OPTIMA TRADING CO PLUMA IMPORT INC | | |
| Source: | Combo1 | | |
| 008 | | | |
| 1024 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2020 SACRAMENTO ST 2022 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings SELECTED TEXTILES GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings MORTON SCRAP METAL INTAGLIO ISY INC BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC M O SEWING INC CASITA INTERNACIONAL | | |

ł

| 931 MATEO ST | | |
|---|--|--|
| Source: | Combo1 | |
| 2006 | | |
| 1024 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2020 SACRAMENTO ST 2022 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST | No Commercial Listings GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings MORTON SCRAP METAL INTAGLIO ISY INC TEX VISION | |
| 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST 931 MATEO ST | GIFTWAY BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC CASITA INTERNACIONAL KPP ZIPPER OPTIMA TRADING CO PLUMA IMPORT INC | |
| Source: | Combo1 | |
| 2004 | | |
| 1024 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2020 SACRAMENTO ST 2022 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 931 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings T A GREENE CO GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings MORTON SCRAP METAL INTAGLIO GIFTWAY BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC TEX VISION PLUMA IMPORT INC | |
| Source: | Combo1 | |
| 2000 | | |
| 1024 MATEO ST 1038 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2030 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 2038 SACRAMENTO ST 2039 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST 931 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings C W PRODUCE T A GREENE CO GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings ASALING IMPORT & EXPORT INC U & I KNIT BLUE LINE CUTTING SVC MODA PRODUCTION GOLDEN PLATING CORP KIDSSMILE IMPORT | |
| Source: | Combo1 | |
| 1998 | | |
| 1024 MATEO ST 1038 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2014 SACRAMENTO ST 2022 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST 931 MATEO ST | No Commercial Listings C W PRODUCE T A GREENE CO GELTMAN INDUSTRIES No Commercial Listings FLORES PRODUCE FULL CIRCLE SPORTSWEAR BEVERLY EMBROIDERY INC GOLDEN PLATING CORP KIDSSMILE IMPORT | |
| Source: | Combo1 | |

k
1994

1005 MATEO ST 1024 MATEO ST 1100 MATEO ST 1901 SACRAMENTO ST

2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2014 SACRAMENTO ST 2036 SACRAMENTO ST 930 MATEO ST

Source:

Combo1

GELTMAN REZEX CORP

1990

1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST No Commercial Listings No Commercial Listings

SUMMIT PULP AND PAPER INC

No Commercial Listings

No Commercial Listings

MEDIA LITHOGRAPHICS INC

GOLDEN PLATING CORP

FLORES PRODUCE

T A GREENE CO INC

1985

1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST No Commercial Listings No Commercial Listings CONSOLIDTAED FIBRES-SETTSU INC

1980

1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST No Commercial Listings No Commercial Listings CONSOLIDTAED FIBRES-SETTSU INC

1976

1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST No Commercial Listings No Commercial Listings No Listings

1971

1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST No Commercial Listings FENTONS R TR No Listings

1961

1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST No Commercial Listings FENTONS R TR No Listings

1956

1024 MATEO ST 2001 SACRAMENTO ST 2016 BAY ST No Commercial Listings FENTONS R TR No Listings

A summary of city directories search is presented in Appendix F.

6.4 <u>Historical Topographic Maps</u>

EMA obtained historical topographic map from topozone.com.

Date:1972Description:No production wells or other significant surface features are
as depicted as present on the USGS map.

6.5 Prior Assessment Reports

Although requested, no previously prepared environmental reports such as Phase I or II Environmental Site Assessments, lead-based paint surveys, lead-in-water surveys, asbestos surveys or geotechnical reports prepared by other consultants were provided for EMA's review.

6.6 Zoning/Land Use Records

Records of the local government were reviewed to determine current and historical uses of the subject property permitted by the local government. According to the City Los Angeles Building Department, the subject property is zoned C-2 commercial.

6.7 <u>Recorded Land Title Records</u>

Review of a 50-year chain of title was not included in the scope of the assessment. A title report was requested from the Client, but was not received prior to issuance of this report. As a result, the information required for review of recorded land title records is considered not to be readily ascertainable.

6.8 Additional Historical Record Sources

Historical use of the Property was researched using standard historical sources. No other research was conducted or deemed necessary for this assessment

6.9 <u>Historical Use Information on Adjoining Properties</u>

A review of the historical records revealed that the surrounding areas were used for commercial and industrial purposes in the past.

6.10 Data Failure

The objective of historical research is to develop a history of the previous uses of the subject property and surrounding area, in order to help identify the likelihood release of hazardous substances as a result of past activities. The agreed scope of work requires the assessor to attempt to identify use of the Property at 5-year intervals from 1940 to the present, or, if the Property was already developed in 1940, to the first date of development, but recognizes that data failure frequently occurs, making this impossible. When data failure occurs, ASTM

E 1527-13 requires the assessor to document the data failure and assess the potential impact on the ability of the EP to identify recognized environmental conditions.

Information developed in the course of this assessment is adequate to satisfy the requirements of the scope of assessment. No related data failure has been identified.

7.0 SITE RECONNAISSANCE

On June 25, 2015, EMA personnel conducted an inspection of the site located at 2001-2005 Sacramento Street, 1024 Mateo Street, and 2016 Bay Street, Los Angeles, California, to assess the current on-site activities that may pose potential impact to the subsurface conditions of the subject site.

During the site visit, EMA personnel inspected the subject site regarding potential environmental concerns including the presence of the UST's or AST's, spray booths, pits, clarifiers, and/or sumps, quantities and types of hazardous/toxic materials and wastes stored, treated, used, generated, or disposed of as part of present or previous tenants business activities, unusual stains or odors, and knowledge of hazardous material spills on the subject site. The subject site was inspected for evidence of any staining and/or spills.

Environmental considerations associated with the site and the study area is discussed in the following sections.

7.1 Aboveground Storage Tanks

During the site reconnaissance, with the exception of a large propane tank, no other aboveground fuel storage tanks were observed on the subject property. No environmental concerns were noted in the vicinity of propane tank.

7.2 Underground Storage Tanks

During the site reconnaissance, manways, vent pipes, fill connections, concrete pads and saw cuts were not observed in the paved areas of the site.

7.3 <u>Water and Wastewater</u>

During the site reconnaissance, a drainage and a three compartment clarifier were observed in the southeastern section of the site. This area is utilized to wash vehicles. The wastewater generated from automotive washing operations is collected in the below ground clarifier and subsequently discharged into the city sewer via this clarifier.

7.4 <u>Hazardous Materials/Wastes</u>

During the site reconnaissance, significant quantities of hazardous materials/ hazardous wastes (i.e. brake fluids, motor oil, transmission oil, coolants, batteries, waste oil, waste anti-freeze, etc.) were observed in the automotive repair/service building and the storage shed. The hazardous materials/hazardous wastes were stored in 55-gallon and 250-gallon containers and placed in to secondary containments. Significant stains were observed in the vicinity of hazardous materials/hazardous waste storage containers. The hazardous wastes generated at the site are picked up by Safety Kleen for proper disposal.

7.5 <u>Air Emissions</u>

No air emission sources requiring permits were observed at the subject property during the site reconnaissance.

7.6 <u>PCBs</u>

In general, all PCB-designated transformers were required to be replaced with non-PCBdesignated transformers when PCBs were designated as a carcinogen by the EPA in 1977. Transformers are currently classified as PCB-containing if their cooling oils contain greater than 50 milligrams per liter (ppm) total PCBs.

During the site reconnaissance, no pad-mounted electrical transformer were observed on the subject property.

7.7 Solid Waste

Solid waste on the subject property is collected in a 10-cubic yard dumpsters situated in the storage shed. The dumpsters were noted to contain miscellaneous cardboard at the time of the Property reconnaissance and no indication of potentially hazardous material disposal was noted during EMA's reconnaissance.

7.8 Asbestos Containing Materials (ACMs)

The potential for the presence of friable ACM was evaluated based on the age of the improvements, dates of renovation and other relevant information. Appendix G of the USEPA Guidance Document: Managing Asbestos in Place - A Building Owner's Guide to Operations and Maintenance Programs for Asbestos-Containing Materials (the Green Book) was used as a guide in identifying suspect materials and the definition of suspect ACM and presumed asbestos containing material is taken from 29 CRF Parts 1910, et al. Occupational Exposure to Asbestos; Final Rule. It should be noted that asbestos may still be utilized in some non-friable products, such as sheet vinyl flooring, vinyl floor tiles, floor tile mastic, joint compound, asbestos-cement board and roofing materials, as these materials may still be manufactured and installed in the United States. The level of the preliminary evaluation performed was not designed to comply with the survey requirements of the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (AHERA), 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 763, National Emission Standard for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) 40 CFR 61, Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) 29 CFR Part 1926.1101, or other local, state or federal regulations, but has been conducted per accepted industry practices to satisfy the scope of work of the rating agencies and/or lenders. A finding in this report of "ACM is not a significant concern" or "No significant asbestos was identified" should not be interpreted as "the building is asbestos free".

Based on the original date of construction (prior to 1981) construction materials may contain asbestos and the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) regulation 29 CFR 1926.1101, requires certain construction materials to be presumed to contain asbestos, for purposes of this regulation. All thermal system insulation (TSI) and surfacing material that are present in a building constructed prior to 1982 and have not been appropriately tested are presumed asbestos containing material (PACM). No asbestos sampling was conducted as part of this assignment.

7.9 <u>Pesticides</u>

No visual evidence of pesticides use on the property was observed during the site reconnaissance. A review of the historical aerial photographs did not reveal the presence of any agricultural activities and/or nursery at the subject site.

7.10 <u>Radon</u>

High radon readings are typically found and tested in areas of geologic activity, and in cold-weather climates where structures have inadequate ventilation and below grade construction. Radon levels of 4 picocuries per liter (pCi/L) or greater are considered significant readings.

The US EPA has prepared a map to assist National, State, and local organizations to target their resources and to implement radon-resistant building codes. The map divides the country into three Radon Zones, Zone 1 being those areas with the average predicted indoor radon concentration in residential dwellings exceeding the EPA Action limit of 4.0 picoCuries per Liter (pCi/L). It is important to note that the EPA has found homes with elevated levels of radon in all three zones, and the EPA recommends site specific testing in order to determine radon levels at a specific location. However, the map does give a valuable indication of the propensity of radon gas accumulation in structures. Review of the EPA Map of Radon Zones places the Property in Zone 2, where average predicted radon levels are between 2.0 and 4.0 pCi/L.

7.11 Wetland

There are no wetlands on the subject property or within the vicinity of the subject property. The review of aerial photographs, topographic maps and personal interviews with local agencies staff did not indicate the presence of wetlands site on the subject property, nor in the vicinity of the subject site.

7.12 Oil Wells

California Division of Oil and Gas (DOG) maps and records were researched for data regarding the presence of petroleum-producing properties and/or "wildcat" oil or gas wells in the site vicinity. No oil and gas wells were identified on the subject site.

7.13 Landfills

4

There are no landfills on the subject property or within the vicinity of the subject property. A review of historical aerial photographs, topographic maps, personal interviews with local agencies staff and government database report did not indicate the presence of landfills site on the subject property, nor in the vicinity of the subject site.

8.0 INTERVIEWS

8.1 Interviews with Owner

The owner was not available for an interview at the time of the site inspection.

8.2 Interviews with Site Manager

The Key Site Contact, Mr. Dean Mariani, was available for an interview at the time of the site inspection.

8.3 Interviews with Occupants

Property occupants were available for interview at the time of site inspection.

8.4 Interviews with Local Government Offices

City of Los Angeles Building and Safety Department

City of Los Angeles Fire Department

County of Los Angeles Department of Public Health

County of Los Angeles Department of Public Works

South Coast Air Quality Management District

California Regional Water Quality Control Board

9.0 FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

9.1 Findings

A recognized environmental condition (REC) refers to the presence or likely presence of any hazardous substances or petroleum products in, on, or at a property: due to release to the environment; under conditions indicative of a release to the environment; or under conditions that pose a material threat of a future release to the environment. The following was identified during the course of this assessment:

 EMA identified recognized environmental conditions in connection with the property during the course of this assessment. The recognized environmental conditions included drainage/belowground clarifier associated with auto washing operations at the site. In addition, significant stains were observed in the vicinity of hazardous materials/hazardous wastes storage areas at the site.

A controlled recognized environmental condition (CREC) refers to a REC resulting from a past release of hazardous substances or petroleum products that has been addressed to the satisfaction of the applicable regulatory authority, with hazardous substances or petroleum products allowed to remain in place subject to the implementation of required controls. The following was identified during the course of this assessment:

• EMA did not identify any controlled recognized environmental conditions during the course of this assessment.

A *historical recognized environmental condition (HREC)* refers to a past release of any hazardous substances or petroleum products that has occurred in connection with the property and has been addressed to the satisfaction of the applicable regulatory authority or meeting unrestricted use criteria established by a regulatory authority, without subjecting the property to any required controls. The following was identified during the course of this assessment:

 EMA identified historical recognized environmental conditions during the course of this assessment. The recognized environmental conditions included operation of a service station, Wash Rack with a clarifier, grease pit and a junk yard at the site in the past. The owner of the service station was indicated Standard Oil Company. A further review of records indicated that an application for grading permit for the storage tank backfill was filed on August 22, 1975. It is unknown whether the tank(s) were abandoned in-place by backfilling. It is unknown how many tanks were installed/removed and/or abandoned in-place associated with the former auto service station owned by Standard Oil Company at the site.

CONCLUSIONS, OPINIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

EMA has performed a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment in conformance with the scope and limitations of ASTM Practice E1527-13 of 2001-2005 Sacramento Street; 1024 Mateo Street; 2015 Bay Street, Los Angeles, Los Angeles County, California (the "subject property"). Any exceptions to, or deletions from, this practice are described in Section 1.5 of this report. This assessment has revealed evidence of recognized environmental conditions in connection with the property. Based on the conclusions, EMA recommends further investigation at the site. Further investigation should be conducted in eth following potential areas of concern:

- Conduct a geophysical survey to determine presence and/or absence of underground storage tanks at the site.
- Conduct subsurface investigation (i.e. sampling and laboratory analyses, etc.) in the vicinity of former underground storage tanks, former and current clarifiers, grease pit, and hazardous materials/hazardous wastes storage areas, etc.

10.0 SIGNATURES OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROFESSIONALS

We declare that, to the best of our professional knowledge and belief, we meet the definition of *Environmental professional* as defined in §312.10 of 40 CFR 312" and We have the specific qualifications based on education, training, and experience to assess a *property* of the nature, history, and setting of the subject *property*. We have developed and performed the all appropriate inquiries in conformance with the standards and practices set forth in 40 CFR Part 312.

Kieled Mulil

Khalid Mahmood Project Director

FIGURES

÷















Appendix B Geophysical Surveying Report



August 12th, 2015

Project Number 15288

David Johannes Certified Environmental Consultants, Inc. 1206 Harris Avenue Camarillo, CA 93010 (805) 388-8970

Subject: Geophysical Investigation at 2016 Bay Street, Los Angeles, California

Dear Mr. Johannes:

A geophysical survey was conducted on July 24th and 29th, 2015 at the above mentioned property. The purpose of the geophysical survey was to screen an approximate 180 by 150 ft area for underground storage tanks (USTs). Surface metallic objects that interfered with the geophysical investigation included fences, an above-ground storage tank, reinforced concrete, reinforced concrete mesh, parked vehicles, busses and other surface structures.

METHODOLOGY

The geophysical instruments used during this investigation included a Geometrics G-858 magnetometer (G-858), a Geonics EM-61Mk2A high frequency metal detector (EM-61), a Geonics EM-31 conductivity meter (EM-31) and a GSSI SIR-20 ground penetrating radar (GPR) with 400-MHz antenna.

Details on these geophysical methods can be found in the attached technical note titled "Geophysical Techniques for Shallow Environmental Investigations."

FIELD PROCEDURES

Before conducting the geophysical survey, a 10- by 10-foot grid was marked on the ground within the survey area using surveyor paint. The survey area consisted of an asphalt lot with areas of reinforced concrete and reinforced concrete mesh. The grid was bound by a chain link fence to the south and west and buildings to the north and east. Obvious surface cultural features that could potentially affect the geophysical data (i.e. reinforced concrete, etc.) were identified in the field and plotted onto a scaled, hand-drawn site map. A site map showing the location of the geophysical survey area and surficial features is attached as Figure 1.

Measurements of the earth's total magnetic field intensity and vertical gradient were made with the G-858 at 0.2-second intervals as the operator walked along parallel approximately south to north (S-N) survey lines nominally spaced 5 feet apart. A marker was inserted in the data at 10 ft intervals. The 0.2-second sampling interval resulted in an average station spacing of about 0.5 feet. The magnetic data were stored in the internal memory of the magnetometer along with time of measurement. Magnetic data were downloaded to a laptop computer at the end of the magnetic survey.

EM-61 measurements were made at 2.5 foot intervals along approximately south to north (S-N) survey lines spaced 5 feet apart using the 10-foot grid points for spatial control. The EM-61 data were stored in a digital data logger along with line and station number. EM-31 measurements were made at 5 foot intervals along approximately south to north (S-N) survey lines spaced 5 feet apart using the 10-foot grid points for spatial control. The EM-31 data were stored in a digital data logger along with line and station number. EM-31 data were stored in a digital data logger along with line and station number. EM-61 and EM-31 data were downloaded to a laptop computer upon completion of the survey.

GPR data were acquired semi-continuously (12 scans per foot), as a cart mounted 400 MHz antenna was pushed along survey lines spaced approximately 5 ft apart along south to north (S-N) and west to east (W-E) survey lines. The GPR antenna was attached to a survey cart with an integrated survey wheel for spatial control. GPR data were viewed in real time on the SIR-20's monitor and saved to the instrument's hard disk. All field copies of GPR data are retained in the project files.

DATA PROCESSING

EM & Magnetic Data

Color-enhanced contour maps of the magnetic, EM-61 and EM-31 data were generated using the Oasis montaj® geophysical mapping system. Prior to contour map generation, a number of preprocessing steps were completed and included:

- Backup of all original field data files.
- Correcting of all data acquisition errors (typically only deleting the first portion of a reacquired line, renaming lines incorrectly labeled, deleting additional readings outside the grid, etc.).
- Reformatting field data files to free format XYZ files containing line number, station, time (if applicable) and field measurements.

- Applying small adjustments to EM-61 and/or EM-31 station locations to compensate for data being recorded while the operator was walking.
- Merging of multiple data files into a single file and sorting, if necessary.

The output of the data preprocessing was a data file containing line and station number and the geophysical measurements. These data files were imported into the Oasis montaj® mapping system and the following data processing steps applied:

- Reformatting of data files to Oasis montaj® format.
- Generating final map scale.
- Gridding data using a 1- to 2.5-foot cell size.
- Masking grid in areas where data were not acquired (i.e. around site perimeter).
- Applying a Hanning filter to smooth the data, if necessary.
- Generating color zone file describing color for different data ranges.
- Contouring the data.
- Generating map surrounds (title block, legend, scale, color bar, north arrow, etc.).
- Annotating anomalies.
- Merging various plot files and plotting final map.

GPR Data

GPR data were processed using the program GPR-Slice v7 by Geophysical Archaeometry Laboratory, Inc. After the data were downloaded from the GPR unit, raw data were imported into GPR-Slice. Processing included the following steps:

- Create info file(s) that contain(s) spatial information for each traverse.
- Editing info file(s) to account for collection in reverse direction or varying geometry.
- Merging multiple info files into a primary info file, as necessary.
- Convert data into program compatible 16 bit format.
- Batch gain and remove data wobble.
- Create navigational notations for slicing using artificial or field markers.
- Apply filters such as Hilbert or boxcar, as necessary.
- Apply deconvolution and migration, as necessary.
- Slice/resample data using multiple time slices of chosen time thickness and overlap.
- Output time data into XYZ coordinates for gridding and presentation.

Color-enhanced contour maps of the GPR time slices were generated in the GPR-Slice program and output in jpeg format for review.

Additionally, to further characterize anomalies interpreted in the GPR time slice data, selected radargrams were converted to bmp format for review.

RESULTS

Color-enhanced contour maps of the magnetic vertical gradient response, the EM-61Mk2A differential response and EM-31 conductivity response are presented as Figures 2, 3 and 4, respectively. Color-enhanced contour maps of the magnetic total field response, EM-61 Channel 3 response and the EM-31 in-phase response were also generated. However, these maps are not presented as they did not reveal additional information and were, therefore, considered redundant.

The coordinates shown in the contour maps (Figures 2, 3 and 4) reference the relative geophysical coordinate system shown in Figure 1. The color bar indicates the amplitude of the measured quantity with magenta and cyan indicating high and low amplitudes, respectively. Light orange, yellow and light green indicate average "background" values of the measured quantity.

A depth slice of the 3D GPR data at a depth of about 2 to 3 ft is presented as Figure 5 and selected GPR radargrams were output and are presented in Figure 6. Additional radargrams were generated, but are not presented as they did not reveal additional information and were, therefore, considered redundant. The distances shown on the radargrams reference the relative geophysical coordinate system.

Due to the presence of reinforced concrete over the majority of the site, the geophysical instruments that were of most use at this site were the magnetometer and the GPR. Especially in the case of the EM-61 and the EM-31 data, the reinforced concrete may mask the responses of any targets beneath the reinforcement. Even for the magnetometer and the GPR, the size of the target and the spacing of the reinforcement also have effects on the instruments' ability to see beneath the reinforced areas. Interpretation of anomalies is limited to sources that are large enough to be imaged through the reinforcement, or, in the case of GPR, in between the gaps in the rebar.

Several anomalies caused by surface metallic objects are evident on the contour maps of the magnetic and EM data. These anomalies are labeled "SM" on the respective contour maps. These surface metallic objects correspond to buildings, posts, vehicles and other surface structures.

One small anomaly exists in the EM-61 and EM-31 data and is labeled B on Figures 3 and 4. This anomaly has a much smaller geophysical signature than expected for a UST. The source of the anomaly is likely a small buried metallic object or debris, as it does not appear in the Magnetometer data (Figure 2).

One linear anomaly appears in the EM-31 data and is labeled P on Figure 4. The source of this anomaly is likely a buried pipe, pipe segment or other linear object.

There is one anomaly located outside the area of reinforced concrete, imaged in all data sets, labeled as A-1 in Figures 2 through 6. Anomaly A-1 has a similar response to the reinforced concrete areas in the EM-61 and EM-31 data (Figures 3 and 4). The magnetic vertical gradient response of anomaly A-1 (Figure 2), however, is more prominent than the areas of reinforced concrete, indicating the source of the anomaly is likely larger or contains more metal. However, the magnetic response is not indicative of a typical, cylindrical metallic UST.

In the 3D GPR data, anomaly A-1 appears from approximately 42 to 62 North and 10 to 50 East (Figure 5). This depth slice, at a depth of approximately 2-3 feet below ground surface, illustrates that the maximum reflectivity of anomaly A-1 occurs beneath most of the reinforced concrete areas visible in the EM data. Some reinforced concrete mesh is still visible in the GPR data and is labeled RC and several small buried objects are labeled as B on Figure 5.

Selected radargrams presented in Figure 6 indicate the source of anomaly A-1 is a reinforced concrete area with several 2-3 foot gaps in the reinforcement. These gaps in the reinforcement occur where there are corresponding gaps in the EM anomalies (Figures 3 and 4). The presentation of this anomaly is not typical of a steel UST. This anomaly may be related to other infrastructure from the former service station or former pump islands. Several other features, likely caused by small buried pieces of debris, rubble or pipes are labeled as B/P on Figure 6.

There are no other anomalies within the geophysical data that exhibit the typical response for a UST. However, it cannot be fully discounted that a UST may be present in the areas of surface metallic objects that could not be surveyed. Although the surface reinforced concrete pads mask EM-61 and EM-31 data, the magnetic data appears to indicate the large metallic objects, such as USTs, are not present beneath the concrete.

The geophysical survey was designed to locate all buried metallic utilities and metallic objects the size of a 500-gallon tank or larger. It is our opinion that the geophysical survey was appropriately designed to locate all such objects less than about 8 feet deep; except in portions of the survey area where data was affected by subsurface utilities or surface structures, such as metallic debris, reinforced concrete mesh and other large surface metallic objects.

If you have any questions concerning this investigation, please call us at 951-549-1234.

Sincerely,

Enily 9

Emily Feldman Senior Staff Geophysicist GEOVision Geophysical Services

Attachments:

Figure 1 - Site Map with Geophysical Interpretation Figure 2 - Color Contour Map of the Magnetic Vertical Gradient Response

Project 15288

Figure 3 - Color Contour Map of the EM-61Mk2A Differential Response Figure 4 - Color Contour Map of the EM-31 Conductivity Response

Figure 5 - Selected 3D GPR Depth Slice from 2-3 ft

Figure 6 - Selected Radargrams from GPR Data

Technical Note - Geophysical Techniques for Shallow Environmental Investigations













GEOPHYSICAL TECHNIQUES FOR SHALLOW ENVIRONMENTAL INVESTIGATIONS



MAGNETIC METHOD

The magnetic method generally involves the measurement of the earth's magnetic field intensity or vertical gradient of the earth's magnetic field. Anomalies in the earth's magnetic field are caused by induced or remanent magnetism. Induced magnetic anomalies are the result of secondary magnetization induced in a ferrous body by the earth's magnetic field. The shape and amplitude of an induced magnetic anomaly is a function of the orientation, geometry, size, depth, and magnetic susceptibility of the body as well as the intensity and inclination of the earth's magnetic field in the survey area. The magnetic method is an effective way to search for small metallic objects, such as buried ordnance and drums, because magnetic anomalies have spatial dimensions much larger than those of the objects themselves. Typically, a single buried drum can be detected to a depth of about 10 feet. Larger metallic objects can often be located to greater depths. Induced magnetic anomalies over buried objects such as drums, pipes, tanks, and buried metallic debris generally exhibit an asymmetrical, south up/north down signature (positive response south of the object and negative response to the north).

Magnetic data is typically acquired along a grid with results being presented as color-enhanced contour maps generated by the GeosoftTM Mapping System or OASIS montaj. The approximate location and depth of magnetic objects can be calculated using the GeosoftTM UXO System.



Magnetic Survey to Locate Abandoned Oil Wells



Geometrics G858 Cesium Magnetic Gradiometer



Magnetic Survey to Locate Pits Containing Buried Metallic Containers

Magnetic surveys are typically conducted to:

- Locate abandoned steel well casings
- Locate buried tanks and pipes
- Locate pits and trenches containing buried metallic debris
- Detect buried unexploded ordnance (UXO)
- Map old waste sites and landfill boundaries
- Clear drilling locations
- Map basement faults and geology
- Investigate archaeological sites

ELECTROMAGNETIC METHODS

Electromagnetic (EM) methods typically applied to shallow environmental investigations include frequency domain EM methods, such as EM induction and EM utility location methods, time domain electromagnetic (TDEM) metal detection methods, and ground penetrating radar (GPR) methods.

EM Induction Method

EM induction surveys are often conducted using the Geonics EM-31 terrain conductivity meter (EM-31). The EM-31 consists of a transmitter coil mounted at one end and a receiver coil mounted at the other end of a 3.7-meter long plastic boom. Electrical conductivity and in-phase component field strength are measured and stored along with line and station numbers in a digital data logger. In-phase component measurements generally only respond to buried metallic objects; whereas conductivity measurements also respond to conductivity variations caused by changes in soil type, moisture or salinity and the presence of nonmetallic bulk wastes. The EM-31 must pass over or immediately adjacent to a buried metallic object to detect it. Typical EM-31 anomalies over small, buried metallic objects consist of a negative response centered over the object and a lower amplitude positive response to the sides of the object. When the instrument boom is oriented parallel to long,

linear conductors such as pipelines a strong positive response is observed. The EM-31 can explore to depths of about 6 meters, but is most sensitive to materials about 1 meter below ground surface. Single buried drums can typically be detected to depths of about 5 feet.

EM-31 surveys are typically conducted to:

- Locate buried tanks and pipes
- Locate pits and trenches containing metallic and/or nonmetallic debris
- Delineate landfill boundaries
- Delineate oil production sumps and mud pits
- Map conductive soil and groundwater contamination
- Map soil salinity in agricultural areas
 - Characterize shallow subsurface hydrogeology
 - Map buried channel deposits
 - Locate sand and gravel deposits
 - Locate conductive fault and fracture zones



Geonics EM-31 Terrain Conductivity Meter



Geonics EM-31 Survey to Locate Underground Storage Tanks



EM Utility Location Methods

EM utility locators; such as the Metrotech 810, Metrotech 9890 and Radiodetection RD400, are designed to accurately trace metallic pipes and utility cables and clear drilling/excavation locations. These utility locators consist of a separate transmitter and a receiver. The transmitter emits a radio frequency EM field that induces secondary fields in nearby metallic pipes and cables. The receiver detects these fields and is used to accurately locate and trace the pipes, often to distances over 200 feet from the transmitter. Many of the utility locators have a passive 60Hz mode to locate live electrical lines. Modern utility locators are also capable of providing rough depth estimates of the pipes.

Metrotech EM Utility Locator

TDEM Metal Detection Methods

A Geonics EM-61 (EM-61) is a high sensitivity, time-domain, digital metal detector which is often used to detect both ferrous and non-ferrous metallic objects. It is designed specifically to locate buried metallic objects such as drums, tanks, pipes, UXO, and metallic debris and to be relatively insensitive to above ground structures such as fences, buildings, and vehicles.

The EM-61 consists of two square, 1-meter coils, one mounted over the other and arranged on a hand-towed cart. The bottom coil acts as both a transmitter and receiver while the top coil is a receiver only. While transmitting the bottom coil generates a pulsed primary magnetic field, which induces eddy currents into nearby metallic objects. When the transmitter is in its off cycle both coils measure the decay of these eddy currents in millivolts (mV) with the results being stored in a digital data logger along with position information. The decay of the eddy currents is proportional to the size and depth of the metallic target. A symmetrical positive anomaly is recorded over metallic objects with the peak centered over the object.

The signal from the top coil is amplified in such a way that both coils record effectively the same response for a metallic object on the surface and the top coil records a larger response for buried metallic objects. The response of near surface objects can, therefore, be suppressed by subtracting the lower coil response from the upper coil response (differential response).

In practice, the usable depth of investigation of the EM-61 depends on the size and shape of the object and the amount of above ground interference encountered at the site. A single buried drum can often be detected at a depth of about 10 feet.

Geonics EM-61 Survey to Map Subsurface Infrastructure

GPR Methods

Ground-penetrating radar (GPR) is a high-frequency electromagnetic method commonly applied to a number of engineering and environmental problems.



GSSI SIR-10A GPR Unit



Geonics EM-61 Digital Metal Detector



A GPR system radiates short pulses of high-frequency EM energy into the ground from a transmitting antenna. This EM wave propagates into the ground at a velocity that is primarily a function of the relative dielectric permittivity of subsurface materials. When this wave encounters the interface of two materials having different dielectric properties, a portion of the energy is reflected back to the surface, where it is detected by a receiver antenna and transmitted to a control unit for processing and display.

Depth penetration is a function of antenna frequency and the electrical conductivity of the soils in the survey area. Lower frequency antennas achleve greater depth penetration than higher frequency antennas, but have poorer spatial resolution. Conductive soils, such as clays, attenuate the radar waves much more rapidly than resistive dry sand and rock. In many environments in California, depth penetration of 500 and 300 MHz antennas is limited to 3 to 5 feet. Depth penetration may be greater if shallow soils consist of clean sands and less if shallow soils consist of clay.

1124 Olympic Drive, Corona, California 92881.

ph 951-549-1234 fx. 951-549-123 www.geovision.com


GPR surveys are typically conducted to:

- Locate and delineate underground storage tanks (metallic and non-metallic)
- Locate metallic and nonmetallic pipes and utility cables
- Map rebar in concrete structures
- Map landfill boundaries
- Delineate pits and trenches containing metallic and nonmetallic debris
- Delineate leach fields and industrial cribs
- Delineate previously excavated and backfilled areas
- Map shallow groundwater tables
- Map shallow soil stratigraphy
- Map shallow bedrock topography
- Map shallow subsurface voids and cavities
- Characterize archaeological sites

Geophysical Survey Systems Inc. (GSSI) SIR-2 or SIR-10 GPR systems with antennas in the frequency range of 50 to 1,000 MHz are often used during GPR investigations. Mala Geoscience and Sensors and Software, Ltd also manufacture GPR systems. GPR data is processed using a variety of software including the RADAN™ or GRADIX software packages by GSSI and Interpex Ltd., respectively.



GPR Survey to Locate Underground Storage Tanks

Appendix C Soil-Sample Analytical Report



AMERICAN SCIENTIFIC LABORATORIES, LLC Environmental Testing Services 2520 N. San Fernando Rd., Los Angeles, CA 90065 Tel: (323) 223-9700 Fax: (323) 223-9500

Ordered By

Certified Enviro. Consultants, Inc. 1206 Harris Ave Camarillo, CA 93010-

Telephone (805)388-8970 Attn David Johannes

| Date Received 08/07/2015 |
|--------------------------|
| |

| | JOD NUMDEr | Urdered | Client |
|---|------------|------------|--------|
| - | 65436 | 08/07/2015 | CEC |
| 1 | | | |

Project ID: 15-1775 Project Name: MATEO

Enclosed are the results of analyses on 1 sample analyzed as specified on attached chain of custody.

Werh

Wendy Lu Organics Supervisor

American Scientific Laboratories, LLC (ASL) accepts sample materials from clients for analysis with the assumption that all of the information provided to ASL verbally or in writing by our clients (and/or their agents), regarding samples being submitted to ASL, is complete and accurate. ASL accepts all samples subject to the following conditions:
1) ASL is not responsible for verifying any client-provided information regarding any samples submitted to the laboratory.

2) ASL is not responsible for any consequences resulting from any inaccuracies, omissions, or misrepresentations contained in client-provided information regarding samples submitted to the laboratory.



AMERICAN SCIENTIFIC LABORATORIES, LLC

Environmental Testing Services

2520 N. San Fernando Rd., Los Angeles, CA 90065 Tel: (323) 223-9700 Fax: (323) 223-9500

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

| Ordered By | | |
|-------------------|-------------------|--|
| Certified Enviro. | Consultants, Inc. | |
| 1206 Harris Ave | | |
| Camarillo, CA 930 | 010- | |
| Telephone: (805) | 388-8970 | |
| Attn: David | Johannes | |
| Page: | 2 | |
| Project ID: | 15-1775 | |
| Project Name: | MATEO | |

| 15-1775 | ASL Job Number | Submitted | Client |
|---------|----------------|------------|--------|
| MATEO | 65436 | 08/07/2015 | CEC |

Method: 6010B/7471A, CCR Title 22 Metals (TTLC)

| | QC Batch | No: 073115-1 | | | |
|--------------------|----------|--------------|---------|-------|---|
| Our Lab I.D. | | 336085 | | | |
| Client Sample I.D. | | Comp SV | | | |
| | | (6-1&7-1) | | | |
| Date Sampled | | 07/31/2015 | | | |
| Date Prepared | | 08/07/2015 | | | |
| Preparation Method | | | | | |
| Date Analyzed | | 08/10/2015 | | | |
| Matrix | | Soil | | | |
| Units | | mg/Kg | | 4 | 1 |
| Dilution Factor | | 1 | | | |
| Analytes | PQL | Results | | | |
| AA Metals | | | | | |
| Mercury | 0.0500 | 0.0763 | | | |
| ICP Metals | | | and all | A LAN | |
| Antimony | 0.500 | ND | | | |
| Arsenic | 0.250 | 1.68 | | | |
| Barium | 0.500 | 112 | | | |
| Beryllium | 0.500 | ND | | | |
| Cadmium | 0.500 | 1.08 | | | |
| Chromium | 0.500 | 37.4 | | | |
| Cobalt | 0.500 | 8.22 | | | |
| Copper | 0.500 | 23.8 | | | |
| Lead | 0.250 | 60.8 | | | |
| Molybdenum | 0.500 | 1.93 | | | |
| Nickel | 0.500 | 29.4 | | | |
| Selenium | 0.500 | ND | | | |
| Silver | 0.500 | ND | | | |
| Thallium | 0.500 | ND | | | |
| Vanadium | 0.500 | 33.4 | | | |
| Zinc | 0.500 | 116 | | | |

QUALITY CONTROL REPORT

QC Batch No: 073115-1

| Analytes | LCS % REC | CS/LCSD % Limit | | |
|------------|--------------|--------------------|--|--|
| AA Metals | | | | |
| Mercury | 106 | 80-120 | | |
| ICP Metals | | | | |
| Antimony | 100 | 80-120 | | |



3

Page:

American Scientific Laboratories, LLC

Environmental Testing Services

2520 N. San Fernando Rd., Los Angeles, CA 90065 Tel: (323) 223-9700 Fax: (323) 223-9500

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

| - | | | | |
|---------------|---------|----------------|------------|--------|
| Project ID: | 15-1775 | ASL Job Number | Submitted | Client |
| Project Name: | MATEO | 65436 | 08/07/2015 | CEC |

Method: 6010B/7471A, CCR Title 22 Metals (TTLC) QUALITY CONTROL REPORT

QC Batch No: 073115-1

| | | | | | | | |
|------------|-------|----------|------|--|---|---|--|
| | LCS | LCS/LCSD | | | | | |
| Analytes | % REC | % Limit | | | 1 | | |
| ICP Metals | | | | | | | |
| Arsenic | 98 | 80-120 | | | | | |
| Barium | 102 | 80-120 | | | | | |
| Beryllium | 107 | 80-120 | _ | | | | |
| Cadmium | 100 | 80-120 | | | | | |
| Chromium | 104 | 80-120 | | | | | |
| Cobalt | 101 | 80-120 | | | | | |
| Copper | 105 | 80-120 | | | | | |
| Lead | 101 | 80-120 | | | | | |
| Molybdenum | 100 | 80-120 | | | | | |
| Nickel | 101 | 80-120 | | | | | |
| Selenium | 101 | 80-120 | | | | | |
| Silver | 103 | 80-120 | | | | | |
| Thallium | 99 | 80-120 | | | | 1 | |
| Vanadium | 101 | 80-120 | | | | | |
| Zinc | 115 | 80-120 | | | | | |

| CEC Certified Environmental Consultants, Inc. 1206 Harris Avenue Camarillo, CA 93010 Telephone: 805-388-8970 E-Mail: <u>cecdj@aol.com</u> | | | | | | | | Ch | ain | of (| Cust | 65 | y 436 | | | Page _ of _ |
|--|--|---------|-----------------|--------------|----------------|------|------|---|---------|--|---|----|-----------------|---|------------------|----------------------|
| Project Number: 15-1775 Project Name: MATEO | | | | | | RN | | Analyse | s Reque | sted | | | | | Tum-around time: | |
| Project Manag | Per: DAVID | JU | HAN | UNE | 3 | | ETA. | | | | | | | | - | X 48-Hour RUSH |
| 120.10 # | Sample Description | 57RI | JS1 | Sample | Containers | | EN | | | | | | | | Ī | Remarks/ |
| (Leb use only) (A | As it should appear on analytical report | Sampled | Sampled | Matrix | (# and type) | | F | | _ | | | | | | | Special instructions |
| 336085 | SV-6-1 | 7/31/15 | - 10:50 | SOIL | ()TUBE | | X | 4 | cor | ipo | SIT | E | | | _ | |
| | 51-7-1 | Y | 11:30 | V | V | | C | 2 | A | 50 | DNE | | | | _ | 1 |
| | | | | | | | | | | SA | MP | LE | | | _ | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | KSAVE TUBE |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | FOR PICKUP |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | - | | | - | | | - | | | - | _ | | - | | |
| Relinquiched by | (Sampler afergrature) | nos 8 | Date, 7-7-15 | Time 1530 | Relinguished b | y | | Date | Time | Same | Sample Delivery Conditions: Sample Dispos | | | | Sample Disposal: | |
| Received by | nh | 0 0 | Date | Time | Received by: | | | Date | Time | Garri | 163 CI1100 | | / | | | Client will pick up |
| | and | - 6- | (-1) | 1051 | Relinquished b | À: | | Date | Time | Custody seals? _Yes _No Return to client | | | | | Return to client | |
| The delivery of samples and the signature on this chain of custody form constitutes authorization to perform the above-specified analyses. | | | Received by: | | | Date | Time | All sample containers intact? Yes No By Coutier UPS/Fed Ex Hand carried X Lab discosed | | | | | X Lab disposal | | | |
| Laboratory N | otes: | | | | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | |

.

Appendix D Soil-Vapor Sampling Analytical Report



August 3, 2015

Mr. David Johannes Certified Environmental Consultants 547-A Constitution Ave. Camarillo, CA 93012

Dear Mr. Johannes:

This letter presents the results of the soil vapor investigation conducted by Optimal Technology (Optimal), for Certified Environmental Consultants on July 31, 2015. The study was performed at 2016 Bay St., Los Angeles, California.

Optimal was contracted to perform a soil vapor survey at this site to screen for possible chlorinated solvents and aromatic hydrocarbons. The primary objective of this soil vapor investigation was to determine if soil vapor contamination is present in the subsurface soil.

Gas Sampling Method

Gas sampling was performed by hydraulically pushing soil gas probes to a depth of 5.0 feet below ground surface (bgs). An electric rotary hammer drill was used to drill a 1.0-inch diameter hole through the overlying surface to allow probe placement when required. The same electric hammer drill was used to push probes in areas of resistance during placement.

At each sampling location an electric vacuum pump set to draw 0.2 liters per minute (L/min) of soil vapor was attached to the probe and purged prior to sample collection. Vapor samples were obtained in Hamilton gas-tight syringes by puncturing tubing which connects the sampling probe and the vacuum pump. New tubing was used at each sampling point to prevent cross contamination. Samples were immediately injected into the gas chromatograph after collection.

All analyses were performed on a laboratory grade Hewlett Packard model 5890 Series II gas chromatograph equipped with a Flame Ionization Detector (FID) and an Electron Capture Detector (ECD). Restec wide bore capillary columns using hydrogen as the carrier gases were used to perform all analysis. All results were collected on a personal computer utilizing Hewlett Packard's PC based chromatographic data collection and handling system.

Quality Assurance

5-Point Calibration

The initial five point calibration consisted of 20, 50, 100, 200 and 500 ul injections of the calibration standard. A calibration factor on each analyte was generated using a best fit line method using the HP data system. If the r^2 factor generated from this line was not greater than 0.990, an additional five point calibration would have been performed. Method reporting limits were calculated to be 0.01-1.0 micrograms per Liter (ug/L) for the individual compounds.

A daily calibration check and end of run calibration check was performed using a pre-mixed standard supplied by Scotty Analyzed Gases. The standard contained common halogenated solvents and aromatic hydrocarbons (see Table 1). The individual compound concentrations in the standards ranged between 0.025 nanograms per microliter (ng/ul) and 0.25 ng/ul.

| | TABLE 1 | |
|--------------------------|---------------------------|----------------|
| Dichlorodifluoromethane | Carbon Tetrachloride | Chloroethane |
| Trichlorofluoromethane | 1,2-Dichloroethane | Benzene |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | Trichloroethene | Toluene |
| Methylene Chloride | 1,1,2-Trichloroethane | Ethylbenzene |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | Tetrachloroethene | m-/p-Xylene |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | Chloroform | o-Xylene |
| cis-1,2-Dichloroethene | 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane | Vinyl Chloride |
| 1,1,1-Trichloroethane | 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane | Freon 113 |
| 4-Methyl-2-Pentanone | Cyclohexane | Acetone |
| Chlorobenzene | 2-Butanone | Isobutane |

Sample Replicates

A replicate analysis (duplicate) was run to evaluate the reproducibility of the sampling system and instrument. The difference between samples did not vary more than 20%.

Equipment Blanks

Blanks were run at the beginning of each workday and after calibrations. The blanks were collected using an ambient air sample. These blanks checked the septum, syringe, GC column, GC detector and the ambient air. Contamination was not found in any of the blanks analyzed during this investigation. Blank results are given along with the sample results.

Tracer Gas

A tracer gas was applied to the soil gas probes at each point of connection in which ambient air could enter the sampling system. These points include the top of the sampling probe where the tubing meets the probe connection and the surface bentonite seals. Isobutane was used as the tracer gas, found in common shaving cream. No Isobutane was found in any of the samples collected.

Scope of Work

To achieve the objective of this investigation a total of 9 vapor samples were collected from 8 locations at the site. Sampling depths, vacuum readings, purge volume and sampling volumes are given on the analytical results page. All the collected vapor samples were analyzed on-site using Optimal's mobile laboratory.

Subsurface Conditions

Subsurface soil conditions at this site were predominately silty-sand from ground surface to 5.0 feet below ground surface. These soil conditions offered sampling flows at 0" water vacuum. Depth to groundwater was unknown at the time of the investigation.

Results

During this vapor investigation all nine samples contained levels of Tetrachloroethene (PCE). PCE levels ranged from 3.69 ug/L at SV-1 to 22.42 ug/L at SV-3. None of the other compounds listed in Table 1 above were detected above the listed reporting limits. A complete table of analytical results is included with this report.

Disclaimer

All conclusions presented in this letter are based solely on the information collected by the soil vapor survey conducted by Optimal Technology. Soil vapor testing is only a subsurface screening tool and does not represent actual contaminant concentrations in either the soil and/or groundwater. We enjoyed working with you on this project and look forward to future projects. If you have any questions please contact me at (877) 764-5427.

Sincerely,

John Rice

John Rice Project Manager



SOIL VAPOR RESULTS

Site Name: 2016 Bay St., Los Angeles, CA Analyst: J. Rice Collector: J. Rice Method: Modified EPA 8021B Lab Name: Optimal Technology Inst. ID: HP-5890 Series II

Detectors: FID and ECD

Date: 7/31/15

Page: 1 of 2

| BLANK-1 | SV-1 | SV-2 | SV-3 | SV-4 | SV-5 | SV-6 | SV-7 |
|----------|---|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| N/A | 5.0 | 5.0 | 5.0 | 5.0 | 5.0 | 5.0 | 5.0 |
| N/A | 1,500 | 1,500 | 1,500 | 1,500 | 1,500 | 1,500 | 1,500 |
| N/A | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| 500/2500 | 500/2500 | 500/2500 | 500/2500 | 500/2500 | 500/2500 | 500/2500 | 500/2500 |
| 1/1 | 1/1 | 1/1 | 1/1 | 1/1 | 1/1 | 1/1 | 1/1 |
| | BLANK-1 N/A N/A N/A 500/2500 1/1 | BLANK-1 SV-1 N/A 5.0 N/A 1,500 N/A 0 500/2500 500/2500 1/1 1/1 | BLANK-1 SV-1 SV-2 N/A 5.0 5.0 N/A 1,500 1,500 N/A 0 0 500/2500 500/2500 500/2500 1/1 1/1 1/1 | BLANK-1 SV-1 SV-2 SV-3 N/A 5.0 5.0 5.0 N/A 1,500 1,500 1,500 N/A 0 0 0 500/2500 500/2500 500/2500 500/2500 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1 | BLANK-1 SV-1 SV-2 SV-3 SV-4 N/A 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 N/A 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 N/A 0 0 0 0 500/2500 500/2500 500/2500 500/2500 500/2500 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1 | BLANK-1 SV-1 SV-2 SV-3 SV-4 SV-5 N/A 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 N/A 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 N/A 0 0 0 0 0 500/2500 500/2500 500/2500 500/2500 500/2500 500/2500 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1 | BLANK-1 SV-1 SV-2 SV-3 SV-4 SV-5 SV-6 N/A 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 N/A 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 N/A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 500/2500 500/2500 500/2500 500/2500 500/2500 500/2500 500/2500 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1 |

| COMPOUND | REP. LIMIT | CONC (ug/L) |
|---------------------------|------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|
| Dichlorodifluoromethane | 1.00 | ND |
| Chioroethane | 1.00 | ND |
| Trichlorofluoromethane | 1.00 | ND |
| Freon 113 | 1.00 | ND |
| Methylene Chloride | 1.00 | ND |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | 1.00 | ND |
| Chloroform | 1.00 | ND |
| 1,1,1-Trichloroethane | 1.00 | ND |
| Carbon Tetrachloride | 0.02 | ND |
| 1,2-Dichloroethane | 0.04 | ND |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | 0.10 | ND |
| 1,1,2-Trichloroethane | 1.00 | ND |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | 0.10 | ND | 3.69 | 14.54 | 22.42 | 21.32 | 21.81 | 13.78 | 11.76 |
| 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane | 1.00 | ND |
| 1,1,2,2-Tetrachtoroethane | 1.00 | ND |
| Vinyl Chloride | 0.01 | ND |
| Acetone | 1.00 | ND |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | 1.00 | ND |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | 1.00 | ND |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | 1.00 | ND |
| cis-1,2-Dichloroethene | 1.00 | ND |
| Cyclohexane | 1.00 | ND |
| Benzene | 0.03 | ND |
| 4-Methyl-2-Pentanone | 1.00 | ND |
| Toluene | 1.00 | ND |
| Chlorobenzene | 1.00 | ND |
| Ethylbenzene | 0.40 | ND |
| m/p-Xylene | 1.00 | ND |
| o-Xylene | 1.00 | ND |
| Isobutane (Tracer Gas) | 1.00 | ND |

Note: ND = Below Listed Reporting Limit



SOIL VAPOR RESULTS

Site Name: 2016 Bay St., Los Angeles, CA Analyst: J. Rice Collector: J. Rice Method: Modified EPA 8021B

Lab Name: Optimal Technology Inst. ID: HP-5890 Series II Detectors: FID and ECD

Date: 7/31/15

Page: 2 of 2

| SAMPLE ID | | SV-7 Dup | SV-8 | | 1 | | - |
|---------------------------|------------|-------------|-------------|-------|------|---|---|
| Sampling Depth (Ft.) | | 5.0 | 5.0 | _ | | | |
| Purge Volume (ml) | | 1,500 | 1,500 | | | | |
| Vacuum (in. of Water) | | 0 | 0 | | | | |
| Injection Volume (ul) | | 500/2500 | 500/2500 | | | | |
| Dilution Factor (ECD/FID) | | 1/1 | 1/1 | | | | |
| COMPOUND | REP. LIMIT | CONC (ug/L) | CONC (ug/L) | | | 1 | |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| Chloroethane | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| Trichlorofluoromethane | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| Freon 113 | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| Methylene Chloride | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| Chloroform | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| 1,1,1-Trichloroethane | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| Carbon Tetrachloride | 0.02 | ND | ND | | | | |
| 1,2-Dichloroethane | 0.04 | ND | ND | | | | |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | 0.10 | ND | ND | | | | |
| 1,1,2-Trichloroethane | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | 0.10 | 11.72 | 9.74 | | | | |
| 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| Vinyl Chloride | 0.01 | ND | ND | | | | |
| Acetone | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | 1.00 | ND | ND | | - | | |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | N |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| cis-1,2-Dichloroethene | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| Cyclohexane | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| Benzene | 0.03 | ND | ND | | | | |
| 4-Methyl-2-Pentanone | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| Toluene | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| Chlorobenzene | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| Ethylbenzene | 0.40 | ND | ND | | | | |
| m/p-Xylene | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| o-Xylene | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |
| Isobutane (Tracer Gas) | 1.00 | ND | ND | | | | |

Note: ND = Below Listed Reporting Limit

Appendix E-3: Site Characterization Report



An EFI Global Company

SITE CHARACTERIZATION REPORT

Performed at:

1024 Mateo Street; 2016 Bay Street; 2001, 2005, and 2025 Sacramento Street Los Angeles, California 90021

Prepared for:

Abrams and Taheri LLP 1875 Century Park East, Ste. 1750 Century City, CA 90067

Andersen Environmental Project No. 9836000640

December 3, 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| INTRODUCTION | |
|---|--------------|
| SITE INFORMATION | 1 |
| 2.1 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION | 1 |
| 2.2 REGIONAL GEOLOGIC AND HYDROGEOLOGIC SETTING | 2 |
| 2.3 LOCAL GEOLOGIC AND HYDROGEOLOGIC SETTING | 2 |
| PREVIOUS ASSESSMENT | 2 |
| FIELD ACTIVITIES | |
| 4.1 FIELD PREPARATION | |
| 4.2 SOIL AND SOIL VAPOR SAMPLING | |
| 4.3 SOIL VAPOR SAMPLING | 5 |
| CHEMICAL ANALYSIS | 5 |
| ANALYTICAL RESULTS | 5 |
| 6.1 SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS | 5 |
| 6.2 SOIL VAPOR ANALYTICAL RESULTS | 6 |
| JOHNSON – ETTINGER VAPOR INTRUSION MODELING | 7 |
| 7.1 JOHNSON - ETTINGER MODEL INPUT | 8 |
| 7.2 JOHNSON - ETTINGER MODEL RESULTS | 8 |
| DISCUSSION | 9 |
| 8.1 SOIL CONTAMINANT CONDITIONS | 9 |
| 8.2 SOIL VAPOR CONTAMINANT CONDITIONS | 10 |
| CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS | 10 |
| SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS, LIMITATIONS AND RELIANCE | 12 |
| SIGNATURES OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROFESSIONALS | |
| | INTRODUCTION |

FIGURES

| Figure 1 | Site Location Map |
|----------|-------------------|
| Figure 2 | Site Plan |

TABLES

| Table 1 | Volatile Organic Compounds in Soil |
|---------|--|
| Table 2 | Volatile Organic Compounds in Soil Vapor |

APPENDICES

- Appendix A Field Boring Logs with Borehole Completion Diagrams
- Appendix B Laboratory Reports and Chain-of-Custody Documentation
- Appendix C Johnson-Ettinger Modeling Input and Results



1.0 INTRODUCTION

Andersen Environmental has performed Site Characterization activities for the property located at 1024 Mateo Street; 2016 Bay Street; and 2001, 2005, and 2025 Sacramento Street, in Los Angeles, California (the Site). The assessment was based on the findings of the Environmental Managers & Auditors, Inc. (EMA) Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) report, dated June 2015, and the Certified Environmental Consultants, Inc. (CEC) Phase II ESA report, dated August 13, 2015, performed for the Site.

The Site was historically used for vehicle fueling, service/repair, and washing. During CEC's Phase II ESA, tetrachloroethene (PCE) was detected in eight soil vapor samples collected throughout the Site at a depth of 5 feet below ground surface (bgs). The three highest PCE concentrations were detected in the area of the former hoists, pump islands, and underground storage tank (UST) pit in the southwestern portion of the Site. The source of the PCE was unknown, and there was no soil data collected as part of that assessment.

In an attempt to (1) further evaluate the source of PCE vapor contamination and (2) delineate the lateral and vertical extent of impact, Andersen performed additional sampling and analysis. One boring was advanced in the vicinity of the former UST pit to delineate the vertical extent of impact, and three borings were advanced in the surrounding areas to delineate the lateral extent of impact. Soil samples were collected and triple-nested vapor probes were installed and sampled at each location. Select soil and soil vapor samples were analyzed for volatile organic compounds (VOCs).

Andersen Environmental understands that Abrams and Taheri LLP plans to develop the Site for mixeduse purposes. One to two levels of subterranean parking are proposed, the ground floor will be dedicated to commercial use, and residential units will be limited to the upper floors. Given that no residential units are proposed at surface grade, the data collected during this assessment have been evaluated for the commercial end-use scenario.

2.0 SITE INFORMATION

This section provides pertinent Site information, including location, description, and geologic and hydrogeologic setting.

2.1 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION

The Site is on the east side of Mateo Street in Los Angeles, California and occupies the western portion of the city block that is bounded by Bay Street on the north and Sacramento Street on the south (Figure 1). The Site is approximately 1.42 acres and developed with two commercial structures. In the northern portion of the Site is a 17,400-square-foot structure that was constructed in 1974 and 1975 (Figure 2). It is used by MV Transportation, Inc., for bus maintenance and offices. Along the southeastern edge of the Site is a 4,800-square-foot structure that was built in 1948 and is used for storage. The majority of the remainder of the Site is improved with asphalt-paved parking areas. A vehicle washing station with a wash-down drain and clarifier is present near the southeast corner of the Site, and a propane aboveground storage tank (AST) is present in the western central portion of the paved area (Figure 2).

Historically, the southern half of the Site was used for vehicle maintenance and fueling. The Site reportedly included underground storage tanks (USTs), hydraulic hoists, fuel dispenser islands, and a grease pit, as shown on Figure 2.

The surrounding area is mostly used for commercial and industrial purposes.



2.2 **REGIONAL GEOLOGIC AND HYDROGEOLOGIC SETTING**

The Site lies within the Coastal Plain of Los Angeles County, California. The Coastal Plain is bounded by the Santa Monica and San Gabriel Mountains to the north; the Palos Verdes Hills and San Pedro Bay to the south; the Elysian, Repetto, Merced, and Puente Hills to the east; Orange County to the southeast; and the Santa Monica Bay to the west. The northwest-southeast trending Newport-Inglewood Fault Zone transects the Coastal Plain approximately 9 miles west of the Site. The Coastal Plain consists of Quaternary alluvial sediments overlying and/or surrounded by marine sediments, metavolcanic rocks, and crystalline bedrock forming foothill and highland features. This information is derived from the California Department of Water Resources Bulletin 104 (June 1961).

The Site is located within the Los Angeles Forebay subbasin of the Central Groundwater Basin. One major groundwater aquifer in the vicinity of the Site is the Gaspur (Recent), which is present at a depth of approximately 70 feet bgs. The Gaspur is underlain by the Exposition and Gardena Aquifers, which comprise the Pleistocene Lakewood Formation to a depth of approximately 140 feet bgs. A series of named aquifers and unnamed aquitards within the San Pedro Formation pinch out and reach their northern terminus approximately 0.5 mile north of the Site. Consequently, these major drinking water aquifers, known as the Hollydale, Jefferson, Lynwood, Silverado, and Sunnyside, are relatively thin and are present within 400 feet of the surface in this portion of the Los Angeles Forebay.

2.3 LOCAL GEOLOGIC AND HYDROGEOLOGIC SETTING

The ground surface in the vicinity of the Site is relatively flat, with an elevation of approximately 240 feet above mean sea level (msl) (United States Geological Survey, Los Angeles Quadrangle 1994). The Site is underlain by recent alluvium consisting of unconsolidated floodplain deposits of silt, sand, and gravel (Geologic Map of Los Angeles Quadrangle, Dibblee, 1989). The major drainage feature in the vicinity of the Site is the Los Angeles River, located approximately 1,700 feet east of the Site.

Subsurface environmental investigations for lithologic evaluation at the Site have been conducted to a maximum exploration depth of 30.5 feet bgs. Soils encountered during this investigation consisted primarily of silty sands (Unified Soil Classification System [USCS] designation "SM") and poorly graded sands ("SP"), with some gravelly layers and decomposed granite locally to the exploration depth of 30.5 feet. Detailed descriptions of the materials encountered during sampling are presented on the field boring logs in Appendix A.

Based on a review of data available in the State Water Resources Control Board's (SWRCB's) GeoTracker database, there are no sites with either open or closed cases within 1,000 feet of the Site. Therefore, the depth to groundwater in the site vicinity is not known. However, while reviewing the documents for a facility located approximately 1,800 feet northwest of the Site (1614 East 7th Street; GeoTracker Global ID T0603770957), Andersen Environmental found a letter from the SWRCB wherein the agency estimated a depth to groundwater of approximately 95 feet for that facility. Therefore, the depth to groundwater at the Site may be similar. Based on regional groundwater data, regional groundwater flow direction is estimated to be to the south; however, local groundwater flow direction may vary.

3.0 PREVIOUS ASSESSMENT

CEC's Phase II ESA, which was completed in July 2015, included performing a geophysical survey to screen for the presence of in-place USTs or other subsurface features. It also included collecting soil vapor samples from a depth of 5 feet bgs at eight locations (SV-1 through SV-8; Figure 2) and analyzing them for volatile organic compounds (VOCs). In addition, CEC collected shallow soil samples from two



of the eight locations (SV-6 and SV-7) at a depth of 1 foot. These two soil samples were composited and analyzed for Title 22 metals.

CEC's findings included the following:

- No subsurface features that would be consistent with the presence of USTs were identified during the geophysical survey.
- With the exception of arsenic, which was detected at a concentration of 1.68 milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg), no metals were detected at concentrations exceeding applicable screening levels.
- PCE was detected in all eight soil vapor samples at concentrations ranging from 3.69 micrograms per liter (µg/L) to 22.42 µg/L. The lowest concentration was detected in the sample from SV-1, located in the southeastern portion of the Site, and the highest concentration was detected in the sample from SV-3, located within the former UST excavation south of the propane AST. These concentrations exceeded the California Human Health Screening Level (0.60 µg/L) for soil vapor at commercial sites without engineered fill.

CEC concluded that there was a lack of fuel-related environmental impacts at the Site; however, the source of PCE was undetermined.

4.0 FIELD ACTIVITIES

Field activities pertaining to Andersen Environmental's site characterization were performed on November 13 and 17, 2015.

4.1 FIELD PREPARATION

Prior to conducting field activities, Andersen Environmental personnel marked the work area clearly with white paint. Underground Services Alert (USA) was notified of the pending fieldwork a minimum of 48 hours before mobilization. Boring locations were subsequently checked for utility conflicts, access limitations and other hindrances or issues that may have been encountered during field work. No conflicts with utilities were identified in the chosen boring locations.

4.2 SOIL AND SOIL VAPOR SAMPLING

On November 13, 2015, Andersen Environmental field personnel directed Kehoe Testing & Engineering, Inc. (C57 License No. 786163) in the advancement of four borings at the Site (AEB1 through AEB4; Figure 2) to assess subsurface soil conditions. Triple-nested soil vapor probes (SV1 through SV4) were also installed at each location to evaluate soil vapor conditions.

4.2.1 BORING LOCATIONS AND INVESTIGATIVE OBJECTIVES

In an attempt to further characterize subsurface impacts and evaluate the source of PCE in soil vapor, boring locations were drilled as follows:



1024 Mateo Street; 2016 Bay Street; 2001, 2005, and 2025 Sacramento Street, Los Angeles, California 90021 Andersen Environmental Project No. 9836000640

| Boring ID | Location and Investigative Objectives | Terminal Depth (ft bgs) | Soil Sampling Depths (ft bgs) | Soil Vapor Sampling Depths (ft bgs) |
|--------------|--|-------------------------------|-------------------------------------|---|
| AEB1 | South central portion of Site to assess soil and vapor conditions in area of former UST pit. | 30.5 | 5, 15, 30 | 5, 15, 30 |
| AEB2 | Southwest corner of Site to assess lateral and vertical extent of impact. | 30.5 | 5, 15, 30 | 5, 15, 30 |
| AEB3 | Eastern portion of paved area, northeast of former UST pit, to assess lateral and vertical extent of impact. | 30.5 | 5, 15, 30 | 5, 15, 30 |
| AEB4 | Northwest corner of paved area to assess lateral and vertical extent of impact. | 30.5 | 5, 15, 30 | 5, 15, 30 |

4.2.2 BOREHOLE ADVANCEMENT AND SAMPLING METHODOLOGY

Borings were advanced using a hydraulic direct-push technology (DPT) drill rig equipped with a 1.5-inch drive rod. In each location, the DPT rig was initially used to break through surface cover. Soil samples were collected at the designated sampling depths by advancing an acetate-lined steel sampler to each sampling depth. At the selected sample depths, approximately 6-inch segments of undisturbed soil within the acetate liners were cut, sealed with Teflon® tape and tight-fitting plastic caps, logged in accordance with the USCS, and observed for color, moisture content, texture, discoloration, odor, and physical evidence of contamination or fill material. The samples were labeled, recorded in a chain-of-custody, and placed in a chilled container pending transportation and submittal to Positive Lab Service (Positive) of Los Angeles, California (a state-certified analytical laboratory). Chain-of-custody documentation and protocol were maintained during sample collection through submittal to the analytical laboratory.

Each sample was additionally field-screened for VOCs by headspace analysis using a photoionization detector (PID). A portion of the recovered sample was placed in a plastic bag and sealed to allow organic vapors to volatilize, at which point the PID probe tip was inserted into the bag, and the maximum reading was observed and recorded.

4.2.3 ENCOUNTERED SOIL TYPES

In the southernmost soil boring (AEB2), soil consisted of poorly graded sand (SP) to the total depth explored of 30.5 feet bgs. This sand is fine- to medium-grained, light brown, and moist. Some gravel was also noted in the 30-foot sample.

In the two central borings (AEB1 and AEB3), the upper 10 feet consisted of silty sand (SM), which comprised fine-grained sand and was described as light to dark brown and moist. Some gravel was noted in the 10-foot sample from AEB1. From 15 feet to the total depth explored (30.5 feet bgs), soil consisted of poorly graded sand (SP) consistent with that observed in boring AEB2.

In the northernmost soil boring (AEB4), the upper 10 feet consisted of sandy silt (ML), which comprised fine-grained sand and was described as medium brown and moist. From 15 feet to the total depth explored (30.5 feet bgs), soil consisted of poorly graded sand (SP) consistent with that observed in boring AEB2.



Decomposed granite was noted in the soil samples from boring AEB1, AEB3, and AEB4 at depths ranging from 15 to 25 feet bgs.

No discoloration or odors were noted in any of the soil samples. Groundwater was not encountered during this assessment. Field boring logs with borehole completion diagrams are included as Appendix A.

4.2.4 SOIL VAPOR PROBE INSTALLATION

Soil vapor sampling was incorporated into the investigative program to assess soil vapor conditions beneath the property.

Upon completion of soil sampling, each boring was immediately converted into a triple-nested soil vapor sampling probe, with probes set at 5, 15, and 30 feet bgs. In general, each boring was first backfilled to approximately 0.5 foot below the intended probe depth with hydrated bentonite granules. Approximately 6 inches of clean sand were then emplaced into the bottom of the boring. A 1-inch polypropylene tip connected to ¼-inch diameter Nylaflow® tubing was then placed at the desired sample depth. An additional 6 inches of sand pack were placed above the probe, embedding it in an approximately 1-foot-thick interval of sand pack. The borings were subsequently backfilled with 6 inches of dry bentonite granules, followed by hydrated bentonite granules to a depth of 6 inches below the target depth of the next vapor probe. Following installation of the shallow, 5-foot probe, the boring was backfilled to the surface with hydrated bentonite, and each probe location was secured pending vapor sampling. Soil vapor construction diagrams are provided as part of the boring logs in Appendix A.

4.3 SOIL VAPOR SAMPLING

On November 17, 2015, Positive personnel purged and sampled all vapor probes and analyzed the samples on Site in their mobile analytical laboratory. The apparatus used to conduct purging was constructed by securing an on/off valve to the soil vapor sampling probe head and routing the vapor stream through a vacuum pump at a flow rate of approximately 200 milliliters per minute (ml/min). Each probe was purged of approximately 3 probe volumes prior to sampling. Following purging, soil vapor samples were collected in glass sampling bulbs and immediately analyzed in Positive's mobile laboratory. Details regarding the sampling and analysis procedures are presented in Appendix B, along with the certified analytical results.

5.0 CHEMICAL ANALYSIS

The 5-, 15-, and 30-foot soil samples from each boring were analyzed for VOCs using United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Method 8260B. All 12 soil vapor samples were analyzed for VOCs by Positive's mobile laboratory on Site using EPA Method 8260B. Laboratory reports and chain-of-custody documentation are provided in Appendix B.

6.0 ANALYTICAL RESULTS

This section presents chemical analytical results of soil and soil vapor analysis.

6.1 SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS

The section presents the soil analytical results. Select soil samples were analyzed for VOCs, and the results are summarized in Table 1.

PCE was detected in 2 of the 12 soil samples analyzed, in the 5-foot samples from borings AEB1 and AEB4 at concentrations of 9.32 micrograms per kilogram (μ g/kg) and 4.56 μ g/kg, respectively. Other VOCs were not detected in the soil samples analyzed during this Site Characterization.



The PCE concentrations in soil were compared to the Regional Screening Level (RSL) published by EPA (November 30, 2015) to evaluate if the detected concentrations represent a significant risk to human receptors. The PCE industrial scenario RSL is $39,000 \ \mu g/kg$. The detected concentrations of PCE were several orders of magnitude lower than this screening level. Therefore, these concentrations do not likely represent a significant risk to human receptors.

Detected PCE concentrations in soil were then compared to the Maximum Soil Screening Level (MSSL), which was calculated as specified by the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (LARWQCB) in their Interim Site Assessment and Cleanup Guidebook (May 1996). MSSLs are used to evaluate if detected concentrations of VOCs represent a threat to groundwater quality. In general, VOCs in soil (secondary sources) have the potential for vertical migration into groundwater bodies further below grade. Lithologic structures between these secondary sources and the groundwater table often serve as attenuating features, which may restrict or retard vertical migration to concentrations that do not represent significant risks to groundwater.

A site-specific MSSL for each detected compound with established groundwater quality criteria can be calculated based on the distance between soil impacts and the groundwater table, site lithology, and contaminant-specific drinking water standards (i.e., Maximum Contaminant Levels; MCLs). These MSSLs serve as Site-specific screening levels to evaluate if detected concentrations in soil will likely attenuate sufficiently prior to interface with the groundwater table so as to not adversely affect groundwater quality.

The MSSL for PCE was conservatively calculated using the following assumptions:

- Distance between impacted soil and first-encountered groundwater: 80 feet
- Soil lithology: Sand
- MCL for PCE: 5 micrograms per liter (μ g/l)

Because the depth to groundwater at the Site is unknown, it was necessary to determine a reasonable approximation. Since the depth to groundwater at the Site is estimated to be on the order of 95 feet bgs, and since the deepest impacted soil sample was collected at a depth of 5 feet, the distance between PCE-impacted soil and groundwater is estimated to be on the order of 90 feet. Since the LARWQCB's guidance document presents attenuation factors for distances of 80 and 100 feet, the attenuation factor for an 80-foot separation was used as a conservative approach in evaluating the threat to groundwater at the Site.

Based on these conservative assumptions, the Site-specific attenuation factor is 11. Therefore, the calculated MSSL is 55 μ g/kg. The maximum detected PCE concentration (9.32 μ g/kg) is significantly less than the calculated MSSL of 55 μ g/kg. Therefore, PCE does not appear to represent a significant risk to groundwater quality.

6.2 SOIL VAPOR ANALYTICAL RESULTS

The section presents the soil vapor survey analytical results. All soil vapor samples were analyzed for VOCs.

A summary of VOC analytical results in soil vapor is presented in Table 2. Four VOCs were detected in soil vapor throughout the sampled portions of the Site. Results are summarized as follows:

- PCE was detected in all 12 soil vapor samples at concentrations up to 35.2 µg/l (SV4-30').
- Trichloroethene (TCE) was detected in 4 of the 12 samples at concentrations up to $0.0832 \,\mu g/l$ (SV1-5').



- Trichlorofluromethane (FC-11) was detected in all 12 samples at concentrations up to 0.320 µg/l (SV2-30').
- Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) was detected in 3 of the 12 samples at concentrations up to $0.0912 \mu g/l$ (SV2-30').

In general, VOCs in soil vapor represent the potential for such compounds to infiltrate into indoor air and negatively impact breathable air for human receptors (vapor intrusion). VOCs in soil vapor were compared to commercial scenario California Human Health Screening Levels (CHHSLs) for sites without engineered fill (EPA, 2015). None of the detected VOC concentrations exceeded the commercial CHHSLs, with the exception of PCE. All of the detected PCE concentrations exceeded the commercial CHHSL of $0.60 \mu g/l$.

To determine if a significant risk to building occupants from vapor intrusion exists, a Johnson-Ettinger (JE) model run was compiled to quantify the potential vapor intrusion risk, as detailed below.

7.0 JOHNSON – ETTINGER VAPOR INTRUSION MODELING

The DTSC has developed a computer model for quantifying the risk of vapor intrusion into an existing or proposed structure from subsurface sources of contamination. This model was originally developed by EPA and modified by DTSC for use in dedicated commercial or residential settings. The JE model takes known soil vapor concentrations and provides an indication of whether these conditions might adversely impact workers exposed to the air space inside a structure. It uses standard human health risk factors and measured contaminant characteristics with common vapor migration algorithms.

The JE model is a one-dimensional analytical solution to diffusive and convective transport of volatile chemical vapor into indoor spaces made available by the EPA. The model provides a theoretical description of vapor intrusion from the subsurface into an indoor air space and relates vapor concentrations at a subsurface source to potential vapor concentrations in an enclosed air space. It was developed as a screening tool and has a number of inherent simplifying assumptions regarding contaminant distribution, subsurface characteristics, transport mechanisms, and building construction. The model assumes that isotropic homogeneous conditions adequately characterize the subsurface.

The model assumes an infinite contaminant source and that vapor flux through the subsurface occurs only by one-dimensional diffusion (upward) to the base of the building foundation. Diffusive flow through the subsurface is simulated using common vapor flux equations controlled by the assigned soil property variables. Convection carries the mass through simulated cracks and openings in the foundation into the structure. The convective sweep is caused by presumed air movement in the building from heating/cooling, stack, and wind effects. Both diffusive and convective transports are assumed to be uniform and steady state. The model does not account for attenuation factors such as biodegradation or sorption during transport to the base of the building.

The model treats the entire building as a single chamber with instantaneous and homogeneous vapor dispersion. It therefore neglects contaminant sinks and room to room variations in vapor concentrations due to unbalanced mechanical or natural ventilation. Once a representative concentration is determined, the vapor mass directly below the areal extent of the structure is presumed to enter the structure, and since the mass is considered infinite, steady state transport prevails and the intrusion rate remains constant. Therefore, the soil gas concentrations, the building ventilation rate and the soil gas flow rate into the building will determine the calculated indoor air concentrations.



7.1 JOHNSON - ETTINGER MODEL INPUT

There are several versions of the JE model including ones that use concentrations of volatile contaminants in groundwater and soil vapor to predict exposure risk within an enclosed air space. When soil vapor data are available, they can be directly entered into the model, providing the most direct and reliable calculation. The pertinent model for this exercise is named SG-SCREEN, which allows input of parameters for the soil gas concentrations, sampling depth and the soil permeability characteristics.

The DTSC offers two versions of the SG-SCREEN model: one for dedicated commercial applications, and one for residential applications. In this case, the Site has been evaluated for the commercial scenario.

7.1.1 SOIL VAPOR CONCENTRATIONS

Recent and historical soil vapor sampling results provide representative data for soil vapor conditions throughout the Site, and these data are adequate to estimate the health risks associated with such conditions for current occupants under a commercial scenario. To build a screening level model for the current on-Site structure in the northern portion of the property, the maximum detected concentration of PCE detected in soil vapor from a depth of 5 feet bgs within the footprint of the current structure was utilized. The concentration input in the model was as follows:

• PCE: 13.78 µg/l (SV6; CEC, 07/31/2015)

No other VOCs were detected in soil vapor samples collected within the building footprint.

7.1.2 SOIL PERMEABILITY AND SAMPLE DEPTH

The model allows input of the Site-specific soil type in the vadose zone and calculates values of permeability. Soils encountered during this investigation were generally described as poorly graded sand, silty sand, and sandy silt in the upper 5 feet. As a conservative approach, the soil type of Sand ("S" under the Natural Resources Conservation Service classification system) was used in the JE model.

Additionally, the model allows input of the sampling depth below surface. As soil vapors emanate upward into a structure, they may be attenuated by soils prior to interface with the structure. Thus, a greater distance between the vapor detection and the structure flooring may reduce vapor intrusion concentrations. Since the analytical data for the soil vapor probes set at 5 feet bgs were used in the model, the corresponding depth was used in modeling.

7.1.3 STRUCTURE DIMENSION

The model assumes default structural dimensions and ceiling heights.

The JE model inputs and calculations are presented in Appendix C.

7.2 JOHNSON - ETTINGER MODEL RESULTS

The results of the model provide an assessment of the exposure risk to humans in the structure, using accepted risk factors. Since the model is primarily a screening tool, it provides very conservative results. Accordingly, the acceptable exposure risk values are conservative. The acceptable cancer risk is 1×10^{-6} , and the acceptable Hazard Quotient (i.e., non-cancer risk) is 1. The calculated cancer risk and hazard quotient are presented below.



| Compound | Compound Input Concentration (µg/L) | | Hazard Quotient |
|----------------|--|----------------------|----------------------|
| РСЕ | 13.78 | 3.4×10 ⁻⁶ | 4.6×10 ⁻² |
| Acceptable Ris | k for Commercial Use | 1×10 ⁻⁶ | 1.0 |

Calculated Cancer and Hazard Risk from Soil Vapor Intrusion – Commercial Scenario

Notes:

PCE = *Tetrachloroethene*

 $\mu g/L = micrograms \ per \ liter$

The maximum soil vapor concentration of PCE collected at 5 feet bgs within the northernmost on-Site structure produced a calculated cancer risk from vapor intrusion that slightly exceeds the *de minimis* cancer risk threshold of 1×10^{-6} . However, the calculated risk is at the lower end of the Risk Management Range of 1×10^{-4} to 1×10^{-6} . Furthermore, in Andersen Environmental's professional experience with the local and applicable regulatory framework, the generally-accepted commercial and industrial site use cancer risk threshold is 1×10^{-5} .

DTSC's Vapor Intrusion Guidance states that in cases where a cancer risk between 1×10^{-6} to 1×10^{-4} is present, DTSC recommends an evaluation to determine if additional action is needed. An evaluation of vapor intrusion risk may include a review of all relevant data and exposure pathways, additional sampling, and/or consideration of the nature and toxicity of the contaminants present in order to determine if additional action is needed. To evaluate the vapor intrusion risk at the Site, a review of the pertinent Site conditions is presented below:

- There is no evidence that a primary source of PCE is present at the Site, and operations in which these chemicals were used have ceased. Thus, there is no potential for additional chemical mass to enter the subsurface from the Site.
- Vapor intrusion modeling using the JE model is, by design, a conservative risk assessment approach. Furthermore, the input parameters used in this evaluation were conservatively chosen to provide an even more conservative estimate of the risks associated with PCE in soil vapor beneath the on-Site structure. For example, the soil type S (sand) was used in the model even though much of the soil in the upper 5 feet is silty.

Based on these Site-specific conditions, mitigating factors, and calculated risk values, although a minimal cancer risk from vapor intrusion above the *de minimis* threshold may be present, the risk is not unacceptable for the current commercial Site use.

8.0 **DISCUSSION**

The section provides the current site understanding and details potential environmental concerns resulting from the subsurface investigation.

8.1 SOIL CONTAMINANT CONDITIONS

PCE was detected in only 2 of the 12 analyzed soil samples, and both of the detected concentrations were below the screening level for direct exposure. Additionally, all of the deeper soil samples from 15 feet to 30 feet bgs had no detectable concentrations of VOCs, indicating that the vertical extent of PCE contamination in soil has been adequately delineated.

PCE was detected in the 5-foot soil samples from borings AEB1 and AEB4 at concentrations of $9.32 \mu g/kg$ and $4.56 \mu g/kg$, respectively. These concentrations are well below the industrial RSL



 $(39,000 \ \mu g/kg)$ and the MSSL (55 $\mu g/kg$). Furthermore, PCE was not detected in the 15- and 30-foot samples from these borings. Although the source of PCE impact remains unclear, the residual concentrations do not represent an unacceptable risk to human health or the environment, and the extent of impact has been adequately delineated. Further, the ND concentrations in the 15- and 30-foot soil samples do not correlate with the soil vapor concentrations detected at those depths, potentially signifying that the vapors have migrated onto the Site from an off-Site source.

8.2 SOIL VAPOR CONTAMINANT CONDITIONS

Subsurface soil vapor is impacted with VOCs, primarily PCE and, to a lesser extent, TCE. Since the concentrations of PCE exceeded the commercial CHHSL, the JE model was used to further evaluate the potential risk to Site occupants under a commercial, mixed-use scenario. Based on the JE modeling results, the VOCs in soil vapor do not pose an unacceptable risk to Site occupants.

The lateral extent of PCE-impacted soil vapor has not been delineated to non-detectable concentrations either laterally or vertically. However, the results of this assessment indicate that the PCE concentrations in soil vapor generally increase with depth, which is inconsistent with soil concentrations that decrease to ND with depth. This suggests that there may be an off-Site source of impact that is unrelated to the PCE detected in shallow soil.

Regardless of the potential source of the soil vapor impacts, since the JE model results indicate that the risk to on-Site occupants under commercial use scenarios is within acceptable limits, no further delineation of the soil vapor contaminant plume is warranted.

9.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Andersen Environmental has performed a site characterization for the property located at 1024 Mateo Street; 2016 Bay Street; 2001, 2005, and 2025 Sacramento Street in Los Angeles, California. The assessment was based on the findings of the CEC Phase II ESA (dated August 31, 2015) performed at the Site. The scope of work was as follows:

- Four soil borings (AEB1 through AEB4) were advanced in the southern half of the Site, and select soil samples were analyzed for VOCs.
- Triple-nested soil vapor probes (SV1 through SV4) were installed in corresponding borings and sampled. All soil vapor samples were analyzed for VOCs.

The following are Andersen Environmental's conclusions based on the results of the assessment activities detailed herein:

- Shallow soil samples collected from two locations contained PCE at concentrations below the Industrial RSL and the MSSL. No other VOCs were detected in shallow soil, and VOCs were not detected in any of the 15- or 30-foot samples. Based on these results, PCE in soil does not represent a significant risk to future Site occupants or the environment.
- Four (4) VOCs were detected in one or more soil vapor samples collected from the Site. The detections included PCE (up to 35.2 µg/l, in SV4-30'), TCE (up to 0.0832 µg/l, in SV1-5'), FC-11 (up to 0.320 µg/l, in SV2-30'), and FC-12 (up to 0.0912 µg/l, in SV2-30'). In general, the VOC concentrations increase with depth, suggesting that they may be from an off-Site source.
- Using the DTSC's JE model to evaluate the risk to future Site occupants from vapor intrusion of VOCs, preliminary screening values were calculated for the three VOCs that were detected in one or more samples collected at 5 feet bgs. Based on the calculated cancer risk (3.3x10⁻⁶) and Hazard Quotient (4.7x10⁻²), VOCs in soil vapor do not represent an unacceptable health risk from



vapor intrusion to current or future Site occupants under a commercial use scenario. Additionally, given the minimal concentrations of VOCs detected in soil, it is unlikely that a significant VOC release has occurred on Site.

• Analysis of soil and soil vapor concentrations suggests that there may be an off-Site source of PCE vapors migrating onto the property. This potential is magnified considering the heavy industrial use of properties within the immediate Site vicinity.

The following are Andersen Environmental's recommendations based on the results of the assessment activities detailed herein:

- Based on the extent of soil impact, which appears to be limited to shallow soil (less than 10 feet deep) in localized areas of the Site, no further soil assessment is warranted at this time.
- Given the distribution of VOCs in soil vapor and the results of the JE model, no further soil vapor assessment is warranted.
- Given the potential for mass excavation and grading of the Site for the construction of an underground parking structure, Andersen Environmental recommends that extra care be taken during any excavation and grading work, since it is possible that residual VOCs may be encountered during Site redevelopment activities. Further, since PCE has been detected in subsurface soils, it should be noted that a waste profile will need to be established prior to soil being exported off-Site, and the soil will require transportation and disposal in accordance with federal, state, local, and tribal laws and regulations. Finally, appropriate measures should be taken to protect construction worker health and safety.



10.0 SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS, LIMITATIONS AND RELIANCE

This report has been prepared in accordance with generally-accepted environmental methodologies and industry standards as they relate to the Data Quality Objectives of the assessment. No warranties, expressed or implied, are made as to the professional services provided under the terms of Andersen Environmental's contract(s) or specified in this report. This assessment has been conducted, in part, based on information, data or reports provided or prepared by others. Andersen Environmental reviews and interprets these documents in good faith and relies that the provided data and documents are true and accurate.

Environmental conditions at the site were assessed or interpreted within the context of Andersen Environmental's contract(s) and existing environmental regulations of applicable jurisdiction(s) as of the date of the report. Regulatory requirements, regulations and guidance are subject to change subsequent to the date of the report. Unless otherwise stated in the report, evaluating compliance of past, present or future owners with applicable local, provincial and federal government laws and regulations was not included within the scope of the assessment.

The environmental assessment is limited by the availability of information at the time of the assessment. The conclusions and recommendations regarding environmental conditions presented in this report are based on a scope of work authorized by the Client. It is possible that unreported conditions impairing the environmental status of the site may have occurred which could not be identified. Andersen Environmental's opinions cannot be extended to portions of the site that were unavailable for direct access and observation reasonably beyond the control of Andersen Environmental or outside of the scope of the assessment. Environmental assessment activities, particularly the sampling of soil, vapor (air), groundwater and structure materials, represent those conditions which are present at the time of sampling within the immediate vicinity of the sample(s) collected. Although sampling plans are developed in an attempt to provide what is interpreted as sufficient coverage within the assessment area to achieve the investigative objectives, no extent of sampling can guarantee all environmental conditions, potential chemicals of concern (man-made or naturally occurring) and concentrations at which they occur have been identified and quantified absolutely. The assessment performed and outlined in this report was based, in part, upon visual observations of the site and attendant structures. It should be noted that compounds, materials or chemicals of potential concern other than those described could be present in the site environment, and the possibility remains that unexpected environmental conditions may be encountered at the site in locations not specifically investigated.

All components of this report, including but not limited to text, signatures, certifications, figures, tables, attachments, appendices, supporting documents and addenda are integral to the reporting of the assessment. This report may not be reproduced, except in full, without written approval of Andersen Environmental.

This report has been prepared for the sole use of Abrams and Taheri LLP. The contents should not be relied upon by any other parties without the express written consent of Abrams and Taheri LLP and Andersen Environmental.



11.0 SIGNATURES OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROFESSIONALS

This assessment has been conducted with the standards and level of care and skill exercised in such types of investigations, by qualified geologists, engineers, environmental scientists or environmental professionals, in conformance with generally-accepted industry standards and practices.

Prepared by:

Date: December 3, 2015



attichene

Diana L. Buchanan Professional Geologist No. 6297 Senior Project Manager

Reviewed and approved by:

Brian Martasin Professional Geologist No. 8356 Principal Geologist





Date: December 3, 2015

FIGURES







laefs02/current/AE 2015/Projects 2015/9836000640 1024 Mateo St 2016 Bay St 2001 2005 & 2025 Sacramento St LA CA 90021 Site Characterization/05 9836000640_Reports/2015-07 PII RptICAD

TABLES



Table 1: Volatile Organic Compounds in Soil Commercial Property

1024 Mateo Street; 2016 Bay Street; 2001, 2005, and 2025 Sacramento Street, Los Angeles, California 90021

| | | | EPA Method 8260B (μg/kg) | | |
|--------------|----------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|------------------------------|--|
| Sample ID | Sample Date | Sample Depth (ft bgs) | PCE | All Other 8260B VOC Analytes | |
| AEB1 | 11/13/15 | 5 | 9.32 | ND | |
| AEB1 | 11/13/15 | 15 | ND | ND | |
| AEB1 | 11/13/15 | 30 | ND | ND | |
| AEB2 | 11/13/15 | 5 | ND | ND | |
| AEB2 | 11/13/15 | 15 | ND | ND | |
| AEB2 | 11/13/15 | 30 | ND | ND | |
| AEB3 | 11/13/15 | 5 | ND | ND | |
| AEB3 | 11/13/15 | 15 | ND | ND | |
| AEB3 | 11/13/15 | 30 | ND | ND | |
| AEB4 | 11/13/15 | 5 | 4.56 | ND | |
| AEB4 | 11/13/15 | 15 | ND | ND | |
| AEB4 | 11/13/15 | 30 | ND | ND | |
| | Industrial RSL | | 39,000 | NE | |
| | MSSL | | 55 | NE | |

Notes:

µg/kg = micrograms per kilogram

ft bgs = feet below ground surface

VOCs = Volatile Organic Compounds

ND = Not Detected above laboratory detection limit

NE = Not Established for the suite of compounds

Regional Screening Level (United States Environmental Protection Agency, 2015)

MSSL = Maximum Soil Screening Level, based on a distance of 80 feet between soil and groundawater and a soil type of sand (Los Angeles

Regional Water Quality Control Board , 1996)



Table 2: Volatile Organic Compounds in Soil Vapor Commercial Property

1024 Mateo Street; 2016 Bay Street; 2001, 2005, and 2025 Sacramento Street, Los Angeles, California 90021

| | Probe Depth (ft bgs) | Date | Analytical Results (EPA Method 8260B, μg/l) | | | | | |
|------------------|----------------------------|------------|---|--------|--------|--------|---|---------------------------|
| ID | | | PCE | TCE | FC-11 | FC-12 | Leak Check Compound (1,1-Difluoroethane) | All Other VOC Analytes |
| SV1 | 5 | 11/17/2015 | 15.8 | 0.0832 | 0.0701 | ND | ND | ND |
| SV1 | 15 | 11/17/2015 | 20.4 | 0.0365 | 0.0856 | ND | ND | ND |
| SV1 | 30 | 11/17/2015 | 19.5 | ND | 0.133 | ND | ND | ND |
| SV2 | 5 | 11/17/2015 | 6.54 | ND | 0.0868 | ND | ND | ND |
| SV2 | 15 | 11/17/2015 | 15.8 | ND | 0.154 | ND | ND | ND |
| SV2 | 30 | 11/17/2015 | 29.3 | 0.0178 | 0.320 | 0.0912 | ND | ND |
| SV3 | 5 | 11/17/2015 | 4.56 | ND | 0.0256 | ND | ND | ND |
| SV3 | 15 | 11/17/2015 | 6.45 | ND | 0.0352 | ND | ND | ND |
| SV3 | 30 | 11/17/2015 | 6.02 | Р | 0.0352 | ND | ND | ND |
| SV3 (DUP) | 30 | 11/17/2015 | 5.94 | ND | 0.0420 | ND | ND | ND |
| SV4 | 5 | 11/17/2015 | 12.7 | 0.0196 | 0.0520 | ND | ND | ND |
| SV4 | 15 | 11/17/2015 | 26.9 | ND | 0.113 | 0.0671 | ND | ND |
| SV4 | 30 | 11/17/2015 | 35.2 | ND | 0.150 | 0.0872 | ND | ND |
| Commercial CHHSL | | | 0.6 | 1.8 | NE | NE | NE | NE |

Notes:

EPA = Environmental Protection Agency

µg/l = micrograms per liter

ft bgs = feet below ground surface

PCE= Tetrachloroethene

TCE = Trichloroethene

FC-11 = Trichlorofluromethane

FC-12 = Dichlorodifluoromethane

1,1-Difluoroethane = Leak Check Compound

ND = Not Detected at or above the detection limit

CHHSL = California Human Health Screening Level for Commercial/Industrial sites without engineered fill below sub-slab gravel (Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, 2010)

NE = Not established for the compound or suite of compounds



APPENDIX A

BORING LOGS WITH BOREHOLE COMPLETION DIAGRAMS



| ANDERSEN ENVIRONMENTAL | | | BORING LOG | BORING: AEBI (SVI | | | |
|--------------------------------|--------|---------------------|---|-------------------|---|--|-----------------------------|
| PROJECT NO.: 9836000 640 | | | | DATE(S | DRILLED: | PAGE OF | |
| PROJECT NAME: 1024 Mateo St | | | | LOGGEI | DBY: DS | START TIME: | END TIME: |
| PROJEC | | RESS: ateo St. L | los Angeles | | | DRILLING METHOD & RIG: | |
| DEPTH 1 | TO GRO | UNDWATER: | 3 | BOREH | DLE DIAMETER: | | LER NAME: |
| TERMIN | AL DEP | TH: 20.5' | | PID CAL | GAS/DATE: | SAMPLING METHOD: | |
| TIME | BC | SAMPLE ID | R SI DEPTH PID | USCS | LITHOLOGY | Acetate | COMPLETION |
| 1000 | | AEBI-S | -1 - 1 - 2 - 3 - 3 - 4 - 5 - 0. -6 - 6 - 7 - 8 - 8 - 9 - 9 | SM | 4" concrete Silty Sand, Sand is f damp, no odors or cli | ine, light brow scoloration | n, |
| 1005 | - | AEP 1- 10' | - 10- - 11- - 11- - 12- - 13- - 14- | 1 500 | silly Sand W/gravel, san damp, no odous or d | id is fine, light is colo ration | bhown, 10 11 12 13 |
| 1010 | • | AEB1-15 | - 15- - 15- - 16- - 17- - 18- - 19- | . DG | Decomposed gramite, tan, or discoloration | damp, no odor Sand is fine coars -graded sand | 5 |
| 1015 | | AEB1-20' | 0.4 | SW | damp, no odors or discol | oration | 20 |

BC - BLOW COUNT R - RECOVERY SI - SAMPLE INTERVAL
| PROJECT | ENVIRO | NMEN | TAL | | LOGGED | BY: | | | | | | |
|---------|--------------|--------|--|-----|--------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| 98 | 36000646 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1024 | Mateo St | | | | 102 | 1024 Mateo St | | | | | | |
| NOTES: | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| TIME | BC SAMPLE ID | R SI D | DEPTH Loo | PID | USCS | LITHOLOGY | COMPLETION | | | | | |
| 1020 | AEBI-25' | | 220 $22 - 22 - 23 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 22 -$ | 0.2 | SP | Poorly-grouded sand, sau brown, moist, no odors | to med nd if fine, tan/light or oliscolovation | | | | | |
| 1025 | AEBI-30 | | 29— | 0.6 | SP | Poorly graded Sand, Sar light brown, moist, no | odous or discoloration | | | | | |
| | | | - 31 — - 32 — - 33 — - 34 — - 35 — - 36 — - 37 — - 38 — - 39 — | | | terminated boring no gw encoù | intered | | | | | |

| ANDERSEN ENVIRONMENTAL | BORING LOG | BORING: AEBZ/SV2 | | | | |
|--|--|---|--|--|--|--|
| PROJECT NO.: 9836000640 | DATE(S) DRILLED: | | | | | |
| PROJECT NAME: 1024 Matco St | LOGGED BY: | START TIME: END TIME: | | | | |
| PROJECT ADDRESS: 1024 Matter St Los Angeles CA | | DRILLING METHOD & RIG: DPT - Truck | | | | |
| DEPTH TO GROUNDWATER: | BOREHOLE DIAMETER: | DRILLING CONTRACTOR / DRILLER NAME: | | | | |
| TERMINAL DEPTH: | PID CAL GAS/DATE: | SAMPLING METHOD: | | | | |
| TIME BC SAMPLE ID R SI DEPTH PID | USCS LITHOLOGY | Acetate | | | | |
| $ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | sp Poorly-graded sand, sa light brown, moist, no of Poorly-graded sand, sa light brown, moist; no odd Sp Poorly-graded sand, san light brown, moist, no odd | sand is fine, odors or discoloration nd is fine to medium ous or discoloration of is fine to medium, us or discoloration | | | | |
| 1137 AEB2-20 1.9 | SP light brown moist, no ode | and is fine, to medium 19 prs or discolorotrion 20 | | | | |

BC - BLOW COUNT R - RECOVERY SI - SAMPLE INTERVAL

| | Andersen Environmental | | | | | BORING LOG | BORING: AE B2/SV2 | | | | | | | |
|---------|---------------------------|------------|------------|-----|------------|---|----------------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| PROJECT | T NO.: | 0640 | | | OGGE | DBY: 11/13/15 DS | PAGE 2 OF 2 | | | | | | | |
| PROJEC | | Nateo St | | | PROJEC | TADDRESS: 4 Mateo St | 1: | | | | | | | |
| NOTES: | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| TIME | BC | SAMPLE ID | R SI DEPTH | PID | USCS | LITHOLOGY | COMPLETION | | | | | | | |
| - | | | - 21- | | • | | 21 | | | | | | | |
| | | 5 | | | - 1 | | 23 | | | | | | | |
| 1142 | ļ | AEB2-25' | -24- | 0.9 | SP | Poorly-graded sand, san | is fine | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | light Brown, moist, no adors or alscoloration | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | р I. | | 22 | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Ì | | | | | | | | | |
| 11117 | | AFR 2-30 | | 0.4 | SP | Poorly-graded sand w/g light brown, damp, no | gravel, sand is fire | | | | | | | |
| | | <u>nep</u> | | 0.4 | | terminated bor ho gw ence | ownfered | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | •, | 33 | | | | | | | |
| | | 9 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | , 1 | | | | | | 33 | | | | | | | |
| | , | | - 36- | | - | | | | | | | | | |
| - | 1 | | - 37 | | - | | | | | | | | | |
| | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 40- | | | - | | | | | | | | |

BC - BLOW COUNT R - RECOVERY SI - SAMPLE INTERVAL



BC - BLOW COUNT R - RECOVERY SI - SAMPLE INTERVAL

| | Andersen Environmental | | | | | BORING LOG | BORING: AEB3/SU3 |
|----------------------|---------------------------|-----------|------------|-----|-----------|--|------------------|
| PROJEC 183 | t no.: 6 000 | 640 | | | LOGGE | DBY: DS | PAGE OF |
| PROJEC | | ateo St | | | PROJEC | t address: 1 Matco St | |
| NOTES: | | , | | | | | |
| TIME | BC | SAMPLE ID | R SI DEPTH | PID | USCS | LITHOLOGY | COMPLETION |
| | | - | - 21 - | | | | 22 |
| | | | -23- | | | | 23 |
| 1255 | | AEB3-25' | - 24 - | 0.3 | DGy SP | y graded sound w/graver -24 no adars or discoloration -22 | |
| | | | | | - - | 26 | |
| | | | - 27 - | | | 27 | |
| | | ``` | - 28 | | | - | 28 |
| 1300 | | AEB3-30 | | | | | |
| | | | - 30- | | | | |
| | | | | | | turminated bonn no gw | encountered |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | - 36- | | | | |
| • | | | - 37- | | | <i>2</i> | |
| | | | - 38- | | | | |
| | | | 40- | | | | 39 |

BC - BLOW COUNT R - RECOVERY SI - SAMPLE INTERVAL

| [] | EANDERS | EN NMENTAL | | BORING LOG | BORING: AEBY /SV4 | | | |
|-------------|----------------------|---|------------------------------|--|---|-------------------|--|--|
| PROJECT NO | | | DATE(S) | DRILLED: | PAGE _ 1 | _OF_2 | | |
| PROJECT NA | Me: Mateo St | | LOGGED | BY: DS | START TIME: | END TIME: 1415 | | |
| PROJECT AD | DRESS: | os Anarles | | | DRILLING METHOD & RIG: | | | |
| DEPTH TO GR | ROUNDWATER: | | BOREHO | DLE DIAMETER: | | | | |
| TERMINAL DE | EPTH: | | PID CAL | GAS/DATE: | SAMPLING METHOD: | | | |
| TIME BO | SAMPLE ID | R SI DEPTH PI | D USCS | II / [3/ [S LITHOLOGY | COMPLETION | | | |
| 1355 | AEB4-10' AEB4-15' | $ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ $ | 1 5M .6 5M .6 5M .6 | Sandy Sill, Sand is, moist, no odons or d Sandy Sill, Sand is fi moist, no odors or Poorly-graded sand, su dan, no odors or dis | Fine, medium bio iscoloration ne, medium biou dis coloration and is fine, mi scoloration | orist, | | |
| 1405 | АЕВц-20 | - 18- - 19- 20- | -1 SP | Decomposed quanite/poon gravel, sand is fine to court | y graded sand t, gray, no od a | w/ /5 | | |

BC - BLOW COUNT R - RECOVERY SI - SAMPLE INTERVAL

| | ROJECT NO.: | | | | | | BORING LOG | BORING: AEB4/SV4 | | | | | | |
|-------------|------------------------|------------|----------------|-------------------------|--------|-------|--|-----------------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| PROJEC | T NO.: 3600 | 00640 | | | | LOGGE | DBY: DS | PAGE OF | | | | | | |
| PROJEC | | lateo st | | | | | t address: 4 Mateo St | | | | | | | |
| NOTES: P | rolox | ss set @ ! | 5 ¹ | (short) | 1, 15' | (me | :d), t 30' (10ng) | | | | | | | |
| TIME | BC | SAMPLE ID | RS | DEPTH | PID | USCS | LITHOLOGY | COMPLETION | | | | | | |
| | | | | - 21- - 22- - 23- | | • | - | 22 | | | | | | |
| • | ĺ | | | - 24 | | | well-graded Sand, san | d is fine to coarse, | | | | | | |
| 1410 | 1917 - 19 1977 - 19 | AEB4- 25 | | - 25- | 0.2 | รพ | tan, moist, no odors or discoloration. | | | | | | | |
| | | | | - 26 | | | | | | | | | | |
| ¥ . | | | | - 27 | | | | 20 | | | | | | |
| | | | | 28 | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | - 29- | | | Poorly-graded sand, sar | nd is fine to medium, | | | | | | |
| 1415 | | AEB4-30' | | - 30- | 0.2 | SP | tan, moist, no odos or | | | | | | | |
| | | | | - 31 | | | terminated bo | pring @ 30.5' | | | | | | |
| 5 | | | | - 32 - | | | no yu | | | | | | | |
| | | 0 | | - 33- | , | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | - 34 | В | | | | | | | | | |
| | Tr T | | | - 35- | E E | | - | 35 | | | | | | |
| | | | | - 36 | | | 11 | 36 | | | | | | |
| • • | | | | - 37- | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | - 38- | | | | 38 | | | | | | |
| | | | | - 39- 40- | | • | | 39 | | | | | | |

BC - BLOW COUNT R - RECOVERY SI - SAMPLE INTERVAL

APPENDIX B

LABORATORY REPORTS AND CHAIN-OF-CUSTODY DOCUMENTATION





781 East Washington Blvd., Los Angeles, CA 90021 (213) 745-5312 FAX (213) 745-6372

November 18, 2015

Ms. Diana Buchanan Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Report No.: 1511136 Project Name: 9836000640

Dear Ms. Diana Buchanan,

This report contains the analytical results for the sample(s) received under chain of custody(s) by Positive Lab Service on November 13, 2015.

The test results in this report are performed in compliance with ELAP accreditation requirements for the certified parameters. The laboratory report may not be produced, except in full, without the written approval of the laboratory.

The issuance of the final Certificate of Analysis takes precedence over any previous Preliminary Report. Preliminary data should not be used for regulatory purposes. Authorized signature(s) is provided on final report only.

If you have any questions in reference to this report, please contact your Positive Lab Service coordinator.

Project Manager



Page 2 of 23

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/13/15 **PLS Report No.: 1511136**

5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045 Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Andersen Environmental Inc.

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: AEB1-5' Soil (| 1511136-0 |)1) Sai | mpled: | 1/13/1 | 5 10:00 | Received | :11/13/15 1 | 5:10 | | | Seleta pres |
|--------------------------------------|-----------|---------|--------|----------------|---------|-----------|-------------|----------|------------|-----|-------------|
| Analyte | Results | Flag | D.F. | Units | PQL | Prep/T | est Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Ву | Batch |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chioromethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Acetone | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon disulfide | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-butyl aicohol | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Di-isopropyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinyl acetate | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2.2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromochioromethane | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroform | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.1.1-Trichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.1-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Benzene | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 2-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ца/ка | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | FPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2-Dicbloronropage | ND | | 1 | -9/ка на/ка | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromomethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 82608 | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| 1 4-Dioxane | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 82608 | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromodichloromethane | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chioroethyl vinyl ether | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1.3-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanope (MIBK) | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| Toluene | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1 3-Dichloropropene | ND | | î | uo/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 1 2-Trichloroetbane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | 932 | | 1 | ug/kg un/ka | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 3-Dichloropropape | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg ug/kg | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 2-Dibromoethane (EDB) | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chlorabenzene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | FPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| 1 1 1 2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/ko | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | FPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg ug/ka | 2.00 | EPA 50300 | FPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| m n-Yviene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg ug/ka | 2.00 | EPA SOSOD | FPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mh | BK51642 |
| myp Ayrene | NU | | Ŧ | uy/Ny | 2.00 | | | 11/17/1J | TT/ TJ/ TJ | and | 0101040 |



Page 3 of 23

Report Date: 11/18/15

PLS Report No.: 1511136

Submitted: 11/13/15

File #:74354

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: AEB1-5' Soil | (1511136-01) | Sampled: | 11/13/15 | 10:00 | Received: | 11/13/15 1 | 5:10 | | | |
|--------------------------------------|--------------|-----------|------------|---------|-----------|------------|----------|----------|----|---------|
| o-Xviene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Styrene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromoform (Tribromomethane) | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Isopropylbenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.1.2.2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2.3-Trichloropropane | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Propylhenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.3.5-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| tert-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2.4-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| sec-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.3-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Isonropyltoluene | ND | 1 | ua/ko | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.4-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) | ND | 1 | ug/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2.4-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Hexachlorobutadiene | ND | 1 | uq/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Naphthalene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 99.5 % | | 67-123 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 99.5 % | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 104 % | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Sample ID: AEB1-15' Soil | (1511136-02) |) Sampled | 1:11/13/15 | 5 10:10 | Received | 1:11/13/15 | 15:10 | | | |
| Analyte | Results F | lag D.F. | Units | PQL | Prep/Te | est Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Ву | Batch |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichiorofluoromethane (FC-11) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Acetone | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon disulfide | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-butyl alcohol | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Di-isopropyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinyl acetate | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2,2-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |



Page 4 of 23

Report Date: 11/18/15

PLS Report No.: 1511136

Submitted: 11/13/15

File #:74354

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: AEB1-15' S | oil (1511136-02) | Sample | d:11/13, | /15 10:1 | lo Receive | d:11/13/15 | 15:10 | | | |
|---------------------------------|------------------|--------|----------|----------|------------|------------|----------|----------|----|---------|
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromochloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroform | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,1-Trichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Benzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromomethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,4-Dioxane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromodichloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chloroethyl vinyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Toluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,2-Trichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Hexanone (MBK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | dm | BK51643 |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| m,p-Xylene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| o-Xylene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Styrene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromoform (Tribromomethane) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Isopropylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,3-Trichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Propylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| tert-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| sec-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Isopropyltoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,4-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DB | BCP) ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |



Page 5 of 23

Report Date: 11/18/15

PLS Report No.: 1511136

Submitted: 11/13/15

File #:74354

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: AEB1-15' Soil | (1511136 | -02) S | ampled | :11/13/: | 15 10:1 | 0 Receive | d:11/13/15 | 15:10 | | | |
|--------------------------------------|------------|--------|--------|----------|---------|-----------|------------|----------|----------|----|---------------------------------------|
| Hexachlorobutadiene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Naphthaiene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2.3-Trichlorobenzene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 99.7 % | | | 67-123 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 99.8 % | | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | тb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 102 % | | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Sample ID: AEB1-30' Soil | (1511136 | -03) S | ampled | :11/13/ | 15 10:2 | 5 Receive | d:11/13/15 | 15:10 | | | A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A |
| Analyte | Results | Flag | D.F. | Units | PQL | Prep/T | est Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Ву | Batch |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloromethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Acetone | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon disulfide | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-butyl alcohol | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Di-isopropyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinyl acetate | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2,2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromochloromethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroform | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,1-Trichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Benzene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromomethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,4-Dioxane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromodichloromethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chloroethyl vinyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Toluene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,2-Trichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |



Page 6 of 23

Report Date: 11/18/15

PLS Report No.: 1511136

Submitted: 11/13/15

File #:74354

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: AEB1-30' Soil | (1511136-03) | Sampled | :11/13/1 | 15 10:2 | 5 Received | 1:11/13/15 : | 15:10 | | | |
|--------------------------------------|--------------|----------|----------------|---------|------------|--------------|----------|----------|--------|---------|
| 1,3-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Hexanone (MBK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| m,p-Xylene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| o-Xylene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Styrene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromoform (Tribromomethane) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Isopropylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,3-Trichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Propylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| tert-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| sec-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Isopropyltoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,4-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trichiorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Hexachlorobutadiene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Naphthaiene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 100 % | | 67-123 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 99.9 % | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 99.6 % | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Sample ID: AEB2-5' Soil (| 1511136-04) | Sampled: | 11/13/1 | 5 11:22 | Received: | 11/13/15 1 | 5:10 | | | |
| Analyte | Results Flac | D.F. | Units | POL | Prep/Te | est Method | Prepared | Analyzed | By | Batch |
| Dicblorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | | <u> </u> | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (EC-11) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon disulfide | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 1-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-butyl alcohol | ND | 1 | -9/19 Uo/ka | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| care bacji disoriol | | - | -3113 | | | | , _ ,, | ,, | | |



Page 7 of 23

Report Date: 11/18/15

PLS Report No.: 1511136

Submitted: 11/13/15

File #:74354

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| | ~~~~ | | | | | | | | | |
|--------------------------------|--------------|----------|---------|---------|-----------|-------------|----------|----------|----|---------|
| Sample ID: AEB2-5' Soil | (1511136-04) | Sampled: | 11/13/1 | 5 11:22 | Received | :11/13/15 1 | 5:10 | | | |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Di-isopropy! ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinyl acetate | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2,2-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromochloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroform | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,1-Trichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Benzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromomethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,4-Dioxane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromodichloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chloroethyl vinyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1,3-Dichioropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Toluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,2-Trichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Hexanone (MBK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| m,p-Xylene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| o-Xyiene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Styrene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromoform (Tribromomethane) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Isopropylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,3-Trichioropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Propylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | dm | BK51643 |
| 4-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| tert-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |



Page 8 of 23

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/13/15 **PLS Report No.: 1511136**

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: AEB2-5' Soil (| 1511136-04) | Sample | d:11/13/1 | 5 11:22 | Received | :11/13/15 1 | 5:10 | | | |
|--|-------------|---------|----------------|--------------|-----------|-------------|----------|----------|-----------|---------|
| sec-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Isopropyitoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,4-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Hexachlorobutadiene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Naphthalene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA_8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 99.9 % | | 67-123 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | тb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 101 % | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 100 % | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Sample ID: AEB2-15' Soil | (1511136-05 | Sampl | ed:11/13/ | 15 11:3 | 2 Receive | d:11/13/15 | 15:10 | | | |
| Apaluto | Poculto E | lag D I | | | Dron/To | ect Method | Drenared | Applyzed | By | Batch |
| Analyte | Kesuits r | | | FQL | | | Frepareu | Analyzeu | Бу | Datui |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chioromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mp | BK51643 |
| Vinyi chioride (Chioroethylene) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51043 |
| Bromometnane (Methyl promide) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51043 |
| Chiproelhane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | niu | DK51043 |
| Inchioronuoromethane (FC-11) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 9.00 | EPA SUSUB | EPA 02000 | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | niu mb | DK51045 |
| ALEIONE Carbon disulfida | | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 02008 | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | DK51043 |
| 1 1 Disblereethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EDA E020B | | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | DK51045 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene Mothylong chlorida (Dichloromathana) | | 1 | ug/kg | 7.00 | EDA E020B | EPA 0200B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | DK51045 |
| Tort-bubil alcohol | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1.2-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg ug/kg | 20.0 4 nn | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methyl tort-bubyl other (MTBE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 1-Dichloroetbane | ND | 1 | ug/kg ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Di-isopropyl ether | ND | - 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinvl acetate | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2 2-Dichloronronane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1.2-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromochloromethane | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroform | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.1.1-Trichloroethane | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | 1 | uq/kq | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | uq/kq | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Benzene | ND | 1 | uq/kq | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromomethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,4-Dioxane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| | | | | | | | | | | |



Page 9 of 23

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/13/15 **PLS Report No.: 1511136**

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: AEB2-15' Soil | (1511136-05) | Sampled | :11/13/1 | 15 11:3 | 2 Receive | d:11/13/15 | 15:10 | en de la complete de | | |
|------------------------------------|--------------|---------|----------|---------|-----------|------------|----------|--|----|---------|
| Bromodichloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chloroethyl vinyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Toluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,2-Trichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tetrachioroethene (PCE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Hexanone (MBK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| m,p-Xylene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| o-Xylene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Styrene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromoform (Tribromomethane) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Isopropylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,3-Trichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Propylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| tert-Buty/benzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| sec-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Isopropyltoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,4-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Hexachlorobutadiene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Naphthalene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | _ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 102 % | | 67-123 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 100 % | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 102 % | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Sample ID: AEB2-30' Soil | (1511136-06) | Sampled | :11/13/1 | 15 11:4 | 7 Receive | d:11/13/15 | 15:10 | | | |
| Analyte | Results Fla | g D.F. | Units | PQL | Prep/T | est Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Ву | Batch |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| | | | | | | | | | | |



Page 10 of 23

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/13/15 **PLS Report No.: 1511136**

5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Andersen Environmental Inc.

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: AEB2-30' Soil | (1511136-06) | Sample | d:11/13, | /15 11:4 | 17 Receive | d:11/13/15 | 15:10 | | | |
|--------------------------------------|--------------|--------|------------------------|----------|------------|------------|-----------|-----------|----|---------|
| Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichlorofiuoromethane (FC-11) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Acetone | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon disulfide | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-butyl alcohol | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Di-isopropyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinyl acetate | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2,2-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromochloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroform | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.1.1-Trichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | тb | BK51643 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Benzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2-Dichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromomethane | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,4-Dioxane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromodichloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chloroethyl vinyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1.3-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Toluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1.3-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.1.2-Trichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.3-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Hexanone (MBK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2-Dibromoethane (EDB) | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.1.1.2-Tetrachioroethane | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| m.p-Xvlene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| o-Xvlene | ND | - 1 | ua/ka | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Styrene | ND | - 1 | , | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromoform (Tribromomethane) | ND | 1 | , | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Isopropylbenzene | ND | 1 | _ <i>э</i> ,э ца/ка | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromobenzene | ND | 1 | ца/ка | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| | 116 | - | -9/19 | | | | , - , - • | , - , - ~ | | |



Page 11 of 23

Report Date: 11/18/15

PLS Report No.: 1511136

Submitted: 11/13/15

File #:74354

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| | 7 | | | a 🖛 | | 1.44745745 | 15-40 | | | |
|---|--|--|---|---|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Sample 1D: AEB2-30' Soil | (1511136-06) | Sampled | 1:11/13/ | 15 11:4 | / Keceived | a:11/13/15] | 12:10 | | | |
| 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,3-Trichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Propylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| tert-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| sec-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Isopropyltoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,4-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Hexachlorobutadiene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Naphthalene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 100 % | | 67-123 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 101 % | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 101 % | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Sample ID: AEB3-5' Soil (| 1511136-07) | Sampled: | 11/13/1 | 5 12:35 | Received | 11/13/15 1 | 5:10 | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| Analyte | Results F | ag D.F. | Units | PQL | Prep/Te | est Method | Prepared | Anałyzed | Ву | Batch |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | Results F | ag D.F. 1 | Units ua/ka | PQL 4.00 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | Prepared 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 | By mb | Batch BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane | Results F | ag D.F. 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/ka | PQL 4.00 4.00 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinvl chloride (Chloroethylene) | Results F ND ND ND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 4.00 4.00 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) | Results F ND ND ND ND ND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | EST Method EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane | Results F ND ND ND ND ND ND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | EFA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | Results F ND ND ND ND ND ND ND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | Est Method EPA 82608 EPA 82608 EPA 82608 EPA 82608 EPA 82608 EPA 82608 | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) Acetone | Results F ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 80.0 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) Acetone Carbon disulfide | Results F ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 80.0 40.0 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | ET Method EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B EPA 8260B | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) Acetone Carbon disulfide 1.1-Dichloroethene | Results F ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 80.0 40.0 4 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | EPA 82608 EPA 82608 EPA 82608 EPA 82608 EPA 82608 EPA 82608 EPA 82608 EPA 82608 EPA 82608 EPA 82608 | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb mb mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) Acetone Carbon disulfide 1,1-Dichloroethene Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | Results F ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 80.0 40.0 4 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | EPA 82608 EPA 82608 | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) Acetone Carbon disulfide 1,1-Dichloroethene Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) Tert-butyl aicohol | Results F ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 80.0 40.0 4 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | ET Method EPA 82608 EPA 82608 | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) Acetone Carbon disulfide 1,1-Dichloroethene Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) Tert-butyl alcohol trans-1.2-Dichloroethene | Results F ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 80.0 4.00 80.0 40.0 4 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | ET Method EPA 82608 EPA 82608 | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) Acetone Carbon disulfide 1,1-Dichloroethene Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) Tert-butyl alcohol trans-1,2-Dichloroethene Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | Results F ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 80.0 4.00 20.0 20.0 20.0 4.00 4.00 4.00 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | ET Method EPA 82608 EPA 82608 | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) Acetone Carbon disulfide 1,1-Dichloroethene Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) Tert-butyl aicohol trans-1,2-Dichloroethene Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) 1,1-Dichloroethane | Results F ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 20.0 20.0 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | est Method EPA 82608 EPA 82608 | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) Acetone Carbon disulfide 1,1-Dichloroethene Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) Tert-butyl aicohol trans-1,2-Dichloroethene Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) 1,1-Dichloroethane Di-isoproovl ether | Results F ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 20.0 20.0 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | est Method EPA 82608 EPA 82608 | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichiorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) Acetone Carbon disulfide 1,1-Dichloroethene Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) Tert-butyl alcohol trans-1,2-Dichloroethene Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) 1,1-Dichloroethane Di-isopropyl ether Vinyl acetate | Results F ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 20.0 20.0 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | est Method EPA 82608 EPA 82608 | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) Acetone Carbon disulfide 1,1-Dichloroethene Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) Tert-butyl alcohol trans-1,2-Dichloroethene Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) 1,1-Dichloroethane Di-isopropyl ether Vinyl acetate Ethyl tert-butyl ether | Results F ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 40.0 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | est Method EPA 82608 EPA 82608 | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) Acetone Carbon disulfide 1,1-Dichloroethene Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) Tert-butyl alcohol trans-1,2-Dichloroethene Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) 1,1-Dichloroethane Di-isopropyl ether Vinyl acetate Ethyl tert-butyl ether 2,2-Dichloropropane | Results F ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | est Method EPA 82608 EPA 82608 | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) Acetone Carbon disulfide 1,1-Dichloroethene Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) Tert-butyl alcohol trans-1,2-Dichloroethene Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) 1,1-Dichloroethane Di-isopropyl ether Vinyl acetate Ethyl tert-butyl ether 2,2-Dichloropropane cis-1,2-Dichloroethene | ResultsFND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | est Method EPA 82608 EPA 82608 | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) Acetone Carbon disulfide 1,1-Dichloroethene Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) Tert-butyl alcohol trans-1,2-Dichloroethene Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) 1,1-Dichloroethane Di-isopropyl ether Vinyl acetate Ethyl tert-butyl ether 2,2-Dichloropropane cis-1,2-Dichloroethene 2-Butanone (MEK) | ResultsFND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | est Method EPA 82608 EPA 82608 | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | By mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) Acetone Carbon disulfide 1,1-Dichloroethene Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) Tert-butyl aicohol trans-1,2-Dichloroethene Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) 1,1-Dichloroethane Di-isopropyl ether Vinyl acetate Ethyl tert-butyl ether 2,2-Dichloropropane cis-1,2-Dichloroethene 2-Butanone (MEK) Bromochloromethane | ResultsFND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | est Method EPA 82608 EPA 82608 | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/ | By mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichiorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chioride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) Acetone Carbon disulfide 1,1-Dichloroethene Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) Tert-butyl aicohol trans-1,2-Dichloroethene Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) 1,1-Dichloroethane Di-isopropyl ether Vinyl acetate Ethyl tert-butyl ether 2,2-Dichloropropane cis-1,2-Dichloroethene 2-Butanone (MEK) Bromochloromethane | ResultsFND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg ug/kg | PQL 4.00 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | est Method EPA 82608 EPA 82608 | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/ | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/ | By mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 |
| Analyte Dichiorodifluoromethane (FC-12) Chloromethane Vinyl chioride (Chloroethylene) Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) Chloroethane Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) Acetone Carbon disulfide 1,1-Dichloroethene Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) Tert-butyl aicohol trans-1,2-Dichloroethene Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) 1,1-Dichloroethane Di-isopropyl ether Vinyl acetate Ethyl tert-butyl ether 2,2-Dichloropropane cis-1,2-Dichloroethene 2-Butanone (MEK) Bromochloromethane Chloroform 1,1,1-Trichloroethane | ResultsFND | ag D.F. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | Units ug/kg | PQL 4.00 | Prep/Te EPA 5030B EPA 5030B | est Method EPA 82608 EPA 82608 | Prepared 11/14/15 11/14/ | Analyzed 11/14/15 11/14/ | By mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb mb | Batch BK51643 |



Page 12 of 23

Report Date: 11/18/15

PLS Report No.: 1511136

Submitted: 11/13/15

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

Project: 9836000640

| Carbon Ltstachloride ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82008 11/14/15 11/14/15 II/14/15 II | Sample ID: AEB3-5' Soil | (1511136-07) | Sampled: | 11/13/15 | 5 12:35 | Received | :11/13/15 | 15:10 | | | and Courtesting |
|--|-----------------------------------|--------------|----------|----------|---------|-----------|-----------|----------|----------|--------|-----------------|
| 1,1-belokogroppene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82308 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,2-belokrocebane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82308 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,2-belokrocebane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82308 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,2-belokrocebane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82308 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,-belokrocebane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82308 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 2-chloroseby/un/eleme ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82308 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 2-chloroseby/un/eleme ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82308 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 2-chloroseby/un/eleme ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82308 11/14/15 11/14 | Carbon tetrachloride | ND | 1 | ug/kġ | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Benzone ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA 82308 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Trichloroethere (TCE) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82308 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Ja-Dichloroporbane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82308 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Ja-Dickloroporbane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82308 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Scondichloromethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82308 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 2-Chloroschyl (rind eher ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82308 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 2-Chloroschyl (rind eher ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82308 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1-1,2-Dichloropropen ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82308 11/14/15 11 | 1,1-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2-Dickhoreghane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 PA 50308 PFA 52608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RS1643 1.2-Dickhoropropane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 PFA 53308 PFA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RS1643 1.2-Dickhoropropane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 PFA 53308 PFA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RS1643 1.4-Dickane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 PFA 53308 PFA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RS1643 2-Charochtv/km/2-pentanone (MBK) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 PFA 53308 PFA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RS1643 1.1.2-Tricthoropropene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 PFA 53308 PFA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RS1643 1.1.2-Tricthoropropene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 PFA 53308 PFA 82208 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RS1643 1.1.2-Tricthoropropene ND 1 ug/kg 4. | Benzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | тb | BK51643 |
| Trichtorechere (TCE) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 5208 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RK51643 Dibromomethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82068 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RK51643 Dibromomethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82068 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RK51643 2-Chloreschy wird eher ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82068 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RK51643 2-Chloreschy wird eher ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82068 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RK51643 1-1,2-Trichtorechane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82068 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RK51643 1-1,2-Trichtorechane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82068 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | 1,2-Dichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-bickhoropropane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 50208 I/1/4/15 I/ | Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromomethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 83036 EPA 82068 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RKS1643 1.4-Dioxame ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 83036 EPA 82068 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RKS1643 2-Chloracethy/inpleter ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 83036 EPA 82068 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RKS1643 2-Chloracethy/inpleter ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82036 EPA 82068 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RKS1643 1.12,-Trichionoropropene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82036 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RKS1643 1.12,-Trichionoropropene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82038 EPA 82068 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RKS1643 1.12,-Trichionoropropane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82038 EPA 82068 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 11/14/15 | 1,2-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,4-Dioxane ND 1 ug/kg 80.00 EPA 82030 EPA 82030 1/1/4/15 1/1/4/15 mb RK51643 2-chlonechty vinyl ether ND 1 ug/kg 40.0 EPA 82030 EPA 82060 1/1/4/15 1/1 | Dibromomethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bronncichloromethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 83036 EPA 82068 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RKS1643 2-Chloroschy wing ether ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 83036 EPA 82068 11/14/15 | 1,4-Dioxane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chloroethyl winyl ether ND 1 ug/kg 40.0 EPA 8030B EPA 80 | Bromodichloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cbc-1,3-Dichloropropene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 8200B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Toluene ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA 8200B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Toluene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 8200B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Tarta-Liorosthene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 8200B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Tetrachlorosthene (PCE) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 8200B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RK51643 2-Hoxanone (MBK) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8200B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RK51643 2-Hoxanone (MBK) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8200B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RK51643 1,1,2-Tetrachiomethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 8030B | 2-Chloroethyl vinyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Hettryl-2-pertanone (MIBK) ND 1 ug/kg 20.0 PEA 5030B PEA 5200B 1/1/1/1/15 1/1/1/15 Interval Toluene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 PEA 5030B PEA 5200B 1/1/1/15 1/1/1/1/15 1/1/1/15 1/1/1/1/15 | cis-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| $ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $ | 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-13-Dichloropropene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 52008 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,1,2-Tritchioroethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,3-Dickhoropropane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 2-Hexance (MBK) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Dibromochioromethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2-Ditromoethane (EDB) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,1,2-Tetrachioroethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 n,2-Ditrochioroethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50 | Toluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,2-Trichkoroethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 52038 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 IND BKS1643 1,3-Dichloropropane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 II/14/15 | trans-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tetrachicrosethene (PCE)ND1 ug/kg 4.00EPA 8208 $11/14/15$ | 1,1,2-Trichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3-Dichloropropane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 2-Hexanone (MBK) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,2-Dibromethane (DBB) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 extylence ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Bromoform (Tribromomethane) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Bromoform (Tribromomethane) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA | Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Hexanone (MBK) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Dibromochiorentane (EDB) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Chiorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Li,1,2-Tetrachloroethane ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 m,p-Xylene ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 o-Xylene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Bromoform (Tribromomethane) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 < | 1,3-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromochioromethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2-Dibromochtane (EDB) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Chiorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Chiorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 m,p-Xylene ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Styrene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Bromoberzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Bromoberzene | 2-Hexanone (MBK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dibromeethane (EDB) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Chlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 L1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 m,p-Xylene ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 o-Xylene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Styrene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Isopropylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,2-Tetrachoroethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 | Dibromochloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 2508 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 m,p-Xylene ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 o-Xylene ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 o-Xylene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Bromobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 J,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 J,1,2,2-Tetracholor | 1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA \$2008 EPA \$2608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Ethylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA \$2008 EPA \$2608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 o-Xylene ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA \$2008 EPA \$2608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Styrene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA \$2008 EPA \$2608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Bromoform (Tribromomethane) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA \$2008 EPA \$2608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Bromobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA \$2008 EPA \$2608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,1,2,2-Tetrachioroethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA \$2008 EPA \$2608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 2,2-Chiorotoluene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA \$2008 EPA \$2608 | Chiorobenzene | NÐ | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA 50308 EPA 52088 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 m,p-Xylene ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Styrene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Bromoform (Tribromomethane) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Isopropylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Isopropylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 n,r-ropylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,2,2-Tritrisch | 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| m,p-Xylene ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 o-Xylene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Styrene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Bromoform (Tribromomethane) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Bromobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,1,2,2-Trichloropropane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 2-Chlorotoluene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,2,2-Trinethylbenzene ND 1 | Ethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| o-Xylene ND 1 ug/kg 2.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Styrene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Isopropylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Bromohenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,2,3-Trichloropropane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 2-Chlorotoluene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50308 EPA 82608 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene ND< | m,p-Xyiene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Styrene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Bromoform (Tribromomethane) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Isopropylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Bromobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 2-Chorotoluene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,2,5-Trimethylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 <t< td=""><td>o-Xylene</td><td>ND</td><td>1</td><td>ug/kg</td><td>2.00</td><td>EPA 5030B</td><td>EPA 8260B</td><td>11/14/15</td><td>11/14/15</td><td>mb</td><td>BK51643</td></t<> | o-Xylene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromoform (Tribromomethane)ND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK51643IsopropylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK51643BromobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,1,2,2-TrichloroptopaneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,3-TrichloroptopaneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK516432-ChlorotolueneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,3,5-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,3,5-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,3,2-ChlorotolueneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,4-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,3-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,4-Dichlorobenze | Styrene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Isopropylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 Bromobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,2,3-Trichloropropane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 n-Propylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 2-Chlorotoluene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,2,3-Trimethylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BKS1643 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene | Bromoform (Tribromomethane) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| BromobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,1,2,2-TetrachloroethaneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,2-TrichloropropaneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK51643n-PropylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516432-ChlorotolueneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516434-ChlorotolueneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,3,5-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,4-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,3-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,4-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,4-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,4-DichlorobenzeneND </td <td>Isopropylbenzene</td> <td>ND</td> <td>1</td> <td>ug/kg</td> <td>4.00</td> <td>EPA 5030B</td> <td>EPA 8260B</td> <td>11/14/15</td> <td>11/14/15</td> <td>mb</td> <td>BK51643</td> | Isopropylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,3-Trichloropropane ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 n-Propylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 2-Chlorotoluene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2-Dichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B </td <td>Bromobenzene</td> <td>ND</td> <td>1</td> <td>ug/kg</td> <td>4.00</td> <td>EPA 5030B</td> <td>EPA 8260B</td> <td>11/14/15</td> <td>11/14/15</td> <td>mb</td> <td>BK51643</td> | Bromobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,3-TrichloropropaneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK51643n-PropylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516432-ChlorotolueneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516434-ChlorotolueneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,3,5-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,4-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,4-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,4-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,3-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,4-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-Dichlorobenzene< | 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-PropylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516432-ChlorotolueneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516434-ChlorotolueneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,3,5-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,4-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,4-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,4-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,4-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,3-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,4-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-Dichlorobenzene< | 1,2,3-Trichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chlorotoluene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 4-Chlorotoluene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,3-Dichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2-Dichlorobenzene < | n-Propylbenzene | ND | 1 | uq/kq | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-ChlorotolueneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,3,5-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK51643tert-ButylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,4-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,3-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,3-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,4-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-Dichlorobenzene | 2-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | uq/kq | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3,5-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK51643tert-ButylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,4-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK51643sec-ButylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,3-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK516434-IsopropyltolueneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 50308EPA 8260811/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-A-Trichlorobenzene< | 4-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | uq/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| tert-ButylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,4-TrimethylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK51643sec-ButylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,3-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516434-IsopropyltolueneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,4-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)ND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,4-TrichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,4-TrichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,4-Tric | 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 sec-Butylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,3-Dichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 4-Isopropyltoluene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,4-Dichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2-Dichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2-Dichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 503 | tert-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| sec-Butylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,3-Dichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 4-Isopropyltoluene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,4-Dichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,4-Dichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2-Dichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2-Dichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 | 1.2.4-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516434-IsopropyltolueneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,4-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK51643n-ButylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)ND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,4-TrichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,4-TrichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK51643HexachlorobutadieneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK51643NaphthaleneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,3-TrichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,3-Trichloroben | sec-Butvlbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Isopropyltoluene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,4-Dichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2-Dichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 n-Butylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Hexachlorobutadiene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 50 | 1.3-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,4-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-DichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK51643n-ButylbenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)ND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,4-TrichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK51643HexachlorobutadieneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK51643NaphthaleneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,3-TrichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,3-TrichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,3-TrichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,3-TrichlorobenzeneND1ug/kg4.00EPA 5030BEPA 8260B11/14/1511/14/15mbBK516431,2,3-Trich | 4-Isopropyltoluene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 n-Butylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Hexachlorobutadiene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Naphthalene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B< | 1.4-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Butylbenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Hexachlorobutadiene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Naphthalene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 </td <td>1.2-Dichlorobenzene</td> <td>ND</td> <td>1</td> <td>ua/ka</td> <td>4.00</td> <td>EPA 5030B</td> <td>EPA 8260B</td> <td>11/14/15</td> <td>11/14/15</td> <td>mb</td> <td>BK51643</td> | 1.2-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Hexachlorobutadiene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Naphthalene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 | n-Butvlbenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Hexachlorobutadiene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Naphthalene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 | 1.2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Hexachlorobutadiene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 Naphthalene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 | 1.2.4-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Naphthalene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 | Hexachlorobutadiene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene ND 1 ug/kg 4.00 EPA 5030B EPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb BK51643 | Naphthalene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| | 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane 101 % 67-123 FPA 5030B FPA 8260B 11/14/15 11/14/15 mb RK51643 | Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 101 % | | 67-127 | | FPA 5030B | FPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mh | BK51643 |

File #:74354



Page 13 of 23

Report Date: 11/18/15

PLS Report No.: 1511136

Submitted: 11/13/15

File #:74354

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: AEB3-5' Soil (| (1511136- | 07) Sa | mpled: | 11/13/1 | 5 12:35 | Received: | 11/13/15 1 | 5:10 | | | |
|--------------------------------------|-----------|-----------------|--------|----------------|---|-----------|------------|----------|----------|----|---------|
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 100 % | anitia in desia | | 80-120 | <u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u> | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 103 % | | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Sample ID: AEB3-15' Soil | (1511136 | -08) S | ampled | :11/13/ | 15 12:4 | 5 Receive | d:11/13/15 | 15:10 | | | |
| Analyte | Results | Flag | D.F. | Units | PQL | Prep/Te | est Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Ву | Batch |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloromethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Acetone | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon disulfide | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methviene chioride (Dichloromethane) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-butyl alcohol | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Di-isopropyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinvl acetate | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2.2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1.2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromochloromethane | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroform | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.1.1-Trichloroethane | ND | | ī | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.1-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Benzene | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2-Dichioroethane | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromomethane | ND | | 1 | ,э µa/ka | 4.00 | FPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 4-Dioxane | ND | | 1 | ца/ка | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromodichloromethane | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chloroethyl vinyl ether | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1 3-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentapone (MIBK) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Toluene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1 3-Dichloropropena | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 1 2-Tricbloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg ug/kg | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 3-Dichloropropage | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Hevanone (MBK) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg ua/ka | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | FPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg ug/kg | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | FPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| 1.2-Dibromoethane (EDB) | | | 1 | ug/kg ug/kg | 4 00 | | EPA 8760P | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51642 |
| | | | - | ug/kg ug/kg | 4 00 | | EDV 822000 | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51642 |
| CHIOLOBEITZEITE | ND . | | T | uy/Ky | ·+.00 | LLY 20200 | LEA 02000 | 77/74/73 | 12/17/13 | un | 0101040 |



Page 14 of 23

Report Date: 11/18/15

PLS Report No.: 1511136

Submitted: 11/13/15

File #:74354

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: AEB3-15' Soil | (1511136-08) | Sampled | :11/13/ | 15 12:4 | 15 Received | 1:11/13/15 | 15:10 | | | |
|--------------------------------------|--------------|---------|-----------------|---------|-------------|------------|----------|----------|----|---------|
| 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| m,p-Xylene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| o-Xylene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Styrene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromoform (Tribromomethane) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Isopropylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,3-Trichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Propylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| tert-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| sec-Butylbenzene | NÐ | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Isopropyltoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,4-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dibromo-3-chioropropane (DBCP) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Hexachlorobutadiene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Naphthalene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 101 % | | 67-123 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 101 % | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 100 % | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/14/15 | 11/14/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Sample ID: AEB3-30' Soil | (1511136-09) | Sampled | :11/13/ | 15 13:(| 0 Received | 1:11/13/15 | 15:10 | | | |
| Analyte | Results Fla | g D.F. | Units | PQL | Prep/Te | est Method | Prepared | Analyzed | By | Batch |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloromethane | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinvi chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 50308 | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroethane | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | ND | 1 | uo/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Acetone | ND | ĩ | ua/ka | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon disulfide | ND | 1 | uo/ka | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 1-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | uo/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | FPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | 1 | uo/ka | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-bubil alcohol | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1 2-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | FPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTRE) | ND | 1 | uo/ka | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 1-Dichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg un/ka | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| | ND | 1 | ug, kg ug/kg | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| Vinvl acetate | ND | · 1 | ug/ka | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| any accure | , 1 | - | -91-9 | | | | | | | |



Page 15 of 23

Report Date: 11/18/15

PLS Report No.: 1511136

Submitted: 11/13/15

File #:74354

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: AEB3-30' Sc | oil (1511136-09) | Sample | d:11/13/ | 15 13:0 | 0 Receive | d:11/13/15 | 15:10 | NON COLOR OF STREET | | 99903111070 1997 |
|------------------------------------|------------------|--------|----------------|---------|-----------|------------|----------|---------------------|------------|---------------------|
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2.2-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1.2-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromochloromethane | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroform | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.1.1-Trichloroethane | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 1-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ua/ko | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Benzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2-Dichloroethane | ND | 1 | un/kn | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | FPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | Ť | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2-Dichloropropage | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| Dibromomethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| 1.4-Diovano | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| r,-Dioxane Bromodichloromethane | | 1 | ug/kg uo/ka | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chlorosthyl vinyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cic 1.2 Dichloropropaga | ND | 1 | ug/kg ug/ka | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4 Motbyl 2 postapopo (MTRK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Teluene | ND | - | ug/kg uo/ka | 2.00 | EPA 50308 | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans 1.2 Dichleropropona | ND | 1 | ug/kg ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 50308 | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 1 2 Tricklessethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EDA 50300 | EDA 9760B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BY51643 |
| Tetra - Levesthere (DCC) | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EDA EUSUB | EPA 82600 | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 2 Distriction | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | | EPA 02000 | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | DKJ104J |
| | | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | | EDA 97600 | 11/15/15 | 11/13/13 | mb | DKJ1043 |
| Z-Hexanone (MBK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4 00 | | EDA 92600 | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | DKJ104J |
| | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | | | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | (IID mb | DK51045 |
| 1,2-Dibromoetnane (EDB) | ND | 1 | ug/ky | 4.00 | | EDA 02000 | 11/13/13 | 11/15/15 | mb | DKEICAD |
| | ND | 1 | ug/ky | 4.00 | | EPA 02000 | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | DK51043 |
| 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 0200D | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | DK51043 |
| Etnyibenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | | EPA 02000 | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | DK51043 |
| m,p-Xylene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2,00 | EPA 5030B | | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | 1110 mb | DK51643 |
| o-Xylene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2,00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | din mp | DK51043 |
| Styrene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 82608 | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | din 4 | DK51043 |
| Bromoform (Tribromomethane) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 62000 | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | DK51043 |
| Isopropyibenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 50308 | | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | DK51043 |
| Bromobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51043 |
| 1,1,2,2-Tetrachioroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 50308 | EPA 8200B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51043 |
| 1,2,3-Trichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 50308 | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mD | BK51043 |
| n-Propylbenzene | • ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mD | BK51643 |
| 2-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mD | BK51043 |
| 4-Chlorotoiuene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mo | BK51643 |
| 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mo | BK51643 |
| tert-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mo | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| sec-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Isopropyltoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,4-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |



Page 16 of 23

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/13/15 **PLS Report No.: 1511136**

Los Angeles, CA 90045 Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Andersen Environmental Inc.

5261 West Imperial Highway

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: AEB3-30' Soil | (1511136-0 | 9) | Sampled | :11/13/1 | L5 13:0 | 0 Received | d:11/13/15 | 15:10 | | | |
|--------------------------------------|--------------|--------------------|---------|-------------------------|--------------|------------|------------|----------|-----------------|-----------|---------|
| n-Butylbenzene | ND | ana an an Anno - F | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Hexachlorobutadiene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Naphthalene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,3-Trichiorobenzene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 99.5 % | | | 67-123 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 99.5 % | | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | тb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 102 % | | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | <i>11/15/15</i> | mb | BK51643 |
| Sample ID: AEB4-5' Soil (| (1511136-10) |) S | ampled: | 11/13/1 | 5 13:50 | Received: | 11/13/15 1 | 5:10 | | | |
| Analyte | Results | Flag | D.F. | Units | PQL | Prep/Te | est Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Ву | Batch |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloromethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Acetone | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon disulfide | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-butyl alcohol | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1.2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | uq/kq | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.1-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Di-isopropyl ether | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinvl acetate | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2.2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1.2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ua/ko | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | | 1 | ua/ko | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromochloromethane | ND | | 1 | ua/ko | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroform | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.1.1-Trichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | | 1 | - <i>э,</i> нэ ца/ка | 4.00 | FPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 1-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | - <i>э,</i> нэ ца/ка | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Benzene | ND | | 1 | ua/ka | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 2-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 82608 | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | | 1 | ug/kg ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 2-Dichloropropage | ND | | 1 | ug/kg ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromomothano | ND | | 1 | ug/kg ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51642 |
| 1 4-Diovano | ND | | 1 | ug/kg ug/kg | 90.0 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,4-Dioxaile Bromodishloromothana | ND | | 1 | ug/kg ug/kg | 4 00 | EPA 5030B | EDA 92600 | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | DK31043 |
| a chloroothul vind other | | | 4 | uy/Ky ug/kg | 40 0 | EDA E020D | EFA 02000 | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | 11U mb | DK31043 |
| z-chloroechyl vinyl ether | | | 1 | uy/Kg | 40.0 | | | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | שתו | DK51043 |
| CIS-1,3-DICHIOTOPROPENE | ND | | 1 | uy/Kg | 4.00 | EPA 2030B | EPA 02000 | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | ind E | DK51043 |
| 4-mennyi-2-pentanone (MBBK) | | | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8200B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | am a | DK51043 |
| IOWERE | ND | | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8200B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | am | BK51043 |



Page 17 of 23

File #:74354

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

Project: 9836000640

| Sample ID: AEB4-5' Soil | (1511136-10) | Sampled: | 11/13/15 | 13:50 | Received | 11/13/15 1 | 5:10 | | | |
|----------------------------------|----------------|-----------|-------------|-------|-----------|------------|----------|----------|----|---------|
| trans-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,2-Trichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | 4.56 | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.3-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Hexanone (MBK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2-Dibromoethane (EDB) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.1.1.2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | uq/kq | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| m.p-Xvlene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| o-Xvlene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Styrene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromoform (Tribromomethane) | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Isopropylbenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.1.2.2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 2 3-Trichloronronane | ND | - 1 | ;; μα/kα | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Propylbenzene | ND | - 1 | ; | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 3 5-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| tert-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2.4-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| sec-Bub/henzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.3-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Isonronyltojuene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.4-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1 2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBC | P) ND | 1 | uo/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2.4-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | uo/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Hexachlorobutadiene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Naphthalene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2.3-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | <i>98.7 %</i> | | 67-123 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 98.7 % | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 103 % | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Sample ID: AEB4-15' So | il (1511136-11 |) Sampled | :11/13/1 | 14:00 | Receive | d:11/13/15 | 15:10 | | | |
| Analyte | Results | Flag D.F. | Units | PQL | Prep/Te | est Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Ву | Batch |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) | ND | 1 | ug/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroethane | ND | 1 | uq/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | ND | 1 | ug/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Acetone | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon disulfide | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| - | | | | | | | - | | | |

Report Date: 11/18/15

PLS Report No.: 1511136

Submitted: 11/13/15



Page 18 of 23

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/13/15 **PLS Report No.: 1511136**

5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045 Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Andersen Environmental Inc.

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: AEB4-15' Soil | (1511136-11) | Sample | d:11/13, | /15 14:0 | 0 Receive | d:11/13/15 | 15:10 | | | |
|--------------------------------------|--------------|--------|----------|----------|-----------|------------|----------|----------|----|---------|
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-butyl alcohol | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Di-isopropyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinyl acetate | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2,2-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromochloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroform | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,1-Trichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichioropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Benzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromomethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,4-Dioxane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromodichloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chloroethyl vinyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Toluene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1.3-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.1.2-Trichloroethane | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.3-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Hexanone (MBK) | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2-Dibromoethane (EDB) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.1.1.2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| m,p-Xvlene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| o-Xvlene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Styrene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromoform (Tribromomethane) | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Isopropyibenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.1.2.2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2.3-Trichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Propylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| | | | | | | | | | | |



Page 19 of 23

Report Date: 11/18/15

PLS Report No.: 1511136

Submitted: 11/13/15

File #:74354

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| | 5.4 C 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 | -A | 441457 | | A | | * 17- * 4 | | | |
|--------------------------------------|---|---------|----------|---------|-----------|------------|-----------|----------|----|---------|
| Sample ID: AEB4-15' Soil | (1511136-11) | Sampled | :11/15/. | 15 14:0 | u keceive | 0:11/13/15 | 12:10 | | | |
| 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| tert-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| sec-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Isopropyltoluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,4-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichlorobenzene | NÐ | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Hexachlorobutadiene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Naphthalene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 99.7 % | | 67-123 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 103 % | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 100 % | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Sample ID: AEB4-30' Soil | (1511136-12)- | Sampled | :11/13/ | 15 14:1 | 5 Receive | d:11/13/15 | 15:10 | | | |
| Analyte | Results Flag | g D.F. | Units | PQL | Prep/T | est Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Ву | Batch |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Acetone | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon disulfide | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-butyl alcohol | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 20.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Di-Isopropyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Vinyl acetate | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2,2-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromochloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | dm | BK51643 |
| Chloroform | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,1-Trichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Benzene | ND | 1 | ug/ka | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |



Page 20 of 23

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/13/15 **PLS Report No.: 1511136**

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: AEB4-30' Soil | (1511136-12 | :) Sample | d:11/13/ | 15 14:1 | 5 Receive | d:11/13/15 | 15:10 | | | |
|------------------------------------|-------------|-----------|----------|---------|-----------|------------|-----------------|----------|-----------|----------|
| 1,2-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromomethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,4-Dioxane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 80.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromodichloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chloroethyl vinyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| cis-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Toluene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| trans-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,2-Trichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Hexanone (MBK) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 40.0 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| m,p-Xylene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| o-Xylene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 2.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Styrene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromoform (Tribromomethane) | ND | 1 | uq/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Isopropylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Bromobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,2,3-Trichloropropane | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Propylbenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 2-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 4-Chlorotoluene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| tert-Butylbenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| sec-Butvlbenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | FPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| 1.3-Dichlorobenzene | ND | - 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | FPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| 4-Isopropyltoluene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mh | BK51643 |
| 1.4-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| n-Butvibenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) | ND | - 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2.4-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | \$1/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Hexachlorobutadiene | ND | 1 | ug/kg | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | | BK51643 |
| Naphthalene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| 1.2.3-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/ka | 4.00 | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 08 7 % | - | 67-172 | | EDA EN70P | EDA 97600 | | | | 0401010 |
| Currenter Teluene de | 102.01 | | 07-123 | | LFA 30300 | LFA OZOUB | 11/13/13 | 11/15/15 | <i>mD</i> | DA.31043 |
| Surroyale: Toluene-av | 102 % | | 80-120 | | EPA SUSUB | EPA 8260B | 11/15/15 | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 103 % | | 80-120 | | EPA 5030B | EPA 8260B | <i>11/15/15</i> | 11/15/15 | mb | BK51643 |



Page 21 of 23

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/13/15 **PLS Report No.: 1511136**

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

Project: 9836000640

Quality Control Data

| | | | | Spike | Source | | %REC | | RPD | |
|--------------------------------------|--------|------|-------|-------|------------------|--------|--------------|-----|-------|---------------------------------------|
| Analyte | Result | POL | Units | Level | Result | %REC | Limits | RPD | Limit | Oualifier |
| | | | | | henderstand (11) | | or nonintidi | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| Batch BK51643 - EPA 5030B | | | | | | | | | | |
| Blank Prepared & Analyzed: 11/14/15 | | | | | | •••••• | | | | |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Chloromethane | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Chloroethane | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Acetone | ND | 80.0 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Carbon disulfide | ND | 40.0 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | 20.0 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Tert-butyl alcohol | ND | 20.0 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | • |
| Di-isopropyl ether | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Vinyl acetate | ND | 40.0 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 2,2-Dichloropropane | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| cis-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | 40.0 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Bromochloromethane | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Chloroform | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 1,1,1-Trichloroethane | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 1,1-Dichloropropene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | D | | | |
| Benzene | ND | 2.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 1,2-Dichloroethane | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | ~ ! | |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 1,2-Dichloropropane | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Dibromomethane | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 1,4-Dioxane | ND | 80.0 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Bromodichloromethane | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 2-Chloroethyl vinyl ether | ND | 40.0 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| cis-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | 40.0 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Toluene | ND | 2.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| trans-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 1,1,2-Trichloroethane | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | ·· |



Page 22 of 23

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/13/15 **PLS Report No.: 1511136**

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

Project: 9836000640

Quality Control Data

| | | | | Spike | Source | | %REC | | RPD | |
|------------------------------------|--------|------|-------|-------|--------|---------|--------|------------------|-------|---------------|
| Analyte | Result | PQL | Units | Level | Result | %REC | Limits | RPD | Limit | Qualifier |
| Batch BK51643 - EPA 5030B | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | ND | 4.00 | uq/kq | | | | | | | |
| 1,3-Dichloropropane | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 2-Hexanone (MBK) | ND | 40.0 | ug/kg | | | | | a man ana ki ali | | |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 1,1,1,2-Tetrachioroethane | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | 2.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| m,p-Xylene | ND | 2.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| o-Xylene | ND | 2.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Styrene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Bromoform (Tribromomethane) | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Isopropylbenzene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Bromobenzene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 1,2,3-Trichloropropane | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| n-Propylbenzene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 2-Chlorotoluene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 4-Chlorotoluene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| tert-Butylbenzene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | · · | |
| sec-Butylbenzene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | - | |
| 1,3-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | 18.55 http:// | | |
| 4-Isopropyltoluene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | 1978 da a com |
| 1,4-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 1,2-Dichlorobenzene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| n-Butylbenzene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Hexachlorobutadiene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| Naphthaiene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | |
| 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene | ND | 4.00 | ug/kg | | | | | | | **** |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 10.2 | | ug/kg | 10.00 | | 102 | 67-123 | | | |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 10.0 | | ug/kg | 10.00 | | 100 | 80-120 | | | |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 10.2 | | ug/kg | 10.00 | | 102 | 80-120 | | | |
| LCS Prepared & Analyzed: 11/14/15 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | 19.3 | 4.00 | ug/kg | 20.00 | | 96.6 | 69-139 | | | |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | 17.5 | 4.00 | ug/kg | 20.00 | | 87.4 | 64-127 | | | |
| Benzene | 17.5 | 2.00 | ug/kg | 20.00 | | 87.5 | 69-130 | | | · |
| | | | | | | · · · · | | | | 1.26.00 |



Page 23 of 23

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/13/15 PLS Report No.: 1511136

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

Project: 9836000640

| | | Qual | lity Contr | ol Data | l | | | | | |
|------------------------------------|------------------|----------------|------------|---------|--------|-------------|-----------------|-------|-------|-----------|
| | | | | Spike | Source | | %REC | | RPD | |
| Analyte | Result | PQL | Ünits | Level | Result | %REC | Limits | RPD | Limit | Qualifier |
| Batch BK51643 - EPA 5030B | | | | | | | er por de las d | | | |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | 17.6 | 4.00 | ug/kg | 20.00 | | 88.0 | 68-133 | *. * | | |
| Toluene | 16.9 | 2.00 | ug/kg | 20.00 | | 84.4 | 70-130 | | | |
| Chlorobenzene | 17.6 | 4.00 | ug/kg | 20.00 | | 88.2 | 73-120 | | | |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 9.80 | | ug/kg | 10.00 | | 98.0 | 80-120 | | | |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 10.2 | | ug/kg | 10.00 | | 102 | 80-120 | | | |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 10.1 | | ug/kg | 10.00 | | 101 | 80-120 | | | |
| Matrix Spike Source: 1511136-04 P | repared & Analyz | ed: 11/15/15 | | | | | | | | |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | 42.5 | 4.00 | ug/kg | 40.00 | ND | 106 | 64-139 | | | |
| Benzene | 38.6 | 2.00 | ug/kg | 40.00 | ND | 96.5 | 66-132 | | | |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | 40.8 | 4.00 | ug/kg | 40.00 | ND | 102 | 64-134 | | | |
| Toluene | 35.8 | 2.00 | ug/kg | 40.00 | ND | 89.5 | 60-135 | - dag | | |
| Chlorobenzene | 36.6 | 4.00 | ug/kg | 40.00 | ND | 91.5 | 61-129 | | | |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 10.2 | | ug/kg | 10.00 | | 102 | 79-120 | | | |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 9.85 | | ug/kg | 10.00 | | 98.5 | 80-120 | | | |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 10.3 | | ug/kg | 10.00 | | 103 | 80-120 | | | |
| Matrix Spike Dup Source: 1511136-0 | 4 Prepared & A | nalyzed: 11/15 | 6/15 | | | | | | | |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | 42.1 | 4.00 | ug/kg | 40.00 | ND | 105 | 64-139 | 1.11 | 30 | |
| Benzene | 38.2 | 2.00 | ug/kg | 40.00 | ND | 95.6 | 66-132 | 1.02 | 30 | |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | 40.0 | 4.00 | ug/kg | 40.00 | ND | 100 | 64-134 | 1.78 | 30 | |
| Toluene | 35.2 | 2.00 | ug/kg | 40.00 | ND | 88.0 | 60-135 | 1.75 | 30 | |
| Chlorobenzene | 35.4 | 4.00 | ug/kg | 40.00 | ND | 88.6 | 61-129 | 3.28 | 30 | |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 10.4 | | ug/kg | 10.00 | | 104 | 79-120 | | | |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | <i>9.97</i> | | ug/kg | 10.00 | | <i>99.7</i> | 80-120 | | | |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 10.0 | | ug/kg | 10.00 | | 100 | 80-120 | | | |

Notes and Definitions

NA Not Applicable

ND Analyte NOT DETECTED at or above the detection limit

NR Not Reported

MDL Method Detection Limit

PQL Practical Quantitation Limit

Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program Certificate No. 1131, Mobile Lab No. 2534, LACSD No. 10138

Authorized Signature(s)

| POSITIVE CHAIN OF CUSTODY AND ANALYSIS REQU Lab SERVICE ZRI Ent Washington Bird, Los Angeles, CA 90021 Los BOC Mile Project Name/No. 973_6000 L40 Los BOC Szul u Impernial Project Name/No. 973_6000 L40 Los BOC Mile Project Name/No. 973_6000 L40 Mile Szul u Impernial Project Name/No. 973_6000 L40 Mile Mile Desi Calgado Cara Angeles All Mine Desi Calgado Cara Angeles All Mile Desi Calgado Cara Angeles All Manager, Parana Mile Cara Angeles All Mile Desi Calgado Cara Angeles All Mile Desi Calgado Cara Angeles All | 93865 | DATE: 11/13/15 PAGE 1 OF 3 | K NO. FILE NO. LAB NO. 1910 | P.O. NO. | ALYSES REQUESTED: COOLER TEMP: 1-2. | PRESERVATIVE: | REMARKS: | | | | SAMPLE CONDITION/ CONTAINER /COMMENTS: | | Ногр | | Hold | > | | | Hord | | Hord | Time210 SAMPLE DISPOSITION: 1. Samples returned to client? YES NO | 2. Samples will not be stored over 30 days, unless | Time: 3. Storage time requested: days | |
|---|-----------------|----------------------------|---|--------------------------|-------------------------------------|------------------------|--------------|--------------------------------|----------------------------------|-----------|---|----------|---------|----------|---------|----------|----------|---------|-----------|----------|----------|--|--|--|--|
| POSITIVE CHAIN OF CUSTODY AND TABLE Services TABLE SERVICE 231 States Washington BNUL, Los Angeles, CAS ME: Audersea, Environeuneurial Project Name/No. 7 83.6000 Szul u Impeorial HUU, Los Angeles PROJECT Name/No. 7 83.6000 Szul u Impeorial HUU, Los Angeles PROMAL Szul u Impeorial HUU, Los Angeles PROMAL MAINE Desi Same day; Los Angeles MAINE Desi Same day; Los Angeles MAINE Desi Same day; Los Angeles MAINE Desi Same day; Last HUU; Last H | Old SIM INIA HI | ND ANALYSIS REQ | 0021 LOG BOG | ولهم و | AI | NO: | | 3:72-hour | | | OTHER TAT # TYPE | 3 1 P X | 3 1 P | 3 I P > | 3 - P | 9 - P | 3 1 P X | 3 1 P X | 2 I E | - 2 X | 3 p | (1) ¹⁵ /1 | 71 1, 31,5- | Date: | |
| POSITIVE CHA ME: Auderseu Environmental 231745-5312 ME: Auderseu Environmental 231745-5312 Szel u Imperial Huy, Los Arg 2745-5312 Szel u Imperial Phuy, Los Arg 2745-5312 MMAIAGER: D'ana Buchanan PHON MAME Szel u Imperial Buchanan PHON 231745-5312 MANE: Auderseu Environmental 231745-5312 Szel u Imperial Phuy, Los Arg 249 MME: Encore day: 1 = 24 Hour; 241404 Rittel Turn Around Time) 0 = Same day; 1 = 24 Hour; Rittel Turn Around Time) 0 = Same day; 1 = 24 Hour; Rittel Turn Around Time) 0 = Same day; 1 = 24 Hour; Rittel Sample Sample Sample Sample Description 2000 MAR: Environ Around Time) 0 = Same day; 1 = 24 Hour; Rittel Sample Sample Sample Sample Sample Sample Description 2000 MI 13/15 1000 AEB1-52 Part Name 1005 AEB1-52 I 102 AEB1-52 1 I 112 AEB1-25 1 I 112 AEB2-10 1 I 112 AEB2-15 1 I 113 AEB2-15 1 I 113 AEB2-15 1 I 113 AEB2-15 1 I 113 AEB2-25 1 <td></td> <td>VIN OF CUSTODY AN</td> <td>ington Blvd., Los Angeles, CA 9 2 FAX (213) 745-6372</td> <td>Project Name/No. 9836000</td> <td>eles</td> <td>E NO: 310-354-6300 FAX</td> <td>Cignature)</td> <td>2 = 48 Hour; (Etc.) N = NORMAL</td> <td>lastic, V = VOA Vial, 0 = Other:</td> <td></td> <td>TION MATER SOIL SLUDGE</td> <td>×</td> <td>×</td> <td>X</td> <td>×</td> <td>×</td> <td>×</td> <td>×</td> <td>×</td> <td>×</td> <td>× (</td> <td>d By: (Signature and Printegratiame)</td> <td>o By (Signatures and Primed Name)</td> <td>d By: (Signature and Printed Name)</td> <td></td> | | VIN OF CUSTODY AN | ington Blvd., Los Angeles, CA 9 2 FAX (213) 745-6372 | Project Name/No. 9836000 | eles | E NO: 310-354-6300 FAX | Cignature) | 2 = 48 Hour; (Etc.) N = NORMAL | lastic, V = VOA Vial, 0 = Other: | | TION MATER SOIL SLUDGE | × | × | X | × | × | × | × | × | × | × (| d By: (Signature and Printegratiame) | o By (Signatures and Primed Name) | d By: (Signature and Printed Name) | |
| POSIT LAB SER LAB SER MIE: Andersen En 52.01 W Impen MANAGER: Diana B MANAGER: DIANA B MANA | | | VICE 781 East Wash (213) 745-5312 | inon mental | But Huy, Los Ang | uchanan PHON | Desi Salgado | 0 = Same day; 1 = 24 Hour; | = Encore, G = Glass, P = PI | al ID# | SAMPLE DESCRIP | AEBI-5' | AEBI-10 | AEBI-15' | AEB1-20 | AEBI-25' | AEB1-30' | AE82-51 | AE 82-10' | AE82-15' | AE82-261 | alado Received | Regende | Repaired | |
| ME: Ande S2201 & MANAGER: NAME | | S | 3 SER | rsen Enu | Impen | Diana B | | und Time) | 3 = Brass, E | N - Globi | TIME | 1000 | 1005 | 1010 | 1015 | 1020 | 1025 | 1122 | 1127 | 1132 | 1137 | Printed Name) | Printed Name) | Printed Name) | |
| | | | LAF | ME: Ande | 5261 W | MANAGER: | NAME: | ical Turn Aro | R TYPES: 1 | ct: Y | DATE | 11/13/15 | | | | | | | | | ~ | y: (Signeture and | y: (Signature and | ly: (Signature and | |

PRESERVATIVE: 1-HN03. 2-H2S04. 3-HCL. 4-Zinc Acetate. 5-NaUH, 6-NH4 Butter, /-Utner

| | | | | | | | | | | | | 8 | | | 93866 | |
|----------|-----------------------|--------------|---------------|-------------------|---|-----------------------------|---------------------|--------------|-------|------------------|--------|------------|---------------------------------|--------------------------------------|---|-----|
| | | Cd | LIS | | CHAIN OF | CUSTO | IDY AI | ND AN | VALY | SIS R | EQU | EST | 11/12/15 | (L | 2 2 2 | |
| | | | SER | VICE (213) | East Washington Blvc 745-5312 FAX (213 | l., Los Ang. 1) 745-6372 | eles, CA 9 | 30021 | | LOG | BOOK | NO. | FILE NO. | LAB NO. | 1911 (36 | 1 1 |
| 5 | CLIENT NAME: | Ander | Sen Envi | von mental | Project Nar | ne/No. 98 | 36000 | 0190 | | | | | P.O. NO. | 4 | AIRBILL NO: | |
| 2 | ADDRESS: 52 | M 19 | Imperia | 1 Huy, Los 1 | Angeles | | | | | | ANA | LYSES REQU | ESTED: | | COOLER TEMP: / · 7 | 4 |
| | PROJECT MAN | IAGER: [| Diang B | uchanan | PHONE NO. 310-1 | 554-h31 | 50 FAX | : NO: | | | | | | | PRESERVATIVE: | |
| 15 | SAMPLER NAM | ij | | Desi Salgad. | °, | Signature | Q | 4 | | | (9 | | | kalos | REMARKS: | |
| 8 | TAT (Analytical 1 | Turn Arou | Ind Time) | 0 = Same day; 1 = | 24 Hour; 2 = 48 Hour | ;; (Etc.) N = | NORMAL | 2.1 | 14 2 | | 0978 | | | | | |
| 3 | CONTAINER TY | PES: B | s = Brass, E | = Encore, G = Gla | ss, P = Plastic, V = V | VOA Vial, C |) = Other | | | | (10) | | | | | |
| 5. | UST Project: | ΥN | l - Globa | 11 ID# | | | | ļ | | | 5 11mg | | | | | |
| 0 | SAMPLE C NO. SAI | DATE | TIME | SAMPLE | DESCRIPTION | WATER SC | MATRIX NL SLUDGE | OTHER . | TAT C | ONTAINER TYPE | SOV | | | | SAMPLE CONDITION/ CONTAINER /COMMENT | in |
| ~ | 11 11 | 13/15 | 2411 | AE B2-25 | | | × | | 2 | ۵_ | | | | | Hord | |
| 2 | 21 | | ГНЛ | AEB2-30 | | | X | | M | ۵_ | × | | | | | 1 |
| რ | 13 | | 1235 | AEB3-S' | | ~ | ~ | | M | A | × | | | | | 1 |
| 4 | Jų | | 1240 | AEB3-101 | | × | ~ | | 3 | 2 | | | | | Houp | 1 |
| Ŋ | ন | | 12HS | AEB3-151 | | <u></u> | × | | ~ | 4 | × | | | | | 1 |
| ø | 16 | | 1250 | AEB3-201 | - | | × | | ~ | 2 | | | | | Hord | |
| 2 | L. | | 1255 | AEB3-25' | | ~ | × | | 2 | 9 | | | | | * | 1 |
| 00 | 81 | | 13.60 | AE63-30 | | - | × | | 5 | 9 | × | | | | | 1 |
| ດ | اط | | 1320 | AEB4-S' | | | × | | M | 0 | × | | | | HoLD | |
| 10 | 20 | -> | 1355 | AEB4-10' | | 4 | × | | 3 | 9 | | | | | - | |
| | Pelinquished By Sig | inature aper | Printed Name) | i Salaado | Received By: (Signative | and Punted Na | ame) | | | 11/13. | 15- | UN: CID | SAMPLE DISPO 1. Samples retu | SSITION: rned to client? | YES NO | |
| | Relinquished By: (Sig | Mature and F | Printed Name) | > | Received BY: (Signature | and Printed Ne | ame) | | | In Plate | 71/5 | P / Sull | 2. Samples will a | not be stored or rade time is rec | ver 30 days, unless nuested. | |
| | Relinquished By: (Sig | jnature and | Printed Name) | | Received By Signature | and Printed No | ame) | | | Date | 55 | Time: | 3. Storage time | requested: | | ays |
| | SPECIAL INSTI | RUCTION | SN: | | | | | | | | | | By | 2 | Date | Ĩ |
| | PRESERVATIV | (E: 1-HN | V03, 2-H2SI | 04, 3-HCL, 4-Zinc | c Acetate, 5-NaOH | , 6-NH4 E | Suffer, 7- | Other | | | | | - | LAE | з сорү | |

| | | | | | | | | | | | | ũ | | | | | 93868 | |
|------------|-----------------|------------------|---------------|---------------------------|--------------------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------|-----------|------|------------------|---------------|----------|----------|-----------------------------|-------------------------------------|--------------------------------|-----------------------------|-----|
| | | 20 | TIS | IVE | CHAIN OF | CUST | VOOV. | AND / | ANAL | YSIS | REQL | JEST | DATE: | 11/13/15 | | AGE 3 | OF 3 | |
| | E | LAB | SER | VICE (213) 7. | st Washington Blv 45-5312 FAX (21 | d., Los An 3) 745-63: | geles, C 72 | A 90021 | | ΓC | JG BOOI | K NO. | E | LE NO. | LAB 1 | NO. [51 | 130 | Ŷ |
| | LIENT NAN | VIE: Ande | rsen En | vironmental | Project Na | tme/No. | 18360 | 2006 | 10 | | | | P.(| . NO. | | AIRBILL | NO: | |
| | VDDRESS: | 5261 W | Imperio | 20] ifmy! In | Angeles | | | | | | AN | ALYSES F | REQUEST | ġ | | COOLER . | TEMP: 1. P | 1 1 |
| 1 | ROJECT N | IANAGER: 1 | Diana B | suchanan | PHONE NO: 31 | 0-824-0 | 300 | AX NO: | | | | | | | | PRESERV | ATIVE: | 1 |
| 1 05 | AMPLER N | IAME: | | Desi Salga | do C | (Signature | R | 2 | | | 0 | 0 | | | | REMARK | ĩõ | |
| 1. | TAT (Analytic | cal Turn Arou | Ind Time) | $0 = Same day; 1 = 2^{4}$ | 4 Hour; 2 = 48 Hoi | ur; (Etc.) N | = NORM | IAL | | | 2076 | 1000 | | | | | | |
| | CONTAINER | TYPES: B |) = Brass, E | = Encore, G = Glass | i, P = Plastic, V = | · VOA Vial, | 0 = 0th | ler: | | | 8,00 | 0) 1000- | | | | | | |
| 1 | JST Projec | τY | V - Globi | al ID# | | | 1 | | | | - II.Q. | Lant | | | ä | | | |
| 1 | SAMPLE NO. | DATE | TIME | SAMPLE DE | SCRIPTION | WATER | MATRIX SOIL SLU | DGE OTHER | TAT | CONTAINI # TY | | 200 | | | | SAMPLE (CONTAINI | CONDITION/ ER /COMMENTS: | 1 |
| , <u> </u> | 12 | 11/D/15 | 1400 | AEB4-IS' | | | × | | 3 | - | X | | | | | | | 1 |
| N N | 22 | _ | 140S | AEB4-20' | | | X | | m | - | 0 | | | | | Aord | | 1 |
| ന | 23 | | 01410 | AEB4-25' | | | × | | m | - | 0 | | | | | > | | 1 |
| 4 | 24 | > | IHIS | AEBH-30 | | | X | | 3 | - | × | | | | | | | 1 |
| ιΩ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | L |
| 6 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | I. |
| ~ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 1 |
| റ | | | | | | | | | | | _ | | | | | | | I |
| 10 | | | | | 5 | 0 | | | | | | | | | | | | 1 |
| | Relinquished By | Signature and | Printed Name) | J. | Received By: (Signatu | re Ind Printed | Name) | | | 11 | 910: 13/15 | - Time: | /n | AMPLE DISI . Samples re | POSITION: sturned to clier | nt? YES | NON | |
| 1 | Relingershed By | : (Signature and | Printed Name) | 0 | Baceiyed By: Gignatu | re and Printed | Name) | | | 11/1 | ate: 3/,5 | Time: | 2 | . Samples w additional s | ill not be store storage time is | ed over 30 day s requested. | /s, unless | |
| | Relinquished By | c (Signature and | Printed Name) | | Heceived by: (Signatu | re and Franced | Namej | | | ž | ale. | 200 | 0 | . Storage tim | ne requested: | | days | Ś |
| 0.55 | SPECIAL IN | ISTRUCTIO | NS: | | | | | | | | | | <u> </u> | - A | | | Date | 4 |
| - | ANARSARVA | TINF- 1-HN | ND3 2-H2S | 304. 3-HGL 4-Zine | Acetate. 5-NaO | H. 6-NH4 | Buffer. | 7-0the | 2 | | | | | | | AB COPY | | |



781 East Washington Blvd., Los Angeles, CA 90021 (213) 745-5312 FAX (213) 745-6372

November 18, 2015

Client Name: Andersen Environmental Project Name: 9836000640 – 1024 Mateo St., Los Angeles, CA Report Nos. : 1511160

This letter details a soil vapor investigation done by Positive Lab Service (PLS) for Andersen Environmental on November 17, 2015.

PLS was contracted to perform a soil vapor survey at 1024 Mateo St., Los Angeles, CA. The objective of the investigation was to determine if soil vapor contamination was present and the possible source area(s) of any contamination in the subsurface soil.

Scope of Work

A total of four triple-nested sampling locations were tested for soil gas analysis. The locations had probes at depths of 5ft., 15ft., and 30ft. bgs. The collected vapor samples were analyzed onsite using PLS mobile laboratory.

Sampling Method

Samples at each location were taken from exiting vapor probes using a vacuum pump. The recommended time for vapor probe stabilization was allowed before any purging was done. The pump was set to draw 200ml/min of soil vapor at a maximum vacuum of 100" of water. The pump was attached to the vapor well with tubing and drawn into a glass sampling bulb. New tubing and bulbs were used at each location to prevent cross contamination. A material blank using ambient air was collected and tested to identify any background contamination. Leak tests were performed using 1, 1-Difluoroethane at each sample location to determine if any leaks existed in the vapor well. The presence of 1, 1-Difluoroethane at or above 0.150 ug/l was reported in compliance with the Active Soil Gas Investigation Advisory, July 2015.

All of the sample probes produced adequate flow and samples were collected using three purge volumes per Active Soil Gas Investigation Advisory, July 2015. Sampling rates, volumes, and pressures were recorded in a daily log and submitted to the client.

Sample Analysis

Samples were immediately analyzed upon collection using a Hewlett Packard model 5890 Series II Plus gas chromatograph equipped with a 5972 series mass spectrometer detector (GC/MS) utilizing a purge and trap method. The GC/MS used a J & W Scientific DB-624 column. A



Tekmar LSC 2000 purge and trap concentrator connected to an Archon autosampler was used to purge the sample for desorbtion onto the GC/MS system. Samples were loaded individually and autosampler sequencing was not used in processing samples. Sample results were collected on a PC using HP Chemstation software for data handling. Surrogate additions were added as part of the purging process. The calibration was performed using liquid standards that were converted to a vapor phase. The calibration was verified by two second source standards, one a converted liquid standard and the other a commercial vapor phase standard.

Results

The soil vapor results are listed in report number 1511160.

Quality Assurance

Calibration, Continuing Calibration Verification(s), and Second Source Calibration Verification standards were analyzed in accordance with the Active Soil Gas Investigation Advisory, July 2015. Laboratory Blank, Laboratory Control Sample, and Field Replicate results were included in the sample report. The Laboratory Replicate was not requested by the client.

Disclaimer

Information in this letter is solely derived from information gathered by PLS during the soil gas survey of November 17, 2015. Soil gas testing by PLS is a screening tool and PLS advises the recipient of this report to confirm any regulatory limits with the appropriate authorities before using the PQLs provided.


781 East Washington Blvd., Los Angeles, CA 90021 (213) 745-5312 FAX (213) 745-6372

November 18, 2015

Ms. Diana Buchanan Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Report No.: 1511160 Project Name: 9836000640 - 1024 Mateo St., LA, CA

Dear Ms. Diana Buchanan,

This report contains the analytical results for the sample(s) received under chain of custody(s) by Positive Lab Service on November 17, 2015.

The test results in this report are performed in compliance with ELAP accreditation requirements for the certified parameters. The laboratory report may not be produced, except in full, without the written approval of the laboratory.

The issuance of the final Certificate of Analysis takes precedence over any previous Preliminary Report. Preliminary data should not be used for regulatory purposes. Authorized signature(s) is provided on final report only.

If you have any questions in reference to this report, please contact your Positive Lab Service coordinator.

Project Manager



Page 2 of 16

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/17/15 **PLS Report No.: 1511160**

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| | Sample ID: SV1-5' (3 Purges |) Air (: | 1511160-0 | L) | Sampled: | 11/17/ | 15 07:59 | Received:11/ | 17/15 15:05 | 5 | | |
|---|--------------------------------------|----------|-----------|-----------|----------|--------|-----------|--------------|-------------|----------|-----------|---------|
| | Analyte | Results | Flag | D.F. | Units | PQL | Prep/1 | Fest Method | Prepared | Analyzed | By | Batch |
| _ | 1,1-Difluoroethane (DFA) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Chloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | 0.0701 | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Acetone | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 1,1-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Methylene chioride (Dichloromethane) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 1.1-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 2,2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | cis-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | | 1 | uq/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| | Chloroform | ND | | 1 | uq/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 1.1.1-Trichloroethane | ND | | 1 | uq/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| | Carbon tetrachloride | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 1.1-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Benzene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 1.2-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Trichloroethene (TCE) | 0.0832 | | 1 | uq/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 1.2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | cis-1.3-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0500 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| | Toluene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| | trans-1.3-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | uo/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 1.1.2-Trichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| | Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | 15.8 | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 1 3-Dichloropropage | ND | | 1 | uo/i | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| | Dibromochloromethane | ND | | 1 | ug/) | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | no | BK51846 |
| | Chlorobenzene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| | 1 1 1 2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/) | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| | Fthylbergene | ND | | 1 | ug/) | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| | m n-Xvlene | ND | | 1 | ug/) | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| | o-Xvlene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| | 1 1 2 2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/) | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | m | BK51846 |
| | 1.2.3-Trichloropropage | ND | | 1 | ug/) | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | m | BK51846 |
| | Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 82608 | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp rp | BK51846 |
| | 1 4-Diovane | ND | | î | ug/l | 0.250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Tert-butyl alcohol | ND | | î | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | - P TD | BK51846 |
| | Divisopropyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| | Ethyl tert-bubyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| | Tert-amy methyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| | Ordeborane | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0130 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| | Ereon 113 | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.100 | | | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ۲P ۲D | BK51846 |
| | Surrogate: Dibromofiuoromethane | 100 % | | | 70-120 | 0.0200 | EPA 5030B | M FPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | 'P m | BK51846 |
| | Surrogate, Dibromonuoroneurane | 100 /0 | | | 70 100 | | EDA E0200 | M EDA 0200D | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | 'P 70 | DVE1010 |
| | Surrogale: Toluene-do | 97.0 % | | | 70-130 | | LFA JUJUD | M EPA 0200D | 11/1//13 | 11/1//13 | ρ | DKJ1040 |
| | Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 97.9 % | | | /0-130 | | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/1//15 | 11/1//15 | гp | BK51846 |



Page 3 of 16

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/17/15 **PLS Report No.: 1511160**

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: SV1-15' (3 Purge | es) Air | (1511160-02) | Sample | d:11/17 | /15 08:30 | Received:11 | /17/15 15:0 |)5 | | |
|--------------------------------------|---------|--------------|---------|---------|-----------|-------------|-------------|-------------------|----|---------|
| Analyte | Results | Flag D.F | . Units | PQL | Prep/T | est Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Ву | Batch |
| 1.1-Difluoroethane (DFA) | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гp | BK51846 |
| Vinvl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | 0.0856 | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Acetone | NÐ | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| trans-1.2-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/ł | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| 1.1-Dichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 2.2-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| cis-1.2-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chloroform | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1.1-Trichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rр | BK51846 |
| 1.1-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Benzene | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| 1.2-Dichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | 0.0365 | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.2-Dichloropropage | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| cis-1.3-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | uq/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | 1 | uq/l | 0.0500 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Toluepe | ND | 1 | uq/i | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| trans-1.3-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1.2-Trichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | 20.4 | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| 1.3-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| Dibromochioromethane | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/ 1 5 | гр | BK51846 |
| 1.1.1.2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| m.p-Xvlene | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| o-Xvlene | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1.2.2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.2.3-Trichloropropane | NÐ | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.4-Dioxane | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Tert-butyl alcohol | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Di-isopropyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Cyclohexane | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Freon 113 | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 102 % | | 70-13 | 0 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rр | BK51846 |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 99.1 % | | 70-13 | 0 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 99.1 % | | 70-13 | 0 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |



Page 4 of 16

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/17/15 PLS Report No.: 1511160

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: SV1-30' (3 Purg | es) Air (| 151116 |)-03) | Sampled | 1:11/17 | /15 09:01 | Received:11 | /17/15 15:0 |)5 | | |
|--------------------------------------|-----------|--------|-------|-----------------------|---------|-----------|-------------|-------------|----------|-----------|---------|
| Analyte | Results | Flag | D.F. | Units | PQL | Prep/T | est Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Ву | Batch |
| 1,1-Difluoroethane (DFA) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| Chloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | 0.133 | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Acetone | ND | | 1 | uq/i | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| trans-1.2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 2.2-Dichioronronane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| cis-1 2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chloroform | ND | | 1 | uo/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| 1.1.1-Trichloroethane | ND | | 1 | - <u>-</u> ,. uo/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M FPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гn | BK51846 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | | 1 | un/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| 1 1-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ug/1 | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | .р го | BK51846 |
| Rozzona | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| 1 2-Dichloroothane | ND | | 1 | ug/: ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Trichlernothono (TCE) | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro ro | BK51846 |
| 1.2 Dishlerapropos | | | - | ug/i | 0.0150 | EDA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | יץי רח | BK51846 |
| | ND | | - | ug/i | 0.0150 | | | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | 14 10 | BK51946 |
| | ND | | 4 | ug/i | 0.0230 | | M EDA 9260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | 141 | BK51946 |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | | - | ug/i | 0.0000 | | M EDA 92609 | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | 19 10 | BK51946 |
| touene | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EDA 92608 | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | 1P FD | BK51946 |
| trans-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0250 | | | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ip ro | DKJ1040 |
| 1,1,2-Trichloroethane | | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0250 | | M EDA 02000 | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp rn | DK51946 |
| letrachioroethene (PCE) | 19.5 | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0250 | EPA SUSUD | M EDA 02000 | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | 41 | DK31040 |
| 1,3-Dicnioropropane | ND | | 1 | ug/1 | 0.0250 | EPA SUSUD | | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ih L | DK31040 |
| Dibromochioromethane | ND | | 1 | ug/1 | 0.0250 | EPA SUSUB | M EPA 02000 | 11/17/15 | 11/17/13 | τp π | DKC1040 |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0250 | EPA 50308 | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | DK51040 |
| 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/I | 0.0250 | EPA 50308 | M EPA 8260B | 11/1//15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51840 |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.150 | EPA 50308 | M EPA 8260B | 11/1//15 | 11/1//15 | rp | BK51840 |
| m,p-Xylene | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.200 | EPA 50308 | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/1//15 | rp | BK51846 |
| o-Xylene | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/1//15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/1//15 | 11/1//15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,2,3-Trichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/1//15 | 11/1//15 | гр | BK51846 |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/1//15 | 11/1//15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,4-Dioxane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Tert-butyl aicohoi | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Di-isopropyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| Cyclohexane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Freon 113 | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 103 % | | | 70-130 | | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rр | BK51846 |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 99.1 % | | | 70-130 | | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 99.3 % | | | 70-130 | | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |



Page 5 of 16

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/17/15 PLS Report No.: 1511160

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: SV2-5' (3 Purges | s) Air (1 | 511160-04) | Sampleo | 1:11/17/ | 15 10:10 | Received:11/ | 17/15 15:0 | 5 | | |
|--------------------------------------|-----------|------------|-----------------|----------|-----------|--------------|------------|----------|------------|---------|
| Analyte | Results | Flag D | .F. Units | PQL. | Prep/7 | Test Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Ву | Batch |
| 1,1-Difluoroethane (DFA) | ND | 1 | . ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | 1 | . ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | 1 | . ug/l | 0.0100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chloroethane | ND | 1 | . ug/i | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | 0.0868 | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Acetone | ND | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 2,2-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| cis-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | 1 | . ug/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chloroform | ND | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1,1-Trichloroethane | NÐ | 1 | . ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | 1 | . ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | . ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Benzene | ND | 1 | . ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,2-Dichloroethane | ND | 1 | . ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | t | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.2-Dichloropropane | ND | 1 | . ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| cis-1.3-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | . ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | 1 | , ua/l | 0.0500 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Toluene | ND | 1 | / ua/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| trans-1.3-Dichloropropene | ND | 1 | . ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| 1.1.2-Trichloroethane | ND | 1 | . ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | 6.54 | 1 | ua/t | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| 1 3-Dicbloronronane | ND | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | 1 | ,. ua/i | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| 1.1.1.2-Tetrachlomethane | ND | 1 | , ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | - 1 | | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| m n-Xvlene | ND | - 1 | ,. ua/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| o-Xviene | ND | - 1 | | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| 1 1 2 2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 1 | . ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| 1.2.3-Tricbloropropage | ND | 1 | . ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Methyl tert-bubyl ether (MTBE) | ND | 1 | . ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| 1 4-Diovane | ND | - 1 | . ug/l | 0.250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Tert-butyl alcohol | ND | | . ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Di-isopropyl ether | ND | | . ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | 1 | . ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | 1 | . ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| Ovciobexane | ND | 1 | . ug/i ua/l | 0.0100 | EPA 5030B | M FPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn rn | BK51846 |
| Eroon 113 | ND | 1 | . ug/i ua/i | 0.100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 103 % | | . uy/1 70-13 | 0.0230 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | יי מז | BK51846 |
| Surregate, Distantiationomenante | 07004 | | 70 100 | - 0 | EDA ENODO | M EDA 87600 | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | , P ED | RK51844 |
| Surroyate. Towerle-uo | 91.9 %0 | | 70-130 | 0 | LFA JUJUD | M EDL 0200D | 11/1/13 | 11/1/10 | ι <i>μ</i> | DKJ1040 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 97.1 % | | 70-130 | v | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/1//15 | 11/1//15 | rр | BK51846 |



Page 6 of 16

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/17/15 PLS Report No.: 1511160

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: SV2-15' (3 Purge | es) Air (| 1511160 | -05) | Sampled | 1:11/17 | /15 10:53 | Received:11 | /17/15 15:0 |)5 | | |
|--------------------------------------|-----------|---------|----------|---------|---------|-----------|--------------|-------------|----------|--------------------|---------|
| Analyte | Results | Flag | D.F. | Units | PQL | Prep/T | est Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Ву | Batch |
| 1,1-Difluoroethane (DFA) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | 0.154 | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Acetone | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 2,2-Dichioropropane | ND | | 1 | uq/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| cis-1.2-Dichioroethene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chloroform | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1.1-Trichioroethane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1-Dichioropropene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Benzene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.2-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ua/1 | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | | 1 | ua/1 | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| 1.2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ua/} | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| cis-1.3-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ua/i | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| 4-Methyl-2-nentanone (MIBK) | ND | | 1 | ua/i | 0.0500 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| Toluene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| trans-1.3-Dichloropronene | ND | | 1 | ua/1 | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1.2-Trichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Tetrachioroethene (PCE) | 15.8 | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| 1 3-Dichloropropage | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 1/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | | 1 | uo/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1.1.2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | | î | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| m.n-Xvlene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| n-Xviene | ND | | ĩ | ua/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| 1 1 2 2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| 1 2 3-Trichloropropage | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M FPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| 1 4-Dioxane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Tert-bubyl alcobol | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0 150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Di-isopropyl etber | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Ethyl tert-bubyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | יף מז | BK51846 |
| Ovclobevane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0 100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Freen 113 | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0250 | FPA 5030B | M FPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ידי רח | BK51846 |
| Surroate: Dibromofiuoromethane | 102 % | | <u> </u> | 70-130 | | EPA 5030B | M FPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | <u>יי</u> מי | BK51846 |
| Surrogate: Tobiomondorometriane | 101 04 | | | 70-120 | | EDA 50300 | M EDA 87600 | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ۰ <i>۲</i> ۰ ۳۵ | REIRAS |
| Surrogale: Toluene-uo | 101 70 | | | 70-130 | | CDA CODO | M EDA 0200D | 11/17/13 | 11/1/10 | īρ | 01040 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 91.9% | | | 70-130 | | EPA 50308 | 19 EPA 8260B | 11/1//15 | 11/1//15 | rр | BK51846 |



Page 7 of 16

Report Date: 11/18/15

PLS Report No.: 1511160

Submitted: 11/17/15

File #:74354

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: SV2-30' (3 Purge | s) Air (| 1511160- |)6) | Sampled | :11/17 | /15 11:24 | Received:11 | /17/15 15:0 | 5 | | |
|--------------------------------------|----------|----------|------|---------|--------|-----------|-------------|-------------|----------|-----------------|----------|
| Analyte | Results | Flag | D.F. | Units | PQL | Prep/T | est Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Ву | Batch |
| 1,1-Difluoroethane (DFA) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | 0.0912 | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | NÐ | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chioroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | 0.320 | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Acetone | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 82608 | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| trans-1.2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 2.2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | uq/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| cis-1.2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | uq/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | NÐ | | 1 | ug/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chioroform | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1.1-Trichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Carbon tetrachioride | ND | | 1 | uo/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1 1-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гp | BK51846 |
| Benzene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| 1.2-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | 0.0178 | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1 2-Dichloropropage | ND | | 1 | ua/1 | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| cis-1 3-Dicbloropropene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0500 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Toluene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| trans_1 3-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | FPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| 1 1 2-Tricbloroethane | ND | | 1 | uo/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCF) | 29.3 | | 1 | uo/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1 3-Dichloropropage | ND | | 1 | un/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | | 1 | uo/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | | 1 | un/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1 1 1 2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| Fthylbenzene | ND | | î | ug/1 | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| m o Vidono | ND | | î | ug/1 | 0 200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0 150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| 1 1 2 2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | | î | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M FPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| 1,2,2-Trichloropropapa | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M FPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| Mothyl tort-bubil other (MTRE) | ND | | i | ug/1 | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M FPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1 4-Diovano | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Tert bubl alcohol | ND ND | | 1 | ug/1 | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| Di isopropul ethor | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Ethyl test hubd ethor | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Tert aread method other | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Curlebovene | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Cyclonexane Errop 112 | ND | | 1 | ug/t | 0,100 | | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| | 104 0% | | L | 70_120 | 0.0230 | FPA 50300 | M FPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | <u>יי</u> חז | BK51846 |
| Surroyate: Dipromonuoromethane | 104 70 | | | 70-130 | | LEA JUJUD | M EDA 02000 | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ιp •• | DVE1016 |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 102 % | | | 10-130 | | EPA SUSUB | M EMA 8200B | 11/1//15 | 11/1//15 | τρ | DN:01040 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 98,4 % | | | 70-130 | | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |



Page 8 of 16

Report Date: 11/18/15

PLS Report No.: 1511160

Submitted: 11/17/15

File #:74354

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: SV3-5' (3 Purges | s) Air (1 | 511160- | 07) S | Sampled: | 11/17/1 | 15 11:53 | Received:11/ | 17/15 15:05 | | | |
|--------------------------------------|-----------|---------|-------|----------|---------|-----------|--------------|-------------|----------|----|---------|
| Analyte | Results | Flag | D.F. | Units | PQL | Prep/T | est Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Ву | Batch |
| 1,1-Difluoroethane (DFA) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | 0.0256 | | 1 | ug/I | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Acetone | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ٢p | BK51846 |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 2,2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| cis-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/{ | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chloroform | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1,1-Trichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Benzene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,2-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| cis-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0500 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Toluene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| trans-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1,2-Trichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Tetrachioroethene (PCE) | 4.56 | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,3-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ug/\ | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1,1,2-Tetrachioroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| m,p-Xylene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| o-Xylene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,2,3-Trichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,4-Dioxane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Tert-butyl alcohol | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Di-isopropyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Cyclohexane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Freon 113 | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 101 % | | | 70-130 | | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 102 % | | | 70-130 | | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rр | BK51846 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 99.3 % | | | 70-130 | | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |



Page 9 of 16

Report Date: 11/18/15

PLS Report No.: 1511160

Submitted: 11/17/15

File #:74354

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: SV3-15' (3 Purge | es) Air | (1511160 | -08) | Sampled | 1:11/17 | /15 12:27 | Received:11 | /17/15 15:0 |)5 | | |
|--------------------------------------|---------|----------|------|---------|---------|-----------|-------------|-------------|----------|----|---------|
| Analyte | Results | Flag | D.F. | Units | PQL | Prep/T | est Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Ву | Batch |
| 1,1-Difluoroethane (DFA) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | 0.0352 | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Acetone | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 2,2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| cis-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| Chloroform | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| 1,1,1-Trichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Benzene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,2-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| cis-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0500 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Toluene | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| trans-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1,2-Trichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rр | BK51846 |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | 6.45 | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,3-Dichioropropane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| m,p-Xylene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| o-Xylene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,2,3-Trichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| 1,4-Dioxane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Tert-butyl alcohol | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| Di-isopropyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Cyclohexane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| Freon 113 | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 102 % | | | 70-130 | | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 102 % | | | 70-130 | | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 96.6 % | | | 70-130 | | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гp | BK51846 |



Page 10 of 16

Report Date: 11/18/15

PLS Report No.: 1511160

Submitted: 11/17/15

File #:74354

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: SV3-30' (3 Purge | es) Air | (1511160-0 | 9) | Sampled | :11/17 | /15 12:55 | Received:11 | /17/15 15:0 |)5 | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
|--------------------------------------|---------|------------|------|------------|--------|-----------|-------------|-------------|----------|------------|---------------------------------------|
| Analyte | Results | Flag D |).F. | Units | PQL | Prep/T | est Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Βγ | Batch |
| 1,1-Difluoroethane (DFA) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| Dichlorodifiuoromethane (FC-12) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | 0.0352 | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Acetone | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | NÐ | | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | NÐ | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 2,2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| cis-1.2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chloroform | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1,1-Trichloroethane | NÐ | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | NÐ | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Benzene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| 1,2-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| , Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rb | BK51846 |
| 1.2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| cis-1.3-Dichloropropene | ND | | ĩ | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0500 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Toluene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| trans-1.3-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1.2-Trichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | 6.02 | | 1 | uq/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.3-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| 1.1.1.2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| m.p-Xvlene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| o-Xvlene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| 1.1.2.2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.2.3-Trichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ua/1 | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | | 1 | ua/1 | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| 1.4-Dioxane | ND | | 1 | ua/1 | 0.250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| Tert-butyl alcohol | ND | | 1 | ua/} | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| Di-isonropyl ether | ND | | 1 | - <u>-</u> | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | | 1 | un/t | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | | 1 | un/i | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Cyclohexape | ND | | 1 | ua/i | 0.100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| Freon 113 | ND | | 1 | uo/1 | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 103 % | | | 70-130 | | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 101 % | | | 70-170 | | FPA 5030R | M FPA R760R | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | RK51846 |
| Surregate, A Bram-furnet- | 101 /0 | | | 70 100 | | EDA E0300 | M EDA 0200D | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ι <i>μ</i> | DVETOXO |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromonuorobenzene | 98.0 % | | | 10-130 | | EPA SUSUB | M EPA OZOUB | 11/1//15 | 11/1//15 | rp | ØK31840 |



Page 11 of 16

Report Date: 11/18/15

PLS Report No.: 1511160

Submitted: 11/17/15

File #:74354

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX: (310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: SV4-5' (3 Purges |) Air (1 | 511160- | 10) 5 | Sampled: | 11/17/ | 15 14:05 | Received:11/ | 17/15 15:05 | | | |
|--------------------------------------|----------|---------|-------|----------------|--------|-----------|--------------|-------------|----------|-------------|----------|
| Analyte | Results | Flag | D.F. | Units | PQL | Prep/T | Fest Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Ву | Batch |
| 1,1-Difluoroethane (DFA) | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | 0.0520 | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Acetone | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | uq/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 2.2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | uq/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| cis-1.2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chloroform | ND | | 1 | uq/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1,1,1-Trichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Benzene | ND | | 1 | uq/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.2-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | 0.0196 | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| cis-1.3-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0500 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Toluene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| trans-1.3-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 | ua/i | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1.2-Trichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | 12.7 | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.3-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Dibromochioromethane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1.1.2-Tetrachioroethane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| m.n-Xvlene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| o-Xviene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| 1.1.2.2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| 1.2.3-Trichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| 1.4-Dioxane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Tert-butyl alcohol | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Di-isopropyl ether | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| Tert-anyl methyl ether | ND | | 1 | - 3/ · ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Cyclohexane | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0,100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| Freon 113 | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 99.0 % | | ····- | 70-130 | | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 102 % | | | 70-130 | | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | , rp | BK51846 |
| Surragate: A-Bramafivershepzon | 04 7 04 | | | 70-120 | | EDA SARA | M EPA RIGOD | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | · /* /// | RKEIRAG |
| Sanoyate. Toromonuorobenzene | 27.2 70 | | | 10-100 | | | A LIA 02000 | xx/x//xJ | /-/-/ | γr | 20101040 |



Page 12 of 16

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/17/15 **PLS Report No.: 1511160**

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

| Sample ID: SV4-15' (3 Purge | es) Air | (1511160-1 | l) Sam | pled:11/1 | 7/15 14:34 | Received:11 | /17/15 15:0 |)5 | | |
|--------------------------------------|---------|------------|----------------------|-----------|------------|-------------|-------------|----------|-----------|---------|
| Analyte | Results | Flag D | .F. Uni | ts PQL | Prep/1 | Fest Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Ву | Batch |
| 1,1-Difluoroethane (DFA) | ND | | L ug/ | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | 0.0671 | : | L ug/ | / 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Vinvl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | | L ug/ | 0.0100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chloroethane | ND | : | L ug/ | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | 0.113 | | L ug/ | /l 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Acetone | ND | | t ug/ | 1.00 | EPA 50308 | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| 1.1-Dichloroethene | ND | | L ug/ | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | | 1 ug/ | 1 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| trans-1.2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 ug/ | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 ug/ | 1 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 2.2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 uq/ | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| cis-1.2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 uq/ | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | | 1 uq/ | 'i 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Chloroform | ND | | 1 uq/ | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1.1-Trichloroethane | ND | | í ug/ | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Carbon tetrachioride | ND | | 1 uq/ | 1 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.1-Dichloropropene | ND | | 1 ua/ | 1 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Benzene | ND | | 1 ua/ | 1 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | гр | BK51846 |
| 1.2-Dichloroethane | ND | | , 1 ua/ | 1 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | | 1 ua/ | 1 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1.2-Dichloropropane | ND | | , 1 ua/ | 1 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| cis-1 3-Dichloropropene | ND | | <i></i> , 1 ua/ | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | | <i>,</i> 1 ua/ | 0.0500 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Toluene | ND | | 1 ua/ | 1 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | , rp | BK51846 |
| trans-1 3-Dichloropropene | ND | | <i>s,</i> 1 ua/ | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1 1 2-Trichloroethane | ND | | s, 1 ua, | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCF) | 26.9 | | <u>-</u> , 1 ua | /1 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1 3-Dichloropropage | ND | | <u>-</u> . 1 ua/ | 1 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | | <u>-</u> , 1 וומי | 1 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | | <u>-</u> , 1 ווסע | 1 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| 1 1 1 2-Tetrachloroetbane | ND | | 1 uo/ | / 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Ethylhenzene | ND | | 1 IIO | / 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| m n-Yvlene | ND | | 1 uo. | 1 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| o-Xvlene | ND | | 1 uo. | (1 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rb | BK51846 |
| 1 1 2 2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | | 1 ua, | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| 1 2 3-Trichloropropage | ND | | 1 BGL | / 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| Mothyl tort-bubyl other (MTBE) | ND | | 1 uau | / 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| 1 4-Diovane | ND | | 1 ua. | 1 0.250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| Tert-buby alcohol | ND | | 1 ug, | / 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Di-isopropyl attor | ND | | 1 UG. | 1 0.150 | EPA 50308 | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Ethyl tort-buby other | ND | | 1 ug, | / 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| Tort-amyl mothyl other | ND | | 1 ug, | / 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| Cudeboyane | ND | | 1 ug, | / 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | ND | | 1 ug, | / 0.100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| Surrogata: Dibramofuoromethana | 101 % | | - uy, 7/1. | 130 | FPA 50300 | M FPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | | BK51846 |
| Surroyate. Distribution offeridite | 102.00 | | -07 0F | 120 | EDA E0200 | M EDA 87600 | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | · P 70 | RK51846 |
| Surrogate: Toluene-av | 102 % | | /0- | 100 | EPA SUSUD | H COL 0200D | 11/1//13 | 11/1//13 | ιp | DNJ1040 |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 94.4 % | | 70- | 130 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/1//15 | 11/1//15 | rp | BK51846 |



Page 13 of 16

Report Date: 11/18/15

PLS Report No.: 1511160

Submitted: 11/17/15

File #:74354

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX: (310) 854-0199

| | Sample ID: SV4-30' (3 Purge | es) Air | (1511160 | -12) | Sampled | :11/17 | /15 15:05 | Received:11 | /17/15 15:0 |)5 | | |
|---|--------------------------------------|---------|----------|--------|-----------------------|---------|-----------|-------------|-------------|----------|------------|---------|
| | Analyte | Results | Flag | D.F. | Units | PQL | Prep/T | est Method | Prepared | Analyzed | Ву | Batch |
| | 1,1-Difluoroethane (DFA) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | 0.0872 | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Vinvl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Chioroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0300 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | 0.150 | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Acetone | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 1.1-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 1.00 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | trans-1.2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 1.1-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | uq/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 2.2-Dichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | cis-1 2-Dichloroethene | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Chioroform | ND | | 1 | ua/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 1 1 1-Trichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Carbon tetrachloride | ND | | 1 | - <u>-</u> ,. uo/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| | 1 1-Dichloropropene | NÐ | | 1 | uo/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rb | BK51846 |
| | Renzene | ND | | 1 | ug/! | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 1 2-Dichloroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/1 | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| | Trichloroethone (TCE) | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 1.2-Dichloropronane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | ric 1.2 Dictionopropono | ND | | 1 | ug/1 | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| | 4 Mothul-2-postopopo (MIRK) | MD | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0200 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| | Tolyono | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0000 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| | trans 1.2 Dichloropropago | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| | 1 1 2 Trichleroothana | | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ro | BK51846 |
| | Totrochloroothono (BCE) | 25.2 | | 1 | ug/1 ug/1 | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | 1 2 Dichierentenene (PCE) | 33.2 | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 82608 | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp rp | BK51846 |
| | I,3-Dichloropropatie | ND | | -1 | ug/i | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rn | BK51846 |
| | Chloridenenarie | ND | | - | ug/i | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EDA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| | Chlorobenzene | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EDA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rD | BK51846 |
| • | 1,1,1,2-1 etrachioroethane | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.02.00 | EPA 5030D | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | ייי רח | BK51846 |
| | | | | 1 | ug/i | 0.100 | EPA 5030B | M EDA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | יי מי | BK51846 |
| | m,p-xyiene | | | 1 | ug/i | 0.200 | EPA 50300 | M EDA 9260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | - Pi Ar | BK51846 |
| | o-Xylene | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.150 | EPA 50300 | M EDA 9260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | יץ ro | BK51846 |
| | 1,1,2,2-Tetrachioroethane | ND | | 1 4 | ug/i | 0.02.50 | | | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | , p | DKJ1040 |
| | 1,2,3-Trichloropropane | ND | | 1 | ug/1 | 0.0250 | | M EDA 92600 | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | тр го | DK21040 |
| | Methyl tert-butyl ether (MIBE) | NU | | 1 | uy/i | 0,0150 | | M EDA 0200D | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp rp | BK51946 |
| | 1,4-Dioxane | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.250 | | | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp rp | DK51040 |
| | lert-butyl alcohol | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 02000 | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | 10 | DKE1046 |
| | Di-isopropyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8200B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | тр | DK51040 |
| | Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/i | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8200B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | тр | DK31040 |
| | Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | | 1 | ug/I | 0.0150 | EPA 5030B | | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | DK51846 |
| | Cyclohexane | ND | | 1 | ug/I | 0.100 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/1//15 | 11/1//15 | rp | 0651846 |
| | Freon 113 | ND | | 1 | ug/l | 0.0250 | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/1//15 | 11/1//15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 98.6 % | | | 70-130 | | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 102 % | | | 70-130 | | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rp | BK51846 |
| | Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 97.6 % | | | 70-130 | | EPA 5030B | M EPA 8260B | 11/17/15 | 11/17/15 | rр | BK51846 |



Page 14 of 16

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/17/15 PLS Report No.: 1511160

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

Project: 9836000640 - 1024 Mateo St., LA, CA

Quality Control Data

| | | | | Spike | Source | %REC | RPE |) |
|--------------------------------------|--------|--------|----------|---------------------------------------|-------------|--------|---|---------------------------------------|
| Analyte | Result | PQL | Units | Level | Result %REC | Limits | RPD Limi | t Qualifier |
| Batch BK51846 - EPA 5030B | | | | | | | | |
| Blank Prepared & Analyzed: 11/17/ | /15 | | | | | | | |
| 1,1-Difluoroethane (DFA) | ND | 0.150 | ug/l | | | | | |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | 0.0300 | ug/l | | | | | |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | 0.0100 | ug/l | | | | | |
| Chloroethane | ND | 0.0300 | ug/l | | | | | |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | | | | |
| Acetone | ND | 1.00 | ug/l | | | | | |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | | | | |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | 1.00 | ug/l | | | | | |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | | | 4999 (August) and an and an and the an annual to a second | |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | | | | |
| 2,2-Dichloropropane | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | | | | |
| cis-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | | | | |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | 0,200 | ug/l | | | | | . *** |
| Chloroform | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | | |
| 1,1,1-Trichloroethane | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | | | | |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | | | | |
| 1,1-Dichloropropene | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| Benzene | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | | | | |
| 1,2-Dichloroethane | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | | | | |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | | | | |
| 1,2-Dichloropropane | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | | | | |
| cis-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | | | | |
| 4-Methyi-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | 0.0500 | ug/l | | | | | |
| Toluene | ND | 0.200 | ug/l | | | | | |
| trans-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | | | | |
| 1,1,2-Trichloroethane | ND | 0.0250 | ug/i | | | | | |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | | | ada daram da ana da kada da manana na aminina ana aminina ana aminina ana aminina ana aminina aminina aminina a | |
| 1,3-Dichloropropane | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | | | | |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | | | | |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | | | | |
| 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | | | | ···_·· |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | 0.150 | ug/l | | | | | |
| m,p-Xylene | ND | 0.200 | ug/i | | | | | |
| o-Xylene | ND | 0.150 | ug/l | | | | | |
| 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | | | | |
| 1,2,3-Trichloropropane | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | | | | |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | | | | |
| 1,4-Dioxane | ND | 0.250 | ug/l | | | | | |
| Tert-butyl alcohol | ND | 0.150 | uq/l | | | | | |
| / | | | <u>.</u> | | | | | |



Page 15 of 16

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/17/15 **PLS Report No.: 1511160**

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

Project: 9836000640 - 1024 Mateo St., LA, CA

Quality Control Data

 Spike
 Source
 %REC
 RPD

 Analyte
 Result
 PQL
 Units
 Level
 Result
 %REC
 Limits
 Qualifier

| Batch BK51846 - EPA 5030B | | | | | | | | | | |
|--------------------------------------|-----------------|------------|------|-------|--------|-------------|---------|------|----|-----------|
| Di-isopropyl ether | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | • | | | | | | ····· |
| Ethyi tert-butyl ether | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | | | | | | |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | | | | | | |
| Cyclohexane | ND | 0.100 | ug/l | | | | | | | A./ |
| Freon 113 | ND | 0.0250 | ug/i | | | | | | | |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 10.1 | | ug/(| 10.00 | | 101 | 70-130 | | | |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 9.84 | | ug/l | 10.00 | | 98.4 | 70-130 | | | |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 9.64 | | ug/i | 10.00 | | 96.4 | 70-130 | | | |
| LCS Prepared & Analyzed: 11/17/1 | 5 | | | | | | | | | |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | 9.96 | 0.0250 | ug/l | 10.00 | | 99.6 | 70-130 | | | |
| Benzene | 10.4 | 0.0250 | ug/l | 10.00 | | 104 | 70-130 | | | |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | 9.83 | 0.0150 | ug/l | 10.00 | | 98.3 | 70-130 | | | |
| Toluene | 10.3 | 0.200 | ug/l | 10.00 | | 103 | 70-130 | | | |
| Chlorobenzene | 9.68 | 0.0250 | ug/l | 10.00 | | 96.8 | 70-130 | | | |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | 9.59 | 0.0150 | ug/l | 10.00 | | 95.9 | 70-130 | | | 1111 a.f. |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 9.83 | | ug/l | 10.00 | | <i>98.3</i> | 70-130 | | | |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 10.1 | | ug/l | 10.00 | | 101 | 70-1.30 | | | |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 9.55 | | ug/l | 10.00 | | <i>95.5</i> | 70-130 | | | |
| Duplicate Source: 1511160-09 Prepa | ared & Analyzed | : 11/17/15 | | | | | | | | |
| 1,1-Difluoroethane (DFA) | ND | 0.150 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Dichlorodifluoromethane (FC-12) | ND | 0.0300 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | · |
| Vinyl chloride (Chloroethylene) | ND | 0.0100 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Chloroethane | ND | 0.0300 | ug/I | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Trichlorofluoromethane (FC-11) | 0.0420 | 0.0150 | ug/l | | 0.0352 | | | 17.7 | 25 | |
| Acetone | ND | 1.00 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| 1,1-Dichloroethene | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane) | ND | 1.00 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| trans-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| 1,1-Dichloroethane | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| 2,2-Dichloropropane | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| cis-1,2-Dichloroethene | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| 2-Butanone (MEK) | ND | 0.200 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Chloroform | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | NÐ | | | | 25 | |
| 1,1,1-Trichloroethane | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Carbon tetrachloride | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| 1,1-Dichloropropene | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Benzene | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| 1,2-Dichloroethane | ND | 0.0150 | ug/i | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Trichloroethene (TCE) | ND | 0.0150 | ug/i | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| 1,2-Dichloropropane | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |



Page 16 of 16

File #:74354 Report Date: 11/18/15 Submitted: 11/17/15 **PLS Report No.: 1511160**

Andersen Environmental Inc. 5261 West Imperial Highway Los Angeles, CA 90045

Attn: Ms. Diana Buchanan

Phone: (310) 854-6300 FAX:(310) 854-0199

Project: 9836000640 - 1024 Mateo St., LA, CA

Quality Control Data

| | | | | Spike | Source | | %REC | | RPD | |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|-------|-------|--------|------|--------|------|-------|-----------|
| Analyte | Result | PQL | Units | Level | Result | %REC | Limits | RPD | Limit | Qualifier |
| Batch BK51846 - EPA 5030B | | | | | | | | | | |
| cis-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| 4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) | ND | 0.0500 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Toluene | ND | 0.200 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| trans-1,3-Dichloropropene | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| 1,1,2-Trichloroethane | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Tetrachloroethene (PCE) | 5.94 | 0.0250 | ug/l | | 6.02 | | | 1.37 | 25 | |
| 1,3-Dichloropropane | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Dibromochloromethane | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Chlorobenzene | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Ethylbenzene | ND | 0.150 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| m,p-Xylene | ND | 0.200 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| o-Xyiene | ND | 0.150 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| 1,2,3-Trichloropropane | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| 1,4-Dioxane | ND | 0.250 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Tert-butyl alcohol | ND | 0.150 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Di-isopropyl ether | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Ethyl tert-butyl ether | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Tert-amyl methyl ether | ND | 0.0150 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Cyclohexane | ND | 0.100 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Freon 113 | ND | 0.0250 | ug/l | | ND | | | | 25 | |
| Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane | 10.1 | | ug/l | 10.00 | | 101 | 70-130 | | | |
| Surrogate: Toluene-d8 | 9.96 | | ug/l | 10.00 | | 99.6 | 70-130 | | | |
| Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene | 9.57 | | ug/l | 10.00 | | 95.7 | 70-130 | | | |

Notes and Definitions

NA Not Applicable

- ND Analyte NOT DETECTED at or above the detection limit
- NR Not Reported
- MDL Method Detection Limit
- PQL Practical Quantitation Limit

Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program Certificate No. 1131, Mobile Lab No. 2534, LACSD No. 10138

Authorized Signature(s)

| l | | | | | | | | | | | | | 2020 | nad |
|--------------|------------------------|----------------|---------------------------|---|---|-----------------------------|------------|---|---------------------------|------------|---------------------------------------|----------------------------|--|---------|
| | | | | | CHAIN OF C | USTODY A | ND AN | ALYSIS | REQUEST | - ATE: | 5-4-1 | UD | н ОЕ Ч | |
| | | | SER | VICE (213) 74 | st Washington Blvd., 15-5312 FAX (213) | Los Angeles, CA 745-6372 | 90021 | ГС | g Book No | | E NO. | LAB NO. | 1511100 | |
| <u></u> | CLIENT NAME: | And | (See | Environmentel | Project Name | 3/No. 9836 0 | 00 640 | 1024 P | huber st. geles CA | P.0 | .NO. | | AIRBILL NO: | |
| <u></u> | ADDRESS: 5 | 261 | West Ju | wered Huy. | Les Angeles | CA 90045 | | | | S REQUESTE | ö | | POLITER I LANY: 10 | |
| 4 <u> </u> | PROJECT MAN | IAGER: 7 | Diere Bud | There we have a second | (ف، ج):ON ANOHE NO: رع، ا | 854-6300 FA | X NO: | | (* | | | <u> </u> | REMARKS: | |
| | SAMPLER NAM | | Riek D | wen Partier | PT_ | Le duran Ray (Signature) | 4 | | <u>د - مر</u> | | | | | |
| <u></u> | TAT (Analytical T | lum Arou | nd Time) 0 | I = Same day; 1 = 24 | . Hour; 2 = 48 Hour; (| (Etc.) N = NORMA | | | on) | | | | | |
| | CONTAINER TY | PES: B | = Brass, E = | - Encore, G = Glass, | , P = Plastic, V = VC | JA Vial, 0 = 0the | ï | | ु क | | | | | |
| 1 | UST Project: | γ | - Global | 10# | | | | | 8.57 | | | | | |
| | SAMPLE D NO. SAN | ATE | TIME | SAMPLE DE | SCRIPTION | MATRIX WATER SOIL SLUDG | E OTHER TA | T CONTAINE | 71 <u>3</u> | | | | SAMPLE CONDITION/ CONTAINER /COMMEN | ŝ |
| - <u>'</u> - | | S1/E) | 07:59 | SVI-5 | (3 Runger) | | \$ | S | \times | | | | | |
| <u>ิ</u> | h | | p \$130 | SVI-15 | (3 horses) | | | میں۔۔ میںد | X | | | | | |
| ς α | 73 | Carlos and and | 01:01 | \$V1-30 | (3 Purgas) | | | N | X | | | | | |
| 4 | ئۇ ا | | 10,10 | 2V2-5' | (3 Runge) | | | | Х | | | | | |
| ഗ | Ŀ'n | | 10:53 | 2V2 - 15' | (3 Runges) | | | ۰ ۱۰ ۱۰ ۱۰ ۱۰ ۱۰ ۱۰ ۱۰ | X | | | | | |
| 0 | و. | | 11:24 | 542-30 | (3 Perge) | | | | Х | | | | | |
| ~ | ŗt | | 11:53 | \$V3 - 5 | (3 Ruges) | | | | X | | | | | |
| ω | 8 | | 12:27 | \$13-15 | (3 Ruges) | | | | X | | | | | |
| ത | 6 | •===== | 12:55 | \$13-30 | (3 Rugs | | | 4 | X | | | | Includes QC ? | 4 |
| 0 | (۵ | | So:H) | 544 - S' | (3 Purps) | | | } | X | | | | | |
| | Relinguished By: (Stor | inature and | minted Marne) | | Received By: (Sigfature ar. 신/소 | nd Printed Name) | | Da | e: Wayrs ^{Time:} | 17:10 SA | MPLE DISPOSI1 Samples returne | TION: ed to client? | YES NO | |
| | Relinquished By: (Sigr | Inature and F | ^o rinted Name) | | Received By: (Signature an | nd Printed Name) | | Da | le: Time: | <u>N</u> | Samples will not additional storad | be stored o time is rec | ver 30 days, unless mested | |
| | Relinquished By: (Sigr | nature and F | Printed Name) | | Received By: (Signature ar | nd Printed Name) | | Da | e: Time: | 3. | Storage time req | quested: | | days |
| | SPECIAL INSTF | RUCTION | NS: | | | | | | | By | | | Date | |
| 4 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

| | | VE CHAIN OF CUSTODY AND ANALYSIS RE | COUEST | - [7 - [5 | 2 10 2 |
|----------|---|--|---------------------|---|--|
| | LAB SERV | 781 East Washington Blvd., Los Angeles, CA 90021 CE (213) 745-5312 FAX (213) 745-6372 LOG I | 300K NO. FILE | | 511160 |
| | CLIENT NAME: Andersen E | AUSTRONMENTLY Project Name/No. 9836 000 640 Las Ang | ess, CA P.O.N | All Contraction of the second | RBILL NO: |
| | ADDRESS: 5761 West | Imperial Havy, Les Angeles CA 90045 | ANALYSES REQUESTED: | | HALLEN CONTRACTOR |
| | PROJECT MANAGER: DIGAN | PHONE NO: (316) 8551 - 6300 FAX NO: | (~') | | MARKS: |
| | SAMPLER NAME: Rich Ow | en Partier Rise Bren Parker (Printed) (Signature) | <u></u> | | |
| | TAT (Analytical Turn Around Time) 0 | = Same day; 1 = 24 Hour; 2 = 48 Hour; (Etc.) N = NORMAL | PM) | | |
| | CONTAINER TYPES: B = Brass, E = | Encore, G = Glass, P = Plastic, V = VOA Vial, 0 = Other: | ମ୍ବତ୍ୟ | | |
| | UST Project: Y N - Global | | 83 | | |
| | SAMPLE DATE TIME NO. SAMPLED SAMPLED | SAMPLE DESCRIPTION WATER SOIL SLUDGE OTHER TAT # TYPE | 493 | COS | MPLE CONDITION/ DITAINER /COMMENTS: |
| T | Trz., hi SJ/25/1)) | 4v4 - 15 (2 P. mac) | | | |
| N | 12 12:05 | 5×4-30 (3 Purgues) C 1 G | | | |
| ო | | | | | |
| 4 | | | | | |
| Ŋ | | | | | |
| ပ | | | | | |
| \sim | | | | | |
| ω | | | | / | |
| တ | | | | | |
| 6 | | | | | |
| | Relinquiered By: (Signature and Fritted Name) | Received Byr (Signature and Printed Name) Add | 1. Sa 17: 10 SAMI | <pre>LE DISPOSITION: mples returned to client?</pre> | YES NO |
| | Relinquished By: (Signature and Printed Name) | Received By: (Signature and Printed Name) Date: | Time: 2. Sa | mples will not be stored over ditional storage time is regue | r 30 days, unless ested. |
| | Relinquished By: (Signature and Printed Name) | Received By: (Signature and Printed Name) Date: | Time: 3. Str | prage time requested: | days |
| | SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS: | | By | | Date |

.

APPENDIX C

JOHNSON-ETTINGER MODELING INPUT AND RESULTS



Introduction

This vapor intrusion model should be used in conjunction with the 2011 Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) document: "Guidance for the Evaluation and Mitigation of Subsurface Vapor Intrusion into Indoor Air", also called the Vapor Intrusion Guidance (VIG).

The Johnson and Ettinger (J&E) model (1991) predicts indoor air concentrations resulting from subsurface vapor migration into indoor air. The model produces an attenuation factor "alpha" that represents the ratio of the indoor air concentration to the subsurface concentration. Indoor air concentrations can be estimated from subsurface data (contaminant concentration in soil gas or groundwater) and the attenuation factor. The USEPA programmed the J&E model into Microsoft EXCE $\mathbb{I}^{\mathbb{M}}$ and added a human health risk component that calculates the risk associated with inhalation of a specific contaminant at the estimated indoor air concentration (USEPA Vapor Intrusion Model; 2004a). The USEPA "User's Guide for Evaluating Subsurface Vapor Intrusion into Buildings" (2004b) should be reviewed for documentation and instructions for using the vapor intrusion model provided in the spreadsheets. The USEPA screening level model can be used an additional line of evidence for evaluating vapor intrusion at a site. The model has been modified by the DTSC Human and Ecological Risk Office (HERO) to include Cal/EPA toxicity criteria values for the risk calculation component.

After preliminary evaluation of a site for potential vapor intrusion by use of default vapor attenuation factors (DTSC VIG, Step 5), a site-specific screening evaluation may be conducted using phys parameter data collected for the site and the DTSC version of the USEPA Vapor Intrusion Model (DTSC VIG, Steps 6 and 7). Table 3 of the DTSC VIG lists the input parameters for Site-Specific Screening Evaluations and provides default values for several parameters.

Users of the spreadsheet should be familiar with the assumptions and limitations of the model and recognize when the model is not appropriate for evaluating a site. For example, the model cannot evaluate preferential migration pathways and fractured bedrock conditions, which have the potential to significantly increase the rate of vapor intrusion beyond what the model would predict. Input parameters for a given site must be appropriately conservative and match site-specific conditions. The user should understand the sensitivity of the model to various input parameters and the DT recommends that all vapor intrusion evaluations include a sensitivity analysis. (See DTSC 2011 and USEPA 2004b).

December 2014 Revisions

The <u>residential</u> exposure duration (ED) and the averaging time for noncarcinogens (ANC) have been changed to 26 years as recommended by DTSC Human and Ecological Risk Office (DTSC 2014a) and consistent with the USEPA Exposure Factors Update (USEPA 2014a)(DATENTER F47, G47; VLOOKUP C19, D19)

March 2014 Revisions (last update - December 2011)

The DTSC version of the USEPA vapor intrusion spreadsheet model has been revised to (1) reflect recommendations in the Final DTSC Vapor Intrusion Guidance (2011), (2) provide additional receptor exposure scenarios, and (3) update toxicity criteria values from Cal/EPA Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) and USEPA as currently recommended by the DTHuman and Ecological Risk Office. Other revisions include changes in default soil properties and values for chemical physical properties, addition of references and comments for specific toxicity criteria, and messages and flags to refer the user to additional information.

Soil Properties (DATENTER H24, F36:H36)

The default values for soil properties for screening evaluations have been revised to those for sand (SCS soil type "S"; previous values were from USEPA Soil Screening Guidance, 1996), and are consistent with the values used to derive the California Human Health Screening Levels (OEHHA, 2005). Site-specific values may be used for site-specific vapor intrusion evaluations (see Appendices D and H of the VIG).

Additional Receptors (DATENTER Row 47)

A pull-down menu has been provided to allow for evaluation of a commercial/industrial receptor or a user-defined receptor, in addition to the residential receptor.

Receptor Exposure Parameters (DATENTER Row 47)

The auto-fill feature (using the "Lookup Receptor Parameters" button) will provide default exposure assumptions and air exchange rate for the residential and commercial scenarios. The user can also enter site-specific expsoure parameters if the "user-defined" scenario is selected.

Exposure Time (DATENTER 147)

Exposure Time was added as a parameter for receptor inhalation exposures. This revision is consistent with USEPA (2009) methodology to use the type of human health toxicity values which are currently derived by the USEPA Integrated Risk Information System (IRIS) as concentrations (Reference Concentrations, [or Cal/EPA OEHHA References Exposure Levels] for non-cancer effects and Inhalation Unit Risk values for cancer endpoints) rather than the earlier and now superseded intake-based approach. This revision is also needed for evaluation of receptor daily exposures that are less than 24 hours.

Air Exchange Rate (DATENTER J47)

The Air Exchange Rate was added as an input parameter specific to a receptor scenario—residential (default = 0.5 changes per hour), commercial (default = 1.0 changes per hour), or user-defined. A user-defined site-specific air exchange rate may be higher or lower than the default. However, the exchange rate must be within a reasonable range and the basis for the value must be technically supported. The building dimensions remain fixed for the screening scenarios (INTERCALCS 110).

Default Attenuation Factor (alpha) for Subslab Soil Gas Data (DATENTER E24, F24, J36, J37; INTERCALCS A10, H31; message at RESULTS B19 and DATENTER K9)

For soil gas, the "source - building separation", L_T , is calculated by the model as the difference between the depth below grade to the bottom of the enclosed space, L_F (E24), and the soil gas sampling depth below grade, L_S (F24) (ideally, the depth to the source): $L_T = L_S - L_F$

If L_T, is less than 40 cm (OEHHA 2005; engineered fill scenario), the model defaults to the empirically derived subslab attenuation factor of 0.05 (DTSC VIG Table 2 and Appendix B):

If $L_T < 40$ cm, alpha = 0.05

Minimum Attenuation Factor (DATENTER L7; INTERCALCS H31; message at INTERCALCS H32, RESULTS B19 and DATENTER K9)

In certain site-specific situations, the model can yield very low attenuation factors, lower than reasonable values. DTSC does not anticipate that many sites will have attenuation factors less than 0.00006 (6E-05) for soil gas, as indicated by the empirical data in USEPA's database (5th percentile of attenuation factors remaining after source strength screen of 500X for exterior soil gas; USEPA, 2012). A warning message will appear on the INTERCALCS, RESULTS and DATENTER worksheets if the calculated attenuation factor is less than 0.00006. Use of attenuation factors less than 0.00006 should be fully explained and justified with site-specific information and a weight-of-evidence approach.

Results Summary (DATENTER J4:N7)

The receptor scenario, soil gas concentration (source vapor concentration, C_{ource}), attenuation factor (alpha), indoor air concentration ($C_{building}$), cancer risk and hazard quotient are now shown on the DATENTER worksheet for easy reference and printing. For the soil gas model, C_{ource} is the measured soil gas concentration input into the model. For the groundwater model, C_{source} is calculated from the groundwater concentration input into the model.

Chemical Properties (VLOOKUP, Chemical Properties Lookup Table)

The Chemical Properties Lookup Table columns C through H represent the current DTSC/HERO recommendations. These values reflect the chemical properties listed in the USEPA November 2013 Regional Screening Level Tables (USEPA 2013a) and USEPA online Vapor Intrusion Screening Level Calculator (2014b), except for the chemicals listed below:

- 75296 2-Chloropropane Not listed in the RSL table; original spreadsheet values are retained.
- 108872 Methylcyclohexane Not listed in the RSL table; original spreadsheet values are retained.
- 541731 1,3-Dichlorobenzene Not listed in the RSL table; average values for 1,2- and 1,4-isomers from the RSL table are used as surrogate.

Toxicity Criteria (VLOOKUP, Chemical Properties Lookup Table)

The toxicity criteria listed in the Chemical Properties Lookup Table columns M (Inhalation Unit Risk, IUR) and N (Reference Concentration, RfC), represent current DTSC/HERO recommendations. These values are used by the model for calculating risk and hazard. The toxicity criteria listed in columns S (IUR) and T (RfC) are from the USEPA November 2013 Regional Screening Level Tables. For screening evaluations, DTSC/HERO applies route-extrapolation of oral toxicity values when inhalation criteria are not available. The RSL table excludes inhalation criteria derived by route-extrapolation from oral toxicity values. Many of t RfCs previously based on route-extrapolation have been replaced by USEPA provisional RfC or screening RfCs. Toxicity criteria from the original USEPA version of the model are shown as "Archive" values in columns W and X. Chemicals for which toxicity criteria values in columns M and N have been revised are listed below. See cell notes in VLOOKUP for further information.

OEHHA = Cal/EPA Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment IRIS = USEPA Integrated Risk Information System RSL = USEPA Regional Screening Level (Tables and Chemical-Specific values) PPRTV = USEPA Provisional Peer-Reviewed Toxicity Value (PPRTV also refers to the USEPA document) IUR = Inhalation Unit Risk REL = Reference Exposure Level (Cal/EPA OEHHA inhalation reference concentration) RfC = Reference Concentration RfDi = Inhalation Reference Dose RfDo = Oral Reference Dose ATSDR = Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry MRL = ATSDR Minimal Risk Level

- 67663 Chloroform IUR was revised to USEPA IRIS value. RfC was revised to ATSDR value as recommended in November 2013 RSL table.
- 67721 Hexachloroethane RfC updated to 2011 USEPA RfC.
- 71432 Benzene RfC from USEPA 2003 IRIS replaced with OEHHA 2014 REL
- 71556 1,1,1-Trichloroethane RfC replaced with OEHHA REL.
- 74873 Methyl Chloride (Chloromethane) IUR value withdrawn; USEPA 2012 PPRTV determined data are inadequate for assessment of carcinogenic potential.
- 74908 Hydrogen Cyanide RfC updated to 2010 IRIS RfC.
- 74953 Methylene Bromide (Dibromomethane) RfC derived from RfDo replaced with USEPA 2009 PPRTV Appendix A screening chronic RfC.
- 75003 Chloroethane IUR value withdrawn by USEPA. 2007 PPRTV characterized chloroethane as likely to be carcinogenic to humans; however, data are inadequate for calculation of inhalation unit risk. Listed in 1990 as Cal/EPA Prop. 65 carcinogen.
- 75718 Dichlorodifluoromethane RfC updated with 2010 PPRTV Appendix A screening chronic RfC.
- 79005 1,1,2-Trichloroethane RfC derived from RfDo replaced with 2011 PPRTV Appendix A screening chronic RfC.
- 79345 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane RfC derived from PPRTV RfDo was updated using route-to-route extrapolation of 2010 IRIS RfDo.
- 88722 o-Nitrotoluene Added IUR derived from route extrapolation of USEPA 2008 PPRTV oral cancer slope factor. USEPA classified as likely to be carcinogenic to humans. Listed in 1998 as Cal/EPA Prop. 65 carcinogen.
- 92524 Biphenyl RfC derived from RfDo replaced with USEPA 2011 PPRTV Appendix A screening chronic RfC. Suggestive evidence of carcinogenicity.
- 96333 Methyl Acrylate RfC derived from RfDo replaced with 2012 PPRTV RfC recommended in the November 2013 RSL Table.
- 97632 Ethylmethylacrylate RfC derived from RfDo replaced with 2010 PPRTV RfC recommended in the November 2013 RSL Table.
- 98066 tert-Butylbenzene RfC derived from RfDo replaced with IRIS RfC for isopropylbenzene (cumene), surrogate recommended by 2012 PPRTV for tert-butylbenzene
- 98953 Nitrobenzene IUR added and RfC updated with the 2009 IRIS assessment. Likely to be carcinogenic to humans (combined route).
- 103651 n-Propylbenzene RfC derived from RfDo replaced with IRIS RfC for ethyl benzene, surrogate recommended in 2009 PPRTV Appendix A and used in November 2013 RSL table.
- 104518 n-Butylbenzene RfC derived from provisional RfDo updated using route-to-route extrapolation of 2010 IRIS RfDo.
- 106934 1,2-Dibromoethane IUR from OEHHA replaced with more conservative IRIS IUR.
- 107062 1,2-Dichloroethane IUR from OEHHA replaced with IRIS IUR. RfC (OEHHA 2000 REL) updated with USEPA 2010 PPRTV RfC.
- 108678 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene RfC derived as 2003 PPRTV was withdrawn by USEPA; replaced with RfC HERO derived by route extrapolation of 2009 PPRTV screening chronic RfDo.
- 108872 Methylcyclohexane RfC from HEAST replaced with IRIS 2005 RfC for surrogate hexane.
- 108907 Chlorobenzene RfC from OEHHA (REL) replaced with USEPA 2006 PPRTV RfC.
- 120821 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene RfC from 2002 PPRTV updated with USEPA 2009 PPRTV RfC.
- 126987 Methacrylonitrile RfC from HEAST updated with USEPA 2013 PPRTV RfC.
- 126998 2-Chloro-1,3-butadiene (Chloroprene) IUR added and RfC from HEAST updated with IRIS RfC. USEPA 2010 IRIS assessment characterized chloroprene as likely to be carcinogenic to humans. Listed in 2000 as Cal/EPA Prop. 65 carcinogen.
- 132649 Dibenzofuran RfC derived from provisional RfDo replaced with RfC derived from route-extrapolation of USEPA 2007 PPRTV screening chronic RfDo.
- 135988 sec -Butylbenzene RfC replaced with IRIS RfC for isopropylbenzene, surrogate recommended by 2012 PPRTV for sec-butylbenzene.
- 141786 Ethylacetate RfC derived from 1988 IRIS RfDo replaced by USEPA 2013 PPRTV RfC.
- 156592 cis -1,2-Dichloroethylene RfC derived from HEAST RfDo replaced with RfC derived from extrapolation of the 2010 IRIS RfDo.
- 319846 **alpha-HCH** (Hexachlorohexane; alpha-BHC) IUR from OEHHA replaced with more conservative USEPA IRIS IUR.

Additional Chemicals (VLOOKUP, Chemical Properties Lookup Table)

Chemicals have been added to the list for vapor intrusion evaluation as a result of toxicity criteria being derived or revised, more frequent detection at sites, and/or as needed for specific sites. See cell notes in VLOOKUP for chemical-specific information.

109-99-9 Tetrahydrofuran 96-12-8 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane 142-28-9 1,3-Dichloropropane 123-91-1 1,4-Dioxane 108-60-1 bis(2-Chloroisopropyl)ether 542-88-1 bis(Chloromethyl)ether 108-20-3 Diisopropyl ether (DIPE) 106-89-8 Epichlorohydrin 924-16-3 N-Nitroso-di-n-butylamine 109-66-0 Pentane, n-110-82-7 Cyclohexane

Chemical-Specific Information - Message (DATENTER I13)

For certain chemicals, a message will appear beneath the chemical name referring the user to the VLOOKUP Chemical Properties Lookup Table for comments on chemical properties and/or toxicity criteria. The comments provide chemical-specific information important for interpretation and/or application of the results in risk characterization and risk management. Included are possible or likely carcinogens for which inhalation unit risks have not been developed for quantifying potential risks.

Trichloroethylene (Trichloroethene, TCE; VLOOKUP, Chemical Properties Lookup Table M70, N70; message at DATENTER I13)

To protect women in the first trimester of pregnancy as one of the most sensitive populations, due to potential developmental toxicity from exposure to TCE, USEPA Region 9 developed health-protective interim response action levels and guidelines to address short-term inhalation exposures to TCE in indoor air from subsurface vapor intrusion (USEPA 2013b). HERO concurs with use of the USEPA Region 9's "Prompt Response Action Levels" of 2 µg/m³ and 9 µg/m³ for exposure to TCE under residential and commercial/industrial 8-hour workday scenarios, respectively (DTSC 2014b).

In the event the model-predicted indoor air concentration of TCE for a site approaches or exceeds these interim action levels, the DTSC Project Manager and Toxicologist should be contacted for a site-specific evaluation.

(Note that these prompt response action levels are close to the long-term exposure, cancer risk-based indoor air concentrations for 10⁶ risk, 0.4 µg/m³ for residential exposures and 3 µg/m³ for 8-hour/day commercial/industrial exposures.)

References

DTSC, 2011. Guidance for the Evaluation and Mitigation of Subsurface Vapor Intrusion into Indoor Air . Department of Toxic Substances Control, California Environmental Protection Agency. October 2011. http://www.dtsc.ca.gov/AssessingRisk/upload/Final VIG Oct 2011.pdf

DTSC, 2014a. Human Health Risk Assessment Note Number 1 - Recommended DTSC Default Exposure Factors for Use in Risk Assessment at California Hazardous Waste Sites and Permitted Facilities. Human and Ecological Risk Office, Department of Toxic Substances Control, California Environmental Protection Agency. September 30, 2014. http://www.dtsc.ca.gov/AssessingRisk/upload/HHRA_Note1-2.pdf

DTSC, 2014b. Human Health Risk Assessment Note Number 5 - Health-based Indoor Air Screening Criteria for Trichloroethylene (TCE). Human and Ecological Risk Office, Department of Toxic Substances Control, California Environmental Protection Agency. August 23, 2014. http://www.dtsc.ca.gov/AssessingRisk/upload/HHRA_Note5-pdf-pdf.pdf

Johnson, P. and Ettinger, R., 1991. Heuristic Model for Predicting the Intrusion Rate of Contaminant Vapors into Buildings . Environmental Science and Technology, 25:1445-1452.

OEHHA, 2005. Human-Exposure-Based Screening Numbers Developed to Aid Estimation of Cleanup Costs for Contaminated Soil. Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, California Environmental Protection Agency. January 2005

http://www.oehha.ca.gov/risk/pdf/screenreport010405.pdf

OEHHA, 2011. Air Toxics Hot Spots, Risk Assessment Guidelines: Technical Support Document for Cancer Potency Factors. Air Toxicology and Epidemiology Branch, Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, California Environmental Protection Agency. June 2011 update of May 2009 Document, and online updates as of January 2014. http://www.oehha.ca.gov/air/hot_spots/tsd052909.html

OEHHA, 2013. Air Toxics Hot Spots, Risk Assessment Guidelines: Technical Support Document for the Derivation of Noncancer Reference Exposure Levels. Air Toxicology and Epidemiology Branch, Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, California Environmental Protection Agency. August, 2013 update of June 2008 Document, and online updates as of January 2014. http://www.oehha.ca.gov/air/hot_spots/rels_dec2008.html

OEHHA, 2014. OEHHA Toxicity Criteria Database . Online database, Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, California Environmental Protection Agency. 2014. http://www.oehha.ca.gov/tcdb/index.asp

USEPA, 1996. Soil Screening Guidance: User's Guide. United States Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Emergency and Remedial Response. July 1996. EPA/540/R96/018, 9355.4-23. http://www.epa.gov/superfund/health/conmedia/soil/index.htm#user)

USEPA, 2002. Draft Guidance for Evaluating the Vapor Intrusion to Indoor Air Pathway from Groundwater and Soils (Subsurface Vapor Intrusion Guidance). United States Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response. November 2002. EPA530-D-02-004. http://www.epa.gov/epawaste/hazard/correctiveaction/eis/vapor.htm

USEPA, 2004a. Johnson and Ettinger (1991) Model for Subsurface Vapor Intrusion into Buildings. 3-Phase System Models and Soil Gas Models. Version 3.1. United States Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Emergency and Remedial Response. February 2004.

http://www.epa.gov/oswer/riskassessment/airmodel/johnson_ettinger.htm

USEPA, 2004b. User's Guide for Evaluating Subsurface Vapor Intrusion into Buildings. United States Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Emergency and Remedial Response. February 22, 2004. http://www.epa.gov/oswer/riskassessment/airmodel/pdf/2004_0222_3phase_users_guide.pdf

USEPA, 2009. *Risk Assessment for Guidance for Superfund Volume I Human Health Evaluation Manual (Part F, Supplemental Guidance for Inhalation Risk Assessment)*. Office of Superfund Remediation and Technology Innovation, United States Environmental Protection Agency. January 2009. EPA-540-R-070-002, OSWER 9285.7-82. http://www.epa.gov/oswer/riskassessment/rags/findex.htm

USEPA, 2012. EPA's Vapor Intrusion Database: Evaluation and Characterization of Attenuation Factors for Chlorinated Volatile Organic Compounds and Residential Buildings. United States Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response. March 16, 2012. EPA 530-R-10-002. http://www.epa.gov/oswer/vaporintrusion/documents/OSWER_2010_Database_Report_03-16-2012_Final_witherratum_508.pdf

USEPA, 2013a. Regional Screening Levels for Chemical Contaminants at Superfund Sites (website and Tables). United States Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response, Mid-Atlantic Region. November 2013.

http://www.epa.gov/reg3hwmd/risk/human/rb-concentration table/index.htm

USEPA, 2013b. USEPA Region 9 Guidelines and Supplemental Information Needed for Vapor Intrusion Evaluations at the South Bay National Priorities List (NPL) Sites . Letter from Kathleen Salyer, Assistant Director, Superfund Division, California Cleanup Branch, USEPA Region 9, San Francisco, to Stephen Hill, Chief, Toxics Cleanup Division, California Regional Water Quality Control Board – San Francisco Bay Region. December 3, 2013.

<u>13.pdf</u>

USEPA, 2014a. Human Health Evaluation Manual, Supplemental Guidance: Update of Standard Default Exposure Factors, Response, Office of Superfund Remediation and Technology Innovation. OSWER 9200.1-120. February 6, 2014. http://www.epa.gov/oswer/riskassessment/pdf/superfund-hh-exposure/OSWER-Directive-9200-1-120-ExposureFactors.pdf

USEPA, 2014b. Vapor Intrusion Screening Level Calculator, Version 3.2.1. United States Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Research and Development, Technical Documents and Tools to Support Subsurface Vapor Intrusion Guidance, Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response. February 5, 2014 update. http://www.epa.gov/oswer/vaporintrusion/guidance.html#Item6

USEPA SG-SCREEN Version 2.0. 04/2003 DTSC Modification

December 2014

Reset to

Defaults

ENTER

Chemical

ENTER

Soil

Department of Toxic Substances Control Vapor Intrusion Screening Model - Soil Gas

DATA ENTRY SHEET

ENTER

Soil

Soil Gas Concentration Data

OR



| | Result | s Summary | | |
|----------------------|--------------------|----------------------|---------|-----------|
| Soil Gas Conc. | Attenuation Factor | Indoor Air Conc. | Cancer | Noncancer |
| (µg/m ³) | (unitless) | (µg/m ³) | Risk | Hazard |
| 1.38E+04 | 5.1E-04 | 7.1E+00 | 3.4E-06 | 4.6E-02 |





Last Update: December 2014 DTSC Human and Ecological Risk Office

CHEMICAL PROPERTIES SHEET

Tetrachloroethylene

| | | Henry's | Henry's | Enthalpy of | Normal | | Linit | | |
|-------------|----------------|---------------------------|----------------|------------------|----------------|-------------------|------------------------|----------------------|-----------|
| Diffusivity | Diffusivity | at reference | reference | the normal | boiling | Critical | risk | Reference | Molecular |
| in air, | in water, | temperature, | temperature, | boiling point, | point, | temperature, | factor, | conc., | weight, |
| Da | D _w | Н | T _R | $\Delta H_{v,b}$ | Τ _B | T _C | URF | RfC | MW |
| (cm²/s) | (cm²/s) | (atm-m ³ /mol) | (°C) | (cal/mol) | (°K) | ([°] K) | (µg/m ³)⁻¹ | (mg/m ³) | (g/mol) |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| 5.05E-02 | 9.46E-06 | 1.77E-02 | 25 | 8,288 | 394.40 | 620.20 | 5.9E-06 | 3.5E-02 | 165.83 |
| | | | | | | | | | |

END

Scenario: Commercial

Chemical: Tetrachloroethylene

| | Vadose zone | Vadose zone | Vadose zone | Vadose zone | Vadose zone | Floor- | | |
|----------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|----------------------|---------------------------|--------------------|-----------------------|------------------|-----------------------|
| Source- | soil | effective | soil | soil | soil | wall | | Bldg. |
| building | air-filled | total fluid | intrinsic | relative air | effective vapor | seam | Soil | ventilation |
| separation, | porosity, | saturation, | permeability, | permeability, | permeability, | perimeter, | gas | rate, |
| LT | θ_a^{\vee} | S _{te} | k _i | k _{rg} | k _v | X _{crack} | conc. | Q _{building} |
| (cm) | (cm ³ /cm ³) | (cm ³ /cm ³) | (cm ²) | (cm ²) | (cm ²) | (cm) | (µg/m³) | (cm ³ /s) |
| | | | | | | | | |
| 137 | 0.321 | 0.003 | 1.02E-07 | 0.998 | 1.01E-07 | 4,000 | 1.38E+04 | 6.78E+04 |
| | | | | | | | | |
| Area of | | | | | | | Vadoso | |
| Area Or | Crack | Crack | Enthalov of | Henry's law | Henry's law | Vapor | ZODA | |
| snace | to-total | denth | vanorization at | constant at | constant at | viscosity at | effective | Diffusion |
| below | area | below | ave soil | | ave soil | ave soil | diffusion | nath |
| arade | ratio | arade | temperature | temperature | temperature | temperature | coefficient | length |
| giudo, | ratio, | 7 | | | | tomporataro, | D ^{eff} | iongui, |
| A _B | η | Zcrack | $\Delta H_{v,TS}$ | H _{TS} | H _{TS} | μ_{TS} | | L _d |
| (cm²) | (unitless) | (cm) | (cal/mol) | (atm-m [°] /mol) | (unitless) | (g/cm-s) | (cm²/s) | (cm) |
| (007 00 | | | | | | (007 0 (| 0.405.00 | (a= |
| 1.00E+06 | 5.00E-03 | 15 | 9,410 | 1.68E-02 | 6.88E-01 | 1.80E-04 | 8.16E-03 | 137 |
| | | | | | | Exponent of | Infinite | |
| | | | Average | Crack | | equivalent | source | Infinite |
| Convection | Source | | vapor | effective | | foundation | indoor | source |
| path | vapor | Crack | flow rate | diffusion | Area of | Peclet | attenuation | bldg. |
| length, | conc., | radius, | into bldg., | coefficient, | crack, | number, | coefficient, | conc., |
| Lp | C _{source} | r _{crack} | Q _{soil} | D ^{crack} | Acrack | exp(Pe ^f) | α | C _{building} |
| (cm) | (µg/m³) | (cm) | (cm ³ /s) | (cm²/s) | (cm ²) | (unitless) | (unitless) | (µg/m ³) |
| | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | 1.38E+04 | 1.25 | 8.33E+01 | 8.16E-03 | 5.00E+03 | 7.45E+08 | 5.12E-04 | 7.06E+00 |

| Unit risk factor. | Reference |
|-------------------------|----------------------|
| URF | RfC |
| (µg/m ³)⁻¹ | (mg/m ³) |
| | |
| 5.9E-06 | 3.5E-02 |
| | |
| END |] |

RESULTS SHEET

Scenario: Commercial Chemical: Tetrachloroethylene

INCREMENTAL RISK CALCULATIONS:

| Incremental | Hazard |
|--------------|---------------|
| risk from | quotient |
| vapor | from vapor |
| intrusion to | intrusion to |
| indoor air, | indoor air, |
| carcinogen | noncarcinogen |
| (unitless) | (unitless) |
| | |
| 3 4E-06 | 4 6E-02 |

MESSAGE SUMMARY BELOW:

END

| r | | | | | | | | | | |
|---------------|-----------------------|-----------|--------------|--------------|---------------------------------------|--|---------------------|----------------------|--|-----------------|
| | | | | Soil Pr | operties Look | ıp Table | | | | |
| | | | | | | | Mean Grain Diameter | Bulk Density | | |
| SCS Soil Type | K _s (cm/h) | α1 (1/cm) | N (unitless) | M (unitless) | n (cm ³ /cm ³) | θr (cm ³ /cm ³) | (cm) | (g/cm ³) | θ _w (cm ³ /cm ³) | SCS Soil Name |
| C | 0.61 | 0.01496 | 1.253 | 0.2019 | 0.459 | 0.098 | 0.0092 | 1.43 | 0.215 | Clay |
| CL | 0.34 | 0.01581 | 1.416 | 0.2938 | 0.442 | 0.079 | 0.016 | 1.48 | 0.168 | Clay Loam |
| L | 0.50 | 0.01112 | 1.472 | 0.3207 | 0.399 | 0.061 | 0.020 | 1.59 | 0.148 | Loam |
| LS | 4.38 | 0.03475 | 1.746 | 0.4273 | 0.390 | 0.049 | 0.040 | 1.62 | 0.076 | Loamy Sand |
| S | 26.78 | 0.03524 | 3.177 | 0.6852 | 0.375 | 0.053 | 0.044 | 1.66 | 0.054 | Sand |
| SC | 0.47 | 0.03342 | 1.208 | 0.1722 | 0.385 | 0.117 | 0.025 | 1.63 | 0.197 | Sandy Clay |
| SCL | 0.55 | 0.02109 | 1.330 | 0.2481 | 0.384 | 0.063 | 0.029 | 1.63 | 0.146 | Sandy Clay Loam |
| SI | 1.82 | 0.00658 | 1.679 | 0.4044 | 0.489 | 0.050 | 0.0046 | 1.35 | 0.167 | Silt |
| SIC | 0.40 | 0.01622 | 1.321 | 0.2430 | 0.481 | 0.111 | 0.0039 | 1.38 | 0.216 | Silty Clay |
| SICL | 0.46 | 0.00839 | 1.521 | 0.3425 | 0.482 | 0.090 | 0.0056 | 1.37 | 0.198 | Silty Clay Loam |
| SIL | 0.76 | 0.00506 | 1.663 | 0.3987 | 0.439 | 0.065 | 0.011 | 1.49 | 0.180 | Silt Loam |
| SL | 1.60 | 0.02667 | 1.449 | 0.3099 | 0.387 | 0.039 | 0.030 | 1.62 | 0.103 | Sandy Loam |

NEW => Receptor Lookup Table (added by HERO)

| HEIT -> Receptor E | bonup rubic juducu by nenoj | | | | | |
|----------------------------|-----------------------------|------------------|-------|-----------|-----------|----------|
| Receptor | AT _c | AT _{NC} | ED | EF | ET | ACH |
| Type | (yrs) | (yrs) | (yrs) | (days/yr) | (hrs/day) | (1/hour) |
| Residential | 70 | 26 | 26 | 350 | 24 | 0.5 |
| Commercial User-Defined | 70 | 25 | 25 | 250 | 8 | 1 |

| N | otes on Toxicity Criteria (see cell comments for individual chemical toxicity values) |
|----|--|
| 1. | Chemical name (blue) = Carcinogens with IUR |
| 2. | Values are from USEPA IRIS database except as indicated. |
| 3. | Bold = Cal/EPA Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) toxicity value |
| 4. | IUR or RIC (red) = revised values (March 2014 update of December 2011 values) |
| 5. | X denotes route extrapolation from oral toxicity criteria. |

 X denotes route extrapolation from oral toxicity criteria. (Values posted by USEPA or OEHHA as inhalation criteria, including cancer slope factors, an not denoted except as in original USEPA 2002 Draft VI guidance.)

| | | | Chemical | Properties L | ookup Table (K | oc, Da, D _w , S, H, H | values updated per US | EPA November 2013 | 3 RSL Table) | | | DTS | C-Recommended | Toxicity Criteria | Values | | USEPA-Recommended Toxicity Criteria Values | | | | ARCHIVE | | | |
|--------------------|--------------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------|----------------------------------|---------------------------|-------------------|--------------|----------------|-------------------|------------------------------------|-------------------------|--------------------------|---------------------|---------|--|----------------------|------------------------|------------------------------------|----------------------------------|------------------------|--|--|
| NEW => 11 Addition | nal Chemicals | Organic | | | Pure | | Henry's | Henry's | | | Enthalpy of | Used to | Calculate Risk and | Hazard (last upda | ted March 2014) | | No | vember 2013 | RSL Table | Origin | Original USEPA Toxicity Criteria | | | |
| (CAS No. in red) | | carbon | | | component | | law constant | law constant | Normal | | vaporization at | (0.0E+ | 00 = no value available |) | | | | | | (USEPA 200 | 2 Draft Vapor Int | rusion Guidance) | | |
| | | partition | Diffusivity | Diffusivity | water | Henry's | at reference | reference | boiling | Critical | the normal | Inhalation | Reference | Molecular | Extrapolated from a | ral | Inhalation | Reference | Extrapolated from oral | Unit Risk | Reference | Extrapolated from oral | | |
| | | coefficient, | in air, | in water, | solubility, | law constant | temperature, | temperature, | point, | temperature, | boiling point, | Unit Risk | conc., | weight, | toxicity value | Comment | Unit Risk | conc., | toxicity value | Factor | conc., | toxicity value | | |
| | | Koc | Da | Dw | S | H | н | T _R | TB | Tc | DH _{v,b} | IUR | RfC | MW | IUR RfC | Flag | IUR | RfC | IUR RfC | URF | RfC | URF RfC | | |
| CAS No. | Chemical | (cm ³ /g) | (cm ² /s) | (cm ² /s) | (mg/L) | (unitless) | (atm-m ³ /mol) | (°C) | (°K) | (°K) | (cal/mol) | (µg/m ³) ⁻¹ | (mg/m ³) | (g/mol) | (X) (X) | (y) | (µg/m ³) ⁻¹ | (mg/m ³) | (X) (X) | (µg/m ³) ⁻¹ | (mg/m ³) | (X) (X) | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 56235 C | Jarbon tetrachloride | 4.39E+01 | 5.71E-02 | 9.79E-06 | 7.93E+02 | 1.13E+00 | 2.76E-02 | 25 | 349.9 | 556.6 | 7,127 | 4.2E-05 | 4.0E-02 | 1.54E+02 | | | 6.0E-06 | 1.0E-01 | | 1.5E-05 | 0.0E+00 | | | |
| 57749 C | chlordane | 3.38E+04 | 3.44E-02 | 4.02E-06 | 5.60E-02 | 1.99E-03 | 4.85E-05 | 25 | 624.2 | 885.7 | 14,000 | 3.4E-04 | 7.0E-04 | 4.10E+02 | | | 1.0E-04 | 7.0E-04 | | 1.0E-04 | 7.0E-04 | | | |
| 58899 g | jamma-HCH (Lindane) | 2.81E+03 | 4.33E-02 | 5.06E-06 | 7.30E+00 | 2.10E-04 | 5.14E-06 | 25 | 596.6 | 839.4 | 15,000 | 3.1E-04 | 1.1E-03 | 2.91E+02 | ×. | | 3.1E-04 | | | 3.7E-04 | 1.1E-03 | X X | | |
| 60297 E | tnyi etner | 9.70E+00 | 8.52E-02 | 9.30E-00 | 6.04E+04 | 5.03E-02 | 1.23E-03 | 25 | 307.5 | 400.7 | 6,338 | 0.0E+00 | 7.0E-01 | 7.41E+01 | ÷ | | 4.65.02 | | | 0.0E+00 | 7.0E-01 | Å. | | |
| 003/1 D | Jedan | 2.012+04 | 2.33E-02 | 0.01E-00 | 1.93E-01 | 4.09E-04 | 1.00E-05 | 25 | 220.2 | 0%2.3 E00.4 | C 055 | 4.62-03 | 2.45.04 | 3.81E+02 | ^ | | 4.0E-03 | 2.45.04 | | 4.0E-03 | 2.65.04 | ÷ | | |
| 67662 C | bloroform | 2.30E+00 2.19E+01 | 7.60E-01 | 1.13E-05 | 7.00E±00 | 1.43E-03 | 3.50E-05 2.67E 02 | 25 | 329.2 | 500.1 | 6,955 | 2.2E.06 | 3.1ETU1 | 5.81E+U1 | | | 2.25.05 | 3.1ETU1 | | 2.2E.05 | 0.0E+00 | ^ | | |
| 67721 | Javashlarosthana | 1.07E±02 | 2 21E 02 | 9.905.06 | 5 00E±01 | 1.50E-01 | 3.072-03 | 25 | 459.0 | 605.0 | 0,500 | 1.1E-05 | 3.05.02 | 2 275 102 | | | 1 1E 05 | 3.0E-02 | | 2.3E-03 | 2 65 02 | × | | |
| 71432 B | Renzene | 1.46E+02 | 8.95E-02 | 1.03E-05 | 1 79E+03 | 2 27E-01 | 5.55E-03 | 25 | 353.2 | 562.2 | 7 342 | 2 9E-05 | 3.0E-02 | 7 81F±01 | | v | 7.8E-06 | 3.0E-02 | | 7.8E-06 | 0.0E+00 | ^ | | |
| 71556 1 | 1 1-Trichloroethane | 4 30E+01 | 6.48E-02 | 9.60E-06 | 1.70E+03 | 7.03E-01 | 1.72E-02 | 25 | 347.2 | 545.0 | 7 136 | 0.0E+00 | 1.0E±00 | 1 33E±02 | | , | 1.02 00 | 5.0E+00 | | 0.0E+00 | 2.2E+00 | | | |
| 72435 M | /ethoxychlor | 2.69E+04 | 2 21E-02 | 5.59E-06 | 1.00E-01 | 8.30E-06 | 2.03E-07 | 25 | 651.0 | 848.5 | 16 000 | 0.0E+00 | 1.8E-02 | 3.46E+02 | x | | | 0.02.00 | | 0.0E+00 | 1.8F-02 | х | | |
| 72559 D | DE | 1 18E+05 | 4 08E-02 | 4 76E-06 | 4 00E-02 | 1 70E-03 | 4 16E-05 | 25 | 636.4 | 860.4 | 15,000 | 9.7E-05 | 0.0E+00 | 3 18E+02 | x | | 9.7E-05 | | x | 9.7E-05 | 0.0E+00 | x | | |
| 74839 M | lethyl bromide (bromomethane) | 1.32E+01 | 1.00E-01 | 1.35E-05 | 1.52E+04 | 3.00E-01 | 7.34E-03 | 25 | 276.7 | 467.0 | 5.714 | 0.0E+00 | 5.0E-03 | 9.49E+01 | | | | 5.0E-03 | | 0.0E+00 | 5.0E-03 | | | |
| 74873 M | Methyl chloride (chloromethane) | 1.32E+01 | 1.24E-01 | 1.36E-05 | 5.32E+03 | 3.61E-01 | 8.82E-03 | 25 | 249.0 | 416.3 | 5.115 | 0.0E+00 | 9.0E-02 | 5.05E+01 | | v | | 9.0E-02 | | 1.0E-06 | 9.0E-02 | | | |
| 74908 H | lydrogen cyanide | 3.80E+00 | 1.68E-01 | 1.68E-05 | 1.00E+06 | 5.44E-03 | 1.33E-04 | 25 | 299.0 | 456.7 | 6,676 | 0.0E+00 | 8.0E-04 | 2.70E+01 | | - | | 8.0E-04 | | 0.0E+00 | 3.0E-03 | | | |
| 74953 M | Methylene bromide (dibromomethane) | 2.17E+01 | 5.51E-02 | 1.19E-05 | 1.19E+04 | 3.36E-02 | 8.22E-04 | 25 | 370.0 | 583.0 | 7,868 | 0.0E+00 | 4.0E-03 | 1.74E+02 | | | | 4.0E-03 | | 0.0E+00 | 3.5E-02 | х | | |
| 75003 C | Chloroethane (ethyl chloride) | 2.17E+01 | 1.04E-01 | 1.16E-05 | 6.71E+03 | 4.54E-01 | 1.11E-02 | 25 | 285.3 | 460.4 | 5,879 | 1.3E-06 | 1.0E+01 | 6.45E+01 | x | у | | 1.0E+01 | | 8.3E-07 | 1.0E+01 | Х | | |
| 75014 V | /inyl chloride (chloroethene) | 2.17E+01 | 1.07E-01 | 1.20E-05 | 8.80E+03 | 1.14E+00 | 2.78E-02 | 25 | 259.3 | 432.0 | 5,250 | 7.8E-05 | 1.0E-01 | 6.25E+01 | | | 8.8E-06 | 1.0E-01 | | 8.8E-06 | 1.0E-01 | | | |
| 75058 A | Acetonitrile | 4.67E+00 | 1.34E-01 | 1.41E-05 | 1.00E+06 | 1.41E-03 | 3.45E-05 | 25 | 354.6 | 545.5 | 7,110 | 0.0E+00 | 6.0E-02 | 4.11E+01 | | | | 6.0E-02 | | 0.0E+00 | 6.0E-02 | | | |
| 75070 A | Acetaldehyde | 1.00E+00 | 1.28E-01 | 1.35E-05 | 1.00E+06 | 2.73E-03 | 6.67E-05 | 25 | 293.1 | 466.0 | 6,157 | 2.7E-06 | 9.0E-03 | 4.41E+01 | | | 2.2E-06 | 9.0E-03 | | 2.2E-06 | 9.0E-03 | | | |
| 75092 M | Methylene chloride (dichloromethane) | 2.17E+01 | 9.99E-02 | 1.25E-05 | 1.30E+04 | 1.33E-01 | 3.25E-03 | 25 | 313.0 | 510.0 | 6,706 | 1.0E-06 | 4.0E-01 | 8.49E+01 | | | 1.0E-08 | 6.0E-01 | | 4.7E-07 | 3.0E+00 | | | |
| 75150 C | Carbon disulfide | 2.17E+01 | 1.06E-01 | 1.30E-05 | 2.16E+03 | 5.89E-01 | 1.44E-02 | 25 | 319.0 | 552.0 | 6,391 | 0.0E+00 | 7.0E-01 | 7.61E+01 | | | | 7.0E-01 | | 0.0E+00 | 7.0E-01 | | | |
| 75218 E | Ethylene oxide | 3.24E+00 | 1.34E-01 | 1.45E-05 | 1.00E+06 | 6.05E-03 | 1.48E-04 | 25 | 283.6 | 469.0 | 6,104 | 8.8E-05 | 3.0E-02 | 4.41E+01 | | | 8.8E-05 | 3.0E-02 | | 1.0E-04 | 0.0E+00 | | | |
| 75252 B | Bromoform | 3.18E+01 | 3.57E-02 | 1.04E-05 | 3.10E+03 | 2.19E-02 | 5.35E-04 | 25 | 422.4 | 696.0 | 9,479 | 1.1E-06 | 7.0E-02 | 2.53E+02 | x | | 1.1E-06 | | | 1.1E-06 | 7.0E-02 | х | | |
| 75274 B | Bromodichloromethane | 3.18E+01 | 5.63E-02 | 1.07E-05 | 3.03E+03 | 8.67E-02 | 2.12E-03 | 25 | 363.2 | 585.9 | 7,800 | 3.7E-05 | 7.0E-02 | 1.64E+02 | x x | | 3.7E-05 | | x | 1.8E-05 | 7.0E-02 | X X | | |
| 75296 2- | Chioropropane | 9.14E+00 | 8.88E-02 | 1.01E-05 | 3.73E+03 | 5.93E-01 | 1.45E-02 | 25 | 308.7 | 485.0 | 6,286 | 0.0E+00 | 1.0E-01 | 7.85E+01 | ~ ~ | У | 4 05 00 | | | 0.0E+00 | 1.0E-01 | | | |
| 75343 1 | 1,1-Dichloroethane | 3.18E+01 | 8.36E-02 | 1.06E-05 | 5.04E+03 | 2.30E-01 | 5.62E-03 | 25 | 330.6 | 523.0 | 6,895 | 1.6E-06 | 7.0E-01 | 9.90E+01 | × × | | 1.6E-06 | 2.05.04 | | 0.0E+00 | 5.0E-01 | | | |
| 75354 1, | r, r-Dichloroethylene | 3.10ETU1 | 0.03E-02 | 1.10E-05 | 2.42E+03 | 1.072700 | 2.01E-02 | 25 | 304.0 | 3/0.1 | 0,247 | 0.0E+00 | 7.0E-02 | 9.09E+01 | | | | 2.0E-01 | | 0.0E+00 | 2.02-01 | | | |
| 75436 0 | Frichlorofluoromethane | 3.10E+01 | 6.64E.02 | 1.00E.05 | 2.77E+03 | 2.07E±00 | 4.00E-02 0.70E-02 | 25 | 232.4 | 471.0 | 4,030 | 0.0E+00 | 7.0E+01 | 8.05E+U1 | | | | 7.0E+01 | | 0.0E+00 | 7.0E+01 | | | |
| 75719 D | Dishlorodifuoromethane | 4.39E+01 | 7.60E.02 | 1.00E-05 | 2 905±02 | 1.40E±01 | 3.42E 01 | 25 | 242.2 | 395.0 | 0,421 | 0.0E+00 | 1.05.01 | 1.376+02 | | | | 1.0E-01 | | 0.0E+00 | 2.0E-01 | | | |
| 76131.1 | 1.2-Trichloro-1.2.2-trifluoroethane | 1.97E+02 | 3.76E-02 | 8.59E-06 | 1 70E+02 | 2.15E+01 | 5.26E-01 | 25 | 320.7 | 487.3 | 6463 | 0.0E+00 | 3.0E+01 | 1.21E+02 1.87E±02 | | | | 3.0E+01 | | 0.0E+00 | 3.0E+01 | | | |
| 76448 H | Hentachlor | 4 13E+04 | 2.23E-02 | 5 70E-06 | 1.80E-01 | 1 20E-02 | 2 94E-04 | 25 | 603.7 | 846.3 | 13,000 | 1 2E-03 | 1.8E-03 | 3 73F±02 | x | | 1 3E-03 | 0.02.01 | | 1 3E-03 | 1.8E-03 | x | | |
| 77474 H | -lexachlorocyclopentadiene | 1.40E+03 | 2 72E-02 | 7.22E-06 | 1.80E+00 | 1 10E+00 | 2.70E-02 | 25 | 512.2 | 746.0 | 10,000 | 0.0E+00 | 2 0E-04 | 2 73E+02 | | | 1.02 00 | 2 0E-04 | | 0.0E+00 | 2 0E-04 | ~ | | |
| 78831 Is | sobutanol | 2 92E+00 | 8 97E-02 | 1.00E-05 | 8.50E+04 | 4 00E-04 | 9.78E-06 | 25 | 381.0 | 547.8 | 10,936 | 0.0E+00 | 1 1E+00 | 7.41E+01 | x | | | | | 0.0E+00 | 1.1E+00 | x | | |
| 78875 1 | ,2-Dichloropropane | 6.07E+01 | 7.33E-02 | 9.73E-06 | 2.80E+03 | 1.15E-01 | 2.82E-03 | 25 | 369.5 | 572.0 | 7,590 | 1.0E-05 | 4.0E-03 | 1.13E+02 | х | | 1.0E-05 | 4.0E-03 | | 1.9E-05 | 4.0E-03 | х | | |
| 78933 M | Methylethylketone (2-butanone) | 4.51E+00 | 9.14E-02 | 1.02E-05 | 2.23E+05 | 2.33E-03 | 5.69E-05 | 25 | 352.5 | 536.8 | 7,481 | 0.0E+00 | 5.0E+00 | 7.21E+01 | | | | 5.0E+00 | | 0.0E+00 | 1.0E+00 | | | |
| 79005 1 | 1,1,2-Trichloroethane | 6.07E+01 | 6.69E-02 | 1.00E-05 | 4.59E+03 | 3.37E-02 | 8.24E-04 | 25 | 386.2 | 602.0 | 8,322 | 1.6E-05 | 2.0E-04 | 1.33E+02 | | | 1.6E-05 | 2.0E-04 | | 1.6E-05 | 1.4E-02 | х | | |
| 79016 T | Trichloroethylene | 6.07E+01 | 6.87E-02 | 1.02E-05 | 1.28E+03 | 4.03E-01 | 9.85E-03 | 25 | 360.4 | 544.2 | 7,505 | 4.1E-06 | 2.0E-03 | 1.31E+02 | | У | 4.1E-06 | 2.0E-03 | | 1.1E-04 | 4.0E-02 | х | | |
| 79209 M | Methyl acetate | 3.06E+00 | 9.58E-02 | 1.10E-05 | 2.43E+05 | 4.70E-03 | 1.15E-04 | 25 | 329.8 | 506.7 | 7,260 | 0.0E+00 | 3.5E+00 | 7.41E+01 | х | | | | | 0.0E+00 | 3.5E+00 | х | | |
| 79345 1 | 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane | 9.49E+01 | 4.89E-02 | 9.29E-06 | 2.83E+03 | 1.50E-02 | 3.67E-04 | 25 | 419.6 | 661.2 | 8,996 | 5.8E-05 | 7.0E-02 | 1.68E+02 | х | I | 5.8E-05 | | | 5.8E-05 | 2.1E-01 | х | | |

VLOOKUP TABLES

| | NEW => 11 Add | ditional Chemicals | Organic | Chemical | Properties Lo | Pure Pure | oc, D _a , D _w , S, H, H | values updated per USE Henry's | PA November 2013 Henry's | RSL Table) | | Enthalpy of | DTSC- Used to Ca | Recommended T Iculate Risk and H | Toxicity Criteria Hazard (last upda | a Values ated March 2014) | | USEPA-Reco No | mmended To vember 2013 I | xicity Criteria Values RSL Table | Original | ARCHIVE USEPA Toxic | city Criteria |
|---|-----------------|--|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|---|-----------------------------------|-----------------------------|----------------|----------------|--------------------|---------------------------------|-------------------------------------|--|------------------------------|---------|----------------------|-----------------------------|-------------------------------------|--------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------|
| | CAS No. in red | ŋ | carbon | Diffusivity | Diffusivity | component | Liens (e | law constant | law constant | Normal | Critical | vaporization at | (0.0E+00 | no value available) | Malaardaa | Fortune state of feature and | | lebelation | Deference | Enternalists of feature and | (USEPA 2002 | Draft Vapor Intr | usion Guidance) |
| Cont N N N N | | | coefficient, | in air, | in water, | solubility, | law constant | temperature, | temperature, | point, | temperature, | boiling point, | Unit Risk | conc., | weight, | toxicity value | Comment | Unit Risk | conc., | toxicity value | Factor | conc., | toxicity value |
| Control Control <t< th=""><th></th><th>Observation</th><th>K_{oc}</th><th>D_a</th><th>D_w</th><th>S</th><th>H</th><th>H (atm m³/mal)</th><th>TR</th><th>TB</th><th>Tc</th><th>DH_{v,b}</th><th>IUR (untern³)-1</th><th>RfC (ma(m³)</th><th>MW</th><th>IUR RfC</th><th>Flag</th><th>IUR (um/m3)-1</th><th>RfC (ma/m³)</th><th>IUR RfC</th><th>URF</th><th>RfC (mm/m³)</th><th>URF Rf</th></t<> | | Observation | K _{oc} | D _a | D _w | S | H | H (atm m ³ /mal) | TR | TB | Tc | DH _{v,b} | IUR (untern ³)-1 | RfC (ma(m ³) | MW | IUR RfC | Flag | IUR (um/m3)-1 | RfC (ma/m ³) | IUR RfC | URF | RfC (mm/m ³) | URF Rf |
| | CAS NO. 7946 | Chemical 59 2-Nitropropane | 3.08E+01 | 8.47E-02 | 1.02E-05 | (mg/L) 1.70E+04 | (unitiess) 4.87E-03 | (aun-m /moi) 1.19E-04 | 25 | 393.2 | 594.0 | (cai/moi) 8.383 | (µg/m) 2.7E-03 | 2.0E-02 | (g/moi) 8.91E+01 | (X) (X) | (y) | (µg/III) 2.7E-03 | (ing/in) 2.0E-02 | (X) (X) | 2.7E-03 | 2.0E-02 | (X) (X |
| | 8062 | 26 Methylmethacrylate | 9.14E+00 | 7.50E-02 | 9.21E-06 | 1.50E+04 | 1.30E-02 | 3.19E-04 | 25 | 373.5 | 567.0 | 8,975 | 0.0E+00 | 7.0E-01 | 1.00E+02 | | | | 7.0E-01 | | 0.0E+00 | 7.0E-01 | |
| Image: Marge: | 8332 | 29 Acenaphthene 37 Fluorene | 5.03E+03 9.16E+03 | 5.06E-02 4.40E-02 | 8.33E-06 7.89E-06 | 3.90E+00 1.69E+00 | 7.52E-03 3.93E-03 | 1.84E-04 9.62E-05 | 25 25 | 550.5 570.4 | 803.2 870.0 | 12,155 | 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 | 2.1E-01 1.4E-01 | 1.54E+02 1.66E+02 | x | | | | | 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 | 2.1E-01 1.4E-01 | × |
| | 8768 | 83 Hexachloro-1,3-butadiene | 8.45E+02 | 2.67E-02 | 7.03E-06 | 3.20E+00 | 4.21E-01 | 1.03E-02 | 25 | 486.2 | 738.0 | 10,206 | 2.2E-05 | 3.5E-03 | 2.61E+02 | x | | 2.2E-05 | | | 2.2E-05 | 7.0E-04 | X |
| | 8872 9120 | 22 o-Nitrotoluene | 3.71E+02 1.54E+03 | 5.88E-02 6.05E-02 | 8.67E-06 8.38E-06 | 6.50E+02 3 10E+01 | 5.11E-04 1.80E-02 | 1.25E-05 4.40E-04 | 25 | 495.0 491.1 | 720.0 | 12,239 | 6.3E-05 3.4E-05 | 3.2E-03 3.0E-03 | 1.37E+02 1.28E+02 | × × | У | 3.4E-05 | 3 0E-03 | | 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 | 3.5E-02 3.0E-03 | x |
| | 9157 | 76 2-Methylnaphthalene | 2.48E+03 | 5.24E-02 | 7.78E-06 | 2.46E+01 | 2.11E-02 | 5.18E-04 | 25 | 514.3 | 761.0 | 12,600 | 0.0E+00 | 1.4E-02 | 1.42E+02 | х | | | | | 0.0E+00 | 7.0E-02 | х |
| B | 9252 9547 | 24 Biphenyl 76 o-Xvlene | 5.13E+03 3.83E+02 | 4.71E-02 6.89E-02 | 7.56E-06 8.53E-06 | 6.94E+00 1.78E+02 | 1.26E-02 2.12E-01 | 3.08E-04 5.18E-03 | 25 25 | 529.1 417.6 | 789.0 630.3 | 10,890 8.661 | 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 | 4.0E-04 1.0E-01 | 1.54E+02 1.06E+02 | | У | | 4.0E-04 1.0E-01 | | 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 | 1.8E-01 1.0E-01 | × |
| No. 1. S. Starning No. 2. | 9550 | 01 1,2-Dichlorobenzene | 3.83E+02 | 5.62E-02 | 8.92E-06 | 1.56E+02 | 7.85E-02 | 1.92E-03 | 25 | 453.6 | 705.0 | 9,700 | 0.0E+00 | 2.0E-01 | 1.47E+02 | | | | 2.0E-01 | | 0.0E+00 | 2.0E-01 | |
| | 9557 9563 | 78 2-Chlorophenol 36 1 2 4-Trimethylbenzene | 3.07E+02 6 14E+02 | 6.61E-02 6.07E-02 | 9.48E-06 7.92E-06 | 1.13E+04 5 70E+01 | 4.58E-04 2.52E-01 | 1.12E-05 6.16E-03 | 25 25 | 447.5 442.3 | 675.0 649.2 | 9,572 | 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 | 1.8E-02 7.0E-03 | 1.29E+02 1.20E+02 | х | | | 7.0E-03 | | 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 | 1.8E-02 6.0E-03 | x |
| B B C B C B C B C A Y F | 9612 | 28 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane | 1.16E+02 | 3.21E-02 | 8.90E-06 | 1.23E+03 | 6.01E-03 | 1.47E-04 | 25 | 469.0 | 703.5 | 9,960 | 6.0E-03 | 2.0E-04 | 2.36E+02 | | | 6.0E-03 | 2.0E-04 | | | | |
| | 9618 | 84 1,2,3-Trichloropropane 33 Methyl acrulate | 1.16E+02 5.84E+00 | 5.75E-02 8.60E-02 | 9.24E-06 1.02E-05 | 1.75E+03 4 94E+04 | 1.40E-02 8.14E-03 | 3.43E-04 1.99E-04 | 25 25 | 430.0 353.7 | 652.0 536.0 | 9,171 | 8.6E-03 0.0E+00 | 3.0E-04 2.0E-02 | 1.47E+02 8.61E+01 | x | У | | 3.0E-04 2.0E-02 | | 5.7E-04 0.0E+00 | 4.9E-03 1.1E-01 | X |
| Half in Long Long <thlong< th=""> Long Long<td>9763</td><td>32 Ethylmethacrylate</td><td>1.67E+01</td><td>6.53E-02</td><td>8.38E-06</td><td>5.40E+03</td><td>2.34E-02</td><td>5.73E-04</td><td>25</td><td>390.0</td><td>571.0</td><td>10,957</td><td>0.0E+00</td><td>3.0E-01</td><td>1.14E+02</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>3.0E-01</td><td></td><td>0.0E+00</td><td>3.2E-01</td><td>x</td></thlong<> | 9763 | 32 Ethylmethacrylate | 1.67E+01 | 6.53E-02 | 8.38E-06 | 5.40E+03 | 2.34E-02 | 5.73E-04 | 25 | 390.0 | 571.0 | 10,957 | 0.0E+00 | 3.0E-01 | 1.14E+02 | | | | 3.0E-01 | | 0.0E+00 | 3.2E-01 | x |
| | 9806 | 66 tert-Butylbenzene 28 Cumene | 1.00E+03 6 98E+02 | 5.30E-02 6.03E-02 | 7.37E-06 7.86E-06 | 2.95E+01 6.13E+01 | 5.40E-01 4.70E-01 | 1.32E-02 1.15E-02 | 25 25 | 442.1 | 1,220.0 | 8,980 | 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 | 4.0E-01 4.0E-01 | 1.34E+02 1.20E+02 | | v | | 4.0E-01 | | 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 | 1.4E-01 4.0E-01 | x |
| Bit Machan Labor Labor <thlabor< th=""> <thlabor< th=""> Labor</thlabor<></thlabor<> | 9886 | 52 Acetophenone | 5.19E+01 | 6.52E-02 | 8.72E-06 | 6.13E+03 | 4.25E-04 | 1.04E-05 | 25 | 475.0 | 709.5 | 11,732 | 0.0E+00 | 3.5E-01 | 1.20E+02 | х | , | | 4.02.01 | | 0.0E+00 | 3.5E-01 | x |
| Hold Signam Add-0 Tick Tick <td>9895</td> <td>53 Nitrobenzene</td> <td>2.26E+02 4.46E+02</td> <td>6.81E-02 6.85E-02</td> <td>9.45E-06 8.46E-06</td> <td>2.09E+03 1.69E+02</td> <td>9.81E-04 3.22E-01</td> <td>2.40E-05 7.88E-03</td> <td>25 25</td> <td>484.0</td> <td>719.0 617.2</td> <td>10,566</td> <td>4.0E-05 2.5E-06</td> <td>9.0E-03 1.0E+00</td> <td>1.23E+02</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>4.0E-05 2.5E-06</td> <td>9.0E-03 1.0E+00</td> <td></td> <td>0.0E+00 0.0E+00</td> <td>2.0E-03 1.0E+00</td> <td></td> | 9895 | 53 Nitrobenzene | 2.26E+02 4.46E+02 | 6.81E-02 6.85E-02 | 9.45E-06 8.46E-06 | 2.09E+03 1.69E+02 | 9.81E-04 3.22E-01 | 2.40E-05 7.88E-03 | 25 25 | 484.0 | 719.0 617.2 | 10,566 | 4.0E-05 2.5E-06 | 9.0E-03 1.0E+00 | 1.23E+02 | | | 4.0E-05 2.5E-06 | 9.0E-03 1.0E+00 | | 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 | 2.0E-03 1.0E+00 | |
| Norther bandwidter Alfend Second Alfend Second Line X X | 10042 | 25 Styrene | 4.46E+02 | 7.11E-02 | 8.78E-06 | 3.10E+02 | 1.12E-01 | 2.75E-03 | 25 | 418.3 | 636.0 | 8,737 | 0.0E+00 | 9.0E-01 | 1.04E+02 | | | 2.32-00 | 1.0E+00 | | 0.0E+00 | 1.0E+00 | |
| $ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$ | 10044 | 47 Benzylchloride | 4.46E+02 | 6.34E-02 | 8.81E-06 | 5.25E+02 | 1.68E-02 | 4.12E-04 | 25 | 452.0 | 685.0 | 8,773 | 4.9E-05 | 1.0E-03 | 1.27E+02 | × | | 4.9E-05 | 1.0E-03 | | 4.9E-05 | 0.0E+00 2.6E_01 | x |
| International and the holeners 141:0 262:0 75:6 15:6 15:6 16:5 15:6 15:6 00:0 <td>10365</td> <td>51 n-Propylbenzene</td> <td>8.13E+02</td> <td>6.02E-02</td> <td>7.83E-06</td> <td>5.22E+01</td> <td>4.29E-01</td> <td>1.05E-02</td> <td>25</td> <td>432.2</td> <td>630.0</td> <td>9,123</td> <td>0.0E+00</td> <td>1.0E+00</td> <td>1.20E+02</td> <td>^</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1.0E+00</td> <td></td> <td>0.0E+00</td> <td>1.4E-01</td> <td>x</td> | 10365 | 51 n-Propylbenzene | 8.13E+02 | 6.02E-02 | 7.83E-06 | 5.22E+01 | 4.29E-01 | 1.05E-02 | 25 | 432.2 | 630.0 | 9,123 | 0.0E+00 | 1.0E+00 | 1.20E+02 | ^ | | | 1.0E+00 | | 0.0E+00 | 1.4E-01 | x |
| Hole of 1/2 | 10451 | 18 n-Butylbenzene | 1.48E+03 | 5.28E-02 | 7.33E-06 | 1.18E+01 | 6.50E-01 | 1.59E-02 | 25 | 456.5 | 660.5 | 9,290 | 0.0E+00 | 1.8E-01 | 1.34E+02 | х | | | 1.05.01 | | 0.0E+00 | 1.4E-01 | x |
| History Mark Bis Col | 10646 | 57 1,4-Dichlorobenzene | 3.75E+02 | 5.50E-02 | 8.68E-06 | 8.13E+02 | 9.85E-02 | 2.41E-03 | 25 | 447.2 | 684.8 | 9,271 | 1.1E-05 | 8.0E-01 | 1.00E+02 1.47E+02 | | | 1.1E-05 | 8.0E-01 | | 0.0E+00 | 8.0E-01 | |
| Hole Link Link <thlink< th=""> Link Link <thl< td=""><td>10689</td><td>98 Epichlorohydrin 24.4.2 Dibromosthone (athulana dibromid</td><td>9.91E+00</td><td>8.89E-02</td><td>1.11E-05</td><td>6.59E+04</td><td>1.24E-03</td><td>3.04E-05</td><td>25</td><td>390.0</td><td>600.0</td><td>10</td><td>2.3E-05</td><td>1.0E-03</td><td>9.25E+01</td><td></td><td></td><td>1.2E-06</td><td>1.0E-03</td><td></td><td>6.05.04</td><td>0.05.02</td><td></td></thl<></thlink<> | 10689 | 98 Epichlorohydrin 24.4.2 Dibromosthone (athulana dibromid | 9.91E+00 | 8.89E-02 | 1.11E-05 | 6.59E+04 | 1.24E-03 | 3.04E-05 | 25 | 390.0 | 600.0 | 10 | 2.3E-05 | 1.0E-03 | 9.25E+01 | | | 1.2E-06 | 1.0E-03 | | 6.05.04 | 0.05.02 | |
| Integration | 10699 | 90 1,3-Butadiene | 3.96E+01 | 4.30E-02 1.00E-01 | 1.04E-05 1.03E-05 | 7.35E+02 | 3.01E+00 | 7.36E-04 | 25 | 268.6 | 425.0 | 5,370 | 1.7E-04 | 2.0E-03 | 1.88E+02 5.41E+01 | | | 3.0E-04 | 2.0E-03 | | 3.0E-05 | 0.0E+00 | |
| North Automation Differ 1.4.24 1.4 | 10702 | 28 Acrolein | 1.00E+00 | 1.12E-01 | 1.22E-05 | 2.12E+05 | 4.99E-03 | 1.22E-04 | 25 | 325.6 | 506.0 | 6,731 | 0.0E+00 | 2.0E-05 | 5.61E+01 | | | 0.05.05 | 2.0E-05 | | 0.0E+00 | 2.0E-05 | |
| 1000 Market | 10706 | 31 Acrylonitrile | 3.96E+01 8.51E+00 | 8.57E-02 1.14E-01 | 1.10E-05 1.23E-05 | 8.60E+03 7.45E+04 | 4.82E-02 5.64E-03 | 1.38E-04 | 25 | 350.7 | 519.0 | 7,643 | 2.9E-05 | 2.0E-03 | 9.90E+01 5.31E+01 | | | 2.6E-05 6.8E-05 | 2.0E-03 | | 2.6E-05 6.8E-05 | 2.0E+00 | |
| $ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$ | 10805 | 54 Vinyl acetate | 5.58E+00 | 8.49E-02 | 1.00E-05 | 2.00E+04 | 2.09E-02 | 5.11E-04 | 25 | 345.7 | 519.1 | 7,800 | 0.0E+00 | 2.0E-01 | 8.61E+01 | | | | 2.0E-01 | | 0.0E+00 | 2.0E-01 | |
| 1 1 1 1 1 5 1 6 1 | 10810 | 01 Methylisobutylketone (4-methyl-2-pent: 13 Diisopropyl ether (DIPE) | 1.26E+01 2.28E+01 | 6.98E-02 6.54E-02 | 8.35E-06 7.76E-06 | 1.90E+04 8.80E+03 | 5.64E-03 7.76E-06 | 1.38E-04 2.56E-03 | 25 25 | 389.5 341.5 | 571.0 499.9 | 8,243 | 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 | 3.0E+00 7.0E-01 | 1.00E+02 1.02E+02 | | У | | 3.0E+00 7.0E-01 | | 0.0E+00 | 8.0E-02 | |
| International structure | 10838 | 83 m-Xylene | 3.75E+02 | 6.84E-02 | 8.44E-06 | 1.61E+02 | 2.94E-01 | 7.18E-03 | 25 | 412.3 | 617.1 | 8,523 | 0.0E+00 | 1.0E-01 | 1.06E+02 | | | 4.05.05 | 1.0E-01 | | 0.0E+00 | 1.0E-01 | |
| Internation of the production of the produc | 10860 | 78 1.3.5-Trimethylbenzene | 8.29E+01 6.02E+02 | 3.99E-02 6.02E-02 | 7.36E-06 7.84E-06 | 1.70E+03 4.82E+01 | 3.59E-01 | 7.42E-05 8.77E-03 | 25 | 460.0 | 637.3 | 9,695 | 0.0E+00 | 1.4E-01 3.5E-02 | 1.71E+02 1.20E+02 | × | | 1.0E-05 | | | 0.0E+00 | 6.0E-03 | |
| Instruction 2.84-07 7.84-07 7.84-07 7.84-07 2.84-07 2.84-07 8.84-07 | 10887 | 72 Methylcyclohexane | 7.85E+01 | 7.35E-02 | 8.52E-06 | 1.40E+01 | 4.22E+00 | 1.03E-01 | 25 | 373.9 | 572.2 | 7,474 | 0.0E+00 | 7.0E-01 | 9.82E+01 | | У | | | | 0.0E+00 | 3.0E+00 | |
| 100000 Prefame, - 7.2E-10 8.8E-60 3.8E-60 5.8E-60 5.8E | 10888 | 33 Toluene 07 Chlorobenzene | 2.34E+02 2.34E+02 | 7.78E-02 7.21E-02 | 9.20E-06 9.48E-06 | 5.26E+02 4.98E+02 | 2.71E-01 1.27E-01 | 6.64E-03 3.11E-03 | 25 25 | 383.8 | 591.8 632.4 | 7,930 | 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 | 3.0E-01 5.0E-02 | 9.21E+01 1.13E+02 | | | | 5.0E+00 5.0E-02 | | 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 | 4.0E-01 6.0E-02 | |
| Non-Wall Junchulan Junchulan <th< td=""><td>10966</td><td>60 Pentane, n-</td><td>7.22E+01</td><td>8.21E-02</td><td>8.80E-06</td><td>3.80E+01</td><td>5.11E+01</td><td>1.25E+00</td><td>25</td><td>309.0</td><td>469.7</td><td>6,155</td><td>0.0E+00</td><td>1.0E+00</td><td>7.22E+01</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>1.0E+00</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></th<> | 10966 | 60 Pentane, n- | 7.22E+01 | 8.21E-02 | 8.80E-06 | 3.80E+01 | 5.11E+01 | 1.25E+00 | 25 | 309.0 | 469.7 | 6,155 | 0.0E+00 | 1.0E+00 | 7.22E+01 | | | | 1.0E+00 | | | | |
| 110000 Fund 8.00E-01 117E-03 107E-00 3.8E-03 6.88E-00 8.8E-00 8.8E-00 7.6E-00 0.0E+00 7.6E-01 6.8E-00 7.6E-01 | 10969 | 33 1-Chlorobutane 39 Tetrahydrofuran | 7.22E+01 1.08E+01 | 7.84E-02 9.54E-02 | 9.33E-06 1.08E-05 | 1.10E+03 1.00E+06 | 6.83E-01 2.88E-03 | 1.67E-02 7.05E-05 | 25 25 | 351.6 339.0 | 542.0 541.0 | 7,263 | 0.0E+00 | 1.4E-01 2.0E+00 | 9.26E+01 7.21E+01 | x | v | | 2 0E+00 | | 0.0E+00 | 1.4E+00 | x |
| 110843 Houman 125-102 735-20 874-00 725-10 185-00 726-10 8.65-00 726-10 726-10 8.65-00 726-10 8.65-00 726-10 726-10 726-10 726-10 726-10 726-10 726-10 726-10 726-10 726-10 726-10 726-10 726-10 726-10 726-10 | 11000 | 09 Furan | 8.00E+01 | 1.03E-01 | 1.17E-05 | 1.00E+04 | 2.21E-01 | 5.40E-03 | 25 | 304.6 | 490.2 | 6,477 | 0.0E+00 | 3.5E-03 | 6.81E+01 | х | ý | | | | 0.0E+00 | 3.5E-03 | х |
| 111444 Big2C-bindent/plefer 3.22E-inf 6.37E-b2 8.7E-b6 1.72E-b6 6.37E-b2 8.7E-b2 8.7E-b2 6.98E 10.803 7.7E-b6 0.0E-b0 1.43E-b2 3.8E-b1 3.8E-b1 0.0E-b0 2.1E-b2 N.3E-b1 3.8E-b1 0.0E-b0 2.1E-b2 N.3E-b1 0.0E-b0 2.1E-b2 N.2E-b1 N.2E-b1 <th< td=""><td>11054</td><td>43 Hexane 27 Cvclohexane</td><td>1.32E+02 1.46E+02</td><td>7.31E-02 8.00E-02</td><td>8.17E-06 9.11E-06</td><td>9.50E+00 5.50E+01</td><td>7.36E+01 6.13E+00</td><td>1.80E+00 1.50E-01</td><td>25 25</td><td>341.7 353.7</td><td>508.0 553.4</td><td>6,895 7.154</td><td>0.0E+00 0.0E+00</td><td>7.0E-01 6.0E+00</td><td>8.62E+01 8.42E+01</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>7.0E-01 6.0E+00</td><td></td><td>0.0E+00</td><td>2.0E-01</td><td></td></th<> | 11054 | 43 Hexane 27 Cvclohexane | 1.32E+02 1.46E+02 | 7.31E-02 8.00E-02 | 8.17E-06 9.11E-06 | 9.50E+00 5.50E+01 | 7.36E+01 6.13E+00 | 1.80E+00 1.50E-01 | 25 25 | 341.7 353.7 | 508.0 553.4 | 6,895 7.154 | 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 | 7.0E-01 6.0E+00 | 8.62E+01 8.42E+01 | | | | 7.0E-01 6.0E+00 | | 0.0E+00 | 2.0E-01 | |
| 118/24/ Endocutant 6.76+103 2.28+.02 5.76+.06 3.28+.01 2.26+.03 2.26+.04 2.5 4.16 672 2.260 2.88+.04 2.26+.03 2.06+.03 2.26+.03 2.06+.03 2.26+. | 11144 | 44 Bis(2-chloroethyl)ether | 3.22E+01 | 5.67E-02 | 8.71E-06 | 1.72E+04 | 6.95E-04 | 1.70E-05 | 25 | 451.2 | 659.8 | 10,803 | 7.1E-04 | 0.0E+00 | 1.43E+02 | | | 3.3E-04 | | | 3.3E-04 | 0.0E+00 | |
| 120221 1.24 - Trichtoparchane 1.38E-03 3.98E-02 8.40E-06 4.00E-010 5.8E-04 3.0E-02 1.88E-02 N. N.< | 11529 | 97 Endosultan 41 Hexachlorobenzene | 6.76E+03 6.20E+03 | 2.25E-02 2.90E-02 | 5.76E-06 7.85E-06 | 3.25E-01 6.20E-03 | 2.66E-03 6.95E-02 | 6.50E-05 1.70E-03 | 25 | 674.4 582.6 | 942.9 825.0 | 14,000 14 447 | 0.0E+00 5.1E-04 | 2.1E-02 2.8E-03 | 4.07E+02 2.85E+02 | × | | 4 6E-04 | | | 0.0E+00 4.6E-04 | 2.1E-02 2.8E-03 | x |
| 1253/01 Calculation (2) Control 1.164-10 9.36E-12 1.106-10 1.36E-10 1.36E-10 2.26E-10 3.36E-22 3.36E-22 3.4E-14 0.0E-10 7.21E-10 X 5.0E-06 3.0E-02 0.26E-00 X X 120410 Discoverhame 3.16E-02 1.0EE-10 3.0E-02 2.4E-05 X X 2.4E-05 3.0E-02 0.0E-00 7.0E-04 3.0E-02 0.0E-00 7.0E-04 3.0E-02 0.0E-00 7.0E-04 3.0E-02 0.0E-00 7.0E-04 2.0E-01 3.0E-02 0.0E-00 7.0E-04 3.0E-02 3.0E-02 0.0E-00 7.0E-04 | 12082 | 21 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene | 1.36E+03 | 3.96E-02 | 8.40E-06 | 4.90E+01 | 5.81E-02 | 1.42E-03 | 25 | 486.2 | 725.0 | 10,471 | 0.0E+00 | 2.0E-03 | 1.81E+02 | | | | 2.0E-03 | | 0.0E+00 | 2.0E-01 | |
| 124481 Disconcentance 3.08E-02 1.08E-05 2.78E-06 3.08E-02 2.78E-04 2.5 416.1 67.2 5.000 2.7E-05 7.0E-02 2.08E-02 X 2 42-05 7.0E-02 X X Y 2.08E-03 3.0E-02 0.0E-03 3.0E-02 0.0E-03 3.0E-02 0.0E-03 3.0E-04 2.0E-02 8.85-01 3.0E-04 2.0E-02 8.85-01 3.0E-04 2.0E-02 8.85-01 3.0E-04 2.0E-02 8.85-01 3.0E-04 2.0E-02 3.0E-04 2.0E-02 0.0E+00 7.0E-04 3.0E-04 2.0E-02 0.0E+00 7.0E-04 3.0E-04 2.0E-02 0.0E+00 7.0E-04 3.0E-04 2.0E-02 3.0E-04 2.0E-02 0.0E+00 7.0E-04 3.0E-04 2.0E-02 | 12373 | 39 Crotonaldehyde (2-butenal) 11 1.4-Dioxane | 1.79E+00 2.63E+00 | 9.56E-02 8.74E-02 | 1.08E-05 1.05E-05 | 1.50E+05 1.00E+06 | 7.93E-04 1.96E-04 | 1.94E-05 4.80E-06 | 25 25 | 375.2 | 568.0 587.2 | 9 8.164 | 5.4E-04 7.7E-06 | 0.0E+00 3.0E-02 | 7.01E+01 8.81E+01 | x | | 5.0E-06 | 3.0E-02 | | 5.4E-04 | 0.0E+00 | х |
| 12889 Methacryonitie 1.31+01 9.04±-02 2.34±-04 2.24±-04 2.5 383.3 584.0 0.05±00 3.35±-02 6.71±-01 3.35±-02 6.71±-01 3.35±-02 3.05±02 0.05±00 1.55±-02 2.5 383.4 584.0 0.05±00 3.35±-02 2.65±07 4.05±-02 3.05±02 2.65±07 4.05±-02 3.05±02 2.65±07 4.05±00 1.05±-04 2.65±07 4.05±02 0.05±00 1.15±01 2.05±07 4.05±02 0.05±00 1.15±01 2.05±07 4.05±02 0.05±00 1.15±01 2.05±07 4.05±02 0.05±00 1.15±01 2.05±07 4.05±02 0.05±00 1.15±01 2.05±07 4.05±02 0.05±00 1.15±02 2.05±07 4.05±02 2.05±07 4.05±02 0.05±00 1.15±01 2.05±07 4.05±02 0.05±00 1.15±01 2.05±07 4.05±02 0.05±00 1.15±04 0.05±00 1.15±04 0.05±00 1.15±04 0.05±00 1.45±02 0.05±00 1.45±02 0.05±00 1.45±02 0.05±00 1.45±02 0.05±00 0.05±00 1.55±02 2.05±02 0.05±00 0.05±00 | 12448 | 81 Dibromochloromethane | 3.18E+01 | 3.66E-02 | 1.06E-05 | 2.70E+03 | 3.20E-02 | 7.83E-04 | 25 | 416.1 | 678.2 | 5,900 | 2.7E-05 | 7.0E-02 | 2.08E+02 | х | | 2.7E-05 | | | 2.4E-05 | 7.0E-02 | х х |
| 127194 Tetrackoordingtone 9.49E-01 5.08E-02 2.08E-02 7.24E-01 1.77E-02 2.5 39.4 6.022 2.828 5.8E-02 1.68E-02 1.6E-02 2.8E-07 4.0E-02 3.0E-08 0.0E+00 1.1E-04 3.0E-08 0.0E+00 1.8E-02 X 0.0E+00 1.6E-02 X 0.0E+00 1.6E-03 0.0E+00 3.5E-03 1.68E+02 X 0.0E+00 1.4E-01 X 0.0E+00 3.2E-02 1.4E-01 X 0.0E+00 3.2E-00 X 0.0E+00 3.2E-02 1.4E-01 X 0.0E+00 3.2E-00 X 0.0E+00 3.2E-00 X 0.0E+00 3.2E-02 1.4E-01 X 0.0E+00 3.2E-02 1.4E-01 0.0E+00 3.2E-02 1.4E-01 X 0.0E+00 3.2E-02 1.4E-01 X 0.0E+00 3.2E-02 1.4E-01 0.2E+02 0.0E+00 <td< td=""><td>12698</td><td>37 Methacrylonitrile 98 2-Chloro-1.3-butadiene (chloroprene)</td><td>1.31E+01 6.07E+01</td><td>9.64E-02 8.42E-02</td><td>1.06E-05 1.00E-05</td><td>2.54E+04 8.37E+02</td><td>1.01E-02 2.29E+00</td><td>2.47E-04 5.61E-02</td><td>25</td><td>363.3</td><td>554.0 525.0</td><td>7,600</td><td>0.0E+00 3.0E-04</td><td>3.0E-02 2.0E-02</td><td>6.71E+01 8.85E+01</td><td></td><td></td><td>3.0E-04</td><td>3.0E-02 2.0E-02</td><td></td><td>0.0E+00 0.0E+00</td><td>7.0E-04 7.0E-03</td><td></td></td<> | 12698 | 37 Methacrylonitrile 98 2-Chloro-1.3-butadiene (chloroprene) | 1.31E+01 6.07E+01 | 9.64E-02 8.42E-02 | 1.06E-05 1.00E-05 | 2.54E+04 8.37E+02 | 1.01E-02 2.29E+00 | 2.47E-04 5.61E-02 | 25 | 363.3 | 554.0 525.0 | 7,600 | 0.0E+00 3.0E-04 | 3.0E-02 2.0E-02 | 6.71E+01 8.85E+01 | | | 3.0E-04 | 3.0E-02 2.0E-02 | | 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 | 7.0E-04 7.0E-03 | |
| 129000 Pyrene 5.68-04 278E-02 7.28E-06 1.38E-01 4.087-04 1.16E-01 2.028-02 X 0.0E+00 1.1E-01 X 0.0E+00 X 0.0E+00 X 0.0E+00 X 0.0E+00 X 0. | 12718 | 84 Tetrachloroethylene | 9.49E+01 | 5.05E-02 | 9.46E-06 | 2.06E+02 | 7.24E-01 | 1.77E-02 | 25 | 394.4 | 620.2 | 8,288 | 5.9E-06 | 3.5E-02 | 1.66E+02 | | | 2.6E-07 | 4.0E-02 | | 3.0E-06 | 0.0E+00 | |
| 133988 sec-balybarrane 1.33E+03 5.28E-02 7.34E-08 1.77E-07 7.20E-01 1.77E-02 2.5 44.65 679.0 8.87.00 0.0E+00 4.0E-01 1.34E+02 C 0.0E+00 1.4E-01 X 0.0E+00 1.4E-01 X 0.0E+00 1.4E-01 X 0.0E+00 1.4E-01 X 0.0E+00 3.6E+02 8.8E+02 0.0E+00 3.6E+02 8.8E+00 0.0E+00 3.6E+02 8.8E+01 0.0E+00 3.6E+02 8.8E+01 X 0.0E+00 3.6E+02 0.8E+00 0.6E+00 3.6E+02 0.8E+00 0.6E+00 3.6E+02 0.8E+00 0.6E+00 3.6E+02 0.0E+00 3.6E+02 0.6E+00 3.6E+02 | 12900 | 00 Pyrene 49 Dibenzofuran | 5.43E+04 9.16E+03 | 2.78E-02 4.11E-02 | 7.25E-06 7.38E-06 | 1.35E-01 3.10E+00 | 4.87E-04 8.71E-03 | 1.19E-05 2.13E-04 | 25 25 | 668.0 560.0 | 936.0 824.0 | 14,370 | 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 | 1.1E-01 3.5E-03 | 2.02E+02 | X | | | | | 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 | 1.1E-01 1.4E-02 | X |
| 14/1786 Enhylacetate 5.88E+00 8.23E-02 9.70E-06 8.00E+04 5.48E-04 2.5 30.3 22.3 7.654 0.0E+00 7.0E-02 8.81E+01 0.0E+00 3.2E+00 X 146280 1.3.2-boldnoprograme 7.25E-01 7.36E-02 9.82E-06 9.82E-06 9.82E-06 9.82E-06 9.82E-06 9.82E-06 9.82E-06 0.0E+00 7.0E-02 1.81E+01 X 0.0E+00 3.2E+00 X 196805 in1.2-boldnoperhysine 3.86E+01 8.7E-02 1.1E-05 6.41E+01 1.7E-01 4.08E-03 2.5 33.7 6.440 7.0E-02 9.88E+01 X 6.0E-02 0.0E+00 3.2E+00 X 2.0E+00 3.2E+00 X 2.0E+00 3.2E+00 X 0.0E+00 3.2E+00 X 0.0 | 13598 | 88 sec-Butylbenzene | 1.33E+03 | 5.28E-02 | 7.34E-06 | 1.76E+01 | 7.20E-01 | 1.76E-02 | 25 | 446.5 | 679.0 | 88,730 | 0.0E+00 | 4.0E-01 | 1.34E+02 | | | | | | 0.0E+00 | 1.4E-01 | x |
| 199820 cia-12-Dethoropethylene 306F-01 8.84E-02 1.13E-05 6.41E-03 1.07E-01 4.08E-03 2.5 33.7 54.40 7.162 0.0E+00 7.0E-03 9.88E-01 X 0.6E-02 3.6E-02 X 0.6E-03 2.68E-03 1.02E-05 9.88E-01 X 0.6E-02 9.88E-01 1.1E-04 0.6E-02 2.58E-02 1.1E-04 0.6E-02 2.58E-02 1.1E-04 0.6E-02 2.58E-02 1.1E-04 0.6E-02 2.58E-02 1.1E-04 0.6E-02 2.6E-02 1.1E-04 0.6E-02 2.6E-02 1.1E-04 0.6E-02 2.6E-02 1.1E-04 0.6E-02 2.6E-02 1.6E-03 0.6E-00 X 1.6E-03 0.6E-00 X 1.6E-03 0.6E-00 X 1.6E-03 0.6E-00 X <td>14178</td> <td>86 Ethylacetate 89 1 3-Dicbloropropage</td> <td>5.58E+00 7.22E+01</td> <td>8.23E-02 7.39E-02</td> <td>9.70E-06 9.82E-06</td> <td>8.00E+04 2.75E+03</td> <td>5.48E-03 3.99E-02</td> <td>1.34E-04 9.76E-04</td> <td>25</td> <td>350.3</td> <td>523.3 590.9</td> <td>7,634</td> <td>0.0E+00</td> <td>7.0E-02 7.0E-02</td> <td>8.81E+01 1.13E+02</td> <td>×</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0.0E+00</td> <td>3.2E+00</td> <td>x</td> | 14178 | 86 Ethylacetate 89 1 3-Dicbloropropage | 5.58E+00 7.22E+01 | 8.23E-02 7.39E-02 | 9.70E-06 9.82E-06 | 8.00E+04 2.75E+03 | 5.48E-03 3.99E-02 | 1.34E-04 9.76E-04 | 25 | 350.3 | 523.3 590.9 | 7,634 | 0.0E+00 | 7.0E-02 7.0E-02 | 8.81E+01 1.13E+02 | × | | | | | 0.0E+00 | 3.2E+00 | x |
| 168065 fram-1_20-lichtorentlykene 3.06E-01 8.78E-02 1.12E-05 4.52E-03 1.07E-01 4.00E-03 2.5 32.09 516.5 6.717 0.0E-00 2.698E-01 1.1E-04 0.0E-02 0.0E-00 2.1E-04 0.0E-02 | 15659 | 92 cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene | 3.96E+01 | 8.84E-02 | 1.13E-05 | 6.41E+03 | 1.67E-01 | 4.08E-03 | 25 | 333.7 | 544.0 | 7,192 | 0.0E+00 | 7.0E-03 | 9.69E+01 | x | | | | | 0.0E+00 | 3.5E-02 | х |
| 212010 Chrystens 181E-05 261E-02 678E-05 220E-03 234E-04 252E-05 25 714 978.0 164.65 11E-06 00E+00 228E-02 11E-05 21E-05 0.0E+10 X 309002 Mohin 8.00E-04 372E-02 4.38E-03 2.00E-00 2.00E-06 2.00E-00 1.0E-03 0.0E+00 2.00E-00 1.0E-03 0.0E+00 2.00E-00 1.0E-03 0.0E+00 2.00E-00 1.0E-03 0.0E+00 1.0E-03 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 1.0E+03 2.0E-02 1.0E-03 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 2.0E-02 0.0E+00 0.0E+00 2.0E-02 0.0E+00 | 15660 | 05 trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene | 3.96E+01 | 8.76E-02 | 1.12E-05 | 4.52E+03 | 1.67E-01 | 4.08E-03 | 25 | 320.9 | 516.5 | 6,717 | 0.0E+00 | 6.0E-02 | 9.69E+01 | | | 1 1E 04 | 6.0E-02 | | 0.0E+00 2.1E.04 | 7.0E-02 | v X |
| 300002 Addm 8.20E+04 3.72E-02 4.3E-06 1.70E-02 1.00E-03 2.56 63.0 839.4 15.000 4.49E-03 1.1E-04 3.654-02 X 4.9E-03 1.1E-04 3.654-02 2.9E-02 1.8E-03 0.0E+00 1.1E-04 3.654-02 X Y 0.0E+00 1.8E-03 0.0E+00 3.654-02 2.0E-02 1.1E-04 3.654-02 2.0E-02 3.0E+00 0.0E+00 3.0E+04 2.0E-02 4.0E-06 2.0E-02 4.0E-06 2.0E-02 4.0E-06 2.0E-02 4.0E-06 2.0E-02 4.0E-06 2.0E-02 4.0E-06 <td>21801</td> <td>19 Chrysene</td> <td>1.81E+05</td> <td>2.61E-02</td> <td>6.75E-06</td> <td>2.00E-03</td> <td>2.14E-04</td> <td>5.23E-06</td> <td>25</td> <td>714.2</td> <td>979.0</td> <td>16,455</td> <td>1.1E-05</td> <td>0.0E+00</td> <td>2.28E+02</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1.1E-04</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>2.1E-06</td> <td>0.0E+00</td> <td>x</td> | 21801 | 19 Chrysene | 1.81E+05 | 2.61E-02 | 6.75E-06 | 2.00E-03 | 2.14E-04 | 5.23E-06 | 25 | 714.2 | 979.0 | 16,455 | 1.1E-05 | 0.0E+00 | 2.28E+02 | | | 1.1E-04 | | | 2.1E-06 | 0.0E+00 | x |
| SetT31 State State <t< td=""><td>30900</td><td>02 Aldrin 46 aloba-HCH (aloba-BHC)</td><td>8.20E+04 2.81E+03</td><td>3.72E-02 4.33E-02</td><td>4.35E-06</td><td>1.70E-02 2.00E+00</td><td>1.80E-03 2.10E-04</td><td>4.40E-05 5.14E-06</td><td>25 25</td><td>603.0 596.6</td><td>839.4 839.4</td><td>15,000</td><td>4.9E-03</td><td>1.1E-04 0.0E+00</td><td>3.65E+02</td><td>х</td><td> </td><td>4.9E-03 1.8E-03</td><td></td><td></td><td>4.9E-03 1.8E-03</td><td>1.1E-04 0.0E+00</td><td>x</td></t<> | 30900 | 02 Aldrin 46 aloba-HCH (aloba-BHC) | 8.20E+04 2.81E+03 | 3.72E-02 4.33E-02 | 4.35E-06 | 1.70E-02 2.00E+00 | 1.80E-03 2.10E-04 | 4.40E-05 5.14E-06 | 25 25 | 603.0 596.6 | 839.4 839.4 | 15,000 | 4.9E-03 | 1.1E-04 0.0E+00 | 3.65E+02 | х | | 4.9E-03 1.8E-03 | | | 4.9E-03 1.8E-03 | 1.1E-04 0.0E+00 | x |
| 5428* 5428* <th< td=""><td>54173</td><td>31 1,3-Dichlorobenzene</td><td>3.79E+02</td><td>5.56E-02</td><td>8.80E-06</td><td>1.19E+02</td><td>8.85E-02</td><td>2.17E-03</td><td>25</td><td>446.0</td><td>684.0</td><td>9,230</td><td>0.0E+00</td><td>1.1E-01</td><td>1.47E+02</td><td>х</td><td>у</td><td>1.02-00</td><td></td><td></td><td>0.0E+00</td><td>1.1E-01</td><td>x</td></th<> | 54173 | 31 1,3-Dichlorobenzene | 3.79E+02 | 5.56E-02 | 8.80E-06 | 1.19E+02 | 8.85E-02 | 2.17E-03 | 25 | 446.0 | 684.0 | 9,230 | 0.0E+00 | 1.1E-01 | 1.47E+02 | х | у | 1.02-00 | | | 0.0E+00 | 1.1E-01 | x |
| 630208 1.1.2 1. | 54275 | 56 1,3-Dichloropropene 31 bis(Chloromethyl)ether | 7.22E+01 9.70E+00 | 7.63E-02 7.63E-02 | 1.01E-05 | 2.80E+03 2.20E+04 | 1.45E-01 1.78E-01 | 3.55E-03 4.36E-03 | 25 25 | 381.2 379.0 | 587.4 | 7,900 | 1.6E-05 6.2E-02 | 2.0E-02 0.0E+00 | 1.11E+02 | | | 4.0E-06 6.2E.02 | 2.0E-02 | | 4.0E-06 | 2.0E-02 | |
| 924H31 N-Nitros-d-h-ch/ghmine 9.5E+02 7.5E+02 6.49E-02 7.5E+02 6.49E-02 7.5E+02 6.49E-02 7.5E+02 6.49E-02 7.5E+02 8.5E+02 1.5E+03 0.0E+00 1.5E+02 1.5E+03 0.0E+00 3.5E+02 1.6E+03 0.0E+00 3.5E+02 1.6E+03 0.0E+00 3.5E+02 1.6E+03 0.0E+00 3.5E+02 2.6E+07 3.0E+00 8.82E+01 2.6E+07 3.0E+00 3.2E+00 0.0E+00 3.0E+00 | 63020 | 06 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane | 8.60E+00 | 4.82E-02 | 9.10E-06 | 1.07E+03 | 1.02E-01 | 2.50E-03 | 25 | 403.5 | 624.0 | 9,768 | 7.4E-06 | 1.1E-01 | 1.68E+02 | х | y | 7.4E-06 | | | 7.4E-06 | 1.1E-01 | x |
| Construction Construction< | 92416 162404 | N-Nitroso-di-n-butylamine MTRE (methyl-tert-butyl ether) | 9.15E+02 1.16E+01 | 6.49E-02 7.53E-02 | 7.59E-06 8.59E-06 | 1.27E+03 5.10E+04 | 5.40E-04 2.40E-02 | 1.32E-05 5.87E-04 | 25 25 | 389.0 328.3 | 583.5 497 1 | 11,200 | 3.1E-03 2.6E-07 | 0.0E+00 3.0E+00 | 1.58E+02 8.82E+01 | | | 1.6E-03 2.6E.07 | 3.0E+00 | | 0.0E+00 | 3.0E+00 | |
| | 743997 | 76 Mercury (elemental) | 5.20E+01 | 3.07E-02 | 6.30E-06 | 6.00E-02 | 4.67E-01 | 1.14E-02 | 25 | 629.9 | 1,750.0 | 14,127 | 0.0E+00 | 3.0E-05 | 2.01E+02 | | | 2.00-07 | 3.0E-04 | | 0.0E+00 | 3.0E-04 | |

Appendix E-4: Existing Soils Report April 27, 2020

Via email to: nuri.cho@lacity.org

Ms.Nuri Cho DEPARTMENT OF CITY PLANNING Room 621, City Hall 200 N. Spring Street Los Angeles, CA 90012

<u>RE:</u> Existing Soils Status 1024 Mateo St, 2016 Bay St, 2001-2025 Sacramento St, Los Angeles, CA

Dear Ms. Cho:

Remdox, Inc. (Remdox) was retained to provide an opinion on the environmental status of the above referenced property with respect to the redevelopment of the above referenced site as a mixed-use commercial/residential project. The 1.42-acre site is to be developed with 120,000 square feet of commercial floor area and 106 residential units. Those residential units will be above the first floor and separated from the subsurface by street level commercial units and by a subterranean parking structure.

The property shows evidence of subsurface contamination by tetrachloroethene (PCE) which will likely need to be addressed as part of the redevelopment program to protect workers during excavation and grading, and to protect the future occupants of the property. The proposed development includes subterranean parking with a ground floor used for commercial purposes and residential use limited to the upper floors. Given that no residential units are proposed with a connection to the surface grade, the development remains a "commercial end-use" scenario, with respect to possible impacts from subsurface contamination.

Background

The site is located on the east side of Mateo Street in Los Angeles, California and occupies the western portion of the city block that is bounded by Bay Street on the north and Sacramento Street on the south (Figure 1). The site occupies about 1.42 acres and is currently developed with two commercial structures. On the northern portion of the property is a 17,400-square-foot structure that was constructed in 1974 and 1975 and is used by MV Transportation, Inc., for bus maintenance and offices. Along the southeastern edge of the site is a 4,800-square-foot structure that was built in 1948 and is used for storage. A vehicle washing station with a wash-down drain and clarifier is present near the southeast corner of the property (Figure 1). Historically, the southern half of the site was used for vehicle maintenance and fueling. The site

reportedly formerly maintained underground storage tanks (USTs), hydraulic hoists, fuel dispenser islands, and a grease pit, as shown on Figure 1. The surrounding area is mostly used for commercial and industrial purposes.

In 2015, several episodes of subsurface investigations were conducted at the property to gauge possible subsurface impacts from current and historic property uses. In July 2015, after a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment investigation was completed, Certified Environmental Consultants, Inc. (CEC) conducted an investigation that included a geophysical survey to screen for the presence of former or existing USTs. The investigation also included soil and soil gas sampling in eight locations (SV1-SV8). Results indicated no existing USTs, and no heavy metal concentrations in soil that exceed current screening levels (including arsenic¹). However, each of the eight soil gas samples obtained at 5 feet below grade had detectable levels of PCE with concentrations ranging up to 22.42 ug/L. The highest concentration was detected in sample SV3, located in the former UST area.

In November 2015, Andersen Environmental installed four additional soil borings/soil gas probes (AEB1-AEB4) to further define the extent of PCE impacts. One was located near the former UST and the others in perimeter locations, each installed to 30 feet below grade. Soil samples were obtained at 5, 15, and 30 feet below grade in each location and independent soil gas probes were installed at those same depths in each. Results from laboratory analysis indicated PCE was detected in 2 of the 12 soil samples, both at 5 feet below grade. Sample AEB1-5 had 9.32 ug/Kg PCE and sample AEB4-5 had 4.56 ug/Kg PCE. No other VOC was detected in the soil samples. The results from soil gas sampling indicated all 12 samples had detectable PCE with concentrations ranging up to 35.2 ug/L in SV4-30. A related solvent, trichloroethene (TCE) was detected in four of the samples with a maximum of 0.0832 ug/L. The contaminant distribution profile indicated the highest concentrations were detected in the deeper probes, suggesting a possible off-site source of contamination. This result is generally consistent with the CEC investigation done in July 2015.

Andersen used these results to further analyze the human health threat to occupants of a future commercial facility. The findings indicated that the low concentrations of PCE in shallow soil do not approach current screening levels for human health exposure or screening levels designed to be protective of groundwater. Using vapor intrusion modeling tools provided by DTSC, Andersen determined that the health risk to future occupants of the site was acceptable for commercial use and accordingly, that no significant threat was present for the upper floors of residential use. As described previously, the proposed development includes subterranean parking with a ground floor used for commercial purposes and residential use limited to the upper floors. Given that no residential units are proposed with a connection to the surface

¹ CEC mentioned that the arsenic levels detected in shallow soil exceed San Francisco screening levels in their report. This is technically incorrect as the DTSC recognized background concentration for southern California for arsenic in soil is 12 mg/Kg and the maximum detected concentration was only 1.68 mg/Kg

grade, the development remains a "commercial end-use" scenario, with respect to possible impacts from subsurface contamination.

Andersen recommended no additional assessment, because Andersen determined that the health risk to future occupants of the site was acceptable for "commercial use." Furthermore, Andersen indicated that the potential for mass excavation and grading of the site would require precautions to protect workers and ensure that any exported soil was screened for possible contamination prior to disposal. Though not clearly stated, this would be part of a Soil Management Plan to be prepared separately. The results of this work were presented in Andersen's *"Site Characterization Report"* dated December 3, 2015. The data from the previous investigations is provided in Appendix A, for reference.

Opinion

Overall, Remdox agrees with the conclusions provided by Andersen, but regulatory limits that have been developed for vapor intrusion threat have since been altered to far more stringent levels; therefore, Remdox recommends a more aggressive approach to mitigate unforeseen possible vapor intrusion risks (including PCE). The mitigation measures that are briefly described below are intended to address any potential vapors that might lead to the exposure to future residential and non-residential occupants

Remdox recommends implementing:

- A Soil Management Plan, satisfactory to the Department of Building and Safety, to not only handle potentially impacted soil during excavation and construction activities but also to protect construction workers from exposure to soils potentially laden with VOCs. Measures that would be proposed in the Soil Management Plan would include: screening of the soil during excavation and grading at 15 minute intervals as required by SCAQMD Rule 1166. Additional measures might include: segregation of any contaminated soil that was encountered and providing a framework for appropriate handling and disposal of waste pursuant to the City of Los Angeles Building and Safety regulations.
- To mitigate future possible vapor intrusion concerns emanating from the subsurface through the parking structure and then into occupied spaces above (both residential and non-residential), Remdox recommends providing building controls, to the satisfaction of the Department of Building and Safety, that might include liquid boot protection and a passive, sub-slab vapor depressurization system as part of the footprint of the structure.
- The design of the passive system should also include the provision to convert the passive system to an active depressurization system if vapor concentrations near the slab and in the parking structure exceed current screening levels.
 - Vapor sampling of the parking area and passive sub-slab system could be conducted either annually or semi-annually to periodically measure the

contaminant concentrations in those areas. With these controls in place the known subsurface contamination risks can be successfully mitigated providing protection for future occupants (both commercial and residential) of the development.

If you have any questions regarding the scope or intent of this report, please feel free to contact Dennis Ironi.

Sincerely;

nie R. Junes

Dan Louks Professional Geologist 4883





FIGURES


laefs02/currentIAE 2015/Projects 2015/9836000640 1024 Mateo St 2016 Bay St 2001 2005 & 2025 Sacramento St LA CA 90021 Site Characterization/05 9836000640_Reports/2015-07 PI/ Rpt/CAD

APPENDIX A



CERTIFIED ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS, INC.

Table 1Soil-Sampling Title 22 Analytical Results1024 Mateo Street, 2016 Bay Street, 2001, 2005 and 2025 Sacramento StreetLos Angeles, California

| | Sample Identification/Location (1) | Environmental Screening |
|-------------------|------------------------------------|-------------------------------|
| Title 22 Metal | SV-6/SV-7 (compsite) | Lével - Comm. Property (2) |
| Antimony | ND | 40 |
| Arsenic | 1.68 | 1.6 |
| Barrium | 112 | 1500 |
| Beryllium | ND | 8 |
| Cadmium | 1.08 | 7.4 |
| Chromium | 37.4 | 7500 |
| Cobalt | 8.22 | 80 |
| Copper | 23.8 | 230 |
| Lead | 60.8 | 750 |
| Mercury | 0.0763 | 10 |
| Molybdenum | 1.93 | 40 |
| Nickel | 29.4 | 150 |
| Selenium | ND | 10 |
| Silver | ND | 40 |
| Thallium | ND | 16 |
| Vanadium | 33.4 | 200 |
| Zinc | 116 | 600 |

Notes:

(1) Former junk yard portion of site, see provided figures for physical depiction of sample locations

(2) Environmental Screening Levels (ESLs) for Shallow Soils at Commercial Properties, Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Francisco Region, Interim Draft, 2008

Bold type face = Exceeds recommended screening level

Table 2Soil-Vapor Sampling Analytical Results1024 Mateo Street, 2016 Bay Street, 2001, 2005 and 2025 Sacramento StreetLos Angeles, California

| Sample I.D. | Sample Location (1) | Benzene (2) | Toluene (2) | Ethyl- benzene (2) | Xylenes (2) | PCE (3) | Other VOCs (4) |
|----------------|--|----------------|----------------|--------------------------|----------------|------------|----------------------|
| SV-1 | Adjacent to current clarifier/wash drain | ND | ND | ND | ND | 3.69 | ND |
| SV-2 | At former grease-pit location | ND | ND | ND | ND | 14.54 | ND |
| SV-3 | At former UST location | ND | ND | ND | ND | 22.42 | ND |
| SV-4 | At former hydraulic hoists location | ND | ND | ND | ND | 21.32 | ND |
| SV-5 | At former pump-islands location | ND | ND | ND | ND | 21.81 | ND |
| SV-6 | At former UST location | ND | ND | ND | ND | 13.78 | ND |
| SV-7 | Adjacent to current waste-stoarge area | ND | ND | ND | ND | 11.76 | ND |
| SV-8 | S. of main bld., at conduc. anomoly loc. | ND | ND | ND | ND | 11.72 | ND |

Notes:

(1) See provided figures for physical depiction of sample locations

(2) Common volatile gasoline constituents by EPA Method 8021B

(3) Tetrachloroethene/Perchloroethene by EPA Method 8021B

(4) Other volatile organic compounds measured by Method 8021B, see report for listing of method analytes

ND = Not detected above method detection limits

Bold type face = Exceeds recommended screening level



laefs02/current/AE 2015/Projects 2015/9836000640 1024 Mateo St 2016 Bay St 2001 2005 & 2025 Sacramento St LA CA 90021 Site Characterization/05 9836000640_Reports/2015-07 PII RptICAD

Table 1: Volatile Organic Compounds in Soil Commercial Property

1024 Mateo Street; 2016 Bay Street; 2001, 2005, and 2025 Sacramento Street, Los Angeles, California 90021

| | | | EPA Method | 8260B (µg/kg) |
|----------------|----------------|--------------------------|------------|------------------------------|
| Sample ID | Sample Date | Sample Depth (ft bgs) | PCE | All Other 8260B VOC Analytes |
| AEB1 | 11/13/15 | 5 | 9.32 | ND |
| AEB1 | 11/13/15 | 15 | ND | ND |
| AEB1 | 11/13/15 | 30 | ND | ND |
| AEB2 | 11/13/15 | 5 | ND | ND |
| AEB2 | 11/13/15 | 15 | ND | ND |
| AEB2 | 11/13/15 | 30 | ND | ND |
| AEB3 | 11/13/15 | 5 | ND | ND |
| AEB3 | 11/13/15 | 15 | ND | ND |
| AEB3 | 11/13/15 | 30 | ND | ND |
| AEB4 | 11/13/15 | 5 | 4.56 | ND |
| AEB4 | 11/13/15 | 15 | ND | ND |
| AEB4 | 11/13/15 | 30 | ND | ND |
| Industrial RSL | | | 39,000 | NE |
| | MSSL | | 55 | NE |

Notes:

µg/kg = micrograms per kilogram

ft bgs = feet below ground surface

VOCs = Volatile Organic Compounds

ND = Not Detected above laboratory detection limit

NE = Not Established for the suite of compounds

Regional Screening Level (United States Environmental Protection Agency, 2015)

MSSL = Maximum Soil Screening Level, based on a distance of 80 feet between soil and groundawater and a soil type of sand (Los Angeles

Regional Water Quality Control Board , 1996)



Table 2: Volatile Organic Compounds in Soil Vapor Commercial Property

1024 Mateo Street; 2016 Bay Street; 2001, 2005, and 2025 Sacramento Street, Los Angeles, California 90021

| | Probe | | | Analytical Results (EPA Method 8260B, μg/l) | | | | | | Analytical Results (EPA Method 8260B, μg/l) | | | | | |
|------------------|-------------------|------------|------|---|--------|--------|---|---------------------------|--|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| Sample ID | Depth (ft bgs) | Date | PCE | TCE | FC-11 | FC-12 | Leak Check Compound (1,1-Difluoroethane) | All Other VOC Analytes | | | | | | | |
| SV1 | 5 | 11/17/2015 | 15.8 | 0.0832 | 0.0701 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV1 | 15 | 11/17/2015 | 20.4 | 0.0365 | 0.0856 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV1 | 30 | 11/17/2015 | 19.5 | ND | 0.133 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV2 | 5 | 11/17/2015 | 6.54 | ND | 0.0868 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV2 | 15 | 11/17/2015 | 15.8 | ND | 0.154 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV2 | 30 | 11/17/2015 | 29.3 | 0.0178 | 0.320 | 0.0912 | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV3 | 5 | 11/17/2015 | 4.56 | ND | 0.0256 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV3 | 15 | 11/17/2015 | 6.45 | ND | 0.0352 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV3 | 30 | 11/17/2015 | 6.02 | Р | 0.0352 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV3 (DUP) | 30 | 11/17/2015 | 5.94 | ND | 0.0420 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV4 | 5 | 11/17/2015 | 12.7 | 0.0196 | 0.0520 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV4 | 15 | 11/17/2015 | 26.9 | ND | 0.113 | 0.0671 | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV4 | 30 | 11/17/2015 | 35.2 | ND | 0.150 | 0.0872 | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| Commercial CHHSL | | | 0.6 | 1.8 | NE | NE | NE | NE | | | | | | | |

Notes:

EPA = Environmental Protection Agency

µg/l = micrograms per liter

ft bgs = feet below ground surface

PCE= Tetrachloroethene

TCE = Trichloroethene

FC-11 = Trichlorofluromethane

FC-12 = Dichlorodifluoromethane

1,1-Difluoroethane = Leak Check Compound

ND = Not Detected at or above the detection limit

CHHSL = California Human Health Screening Level for Commercial/Industrial sites without engineered fill below sub-slab gravel (Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, 2010)

NE = Not established for the compound or suite of compounds



Appendix E-5: Soils Management Plan

SOIL MANAGEMENT PLAN PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 1024 Mateo St, 2016 Bay St, 2001-2025 Sacramento St, Los Angeles, California

May 27, 2020

Prepared For: 1024 Mateo Street Project

Prepared By: REMDOX, INC. 10020 National Boulevard, Suite B Los Angeles, CA 90034 Tel: (310) 854-5453 Email: Service@RemdoxCorp.com

Written By:

Junie R. Junges

Dan Louks Professional Geologist #4883



TABLE OF CONTENTS

| 1.0 | INTRODUCTION | 1 |
|-----|---|---|
| 2.0 | BACKGROUND | 1 |
| 3.0 | PRELIMINARY RISK ASSESSMENT FACTORS | 2 |
| 4.0 | SOIL MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES FOR CONSTRUCTION | 3 |
| | 4.1 Soil Monitoring | 3 |
| | 4.2 Dust Control | 5 |
| | 4.3 Erosion Control | 5 |
| | 4.4 Soil Stockpile Management | 5 |
| | 4.5 Site Access Control | 6 |
| 5.0 | SOIL MANAGEMENT FOLLOWING DEVELOPMENT | 6 |
| 6.0 | CONTINGENCY PLAN | 6 |
| 7.0 | REPORTING | 6 |

LIST OF FIGURES

FIGURE 1 - Site Vicinity Map

FIGURE 2 - Site Plan

LIST OF APPENDICES

APPENDIX A - Previous Site Assessment Results

APPENDIX B - Health and Safety Plan

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This Soil Management Plan (SMP) was prepared by Remdox, Inc. (Remdox) for the proposed redevelopment project under consideration at 1024 Mateo Street, 2016 Bay Street and 2001-2025 Sacramento Street in Los Angeles, California. The combined 1.42-acre site is to be developed with 120,000 square feet of commercial floor area and 106 residential units. Those residential units will be above the first floor and separated from the subsurface by street level commercial units and by a subterranean parking structure. The property is located in a mixed-use commercial-residential area.

The property shows evidence of subsurface contamination by tetrachloroethene (PCE) which will likely need to be addressed as part of the redevelopment program to protect workers during excavation and grading, and to protect the future occupants of the property. The proposed development includes subterranean parking with a ground floor used for commercial purposes and residential use limited to the upper floors. Given that the subterranean parking structure essentially encompasses the footprint of the property, no residential units are proposed with a connection to the surface grade and the development remains a "commercial end-use" scenario, with respect to possible impacts from subsurface contamination.

The objective of this SMP is to provide a framework for identifying and handing of VOC-contaminated soil that could conceivably be encountered during site excavation and grading. The Soil Monitoring Program is designed to provide a mechanism to segregate possibly impacted soil from non-impacted soil. The final disposition of the soil piles depends on the preliminary screening effort and follow-up laboratory testing as required by the waste-accepting facility. Soil sampling and laboratory analysis for profiling of waste will be performed in coordination with appropriate disposal sites to maximize efficiency in removing material off-site. Handling and disposal of the soil will be conducted in accordance with all applicable state and federal laws.

2.0 BACKGROUND

The site is located on the east side of Mateo Street in Los Angeles, California and occupies the western portion of the city block that is bounded by Bay Street on the north and Sacramento Street on the south. The site occupies about 1.42 acres and is currently developed with two commercial structures. On the northern portion of the property is a 17,400-square-foot structure that was constructed in 1974 and 1975 and is used by MV Transportation, Inc., for bus maintenance and offices. Along the southeastern edge of the site is a 4,800-square-foot structure that was built in 1948 and is used for storage. A vehicle washing station with a wash-down drain and clarifier is present near the southeast corner of the property (**Figure 1**). Historically, the southern half of the site was used for vehicle maintenance and fueling. The site reportedly formerly maintained underground storage tanks (USTs), hydraulic hoists, fuel dispenser islands, and a grease pit, as shown on **Figure 1**. The surrounding area is mostly used for commercial and industrial purposes.

In 2015, several episodes of subsurface investigations were conducted at the property to gauge possible subsurface impacts from current and historic property uses. In July 2015, after a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment investigation was completed, Certified Environmental Consultants, Inc. (CEC) conducted

an investigation that included a geophysical survey to screen for the presence of former or existing USTs. The investigation also included soil and soil gas sampling in eight locations (SV1-SV8). Results indicated no existing USTs, and no heavy metal concentrations in soil that exceed current screening levels. However, each of the eight soil gas samples obtained at 5 feet below grade had detectable levels of PCE with concentrations ranging up to 22.42 ug/L. The highest concentration was detected in sample SV3, located in the former UST area.

In November 2015, Andersen Environmental installed four additional soil borings/soil gas probes (AEB1-AEB4) to further define the extent of PCE impacts. One was located near the former UST and the others in perimeter locations, each installed to 30 feet below grade. Soil samples were obtained at 5, 15, and 30 feet below grade in each location and independent soil gas probes were installed at those same depths in each. Results from laboratory analysis indicated PCE was detected in 2 of the 12 soil samples, both at 5 feet below grade. Sample AEB1-5 had 9.32 ug/Kg PCE and sample AEB4-5 had 4.56 ug/Kg PCE. No other VOC was detected in the soil samples. The results from soil gas sampling indicated all 12 samples had detectable PCE with concentrations ranging up to 35.2 ug/L in SV4-30. A related solvent, trichloroethene (TCE) was detected in four of the samples with a maximum of 0.0832 ug/L. The contaminant distribution profile indicated the highest concentrations were detected in the deeper probes, suggesting a possible off-site source of contamination. This result is generally consistent with the CEC investigation done in July 2015.

Andersen used these results to further analyze the potential human health threat to occupants of a future commercial facility. The findings indicated that the low concentrations of PCE in shallow soil do not approach current screening levels for human health exposure or screening levels designed to be protective of groundwater. Using vapor intrusion modeling tools provided by DTSC, Andersen determined that the health risk to future occupants of the site was acceptable for commercial use and accordingly, that no significant threat was present for the upper floors of residential use. As described previously, the proposed development includes subterranean parking with a ground floor used for commercial purposes and residential use limited to the upper floors. Given that no residential units are proposed with a connection to the surface grade, the development remains a "commercial end-use" scenario, with respect to possible impacts from subsurface contamination.

Andersen indicated that the potential for mass excavation and grading of the site would require precautions to protect workers and ensure that any exported soil was screened for possible contamination prior to disposal. The results of this work were presented in Andersen's *"Site Characterization Report"* dated December 3, 2015. The data from the previous investigations are provided in **Appendix A**, for reference.

3.0 PRELIMINARY RISK ASSESSMENT FACTORS

Although no significant environmental concerns remain for the proposed development, the findings suggest a very low but potential health risk during the construction phase of the project. This might include encountering soil or soil gas impacted with VOC. This Soil Management Plan is intended to mitigate that risk to an acceptable extent. Because the proposed project includes a net export of a significant volume of soil, this SMP includes provisions for segregation of excavation spoils for disposal at appropriate facilities. Soil that is impacted with VOC will be handled and disposed separately from native non-impacted

soil using the screening methods discussed herein.

The soil gas concentrations measured during the previous assessments were compared to commercial guidelines, which is appropriate given the proposed development. However, in risk assessment analyses a permanent commercial setting is far more sensitive than a temporary construction project. Risk factors for these cases assume that humans occupy a fixed space continuously for 25 years. Obviously, the exposure term is far less in a construction setting. Nevertheless, there is the possibility of encountering impacted soil or soil gas during the excavation phase of the proposed project. This SMP is intended to address those concerns.

4.0 SOIL MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES FOR CONSTRUCTION

The following procedures will be implemented during site construction to minimize impacts to the environment and to protect works during on-site activities. This SMP will be implemented during excavation and site grading tasks.

4.1 Soil Monitoring

Based on the results of the environmental assessment, it is possible that volatile contaminants may be present in the soil that could impact the environment and on-site workers during excavation tasks. A potential health and safety hazard posed by this project is the possibility of inhalation of volatile vapors that could be released from the soil and/or soil gas and could potentially contain hazardous constituents. The principal constituent of concern is PCE, and possibly TCE. These or possibly other related chlorinated VOCs which have been classified as potential occupational carcinogens could possibly be encountered.

The greatest potential for exposure exists during excavation and grading, where fugitive vapors could be admitted to the atmosphere and personnel could come in contact with vapors containing these constituents. The following steps will be taken to mitigate this potential risk

- 1. During excavation tasks, a photo-ionization detector (PID) shall be on site at all times. The PID shall be maintained in good working order, and shall be calibrated by the manufacturer at least once every three months and by experienced personnel on a daily basis. The calibration of the device shall be verified using hexane calibration gas at the beginning of each working day. In the event that inconsistent or erratic readings are experienced, or the PID becomes otherwise inoperable, all excavation activities will cease until it is repaired or replaced.
- 2. All monitoring shall be conducted by an environmental professional provided by Remdox or other equally qualified professional, and the monitoring of soil will occur at a distance no more than 3 inches above the soil surface using the PID. Monitoring shall be initially conducted at a minimum frequency of one reading every fifteen minutes. Upon detection of VOC contamination, monitoring shall be conducted at a minimum rate of one reading for every five cubic yards excavated. All readings shall be taken no later than three minutes after each load of soil is excavated. All

monitoring shall be conducted by trained personnel who are proficient in the use of the PID. Written records of PID monitoring and calibrations shall be kept in a format approved by the SCAQMD. The certification on all records shall be signed and dated on the day the measurements are observed. Upon detection of VOC-contaminated soil (defined by PID readings 50 ppmV or greater), the SCAQMD shall be notified within 24 hours. The Soil Monitoring Program is required by SCAQMD but is also designed to provide a framework for segregating the soil planned for export into three categories: Significantly Impacted Soil, Lightly Impacted Soil, and Non-Impacted Soil.

Significantly Impacted Soil

The following mitigation measures shall be employed:

- 1. Although not expected during this project, any VOCcontaminated soil greater 1000 ppmV shall be immediately stockpiled, covered with plastic sheeting and stored separately from non-VOC-contaminated soil. Once excavated, contaminated soil under these conditions will be considered contaminated at all times and will not be backfilled. A VOC contaminated stockpile shall not contain more than 500 cubic yards of soil.
- 2. If the PID measurement is greater than 50 ppmV, but less than 1000 ppmV, the affected work area and load of soil shall be sprayed with water to suppress vapors. The contaminated soil in stockpiles shall be covered with plastic sheeting and secured so that no portion of the contaminated soil is exposed to the atmosphere.
- 3. If the PID measurement is greater than 1000 ppmV, SCAQMD will be notified within one hour and the affected soil and working area shall be immediately sprayed with water. Contaminated soil once stockpiled and covered with plastic sheeting shall remain covered and undisturbed until removed from the site. In the unlikely event that any contaminated soils meet the criteria for designation as hazardous waste it will be disposed of according to the applicable SCAQMD and City regulations.

Lightly Impacted Soil

The following mitigation measures shall be employed:

3. Any soil with readings greater than 50 ppmV via PID shall be considered potentially contaminated and placed in a separate stockpile from native soil that is not impacted. This material will require additional testing and separate disposal from the (highly unlikely) Significantly Impacted Soil and the (probably more voluminous) Non-Impacted Soil. Monitoring of the spoils during excavation using the PID is the primary mechanism for separation of the material into different piles that may not be comingled. Stockpiles may be expanded to a maximum of 500 cubic yards before disposal is required. Determining the fate and destination of the stockpiled soil will require sampling and profiling of the material as required by the waste-accepting facility. This will include laboratory testing for petroleum hydrocarbons, VOC, heavy metals, and other components at their discretion. Soil that passes the field screening and has less than 50 ppmV VOC will be considered Non-Impacted by the SCAQMD Rule 1166 standards, but still may be impacted enough to warrant discretionary disposal at an appropriate landfill. Because of the high sensitivity of chlorinated volatiles, Remdox recommends that all soils over 1 ppmV be contained in a separate pile from non-impacted soil.

4.2 Dust Control

To minimize dust during excavation and soil handling, the following mitigation procedures will be observed.

- Water all active construction areas at least twice daily or as necessary to prevent visible dust plumes from migrating outside of the site limits.
- Mist or spray water while loading transportation vehicles.
- Minimize drop heights while loading transportation vehicles.
- Use tarpaulins or other effective covers for trucks carrying soils that travel on public streets.
- Pave, apply water 3 times daily, or apply non-toxic soil stabilizers on all unpaved access roads, parking areas, and staging areas.
- Sweep all paved access routes parking areas and staging areas daily, if visibly soiled.

4.3 Erosion Control

A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) will be developed by the site contractor prior to initiation of site work that details procedures for minimizing erosion. The SWPPP will include elements such as silt traps and hay bales to minimize surface water runoff from the site into storm drains. Berms will be used to control runoff, and soil stockpiles will be covered during the rainy season (November through March) to minimize sediment runoff.

4.4 Soil Stockpile Management

Temporary stockpiling of excavated soil will be necessary throughout grading and initial site construction.

Soil stockpiled at the site will be lightly sprayed with water as needed to minimize dust. To the extent practical, the soil stockpiles will be covered with plastic sheeting or other similar material at times when not in active use. When a soil stockpile is uncovered during the rainy season, it will be surrounded by hay bales and/or silt traps to minimize sediment runoff.

4.5 Site Access Control

The construction site will be fenced to control pedestrian or vehicular entry, except at controlled points (i.e., gates). Gates will be closed and locked during non-construction hours. "No-trespassing" signs will be posted every 500 feet along the fencing.

5.0 SOIL MANAGEMENT FOLLOWING DEVELOPMENT

Following site development, the soil will be covered by asphalt pavement or grass (in the swale areas) and the soil will be not be accessed, with the exception of future maintenance work on subsurface utilities. The removal of any impacted soil during construction tasks will minimize possible health risks to future maintenance workers at the site, which should not pose an unacceptable carcinogenic or non-carcinogenic risk.

Although the grass-covered common areas should not present an unacceptable risk to human health for visitors or trespassers, it is prudent that the grass-covered swale areas be well maintained. Therefore, the swale areas will be inspected quarterly to visually observe the condition of the grass cover. Large areas of exposed soil (e.g., areas larger than several feet in diameter) should be reseeded as quickly as practical.

Annual inspections of the paved parking areas will be performed to observe whether breaches in the pavement that may allow prolonged access to site soil are visible. If observed, the breach would be repaired such that the soil cover is maintained.

6.0 CONTINGENCY PLAN

A Contingency Plan for this site is not warranted. The purpose of a Contingency Plan is to present response actions to an emergency situation. The possibility of exposure to site soil or groundwater while breaches in the pavement or grassy areas are being repaired would likely not present a situation requiring an emergency response.

A health and safety plan for site construction will be developed by the site contractor before initiation of the development activities. It is not anticipated that the minor soil gas contamination identified at the site would pose an unacceptable health risk to construction workers or nearby receptors during construction or future maintenance workers, visitors or trespassers after construction. However, the health and safety plan for the site includes contingencies for this case and is included in Appendix B.

7.0 **REPORTING**

After completion of the soil handling work, a Soil Management Report will be prepared by Remdox (or comparable professional) that will include daily site reports generated by the on-site environmental

professional during the soil monitoring phase of the project. The report will include excavation locations and depth, soil profiling documentation, evidence of disposal facility acceptance and copies of all disposal manifests.

FIGURES



laefs02/currentIAE 2015/Projects 2015/9836000640 1024 Mateo St 2016 Bay St 2001 2005 & 2025 Sacramento St LA CA 90021 Site Characterization/05 9836000640_Reports/2015-07 PI/ Rpt/CAD

APPENDIX A



CERTIFIED ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS, INC.

Table 1Soil-Sampling Title 22 Analytical Results1024 Mateo Street, 2016 Bay Street, 2001, 2005 and 2025 Sacramento StreetLos Angeles, California

| | Sample Identification/Location (1) | Environmental Screening |
|-------------------|------------------------------------|-------------------------------|
| Title 22 Metal | SV-6/SV-7 (compsite) | Lével - Comm. Property (2) |
| Antimony | ND | 40 |
| Arsenic | 1.68 | 1.6 |
| Barrium | 112 | 1500 |
| Beryllium | ND | 8 |
| Cadmium | 1.08 | 7.4 |
| Chromium | 37.4 | 7500 |
| Cobalt | 8.22 | 80 |
| Copper | 23.8 | 230 |
| Lead | 60.8 | 750 |
| Mercury | 0.0763 | 10 |
| Molybdenum | 1.93 | 40 |
| Nickel | 29.4 | 150 |
| Selenium | ND | 10 |
| Silver | ND | 40 |
| Thallium | ND | 16 |
| Vanadium | 33.4 | 200 |
| Zinc | 116 | 600 |

Notes:

(1) Former junk yard portion of site, see provided figures for physical depiction of sample locations

(2) Environmental Screening Levels (ESLs) for Shallow Soils at Commercial Properties, Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Francisco Region, Interim Draft, 2008

Bold type face = Exceeds recommended screening level

Table 2Soil-Vapor Sampling Analytical Results1024 Mateo Street, 2016 Bay Street, 2001, 2005 and 2025 Sacramento StreetLos Angeles, California

| Sample I.D. | Sample Location (1) | Benzene (2) | Toluene (2) | Ethyl- benzene (2) | Xylenes (2) | PCE (3) | Other VOCs (4) |
|----------------|--|----------------|----------------|--------------------------|----------------|------------|----------------------|
| SV-1 | Adjacent to current clarifier/wash drain | ND | ND | ND | ND | 3.69 | ND |
| SV-2 | At former grease-pit location | ND | ND | ND | ND | 14.54 | ND |
| SV-3 | At former UST location | ND | ND | ND | ND | 22.42 | ND |
| SV-4 | At former hydraulic hoists location | ND | ND | ND | ND | 21.32 | ND |
| SV-5 | At former pump-islands location | ND | ND | ND | ND | 21.81 | ND |
| SV-6 | At former UST location | ND | ND | ND | ND | 13.78 | ND |
| SV-7 | Adjacent to current waste-stoarge area | ND | ND | ND | ND | 11.76 | ND |
| SV-8 | S. of main bld., at conduc. anomoly loc. | ND | ND | ND | ND | 11.72 | ND |

Notes:

(1) See provided figures for physical depiction of sample locations

(2) Common volatile gasoline constituents by EPA Method 8021B

(3) Tetrachloroethene/Perchloroethene by EPA Method 8021B

(4) Other volatile organic compounds measured by Method 8021B, see report for listing of method analytes

ND = Not detected above method detection limits

Bold type face = Exceeds recommended screening level



laefs02/current/AE 2015/Projects 2015/9836000640 1024 Mateo St 2016 Bay St 2001 2005 & 2025 Sacramento St LA CA 90021 Site Characterization/05 9836000640_Reports/2015-07 PII RptICAD

Table 1: Volatile Organic Compounds in Soil Commercial Property

1024 Mateo Street; 2016 Bay Street; 2001, 2005, and 2025 Sacramento Street, Los Angeles, California 90021

| | | | EPA Method | 8260B (µg/kg) |
|----------------|----------------|--------------------------|------------|------------------------------|
| Sample ID | Sample Date | Sample Depth (ft bgs) | PCE | All Other 8260B VOC Analytes |
| AEB1 | 11/13/15 | 5 | 9.32 | ND |
| AEB1 | 11/13/15 | 15 | ND | ND |
| AEB1 | 11/13/15 | 30 | ND | ND |
| AEB2 | 11/13/15 | 5 | ND | ND |
| AEB2 | 11/13/15 | 15 | ND | ND |
| AEB2 | 11/13/15 | 30 | ND | ND |
| AEB3 | 11/13/15 | 5 | ND | ND |
| AEB3 | 11/13/15 | 15 | ND | ND |
| AEB3 | 11/13/15 | 30 | ND | ND |
| AEB4 | 11/13/15 | 5 | 4.56 | ND |
| AEB4 | 11/13/15 | 15 | ND | ND |
| AEB4 | 11/13/15 | 30 | ND | ND |
| Industrial RSL | | | 39,000 | NE |
| | MSSL | | 55 | NE |

Notes:

µg/kg = micrograms per kilogram

ft bgs = feet below ground surface

VOCs = Volatile Organic Compounds

ND = Not Detected above laboratory detection limit

NE = Not Established for the suite of compounds

Regional Screening Level (United States Environmental Protection Agency, 2015)

MSSL = Maximum Soil Screening Level, based on a distance of 80 feet between soil and groundawater and a soil type of sand (Los Angeles

Regional Water Quality Control Board , 1996)



Table 2: Volatile Organic Compounds in Soil Vapor Commercial Property

1024 Mateo Street; 2016 Bay Street; 2001, 2005, and 2025 Sacramento Street, Los Angeles, California 90021

| | Probe | | | Analytical Results (EPA Method 8260B, μg/l) | | | | | | Analytical Results (EPA Method 8260B, μg/l) | | | | | |
|------------------|-------------------|------------|------|---|--------|--------|---|---------------------------|--|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| Sample ID | Depth (ft bgs) | Date | PCE | TCE | FC-11 | FC-12 | Leak Check Compound (1,1-Difluoroethane) | All Other VOC Analytes | | | | | | | |
| SV1 | 5 | 11/17/2015 | 15.8 | 0.0832 | 0.0701 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV1 | 15 | 11/17/2015 | 20.4 | 0.0365 | 0.0856 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV1 | 30 | 11/17/2015 | 19.5 | ND | 0.133 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV2 | 5 | 11/17/2015 | 6.54 | ND | 0.0868 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV2 | 15 | 11/17/2015 | 15.8 | ND | 0.154 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV2 | 30 | 11/17/2015 | 29.3 | 0.0178 | 0.320 | 0.0912 | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV3 | 5 | 11/17/2015 | 4.56 | ND | 0.0256 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV3 | 15 | 11/17/2015 | 6.45 | ND | 0.0352 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV3 | 30 | 11/17/2015 | 6.02 | Р | 0.0352 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV3 (DUP) | 30 | 11/17/2015 | 5.94 | ND | 0.0420 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV4 | 5 | 11/17/2015 | 12.7 | 0.0196 | 0.0520 | ND | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV4 | 15 | 11/17/2015 | 26.9 | ND | 0.113 | 0.0671 | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| SV4 | 30 | 11/17/2015 | 35.2 | ND | 0.150 | 0.0872 | ND | ND | | | | | | | |
| Commercial CHHSL | | | 0.6 | 1.8 | NE | NE | NE | NE | | | | | | | |

Notes:

EPA = Environmental Protection Agency

µg/l = micrograms per liter

ft bgs = feet below ground surface

PCE= Tetrachloroethene

TCE = Trichloroethene

FC-11 = Trichlorofluromethane

FC-12 = Dichlorodifluoromethane

1,1-Difluoroethane = Leak Check Compound

ND = Not Detected at or above the detection limit

CHHSL = California Human Health Screening Level for Commercial/Industrial sites without engineered fill below sub-slab gravel (Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, 2010)

NE = Not established for the compound or suite of compounds



APPENDIX B

HEALTH AND SAFETY PLAN PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 1024 Mateo St, 2016 Bay St, 2001-2025 Sacramento St, Los Angeles, California

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

| INTRODUCTION / BACKGROUND | 1 |
|--|---|
| KEY PERSONNEL | 1 |
| HAZARD ANALYSIS | 1 |
| CHEMICAL CONTAMINATION Physical Hazards | 1 |
| PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT | 5 |
| ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING PLAN | 5 |
| SITE CONTROL MEASURES | 6 |
| DECONTAMINATION | 6 |
| EMERGENCY PROCEDURES | 6 |

LIST OF TABLES

TABLE 1 - Chemical Exposure Limits

LIST OF FIGURES

FIGURE 1 - Route to Hospital

INTRODUCTION / BACKGROUND

The following is a Health and Safety Plan for soil excavation and handling at the proposed redevelopment project under consideration at 1024 Mateo Street, 2016 Bay Street and 2001-2025 Sacramento Street in Los Angeles, California. The combined 1.42-acre site is to be developed with 120,000 square feet of commercial floor area and 106 residential units. Those residential units will be above the first floor and separated from the subsurface by street level commercial units and by a subterranean parking structure. The soil gas at the site is impacted with low levels of VOC. The property is being redeveloped and site construction activities require excavation and handling of soil that may be impacted with PCE. The soil excavation and handling work will be conducted by a qualified contractor.

KEY PERSONNEL

A Site Safety Officer (SSO) and/or Project Manager (PM) should be assigned to manage the health and safety of workers and nearby residents during the excavation activities. This individual should have completed 40 hours of comprehensive health and safety training which meets the requirements of Title 29 Code of Federal Regulations (29 CFR 1910.120), and is current with refresher training.

The Project Manager (PM) is responsible for generating, organizing and compiling the Site Safety and Health Plan (SSHP), which describes all planned field activities and potential hazards that may be encountered at the site. The PM is also responsible for assuring that adequate training and safety briefing(s) for the project is provided to the project team.

The SSO's health and safety responsibilities include:

- Following the SSHP.
- Reporting to the PM any unsafe conditions or practices.
- Reporting to the PM all facts pertaining to incidents, which result in injury or exposure to toxic materials.

HAZARD ANALYSIS

The potential hazards to personnel working at this site have been identified as chemical contamination and the physical hazards of working outdoors around drill rigs and remediation system equipment. Each potential hazard relative to possible exposure is described below.

Chemical Contamination

The primary health and safety hazard posed by this project is the potential of chemical contamination from inhalation of vapors that could potentially be released from the soil gas and/or groundwater, and potentially contain hazardous constituents. The principal constituents of concern are tetrachloroethene (PCE) and trichloroethene (TCE), which have been classified as a "potential occupational carcinogen". This contaminant can cause skin and eye irritation, as well as respiratory problems, fatigue, nausea, and abdominal pain. Target organs, which may be affected, are the central nervous system, respiratory system, eyes, blood, bone marrow and skin.

Tables 1 and 2 present a summary of the chemical exposure limits and characteristics associated with them.

The greatest potential for exposure exists during excavation, when fugitive vapors or particulates could be admitted to the atmosphere during excavation activities. Personnel could come in contact with vapors and particulates containing these constituents.

Physical Hazards

On-site non-chemical hazards include working around heavy equipment, noise, and possible heat stress. While working at the site, the field personnel must be aware of heavy equipment movement and general traffic. Field personnel will exercise extreme caution around the equipment during testing. Noise levels around operating equipment may exceed a comfortable range in which case ear plugs will be utilized.

Presence of unauthorized personnel: Care will be taken to not allow any unauthorized person entrance to the area around the equipment on site.

Lifting hazards: Field personnel are instructed to wear a back-belt when lifting items weighing greater than 40 lbs; lift by bending at the knees and using leg muscles. When lifting heavy items, use the buddy system or a mechanical lifting device. Never twist or jerk your body while lifting. Use gloves when lifting sharp or abrasive objects, or where splinters are possible.

Noise hazards: Field personnel are instructed to wear hearing protection anytime they are conducting work near operating equipment, or anytime that the ambient noise level is sufficiently loud to require the employee to raise his/her voice to be heard.

Electrical hazards: Field personnel are instructed to take the proper precautions when handling or working on any electrical device on site. The following general steps should be taken at all times:

- Maintain appropriate distance from overhead utilities (20 feet minimum clearance from power lines; 10 feet minimum distance from shielded power lines).
- Use ground fault circuit interrupters as required.
- Always use three pronged plugs and extension cords.
- Follow all code requirements for electrical installations.

Hand and Power Tool hazards: All field personnel are required to implement the following general safety precautions when using any handheld or power tools:

- Keep the tools sharp, clean and properly maintained -worn tools can contribute to slips and breaks that can cause injury to personnel and damage to onsite equipment
- Do not use tools to perform tasks for which they were not intended
- Use proper eye protection when using any power tool.
- Inspect each power tool prior to use for damaged parts, loose fittings and frayed or damaged electrical cords. If damaged, do not use the tool until it has been repaired or replaced.
- No adjustments should be made to a power tool while it is plugged in.
- Always use the proper guards or shields when using power tools. NEVER use homemade handles or extensions.

Hot Work or Welding: Field personnel are advised that these activities have a potential to lead to a fire. Therefore, fire suppression equipment should be maintained in the work area. Steps should be taken to ensure that all flammable materials are protected from sources of ignition.

Slip, Trip, Fall hazards: Field personnel are instructed to inspect the work area for hazards prior to commencing work. These include uneven terrain, sloped areas, wet or slick areas, and areas covered with loose material. If slip, trip or fall hazards, they should be communicated to all employees at the work site and marked, if possible, with warning signs, cones and/or caution tape.

Fire hazards: To avoid fire and explosion, smoking or use of other flammable devices will NOT be permitted within the barricaded area. A fire extinguisher is to be maintained on site at all times.

Traffic hazards: Vehicular traffic is open to the public in the site vicinity. All work areas should be coned off prior to commencing work. Additionally, all field personnel should wear reflective safety vests and be cautious of vehicular traffic.

Mobile Heavy Equipment: More than 100 people each year are killed by mobile heavy equipment - including backhoes/excavators, mobile cranes, road grading and surfacing machinery, loaders, bulldozers, and tractors - on construction sites. These are the main causes of death:

Workers on foot are struck by equipment, usually when it's backing up or changing direction.

Equipment rolls over and kills the operator while on a slope or when equipment is loaded or unloaded from a flatbed/lowboy truck.

Operators or mechanics are run over or caught in equipment when the brakes aren't set, equipment is left in gear, wheel chocks are not used, or the equipment and controls aren't locked out.

Workers on foot or in a trench are crushed by falling equipment loads, backhoe buckets, or other moving parts.

Protect Yourself

Allow only trained and experienced operators to operate heavy equipment.

Be sure operators and mechanics are trained by qualified persons* experienced with the model of heavy equipment being used.

Rent or buy only heavy equipment that has rollover protective structures (ROPSs) and seat belts.

Use only flatbed/lowboy trucks and ramps that are suitable for transporting heavy equipment.

Ensure that a copy of the **operating manual** is on all machinery or available to the operator.

Identify the hazards of overhead and underground **power lines and utilities** and establish procedures for working around them. Before excavation begins, use the one-call system for utility cutoffs.

Make sure the manufacturer's **safety features** work.

Set a limited access zone and/or a swing radius for each piece of equipment.

Provide training on equipment hand signals.

Provide trained spotters or signal persons to alert operators to workers or pedestrians in the blind spots of the equipment - including workers in trenches or manholes.

As a heavy-equipment operator, you should:

Review operating, safety, and shutdown procedures in the operator's manual before you work with a new piece of equipment.

Check/inspect the equipment and controls every day before you begin work.

To **prevent slips and falls**, keep grease and fluids off the walking/working surfaces and use 3 points of contact when entering and exiting equipment (such as 2 hands and 1 foot).

To **prevent rollovers**, do not travel or work parallel to steep grades or embankments or on unstable soil.

If possible, operate heavy equipment that has a ROPS and fasten the seatbelt. (Don't use a seatbelt if you must use equipment that has no ROPS, because you may have to jump clear during a rollover.)

If equipment is rolling over or out of control, do <u>not</u> jump if it has a ROPS and seatbelt; you have a better chance of riding it out with a ROPS and your seat belt fastened.

Always put the transmission in park, shut off the motor, set the brakes, and perform any other needed **shutdown procedures**/lockout of controls and/or attachments before working on or around the equipment.

*OSHA says a qualified person...by extensive knowledge, training, and experience can...solve...problems related to the subject matter....

Protect Others

To protect other workers or pedestrians:

Do not back up unless you are sure no one is behind you. Use mirrors, where appropriate.

Do not depend only on backup alarms. They are not always heard on noisy construction sites.

Use barriers to separate workers on foot, pedestrians, and vehicles from moving equipment, where possible.

When loading or unloading materials, make sure that only essential workers are in the area and have a spotter/signal person to let you know where they are. No one should be under a suspended load.

Never allow other workers to ride on equipment.

Don't speed; be extra careful around other traffic, hills, obstacles, and curves.

Heat Stroke and Heat exhaustion: The potential for heat stress is a concern when field activities are performed on warm, sunny days, and is accentuated when chemical protective clothing is worn. Heat stress prevention measures and monitoring will be implemented if site temperatures are above 88 degrees Fahrenheit. Precautions to prevent heat stress will include work/rest cycles so rest periods are taken before excessive fatigue occurs, and regular intake of water to replace that lost from perspiration. To prevent dehydration, all workers will be required to drink fluids during work. An initial work/rest cycle of one hour work and fifteen minutes rest is recommended for protection of staff when the heat stress hazard is high. The recommended cycle will be adjusted up or down based upon worker monitoring, environmental conditions, and the judgement of the site safety officer.

At any time field team members recognize the signs or symptoms of heat stress prior to a scheduled rest period, they will notify the SSO immediately in order that a rest period can be called. Heat stress, if not prevented, results in heat stress illnesses. Two critical illnesses, if not recognized and treated immediately, can become life threatening. These are heat exhaustion and heat stroke. Heat exhaustion will result if the prevention measures described above are not implemented. Ignoring the signs and symptoms of heat exhaustion will lead to the development of heat stroke. Heat stroke is an immediate, life-threatening condition that results because the body's heat regulation mechanisms shut down, and the body cannot cool itself sufficiently. As heat is excessively stored in the body, brain damage can result causing permanent disability or death.

The signs and symptoms of heat exhaustion are headache; dizziness; nausea; weakness; fainting; profuse sweating; loss of appetite; approximately normal body temperature; dilated pupils; weak and rapid pulse; shallow and rapid breathing; possible cramps in abdomen and extremities; difficulty walking; cool and sweaty skin to the touch; pale to ashen gray coloring.

First aid for heat exhaustion is as follows:

- Immediately remove victim to the support area, or if you are the victim, proceed to the support area.
- Decontaminate, if practical, before entering support area.
- Start cooling, but be careful not to cause a chill (i.e., and/or remove clothing as much as practical, especially chemical resistant clothing).
- Drink cool water <u>slowly</u>, but only if conscious and not in shock.
- If vomiting, and/or the signs and symptoms are not lessening within an hour, call for emergency help and/or transport the victim to emergency room.
- It is likely that a heat exhaustion victim will be unable to work for the remainder of the day.

The signs and symptoms of heat stroke are <u>hot</u>, <u>dry skin to the touch; reddish coloring</u>: body temperature $>105^{\circ}$ F; no sweating; mental confusion; deep, rapid breathing that sounds like snoring progressing to shallow, weak breathing; headache; dizziness; nausea; vomiting; weakness; dry mouth; convulsions, muscular twitching, sudden collapse, possible unconsciousness.

First aid for heat stroke is as follows:

- Immediately remove the victim to the support area; prior to entering the support area, remove and dispose the victim's chemical-resistant clothing.
- <u>Cool</u> the victim rapidly using whatever means are available, including: shade; opening up and/or removing clothing; soaking clothing/skin with water and fanning; placing victim in vehicle using air conditioning on maximum.
- Do <u>not</u> give drinking water to victim.
- Treat for shock, if needed.
- <u>Transport</u> the victim <u>to the emergency room</u> or call for emergency help; <u>no exceptions</u> for heat stroke victim.

PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT

Based on the hazard analysis for this project, the following personal protective equipment (PPE) will be required and used. Changes to these specified items of PPE will not be made without the approval of the site safety officer.

Level D (modified) protection will be the minimum required protection during drilling. It will consist of long sleeve shirts, gloves, chemical resistant steel-toed safety boots, and hard hats.

In addition, goggles and/or safety glasses should be worn, but it is not a requirement. If at any time throughout the course of this job, there is a potential for more exposure to the personnel, half and/or full face respirators (Level C) may be required. Work will halt if possible exposure warrants level B protection.

ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING PLAN

The potential hazards identified in the hazard analysis portion of this plan determined the need for initial and/or ongoing monitoring for assessment of exposure to the hazards as follows:
A direct-reading instrument will be used to monitor air quality in around the work areas. The specific instrument will be a photo ionization detector with a detection limit of 1.0 ppm and a range of 1.0 to 3,000 ppm for organic compounds. Calibration is performed daily with a standard of 100 ppm hexane in air.

Air monitoring for background levels of air contamination will be performed prior to the start of testing activities. Background concentrations will be noted and used as the baseline or zero concentration.

Air monitoring during excavation will be conducted in the immediate breathing zones at minimum intervals of every 30 minutes, or more frequently if needed. The measurements will be logged, showing the time and the concentration of the airborne organic compounds. The primary contaminants of concern for this investigation are chlorinated solvents. Of these, PCE has the lowest Permissible Exposure limit (PEL). **Table 2** displays the PEL and Short Term Exposure Limits (STEL), applicable for the volatile organic vapors that may be occurring at the site.

At any time during testing, if the concentration exceeds 25 ppm for 1 minute or more within the work area during drilling or testing, PPE will be upgraded to include half-face respirators equipped with organic vapor canisters. Benzene will be the primary pollutant of concern. The use of respirators will be discontinued when the concentrations dissipate to the acceptable levels, as determined by the site safety officer. If at any time the VOC concentrations exceed 100 ppm over background, all drilling and or testing activities will cease and the personnel will stop work and determine measures of mitigating the high VOC levels until safe concentrations are established and work can safely be reinitiated.

SITE CONTROL MEASURES

The potential chemical and physical hazards have been identified in this SSHP; however, should unexpected conditions arise, the SSO will stop all work at the site and the Project Manager will be notified. Work will not be completed until the SSHP has been revised or re-evaluated, accordingly.

DECONTAMINATION

All workers will wash hands, arms and face after removing PPE and prior to leaving the site. Disposable items will be bagged for disposal along with other hazardous wastes removed from property. Sampling equipment will be decontaminated using a steam cleaner or three bucket wash. All heavy equipment should be steam cleaned prior to removal from the site, if necessary. There are no special emergency decontamination procedures anticipated for this project.

EMERGENCY PROCEDURES

In the event of an emergency on site, the SSO will direct the course of action. The SSO will call for emergency assistance if needed. As soon as practical, the SSO will contact the Project Manager. All staff assigned to this project will be briefed on the procedures and responsibilities for implementation. A map showing the location and route to the hospital is included as **Figure 1**. In the event of a medical emergency, 911 should be used.

The SSO is trained in first-aid and CPR. A first-aid kit and fire extinguisher are located in the field vehicle. The nearest telephone numbers to be used to call for assistance are listed below. A copy of this list will be posted in the support zone of the work area.

| The nearest hospital to the site is the Dignity Health Medical Center, 1401 S. Grand Avenue, Los Angeles, CA. The telephone number of the hospital is shown below. Name of Business | Telephone Number |
|---|------------------|
| Fire or Police | 911 |
| Dignity Health Medical Center | (213) 748-2411 |
| Remdox Dan Louks | (310) 459-7320 |

DIRECTIONS TO THE HOSPITAL

Hospital: Dignity Health Medical Center, 1401 South Grand Avenue, Los Angeles, CA Phone: (213) 748-2411

Route: Head East on Sacramento Street. Turn right on Mateo Street. Turn left on E. 8th Street. Turn right on West I-10. Take Exit 14A, Los Angeles Street. Continue onto E 17th Street. Turn right on South Olive Street. Turn left on West Pico Street. Turn left on South Grand Avenue. Hospital is on the right.

I have reviewed a copy of the Health and Safety Plan for this project and am familiar with the hazards of this project.

| Signature | Name | Company | Date |
|-----------|------|---------|------|
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |

Name and Signature of Site Safety Officer

TABLE 1Chemical Characteristics

| Chemical N | Notes TLV (8 hr TWA) (ppm) | | Ionization Potential (eV) | IDLH Level (ppm) |
|------------|-------------------------------|----|------------------------------|---------------------|
| PCE | С | 25 | 9.32 | 500 |
| TCE | С | 50 | 9.47 | 1,000 |

Threshold Limit Value as the airborne time weighted average (TWA) published by the American Conference of Industrial Hygienists (ACGIH), 1988-1989. Immediately Dangerous to Life and Health level as an airborne concentration published by the National Institute of Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH), Publication Number 85-114, September 1985. 4. From the CHRIS Manuals, Volumes I-III.C - Carcinogen; F - Flammable.

TABLE 2Chemical Exposure Limits

| | PEL | STEL |
|-------------|------|------|
| Contaminant | OSHA | OSHA |
| PCE | 25 | 100 |
| TCE | 50 | 200 |

PEL (*Permissible Exposure Limit*) - *Time-weighted average concentrations, similar to (and usually derived from) the Threshold Limit Values. STEL (Short Term Exposure Limit) - Average concentration permissible over a 10-minute period.*



FIGURE 1

Route to Hospital

DIRECTIONS TO THE HOSPITAL

Hospital: Dignity Health Medical Center, 1401 South Grand Avenue, Los Angeles, CA Phone: (213) 748-2411

Route: Head East on Sacramento Street. Turn right on Mateo Street. Turn left on E. 8th Street. Turn right on West I-10. Take Exit 14A, Los Angeles Street. Continue onto E 17th Street. Turn right on South Olive Street. Turn left on West Pico Street. Turn left on South Grand Avenue. Hospital is on the right. Appendix F: Noise Measurements

NOISE RECEPTOR & MONITORING LOCATION MAP 1024 Mateo Street Project Imagery via Google

DKA Planning



| Summary | |
|--------------------|--|
| File Name on Meter | s001.ses |
| Serial Number | BIJ050019 |
| Model | SOUNDPRO SE/DL |
| Firmware Version | R.13H |
| User | DKA |
| Location | #1 |
| Job Description | 1024 MATEO |
| Note | |
| | Heavy truck traffic on surrounding streets, as is typical for that |
| | area. |
| | Most of the traffic was truck traffic. Moderate truck traffic on |
| | Wilson and heavy truck traffic on 7th. Ambulance siren. |
| Measurement | |
| Start | 2019-02-06 10:59:00 |
| Stop | 2019-02-06 11:14:00 |
| Duration | 00:15:00.0 |
| Run Time | 00:15:00.0 |
| Overall Settings | |
| RMS Weight | A Weighting |
| Detector | Slow |
| Results | |
| LAeq | 57.9 dB |
| LZpeak (max) | 89.3 dB |
| LASmax | 74.4 dB |
| LASmin | 49.4 dB |
| | |
| | |
| Summary | |
| File Name on Meter | s002.ses |
| Serial Number | BIJ050019 |
| Model | SOUNDPRO SE/DL |
| Firmware Version | R.13H |
| User | DKA |
| Location | #2 1024 MATEO |
| Job Description | Light auto and pedestrian traffic in the immediate area where |
| Note | the reading was taken, but heavy auto and truck traffic on |
| | Santa Fe. Light to moderate pedestrian traffic on Santa Fe. |
| | Ambulance siren. |
| Measurement | |
| Start | 2019-02-06 11:25:00 |
| Stop | 2019-02-06 11:40:00 |
| Duration | 00:15:00.0 |
| Run Time | 00:15:00.0 |
| Overall Settings | |
| RMS Weight | A Weighting |
| Detector | Slow |
| Results | |

| LAeq | 61.5 dB |
|--------------|---------|
| LZpeak (max) | 95.4 dB |
| LASmax | 74.4 dB |
| LASmin | 54.8 dB |

Summary

| File Name on Meter | s003.ses |
|--------------------|--|
| Serial Number | BIJ050019 |
| Model | SOUNDPRO SE/DL |
| Firmware Version | R.13H |
| User | DKA |
| Location | #3 |
| Job Description | 1024 MATEO |
| Note | Light auto and no truck traffic on 8th. Moderate pedestrian |
| | traffic on 8th. Heavy truck traffic on Santa Fe. Minimal noise |

from freeway.

| Measurement | |
|------------------|---------------------|
| Start | 2019-02-06 12:03:00 |
| Stop | 2019-02-06 12:18:00 |
| Duration | 00:15:00.0 |
| Run Time | 00:15:00.0 |
| Overall Settings | |
| RMS Weight | A Weighting |
| Detector | Slow |
| Results | |
| LAeq | 66.4 dB |
| LZpeak (max) | 96.2 dB |
| LASmax | 78.9 dB |
| LASmin | 57.2 dB |
| | |

1212 SANTA FE AVENUE: DEMOLITION AND GRADING

Construction Noise - Unmitigated

Total Equipment Noise Levels

| Source | Emission Level (dBA) | Usage Factor | Adjusted dBA |
|-----------|-------------------------|--------------|--------------|
| Excavator | 81 | 0.4 | 77.0 |
| Loader | 79 | 0.4 | 75.0 |
| | | Combined dBA | 79 1 |

Housing Row Shielding

| ij gaps in | the row of buildings | constitute less than 35% of the length of the row: | |
|---------------|-----------------------|---|--|
| n | 3 | "number of rows of houses between source and receiver | |
| A(rows1) | 8 | | |
| If gaps in t | he row of buildings o | constitute between 35-65% of the length of the row: | |
| | 0 | *number of rows of houses between source and receiver | |
| R | 0 | number of fours of houses between source and receiver | |
| R A(rows2) | 0 | | |

| A(rows3) | 0 | |
|----------|---|--|
| | | |

Tree Zone Shielding

| Where at least 100 feet of trees intervene between source and receiver, and if no clear line of sight exists | | |
|--|---|---|
| between source and receiver, and if the trees extend 15 feet or more above the line of sight: | | |
| w | 0 | *width of the tree zone along the line of sight between source and receiver, in feet. |
| A(trees) | 0 | |

Cumulative Shielding

| Existing Building | 0 |
|-------------------|---|
| Аххх | 0 |
| Аххх | 0 |
| A(rows1) | 8 |
| A(rows2) | 0 |
| A(trees) | 0 |
| A(cum ulative) | 8 |

1212 SANTA FE AVENUE: DEMOLITION AND GRADING

Page 2

Construction Noise - Unitigated

Construction Equipment Best Practices

| Source | Emission Level (dBA) | Usage Factor | Mitigative Attenuation | Adjusted dBA |
|-----------|-------------------------|--------------|---------------------------|--------------|
| Excavator | 81 | 0.4 | 0 | 77.0 |
| Loader | 79 | 0.4 | 0 | 75.0 |
| | | Combined dE | BA, Mitigated | 79.1 |

Unmitigated Construction Noise Level

| Total Equipment Noise Level | 79.1 |
|--------------------------------|------|
| Cumulative Shielding (A) | 8 |
| Sound Barrier Shielding | 0.0 |
| G | 0.0 |
| Distance | 690 |
| Unmitigated Construction Noise | 48.3 |

Unmitigated Receptor Noise Level

| Unmitigated Construction Noise | 48.3 |
|--------------------------------|------|
| Existing Ambient Noise Level | 66.4 |
| | |
| Unmitigated Ambient Noise | 66.5 |
| | |
| Unmitigated Increase | 0.1 |
| | |

Sources Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), Construction Noise Handbook, August 2006.

Federal Transit Administration (FTA), Transit Noise and Vibration Assessment, May 2006. California Department of Transportation, Technical Noise Supplement to the Traffic Noise Analysis Protocol, September 2013.

Page 1

METROPOLITAN HIGH SCHOOL: DEMOLITION AND GRADING

Construction Noise - Unmitigated

Total Equipment Noise Levels

| Source | Emission Level (dBA) | Usage Factor | Adjusted dBA |
|-----------|-------------------------|--------------|--------------|
| Excavator | 81 | 0.4 | 77.0 |
| Loader | 79 | 0.4 | 75.0 |
| | | Combined dBA | 79.1 |

Housing Row Shielding

| R | 4 | *number of rows of houses between source and receiver |
|----------------|---|---|
| A(rows1) | 9.5 | |
| | | |
| If ages in the | row of buildings of | onstitute between 35-65% of the length of the row: |
| ij gups in the | · • · · ·) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | , , , |
| R | 0 | *number of rows of houses between source and receiver |

| ij gups in ti | ie row of buildings o | Lonstitute more than 65% of the length of the row. |
|---------------|-----------------------|--|
| A(rows3) | 0 | |
| | | |

Tree Zone Shielding

| Where at least 100 feet of trees intervene between source and receiver, and if no clear line of sight exists | | | |
|--|---|---|--|
| between source and receiver, and if the trees extend 15 feet or more above the line of sight: | | | |
| w | 0 | *width of the tree zone along the line of sight between source and receiver, in feet. | |
| A(trees) | 0 | | |

Cumulative Shielding

| Existing Building | 0 |
|-------------------|-----|
| Аххх | 0 |
| Аххх | 0 |
| A(rows1) | 9.5 |
| A(rows2) | 0 |
| A(trees) | 0 |
| A(cumulative) | 9.5 |

METROPOLITAN HIGH SCHOOL: DEMOLITION AND GRADING

Page 2

Construction Noise - Unitigated

Construction Equipment Best Practices

| Source | Emission Level (dBA) | Usage Factor | Mitigative Attenuation | Adjusted dBA |
|-----------|-------------------------|-------------------------|---------------------------|--------------|
| Excavator | 81 | 0.4 | 0 | 77.0 |
| Loader | 79 | 0.4 | 0 | 75.0 |
| | | Combined dBA, Mitigated | | 79.1 |

Unmitigated Construction Noise Level

| Total Equipment Noise Level | 79.1 |
|--------------------------------|------|
| Cumulative Shielding (A) | 9.5 |
| Sound Barrier Shielding | 0.0 |
| G | 0.0 |
| Distance | 980 |
| Unmitigated Construction Noise | 43.8 |

Unmitigated Receptor Noise Level

| Unmitigated Construction Noise | 43.8 |
|--------------------------------|------|
| Existing Ambient Noise Level | 57.9 |
| | |
| Unmitigated Ambient Noise | 58.1 |
| | |
| Unmitigated Increase | 0.2 |
| | |

Sources Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), Construction Noise Handbook, August 2006.

Federal Transit Administration (FTA), Transit Noise and Vibration Assessment, May 2006. California Department of Transportation, Technical Noise Supplement to the Traffic Noise Analysis Protocol, September 2013.

Page 1

726 SANTA FE AVENUE: DEMOLITION AND GRADING

Construction Noise - Unmitigated

Total Equipment Noise Levels

| Source | Emission Level (dBA) | Usage Factor | Adjusted dBA |
|-----------|-------------------------|--------------|--------------|
| Excavator | 81 | 0.4 | 77.0 |
| Loader | 79 | 0.4 | 75.0 |
| | | Combined dBA | 79.1 |

Housing Row Shielding

| If gaps in th | ne row of buildings | constitute less than 35% of the length of the row: |
|---------------|---------------------|---|
| R | 3 | *number of rows of houses between source and receiver |
| A(rows1) | 8 | |

| If gaps in the row of buildings constitute between 35-65% of the length of the row: | | |
|---|---|---|
| R | 0 | *number of rows of houses between source and receiver |
| A(rows2) | 0 | |

| lf gaps in th | he row of buildings | constitute more than 65% of the length of the row: |
|---------------|---------------------|--|
| A(rows3) | 0 | |

Tree Zone Shielding

| Where at least 10 | 00 feet of trees interve | ne between source and receiver, and if no clear line of sight exists |
|-------------------|-------------------------------|---|
| between sou | urce and receiver, and | if the trees extend 15 feet or more above the line of sight: |
| W | 0 | *width of the tree zone along the line of sight between source and receiver, in feet. |
| A(trees) | 0 | |

Cumulative Shielding

| Existing Building | 0 |
|-------------------|---|
| Аххх | 0 |
| Аххх | 0 |
| A(rows1) | 8 |
| A(rows2) | 0 |
| A(trees) | 0 |
| A(cumulative) | 8 |

726 SANTA FE AVENUE: DEMOLITION AND GRADING

Construction Noise - Unitigated

Construction Equipment Best Practices

| Source | Emission Level (dBA) | Usage Factor | Mitigative Attenuation | Adjusted dBA |
|-------------------------|-------------------------|--------------|---------------------------|--------------|
| Excavator | 81 | 0.4 | 0 | 77.0 |
| Loader | 79 | 0.4 | 0 | 75.0 |
| Combined dBA, Mitigated | | 79.1 | | |

Unmitigated Construction Noise Level

| Total Equipment Noise Level | 79.1 |
|--------------------------------|------|
| Cumulative Shielding (A) | 8 |
| Sound Barrier Shielding | 0.0 |
| G | 0.0 |
| Distance | 930 |
| Unmitigated Construction Noise | 45.8 |

Unmitigated Receptor Noise Level

| Unmitigated Construction Noise | 45.8 |
|--------------------------------|------|
| Existing Ambient Noise Level | 61.5 |
| | |
| Unmitigated Ambient Noise | 61.6 |
| | |
| Unmitigated Increase | 0.1 |

Sources

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), Construction Noise Handbook, August 2006.

Federal Transit Administration (FTA), Transit Noise and Vibration Assessment, May 2006.

California Department of Transportation, Technical Noise Supplement to the Traffic Noise Analysis Protocol, September 2013.

Page 1

Page 2

| Traffic |
|-------------|
| Volume A |
| nalysis (|
| of Key In |
| tersections |

| AM | z | lo Project | 2019 | | P | roject Impact | | | | Inc | orease | | | |
|--------------------------|-----------|------------|------|-----|-------|---------------|----|----|-------|-------|--------|------|-----|-------|
| Roadway Segment | Direction | - | - | R | Total | - | - | R | Total | TOTAL | - | - | R | Total |
| Mateo St S of 7th St | z | 74 | 115 | 46 | 235 | 11 | ω | ы | 17 | 252 | 15% | 3% | 7% | 7.2% |
| Mateo St S of 7th St | S | 96 | 183 | 75 | 354 | 5 | 10 | 17 | 32 | 386 | 5% | 5% | 23% | 9.0% |
| Mateo St N of Olympic BI | z | 215 | л | 304 | 524 | з | | 11 | 14 | 538 | 1% | 0% | 4% | 2.7% |
| Mateo St N of Olympic BI | S | 95 | 4 | 105 | 204 | 17 | | | 17 | 221 | 18% | 0% | 0% | 8.3% |
| 7th St W of Santa Fe Ave | ш | 18 | 332 | 100 | 450 | | ω | | 3 | 453 | 0% | 1% | 0% | 0.7% |
| 7th St W of Santa Fe Ave | × | 131 | 705 | 13 | 849 | | ъ | | 5 | 854 | 0% | 1% | 0% | 0.6% |
| 8th St W of Santa Fe Ave | ш | 25 | 13 | 323 | 361 | | | | 0 | 361 | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0.0% |
| 8th St W of Santa Fe Ave | ۷ | 254 | 7 | 198 | 459 | | | | 0 | 459 | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0.0% |
| PM | z | lo Project | 2019 | | P | roject Impact | | | | Inc | orease | | | |
| Roadway Segment | Direction | - | - | R | Total | - | ٦ | R | Total | | - | - | R | Total |
| Mateo St S of 7th St | z | 112 | 166 | 56 | 334 | 17 | ъ | ъ | 27 | 361 | 15% | 3% | 9% | 8.1% |
| Mateo St S of 7th St | S | 47 | 122 | 66 | 235 | 4 | 7 | 12 | 23 | 258 | 9% | 6% | 18% | 9.8% |
| Mateo St N of Olympic BI | z | 126 | ω | 60 | 189 | 12 | | 4 | 16 | 205 | 10% | 0% | 7% | 8.5% |
| Mateo St N of Olympic BI | S | 192 | 9 | 276 | 477 | 4 | 17 | | 21 | 498 | 2% | 189% | 0% | 4.4% |
| 7th St W of Santa Fe Ave | ш | 28 | 669 | 182 | 909 | | ъ | | л | 914 | 0% | 1% | 0% | 0.6% |
| 7th St W of Santa Fe Ave | × | 106 | 317 | 23 | 446 | 7 | 4 | | 11 | 457 | 7% | 1% | 0% | 2.5% |
| 8th St W of Santa Fe Ave | т | 229 | ω | 184 | 416 | | | | 0 | 416 | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0.0% |
| 8th St W of Santa Fe Ave | ٧ | 57 | 13 | 382 | 452 | | | | 0 | 452 | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0.0% |

Appendix G-1: Traffic Impact Study

LINSCOTT LAW & GREENSPAN

engineers

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY

1024 MATEO STREET MIXED-USE PROJECT

City of Los Angeles, California March 7, 2019

Prepared for:

Dart Partners, LLC and Mateo Arts, LLC 20501 Ventura Boulevard, Suite 295 Woodland Hills, CA 91364

LLG Ref. 5-16-0299-1



Prepared by:

Jason A. Shender Transportation Planner II

Under the Supervision of:

David S. Shender, P.E. Principal

Linscott, Law & Greenspan, Engineers

20931 Burbank Boulevard Suite C Woodland Hills, CA 91367

818.835.8648 т 818.835.8649 г

www.llgengineers.com

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| SECT | ION | P | AGE |
|------|------------|---|----------|
| 10 | Inte | advation | 1 |
| 1.0 | 1 1 | Study Area | , I 2 |
| | 1.1 | Summery of Eindings | . 3 |
| | 1.2 | Summary of Findings | . 3 |
| 2.0 | Proj | ect Description | . 5 |
| | 2.1 | Site Location | . 5 |
| | 2.2 | Existing Project Site | . 5 |
| | 2.3 | Proposed Project Description | . 5 |
| 3.0 | Site | Access and Circulation | . 7 |
| | 3.1 | Existing Vehicular Site Access | . 7 |
| | 3.2 | Vehicular Project Site Access | . 7 |
| | 3.3 | Pedestrian and Bicycle Project Site Access | . 7 |
| 4.0 | Exis | ting Street System | |
| | 4.1 | Regional Highway System | . 9 |
| | 4.2 | Local Roadway System | . 9 |
| | 4.3 | Roadway Descriptions | . 10 |
| | 4.4 | Public Transit Services | . 13 |
| 5.0 | Traf | fic Counts | . 16 |
| 6.0 | Cun | nulative Development Projects | . 20 |
| | 6.1 | Related Projects | . 20 |
| | 6.2 | Ambient Traffic Growth Factor | . 30 |
| 7.0 | Traf | fic Forecasting Methodology | . 31 |
| | 7.1 | Project Traffic Generation | . 31 |
| | 7.2 | Project Traffic Distribution and Assignment | . 35 |
| 8 0 | Traf | fic Impact Analysis Mathadalagy | 30 |
| 0.0 | 8 1 | Impact Analysis Methodology | 30 |
| | 0.1 Q) | | . 37 |
| | 0.2 8 2 | Traffia Impact Analysis Scaparios | 40 |
| | 0.3 | Traine impact Analysis Scenarios | 40 |
| 9.0 | Traf | fic Analysis | . 41 |
| | 9.1 | Existing Conditions | . 41 |
| | | 9.1.1 Existing Conditions | . 41 |
| | | 9.1.2 Existing With Project Conditions | . 41 |
| | 9.2 | Future Conditions | . 41 |
| | | 9.2.1 Future Cumulative Baseline Conditions | . 41 |
| | | 9.2.2 Future Cumulative With Project Conditions | . 46 |

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

| 10.0 | Transportation Demand Management Program | |
|------|--|----|
| | 10.1 Local TDM Program | |
| | 10.2 Transportation Systems Management | 54 |
| | 10.3 Downtown / Arts District Transportation Management Organization | 54 |
| | 10.4 Project Traffic Generation with TDM Program | 54 |
| | 10.5 Effects of the TDM and TMO Programs | 55 |
| 11.0 | Congestion Management Program Traffic Impact Assessment | 60 |
| | 11.1 Intersections | 60 |
| | 11.2 Freeways | 60 |
| | 11.3 Transit Impact Review | 61 |
| 13.0 | Constructions | 67 |

LIST OF TABLES

| SECTION—TABLE # | | Page |
|-----------------|--|------|
| 4–1 | Existing Public Transit Routes | |
| 5-1 | Existing Traffic Volumes | |
| 6–1 | Related Projects List and Trip Generation | |
| 7–1 | Project Trip Generation | 33 |
| 8-1 | City of Los Angeles Intersection Impact Threshold Criteria | 39 |
| 9–1 | Levels of Service Summary | |
| 10-1 | Project Trip Generation with TDM | 56 |

SECTION

PAGE

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

LIST OF FIGURES

| SECTIO | N—FIGURE # PAGE |
|--------|---|
| 1–1 | Vicinity Map 2 |
| 2–1 | Project Site Plan |
| 4–1 | Existing Lane Configurations 11 |
| 4–2 | Existing Public Transit Routes |
| 5–1 | Existing Traffic Volumes – Weekday AM Peak Hour 18 |
| 5–2 | Existing Traffic Volumes – Weekday PM Peak Hour 19 |
| 6–1 | Location of Related Projects |
| 6–2 | Related Projects Traffic Volumes – Weekday AM Peak Hour |
| 6–3 | Related Projects Traffic Volumes – Weekday PM Peak Hour |
| 7–1 | Project Trip Distribution |
| 7–2 | Net New Project Traffic Volumes – Weekday AM Peak Hour |
| 7–3 | Net New Project Traffic Volumes – Weekday PM Peak Hour |
| 9–1 | Existing With Project Traffic Volumes – Weekday AM Peak Hour |
| 9–2 | Existing With Project Traffic Volumes – Weekday PM Peak Hour |
| 9–3 | Future Cumulative Baseline Traffic Volumes – Weekday AM Peak Hour 47 |
| 9–4 | Future Cumulative Baseline Traffic Volumes – Weekday PM Peak Hour |
| 9–5 | Future Cumulative With Project Traffic Volumes – Weekday AM Peak Hour 50 |
| 9–6 | Future Cumulative With Project Traffic Volumes – Weekday PM Peak Hour 51 |
| 10–1 | Future With Project With Mitigation Traffic Volumes – Weekday AM Peak Hour 58 |
| 10–2 | Future With Project With Mitigation Traffic Volumes – Weekday PM Peak Hour 59 |

APPENDICES

Appendix

- A. Manual Traffic Count Data
- B. CMA and Levels of Service Explanation CMA Data Worksheets – AM and PM Peak Hours

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY 1024 MATEO STREET MIXED-USE PROJECT

City of Los Angeles, California March 7, 2019

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This traffic analysis has been conducted to identify and evaluate the potential traffic impacts of the proposed 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project (the "Project"). The Project site is located at located at 1024 Mateo Street in the Arts District area of the City of Los Angeles. The Project proposes the construction of a mixed-use development including 106 live-work apartment units, 2,250 square feet of associated live-work office floor area, 92,740 square feet of general office floor area, 13,126 square feet of restaurant floor area, and 13,979 square feet of retail floor area. The Project site is bounded by Bay Street to the north, Sacramento Street to the south, industrial buildings to the east, and Mateo Street to the west. The Project site location and general vicinity are shown in *Figure 1–1*.

The traffic analysis follows City of Los Angeles traffic study guidelines¹ and is consistent with traffic impact assessment guidelines set forth in the Los Angeles County Congestion Management Program². This traffic analysis evaluates potential Project-related impacts at 12 key intersections in the vicinity of the Project site. The study intersections were determined in consultation with City of Los Angeles Department of Transportation (LADOT) staff. The Critical Movement Analysis method was used to determine Volume-to-Capacity (v/c) ratios and corresponding Levels of Service (LOS) at the study intersections located within the City of Los Angeles. A review also was conducted of Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Metro) freeway and intersection monitoring stations to determine if a Congestion Management Program transportation impact assessment analysis is required for the proposed Project.

This study (i) presents existing traffic volumes, (ii) includes existing traffic volumes with the forecast net new traffic volumes from the proposed Project, (iii) recommends mitigation measures, where necessary, (iv) forecasts future cumulative baseline traffic volumes, (v) forecasts future traffic volumes with the proposed Project, (vi) determines future forecast with Project-related impacts, and (vii) recommends mitigation measures, where necessary.

¹*Transportation Impact Study Guidelines*, City of Los Angeles Department of Transportation, December 2016.

² 2010 Congestion Management Program for Los Angeles County, Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority, 2010.

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, *engineers*



1.1 Study Area

Upon coordination with LADOT staff, 12 study intersections have been identified for evaluation during the weekday morning and afternoon peak hours. The study intersections were evaluated from 7:00 AM to 10:00 AM and 3:00 PM to 6:00 PM to determine the respective peak commuter hours. The 12 study intersections provide local access to the study area and define the extent of the boundaries for this traffic impact analysis. Further discussion of the existing street system and study area is provided in Section 4.0.

The general location of the Project in relation to the study locations and surrounding street system is presented in *Figure 1–1*. The traffic analysis study area is generally comprised of those locations which have the greatest potential to experience significant traffic impacts due to the proposed Project as defined by the Lead Agency. In the traffic engineering practice, the study area generally includes those intersections that are:

- a. Immediately adjacent or in close proximity to the Project site;
- b. In the vicinity of the Project site that are documented to have current or projected future adverse operational issues; and
- c. In the vicinity of the Project site that are forecast to experience a relatively greater percentage of Project-related vehicular turning movements (e.g., at freeway ramp intersections).

The locations selected for analysis were based on the above criteria, the peak-hour vehicle trip generation associated with the proposed Project, the anticipated distribution of Project vehicular trips, and existing intersection/corridor operations.

1.2 Summary of Findings

The Project is forecast to result in significant traffic impacts at three of the study intersections: Application of the impact threshold criteria from the City of Los Angeles indicate that nine of the 12 study intersections are not anticipated to be significantly impacted by the Project. The Project is expected to cause a significant transportation impact under the "Future Cumulative With Project" conditions at the following three intersections:

- Int. No. 3: Alameda Street / 7th Street
- Int. No. 5: Alameda Street / Olympic Boulevard
- Int. No. 7: Mateo Street / 7th Street

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers

The Project proposes the implementation of a Transportation Demand Management (TDM) program. Additionally, the Project applicant proposes to fund the start-up and continuance of a Transportation Management Organization (TMO) for the Arts District (i.e., a new TMO or an Arts District component to the recently established FASTLinkDTLA program) in order to mitigate the potentially significant Project-related traffic impact. A 20 percent TDM reduction and a 0.010 reduction in the volume-to-capacity (v/c) at the study intersections related to the start-up funding for the TMO would reduce the impacts to less than significant levels at the three significantly impacted study intersections.

Incremental, but not significant, impacts are noted at the remaining nine study intersections evaluated in this analysis. As no significant impacts are expected due to the Project at the other nine study intersections, no traffic mitigation measures are required or recommended for those study intersections.

2.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION

2.1 Site Location

The proposed Project site is located at 1024 Mateo Street in the Arts District area of the City of Los Angeles, within the City's Central City North Community Plan Area. The Project site is located on the east side of Mateo Street, between Bay Street to the north and Sacramento Street to the south. The Project site location and general vicinity are shown in *Figure 1–1*.

2.2 Existing Project Site

The existing Project site is currently occupied by a bus depot which provides 16,960 square feet of floor area. Vehicular access to the existing Project site is provided via one gated driveway along the south side of Bay Street and one gated driveway along the north side of Sacramento Street.

2.3 Proposed Project Description

The Project applicant seeks to remove the existing bus depot and construct a mixed-use development including 106 live-work apartment units, 2,250 square feet of associated live-work office floor area, 92,740 square feet of general office floor area, 13,126 square feet of restaurant floor area, and 13,979 square feet of retail floor area. Parking for the Project will be provided within an on-site parking garage. Construction and occupancy of the proposed Project is planned to be completed by the year 2023. The site plan for the proposed Project is illustrated in *Figure* 2-1.

Vehicular access to the Project site will be provided via Bay Street and Sacramento Street. Further discussion of the Project site access and circulation schemes is provided in Section 3.0.



o:\0299\dwg\f2-1.dwg 02/20/2019 10:09:38 jshender llg exhibits color.ctb

3.0 SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION

The proposed site access scheme for the Project is displayed in *Figure 2–1*. A description of the proposed site access and circulation scheme is provided in the following subsections.

3.1 Existing Vehicular Site Access

Vehicular access to the existing site is provided via one gated driveway along the south side of Bay Street and one gated driveway along the north side of Sacramento Street. The existing site driveways accommodate full vehicular access (i.e., left-turn and right-turn ingress and egress turning movements).

3.2 Vehicular Project Site Access

Vehicular access to the Project site will be provided via one driveway along the south side of Bay Street and one driveway along the north side of Sacramento Street. Descriptions of the Project site driveways are provided in the following paragraphs:

• Bay Street Project Driveway:

The Bay Street driveway will provide access to the subterranean level of the on-site parking garage. It is proposed to serve the parking spaces associated with the residential component of the Project. The Bay Street driveway is proposed to accommodate full vehicular access (i.e., left-turn and right-turn ingress and egress turning movements).

• Sacramento Street Project Driveway:

The Sacramento Street driveway will provide access the ground level and above-grade level of the on-site parking garage. It is proposed to serve the parking spaces located on the ground level, which are associated with the restaurant and retail components of the Project, and the parking spaces located on the above-grade level, which are associated with the office component of the Project. The Sacramento Street driveway is proposed to accommodate full vehicular access (i.e., left-turn and right-turn ingress and egress turning movements).

3.3 Pedestrian and Bicycle Project Site Access

Proposed pedestrian access to the Project Site will be provided via Bay Street and Mateo Street. The Project will provide access locations to ensure pedestrian safety in compliance with City standards (e.g., provide sidewalks, and crosswalks, and other pedestrian traffic controls). Separate pedestrian entrances would provide access from the nearby public transit stops, as well as other amenities along the major corridors.

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers

Proposed bicycle access to the Project Site will also be provided via Bay Street and Mateo Street. The Project will provide bicycle parking on-site for residents, visitors, and commercial employees of the Project. Bicycle parking spaces would be installed in compliance with the *Bicycle Parking Ordinance, Los Angeles Municipal Code* (City of Los Angeles, March 27, 2018) (LAMC) Section 12.21 A16(a)(2).

4.0 EXISTING STREET SYSTEM

4.1 Regional Highway System

Regional access to the Project site is provided by the I-10 (Santa Monica) Freeway, US-101 (Hollywood) Freeway, and I-5 (Santa Ana) Freeway. Brief descriptions of the I-10, US-101, and I-5 Freeways are provided in the following paragraphs.

I-10 (Santa Monica) Freeway is an east-west freeway connecting the City of Santa Monica with the City of Los Angeles and the municipalities of the San Gabriel Valley and San Bernardino County to the east. In the Project vicinity, four to five mixed-flow freeway lanes are generally provided in each direction on the I-10 Freeway, with auxiliary merge/weave lanes provided between some interchanges. Eastbound and westbound ramps are provided at Santa Fe Avenue on the I-10 Freeway in the Project study area.

US-101 (Hollywood) Freeway is a north-south freeway that extends across Northern and Southern California. In the Project vicinity, three mixed-flow freeway lanes are generally provided on the US-101 Freeway, with auxiliary merge/weave lanes provided between some interchanges. Northbound and southbound ramps are provided at 4th Street and 7th Street on the US-101 Freeway within the Project study area.

I-5 (Santa Ana) Freeway is a north-south freeway that extends across Northern and Southern California. In the Project vicinity, five mixed-flow freeway lanes are generally provided in each direction on the I-5 Freeway, with auxiliary merge/weave lanes provided between some interchanges. Northbound and southbound ramps are generally provided at 4th Street and 7th Street on the I-5 Freeway within the Project study area.

4.2 Local Roadway System

Immediate access to the Project site is provided via Bay Street and Sacramento Street. The following study intersections were selected in consultation with LADOT staff for analysis of potential impacts due to the proposed Project:

- 1. Central Avenue / 7th Street
- 2. Alameda Street / 6th Street
- 3. Alameda Street / 7th Street
- 4. Alameda Street / 8th Street
- 5. Alameda Street / Olympic Boulevard
- 6. Mateo Street / 6th Street
- 7. Mateo Street / 7th Street

- 8. Mateo Street / Olympic Boulevard
- 9. Santa Fe Avenue / 7th Street
- 10. Santa Fe Avenue / 8th Street
- 11. Santa Fe Avenue / Porter Street
- 12. Santa Fe Avenue / Olympic Boulevard

All 12 intersections selected for analysis are presently controlled by traffic signals. The existing lane configurations at the study intersections are displayed in *Figure 4–1*.

4.3 Roadway Descriptions

A brief description of the roadways in the Project vicinity is provided in the following paragraphs.

Central Avenue is a north-south oriented roadway located west of the Project site. Within the Project study area, Central Avenue is designated as an Avenue I north of 11th Street, and as a Avenue II south of 11th Street by the City of Los Angeles. Two through travel lanes are generally provided in each direction on Central Avenue within the Project study area. Separate exclusive left-turn lanes are provided on Central Avenue at major intersections. Central Avenue is posted for a speed limit of 35 miles per hour in the Project study area.

Alameda Street is a north-south oriented roadway located west of the Project site. Within the Project study area, Alameda Street is designated as an Avenue I by the City of Los Angeles. Two through travel lanes are generally provided in each direction on Alameda Street within the Project study area. Separate exclusive left-turn lanes are provided on Alameda Street at major intersections. A separate exclusive right-turn lane is provided in the southbound direction on Alameda Street at the Olympic Boulevard intersection. Alameda Street is posted for a speed limit of 35 miles per hour in the Project study area.

Mateo Street is a north-south oriented roadway that borders the Project site to the west. Within the Project study area, Mateo Street is designated as an Avenue III north of Olympic Boulevard, and as a Collector Street south of Olympic Boulevard by the City of Los Angeles. One through travel lane is generally provided in each direction on Mateo Street within the Project study area. There is no speed limit posted on Mateo Street within the Project study area, thus a prima facie speed limit of 25 miles per hour is assumed, consistent with the State of California Vehicle Code.

Santa Fe Avenue is a north-south oriented roadway located east of the Project site. Within the Project study area, Santa Fe Avenue is designated as an Avenue II by the City of Los Angeles. One to two through travel lanes are generally provided in each direction on Santa Fe Avenue within the Project study area. Separate exclusive left-turn lanes are provided on Santa Fe Avenue at major intersections. A separate exclusive right-turn lane is provided in the

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, *engineers*



northbound direction on Santa Fe Avenue at the 7th Street intersection. Santa Fe Avenue is posted for a speed limit of 30 miles per hour in the Project study area.

 6^{th} Street is an east-west oriented roadway that is located north of the Project site. Within the Project study area, 6^{th} Street is designated as an Avenue II by the City of Los Angeles. Two through travel lanes are generally provided in each direction on 6^{th} Street within the Project study area. Separate exclusive left-turn lanes are provided on 6^{th} Street at major intersections. 6^{th} Street is posted for a speed limit of 35 miles per hour within the Project study area.

7th Street is an east-west oriented roadway that is located north of the Project site. Within the Project study area, 7th Street is designated as an Avenue II by the City of Los Angeles. Two through travel lanes are generally provided in each direction on 7th Street within the Project study area. Separate exclusive left-turn lanes are provided on 7th Street at major intersections. 7th Street is posted for a speed limit of 25 miles per hour speed limit west of Alameda Street, and a speed limit of 35 miles per hour speed limit east of Alameda Street within the Project study area.

Bay Street is an east-west oriented roadway that borders the Project site to the north. Within the Project study area, Bay Street is designated as a Collector Street by the City of Los Angeles. One through travel lane is generally provided in each direction on Bay Street within the Project study area. There is no speed limit posted on Bay Street within the Project study area, thus a prima facie speed limit of 25 miles per hour is assumed, consistent with the State of California Vehicle Code.

Sacramento Street is an east-west oriented roadway that borders the Project site to the south. Within the Project study area, Sacramento Street is designated as a Collector Street by the City of Los Angeles. One through travel lane is generally provided in each direction on Sacramento Street within the Project study area. There is no speed limit posted on Sacramento Street within the Project study area, thus a prima facie speed limit of 25 miles per hour is assumed, consistent with the State of California Vehicle Code.

 δ^{th} Street is an east-west oriented roadway that is located south of the Project site. Within the Project study area, δ^{th} Street is designated as an Avenue II west of Market Court, as a Private Street between Market Court and Alameda Street, and as a Collector Street east of Alameda Street by the City of Los Angeles. One through travel lane is generally provided in each direction on δ^{th} Street within the Project study area. There is no speed limit posted on δ^{th} Street within the Project study area, thus a prima facie speed limit of 25 miles per hour is assumed, consistent with the State of California Vehicle Code.

Porter Street is an east-west oriented roadway that is located south of the Project site. Within the Project study area, Porter Street is designated as a Collector Street by the City of Los Angeles. One through travel lane is generally provided in each direction on Porter Street within the Project study area. There is no speed limit posted on Porter Street within the Project study area, thus a prima facie speed limit of 25 miles per hour is assumed, consistent with the State of California Vehicle Code.

Olympic Boulevard is an east-west oriented roadway that is located south of the Project site. Within the Project study area, Olympic Boulevard is designated as an Avenue I by the City of Los Angeles. Two through travel lanes are generally provided in each direction on Olympic Boulevard within the Project study area. Separate exclusive left-turn lanes are provided on Olympic Boulevard at major intersections. A separate exclusive right-turn lane is provided in the eastbound direction on Olympic Boulevard at the Santa Fe Avenue intersection. Olympic Boulevard is posted for a 35 miles per hour speed limit within the Project study area.

4.4 Public Transit Services

Public transit service within the Project study area is currently provided by the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transit Authority (Metro). A summary of the existing transit service, including the transit route, destinations and peak hour headways is presented in *Table 4–1*. The existing public transit routes in the Project site vicinity are illustrated in *Figure 4–2*. The Project site is located approximately 1.5 miles south of the Metro Gold Line Little Tokyo /Arts District station.

Public bus/rail transit service within the Project study area will also be improved with the Metro Regional Connector project, which will be a 1.9-mile underground light-rail system that will extend from the Metro Gold Line Little Tokyo / Arts District Station to the 7th Street / Metro Center Station. The Regional Connector will improve access to both local and regional destinations by providing continuous thru service between the Gold, Blue, Expo, Red, and Purple Lines and providing connectors to other rail lines via the 7th Street / Metro Center Station. Three new transit stations will be developed in conjunction with the Metro Regional Connector. Completion and opening of the Metro Regional Connector is planned for the year 2021.

The West Santa Ana Branch Transit Corridor project will also improve transit operations within the Project Study Area. The West Santa Ana Branch Transit Corridor will be a new 20-mile light rail transit line that would connect downtown Los Angeles to southeast Los Angeles County. The transit line is expected to provide a direct connection to the Green Line, Blue Line and the Los Angeles County regional transit network. Although there are still a few alternatives for the line once it runs through Downtown LA, the route from Cerritos to the Arts District South station at Alameda Street / 7th Street has no alternatives. The West Santa Ana Branch Transit Corridor project is anticipated to break ground in 2022.

FASTLinkDTLA is the recently established Transportation Management Organization (TMO) in Downtown Los Angeles that will improve public transit service in the area. TMOs provide employees, businesses, and visitors of an area with resources to increase the amount of trips taken by transit, walking, bicycling, carpooling, and other alternative modes. Similarly, FASTLinkDTLA will educate travelers destined to the area about travel options other than personal vehicles, which include transit, microtransit, vanpools, carsharing, walking and biking to optimize mobility. FASTLinkDTLA will also provide group rate and low-income discount travel passes. In addition, FASTLinkDTLA has developed a rideshare program called FlexLA to provide an affordable microtransit option for travelers when public transit service is less frequent in the evening hours. Table 4-1 EXISTING PUBLIC TRANSIT ROUTES [1]

| | | | | | 25-Feb-19 |
|-----------------|---|--------------------|-------|-------------|-----------|
| | | | N | IO. OF BUSE | |
| | | ROADWAY (S) | DURI | ING PEAK H | DUR |
| ROUTE | DESTINATIONS | NEAR SITE | DIR | AM | PM |
| Metro 18 | Wilshire/Western Station to Downtown Los Angeles/Montebello | 6th Street | EB | 9 | 7 |
| | (via 6th Street & Whittier Boulevard) | | WB | 6 | 10 |
| Metro 53 | Downtown Los Angeles to California State University Dominguez Hills | Central Avenue | NB | 10 | 5 |
| | (via Central Avenue) | | SB | 4 | 8 |
| Metro 60 | Downtown Los Angeles to Artesia Station | 7th Street | BN | 10 | 10 |
| | (via Long Beach Boulevard) | | SB | 7 | 9 |
| Metro 62 | Downtown Los Angeles to Hawaiian Gardens | 6th Street | EB | 2 | 2 |
| | (via Telegraph Road) | | WB | 3 | 3 |
| Metro 66 | Wilshire Center to Downtown Los Angeles/Montebello | Olympic Boulevard | EB | 8 | 4 |
| | (via 8th Street & Olympic Boulevard) | | WB | ω | 9 |
| Metro Rapid 720 | Santa Monica to Downtown Los Angeles/Commerce | 6th Street | EB | 3 | 6 |
| | (via Wilshire Boulevard & Whittier Boulevard) | | WB | 6 | ю |
| Metro Rapid 760 | Downtown Los Angeles to Long Beach Boulevard Station | 7th Street | BN | 5 | 5 |
| | (via Long Beach Boulevard & Pacific Boulevard) | | SB | 4 | 4 |
| | | | Total | <i>LT</i> | 82 |

[1] Sources: Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Metro) website, 2019.

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers



o:\0299\dwg\f4-2.dwg 02/25/2019 15:05:15 shankar llg exhibits color.ctb

5.0 TRAFFIC COUNTS

Upon coordination with LADOT staff, conducting new manual traffic counts of vehicular turning movements was not recommended at 11 of the 12 study intersections due to the Sixth Street Viaduct Replacement Project and resulting changes in the localized traffic flow patterns within the Project study area during the long-term construction period. Therefore, traffic counts at the 11 of the 12 study intersections are derived from traffic count data conducted prior to the 6th Street bridge closure on file at LADOT. The Sixth Street bridge replacement is expected to be operational by the end of 2020. New manual traffic counts of vehicular turning movements were conducted on Thursday, February 7, 2019 at the Alameda Street / 8th Street intersection (Study Intersection No. 4) during the weekday morning and afternoon commuter periods to determine the peak hour traffic volumes. The manual traffic counts at all 12 of the study intersections were conducted from 7:00 AM to 10:00 AM and 3:00 PM to 6:00 PM to determine the respective peak hour traffic volumes.

As noted in *Appendix A*, traffic counts at 11 of the 12 study intersections were conducted in either 2013 or 2014. To represent year 2019 conditions (the year of commencement of the traffic analysis), the traffic count data were increased by a 1.0% annual traffic growth rate through the year 2019. The 1.0% traffic growth rate is conservatively assumed for development projects in the Downtown Los Angeles area for purposes of estimating local traffic growth in future years. Further discussion of the annual traffic growth rate is provided in Section 6.0.

The weekday AM and PM peak period manual counts of vehicle movements at the study intersections are summarized in *Table 5–1*. The existing traffic volumes at the study intersections during the weekday AM and PM peak hours are shown in *Figures 5–1* and 5–2, respectively. Summary data worksheets of the manual traffic counts at the study intersections are contained in *Appendix A*.

Table 5-1 EXISTING TRAFFIC VOLUMES [1]

| | | | | | | | 26-Feb-19 |
|-----|--|------------|----------------------|-------|--------------------------------|-------|--------------------------------|
| | | | | AM PE | AK HOUR | PM PE | AK HOUR |
| NO. | INTERSECTION | DATE | DIR | BEGAN | VOLUME [2] | BEGAN | VOLUME [2] |
| 1 | Central Avenue / 7th Street | 04/23/2013 | NB SB EB WB | 8:00 | 641 907 419 1,015 | 5:00 | 1,026 659 990 642 |
| 2 | Alameda Street / 6th Street | 04/22/2014 | NB SB EB WB | 8:00 | 775 916 399 854 | 5:00 | 1,054 848 961 365 |
| 3 | Alameda Street / 7th Street | 01/15/2014 | NB SB EB WB | 7:30 | 840 1,187 457 896 | 5:00 | 1,006 879 987 634 |
| 4 | Alameda Street / 8th Street | 02/07/2019 | NB SB EB WB | 7:15 | 953 881 199 158 | 3:45 | 647 1,090 86 61 |
| 5 | Alameda Street / Olympic Boulevard | 03/20/2013 | NB SB EB WB | 9:00 | 1,068 1,031 1,042 903 | 5:00 | 1,089 1,079 1,499 992 |
| 6 | Mateo Street / 6th Street | 06/17/2014 | NB SB EB WB | 7:00 | 115 227 281 873 | 5:00 | 214 191 910 269 |
| 7 | Mateo Street / 7th Street | 01/15/2014 | NB SB EB WB | 7:30 | 235 265 454 908 | 5:00 | 334 201 962 480 |
| 8 | Mateo Street / Olympic Boulevard | 04/10/2014 | NB SB EB WB | 7:30 | 8 524 600 1,068 | 5:00 | 8 477 1,134 728 |
| 9 | Santa Fe Avenue / 7th Street | 06/17/2014 | NB SB EB WB | 8:00 | 514 181 450 1,026 | 5:00 | 603 348 909 583 |
| 10 | Santa Fe Avenue / 8th Street | 01/15/2014 | NB SB EB WB | 7:45 | 821 575 361 32 | 4:45 | 739 728 452 27 |
| 11 | Santa Fe Avenue / Porter Street | 01/15/2014 | NB SB EB WB | 7:45 | 1,032 758 713 138 | 4:30 | 1,074 945 288 185 |
| 12 | Santa Fe Avenue / Olympic Boulevard | 04/10/2014 | NB SB EB WB | 7:30 | 1,048 1,278 684 1,168 | 5:00 | 1,464 1,289 1,251 802 |

[1] National Data & Surveying Services and Counts Unlimited, Inc.

[2] Note: Volumes conducted prior to existing year 2019 were increased using an ambient growth rate of 1.0%.

≻




6.0 CUMULATIVE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS

The forecast of future pre-Project conditions was prepared in accordance to procedures outlined in Section 15130 of the CEQA Guidelines. Specifically, the CEQA Guidelines provide two options for developing the future traffic volume forecast:

"(A) A list of past, present, and probable future projects producing related or cumulative impacts, including, if necessary, those projects outside the control of the [lead] agency, or

(B) A summary of projections contained in an adopted local, regional or statewide plan, or related planning document, that describes or evaluates conditions contributing to the cumulative effect. Such plans may include: a general plan, regional transportation plan, or plans for the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions. A summary of projections may also be contained in an adopted or certified prior environmental document for such a plan. Such projections may be supplemented with additional information such as a regional modeling program. Any such document shall be referenced and made available to the public at a location specified by the lead agency."

Accordingly, the traffic analysis provides a highly conservative estimate of future pre-Project traffic volumes as it incorporates both the "A" and "B" options outlined in CEQA Guidelines for purposes of developing the forecast.

6.1 Related Projects

A forecast of on-street traffic conditions prior to occupancy of the proposed Project was prepared by incorporating the potential trips associated with other known development projects (related projects) in the area. With this information, the potential impact of the proposed Project can be evaluated within the context of the cumulative impact of all ongoing development. The related projects research was based on information on file at LADOT and the City of Los Angeles Department of Planning. The list of related projects in the Project site area is presented in *Table* 6-1. The location of the related projects is shown in *Figure* 6-1.

Traffic volumes expected to be generated by the related projects were calculated using rates provided in the Institute of Transportation Engineers' (ITE) *Trip Generation Manual*³. The related projects' respective traffic generation for the weekday AM and PM peak hours, as well as on a daily basis for a typical weekday, is summarized in *Table 6–1*. The distribution of the related projects traffic volumes to the study intersections during the weekday AM and PM peak hours are displayed in *Figures 6–2* and *6–3*, respectively.

³ Institute of Transportation Engineers *Trip Generation Manual*, 10th Edition, Washington, D.C., 2017.

LLG Ref. 5-16-0299-1 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project

| HOUR ES [2] TOTAI | | 9 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|------------------------------------|--------------------|--|---|--|--|----------------------------------|--|--------------------------|---|----------------------------------|---|-------------------------------|--|---------------------------------------|--|--|
| 田 武 | - | | 1,927 | 1,377 | 381 | 40 | 458 | 70 | 1,589 | 305 | 155 | 239 | 209 | 283 | \$ | 1,138 |
| VOLUM | - 100 | - | 804 | 942 | 109 | 17 | 213 | 17 | 957 | 112 | 69 | 87 | 64 | 116 | 15 | 539 |
| P. TN | | 6 | 1,123 | 435 | 272 | 23 | 245 | 53 | 632 | 193 | 86 | 152 | 145 | 167 | 19 | 599 |
| 0UR [2] TOTAI | 101AL | 30 | 1,507 | 1,048 | 250 | 34 | 339 | (81) | 1,271 | 237 | 131 | 180 | 144 | 213 | 50 | 975 |
| I PEAK HO | nn ° | × | 1,044 | 118 | 229 | 15 | 177 | (41) | 434 | 187 | 73 | 144 | 127 | 141 | 30 | 477 |
| A AVV | NI Vi | 22 | 463 | 930 | 21 | 19 | 162 | (40) | 837 | 50 | 58 | 36 | 17 | 72 | 20 | 498 |
| DAILY TRIP ENDS [2] VOUTINES | VOLUMES | nom. | 19.382 | 13,534 | 4,715 | 476 | 6,372 | 1,638 | 16,433 | 3,292 | 2,288 | 2,686 | 2,310 | 3,942 | 404 | 12,247 |
| PROJECT DATA SOUPCE | SOURCE | | [3] | | | | | | [4] | | [5] | | | [9] | | |
| (DATA | SIZE. | 2 Acres | 4,400 DU 135-185 KSF 15 KSF 75-125 KSF 25 KSF 15 KSF 10 KSF 6 Acres 4 Acres | 712,500 GSF 35,000 GSF 2,500 GSF | 667 DU 17 DU 58,700 GSF | 53,350 GSF | 635 DU 30,062 GSF 532 Students | 27,765 GSF | 877 DU 68 DU 224,862 GSF 744 Seats 549,141 GSF 210 Rooms | 450 DU 6,904 GSF 5,000 GSF | 328 DU 27,300 GSF 6,400 GSF 5,700 GSF | 452 DU 25,000 GSF | 320 DU 15,000 GSF 5,000 GSF | 320 DU 25,000 GSF | NG 66 | 1,000 DU 34,000 GSF 46,000 GSF 230,000 GSF |
| LAND USE | LAND-USE | Bus Facility | Apartments Slopping Center Day Care Center Office Medical-Dental Office Library Community Room Passive Open Space Active Open Space | Office Retail Child Care Center | Apartments Live-Work Apartments Retail | Hotel | Apartments Retail School | Retail/Restaurant | A partments Condominiums Shopping Center Cinema Office Hotel | Apartments Retail Bar | Apartments Creative Office Retail Restaurant | Condominiums Retail | Apartments Retail Restaurant | Apartments Pharmacy/Drugstore | Affordable Housing | Apartments Retail High-Turnover Restaurant Office |
| ADDRESS/ | 164 P. Commin Summ | 454 E. Commercial Street | 2901 E. Oympic Boulevard | 150 N. Los Angeles Street | 928 S. Broadway | 2053 E. 7th Street | 950 E. 3rd Street | 201 S. Broadway | 1041-1057 S. San Pedro Street | 400 S. Broadway | 1525 E. Industrial Street | 601 S. Main Street | 2051 E. 7th Street 695 S. Santa Fe Avenue | 737-755 S. Spring Street | 401 E. 7th Street | 2650 E. Olympic Boulevard |
| PROJECT STATUS | SIATUS | Under Construction | Proposed | Under Construction | Under Construction | Proposed | Under Construction | Proposed | Proposed | Under Construction | Proposed | Proposed | Under Construction | Under Construction | Proposed | Proposed |
| PROJECT NAME/ | PROJECT NUMBER | Bus Maintenance & Inspection Facility | Boyle Heights Mixed-Use Project | LA Civic Center Office | Broadway Palace | 2053 E. 7th Street Hotel Project | Santa Fe Freight Yard Redevelopment | ISAF - Mixed-Use Project | The City Market of Los Angeles | Perla on Broadway | Canden Arts Mixed-Use Project | SB Omega Mixed-Use Project | 2051 E. 7th Street Mixed-Use Project | 8th and Spring Residential Project | 401 E. 7th Street Residential Project | Sears Mixed-Use Project |
| | | _ | 7 | ŝ | 4 | 5 | ę | ٢ | ∞ | 6 | 10 | Ξ | 12 | 13 | 14 | 15 |

Table 6-1 RELATED PROJECTS LIST AND TRIP GENERATION [1]

LLG Ref. 5-16-0299-1 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project

| Р | PROJECT NAME/ | PROJECT | ADDRESS/ | TAND USE | 5 DATA | PROJECT DATA | DAILY TRIP ENDS [2] | MA V(| PEAK HO | UR 2] | i Vd | M PEAK HC | 0UR [2] |
|----|--|-----------------------|--------------------------------------|--|--|-----------------|------------------------|--------------|---------|----------|---------|-----------|------------|
| | PROJECT NUMBER | STATUS | LOCATION | LAND-USE | SIZE | SOURCE | VOLUMES | N | OUT | TOTAL | NI | OUT | TOTAL |
| | 826 S. Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project | Proposed | 826 S. Mateo Street | Live-Work Condominiums Retail Restaurant | 90 DU 11,000 GSF 5,600 GSF | | 1,267 | Ξ | 34 | 45 | 62 | 39 | 101 |
| | Palmetto & Mateo Retail Project | Under Construction | 555 S. Mateo Street | Retail | 153,000 GSF | | 4,300 | 5 | 30 | 35 | 220 | 205 | 425 |
| | Ford Factory Building | Under Construction | 2030 E. 7th Street | Office Retail | 243,000 GSF 40,000 GSF | | 2,306 | 274 | 34 | 308 | 69 | 249 | 318 |
| | Equity Residential Mixed-Use Project | Proposed | 340 S. Hill Street | Apartments Affordable Housing Office Quality Restaurant | 406 DU 22 DU 2,630 GSF 2,630 GSF | | 2,253 | 36 | 129 | 165 | 133 | 75 | 208 |
| - | 540 S. Santa Fe Avenue Office Project | Proposed | 540 S. Santa Fe Avenue | Office | 89,825 GSF | | 726 | 90 | 12 | 102 | 17 | 81 | 98 |
| | 360 S. Alameda Street Mixed-Use Project | Proposed | 360 S. Alameda Street | Apartments Restaurant Creative Office | 52 DU 2,400 GSF 6,900 GSF | [5] | 670 | 25 | 33 | 58 | 35 | 26 | 61 |
| | Lotus 77 | Under Construction | 118 S. Astronaut E.S. Onizuka Street | Apartments | 77 DU | | 26 | (<u>-</u>) | 20 | 19 | 19 | 6 | 25 |
| | Clinic at 7th & Wall | Under Construction | 649 S. Wall Street | Medical Office Assisted Living | 66 Employees 55 Beds | | 104 | 24 | 5 | 29 | 3 | 24 | 27 |
| - | Metro Emergency Security Operations Center (ESOC) | Proposed | 410 N. Center Street | Office | 110,000 GSF | E | 1,165 | 87 | 0 | 87 | 0 | 79 | 79 |
| 10 | Medallion Phase 2 | Proposed | 300-306 S. Main Street | Apartments High-Turnover Restaurant Retail | 471 DU 27,780 GSF 5,190 GSF | | 4,691 | 143 | 243 | 386 | 257 | 153 | 410 |
| | 400 S. Alameda Street Mixed-Use Project | Proposed | 400 S. Alameda Street | Hotel Restaurant Specialty Retail | 66 Rooms 2,130 GSF 840 GSF | [8] | 512 | 20 | 19 | 39 | 23 | 14 | 37 |
| | 719 E. 5th Street Mixed-Use Project | Proposed | 719 E. 5th Street | Apartments Retail | 160 DU 7,500 GSF | | 1,033 | 15 | 58 | 73 | 59 | 36 | 95 |
| | 2130 E. Violet Street Mixed-Use Project | Proposed | 2130 E. Violet Street | Office Retail Restaurant | 94,000 GSF 3,500 GSF 4,000 GSF | | 1,351 | 137 | 30 | 167 | 39 | 122 | 161 |
| _ | Chultenge Gream & Butter Building Exclusive Club | Approved | 929 E. 2nd Street | Retail Private Retail Private Event Space Private Drinking Place Private Health Club Private Movie Theater Private Movie Theater | 36,955 GSF 1,024 GSF 8,157 GSF 10,759 GSF 6,378 GSF 6,378 GSF 49 Seats | | 2,153 | 8 | 2 | 80 | 105 | 96 | 201 |
| - | 633 Spring Street Hotel Project | Proposed | 633 S. Spring Street | Hotel Quality Restaurant Bar/Lounge Conference Space | 176 Rooms 8,430 GSF 5,290 GSF 1,200 GSF | [6] | 2,045 | 83 | 33 | 116 | 97 | 66 | 196 |
| | 1800 E, 7th Street Mixed-Use Project | Proposed | 1800 E. 7th Street | Apartments Retail Restaurant | 122 DU 3,245 GSF 4,605 GSF | | 1,536 | 42 | 74 | 116 | 74 | 46 | 120 |

Table 6-1 (Continued) RELATED PROJECTS LIST AND TRIP GENERATION [1]

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers

LLG Ref. 5-16-0299-1 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project

| - | | | | | | PROJECT | DAILY | WY | I PEAK HO | DUR | P. | M PEAK H | OUR |
|-----|--|-----------------------|--|---|---|----------------|-------------------------|-----|-----------|--------------|-----|----------|--------------|
| d d | PROJECT NAME/ PROJECT NUMBER | PROJECT STATUS | ADDRESS/ LOCATION | LAND-USE LAND-USE | E DATA SIZE | DATA SOURCE | TRIPENDS [2] VOLUMES | Ň | OLUMES | [2] TOTAL | N | VOLUMES | [2] TOTAL |
| Cl. | 1722 E. 16th Street Restaurant Project | Proposed | 1722 E. 16th Street | Restaurant | 8,515 GSF | | 592 | (4) | 5 | (2) | 36 | 11 | 47 |
| 33 | 668 S. Alameda Street Mixed-Use Project | Proposed | 668 S. Alamedia Street 1562 Industrial Street | Live-Work Apartments Live-Work Office Specialty Retail Office Restaurant Supermarket | 475 DU 25,200 GSF 17,500 GSF 7,900 GSF 16,300 GSF 15,300 GSF | [10] | 4,002 | 107 | 182 | 289 | 216 | 145 | 361 |
| 2 | Broadway Lofts | Approved | 955 S. Broadway | A partments Retail | 201 DU 6,000 GSF | | 1,275 | 21 | 72 | 93 | 74 | 43 | 117 |
| 35 | Alexan South Broadway | Proposed | 850 S. Hill Street | A partments Retail Restaurant | 305 DU 3,499 GSF 3,500 GSF | [11] | 1,998 | 29 | 108 | 137 | 117 | 67 | 181 |
| 36 | 433 S. Main Street Mixed-Use Project | Proposed | 433 S. Main Street | Condominiums Retail Coffee Shop | 196 DU 5,300 GSF 900 GSF | | 1,450 | 32 | 72 | 104 | 61 | 37 | 98 |
| 37 | 520 S. Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project | Proposed | 520 S. Mateo Street | Apartments Office Retail Restaurant Museum | 600 DU 110,000 GSF 15,000 GSF 15,000 GSF 10,000 GSF | | 4,995 | 157 | 220 | 377 | 274 | 223 | 497 |
| 38 | 1100 S. Main Street Mixed-Use Project | Proposed | 1100 S. Main Street | Apartments Retail | 379 DU 25,810 GSF | | 385 | 6 | 103 | 112 | 78 | 14 | 32 |
| 39 | 755 S. Los Angeles Street Mixed-Use Project | Proposed | 755 S. Los Angeles Street | Retail Office Quality Restaurant | 16,694 GSF 60,243 GSF 26,959 GSF | | 2,482 | 110 | 57 | 167 | 105 | 100 | 205 |
| 6 | Tribune (LA Times) South Tower Project | Under Construction | 222 W. 2nd Street | A partments Office Retail | 107 DU 534,044 GSF 7,200 GSF | | 4,006 | 467 | 93 | 560 | 118 | 423 | 541 |
| 4 | Times Mirror Square Mixed-Use Project | Proposed | 100 S. Broadway | Apartments Office Supermarket Quality Restaurant High-Tumover Restaurant | 1,127 DU 285,088 GSF 50,000 GSF 22,200 GSF 53,389 GSF | | 8,535 | 94 | 341 | 435 | 294 | 38 | 332 |
| 4 | Fifth & Hill Center Mixed-Use Project | Proposed | 333 W. Sth Street | Condominiums Hotel Restauran/Bar Meeting Space | 100 DU 200 Rooms 27,500 GSF 4,500 GSF | | 3,358 | 64 | 72 | 136 | 201 | 129 | 330 |
| 43 | Arts District Center | Proposed | 1101-1129 E. 5th Street 445 S. Colyton Street | Apartments Retail Restaurant Hotel Art Gallery Art School | 129 DU 26,979 GSF 31,719 GSF 113 Rooms 10,341 GSF 2,430 GSF | | 4,674 | 130 | 140 | 270 | 157 | 69 | 226 |
| 4 | 330 S. Alameda Street Mixed-Use Project | Proposed | 330 S. Alameda Street | A partments Retail Creative Office | 186 DU 11,925 GSF 10,415 GSF | | 1,662 | 36 | 76 | 112 | 91 | 65 | 156 |

LLG Ref. 5-16-0299-1 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project

| r | Т | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|------------------------|----------------|---|--|---------------------------------------|--|--|--|--|------------------------------------|-------------------------------|--|--|-----------------------------|------------------------|--|
| OUR 3 [2] | TOTAL | 305 | 719 | 424 | 1,450 | 195 | 4 | 17 | 75 | 259 | 69 | 157 | 57 | 169 | 2,014 |
| M PEAK H | OUT | 141 | 329 | 324 | 692 | 74 | 33 | × | 31 | 98 | 20 | 114 | 23 | 85 | 1,316 |
| Id | IN | 164 | 390 | 100 | 758 | 121 | 61 | 6 | 44 | 161 | 49 | 43 | 34 | 84 | 698 |
| 0UR 21 | TOTAL | 161 | 394 | 441 | 1,098 | 152 | 77 | 25 | 51 | 129 | 74 | 98 | 35 | 150 | 1,964 |
| I PEAK HC | OUT | 79 | 260 | 76 | 624 | 116 | 62 | 10 | 37 | 50 | 38 | × | 25 | 59 | 451 |
| MA V | N | 112 | 134 | 365 | 474 | 36 | 15 | 15 | 14 | 79 | 36 | 06 | 10 | 16 | 1,513 |
| DAILY TRIP ENDS [2] | VOLUMES | 2,499 | 8,445 | 3,493 | 15,167 | 2,095 | 1,004 | 208 | 788 | 1,869 | 966 | 1,330 | 635 | 2,273 | 26,489 |
| PROJECT DATA | SOURCE | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| DATA | SIZE | 53,200 GSF 323 DU 4,400 GSF 4,420 GSF 125 Persons | 994 DU 99,000 GSF | 255,514 GSF 4,970 GSF 9,936 GSF | 1,305 DU 412 Rooms 412 Rooms 22,639 GSF 82,332 GSF 22,459 GSF 25,314 GSF 26,314 GSF 27,314 GSF 27,3 | 275 DU 35 DU 11,375 GSF 11,736 GSF | 151 DU | 51 DU | 93 DU 6,000 GSF 14,248 GSF | 43,453 GSF | 14,193 GSF 6,793 GSF 10,065 GSF | 91,185 GSF 9,430 GSF 6,550 GSF | 57 DU 6,000 GSF | 315 Rooms 2,000 GSF | 308 DU 236 Rooms 79,240 GSF 89,576 GSF 89,576 GSF 62,148 GSF 62,148 GSF 56,912 GSF 944,055 GSF |
| TAND USE | LAND-USE | Office Apartments Retail High-Turnover Restaurant Event Space | Apartments Retail | Office Retail Restaurant | Apartments Hotel Condominiums Otality Restaurant High-Turnover Restaurant Retail Art Museum School | Apartments Affordable Housing Retail Production Space | Apartments | Apartments | A partments Office Retail | Sports Complex | Market Health Club Restaurant | Office Retail Restaurant | Apartments Retail | Hotel Meeting Space | Apartments Hotel Retail Restaurrant Event Space Orgy Creative Office |
| ADDRESS/ | LOCATION | 709-755 S. Wall Street | 333 S. Alameda Street | 401-405 S. Hewitt Street | 1206-1278 E. dth Street 640 S. Alaneda Street | 527 S. Colyton Street | 609 E. 5th Street | 713 E. 5th Street | 940 E. 4th Street | 237-249 S. Los Angeles Street | 1000 S. Santa Fe Avenue | 640 S. Santa Fe Avenue | 1745 E. 7th Street | 361 S. Spring Street | 670.S. Mısquii Sıreet |
| PROJECT | STATUS | Proposed | Proposed | Proposed | Proposed | Proposed | Proposed | Proposed | Proposed | Under Construction | Under Construction | Proposed | Under Construction | Proposed | Proposed |
| PROJECT NAME/ | PROJECT NUMBER | Southern California Flower Market Project | Little Tokyo Galleria Mixed-Use Project | 4th & Hewitt Mixed-U se Project | 6th & Alameda Mixed-Use Project | 527 S. Colyton Street Mixed-Use Project | 609 E. 5th Street Residential Project | 713 E. 5th Street Residential Project | Hewitt & 4th Mixed-U se Project | Terasaki Budokan | 1000 S. Santa Fe Avenue Mixed-Use Project | 640 S. Santa Fe Avenue Mixed-U se Project | Hillcrest Mixed-Use Project | CitizenM Hotel | 670 S. Mesquit Street Mixed-Use Project |
| MAP | NO. | 45 | 46 | 47 | 84 | 49 | 20 | 51 | 52 | 53 | ¥ | 55 | 56 | 57 | 28 |
| - | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers

LLG Ref. 5-16-0299-1 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project

| | | | | | | PROJECT | DAILY | ΜN | PEAK HC | DUR | Id | A PEAK H | DUR |
|------------|--|-----------------------|------------------------------|--|--|---------|--------------------------|------|---------|--------------|-----|----------|--------------|
| MAP NO. | PROJECT NAME/ PROJECT NUMBER | PROJECT STATUS | ADDRESS/ LOCATION | LAND USE LAND-USE | E DATA SIZE | DATA | TRIP ENDS [2] VOLUMES | N | OLUMES | [2] TOTAL | N | VOLUMES | [2] TOTAL |
| 20 | 676 Mateo Street Project | Proposed | 676 S. Mateo Street | Live-Work Apartments Live-Work Office Restaurant Retail | 185 DU 3,900 GSF 15,005 GSF 8,375 GSF | [12] | 1,990 | 50 | 95 | 145 | 106 | 51 | 157 |
| 99 | 2143 E. Violet Street Mixed-Use Project | Proposed | 2117-2143 E. Violet Street | Apartments Arts & Production Retail Office | 320 DU 5,519 GSF 46,670 GSF 224,292 GSF | | 4,477 | 329 | 122 | 451 | 130 | 330 | 460 |
| 61 | Hyperloop One HQ | Proposed | 2159 E. Bay Street | Office Retail | 203,670 GSF 18,330 GSF | | 2,029 | 194 | 30 | 224 | 57 | 192 | 249 |
| 62 | LAMP Lodge | Proposed | 656 S. Stanford Avenue | Apartments | 82 DU | | 1,463 | 8 | 34 | 42 | 33 | 18 | 51 |
| 63 | Weingart Towers (Affördable Housing) | Approved | 554 S. San Pedro Street | A ffordable Housing Retail Apartments Office Flexible Space | 378 DU 1,758 GSF 4 GSF 4,410 GSF 5,932 GSF | | 2,186 | 107 | 138 | 245 | 96 | 88 | 184 |
| 2 | 930 E. 6th Street Mixed-Use Project | Proposed | 930 E. 6th Street | Apartments Retail | 236 DU 12,000 GSF | | 1,074 | 17 | 79 | 96 | 70 | 32 | 102 |
| 65 | San Pedro Tower (Affordable Housing) | Proposed | 600 S. San Pedro Street | Affordable Housing Apartments Office Commercial | 298 DU 5 DU 16,773 GSF 3,136 GSF | | 636 | 38 | 25 | 63 | 30 | 37 | 67 |
| 99 | 508 E. 4th Street Residential Project | Proposed | 508 E. 4th Street | Apartments | 41 DU | | 167 | 20 | 12 | 20 | 8 | 9 | 14 |
| 67 | 7th & Maple Mixed-Use Project | Proposed | 701-717 S. Maple Avenue | Apartments Retail Restaurant | 452 DU 6,801 GSF 6,802 GSF | | 3,199 | 67 | 179 | 246 | 185 | 105 | 290 |
| 89 | 437 W. 5th Street Mixed-Use Project | Under Construction | 437 W. 5th Street | Condominiums Restaurant | 660 DU 13,742 GSF | | 4,707 | 71 | 273 | 344 | 279 | 158 | 437 |
| 69 | 443 S. Soto Street Charter School Project | Proposed | 443 S. Soto Street | Charter School (K-5) | 625 Students | | 277 | 131 | 112 | 243 | 32 | 25 | 57 |
| 70 | SPR-Industrial Park | Proposed | 1005 S. Mateo Street | Industrial Park | 94,849 GSF | | 426 | 40 | 6 | 49 | 10 | 39 | 49 |
| 71 | Banco Popular - Hellman Building | Under Construction | 354 S. Spring Street | Apartments | 212 DU | | 1,410 | 22 | 86 | 108 | 85 | 46 | 131 |
| 72 | 810 E. 3rd Street Mixed-Use Project | Under Construction | 810 E. 3rd Street | Live-Work Apartments Drinking Place Quality Restaurant High Turnover Restaurant Retail | 4 DU 3,047 GSF 285 GSF 209 GSF 6,171 GSF | | 1,487 | 37 | 32 | 69 | 87 | 48 | 135 |
| 73 | Municipal Solid Waste Facility | Proposed | 2001 E. Washington Boulevard | Industrial | 187,000 GSF | | 3,578 | (27) | 18 | (6) | 8 | (18) | (10) |
| 74 | ELACC/Bridge Housing Project | Proposed | 100 S. Boyle Avenue | Affordable Housing Managers Unit Retail | 43 DU 1 DU 8,000 GSF | | 537 | 14 | 17 | 31 | 19 | 19 | 38 |

| r | 1 | | | | | | | T |
|------------------------|----------------|--|--|---|--|--|--|---------|
| OUR | TOTAL | 207 | 137 | 281 | 109 | 50 | 1,776 | 15 202 |
| V OLUMES | DUT | 74 | 50 | 192 | 48 | 17 | 1,042 | 17 772 |
| PI | NI | 133 | 87 | 89 | 61 | 33 | 734 | 12 120 |
| DUR [2] | TOTAL | 198 | 107 | 243 | 94 | 41 | 1,389 | 70.452 |
| I PEAK HO | OUT | 119 | 84 | 63 | 60 | 33 | 527 | 0 672 |
| AA VA | IN | 62 | 23 | 180 | 34 | 8 | 862 | 10.920 |
| DAILY TRIP ENDS [2] | VOLUMES | 2,583 | 1,476 | 2,394 | 1,093 | 539 | 25,312 | 100 721 |
| PROJECT DATA | SOURCE | [13] | | | | | | |
| DATA | SIZE | 220 DU 4,350 GSF 15,671 GSF 19,609 GSF 9,250 GSF | 239 DU 5,400 GSF | 110 DU 43,657 GSF 113,350 GSF | 140 DU 14,700 GSF | 81 DU | 22 DU 7,443,200 GSF 645,000 GSF 750 Rooms 20,000 GSF 70,000 GSF | |
| TAND USE | LAND-USE | Live-Work Apartments Live-Work Office Office Restaurant Retail | Apartments Retail | Apartments Commercial Creative Office | Live-Work Apartments Office | Apartments | Apartments Office Retail Hotel Restaurant Museum | |
| ADDRESS/ | LOCATION | 1100 E. Shh Street | 920 S. Hill Street | 2110 Bay Street | 641 Imperial Street | 655 S. San Pedro Street | Union Station Terminal A mex | |
| PROJECT | STATUS | Proposed | Proposed | Proposed | Proposed | Proposed | Proposed | |
| PROJECT NAME/ | PROJECT NUMBER | 1100 E. 5th Street Project | 920 S. Hill Street Mixed-U se Project | 2110 Bay Street Mixed-Use Project | 641 Imperial Street Mixed-Use Project | 655 S. San Pedro Street Residential Project | Alameda District Plan | |
| 4AP | NO. | 75 | 76 | F | 78 | 79 | 8 | T V L V |

Table 6-1 (Continued) RELATED PROJECTS LIST AND TRIP GENERATION [1]

nom. = nominal
nom. = montinal
Source: Crito Ka Angelse Department of Transportation Related Projects List and City of Los Angelse Department of City Planning Related Projects List.
Tirps are one-way traffic movements, entering or lawing.
Source: Traffic Study for the Boyle Heights Mixed-Use Project, prepared by The Mohlity Group, Conder 2013.
Source: Traffic Study for the Conden Arcs Mixed-Use Project, prepared by The Mohlity Group, August 2011.
Source: Traffic Study for the Conden Arcs Mixed-Use Project, prepared by The Mohlity Group, August 2013.
Source: Traffic Study for the Conden Arcs Mixed-Use Project, prepared by The Mohlity Group, August 2014.
Source: Traffic Study for the Conden Arcs Mixed-Use Project, prepared by Linscont, Law, & Greenpan, Engineers, November 2015.
Source: Traffic Study for the Conden Arcs Mixed-Use Project, regented by Linscont, Law, & Greenpan, Engineers, November 2015.
Source: Traffic Study for the Granden Mixed Project, regented by Linscont, Law, & Greenpan, Engineers, November 2015.
Source: Traffic Study Memorandum for 400S. Antaneda Steet Mixed-Lise Project, prepared by Linscont, Law, & Greenpan, Engineers, November 2015.
Source: Traffic Study Memorandum for 600S. Manueda Steet Mixed-Lise Project, prepared by AECOM, August 2016.
Source: Traffic Study Memorandum for 60S. Sun Antaneda Steet Mixed-Lise Project, prepared by The Mohlity Group, August 2015.
Source: Traffic Study Memorandum for 60S. Sun Antaneda Steet Project, prepared by Linscont, Law, & Greenpan, Engineers, 2017.
Source: Traffic Study Memorandum of Understanding for For Mixed Step Project, prepared by Linscont, Law, & Greenpan, Engineers, 2017.
Source: Traffic Study Memorandum of Understanding for For Project, prepared by Linscont, Law, & Greenpan, Engineers, 2017.

-26-



o:/0299/dwg/f6-1.dwg 02/21/2019 09:20:57 shankar Ilg exhibits color.ctb





6.2 Ambient Traffic Growth Factor

In order to account for unknown related projects not included in this analysis, the existing traffic volumes were increased at an annual rate of 1.0 percent (1.0%) per year to the year 2023 (i.e., the anticipated year of Project build-out). The ambient growth factor was based on general traffic growth factors provided in the *2010 Congestion Management Program for Los Angeles County* ("CMP manual") and determined in consultation with LADOT staff. It is noted that based on review of the general traffic growth factors provided in the existing traffic volumes are expected to increase at an annual rate of less than 0.10% per year between the years 2015 and 2020. Thus, application of an annual growth factor of 1.0% annual growth provides a conservative, worst case forecast of future traffic volumes in the area as it substantially exceeds the annual traffic growth rate is intended to anticipate future traffic generated by development projects in the Project vicinity. Thus, the inclusion in this traffic analysis of both a forecast of traffic generated by known related projects plus the use of an ambient growth traffic factor based on CMP traffic model data results in a conservative estimate of future traffic volumes at the study intersections.

7.0 TRAFFIC FORECASTING METHODOLOGY

In order to estimate the traffic impact characteristics of the proposed Project, a multi-step process has been utilized. The first step is trip generation, which estimates the total arriving and departing traffic volumes on a peak hour and daily basis. The traffic generation potential is forecast by applying the appropriate vehicle trip generation equations or rates to the Project development tabulation.

The second step of the forecasting process is trip distribution, which identifies the origins and destinations of inbound and outbound Project traffic volumes. These origins and destinations are typically based on demographics and existing/anticipated travel patterns in the study area.

The third step is traffic assignment, which involves the allocation of Project traffic to study area streets and intersections. Traffic assignment is typically based on minimization of travel time, which may or may not involve the shortest route, depending on prevailing operating conditions and travel speeds. Traffic distribution patterns are indicated by general percentage orientation, while traffic assignment allocates specific volume forecasts to individual roadway links and intersection turning movements throughout the study area.

With the forecasting process complete and Project traffic assignments developed, the impact of the proposed Project is isolated by comparing operational (i.e., Levels of Service) conditions at the selected key intersections using existing and expected future traffic volumes without and with forecast Project traffic. The need for site-specific and/or cumulative local area traffic improvements can then be evaluated and the significance of the Project's impacts identified.

7.1 Project Traffic Generation

Traffic volumes expected to be generated by the proposed Project during the weekday AM and PM peak hours, as well as on a daily basis, were estimated using rates published in the ITE *Trip Generation Manual*. The following trip generation rates were used to forecast the traffic volumes expected to be generated by the Project:

- Live-Work Apartments: ITE Land Use Code 220 (Multifamily Housing [Low-Rise]) trip generation average rates were used to forecast the traffic volumes expected to be generated by the live-work apartments component of the Project.
- Office: ITE Land Use Code 710 (General Office Building) trip generation average rates were used to forecast the traffic volumes expected to be generated by the live-work office and general office components of the Project. Based on the proposed live-work units, 15 units can provide sufficient office space (greater than 1,000 square feet, excluding outside balcony space). The minimum size of 150 square feet for the office portion of the live-work units was applied to the trip generation forecast to account for external trips related to the live-work office space.

- Restaurant: ITE Land Use Code 932 (High-Turnover [Sit-Down] Restaurant) trip generation average rates were used to forecast the traffic volumes expected to be generated by the restaurant component of the Project.
- Retail: ITE Land Use Code 820 (Shopping Center) trip generation average rates were used to forecast the traffic volumes expected to be generated by the retail component of the Project.

In addition to the trip generation forecasts for the proposed Project's land use components (which are essentially an estimate of the number of vehicles that could be expected to enter and exit the Project site access points), an internal capture adjustment has been applied for the Project to account for the synergistic effects of the planned land use mix. Internal capture trips are those trips made internal to the site between land uses in a mixed or multi-use development. When combined within a mixed or multi-use development, land uses tend to interact, and thus attract a portion of each other's trip generation. To account for the interaction between the residential, office, retail, and restaurant land uses, an internal capture adjustment of 20 percent has been utilized. The internal capture adjustment was determined in consultation with LADOT staff.

A forecast was also made of transit trips. The transit reduction is based on the site's proximity to various transit lines, as well as the land use characteristics of the Project. As shown in *Table 4–1* and *Figure 4–2*, the Project site is well served by public transit. A transit adjustment of 5 percent has been utilized.

Furthermore, an adjustment was made to the trip generation forecast based on the Project site's existing land use. The existing land use to be removed is a bus depot which provides 16,960 square feet of floor area. ITE Land Use Code 942 Automobile Care Center) trip generation average rates were used to estimate the trip reduction related to the removal of the existing use from the Project site.

Lastly, a forecast was made of likely pass-by trips. Pass-by trips are made as intermediate stops on the way from an origin to a primary destination without a route diversion. Pass-by trips are attracted from traffic passing the site on an adjacent street or roadway that offers direct access to the site. In this instance, the adjacent roadways to the Project site include Bay Street, Sacramento Street, and Mateo Street. Based on the *LADOT Policy on Pass-By Trips*, a 20 percent pass-by reduction adjustment was applied to the restaurant land use component of the Project and a 50 percent pass-by reduction adjustment was applied to the retail land use component of the Project.

The trip generation forecast for the proposed Project was submitted for review and approval by LADOT staff. As presented in *Table 7–1*, the proposed Project is expected to generate 166 net new vehicle trips (102 inbound trips and 64 outbound trips) during the AM peak hour. During the PM peak hour, the proposed Project is expected to generate 174 net new vehicle trips (73 inbound trips and 101 outbound trips). Over a 24-hour period, the proposed Project is forecast to generate 1,862 daily trips ends (approximately 931 inbound trips and 931 outbound trips) during a typical weekday.

| | | - | | | | | | 07-Mar-19 |
|----------------------------------|--------------|---------------|------------|------------|------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|
| | | DAILY | AM | PEAK H | OUR | PM | PEAK HO | OUR |
| | | TRIP ENDS [2] | V | OLUMES | [2] | V | OLUMES | [2] |
| LAND USE | SIZE | VOLUMES | IN | OUT | TOTAL | IN | OUT | TOTAL |
| Proposed Project | | | | | | | | |
| Live-Work Apartments [3] | 106 DU | 776 | 11 | 38 | 49 | 37 | 22 | 59 |
| Live-Work Office [4] | 2,250 GSF | 22 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 3 |
| General Office [4] | 92,740 GSF | 903 | 93 | 15 | 108 | 17 | 90 | 107 |
| Restaurant [5] | 13,126 GSF | 1,472 | 72 | 58 | 130 | 79 | 49 | 128 |
| Retail [6] | 13,979 GLSF | 528 | 8 | 5 | 13 | 25 | 28 | 53 |
| Subtotal | | 3,701 | 187 | 116 | 303 | 158 | 192 | 350 |
| Transit Trips [7] | | | | | | | | |
| Live-Work Apartments (5%) | | (39) | (1) | (2) | (3) | (2) | (1) | (3) |
| Live-Work Office (5%) | | (1) | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| General Office (5%) | | (45) | (5) | (1) | (6) | (1) | (5) | (6) |
| Restaurant (5%) | | (74) | (4) | (3) | (7) | (4) | (2) | (6) |
| Retail (5%) | | <u>(26)</u> | <u>0</u> | <u>0</u> | <u>0</u> | (1) | (1) | (2) |
| Subtotal | | (185) | (10) | (6) | (16) | (8) | (9) | (17) |
| Internal Capture [8] | | | | | | | | |
| Live-Work Apartments (20%) | | (147) | (2) | (7) | (9) | (7) | (4) | (11) |
| Live-Work Office (20%) | | - | - | - | - | - | - | - |
| General Office (20%) | | (172) | (18) | (3) | (21) | (3) | (17) | (20) |
| Restaurant (20%) | | (280) | (14) | (11) | (25) | (15) | (9) | (24) |
| Retail (20%) | | <u>(100)</u> | <u>(2)</u> | <u>(1)</u> | <u>(3)</u> | <u>(5)</u> | <u>(5)</u> | <u>(10)</u> |
| Subtotal | | (699) | (36) | (22) | (58) | (30) | (35) | (65) |
| Subtotal Project Driveway Trips | • | 2,817 | 141 | 88 | 229 | 120 | 148 | 268 |
| Existing Site | | | | | | | | |
| Bus Depot [9], [10] | (16,960) GSF | (530) | (25) | (13) | (38) | (25) | (28) | (53) |
| Subtotal Existing Driveway Trips | | (530) | (25) | (13) | (38) | (25) | (28) | (53) |
| NET INCREASE DRIVEWAY TRIPS | | 2,287 | 116 | 75 | 191 | 95 | 120 | 215 |
| Proposed Pass-By Trips [11] | | | | | | | | |
| Restaurant (20%) | | (224) | (11) | (9) | (20) | (12) | (8) | (20) |
| Retail (50%) | | <u>(201)</u> | (3) | (2) | <u>(5)</u> | <u>(10)</u> | <u>(11)</u> | (21) |
| Subtotal | | (425) | (14) | (11) | (25) | (22) | (19) | (41) |
| NET INCREASE "OFF-SITE" TRIPS | | 1,862 | 102 | 64 | 166 | 73 | 101 | 174 |

Table 7-1 PROJECT TRIP GENERATION [1]

- [1] Source: ITE "Trip Generation Manual", 10th Edition, 2017.
- [2] Trips are one-way traffic movements, entering or leaving.
- [3] ITE Land Use Code 220 (Multifamily Housing [Low-Rise]) trip generation average rates.
 Daily Trip Rate: 7.32 trips/dwelling units; 50% inbound/50% outbound
 - AM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 0.46 trips/dwelling unit; 23% inbound/77% outbound
 - PM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 0.56 trips/dwelling unit; 63% inbound/37% outbound
- [4] ITE Land Use Code 710 (General Office Building) trip generation average rates.
 - Daily Trip Rate: 9.74 trips/1,000 SF; 50% inbound/50% outbound
 - AM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 1.16 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 86% inbound/14% outbound - PM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 1.15 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 16% inbound/84% outbound
- [5] ITE Land Use Code 932 (High-Turnover [Sit-Down] Restaurant) trip generation average rates.
- Daily Trip Rate: 112.18 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 50% inbound/50% outbound - AM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 9.94 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 55% inbound/45% outbound
- PM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 9.77 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 62% inbound/38% outbound
- [6] ITE Land Use Code 820 (Shopping Center) trip generation average rates.
- Daily Trip Rate: 37.75 trips/1,000 SF of leasable floor area; 50% inbound/50% outbound
 AM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 0.94 trips/1,000 SF of leasable floor area; 62% inbound/38% outbound
 - PM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 3.81 trips/1,000 SF of leasable floor area; 48% inbound/52% outbound
- [7] The transit reduction is based on the site's proximity to the Metro Gold Line and various bus lines as well as the land use characteristics of the project.
- [8] The internal capture reduction for the project is based on the synergy between all the land uses provided within the project site.
- [9] ITE Land Use Code 942 (Automobile Care Center) trip generation average rates.
 - Daily Trip Rate: No average trip rates available.
 - AM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 2.25 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 66% inbound/34% outbound
 - PM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 3.11 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 48% inbound/52% outbound
- [10] Daily trip ends estimated based on the assumption that the higher of the AM or PM total peak hour traffic volume typically represents 10 percent of the daily traffic volume.
- [11] Pass-by trips are made as intermediate stops on the way from an origin to a primary trip destination without a route diversion. Pass-by trips are attracted from traffic passing the site on an adjacent street or roadway that offers direct access to the site. The trip reduction for pass-by trips has been applied to the commercial component of the project based on the LADOT Transportation Impact Study Guidelines, December 2016 for High Turnover Restaurant and Shopping Center less than 50,000 SF.

7.2 Project Traffic Distribution and Assignment

Project traffic volumes both entering and exiting the site have been distributed and assigned to the adjacent street system based on the following considerations:

- The site's proximity to major traffic corridors (i.e., Alameda Street, Central Avenue, Olympic Boulevard, I-10 Freeway, US-101 Freeway, I-5 Freeway, etc.);
- Expected localized traffic flow patterns based on adjacent roadway channelization and presence of traffic signals;
- Existing intersection traffic volumes;
- Ingress/egress availability at the Project site assuming the site access and circulation scheme described in Section 3.0;
- The location of existing and proposed parking areas;
- Nearby population and employment centers as well as adjacent residential neighborhoods;
- Input from LADOT staff.

The general, directional traffic distribution patterns for the proposed Project are presented in *Figure 7–1*. The forecast net new weekday AM and PM peak hour Project traffic volumes at the study intersections associated with the proposed Project are presented in *Figures 7–2* and *7–3*, respectively. The traffic volume assignments presented in *Figures 7–2* and *7–3* reflect the traffic distribution characteristics shown in *Figure 7–1* and the Project traffic generation forecast presented in *Table 7–1*.







8.0 TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS METHODOLOGY

Operations at the 12 study intersections were evaluated using LADOT's Critical Movement Analysis (CMA) method of analysis that determines v/c ratios based on a critical lane basis. The overall intersection v/c ratio is subsequently assigned a Level of Service (LOS) value to describe intersection operations. Level of Service varies from LOS A (free flow) to LOS F (jammed condition). A description of the CMA method and corresponding Level of Service is provided in *Appendix B*.

8.1 Impact Criteria and Thresholds

The relative impact of the added Project traffic volumes to be generated by the proposed Project during the AM and PM peak hours was evaluated based on analysis of future operating conditions at the study intersections, without and with the proposed Project. The previously discussed capacity analysis procedures were utilized to evaluate the future v/c relationships and service level characteristics at each study intersection.

The significance of the potential impacts of Project generated traffic was identified using the traffic impact criteria set forth in LADOT's *Transportation Impact Study Guidelines*, December 2016. According to the City's published guidelines, an intersection traffic impact is considered significant if the Project-related increase in the v/c ratio is equal to or exceeds the thresholds presented in *Table 8–1*.

| | Table 8-1 | |
|-----------------|-------------------------|---------------------------------|
| | CITY OF LOS ANGELES | 5 |
| INTER | SECTION IMPACT THRESHOL | D CRITERIA |
| Final v/c | Level of Service | Project Related Increase in v/c |
| > 0.701 - 0.800 | С | equal to or greater than 0.040 |
| > 0.801 - 0.900 | D | equal to or greater than 0.020 |
| > 0.901 | E or F | equal to or greater than 0.010 |

As required by the City of Los Angeles, mitigation of Project traffic impacts are required whenever traffic generated by the proposed development causes an increase of the analyzed intersection v/c ratio by an amount equal to or greater than the values shown above.

8.2 LADOT ATSAC/ATCS

The City of Los Angeles Automated Traffic Surveillance and Control (ATSAC) and Adaptive Traffic Control System (ATCS) provides computer control of traffic signals allowing automatic adjustment of signal timing plans to reflect changing traffic conditions, identification of unusual traffic conditions caused by accidents, the ability to centrally implement special purpose short term traffic timing changes in response to incidents, and the ability to quickly identify signal equipment malfunctions. ATCS provides real time control of traffic signals and includes additional loop detectors, closed-circuit television, an upgrade in the communications links and a new generation of traffic control software. LADOT estimates that the ATSAC system reduces the critical v/c ratios by seven percent (0.07). An ATCS system upgrade further reduces the critical v/c ratios by three percent (0.03) for a total of 10 percent (0.10). ATSAC system upgrades for the study intersections have been implemented as part of the LADOT ATSAC/ATCS system. Accordingly, the Level of Service calculations reflect a 0.10 adjustment for all analysis scenarios evaluated.

8.3 Traffic Impact Analysis Scenarios

Pursuant to LADOT traffic study guidelines, LOS calculations have been prepared for the following scenarios for the City's 12 study intersections:

- (a) Existing (2019) conditions.
- (b) Condition (a) with completion and occupancy of the Project.
- (c) Condition (b) with implementation of Project mitigation measures where necessary.
- (d) Condition (a) plus one percent (1.0%) annual ambient traffic growth through year
 2023 and with completion and occupancy of the related projects (i.e., future cumulative baseline)
- (e) Condition (d) with completion and occupancy of the Project.
- (f) Condition (e) with implementation of Project mitigation measures where necessary.

The traffic volumes for each new condition were added to the volumes in the prior condition to determine the change in capacity utilization at the study intersections.

9.0 TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

The traffic impact analysis prepared for the study intersections using the CMA methodology and application of the City of Los Angeles significant traffic impact criteria is summarized in *Table 9–1*. The CMA data worksheets for the analyzed intersections are contained in *Appendix B*.

9.1 Existing Conditions

9.1.1 Existing Conditions

As indicated in column [1] of *Table 9–1*, the 12 study intersections are presently operating at LOS D or better during the weekday AM and PM peak hours under existing conditions. The existing traffic volumes at the study intersections during the weekday AM and PM peak hours are displayed in *Figures 5–1* and 5–2, respectively.

9.1.2 Existing With Project Conditions

As shown in column [2] of *Table 9–1*, application of the City's threshold criteria to the "Existing With Project" scenario indicates that the Project is not expected to create significant impacts at any of the 12 study intersections. Incremental, but not significant, impacts are noted at the study intersections. Therefore, no mitigation measures are required or recommended with respect to these intersections under the "Existing With Project" conditions. The "Existing With Project" traffic volumes at the study intersections during the weekday AM and PM peak hours are illustrated in *Figures 9–1* and *9–2*, respectively.

9.2 Future Conditions

9.2.1 Future Cumulative Baseline Conditions

The future cumulative baseline conditions were forecast based on the addition of traffic generated by the completion and occupancy of the related projects, as well as the growth in traffic due to the combined effects of continuing development, intensification of existing developments and other factors (i.e., ambient growth). The v/c ratios at all of the study intersections are incrementally increased with the addition of ambient traffic and traffic generated by the related projects listed in *Table 6–1*.

As presented in column [3] of *Table 9–1*, the two of the 12 study intersections are expected to operate at LOS D or better during the weekday AM and PM peak hours with the addition of growth in ambient traffic and related project traffic under the future cumulative baseline conditions. The following intersections are expected to operate at LOS E or worse during the peak hours shown below under the future cumulative baseline conditions:

| • | Int. No. 1: Central Avenue / 7 th Street | AM Peak Hour: $v/c = 0.961$, LOS E PM Peak Hour: $v/c = 1.027$, LOS F |
|---|--|--|
| • | Int. No. 2: Alameda Street / 6 th Street | AM Peak Hour: $v/c = 1.058$, LOS F PM Peak Hour: $v/c = 1.343$, LOS F |

Table 9-1 SUMMARY OF VOLUME TO CAPACITY RATIOS AND LEVELS OF SERVICE AM AND PM PEAK HOURS

| | | | Ξ | F | | [2] | | | [3] | | | [4] | | F | | [5] | | | | [9 | | 28-r en- 13 |
|-------------------|-------------------------------|--------------|-------------------------|-------------------|---------------------------------------|-----|-------------------|-------------------------|--------------------------------------|------------------------|-------------------------------------|------------------|-------------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------------------|--------------------|------------------|----------------|-------------------------------------|--------------------------|------------------|----------------|
| | INTERSECTION | PEAK HOUR | YEAR 2 EXISTI V/C | 2019 NG LOS | YEAR 20 EXISTIN W/ PROJE V/C | | THANGE A V/C I | SIGNIF. MPACT [a] | YEAR 20 FUTURE P PROJEC V/C | 23 PRE- T LOS | YEAR 20 FUTUR W/ PROJE V/C | E C CT LOS | TANGE (V/C I [(4)-(3)] | SIGNIF. MPACT [a] | YEAR 26 W/ PROJE + TDM V/C | 23 3CT 6 LOS | THANGE (15)-(3)] | MITI- GATED | YEAR 2 W/ PROJ + TDM & V/C | 023 ECT TMO LOS | CHANGE V/C | MITI- GATED |
| Centra 7th Str | I Avenue / | AM PM | 0.573 0.617 | B | 0.576 0.620 | вA | 0.003 | N N N | 0.961 1.027 | шц | 0.965 1.032 | Ξг | 0.004 | NO NO | 0.964 1.032 | Ξц | 0.003 | N/A N/A | 0.954 1.022 | Ξц | -0.007 | N/N N/N |
| Alamo 6th St | eda Street / reet | AM PM | 0.566 0.618 | B A | 0.569 0.620 | B A | 0.003 0.002 | ON ON | 1.058 1.343 | цц | 1.061 1.346 | цц | 0.003 | ON NO | 1.060 1.345 | цц | 0.002 0.002 | N/A N/A | 1.050 1.335 | цц | -0.008 | N/A N/N |
| Alamo 7th St | eda Street / reet | MA PM | 0.663 0.658 | вв | 0.666 0.664 | вв | 0.003 | ON N | 1.260 1.430 | цц | 1.270 1.440 | цц | 0.010 0.010 | YES YES | 1.267 1.437 | цц | 0.007 0.007 | YES YES | 1.257 1.427 | цц | -0.003 -0.003 | YES YES |
| Alam 8th S | eda Street / treet | MA PM | 0.393 0.329 | A A | 0.393 0.331 | A A | 0.000 0.002 | ON ON | 0.593 0.581 | A A | 0.593 0.583 | A A | 0.000 0.002 | ON N | 0.593 0.583 | A A | 0.000 0.002 | N/A N/N | 0.583 0.573 | A A | -0.010 | N/A N/A |
| Alam Olym | eda Street / pic Boulevard | MA MA | 0.685 0.839 | B | 0.696 0.849 | B | 0.011 0.010 | ON ON | 1.047 1.189 | цц | 1.053 1.200 | Р | 0.006 0.011 | NO YES | 1.051 1.197 | цц | 0.005 | N/A YES | 1.041 1.187 | ц | -0.005 -0.001 | N/A YES |
| Mate 6th S | o Street / treet | AM PM | 0.383 0.356 | A A | 0.386 0.362 | A A | 0.003 0.006 | ON ON | 0.823 0.907 | БD | 0.827 0.913 | БD | 0.004 0.006 | ON ON | 0.826 0.911 | ED | 0.003 0.004 | N/A N/N | 0.816 0.901 | D | -0.007 | N/A N/A |
| Mate 7th S | o Street / treet | AM PM | 0.414 0.486 | A A | 0.428 0.511 | A A | 0.014 | ON ON | 0.868 1.185 | D | 0.891 1.209 | Б | 0.023 0.024 | YES YES | 0.885 1.203 | $_{\rm F}$ D | 0.017 0.019 | YES NO | 0.875 1.193 | DF | 0.007 | YES YES |
| Mate Olyn | o Street / ipic Boulevard | AM PM | 0.493 0.382 | A A | 0.507 0.389 | A A | 0.014 | ON ON | 0.605 0.511 | A B | 0.619 0.521 | B | 0.014 0.010 | ON ON | 0.615 0.517 | B | 0.011 0.007 | N/A N/A | 0.605 0.507 | B A | 0.001-0.003 | N/A N/A |

LLG Ref. 5-16-0299-1 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project

l

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers

I

Table 9-1 (Continued) SUMMARY OF VOLUME TO CAPACITY RATIOS AND LEVELS OF SERVICE AM AND PM PEAK HOURS

| 28-Feb-19 | MITI- | GATED | N/A N/A | N/A N/A | N/A N/A | N/A N/A |
|-----------|----------------|------------------|---------------------------------|---------------------------------|------------------------------------|--|
| | CHANGE | V/C [(5)-(3)] | -0.009 | -0.004 | -0.006 | -0.006 -0.004 |
| [9] | 2023 JECT | t TMO LOS | F | F D | C E | н н |
| | YEAR W/ PRO | + TDM & V/C | 1.037 1.378 | 1.009 0.888 | 0.755 0.906 | 1.033 1.046 |
| | MITI- | GATED | N/A N/A | N/A N/A | N/A N/A | N/A N/A |
| 1 | CHANGE | V/C [(5)-(3)] | 0.001 | 0.006 0.006 | 0.004 0.006 | 0.004 0.006 |
| 5 | 2023 JECT | M | Ч | F D | C E | нц |
| | YEAR W/ PRO | + TD V/C | 1.047 1.388 | 1.019 0.898 | 0.765 0.916 | 1.043 1.056 |
| | SIGNIF. | IMPACT [a] | ON ON | ON ON | ON ON | ON N |
| [4] | CHANGE | V/C [(4)-(3)] | 0.002 | 0.008 | 0.006 0.008 | 0.005 |
| | 2023 IRE | DIECT | г | F D | С | н н |
| | YEAR | W/ PRC V/C | 1.048 1.391 | 1.021 0.900 | 0.767 0.918 | 1.045 1.058 |
| | 2023 8 PRE- | ECT LOS | цц | Ъ D | EC | цц |
| [3] | YEAR | PROJ V/C | 1.046 1.384 | 1.013 0.892 | 0.761 0.910 | 1.040 1.049 |
| | SIGNIF. | IMPACT [a] | ON N | ON N | ON N | ON N |
| [2] | CHANGE | V/C [(2)-(1)] | 0.002 0.006 | 0.004 0.008 | 0.005 | 0.006 0.008 |
| | 2019 TNG | UECT LOS | A B | A B | A B | D |
| | YEAR EXIST | W/ PRO V/C | 0.426 0.681 | 0.518 0.614 | 0.570 0.683 | 0.782 0.836 |
| | 2019 | ING | A B | A B | A B | D |
| Ξ | YEAR | EXIST V/C | 0.424 0.675 | 0.514 0.606 | 0.565 0.674 | 0.776 0.828 |
| | | PEAK HOUR | MA MA | MA MA | MA MA | MA PM |
| | | INTERSECTION | Santa Fe Avenue / 7th Street | Santa Fe Avenue / 8th Street | Santa Fe Avenue / Porter Street | Santa Fe Avenue / Olympic Boulevard |
| | | NO. | 6 | 10 | 11 | 12 |

[a] According to LADOTs "Transportation Impact Study Guidelines", December 2016, a transportation impact on an intersection shall be deemed significant in accordance with the following table:

| | Project Related Increase in v/c | equal to or greater than 0.040 | equal to or greater than 0.020 | equal to or greater than 0.010 |
|--------------------------------------|---------------------------------|--------------------------------|--------------------------------|--------------------------------|
| | TOS | С | D | Е, F |
| accordance with the following table: | Final v/c | 0.701 - 0.800 | 0.801 - 0.900 | > 0.901 |

⋪





FIGURE

| • | Int. No. 3: Alameda Street / 7 th Street | AM Peak Hour: $v/c = 1.260$, LOS F PM Peak Hour: $v/c = 1.430$, LOS F |
|---|--|--|
| • | Int. No. 5: Alameda Street / Olympic Boulevard | AM Peak Hour: $v/c = 1.047$, LOS F PM Peak Hour: $v/c = 1.189$, LOS F |
| • | Int. No. 6: Mateo Street / 6 th Street | PM Peak Hour: $v/c = 0.907$, LOS E |
| • | Int. No. 7: Mateo Street / 7 th Street | PM Peak Hour: $v/c = 1.185$, LOS F |
| • | Int. No. 9: Santa Fe Avenue / 7 th Street | AM Peak Hour: $v/c = 1.046$, LOS F PM Peak Hour: $v/c = 1.384$, LOS F |
| • | Int. No. 10: Santa Fe Avenue / 8 th Street | AM Peak Hour: $v/c = 1.013$, LOS F |
| • | Int. No. 11: Santa Fe Avenue / Porter Street | AM Peak Hour: $v/c = 0.910$, LOS E |
| • | Int. No. 12: Santa Fe Avenue / Olympic Boulevard | AM Peak Hour: $v/c = 1.040$, LOS F PM Peak Hour: $v/c = 1.049$, LOS F |

The future cumulative baseline (existing, ambient growth and related projects) traffic volumes at the study intersections during the weekday AM and PM peak hours are presented in *Figures 9–3* and *9–4*, respectively.

9.2.2 Future Cumulative With Project Conditions

The "Future Cumulative With Project" conditions were forecast based on the addition of traffic generated by the Project plus completion and occupancy of related projects. As shown in column [4] of *Table 9–1*, application of the City's threshold criteria to the "Future Cumulative With Project" scenario indicates that the proposed Project is not expected to create significant impacts at nine of the 12 study intersections. As indicated in *Table 9–1*, a significant traffic impact is expected at the following three intersections during the peak hours shown below under the "Future Cumulative With Project" conditions:

| • | Int. No. 3: Alameda Street / 7 th Street | AM Peak Hour <i>v/c</i> increases 0.010, LOS F PM Peak Hour: <i>v/c</i> increases 0.010, LOS F |
|---|--|---|
| • | Int. No. 5: Alameda Street / Olympic Boulevard | PM Peak Hour: v/c increases 0.011, LOS F |
| • | Int. No. 7: Mateo Street / 7 th Street | AM Peak Hour v/c increases 0.023, LOS D PM Peak Hour: v/c increases 0.024, LOS F |





Incremental, but not significant, impacts are noted at the other seven study intersections due to the Project. The "Future Cumulative With Project" (existing, ambient growth, related projects, and Project) traffic volumes at the study intersections during the weekday AM and PM peak hours are illustrated in *Figures 9–5* and *9–6*, respectively.





10.0 TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

The Project applicant will adopt and implement a Transportation Demand Management Program (TDM Program) in order to mitigate the potentially significant Project-related traffic impacts identified in Section 9.0 to less than significant levels. The goal of the TDM Program is to reduce the number of vehicle trips generated by the Project on both a daily 24-hour basis, as well as on an AM and PM peak hour basis, that would otherwise be generated by an "unmanaged" site. Specific program elements that may be implemented by the Project applicant for the TDM program are provided in the following sections.

10.1 Local TDM Program

The Project applicant would implement and maintain a local TDM Program for residents of the live-work units as well as employees of the commercial components of the Project. The following TDM measures are proposed for the Project:

Transportation Information Center

The Project applicant would maintain an on-site Transportation Information Center (TIC). The TIC would include information for employees, visitors, and residents about:

- Local public transit services, including current maps, bus lines, light rail lines, fare information, schedules for public transit routes serving the Project, telephone numbers and website links for referrals on transportation information, including numbers for the regional ridesharing agency, vanpool providers, ride-matching and local transit operators, ridesharing promotional material supplied by commuter oriented organizations and shuttles; and
- Bicycle facilities, including routes, rental and sales locations, on-site bicycle facilities, and bicycle safety information.

Transportation Coordinator

The Project applicant would designate an employee as the "Transportation Coordinator" to be responsible for implementing, maintaining, and monitoring the TDM Program. The Transportation Coordinator's duties would be responsible for the following:

- Promote the TDM Program to employees and residents
- Update information boards/websites
- Offer carpool and vanpool matching services
- Assist with route planning

The Transportation Coordinator services may be provided through FASTLinkDTLA, the existing Downtown Los Angeles TMO, discussed in a subsequent section.

Mobility Hub

The Project applicant would coordinate with LADOT to determine if the Project Site is eligible for a future Integrated Mobility Hub. The Integrated Mobility Hub would provide space for a bicycle share kiosk, and/or parking spaces on-site for car-share vehicles.

Carpool / Rideshare Matching Program

The Project applicant would provide preferential parking within the Project's parking garage for commercial employees who commute to work in employer-registered carpools. The Developer may also initiate a referral to commercial employees about rideshare matching services to assist employees in finding carpool and vanpool opportunities, such as the FlexLA rideshare program established by FASTLinkDTLA

Transportation Subsidy In Lieu of Parking

The Project applicant would offer discount transit passes to residents and commercial employees who do not purchase monthly automobile parking in the Project.

Unbundled Parking

The Project applicant would lease its parking to commercial tenants separately from the commercial space. The Project applicant would also separate the cost of obtaining assigned parking spaces from the cost of renting residential units.

Convenient and Secure Bicycle Storage

The Project applicant would provide a convenient and secure bicycle parking area for residents and commercial employees of the Project. For the purposes of this section, secure bicycle parking will mean bicycle lockers, an attended cage, or a secure parking room.

On-Site Lockers

The Project applicant would provide a locker facility for commercial employees who bicycle or use another active means of getting to work (powered by human propulsion).

City Bicycle Plan

The Project applicant will contribute a one-time fixed fee contribution as determined by LADOT to be deposited into the City's Bicycle Plan Trust Fund to implement bicycle improvements in the vicinity of the Project.

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers
10.2 Transportation Systems Management

Transportation Systems Management (TSM) strategies may be implemented at existing traffic signals to mitigate the potentially significant Project-related traffic impacts. TSM strategies include traffic signal controller upgrades, installation of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras, and system loops. However, LADOT recently completed a review of the Project study area and determined that no TSM improvements can be implemented at the significantly impacted intersections. All feasible traffic signal improvements at the significantly impacted intersections have already been installed. Therefore, no recommended TSM strategies are provided for the Project.

10.3 Downtown / Arts District Transportation Management Organization

FASTLinkDTLA is a TMO recently established in Downtown Los Angeles as described in Section 4.4 herein. The City of Los Angeles may establish as separate TMO for the Arts District, or determine that FASTLinkDTLA can adequately serve the Arts District with the remainder of Downtown Los Angles. The Project applicant proposes to fund the initiation of an Arts District TMO, or fund the Arts District portion of FASTLinkDTLA to help alleviate current and future traffic congestion in the Arts District. The TMO services would be available to anyone within the general Arts District community, not just residents and tenants of the Project.

The Project applicant will agree to commit funding of up to \$200,000 prior to the first year of occupancy of the Proejct to cover the launch of the Arts District TMP, or the Arts District portion of FASTLinkDTLA, and then provide up to \$25,000 per year for nine additional years for annual dues as a charter member. The Project applicant will attend organizational meetings and provide traffic demand data to the TMO. The Project applicant will require in all leases it executes as landlord for space within the commercial component of the Project that building tenants be required to participate in the TMO and that all subleases contain this same provision. The Project applicant can elect to provide some or all of the services required by this TDM Program through the TMO, in consultation with the City's Transportation Demand Program Manager.

Given the Project's commitment to fund the start-up and continuance of the TMO for the Arts District, the traffic analysis incorporates a one percent (1%) increase in the intersection capacity at the analyzed study intersections.

10.4 Project Traffic Generation with TDM Program

The goal of the TDM Program as described in Section 10.0 herein is to reduce the number of vehicle trips generated by the Project on both a daily 24-hour basis, as well as on an AM and PM peak hour basis, by approximately 20 percent of the total that would otherwise be generated by an "unmanaged" site.

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers

As shown on *Table 10–1*, the Project without TDM (and without the trip "credit" related to the existing on-site use) is forecast to generate 2,392 daily trips, 204 AM peak hour trips and 227 PM peak hour trips. It is noted that this calculation includes the transit, internal capture, and pass-by adjustments as it is assumed that these trips would occur without a TDM Program.

Table 10–1 also provides the trip generation forecast for the Project based on a 20 percent reduction in vehicular trip generation due to implementation of a TDM Program. As shown in *Table 10–1*, with implementation of a TDM Program, the Project would generate 1,914 daily trips, 164 AM peak hour trips, and 181 PM peak hour trips. When the trip credit related to the removal of the existing use is considered, the net new trip generation is calculated to be 1,384 daily trips, 126 AM peak hour trips, and 128 PM peak hour trips.

10.5 Effects of the TDM and TMO Programs

The intersection traffic analysis was updated assuming attainment of the 20 percent AM and PM peak hour trip reduction due to implementation of a TDM Program. *Table 9–1* provides a summary of the intersection analysis prepared for the "Future Cumulative With Project" condition, plus TDM. As shown in column [5] of *Table 9–1*, the traffic impacts due to the Project with TDM would be reduced to less than significant levels at two of the three analyzed study intersections during the AM and PM peak hours.

In addition to the reduction due to the implementation of a TDM program, a reduction of 0.010 was applied to the v/c calculations associated with the commitment by the Project applicant to provide funding for the start-up and continuance of the Arts District TMO. As shown in column [6] of *Table 9–1*, the traffic impacts due to the Project with TDM and TMO would be reduced to less than significant levels at the 12 analyzed study intersections during the AM and PM peak hours.

Therefore, the Project with a 20 percent TDM reduction and a 0.010 reduction in v/c as a result of the TMO start-up funding, impacts at all 12 of the study intersections due to the Project would be further reduced and remain less than significant with the TDM and TMO reductions. The "Future Cumulative With Project" (existing, ambient growth, related projects, and Project), with TDM and TMO traffic volumes at the study intersections during the weekday AM and PM peak hours are illustrated in *Figures 10–1* and *10–2*, respectively.

| Table 10-1 |
|---------------------------------------|
| PROJECT TRIP GENERATION [1] |
| WITH TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGEMENT |

| | | DAILY | AM PEAK HOUR | | PM PEAK HOUR | | | |
|--------------------------------------|---------------|---------------|--------------|--------|--------------|------|------------|-------------|
| | | TRIP ENDS [2] | V | OLUMES | [2] | V | OLUMES | [2] |
| LAND USE | SIZE | VOLUMES | IN | OUT | TOTAL | IN | OUT | TOTAL |
| Proposed Project | | | | | | | | |
| Live-Work Apartments [3] | 106 DU | 776 | 11 | 38 | 49 | 37 | 22 | 59 |
| Live-Work Office [4] | 2 250 GSF | 22 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 3 |
| General Office [4] | 92,740 GSF | 903 | 93 | 15 | 108 | 17 | 90 | 107 |
| Restaurant [5] | 13.126 GSF | 1.472 | 72 | 58 | 130 | 79 | 49 | 128 |
| Retail [6] | 13,979 GLSF | 528 | 8 | 5 | 13 | 25 | 28 | 53 |
| Subtotal | 10,070 0201 | 3,701 | 187 | 116 | 303 | 158 | 192 | 350 |
| Transit Trips [7] | | | | | | | | |
| Live-Work Apartments (5%) | | (39) | (1) | (2) | (3) | (2) | (1) | (3) |
| Live-Work Office (5%) | | (1) | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| General Office (5%) | | (45) | (5) | (1) | (6) | (1) | (5) | (6) |
| Restaurant (5%) | | (74) | (4) | (3) | (7) | (4) | (2) | (6) |
| Retail (5%) | | (26) | 0 | 0 | 0 | (1) | (1) | (2) |
| Subtotal | | (185) | (10) | (6) | (16) | (8) | (9) | (17) |
| Internal Capture [8] | | | | | | | | |
| Live-Work Apartments (20%) | | (147) | (2) | (7) | (9) | (7) | (4) | (11) |
| Live-Work Office (20%) | | - | - | - | - | - | - | - |
| General Office (20%) | | (172) | (18) | (3) | (21) | (3) | (17) | (20) |
| Restaurant (20%) | | (280) | (14) | (11) | (25) | (15) | (9) | (24) |
| Retail (20%) | | <u>(100)</u> | (2) | (1) | (3) | (5) | <u>(5)</u> | <u>(10)</u> |
| Subtotal | | (699) | (36) | (22) | (58) | (30) | (35) | (65) |
| Subtotal Project Driveway Trips | | 2,817 | 141 | 88 | 229 | 120 | 148 | 268 |
| Proposed Pass-By Trips [9] | | | | | | | | |
| Restaurant (20%) | | (224) | (11) | (9) | (20) | (12) | (8) | (20) |
| Retail (50%) | | (201) | (3) | (2) | (5) | (10) | (11) | (21) |
| Subtotal | | (425) | (14) | (11) | (25) | (22) | (19) | (41) |
| PROPOSED PROJECT WITHOUT TDM | | 2,392 | 127 | 77 | 204 | 98 | 129 | 227 |
| Trip Reduction due to TDM (20%) [10] | | (478) | (25) | (15) | (40) | (20) | (26) | (46) |
| PROPOSED PROJECT WITH TDM | 1 | 1,914 | 102 | 62 | 164 | 78 | 103 | 181 |
| Existing Site | | | | | | | | |
| Bus Depot [11], [12] | (16,960) GLSF | (530) | (25) | (13) | (38) | (25) | (28) | (53) |
| NET TRIPS (EXISTING USE) | - | (530) | (25) | (13) | (38) | (25) | (28) | (53) |
| NET DIFFERENCE | | 1,384 | 77 | 49 | 126 | 53 | 75 | 128 |

07-Mar-19

- [1] Source: ITE "Trip Generation Manual", 10th Edition, 2017.
- [2] Trips are one-way traffic movements, entering or leaving.
- [3] ITE Land Use Code 220 (Multifamily Housing [Low-Rise]) trip generation average rates.
 Daily Trip Rate: 7.32 trips/dwelling units; 50% inbound/50% outbound
 - AM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 0.46 trips/dwelling unit; 23% inbound/77% outbound
 - PM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 0.56 trips/dwelling unit; 63% inbound/37% outbound
- [4] ITE Land Use Code 710 (General Office Building) trip generation average rates.
- Daily Trip Rate: 9.74 trips/1,000 SF; 50% inbound/50% outbound
 AM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 1.16 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 86% inbound/14% outbound
- PM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 1.15 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 16% inbound/84% outbound
- [5] ITE Land Use Code 932 (High-Turnover [Sit-Down] Restaurant) trip generation average rates.
 Daily Trip Rate: 112.18 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 50% inbound/50% outbound
 AM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 9.94 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 55% inbound/45% outbound
- PM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 9.77 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 62% inbound/38% outbound
- [6] ITE Land Use Code 820 (Shopping Center) trip generation average rates.
 - Daily Trip Rate: 37.75 trips/1,000 SF of leasable floor area; 50% inbound/50% outbound - AM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 0.94 trips/1,000 SF of leasable floor area; 62% inbound/38% outbound - PM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 3.81 trips/1,000 SF of leasable floor area; 48% inbound/52% outbound
- [7] The transit reduction is based on the site's proximity to the Metro Gold Line and various bus lines as well as the land use characteristics of the project.
- [8] The internal capture reduction for the project is based on the synergy between all the land uses provided within the project site.
- [9] Pass-by trips are made as intermediate stops on the way from an origin to a primary trip destination without a route diversion. Pass-by trips are attracted from traffic passing the site on an adjacent street or roadway that offers direct access to the site. The trip reduction for pass-by trips has been applied to the commercial component of the project based on the LADOT Transportation Impact Study Guidelines, December 2016 for High Turnover Restaurant and Shopping Center less than 50,000 SF.
- [10] An estimated 20% reduction in the project trip generation forecast is assumed based on implementation of a Transportation Demand Management (TDM) program.





-59-

11.0 CONGESTION MANAGEMENT PROGRAM TRAFFIC IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The Congestion Management Program (CMP) is a state-mandated program that was enacted by the California State Legislature with the passage of Proposition 111 in 1990. The program is intended to address the impact of local growth on the regional transportation system.

As required by the 2010 Congestion Management Program for Los Angeles County, a Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) has been prepared to determine the potential impacts on designated monitoring locations on the CMP highway system. The analysis has been prepared in accordance with procedures outlined in the 2010 Congestion Management Program for Los Angeles County, County of Los Angeles Metropolitan Transportation Authority, 2010.

According to Section D.9.1 (Appendix D, page D-6) of the 2010 CMP manual, the criteria for determining a significant transportation impact is listed below:

"A significant transportation impact occurs when the proposed Project increases traffic demand on a CMP facility by 2% of capacity (V/C \ge 0.02), causing or worsening LOS F (V/C \ge 1.00)."

The CMP impact criteria apply for analysis of both intersection and freeway monitoring locations.

11.1 Intersections

The following CMP intersection monitoring locations in the Project vicinity have been identified:

• <u>CMP Station</u> <u>Intersection</u>

No. 43 Alameda Street / Washington Boulevard

The CMP TIA guidelines require that intersection monitoring locations must be examined if the proposed Project will add 50 or more trips during either the AM or PM weekday peak hours. As shown in *Figure 7–2* and *Figure 7–3*, the proposed Project would not add 50 or more trips during the AM or PM peak hours at any of the CMP monitoring locations. Therefore, no further review of potential impacts to intersection monitoring locations that are part of the CMP highway system is required.

11.2 Freeways

The following CMP freeway monitoring locations have been identified in the Project vicinity:

- <u>CMP Station</u>
 <u>Location</u>
- No. 1019 I-10 Freeway at Grand Avenue
- No. 1027 SR-60 Freeway east of Indiana Street

• No. 1036 SR-101 Freeway north of Vignes Street

The CMP TIA guidelines require that freeway monitoring locations must be examined if the proposed Project will add 150 or more trips (in either direction) during either the AM or PM weekday peak periods. The proposed Project will not add 150 or more trips (in either direction) during either the AM or PM weekday peak hours to the CMP freeway monitoring locations which is the threshold for preparing a traffic impact assessment, as stated in the CMP manual. Therefore, no further review of potential impacts to freeway monitoring locations that are part of the CMP highway system is required.

11.3 Transit Impact Review

As required by the 2010 Congestion Management Program for Los Angeles County, a review has been made of the potential impacts of the Project on public transit service. As discussed in Subsection 4.4 herein, existing transit service is provided in the vicinity of the proposed Project.

The Project trip generation, as shown in *Table 7–1*, was adjusted by values set forth in the CMP (i.e., person trips equal 1.4 times vehicle trips, and transit trips equal 3.5 percent of the total person trips) to estimate transit trip generation. Pursuant to the CMP guidelines, the proposed Project is forecast to generate demand for 8 transit trips during the AM peak hour and 9 transit trips during the PM peak hour. Over a 24-hour period, the proposed Project is forecast to generate demand for 25 daily transit trips. Therefore, the calculations are as follows:

- AM Peak Hour = $166 \times 1.4 \times 0.035 = 8$ Transit Trips
- PM Peak Hour = $174 \times 1.4 \times 0.035 = 9$ Transit Trips
- Daily Trips = $1,862 \times 1.4 \times 0.035 = 91$ Transit Trips

As shown in *Table 4–1*, seven transit lines and routes are provided adjacent to or in close proximity the Project site. As outlined in *Table 4–1*, under the "No. of Buses During Peak Hour" column, these seven public transit lines provide services for an average of (i.e., average of the directional number of buses during the peak hours) generally 77 buses during the AM peak hour and roughly 82 buses during the PM peak hour. Therefore, based on the above calculated AM and PM peak hour trips, this would correspond to an insignificant number of additional Project-generated transit trips per bus. It is anticipated that the existing transit service in the Project area will adequately accommodate the increase of Project-generated transit trips. In addition to the Metro Regional Connector and West Santa Ana Branch Transit Corridor as described in Section 4.4, Metro's 2009 Long Range Transportation Plan and 2014 Short Range Transportation Plan will further enhance transit operations in the Project study area.

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers

12.0 CONCLUSIONS

This traffic impact analysis has been prepared to evaluate the potential impacts to the local street system due to the proposed 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project located at 1024 Mateo Street in the Arts District area of the City of Los Angeles. Twelve (12) intersections were identified and analyzed in order to determine changes in operations following construction and occupancy of the proposed Project. Application of the impact threshold criteria from the City of Los Angeles indicate that nine of the 12 study intersections are not anticipated to be significantly impacted by the Project. The Project is expected to cause a significant transportation impact under the "Future Cumulative With Project" conditions at the following three intersections:

- Int. No. 3: Alameda Street / 7th Street
- Int. No. 5: Alameda Street / Olympic Boulevard
- Int. No. 7: Mateo Street / 7th Street

The Project proposes the implementation of a TDM program. Additionally, the Project applicant proposes to fund the start-up and continuance of a TMO for the Arts District (i.e., a new TMO or an Arts District component to the recently established FASTLinkDTLA program) in order to mitigate the potentially significant Project-related traffic impact. A 20 percent TDM reduction and a 0.010 reduction in v/c would reduce the impacts to less than significant levels at the three significantly impacted study intersections.

Incremental, but not significant, impacts are noted at the remaining nine study intersections evaluated in this analysis. As no significant impacts are expected due to the Project at the other nine study intersections, no traffic mitigation measures are required or recommended for those study intersections.

APPENDIX A

MANUAL TRAFFIC COUNT DATA



| Nerth/South | Central / | ve | | | | | | | |
|------------------|---------------|-------|-----------|-------------|---------------|-----------|-------|-----------|-------|
| East/West | 7th St | | | | | | | _ | |
| Day: | TURSDAY | r | Date: | | pril 23, 2013 | Weather: | SUNN | Y | |
| Hours: 7 | -10AM & 3-6PM | r | | | Chekrs: | NDS | | | |
| School Day: | YES | | District: | | | VS CO | DE | | |
| DIAL | <u>N/B</u> | | _ | <u>\$/B</u> | | E/B | | W/B | |
| WHEELED BIKES | 191 61 | | | 126 53 | | 213 56 | | 220 52 | |
| BUALS | 08 | | | 76 | | 156 | | 226 | |
| | N/B | TIME | _ | S/B | TIME | E/B | TIME | W/B | TIME |
| AM PK 15 MIN | 176 | 8,30 | | 237 | 8,00 | 121 | 9,30 | 250 | 8,15 |
| PM PK 15 MIN | 281 | 17.30 | | 168 | 17.15 | 245 | 17.00 | 165 | 17.30 |
| AM PK HOUR | 610 | 7.45 | | 898 | 7.45 | 455 | 8,45 | 958 | 7,30 |
| PM PK HOUR | 967 | 17.00 | | 634 | 16,30 | 933 | 17.00 | 604 | 17.00 |
| | | | | | | | | | |

17-18 TOTAL

NORTHBOUND Approach

| SOUTHBOUND | Approach |
|------------|----------|
|------------|----------|

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 60 | 347 | 133 | 540 |
| 8-9 | 63 | 409 | 132 | 604 |
| 9-10 | 79 | 370 | 140 | 589 |
| 15-16 | 74 | 408 | 125 | 608 |
| 16-17 | 55 | 486 | 130 | 671 |
| 17-18 | 56 | 778 | 133 | 967 |
| TOTAL | 387 | 2798 | 794 | 3979 |

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 31 | 562 | 107 | 700 |
| 8-9 | 33 | 681 | 140 | 854 |
| 9-10 | 35 | 474 | 99 | 608 |
| 15-16 | 50 | 465 | 74 | 589 |
| 16-17 | 41 | 512 | 62 | 615 |
| 17-18 | 41 | 520 | 59 | 620 |
| | · | | | |
| TOTAL | 231 | 3214 | 541 | 3986 |

N-S 1240 Ped Sch Ped Sch 24 1 43 1 1458 29 52 000000 1 1197 26 49 0 54 1197 79 60 76 1286 37 0 1587 31 4 7965 201 1 359 6

XING S/L

XING N/L

XING E/L

EASTBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|----|-----|----|-------|
| 7-8 | 29 | 263 | 44 | 336 |
| 8-9 | 51 | 292 | 52 | 395 |
| 9-10 | 44 | 353 | 50 | 447 |
| 15-16 | 69 | 531 | 66 | 666 |
| 16-17 | 62 | 572 | 79 | 713 |
| 17-38 | 91 | 772 | 70 | 933 |

| WESTBOUND Appreach | | | | | | | | | |
|--------------------|-----|------|----|-------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total | | | | | |
| 7-8 | 129 | 676 | 59 | 864 | | | | | |
| 8-9 | 170 | 704 | 83 | 957 | | | | | |
| 9-10 | 105 | 601 | 76 | 782 | | | | | |
| 15-16 | 73 | 399 | 66 | 538 | | | | | |
| 16-17 | 94 | 340 | 66 | 500 | | | | | |
| 17-18 | 0.4 | 1001 | 60 | 604 | | | | | |

| | | | - and the second |
|-----|------|-----|------------------|
| 665 | 3170 | 410 | 424 |

| OTAL : | XIN |
|--------|-----|
| OTAL : | XIN |

E-W

1200 1352 1229

1204 1213 1537

7735

TOTAL

Г

G W/L

| _ | Ped | Sch | | Ped | Sch |
|---|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| | 23 | 0 | ſ | 30 | 3 |
| | 24 | 0 | ſ | 28 | 0 |
| | 19 | 0 | | 37 | 0 |
| | 25 | 0 | | 43 | 0 |
| E | 35 | 0 | - [| 24 | 0 |
| | 22 | 0 | - r | 29 | Ó |
| | | | | | |
| | 148 | 0 | | 191 | 3 |



| Alameda | St | | | | | | | | |
|----------------|---|--|---|---|---|---|--|--|---|
| 6th St | | | | | | | | | |
| TUESDAY | <u> </u> | ite: A | pril 22, 20 | 014 | Weather: | | SUNNY | | |
| 7-10AM & 3-6PM | [| | Ch | ekrs: | NDS | | | | |
| YES | Di | strict: | | | I/S CO | DE | | _ | |
| <u>N/B</u> | | S/B | | | E/B | | _ | W/B | |
| 384 | | 286 | | | 122 | | | 131 | |
| 20 37 | | 26 77 | | | 30 129 | | | 32 123 | |
| N/B | TIME | S/B | TIME | | E/B | TIME | _ | W/B | TIME |
| N 195 | 7.30 | 261 | 7.30 | | 110 | 7.45 | | 231 | 7.45 |
| N 259 | 17.15 | 258 | 16.30 | | 258 | 17.15 | | 95 | 17.00 |
| R 749 | 8.15 | 915 | 7.30 | | 386 | 7.45 | | 882 | 7.30 |
| R 1003 | 17.00 | 966 | 15.45 | | 915 | 17.00 | | 347 | 17.00 |
| | Alameda 6th St TUESDAY 7-10AM & 3-6PM YES N/B 384 20 37 N/B 384 20 37 N/B 384 20 37 N/B 384 20 37 N/B 384 20 37 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 | Alameda St 6th St TUESDAY Da 7-10AM & 3-6PM YES Dis N/B 384 20 37 N/B TIME N/B TIME N/B TIME N 195 7.30 N 259 17.15 R 749 8.15 R 1003 17.00 | Alameda St 6th St TUESDAY Date: A 7-10AM & 3-6PM District: A YES District: A N/B S/B 384 286 20 26 37 77 N/B TIME S/B N/B TIME S/B N 195 7.30 261 N 259 17.15 258 R 749 8.15 915 R 1003 17.00 966 | Alameda St April 22, 20 TUESDAY Date: April 22, 20 7-10AM & 3-6PM Cho YES District: N/B S/B 384 286 20 26 37 77 N/B TIME S/B TIME N 195 7.30 261 7.30 N 259 17.15 258 16.30 R 749 8.15 915 7.30 R 1003 17.00 966 15.45 | Alameda St April 22, 2014 TUESDAY Date: April 22, 2014 7-10AM & 3-6PM Chekrs: YES District: N/B S/B 384 286 20 26 37 77 N/B S/B TIME N/B TIME S/B N 195 7.30 261 7.30 N 195 7.30 261 7.30 N 259 17.15 258 16.30 R 749 8.15 915 7.30 R 1003 17.00 966 15.45 | Alameda St Geth St TUESDAY Date: April 22, 2014 Weather: 7-10AM & 3-6PM Chekrs: NDS YES District: VS CO N/B S/B E/B 384 286 122 20 26 30 37 77 129 N/B S/B TIME E/B N 195 7.30 261 7.30 110 N 259 17.15 258 16.30 258 R 749 8.15 915 7.30 386 R 1003 17.00 966 15.45 915 | Alameda St 6th St TUESDAY Date: April 22, 2014 Weather: 2 7-10AM & 3-6PM Chekrs: NDS YES District: V'S CODE N/B S/B E/B TIME 384 286 122 30 20 26 30 129 N/B TIME S/B TIME E/B TIME N 195 7.30 261 7.30 110 7.45 N 259 17.15 258 16.30 258 17.15 R 749 8.15 915 7.30 386 7.45 R 1003 17.00 966 15.45 915 17.00 | Alameda St 6th St TUESDAY Date: April 22, 2014 Weather: SUNNY 7-10AM & 3-6PM Chekrs: NDS YES District: VS CODE N/B S/B E/B O 384 286 122 0 26 30 0 <t< td=""><td>Alameda St Gth St TUESDAY Date: April 22, 2014 Weather: SUNNY 7-10AM & 3-6PM Chekrs: NDS YES District: VS CODE N/B S/B E/B W/B 384 286 122 131 20 26 30 32 37 77 129 123 N/B TIME S/B TIME E/B TIME W/B N 195 7.30 261 7.30 110 7.45 231 N 195 7.30 261 7.30 386 7.45 882 N 195 7.30 261 7.30 386 7.45 882 N 259 17.15 258 16.30 258 17.15 95 R 749 8.15 915 7.30 386 7.45 882 R 1003 17.00 966</td></t<> | Alameda St Gth St TUESDAY Date: April 22, 2014 Weather: SUNNY 7-10AM & 3-6PM Chekrs: NDS YES District: VS CODE N/B S/B E/B W/B 384 286 122 131 20 26 30 32 37 77 129 123 N/B TIME S/B TIME E/B TIME W/B N 195 7.30 261 7.30 110 7.45 231 N 195 7.30 261 7.30 386 7.45 882 N 195 7.30 261 7.30 386 7.45 882 N 259 17.15 258 16.30 258 17.15 95 R 749 8.15 915 7.30 386 7.45 882 R 1003 17.00 966 |

NORTHBOUND Approach

| nours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|-----|----|-------|
| 7-8 | 69 | 549 | 65 | 683 |
| 8-9 | 80 | 591 | 67 | 738 |
| 9-10 | 49 | 563 | 59 | 671 |
| 15-16 | 73 | 769 | 60 | 902 |
| 16-17 | 63 | 755 | 58 | 876 |
| 17-18 | 100 | 827 | 76 | 1003 |

SOUTHBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt 7 | fotal |
|-------|-----|------|------|-------|
| 7-8 | 50 | 776 | 47 | 873 |
| 8-9 | 43 | 764 | 65 | 872 |
| 9-10 | 43 | 738 | 69 | 850 |
| 15-16 | 57 | 753 | 93 | 903 |
| 16-17 | 57 | 769 | 84 | 910 |
| 17-18 | 77 | 652 | 78 | 807 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 327 | 4452 | 436 | 5215 |

WESTBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total | |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|--|
| 7-8 | 111 | 569 | 114 | 794 | |
| 8-9 | 109 | 614 | 89 | 812 | |
| 9-10 | 66 | 300 | 66 | 432 | |
| 15-16 | 52 | 155 | 59 | 266 | |
| 16-17 | 62 | 163 | 43 | 268 | |
| 17-18 | 45 | 249 | 53 | 347 | |
| TOTAL | 445 | 2050 | 424 | 2919 | |

| TOTAL | XING S/L |
|-------|----------|
| | |

TOTAL

XING N/L

| N-S | Ped | Sch | Ped | Sch |
|-------|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| 1556 | 12 | 0 | 24 | 0 |
| 1610 | 21 | 0 | 23 | 3 |
| 1521 | 28 | 0 | 24 | 1 |
| 1805 | 19 | 0 | 38 | 0 |
| 1786 | 18 | 1 | 24 | 0 |
| 1810 | 11 | 2 | 29 | 1 |
| 10088 | 109 | 3 | 162 | 5 |

XING W/L

XING E/L

| E-W | Ped | Sch | Ped | Sch |
|------|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| 1140 | 13 | 0 | 36 | 5 |
| 1192 | 13 | 2 | 28 | 1 |
| 765 | 12 | 0 | 51 | 34 |
| 845 | 20 | 1 | 21 | 0 |
| 966 | 23 | 0 | 24 | 1 |
| 1262 | 25 | 1 | 27 | 4 |
| 6170 | 106 | 4 | 187 | 45 |

EASTBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 52 | 187 | 107 | 346 |
| 8-9 | 56 | 221 | 103 | 380 |
| 9-10 | 67 | 184 | 82 | 333 |
| 15-16 | 81 | 395 | 103 | 579 |
| 16-17 | 104 | 504 | 90 | 698 |
| 17-18 | 116 | 711 | 88 | 915 |
| TOTAL | 476 | 2202 | 573 | 3251 |



| STREET: North/South | Alameda St | | | | | | | |
|------------------------|------------|--------|-----------|----------------|-----------|-------|-----------|-------|
| East/West | 7th St | | | | | | | |
| Day: | Wednesday | Date: | Jar | nuary 15, 2014 | Weather: | - | SUNNY | |
| Hours: 7-10 & | 3-6 | | | Chekrs: | NDS | | | |
| School Day: | YES | Distri | ct: | | I/S CO | DE | | |
| DUAL- | N/B | | S/B | | E/B | | W/B | |
| WHEELED | 501 | | 408 | | 290 | | 296 | |
| BIKES BUSES | 25 28 | | 28 119 | | 40 110 | | 28 138 | |
| | N/B | TIME | S/B | TIME | E/B | TIME | W/B | TIME |
| AM PK 15 MIN | 214 | 8.00 | 293 | 7.45 | 144 | 8.45 | 242 | 7.30 |
| PM PK 15 MIN | 261 | 17.15 | 250 | 16.15 | 266 | 17.30 | 159 | 17.30 |
| AM PK HOUR | 810 | 7.45 | 1130 | 7.30 | 498 | 8.15 | 878 | 7.00 |
| PM PK HOUR | 957 | 17.00 | 962 | 15.30 | 939 | 17.00 | 603 | 17.00 |

NORTHBOUND Approach

EASTBOUND Approach

Lt

62

68

58

87

73

95

443

Hours

7-8

8-9

9-10

15-16

16-17

17-18

TOTAL

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 114 | 536 | 82 | 732 |
| 8-9 | 99 | 601 | 94 | 794 |
| 9-10 | 92 | 531 | 80 | 703 |
| 15-16 | 95 | 573 | 88 | 756 |
| 16-17 | 99 | 643 | 101 | 843 |
| 17-18 | 106 | 739 | 112 | 957 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 605 | 3623 | 557 | 4785 |

Th

281

312

272

471

542

735

2613

SOUTHBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 113 | 793 | 125 | 1031 |
| 8-9 | 102 | 775 | 156 | 1033 |
| 9-10 | 102 | 667 | 142 | 911 |
| 15-16 | 122 | 659 | 80 | 861 |
| 16-17 | 115 | 776 | 60 | 951 |
| 17-18 | 102 | 693 | 42 | 837 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 656 | 4363 | 605 | 5624 |

Rt

90

93

83

91

85

118

560

Total

878

807

761

527

516

603

4092

WESTBOUND Approach

| Rt | Total | Hours | Lt | Th |
|-----|-------|-------|-----|------|
| 87 | 430 | 7-8 | 117 | 671 |
| 102 | 482 | 8-9 | 121 | 593 |
| 120 | 450 | 9-10 | 122 | 556 |
| 155 | 713 | 15-16 | 92 | 344 |
| 163 | 778 | 16-17 | 79 | 352 |
| 109 | 939 | 17-18 | 77 | 408 |
| | | | | |
| 736 | 3792 | TOTAL | 608 | 2924 |

TOTAL XIN

N-S

1763

1827

1614

1617

1794

1794 10409 XING S/L

| Ped | Sch | Ped | Sch |
|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| 75 | 3 | 127 | 0 |
| 46 | 1 | 64 | 8 |
| 26 | 5 | 45 | 2 |
| 56 | 0 | 89 | 0 |
| 66 | 0 | 74 | 1 |
| 39 | 0 | 89 | 0 |
| | | | |
| 308 | 9 | 488 | 11 |

TOTAL XING W/L

XING E/L

XING N/L

| E-W | Ped | Sch | Ped | Sch |
|------|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| 1308 | 87 | 4 | 111 | 1 |
| 1289 | 49 | 2 | 50 | 3 |
| 1211 | 25 | 0 | 32 | 3 |
| 1240 | 82 | 0 | 60 | 0 |
| 1294 | 74 | 1 | 79 | 0 |
| 1542 | 59 | 0 | 57 | 1 |
| | | | | |
| 7884 | 376 | 7 | 389 | 8 |

National Data & Surveying Services

| Project ID: | 14-5018-0 | 02 | | TOTALS | | | | | | | Day: Wednesday | | | |
|----------------------|------------|-----------|--------|-------------------|----------|--------|----------|---------|--------|-----------------|----------------|--------|-------|--|
| City: | Los Angele | es | | | | AI | ALS M | | | Date: 1/15/2014 | | | | |
| NS/EW Streets: | A | lameda St | | Alameda St 7th St | | | | | | | | | | |
| | NC | ORTHBOUI | ND | SC | OUTHBOUI | ND | E | ASTBOUN | D | V | /ESTBOUN | ID | | |
| | NL | NT | NR | SL | ST | SR | EL | ET | ER | WL | WT | WR | TOTAL | |
| LANES: | 1 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 2 | 0 | | |
| 7:00 AM | 27 | 112 | 19 | 22 | 175 | 19 | 19 | 70 | 19 | 34 | 165 | 19 | 700 | |
| 7:15 AM | 28 | 123 | 20 | 25 | 191 | 30 | 15 | 66 | 29 | 29 | 160 | 20 | 736 | |
| 7:30 AM | 34 | 147 | 22 | 31 | 216 | 29 | 10 | 69 | 16 | 28 | 185 | 29 | 816 | |
| 7:45 AM | 25 | 154 | 21 | 35 | 211 | 47 | 18 | 76 | 23 | 26 | 161 | 22 | 819 | |
| 8:00 AM | 25 | 159 | 30 | 29 | 205 | 48 | 12 | 77 | 17 | 31 | 155 | 22 | 810 | |
| 8:15 AM | 22 | 143 | 17 | 28 | 213 | 38 | 16 | 78 | 23 | 30 | 141 | 22 | 771 | |
| 8:30 AM | 28 | 164 | 22 | 20 | 166 | 30 | 20 | 65 | 30 | 34 | 146 | 29 | 754 | |
| 8:45 AM | 24 | 135 | 25 | 25 | 191 | 40 | 20 | 92 | 32 | 26 | 151 | 20 | 781 | |
| 9:00 AM | 25 | 136 | 22 | 32 | 158 | 48 | 16 | 80 | 26 | 27 | 141 | 18 | 729 | |
| 9:15 AM | 26 | 140 | 18 | 31 | 170 | 32 | 15 | 64 | 29 | 30 | 147 | 21 | 723 | |
| 9:30 AM | 14 | 113 | 23 | 18 | 179 | 27 | 18 | 71 | 29 | 37 | 127 | 15 | 671 | |
| 9:45 AM | 27 | 142 | 17 | 21 | 160 | 35 | 9 | 57 | 36 | 28 | 141 | 29 | 702 | |
| | NL | NT | NR | SL | ST | SR | EL | ET | ER | WL | WT | WR | TOTAL | |
| TOTAL VOLUMES : | 305 | 1668 | 256 | 317 | 2235 | 423 | 188 | 865 | 309 | 360 | 1820 | 266 | 9012 | |
| APPROACH %'s : | 13.68% | 74.83% | 11.48% | 10.66% | 75.13% | 14.22% | 13.80% | 63.51% | 22.69% | 14.72% | 74.41% | 10.87% | | |
| PEAK HR START TIME : | 730 | AM | | | | | | | | | | | TOTAL | |
| PEAK HR VOL : | 106 | 603 | 90 | 123 | 845 | 162 | 56 | 300 | 79 | 115 | 642 | 95 | 3216 | |
| PEAK HR FACTOR : | | 0.933 | | | 0.964 | | | 0.929 | | | 0.880 | | 0.982 | |

National Data & Surveying Services

| | Project ID: | 14-5018-0 | 02 | | | | тот | AL C | | | Day: Wednesday | | | |
|---|----------------------|------------|-----------|--------|-------------------|----------|-------|--------|---------|--------|-----------------|-----------|--------|-------|
| | City: | Los Angele | es | | | | 101 | ALS | | | Date: 1/15/2014 | | | |
| | г | | | | | | PI | M | | | | | | 1 |
| | NS/EW Streets: | А | lameda St | | Alameda St 7th St | | | | | | | | | |
| | | NO | ORTHBOUI | ND | SC | DUTHBOUN | ID | E | ASTBOUN | D | W | /ESTBOUN | D | |
| | | NL | NT | NR | SL | ST | SR | EL | ET | ER | WL | WT | WR | TOTAL |
| | LANES: | 1 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 2 | 0 | |
| • | 3:00 PM | 23 | 150 | 20 | 27 | 158 | 17 | 22 | 117 | 32 | 18 | 91 | 27 | 702 |
| | 3:15 PM | 31 | 145 | 30 | 23 | 140 | 22 | 21 | 124 | 39 | 26 | 81 | 25 | 707 |
| | 3:30 PM | 22 | 129 | 17 | 38 | 183 | 16 | 31 | 118 | 43 | 25 | 82 | 20 | 724 |
| | 3:45 PM | 19 | 149 | 21 | 34 | 178 | 25 | 13 | 112 | 41 | 23 | 90 | 19 | 724 |
| | 4:00 PM | 30 | 168 | 27 | 28 | 194 | 16 | 21 | 123 | 46 | 23 | 95 | 19 | 790 |
| | 4:15 PM | 25 | 159 | 36 | 28 | 206 | 16 | 22 | 123 | 46 | 14 | 67 | 35 | 777 |
| | 4:30 PM | 22 | 163 | 18 | 27 | 186 | 12 | 15 | 156 | 46 | 19 | 94 | 19 | 777 |
| | 4:45 PM | 22 | 153 | 20 | 32 | 190 | 16 | 15 | 140 | 25 | 23 | 96 | 12 | 744 |
| | 5:00 PM | 23 | 188 | 29 | 33 | 160 | 13 | 24 | 142 | 29 | 22 | 97 | 26 | 786 |
| | 5:15 PM | 35 | 196 | 30 | 26 | 191 | 10 | 19 | 185 | 24 | 17 | 102 | 35 | 870 |
| | 5:30 PM | 21 | 173 | 25 | 25 | 185 | 11 | 20 | 213 | 33 | 20 | 110 | 29 | 865 |
| | 5:45 PM | 27 | 182 | 28 | 18 | 157 | 8 | 32 | 195 | 23 | 18 | 99 | 28 | 815 |
| • | | NL | NT | NR | SL | ST | SR | EL | ET | ER | WL | WT | WR | TOTAL |
| | TOTAL VOLUMES : | 300 | 1955 | 301 | 339 | 2128 | 182 | 255 | 1748 | 427 | 248 | 1104 | 294 | 9281 |
| | APPROACH %'s : | 11.74% | 76.49% | 11.78% | 12.80% | 80.33% | 6.87% | 10.49% | 71.93% | 17.57% | 15.07% | 67.07% | 17.86% | |
| ļ | PEAK HR START TIME : | 500 | PM | | | | | | | | | | | TOTAL |
| | PEAK HR VOL : | 106 | 739 | 112 | 102 | 693 | 42 | 95 | 735 | 109 | 77 | 408 | 118 | 3336 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 | PEAK HR FACTOR : | | 0.917 | | | 0.922 | | | 0.883 | | | 0.948 | | 0.959 |



| North/South | Alameda | St | | | | | | |
|--------------|----------|-------|------|------------|----------|----------|-------|-------|
| East/West | 8th St | | | | | | | |
| Day: | Thursday | Date: | | 02/07/2019 | Weather: | <u>1</u> | SUNNY | |
| Hours: | | | | Chekrs: | NDS | | | |
| School Day: | | Yes | | | I/S CO | DE _ | | |
| | N/B | | S/B | | E/B | | W/B | |
| DUAL- | | | | | | | | |
| WHEELED | 554 | | 530 | | 210 | | 207 | |
| BUSES | 6 | | 7 | | 0 | | 0 | |
| | N/B | TIME | S/B | TIME | E/B | TIME | W/B | TIME |
| AM PK 15 MIN | 256 | 9.30 | 244 | 8.00 | 57 | 7.15 | 60 | 9.00 |
| PM PK 15 MIN | 189 | 17.45 | 289 | 16.15 | 36 | 15.00 | 28 | 17.15 |
| AM PK HOUR | 949 | 7.15 | 901 | 8.00 | 199 | 7.15 | 190 | 8.15 |
| PM PK HOUR | 706 | 17.00 | 1090 | 15.45 | 110 | 15.00 | 91 | 16.30 |
| | | | | | | | | |

NORTHBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 46 | 859 | 20 | 925 |
| 8-9 | 38 | 851 | 28 | 917 |
| 9-10 | 49 | 766 | 30 | 845 |
| 15-16 | 12 | 631 | 14 | 657 |
| 16-17 | 9 | 622 | 18 | 649 |
| 17-18 | 7 | 667 | 32 | 706 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 161 | 4396 | 142 | 4699 |

SOUTHBOUND Approach

Hours 7-8 8-9 9-10 15-16 16-17 17-18

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 7 | 694 | 106 | 807 |
| 8-9 | 11 | 774 | 116 | 901 |
| 9-10 | 18 | 683 | 123 | 824 |
| 15-16 | 27 | 894 | 69 | 990 |
| 16-17 | 28 | 857 | 97 | 982 |
| 17-18 | 20 | 452 | 139 | 611 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 111 | 4354 | 650 | 5115 |

| TOTAL | XING S | S/L | | XING N/L | | | |
|-----------|-----------|-----|---|----------|-----|--|--|
| N-S | Ped | Sch | | Ped | Sch | | |
| 1732 | 20 | 1 | [| 4 | 1 | | |
| 1818 | 28 | 0 | [| 5 | 0 | | |
| 1669 | 65 | 1 | ſ | 1 | 0 | | |
| 1647 | 6 | 2 | ſ | 0 | 0 | | |
| 1631 | 6 | 0 | ſ | 3 | 0 | | |
| 1317 | 3 | 0 | ſ | 2 | 0 | | |
| · · · · · | · · · · · | | - | | | | |
| 9814 | 128 | 4 | ſ | 15 | 1 | | |

EASTBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|-----|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 96 | 41 | 55 | 192 |
| 8-9 | 93 | 41 | 38 | 172 |
| 9-10 | 100 | 41 | 54 | 195 |
| 15-16 | 60 | 16 | 34 | 110 |
| 16-17 | 39 | 25 | 19 | 83 |
| 17-18 | 45 | 24 | 15 | 84 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 433 | 188 | 215 | 836 |

WESTBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|-----|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 39 | 95 | 38 | 172 |
| 8-9 | 36 | 93 | 39 | 168 |
| 9-10 | 53 | 93 | 42 | 188 |
| 15-16 | 39 | 24 | 23 | 86 |
| 16-17 | 12 | 30 | 17 | 59 |
| 17-18 | 21 | 47 | 21 | 89 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 200 | 382 | 180 | 762 |

| 9814 | 128 | 4 | 15 | 1 |
|-------|------|-----|------|-----|
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | XING | W/L | XING | E/L |
| E-W | Ped | Sch | Ped | Sch |
| 364 | 18 | 1 | 22 | 2 |
| 340 | 17 | 1 | 18 | 0 |

1598

| 17 | 1 | 18 | 0 |
|----|---|----|----|
| 8 | 0 | 5 | 0 |
| 4 | 5 | 5 | 10 |
| 7 | 0 | 16 | 9 |
| 20 | 0 | 17 | 0 |
| | | | |
| 74 | 7 | 83 | 21 |

Alameda St & 8th St

Peak Hour Turning Movement Count



National Data & Surveying Services Intersection Turning Movement Count

| Location: City: Control: | Alameda S Los Angele Signalized | st & 8th St es | | | | | | | | | | | Pro | oject ID: Date: | 19-05065-0 2/7/2019 | 01 | |
|-----------------------------------|---------------------------------------|-------------------|----------|--------|----------|---------|----------|------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|---------|-----------|--------------------|------------------------|---------|---------------|
| - | | | | | | | | То | tal | | | | | | | | |
| NS/EW Streets: | | Alame | da St | | | Alame | da St | | | 8th | St | 8th St | | | | | |
| | | NORTH | BOUND | | | SOUTH | BOUND | | | EASTE | OUND | | WESTBOUND | | | | |
| AM | 0 | 3 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 3 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 0 | 0 | |
| | NL | NT | NR | NU | SL | ST | SR | SU | EL | ET | ER | EU | WL | WT | WR | WU | TOTAL |
| 7:00 AM | 10 | 194 | 7 | 1 | 1 | 145 | 24 | 0 | 17 | 7 | 9 | 0 | 9 | 33 | 10 | 0 | 467 |
| 7:15 AM | 17 | 211 | 2 | 0 | | 187 | 30 | 0 | 28 | 14 | 15 | 0 | 16 | 21 | 8 | 0 | 550 |
| 7:30 AIVI 7:45 AM | 10 | 240 | 4 | 0 | 4 | 104 | 20 | 0 | 20 | 12 | 14 | 0 | 6 | 22 | 0 | 0 | 547 |
| 8:00 AM | 10 | 220 | 6 | 0 | 2 | 204 | 38 | 0 | 20 | 9 | 11 | 0 | 9 | 19 | 10 | 0 | 558 |
| 8:15 AM | 8 | 212 | 7 | 0 | 0 | 203 | 22 | 0 | 24 | 10 | 6 | 0 | 10 | 31 | 10 | 0 | 543 |
| 8:30 AM | 8 | 195 | 6 | 0 | 6 | 167 | 27 | 0 | 24 | 10 | 11 | 0 | 5 | 18 | 9 | 0 | 486 |
| 8:45 AM | 12 | 224 | 9 | 0 | 3 | 200 | 29 | 0 | 25 | 12 | 10 | 0 | 12 | 25 | 10 | 0 | 571 |
| 9:00 AM | 6 | 182 | 4 | 0 | 5 | 170 | 31 | 0 | 30 | 9 | 10 | 0 | 8 | 32 | 20 | 0 | 507 |
| 9:15 AM | 1/ | 180 | 8 | 0 | 3 E | 178 | 30 | 0 | 21 | 10 | 10 | 0 | 12 | 18 | / | 0 | 500 |
| 9:45 AM | 10 | 174 | 8 | 0 | 5 | 161 | 26 | 0 | 17 | 15 | 16 | 0 | 16 | 28 | 6 | 0 | 482 |
| 7.107.11 | | | °. | Ŭ | Ŭ | | 20 | ° . | | | | | | 20 | | | 102 |
| | NL | NT | NR | NU | SL | ST | SR | SU | EL | ET | ER | EU | WL | WT | WR | WU | TOTAL |
| TOTAL VOLUMES : | 132 | 2476 | 78 | 1 | 36 | 2151 | 345 | 0 | 289 | 123 | 147 | 0 | 128 | 281 | 119 | 0 | 6306 |
| APPROACH %'s : | 4.91% | 92.15% | 2.90% | 0.04% | 1.42% | 84.95% | 13.63% | 0.00% | 51.70% | 22.00% | 26.30% | 0.00% | 24.24% | 53.22% | 22.54% | 0.00% | TOTAL |
| PEAK HR : | 46 | 07:15 AM - | 10 10 | 0 | 0 | 752 | 120 | 0 | 00 | 42 | 57 | 0 | 20 | 01 | 20 | 0 | 101AL 2197 |
| PEAK HR VUL : PEAK HR FACTOR : | 45 | 0 922 | 0.679 | 0 000 | 0 500 | /53 | 0 789 | 0 000 | 0.884 | 43 | 0.838 | 0 000 | 0.609 | 0 920 | 38 0.864 | 0 000 | 2187 |
| I LAK IIK I AOTOK . | 0.002 | 0.9 | 41 | 0.000 | 0.500 | 0.90 | 0.707 | 0.000 | 0.004 | 0.700 | 73 | 0.000 | 0.007 | 0.720 | 78 | 0.000 | 0.980 |
| · | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| DNA | | NORTH | BOUND | | | SOUTH | BOUND | | | EASTE | OUND | | | WEST | BOUND | | |
| PIVI | 0 | 3 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 3 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 0 | 0 | TOTAL |
| 3-00 PM | | 156 | | 1 | SL | 220 | 5R 16 | 50 | 21 | <u>EI</u> | <u>ER</u> | EU | 14 | 4 | WR 0 | WU | 101AL |
| 3.15 PM | 4 | 148 | 7 | 0 | 7 | 212 | 22 | 0 | 14 | 4 | 12 | 0 | 10 | 9 | 2 | 0 | 400 |
| 3:30 PM | 4 | 155 | 3 | 0 | 7 | 209 | 16 | 1 | 17 | 1 | 7 | 0 | 4 | 6 | 7 | 0 | 437 |
| 3:45 PM | 0 | 172 | 1 | 0 | 8 | 253 | 15 | 0 | 8 | 3 | 8 | 0 | 11 | 5 | 5 | 0 | 489 |
| 4:00 PM | 1 | 150 | 4 | 0 | 2 | 265 | 14 | 0 | 13 | 4 | 7 | 0 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 0 | 469 |
| 4:15 PM | 2 | 143 | 3 | 0 | 12 | 252 | 25 | 0 | 11 | 7 | 6 | 0 | 3 | 4 | 4 | 0 | 472 |
| 4:30 PIVI 4:45 PM | 4 | 159 | 2 | 1 | 5 | 120 | 20 | 1 | 0 | 5 | 4 | 0 | 2 | 12 | 5 | 0 | 454 |
| 5:00 PM | 3 | 161 | 7 | 0 | 6 | 126 | 38 | 0 | 10 | 9 | 6 | 0 | 4 | 14 | 6 | 0 | 390 |
| 5:15 PM | 1 | 149 | 12 | ō | 6 | 136 | 35 | ō | 9 | 4 | 4 | ō | 6 | 16 | 6 | ō | 384 |
| 5:30 PM | 2 | 174 | 8 | 0 | 6 | 99 | 36 | 0 | 14 | 4 | 1 | 0 | 3 | 10 | 6 | 0 | 363 |
| 5:45 PM | 1 | 183 | 5 | 0 | 2 | 91 | 30 | 0 | 12 | 7 | 4 | 0 | 8 | 7 | 3 | 0 | 353 |
| | NI | NT | ND | NUL | CI | CT. | CD | CI I | E1 | CT. | ED. | EU | 14/1 | WT. | WD. | 14/11 | TOTAL |
| TOTAL VOLUMES | NL 26 | 1920 | NR 64 | 2 | 5L 73 | 2203 | 305 | 2 | EL 144 | E1 65 | ER 68 | EU 0 | 72 | 101 | VVR 61 | WU 0 | 5106 |
| APPROACH %'s | 1.29% | 95.43% | 3.18% | 0.10% | 2.83% | 85.29% | 11.81% | ∠ 0.08% | 51.99% | 23.47% | 24.55% | 0.00% | 30.77% | 43.16% | 26.07% | 0.00% | 3100 |
| PEAK HR : | | 03:45 PM - | 04:45 PM | 2.1070 | 2.0070 | 22.2770 | | 2.0070 | 2///0 | | 2 | 2.0070 | | | | 2.0070 | TOTAL |
| PEAK HR VOL : | 7 | 624 | 16 | 0 | 30 | 980 | 80 | 0 | 38 | 23 | 25 | 0 | 21 | 24 | 16 | 0 | 1884 |
| PEAK HR FACTOR : | 0.438 | 0.907 | 0.500 | 0.000 | 0.625 | 0.925 | 0.769 | 0.000 | 0.731 | 0.639 | 0.781 | 0.000 | 0.477 | 0.500 | 0.800 | 0.000 | 0.963 |
| | | 0.9 | 35 | | | 0.94 | 43 | | | 0.8 | 96 | | | 0.7 | 26 | | 0.700 |



| STREET: North/South | Alameda | St | | | | | | | | |
|------------------------|----------------|-------|-----------|------|---------------|---------|-------|-------|------|-------|
| East/West | Olympic | Blvd | | | | | | | | |
| Day: | WEDNESDA | Υ | Date: | M | arch 20, 2013 | Weather | : | SUNNY | | |
| Hours: | 7-10AM & 3-6PM | | | | Chekrs: | NDS | | | | |
| School Day: | YES | | District: | - | | I/S CO | DDE | | | |
| DUAL | <u>N/B</u> | | - | S/B | | E/B | | | W/B | |
| WHEELED | 577 | | | 511 | | 506 | | | 379 | |
| BIKES | 21 | | | 22 | | 60 | | | 41 | |
| BUSES | 18 | | | 17 | | 53 | | | 57 | |
| | N/B | TIME | _ | S/B | TIME | E/B | TIME | | W/B | TIME |
| AM PK 15 MI | N 294 | 9.15 | | 300 | 9.15 | 264 | 9.30 | | 288 | 8.45 |
| PM PK 15 MI | N 284 | 17.45 | | 285 | 16.30 | 368 | 17.00 | | 257 | 17.15 |
| AM PK HOUI | R 1023 | 8.45 | 1 | 1040 | 8.45 | 997 | 8.45 | | 1071 | 7,15 |
| PM PK HOUI | R 1026 | 17.00 | 1 | 1087 | 16.15 | 1421 | 16.45 | | 934 | 17.00 |
| | | | | | | | | | | |

NORTHBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 101 | 592 | 73 | 766 |
| 8-9 | 128 | 711 | 87 | 926 |
| 9-10 | 150 | 714 | 142 | 1006 |
| 15-16 | 90 | 593 | 111 | 794 |
| 16-17 | 88 | 709 | 123 | 920 |
| 17-18 | 100 | 790 | 136 | 1026 |
| | - | | | |
| TOTAL | 657 | 4109 | 672 | 5438 |

SOUTHBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 89 | 613 | 79 | 781 |
| 8-9 | 104 | 684 | 138 | 926 |
| 9-10 | 145 | 690 | 137 | 972 |
| 15-16 | 122 | 829 | 114 | 1065 |
| 16-17 | 119 | 837 | 118 | 1074 |
| 17-18 | 105 | 815 | 97 | 1017 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 684 | 4468 | 683 | 5835 |

WESTBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 102 | 844 | 54 | 1000 |
| 8-9 | 127 | 845 | 66 | 1038 |
| 9-10 | 100 | 697 | 54 | 851 |
| 15-16 | 94 | 605 | 45 | 744 |
| 16-17 | 82 | 580 | 47 | 709 |
| 17-18 | 92 | 789 | 53 | 934 |
| TOTAL | 597 | 4360 | 319 | 5276 |

TOTAL XING S/L

-

TOTAL

XING N/L

| N-S | Ped | Sch | Ped | Sch |
|-------|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| 1547 | 13 | 17 | 17 | 0 |
| 1852 | 8 | 2 | 7 | 1 |
| 1978 | 5 | 2 | 8 | 0 |
| 1859 | 8 | 0 | 6 | 0 |
| 1994 | 14 | 0 | 15 | 0 |
| 2043 | 10 | 0 | 33 | 0 |
| 11273 | 58 | 21 | 86 | 1 |

XING W/L

XING E/L

| E-W | Ped | Sch | Ped | Sch |
|-------|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| 1666 | 96 | 5 | 15 | 6 |
| 1840 | 27 | 4 | 10 | 2 |
| 1832 | 15 | 0 | 13 | 0 |
| 1928 | 14 | 0 | 8 | 0 |
| 1946 | 21 | 0 | 21 | 0 |
| 2346 | 26 | 0 | 16 | 0 |
| | r | - | | - |
| 11558 | 199 | 9 | 83 | 8 |

EASTBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 64 | 548 | 54 | 666 |
| 8-9 | 76 | 661 | 65 | 802 |
| 9-10 | 109 | 781 | 91 | 981 |
| 15-16 | 82 | 1000 | 102 | 1184 |
| 16-17 | 99 | 1060 | 78 | 1237 |
| 17-18 | 80 | 1262 | 70 | 1412 |
| | | | | _ |
| TOTAL | 510 | 5312 | 460 | 6282 |

| STREET: North/South | Mateo St | | | | | | | | | |
|------------------------|----------------|-------|-----------|------------|--------|----------|-------|-------|-----|-------|
| East/West | 6th St | | | | | | | | | |
| Day: | TUESDAY | | Date: | June 17, 2 | 2014 | Weather: | | SUNNY | | |
| Hours: | 7-10AM & 3-6PM | | | С | hekrs: | NDS | _ | | | |
| School Day: | YES | E |)istrict: | _ | | I/S CO | DE | | | |
| DI AL- | N/B | | S/B | | | <u> </u> | | - | W/B | |
| WHEELED | 79 | | 84 | | | 127 | | | 58 | |
| BIKES | 19 | | 20 | | | 39 | | | 42 | |
| BUSES | 10 | | 18 | | | 87 | | | 101 | |
| | N/B | TIME | S/B | TIME | | E/B | TIME | - | W/B | TIME |
| AM PK 15 MI | N 39 | 7.45 | 68 | 8.00 | | 85 | 8.45 | | 243 | 7.30 |
| PM PK 15 MI | N 67 | 17.30 | 65 | 16.30 | | 263 | 17.15 | | 69 | 17.15 |
| AM PK HOUI | R 124 | 7.30 | 248 | 7.30 | | 299 | 7.30 | | 860 | 7.15 |
| PM PK HOU | R 204 | 17.00 | 201 | 16.30 | | 866 | 17.00 | | 256 | 17.00 |

NORTHBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|-----|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 39 | 65 | 6 | 110 |
| 8-9 | 31 | 72 | 11 | 114 |
| 9-10 | 36 | 67 | 7 | 110 |
| 15-16 | 37 | 94 | 21 | 152 |
| 16-17 | 19 | 80 | 23 | 122 |
| 17-18 | 42 | 123 | 39 | 204 |
| 17-18 | 42 | 123 | 39 | 20 |
| TOTAL | 204 | 501 | 107 | 812 |

EASTBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 37 | 147 | 84 | 268 |
| 8-9 | 50 | 159 | 83 | 292 |
| 9-10 | 46 | 163 | 74 | 283 |
| 15-16 | 53 | 385 | 79 | 517 |
| 16-17 | 58 | 542 | 70 | 670 |
| 17-18 | 62 | 734 | 70 | 866 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 306 | 2130 | 460 | 2896 |

SOUTHBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|-----|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 13 | 170 | 32 | 215 |
| 8-9 | 15 | 165 | 38 | 218 |
| 9-10 | 6 | 89 | 55 | 150 |
| 15-16 | 27 | 112 | 46 | 185 |
| 16-17 | 35 | 115 | 41 | 191 |
| 17-18 | 31 | 110 | 40 | 181 |
| 17-18 | 51 | TIU | 40 | 10 |
| TOTAL | 127 | 761 | 252 | 1140 |

WESTBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 38 | 722 | 70 | 830 |
| 8-9 | 36 | 620 | 61 | 717 |
| 9-10 | 9 | 311 | 41 | 361 |
| 15-16 | 6 | 161 | 19 | 186 |
| 16-17 | 21 | 177 | 16 | 214 |
| 17-18 | 13 | 218 | 25 | 256 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 123 | 2209 | 232 | 2564 |



146

0

51

0

5460



| STREET: North/South | Mateo St | | | | | | | |
|------------------------|-----------|---------|-----|----------------|-----------|-------|-------|-------|
| East/West | 7th St | | | | | | | |
| Day: | Wednesday | Date: | Jar | nuary 15, 2014 | Weather: | | SUNNY | |
| Hours: 7-10 | & 3-6 | | | Chekrs: | NDS | | | |
| School Day: | YES | Distric | :t: | | I/S CO | DE | | |
| DUAL- | N/B | | S/B | | E/B | | W/B | |
| WHEELED BIKES | 156 | | 142 | | 304 27 | | 283 | |
| BUSES | 12 | | 14 | | 143 | | 126 | |
| | N/B | TIME | S/B | TIME | E/B | TIME | W/B | TIME |
| AM PK 15 MIN | 69 | 9.45 | 75 | 8.00 | 129 | 9.00 | 233 | 7.30 |
| PM PK 15 MIN | 87 | 17.15 | 67 | 15.00 | 257 | 17.30 | 137 | 17.30 |
| AM PK HOUR | 235 | 9.00 | 282 | 7.45 | 473 | 8.45 | 875 | 7.15 |
| PM PK HOUR | 318 | 17.00 | 249 | 15.30 | 916 | 17.00 | 464 | 16.45 |

NORTHBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|-----|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 75 | 96 | 36 | 207 |
| 8-9 | 60 | 100 | 37 | 197 |
| 9-10 | 83 | 108 | 44 | 235 |
| 15-16 | 55 | 89 | 50 | 194 |
| 16-17 | 59 | 101 | 48 | 208 |
| 17-18 | 107 | 158 | 53 | 318 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 439 | 652 | 268 | 1359 |

SOUTHBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|-----|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 25 | 117 | 39 | 181 |
| 8-9 | 49 | 179 | 53 | 281 |
| 9-10 | 54 | 120 | 43 | 217 |
| 15-16 | 35 | 165 | 35 | 235 |
| 16-17 | 39 | 142 | 43 | 224 |
| 17-18 | 48 | 116 | 28 | 192 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 250 | 839 | 241 | 1330 |

WESTBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 76 | 748 | 32 | 856 |
| 8-9 | 91 | 693 | 41 | 825 |
| 9-10 | 44 | 669 | 41 | 754 |
| 15-16 | 33 | 364 | 22 | 419 |
| 16-17 | 33 | 346 | 26 | 405 |
| 17-18 | 45 | 382 | 30 | 457 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 322 | 3202 | 192 | 3716 |

TOTAL XING S/L

TOTAL

| L AING N/L |
|------------|
| L AING N/L |

| N-S | _ | Ped | Sch | Ped | Sch |
|------|---|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| 388 | | 28 | 0 | 11 | 0 |
| 478 | | 14 | 0 | 22 | 0 |
| 452 | | 14 | 0 | 9 | 0 |
| 429 | | 40 | 0 | 17 | 0 |
| 432 | | 40 | 0 | 13 | 0 |
| 510 | | 44 | 0 | 20 | 0 |
| | - | | | | |
| 2689 | | 180 | 0 | 92 | 0 |
| | | | | | |

XING W/L

XING E/L

| E-W | Ped | Sch | Ped | Sch |
|------|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| 1244 | 15 | 0 | 14 | 0 |
| 1277 | 32 | 0 | 14 | 0 |
| 1218 | 10 | 0 | 8 | 0 |
| 1083 | 36 | 0 | 14 | 0 |
| 1176 | 34 | 0 | 29 | 0 |
| 1373 | 21 | 0 | 34 | 0 |
| | | | | |
| 7371 | 148 | 0 | 113 | 0 |

EASTBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 22 | 304 | 62 | 388 |
| 8-9 | 28 | 366 | 58 | 452 |
| 9-10 | 33 | 382 | 49 | 464 |
| 15-16 | 55 | 548 | 61 | 664 |
| 16-17 | 57 | 658 | 56 | 771 |
| 17-18 | 63 | 790 | 63 | 916 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 258 | 3048 | 349 | 3655 |

National Data & Surveying Services

| | Project ID: | 14-5018-0 | 03 | | | | τοτι | Day: Wednesday | | | | | | | |
|---|----------------------|------------|----------|--------|----------|----------|--------|----------------|-----------------|--------|--------|-----------------|-------|-------|--|
| | City: | Los Angele | es | | АМ | | | | | | | Date: 1/15/2014 | | | |
| | NS/EW Streets: | | Mateo St | | Mateo St | | | 7th St | | | 7th St | | | | |
| 1 | | NC | DRTHBOUI | ND | SC | DUTHBOUI | ND | E | ASTBOUN | D | V | /ESTBOUNI | D | | |
| | | NL | NT | NR | SL | ST | SR | EL | ET | ER | WL | WT | WR | TOTAL | |
| | LANES: | 0 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 0 | 1 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 2 | 0 | | |
| 1 | 7:00 AM | 18 | 19 | 9 | 6 | 16 | 8 | 4 | 78 | 10 | 18 | 177 | 7 | 370 | |
| | 7:15 AM | 12 | 25 | 8 | 4 | 29 | 12 | 8 | 72 | 15 | 20 | 193 | 4 | 402 | |
| | 7:30 AM | 18 | 29 | 12 | 5 | 29 | 8 | 6 | 81 | 17 | 21 | 201 | 11 | 438 | |
| | 7:45 AM | 27 | 23 | 7 | 10 | 43 | 11 | 4 | 73 | 20 | 17 | 177 | 10 | 422 | |
| | 8:00 AM | 13 | 26 | 17 | 6 | 55 | 14 | 10 | 87 | 17 | 23 | 185 | 13 | 466 | |
| | 8:15 AM | 12 | 31 | 8 | 13 | 47 | 11 | 5 | 95 | 17 | 30 | 167 | 9 | 445 | |
| | 8:30 AM | 16 | 23 | 5 | 13 | 47 | 12 | 6 | 89 | 9 | 19 | 176 | 10 | 425 | |
| | 8:45 AM | 19 | 20 | 7 | 17 | 30 | 16 | 7 | 9 5 | 15 | 19 | 165 | 9 | 419 | |
| | 9:00 AM | 14 | 26 | 7 | 14 | 26 | 14 | 8 | 108 | 13 | 11 | 163 | 8 | 412 | |
| | 9:15 AM | 20 | 21 | 16 | 12 | 38 | 10 | 8 | <mark>98</mark> | 12 | 10 | 175 | 9 | 429 | |
| | 9:30 AM | 18 | 32 | 12 | 15 | 31 | 6 | 7 | 91 | 11 | 15 | 159 | 8 | 405 | |
| | 9:45 AM | 31 | 29 | 9 | 13 | 25 | 13 | 10 | 85 | 13 | 8 | 172 | 16 | 424 | |
| | | NL | NT | NR | SL | ST | SR | EL | ET | ER | WL | WT | WR | TOTAL | |
| | TOTAL VOLUMES : | 218 | 304 | 117 | 128 | 416 | 135 | 83 | 1052 | 169 | 211 | 2110 | 114 | 5057 | |
| | APPROACH %'s : | 34.12% | 47.57% | 18.31% | 18.85% | 61.27% | 19.88% | 6.37% | 80.67% | 12.96% | 8.67% | 86.65% | 4.68% | | |
| | PEAK HR START TIME : | 730 | AM | | | | | | | | | | | TOTAL | |
| | PEAK HR VOL : | 70 | 109 | 44 | 34 | 174 | 44 | 25 | 336 | 71 | 91 | 730 | 43 | 1771 | |
| | PEAK HR FACTOR : | | 0.945 | | | 0.840 | | | 0.923 | | | 0.927 | | 0.950 | |

National Data & Surveying Services

| | Project ID: | 14-5018-0 | 03 | | | | тот | Day: Wednesday | | | | | | | |
|---|----------------------|------------|----------|--------|-----------------|----------|--------|----------------|---------|-------|-------|-----------------|-------|-------|--|
| | City: | Los Angele | es | | PM | | | | | | | Date: 1/15/2014 | | | |
| | NS/EW Streets: | | Mateo St | | Mateo St 7th St | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 | | NO | ORTHBOUI | ND | SC | DUTHBOUI | ND | E | ASTBOUN |) | V | VESTBOUN | D | | |
| | | NL | NT | NR | SL | ST | SR | EL | ΕT | ER | WL | WT | WR | TOTAL | |
| | LANES: | 0 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 0 | 1 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 2 | 0 | | |
| | 3:00 PM | 18 | 17 | 16 | 16 | 39 | 12 | 11 | 131 | 18 | 10 | 93 | 11 | 392 | |
| | 3:15 PM | 11 | 29 | 12 | 8 | 27 | 7 | 14 | 138 | 14 | 8 | 88 | 0 | 356 | |
| | 3:30 PM | 16 | 19 | 16 | 7 | 50 | 9 | 17 | 141 | 17 | 11 | 83 | 8 | 394 | |
| | 3:45 PM | 10 | 24 | 6 | 4 | 49 | 7 | 13 | 138 | 12 | 4 | 100 | 3 | 370 | |
| | 4:00 PM | 17 | 32 | 17 | 11 | 39 | 7 | 12 | 154 | 14 | 11 | 97 | 10 | 421 | |
| | 4:15 PM | 16 | 16 | 11 | 9 | 41 | 16 | 16 | 157 | 15 | 7 | 71 | 7 | 382 | |
| | 4:30 PM | 7 | 30 | 10 | 10 | 37 | 10 | 15 | 179 | 14 | 8 | 91 | 6 | 417 | |
| | 4:45 PM | 19 | 23 | 10 | 9 | 25 | 10 | 14 | 168 | 13 | 7 | 87 | 3 | 388 | |
| | 5:00 PM | 27 | 33 | 18 | 17 | 33 | 11 | 10 | 175 | 9 | 16 | 84 | 10 | 443 | |
| | 5:15 PM | 26 | 50 | 11 | 9 | 27 | 7 | 21 | 183 | 20 | 10 | 102 | 8 | 474 | |
| | 5:30 PM | 23 | 44 | 11 | 17 | 31 | 3 | 15 | 228 | 14 | 13 | 119 | 5 | 523 | |
| | 5:45 PM | 31 | 31 | 13 | 5 | 25 | 7 | 17 | 204 | 20 | 6 | 77 | 7 | 443 | |
| ę | | NL | NT | NR | SL | ST | SR | EL | ET | ER | WL | WT | WR | TOTAL | |
| | TOTAL VOLUMES : | 221 | 348 | 151 | 122 | 423 | 106 | 175 | 1996 | 180 | 111 | 1092 | 78 | 5003 | |
| | APPROACH %'s : | 30.69% | 48.33% | 20.97% | 18.74% | 64.98% | 16.28% | 7.44% | 84.90% | 7.66% | 8.67% | 85.25% | 6.09% | | |
| | PEAK HR START TIME : | 500 | PM | | | | | | | | | | | TOTAL | |
| | | 107 | 159 | 52 | 19 | 116 | 29 | 63 | 790 | 62 | 45 | 202 | 20 | 1002 | |
| | PLAN HR VUL : | 107 | 100 | 55 | 40 | 110 | 20 | 03 | 790 | 03 | 40 | 302 | 30 | 1005 | |
| 1 | PEAK HR FACTOR : | | 0.914 | | | 0.787 | | | 0.891 | | | 0.834 | | 0.900 | |

City of Los Angeles N/S: Mateo Street E/W: Olympic Boulevard Weather: Clear

| | Groups Printed- Passenge | er Vehicles - Dual Wheeled - Buses |
|--|--------------------------|------------------------------------|
|--|--------------------------|------------------------------------|

| | | Mateo | o Street | : | 0 | lympic | ympic Boulevard Mateo Street | | | | | | Olympic Boulevard | | | | |
|----------------------|------|-------|----------|------------|------|--------|------------------------------|------------|------|-------|--------|------------|-------------------|------|--------|------------|------------|
| | | South | nbound | | | Wes | tbound | | | North | nbound | | | East | tbound | | |
| Start Time | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Int. Total |
| 07:00 AM | 40 | 2 | 96 | 138 | 2 | 206 | 19 | 227 | 0 | 2 | 2 | 4 | 23 | 83 | 1 | 107 | 476 |
| 07:15 AM | 43 | 0 | 74 | 117 | 0 | 209 | 16 | 225 | 0 | 2 | 1 | 3 | 21 | 67 | 2 | 90 | 435 |
| 07:30 AM | 46 | 0 | 67 | 113 | 0 | 235 | 18 | 253 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 24 | 105 | 0 | 129 | 496 |
| 07:45 AM | 53 | 2 | 84 | 139 | 0 | 237 | 27 | 264 | 2 | 1 | 0 | 3 | 22 | 121 | 4 | 147 | 553 |
| Total | 182 | 4 | 321 | 507 | 2 | 887 | 80 | 969 | 3 | 5 | 3 | 11 | 90 | 376 | 7 | 473 | 1960 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 08:00 AM | 56 | 3 | 66 | 125 | 1 | 201 | 31 | 233 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 1 | 21 | 120 | 1 | 142 | 501 |
| 08:15 AM | 50 | 0 | 72 | 122 | 0 | 242 | 24 | 266 | 0 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 23 | 130 | 0 | 153 | 544 |
| 08:30 AM | 37 | 1 | 74 | 112 | 0 | 197 | 23 | 220 | 0 | 1 | 1 | 2 | 32 | 104 | 2 | 138 | 472 |
| 08:45 AM | 40 | 1 | 63 | 104 | 1 | 218 | 24 | 243 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 25 | 99 | 1 | 125 | 473 |
| Total | 183 | 5 | 275 | 463 | 2 | 858 | 102 | 962 | 1 | 4 | 2 | 7 | 101 | 453 | 4 | 558 | 1990 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | 1 | | | | | |
| 09:00 AM | 34 | 2 | 71 | 107 | 0 | 217 | 23 | 240 | 1 | 2 | 2 | 5 | 18 | 120 | 1 | 139 | 491 |
| 09:15 AM | 41 | 1 | 71 | 113 | 0 | 197 | 24 | 221 | 0 | 2 | 0 | 2 | 18 | 125 | 1 | 144 | 480 |
| 09:30 AM | 32 | 0 | 71 | 103 | 1 | 166 | 24 | 191 | 0 | 1 | 0 | 1 | 29 | 117 | 1 | 147 | 442 |
| 09:45 AM | 37 | 1 | 64 | 102 | 2 | 188 | 17 | 207 | 1 | 1 | 1 | 3 | 25 | 132 | 5 | 162 | 474 |
| Total | 144 | 4 | 277 | 425 | 3 | 768 | 88 | 859 | 2 | 6 | 3 | 11 | 90 | 494 | 8 | 592 | 1887 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Grand Total | 509 | 13 | 873 | 1395 | 7 | 2513 | 270 | 2790 | 6 | 15 | 8 | 29 | 281 | 1323 | 19 | 1623 | 5837 |
| Apprch % | 36.5 | 0.9 | 62.6 | | 0.3 | 90.1 | 9.7 | | 20.7 | 51.7 | 27.6 | | 17.3 | 81.5 | 1.2 | | |
| Total % | 8.7 | 0.2 | 15 | 23.9 | 0.1 | 43.1 | 4.6 | 47.8 | 0.1 | 0.3 | 0.1 | 0.5 | 4.8 | 22.7 | 0.3 | 27.8 | |
| Passenger Vehicles | 419 | 7 | 781 | 1207 | 5 | 2265 | 195 | 2465 | 3 | 9 | 4 | 16 | 213 | 1136 | 11 | 1360 | 5048 |
| % Passenger Vehicles | 82.3 | 53.8 | 89.5 | 86.5 | 71.4 | 90.1 | 72.2 | 88.4 | 50 | 60 | 50 | 55.2 | 75.8 | 85.9 | 57.9 | 83.8 | 86.5 |
| Dual Wheeled | 90 | 6 | 91 | 187 | 2 | 227 | 74 | 303 | 3 | 6 | 4 | 13 | 67 | 161 | 8 | 236 | 739 |
| % Dual Wheeled | 17.7 | 46.2 | 10.4 | 13.4 | 28.6 | 9 | 27.4 | 10.9 | 50 | 40 | 50 | 44.8 | 23.8 | 12.2 | 42.1 | 14.5 | 12.7 |
| Buses | 0 | 0 | 1 | 1 | 0 | 21 | 1 | 22 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 26 | 0 | 27 | 50 |
| % Buses | 0 | 0 | 0.1 | 0.1 | 0 | 0.8 | 0.4 | 0.8 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0.4 | 2 | 0 | 1.7 | 0.9 |

| | | Mateo | Street | | С | lympic | Boulev | ard | | Mate | o Street | | C | Dlympic | Bouleva | ard | |
|---------------|-----------|----------|---------|------------|---------|-----------|--------|------------|------|-------|----------|------------|------|---------|---------|------------|------------|
| | | South | nbound | | | West | tbound | | | North | nbound | | | East | tbound | | |
| Start Time | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Int. Total |
| Peak Hour Ana | alysis Fr | om 07: | 30 AM t | o 08:15 A | M - Pea | ak 1 of ' | 1 | | | | | | | | | | |
| Peak Hour for | Entire In | itersect | ion Beg | ins at 07: | 30 AM | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 07:30 AM | 46 | 0 | 67 | 113 | 0 | 235 | 18 | 253 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 24 | 105 | 0 | 129 | 496 |
| 07:45 AM | 53 | 2 | 84 | 139 | 0 | 237 | 27 | 264 | 2 | 1 | 0 | 3 | 22 | 121 | 4 | 147 | 553 |
| 08:00 AM | 56 | 3 | 66 | 125 | 1 | 201 | 31 | 233 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 1 | 21 | 120 | 1 | 142 | 501 |
| 08:15 AM | 50 | 0 | 72 | 122 | 0 | 242 | 24 | 266 | 0 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 23 | 130 | 0 | 153 | 544 |
| Total Volume | 205 | 5 | 289 | 499 | 1 | 915 | 100 | 1016 | 3 | 4 | 1 | 8 | 90 | 476 | 5 | 571 | 2094 |
| % App. Total | 41.1 | 1 | 57.9 | | 0.1 | 90.1 | 9.8 | | 37.5 | 50 | 12.5 | | 15.8 | 83.4 | 0.9 | | |
| PHF | .915 | .417 | .860 | .897 | .250 | .945 | .806 | .955 | .375 | .333 | .250 | .667 | .938 | .915 | .313 | .933 | .947 |

City of Los Angeles N/S: Mateo Street E/W: Olympic Boulevard Weather: Clear File Name : LACMAOLAM Site Code : 16614156 Start Date : 4/10/2014 Page No : 2



Peak Hour Analysis From 07:30 AM to 08:15 AM - Peak 1 of 1 Peak Hour for Each Approach Begins at:

| | 07:30 AM | • | | | 07:30 AN | | | | 07:30 AN | 1 | | | 07:30 AN | 1 | | |
|--------------|----------|------|------|------|----------|------|------|------|----------|------|------|------|----------|------|------|------|
| +0 mins. | 46 | 0 | 67 | 113 | 0 | 235 | 18 | 253 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 24 | 105 | 0 | 129 |
| +15 mins. | 53 | 2 | 84 | 139 | 0 | 237 | 27 | 264 | 2 | 1 | 0 | 3 | 22 | 121 | 4 | 147 |
| +30 mins. | 56 | 3 | 66 | 125 | 1 | 201 | 31 | 233 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 1 | 21 | 120 | 1 | 142 |
| +45 mins. | 50 | 0 | 72 | 122 | 0 | 242 | 24 | 266 | 0 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 23 | 130 | 0 | 153 |
| Total Volume | 205 | 5 | 289 | 499 | 1 | 915 | 100 | 1016 | 3 | 4 | 1 | 8 | 90 | 476 | 5 | 571 |
| % App. Total | 41.1 | 1 | 57.9 | | 0.1 | 90.1 | 9.8 | | 37.5 | 50 | 12.5 | | 15.8 | 83.4 | 0.9 | |
| PHF | .915 | .417 | .860 | .897 | .250 | .945 | .806 | .955 | .375 | .333 | .250 | .667 | .938 | .915 | .313 | .933 |

City of Los Angeles N/S: Mateo Street E/W: Olympic Boulevard Weather: Clear

| | Groups Printed- Passend | er Vehicles - Dual Wheeled - Buses |
|--|-------------------------|------------------------------------|
|--|-------------------------|------------------------------------|

| | | Mate | o Street | : | 0 | lympic | Bouleva | ard | | Mate | o Street | t | C | lympic | Boulev | ard | |
|----------------------|------|------|----------|------------|------|--------|---------|------------|------|------|----------|------------|------|--------|--------|------------|------------|
| | | Sout | hbound | | | Wes | tbound | | | Nort | hbound | | | East | tbound | | |
| Start Time | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Int. Total |
| 03:00 PM | 49 | 1 | 42 | 92 | 1 | 149 | 27 | 177 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 26 | 178 | 3 | 207 | 477 |
| 03:15 PM | 54 | 0 | 43 | 97 | 0 | 129 | 16 | 145 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 1 | 31 | 207 | 3 | 241 | 484 |
| 03:30 PM | 52 | 0 | 39 | 91 | 0 | 159 | 19 | 178 | 1 | 2 | 0 | 3 | 24 | 218 | 1 | 243 | 515 |
| 03:45 PM | 45 | 0 | 34 | 79 | 0 | 148 | 34 | 182 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 25 | 216 | 0 | 241 | 502 |
| Total | 200 | 1 | 158 | 359 | 1 | 585 | 96 | 682 | 2 | 2 | 1 | 5 | 106 | 819 | 7 | 932 | 1978 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 04:00 PM | 49 | 1 | 47 | 97 | 3 | 162 | 23 | 188 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 33 | 213 | 0 | 246 | 532 |
| 04:15 PM | 46 | 2 | 45 | 93 | 1 | 158 | 11 | 170 | 0 | 1 | 4 | 5 | 26 | 214 | 0 | 240 | 508 |
| 04:30 PM | 51 | 0 | 37 | 88 | 2 | 155 | 19 | 176 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 38 | 228 | 0 | 266 | 530 |
| 04:45 PM | 48 | 2 | 37 | 87 | 2 | 137 | 18 | 157 | 1 | 0 | 2 | 3 | 20 | 251 | 0 | 271 | 518 |
| Total | 194 | 5 | 166 | 365 | 8 | 612 | 71 | 691 | 2 | 1 | 6 | 9 | 117 | 906 | 0 | 1023 | 2088 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 05:00 PM | 48 | 4 | 67 | 119 | 2 | 168 | 11 | 181 | 0 | 2 | 1 | 3 | 40 | 242 | 0 | 282 | 585 |
| 05:15 PM | 32 | 2 | 56 | 90 | 1 | 125 | 15 | 141 | 0 | 0 | 2 | 2 | 25 | 197 | 0 | 222 | 455 |
| 05:30 PM | 52 | 3 | 74 | 129 | 1 | 172 | 18 | 191 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 29 | 263 | 3 | 295 | 616 |
| 05:45 PM | 51 | 0 | 66 | 117 | 0 | 167 | 13 | 180 | 1 | 1 | 0 | 2 | 26 | 254 | 0 | 280 | 579 |
| Total | 183 | 9 | 263 | 455 | 4 | 632 | 57 | 693 | 2 | 3 | 3 | 8 | 120 | 956 | 3 | 1079 | 2235 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Grand Total | 577 | 15 | 587 | 1179 | 13 | 1829 | 224 | 2066 | 6 | 6 | 10 | 22 | 343 | 2681 | 10 | 3034 | 6301 |
| Apprch % | 48.9 | 1.3 | 49.8 | | 0.6 | 88.5 | 10.8 | | 27.3 | 27.3 | 45.5 | | 11.3 | 88.4 | 0.3 | | |
| Total % | 9.2 | 0.2 | 9.3 | 18.7 | 0.2 | 29 | 3.6 | 32.8 | 0.1 | 0.1 | 0.2 | 0.3 | 5.4 | 42.5 | 0.2 | 48.2 | |
| Passenger Vehicles | 514 | 9 | 514 | 1037 | 6 | 1716 | 184 | 1906 | 5 | 3 | 6 | 14 | 305 | 2533 | 5 | 2843 | 5800 |
| % Passenger Vehicles | 89.1 | 60 | 87.6 | 88 | 46.2 | 93.8 | 82.1 | 92.3 | 83.3 | 50 | 60 | 63.6 | 88.9 | 94.5 | 50 | 93.7 | 92 |
| Dual Wheeled | 62 | 6 | 71 | 139 | 7 | 80 | 39 | 126 | 1 | 3 | 4 | 8 | 37 | 126 | 5 | 168 | 441 |
| % Dual Wheeled | 10.7 | 40 | 12.1 | 11.8 | 53.8 | 4.4 | 17.4 | 6.1 | 16.7 | 50 | 40 | 36.4 | 10.8 | 4.7 | 50 | 5.5 | 7 |
| Buses | 1 | 0 | 2 | 3 | 0 | 33 | 1 | 34 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 22 | 0 | 23 | 60 |
| % Buses | 0.2 | 0 | 0.3 | 0.3 | 0 | 1.8 | 0.4 | 1.6 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0.3 | 0.8 | 0 | 0.8 | 1 |

| | | Mateo | Street | | С | lympic | Boulev | ard | | Mate | o Street | | C | lympic | Boulev | ard | |
|-----------------|-----------|----------|---------|------------|---------|-----------|--------|------------|------|-------|----------|------------|------|--------|--------|------------|------------|
| | | South | nbound | | | West | tbound | | | North | nbound | | | East | bound | | |
| Start Time | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Int. Total |
| Peak Hour Ana | alysis Fr | om 05:0 | 00 PM t | o 05:45 P | M - Pea | ak 1 of ' | 1 | | | | - | | | | - | | |
| Peak Hour for I | Entire In | ntersect | ion Beg | ins at 05: | 00 PM | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 05:00 PM | 48 | 4 | 67 | 119 | 2 | 168 | 11 | 181 | 0 | 2 | 1 | 3 | 40 | 242 | 0 | 282 | 585 |
| 05:15 PM | 32 | 2 | 56 | 90 | 1 | 125 | 15 | 141 | 0 | 0 | 2 | 2 | 25 | 197 | 0 | 222 | 455 |
| 05:30 PM | 52 | 3 | 74 | 129 | 1 | 172 | 18 | 191 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 29 | 263 | 3 | 295 | 616 |
| 05:45 PM | 51 | 0 | 66 | 117 | 0 | 167 | 13 | 180 | 1 | 1 | 0 | 2 | 26 | 254 | 0 | 280 | 579 |
| Total Volume | 183 | 9 | 263 | 455 | 4 | 632 | 57 | 693 | 2 | 3 | 3 | 8 | 120 | 956 | 3 | 1079 | 2235 |
| % App. Total | 40.2 | 2 | 57.8 | | 0.6 | 91.2 | 8.2 | | 25 | 37.5 | 37.5 | | 11.1 | 88.6 | 0.3 | | |
| PHF | .880 | .563 | .889 | .882 | .500 | .919 | .792 | .907 | .500 | .375 | .375 | .667 | .750 | .909 | .250 | .914 | .907 |

City of Los Angeles N/S: Mateo Street E/W: Olympic Boulevard Weather: Clear File Name : LACMAOLPM Site Code : 16614156 Start Date : 4/10/2014 Page No : 2



Peak Hour Analysis From 05:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1 Peak Hour for Each Approach Begins at:

| | | | | 0 0.0. | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|--------------|----------|------|------|--------|----------|------|------|------|----------|------|------|------|----------|------|------|------|
| | 05:00 PM | | | | 05:00 PN | 1 | | | 05:00 PN | 1 | | | 05:00 PN | 1 | | |
| +0 mins. | 48 | 4 | 67 | 119 | 2 | 168 | 11 | 181 | 0 | 2 | 1 | 3 | 40 | 242 | 0 | 282 |
| +15 mins. | 32 | 2 | 56 | 90 | 1 | 125 | 15 | 141 | 0 | 0 | 2 | 2 | 25 | 197 | 0 | 222 |
| +30 mins. | 52 | 3 | 74 | 129 | 1 | 172 | 18 | 191 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 29 | 263 | 3 | 295 |
| +45 mins. | 51 | 0 | 66 | 117 | 0 | 167 | 13 | 180 | 1 | 1 | 0 | 2 | 26 | 254 | 0 | 280 |
| Total Volume | 183 | 9 | 263 | 455 | 4 | 632 | 57 | 693 | 2 | 3 | 3 | 8 | 120 | 956 | 3 | 1079 |
| % App. Total | 40.2 | 2 | 57.8 | | 0.6 | 91.2 | 8.2 | | 25 | 37.5 | 37.5 | | 11.1 | 88.6 | 0.3 | |
| PHF | .880 | .563 | .889 | .882 | .500 | .919 | .792 | .907 | .500 | .375 | .375 | .667 | .750 | .909 | .250 | .914 |



| STREET: North/South | Santa Fe | Ave | | _ | | | | | | |
|------------------------|----------------|-------|-----------|-----|--------------|-----------|-------|-------|-----------|-------|
| East/West | 7th St | | | _ | | | | | | |
| Day: | TUESDAY | C | Date: | J | une 17, 2014 | Weather: | | SUNNY | | |
| Hours: | 7-10AM & 3-6PM | | | | Chekrs: | NDS | _ | | | |
| School Day: | YES | C |)istrict: | ÷ | | I/S CO | DE | | | |
| DUAL- | N/B | | 5 | S/B | | E/B | | - | W/B | |
| WHEELED | 309 20 | | 1 | 77 | | 365 13 | | | 431 18 | |
| BUSES | 80 | | | 2 | | 131 | | | 55 | |
| | N/B | TIME | S | S/B | TIME | É/B | TIME | | W/B | TIME |
| AM PK 15 MI | N 149 | 7.30 | | 64 | 8.45 | 137 | 9.45 | | 285 | 7.45 |
| PM PK 15 MI | N 168 | 17.30 | 1 | 01 | 16.30 | 234 | 17.45 | | 166 | 17.00 |
| AM PK HOUF | R 546 | 7.15 | 2 | 202 | 8.45 | 475 | 9.00 | | 1032 | 7.30 |
| PM PK HOUR | R 574 | 17.00 | 3 | 63 | 16.30 | 865 | 17.00 | | 562 | 16.30 |

NORTHBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 150 | 268 | 102 | 520 |
| 8-9 | 125 | 220 | 145 | 490 |
| 9-10 | 127 | 197 | 137 | 461 |
| 15-16 | 117 | 197 | 157 | 471 |
| 16-17 | 119 | 263 | 156 | 538 |
| 17-18 | 101 | 318 | 155 | 574 |
| | | _ | _ | - |
| TOTAL | 739 | 1463 | 852 | 3054 |

SOUTHBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|----|-------|
| 7-8 | 21 | 80 | 10 | 111 |
| 8-9 | 40 | 120 | 12 | 172 |
| 9-10 | 20 | 143 | 13 | 176 |
| 15-16 | 43 | 258 | 14 | 315 |
| 16-17 | 63 | 269 | 14 | 346 |
| 17-18 | 55 | 254 | 22 | 331 |
| | | | - | |
| TOTAL | 242 | 1124 | 85 | 1451 |

WESTBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt 1 | Fotal |
|-------|------|------|------|-------|
| 7-8 | 224 | 666 | 119 | 1009 |
| 8-9 | 184 | 671 | 122 | 977 |
| 9-10 | 196 | 569 | 91 | 856 |
| 15-16 | 163 | 263 | 45 | 471 |
| 16-17 | 172 | 274 | 37 | 483 |
| 17-18 | 199 | 302 | 54 | 555 |
| TOTAL | 1138 | 2745 | 468 | 4351 |

| TOTAL | XING | S/L |
|-------|------|-----|
| N-S | Ped | Sch |
| 631 | 7 | 0 |
| 662 | 10 | 0 |
| 637 | 18 | 0 |
| 786 | 21 | 0 |
| 884 | 16 | 0 |
| 905 | 30 | 0 |
| 4505 | 102 | 0 |

Ped Sch 7 0 5 0 5 0 12 0 2 0 16 0

XING N/L

TOTAL XING W/L

Ped

8

16

13

21

13

18

89

E-W

1406

1405

1331

1136

1243

1420

7941

XING E/L

| Sch | Ped | Sch |
|-----|-----|-----|
| 0 | 0 | 0 |
| 0 | 0 | 0 |
| 0 | 0 | 0 |
| 0 | 0 | 0 |
| 0 | 0 | 0 |
| 0 | 0 | 0 |
| | - | |
| 0 | 0 | 0 |

EASTBOUND Approach

| Hours | L | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 16 | 270 | 111 | 397 |
| 8-9 | 17 | 316 | 95 | 428 |
| 9-10 | 19 | 368 | 88 | 475 |
| 15-16 | 23 | 505 | 137 | 665 |
| 16-17 | 22 | 588 | 150 | 760 |
| 17-18 | 27 | 665 | 173 | 865 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 124 | 2712 | 754 | 3590 |



| STREET: North/South | Santa Fe Av | e | | | | | | | |
|------------------------|-------------|-----------|-----|---------------|----------|-------|----------|-----|-------|
| East/West | 8th St | | | | | | <u> </u> | | |
| Day: | Wednesday | Date: | Jar | uary 15, 2014 | Weather: | | SUNNY | | |
| Hours: 7-10 | & 3-6 | | | Chekrs: | NDS | | | | |
| School Day: | YES | District: | _ | | I/S CO | DE | | | |
| DUAL- | N/B | | S/B | | E/B | | _ | W/B | |
| WHEELED | 377 | | 354 | | 340 | | | 11 | |
| BIKES | 14 | | 26 | | 0 | | | 1 | |
| BUSES | 100 | | 88 | | 2 | | | 0 | |
| | N/B | TIME | S/B | TIME | E/B | TIME | | W/B | TIME |
| AM PK 15 MIN | 217 | 8.30 | 148 | 7.45 | 115 | 7.45 | | 13 | 8.00 |
| PM PK 15 MIN | 184 | 17.15 | 195 | 15.30 | 133 | 17.30 | | 15 | 16.30 |
| AM PK HOUR | 799 | 8.00 | 546 | 7.30 | 392 | 7.00 | | 36 | 7.45 |
| PM PK HOUR | 704 | 16.45 | 696 | 16.30 | 444 | 17.00 | | 39 | 15.00 |

NORTHBOUND Approach

EASTBOUND Approach

Lt

20

27

50

40

43

47

227

Hours

7-8

8-9

9-10

15-16

16-17

17-18

TOTAL

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|------|------|----|-------|
| 7-8 | 238 | 513 | 14 | 765 |
| 8-9 | 259 | 525 | 15 | 799 |
| 9-10 | 205 | 419 | 14 | 638 |
| 15-16 | 236 | 399 | 13 | 648 |
| 16-17 | 274 | 387 | 11 | 672 |
| 17-18 | 219 | 469 | 12 | 700 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 1431 | 2712 | 79 | 4222 |

Th

9

6

5

9

16

14

59

Rt

363

251

275

304

274

383

1850

Total

392

284

330

353

333

444

2136

SOUTHBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 17 | 325 | 178 | 520 |
| 8-9 | 7 | 316 | 152 | 475 |
| 9-10 | 12 | 321 | 133 | 466 |
| 15-16 | 9 | 421 | 164 | 594 |
| 16-17 | 13 | 465 | 148 | 626 |
| 17-18 | 5 | 487 | 179 | 671 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 63 | 2335 | 954 | 3352 |

WESTBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|----|----|----|-------|
| 7-8 | 3 | 4 | 11 | 18 |
| 8-9 | 7 | 7 | 20 | 34 |
| 9-10 | 2 | 6 | 11 | 19 |
| 15-16 | 12 | 6 | 21 | 39 |
| 16-17 | 13 | 8 | 16 | 37 |
| 17-18 | 9 | 7 | 15 | 31 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 46 | 38 | 94 | 178 |

TOTAL XING S/L

| S/L | XING N/L |
|-----|----------|
| | |

| N-S | Ped | Sch | Ped | Sch |
|------|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| 1285 | 12 | 0 | 21 | 0 |
| 1274 | 13 | 0 | 10 | 0 |
| 1104 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| 1242 | 9 | 0 | 11 | 0 |
| 1298 | 15 | 0 | 10 | 0 |
| 1371 | 8 | 1 | 10 | 0 |
| | | | | |
| 7574 | 57 | 1 | 62 | 0 |
| | | | | |

TOTAL XING W/L

XING E/L

| E-W | Ped | Sch | Ped | Sch |
|------|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| 410 | 7 | 0 | 22 | 0 |
| 318 | 14 | 0 | 11 | 0 |
| 349 | 3 | 0 | 6 | 0 |
| 392 | 2 | 0 | 8 | 0 |
| 370 | 6 | 0 | 14 | 0 |
| 475 | 13 | 1 | 12 | 0 |
| | | | | |
| 2314 | 45 | 1 | 73 | 0 |

National Data & Surveying Services

| Project ID: | 14-5018-0 | 07 | | | | тоти | u e | | | | Day: | Wednesda | ау |
|----------------------|------------|------------|-------|-------|------------|--------|----------|---------|--------|--------|----------|-----------|-------|
| City: | Los Angele | es | | | | | ALS A | | | | Date: | 1/15/2014 | 1 |
| NS/EW Streets: | Sa | anta Fe Av | е | Sa | inta Fe Av | e | | 8th St | | | 8th St | | |
| | NO | ORTHBOUI | ND | SC | DUTHBOUI | ND | E | ASTBOUN | D | V | /ESTBOUN | ID | |
| | NL | NT | NR | SL | ST | SR | EL | ET | ER | WL | WT | WR | TOTAL |
| LANES: | 0 | 2 | 0 | 0 | 2 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 0 | |
| 7:00 AM | 63 | 118 | 1 | 3 | 71 | 43 | 6 | 0 | 99 | 0 | 1 | 3 | 408 |
| 7:15 AM | 60 | 113 | 3 | 5 | 77 | 38 | 4 | 1 | 85 | 1 | 1 | 3 | 391 |
| 7:30 AM | 57 | 144 | 3 | 4 | 86 | 45 | 4 | 2 | 76 | 0 | 1 | 2 | 424 |
| 7:45 AM | 58 | 138 | 7 | 5 | 91 | 52 | 6 | 6 | 103 | 2 | 1 | 3 | 472 |
| 8:00 AM | 64 | 125 | 7 | 0 | 75 | 45 | 8 | 1 | 60 | 3 | 3 | 7 | 398 |
| 8:15 AM | 63 | 114 | 1 | 5 | 92 | 46 | 6 | 3 | 68 | 2 | 2 | 5 | 407 |
| 8:30 AM | 66 | 147 | 4 | 2 | 80 | 33 | 7 | 2 | 62 | 1 | 1 | 6 | 411 |
| 8:45 AM | 66 | 139 | 3 | 0 | 69 | 28 | 6 | 0 | 61 | 1 | 1 | 2 | 376 |
| 9:00 AM | 47 | 107 | 4 | 1 | 89 | 39 | 11 | 0 | 65 | 1 | 3 | 4 | 371 |
| 9:15 AM | 58 | 99 | 2 | 2 | 84 | 35 | 13 | 2 | 64 | 0 | 1 | 3 | 363 |
| 9:30 AM | 47 | 111 | 5 | 5 | 72 | 27 | 15 | 1 | 85 | 1 | 0 | 3 | 372 |
| 9:45 AM | 53 | 102 | 3 | 4 | 76 | 32 | 11 | 2 | 61 | 0 | 2 | 1 | 347 |
| | NL | NT | NR | SL | ST | SR | EL | ET | ER | WL | WT | WR | TOTAL |
| TOTAL VOLUMES : | 702 | 1457 | 43 | 36 | 962 | 463 | 97 | 20 | 889 | 12 | 17 | 42 | 4740 |
| APPROACH %'s : | 31.88% | 66.17% | 1.95% | 2.46% | 65.85% | 31.69% | 9.64% | 1.99% | 88.37% | 16.90% | 23.94% | 59.15% | |
| PEAK HR START TIME : | 730 | AM | | | | | | | | | | | TOTAL |
| | 242 | 521 | 18 | 14 | 344 | 188 | 24 | 12 | 307 | 7 | 7 | 17 | 1701 |
| LAKTIK VOL . | 272 | 521 | 10 | 14 | 5-4 | 100 | 27 | 12 | 307 | , | , | ., | 1701 |
| PEAK HR FACTOR : | | 0.957 | | | 0.922 | | | 0.746 | | | 0.596 | | 0.901 |

National Data & Surveying Services

| | Project ID: | 14-5018-0 | 007 | | | | тот | AL C | | | | Day: | Wednesda | ау |
|---|----------------------|------------|-------------|-------|-------|------------|--------|--------|---------|----------------|-----------------|----------|----------|-------|
| | City: | Los Angele | es | | | | PI | ALS | | | Date: 1/15/2014 | | | ļ |
| | NS/EW Streets: | Sa | anta Fe Ave | e | Sa | anta Fe Av | e | | 8th St | | | 8th St | | |
| | | N | ORTHBOUN | ND | SC | DUTHBOU | ND | E | ASTBOUN | D | V | /ESTBOUN | ID | |
| | | NL | NT | NR | SL | ST | SR | EL | ET | ER | WL | WT | WR | TOTAL |
| | LANES: | 0 | 2 | 0 | 0 | 2 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 0 | |
| | 3:00 PM | 63 | 95 | 4 | 3 | 101 | 33 | 17 | 2 | 73 | 3 | 1 | 6 | 401 |
| | 3:15 PM | 67 | 100 | 2 | 2 | 87 | 38 | 9 | 3 | 64 | 1 | 2 | 4 | 379 |
| | 3:30 PM | 44 | 9 5 | 4 | 2 | 140 | 53 | 4 | 2 | 84 | 4 | 2 | 7 | 441 |
| | 3:45 PM | 62 | 109 | 3 | 2 | 93 | 40 | 10 | 2 | 83 | 4 | 1 | 4 | 413 |
| | 4:00 PM | 73 | 84 | 4 | 3 | 119 | 44 | 5 | 3 | 76 | 0 | 0 | 5 | 416 |
| | 4:15 PM | 73 | 99 | 3 | 4 | 88 | 32 | 12 | 8 | 65 | 3 | 3 | 4 | 394 |
| | 4:30 PM | 69 | 93 | 2 | 2 | 128 | 39 | 11 | 2 | 62 | 7 | 5 | 3 | 423 |
| | 4:45 PM | 59 | 111 | 2 | 4 | 130 | 33 | 15 | 3 | 71 | 3 | 0 | 4 | 435 |
| | 5:00 PM | 5 9 | 120 | 2 | 4 | 124 | 58 | 11 | 2 | 91 | 2 | 2 | 3 | 478 |
| | 5:15 PM | 53 | 129 | 2 | 0 | 135 | 39 | 11 | 2 | 9 0 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 467 |
| | 5:30 PM | 47 | 117 | 3 | 1 | 120 | 45 | 17 | 5 | 111 | 1 | 1 | 4 | 472 |
| | 5:45 PM | 60 | 103 | 5 | 0 | 108 | 37 | 8 | 5 | 91 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 429 |
| | | NL | NT | NR | SL | ST | SR | EL | ET | ER | WL | WT | WR | TOTAL |
| | TOTAL VOLUMES : | 729 | 1255 | 36 | 27 | 1373 | 491 | 130 | 39 | 961 | 34 | 21 | 52 | 5148 |
| | APPROACH %'s : | 36.09% | 62.13% | 1.78% | 1.43% | 72.61% | 25.97% | 11.50% | 3.45% | 85.04% | 31.78% | 19.63% | 48.60% | |
| ۱ | PEAK HR START TIME : | 445 | PM | | | | | | | | | | | TOTAL |
| | | 210 | 477 | • | 0 | 500 | 175 | 54 | 10 | 242 | 0 | 2 | 14 | 1050 |
| | PEAK HR VUL : | 218 | 4// | 9 | 9 | 509 | 175 | 54 | 12 | 303 | 9 | 3 | 14 | 1652 |
| | PEAK HR FACTOR : | | 0.957 | | | 0.931 | | | 0.806 | | | 0.929 | | 0.969 |



| STREET: North/South | Santa Fe Av | e | | | | | | |
|------------------------|-------------|-----------|-----|------------------|--------|-------|-----|-------|
| East/West | Porter St | | | | | | | |
| Day: | Wednesday | Date: | Jar | January 15, 2014 | | SU | NNY | |
| Hours: 7-10 | & 3-6 | | | Chekrs: | NDS | | | |
| School Day: | YES | District: | - | | I/S CO | DE | | |
| DUAL | N/B | | S/B | | E/B | | W/B | |
| WHEELED | 721 | | 625 | | 186 | | 127 | |
| BIKES | 15 | | 20 | | 1 | | 4 | |
| BUSES | 101 | | 91 | | 5 | | 0 | |
| | N/B | TIME | S/B | TIME | E/B | TIME | W/B | TIME |
| AM PK 15 MIN | 261 | 7.30 | 215 | 8.15 | 202 | 8.00 | 43 | 8.00 |
| PM PK 15 MIN | 285 | 17.15 | 234 | 17.15 | 87 | 15.15 | 65 | 15.00 |
| AM PK HOUR | 1006 | 7.00 | 768 | 8.45 | 678 | 7.45 | 134 | 7.15 |
| PM PK HOUR | 1032 | 16.00 | 902 | 17.00 | 323 | 15.15 | 185 | 17.00 |

NORTHBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|------|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 344 | 646 | 16 | 1006 |
| 8-9 | 299 | 645 | 21 | 965 |
| 9-10 | 272 | 528 | 10 | 810 |
| 15-16 | 378 | 543 | 30 | 951 |
| 16-17 | 433 | 576 | 23 | 1032 |
| 17-18 | 407 | 576 | 14 | 997 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 2133 | 3514 | 114 | 5761 |

SOUTHBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|------|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 32 | 696 | 32 | 760 |
| 8-9 | 29 | 651 | 52 | 732 |
| 9-10 | 19 | 663 | 71 | 753 |
| 15-16 | 38 | 719 | 82 | 839 |
| 16-17 | 30 | 748 | 74 | 852 |
| 17-18 | 18 | 803 | 81 | 902 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 166 | 4280 | 392 | 4838 |

WESTBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|-----|-----|-------|
| 7-8 | 31 | 41 | 41 | 113 |
| 8-9 | 32 | 36 | 50 | 118 |
| 9-10 | 25 | 37 | 24 | 86 |
| 15-16 | 41 | 91 | 50 | 182 |
| 16-17 | 42 | 77 | 44 | 163 |
| 17-18 | 63 | 70 | 52 | 185 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 234 | 352 | 261 | 847 |

TOTAL XING S/L

N-S

1766

1697

1563

1790

1884

1899

10599

E-W

XING N/L

| Ped | Sch | Ped | Sch |
|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| 0 | 0 | 7 | 0 |
| 0 | 0 | 7 | 0 |
| 2 | 0 | 4 | 0 |
| 0 | 0 | 2 | 0 |
| 0 | 0 | 5 | 0 |
| 0 | 0 | 5 | 0 |
| | | | |
| 2 | 0 | 30 | 0 |
| | | | |

TOTAL XING W/L

XING E/L

| E-W | Ped | Sch | Pe | d Sch |
|------|-----|-----|----|-------|
| 614 | 4 | 0 | 2 | 0 0 |
| 784 | 4 | 0 | 1 | 9 1 |
| 536 | 4 | 0 | 1 | 3 1 |
| 498 | 3 | 0 | | 8 1 |
| 480 | 3 | 0 | 1 | 9 0 |
| 419 | 9 | 0 | 2 | 3 1 |
| | | | | |
| 3331 | 27 | 0 | 10 | 2 4 |
| | | | | |

EASTBOUND Approach

| Hours | Lt | Th | Rt | Total |
|-------|-----|-----|------|-------|
| 7-8 | 81 | 29 | 391 | 501 |
| 8-9 | 110 | 56 | 500 | 666 |
| 9-10 | 107 | 25 | 318 | 450 |
| 15-16 | 49 | 31 | 236 | 316 |
| 16-17 | 41 | 30 | 246 | 317 |
| 17-18 | 31 | 16 | 187 | 234 |
| | | | | |
| TOTAL | 419 | 187 | 1878 | 2484 |

National Data & Surveying Services

| Project ID: | 14-5018-0 | ,09 | | | | тот | Day: Wednesday | | | | | | |
|----------------------|------------|-------------|-------|------------------------|----------|--------------|----------------|-------|--------|-----------------|--------|--------|-------|
| City: | Los Angele | es | | | | A | M | | | Date: 1/15/2014 | | | |
| NS/EW Streets: | Sa | anta Fe Ave | 9 | Santa Fe Ave Porter St | | | | | | | | | |
| | NO | ORTHBOUN | 1D | SC | DUTHBOUN | ND EASTBOUND | | | W | | | | |
| | NL | NT | NR | SL | ST | SR | EL | ΕT | ER | WL | WT | WR | TOTAL |
| LANES: | 1 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 2 | 0 | 0.5 | 0.5 | 1 | 0 | 1 | 0 | |
| 7:00 AM | 75 | 165 | 4 | 7 | 180 | 6 | 17 | 7 | 83 | 7 | 6 | 9 | 566 |
| 7:15 AM | 90 | 156 | 3 | 5 | 186 | 6 | 14 | 6 | 88 | 5 | 11 | 12 | 582 |
| 7:30 AM | 90 | 168 | 3 | 6 | 175 | 8 | 22 | 4 | 78 | 10 | 11 | 13 | 588 |
| 7:45 AM | 89 | 157 | 6 | 14 | 155 | 12 | 28 | 12 | 142 | 9 | 13 | 7 | 644 |
| 8:00 AM | 73 | 159 | 4 | 4 | 156 | 7 | 25 | 23 | 154 | 12 | 13 | 18 | 648 |
| 8:15 AM | 76 | 152 | 7 | 10 | 195 | 10 | 19 | 15 | 99 | 6 | 6 | 11 | 606 |
| 8:30 AM | 77 | 176 | 6 | 5 | 139 | 14 | 25 | 11 | 125 | 9 | 10 | 17 | 614 |
| 8:45 AM | 73 | 158 | 4 | 10 | 161 | 21 | 41 | 7 | 122 | 5 | 7 | 4 | 613 |
| 9:00 AM | 61 | 132 | 2 | 5 | 180 | 13 | 27 | 7 | 94 | 9 | 10 | 7 | 547 |
| 9:15 AM | 73 | 134 | 1 | 6 | 151 | 22 | 22 | 7 | 76 | 10 | 6 | 11 | 519 |
| 9:30 AM | 74 | 128 | 4 | 4 | 181 | 14 | 31 | 4 | 75 | 3 | 13 | 2 | 533 |
| 9:45 AM | 64 | 134 | 3 | 4 | 151 | 22 | 27 | 7 | 73 | 3 | 8 | 4 | 500 |
| | NL | NT | NR | SL | ST | SR | EL | ET | ER | WL | WT | WR | TOTAL |
| TOTAL VOLUMES : | 915 | 1819 | 47 | 80 | 2010 | 155 | 298 | 110 | 1209 | 88 | 114 | 115 | 6960 |
| APPROACH %'s : | 32.90% | 65.41% | 1.69% | 3.56% | 89.53% | 6.90% | 18.43% | 6.80% | 74.77% | 27.76% | 35.96% | 36.28% | |
| PEAK HR START TIME : | 745 | AM | | | | | | | | | | | TOTAL |
| PEAK HR VOL : | 315 | 644 | 23 | 33 | 645 | 43 | 97 | 61 | 520 | 36 | 42 | 53 | 2512 |
| PEAK HR FACTOR : | | 0.948 | | | 0.838 | | | 0.839 | | | 0.762 | | 0.969 |

National Data & Surveying Services

| Project ID: | 14-5018-0 | 09 | | | | тот | Day: Wednesday | | | | | | |
|----------------------|------------|------------|-------|-------------|-------------|-------|----------------|-----------|--------|-----------------|--------|--------|-------|
| City: | Los Angele | es | | | | P | м | | | Date: 1/15/2014 | | | |
| NS/EW Streets: | Sa | anta Fe Av | е | Sa | anta Fe Ave | è | | Porter St | | | | | |
| | N | ORTHBOUI | ND | SOUTHBOUND | | | E | ASTBOUN | D | V | | | |
| | NL | NT | NR | SL | ST | SR | EL | ΕT | ER | WL | WT | WR | TOTAL |
| LANES: | 1 | 2 | 0 | 1 | 2 | 0 | 0.5 | 0.5 | 1 | 0 | 1 | 0 | |
| 3:00 PM | 100 | 128 | 8 | 8 | 156 | 22 | 9 | 6 | 60 | 7 | 39 | 19 | 562 |
| 3:15 PM | 89 | 144 | 9 | 10 | 185 | 24 | 18 | 12 | 57 | 9 | 13 | 13 | 583 |
| 3:30 PM | 100 | 124 | 9 | 8 | 183 | 22 | 12 | 6 | 60 | 12 | 20 | 9 | 565 |
| 3:45 PM | 89 | 147 | 4 | 12 | 195 | 14 | 10 | / | 59 | 13 | 19 | 9 | 578 |
| 4:00 PM | 118 | 136 | 8 | 12 | 190 | 18 | 18 | 7 | 57 | 11 | 19 | 6 | 600 |
| 4:15 PM | 107 | 143 | 4 | 4 | 182 | 12 | / | 9 | 59 | 10 | 1/ | 9 | 563 |
| 4:30 PM | 99 | 134 | 4 | 6 | 193 | 23 | 1 | 10 | /0 | 13 | 24 | 21 | 604 |
| 4:45 PM | 109 | 163 | / | 8 | 183 | 21 | 9 | 4 | 60 | 8 | 1/ | 8 | 597 |
| 5:00 PM | /8 | 138 | 4 | / | 195 | 29 | 10 | 4 | 54 | 22 | 9 | 13 | 563 |
| 5:15 PM | 117 | 165 | 3 | 5 | 212 | 1/ | 1 | / | 32 | 8 | 21 | 11 | 605 |
| 5:30 PM | 100 | 130 | 1 | 3 | 198 | 12 | 8 | 4 | 52 | 25 | 22 | 16 | 5/1 |
| 5:45 PM | 112 | 143 | 6 | 3 | 198 | 23 | 6 | 1 | 49 | 8 | 18 | 12 | 579 |
| | NL | NT | NR | SL | ST | SR | EL | ET | ER | WL | WT | WR | TOTAL |
| TOTAL VOLUMES : | 1218 | 1695 | 67 | 86 | 2270 | 237 | 121 | 77 | 669 | 146 | 238 | 146 | 6970 |
| APPROACH %'s : | 40.87% | 56.88% | 2.25% | 3.32% | 87.54% | 9.14% | 13.96% | 8.88% | 77.16% | 27.55% | 44.91% | 27.55% | |
| PEAK HR START TIME : | 430 | PM | | | | | | | | | | | TOTAL |
| PEAK HR VOL : | 403 | 600 | 18 | 26 | 783 | 90 | 33 | 25 | 216 | 51 | 71 | 53 | 2369 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| PEAK HR FACTOR : | | 0.896 | | 0.960 0.787 | | | | | | 0.979 | | | |

City of Los Angeles N/S: Santa Fe Avenue E/W: Olympic Boulevard Weather: Clear

| Groups Printed- Passenger Vehicles - Dual Wheeled - Buses | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|------|---------|--------|------------|------|--------|--------|------------|------|---------|--------|------------|------|--------|--------|------------|------------|
| | 5 | Santa F | e Aven | ue | 0 | lympic | Boulev | ard | 5 | Santa F | e Aven | ue | 0 | lympic | Boulev | ard | |
| | | Sout | hbound | | | Wes | tbound | | | North | nbound | | | | | | |
| Start Time | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Int. Total |
| 07:00 AM | 25 | 249 | 4 | 278 | 44 | 195 | 25 | 264 | 31 | 191 | 21 | 243 | 2 | 59 | 56 | 117 | 902 |
| 07:15 AM | 31 | 282 | 1 | 314 | 49 | 173 | 24 | 246 | 33 | 195 | 23 | 251 | 5 | 48 | 62 | 115 | 926 |
| 07:30 AM | 23 | 282 | 7 | 312 | 63 | 217 | 20 | 300 | 35 | 187 | 11 | 233 | 6 | 64 | 74 | 144 | 989 |
| 07:45 AM | 22 | 292 | 6 | 320 | 53 | 225 | 14 | 292 | 29 | 201 | 16 | 246 | 6 | 67 | 82 | 155 | 1013 |
| Total | 101 | 1105 | 18 | 1224 | 209 | 810 | 83 | 1102 | 128 | 774 | 71 | 973 | 19 | 238 | 274 | 531 | 3830 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 08:00 AM | 32 | 263 | 4 | 299 | 37 | 204 | 22 | 263 | 39 | 189 | 29 | 257 | 7 | 98 | 71 | 176 | 995 |
| 08:15 AM | 33 | 249 | 3 | 285 | 41 | 200 | 15 | 256 | 44 | 204 | 13 | 261 | 11 | 81 | 83 | 175 | 977 |
| 08:30 AM | 39 | 250 | 10 | 299 | 57 | 184 | 19 | 260 | 33 | 180 | 22 | 235 | 18 | 80 | 61 | 159 | 953 |
| 08:45 AM | 32 | 237 | 11 | 280 | 47 | 168 | 21 | 236 | 55 | 238 | 21 | 314 | 8 | 72 | 58 | 138 | 968 |
| Total | 136 | 999 | 28 | 1163 | 182 | 756 | 77 | 1015 | 171 | 811 | 85 | 1067 | 44 | 331 | 273 | 648 | 3893 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 09:00 AM | 34 | 247 | 9 | 290 | 29 | 172 | 13 | 214 | 49 | 187 | 26 | 262 | 10 | 79 | 54 | 143 | 909 |
| 09:15 AM | 29 | 214 | 11 | 254 | 33 | 165 | 25 | 223 | 49 | 165 | 26 | 240 | 14 | 76 | 59 | 149 | 866 |
| 09:30 AM | 39 | 257 | 15 | 311 | 25 | 144 | 18 | 187 | 32 | 151 | 17 | 200 | 11 | 80 | 49 | 140 | 838 |
| 09:45 AM | 36 | 230 | 15 | 281 | 35 | 140 | 21 | 196 | 48 | 190 | 10 | 248 | 20 | 97 | 57 | 174 | 899 |
| Total | 138 | 948 | 50 | 1136 | 122 | 621 | 77 | 820 | 178 | 693 | 79 | 950 | 55 | 332 | 219 | 606 | 3512 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Grand Total | 375 | 3052 | 96 | 3523 | 513 | 2187 | 237 | 2937 | 477 | 2278 | 235 | 2990 | 118 | 901 | 766 | 1785 | 11235 |
| Apprch % | 10.6 | 86.6 | 2.7 | | 17.5 | 74.5 | 8.1 | | 16 | 76.2 | 7.9 | | 6.6 | 50.5 | 42.9 | | |
| Total % | 3.3 | 27.2 | 0.9 | 31.4 | 4.6 | 19.5 | 2.1 | 26.1 | 4.2 | 20.3 | 2.1 | 26.6 | 1.1 | 8 | 6.8 | 15.9 | |
| Passenger Vehicles | 339 | 2664 | 77 | 3080 | 482 | 1964 | 168 | 2614 | 398 | 1825 | 208 | 2431 | 90 | 752 | 655 | 1497 | 9622 |
| % Passenger Vehicles | 90.4 | 87.3 | 80.2 | 87.4 | 94 | 89.8 | 70.9 | 89 | 83.4 | 80.1 | 88.5 | 81.3 | 76.3 | 83.5 | 85.5 | 83.9 | 85.6 |
| Dual Wheeled | 36 | 354 | 19 | 409 | 31 | 202 | 68 | 301 | 77 | 413 | 27 | 517 | 28 | 118 | 111 | 257 | 1484 |
| % Dual Wheeled | 9.6 | 11.6 | 19.8 | 11.6 | 6 | 9.2 | 28.7 | 10.2 | 16.1 | 18.1 | 11.5 | 17.3 | 23.7 | 13.1 | 14.5 | 14.4 | 13.2 |
| Buses | 0 | 34 | 0 | 34 | 0 | 21 | 1 | 22 | 2 | 40 | 0 | 42 | 0 | 31 | 0 | 31 | 129 |
| % Buses | 0 | 1.1 | 0 | 1 | 0 | 1 | 0.4 | 0.7 | 0.4 | 1.8 | 0 | 1.4 | 0 | 3.4 | 0 | 1.7 | 1.1 |

| | | Santa F | e Aveni | Je | Olympic Boulevard | | | | Santa Fe Avenue | | | | C | | | | |
|---------------|-----------|----------|---------|------------|-------------------|----------------------|-------|------------|-----------------|-------|--------|------------|-----------|------|-------|------------|------------|
| | | South | nbound | | | Westbound | | | | North | nbound | | Eastbound | | | | |
| Start Time | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Int. Total |
| Peak Hour Ana | alysis Fr | om 07: | 30 AM t | o 08:15 A | M - Pea | ak 1 of [.] | 1 | | | | | | | | - | | |
| Peak Hour for | Entire Ir | ntersect | ion Beg | ins at 07: | 30 AM | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 07:30 AM | 23 | 282 | 7 | 312 | 63 | 217 | 20 | 300 | 35 | 187 | 11 | 233 | 6 | 64 | 74 | 144 | 989 |
| 07:45 AM | 22 | 292 | 6 | 320 | 53 | 225 | 14 | 292 | 29 | 201 | 16 | 246 | 6 | 67 | 82 | 155 | 1013 |
| 08:00 AM | 32 | 263 | 4 | 299 | 37 | 204 | 22 | 263 | 39 | 189 | 29 | 257 | 7 | 98 | 71 | 176 | 995 |
| 08:15 AM | 33 | 249 | 3 | 285 | 41 | 200 | 15 | 256 | 44 | 204 | 13 | 261 | 11 | 81 | 83 | 175 | 977 |
| Total Volume | 110 | 1086 | 20 | 1216 | 194 | 846 | 71 | 1111 | 147 | 781 | 69 | 997 | 30 | 310 | 310 | 650 | 3974 |
| % App. Total | 9 | 89.3 | 1.6 | | 17.5 | 76.1 | 6.4 | | 14.7 | 78.3 | 6.9 | | 4.6 | 47.7 | 47.7 | | |
| PHF | .833 | .930 | .714 | .950 | .770 | .940 | .807 | .926 | .835 | .957 | .595 | .955 | .682 | .791 | .934 | .923 | .981 |

City of Los Angeles N/S: Santa Fe Avenue E/W: Olympic Boulevard Weather: Clear File Name : LACSFOLAM Site Code : 16614156 Start Date : 4/10/2014 Page No : 2



Peak Hour Analysis From 07:30 AM to 08:15 AM - Peak 1 of 1 Peak Hour for Each Approach Begins at:

| | 07:30 AN | 1 | | | 07:30 AN | 1 | | | 07:30 AN | 1 | | | 07:30 AN | 1 | | |
|--------------|----------|------|------|------|----------|------|------|------|----------|------|------|------|----------|------|------|------|
| +0 mins. | 23 | 282 | 7 | 312 | 63 | 217 | 20 | 300 | 35 | 187 | 11 | 233 | 6 | 64 | 74 | 144 |
| +15 mins. | 22 | 292 | 6 | 320 | 53 | 225 | 14 | 292 | 29 | 201 | 16 | 246 | 6 | 67 | 82 | 155 |
| +30 mins. | 32 | 263 | 4 | 299 | 37 | 204 | 22 | 263 | 39 | 189 | 29 | 257 | 7 | 98 | 71 | 176 |
| +45 mins. | 33 | 249 | 3 | 285 | 41 | 200 | 15 | 256 | 44 | 204 | 13 | 261 | 11 | 81 | 83 | 175 |
| Total Volume | 110 | 1086 | 20 | 1216 | 194 | 846 | 71 | 1111 | 147 | 781 | 69 | 997 | 30 | 310 | 310 | 650 |
| % App. Total | 9 | 89.3 | 1.6 | | 17.5 | 76.1 | 6.4 | | 14.7 | 78.3 | 6.9 | | 4.6 | 47.7 | 47.7 | |
| PHF | .833 | .930 | .714 | .950 | .770 | .940 | .807 | .926 | .835 | .957 | .595 | .955 | .682 | .791 | .934 | .923 |
City of Los Angeles N/S: Santa Fe Avenue E/W: Olympic Boulevard Weather: Clear

| | | | | G | roups P | rinted- | Passer | <u>nger Vehi</u> | <u>cles - C</u> | <u>Jual Wh</u> | neeled - | Buses | | | | | |
|----------------------|------|---------|--------|------------|---------|---------|--------|------------------|-----------------|----------------|----------|------------|------|--------|--------|------------|------------|
| | 5 | Santa F | e Aven | ue | 0 | lympic | Boulev | ard | 5 | Santa F | e Aven | ue | C | lympic | Boulev | ard | |
| | | Sout | hbound | | | Wes | tbound | | | North | nbound | | | East | bound | | |
| Start Time | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Int. Total |
| 03:00 PM | 31 | 209 | 14 | 254 | 25 | 131 | 22 | 178 | 36 | 240 | 37 | 313 | 11 | 135 | 60 | 206 | 951 |
| 03:15 PM | 25 | 236 | 7 | 268 | 27 | 120 | 17 | 164 | 27 | 169 | 34 | 230 | 14 | 164 | 73 | 251 | 913 |
| 03:30 PM | 42 | 213 | 9 | 264 | 21 | 126 | 20 | 167 | 39 | 193 | 40 | 272 | 10 | 185 | 69 | 264 | 967 |
| 03:45 PM | 43 | 215 | 8 | 266 | 21 | 141 | 21 | 183 | 39 | 212 | 44 | 295 | 14 | 176 | 60 | 250 | 994 |
| Total | 141 | 873 | 38 | 1052 | 94 | 518 | 80 | 692 | 141 | 814 | 155 | 1110 | 49 | 660 | 262 | 971 | 3825 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 04:00 PM | 27 | 240 | 8 | 275 | 17 | 152 | 17 | 186 | 26 | 189 | 40 | 255 | 10 | 193 | 77 | 280 | 996 |
| 04:15 PM | 33 | 248 | 13 | 294 | 23 | 128 | 16 | 167 | 22 | 235 | 33 | 290 | 13 | 163 | 67 | 243 | 994 |
| 04:30 PM | 30 | 227 | 12 | 269 | 24 | 132 | 16 | 172 | 35 | 254 | 59 | 348 | 7 | 170 | 77 | 254 | 1043 |
| 04:45 PM | 35 | 247 | 6 | 288 | 20 | 125 | 15 | 160 | 25 | 238 | 37 | 300 | 12 | 227 | 82 | 321 | 1069 |
| Total | 125 | 962 | 39 | 1126 | 84 | 537 | 64 | 685 | 108 | 916 | 169 | 1193 | 42 | 753 | 303 | 1098 | 4102 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | 1 | | | | | 1 |
| 05:00 PM | 26 | 230 | 9 | 265 | 26 | 159 | 27 | 212 | 38 | 261 | 48 | 347 | 10 | 197 | 89 | 296 | 1120 |
| 05:15 PM | 31 | 303 | 3 | 337 | 20 | 139 | 27 | 186 | 26 | 269 | 48 | 343 | 11 | 195 | 83 | 289 | 1155 |
| 05:30 PM | 38 | 253 | 11 | 302 | 25 | 145 | 26 | 196 | 37 | 268 | 59 | 364 | 10 | 218 | 82 | 310 | 1172 |
| 05:45 PM | 25 | 286 | 11 | 322 | 19 | 132 | 18 | 169 | 27 | 264 | 48 | 339 | 13 | 219 | 64 | 296 | 1126 |
| Total | 120 | 1072 | 34 | 1226 | 90 | 575 | 98 | 763 | 128 | 1062 | 203 | 1393 | 44 | 829 | 318 | 1191 | 4573 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Grand Total | 386 | 2907 | 111 | 3404 | 268 | 1630 | 242 | 2140 | 377 | 2792 | 527 | 3696 | 135 | 2242 | 883 | 3260 | 12500 |
| Apprch % | 11.3 | 85.4 | 3.3 | | 12.5 | 76.2 | 11.3 | | 10.2 | 75.5 | 14.3 | | 4.1 | 68.8 | 27.1 | | |
| Total % | 3.1 | 23.3 | 0.9 | 27.2 | 2.1 | 13 | 1.9 | 17.1 | 3 | 22.3 | 4.2 | 29.6 | 1.1 | 17.9 | 7.1 | 26.1 | |
| Passenger Vehicles | 353 | 2508 | 103 | 2964 | 247 | 1504 | 210 | 1961 | 346 | 2505 | 502 | 3353 | 120 | 2102 | 810 | 3032 | 11310 |
| % Passenger Vehicles | 91.5 | 86.3 | 92.8 | 87.1 | 92.2 | 92.3 | 86.8 | 91.6 | 91.8 | 89.7 | 95.3 | 90.7 | 88.9 | 93.8 | 91.7 | 93 | 90.5 |
| Dual Wheeled | 30 | 351 | 7 | 388 | 21 | 96 | 30 | 147 | 29 | 234 | 25 | 288 | 15 | 116 | 72 | 203 | 1026 |
| % Dual Wheeled | 7.8 | 12.1 | 6.3 | 11.4 | 7.8 | 5.9 | 12.4 | 6.9 | 7.7 | 8.4 | 4.7 | 7.8 | 11.1 | 5.2 | 8.2 | 6.2 | 8.2 |
| Buses | 3 | 48 | 1 | 52 | 0 | 30 | 2 | 32 | 2 | 53 | 0 | 55 | 0 | 24 | 1 | 25 | 164 |
| % Buses | 0.8 | 1.7 | 0.9 | 1.5 | 0 | 1.8 | 0.8 | 1.5 | 0.5 | 1.9 | 0 | 1.5 | 0 | 1.1 | 0.1 | 0.8 | 1.3 |

| | | Santa F | e Aveni | ue | С | lympic | Boulev | ard | | Santa F | e Aven | ue | C | lympic | Boulev | ard | |
|---------------|-----------|----------|---------|------------|---------|-----------|--------|------------|------|---------|--------|------------|------|--------|--------|------------|------------|
| | | South | nbound | | | West | tbound | | | North | nbound | | | East | bound | | |
| Start Time | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Left | Thru | Right | App. Total | Int. Total |
| Peak Hour Ana | alysis Fr | om 05:0 | 00 PM t | o 05:45 P | M - Pea | ak 1 of ' | 1 | | | | - | | | | - | | |
| Peak Hour for | Entire Ir | ntersect | ion Beg | ins at 05: | 00 PM | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 05:00 PM | 26 | 230 | 9 | 265 | 26 | 159 | 27 | 212 | 38 | 261 | 48 | 347 | 10 | 197 | 89 | 296 | 1120 |
| 05:15 PM | 31 | 303 | 3 | 337 | 20 | 139 | 27 | 186 | 26 | 269 | 48 | 343 | 11 | 195 | 83 | 289 | 1155 |
| 05:30 PM | 38 | 253 | 11 | 302 | 25 | 145 | 26 | 196 | 37 | 268 | 59 | 364 | 10 | 218 | 82 | 310 | 1172 |
| 05:45 PM | 25 | 286 | 11 | 322 | 19 | 132 | 18 | 169 | 27 | 264 | 48 | 339 | 13 | 219 | 64 | 296 | 1126 |
| Total Volume | 120 | 1072 | 34 | 1226 | 90 | 575 | 98 | 763 | 128 | 1062 | 203 | 1393 | 44 | 829 | 318 | 1191 | 4573 |
| % App. Total | 9.8 | 87.4 | 2.8 | | 11.8 | 75.4 | 12.8 | | 9.2 | 76.2 | 14.6 | | 3.7 | 69.6 | 26.7 | | |
| PHF | .789 | .884 | .773 | .909 | .865 | .904 | .907 | .900 | .842 | .987 | .860 | .957 | .846 | .946 | .893 | .960 | .975 |

Counts Unlimited, Inc. PO Box 1178 Corona, CA 92878 (951) 268-6268

City of Los Angeles N/S: Santa Fe Avenue E/W: Olympic Boulevard Weather: Clear File Name : LACSFOLPM Site Code : 16614156 Start Date : 4/10/2014 Page No : 2



Peak Hour Analysis From 05:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1 Peak Hour for Each Approach Begins at:

| | 05:00 PM | Λ | | | 05:00 PN | 1 | | | 05:00 PM | Л | | | 05:00 PN | 1 | | |
|--------------|----------|------|------|------|----------|------|------|------|----------|------|------|------|----------|------|------|------|
| +0 mins. | 26 | 230 | 9 | 265 | 26 | 159 | 27 | 212 | 38 | 261 | 48 | 347 | 10 | 197 | 89 | 296 |
| +15 mins. | 31 | 303 | 3 | 337 | 20 | 139 | 27 | 186 | 26 | 269 | 48 | 343 | 11 | 195 | 83 | 289 |
| +30 mins. | 38 | 253 | 11 | 302 | 25 | 145 | 26 | 196 | 37 | 268 | 59 | 364 | 10 | 218 | 82 | 310 |
| +45 mins. | 25 | 286 | 11 | 322 | 19 | 132 | 18 | 169 | 27 | 264 | 48 | 339 | 13 | 219 | 64 | 296 |
| Total Volume | 120 | 1072 | 34 | 1226 | 90 | 575 | 98 | 763 | 128 | 1062 | 203 | 1393 | 44 | 829 | 318 | 1191 |
| % App. Total | 9.8 | 87.4 | 2.8 | | 11.8 | 75.4 | 12.8 | | 9.2 | 76.2 | 14.6 | | 3.7 | 69.6 | 26.7 | |
| PHF | .789 | .884 | .773 | .909 | .865 | .904 | .907 | .900 | .842 | .987 | .860 | .957 | .846 | .946 | .893 | .960 |

APPENDIX B

CMA and Levels of Service Explanation CMA Data Worksheets – Weekday AM and PM Peak Hours

CRITICAL MOVEMENT ANALYSIS (CMA) DESCRIPTION

Level of Service is a term used to describe prevailing conditions and their effect on traffic. Broadly interpreted, the Level of Service concept denotes any one of a number of differing combinations of operating conditions which may take place as a roadway is accommodating various traffic volumes. Level of Service is a qualitative measure of the effect of such factors as travel speed, travel time, interruptions, freedom to maneuver, safety, driving comfort and convenience.

Six Levels of Service, A through F, have been defined in the 1965 *Highway Capacity Manual*. Level of Service A describes a condition of free flow, with low traffic volumes and relatively high speeds, while Level of Service F describes forced traffic flow at low speeds with jammed conditions and queues which cannot clear during the green phases.

Critical Movement Analysis (CMA) is a procedure which provides a capacity and level of service geometry and traffic signal operation and results in a level of service determination for the intersection as a whole operating unit.

The per lane volume for each movement in the intersection is determined and the per lane intersection capacity based on the Transportation Research Board (TRB) Report 212 (*Interim Materials on Highway Capacity*). The resulting CMA represents the ratio of the intersection's cumulative volume over its respective capacity (V/C ratio). Critical Movement Analysis takes into account lane widths, bus and truck operations, pedestrian activity and parking activity, as well as number of lanes and geometrics.

The Level of Service (abbreviated from the *Highway Capacity Manual*) are listed here with their corresponding CMA and Load Factor equivalents. Load Factor is that proportion of the signal cycles during the peak hour which are fully loaded; i.e. when all of the vehicles waiting at the beginning of green are not able to clear on that green phase.

| Critical Mov | vement Analysis Characte | ristics |
|--------------------------|--------------------------|----------------|
| Level of Service | Load Factor | Equivalent CMA |
| A (free flow) | 0.0 | 0.00 - 0.60 |
| B (rural design) | 0.0 - 0.1 | 0.61 - 0.70 |
| C (urban design) | 0.1 - 0.3 | 0.71 - 0.80 |
| D (maximum urban design) | 0.3 - 0.7 | 0.81 - 0.90 |
| E (capacity) | 0.7 - 1.0 | 0.91 - 1.00 |
| F (force flow) | Not Applicable | Not Applicable |

SERVICE LEVEL A

There are no loaded cycles and few are even close to loaded at this service level. No approach phase is fully utilized by traffic and no vehicle waits longer than one red indication.

SERVICE LEVEL B

This level represents stable operation where an occasional approach phase is fully utilized and a substantial number are approaching full use. Many drivers begin to feel restricted within platoons of vehicles.

SERVICE LEVEL C

At this level stable operation continues. Loading is still intermittent but more frequent than at Level B. Occasionally drivers may have to wait through more one red signal indication and backups may develop behind turning vehicles. Most drivers feel somewhat restricted, but not objectionably so.

SERVICE LEVEL D

This level encompasses a zone of increasing restriction approaching instability at the intersection. Delays to approaching vehicles may be substantial during short peaks within the peak hour, but enough cycles with lower demand occur to permit periodic clearance of queues, thus preventing excessive backups. Drivers frequently have to wait through more than one red signal. This level is the lower limit of acceptable operation to most drivers.

SERVICE LEVEL E

This represents near capacity and capacity operation. At capacity (CMA = 1.0) it represents the most vehicles that the particular intersection can accommodate. However, full utilization of every signal cycle is seldom attained no matter how great the demand. At this level all drivers wait through more than one red signal, and frequently through several.

SERVICE LEVEL F

Jammed conditions. Traffic backed up from a downstream location on one of the street restricts or prevents movement of traffic through the intersection under consideration.





| | asn-pa | 0 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | GATION | Lane Volume | 93 | | 412 | 302 | | 112 | | 757 | 757 | | 74 | 428 | 67 | 5 | | 284 | 672 | 1 22 | 3 | 850 746 1506 | 1.064 | 0.964 | ш | |
|-----------------------|---------------|------------------------|--------------------|-------------------|------------|---------------------|------|----------|-------------|-------|----------------------|------|----------|----------------|----------|----------------------|------------------|---------|------------------|----------------------|-----|------------------|--------------|------------------|----------------------|-------------------------------|-----------|----------|---------|-------|
| 2/28/2019 | SU SITEEL MIX | | SB M/B | | ECT W/ MIT | No. of Lanes | - | 0 | | 0 | 0 0 | 0 | - | 0 - | - 0 | 0 0 | - c | | - C | 000 | | - 0 | ~ | - c | 000 | rth-South: ast-West: | | | | |
| otoM MoOt | 1024 Mate | | 00 | þ | W/ PROJ | Total Volume | 93 | | 522 | 302 | | 112 | | 855 | 211 | | 74 | 788 | 67 | 5 | | 284 | 1222 | 100 | 77 | Nor | | | | |
| Date: | rrojeci. | | NB | 9 | FUTURE | Added Volume | 0 | | 0 | 0 | | 0 | | 0 | 0 | | 0 | 7 | c | 0 | | 0 | 7 | c | C | | | | | |
| S | 2 | 0 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | JECT | Lane Volume | 93 | | 412 | 302 | | 112 | | 757 | 757 | | 74 | 428 | 67 | 5 | | 284 | 673 | 100 | 77 | 850 747 1597 | 1.065 | 0.965 | Е | |
| ADS AL. | 5 | | SB | | ON W/ PRC | No. of Lanes | ÷ | 0 · | | 0 | 0 0 | 0 | - | o - | - 0 | 00 | - c | | - c | 000 | | - 0 | - | c | 000 | n-South: st-West: StIM- | | | | |
| ted by: | reu by. | | 00 | 0 | | Total Volume | 93 | | 522 | 302 | | 112 | | 855 | 211 | | 74 | 789 | 67 | 5 | | 284 | 1223 | 100 | 77 | North Ea: | | | | |
| Conduct | Review | | NB EB | 3 | FUTURE | Added Volume | 0 | | 0 | 2 | | 0 | | 0 | 0 | | 0 | 5 | c | þ | | - | ю | Ŧ | - | | | | | |
| 1.0 AM | | 0 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | JECT | Lane / | 93 | | 411 | 300 | | 110 | | 753 | 753 | | 74 | 426 | 67 | 5 | | 283 | 671 | 101 | 2 | 846 745 1591 | .061 | .961 | ш | |
| : (%): Hour: | | | SB WB | | I W/O PRO | No. of Lanes | - | 0 · | | 0 | 0 0 | 0 | - | 0 - | - 0 | 00 | - c | | - c | 000 | | - 0 | . | c | 000 | South: t-West: Sum- | | | | |
| nt Growth Peak | | | 0 0 | þ | | Total | 93 | | 522 | 300 | | 110 | | 855 | 211 | | 74 | 784 | 67 | 5 | | 283 | 1220 | 101 | 2 | North- Easi | | | | |
| Ambier | | | NB EB | 5 | FUTURE (| Added olume V | 23 | 1 | 02 | 154 | | 74 | | 103 | 56 | | 18 | 461 | 10 | 2 | | 96 | 443 | QC | R 7 | | | | | |
| 2019 2023 | 5023 | 0 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | ECT | ane / | 67 | | 288 | 142 | | 37 | | 473 | 473 | | 54 | 185 | л л | 3 | | 181 | 420 | Co | 0 | 540 474 014 | .676 | .576 | A | |
| ount: Year: | - 241 - | | SB MB | | LUS PROJ | ume Vo | 67 | | 34 | 42 | | 37 | | 23 | 49 | | 54 | 15 | лл 1 | 3 | | 81 | 50 | Co | 20 | outh: Vest: sum- | 0 | 0 | | |
| fear of C | olection | | | | XISTING P | ject To ffic Vol | 0 | | 0 | 2 | | 2 | | 2 0 | 0 | | 0 | 3 2 | c | 5 | | - | 3 7 | Ţ | _ | North-S East-I | | | | |
| - <u>a</u> | Ξ | 0 0 | | 1 | ш | ne Pro | 7 | | ~ | 0 | | 5 | | - | ~ | | 4 | e | Ľ | > | | 0 | 8 | 0 | 0 | 80 RI C | | e | | |
| | | | | | NDITION | of Lar s Volu | 9 | | 78 | 14 | | e | | 47 | 47 | | ŝ | 18 | ſ | 5 | | 18 | 41 | ٥ | 0 | th: 53 st: 47 Mi- 101 | 0.67 | 0.57 | ٩ | |
| | | | -BS BM | | STING CO | No. (| - | 0 | | 0 | 0 0 | 0 | - | 0 - | - 0 | 00 | - c | - C | - c | 000 | | - 0 | ~ | - c | 000 | lorth-Sou East-We | } | | | |
| Avenue | 1 | | NB 0 | | EXI | Volume | 29 | | 434 | 140 | | 35 | | 723 | 149 | | 54 | 310 | 55 | 3 | | 180 | 747 | 00 | 8 | z | | | | |
| Central 7th Stre | | ⊃hases 8oth-3? | OLA-3? | rCS-2? apacitv | | | | | | | ħ | | | | | ht | Γ | | | ht | | | | | ħ | -UMES | RATIO: | MENT: | (LOS): | ARKS: |
| eet: | CC1. | No. of F :/W-2 or B | TOR-2 or | VTSAC+A | | Ļ | | hguo | r -Riaht | | ough-Rig ht | | hguo | n -Richt | - Marine | ough-Rig ht | 4010 | linno (| n-Right | ough-Rig ht | | ouah | | n-Right | ough-Rig ht | ICAL VOI | TY (///C) | | SERVICE | REM |
| South Str West Str | | j: N/S-1, E | (EE-1, NR | AC-1 or # | | AOVEMEI | Left | Left-Thr | Through | Right | Left-Thr Left-Rig | Left | Left-Thr | Through | Right | Left-Thr Left-Ria | Left Left The | Through | Through Right | Left-Thr Left-Rig | | Left Left-Thr | Through | Through Dight | Left-Thr Left-Ria | CRIT | CAPACI | SAC/ATCS | EVEL OF | |
| North- | Last | sed Ø'ing | Turns: FR | ATS | | - | ¢, | Ť | ← <1 | LL. | ÷≻ | J. | 1,_ | →J | , J. | ᢤ┤ | س م | 11 | <i>م خ</i> | ᠵᢩᠰ᠊ᠬ | . (| ∽∳∽ | ↓∢ | J J. | ++ | * | VOLUME | LESS ATS | | |
| /S #: | I NHO I | Oppo | Right ⁻ | | | | d | INO | IBO | ЧТЯ | ON | d | | юв | нтс | os | a | NUO | ata | 8A3 | | an | INO | ата | меа | | | 1//C | | |

CMA01

Av/c after mitigation: 0.003 Fully mitigated? N/A

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.004 Significant impacted? NO





| | ed-Use | 2 0 | 00 | 000 | GATION | Lane Volume | 97 | 000 | 020 | 295 | | ļ | 87 | 681 | 681 | | | 136 | 658 | 89 | | | 262 | 676 | 148 | 2 | 778 920 1698 | 1.132 | 1.032 | ш | | |
|-----------|-------------|------------------------|--------------------|-------------------------|-----------------|--------------------|----------------|--------------|----------------|-------|--------------------|---|-----------------|------------|------------------|------------|---|--------------|---------|----------|--------------------|-----|-----------------|--|-----------------|--------------------|------------------------------|-------------|----------------|----------|-------|------------|
| 2/28/2019 | Street Mixe | | SB- | - | CT W/ MITI | No. of Lanes | . – | 0, | | 0 | 00 | | - C | | - 0 | | > | c | o ← • | - 0 | 0 0 | | - 0 | . | - 0 | 00 | h-South: st-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| N | 024 Mateo | | 00 | C | W/ PROJE | Total Volume | 97 | 010 | 976 | 295 | | ļ | 87 | 684 | 156 | 2 | | 136 | 1226 | 89 | | | 262 | 1203 | 148 | | Norti Ea | | | | | |
| Date: | Project: | | - <mark>8</mark> 7 | | FUTURE | Added Volume | 0 | c | Э | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | C |) | | 0 | 7 | 0 | | | 0 | 7 | C |) | | | | | | ACT |
| | 9 | 2 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | JECT | Lane Volume | 97 | 000 | 030 | 295 | | ļ | 87 | 681 | 681 | - | I | 136 | 658 | 89 | | | 262 | 676 | 148 | 2 | 778 920 1698 | 1.132 | 1.032 | L. | | CT IMF |
| DS | JAS | | SB- | - | N W/ PRO | No. of Lanes | - | 0, | | 0 | 00 | c | C | | - 0 | | , | c | o ← • | - 0 | 0 0 | | - 0 | - · | - 0 | 00 | -South: t-West: SUM: | | | | | PROJE |
| ed by: N | ed by: | | 00 | 2 | CONDITIO | Total /olume | 97 | 010 | 9/6 | 295 | | ļ | 87 | 684 | 156 | | | 136 | 1227 | 89 | | | 262 | 1204 | 148 | 2 | North | | | | | |
| Conduct | Review | | å S | | FUTURE | Added olume V | 0 | c | D | - | | | - | 0 | C |) | | 0 | 4 | 0 | | | 2 | ŝ | 0 | I | | | | | | |
| 1.0 | PM | 2 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | ECT | Lane / olume V | 97 | 100 | 635 | 294 | | | 86 | 678 | 678 | | Ī | 136 | 656 | 89 | | | 260 | 673 | 146 | 2 | 775 916 691 | .127 | .027 | F | | |
| :(%): | Hour: | | SB- | | W/O PROJ | lo. of anes V | - | 0, | | 0 | 0 0 | c | c | | - 0 | | • | c | o ← • | - 0 | 0 0 | | - 0 | ÷ • | - 0 | 00 | South: West: SUM: 1 | - | - | | | |
| t Growth | Peak | | 00 | - - | ONDITION | Total N Diume L | 97 | | 976 | 294 | | | 80 | 684 | 156 | 3 | | 136 | 223 | 89 | | | 260 | 199 | 146 | 2 | North- East | | | | | |
| Ambien | | | 8,9 | L Q | FUTURE C | dded 7 | 36 | (| 20 | 147 | | | 40 | 110 | Uo | 8 | | 35 | 371 1: | 12 | | | 156 | 702 1 | 50 | 2 | | | | | | |
| 2019 | 2023 | 2 0 | 0 0 | 0 0 0 | ст | ane A ume Vo | 59 | | 8 4 | 142 | | | 45 | 398 | 398 | | İ | 97 | 149 | 74 | | | 02 | 275 | 66 |) | 529 551 380 | 720 | 320 | В | | |
| unt: | ear: | | SB- | | US PROJE | al Lí me Vo | 6 | ç | ja ja | Ņ | | | ų | 0 | e. e | , , | | 7 | r m | 4 | | | N | ŝ | ÿ | , | uth: t est: t | 0.1 | 0.0 | | | |
| ear of Co | jection Y | | 00 | | ISTING PL | ct Tot ic Volu | ц) - | C | õ | 14 | | | 7 | 55 | ų | | | 0) | 82 | 2 | | | 10 | 48 | ų. | | North-So East-W S | | | | | |
| ۶ | Pro | | ą : | 5 | EX | e Proje | 0 | | <u> </u> | - | | | | 0 | | , | | 0 | 4 | 0 | · | | | Ω. | ~ | | | | | | | |
| | | 2 0 | 00 | 000 | DITION | Volum | 59 | | 484 | 141 | | | 44 | 396 | 396 | | | 67 | 447 | 74 | | | 100 | 271 | 64 | | 1: 528 t: 547 t: 1075 | 0.717 | 0.617 | 8 | | |
| | | | -BS | | LING CON | No. of Lanes | - | •• | | 0 | 00 | C | C | 0, | - 0 | | > | - c | o ← • | - 0 | 0 0 | | - 0 | | - 0 | 00 | rth-South East-Wes SUM | | | | | |
| Avenue | et | | NB C | | EXIS. | Volume | 29 | 000 | 979 | 141 | | : | 44 | 552 | 63 | 3 | | 67 | 819 | 74 | | | 100 | 478 | 64 | 5 | No | | | | | |
| Central / | 7th Stree | Phases oth-3? | OLA-3? | TCS-2? IDACITV | | | | | | | Ħ | | | | | Ħ | | | | | Ħ | | | | | Ħ | UMES | RATIO: | MENT: | (LOS): | ARKS: | |
| treet: | treet: | No. of F E/W-2 or B | RTOR-2 or | ATSAC+A1 Dverride Ca | | ENT | | irough | jh ih-Riaht | 0 | ırough-Rigl ght | | rough | jh | jn-kignt | irough-Rig | | 40104 | h di | jn-kignt | irough-Rig ght | | rouah | ן קיייייייייייייייייייייייייייייייייייי | Jh-Right | irough-Rigl ght | TICAL VOI | ITY (V/C) I | S ADJUST | SERVICE | REM | 8/4/2011 |
| -South St | t-West St | 1-S/N; | REE-1, N | SAC-1 or | | MOVEME | Left | Left-Th | Throug | Right | Left-Th Left-Ri | | Left Left-Th | Throug | I nroug Riaht | Left-Th | | Left Left | Throug | Right | Left-Th Left-Ri | | Left Left-Th | Throug | Throug Riaht | Left-Th Left-Ri | CRI | IE/CAPAC | SAC/ATC | LEVEL OF | | : 1i Beta: |
| North | Eas | osed Ø'in | : Turns: F | АТ | | | ¢. | $\dot{\tau}$ | ; ← | | \ } | |)_, | → - | たう | +- | 1 | <u>٦</u> ۲ | ` 1 | * ~ | ᠅ᠯ᠂ᠰ | . (| └ | \ | ↓ J. | \uparrow | | VOLUN | LESS A1 | - | | Version |
| I/S #: | CMA01 | Opp | Right | | | | a | NN | оан | нтя | ION | | αN | NOE | ΙНТ | nos | | a | | ata | EA3 | | ۵N | | ата | ж | | | V/C | | | |

CMA01

Av/c after mitigation: 0.005 Fully mitigated? N/A

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.005 Significant impacted? NO

2





| 6 | ked-Use | с м ο | 00 | 0 0 0 | IGATION | Lane Volume | 189 | 707 | 171 | 155 | | 241 | 785 | 147 | | 177 | 358 | 233 | | 206 | | 700 | 226 | 974 679 1653 | 1.160 | 1.060 | LL. | | |
|----------------------|-----------------------|---|---------------------------|--|------------|--------------------|----------|-------------------------|-----------------|--|--------------|---|--------------------|-------------|--|----------|--|------------------|----------------------------------|----------------|---------------|-----------------|---|--------------------------------|--------------------------|------------------------|------------------------------|--------|-------------------------|
| 2/28/2019 | o Street Mix | | SB MB | 1 | ECT W/ MIT | No. of Lanes | - | 0 - | | 00 | 0 0 | C | o ← • | - 0 (| 0 0 | c | o ← • | - 0 (| 00 | - | 0 - | | 000 | th-South: ast-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| | 1024 Mate | | 00 |) | EW/ PROJE | Total Volume | 189 | 1200 | 667 | 155 | | 241 | 1423 | 147 | | 177 | 482 | 233 | | 206 | 022 | | 226 | Nor | | | | | |
| Date: | Project: | | NB |] | FUTURE | Added Volume | 7 | 1 | - | 0 | | 0 | <u>F</u> | 0 | | 0 | 0 | 5 | | C | , c | C | 0 | | | | | | PACT |
| | ١S | ю 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | DJECT | Lane Volume | 190 | 778 | 071 | 155 | | 241 | 786 | 147 | | 177 | 358 | 234 | | 206 | 50.7 | 700 | 226 | 976 679 1655 | 1.161 | 1.061 | ш | | ECT IM |
| NDS | ۱۲ | | SB WR | 1 | ON W/ PRO | No. of Lanes | - | 0 • | | 00 | 0 0 | C | > | - 0 (| 0 0 | - c | o ← • | - 0 (| 0 0 | - | 0 - | | 000 | h-South: ist-West: SUM: | | | | | PROJ |
| cted by: | wed by: | | 00 | • | E CONDITI | Total Volume | 190 | 1300 | | 155 | | 241 | 1424 | 147 | | 177 | 482 | 234 | | 206 | 022 | | 226 | Nort Ea | | | | | |
| Conduc | Reviev | | - 87 81 |) | FUTUR | Added Volume | 2 | ¢ | o | 0 | | 0 | 5 | 0 | | 0 | 0 | e | | C | , c | þ | 0 | | | | | | |
| 1.0 | AM | с 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | OJECT | Lane Volume | 188 | 776 | 077 | 155 | | 241 | 783 | 147 | | 177 | 357 | 231 | | 206 | 507 | 700 | 226 | 971 679 1650 | 1.158 | 1.058 | LL. | | |
| th: (%): | k Hour: | | SB WB | 1 | N W/O PR | No. of Lanes | - | 0 - | | 0 0 | 0 0 | | o ← ≁ | - 0 (| 0 0 | c |) ~ ~ | - 0 (| 0 0 | - | 0 - | | 000 | h-South: st-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| ent Grow | Реа | | 00 | | CONDITIC | Total Volume | 188 | 1207 | 1671 | 155 | | 241 | 1419 | 147 | | 177 | 482 | 231 | | 206 | 022 | | 226 | Norti Ea | | | | | |
| Ambi | | | NB EB |] | FUTURE | Added Volume | 101 | 661 | | 82 | | 194 | 583 | 76 | | 116 | 241 | 119 | | 86 | 2 C | 2 | 128 | | | | | | |
| 2019 | 2023 | с α | 00 | 0 0 0 | DJECT | Lane Volume | 86 | 347 | 140 | 70 | | 45 | 438 | 68 | | 59 | 172 | 111 | | 115 | 010 | 2 | 94 | 524 429 953 | 0.669 | 0.569 | A | | |
| Count: | n Year: | | O SB- | | BLUS PR | Total /olume | 86 | КОЛ | 124 | 20 | | 45 | 808 | 68 | | 59 | 232 | 111 | | 115 | 5 4E | 2 | 94 | -South: :t-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| Year of | Projectic | | NB EB |] | EXISTING | Project Traffic | 2 | ¢ | o | 0 | | 0 | 5 | 0 | | 0 | 0 | e | | C | , c | þ | 0 | North Eas | | | | | |
| | | с м Ο | 00 | 0 0 0 | N | Lane F | 84 | 316 | 040 | 70 | 1 | 45 | 436 | 68 | | 59 | 170 | 108 | | 115 | 010 | 200 | 94 | 520 429 949 | .666 | .566 | A | | |
| | | | SB MB | 2 | CONDITIC | No. of Lanes \ | - | 0 + | | 0 0 | 0 0 | c | > | - 0 (| 0 0 | c |) - - | - 0 0 | 0 0 | - | 0 - | | 000 | South: f-West: SUM: | | 0 | | | |
| reet | | | <mark>0 0</mark> | þ | EXISTING | olume | 84 | 601 | 170 | 20 | | 45 | 803 | 68 | | 29 | 232 | 108 | | 115 | C 4E | 2 | 94 | North- Eas | | | | | |
| ameda St | n Street | ies 3? | -3? NB | ity 1 | | > | | | | | - | - | | | | - | | | - | ŀ | | | | ES | ö | Ë | s): | S: | |
| rth-South Street: Al | East-West Street: 6th | No. of Phas Ø'ing: N/S-1, E/W-2 or Both- | s: FREE-1, NRTOR-2 or OLA | ATSAC-1 or ATSAC+ATCS- Override Capac | | MOVEMENT | Left | Left-Through Throuch | • Through-Right | Right I off.Through_Right | + Left-Right | Left 1 off-Through | Through Through | Right | Left-Through-Right Left-Right | Left | Through Through | Right | Left-Through-Right Left-Right | Left | Left-Through | - Through-Right | Right Left-Through-Right Left-Right | CRITICAL VOLUMI | -UME/CAPACITY (V/C) RATI | 3 ATSAC/ATCS ADJUSTMEN | LEVEL OF SERVICE (LO: | REMARK | vion: 1i Beta; 8/4/2011 |
| 0N :# S | IA02 | Opposed | ight Turn: | | | | ر . م | Ύ | оан С | ჭ | | ער ער אם | ר → ל ל | нто 4 Л_ | ⇔ ⊰ os | רי ר | | at <i>er</i> | / | <u>د</u> ر | ↓ -↓ ∩ N D | ਦਾ - ਦਾ | Jeffe Jeffe | | ION | V/C LESS | | | Vers |
| 1/5 | CM | 0 | R | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | - | | | | | | | | | | |

Version: 1i Beta; 8/4/2011

CMA02

∆*W*/c after mitigation: 0.002 Fully mitigated? N/A

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.003 Significant impacted? NO





| 6 | xed-Use | ю 0 | 00 | 000 | TIGATION | Lane Volume | 216 | | 956 | 198 | | 258 | 806 | 190 | | | 283 | 635 | 238 | | 210 | 361 | 000 | 707 | 1214 845 2059 | 1.445 | 1.345 | LL. | |
|-----------|--------------|------------------------|-----------|------------|-----------------|-------------------|------|---------------|----------------|------------------|----------------------|--------------|---------|------------------|----------------------|---|-------------------|------------------|-------------------|----------------------|----------------|----------------|------------------|----------------------|---------------------------------|-------------|---------|---------|-------|
| 2/28/201 | so Street Mi | | SB | | ECT W/ MI | No. of Lanes | - | 0 | . | - 0 | 00 | c | | - 0 | 00 | | - c | o ← • | - 0 | 00 | ← (| ⊃ - | c | 000 | rth-South: ast-West: SUM: | | | | |
| | 1024 Mate | | 00 | þ | E W/ PROJI | Total Volume | 216 | I | 1714 | 198 | | 258 | 1422 | 190 | | | 283 | 1031 | 238 | | 210 | 440 | COC | 707 | Nor | | | | |
| Date: | Project: | | NB | | FUTURE | Added Volume | 2 | | 7 | 0 | | 0 | 7 | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | 0 | | 0 | 0 | C | 2 | | | | | |
| | S | 3 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | JECT | Lane Volume | 217 | | 957 | 198 | | 258 | 807 | 190 | | | 283 | 635 | 238 | | 210 | 361 | 000 | 707 | 1215 845 2060 | 1.446 | 1.346 | н | |
| NDS | AL | | SB M/B | | ON W/ PRC | No. of Lanes | - | 0 | - • | - 0 | 00 | - c | o ← • | - 0 | 00 | | - c | o • | - 0 | 0 0 | . . | c | c | 000 | n-South: st-West: SUM: | | | | |
| ted by: | 'ed by: | | 00 | þ | CONDITIC | Total Volume | 217 | : | 1715 | 198 | | 258 | 1423 | 190 | | | 283 | 1031 | 238 | | 210 | 440 | 600 | 707 | North Eas | | | | |
| Conduct | Review | | NB EB | 5 | FUTURE | Added | e | l. | Q | 0 | | 0 | 4 | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | 2 | | 0 | 0 | c | C | | | | | |
| 1.0 | PM | 3 | 00 | 0 0 0 | ECT | Lane V | 214 | | 954 | 198 | | 258 | 805 | 190 | | Ī | 283 | 634 | 236 | | 210 | 361 | 00 | 707 | 212 844 056 | 443 | 343 | L. | |
| : (%) : | Hour: | | SB MB | | W/O PROJ | o. of anes V | - | 0 | - · | - 0 | 00 | - c | | - 0 | 0 0 | | - c |) - - | - 0 | 0 0 | . . | C | c | 000 | South: 1 West: SUM: 2 | - | - | | |
| : Growth | Peak I | | 00 | . | | otal N lume L | 214 | | 710 | 98 | | 258 | 119 | 06 | | | 583 | 31 | 236 | | 210 | 140 | 00 | 2 2 | North-S East- | | | | |
| Ambient | | | | | UTURE CO | ded T ume Vo | 05 | | 06 17 | 15 | | 74 2 | 06 12 | 05 | | | 56 | 54 10 | 40 | | 61 | 67 4 | č | * * | | | | | |
| 019 | 023 | 0 3 | 2 4 | 1 0 0 0 | , F | ne Ad Vol | 1 | | 27 8 | 80 | | 81 | 36 7 | 82 | | ł | 22 | 21 2 | 94 1 | 1 | 47 1 | 59 | c u | | 58 58 26 | 20 | 20 | 3 | |
| nt: 2 | ar: 2 | | SB M/B | | S PROJEC | Lai Volu | ÷ | | 4 | ~ | | - | Ř | ~ | | | , , | .4 | | | | 1 | | - | th: 5t st: 46 M: 102 | 0.72 | 0.6 | - | |
| ar of Cou | ection Ye | | 00 | þ | TING PLU | t Tota Volun | 108 | | 874 | 80 | | 8 | 689 | 82 | | | 122 | 747 | 76 | | 47 | 262 | 20 | ň | lorth-Sou East-We SU | | | | |
| Yeá | Proje | | -BN -B | 9 | EXIS | Projec Traffic | e | | Q | 0 | | 0 | 4 | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | 2 | | • | 0 | C | 2 | < | | | | |
| | | 0 3 | 00 | 0 0 0 | TION | Lane Volume | 105 | | 475 | 80 | | 8 | 384 | 82 | | l | 122 | 420 | 92 | | 47 | 159 | E E | R | 556 467 1023 | 0.718 | 0.618 | 8 | |
| | | | SB | | NG COND | No. of Lanes | - | 0 | . . | - 0 | 00 | c | o ← • | - 0 | 00 | | c | o ← • | - 0 | 0 0 | (| ⊃ - | c | 000 | th-South: ast-West: SUM: | | | | |
| Street | t | | VB 0 | | EXIST | Volume | 105 | | 869 | 80 | | 8 | 685 | 82 | | | 122 | 747 | 92 | | 47 | 262 | 20 | R | Nor | | | | |
| Alameda | 6th Stree | Phases toth-3? | OLA-37 | rcs-2? | funda | 1 | | | | | Ħ | | | | Ħ | | | | | | | | | Ŧ | UMES | RATIO: | MENT: | (LOS): | VDKC. |
| eet: | eet: | No. of F :/W-2 or B | TOR-2 or | VTSAC+AT | | F | | hguo | | 1-Kight | ough-Rigl ht | quite | | 1-Kight | ough-Rigl ht | | 4010 | | ו-אופחו | ough-Rigl ht | ŀ | uguo | -Right | ough-Rigl ht | ICAL VOL | TY (///C) F | | SERVICE | |
| south Str | West Str | : N/S-1, E | EE-1, NR | AC-1 or A | Ŷ | NOVEMEI | Left | Left-Thr | Through | rnrougr Riaht | Left-Thr Left-Rig | Left Left | Through | rnrougr Right | Left-Thr Left-Ria | | Left I off-Thr | Through | r nrougr Right | Left-Thr Left-Rig | Left | Through | Through Dickt | Left-Thr Left-Rig | CRIT | :/CAPACI | AC/ATCS | EVEL OF | |
| North-S | East- | sed Ø'ing | Furns: FR | ATS | | 2 | ſ | - | · • | <u>, 1</u> (| -+} | ر ر | • | たう | ᢤ┤ | × | רז ר ז | 11 | م مرم « | <i>}~~</i> | Ċţ | → ↓ • | J J. | фÅ | | VOLUME | ESS ATS | L | |
| I/S #: | CMA02 | Oppo | Right 7 | | | | 6 | ואם | าดย | ΙΗΤΣ | NOF | an | INOE | ΙΗΤΙ | nos | | a | | ets/ | /3 | a | NUC | BT8 | ME | | | 1//C [| | |

Version: 1i Beta; 8/4/2011

CMA02

Av/c after mitigation: 0.002 Fully mitigated? N/A

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.003 Significant impacted? NO

2





| S #: Nort | MAU3 Ec | Opposed Ø | Right Turns: | 4 | | | ر ر | т ПИС | | нтяо г∠ \ | -}- | <u>د</u> ر ۵ | | інтис ⊅ 1 | ÷ ⊰ os | רי ד םו | ` † † NПО | ∃T2A → \+ | ج <i>ل</i> يد ح | 4 ب ا | ↓ NUO1 | عts: | לייץ שש | | NOLU | V/C LESS / |
|------------------------|--------------------|---------------------------------|---------------------|---------------------|------------------|--------------------|--------|--------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------------------------|---|------------|--------------|--------------------|---------------------|--------------------|----------------------|-----------|------------------------|-------------------------------|---------------------------------|--------------------|--|
| th-South Street: | dol-VVest our eet. | No. of Ping: N/S-1, E/W-2 or | : FREE-1, NRTOR-2 o | ATSAC-1 or ATSAC+/ | | MOVEMENT | Left | Left-Through | Through Through-Right | Right Left-Through-Ri | Left-Right | Left | Lett-Inrougn Through Through | rnrougn-кignt Right Lott-Tbrouch-Di | Left-Right | Left Left | Through Through | Right Right | Left-Right | Left Loft Through | Through | Through-Right Right | Left-Through-Ri Left-Right | CRITICAL VC | JME/CAPACITY (V/C) | JME/CAPACITY (V/C) ATSAC/ATCS ADJUS I EVEL OF SEDVIC |
| Alameda 7th Stree | | f Phases Both-3? | vr OLA-3? | ATCS-2? Capacity | | 1 | | | | aht | , | | | 4 7 | 116 | | | 2 2 | 1116 | | | | ght | OLUMES | RATIO: | RATIO: TMENT: E 1 OSV: |
| a Street | L L | | NB 0 FB 0 | | EXISTI | Volume | 111 | | 634 | 95 | | 129 | 888 | 170 | | 59 | 315 | 83 | | 121 | 675 | 100 | | Non E | | |
| | | | SB MB | | NG CONDIT | No. of Lanes | - | 0 | ~ ~ | 00 | 0 | (| ⊃ - - | - 0 0 | 00 | c | o ← • | - 0 0 | 00 | | o ← • | - 0 | 00 | th-South: ast-West: SUM: | | |
| | | с м Ο | 00 | 0 0 0 | NOI. | Lane Volume | 111 | | 365 | 95 | | 129 | 529 | 170 | | 59 | 199 | 83 | | 121 | 388 | 100 | | 640 447 1087 | 0.763 | 0.763 0.663 |
| Project | LIUJECI | | NB FB | 3 | EXISTIN | Project Traffic | 0 | | 0 | 0 | | œ | 0 | 0 | | 0 | o | 0 | | 0 | 9 | 5 | | Nor E | | |
| or count: ion Year: | IOII TEAL. | | 0 SE | | IG PLUS PI | Total | 111 | | 634 | 95 | | 137 | 888 | 170 | | 59 | 324 | 83 | | 121 | 681 | 105 | | th-South: ast-West: SUM: | | |
| 2019 | 2023 | с п | ۲ <u>۲</u> | | ROJECT | Lane | 111 | | 365 | 95 | | 137 | 529 | 170 | | 59 | 204 | 83 | | 121 | 393 | 105 | | 640 452 1092 | 0.766 | 0.766 0.666 |
| Amp | | | NB FB | 2 | FUTUR | Added | 10 | | 436 | 137 | | 234 | 360 | 204 | | 184 | 473 | ი | | 134 | 401 | 111 | | | | |
| Pe | Ď | | 00 | þ | E CONDITI | Total Volume | 126 | | 1096 | 236 | | 368 | 1284 | 381 | | 245 | 801 | 95 | | 260 | 1103 | 215 | | Nor E | | |
| ak Hour: | | | SB WB | | ION W/O PF | No. of Lanes | - | 0 | - - | 0 0 | 0 | ← C | ⊃ - - | - 0 0 | 00 | c | o ← • | - 0 0 | 00 | c | | - 0 | 00 | rth-South: ast-West: SUM: | | |
| 1.0 AM | MIN | с 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | ROJECT | Lane Volume | 126 | | 666 | 236 | | 368 | 833 | 381 | | 245 | 448 | 95 | | 260 | 659 | 215 | | 1034 904 1938 | 1.360 | 1.360 1.260 |
| Condt | Kevik | | NB FB | 9 | FUTU | Added Volume | 0 | | 0 | 0 | | œ | 0 | 0 | | 0 | თ | 0 | | 0 | 9 | 5 | | | | |
| ucted by: | ewea by: | | 00 | þ | RE CONDIT | Total Volume | 126 | | 1096 | 236 | | 376 | 1284 | 381 | | 245 | 810 | 95 | | 260 | 1109 | 220 | | Nor E | | |
| 7F SQN | 5 | | SB WB | | ION W/ PR | No. of Lanes | - | 0 | ~ ~ | 00 | 0 | c | ⊃ - | - 0 0 | 00 | c | o ← • | - 0 0 | 00 | ← C | o ← • | - 0 | 00 | th-South: ast-West: SUM: | | |
| S | 2 | с 0 ο | 00 | 0 0 0 | DJECT | Lane Volume | 126 | | 666 | 236 | | 376 | 833 | 381 | | 245 | 453 | 95 | | 260 | 665 | 220 | | 1042 910 1952 | 1.370 | 1.370 1.270 |
| Date: | Project: | | - Br | 9 | FUTURE | Added Volume | 0 | | • | 0 | | 5 | 0 | 0 | | 0 | 5- | 0 | | 0 | 4 | 7 | | | | |
| otch Motor | 1024 Mate | | 00 | þ | E W/ PROJE | Total Volume | 126 | | 1096 | 236 | | 374 | 1284 | 381 | | 245 | 808 | 95 | | 260 | 1107 | 219 | | Nor Ei | | |
| 2/28/2019 | o Street MI) | | SB WR | | ECT W/ MIT | No. of Lanes | - | 0 | | 0 0 | 0 | (| ⊃ - - | - 0 0 | 00 | c | o ← • | - 0 0 | 00 | - c | | - 0 | 00 | th-South: ast-West: SUM: | | |
| od l leo | ed-Use | с α | 00 | 0 0 0 | IGATION | Lane Volume | 126 | | 666 | 236 | | 374 | 833 | 381 | | 245 | 452 | 95 | | 260 | 663 | 219 | | 1040 908 1948 | 1.367 | 1.367 1.267 5 |

2/28/2019-2:19 PM

CMA03

Av/c after mitigation: 0.007 Fully mitigated? YES

Change in v/c due to project: 0.010 Significant impacted? YES





| I/S #: | North | n-South Street: | Alameda | a Street | | | Year | of Count: | 2019 | Ambi | ent Grow | th: (%): | 1.0 | Conduc | cted by: | NDS | | Date: | 2 | /28/2019 | |
|--------|--------------|-----------------------------------|---------------------|--------------|-------------------------------|--------------------|--------------------|--------------------------------|--------------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------------------|----------------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------------------|----------------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------------------|----------------------|
| CMA03 | Eas | st-West Street: | 7th Stre | et | | | Project | ion Year: | 2023 | | Pea | k Hour: | PM | Reviev | ved by: | AL | S | Project: | 1024 Mateo | Street Mixe | d-Use |
| ddO | osed Ø'ir | No. o ng: N/S-1, E/W-2 or | f Phases Both-3? | | | ю 0 | | | с м Ο | | | | с 0 0 | | | | с м Ο | | | | ς α |
| Right | t Turns: F | FREE-1, NRTOR-2 c | or OLA-3? | NB 0 EB 0 | SB WB | 00 | NB EB | 0 SB WE | •• | NB EB | 00 | SB WB | 00 | NB- EB- | 00 | SB WB | 00 | NB- EB- | 00 | SB WB | 00 |
| | F | TSAC-1 or ATSAC+. Override (| ATCS-2? Capacity | | | 0 7 | | | 0 0 | | | | 0 0 | | | | 0 0 | | | | 0 0 |
| | | | | EXISTI | NG CONDIT | NOI | EXISTIN | IG PLUS PF | OUECT | FUTURI | | N W/O PRO | DJECT | FUTUR | E CONDITI | ON W/ PRC | JECT | FUTURE | W/ PROJEC | CT W/ MITIC | BATION |
| | | MOVEMENT | | Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane Volume | Project Traffic | Total Volume | Lane Volume | Added Volume | Total Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane Volume | Added Volume | Total Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane Volume | Added Volume | Total Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane Volume |
| C | Ç | Left | | 111 | ÷ | 111 | 0 | 111 | 111 | 13 | 129 | ÷ | 129 | 0 | 129 | - | 129 | 0 | 129 | - | 129 |
| INI | ₹7 | Left-Through | | | 0 | | | | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | |
| 105 | <u>ن</u> | Through | | 777 | | 448 | 0 | 777 | 448 | 619 | 1428 | . . | 817 | 0 | 1428 | . . | 817 | 0 | 1428 | | 817 |
| IHT | <u>, t</u> t | ו hrougn-אופחז Riaht | | 118 | - c | 118 | C | 118 | 118 | 83 | 206 | - c | 206 | C | 206 | - c | 206 | C | 206 | - c | 206 |
| NOR | | Left-Through-R | ight | | 000 |) | • | 2 | | } | | 000 | | • | | 000 | | • | | 000 | |
| | ⊱ | Left-Right | | | 0 | | | | | | | 0 | 1 | | | 0 | 1 | | | 0 | |
| C | .ر | Left | | 107 | - | 107 | 9 | 113 | 113 | 149 | 260 | - | 260 | 9 | 266 | - | 266 | ç | 264 | - | 264 |
| IN | <u>ئ</u> | Left-Through | | | 0 | | | | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | |
| noa | → -, | Through | | 728 | | 386 | 0 | 728 | 386 | 478 | 1236 | , | 772 | 0 | 1236 | | 772 | 0 | 1236 | | 772 |
| ΙНΤ | ¢γ | I nrougn-kignt Richt | | 44 | - c | 44 | C | 44 | 44 | 261 | 307 | - c | 307 | C | 307 | - c | 307 | C | 307 | - c | 307 |
| 005 | - } · | Left-Through-Ri | ight | F | 00 | F | þ | ļ | ļ | 04 | 00 | 00 | 200 | þ | 000 | 00 | 200 | 5 | 50 | 00 | 200 |
| 3 | ⊰ | Left-Right | | | 0 | | | | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | 1 | | | 0 | |
| | * | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ŀ | |
| a | ר ר ו | Left Left-Through | | 100 | - c | 100 | 0 | 100 | 100 | 234 | 338 | - c | 338 | 0 | 338 | - c | 338 | 0 | 338 | - c | 338 |
| NNC | 1 | Through | | 772 | - - | 444 | 7 | 779 | 447 | 292 | 1095 | - - | 614 | 7 | 1102 | → ~ | 618 | Ņ | 1100 | - - | 617 |
| BC | ٢ı | Through-Right | | | - | | | | | | | - | | | | ÷ | | | | - | |
| LS∀ | ~~∳ | Right | 1 | 115 | 0 0 | 115 | 0 | 115 | 115 | 13 | 133 | 00 | 133 | 0 | 133 | 0 0 | 133 | 0 | 133 | 0 0 | 133 |
| Έ | ∽ ۰γ | Left-Inrougn-K | ignt | | 00 | | | | | | | 00 | | | | 00 | | | | 00 | |
| | - | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| a | ſ, Ĵ, | Left Left_Through | | 81 | - c | 81 | 0 | 81 | 81 | 211 | 295 | c | 295 | 0 | 295 | - c | 295 | 0 | 295 | c | 295 |
| | . ↓ . | Through | | 429 | - - | 277 | 6 | 438 | 285 | 712 | 1158 | - - | 765 | 0 | 1167 | | 773 | Ņ | 1165 | - - | 771 |
| BTB | 11 | Through-Right | | | ← c | 201 | c | 007 | 007 | 010 | 10 | ← (| 10 | c | 010 | c | 020 | c | 140 | c | 1 |
| SEN | ¢¢• | ки <u>у</u> п. Left-Through-Ri | ight | 124 | 00 | 124 | 0 | 132 | 132 | 747 | 1/5 | 00 | 1/6 | 0 | 5/3 | 00 | 5/3 | 4 | 110 | 00 | 311 |
| ١ | لم | Left-Right | | | 0 | | | | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | |
| | | CRITICAL V | OLUMES | Nori Eâ | h-South: ist-West: SUM: | 555 525 1080 | Nor | th-South: ast-West: SUM: | 561 528 1089 | | Norti Ea | h-South: st-West: SUM: | 1077 1103 2180 | | Norti Ea | h-South: st-West: SUM: | 1083 1111 2194 | | Norti Ea | h-South: st-West: SUM: | 1081 1109 2190 |
| | VOLUN | ME/CAPACITY (V/C) |) RATIO: | | | 0.758 | | | 0.764 | | | | 1.530 | | | | 1.540 | | | | 1.537 |
| //C | LESS A | TSAC/ATCS ADJUS | STMENT: | | | 0.658 | | | 0.664 | | | | 1.430 | | | | 1.440 | | | | 1.437 |
| | | LEVEL OF SERVIC | E (LOS): | | | В | | | B | | | | LL. | | | | u. | | | | ш |
| | | RE | MARKS: | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Versior | n: 1i Beta; 8/4/201 | ÷ | | | | | | | | | | | | | PROJI | ECT IMF | PACT | | | |

Version: 1i Beta; 8/4/2011

CMA03

∆*W*c after mitigation: 0.007 Fully mitigated? YES

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.010 Significant impacted? YES

N





| | Ixed-Use | 0 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | TIGATION | Lane Volum | 48 | | 707 | 20 | | ~ | , | 706 | 125 | | | 103 | 209 | 0 | | | 41 | 165 | c | 5 | : 772 | 1040 | 0.693 | 0.593 | 4 | |
|-----------|-------------|------------------|-------------|-------------------|------------|---------------------|------|----------|-----------------|-------|----------------------|------|-------------|-----------------|--------------|----------------------|------|------------------|---------|-------------------|----------------------|------|------------------|---------|------------------|----------------------|---------------|---------------|-----------|----------|---------|-------|
| Class Au | o Street MI | | SB- | | ECT W/ MI | No. of Lanes | - | 0, | | 0 | 0 0 | - | . 0 | | - 0 | 00 | | 00 | | 00 | - 0 | | 00 | 0 | 00 | o – c | th-South: | SUM: | | | | |
| 1034 Mato | 1024 Mate | | 00 | þ | W/ PROJI | Total Volume | 48 | | 1508 | 20 | | œ | > | 1287 | 125 | | | 103 | 45 | 61 | | | 41 | 84 | | 04 | Nor | 1 | | | | |
| Droioct: | Project: | | NB- | | FUTURE | Added Volume | 0 | c | D | 0 | | C | > | 0 | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | c | D | | | | | | |
| c. | 2 | 0 0 | 00 | 000 | JECT | Lane Volume | 48 | 101 | /64 | 20 | | ~ | , | 706 | 125 | | | 103 | 209 | 0 | | | 41 | 165 | c | þ | 772 260 | 1040 | 0.693 | 0.593 | A | |
| | 5 | | SB | | ON W/ PRC | No. of Lanes | - | 0 7 | | 0 | 0 0 | - | . 0 | | - 0 | 00 | | 00 | | 00 | - 0 | | 00 | 0 | 00 | o – c | n-South: | ST-WESL | | | | |
| ed by: | ea by: | | 00 | þ | | Total Volume | 48 | | 1508 | 20 | | œ |) | 1287 | 125 | | | 103 | 45 | 61 | | | 41 | 84 | 07 | 40 | North | Ľä | | | | |
| Deview | Keview | | -82 - 82 | 5 | FUTURE | Added / | Ţ | c | D | 0 | | c | > | 0 | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | 2 | | | 0 | 0 | c | C | | | | | | |
| 0.F | MIN | 0 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | JECT | Lane V | 47 | | 764 | 20 | | | , | 706 | 125 | | | 103 | 207 | 0 | | | 41 | 165 | c | > | 772 260 | 200 1040 | .693 | .593 | A | |
| Hour: | . 10011 | | SB W/P | | W/O PRO. | No. of -anes V | - | 0, | | 0 | 0 0 | | . 0 | | - 0 | 0 0 | | 00 | | 00 | - 0 | | 0 0 | 0 | 0 0 | o ← c | South: | SUM: | 0 | 0 | | |
| Peak | רממע | | 00 | þ | | Total I olume I | 47 | | 508 | 20 | | œ |) | 287 | 125 | | | 103 | 45 | 59 | | | 41 | 84 | 0 | 9 | North- | East | | | | |
| | | | NB | | FUTURE C | dded V | 0 | | 583 | 0 | | c | > | 503 1 | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | c | þ | | | | | | |
| 2013 | 2023 | 0 0 | 0 0 | 0 0 0 | ≣CT | ane A lume V | 46 | L. | 454 | 19 | | | > | 437 | 120 | | | 66 | 201 | 0 | | | 39 | 158 | c | 5 | 483 267 | 740 | 493 | 393 | A | |
| ount: | Adl . | | SB | | US PROJI | tal L Ime Vo | 46 | ç | 22 | 19 | | œ | 2 | 53 | 20 | | | 66 | 43 | 60 | | | 69 | 31 | 0 | õ | uth: loct: | /est: SUM: | 0. | o | | |
| ear or un | naction | | | | (ISTING PL | act To fic Volu | - | č | õ | 0 | | | | 2 | 0 | | | 0 | | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | | - - | North-Sc | | | | | |
| | Ĕ | | ġ g | 9 | ũ | e Proje ne Trafi | | | | _ | | | | | | | _ | _ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | ľ | | 00 | | DITION | f Lan | 45 | L V | 40 1 | 19 | | |) | 437 | 120 | | | 66 | 199 | 0 | | | 99 9 | 158 | C | 2 | h: 482 | N: 739 | 0.493 | 0.393 | A | |
| | | | -BS | | TING CON | No. o Lanes | - | 0 • | | 0 | 00 | - | • 0 | . | - 0 | 00 | | 00 | | 00 | - 0 | | 00 | 0 | 00 | o – c | orth-Sout | East-wes | 1 | | | |
| a Ourcet | 21 | | NB 0 | | EXIS | Volume | 45 | 000 | 888 | 19 | | ~~~ | , | 753 | 120 | | | 66 | 43 | 57 | | | 39 | 81 | ç | 8 | N | | | | | |
| 8th Stre | | Phases oth-3? | OLA-3? | rcs-2? apacity | (mond - | • | | | | | Ŧ | | | | | ž | | | | | Ħ | | | | | ht | MES | | RATIO: | MENT: | (ros): | ARKS: |
| | ALL. | No. of F | TOR-2 or | verride Ca | | F | | hguo | r A-Right | | ough-Rig ht | | qguo | - Dicht | -Ingili | ough-Rig ht | | ouah | | ו-אופות | ough-Rig ht | | ouah | , _ | n-Right | ough-Rig ht | | | TY (WC) I | ADJUST | SERVICE | REM |
| Maet Str | INC ISAM- | t: N/S-1, E | EE-1, NR | AC-1 or # | Ì | NOVEMEI | Left | Left-Thr | Through | Right | Left-Thr Left-Rig | Left | Left-Thr | Through | Right | Left-Thr Left-Rig | | Left Left-Thr | Through | I nrougi Right | Left-Thr Left-Rig | | Left Left-Thr | Through | Through Diabe | Left-Thr Left-Thr | | ;;;; | E/CAPACI | SAC/ATCS | EVEL OF | |
| - tee | East | ed Ø'ing | urns: FR | ATS | | 6 | - · | ₹7* | <u>ل</u> ے | يل | ÷≻ | ر | <u>_</u>]. | $\rightarrow J$ | ₹ ~ - | ÷⊰ | | <u>ר</u> ז ד | 11 | *م * | ᠹᢇᠬ | - 1 | <i>ل</i> ه له | ↓← | 11 | <i></i> ≁≁ | * | | VOLUME | LESS ATS | Ë | |
| 2 | I | Ű, | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 1000 | | | | | 1000 | | | | | | | | _ | | 4 |

2/28/2019-2:20 PM

CMA04

∆v/c after mitigation: 0.000 Fully mitigated? N/A

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.000 Significant impacted? NO





| # S/I | : North | I-South Street: | Alamed | a Street | | | Year | of Count: | 2019 | Ambi | ient Grow | rth: (%): | 1.0 | Conduc | ted by: | NDS | | Date: | 2 | /28/2019 | |
|-------|----------------|---------------------------------------|------------------------|--------------|--------------------------------|-------------------|--------------------|--------------------------------|-------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-------------------------------|--------------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------------------|--------------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------------------|--------------------|
| CMA04 | Eas | st-West Street: | 8th Stre | et | | | Project | ion Year: | 2023 | | Pea | k Hour: | PM | Reviev | ved by: | JA | S | Project: | 1024 Mateo | Street Mixe | d-Use |
| Opt | osed Ø'ir | No. c ng: N/S-1, E/W-2 or | of Phases r Both-3? | | | 0 0 | | | 0 0 | | | | 0 0 | | | | 0 0 | | | | 0 2 |
| Righ | t Turns: F | FREE-1, NRTOR-2 | or OLA-3? | NB 0 FB 0 | SB WB | 00 | NB FB | 0 SE | بر بر 0 | NB FB | 00 | SB WB | 00 | NB FB | 00 | SB MB | 00 | NB FB | 00 | SB WB | 00 |
| | Γ | TSAC-1 or ATSAC+ Override | ATCS-2? Capacity | | 2 | 0 0 0 | } | | 0 0 0 |] | 0 | | 0 0 0 |) | , | | 0 0 0 |) | , | | 0 0 0 |
| | | | | EXISTI | NG CONDI | lion | EXISTIN | IG PLUS PF | ROJECT | FUTURE | E CONDITIC | DN W/O PR(| DJECT | FUTUR | E CONDITIO | ON W/ PRO | JECT | FUTURE | W/ PROJEC | CT W/ MITIC | BATION |
| | | MOVEMENT | | Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane Volume | Project Traffic | Total Volume | Lane Volume | Added Volume | Total Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane Volume | Added Volume | Total Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane | Added Volume | Total Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane Volume |
| C | Ç | Left | | ۷ | - | 7 | 2 | 6 | 6 | 0 | 7 | - | 7 | 2 | 6 | - | 6 | 0 | 6 | - | 6 |
| זאנ | Ţ | Left-Through | | | 0 | | | | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | |
| 105 | <u>ن</u> | Through | | 624 | | 320 | 0 | 624 | 320 | 714 | 1363 | . . | 690 | 0 | 1363 | - • | 690 | 0 | 1363 | - • | 690 |
| IHT | <u>, t</u> t | I nrougn-кignt Riaht | | 16 | - 0 | 16 | C | 16 | 16 | C | 17 | - 0 | 17 | C | 17 | - c | 17 | C | 17 | - c | 17 |
| NOR | -+} | Left-Through-R Left-Riaht | tight | 2 | 000 | 2 | , | |) |) | : | 000 | : |) | : | 000 | : |) | : | 000 | : |
| | | , | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| an | <u>, (</u> | Left Left_Through | | 30 | - c | 30 | 0 | 30 | 30 | 0 | 31 | c | 31 | 0 | 31 | c | 31 | 0 | 31 | c | 31 |
| INO | | Through | | 980 | ⊃ – | 530 | 0 | 980 | 530 | 703 | 1723 | C | 903 | 0 | 1723 | → ~ | 903 | 0 | 1723 | o ← | 903 |
| вн | Ĵ, | Through-Right | | | - | | | | | | | - | | | | - | | | | - | |
| TUOS | $\neg + \cdot$ | Right Left-Through-R | light | 80 | 000 | 80 | 0 | 80 | 80 | 0 | 83 | 000 | 83 | 0 | 83 | 000 | 83 | 0 | 83 | 000 | 83 |
| | ₹ | Leit-Kignt | | | 5 | | | | | | | - | | | | 5 | I | | | 5 | I |
| a | 51 | Left Loft-Through | | 38 | 00 | 38 | 0 | 38 | 38 | 0 | 40 | 00 | 40 | 0 | 40 | 00 | 40 | 0 | 40 | 00 | 40 |
| | ` ↑ ƙ | Through | | 23 | | 86 | 0 | 23 | 87 | 0 | 24 | | 06 | 0 | 24 | | 91 | 0 | 24 | | 91 |
| 8T8 | •م • | ı nrougn-кıgnt Right | | 25 | 00 | 0 | ~ | 26 | 0 | 0 | 26 | 00 | 0 | . | 27 | 00 | 0 | 0 | 27 | 00 | 0 |
| AB | أ | Left-Through-R Left-Right | tight | | - 0 | | | | | | | - 0 | | | | - 0 | | | | - 0 | |
| d | Ŀ↓ | Left | | 21 | 0 | 21 | 0 | 21 | 21 | 0 | 52 | 0 | 22 | 0 | 22 | 0 | 22 | 0 | 22 | 0 | 22 |
| NUC | × ↓ · | Left-Through Through | | 24 | 0 0 | 61 | 0 | 24 | 61 | 0 | 25 | 00 | 64 | 0 | 25 | 00 | 64 | 0 | 25 | 00 | 64 |
|) BT | 4 <i>-</i> | Through-Right | | | 0 0 | (| | | (| (| į | 0 0 | ¢ | | į | 0 0 | (| ¢ | į | 0 0 | ¢ |
| MES | 44 | Right Left-Through-R Left-Right | tight | 16 | 0 - 0 | 0 | 0 | 16 | 0 | 0 | 17 | 0 - 0 | 0 | 0 | 17 | 0 - 0 | 0 | 0 | 17 | o – o | 0 |
| | | CRITICAL V | OLUMES | Nor E | th-South: ast-West: SUM: | 537 107 644 | Nor E | th-South: ast-West: SUM: | 539 108 647 | | Nort Ea | h-South: Ist-West: SUM: | 910 112 1022 | | North Ea | h-South: st-West: SUM: | 912 113 1025 | | North Ea | n-South: st-West: SUM: | 912 113 1025 |
| | VOLUN | ME/CAPACITY (V/C | ;) RATIO: | | | 0.429 | | | 0.431 | | | | 0.681 | | | | 0.683 | | | | 0.683 |
| λλ | : LESS Ai | TSAC/ATCS ADJU | STMENT: | | | 0.329 | | | 0.331 | | | | 0.581 | | | | 0.583 | | | | 0.583 |
| | | LEVEL OF SERVIC | CE (LOS): | | | A | | | A | | | | A | | | | Α | | | | Α |
| | | RE | EMARKS: | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Version | n: 1i Beta; 8/4/201 | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | PROJE | ECT IMF | ACT | | | |

CMA04

∆v/c after mitigation: 0.002 Fully mitigated? N/A

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.002 Significant impacted? NO

N





| 1000 1000 </th <th>6</th> <th>xed-Use</th> <th>0 0</th> <th>00</th> <th>000</th> <th>TIGATION</th> <th>Lane Volume</th> <th>176</th> <th>100</th> <th>687</th> <th>221</th> <th></th> <th>261</th> <th>521</th> <th></th> <th>147</th> <th>257</th> <th>549</th> <th>86</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>167</th> <th>522</th> <th>133</th> <th>3</th> <th>948 779 1727</th> <th>1.151</th> <th>1.051</th> <th>L.</th> <th></th> <th></th> | 6 | xed-Use | 0 0 | 00 | 000 | TIGATION | Lane Volume | 176 | 100 | 687 | 221 | | 261 | 521 | | 147 | 257 | 549 | 86 | | | 167 | 522 | 133 | 3 | 948 779 1727 | 1.151 | 1.051 | L. | | |
|---|--------------------|-------------------|--------------------------------------|------------------------|-----------------------------------|-----------------|--------------------|------|--------------|--------------------------|-------|-----------------------------|------|---|---------------|---|------------------|-------|--|------------------|---|----------------------|----------------|-------|--------------------------------|----------------------------------|---------------------|---------------------|------------------|-------|-------------------------|
| 16.8 f 1.0 monthe building math Year of Counti 200 Amonthe Building math 200 | 2/28/201 | eo Street Mi | | SB WB | ! | ECT W/ MI | No. of Lanes | - | 0, | | 0 | 0 0 | - | 0 0 | 0 | - 0 0 | c | o ← • | - 0 | 0 0 | | - 0 | . . | - 0 | 00 | rth-South: East-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| $ \begin{array}{ $ | | 1024 Mate | | 00 | • | E W/ PROJ | Total Volume | 176 | | 1153 | 221 | | 261 | 1041 | | 275 | 257 | 666 | 98 | | | 167 | 911 | 133 | | Noi | | | | | |
| Nome Learning in the intervention of the intervent intervention of the intervention of the intervention of | Date: | Project: | | NB FB | | FUTUR | Added Volume | 0 | (| C | 5 | | 0 | 0 | | 0 | 0 | 7 | 0 | | | 7 | 7 | C |) | | | | | | PACT |
| Note: Field of the product | | AS | 0 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | OJECT | Lane Volume | 176 | | 688 | 223 | | 261 | 521 | | 147 | 257 | 549 | 98 | | | 168 | 523 | 133 | 3 | 949 780 1729 | 1.153 | 1.053 | L | | ECT IN |
| 15.6 bit 1 cmmods Street Named Street< | NDS | ſ | | SB WB | 1 | ION W/ PR | No. of Lanes | ÷ | 0, | | 0 | 0 0 | ÷ | 0 0 | 0 | - 0 0 | c | o ← • | - 0 | 0 0 | | - 0 | . | - 0 | 000 | th-South: ast-West: SUM: | | | | | PROJ |
| | cted by: | wed by: | | 00 | • | RE CONDIT | Total Volume | 176 | | 1153 | 223 | | 261 | 1041 | | 275 | 257 | 1000 | 98 | | | 168 | 912 | 133 | | Nor Ea | | | | | |
| 1000000000000000000000000000000000000 | Condu | Revie | | NB- FB- | | FUTUF | Added Volume | 0 | c | C | 10 | | N | 0 | | 0 | 0 | Ŋ | 0 | | | 9 | ო | ÷ | | | | | | | |
| I/G I/G <thi g<="" th=""> <thi g<="" th=""> <thi g<="" th=""></thi></thi></thi> | 1.0 | AM | 0 0 | 00 | 0 7 0 | OJECT | Lane Volume | 176 | | 683 | 213 | | 259 | 521 | | 147 | 257 | 547 | 98 | | | 162 | 521 | 132 | 5 | 942 778 1720 | 1.147 | 1.047 | L. | | |
| I/G Promotion County Street: Annotation Street: Annontation Street: < | th: (%): | k Hour: | | SB WB | 1 | N W/O PR | No. of Lanes | - | 0, | | 0 | 0 0 | - | 0 0 | 0 | - 0 0 | - c | o ← • | - 0 | 0 0 | | - 0 | . | - 0 | 00 | h-South: ist-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| I(IS #) Inorth.South Street: Anmond Street Year of Count: 2013 Anmond Street Anmond Street Anmond Street Anmond Street Year of Count: 2013 Anmond Street 2013 | ent Grow | Pea | | 00 | | CONDITIC | Total Volume | 176 | | 1153 | 213 | | 259 | 1041 | | 275 | 257 | 995 | 86 | | | 162 | 606 | 132 | 1 | Nort Ea | | | | | |
| I/G /r | Ambi | | | NB- FB- | } | FUTURE | Added Volume | 11 | | 364 | 56 | | 66 | 279 | | 124 | 136 | 132 | ဗု | | | 52 | 139 | 73 | 2 | | | | | | |
| (65 #) North-South Street: Alameda Street Verr of Count: Mode East-West Street: Olympic Boulevard Projection Year: Opposed Ong: NS-1, EW2 or Both-37 Nea- Composed Ong: NS-1, EW2 or Both-37 Nea- Composed Ong: NS-1, EW2 or Both-37 Opposed Ong: NS-1, EW2 or Both-37 Nea- Composed Ong: NS-1, EW2 or Both-37 Nea- Composed Ong: NS-1, EW2 or Both-37 Nea- Nea- Nea- Nea- ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-27 Downlote Gapacity No- Verr No- < | 2019 | 2023 | 0 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | OJECT | Lane Volume | 159 | | 460 | 161 | | 156 | 366 | | 87 | 116 | 466 | 97 | | | 112 | 401 | 58 | 3 | 616 578 1194 | 0.796 | 0.696 | В | | |
| North-South Street: Alameda Street: Alameda Street: North-South Street: North North-South Street: North-Sout | f Count: | on Year: | | 0 SB |)) | 3 PLUS PR | Total Volume | 159 | | 86/ | 161 | | 156 | 732 | | 145 | 116 | 834 | 97 | | | 112 | 743 | 58 | 3 | n-South: st-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| Instructure Alameda Street: Alameda Street: Alameda Street: Olympic Boulevard Owerls: Ns: 1, EW2 or BOH373 Phases Olympic Boulevard 2 Right Turms: FREE1, INTOR.2 or OLA37 Phases Phases 2 Right Turms: FREE1, INTOR.2 or OLA37 Phases 2 Right Turms: FREE1, INTOR.2 or OLA37 Phases 2 ATSAC1 or ATSAC4 or ATSAC4 Phases 2 Overnide Capacity ATSAC1 or ATSAC4 or ATSAC4 2 ATSAC1 or ATSAC4 or ATSAC4 Phases 2 Overnide Capacity EXISTING COMDITION 2 ATSAC1 or ATSAC4 Phases 2 Overnide Capacity Towold 2 ATSAC1 or ATSAC4 159 1 45 Through-Right 758 1 45 Through-Right 732 2 36 Attribut 751 1 16 Through-Right 732 2 36 Attribut 7 1 16 Through-Right 7 | Year o | Projectio | | ИВ- ЕВ- | | EXISTIN | Project Traffic | 0 | c | D | 10 | | 2 | 0 | | 0 | 0 | 5 | 0 | | | 9 | ო | ÷ | | Norti Ea | | | | | |
| ICS #: North-South Street: Alameda Street 200005 East-West Street: Olympic Boulevard Copposed Øing: N/S-1, E/W-2 or Both-3? NB- 0 Right Tums: FRE-1, NRTOR-2 or Both-3? NB- 0 ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-2? Or OLA: 37 ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-2? ARSAC-ATCS-2? Override Capacity EB- 0 MB- 0 ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-2? ARSAC-ATCS-2? ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-2? ARSAC-ATCS-2? ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-2? B- 0 ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-2? B- 0 ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-2? ARSAC-ATCS-2? ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-2? ARSAC-ATCS-2? ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-2? ARSAC-ATCS-2? ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-2? B- 0 ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-2? ARSAC-ATCS-2? ARSAC-ATCS-2? ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-2? ARSAC-ATCS-2? ARSAC-ATCS-2? ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-2? ARSAC-ATCS-2? ADUISTNENT: ARSAC-2? ARSAC-ATCS-2? ADUISTNENT: ARSAC-2? ARSAC-ATCS-2? ADUISTNENT: ARSAC-2? ADUISTNENT: ACSAC-ATCS-2? ADUISTNENT: ACCAC-ATCS-2? ADUISTN | | | 0 0 | 0 0 | 0 0 0 | NO | Lane /olume | 159 | ļ | 455 | 151 | | 154 | 366 | | 87 | 116 | 463 | 97 | | | 106 | 399 | 57 | 5 | 609 569 1178 | 0.785 | 0.685 | В | | |
| I/S #: North-South Street: Alameda Street OMDORE East-West Street:: Olympic Boulevard No. of Phases Olympic Boulevard Opposed Ø'ing: N/S-1, EW-2 or Both-3? No. of Phases Opposed Ø'ing: N/S-1, EW-2 or Both-3? No. of Phases Opposed Ø'ing: N/S-1, EW-2 or Both-3? NB-0 ATSAC-1 or ATSAC+ATCS-2? NB-0 Override Capacity EXISTIM MOVEMENT NB-0 MOVEMENT NB-0 MOVEMENT NB-0 ATSAC-1 or ATSAC+ATCS-2? NB-0 Override Capacity EXISTIM MOVEMENT NB-0 MOVEMENT NO MOVEMENT NB-0 MOVEMENT NB-0 MOVEMENT NB-0 MOVENDIN ND MOVENDIN </th <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>SB- WB-</th> <th>1</th> <th>G CONDITI</th> <th>No. of Lanes</th> <th>-</th> <th>0 •</th> <th></th> <th>0</th> <th>0 0</th> <th>-</th> <th>0 0</th> <th>0</th> <th>- 0 0</th> <th>. - c</th> <th>o ← •</th> <th>- 0</th> <th>0 0</th> <th></th> <th>- 0</th> <th> ·</th> <th>- 0</th> <th>00</th> <th>-South: t-West: SUM:</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> | | | | SB- WB- | 1 | G CONDITI | No. of Lanes | - | 0 • | | 0 | 0 0 | - | 0 0 | 0 | - 0 0 | . - c | o ← • | - 0 | 0 0 | | - 0 | · | - 0 | 00 | -South: t-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| ICS #: North-South Street: Alameda East-West Street: Olympic I No. of Phases No. of Phases ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-2? ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-2? ATSAC-4TCS-2? ATSAC-4TCS-2? ATSAC-4TCS-2? ATSAC-4TCS-2? ATSAC-4TCS-2? ATSAC-4TCS-2? ATSAC-4TCS-2? ATSAC-4TCS-2? ATSAC-4TCS-2? ATSAC-4TCS-2? ATSAC-4TCS-2? ATSAC-4TCS-2? ATSAC-4TCS-2? ATSAC-4TCS-ADJUSTMENT: ATSAC-4TCS-2? ATSAC-4TCS-2? ATSAC-4TCS-2? ATSAC-4TCS-ADJUSTMENT: ATSAC-4TCS-2? ATSACAC-4TCS-2? ATSAC-4TCS-4TCS-4TCS-4TCS-4TCS-4TCS-4TCS-4TC | Street | Boulevard | | (B- 0 | , | EXISTIN | Volume | 159 | | 86/ | 151 | | 154 | 732 | | 145 | 116 | 829 | 97 | | | 106 | 740 | 57 | 5 | North Eas | | | | | |
| ICS #: North-South Street: No. of ATSAC-1 or A | Alameda | Olympic F | Phases soth-3? | | TCS-2? | | | | | | | | | | | Ħ | - | | | Ŧ | - | | | | Ħ | LUMES | RATIO: | :MENT: | (LOS): | ARKS: | |
| Solution Guuoahtraon Guuoahtros Guuoatsaa Guuoatsaw Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution | orth-South Street: | East-West Street: | No. of F Ø'ing: N/S-1, E/W-2 or B | IS: FREE-1, NRTOR-2 or | ATSAC-1 or ATSAC+A1 Override C | | MOVEMENT | Left | Left-Through | Through Through-Riaht | Right | Left-Through-Rig Left-Right | feft | Left-Through Through | Through-Right | ✓ Right ✓ Left-Through-Rig Left-Right | Left Left | | Inrougn-kignt Right | Left-Through-Rig | | Left Left-Through | - Through | Right | Left-Through-Rig Left-Right | CRITICAL VOL | LUME/CAPACITY (V/C) | S ATSAC/ATCS ADJUST | LEVEL OF SERVICE | REM | sion: 1i Beta; 8/4/2011 |
| | I/S #: Nc | SMA05 | Opposed | Right Turr | | | | a | | | 179 | | | | ан ⊅ | TUOS ⊅⊅ J | a | | ats, | 43 | - | ~1 ← MD | | 818 | SW: | | Ŋ | V/C LES | | | Ver |

CMA05

∆v/c after mitigation: 0.004 Fully mitigated? N/A

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.006 Significant impacted? NO

2/28/2019-2:25 PM





| State Image State Contract State State Description Descrin Descrin | | ed-Use | 2 0 | 0 0 | 0 | IGATION | Lane Volume | 122 | | /30 | 218 | | | 217 | 678 | 106 | | | 302 | 821 | 81 | | 178 | 610 | 181 | | 947 999 1946 | 1.297 | 1.197 | F | | |
|---|------------|------------------|----------------------------|---------------|----------------------------|------------|--------------------|------|----------|--------------------|-------------|------------------------|---|--------------|--------|-------------------|------------------------|---|-----------|------------------|------------------|------------------------|------------|-----------------|------------------|------------------------|--------------------------------|-------------|------------|------------|-------|---------------|
| State Consistencie | 2/28/2019 | o Street Mix | | SB WB | | ECT W/ MIT | No. of Lanes | - | 0, | | • 0 | 0 0 | | - c | 000 | - C | 00 | | c | o ← • | - 0 | 00 | - c |) . | - c | 00 | th-South: ast-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| (2) (2) <td></td> <td>1024 Mated</td> <td></td> <td>00</td> <td></td> <td>W/ PROJE</td> <td>Total Volume</td> <td>122</td> <td></td> <td>1241</td> <td>218</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>217</td> <td>1355</td> <td>257</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>302</td> <td>1561</td> <td>81</td> <td></td> <td>178</td> <td>1038</td> <td>181</td> <td>2</td> <td>Nori Ež</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> | | 1024 Mated | | 00 | | W/ PROJE | Total Volume | 122 | | 1241 | 218 | | | 217 | 1355 | 257 | | | 302 | 1561 | 81 | | 178 | 1038 | 181 | 2 | Nori Ež | | | | | |
| State Total Total <th< td=""><td>Date:</td><td>Project:</td><td></td><td>NB EB</td><td></td><td>FUTURE</td><td>Added Volume</td><td>0</td><td>¢</td><td>C</td><td>9</td><td></td><td></td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td></td><td></td><td>0</td><td>7</td><td>0</td><td></td><td>Ģ</td><td>7</td><td>C</td><td>)</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>PACT</td></th<> | Date: | Project: | | NB EB | | FUTURE | Added Volume | 0 | ¢ | C | 9 | | | 0 | 0 | 0 | | | 0 | 7 | 0 | | Ģ | 7 | C |) | | | | | | PACT |
| Sign Animatic Street | | S | 2 0 | 00 | 0 0 | DJECT | Lane Volume | 122 | ļ | /31 | 220 | | | 217 | 678 | 106 | | | 302 | 822 | 81 | | 180 | 610 | 181 | 2 | 948 1002 1950 | 1.300 | 1.200 | u. | | ECT IM |
| SL Nonn-South Street. Ammed Street. Nonneed Street. | SDN | ۹L | | SB WB | | ON W/ PRO | No. of Lanes | - | 0, | | • • | 00 | | - c | 000 | | 00 | | c |) - - | - 0 | 00 | - c | . – . | - c | 00 | h-South: st-West: SUM: | | | | | PROJ |
| S. F. North-South Additional Strett | ted by: | ved by: | | 00 | | E CONDITI | Total Volume | 122 | | 1.24.1 | 220 | | | 217 | 1355 | 257 | | | 302 | 1562 | 81 | | 180 | 1039 | 181 | | Nort | | | | | |
| State Normer State Counts 2013 Ambient Growth: (3): 10 Mode East-West Street: Ambient Growth: (3): Ambient Growth: (3): Ambient Growth: (3): 10 Mode East-West Street: Ambient Growth: (3): Ambient Growth: (3): Ambient Growth: (3): Propect of the street: Propect of the street | Conduc | Reviev | | NB- EB- | | FUTUR | Added Volume | 0 | ¢ | D | 7 | | | - | 0 | 0 | | | 0 | 4 | 0 | | 10 | 5 | ~ | I | | | | | | |
| SL North-South Street: Annoted Street: Annoted Street: Annoted Street: Annoted Street: North Street: Nort | 1.0 | PM | 2 0 | 00 | 0 0 | OJECT | Lane Volume | 122 | ļ | 121 | 213 | | | 216 | 678 | 106 | | I | 302 | 820 | 81 | | 170 | 607 | 179 |) - | 943 990 1933 | 1.289 | 1.189 | u. | | |
| S # North-South Street: Annotal Street: Annotal Street: Annotal Street: Annotal Street: Common Street: Annotal Street: Pear Pear <td>th: (%):</td> <td>k Hour:</td> <td></td> <td>SB WB</td> <td></td> <td>N W/O PR</td> <td>No. of Lanes</td> <td>-</td> <td>0,</td> <td></td> <td>• 0</td> <td>00</td> <td></td> <td>- 0</td> <td>000</td> <td>⊃ –</td> <td>00</td> <td></td> <td>- c</td> <td>o ← •</td> <td>- 0</td> <td>00</td> <td>- c</td> <td></td> <td>- 0</td> <td>00</td> <td>h-South: st-West: SUM:</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> | th: (%): | k Hour: | | SB WB | | N W/O PR | No. of Lanes | - | 0, | | • 0 | 00 | | - 0 | 000 | ⊃ – | 00 | | - c | o ← • | - 0 | 00 | - c | | - 0 | 00 | h-South: st-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| S # Month-South Street Alamada Street Year of Count: 2013 Anthi Alamada Street Anthi Street Alamada Street Alamada Street 2013 | ent Grow | Peal | | 00 | | CONDITIO | Total Volume | 122 | | 1241 | 213 | | | 216 | 1355 | 257 | | | 302 | 1558 | 81 | | 170 | 1034 | 179 | | Norti Ea | | | | | |
| S # Model Street: Alamoda Street: Alamoda Street: Ver of Count: 2023 Model East-West Street: Oympic Boulevard Polycetion Year: 2023 Opposed Øing: NS-1, EW2 or Boul-37 No. of Passay No. of Passay Projection Year: 2023 Opposed Øing: NS-1, EW2 or Boul-37 No. of Passay No. of Passay No. of Passay No. of Passay Projection Year: 2023 Opposed Øing: NS-1, EW2 or Boul-37 No. of Passay 2 ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCR-27 Passay Ver to ATSAC-ATCR-27 No. of Vermite No. of Vermite No. of Vermite S ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCR-27 Passay Ver to ATSAC-ATCR-27 No. of Vermite No. of Vermite S ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCR-27 No. of Vermite No. of Vermite No. of Vermite S S S ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCR-27 No. of Vermite No. of Vermite No. of Vermite No. of Vermite S S S S S S S S S S | Ambi | | | NB EB | | FUTURE | Added Volume | 12 | 000 | 308 | 63 | | | 100 | 455 | 150 | | | 214 | 164 | 4 | | 89 | 162 | 121 | | | | | | | |
| Statilize Alameda Street Year of Count: Morth-South Street: Alameda Street Alameda Street Year of Count: Morth-South Street: Orympic Bouleward Projection Year: Projection Year: Opposed Bing: NS-1, EWV2 or Sun-Street: Orympic Bouleward Projection Year: Projection Year: Opposed Bing: NS-1, EWV2 or Sun-Street: North-South Street: North-South Street: Projection Year: Attact Attact Alameda Street North Projection Year: Projection Year: Attact Autorability North North North North North Attact Autorability North Stattworth North North North North Attact Autorability Autorability Autorability Autorability Autorability Autorability Attact Autorability Autorability Autorability Autorability Autorability Autorability Autorability Autorability Autorability Autorability Autorability Autorability Autorability | 2019 | 2023 | 2 0 | o | 0 0 | DUECT | Lane Volume | 106 | - 0, | 495 | 151 | | | 112 | 433 | 61 | | I | 85 | 709 | 74 | | 108 | 451 | 58 | } | 607 817 1424 | 0.949 | 0.849 | ۵ | | |
| Sub- North-South Street: Alameda Street Vear of Opposed 8'ing: N'S-1. EWS or Boulevard Projectio Opposed 8'ing: N'S-1. EWS or Boulevard NS. of Phases Nght Tums: FRE-1, NRTOR2 or OLA-37 ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS2 27 Override Capacity NS- NS- NS- Projectio Alshow ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS2 27 Override Capacity NS- NS- NS- NS- NS- ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS2 27 Override Capacity NS- NS- NS- NS- NS- ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS2 27 Override Capacity NS- NS- NS- NS- NS- ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS2 27 Override Capacity NS- NS- NS- NS- NS- ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS2 27 Override Capacity NS- NS- NS- NS- NS- ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS2 27 Override Capacity NS- NS- NS- NS- NS- ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS2 27 Override Capacity NS- NS- NS- NS- NS- ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS2 20 NS- NS- NS- NS- NS- NS- ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS2 20 < | Count: | n Year: | | 0 SB- 0 WB | | BLUS PRO | Total /olume | 106 | 000 | 839 | 151 | | | 112 | 865 | 103 | | l | 85 | 1344 | 74 | | 108 | 843 | 58 | 3 | -South: t-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| North-South Street: Alameda Street: North-South Street: Olympic Boulevard North-South Street: Olympic Boulevard Street: Opposed Øing: N/S-1, EW2 or Dhases Opposed Øing: N/S-1, EW2 or Dhases No. of Phases Opposed Øing: N/S-1, EW2 or Dhases No. of Phases Opposed Øing: N/S-1, EW2 or Dhases No. of Phases Opposed Øing: N/S-1, EW2 or Dhases No. of Phases Opposed Øing: N/S-1, EW2 or Dhases No. of Phases ATSAC-10 or STSAC-10 CL3: 7 EB- ATSAC-10 or STSAC-17 CL3: 7 EB- ATSAC-10 or STSAC-17 CL3: 7 EB- AT Left. Through Right AT Left. Right AT Left. Right AT Left. Right AT Colume AT Left. Right AT Left. Right < | Year of | Projectic | | NB EB | | EXISTING | Project Traffic | 0 | c | C | 7 | | | . | 0 | 0 | | | 0 | 4 | 0 | | 10 | 5 | ~ | I | North Eas | | | | | |
| S # North-South Street: Alameda Street: Olympic Boulevard MAGE East-West Street: Olympic Boulevard Sight Turms: FRE=1, NRTOR-2 or Both-37 Right Turms: FRE=1, NRTOR-2 or OLA-37 Right Turms: FRE=1, NRTOR-2 or OLA-37 Right Turms: FRE=1, NRTOR-2 or OLA-37 ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-27 Override Capacity ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-27 ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS-27 ATSAC-ATCS-2010 ACC LEST Through Right 103 Control AT Left. Through Right 103 AT Left. AT Le | | | 2 0 | 00 | 0 0 | N | Lane F | 106 | | 492 | 144 | | | 111 | 433 | 61 | | l | 85 | 707 | 74 | | 98 | 447 | 56 | } | 603 805 1408 | .939 | .839 | ٥ | | |
| S # North-South Street: Alameda Street MAGE East-West Street: Olympic Boulevard No. of Phases Opposed Ø'ing: N/S-1, E/W-2 or Both-3? Right Turms: FREE-1, NRTOR-2 or OLA-3? ATSAC-1 or ATSAC+ATCS-2? ATSAC-1 or ATSAC+ATCS-2? ATSAC-1 or ATSAC+ATCS-2? Override Capacity ATSAC-1 or ATSAC+ATCS-2? ATSAC-1 or ATSAC+ATCS-2? ATTAC-1 or ATTAC-1 | | | | SB WB | | G CONDITIC | No. of Lanes \ | - | 0, | | • • | 0 0 | | - c | 0 00 0 | C | 00 | | - c |) - - | - 0 | 00 | - 0 | , | - c | 00 | -South: t-West: SUM: | 0 | 0 | | | |
| S #: North-South Street: Alameda MA05 East-West Street: Olympic E Right Turms: FREE-1, NRTOR-2 or DL3? A Right Turms: FREE-1, NRTOR-2 or OL3? A ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS.2? ONCENENT ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS.2? A ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS.2? A ATTAC-1 or ATSAC-ATCS.20105700ENT: ACTICAL VOLUME/CAPACITY (V/C) RATIO: ACTICAL OLONES ACTICAL ACTOR ADJUSTMENT: ACTICAL OF SERVICE (LOS): ACTICAL ATTAC | Street | 3oulevard | | B-0 -8 | | EXISTING | Volume | 106 | 000 | 0 39 | 144 | | | 111 | 865 | 103 | | | 85 | 1340 | 74 | | 80 | 838 | 56 | } | North Eas | | | | | |
| S #: North-South Street: MA05 East-West Street: No. of No. of No. of No. of Street: No. of East-West Street: No. of Street: No. of Street: No. of Street: No. of Co. of ATSAC-1 or ATSAC-A Override C. OVERTIAL OF Through Right Right Through Right Right Left-Through Right C. C. Left. Through Right Right Left-Through Right Right Left-Right Left-Right Left-Right Left-Right Left-Right Left-Right Left-Through Right Right Left-Through Right Left-Through Right Left-Right Left-Through Right Left-Right Left-Through Right Right Left-Right Left-Right Left-Through Right Left-Through Right Left-Right Left-Through Right Left-Right Left-Rig | Alameda | Olympic E | Phases toth-3? | | TCS-2? apacity | | I | | | | | ht | | | | | ht | | | | | Ħ | | | | Ħ | UMES | RATIO: | 'MENT: | (ros): | ARKS: | |
| North.South Westreound Cast-Vestreound North.South Right Turns: Freed Rast-Vestreound ATSACA ATSACA ATSACA Volumeica MOUNDATSA Morth.South ATSACA Volumeica Rast-Vestreound ATSACA | Street: | : Street: | No. of F -1, E/W-2 or B | , NRTOR-2 or | or ATSAC+A1 Override Ci | | MENT | | -Through | ougn ouah-Riaht | nt t | -Through-Rig -Right | | -Through | bugh | ougn-rrigin nt | -Through-Rig -Right | 5 | Through | hgu | ougn-Kignt it | -Through-Rig -Right | -Through | hguc | ough-Right nt | -Through-Rig -Right | CRITICAL VOI | ACITY (V/C) | TCS ADJUST | OF SERVICE | REM | eta; 8/4/2011 |
| We with a solution and a sol | orth-South | East-West | Ø'ing: N/S | IS: FREE-1, | ATSAC-1 | | MOVE | Left | Left | Thre | t t Rigt | t t Left | | ten tent | L H | Righ | Left 1 | | | | Righ | Left | Left | Thr. | Thr Riat | L Left | | LUME/CAP | S ATSAC/A | LEVEL | | sion: 1i B€ |
| | νς #: Νι | MA05 | Opposed | Right Turr | | | | | T | | нтя | ττ ON | - | | | HTU M⊥ | T √ NOS | - | וי ו ם | | ats | : А Э | ~1 ~ ND | | 8T8 | эм: | | ٥ ٥ | V/C LES | | | Ver |

Version: 1i Beta; 8/4/2011

CMA05

∆*W*c after mitigation: 0.008 Fully mitigated? YES

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.011 Significant impacted? YES

N





| SB- WB- MB- MB- MB- MB- MB- MB- MB- MB- MB- M | SB- MB- MB- MB- MB- MB- MB- MB- MB- MB- M | est Street: 6th Street 2019 Amblent Group Vear of Count: 2019 Amblent Group est Street: 6th Street 2023 Pe | Street Year of Count: 2019 Ambient Group eet Projection Year: 2023 Pe 2 2 2 2 | Year of Count: 2019 Ambient Grov Projection Year: 2023 Pe 2 2 2 | Year of Count: 2019 Ambient Grov Projection Year: 2023 Pe 2 2 2 | Year of Count: 2019 Ambient Grov Projection Year: 2023 Pe | Count: 2019 Ambient Grov n Year: 2023 Pe | 2019 Ambient Grov 2023 Pe | Ambient Grov Pe | Pe. | 독 | h: (%): Hour: | 1.0 AM | Conduc Reviev | ted by: /ed by: | JA | s S | Date: Project: | 1024 Mateo | /28/2019 Street Mixed- | -Use |
|---|---|---|--|--|---|--|--|--|----------------------------|---------------|--------------|--------------------|----------------|------------------|--------------------|---------------------|----------------|-------------------|-----------------|---------------------------|---------------|
| | | V/S-1, E/W-2 or Both-3? WE 2 E ME 2 ME 2 ME | | | | | | 4 0 c | qv | | c | g | 100 | QV | c | g | 100 | | c | a o | 4 O C |
| Introduction | Interpretation Interp | E-1, NRTOR-2 or OLA-3? NB- 2 SB- 2 NB- 2 SB- 2 NB- 3.1 20 ATEACLATES 20 WB- 0 EB- 0 WB- 0 EB- 0 2 EB- | MB Z SB Z MB Z SB Z MB Z SB Z MB | NB- Z SB- Z NB- NB- Z SB- Z NB- NB- Z SB- Z SB- NB- Z NB- Z NB- NB- Z NB- Z Z <t< td=""><td>EB- EB- C MB- C MB- C B- C MB- C B- C B-</td><td>NB</td><td>C 28- C NB- 0 WB- C EB-</td><td></td><td>EB-</td><td></td><td>NO</td><td></td><td>100</td><td>EB-</td><td>0 0</td><td>58 WB</td><td>N O (</td><td>EB-</td><td>0 0</td><td>58 WB</td><td>000</td></t<> | EB- EB- C MB- C MB- C B- C MB- C B- C B- | NB | C 28- C NB- 0 WB- C EB- | | EB- | | NO | | 100 | EB- | 0 0 | 58 WB | N O (| EB- | 0 0 | 58 WB | 000 |
| IDITIONWO PROJECT FUTURE CONDITION W PROJECT FUTURE W PROJECT W INTRATION Image No. of Lane Added Volume Lanes Added Volume Lanes Volume Total No. of Lanes Volume Volume No. of Lanes Volume | $ \begin{array}{ $ | C-1 OF AL SAC+AI CS-2? 2 Override Capacity 0 | 0 2 | 0 2 | 0 7 | N 0 | 0 7 | 0 | | | | | 0 0 | | | | 0 0 | | | | 0 0 |
| | | EXISTING CONDITION EXISTING PLUS PROJECT FUTURE CON | EXISTING CONDITION EXISTING PLUS PROJECT FUTURE CON | CONDITION EXISTING PLUS PROJECT FUTURE CON | N EXISTING PLUS PROJECT FUTURE CON | EXISTING PLUS PROJECT FUTURE CON | PLUS PROJECT FUTURE CON | JECT FUTURE CON | FUTURE CON | CON | DITIOI | N W/O PRO | JECT | FUTUR | CONDITI | ON W/ PRO | JECT | FUTURE | : W/ PROJE | CT W/ MITIG/ | ATION |
| | | NVEMENT No. of Lane Project Total Lane Added Tota Volume Lanes Volume Traffic Volume Volume | No. of Lane Project Total Lane Added Tota Volume Lanes Volume Traffic Volume Volume Volume Volume | o. of Lane Project Total Lane Added Tota anes Volume Traffic Volume Volume Volume Volun | -ane Project Total Lane Added Tota olume Traffic Volume Volume Volun | Project Total Lane Added Tota Traffic Volume Volume Volum | Total Lane Added Tota volume Volume Volum | Lane Added Tota /olume Volume Volum | Added Tota Volume Volun | Tota Volun | _ e | No. of Lanes | Lane /olume | Added Volume | Total Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane Volume | Added Volume | Total Volume | No. of Lanes V | Lane 'olum |
| | $ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | eft 641 0 41 0 41 49 92 | 41 0 41 0 41 41 49 92 | 0 41 0 41 41 49 92 | 41 0 41 41 49 92 | 0 41 41 49 92 | 41 41 49 92 | 41 49 92 | 49 92 | 92 | | 0 0 | 92 | 0 | 92 | 0 0 | 92 | 0 | 92 | 0 0 | 92 |
| $ \left(\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | $ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | Incough 68 0 115 3 71 118 112 183 | 68 0 115 3 71 118 112 183 | 0 115 3 71 118 112 183 | 115 3 71 118 112 183 | 3 71 118 112 183 | 71 118 112 183 | 118 112 183 | 112 183 | 183 | | 0 0 | 323 | ო | 186 | 00 | 326 | 7 | 185 | 00 | 325 |
| $ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | $ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | hrough-Right 0 | 0 | 0 | | | | | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | |
| | | tight 6 0 0 0 6 0 42 48 eff-Through-Right 1 1 | 6 0 0 0 6 0 42 48 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | 0 0 0 6 0 42 48 | 0 0 6 0 42 48 | 0 6 0 42 48 | 6 0 42 48 | 0 42 48 | 42 48 | 48 | | 0 - | 0 | 0 | 48 | o - | 0 | 0 | 48 | 0 - | - |
| $ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | $ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | eft-Right 0 | . 0 | . 0 | | | | | | | | • • | | | | • • | | | | • 0 | |
| $ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | $ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | eft | 14 0 14 0 14 56 0 14 0 14 14 56 | 0 14 0 14 14 14 56 | 14 0 14 14 41 56 | 0 14 14 41 56 | 14 14 41 56 | 14 41 56 | 41 56 | 56 | | 00 | 56 | 0 | 56 | 00 | 56 | 0 | 56 | 00 | 56 |
| $ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | $ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | Distribution 179 0 227 5 184 232 221 407 Nonucle District 0 227 5 184 232 221 407 | 179 0 227 5 184 232 221 407 | 0 227 5 184 232 221 407 | 227 5 184 232 221 407 | 5 184 232 221 407 | 184 232 221 407 | 232 221 407 | 221 407 | 407 | | | 584 | 2 | 412 | | 589 | 7 | 411 | | 588 |
| $ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | $ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | itght 34 0 0 0 34 0 86 12 | 34 0 0 34 0 86 12 | 0 0 0 34 0 86 12 | 0 0 34 0 86 12 | 0 34 0 86 12 | 34 0 86 12 | 0 86 12 | 86 12 | 12 | - | 00 | 0 | 0 | 121 | 00 | 0 | 0 | 121 | | 0 |
| | | eft-Right 1 eft-Right 0 | - 0 | - 0 | | | | | | | | - 0 | | | | - 0 | | | | - 0 | |
| $ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | $ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| $ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | $ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | ett | 39 1 39 0 39 39 112 155 | 1 39 0 39 39 112 15: | 39 0 39 39 112 15: | 0 39 39 112 150 | 39 39 112 150 | 39 112 150 | 112 153 | 153 | ~ | c | 153 | 0 | 153 | c | 153 | 0 | 153 | c | 153 |
| | | hrough 154 1 121 0 154 121 219 3 | 154 1 121 0 154 121 219 31 | 1 121 0 154 121 219 3 | 121 0 154 121 219 3 | 0 154 121 219 3 | 154 121 219 3 | 121 219 3 | 219 31 | ŝ | 62 | o ← • | 344 | 0 | 379 | o ← • | 344 | 0 | 379 | o ← • | 344 |
| $ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | $ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | nougn-rugm Night 13 0 88 0 88 0 88 216 3 | 88 0 88 0 88 216 3 | 0 88 88 216 3 | 88 0 88 88 216 3 | 0 88 88 216 3 | 88 88 216 3 | 88 216 3 | 216 3 | ñ | 8 | - 0 | 308 | 0 | 308 | - 0 | 308 | 0 | 308 | - 0 | 308 |
| | | eft-Through-Right 0 eft-Right 0 0 | 00 | 0.0 | | | | | | | | 00 | | | | 00 | | | | 0 0 | |
| Image: North-South: 68 1 148 0 1 556 0 986 1 556 0 986 1 556 0 128 0 128 0 128 0 128 0 128 0 128 0 128 0 128 0 128 0 128 0 128 0 128 0 128 0 128 0 128 0 128 0 128 0 1390 East-West: 709 East-West: 709 East-West: 709 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 <th< td=""><td>$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>:</td><td></td><td>2</td><td></td><td></td><td>:</td><td></td><td>1</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>1</td><td></td><td></td></th<> | $ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | | | | | | | : | | 2 | | | : | | 1 | | | | 1 | | |
| | | .eft 2 40 1 40 5 45 45 102 14 eft.Through 0 | 40 1 40 5 45 45 102 14 0 | 1 40 5 45 45 102 14 0 | 40 5 45 45 102 14 | 5 45 45 102 14 | 45 45 102 14 | 45 102 14 | 102 14 | 4 | 4 | - 0 | 144 | Q | 149 | - 0 | 149 | 7 | 148 | - 0 | 4 |
| 1 126 126 126 126 126 126 0 0 126 0 126 0 126 0 126 0 126 0 126 0 126 0 126 0 126 0 126 0 126 0 126 0 126 0 126 0 126 0 126 0 126 0 | 6 126 0 126 0 126 0 126 0 0 0 126 0 126 0 126 North-South: 676 North-South: 681 North-South: 681 North-South: 676 North-South: 681 North-South: 681 East-West: 709 East-West: 709 East-West: 709 0.923 0.923 0.927 0.927 0.927 0.923 0.823 0.827 0.927 0.927 0.927 0.927 | hrough 759 1 417 0 759 417 196 90 | 759 1 417 0 759 417 196 90 | 1 417 0 759 417 196 98 | 417 0 759 417 196 98 | 0 759 417 196 98 | 759 417 196 98 | 417 196 98 | 196 98 | ത് | 36 | - • | 556 | 0 | 986 | , | 556 | 0 | 986 | , | 556 |
| 0 | 0 | hrough-Right 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | 74 0 74 0 74 74 79 1 | 0 74 0 74 74 49 1 | 74 0 74 74 49 1 | 0 74 74 49 1 | 74 74 49 1 | 74 49 1 | 49 | ~ | 26 | - 0 | 126 | C | 126 | - 0 | 126 | C | 126 | - 0 | 126 |
| North-South: 676 North-South: 681 North-South: 680 East-West: 709 East-West: 709 East-West: 709 SUM: 1385 SUM: 1390 East-West: 709 0.923 0.927 0.927 0.927 0.924 0.823 0.827 0.827 0.924 D D D D | North-South: 676 North-South: 681 North-South: 680 East-West: 709 East-West: 709 East-West: 709 SUM: 1385 SUM: 1390 East-West: 709 East-West: 709 SUM: 1385 SUM: 1390 East-West: 709 East-West: 709 SUM: 1385 SUM: 1390 East-West: 709 SUM: 1389 SUM: 1385 SUM: 1390 G.927 0.927 0.921 D 0.823 D 0.827 D 0.821 0.821 | eft-Through-Right 0 eft-Right 0 eft-Right | | | | · · | 2 | 2 | 2 | | 2 | 00 | |) | | 00 | |) | | 00 | |
| SUM: 1385 SUM: 1390 SUM: 1389 0.923 0.927 0.927 0.928 <td>SUM: 1385 SUM: 1390 SUM: 1389 0.923 0.927 0.927 0.927 0.928 0.823 0.827 0.827 0.826 0.826 D D D D D</td> <td>North-South: 268 North-South: 273 CRITICAL VOLUMES East-West: 456 East-West: 456</td> <td>North-South: 268 North-South: 273 East-West: 456 East-West: 456</td> <td>South: 268 North-South: 273 West: 456 East-West: 456</td> <td>268 North-South: 273 456 East-West: 456</td> <td>North-South: 273 East-West: 456</td> <td>-South: 273 t-West: 456</td> <td>273 456</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>North Eas</td> <td>-South: t-West:</td> <td>676 709</td> <td></td> <td>Norti Ea</td> <td>-South: st-West:</td> <td>681 709</td> <td></td> <td>Norti Ea</td> <td>n-South: st-West:</td> <td>680 709</td> | SUM: 1385 SUM: 1390 SUM: 1389 0.923 0.927 0.927 0.927 0.928 0.823 0.827 0.827 0.826 0.826 D D D D D | North-South: 268 North-South: 273 CRITICAL VOLUMES East-West: 456 East-West: 456 | North-South: 268 North-South: 273 East-West: 456 East-West: 456 | South: 268 North-South: 273 West: 456 East-West: 456 | 268 North-South: 273 456 East-West: 456 | North-South: 273 East-West: 456 | -South: 273 t-West: 456 | 273 456 | | | North Eas | -South: t-West: | 676 709 | | Norti Ea | -South: st-West: | 681 709 | | Norti Ea | n-South: st-West: | 680 709 |
| 0.923 0.927 0.927 0.927 0.927 0.927 0.922 | 0.923 0.927 0.927 0.927 0.927 0.927 0.922 0.922 0.922 0.922 0.922 0.922 0.922 0.922 0.922 0.922 0.922 0.922 0.923 0.922 0.923 | SUM: 724 SUM: 729 | SUM: 724 SUM: 729 | SUM: 724 SUM: 729 | 724 SUM: 729 | SUM: 729 | SUM: 729 | 729 | | | | SUM: | 1385 | | | SUM: | 1390 | | | SUM: 1 | 1380 |
| 0.823 0.827 0.827 0.82 D | 0.823 0.827 0.827 0.827 D | APACITY (WC) RATIO: 0.483 0.483 | 0.483 0.486 | 0.483 0.486 | 483 0.486 | 0.486 | 0.486 | 0.486 | | | | | .923 | | | | 0.927 | | | | 0.92 |
| 0 | | C/ATCS ADJUSTMENT: 0.383 0.386 0.386 | 0.383 0.386 | 0.383 0.386 | 383 0.386 | 0.386 | 0.386 | 0.386 | | | | | .823 | | | | 0.827 | | | | 0.82 |
| | | EL OF SERVICE (LOS): A A | A A | A | A | A | A | A | | | | | ۵ | | | | ۵ | | | | |

Version: 1i Beta; 8/4/2011

CMA06

∆*V/*C after mitigation: 0.003 Fully mitigated? N/A

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.004 Significant impacted? NO





| I/S #: CMA06 | North-Sou East-We | uth Street: est Street: | Mateo S 6th Stree | treet et | | | Year (Projecti | of Count: on Year: | 2019 2023 | Ambi | ient Growi Peak | th: (%): (Hour: | 1.0 PM | Conduc Review | ted by: red by: | JA: | 0 | Date: Project: 1 | 2 024 Mateo | /28/2019 Street Mixe | ġ. |
|-----------------|----------------------|--|----------------------|-------------|--------------------------------|-------------------|--------------------|--------------------------------|-------------------|-----------------|--------------------|------------------------------|--------------------|------------------|-----------------|------------------------------|--------------------|---------------------|------------------|-----------------------------|----|
| | | | | | | ¢ | | | | | | | ¢ | | . ca 2. | | • | | 0711 MIG100 | | 2 |
| ddo | osed Ø'ing: N | No. of P V/S-1, E/W-2 or Bo | hases oth-3? | | | 0 0 | | | 0 0 | | | | 0 0 | | | | 0 0 | | | | |
| Righ | t Turns: FREE | E-1, NRTOR-2 or (| OLA-3? | NB 2 | SB | 2 10 | NB | 2 SB | N C | NB | 2 10 | SB | 2 10 | NB- | 0 | SB | 2 10 | NB- | 2 10 | SB | |
| | ATSAC | C-1 or ATSAC+AT Override Cal | CS-2? pacity | | | 0 0 0 | 5 | | 0 0 0 | 5 | > | | 0 0 0 | 5 | 0 | | 0 0 0 | 3 | þ | | |
| | | | | EXISTI | NG CONDIT | NOI. | EXISTIN | IG PLUS PR | OJECT | FUTURE | E CONDITIO | N W/O PRO | JECT | FUTUR | E CONDITIC | ON W/ PRO. | JECT | FUTURE | N/ PROJEC | T W/ MITH | 3 |
| | OW | VEMENT | | Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane Volume | Project Traffic | Total Volume | Lane Volume | Added Volume | Total Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane Volume | Added Volume | Total Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane Volume | Added Volume | Total Volume | No. of Lanes | > |
| a | | eft | | 44 | 0 | 44 | 0 | 44 | 44 | 113 | 159 | 0 | 159 | 0 | 159 | 0 | 159 | 0 | 159 | 0 | |
| ли | د ج | .eft-Through | | | 0 | | | | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | |
| 108 | ⊢ F ← • | Through | | 129 | 0 0 | 214 | Q | 134 | 219 | 233 | 367 | 0 0 | 666 | Ŋ | 372 | 0 0 | 671 | 7 | 371 | 0 0 | |
| HT | - ¤ | nrougn-kignt liaht | | 41 | | C | C | 41 | C | 97 | 140 | | C | C | 140 | | C | C | 140 | | |
| NOR | -⊹} | .eft-Right .eft-Right | Ŧ | : | 0 - 0 | | | |) | 5 | 2 | 0 - 0 |) | | 2 | 0 - 0 |) | | 2 | 0 - 0 | |
| an | <u>د</u> د | eft off Through | | 33 | 00 | 33 | 0 | 33 | 33 | 74 | 108 | 00 | 108 | 0 | 108 | 00 | 108 | 0 | 108 | 00 | |
| 1008 | →→- | -hrough | | 116 | 00 | 191 | 4 | 120 | 195 | 208 | 329 | 00 | 649 | 4 | 333 | 00 | 653 | 7 | 332 | 00 | |
| 3H. | ۲ ۲ | hrough-Right | | : | 0 0 | | | | | | | 0 0 | | | | 0 0 | 1 | | | 0 0 | |
| TUOS | ר ר א ללך | Right .eft-Through-Righ .eft-Right | ţ | 42 | 0 - 0 | 0 | 0 | 42 | 0 | 168 | 212 | 0 - 0 | 0 | 0 | 212 | 0 - 0 | 0 | 0 | 212 | 0 - 0 | |
| | | , | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| a | ייי רייר | .eft eft-Through | | 65 | - c | 65 | 0 | 65 | 65 | 198 | 266 | - c | 266 | 0 | 266 | c | 266 | 0 | 266 | c | |
| | ∓ ⊣ ı † † | hrough | | 177 |) . | 423 | 0 | 171 | 423 | 242 | 1044 |) - | 628 | 0 | 1044 |) - | 628 | 0 | 1044 |) — - | |
| ata | - Ľ | nrougn-kignt Naht | | 74 | - 0 | 74 | C | 74 | 74 | 135 | 212 | - 0 | 212 | C | 212 | - 0 | 212 | C | 212 | - 0 | |
| SA3 | ᠅ | .eft-Through-Rigt .eft-Right | ŧ | | 00 | | , | : | | | | 0 0 | | , | | 00 | | , | | 00 | |
| | · | | | | • | | | | : | | | | | • | | • | 1 | | ł | | |
| αN | בר ק∽ | .eft .eft-Through | | 14 | - 0 | 14 | 4 | 18 | 18 | 09 | 75 | - 0 | 75 | 4 | 67 | - 0 | 62 | 7 | 78 | - 0 | |
| 008 | ⊢∓ ↓₊ | hrough | | 229 | | 128 | 0 | 229 | 128 | 274 | 512 | | 303 | 0 | 512 | | 303 | 0 | 512 | | ., |
| ats | – ש ₁גו | nrougn-kignt Night | | 26 | - 0 | 26 | 0 | 26 | 26 | 99 | <u> 8</u> 3 | - 0 | 93 | 0 | 93 | - 0 | 93 | 0 | 93 | - 0 | |
| ме | ┝╺┶ | .eft-Through-Righ eft-Right | ht | | 00 | | • | | 2 | 8 | 3 | 00 | } | • | | 00 | } | • | | 00 | |
| | | CRITICAL VOL | UMES | Nor E | th-South: ast-West: SUM: | 247 437 684 | Non E | th-South: ist-West: SUM: | 252 441 693 | | Nortt Eas | h-South: st-West: SUM: | 808 703 1511 | | Nortf Eas | n-South: st-West: SUM: | 812 707 1519 | | North Eas | -South: tt-West: SUM: | ÷ |
| | VOLUME/C | APACITY (V/C) R | RATIO: | | | 0.456 | | | 0.462 | | | | 1.007 | | | | 1.013 | | | | - |
| V/C | LESS ATSAC | C/ATCS ADJUSTI | MENT: | | | 0.356 | | | 0.362 | | | - | 0.907 | | | - | 0.913 | | | | 0 |
| | LEV | EL OF SERVICE | (LOS): | | | A | | | A | | | | Е | | | | ш | | | | |
| | | REM | ARKS: | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Version: 1i | Beta; 8/4/2011 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | PROJE | CT IMF | ACT | | | |

Version: 1i Beta; 8/4/2011

CMA06

∆v/c after mitigation: 0.004 Fully mitigated? N/A

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.006 Significant impacted? NO

2





| ool Leo | ag-Ose | 0 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | GATION | Lane Volume | 191 | | 305 | 0 | | 81 | | 392 | 0 | | | 182 | 687 | 283 | 07 | 208 | 680 | 5 | 61 | | 583 895 1478 | 0.985 | 0.885 | ۵ | |
|----------------------|-------------|-----------------------|------------|------------------|-------------|--------------------|------|----------|-----------|-------|----------------------|------|----------|--------------|------------|----------------------|---|--------------|---------|------------------|----------------------|------------------|---------|---------------|-------------------|------------|--------------------------------|------------|---------|-----------|-------|
| 2/28/2019 | INIXI INIXI | | SB MB | | ECT W/ MITH | No. of Lanes | - | 0 | 0 - | 0 | 00 | 0 | 0 0 | 0 0 | 00 | - 0 | | c | o ← • | - 0 | 000 | C |) — | c | 00 | 0 | th-South: ast-West: SUM: | | | | |
| 1024 Mato | 1024 Male | | 00 | 0 | W/ PROJE | Total Volume | 191 | | 233 | 72 | | 81 | 000 | 263 | 48 | | | 182 | 1091 | 283 | 0 | 208 | 1299 | 2 | 10 | | NON | | | | |
| Date: | rrujeci. | | NB | 9 | FUTURE | Added Volume | ကု | | 7 | 7 | | 0 | (| Ņ | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | 4- | r | 7 | 0 | c | C | | | | | | |
| S | 2 | 0 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | JECT | Lane Volume | 194 | | 501 | 0 | | 81 | į | 394 | 0 | | | 182 | 689 | 787 | 2 | 209 | 680 | 2 | 61 | | 588 898 1486 | 0.991 | 0.891 | D | |
| ADS JA | 5 | | SB MB | | ON W/ PRO | No. of Lanes | 0 | 0 | 0 0 | 0 | - 0 | 0 | 0 0 | | 0 | - 0 | | c | o ← • | - c | 000 | - c |) — | c | 00 | 0 | 1-South: st-West: SUM: | | | | |
| ted by: | eu by. | | 00 | þ | CONDITIC | Total Volume | 194 | | 234 | 73 | | 81 | 100 | C 02 | 48 | | | 182 | 1091 | 787 | | 209 | 1299 | 2 | 61 | | North Eas | | | | |
| Conduct | Neview | | NB FB | 5 | FUTURE | Added / | 11 | | ო | ო | | 0 | | 10 | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | 17 | : | 2 | 0 | c | D | | | | | | |
| 1.0 AM | Ā | 0 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | JECT | Lane / | 183 | | 484 | 0 | | 81 | ļ | 384 | 0 | | Ī | 182 | 681 | 020 | 2 | 204 | 680 | 2 | 61 | | 567 885 1452 | .968 | .868 | ٥ | |
| 1: (%): Hour: | | | SB WB | | I W/O PRO | No. of Lanes V | 0 | 0 | 0 0 | 0 | - 0 | 0 | 0 0 | 0 0 | 0 | - 0 | | c | o ← • | - c | 000 | - c |) — | c | 00 | 0 | South: f-West: SUM: | 0 | 0 | | |
| nt Growth Peak | 1000 | | 00 | þ | ONDITION | Total I | 183 | | 231 | 20 | | 81 | 1 | C CC | 48 | | | 182 | 091 | 020 | 2 | 204 | 299 | 2 | 61 | | North- Easi | | | | |
| Ambier | | | NB EB | 5 | FUTURE C | olume V | 106 | | 111 | 22 | | 44 | ; | ŝ | 0 | | | 155 | 724 1 | 102 | 4 | 104 | 501 1 | ; | 4 | | | | | | |
| 2019 2023 | 5773 | 0 0 | 0 0 | 0 0 0 | ECT | ane A | 85 | | 252 | 0 | | 36 | ļ | 275 | 0 | | | 26 | 223 | 00 | 4 | 101 | 406 | L | 45 | | 360 432 792 | 528 | 428 | A | |
| ount: /ear | - 100 | | SB M/B | | US PROJI | tal L ume Vo | 85 | | <u>8</u> | 49 | | 36 | | 50 | 46 | | | 26 | 53 | 00 | 4 | 01 | 67 | Ļ | 1 | | outh: Vest: SUM: | 0. | 0 | | |
| ear of Co | olection | | | | KISTING PL | ect To fic Volu | | | ~ ~ | Ю | | 0 | | 0 | 0 | | | 0 | 0 0 | • | _ | - - | 0 | c | 5 | | North-So East-V | | | | |
| | Ē | | | 3 | Û | e Proj me Traf | + | | 10 | 0 | | (0 | | | 0 | | | (0) | # | - | - | (0 | (0 | | 0 | | 0 0 - | t | - | | |
| | | | | | DITION | f Lan s Volui | 72 | ġ | 23 | U | | Ř | | 265 | U | | | 5 | 214 | 12 | 2 | 6 | 406 | | 4 | | h: 33(h: 432 M: 77 | 0.51 | 0.41 | A | |
| | | | SB | | TING CON | No. c Lane | 0 | 0 | 0 0 | 0 | - 0 | 0 | 0 0 | | 0 | - 0 | | - c | o ← • | - c | 000 | - c | | - c | | 0 | orth-Soui East-We: SU | | | | |
| itreet et | 5 | | NB 0 EB | | EXIS | Volume | 74 | | 115 | 46 | | 36 | | 183 | 46 | | | 5 6 | 353 | 75 | 2 | 96 | 767 | Ļ | 6 | | ž | | | | |
| 7th Stre | | Phases oth-3? | OLA-3? | CS-2? apacity | | | | | | | Ĕ | | | | | ŧ | | | | | ht | | | | ŧ | | UMES | RATIO: | MENT: | (LOS): | ARKS: |
| eet: | CC1. | No. of F /W-2 or B | TOR-2 or | TSAC+AT | | ţ | | hguo | -Riaht | þ | ough-Rigl ht | | hguo | -Right | 2 | ough-Rigl ht | | 4010 | | -Right | ough-Rigl ht | quar | | -Right | ough-Rigl | ht | ICAL VOL | IY (V/C) F | ADJUST | SERVICE | REM |
| outh Str West Str | | : N/S-1, E | EE-1, NR | AC-1 or A | | IOVEMEN | Left | Left-Thr | Through | Right | Left-Thr Left-Rig | Left | Left-Thr | Through | Right | Left-Thr Left-Ria | 2 | Left Left | Through | Through Right | Left-Thr Left-Rig | Left Left-Thr | Through | Through | kignt Left-Thr | Left-Rig | CRIT | //CAPACI | AC/ATCS | EVEL OF 3 | |
| Fast. | Last- | sed Ø'ing | runs: FR | ATS | | ~ | ¢ 1 | Ť | <u>ہے</u> | | ÷≻ | _ ز | ♪_ | → <i>-</i> 7 | ≁ - | ୡ⊰ | | <u>٦</u> ۲ | ` † † | <i>م م</i> | ᠂᠋ᡎ᠂ᠬ | L L | . ↓ . | 42 | e∳> e | ل ہ | | VOLUME | ESS ATS | LE | |
| /S #: | UNAU/ | Oppo | Right | | | | a | INN | IBO | чтя | ON | a | INN | во | ΗΤΟ | os | | a | ν∩о | ata | 8A3 | ٩D | IUC | BT | MES | | | | 1 J// | | |

Version: 1i Beta; 8/4/2011

CMA07

∆*\/\c* after mitigation: 0.017 Fully mitigated? YES

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.023 Significant impacted? YES





| 6 | xed-Use | 0 0 | 00 | 000 | TIGATION | Lane Volume | 358 | | 801 | 0 | | 2 | | 340 | 0 | | | 156 | 803 | 203 | | 281 | 761 | 76 | 2 | 871 1084 1955 | 1.303 | 1.203 | u. | | |
|-----------|--------------|-----------------------|-------------|---------------------|-----------|--------------------|------|----------|--------------------|----------|--------------------|-------|----------|----------|-----------------|--------------------|---|------------------|-----------------|-----------------|--------------------|----------|----------------|-----------------|--------------------|---------------------------------|----------|----------|-----------|---------|-------------|
| 2/28/201 | so Street Mi | | -BS | | ECT W/ MI | No. of Lanes | 0 | 0 | 00 | 00 | - 0 | 0 | 0 | 00 | 00 | - 0 | | c | o ← • | - 0 | 00 | - 0 | . . | - 0 | 00 | rth-South. ast-West. SUM: | | | | | |
| | 1024 Mate | | 00 | C | W/ PROJ | Total Volume | 358 | | 368 | 75 | | 02 | | 240 | 30 | | | 156 | 1403 | 203 | | 281 | 1446 | 76 | 2 | Nor | | | | | |
| Date: | Project: | | -B- | | FUTURE | Added Volume | -4 | | 7 | 7 | | 0 | | ? | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | ဗု | I | 7 | 0 | C |) | | | | | | |
| | S | 0 0 | 00 | 000 | DJECT | Lane Volume | 362 | | 807 | 0 | | 20 | | 342 | 0 | | | 156 | 805 | 206 | | 282 | 761 | 76 | - | 877 1087 1964 | 1.309 | 1.209 | u. | | MI TOR |
| NDS | ۹L | | SB | -944 | ON W/ PRO | No. of Lanes | 0 | 0 | 0 0 | 00 | - 0 | 0 | 0 | 00 | 00 | - 0 | | . - c | o ← • | - 0 | 00 | - 0 | . . | - c | 00 | h-South: st-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| ted by: | ved by: | | 00 | C | E CONDITI | Total Volume | 362 | | 369 | 76 | | 20 | | 242 | 30 | | | 156 | 1403 | 206 | | 282 | 1446 | 76 | 2 | Nort Ea | | | | | |
| Conduc | Reviev | | -87 | 9 | FUTUR | Added Volume | 17 | | ญ | 2 | | 0 | | 2 | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | 12 | ! | 4 | 0 | C |) | | | | | | |
| 1.0 | PM | 0 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | DJECT | Lane Volume | 345 | | 780 | 0 | | 20 | | 335 | 0 | | I | 156 | 799 | 194 | | 278 | 761 | 76 | - | 850 1077 1927 | 1.285 | 1.185 | u. | | |
| th: (%): | k Hour: | | BS | | N W/O PRO | No. of Lanes | 0 | 0 | 0 0 | 00 | - 0 | 0 | 0 | 00 | 00 | - 0 | | . - c | o ← • | - 0 | 00 | - 0 | . . | - c | 00 | n-South: st-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| ent Growt | Peal | | 00 | 2 | CONDITIO | Total Volume | 345 | | 364 | 71 | | 02 | | 235 | 30 | | | 156 | 1403 | 194 | | 278 | 1446 | 76 | 2 | North Ea | | | | | |
| Ambie | | | 8 8 8 | | FUTURE | Added Volume | 228 | | 191 | 13 | | 18 | | 108 | 0 | | | 87 | 539 | 125 | | 229 | 1029 | 43 | 2 | | | | | | |
| 2019 | 2023 | 0 0 | 00 | 0 N C | JECT | Lane /olume | 129 | | 361 | 0 | | 20 | | 208 | 0 | | | 66 | 454 | 78 | | 51 | 217 | 32 | 5 | 411 505 916 | 0.611 | 0.511 | A | | |
| Count: | n Year: | | O SB- | | PLUS PRC | Total olume | 129 | | 171 | 61 | | 50 | | 129 | 29 | | l | 99 | 830 | 78 | | 51 | 401 | 32 | 5 | South: t-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| Year of | Projectio | | -87 87 | | EXISTING | roject raffic V | 17 | | Q | Q | | 0 | | 7 | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | 12 | ļ | 4 | 0 | C |) | North | | | | | |
| | | 0 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | z | Lane P olume T | 112 | | 334 | 0 | | 20 | | 201 | 0 | | Ī | 66 | 448 | 66 | | 47 | 217 | 32 | 5 | 384 495 879 | 586 | 486 | A | | |
| | | | SB- | | CONDITIO | lo.of anes V | 0 | 0 | o c | 00 | - 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 0 | 00 | - 0 | | c | o ← • | - 0 | 00 | - 0 | ÷ . | - 0 | 000 | South: -West: SUM: | 0 | Ö | | | |
| | | | 00 | | EXISTING | | 112 | | 166 | 56 | | 20 | | 122 | 29 | | | 99 | 830 | 99 | | 47 | 401 | 30 | ł | North- | | | | | |
| eo Street | Street | s c- | 32 NB | 201 201 201 | | | | | | | | _ | | | | | - | - | | | | | | | | ø | | | ä | 2.5 | |
| Mat | 7th | of Phase or Both-3 | 2 or OLA: | :+ATCS-2 | | | | | , | - | -Right | | | | = | Right | | | | z | -Right | | | ŧ | Right | VOLUME | C) RATIO | USTMENT | ICE (LOS) | REMARKS | 1 |
| Street: | t Street: | -1, E/W-2 | , NRTOR-: | or ATSAC Overrid | | MENT | | -Through | ough ····chRich | nt nt | -Through -Right | | -Through | ough C | ngir-Nigi nt | -Through -Right | | | - unuuuu hgu | ougn-Kign nt | -Through -Right | -Through | dgh | ough-Righ nt | -Through -Right | CRITICAL | ACITY (V | TCS ADJI | OF SERV | 4 | 101419 - 04 |
| rth-South | East-West | ð'ing: N/S | s: FREE-1 | ATSAC-1 | | MOVE | Left | Left | Thr Thr | Rigl | Left Left | Left | Left | Thre | Rigl | Left | | Left | | Rial | Left | Left | Thre | Thre | Left | U | UME/CAP | ATSAC/P | LEVEL | | ion: 1i Dr |
| #: Nor | 07 E | 3 pəsodd | ght Turns | | | | Ç | ₩ | ← + | | -+ | ر | <u>ک</u> | → J | ר <i>ז</i> י | ₹ ┤ | | ۔ ب ل | ` ↑ | •م • | \ | <- ↓ → | ↓ <i>«</i> | ↓ •/• | <u>↓</u> | | VOL | //C LESS | | | Morel |
| S/I | CMA | Ō | Rić | | | | 6 | זאנ | BOI | ΗТЯ | ION | 0 | 1N(| BOU | HTU | IOS | | a | NNO | ata | EA3 | ٩D | INO | ata | ME | | | د | | | |

Version: 1i Beta; 8/4/2011

CMA07

∆*W*c after mitigation: 0.018 Fully mitigated? NO

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.024 Significant impacted? YES

2





| | ed-Use | 0 2 | 00 | 0 0 0 | GATION | Lane Volume | с | | ω | c | þ | | 226 | 231 | | 268 | | 442 | 2 | 406 | Ľ | 2 | | - | 690 | C 7 7 | 2 | 271 802 1073 | 0.715 | 0.615 | ۵ | | |
|-----------|---------------|------------------------|----------------------------|-----------|------------|--------------------|------|---------|-------|-----------------|--------------------|--------|--------------|-------------|----------|------------------|---------|-------|----------|--------|-----------------|-----------|--------|------------------|----------------|-----------------|-------------------------------|---------------------------------|-----------------|----------|-----------|-------|------------|
| 2/28/2019 | o Street Mixe | | SB- | | CT W/ MITI | No. of Lanes | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 0 | o – c | 5 | 0 + | - 0 | 0 | - 0 | 0 | | - 0 | | - 0 | | 0 | - c | | C | 000 | th-South: ast-West: SUM- | | | | | |
| | 1024 Mated | | 00 | 2 | : W/ PROJE | Total Volume | e | | 4 | Ŧ | - | | 226 | 5 | | 324 | | C 7 7 | 711 | 807 | ſ | כ | | - | 1266 | C 7 7 | 0 | Non E | | | | | |
| Date: | Project: | | NB- | 9 | FUTURE | Added Volume | 0 | | 0 | c | > | | 7 | 0 | | ကု | | | † | 0 | C | > | | 0 | 0 | • | - | | | | | | PACT |
| | AS | 2 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | OJECT | Lane Volume | 3 | | 8 | C | þ | | 227 | 232 | | 269 | | 446 | 0 | 406 | ъ | 2 | | - | 069 | 4 4 4 | + | 272 806 1078 | 0.719 | 0.619 | B | | ECT IM |
| SON | ſſ | | SB | | TION W/ PR | No. of Lanes | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 0 | o ← c | 2 | 0 - | - 0 | 0 | - 0 | 0 | • | - 0 | | - c | | Э | - c |) - | c | 000 | th-South: ast-West: SUM- | | | | | PROJ |
| cted by: | wed by: | | 00 | þ | RE CONDIT | Total Volume | с | | 4 | Ŧ | - | | 227 | 5 | | 327 | | 440 | | 807 | ſ | כ | | - | 1266 | 777 | - | Nor | | | | | |
| Condu | Revie | | -BN -BN | | FUTUF | Added Volume | 0 | | 0 | C | þ | | S | 0 | | 11 | | 54 | 2 | 0 | C | 2 | | 0 | 0 | ų | n | | | | | | |
| 1.0 | AM | 2 2 | 00 | 0 0 0 | ROJECT | Lane Volume | с | | ø | c | þ | | 224 | 229 | | 267 | | g | n n | 406 | ц | כ | | - | 688 | 001 | <u>60</u> | 270 787 1057 | 0.705 | 0.605 | B | | |
| /th: (%): | ak Hour: | | SB | | ON W/O PF | No. of Lanes | 0 | 0 | 0 | | o – c | 5 | 0 + | - 0 | 0 | - 0 | 0 | Ŧ | - 0 | | - c | | 5 | - c |) ~ | ← C | 000 | th-South: ast-West: Stim- | | | | | |
| ient Grow | Pe | | 00 | þ | E CONDITI | Total Volume | 3 | | 4 | Ŧ | - | | 224 | 5 | | 316 | | S | 22 | 807 | ſ | כ | | - | 1266 | 001 | 201 | Nor | | | | | |
| Amb | | | NB- B- | | FUTUR | Added Volume | 0 | | 0 | c | þ | | 0 | 0 | | 0 | | c | 5 | 287 | C | 5 | | 0 | 265 | c | 2 | | | | | | |
| 2019 | 2023 | 2 0 | 00 | | OJECT | Lane Volume | 3 | | 8 | c | þ | | 218 | 223 | | 259 | | 447 | 711 | 253 | ъ | כ | | - | 536 | 011 | 2 | 262 648 910 | 0.607 | 0.507 | A | | |
| f Count: | on Year: | | 0 SB | | G PLUS PR | Total Volume | e | | 4 | Ţ | - | | 218 | S | | 315 | | C 7 7 | 7 | 500 | Ľ | ר | | - | 962 | 077 | 2 | h-South: st-West: StIM- | | | | | |
| Year o | Projecti | | - B Z Z Z Z | 1 | EXISTIN | Project Traffic | 0 | | 0 | c | þ | | ო | 0 | | 7 | | 7 | 2 | 0 | C | 5 | | 0 | 0 | ų | n | Nort | | | | | |
| | | 2 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | NO | Lane Volume | с | | ω | c | þ | I | 215 | 220 | | 257 | 1 | ž | 0 R | 253 | ſ | 2 | I | - | 534 | 105 | 60 | 260 629 889 | 0.593 | 0.493 | A | | |
| | | | SB | | G CONDIT | No. of Lanes | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 0 | o – c | 5 | 0 - | - 0 | 0 | - 0 | 0 | Ŧ | - 0 | | - c | | 5 | - c |) | c | 000 | h-South: st-West: StIM- | | | | | |
| reet | Boulevard | | | | EXISTIN | Volume | с | | 4 | Ŧ | - | | 215 | 2J | | 304 | | 2 | Co | 500 | v | 0 | l | - | 962 | 105 | 8 | Norti Ea | | | | | |
| Mateo St | Olympic | Phases 3oth-3? | OLA-3? | TCS-2? | | <u> </u> | | | | | ht | - | | | | Ħ | 1 | | | | | ht | 1 | | | | Ħ | LUMES | RATIO: | 'MENT: | (LOS): | ARKS: | |
| treet: | treet: | No. of I E/W-2 or E | RTOR-2 or | ATSAC+A | | ENT | | hrough | hg | gh-Right | nrough-Rig | igne | dation | nguon gh | gh-Right | rough-Rig | ght | | nouah | , re | gn-kignt | rough-Rig | ght | hound | jh J | gh-Right | nrough-Rig ight | ITICAL VOI | CITY (V/C) | S ADJUST | = SERVICE | REM | ; 8/4/2011 |
| -South S | st-West S | ng: N/S-1, | ⁻ REE-1, N | TSAC-1 or | | MOVEMI | Left | Left-Th | Throu | Throu(Diabt | Left-Th Left-Th | Leit-N | Left Left | Throug | Throu | Right Left-Tr | Left-Ri | 40 | Left-Th | Throug | r nrou Right | Left-T | Lett-R | Left I eft-Th | Throug | Throu(Diabt | Left-Th Left-Ri Left-Ri | CR | ME/CAPAC | TSAC/ATC | LEVEL OF | | ו: 1i Beta |
| : North | Eas | ii.Ø posed | t Turns: F | Ī | | | Ç | ₹7 | - | <u>, t</u> t | -+} | - | ر ر | → | Ĵ, | ᠵᡶ | ⊰ | ł | 1 | 1 f | ~م * | * | r | r F | | 11 | $\phi \phi$ | | VOLUN | C LESS A | | | Versior |
| # S/I | CMA08 | Opt | Righ | | | | C | ואנ | າວຄ | ΗТ | яои | | an | INO | вн | TUO | s | | ٩D | 100 | 818 | SA3 | | a | 100 | BT8 | MES | | | Ŵ | | | |

Version: 1i Beta; 8/4/2011

CMA08

Av/c after mitigation: 0.010 Fully mitigated? N/A

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.014 Significant impacted? NO





| | ed-Use | 0 2 | 0 0 | 2 10 0 | GATION | Lane Volume | 7 | | ω | 0 | | | 203 | 212 | 000 | 2007 | | 140 | 688 | ę | | 4 | 554 | 5 | 65 | 232 694 926 | 0.617 | 0.517 | A | | |
|-----------|------------------|-------------------------|------------|------------|------------|--------------------|------|---------|------------|--------------|----------------------|---|-------------------|--------|-----------------|--------------|----------|------------------|--------|------------------|---------------------|------|--------------------|---------------|-------------------------------|--------------------------------|--------------|--------------|-----------|-------|------------|
| 2/28/2019 | Street Mixe | | SB | 944 | CT W/ MITI | No. of Lanes | 0 | 0 | 0 0 | 00 | - 0 | | 0 - | - 0 (| o + | - 0 0 | 5 | - c | o ← • | - 0 | 00 | ÷ | 0 - | . | 000 | h-South: st-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| | 1024 Matec | | 0 0 | c | W/ PROJE | Total Volume | 2 | | ო | က | | | 203 | 6 | 000 | 000 | | 140 | 1372 | ę | | 4 | 1042 | | 65 | Nort Ea | | | | | |
| Date: | Project: | | NB- | 8 | FUTURE | Added Volume | 0 | | 0 | 0 | | | 7 | 0 | | ŧ | | 'n | 0 | 0 | | 0 | c |) | <u>Y</u> | | | | | | PACT |
| | S | 2 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | DJECT | Lane Volume | 7 | | ω | 0 | | | 204 | 213 | | 227 | | 143 | 688 | ę | | 4 | 554 | 5 | 66 | 235 697 932 | 0.621 | 0.521 | A | | ECT IM |
| NDS | ۹L | | SB | | ON W/ PRO | No. of Lanes | 0 | 0 | 0 0 | 00 | - 0 | | 0 - | - 0 (| o + | - 0 0 | 5 | . - c | o ← • | - 0 | 00 | - | 0 - | . | 000 | h-South: ist-West: SUM: | | | | | PROJ |
| cted by: | wed by: | | 0 0 | 2 | | Total Volume | 2 | | ო | ო | | | 204 | 6 | FUC | 100 | | 143 | 1372 | ę | | 4 | 1042 | 1 | 66 | Nort Ea | | | | | |
| Condue | Revie | | -87 | 9 | FUTUR | Added Volume | 0 | | 0 | 0 | | | 4 | 0 | 17 | 2 | | 12 | 0 | 0 | | 0 | C | þ | 4 | | | | | | |
| 1.0 | PM | 2 0 | 0 0 | 2 10 0 | OJECT | Lane Volume | 2 | | ω | 0 | 1 | | 200 | 209 | | 111 | | 131 | 688 | с | | 4 | 552 | 100 | 62 | 224 692 916 | 0.611 | 0.511 | A | | |
| /th: (%): | ık Hour: | | SB- | 19 | ON W/O PR | No. of Lanes | 0 | 0 | 0 0 | 00 | - 0 | | 0 - | - 0 (| 0 - | - 0 0 | 5 | c | o ← • | - 0 | 00 | - | 0 - | · | 000 | th-South: ast-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| ent Grow | Pea | | 0 0 | S | E CONDITIO | Total Volume | 2 | | ო | ო | | | 200 | 6 | 707 | 107 | | 131 | 1372 | ę | | 4 | 1042 | 1 | 62 | Nort Eâ | | | | | |
| Ambi | | | 87 81 | | FUTUR | Added Volume | 0 | | 0 | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | c | 5 | | 0 | 326 | 0 | | 0 | 351 | 8 | 0 | | | | | | |
| 2019 | 2023 | 2 0 | 00 | 0 0 C | OJECT | Lane Volume | 2 | | ω | 0 | 1 | | 196 | 205 | 100 | +77 | | 138 | 504 | с | | 4 | 364 | 5 | 64 | 226 508 734 | 0.489 | 0.389 | A | | |
| f Count: | on Year: | | 0 SB | | 3 PLUS PR | Total Volume | 7 | | ო | ო | | | 196 | 6 | 000 | 027 | 1 | 138 | 1005 | ო | | 4 | 664 | 5 | 64 | n-South: st-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| Year o | Projecti | | -87 | 1 | EXISTIN | Project Traffic | 0 | | 0 | 0 | | | 4 | 0 | 17 | 2 | | 42 | 0 | 0 | | 0 | c | þ | 4 | Norti Ea | | | | | |
| | | 2 0 | 0 0 | 0 0 0 | NO | Lane Volume | 7 | | ω | 0 | | | 192 | 201 | 24.2 | C 17 | I | 126 | 504 | ę | | 4 | 362 | 100 | 60 | 215 508 723 | 0.482 | 0.382 | A | | |
| | | | SB- | -944 | G CONDIT | No. of Lanes | 0 | 0 | 0 0 | 00 | - 0 | | 0 - | - 0 - | 0 - | - 0 0 | 5 | . - c | o ← • | - 0 | 00 | - | 0 - | · | 000 | h-South: st-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| eet | 3oulevard | | B 0 | | EXISTIN | Volume | 2 | | ო | ო | | | 192 | 6 | 776 | | | 126 | 1005 | ю | | 4 | 664 | 5 | 60 | Nortl Ea | | | | | |
| Mateo Str | Olympic I | hases oth-3? | | CS-2? | duono | | | | | | | | | | | Ħ | | E | | | | | | | t | UMES | ATIO: | NENT: | (ros): | ARKS: | |
| reet: | reet: | No. of P E/W-2 or B(| TOR-2 or (| ATSAC+AT | | T | | rough | 4 11-10 | n-Rignt | rough-Righ Iht | | hour | | h-Right | rough-Righ | | 4210 | | n-Kight | rough-Righ Jht | L | rough h | h-Right | rough-Righ tht | LICAL VOL | ITY (///C) R | S ADJUSTN | SERVICE (| REM | 8/4/2011 |
| South St | t-West St | ig: N/S-1, I | REE-1, NF | SAC-1 or / | | MOVEME | Left | Left-Th | Throug | Right | Left-Thi Left-Ric | | Left I eft-Thi | Throug | Throug Dicht | Left-Th | -Tell-Ni | Left Left | Throug | I nroug Right | Left-Th Left-Rig | Left | Left-Thi Throug | Throug | Right Left-Thi Left-Ric | CRI | E/CAPAC | SAC/ATC: | EVEL OF | | : 1i Beta; |
| North- | East | osed Ø'in | t Turns: F | AT | | | ſ | Ţ | | <u>, t</u> t | -+> | - | <u>ر ر</u> | · | \downarrow – | ↓ + - | ₹ | س م | ` 1 î | ، م | ≁∽ | ل ب | ⊳↓ | 4* | | | VOLUM | LESS AT | | | Version |
| I/S #: | CMA08 | Opp | Right | | | | c | זאנ | 108 | ΗТЯ | NOF | | αN | nos | энт | .nos | | a | NNO | ате | ΕA | C | ΙΝΩ | гво | ISEM | | | V/C | | | |

Version: 1i Beta; 8/4/2011

∆*V/*C after mitigation: 0.006 Fully mitigated? N/A CMA08

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.010 Significant impacted? NO

2





| Date: 2/28/2019 Project: 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Lise | Project: 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use | | NB | | FUTURE W/ PROJECT W/ MITIGATIO | Added Total No. of Lar Volume Volume Lanes Volu | 0 315 1 31 | 0 | 0 515 1 51 | -1 205 1 | | D | 0 133 0 13 | 0 194 0 40 | 0 23 | |
|---|--------------------------------------|--|---|---|--------------------------------|--|------------|----------------|------------|--------------------------|--------------------|---|-----------------------|------------|----------------------------|--------------------|
| s JAS | 040 | 0 0 | 8B 0 VB 0 | 0 0 | W/ PROJECT | o.of Lane anes Volume | 1 315 | 0 | 1 515 | 0 | | 5 | 0 133 | 400 | | , , , |
| conducted by: ND: Reviewed hy: | Keviewed by: | | (B- 30 19- 19- 19- 10- 10- 10- 10- 10- 10- 10- 10- 10- 10 | | FUTURE CONDITION | ided Total N lume Volume Li | 0 315 | | 0 515 | 6 206 | | | 0 133 | 0 194 | <u> </u> | 2 |
| AM 1.0 | | ю 0 | | 0 0 | PROJECT | F Lane Ad Volume Volt | 315 | 1 | 515 | С | | | 133 | 400 | C |) |
| ent Growth: (%) Peak Hour: | | | 3 SB 0 WB | | CONDITION W/OF | Total No. of Volume Lanes | 315 1 | 0 | 515 1 0 | 200 | | | 133 0 | 194 0 | 0 73 | 2 - |
| Ambi | | | NB EB | | FUTURE | Added Volume | 179 | | 275 | 42 | | | 80 | 63 | 0¥ | } |
| 2019 | C202 | ო 0 | | 00 | ROJECT | Lane Volume | 131 | | 231 | С | | | 42 | 181 | C |) |
| Year of Count olection Year | ojectioni real | | n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n | , | XISTING PLUS F | ject Total ffic Volume | 0 131 | | 0 231 | 6 158 | | | 0 42 | 0 126 | 0 | |
| | Ē | ი ი | | 00 | ш | ane Pro ume Tra | 31 | | 31 | С | , | | 42 | 81 | c | • |
| | | | -82 -87 | ! | CONDITION | o.of Lá anes Vol | - | 0 | <u> </u> | -, c | 00 | 5 | 00 | - | 0 0 | |
| e Avenue et | CI | | NB- 3 EB- 0 | | EXISTING | Volume L | 131 | | 231 | 152 | | | 42 | 126 | 43 | 2 |
| North-South Street: Santa Fe East-West Street: 7th Stree | | No. of Phases ed Ø'ing: N/S-1, E/W-2 or Both-3? | Irns: FREE-1, NRTOR-2 or OLA-3? | ATSAC-1 or ATSAC+ATCS-2? Override Capacity | | MOVEMENT | Left | ← Left-Through | Through | T Inrougn-Right Right | Left-Through-Right | | Left - cet Theorem | | ↓ Through-Right し Richt | Left-Through-Right |
| o | R | bpos | ght Tu | | | | F | | | | | - | | 1000 | | 000 |

Version: 1i Beta; 8/4/2011

CMA09

∆v/c after mitigation: 0.001 Fully mitigated? N/A

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.002 Significant impacted? NO





| | ed-Use | 0 8 | 00 | 0 0 0 | IGATION | Lane Volume | 352 | | 549 | 29 | | 270 | 804 | C | þ | | 159 | 688 | 383 | | 277 | 398 | 189 | 3 | 1156 965 2121 | 1.488 | 1.388 | LL. | | |
|-------------|--------------------|--------------------------------|-------------|---------------------------|-----------|----------------------------------|------|------------|----------------|-------|--------------------------|---------------------|---------|--------------------|----------------------------|---|--------------------|--------------------|--------------------|--------------------------|------|----------------|--------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------------|-------------|------------|--------------------|---------|--------------|
| 2/28/2019 | Street Mix | | SB | | CT W/ MIT | No. of Lanes | - | 0 | ~ c | C | 0 0 | 0 0 | | 0 0 |) - c | | c | o ← • | - 0 | 0 0 | - c | ⊃ ← | - c | 00 | th-South: ast-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| | 1024 Mated | | ო ი | , | W/ PROJE | Total Volume | 352 | | 549 | 306 | | 270 | 370 | 164 | 5 | | 159 | 993 | 383 | | 277 | 606 | 189 | 2 | Nort Eã | | | | | |
| Date: | Project: | | NB | 3 | FUTURE | Added Volume | 0 | | 0 | Ņ | | 0 | 0 | C | þ | | 0 | 7 | 0 | | Ŷ | 7 | C |) | | | | | | PACT |
| | S | 0 3 | 00 | 0 0 0 | JECT | Lane Volume | 352 | | 549 | 29 | | 270 | 804 | C | þ | | 159 | 689 | 383 | | 279 | 398 | 189 | 2 | 1156 968 2124 | 1.491 | 1.391 | LL. | | ECT IMI |
| NDS | AL | | SB M/B | | ON W/ PRO | No. of Lanes | - | 0 | ~ (| | 0 0 | 0 0 | | 0 0 |) - c | > | ← c | o ← • | - 0 | 0 0 | - c | | - c | 00 | n-South: st-West: SUM: | | | | | PRO.J |
| ted by: | /ed by: | | ო ი | þ | | Total Volume | 352 | | 549 | 308 | | 270 | 370 | 164 | 5 | | 159 | 994 | 383 | | 279 | 607 | 189 | | North Eas | | | | | |
| Conduc | Review | | NB EB |] | FUTUR | Added | 0 | | 0 | 10 | | 0 | 0 | C | þ | | 0 | S | 0 | | 2 | 4 | C |) | | | | | | |
| 1.0 | PM | 0 3 | 00 | 0 0 0 | JECT | Lane Volume | 352 | | 549 | 26 | | 270 | 804 | C | þ | I | 159 | 686 | 383 | | 272 | 396 | 189 | 2 | 1156 958 2114 | 1.484 | 1.384 | u. | | |
| h: (%): | : Hour: | | SB M/B | | N W/O PRC | No. of Lanes | - | 0 | c | C | 0 0 | 0 0 | | 0 0 |) - c | • | ← c | o ← • | - 0 | 0 0 | - c | | - c | 00 | -South: :t-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| nt Growt | Peak | | ო ი | þ | CONDITIO | Total /olume | 352 | | 549 | 298 | | 270 | 370 | 164 | 5 | | 159 | 989 | 383 | | 272 | 603 | 189 | | North Eas | | | | | |
| Ambie | | | NB EB | 3 | FUTURE | Added / | 242 | | 201 | 128 | | 210 | 92 | 140 | 2 | | 130 | 262 | 194 | | 55 | 273 | 130 | | | | | | | |
| 2019 | 2023 | 0 3 | 00 | 0 0 0 | JECT | Lane | 106 | | 334 | 0 | | 58 | 348 | C | > | I | 28 | 443 | 182 | | 216 | 189 | 57 | 5 | 454 659 1113 | 0.781 | 0.681 | B | | |
| Count: | Year: ו | | 3 SB | | PLUS PRO | Fotal olume | 106 | | 334 | 173 | | 58 | 267 | 23 | 2 | 1 | 28 | 704 | 182 | 1 | 216 | 321 | 57 | 5 | South: -West: SUM: | | | | | |
| Year of | Projectio | | VB EB |) | EXISTING | roject ⁻ raffic V(| 0 | | 0 | 10 | | 0 | 0 | C | > | | 0 | 5 | 0 | | 7 | 4 | C |) | North- East | | | | | |
| | _ | е 0 | 0 0 | 0 0 0 | z | -ane P | 106 | | 334 | 0 | | 58 | 348 | c | þ | İ | 28 | 441 | 182 | | 209 | 187 | 57 | 5 | 454 650 104 | 775 | 675 | В | | |
| | | | SB MB | 2 | CONDITIO | o.of I anes Vo | - | 0 | c | C | 0 0 | 0 0 | | 0 0 |) - c | 5 | c | o - - • | - 0 | 0 0 | - c | C | - 0 | 000 | south: West: SUM: 1 | 0. | O | | | |
| enue | | | ი c | . | EXISTING | | 106 | | 334 | 163 | | 28 | 267 | 23 | 3 | | 28 | 669 | 182 | | 209 | 317 | 57 | 5 | North-S East- | | | | | |
| ita Fe Ave | Street | s č | 3? NB | <u>د ک</u> | | ^ | | | | | | | | | | - | ⊢ | | | - | - | | | | s | ä | <u> </u> | ÷ | | |
| t: San | t: 7th | Vo. of Phase '-2 or Both-3' | R-2 or OLA- | AC+ATCS-2 ride Capacit | | | | gh | | Igilt | gh-Right | Ę | | ight | gh-Right | | Ę | | ußr | gh-Right | 4 | - 6 | ight | gh-Right | AL VOLUME: | (V/C) RATIO | DJUSTMENT | RVICE (LOS) | REMARKS | /2011 |
| outh Street | Nest Street | ۲ N/S-1, E/W | EE-1, NRTO | AC-1 or ATS Over | | IOVEMENT | Left | Left-Throu | Through | Right | Left-Throu Left-Right | Left Left-Throur | Through | Through-R Right | Left-Throu(I aft-Richt | | Left off-Throug | Through | rnrougn-к Right | Left-Throu Left-Right | Left | Through | Through-R Riaht | Left-Throu Left-Right | CRITIC/ | CAPACITY | AC/ATCS AI | VEL OF SE | | li Beta: 8/4 |
| North-S | East-\ | sed Ø'ing: | urns: FRI | ATS, | | Σ | Ç | € | ب | | -+ |)_ <u>)</u> , | · | ₹, J | ,+ - | 1 | ר ר | ` 1 f | م مرم م | ᡝ᠈ᠬ | Ċţ | ×↓ ← | ↓ J. | ᢑ᠕ | | VOLUME | ESS ATS. | Ë | | /ersion: ' |
| :# S/I | CMA09 | 30ppos | Right T | | | | G | זאנ | າດສ | ΗТЯ | ION | ۵N | INOE | 1HT | nos | | a | NUO | ats <i>i</i> | 73 | a | NNO | ата | ME | | | V/C L | | | 2 |

CMA09

Av/c after mitigation: 0.004 Fully mitigated? N/A

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.007 Significant impacted? NO

2





| Control Mathematical and control Mathmaticand Mathmaticand Mathem | st P | South Street: West Street: | Santa F 8th Stre | e Avenue et | | | Year c Projecti | of Count: ion Year: | 2019 2023 | Amb | ient Grow Peal | th: (%): k Hour: | 1.0 AM | Conduc Reviev | ted by: <mark>1</mark> ved by: | | - v | Date: Project: | 2 1024 Mateo | :/28/2019 Street Mixe | d-Use |
|--|------------------------------|-------------------------------|------------------------|----------------|-------------------------------|-------------------|--------------------|--------------------------------|-------------------|-----------------|-------------------|------------------------------|---------------------|------------------|-----------------------------------|------------------------------|---------------------|-------------------|-----------------|------------------------------|---------------------|
| Microscope Microsc | No. c ing: N/S-1, E/W-2 o | | of Phases r Both-3? | | | 0 2 | | | 2 0 | | | | 2 0 | | | | 2 0 | | | | 2 0 |
| | FREE-1, NRTOR-2 | | or OLA-3? | NB 0 EB 0 | SB WB | 00 | RB− EB− | 0 SB 0 WB | 00 | NB- EB- | 00 | SB WB | 00 | NB- EB- | 00 | SB WB | 00 | NB EB | 00 | SB WB | 00 |
| | ATSAC-1 or ATSAC Override | + α | -ATCS-2? Capacity | | | 0 0 | I | | 0 0 | | | | 0 0 | | | | 0 0 | | | | 0 0 |
| | | | | EXISTI | NG CONDIT | NOI | EXISTIN | IG PLUS PR | OJECT | FUTURI | E CONDITIC | N W/O PRC | DUECT | FUTUR | E CONDITIO | ON W/ PRO | JECT | FUTURE | W/ PROJE | CT W/ MITIC | BATION |
| | MOVEMENT | | | Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane Volume | Project Traffic | Total Volume | Lane Volume | Added Volume | Total Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane Volume | Added Volume | Total Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane Volume | Added Volume | Total Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane Volume |
| | Left | | | 254 | 0, | 254 | 0 | 254 | 254 | 0 | 264 | 0, | 264 | 0 | 264 | 0. | 264 | 0 | 264 | 0, | 264 |
| If the transmission of transmin of transmission of transmission of transmission of | Lett-Through Through | | | 548 | - c | 538 | 10 | 560 | 544 | 447 | 1017 | - c | 1037 | 10 | 1029 | - c | 1049 | ٩ | 1026 | - c | 1046 |
| Hole 19 0 19 0 10 0 </td <td>Through-Rig</td> <td>보</td> <td></td> <td>5</td> <td>- -</td> <td>2</td> <td>4</td> <td>200</td> <td>Ę</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>5</td> <td>1</td> <td>0401</td> <td></td> <td>È</td> <td>></td> <td>070</td> <td>- -</td> <td>2</td> | Through-Rig | 보 | | 5 | - - | 2 | 4 | 200 | Ę | | | | 5 | 1 | 0401 | | È | > | 070 | - - | 2 |
| Height 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 <td>Right</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>19</td> <td>0</td> <td>538</td> <td>0</td> <td>19</td> <td>544</td> <td>0</td> <td>20</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>20</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>20</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> | Right | | | 19 | 0 | 538 | 0 | 19 | 544 | 0 | 20 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 20 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 20 | 0 | 0 |
| | Left-Through Left-Right | ц <u>к</u> | light | | 0 0 | | | | | | | 0 0 | | | | 0 0 | | | | 0 0 | |
| n 1 0 | 40- | | | ų | c | 4 | c | Ţ | Å, | C | 40 | c | 46 | c | 4 | c | 46 | c | 4 | c | 4 |
| 382 0 296 16 378 303 200 577 0 455 16 533 0 266 0 461 Height 198 0 295 0 198 303 30 236 0 453 0 246 0 461 Height 198 0 25 0 25 25 25 25 25 26 260 0 260 0 266 | Left-Throug | 2 | | 2 | o ← | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | o ← | 2 | 2 | 2 | - → - | 2 | > | 2 | o ← | ₽ |
| mt 198 25 25 24 260 455 0 236 <th< td=""><td>Through</td><td></td><td></td><td>362</td><td>0</td><td>295</td><td>16</td><td>378</td><td>303</td><td>200</td><td>577</td><td>0</td><td>455</td><td>16</td><td>593</td><td>0</td><td>463</td><td>4-</td><td>589</td><td>0</td><td>461</td></th<> | Through | | | 362 | 0 | 295 | 16 | 378 | 303 | 200 | 577 | 0 | 455 | 16 | 593 | 0 | 463 | 4- | 589 | 0 | 461 |
| | Through-Ri Right | ght | | 198 | - 0 | 295 | C | 108 | 303 | 30 | 236 | - 0 | 455 | C | 236 | - 0 | 463 | C | 236 | - 0 | 461 |
| n 25 0 25 0 25 0 26 0 260 260 260 260 260 260 2 | Left-Throug | Ч-R | tight | | 00 | |) | 2 | | } | | 00 | 2 | • | | 00 | | • | | 00 | 2 |
| nh 25 0 26 0 26 0 260 260 <th2< td=""><td>ген-кидин</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>5</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td><td>I</td><td></td><td></td><td>5</td><td>I</td><td></td><td></td><td>5</td><td></td></th2<> | ген-кидин | | | | 5 | | | | | | | - | I | | | 5 | I | | | 5 | |
| | Left | | | 25 | 0 | 25 | 0 | 25 | 25 | 234 | 260 | 0 | 260 | 0 | 260 | 0 | 260 | 0 | 260 | 0 | 260 |
| | Left-Throu(Through | r. | | 13 | 00 | 361 | 0 | 13 | 361 | 0 | 14 | 00 | 610 | 0 | 14 | 00 | 610 | 0 | 14 | 00 | 610 |
| Martial 323 0 0 323 0 0 336 0 0 336 0 0 336 0 0 336 0 0 336 0 0 336 0 0 336 0 0 7 0 </td <td>Through-Ri</td> <td>ght</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td></td> | Through-Ri | ght | | | 0 | | | | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | |
| | Right | ں ب | 1-1-1 | 323 | 0 7 | 0 | 0 | 323 | 0 | 0 | 336 | 0 • | 0 | 0 | 336 | 0 • | 0 | 0 | 336 | 0 • | 0 |
| | Left-Right | Ë | ugu | | - 0 | | | | | | | - 0 | | | | - 0 | | | | - 0 | |
| h i | 4 | | | r | c | • | c | r | • | C | r | c | • | d | r | c | • | ¢ | r | c | ľ |
| introduct 7 0 32 0 7 0 33 0 7 0 33 0 7 0 33 0 7 0 33 0 7 0 33 0 7 0 33 0 7 0 33 0 7 0 33 0 7 0 33 33 0 7 0 33 33 0 7 0 33 33 0 7 0 13 33 0 7 0 13 33 0 7 0 13 <th< td=""><td>Lett Left-Throua</td><td>4</td><td></td><td></td><td>00</td><td>~</td><td>C</td><td>_</td><td>~</td><td>C</td><td></td><td>00</td><td>~</td><td>D</td><td>~</td><td>00</td><td>,</td><td>C</td><td>~</td><td>00</td><td>~</td></th<> | Lett Left-Throua | 4 | | | 00 | ~ | C | _ | ~ | C | | 00 | ~ | D | ~ | 00 | , | C | ~ | 00 | ~ |
| ght 18 0 18 0 18 0 19 0 19 0 19 0 1 1 h-Right 1 1 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 | Through | | | 7 | 0 | 32 | 0 | 7 | 32 | 0 | 7 | 0 | 33 | 0 | 7 | 0 | 33 | 0 | 7 | 0 | 33 |
| Image: bit is bit bit bit bit is bit bit bit bit bit bit bit bit bit | Through-Ri | ght | | 5 | 0 0 | ¢ | ¢ | 0 | ¢ | 0 | 9 | 0 0 | ¢ | ¢ | | 0 0 | c | c | | 0 0 | C |
| $ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$ | kignt Left-Throud | h-R | liaht | 8 | ⊃ ~ | D | C | 2 | D | C | 61 | ⊃ ← | C | D | 19 | ⊃ - - | þ | C | 19 | ⊃ ← | C |
| | Left-Right | | | | 0 | | | | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | |
| WC, RATIO: 0.614 0.618 1.113 1.121 1.114 JUSTMENT: 0.514 0.518 1.013 1.021 1.013 AUUSTMENT: 0.514 0.518 1.013 1.021 1.013 RVICE (LOS): A A F F F F | CRITICA | > F | OLUMES | Nori Ea | h-South: hst-West: SUM: | 553 368 921 | Non E | th-South: ist-West: SUM: | 559 368 927 | | Norti Ea | h-South: st-West: SUM: | 1053 617 1670 | | North Ea | h-South: st-West: SUM: | 1065 617 1682 | | Norti Ea | h-South: st-West: SUM: | 1062 617 1679 |
| JUSTMENT: 0.514 0.518 1.013 1.021 1.015 KVICE (LOS): A A F F F F | IME/CAPACITY | Ň | ;) RATIO: | | | 0.614 | | | 0.618 | | | | 1.113 | | | | 1.121 | | | | 1.119 |
| VICE (LOS): A A F F F F | ATSAC/ATCS AD | ñ | STMENT: | | | 0.514 | | | 0.518 | | | | 1.013 | | | | 1.021 | | | | 1.019 |
| | LEVEL OF SEF | SVIC | CE (LOS): | | | A | | | A | | | | L | | | | L | | | | ш |
| | vn: 1i Beta; 8/4/ | 201 | 5 | | | | | | | | | | | | | PROJI | ECT IMF | PACT | | | |

2/28/2019-2:49 PM

CMA10

∆*V/*C after mitigation: 0.006 Fully mitigated? N/A

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.008 Significant impacted? NO





| | 1-Use | 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | ATION | Lane /olume | 238 | | 847 | 0 | | | 6 | 650 | 650 | | | 188 | 600 | 0 | | | 6 | 28 | c | 5 | 888 609 1497 | 0.998 | 0.898 | ٥ | | |
|---------------------|---------------------|---|--|--|----------------|--------------------|--------|--------------|--------------------|---------------------------|--|---|--|---------|------------------------|--|---|----------------------|---------|------------------------|------------------------------------|---|--------------------------|-----------|----------------------------|------------------------------------|------------------------------|------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------------|-------|----|
| 28/2019 | Street Mixed | | SB M/B | | T W/ MITIG | No. of Lanes | 0 | - | 0 - | - 0 | 0 0 | | 0 + | - 0 - | - 0 | 00 | | 00 | 00 | 0 0 | - 0 | | 00 | 0 | 00 | 0 - 0 | -South: it-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| 2 | 024 Mateo | | 0 0 | þ | V/ PROJEC | Total /olume | 238 | | 838 | 6 | | | 6 | 991 | 273 | | | 188 | 14 | 398 | | | ი | ю | 4 | 2 | North Eas | | | | | |
| Date: | roject: 10 | | NB EB | 5 | FUTURE V | Added Volume | 0 | | ကု | 0 | | | 0 | မှ | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | c | þ | | | | | | ΗC |
| | P | 2 0 | 0 0 | 0 0 0 | ECT | Lane / | 238 | | 850 | 0 | | | ი | 653 | 653 | | Ī | 188 | 600 | 0 | | | ი | 28 | c | > | 891 609 1500 | 000. | 900 | D | | |
| SC | JAS | | SB W/B | | N W/ PROJ | Vo. of -anes V | 0 | . | 0 + | - 0 | 0 0 | | 0 + | - 0 - | - 0 | 00 | | 0 0 | 00 | 0 0 | - 0 | | 00 | 0 | 0 0 | o - 0 | South: -West: SUM: | - | 0 | | | |
| ed by: NE | d by: | | 0 0 | 5 | CONDITION | Fotal N olume L | 238 | | 841 | 6 | | | 6 | 997 | 273 | | | 188 | 14 | 398 | | | 0 | ю | 4 | 2 | North- East | | | | | |
| conducte | Reviewe | | VB | 1 | FUTURE (| dded 7 | 0 | | ໑ | 0 | | | 0 | 25 | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | c | þ | | | | | | |
| 0 0.1 | M | 2 0 | < 4 0 0 | 0 0 C | ст | ane Ac ume Vo | 38 | | 41 | 0 | | | 6 | 41 | 41 | | | 88 | 00 | 0 | | | 6 | 28 | c | > | 79 09 88 | 92 | 92 | D | | |
| ; :(%) | our: F | | 4 4 | 5 | I/O PROJE | · of Li nes Vol | 0 | ÷ | 0 , | - 0 | 0 0 | | 0 - | 9 | 0 - | 00 | , | - | 9 | 0 0 | - 0 | | 00 | 0 | 00 | 0 - 0 | uth: 8 Vest: 6 SUM: 14 | 0.9 | 0.8 | | | |
| Growth: | Peak H | | S N | | NDITION | tal No ume La | 88 | | N | თ | | | 6 | 2 | ę | | | 80 | 4 | æ | | | თ | e | u | 2 | North-Sc East-V | | | | | |
| Ambient (| | | | 1 | TURE COI | ed To me Volu | 0 23 | | 83 | 0 | | | 0 | 97 | 2 27 | | | 9 18 | 0 | 30 | | | 0 | 0 | Č | - | | | | | | |
| <mark>√ 6</mark> | 23 | | 8 R R |] | Ð | e Volu | | | ě | | | | | 415 | 60 | | | 13 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 201 | 202 | 20 | ·B 0 | | ROJECT | Lane Volum | 229 | | 519 | 0 | | | 6 | 381 | 381 | | | 57 | 452 | 0 | | | б | 27 | C | 5 | 610 461 1071 | 0.714 | 0.614 | 8 | | |
| of Count | tion Year | | 00 | • | NG PLUS I | Total Volume | 229 | | 510 | 6 | | | 6 | 560 | 184 | | | 57 | 13 | 382 | | | ი | ю | т Т | 2 | th-South ast-West SUM | | | | | |
| Year | Project | | NB FB | 9 | EXISTI | Project Traffic | 0 | | თ | 0 | | | 0 | 25 | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | 0 | | | 0 | 0 | c | þ | Nor | | | | | |
| | | 2 0 | 00 | 000 | NO | Lane Volume | 229 | | 510 | 0 | | | 6 | 369 | 369 | | | 57 | 452 | 0 | | | 6 | 27 | c | þ | 598 461 1059 | 0.706 | 0.606 | В | | |
| | | | SB M/B | | G CONDIT | No. of Lanes | 0 | ÷ | 0 + | - 0 | 0 0 | | 0. | - 0 - | - 0 | 00 | , | 0 0 | 00 | 0 0 | - 0 | | 00 | 0 | 0 0 | 0 - 0 | -South: t-West: SUM: | | | | | |
| venue | | | <mark>0</mark> | | EXISTIN | olume | 229 | | 501 | 6 | | | ი | 535 | 184 | | | 57 | 13 | 382 | | | თ | e | t t | 2 | North Eas | | | | | |
| santa Fe A | th Street | ases h-3? | -A-3? NE | S-2? | | | | | | | | | | | | | | - | | | | | | | | | MES | :TIO: | ENT: | os): | RKS: | |
| rth-South Street: S | East-West Street: 8 | No. of Phi Ø'ing: N/S-1, E/W-2 or Botl | s: FREE-1, NRTOR-2 or OL | ATSAC-1 or ATSAC+ATC: Override Capa | | MOVEMENT | Left | Left-Through | Through Through | Right | Left-Through-Right Left-Right | 5 | Left Left Through | Through | Through-Right Right | Left-Through-Right Left-Right | | Left Loft Through | Through | Through-Right Right | * Left-Through-Right Left-Right | | - Left - Left-Through | - Through | - Through-Right - Binht | Left-Through-Right - Left-Riaht | CRITICAL VOLUI | -UME/CAPACITY (V/C) RA | S ATSAC/ATCS ADJUSTME | LEVEL OF SERVICE (LI | REMAR | |
| 3 #: No | IA10 | Opposed | light Turn | | | | ر د | יאנ | , → 108 | | | | | | нп ¢ ⊅ | | • | ר ר ם ם | | یں ہے 19 | A 3 | - | -√ -∕ ΩN | ↑ • | 918 1 - 1- 1 - 1- | | | ION | V/C LES | | | : |
| S/I | CM. | | R | | | | Ľ | | .58 | | | | un, | | | .00 | | J | 0 | -13 | | | - Un | | . UI (| | | | | | | |

Version: 1i Beta; 8/4/2011

CMA10

∆*W*c after mitigation: 0.006 Fully mitigated? N/A

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.008 Significant impacted? NO

N





| | d-Use | ი ი | 00 | 0 0 0 | BATION | Lane Volume | 344 | | 515 | 25 | | 36 | | 483 | 85 | | | 262 | 329 | 77 E | C77 | | 40 | 144 | c | Þ | 827 406 | 1233 ^ 865 | 0.765 | υ | | |
|-----------------------|-------------------------|--|----------|----------------------|------------|--------------------|--------|---------|------------------|-------|--------------------|--------------|------------|------------------|----------|-----------|----|------------|--------------|--|--------------------|---|-----------------|----------|-----------|-----------|-----------------------|---------------|------------|-----------------|---------|--------|
| 28/2019 | Street Mixe | | SB WR | | T W/ MITIC | No. of Lanes | F | 0 | | - 0 | 00 | - | 0 | . | - 0 | 00 | , | • • | - 0 (| 0 + | - 0 0 | | 0 0 | 0 | 00 | o – c | -South: t-West: | SUM: | | | | |
| 2 | 24 Mateo | | 0 " | þ | // PROJEC | Total 'olume | 344 | | 1004 | 25 | | 36 | | 880 | 85 | | | 262 | 67 | EEO | 6000 | | 40 | 46 | C | â | North Eas | | | | | |
| Date: | roject: <mark>10</mark> | | NB FB | 3 | FUTURE M | vdded olume V | 0 | | ۰ ب | 0 | | 0 | | 4 | ?- ?- | | | 0 | 0 | c | 5 | | 0 | 0 | c | C | | | | | | μ |
| | P | ო 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | ICT | ane A | 344 | | 516 | 25 | | 36 | | 485 | 87 | | İ | 262 | 329 | 00E | 0 | | 40 | 144 | c | 5 | 829 406 | 235 oe7 | 767 | υ | | |
| S | JAS | | SB MB | 2 | W/ PROJE | o.of I anes Vo | - | 0 | . . | - 0 | 0 0 | . | 0 | . | - 0 | 0 0 | , | 0 + | - 0 (| 0 + | - 0 0 | | 0 0 | 0 0 | 0 0 | o ← c | south: West: | SUM: 1 | 5 c | j | | |
| d by: ND | d by: | | 0 " | • > | | otal N lume L | 344 | | 202 | 25 | | 36 | | 382 | 87 | | | 262 | 67 | Centre Ce | 600 | | 40 | 46 | C | Q | North-S East- | | | | | - |
| onducted | Reviewed | | | 5 | =UTURE C | ded To ume Vo | e 0 | | 12 10 | 0 | | 0 | | 8 | ∞ | | | 0 | 0 | C | , , | | 0 | 0 | c | 5 | | | | | | |
| Ŭ 0 | M | ი ი | 2 4 | 0 0 0 | 5 | ne Ad ume Vol | 4 | | 0 | 25 | | 99 | | 7 | 6, | | | 52 | 63 | E C | 3 | | 01 | 4 | c | 5 | 21)6 | 27 | | | | |
| %): 1. | ur: A | | ام ا | | O PROJEC | of La es Volu | 34 | | 51 | (N | | | | 47 | 7 | | | 26 | 32 | CC C | 7 | | ম | 14 | | | uth: 82 est: 40 | JM: 122 | 0.76 | | | |
| rowth: (⁹ | Peak Ho | | SB | | DITION W/ | al No. ne Lan | - | 0 | | - 0 | 00 | - | 0 | | - 0 | 00 | | • • | - 0 (| • • | - 0 0 | | 00 | 0 | 00 | | Vorth-Sol East-W | S | | | | |
| nbient G | | | 0 " | 2 | URE CONI | d Tota ie Volur | 344 | | 3 66 | 25 | | 36 | | 874 | 29 | | | 262 | 67 | EEO | 200 | | 4 | 46 | L | õ | | | | | | |
| Ar Ar | ~ | | NB |] | FUT | Adder | 0 | | 591 | 0 | | • | | 168 | 32 | | | 156 | 0 | C | > | | 0 | 0 | (| 5 | | | | | | |
| 2019 | 2023 | ო | | 0 10 | ROJECT | Lane Volume | 331 | | 357 | 24 | | 35 | | 370 | 53 | | | 102 | 166 | 246 | 9 | | 38 | 138 | c | 0 | 701 254 | 955 | 0.570 | A | | |
| of Count: | on Year: | | N SI | . | G PLUS P | Total Volume | 331 | | 689 | 24 | | 35 | | 686 | 53 | | | 102 | 64 | 517 | 10 | | 38 | 44 | C | 00 | h-South: ist-West: | SUM: | | | | |
| Year c | Projecti | | NB FB | 3 | EXISTIN | Project Traffic | 0 | | 4 | 0 | | 0 | | 8 | ∞ | | | 0 | 0 | c | þ | | 0 | 0 | c | C | Nort Eâ | | | | | |
| | | <u>ო </u> | 00 | 0 0 0 | N | Lane /olume | 331 | | 351 | 24 | | 35 | | 362 | 45 | | I | 102 | 166 | 216 | 0 | | 38 | 138 | c | D | 693 254 | 947 • 665 | | A | | |
| | | | SB WR | | CONDITIC | lo. of anes | - | 0 | | - 0 | 0 0 | - | 0 | | - 0 | 0 0 | , | 0 • | - 0 (| 0 + | - 0 0 | | 0 0 | 00 | 0 0 | o ← c | South: -West: | SUM: | , | | | |
| enue | | | 0 " | 0 | EXISTING | ume L | 331 | | 677 | 24 | | 35 | | 678 | 45 | | | 102 | 64 | 547 | ŧ | | 38 | 44 | C L | 00 | North- East | | | | | |
| ta Fe Ave | er Street | <i>(</i> 0 0) | S NB | } | | | | | | | | - | | | | | | - | | | | - | | | | | | | | | | |
| Sant | Port | of Phases or Both-33 | or OLA-3 | +ATCS-23 Capacity | | | | | | | Right | | | | _ | Right | | | | | Right | | | | | Right | | C) RATIO | STMENT | CE (LOS) | EMARKS: | |
| Street: | Street: | No. (I, E/W-2 o | NRTOR-2 | r ATSAC- Override | | AENT | | [hrough | lgh .⇔h_Diaht | | lhrough-F Right | | Through | lgh istroight | ngn-rugn | Through-F | | do to do | u6no | ugh-Right | rhrough-F Right | , | Through | ugh d | ugh-Right | Through-F | | CITY (V/ | CS ADJU | DF SERVI | R | 001110 |
| -South | st-West | ing: N/S- | FREE-1, | TSAC-1 o | | MOVEN | Left | Left-] | Thro | Right | Left-I Left-I | Left | Left-1 | Thro | Right | Left-I | | Left | Throu | Throu | Left-I Left-F | | Left I eft-] | Throu | Throu | Left-1 | σ | ME/CAP# | TSAC/AT | LEVEL 0 | | 1001 |
| : North | Ea | osed Ø'i | t Turns: | A | | | Ç | ₹7 | <u> </u> | LL | - } } | .ر | <u>)</u> , | → <u>,</u> | ΓÌ | - | ţ. | م م | <u>`</u> 1 1 | <i>م</i> م | ᠂ᠬ | • | ςĻ | . ↓ . | 11 | 44 | * | NOLUI | ; LESS A | | | |
| I/S #: | CMA11 | ddO | Righ | | | | 6 | זאנ | BOI | ΗТΣ | NOF | C | IN | noa | IHTI | nos | | a | | BT | SA3 | | a | | BTB | MES | | | 2/2 | | | |

Version: 1i Beta; 8/4/2011

CMA11

Av/c after mitigation: 0.004 Fully mitigated? N/A

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.006 Significant impacted? NO





| 1/S # | ť: Nort | th-South Street: | Santa F | e Avenue | | | Year (| of Count: | 2019 | Ambi | ent Grow | th: (%): | 1.0 | Conduc | ted by: 1 | NDS | | Date: | 2 | 28/2019 | |
|-------|-------------------|--------------------------------|------------------------|--------------|--------------------------------|--------------------|--------------------|--------------------------------|--------------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------------------|---------------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------------------|---------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------------------|---------------------|
| CMA1 | 1 Ē | ast-West Street: | Porter S | street | | | Project | ion Year: | 2023 | | Pea | k Hour: | PM | Reviev | ved by: | JA | S | roject: | 024 Mateo | Street Mixe | d-Use |
| do | posed Ø | No. c %ing: N/S-1, E/W-2 or | of Phases r Both-3? | | | с 0 | | | ю 0 | | | | с 0 М | | | | ω Ο | | | | с 0 Э |
| Rigl | ht Turns: | : FREE-1, NRTOR-2 (| or OLA-3? | NB 0 EB 3 | SB WB | 0 0 | NB EB | 3 WE | <u>ه د</u> | NB EB | 0 m | SB WB | 00 | NB- EB- | 0 ო | SB WB | 00 | NB- EB- | <u>ი</u> ო | SB WB | 0 0 |
| | • | ATSAC-1 or ATSAC+ Override | ATCS-2? Capacity | | | 0 0 0 | | | 0 0 | | | | 0 0 0 | | | | 00 | | | | 00 |
| | | | | EXISTI | NG CONDI | NOI | EXISTIN | IG PLUS PF | COLECT | FUTUR | E CONDITIC | N W/O PRO | DJECT | FUTUR | | ON W/ PRO | JECT | FUTURE | W/ PROJEC | T W/ MITIC | BATION |
| | | MOVEMENT | | Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane Volume | Project Traffic | Total Volume | Lane Volume | Added Volume | Total Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane Volume | Added Volume | Total Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane | Added Volume | Total Volume | No. of Lanes | Lane Volume |
| C | Ç | Left | | 424 | ÷ | 424 | 0 | 424 | 424 | 0 | 441 | - | 441 | 0 | 441 | - | 441 | 0 | 441 | ÷ | 441 |
| INC | Ţ | Left-Through | | | 0 | | | | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | | | | 0 | |
| BO | <u>ن</u> | Through Through-Right | | 631 | . . | 325 | ຉ | 640 | 330 | 226 | 883 | | 452 | თ | 892 | | 456 | ņ | 889 | | 455 |
| ΗТЯ | | Right | | 19 | . 0 | 19 | 0 | 19 | 19 | 0 | 20 | . 0 | 20 | 0 | 20 | • 0 | 20 | 0 | 20 | . 0 | 20 |
| ION | ⊹ ≻ | Left-Through-R Left-Right | light | | 0 0 | | | | | | | 0 0 | | | | 0 0 | | | | 0 0 | |
| | | 4 | | 5 | • | ľ | c | ľ | 10 | c | ç | | ç | c | ç | • | ç | c | ç | | ç |
| αN | 1 | Left-Through | | 17 | - 0 | 17 | D | 17 | 77 | D | 87 | - 0 | 87 | C | 87 | - 0 | 87 | C | 87 | - 0 | 87 |
| NOE | →- | Through | | 823 | | 459 | 13 | 836 | 472 | 329 | 1185 | | 685 | 13 | 1198 | | 697 | ဗု | 1195 | | 694 |
| IHT | С Д | I nrougn-кignt Riaht | | 02 | - c | 0F | 5 | 107 | 107 | ЯG | 184 | - c | 184 | 10 | 106 | - c | 106 | °, | 103 | - c | 103 |
| nos | , | Left-Through-R | light | 3 | | 3 | 4 | 5 | 2 | 3 | 5 | | 5 | 4 | 2 | | 2 | þ | 2 | | 2 |
| | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | , | | | | | | | | , | |
| a | <u>ר ר</u> | Left Loft Through | | 35 | 0 + | 35 | 0 | 35 | 35 | 85 | 121 | 0 + | 121 | 0 | 121 | • • | 121 | 0 | 121 | 0. | 121 |
| NUO | ` 1 1 | Through | | 26 | - 0 (| 61 | 0 | 26 | 61 | 0 | 27 | - 0 (| 148 | 0 | 27 | - 0 (| 148 | 0 | 27 | - 0 (| 148 |
| 818 | <i>م م</i> | Through-Right Right | | 700 | o - | C | c | 700 | C | C | 236 | 0 - | C | C | 236 | 0 - | C | C | 236 | o - | C |
| 8A3 | ᠂᠋ᡎ | Left-Through-R Left-Riaht | ight | Ī | . 0 0 | þ | 0 | Ī | þ |) | 2 | . 0 0 |) | þ | 2 | . 0 0 | þ | þ | 200 | . 0 0 | þ |
| | • | , | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ۵N | Ŀ | Left Left-Through | | 54 | 00 | 54 | 0 | 54 | 54 | 0 | 56 | 00 | 56 | 0 | 56 | 00 | 56 | 0 | 56 | 00 | 56 |
| INO | ↓ « | Through | | 75 | 0 | 185 | 0 | 75 | 185 | 0 | 78 | 0 | 192 | 0 | 78 | 0 | 192 | 0 | 78 | 0 | 192 |
| ata | ↓ ~/ _* | Through-Right Riaht | | 56 | 0 0 | C | C | 56 | C | C | 58 | 0 0 | C | C | 58 | 0 0 | C | C | 58 | 0 0 | C |
| ME | ৢ৾৴৾৾৾ | Left-Through-R Left-Right | light | 8 | 0 |) |) | 3 | • |) | 3 | 0 |) |) | 8 | 0 |) |) | 8 | 0 |) |
| | | CRITICAL V | OLUMES | Ea Nor | th-South: ast-West: SUM: | 883 220 1103 | Nor E | th-South: ast-West: SUM: | 896 220 1116 | | Norti Ea | h-South: st-West: SUM: | 1126 313 1439 | | Nort | n-South: st-West: SUM: | 1138 313 1451 | | North Eas | -South: :t-West: SUM: | 1135 313 1448 |
| | VOLL | UME/CAPACITY (V/C |) RATIO: | | | 0.774 | | | 0.783 | | | | 1.010 | | | | 1.018 | | | | 1.016 |
| Š | C LESS | ATSAC/ATCS ADJU | STMENT: | | | 0.674 | | | 0.683 | | | | 0.910 | | | | 0.918 | | | | 0.916 |
| | | LEVEL OF SERVIC | E (LOS): | | | В | | | В | | | | ш | | | | ш | | | | Е |
| | | RE | IMARKS: | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Versic | on: 1i Beta; 8/4/201 | ~ | | | | | | | | | | | | | PROJE | ECT IMF | ACT | | | |

CMA11

∆*W*c after mitigation: 0.006 Fully mitigated? N/A

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.008 Significant impacted? NO

N





| 119 | Mixed-Use | 0 3 | 00 | 0 0 0 | NITIGATION | f Lane s Volume | 225 | 544 | | F | 161 | | 671 | 45 | | 103 | 251 | 171 | | 210 | 630 | 153 | | h: 896 st: 733 V: 1629 | 1.143 | 1 043 |
|-------------|---------------------|------------------------------|----------------|-------------------------------|-------------------|------------------------|----------------|-----------------------|----------------|--------------------------------------|---------------|------------|------------------------|-------------------------------|------------------------------|-------------------|---------------|---------------|------------------------------|----------------|-----------------------|---------------------|------------------------------|--------------------------------|---------------|--------------|
| 2/28/20 | Aateo Street | | SB- WB- | 1 | OJECT W/ I | al No.c ne Lane: | · | 0 | . . | 000 | | 0 | | - 0 0 | 00 | ~ ~ | - | ~ - · | 0 0 | - 0 | - C | - 0 | 00 | North-Sout East-We: SUI | | |
| e: | :t: 1024 M | | 0 0 | | RE W/ PR | d Tota e Volun | 225 | 1010 | | 2 | 161 | | 1297 | 45 | | 103 | 501 | 396 | | 210 | 1107 | 153 | | < | | |
| Dat | Projec | | RB- FB- | | FUTU | Addec Volum | 0 | 7 | | 0 | 7 | | 7 | 0 | | 0 | 7 | 0 | | 0 | 7 | ņ | | | | |
| | AS | 0 3 | 00 | 0 0 0 | COLECT | Lane Volume | 225 | 544 | | 1 | 162 | | 672 | 45 | | 103 | 251 | 171 | | 210 | 632 | 155 | | 897 735 1632 | 1.145 | 1.045 |
| SON | ſ | | SB WB | | ION W/ PF | No. of Lanes | . . | c | . | 000 | - | 0 | . . | - 0 0 | 00 | c | 0 0 0 | ⊃ ← (| 0 0 | - 0 | ⊃ – | - 0 | 00 | th-South: ast-West: SUM: | | |
| cted by: | wed by: | | 0 ო | | E CONDIT | Total Volume | 225 | 1011 | | 2 | 162 | | 1298 | 45 | | 103 | 502 | 396 | | 210 | 1108 | 155 | | Nor | | |
| Conduc | Reviev | | NB- EB- | | FUTUR | Added Volume | 0 | S | | 0 | LC. |) | က | 0 | | 0 | e | 0 | | 0 | Q | 7 | | | | |
| 1.0 | AM | ю 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | JJECT | Lane Volume | 225 | 542 | | 1 | 157 | | 670 | 45 | | 103 | 250 | 171 | | 210 | 626 | 148 | | 895 729 1624 | 1.140 | 1 040 |
| h: (%): | Hour: | | SB WB | ! | N W/O PRO | No. of Lanes | | ⊃ – | - | 000 | | 0 | | - 0 0 | 0 0 | - c | 0 0 0 | o ← (| 0 0 | . . | ⊃ – | - 0 | 00 | -South: :t-West: SUM: | | |
| nt Growt | Peak | | 0 ო |) | CONDITIO | Total 'olume | 225 | 1006 | | 4 | 157 | | 1295 | 45 | | 103 | 499 | 396 | | 210 | 1103 | 148 | | North Eas | | |
| Ambie | | | NB EB | | FUTURE | Added / | 65 | 152 | | . | 36 | } | 108 | 23 | | 20 | 160 | 57 | | Ģ | 178 | 20 | | | | |
| 2019 | 2023 | 3 0 | 00 | 0 0 0 | ECT | ane / | 154 | 450 | | 73 | 121 | į | 583 | 21 | | 32 | 165 | 172 | 1 | 204 | 488 | 82 | | 737 520 257 | .882 | 782 |
| ount: | rear: | | SB WB | 1 | US PROJ | tal L ume Vo | 54 | 26 | | 13 | 2 | i | 44 | 21 | | 32 | 29 | 26 | 1 | 04 | 94 | 82 | | outh: Vest: SUM: 1 | 0 | • |
| ear of Co | ojection ' | | 0 0 |) | (ISTING PI | act To fic Voli | 0 | 80 | | 0 | - | | , | 0 | | 0 | с С | с С | | 0 | 8 | 2 | | North-Sc East-V | | |
| ٨ | Pr | (| | | Û | e Proj ne Traf | _ | | | ~ | | | | | | | ~ | | | | | 10 | | | | |
| | | 0 | | | DITION | f Lan s Volur | 154 | 447 | | 2 | 116 | | 581 | 21 | | 32 | 163 | 172 | | 204 | 482 | 75 | | h: 735 it: 514 h: 1249 | 0.876 | 0 776 |
| | rd | | SB WB | <u>!</u> | TING CON | No. o Lane <u>(</u> | - · | C | ~ | 000 | - | 0 | ~ ~ | - 0 0 | 00 | - c | 0 0 0 | ⊃ ← (| 0 0 | ← (| ⊃ – | - 0 | 00 | orth-Sout East-Wes SUM | | |
| e Avenue | Bouleva | | NB 0 EB 3 | | EXIS. | Volume | 154 | 821 | | 73 | 116 | | 1141 | 21 | | 32 | 326 | 326 | | 204 | 889 | 75 | | ž | | |
| Santa F | Olympic | Phases \oth-3? | OLA-3? | TCS-2? apacity | | | | | | ht | | | | 1 | I | | | | t | Γ | | | ht | LUMES | RATIO: | :MENT: |
| Ith Street: | st Street: | No. of I /S-1, E/W-2 or B | -1, NRTOR-2 or | -1 or ATSAC+A1 Override Ca | | VEMENT | ift | ett-Through Trough | rough-Right | ight sft-Through-Rig sft-Riaht | Ť. | ft-Through | rrough vrough_Picht | inougii-Nigiii ght a Ti | ett-Through-Rig sft-Right | aft Af Through | irough | ght | eft-Through-Rig sft-Right | Ĕ. | ərr-ınrougn ırough | ırough-Right ght | eft-Through-Rig aft-Right | CRITICAL VOI | APACITY (V/C) | VATCS ADJUST |
| Vorth-Sou | East-W€ | id Ø'ing: N | rns: FREE | ATSAC | | ΜO | , "" | ⊐⊏ ∼⊤ | F ئ | ╩ݻݶ ╯✦ݤ | ت ر | ت | ד וׂ | : בי ליס | ӖӖ | יב הר | ╕╒╴┇ ╏││ ┝ | = ע הייה ≁ | r T | . تر ل ب | ⊐≓ →↓∢ | F ਇ ∤ √ √ | تت مرما | | OLUME/C | SS ATSAC |
| I/S #: I | CMA12 | Oppose | Right Tu | | | | a | NUO |)8H. | гяои | | זאנ | าดย | нти | os | a | | 8T2 <i>4</i> | /3 | | NUO | BTS | ME | | > | V/C LE |

2/28/2019-2:56 PM

CMA12

∆*V/*C after mitigation: 0.003 Fully mitigated? N/A

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.005 Significant impacted? NO





| | ed-Use | е 0 | 0 0 | 0 2 | IGATION | Lane Volume | 211 | | 763 | 222 | | | 217 | 732 | 105 | 81 | | 77 | 566 | } | 213 | | | 101 | 504 | 166 | 8 | 980 667 1647 | 1.156 | 1.056 | F | | |
|------------|--------------|--------------------------|------------------|-----------------|-----------|--------------------|------|---------|--------------|-------|---------------------|---|-----------------|------------------|-----------------|--------------|----------|----------------|--------------------|---------|-------------------|--|---|------------------|--------------|-----------------|----------------------|---------------------------------|-------------|-----------|------------|------|------------|
| 2/28/2019 | o Street Mix | | SB WB | | CT W/ MIT | No. of Lanes | - | 0 · | ~ ~ | - 0 | 0 0 | | c |) ~ · | - c | | C | - | 0 0 | 0 | - c | 00 | | - 0 | ~ | c | 000 | th-South: ast-West: stim- | | | | | |
| | 1024 Mated | | ဝ က | | W/ PROJE | Total Volume | 211 | | 1304 | 222 | | | 217 | 1358 | 105 | 8 | | 22 | 1131 | | 424 | | | 101 | 842 | 166 | 8 | Nori E | | | | | |
| Date: | Project: | | NB- EB- | | FUTURE | Added Volume | 0 | | 7 | 0 | | | 9 | 7 | c | 2 | | 0 | 5 | | 0 | | | 0 | 7 | Ţ | ī | | | | | | PACT |
| | S | 3 0 | 00 | 0 0 | DJECT | Lane Volume | 211 | | 764 | 222 | | | 219 | 732 | 105 | <u>601</u> | | 77 | 566 | } | 213 | | | 101 | 505 | 167 | 2 | 983 667 1650 | 1.158 | 1.058 | ш | | ECT IM |
| NDS | ۹L | | SB WB | | ON W/ PRO | No. of Lanes | - | 0 | | - 0 | 00 | | c |) - - | . c | 000 | 5 | - | 0 0 | 0 | - c | 00 | | - 0 | - | c | 000 | h-South: st-West: stmr. | | | | | PROJ |
| ted by: | ved by: | | 0 ო | | E CONDITI | Total Volume | 211 | | 1305 | 222 | | | 219 | 1359 | 105 | 8 | | 17 | 1132 | | 424 | | | 101 | 843 | 167 | 2 | Norti Ea | | | | | |
| Conduc | Reviev | | NB- EB- | | FUTUR | Added Volume | 0 | | 4 | 0 | | | œ | 2 | c | D | | 0 | 4 | | 0 | | | 0 | 4 | u | 2 | | | | | | |
| 1.0 | PM | 3 0 | 00 | 0 0 | OJECT | Lane Volume | 211 | | 762 | 222 | | | 211 | 730 | 101 | 6 | I | 77 | 564 | 5 | 213 | | | 101 | 501 | 160 | 201 | 973 665 1638 | 1.149 | 1.049 | ш | | |
| th: (%): | k Hour: | | SB WB | | N W/O PR | No. of Lanes | - | 0 | | - 0 | 0 0 | | - c |) - · | - c | | 5 | - | 0 0 | 0 | - c | 00 | | - 0 | - | - c | 000 | h-South: st-West: stim- | | | | | |
| ent Grow | Peal | | 0 m | | CONDITIO | Total Volume | 211 | | 1301 | 222 | | | 211 | 1354 | 105 | 8 | | 11 | 1128 | | 424 | | | 101 | 839 | 160 | 20 | Nort | | | | | |
| Ambie | | | NB EB | | FUTURE | Added Volume | 71 | | 140 | 0 | | | 80 | 181 | 00 | 8 | | 29 | 222 | | 76 | | | 2 | 210 | 22 | 3 | | | | | | |
| 2019 | 2023 | 3 0 | 00 | 0 0 | DUECT | Lane Volume | 135 | | 667 | 213 | | | 134 | 584 | 30 | 00 | I | 46 | 438 | 2 | 199 | | | 95 | 358 | 100 | 201 | 801 533 1334 | 0.936 | 0.836 | D | | |
| Count: | n Year: | | 0 SB- 3 WB | | BLUS PRO | Total /olume | 135 | | 1120 | 213 | | | 134 | 1132 | 90 | 8 | 1 | 46 | 875 |) | 334 | | | 95 | 608 | 001 | 8 | -South: t-West: stmr. | | | | | |
| Year of | Projectic | | NB EB | | EXISTING | Project Traffic | 0 | | 4 | 0 | | | ω | 5 | c | C | | 0 | 4 | | 0 | | | 0 | 4 | u | 2 | North Eas | | | | | |
| | | 0 3 | 00 | 00 | N | Lane F | 135 | | 665 | 213 | | Ī | 126 | 582 | 26 | 8 | I | 46 | 436 | | 199 | | | 95 | 354 | 100 | 2 | 791 531 1322 | .928 | .828 | D | | |
| | | | SB WB | | GONDITIC | No. of Lanes \ | - | 0 | | . 0 | 0 0 | | - c |) - · | - c | | 5 | - | 0 0 | 0 | - c | 0 0 | | - 0 | . | c | 000 | -South: t-West: sum- | | | | | |
| Avenue | oulevard | | <mark>о с</mark> | | EXISTING | Volume | 135 | | 1116 | 213 | | | 126 | 1127 | 90 | 8 | | 46 | 871 | | 334 | | | 95 | 604 | 100 | 3 | North | | | | | |
| Santa Fe / | Olympic B | nases oth-3? | | CS-2? pacity | | | | | | | | | | | | | | F | | | | _ | | | | | | JMES | ATIO: | IENT: | LOS): | RKS: | |
| reet: | reet: | No. of PI E/W-2 or Bo | ttor-2 or C | ATSAC+ATO | | T | | rough | h h-Richt | | rough-Righi Iht | | dono. | | h-Right | rough-Righ | | ŀ | rough h | h-Right | rouch-Rich | iht and a second second second second second second second second second second second second second second se | | rouah | , | h-Right | rough-Right tht | LICAL VOLL | ITY (V/C) R | S ADJUSTM | SERVICE (I | REMA | 8/4/2011 |
| -South St | t-West St | ng: N/S-1, I | REE-1, NF | SAC-1 or J | | MOVEME | Left | Left-Th | Throug | Right | Left-Th Left-Ric | | Left Left-Th | Throug | Throug Diabt | Left-Th | Lett-Kiç | Left | Left-Thi Throug | Throug | Right Left-Thi | Left-Ric | | Left Left-Thi | Throug | Throug Dicht | Left-Thi Left-Ric | CRI | IE/CAPAC | -SAC/ATC | LEVEL OF | | : 1i Beta; |
| North | Eas | osed Ø'in | t Turns: F | AT | | | ſ | Ť | | | ÷≻ | | ג נ | · | ₹- | ↓ + - | ₹ | م ر | 11 | ٢ı | ≁† | *^* | U | → | ↓ <i>«</i> | Į √. | + | • | VOLUM | : LESS AT | - | | Version |
| I/S #: | CMA12 | ddO | Righ | | | | c | | BO | ΗТЯ | ION | | ۵N | nos | ант | .nos | | C | | во | LSA | Э | | an | | ara | ME | | | V/C | | | |

CMA12

∆*V/c* after mitigation: 0.007 Fully mitigated? N/A

Change in *v/c* due to project: 0.009 Significant impacted? NO

N

Appendix G-2: LADOT Approval Letter

CITY OF LOS ANGELES

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL CORRESPONDENCE

1024 S Mateo St DOT Case No. CEN16-45186

Date: December 4, 2019

To: Debbie Lawrence, Senior City Planner Department of City Planning

From: Wes Pringle, Transportation Engineer Department of Transportation

Subject: UPDATED TRANSPORTATION IMPACT ASSESSMENT FOR THE PROPOSED MIXED-USE PROJECT AT 1024 SOUTH MATEO STREET (ENV-2016-4555-EAF/VTT-74596) REVISED

On April 25, 2019 (and November 26, 2019), the Department of Transportation (DOT) issued a traffic assessment report to the Department of City Planning for the mixed-use project at 1024 South Mateo Street, which was subject to a transportation analysis dated March 7, 2019 prepared by Linscott, Law & Greenspan, engineers (LLG). However, subsequent to the releasing of this report, on July 30, 2019, pursuant to Senate Bill (SB) 743 and the recent changes to Section 15064.3 of the State's California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, the City of Los Angeles adopted vehicle miles traveled (VMT) as the criteria by which to determine transportation impacts under CEQA. Therefore, in response to this action the applicant submitted a VMT analysis for the proposed project in addition to the previous analysis dated March 7, 2019. Please replace the previous DOT assessment letter dated April 25, 2019 (and November 26, 2019), in its entirety, with this report which addresses the totality of the transportation analysis.

The DOT has reviewed the transportation analysis prepared by LLG, dated October 5, 2019, for the proposed mixed-use project located at 1024 South Mateo Street. In compliance with SB 743 and the CEQA, a VMT analysis is required to identify the project's ability to promote the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions, access to diverse land uses, and the development of multi-modal networks. The significance of a project's impact in this regard is measured against the VMT thresholds established in DOT's Transportation Assessment Guidelines (TAG), as described below.

DISCUSSION AND FINDINGS

A. <u>Project Description</u>

The project proposes to remove an existing bus depot and construct a mixed-use project located on the block between Bay Street and Sacramento Street on the east side of Mateo Street in the Arts District. The project would include 106 live-work apartments, 2,250 square feet of livework office, 92,740 square feet of general office, 13,126 square feet of restaurant, 13,979 square feet of retail, and a parking garage. Access to the garage will be provided via a driveway on Bay Street for residential parking and a driveway on Sacramento Street for office, restaurant, and retail parking as illustrated in **Attachment A**. The project is expected to be completed by 2023.

B. CEQA Screening Threshold

Prior to accounting for trip reductions resulting from the application of Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Strategies, a trip generation analysis was conducted to determine if the project would exceed 250 daily vehicle trips screening threshold. Using the City of Los Angeles VMT Calculator tool, which draws upon trip rate estimates published in the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual, 9th Edition as well as applying trip generation adjustments when applicable, based on sociodemographic data and the built environment factors of the project's surroundings, it was determined that the project <u>does</u> exceed the net 250 daily vehicle trips threshold. It should be noted that because the project Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) was approved prior to July 2019, the project is not required to use the new TAG, but the project has voluntarily submitted a VMT analysis. The VMT calculator version 1.0 was the latest VMT calculator available at the time the October 5, 2019 analysis was submitted and accepted by DOT. A copy of the VMT calculator screening page, with the corresponding net daily trips estimate, is provided as **Attachment B** to this report.

C. Transportation Impacts

On July 30, 2019, pursuant to SB 743 and the recent changes to Section 15064.3 of the State's CEQA Guidelines, the City of Los Angeles adopted VMT as a criteria in determining transportation impacts under CEQA. The new DOT TAG provide instructions on preparing transportation assessments for land use proposals and defines the significant impact thresholds.

The DOT VMT Calculator tool measures project impact in terms of Household VMT per Capita, and Work VMT per Employee. DOT identified distinct thresholds for significant VMT impacts for each of the seven Area Planning Commission (APC) areas in the City. For the Central APC area, in which the project is located, the following thresholds have been established:

- Household VMT per Capita: 6.0
- Work VMT per Employee: 7.6

As cited in the VMT Analysis report, prepared by LLG, the proposed project is projected to have Household VMT per capita of 7.6 and Work VMT per employee of 8.9. Therefore, it is concluded that implementation of the Project would result in a significant Household and Work VMT.

The project proposes to mitigate these impacts through the implementation of parking, transit, educational, bicycle infrastructure and neighborhood enhancement TDM strategies that are forecasted to reduce the Project Household and Work VMTs to 6.0 and 7.0, respectively. A copy of the VMT Calculator summary reports is provided as **Attachment B** that to this report.

D. Access and Circulation

During the preparation of the new CEQA guidelines, the State's Office of Planning and Research stressed that lead agencies can continue to apply traditional operational analysis requirements to inform land use decisions provided that such analyses were outside of the CEQA process. The authority for requiring non-CEQA transportation analysis and requiring improvements to address potential circulation deficiencies, lies in the City of Los Angeles' Site Plan Review authority as established in Section 16.05 of the Los Angeles Municipal Code (LAMC). Therefore, DOT continues to require and review a project's site access, circulation, and operational plan to determine if any access enhancements, transit amenities, intersection improvements, traffic signal upgrades, neighborhood traffic calming, or other improvements are needed. In accordance with this authority, the project has completed a circulation analysis using a "level of service" screening methodology that indicates that the trips generated by the proposed development will likely result in adverse circulation conditions at several locations. DOT has reviewed this analysis and determined that it adequately discloses operational concerns. A copy of the circulation analysis table that summarizes these potential deficiencies is provided as **Attachment C** to this report.

PROJECT REQUIREMENTS

A. CEQA-Related Mitigation

To off-set the expected significant impacts identified in the project's October 5, 2019 transportation impact study, DOT recommends that the applicant be required to implement the following TDM strategies as mitigation measures:

1. <u>Reduce Parking Supply</u>

This measure encourages alternative transportation choices. The degree of effectiveness of this measure varies based on the surrounding area, level of existing transit service, level of existing pedestrian and bicycle networks and other factors which would complement the shift away from single-occupant vehicle travel.

2. Unbundle Parking

Unbundling parking costs from property costs would require those who wish to purchase parking spaces to do so at an additional cost from the property cost. This removes the burden from those who do not wish to utilize a parking space. An assumption is made that the parking costs are passed through to the vehicle owners/drivers utilizing the parking spaces.

3. Transit Subsidy

The availability of a subsidy provides a strong incentive to consider other commute trip alternatives. The Project should provide a subsidy commensurate to the current daily rate and accessible to 100% of eligible residents.

4. Voluntary Travel Behavior Change Program

This strategy involves the development of a travel behavior change program that targets individual attitudes, goals, and travel behaviors, educating participants on the impacts of their travel choices and the opportunities to alter their habits.

5. <u>Bicycle Infrastructure</u>

These improvements help reduce peak-hour vehicle trips by making commuting by bicycle easier and more convenient. The Project should provide a maximum commitment to implementing/improving on-street bicycle facilities, providing bicycle parking per the LAMC and providing secure ancillary bike facilities such as indoor bicycle parking/lockers, showers, and repair stations.

6. <u>Neighborhood Enhancement</u>

Providing a pedestrian access network to link areas of the Project site encourages people to walk instead of drive. The project should ensure a maximum commitment to providing pedestrian network improvements within the project and to off-site connections.

B. <u>Corrective Measures (Non-CEQA Analysis)</u>

In the transportation analysis dated March 7, 2019 by LLG, the analysis included a review of current and potential future operational deficiencies that may result from the project. To address these deficiencies, the applicant should be required to implement the following corrective measures.

1. Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Plan

In addition to and in coordination with the TDM strategies cited above, DOT further recommends that the project prepare and submit a TDM program to DOT for review prior to the issuance of the first building permit for this project and a final TDM program approved by DOT is required prior to the issuance of the first certificate of occupancy for the project. As recommended by the March 7, 2019 transportation analysis, the TDM program could include, but is not be limited to the following:

- An on-site Transportation Information Center (TIC) where employees, visitors, and residents can obtain information regarding public transit, ridesharing, vanpool providers, bicycle facilities, and bicycle safety;
- A Transportation Coordinator responsible for implementing, maintaining, and monitoring the TDM Program;
- If after coordination with LADOT it is determined that the project site is eligible, the project will provide space for an Integrated Mobility Hub with a bicycle share kiosk and/or parking spaces for car-share vehicles;
- Carpool/Rideshare Matching Program which would provide rideshare matching services and preferential parking for commercial employees commuting to work in employer-registered carpools;
- Transportation Subsidy which would offer discount transit passes to residents and commercial employees who do not purchase monthly automobile parking in the project site;
- Unbundled parking from the commercial leasing cost and from the housing cost;
- Convenient and secure bicycle storage within a bicycle locker, an attended cage, or a secure parking room;
- On-site lockers for employees who bicycle or use another active means of getting to work;
- Make a one-time fixed-fee contribution of \$50,000 prior to the issuance of the first certificate of occupancy for the project to the City's Bicycle Plan Trust Fund to implement bicycle improvements in the proposed project area;
- A Covenant and Agreement to ensure that the TDM program will be maintained.

2. Transportation Management Organization (TMO)

A TMO would offer similar services to those described above in the project's local TDM plan but the services would be available for the general area in which the TMO is located, would have a much wider reach and can result in much greater trip reduction

benefits. Other projects within the Arts District are taking the lead to establish and operate an Arts District TMO to promote alternative modes of travel and programs to reduce vehicle trips in the Arts District. Additionally, FASTLinkDTLA is a TMO recently established to promote alternative modes of travel and programs to reduce vehicle trips in Downtown Los Angeles.

In order to help alleviate current and future traffic congestion in the Arts District, the project proposes to fund a TMO. If an Arts District TMO will be established, the project proposes to fund the initiation of an Arts District TMO. Otherwise, if it is determined that FASTLinkDTLA can adequately serve the Arts District as well as the remainder of Downtown Los Angeles, the project proposes to fund the Arts District portion of FASTLinkDTLA. The project agrees to the following:

- Commit funding of up to \$200,000 prior to the issuance of the first certificate of occupancy for the project to cover the launch of the Arts District TMO or the Arts District portion of FASTLinkDTLA;
- Provide **up to \$25,000 per year** for nine additional years for annual dues as a charter member;
- Attend organizational meetings and provide traffic demand data to the TMO;
- Require commercial space tenants of all leases executed by the project as a landlord to participate in the TMO and that all subleases contain this same provision;
- Elect to provide some or all of the services required by this TDM Program through the TMO, in consultation with the City's Transportation Demand Program.

3. Traffic Monitoring Plan for the TDM Program

In order to assess the project's actual trip generation and any subsequent TDM Plan (if deemed necessary), a traffic monitoring plan will be implemented once the project is built and occupied to at least 80%. A traffic monitoring plan will consist of counting the number of automobiles coming from and going to the two project driveways during both a.m. and p.m. peak hours. This will inform the City whether the project is generating traffic at levels identified in this study.

The monitoring program should be conducted annually to ensure compliance for a period of three years. If the project is found to not conform to the trip reduction targets summarized in **Attachment D**, the project will have an additional year to meet the trip reduction levels. If the project continues to not meet the TDM goals, the City and project staff will coordinate on implementing further TDM Strategies. The final traffic monitoring plan and TDM Plan will be prepared for and approved by the LADOT prior to the issuance of the first certificate of occupancy for the project.

C. Additional Requirements and Considerations

To comply with transportation and mobility goals and provisions of adopted City plans and ordinances, the applicant should be required to implement the following:

1. Parking Requirements

Parking for vehicles and bicycles will be provided onsite. The applicant should check with the Department of Building and Safety on the number of Code-required parking spaces needed for this project.

2. Highway Dedication and Street Widening Requirements

Per the new Mobility Element of the General Plan, **Mateo Street**, an Avenue III, would require a 23-foot half-width roadway within a 36-foot half-width right-of-way and **Bay Street** and **Sacramento Street**, Collector Streets, would require a 20-foot half-width roadway within a 33-foot half-width right-of-way. The applicant should check with BOE's Land Development Group to determine if there are any other applicable highway dedication, street widening and/or sidewalk requirements for this project.

3. Project Access and Circulation

The conceptual site plan for the project (see Attachment A) is acceptable to DOT. However, the review of this study does not constitute approval of the dimensions for any new proposed driveway. This requires separate review and approval and should be coordinated with DOT's Citywide Planning Coordination Section (201 North Figueroa Street, 5th Floor, Room 550, at 213-482-7024). In order to minimize and prevent last minute building design changes, the applicant should contact DOT for driveway width and internal circulation requirements prior to the commencement of building or parking layout design.

4. Worksite Traffic Control Requirements

DOT recommends that a construction work site traffic control plan be submitted to DOT's Citywide Temporary Traffic Control Section or Permit Plan Review Section for review and approval prior to the start of any construction work. Refer to http://ladot.lacity.org/what-we-do/plan-review to determine which section to coordinate review of the work site traffic control plan. The plan should show the location of any roadway or sidewalk closures, traffic detours, haul routes, hours of operation, protective devices, warning signs and access to abutting properties. DOT also recommends that all construction related truck traffic be restricted to off-peak hours to the extent feasible.

5. <u>Development Review Fees</u>

Section 19.15 of the LAMC identifies specific fees for traffic study review, condition clearance, and permit issuance. The applicant shall comply with any applicable fees per this ordinance.

If you have any questions, please contact Eileen Hunt of my staff at (213) 972-8481.

Attachments

K:\Letters\2019\CEN16-45186_1024 S Mateo MU_vmt REV_ltr.241219.docx

c: Shaylee Papadakis, Council District 14 Matthew Masuda, Central District, BOE Edward Yu, Central District, DOT Taimour Tanavoli, Case Management, DOT David Shender & Jason Shender, LLG engineers

ATTACHMENT A CEN16-45186 1024 S Mateo St



o:\0299\dwg\f2-1.dwg_02/20/2019 10:09:38 jshender llg exhibits color.ctb
CITY OF LOS ANGELES VMT CALCULATOR Version 1.0





| ue Unit | 979 Isf | 888 888 | |
|---------------|-------------------------|--|--|
| Valt | 13.9 | 79 <u>65 65</u> 90 91 69 90 | |
| Land Use Type | Retail General Retail | Hbusing Muti-Famiy Retail General Retail Retail Hgh-Tumover St-Down Restaurant Office General Office Hbusing Affordable Hbusing - Family | |

Click here to add a single custom land use type (will be included in the above list)

Daily Vehicle Trips Proposed Project 2,467 Select each section to show individual strategies Use 📈 to denote if the TDM strategy is proposed part of the project or is a mitigation strategy 542 city code parking provision for the project site 110 monthly parking cost (dollar) for the project site 402 actual parking provision for the project site **TDM Strategies** Neighborhood Enhance cost (dollar) o **Bicycle Infrastructu Commute Trip Reduct** 50 percent of employ daily parking percent of employ parking Education & Encourage Shared Mobility Parking Transit ī I <mark>1</mark>8 8 8 Proposed Prj Mitigation Proposed Prj Vitigation Proposed Prj Mitigation Proposed Prj Mitigation Proposed Prj Mitigation Price Workplace Parking **Residential Area Parking Reduce Parking Supply** Unbundle Parking Parking Cash-Out Permits 0 0 • • ۷

Analysis Results

Daily Vehicle Trips

1,959

Mitigation

With

Ð

| | es eligible | harge (dollar) es subject to priced | annual permit | | ment | ions | | e | ment | | |
|--------|-------------|--|--------------------------|---|---------------|------|-----------------------------------|---------------|-----------|----------------------------------|--|
| 17,795 | Daily VMT | Houseshold VMT per Capita | Work VMT per Employee | : | Significant V | | Household: Yes Threshold = 6.0 | 15% Below APC | Work: Yes | Threshold = 7.6 15% Below APC | |
| 14,134 | Daily VMT | Houseshold VMT per Capita | Work VMT per Employee | | /MT Impact? | : | Household: No Threshold = 6.0 | 15% Below APC | Work: No | Threshold = 7.6 15% Below APC | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |

the Miles

....

CITY OF LOS ANGELES VMT CALCULATOR Report 1: Project & Analysis Overview

Date: October 5, 2019 Project Name: 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project Project Scenario: Proposed Project Project Address: 1024 MATEO ST, 90021



| oject Information | Value Units | 0 DU | 97 DU | 0 DU | 0 Rooms | 0 Rooms | DU 6 | DU DU | DU | pportive 0 DU | 13.979 ksf | e 0.000 ksf | igstore 0.000 ksf | 0.000 ksf | 0.000 ksf | 0.000 ksf | Sit-Down 13 136 | 13.120 KST | taurant 0.000 ksf | irant 0.000 ksf | 0.000 ksf | nent Superstore 0.000 ksf | Discount 0.000 ksf | o Seats | 95 ksf | 0.000 ksf | 1 0.000 ksf | a 0.000 ksf | Self-Storage 0.000 ksf | 0 Students | | 0 Students |
|-------------------|---------------|---------------|--------------|---------|---------|---------|--------|--------|----------------------------------|-------------------|----------------|-----------------|-------------------|-------------|-----------|-------------|---------------------|-------------------|--------------------|--------------------|-------------|---------------------------|---------------------|---------------|----------------|----------------------|------------------|--------------------------|------------------------|--------------------|--------------------|------------|
| Projec | Land Use Type | Single Family | Multi Family | Housing | Hotel | Motel | Family | Senior | Attordable Housing Special Needs | Permanent Support | General Retail | Furniture Store | Pharmacy/Drugstor | Supermarket | Bank | Health Club | High-Turnover Sit-D | Retail Restaurant | Fast-Food Restaura | Quality Restaurant | Auto Repair | Home Improvement S | Free-Standing Disco | Movie Theater | General Office | Unice Medical Office | Light Industrial | Industrial Manufacturing | Warehousing/Self-S | Cole of University | SCROUL High School | |

Project and Analysis Overview 2 of 12

CITY OF LOS ANGELES VMT CALCULATOR Report 1: Project & Analysis Overview



| | | itigation | Daily Vehicle Trips Daily VMT | Household VMT per Capita | Work VMT per Employee | | | | | itigation | Impact | No | No |
|--------------|---------------------------------------|-----------|----------------------------------|-----------------------------|--------------------------|-------------------|-------------|----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------|---------------|-----------------|------------|
| ults | 460 247 | With Mi | 1,959 14,134 | 9 | 7 | mpact? | lr. | w APC Average | 0 | With Mi | VMT Threshold | Household > 6.0 | Work > 7.6 |
| Analysis Res | Total Employees: Total Population: | d Project | Daily Vehicle Trips Daily VMT | Household VMT per Capita | Work VMT per Employee | Significant VMT I | APC: Centro | Impact Threshold: 15% Belo | Household = 6 Work = 7.6 | d Project | Impact | Yes | Yes |
| | | Propose | 2,467 17,795 | 7.6 | 8.9 | | | | | Propose | VMT Threshold | Household > 6.0 | Work > 7.6 |

CITY OF LOS ANGELES VMT CALCULATOR Report 2: TDM Inputs

Project Name: 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project Project Address: 1024 MATEO ST, 90021 **Project Scenario: Proposed Project** Date: October 5, 2019



| | T | M Strategy Inpu | uts | |
|---------|-------------------------------------|---|------------------|-------------|
| Strate | egy Type | Description | Proposed Project | Mitigations |
| | Doduco narking sumby | City code parking provision (spaces) | 0 | 542 |
| | Neutice parking suppry | Actual parking provision (spaces) | 0 | 402 |
| | Unbundle parking | Monthly cost for parking (\$) | \$110 | \$110 |
| Parking | Parking cash-out | Employees eligible (%) | 0% | %0 |
| i. | Price workplace | Daily parking charge (\$) | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |
| | parking | Employees subject to priced parking (%) | %0 | 0% |
| | Residential area parking permits | Cost of annual permit (\$) | \$0 | \$0 |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | 5) | cont. on following page | (a | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |

Report 2: TDM Inputs 4 of 12

Report 2: TDM Inputs

Project Name: 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project Project Address: 1024 MATEO ST, 90021 **Project Scenario: Proposed Project** Date: October 5, 2019



| | (chuch) |
|----------|-----------|
| Ctratedy | JUI ALCEY |
| NUT | |

| Strate | gy Type | Description | Proposed Project | Mitigations |
|---------------|----------------------|---|------------------|-------------|
| | | Reduction in | | |
| | | headways (increase | 0% | %0 |
| | | in frequency) (%) | | |
| | | Existing transit mode | | |
| | Reduce transit | share (as a percent | 200 | /00/ |
| | headways | of total daily trips) | 0.20 | 070 |
| | | (%) | | |
| | | Lines within project | | |
| | | site improved I<50%. | 0 | 0 |
| | | >====================================== | • | , |
| | | lovor- | | |
| | | Degree of | | |
| Transit | | implementation | 0 | 0 |
| | Implement | (low, medium, high) | | |
| | neighborhood shuttle | | | |
| | | Employees and | /00 | 207 |
| | | residents eligible (%) | 0% | 0% |
| | | | | |
| | | Employees and | %0 | 100% |
| | | residents eligible (%) | 22 | 2001 |
| | Transit subsidies | Amount of transit | | |
| | | subsidy per | | |
| | | passenger (daily | \$0.00 | ç7.0ç |
| | | equivalent) (\$) | | |
| | Voluntary travel | Employees and | | |
| | behavior change | residents | 100% | 100% |
| Education & | program | participating (%) | | |
| Encouragement | | Employees and | | |
| 0 | Promotions and | residents | 0% | 0% |
| | marketing | narticinatina (%) | | |
| | | harrinham in 1 / n | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | 0) | cont. on following page | (| |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |

Report 2: TDM Inputs 5 of 12

CITY OF LOS ANGELES VMT CALCULATOR Report 2: TDM Inputs

Date: October 5, 2019 Project Name: 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project Project Scenario: Proposed Project Project Address: 1024 MATEO ST, 90021



TDM Strategy Inputs, Cont.

| Strate | gy Type | Description | Proposed Project | Mitigations |
|-----------------|---|--|------------------|-------------|
| | Required commute trip reduction program | Employees participating (%) | %0 | 0% |
| Commute Trip | | Degree of implementation (low, medium, high) | 0 | 0 |
| Reductions | Employer sponsored vanpool or shuttle | Employees eligible (%) | %0 | %0 |
| | | Employer size (small, medium, large) | 0 | 0 |
| | Ride-share program | Employees eligible (%) | %0 | 0% |
| | Car share | Car share project setting (Urban, Suburban, All Other) | 0 | 0 |
| Shared Mobility | Bike share | Within 600 feet of existing bike share station - OR- implementing new bike share station (Yes/No) | 0 | 0 |
| | School carpool program | Level of implementation (Low, Medium, High) | 0 | 0 |
| | C | cont. on following page | - | |

Report 2: TDM Inputs 6 of 12

Report 2: TDM Inputs



| _ |
|-------------------------|
| 2 |
| 0 |
| $\overline{\mathbf{O}}$ |
| $\mathbf{}$ |
| |
| S |
| ± |
| |
| Q |
| 2 |
| <u> </u> |
| - |
| > |
| 60 |
| (L) |
| 1 |
| m l |
| |
| • |
| F |
| St |
| Str |
| A Str |
| M Str |
| OM Str |
| DM Str |

| Strate | gy Type | Description | Proposed Project | Mitigations |
|----------------|--|--|------------------|---|
| | Implement/Improve on-street bicycle facility | Provide bicycle facility along site (Yes/No) | 0 | 0 |
| Bicycle | Bike parking per LAMC | Meets City Bike Parking Code (Yes/No) | 0 | Yes |
| Intrastructure | Include secure bike parking and showers | Includes indoor bike parking/lockers, showers, & repair station (Yes/No) | 0 | Yes |
| Neighborhood | Traffic calming improvements | Streets with traffic calming improvements (%) Intersections with traffic calming improvements (%) | %0 | 0% 0% |
| Ennancement | Pedestrian network improvements | Included (within project and connecting off- site/within project only) | 0 | within project and connecting off-site |

| OR | |
|------|--|
| ATC | |
| CUL | |
| SAL(| |
| | |
| 2 | |
| LES | |
| IGE | |
| AN | |
| LOS | |
| OF | |
| ₹ | |
| J | |

Report 3: TDM Outputs

Proje

Date: October 5, 2019 Project Name: 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project Project Scenario: Proposed Project Project Address: 1024 MATEO ST, 90021



TDM Adjustments by Trip Purpose & Strategy

| | | | | | | Place type | : Compact | Infill | | | | | | |
|----------------------------|--|----------|-----------|----------|-----------|------------|------------|----------|------------|----------|-------------|----------|-------------|--|
| | | Home B | ased Work | Home B | ased Work | Home B | ased Other | Home Bu | ised Other | Non-Home | Based Other | Non-Home | Based Other | |
| | _ | Prod | luction | Atti | raction | Prod | luction | Attr | action | Prod | uction | Attr | action | Source |
| | | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | |
| | Reduce parking supply | %0 | 13% | %0 | 13% | %0 | 13% | %0 | 13% | %0 | 13% | %0 | 13% | |
| | Unbundle parking | 13% | 13% | %0 | %0 | 13% | 13% | 9%0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | |
| Parking | Parking cash-out | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | Appendix B, Parking sections |
| | Price workplace parking | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | 1-6 |
| | Residential area parking permits | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | |
| | Reduce transit headways | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | |
| Transit | Implement neighborhood shuttle | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | 960 | Appendix b, Transit sections 1 3 |
| | Transit subsidies | %0 | 6% | %0 | 6% | %0 | 6% | 0%0 | 6% | %0 | 6% | 0% | 6% | |
| Education & | Voluntary travel behavior change program | 8% | 8% | 8% | 8% | 8% | 8% | 8% | 8% | 8% | 8% | 8% | 8% | Appendix B, Education & |
| Encouragement | Promotions and marketing | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | Encouragement sections 1 - 2 |
| | Required commute trip reduction program | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | 9%0 | Appendix B, |
| Commute Trip Reductions | Employer sponsored vanpool or shuttle | %0 | %0 | %0 | 0% | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | Commute Trip Reductions sections 1 - 4 |
| | Ride-share program | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | 0% | 0% | 9%0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 | 9%0 | |
| | Car-share | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | Appendix B, |
| Shared Mobility | Bike share | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | Shared Mobility |
| | School carpool | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | sections 1 - 3 |

Report 3: TDM Outputs 8 of 12

Report 3: TDM Outputs

Date: October 5, 2019 Project Name: 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project Project Scenario: Proposed Project Project Address: 1024 MATEO ST, 90021



| Cont. |
|-------------|
| i Strategy, |
| ø |
| Purpose |
| Q |
| Tri |
| þγ |
| Its |
| 2 |
| ž |
| \djustr |
| 4 |
| TDM |

| | Source | | Appendix B, | Bicycle Infrastructure | sections 1 - 3 | Appendix B, Neichborhood | Enhancement sections 1 - 2 |
|-------------|-----------------------|-----------|--|---------------------------|--|---------------------------------|------------------------------------|
| | Based Other action | Mitigated | 0.0% | 0.6% | 0.6% | 0.0% | 2.0% |
| | Non-Home Attro | Proposed | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| | Based Other uction | Mitigated | 0.0% | 0.6% | 0.6% | 0.0% | 2.0% |
| | Non-Home I Produ | Proposed | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| | sed Other Iction | Mitigated | 0.0% | 0.6% | 0.6% | 0.0% | 2.0% |
| nfill | Home Ba Attra | Proposed | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| Compact I | sed Other uction | Mitigated | 0.0% | 0.6% | 0.6% | 0.0% | 2.0% |
| Place type: | Home Ba Prodi | Proposed | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| | ised Work action | Mitigated | 0.0% | 0.6% | 0.6% | 0.0% | 2.0% |
| | Home Bo Attro | Proposed | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| | ised Work uction | Mitigated | 0.0% | 0.6% | 0.6% | 0.0% | 2.0% |
| | Home Bo Prod | Proposed | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% |
| | | | Implement/Improve on-street bicycle facility | Bike parking per LAMC | Include secure bike parking and showers | Traffic calming improvements | Pedestrian network improvements |
| | | | | Bicycle Infrastructure | | Neighborhood | Enhancement |

| | | | | Final Com | bined & | Maximun | TDM Efi | fect | | | | |
|----------|-------------------|--------------------|--------------------|-------------------|-------------------|---------------------|--------------------|--------------------|---------------------|---------------------|----------------------|---------------------|
| | Home Ba: Produ | sed Work Iction | Home Bas Attrau | sed Work stion | Home Ba: Produ | sed Other Iction | Home Bas Attrau | sed Other ction | Non-Home E Produ | ased Other ction | Non-Home E Attrac | ased Other ction |
| | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated |
| COMBINED | 7000 | 702 C | 700 | 7020 | 7000 | 7020 | 00/ | 7020 | 700 | 7020 | 00/ | TOLC |
| TOTAL | ×0.70 | 0//c | 0/0 | 0/17 | ×0.7 | 0//C | 0/0 | 0/17 | 0 20 | 0/ /7 | 0/0 | 0/17 |
| MAX. TDM | /000 | /0L C | /00/ | 1020 | /000 | /0LC | 00/ | 1020 | /00/ | 1020 | 00/ | /OLC |
| EFFECT | ×0.70 | 0//C | 070 | 0/17 | ×02 | %/c | 0/0 | 0/17 | 0 20 | 0/17 | 070 | 0/17 |

| = Mini | mum (X%, 1- (1-[a])*(1-[b]) | |
|--------|-----------------------------|-----|
| | where: X%= | |
| | urban center | 75% |
| PLACE | urban | 75% |
| TYPE | compact infill | 40% |
| MAX: | suburban center | 20% |
| | suburban | 15% |

Report 3: TDM Outputs 9 of 12

| Report 4: MXD Metho 10 of 12 |
|---------------------------------|
|---------------------------------|

| e |
|----------------------|
| 0 |
| Emp |
| Per |
| ø |
| pita |
| G |
| L |
| ~ |
| γPe |
| ogy Pe |
| dology Pe |
| odology Pe |
| ethodology Pe |
| Methodology P6 |
| MT Methodology P6 |
|) VMT Methodology Pe |

| Ð |
|----------|
| > |
| 0 |
| |
| <u> </u> |
| Е |
| шī. |
| - |
| 5 |
| õ |
| _ |
| õ |
| - |
| 10 |
| Ξ. |
| 2 |
| σ |
| O |
| 5 |
| Ð |
| Δ |
| > |
| 60 |
| Õ |
| - |
| 0 |
| σ |
| 0 |
| - |
| H |
| Ē |
| > |
| |
| |
| 5 |
| |
| < |
| 5 |

|)e |
|-------------|
| 6 |
| du |
| Ē |
| Per |
| જ |
| Capita |
| Per |
| ogy |
| opo |
| leth |
| 2 |
| M |
| 0 |

|)e |
|---------|
| <u></u> |
| du |
| Ш |
| Per |
| જ |
| Capita |
| Per |
| logy |
| poqo |
| Met |
| VMT |
| |

| | 0/7:07 | 101 | 47400 | ~~~~~ | 5 |
|--------------------------|--------|-----|-------|--------|-----|
| a Based Other Production | -8.0% | 408 | 3,229 | -26.9% | 324 |
| ed Work Attraction | -8.0% | 483 | 4,083 | -26.9% | 384 |
| ed Other Attraction | -8.0% | 823 | 5,430 | -26.9% | 654 |
| e Based Other Attraction | -8.0% | 440 | 3,180 | -26.9% | 349 |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |

| | | Proposed Project | | Project v | with Mitigation Me | sasures |
|---------------------------------|----------------|------------------|-------------|----------------|--------------------|---------------|
| | TDM Adjustment | Project Trips | Project VMT | TDM Adjustment | Mitigated Trips | Mitigated VMT |
| Home Based Work Production | -20.1% | 82 | 613 | -36.6% | 65 | 487 |
| Home Based Other Production | -20.1% | 231 | 1,259 | -36.6% | 184 | 1,000 |
| Non-Home Based Other Production | -8.0% | 408 | 3,229 | -26.9% | 324 | 2,565 |
| Home-Based Work Attraction | -8.0% | 483 | 4,083 | -26.9% | 384 | 3,243 |
| Home-Based Other Attraction | -8.0% | 823 | 5,430 | -26.9% | 654 | 4,313 |
| Non-Home Based Other Attraction | -8.0% | 440 | 3,180 | -26.9% | 349 | 2,526 |
| | | | | | | |

Report 4: MXD Methodology

Project Name: 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project Project Address: 1024 MATEO ST, 90021 Project Scenario: Proposed Project Date: October 5, 2019



Version 1.0

MXD VMT

Unadjusted VMT 1,067 2,081 3,931 5,641 7,737 3,868

Average Trip Length

MXD Trips

MXD Adjustment

Unadjusted Trips

-28.5%

102

290 443

-24.3% -10.8% -21.4% -23.7% -10.7%

525 895 478

1,173 668 383 497 143

Non-Home Based Other Production

Home Based Other Production Home Based Work Production

535

Non-Home Based Other Attraction

Home-Based Other Attraction Home-Based Work Attraction

MXD Methodology - Existing Without TDM

7.5 5.4 3,510 4,438 5,902

7.9 8.4 6.6 3,457

7.2

MXD Methodology with TDM Measures

1,577

767

ATTACHMENT C CEN16-45186_1024 S Mateo St

Table 9-1 SUMMARY OF VOLUME TO CAPACITY RATIOS AND LEVELS OF SERVICE AM AND PM PEAK HOURS

| L | | | Π | ┢ | | 2 | | F | [3] | ┢ | | ₹ | | ┢ | | 5 | | ł | | 9 | | 8-Feb-19 |
|----|---------------------------------------|----------|-------------------------|--------|-------------------------------------|------------|------------------|----------|------------------------------------|------------|-----------------------------------|--------|-------------------|---------|--------------------------------|-------|-------------|---------------|----------------------------------|------------|------------------|------------|
| | | PEAK | YEAR 2019 EXISTING | | YEAR 2019 EXISTING W/ PROJECT | 5 | ANGE S V/C IN | IGNIF. | YEAR 2023 FUTURE PRE PROJECT | | YEAR 2023 FUTURE V/ PROJECT | GE | ANGE SIG | NIF. | YEAR 202 W/ PROJEC + TDM | | HANGE A | MITI- ATED | VEAR 20 W/ PROJE + TDM & T | NO CT | HANGE V/C (| MITI- |
| ž | 0. INTERSECTION | HOUR | V/C D | 0S | V/C LA | 2 8 | 2)-(1)] | [a] | V/C L(| ^ 80 | //C 1.0 |)S [(4 |)-(3)] [a | - | V/C L | OS I(| (5)-(3) | | V/C | LOS | [(6)-(3)] | |
| - | Central Avenue / 7th Street | AM PM | 0.573 0.617 | AB | 0.576 J | 8 (| 0.003 | ON ON | 0.961 H | <u>и</u> н | 0.965 E 1.032 F | 00 | .004 N 005 N | 00 | 0.964 1.032 | E E | 0.003 | N/A N/A | 0.954 1.022 | н | -0.007 | N/A N/A |
| 17 | 2 Alameda Street / 6th Street | AM PM | 0.566 0.618 | A B | 0.569 1 | 8 V | 0.003 | ON NO | 1.058 ł 1.343 ł | <u> </u> | 1.061 F 1.346 F | 00 | 003 N | 00 | 1.060 1.345 | 44 | 0.002 | N/A N/A | 1.050 | <u>н</u> н | -0.008 | N/A N/A |
| 3 | Alameda Street / 7th Street | AM PM | 0.663 | BB | 0.666] 0.664] | 88 | 0.003 | ON ON | 1.260 H 1.430 F | <u> </u> | 1.270 F 1.440 F | 00 | 010 YI 010 YI | ES S | 1.267 1.437 | 44 | 0.007 | YES | 1.257 1.427 | H H | -0.003 | YES |
| 4 | Alameda Street / 8th Street | AM PM | 0.3 <i>9</i> 3 0.329 | A | 0.331 |) V V | 0.000 | ON N | 0.593 A | • • • | 0.593 A 0.583 A | 00 | 000 N 002 N | 00 | 0.593 0.583 | A A | 0.000 | N/A N/A | 0.583 0.573 | A | -0.010 -0.008 | N/A N/A |
| S | Alameda Street / Olympic Boulevard | AM PM | 0.685 | DB | 0.696 1 0.849 1 | 80 | 0.011 | ON ON | 1.047 H 1.189 F | <u> </u> | 1.053 F | 00 | 000 N 011 YI | 0 SH | 1.051 1.197 | 44 | 0.005 | N/A YES | 1.041 | н Ц | -0.005 | N/A YES |
| 9 | 5 Mateo Street / 6th Street | AM PM | 0.383 0.356 | A A | 0.366 | ~ ~ | 0.003 | ON NO | 0.823 I 0.907 F | 0 11 | 0.827 D 0.913 E | 0.0 | 004 N 006 N | 00 | 0.826 0.911 | ED | 0.003 | N/A N/A | 0.816 0.901 | DE | -0.007 | N/A N/A |
| 6 | Mateo Street / 7th Street | AM PM | 0.414 0.486 | A A | 0.428 |)) V V | 0.014 | 0N NO | 0.868 I 1.185 F | 0 - | 0.891 D | 0.0 | .023 YI 024 YI | S S | 0.885 1.203 | E D | 0.017 | YES NO | 0.875 1.193 | DF | 0.007 | YES |
| * | Mateo Street/ Olympic Boulevard | AM PM | 0.493 0.382 | ٩V | 0.507 | V V | 0.014 0.007 | ON NO | 0.605 E 0.511 A | 84 | 0.619 B 0.521 A | 00 | 014 N 010 N | 00 | 0.615 0.517 | B | 0.011 0.007 | N/A N/A | 0.605 | AB | 0.001-0.003 | N/A N/A |

LLG Ref. 5-16-0299-1 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project

¥

LINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers

l

Table 9-1 (Continued) SUMMARY OF VOLUME TO CAPACITY RATIOS AND LEVELS OF SERVICE AM AND PM PEAK HOURS

| 28-Feb-19 | | | -ILIM | GATED | | N/A N/A | N/A N/A | N/A N/N | N/A N/A |
|-----------|-----|---------------|---------|-------------------|----------------|---------------------------------|---------------------------------|------------------------------------|--|
| | 1 | | CHANGE | V/C | (2)-(3) | -0.009 | -0.004 | -0.006 | -0.006 -0.004 |
| | [6 | 2023 | IECT | OWL | LOS | L L | FD | EC | <u>ы</u> н |
| | | YEARS | W/ PRO. | + TDM & | V/C | 1.037 | 1.009 0.888 | 0.755 0.906 | 1.033 |
| | | | -ILIM | GATED | | N/A N/A | N/A N/A | N/A N/A | N/A N/A |
| | 5] | | CHANGE | V/C | [(5)-(3)] | 0.001 0.005 | 0.006 | 0.004 0.006 | 0.004 0.006 |
| | | 2023 | JECT | M | LOS | F | F D | C E | 14 fz |
| | | YEAR | W/ PRO | fL + | V/C | 1.047 1.388 | 1.019 0.898 | 0.765 0.916 | 1.043 1.056 |
| | | | SIGNIF. | IMPACT | [a] | ON NO | ON NO | ON NO | ON N |
| | [4] | | CHANGE | V/C | [(4)-(3)] | 0.002 0.007 | 0.008 | 0.006 0.008 | 0.005 |
| | | 2023 | RE | VIECT | LOS | F | F D | C E | 14 fz |
| | | YEAR | FUT | W/ PRO | V/C | 1.048 1.391 | 1.021 0.900 | 0.767 0.918 | 1.045 |
| | | 2023 | E PRE- | ECT | LOS | F | F D | EC | 12 (24 |
| | [3] | YEAR | FUTUR | PROJ | V/C | 1.046 1.384 | 1.013 0.892 | 0.761 | 1.040 1.049 |
| | | | SIGNIF. | SIGNIF. IMPACT | | ON NO | 0N NO | ON NO | N N |
| | [2] | | CHANGE | V/C | (1)-(2) | 0.002 0.006 | 0.004 | 0.005 | 0.006 |
| | | 2019 | ING | DIECT | ros | AB | AB | AB | DC |
| | | YEAR | EXISI | W/ PRC | V/C | 0.426 0.681 | 0.518 0.614 | 0.570 0.683 | 0.782 0.836 |
| | | | 2019 | DNL | LOS | A B | A B | A B | DC |
| | Ξ | YEAR EXIST | | V/C | 0.424 0.675 | 0.514 0.606 | 0.565 0.674 | 0.776 0.828 | |
| | | | | PEAK | HOUR | MA MA | MA PM | MA MA | AM PM |
| | | | | | INTERSECTION | Santa Fe Avenue / 7th Street | Santa Fe Avenue / 8th Street | Santa Fe Avenue / Porter Street | Santa Fe Avenue / Olympic Boulevard |
| | | | | 5 | NO. | 6 | 10 | п | 12 |

[a] According to LADOTs "Transportation Impact Study Guidelines", December 2016, a transportation impact on an intersection shall be deemed significant in accordance with the following table:

| | Project Related Increase in v/c | equal to or greater than 0.040 | equal to or greater than 0.020 | equal to or greater than 0.010 |
|--------------------------------------|---------------------------------|--------------------------------|--------------------------------|--------------------------------|
| | LOS | U | D | E, F |
| accordance with the following table: | Final v/c | 0.701 - 0.800 | 0.801 - 0.900 | > 0.901 |

LLG Ref. 5-16-0299-1 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project

l

| Table 10-1 |
|---------------------------------------|
| PROJECT TRIP GENERATION [1] |
| WITH TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGEMENT |

| | | | | | | | | 07-Mar-19 |
|--------------------------------------|---------------|---------------|------------|------------|--------------------|-------------|------------|-------------|
| | | DAILY | AM | PEAK HO | OUR | PM | PEAK HO | DUR |
| | | TRIP ENDS [2] | V | OLUMES | [2] | VC | OLUMES | [2] |
| LAND USE | SIZE | VOLUMES | IN | OUT | TOTAL | IN | OUT | TOTAL |
| Proposed Project | | | | | | | | |
| Live-Work Apartments [3] | 106 DU | 776 | 11 | 38 | 49 | 37 | 22 | 59 |
| Live-Work Office [4] | 2,250 GSF | 22 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 0 | 3 | 3 |
| General Office [4] | 92,740 GSF | 903 | 93 | 15 | 108 | 17 | 90 | 107 |
| Restaurant [5] | 13,126 GSF | 1,472 | 72 | 58 | 130 | 79 | 49 | 128 |
| Retail [6] | 13,979 GLSF | 528 | 8 | 5 | 13 | 25 | 28 | 53 |
| Subtotal | | 3,701 | 187 | 116 | 303 | 158 | 192 | 350 |
| Transit Trips [7] | | | | | | | | |
| Live-Work Apartments (5%) | | (39) | (1) | (2) | (3) | (2) | (1) | (3) |
| Live-Work Office (5%) | | (1) | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| General Office (5%) | | (45) | (5) | (1) | (6) | (1) | (5) | (6) |
| Restaurant (5%) | | (74) | (4) | (3) | (7) | (4) | (2) | (6) |
| Retail (5%) | | (26) | 0 | 0 | 0 | (1) | (1) | (2) |
| Subtotal | | (185) | (10) | (6) | (16) | (8) | (9) | (17) |
| Internal Capture [8] | | | | | | | | |
| Live-Work Apartments (20%) | | (147) | (2) | (7) | (9) | (7) | (4) | (11) |
| Live-Work Office (20%) | | - | - | - | - | - | - | - |
| General Office (20%) | | (172) | (18) | (3) | (21) | (3) | (17) | (20) |
| Restaurant (20%) | | (280) | (14) | (11) | (25) | (15) | (9) | (24) |
| Retail (20%) | | <u>(100)</u> | <u>(2)</u> | <u>(1)</u> | <u>(3)</u> | <u>(5)</u> | <u>(5)</u> | <u>(10)</u> |
| Subtotal | | (699) | (36) | (22) | (58) | (30) | (35) | (65) |
| Subtotal Project Driveway Trips | | 2,817 | 141 | 88 | 229 | 120 | 148 | 268 |
| Proposed Pass-By Trips [9] | | | | | | | | |
| Restaurant (20%) | | (224) | (11) | (9) | (20) | (12) | (8) | (20) |
| Retail (50%) | | (201) | (3) | (2) | (5) | <u>(10)</u> | (11) | (21) |
| Subtotal | | (425) | (14) | (11) | (25) | (22) | (19) | (41) |
| PROPOSED PROJECT WITHOUT TDM | | 2,392 | 127 | 77 | 204 | <u>98</u> | 129 | 227 |
| Trip Reduction due to TDM (20%) [10] | | (478) | (25) | (15) | (40) | (20) | (26) | (46) |
| PROPOSED PROJECT WITH TDM | | 1,914 | 102 | 62 | 164 | 78 | 103 | 181 |
| Existing Site | | | | | | | | |
| Bus Depot [11], [12] | (16,960) GLSF | (530) | (25) | (13) | <mark>(</mark> 38) | (25) | (28) | (53) |
| NET TRIPS (EXISTING USE) | | (530) | (25) | (13) | (38) | (25) | (28) | (53) |
| NET DIFFERENCE | | 1,384 | 77 | 49 | 126 | 53 | 75 | 128 |

- [1] Source: ITE "Trip Generation Manual", 10th Edition, 2017.
- [2] Trips are one-way traffic movements, entering or leaving.
- [3] ITE Land Use Code 220 (Multifamily Housing [Low-Rise]) trip generation average rates.
 Daily Trip Rate: 7.32 trips/dwelling units; 50% inbound/50% outbound
 - AM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 0.46 trips/dwelling unit; 23% inbound/77% outbound
 PM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 0.56 trips/dwelling unit; 63% inbound/37% outbound
- [4] ITE Land Use Code 710 (General Office Building) trip generation average rates.
- [4] TTE Land Use Code /10 (General Office Building) trip generation average rates.
 Daily Trip Rate: 9.74 trips/1,000 SF; 50% inbound/50% outbound
 AM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 1.16 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 86% inbound/14% outbound
 PM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 1.15 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 16% inbound/84% outbound
- [5] ITE Land Use Code 932 (High-Turnover [Sit-Down] Restaurant) trip generation average rates.
 Daily Trip Rate: 112.18 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 50% inbound/50% outbound
- AM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 9.94 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 55% inbound/45% outbound
 PM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 9.77 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 62% inbound/38% outbound
- [6] ITE Land Use Code 820 (Shopping Center) trip generation average rates.
- Dill'E Land Use Code 820 (Shopping Center) trip generation average rates.
 Daily Trip Rate: 37.75 trips/1,000 SF of leasable floor area; 50% inbound/50% outbound
 - AM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 0.94 trips/1,000 SF of leasable floor area; 62% inbound/38% outbound
 - PM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 3.81 trips/1,000 SF of leasable floor area; 48% inbound/52% outbound
- [7] The transit reduction is based on the site's proximity to the Metro Gold Line and various bus lines as well as the land use characteristics of the project.
- [8] The internal capture reduction for the project is based on the synergy between all the land uses provided within the project site.
- [9] ITE Land Use Code 942 (Automobile Care Center) trip generation average rates.
 - Daily Trip Rate: No average trip rates available.
 - AM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 2.25 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 66% inbound/34% outbound
 - PM Peak Hour Trip Rate: 3.11 trips/1,000 SF of floor area; 48% inbound/52% outbound
- [10] Daily trip ends estimated based on the assumption that the higher of the AM or PM total peak hour traffic volume typically represents 10 percent of the daily traffic volume.
- [11] Pass-by trips are made as intermediate stops on the way from an origin to a primary trip destination without a route diversion. Pass-by trips are attracted from traffic passing the site on an adjacent street or roadway that offers direct access to the site. The trip reduction for pass-by trips has been applied to the commercial component of the project based on the LADOT Transportation Impact Study Guidelines, December 2016 for High Turnover Restaurant and Shopping Center less than 50,000 SF.

Appendix G-3: VMT Analysis

Memorandum

| Subject: | Traffic Analysis Addendum for the Pro South Mateo Street – Vehicle Miles Tra | posed Mix veled Ana | xed-Use Project 1024 lysis | Linsc |
|----------|---|------------------------|-------------------------------|-----------------------------|
| From: | David S. Shender, P.E. Linscott, Law & Greenspan, Engineers | LLG Ref: | 5-16-0299-1 | Traffic Transı Parkin |
| To: | Clare Bronowski Glaser Weil | Date: | October 5, 2019 | Engine |

This memorandum has been prepared by Linscott, Law & Greenspan, Engineers (LLG) to provide an addendum traffic analysis for the proposed mixed-use project at 1024 South Mateo Street ("the Project") in the Arts District of the City of Los Angeles. LLG previously prepared the traffic impact study dated March 7, 2019 (the "approved traffic study") for this Project based on the Los Angeles Department of Transportation (LADOT) *Transportation Impact Study Guidelines*, December 2016 (the "2016 Guidelines"). The findings of the approved traffic assessment were confirmed based on the LADOT traffic assessment letter dated April 25, 2019. The approved traffic study concluded that based on the 2016 Guidelines, the Project – with incorporation of recommended mitigation measures – would not create a significant impact at any of the 12 study intersections analyzed in the approved traffic study.

In September 2013, the Governor's Office signed Senate Bill (SB) 743, starting a process that fundamentally changes the way transportation impact analysis is conducted under the California Environmental Quality Act. Within the State's CEQA Guidelines, these changes include the elimination of auto delay, Level of Service (LOS), and similar measurements of vehicular roadway capacity and traffic congestion as the basis for determining significant traffic impacts. SB 743 identifies Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) as the most appropriate CEQA transportation metric, along with the elimination of auto delay/LOS for CEQA purposes statewide. The justification for this paradigm shift is that auto delay/LOS impacts lead to improvements that increase roadway capacity and therefore induce more traffic and greenhouse gas emissions.

In July 2019, the Los Angeles City Council formally adopted VMT as the criteria for determining transportation impacts of development projects. In conjunction with the adoption of VMT, LADOT issued a revised *Transportation Assessment Guidelines* document dated July 2019 (the "2019 Guidelines"). Further, LADOT issued a memorandum dated August 9, 2019 stating that while traffic studies prepared and approved under the 2016 Guidelines will still be honored, it recommends that these projects also evaluate VMT as part of their transportation analysis. Accordingly, LLG has prepared this addendum traffic analysis to provide a VMT analysis for the Project.

LINSCOTT LAW & GREENSPAN

engineers

Engineers & Planners Traffic Transportation Parking

Linscott, Law & Greenspan, Engineers

20931 Burbank Boulevard Suite C Woodland Hills, CA 91367 818.835.8648 T 818.835.8649 F www.llgengineers.com

Pasadena Irvine San Diego Woodland Hills

VMT Calculation

The Project proposes a mixed-use development consisting of 97 market-rate apartment units, nine (9) affordable family apartment units, 92,740 square feet of general office floor area, 13,126 square feet of restaurant floor area, and 13,979 square feet of retail floor area. The Project proposes to provide 402 vehicle parking spaces on-site.

A VMT calculation has been prepared for the Project using the LADOT VMT Calculator. The results are contained within *Appendix A*.

Household VMT

As shown in *Appendix A*, the Household VMT is calculated to be 7.7 miles per Capita. The threshold of significance applicable to the Project (located in an area under the jurisdiction of the City's Central Area Planning Commission) is 6.0 miles per Capita. Therefore, prior to consideration of potential mitigation measures, the Project's Household VMT would be calculated to have a significant impact. The Project proposes to implement transportation demand (TDM) strategies, which are described below, to reduce the Project's Household VMT to 6.0 miles, which matches the maximum allowed per Capita VMT. Therefore, the Project's Household VMT is considered to be less than significant.

Work VMT

As shown in *Appendix A*, the Work VMT is calculated to be 8.9 miles per Employee. The threshold of significance applicable to the Project (based on its location in the City's Central Area Planning Commission) is 7.6 miles per Employee. Therefore, prior to consideration of potential mitigation measures, the Project's Work VMT would be calculated to have a significant impact. The Project proposes to implement TDM strategies, which are described below, to reduce the Project's Work VMT to 7.0 miles, which is less than the maximum allowed per Employee VMT. Therefore, the Project's Work VMT is considered to be less than significant.

Summary of TDM Strategies

As outlined in the data sheets from the VMT Calculator provided in *Appendix A*, the VMT calculation incorporates TDM strategies, both as project features and mitigation measures. The TDM strategies are listed in Table 2.2-2 of the 2019 Guidelines. The following TDM strategies will be included as part of the Project:

- Reduce Parking Supply
- Unbundle Parking
- Transit Subsidies
- Voluntary Travel Behavior Change Program
- Include Bike Parking per Los Angeles Municipal Code (LAMC)
- Include Secure Bike Parking and Showers
- Pedestrian Network Improvements

Further discussion of these TDM strategies are provided in the following paragraphs.

Reduce Parking Supply

Section 12.21A4 of the LAMC provides the following off-street parking rates applicable to the Project:

| • | Studio Units: | 30 units x 1 space per unit; |
|---|--------------------|---|
| • | One Bedroom Units: | 25 units x 1.5 spaces per unit; |
| • | Two Bedroom Units: | 51 units x 2 spaces per unit; |
| • | Retail Area: | 13,979 s.f. x 1 space per 250 s.f.; |
| • | Restaurant Area: | 13,126 s.f. x 1 space per 100 s.f.; and |
| • | Office Area: | 97,740 s.f. x 1 space per 500 s.f. |

Based on the above, the parking requirement for the Project per the LAMC (prior to consideration of allowable adjustments described below) would be 542 spaces. As a Project feature, the Project proposes to provide 402 parking spaces, which is less than the unadjusted LAMC requirement.

The Project is utilizing the following provisions from the Municipal Code to reduce vehicle parking on the site: LAMC 12.21 A.4 for the residential component and LAMC 12.21 A.4(x)(3) for the non-residential component. Based on the rates permitted in the Municipal Code, the parking calculation would be as follows:

| • | Studio Units: | 30 units x 1 space per unit; |
|---|--------------------|---|
| • | One Bedroom Units: | 25 units x 1 space per unit; |
| • | Two Bedroom Units: | 51 units x 2 spaces per unit; |
| • | Retail Area: | 13,979 s.f. x 1 space per 500 s.f.; |
| • | Restaurant Area: | 13,126 s.f. x 1 space per 500 s.f.; and |
| • | Office Area: | 97,740 s.f. x 1 space per 500 s.f. |

Based on the above, the minimum parking supply requirement for the Project per provisions of the Municipal Code would be 397 vehicle spaces. The Project proposes to provide 402 parking spaces (i.e., 140 spaces less than the 542 spaces required in the LAMC prior to consideration of allowable adjustments). The maximum available VMT reduction allowed in the VMT Calculator for reducing the Project parking supply is 13%.

Unbundle Parking

The strategy unbundles the parking costs from the property costs, requiring those who wish to purchase parking spaces to do so at an additional cost from the property cost. This strategy is applicable for residential components of development projects.

At the time of initial opening of the development, the Project proposes as a Project feature to charge \$110 per month per parking space, separate from the monthly cost to rent the unit. The maximum available VMT reduction allowed in the VMT Calculator for providing unbundle parking is 26% of residential-based VMT.

Transit Subsidies

This strategy involves the subsidization of transit fare for residents and employees of the project site. The subsidy must be proactively offered to each dwelling unit and/or employee at least once annually for a minimum of five years.

As a mitigation measure, the Project proposes to offer \$0.75 per day to eligible employees and residents of the Project. Eligibility is determined based on the employee or resident also not parking a vehicle on-site. The maximum available VMT reduction allowed in the VMT Calculator for providing transit subsidies is 20%.

Voluntary Travel Behavior Change Programs

This strategy involves the development of a travel behavior change program that targets individual attitudes, goals, and travel behaviors, educating participants on the impacts of their travel choices and opportunities to alter their habits. These programs often include two-way mass communication campaigns and travel feedback programs that actively engage participants as they make their travel choices in real time. This program also relies on a coordinator to manage the program and administer the tools, which may be analog (paper forms) or digital (online logging system, push notifications from an app, etc.). This strategy does not include any monitoring or reporting, but may encourage individual tracking and reporting of trips for incentives.

As a mitigation measure, the Project will assign staff to serve as the transportation management coordinator for purposes of developing a transportation program and informing Project residents and employees of available travel options. The maximum available VMT reduction allowed in the VMT Calculator for implementing a travel behavior change program is 8%.

Include Bike Parking per LAMC

Table 12.21 A.16 (a)(1)(i) of the LAMC provides the required short-term and long-term bicycle parking spaces for the residential component of the Project (106 units). The short-term bicycle parking ratios are as follows:

| • | Dwelling Units 1-25: | 1 space per 10 units (3 spaces); |
|---|-------------------------|--------------------------------------|
| • | Dwelling Units 26-100: | 1 space per 15 units (5 spaces); and |
| • | Dwelling Units 101-200: | 1 space per 20 units (1 space). |

The long-term bicycle parking ratios are as follows:

- Dwelling Units 1-25: 1 space per unit (25 spaces);
 Dwelling Units 26-100: 1 space per 1.5 units (50 spaces); and
- Dwelling Units 101-200: 1 space per 2 units (3 spaces).

Table 12.21 A.16 (a)(2) of the LAMC provides the required short-term and long-term bicycle parking spaces for the commercial components of the Project. The short-term bicycle parking ratios are as follows:

| • | Office (92,740 s.f.): | 1 space per 10,000 s.f. (9 spaces); |
|---|---------------------------|--|
| • | Restaurant (13,126 s.f.): | 1 space per 2,000 s.f. (7 spaces); and |
| • | Retail (13,979 s.f.): | 1 space per 2,000 s.f. (7 spaces). |

The long-term bicycle parking ratios are as follows:

| • | Office (92,740 s.f.): | 1 space per 5,000 s.f. (19 spaces); |
|---|---------------------------|--|
| • | Restaurant (13,126 s.f.): | 1 space per 2,000 s.f. (7 spaces); and |
| • | Retail (13,979 s.f.): | 1 space per 2,000 s.f (7 spaces). |

Based on the above, the Project is required to provide 9 short-term and 78 long-term bicycle parking spaces for the residential component. For the commercial component, the Project is required to provide 23 short-term spaces and 33 long-term spaces. As a project feature, the Project will provide the minimum number of short-term and long-term bicycle parking spaces for the residential and commercial components. The maximum available VMT reduction allowed in the VMT Calculator for providing bike parking per the LAMC is 0.625%.

Include Secure Bike Parking and Showers

This strategy involves implementation of additional end-of-trip bicycle facilities to support safe and comfortable bicycle travel by providing amenities at destinations. This strategy applies to projects that include bicycle parking on-site per LAMC. Projects providing long-term bicycle parking secured from the general public in accordance with LAMC Section 12.21A.16(d)(2) and showers in accordance with LAMC Section 91.6307 qualify for this measure.

The Project will provide short-term and long-term bicycle parking in accordance with LAMC Section 12.21A.16(d)(2). In addition, the Project will provide showers in accordance with LAMC Section 91.6307.

The maximum available VMT reduction allowed in the VMT Calculator for including secure bike parking and showers is 0.625%.

Pedestrian Network Improvements

This strategy involves implementation of pedestrian network improvements throughout and around the project site that encourage people to walk. This includes internally linking all uses within the project site with pedestrian facilities such as sidewalks, and connecting the project site to the surrounding pedestrian network.

The Project includes pedestrian access points directly to sidewalks on the adjacent streets. Specifically, a walk-in entrance to the Project's residential component is proposed via Bay Street. Additionally, a walk-in entrance to the Project's office and restaurant components is proposed via Mateo Street. Pedestrian access to the ground floor retail uses is also proposed via the adjacent streets.

The Project will improve existing sidewalks or construct new sidewalks on Bay Street, Mateo Street, and Sacramento Street adjacent to the site. The new sidewalks are a substantial improvement upon the existing condition as sidewalks currently do not exist on Bay Street and Sacramento Street adjacent to the site.

The maximum available VMT reduction allowed in the VMT Calculator for the Project providing pedestrian network improvements is 2%.

As shown in the VMT Calculator output contained within *Appendix A*, the Project, with the above-mentioned TDM strategies, is expected to generate 1,959 daily vehicle trips, a daily VMT of 14,134 miles, a Household VMT per Capita of 6.0 miles, and a Work VMT per Employee of 7.0 miles. The 2019 Guidelines state that the Household VMT per Capita threshold for the City's Central Area Planning Commission must be 6.0 miles or less. In addition, the applicable Work VMT per Employee threshold is 7.6 miles. Therefore, it can be concluded that the Project, with the implementation of the TDM strategies listed above, will not generate a significant VMT impact.

Summary

This memorandum provides an addendum to the traffic analysis prepared for the proposed mixed-use project located at 1024 South Mateo Street in the City of Los Angeles.

The conclusions of the addendum to the approved traffic study are as follows:

- LADOT previously review and approved a traffic study prepared for the Project based on the 2016 Guidelines. LADOT concluded that with implementation of the mitigation measures recommended in the traffic study, the traffic impacts of the Project would be less than significant based on the 2016 Guidelines.
- A VMT calculation was prepared to comply with SB 743 and LADOT's 2019 Guidelines. The Project proposes to implement TDM strategies as project features and mitigation measures to reduce its Household (per Capita) and Work (per Employee) VMT. Based on the threshold of significance for the City's Central Area Planning Commission, the Project will not generate a significant Household or Work VMT impact.

cc: File

CITY OF LOS ANGELES VMT CALCULATOR Version 1.0

E

F

G



Project Information



| Land Use Type | | Value | Unit | |
|---|----|--------------------------------------|---------------|--|
| Retail General Retail | - | 13.979 | ksf | |
| Housing Multi-Family Retail General Retail Retail Hgh-Turnover St-Down Restaura Office General Office Housing Affordable Housing - Family | nt | 97 13.979 13.126 94.99 9 | ম জ্র ম | |

TDM Strategies

| elect each section to show individes to the technology of the section of the technology of the strates and the strates the strates and the strates are set of the strates and the strates are strates and the strates are stra | dual strategies tegy is proposed part of the project or is a mitigation strategy | | | | | | | |
|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| A | Parking | | | | | | | |
| Reduce Parking Supply | 542 city code parking provision for the project site | | | | | | | |
| Proposed Prj 🔽 Mitigation | 402 actual parking provision for the project site | | | | | | | |
| Unbundle Parking Proposed Prj Mitigation | 110 monthly parking cost (dollar) for the project site | | | | | | | |
| Parking Cash-Out | 50 percent of employees eligible | | | | | | | |
| Price Workplace Parking | 1.00daily parking charge (dollar)50percent of employees subject to priced parking | | | | | | | |
| Residential Area Parking Permits Proposed Prj Mitigation | 200 _ cost (dollar) of annual permit | | | | | | | |
| B Transit | | | | | | | | |
| C Education & Encouragement | | | | | | | | |
| D Co | ommute Trip Reductions | | | | | | | |

Shared Mobility

Bicycle Infrastructure

Neighborhood Enhancement

Analysis Results

| Proposed Project | With Mitigation | | | | |
|---|---|--|--|--|--|
| 2,467 | 1,959 | | | | |
| Daily Vehicle Trips | Daily Vehicle Trips | | | | |
| 17,795 | 14,134 | | | | |
| Daily VMT | Daily VMT | | | | |
| 7.6 | 6.0 | | | | |
| Houseshold VMT | Houseshold VMT | | | | |
| per Capita | per Capita | | | | |
| 8.9 | 7.0 | | | | |
| Work VMT | Work VMT | | | | |
| per Employee | per Employee | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| Significant \ | /MT Impact? | | | | |
| Significant \ Household: Yes | /MT Impact? Household: No | | | | |
| Significant N Household: Yes Threshold = 6.0 | /MT Impact? Household: No Threshold = 6.0 | | | | |
| Significant V Household: Yes Threshold = 6.0 15% Below APC | /MT Impact? Household: No Threshold = 6.0 15% Below APC | | | | |
| Significant N Household: Yes Threshold = 6.0 15% Below APC Work: Yes | /MT Impact? Household: No Threshold = 6.0 15% Below APC Work: No | | | | |
| Significant N Household: Yes Threshold = 6.0 15% Below APC Work: Yes Threshold = 7.6 | /MT Impact? Household: No Threshold = 6.0 15% Below APC Work: No Threshold = 7.6 | | | | |

Click here to add a single custom land use type (will be included in the above list)

Report 1: Project & Analysis Overview



| Project Information | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------|-----------------------------|--------|----------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Land | Use Type | Value | Units | | | | | |
| | Single Family | 0 | DU | | | | | |
| | Multi Family | 97 | DU | | | | | |
| Housing | Townhouse | 0 | DU | | | | | |
| | Hotel | 0 | Rooms | | | | | |
| | Motel | 0 | Rooms | | | | | |
| | Family | 9 | DU | | | | | |
| Affordable Housing | Senior | 0 | DU | | | | | |
| Anordable Housing | Special Needs | 0 | DU | | | | | |
| | Permanent Supportive | 0 | DU | | | | | |
| | General Retail | 13.979 | ksf | | | | | |
| | Furniture Store | 0.000 | ksf | | | | | |
| | Pharmacy/Drugstore | 0.000 | ksf | | | | | |
| | Supermarket | 0.000 | ksf | | | | | |
| | Bank | 0.000 | ksf | | | | | |
| | Health Club | 0.000 | ksf | | | | | |
| | High-Turnover Sit-Down | 12 126 | lef | | | | | |
| Retail | Restaurant | 13.120 | K31 | | | | | |
| | Fast-Food Restaurant | 0.000 | ksf | | | | | |
| | Quality Restaurant | 0.000 | ksf | | | | | |
| | Auto Repair | 0.000 | ksf | | | | | |
| | Home Improvement Superstore | | kcf | | | | | |
| | nome improvement superstore | 0.000 | кој | | | | | |
| | Free-Standing Discount | 0.000 | ksf | | | | | |
| | Movie Theater | 0 | Seats | | | | | |
| Office | General Office | 95 | ksf | | | | | |
| onice | Medical Office | 0.000 | ksf | | | | | |
| | Light Industrial | 0.000 | ksf | | | | | |
| Industrial | Manufacturing | 0.000 | ksf | | | | | |
| | Warehousing/Self-Storage | 0.000 | ksf | | | | | |
| School | University | 0 | Students | | | | | |
| JUIUUI | High School | 0 | Students | | | | | |
| Other | | 0 | Trips | | | | | |

Report 1: Project & Analysis Overview



| | Analysis Results | | | | | | | |
|----------------------|----------------------------|-----------------|---------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Total Employees: 460 | | | | | | | | |
| | Total Population: 247 | | | | | | | |
| Propose | ed Project | With Mi | tigation | | | | | |
| 2,467 | Daily Vehicle Trips | 1,959 | Daily Vehicle Trips | | | | | |
| 17,795 | Daily VMT | 14,134 | Daily VMT | | | | | |
| 7.6 | Household VMT | C | Household VMT per | | | | | |
| 7.6 | per Capita | 6 | Capita | | | | | |
| | Work VMT | _ | Work VMT per | | | | | |
| 8.9 | per Employee | | Employee | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | Significant VMT | Impact? | | | | | | |
| | APC: Centr | al | | | | | | |
| | Impact Threshold: 15% Belo | ow APC Average | | | | | | |
| | Household = 6 | .0 | | | | | | |
| | Work = 7.6 | | | | | | | |
| Propose | ed Project | With Mi | itigation | | | | | |
| VMT Threshold | Impact | VMT Threshold | Impact | | | | | |
| Household > 6.0 | Yes | Household > 6.0 | No | | | | | |
| Work > 7.6 | Yes | Work > 7.6 | No | | | | | |

Report 2: TDM Inputs



| TDM Strategy Inputs | | | | | | | |
|---------------------|----------------------------------|---|------------------|-------------|--|--|--|
| Stra | tegy Type | Description | Proposed Project | Mitigations | | | |
| | Reduce parking supply | City code parking provision (spaces) | 0 | 542 | | | |
| | | Actual parking provision (spaces) | 0 | 402 | | | |
| | Unbundle parking | Monthly cost for parking (\$) | \$110 | \$110 | | | |
| Parking | Parking cash-out | Employees eligible (%) | 0% | 0% | | | |
| | Price workplace | Daily parking charge (\$) | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | | | |
| | , parking | Employees subject to priced parking (%) | 0% | 0% | | | |
| | Residential area parking permits | Cost of annual permit (\$) | \$0 | \$0 | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | ((| cont. on following page |) | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |

Report 2: TDM Inputs



| TDM Strategy Inputs, Cont. | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------------|-----------------------------|--|------------------|-------------|--|--|--|--|
| Strate | ду Туре | Description | Proposed Project | Mitigations | | | | |
| | | Reduction in headways (increase in frequency) (%) Existing transit mode | 0% | 0% | | | | |
| | Reduce transit headways | share (as a percent of total daily trips) (%) | 0% | 0% | | | | |
| | | Lines within project site improved (<50%, >=50%) | 0 | 0 | | | | |
| Transit | Implement | Degree of implementation (low, medium, high) | 0 | 0 | | | | |
| | | Employees and residents eligible (%) | 0% | 0% | | | | |
| | | Employees and residents eligible (%) | 0% | 100% | | | | |
| | Transit subsidies | Amount of transit subsidy per passenger (daily equivalent) (\$) | \$0.00 | \$0.75 | | | | |
| | Voluntary travel | Employees and | | | | | | |
| Education 9 | behavior change | residents | 100% | 100% | | | | |
| Encouragement | program | participating (%) | | | | | | |
| Encouragement | Promotions and marketing | residents participating (%) | 0% | 0% | | | | |

Report 2: TDM Inputs



| Strate | ду Туре | Description | Proposed Project | Mitigations | |
|----------------------------|---|--|------------------|-------------|--|
| | Required commute trip reduction program | Employees participating (%) | 0% | 0% | |
| Commute Trip Reductions | | Degree of implementation (low, medium, high) | 0 | 0 | |
| | Employer sponsored vanpool or shuttle | Employees eligible (%) | 0% | 0% | |
| | | Employer size (small, medium, large) | 0 | 0 | |
| | Ride-share program | Employees eligible (%) | 0% | 0% | |
| Shared Mobility | Car share | Car share project setting (Urban, Suburban, All Other) | 0 | 0 | |
| | Bike share | Within 600 feet of existing bike share station - OR- implementing new bike share station (Yes/No) | 0 | 0 | |
| | School carpool program | Level of implementation (Low, Medium, High) | 0 | 0 | |

Report 2: TDM Inputs



| TDM Strategy Inputs, Cont. | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------------|--|--|-------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Strate | еду Туре | Proposed Project | Mitigations | | | | | | |
| | Implement/Improve on-street bicycle facility | Provide bicycle facility along site (Yes/No) | 0 | 0 | | | | | |
| Bicycle Infrastructure | Bike parking per LAMC | Meets City Bike Parking Code (Yes/No) | 0 | Yes | | | | | |
| | Include secure bike parking and showers | Includes indoor bike parking/lockers, showers, & repair station (Yes/No) | 0 | Yes | | | | | |
| | Traffic calming improvements | Streets with traffic calming improvements (%) Intersections with | 0% | 0% | | | | | |
| Neighborhood | | traffic calming improvements (%) | 0% | 0% | | | | | |
| Emancement | Pedestrian network improvements | Included (within project and connecting off- site/within project only) | 0 | within project and connecting off-site | | | | | |

Report 3: TDM Outputs



| TDM Adjustments by Trip Purpose & Strategy | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|--|----------|-----------|----------|-----------|------------|------------|----------|------------|----------|-------------|----------|-------------|--|
| | | | | | | Place type | : Compact | Infill | | | | | | |
| | | Home Bo | ased Work | Ноте Во | ased Work | Ноте Во | ised Other | Ноте Ва | ased Other | Non-Home | Based Other | Non-Home | Based Other | |
| | | Prod | luction | Attro | action | Prod | uction | Attr | action | Prod | uction | Attr | action | Source |
| | | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | 1 |
| | Reduce parking supply | 0% | 13% | 0% | 13% | 0% | 13% | 0% | 13% | 0% | 13% | 0% | 13% | |
| | Unbundle parking | 13% | 13% | 0% | 0% | 13% | 13% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | |
| Parking | Parking cash-out | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | Appendix B, Parking sections |
| | Price workplace parking | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 1 - 6 |
| | Residential area parking permits | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | |
| | Reduce transit headways | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | Appendix B |
| Transit | Implement neighborhood shuttle | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | Transit sections 1 - 3 |
| | Transit subsidies | 0% | 6% | 0% | 6% | 0% | 6% | 0% | 6% | 0% | 6% | 0% | 6% | |
| Education & | Voluntary travel behavior change program | 8% | 8% | 8% | 8% | 8% | 8% | 8% | 8% | 8% | 8% | 8% | 8% | Appendix B, Education & |
| Encouragement | Promotions and marketing | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | sections 1 - 2 |
| | Required commute trip reduction program | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | Appendix B, |
| Commute Trip Reductions | Employer sponsored vanpool or shuttle | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | Commute Trip Reductions sections 1 - 4 |
| | Ride-share program | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | |
| | Car-share | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | Appendix B, |
| Shared Mobility | Bike share | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | Shared Mobility |
| | School carpool program | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | sections 1 - 3 |

Date: October 5, 2019 Project Name: 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project Project Scenario: Proposed Project Project Address: 1024 MATEO ST, 90021



Report 3: TDM Outputs

| TDM Adjustments by Trip Purpose & Strategy, Cont. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|--|-----------------|----------------------|------------------|---------------------|-----------------|----------------------|------------------|----------------------|------------------|-----------------------|------------------|-----------------------|-------------------------------|
| | | | | | | Place type | : Compact | Infill | | | | | | |
| | | Home Bo Prod | ased Work luction | Home Bo Attro | ased Work action | Home Bo Prod | used Other action | Home Ba Attro | ised Other action | Non-Home Prod | Based Other uction | Non-Home Attr | Based Other action | Source |
| | | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | |
| | Implement/Improve on-street bicycle facility | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | Appendix B, |
| Bicycle Infrastructure | Bike parking per LAMC | 0.0% | 0.6% | 0.0% | 0.6% | 0.0% | 0.6% | 0.0% | 0.6% | 0.0% | 0.6% | 0.0% | 0.6% | Bicycle Infrastructure |
| Include secur | Include secure bike parking and showers | 0.0% | 0.6% | 0.0% | 0.6% | 0.0% | 0.6% | 0.0% | 0.6% | 0.0% | 0.6% | 0.0% | 0.6% | sections 1 - 3 |
| Neighborhood | Traffic calming improvements | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | Appendix B, |
| Enhancement | Pedestrian network improvements | 0.0% | 2.0% | 0.0% | 2.0% | 0.0% | 2.0% | 0.0% | 2.0% | 0.0% | 2.0% | 0.0% | 2.0% | Enhancement sections 1 - 2 |

| | Final Combined & Maximum TDM Effect | | | | | | | | | | | |
|--------------------|-------------------------------------|-----------|-------------------------------|-----------|--------------------------------|-----------|--------------------------------|-----------|------------------------------------|-----------|------------------------------------|-----------|
| | Home Based Work Production | | Home Based Work Attraction | | Home Based Other Production | | Home Based Other Attraction | | Non-Home Based Other Production | | Non-Home Based Other Attraction | |
| | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated | Proposed | Mitigated |
| COMBINED TOTAL | 20% | 37% | 8% | 27% | 20% | 37% | 8% | 27% | 8% | 27% | 8% | 27% |
| MAX. TDM EFFECT | 20% | 37% | 8% | 27% | 20% | 37% | 8% | 27% | 8% | 27% | 8% | 27% |

| = Minimum (X%, 1- (1-[a])*(1-[b])) | | | | | | | | |
|------------------------------------|-----------------|-----|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| where: X%= | | | | | | | | |
| | urban center | 75% | | | | | | |
| PLACE | urban | 75% | | | | | | |
| ТҮРЕ | compact infill | 40% | | | | | | |
| MAX: | suburban center | 20% | | | | | | |
| | suburban | 15% | | | | | | |

Report 4: MXD Methodology

Date: October 5, 2019 Project Name: 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Project Project Scenario: Proposed Project Project Address: 1024 MATEO ST, 90021



| MXD Methodology - Existing Without TDM | | | | | | |
|--|------------------|----------------|-----------|---------------------|----------------|---------|
| | Unadjusted Trips | MXD Adjustment | MXD Trips | Average Trip Length | Unadjusted VMT | MXD VMT |
| Home Based Work Production | 143 | -28.5% | 102 | 7.5 | 1,067 | 767 |
| Home Based Other Production | 383 | -24.3% | 290 | 5.4 | 2,081 | 1,577 |
| Non-Home Based Other Production | 497 | -10.8% | 443 | 7.9 | 3,931 | 3,510 |
| Home-Based Work Attraction | 668 | -21.4% | 525 | 8.4 | 5,641 | 4,438 |
| Home-Based Other Attraction | 1,173 | -23.7% | 895 | 6.6 | 7,737 | 5,902 |
| Non-Home Based Other Attraction | 535 | -10.7% | 478 | 7.2 | 3,868 | 3,457 |

MXD Methodology with TDM Measures

| | Proposed Project | | | Project with Mitigation Measures | | |
|---------------------------------|------------------|---------------|-------------|----------------------------------|-----------------|---------------|
| | TDM Adjustment | Project Trips | Project VMT | TDM Adjustment | Mitigated Trips | Mitigated VMT |
| Home Based Work Production | -20.1% | 82 | 613 | -36.6% | 65 | 487 |
| Home Based Other Production | -20.1% | 231 | 1,259 | -36.6% | 184 | 1,000 |
| Non-Home Based Other Production | -8.0% | 408 | 3,229 | -26.9% | 324 | 2,565 |
| Home-Based Work Attraction | -8.0% | 483 | 4,083 | -26.9% | 384 | 3,243 |
| Home-Based Other Attraction | -8.0% | 823 | 5,430 | -26.9% | 654 | 4,313 |
| Non-Home Based Other Attraction | -8.0% | 440 | 3,180 | -26.9% | 349 | 2,526 |

| MXD VMT Methodology Per Capita & Per Employee | | | | | |
|---|------------------|----------------------------------|--|--|--|
| Total Population: 247 | | | | | |
| Total Employees: 460 | | | | | |
| APC: Central | | | | | |
| | Proposed Project | Project with Mitigation Measures | | | |
| Total Home Based Production VMT | 1,872 | 1,487 | | | |
| Total Home Based Work Attraction VMT | 4,083 | 3,243 | | | |
| Total Home Based VMT Per Capita | 7.6 | 6.0 | | | |
| Total Work Based VMT Per Employee | 8.9 | 7.0 | | | |

VMT Calculator User Agreement

The Los Angeles Department of Transportation (LADOT), in partnership with the Department of City Planning and Fehr & Peers, has developed the City of Los Angeles Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) Calculator to estimate project-specific daily household VMT per capita and daily work VMT per employee for land use development projects. This application, the VMT Calculator, has been provided to You, the User, to assess vehicle miles traveled (VMT) outcomes of land use projects within the City of Los Angeles. The term "City" as used below shall refer to the City of Los Angeles. The terms "City" and "Fehr & Peers" as used below shall include their respective affiliates, subconsultants, employees, and representatives.

The City is pleased to be able to provide this information to the public. The City believes that the public is most effectively served when they are provided access to the technical tools that inform the public review process of private and public land use investments. However, in using the VMT Calculator, You agree to be bound by this VMT Calculator User Agreement (this Agreement).

VMT Calculator Application for the City of Los Angeles. The City's consultant calibrated the VMT Calculator's parameters in 2018 to estimate travel patterns of locations in the City, and validated those outcomes against empirical data. However, this calibration process is limited to locations within the City, and practitioners applying the VMT Calculator outside of the City boundaries should not apply these estimates without further calibration and validation of travel patterns to verify the VMT Calculator's accuracy in estimating VMT in such other locations.

Limited License to Use. This Agreement gives You a limited, non-transferrable, non-assignable, and nonexclusive license to use and execute a copy of the VMT Calculator on a computer system owned, leased or otherwise controlled by You in Your own facilities, as set out below, provided You do not use the VMT Calculator in an unauthorized manner, and that You do not republish, copy, distribute, reverse-engineer, modify, decompile, disassemble, transfer, or sell any part of the VMT Calculator, and provided that You know and follow the terms of this Agreement. Your failure to follow the terms of this Agreement shall automatically terminate this license and Your right to use the VMT Calculator.

Ownership. You understand and acknowledge that the City owns the VMT Calculator, and shall continue to own it through Your use of it, and that no transfer of ownership of any kind is intended in allowing You to use the VMT Calculator.

Warranty Disclaimer. In spite of the efforts of the City and Fehr & Peers, some information on the VMT Calculator may not be accurate. The VMT Calculator, OUTPUTS AND ASSOCIATED DATA ARE PROVIDED "as is" WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, whether expressed, implied, statutory, or otherwise including but not limited to, the implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose.

Limitation of Liability. It is understood that the VMT Calculator is provided without charge. Neither the City nor Fehr & Peers can be responsible or liable for any information derived from its use, or for any delays, inaccuracies, incompleteness, errors or omissions arising out of your use of the VMT Calculator or with respect to the material contained in the VMT Calculator. You understand and agree that Your sole remedy against the City or Fehr & Peers for loss or damage caused by any defect or failure of the

VMT Calculator, regardless of the form of action, whether in contract, tort, including negligence, strict liability or otherwise, shall be the repair or replacement of the VMT Calculator to the extent feasible as determined solely by the City. In no event shall the City or Fehr & Peers be responsible to You or anyone else for, or have liability for any special, indirect, incidental or consequential damages (including, without limitation, damages for loss of business profits or changes to businesses costs) or lost data or downtime, however caused, and on any theory of liability from the use of, or the inability to use, the VMT Calculator, whether the data, and/or formulas contained in the VMT Calculator are provided by the City or Fehr & Peers, or another third party, even if the City or Fehr & Peers have been advised of the possibility of such damages.

This Agreement and License shall be governed by the laws of the State of California without regard to their conflicts of law provisions, and shall be effective as of the date set forth below and, unless terminated in accordance with the above or extended by written amendment to this Agreement, shall terminate on the earlier of the date that You are not making use of the VMT Calculator or one year after the beginning of Your use of the VMT Calculator.

By using the VMT Calculator, You hereby waive and release all claims, responsibilities, liabilities, actions, damages, costs, and losses, known and unknown, against the City and Fehr & Peers for Your use of the VMT Calculator.

Before making decisions using the information provided in this application, contact City LADOT staff to confirm the validity of the data provided.

Print and sign below, and submit to LADOT along with the transportation assessment Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).

| You, the User | |
|----------------|--|
| Ву: | |
| Print Name: | |
| Title: | |
| Company: | |
| Address: | |
| Phone: | |
| Email Address: | |
| Date: | |
| | |

Appendix H:

Tribal Cultural Resources Assessment
Tribal Cultural Resources Assessment for the 1024 Mateo Street Project, Los Angeles, California

MAY 2019

PREPARED FOR

Mateo Arts, LLC

PREPARED BY

SWCA Environmental Consultants

This page intentionally left blank.

Tribal Cultural Resources Assessment for the 1024 Mateo Street Project, Los Angeles, California

Prepared for

Mateo Arts, LLC 1875 Century Park East, Suite 1750 Los Angeles, CA 90067 Attn: Daniel A. Abrams and Sammi Shaaya

Prepared by

Chris Millington, M.A., RPA and Trevor Gittelhough, M.A., RPA

SWCA Environmental Consultants

51 West Dayton Street Pasadena, California 91105 (626) 240-0587 www.swca.com

SWCA Project No. 055465.00 SWCA CRRD Report No. 19-224

May 2019

Keywords: CEQA; tribal cultural sensitivity assessment; City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning; Arts District; 2018 E Bay St, 2016 E Bay St, 2010 E Bay St, 2006 E Bay St, 2006 1/2 E Bay St, 1000 S Mateo St, 1000 1/4 S Mateo St, 1010 S Mateo St, 1012 S Mateo St, 2023 E Sacramento St, 2023 1/2 E Sacramento St, 2019 E Sacramento St, 2019 1/2 E Sacramento St, 2015 E Sacramento St, 2015 1/2 E Sacramento St, 2011 E Sacramento St, 2009 E Sacramento St, 2007 E Sacramento St, 2005 E Sacramento St, 2001 E Sacramento St, 1026 S Mateo St, 1024 S Mateo St, 1020 S Mateo St, 1018 S Mateo St, 1014 S Mateo St; Los Angeles; Hollywood guadrangle; Township 1 South, Range 13 West, Section 9

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Purpose and Scope: Mateo Arts, LLC (the Applicant) retained SWCA Environmental Consultants (SWCA) to conduct a tribal cultural resources sensitivity assessment in support of the proposed 1024 Mateo Street Project located in the city of Los Angeles, California, within the Arts District neighborhood. The Applicant proposes to construct a mixed-income, eight-story mixed-use development containing approximately 106 Live/Work condominiums units and approximately 119,843 square feet of commercial space that includes 13,978 square feet of retail and 13,126 square feet of restaurant space (the Project). The Project site fronts along Mateo, Bay, and Sacramento Streets, and consists of 62,111 square feet (1.43 acres) of lot area. The following study addresses tribal cultural resources for purposes of compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), specifically Assembly Bill 52 (AB 52), but also including relevant portions of Public Resources Code (PRC) Sections 5024.1, 15064.5, 21074, 21083.2, 21084.1, and 21084.2. The City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning (City Planning) is the Lead Agency under CEQA for the Project. CEQA requires a lead agency to analyze whether a tribal cultural resource is present, supported by substantial evidence, and may be adversely affected by a proposed project. This report documents the methods and results of a confidential records search of the California Historical Resources Information System (CHRIS), sacred lands file (SLF) search through the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC), and archival research used to evaluate the presence or likelihood (i.e., sensitivity) of tribal cultural resources within the Project site and to inform the analysis of potential impacts in accordance with Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines.

Dates of Investigation: On March 18, 2019 SWCA conducted a confidential search of the CHRIS records at the SCCIC on the campus of California State University, Fullerton. On April 25, 2019, SWCA received the results of a SLF search from the NAHC.

Summary of Findings: No tribal cultural resources were identified in a CHRIS records search within the project site and a 0.5-mile radius. The SLF records search did not identify any sacred lands or sites in the project site. The closest known sites with Native American-affiliated materials on file at the CHRIS are mapped in approximately 1.5 miles north of the Project site, between the Los Angeles Plaza, Union Station, and MWD Headquarters building. The Gabrielino village known as Yaanga and several other important Historic-period Gabrielino sites (e.g., Pueblito. Rancheria de los Poblanos, and two unnamed rancherias) were located in the same approximate area, more than 1 mile from the Project site. The general proximity of the Project site to areas of known habitation, the river, and broad travel corridors has the effect of an overall increase in the sensitivity for unknown tribal cultural resources, particularly for the physical remains of temporary open camps. Such camps are typically identified by the presence of hearth features, ground stone and other types of artifact assemblages. Archival research indicated that at least by 1849, the Project site or at least portions were likely plowed and planted as a corn field. Subsequent development as a residential block between the 1890s and 1910s, and multiple episodes of redevelopment through the twentieth century would have displaced any former tribal cultural resources affiliated with Native Americans that were once present on the surface or near surface. This significantly reduces the sensitivity for the preservation of any tribal cultural resources within the Project site but does not preclude the potential for tribal cultural resources to be preserved as more deeply buried sites.

Soils within the Project site were assessed on the basis of samples taken for the Project and more generalized soil studies. Sediment profiles in the Project site are typical of deposits within the Los Angeles River floodplain and reflects a mixture of high- and low-energy deposition. Although subtle variations may exist within the alluvial substratum that were not distinguished here, which could have relevance for tribal cultural resource preservation potential, SWCA interprets the disturbances from flood events represented in the soil profiles as having a net reduction in the sensitivity for tribal cultural resources. To the extent that the proposed ground disturbance extends into undisturbed alluvial soils buried beneath previously disturbed

sediments, there may be some potential for preservation, but it is considered very unlikely for any tribal cultural resource to be present. Based on these considerations, SWCA finds a **low potential for encountering tribal cultural resources** within the Project site.

Conclusion: Ground disturbances for the project will occur during the proposed demolition, site preparation, and grading phases. Grading is estimated to require up to 25 feet of excavation below the surrounding street elevation that will extend into the underlying alluvial soils. The CHRIS search identified no previously recorded tribal cultural resources within the project site or 0.5-mile radius. An ethnographic literature review and archival research identified several former Native American communities located between 0.5 and 1.5 miles to the east-northeast of the project site, near the Los Angeles Plaza, Union Station, and eastern portions of the downtown area. The NAHC's search of the SLF did not identify any sacred lands or sites. SWCA assessed the potential for an unidentified tribal cultural resource to be present below the surface that could be encountered during the proposed ground disturbing activities. The potential for unidentified tribal cultural resources within the project site is found to be low. The project is subject to the City's standard condition of approval for the inadvertent discovery of tribal cultural resources, which requires construction be halted and California Native American tribes be consulted on treatment. Though unlikely, if present, any unidentified tribal cultural resources have the potential to be significant under CEOA. However, based on the condition of approval, any potential impacts would be reduced to less than significant. Therefore, SWCA finds that the project will have less-than-significant impacts to tribal cultural resources.

Disposition of Data: The final report and any subsequent related reports will be submitted to Mateo Arts, LLC; the Los Angeles Department of City Planning; and the SCCIC at California State University, Fullerton. Research materials and the report are also on file at the SWCA Pasadena Office.

CONTENTS

| MANAGEMENT SUMMARY | i |
|---|------|
| CONTENTS | .iii |
| TABLES | . iv |
| FIGURES | . iv |
| APPENDICES | v |
| INTRODUCTION | 1 |
| PROJECT DESCRIPTION | 1 |
| REGULATORY SETTING | 2 |
| STATE REGULATIONS | 2 |
| Assembly Bill 52 | 2 |
| California Register of Historical Resources | 2 |
| Treatment of Human Remains | 3 |
| METHODS | 4 |
| CHRIS RECORDS SEARCH | 4 |
| ARCHIVAL RESEARCH | 4 |
| SENSITIVITY ASSESSMENT | 4 |
| ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING | 5 |
| CULTURAL SETTING | 6 |
| PREHISTORY | 6 |
| Prehistoric Overview | 6 |
| ETHNOGRAPHIC OVERVIEW | 8 |
| Native American Communities in Los Angeles | 9 |
| HISTORY | 11 |
| Spanish Period (1769–1822) | 11 |
| Mexican Period (1822–1848) | 12 |
| American Period (1848–Present) | 12 |
| Los Angeles: From Pueblo to City | 13 |
| Historical Development of the Project Site | 14 |
| | 10 |
| RESULTS | 17 |
| CHRIS RECORDS SEARCH | 17 |
| Previously Conducted Studies | 17 |
| Previously Recorded Resources | 21 |
| ARCHIVAL RESEARCH | 21 |
| NATIVE AMERICAN COORDINATION | . 22 |
| SACRED LANDS FILE SEARCH | 22 |

| SENSITIVITY ASSESSMENT | |
|------------------------|----|
| CONCLUSION | 23 |
| REFERENCES CITED | 24 |

Tables

| Table 1. Previousl | y Conducted Cultura | Resource Studies | within 0.5 Mile of | f the Project Site | 17 |
|--------------------|---------------------|------------------|--------------------|--------------------|----|
| | 5 | | | 5 | |

Figures

| Figure 1. Project site plotted on city map of Los Angeles | .A-1 |
|---|-------|
| Figure 2. Project site with associated parcels on a 2013 aerial and street map | . A-2 |
| Figure 3. Former street addresses associated with each lot in the Project Site. | . A-3 |
| Figure 4. Project site and 0.5-mile records search radius plotted on USGS 7.5-minute quadrangle | . A-4 |
| Figure 5. Surficial geology from Bedrossian and Roffers (2012) and former courses of the Los Angeles River from Gumprecht (2001). | .A-5 |
| Figure 6. Project site plotted on McCawley's (1996:36) map of Gabrielieno placenames cited in ethongraphic sources. | .A-6 |
| Figure 7. Project site plotted on a map of Native American and historical sites in the Los Angeles Basin published by the Southwest Museum (1962) and re-printed in Johnston (1962) | .A-7 |
| Figure 8. Project site plotted on the Kirkman-Harriman map (Kirkman 1938). | .A-8 |
| Figure 9. Historical reference points associated with Gabrielino settlement in the downtown Los Angeles area. | .A-9 |
| Figure 10. Project site plotted on an appended draft of Hancock's 1857 map, which was based on Ord's original map of the City (Ord 1849). The parcel overlapped by the Project site was identified as a corn field in Ord's original map. The colored property lines were added after 1857 | A-10 |
| Figure 11. Bird's eve view of Los Angeles facing southwest illustrated by E.S. Glover in 1877. The | 11 10 |
| Project site is located in the area southwest of 7th and Alameda Streets. | A-11 |
| Figure 12. Illustration of Los Angeles by H.B. Elliott in 1891 facing southwest showing the vicinity of the Project site and an early alignment of Zanja No. 1. | A-11 |
| Figure 13. Project site plotted on the original plat for the City of Los Angeles, surveyed in 1858 by Henry Hancock and published in 1859. The city limits are outlined light red. The historic core—including the Los Angeles Plaza and pueblo site—are located in the center. | A-12 |
| Figure 14. The project site plotted on Stevenson's 1884 real estate map. The project site is in a parcel owned by Lorenzo Leck, and Zanja No. 1 is located directly within the Project site | A-13 |
| Figure 15. Project site plotted on an 1887 city map | A-14 |
| Figure 16. Project site plotted on USGS 7.5-minute topographic quadrangles from 1894 to 2018. Note that Mateo Street was present but not included in the 1894 map. | A-15 |
| Figure 17. Project site plotted on Sanborn Fire Insurance maps from 1900 to 1953 | A-16 |
| Figure 18. Project site plotted on aerial photographs from 1927, 1930, 1938, and 1956. | A-17 |
| Figure 19. Geophysical survey results (Feldman 2015) | A-18 |

| Figure 20. [CONFIDENTIAL] Archaeological resources listed in the CHRIS and sites of historical | |
|---|-------------|
| significance described in ethnographic literature on the Gabrielino. Sources listed for each of | |
| the features on the map are cited in the legend | B- 1 |

Appendices

Appendix A. Report Figures

Appendix B. Confidential Report Figures (Not for Public Distribution)

Appendix C. Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File (SLF) Search Results Letter

INTRODUCTION

Mateo Arts, LLC (the Applicant) retained SWCA Environmental Consultants (SWCA) to conduct a tribal cultural resources sensitivity assessment in support of the proposed 1024 Mateo Street Project located in the city of Los Angeles, California, within the Arts District neighborhood. The Applicant proposes to construct a mixed-income, eight-story mixed-use development containing approximately 106 Live/Work condominiums units and approximately 119,843 square feet of commercial space that includes 13,978 square feet of retail and 13,126 square feet of restaurant space (the Project). The Project site fronts along Mateo, Bay, and Sacramento Streets, and consists of 62,111 square feet (1.43 acres) of lot area.

The following study addresses tribal cultural resources for purposes of compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), specifically Assembly Bill 52 (AB 52), but also including relevant portions of Public Resources Code (PRC) Sections 5024.1, 15064.5, 21074, 21083.2, 21084.1, and 21084.2. The City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning (City Planning) is the Lead Agency under CEQA for the Project. CEQA requires a lead agency to analyze whether a tribal cultural resource is present, supported by substantial evidence, and may be adversely affected by a proposed project. This report documents the methods and results of a confidential records search of the California Historical Resources Information System (CHRIS), sacred lands file (SLF) search through the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC), and archival research used to evaluate the presence or likelihood (i.e., sensitivity) of tribal cultural resources within the Project site and to inform the analysis of potential impacts in accordance with Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines.

SWCA Senior Archaeologist Chris Millington, M.A., Registered Professional Archaeologist (RPA), managed the project, co-authored the report, and prepared all figures. SWCA Staff Archaeologist Trevor Gittelhough, M.A., RPA, conducted background research and co-authored the report. SWCA Principal Investigator Heather Gibson, Ph.D., RPA, provided additional review of the report. All non-confidential figures in the report are included in Appendix A; Appendix B contains confidential report figures; Appendix C contains the SLF results letter. Copies of the report are on file with the Applicant, City Planning, and the South Central Coastal Information Center (SCCIC) at California State University, Fullerton. All background materials are on file with SWCA's office in Pasadena, California.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The Project site is in the city of Los Angeles within the Arts District neighborhood, which is currently characterized with commercial and industrial properties (Figure 1). The Project site consists of 62,111 square feet (1.43 acres) of lot area and fronts along Mateo, Bay, and Sacramento Streets at the following addresses: 2001–2005 Sacramento Street, 1024 Mateo Street, and 2016 Bay Street. The County of Los Angeles Assessor's Office lists the assessor parcel numbers (APNs) as 5166-011-012 and 5166-011-021, which contain lot numbers 73 and 75–84 (Figure 2). Figure 3 includes the former street addresses listed for each of the lots.¹ This location is plotted in Section 9 of Township 1 South, Range 13 West as depicted on the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) Hollywood, California, 7.5-minute topographic quadrangle (Figure 4).

The Applicant proposes to construct a mixed-income, eight-story mixed-use development containing approximately 106 Live/Work condominiums units and approximately 119,843 square feet of commercial space including 13,978 square feet of retail and 13,126 square feet of restaurant space. One level of subterranean parking will serve as a base for the building, which will require no more than 25 feet of excavation below the current grade. The site is currently occupied to the north by a single 17,400-square-

¹ Prior to 1950, 2007 and 2011 E. Sacramento Street were listed as 2005 and 2009 E. Sacrament Street. Subsequent changes to the parcel and lots were associated with additional changes in street address that are not fully detailed in this report.

foot industrial building used by MV Transportation for bus maintenance and offices, and a 4,800-squarefoot structure used for storage. The remainder of the lot is paved with asphalt, which is used for parking, vehicle maintenance, and fueling, and includes some temporary structures. The Project proposes to demolish the extant buildings and asphalt, and excavate up to 25 feet below the current grade.

REGULATORY SETTING

State Regulations

Assembly Bill 52

AB 52 amended PRC Section 5097.94 and added PRC Sections 21073, 21074, 21080.3.1, 21080.3.2, 21082.3, 21083.09, 21084.2, and 21084.3. Section 4 of AB 52 adds Sections 21074(a) and (b) to the PRC, which address tribal cultural resources and cultural landscapes. Section 21074(a) defines tribal cultural resources as one of the following:

- (1) Sites, features, places, cultural landscapes, sacred places, and objects with cultural value to a California Native American tribe that are either of the following:
 - (A) Included or determined to be eligible for inclusion in the California Register of Historical Resources.
 - (B) Included in a local register of historical resources as defined in subdivision (k) of Section 5020.1.
- (2) A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Section 5024.1. In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Section 5024.1 for the purposes of this paragraph, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a California Native American tribe.

Section 1(a)(9) of AB 52 establishes that "a substantial adverse change to a tribal cultural resource has a significant effect on the environment." Effects on tribal cultural resources should be considered under CEQA. Section 6 of AB 52 adds Section 21080.3.2 to the PRC, which states that parties may propose mitigation measures "capable of avoiding or substantially lessening potential significant impacts to a tribal cultural resource." The environmental document and the mitigation monitoring and reporting program (where applicable) shall include any mitigation measures that are adopted (PRC Section 21082.3[a]).

California Register of Historical Resources

Created in 1992 and implemented in 1998, the CRHR is "an authoritative guide in California to be used by state and local agencies, private groups, and citizens to identify the state's historical resources and to indicate what properties are to be protected, to the extent prudent and feasible, from substantial adverse change" (PRC Sections 21083.2 and 21084.1). Certain properties, including those listed in or formally determined eligible for listing in the NRHP and California Historical Landmarks numbered 770 and higher, are automatically included in the CRHR. Other properties recognized under the California Points of Historical Interest program, identified as significant in historical resources surveys, or designated by local landmarks programs, may be nominated for inclusion in the CRHR. According to PRC Section 5024.1(c), a resource, either an individual property or a contributor to a historic district, may be listed in the CRHR if the State Historical Resources Commission determines that it meets one or more of the following criteria, which are modeled on NRHP criteria:

• **Criterion 1:** It is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of California's history and cultural heritage.

- **Criterion 2:** It is associated with the lives of persons important in our past.
- **Criterion 3:** It embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region, or method of construction, or represents the work of an important creative individual, or possesses high artistic values.
- Criterion 4: It has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in history or prehistory.

Resources nominated to the CRHR must retain enough of their historic character or appearance to convey the reasons for their significance. Resources whose historic integrity does not meet NRHP criteria may still be eligible for listing in the CRHR. A site may be considered significant if it displays one or more of the following attributes: chronologically diagnostic, functionally diagnostic, or exotic artifacts; datable materials; definable activity areas; multiple components; faunal or floral remains; archeological or architectural features; notable complexity, size, integrity, time span, or depth; or stratified deposits. Determining the period(s) of occupation at a site provides a context for the types of activities undertaken and may well supply a link with other sites and cultural processes in the region. Further, well-defined temporal parameters can help illuminate processes of culture change and continuity in relation to natural environmental factors and interactions with other cultural groups. Finally, chronological controls might provide a link to regionally important research questions and topics of more general theoretical relevance. As a result, the ability to determine the temporal parameters of a site's occupation is critical for a finding of eligibility under Criterion 4 (information potential). A site that cannot be dated is unlikely to possess the quality of significance required for CRHR eligibility or be considered a unique archaeological resource. The content of an archeological site provides information regarding its cultural affiliations, temporal periods of use, functionality, and other aspects of its occupation history. The range and variability of artifacts present in the site can allow for reconstruction of changes in ethnic affiliation, diet, social structure, economics, technology, industrial change, and other aspects of culture.

Treatment of Human Remains

The disposition of burials falls first under the general prohibition on disturbing or removing human remains under California Health and Safety Code (CHSC) Section 7050.5. More specifically, remains suspected to be Native American are treated under CEQA at CCR Section 15064.5; PRC Section 5097.98 illustrates the process to be followed if remains are discovered. If human remains are discovered during excavation activities, the following procedure shall be observed:

• Stop immediately and contact the County Coroner:

1104 N. Mission RoadLos Angeles, CA 90033323-343-0512 (8 am to 5 pm Monday through Friday) or323-343-0714 (After hours, Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays)

- If the remains are determined to be of Native American descent, the Coroner has 24 hours to notify the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC).
- The NAHC will immediately notify the person it believes to be the most likely descendant (MLD) of the deceased Native American.
- The MLD has 48 hours to make recommendations to the owner, or representative, for the treatment or disposition, with proper dignity, of the human remains and grave goods.
- If the owner does not accept the MLD's recommendations, the owner or the MLD may request mediation by the NAHC.

METHODS

The following section presents an overview of the methodology used to identify the potential for tribal cultural resources within the Project site.

CHRIS Records Search

On March 18, 2019, SWCA conducted a confidential search of the CHRIS records at the SCCIC on the campus of California State University, Fullerton, to identify previously documented cultural resources within a 0.8-km (0.5-mile) radius of the Project site, as well as any selectively chosen outside the radius to aid in the assessment of tribal cultural resource sensitivity. The SCCIC maintains records of technical studies and previously documented archaeological resources, including those that may be considered tribal cultural resources; it also maintains copies of the OHP's portion of the Historic Resources Inventory.

Confidential CHRIS results include specific information on the nature and location of sensitive sites, which should not be disclosed to the public or unauthorized persons and are exempt from the Freedom of Information Act. The information included in a confidential CHRIS records search is needed to assess the sensitivity for undocumented tribal cultural resources and to inform the impact analysis. The search included any previously recorded archaeological resources that could be considered tribal cultural resources (i.e., excludes Historic-period resources not affiliated with Native Americans) within the Project site and surrounding 0.8-km (0.5-mile) area.

Archival Research

Concurrent with the confidential CHRIS records search, SWCA also reviewed property-specific historical and ethnographic context research to identify information relevant to the Project site. Research focused on a variety of primary and secondary materials relating to the history and development of the Project site, including historical maps, aerial and ground photographs, ethnographic reports, and other environmental data. Historical maps drawn to scale were georeferenced using ESRI ArcMAP v10.5 to show precise relationships to the Project site. Sources consulted included the following publicly accessible data sources: City of Los Angeles OHR (SurveyLA); City of Los Angeles Department of Building and Safety (building permits); David Rumsey Historical Map Collection; Huntington Library Digital Archives; Library of Congress; Los Angeles Public Library Map Collection; Sanborn Fire Insurance Company Maps (Sanborn maps); USGS historical topographic maps; University of California, Santa Barbara, Digital Library (aerial photographs); and University of Southern California Digital Library.

In addition, SWCA reviewed technical reports prepared for the project, including a Site Characterization Report (Buchanan 2015), a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) Report (Mahmood 2015), geophysical survey (Feldman 2015), and a Phase II ESA Report (Johannes 2015). Both the Site Characterization Report and Phase II ESA Report included geophysical testing. The Site Characterization report involved four bore holes to a depth of 30.5 feet. The geophysical survey used magnetometers, conductivity meters, metal detectors, and ground-penetrating radar to identify subsurface features (Feldman 2015).

Sensitivity Assessment

In circumstances where a known tribal cultural resource has not been identified, no previous studies have been conducted, and subsurface testing is not feasible because of existing developments, the potential for an unidentified resource to be present (i.e., sensitivity) in the form of a buried site is assessed indirectly. That determination considers past land uses, broadly, and an assessment of whether the setting is capable of containing buried materials (i.e., preservation potential). Lacking any data evidence for the presence or absence of a tribal cultural resources below the surface, the resulting sensitivity is by nature qualitative, ranging along a spectrum of increasing probability for encountering such material, designated here as low, moderate, and high. In general, areas with a favorable setting for habitation or temporary use, soil conditions capable of preserving buried material, and little to no disturbances are considered to have a high sensitivity. Areas lacking these traits are considered to have low sensitivity. Areas with a combination of these traits are considered to have moderate sensitivity.

In assessing the sensitivity for tribal cultural resources, SWCA considers whether the location was favorable for Native American habitation. Indicators of favorable habitability for Native Americans are proximity to natural features (e.g., perennial water source, plant or mineral resource, animal habitat), other known sites, flat topography, and relatively dry conditions. Sensitivity for Native American-affiliated resources also considers Gabrielino ethnographic studies that describe the location of former Native American settlements, foraging and other indigenous land-use behaviors, as well as regional studies of archaeological site distribution.

Preservation potential for tribal cultural resources considers whether the physical setting is capable of containing buried materials and whether any such materials once present have been destroyed, removed, or otherwise not preserved at the location, either because of natural causes (e.g., erosion, flooding) or historical development. The preservation potential relies on an understanding of existing soil conditions and site history. In urban settings, site-specific soil conditions are obtained through geotechnical studies. More generalized information on existing soil conditions for a given location is also assessed on the basis of soil surveys and geologic studies. For areas in which there was intensive historical use that modified the surface and near-surface (e.g., from grading or large-scale excavation), or for areas where there is evidence that the preservation potential is poor, there is reduced sensitivity.

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING

The Project site is in the Los Angeles Basin, a broad, level plain defined by the Pacific Ocean to the west, the Santa Monica Mountains and Puente Hills to the north, and the Santa Ana Mountains and San Joaquin Hills to the south. This extensive alluvial wash basin is filled with Quaternary alluvial sediments deposited as unconsolidated material eroded from the surrounding hills. Several major watercourses drain the Los Angeles Basin, including the Los Angeles, Rio Hondo, San Gabriel, and Santa Ana rivers. The Project site and vicinity are within a fully urbanized setting on an open aspect plain at an elevation of 74 meters (243 feet) above mean sea level. This site is located in the northern portion of the Peninsular Ranges Geomorphic Province and approximately 6 miles south of the Raymond Fault Zone. The Project site is on a broad alluvial plain with a slightly southern aspect, located south of the Santa Monica Mountains and west of the Los Angeles River.

The south-flowing Los Angeles River is currently located approximately 0.5 km (0.31 mile) east of the Project site; however, historically the channel has shifted courses several times during flood events, with the main channel shifting its location relative to the Project site twice in the last 100 years (Figure 5). The first recorded shift of the river occurred in 1815 when floodwaters overflowed the former channel, shifting the course, previously located to the east of the Project site, at least 0.8 km (0.5 mile) to the southwest, near the present route of North Spring Street, now west of the Project site. That flood destroyed structures built as part of the original Los Angeles Pueblo and is presumed to have also destroyed a Native American village site (Yaanga) also located north of the Project site (Gumprecht 2001:139–141). At that time and before 1825, the river flowed west within the Los Angeles Basin, discharging into the Ballona Wetlands along what is now Ballona Creek, near Santa Monica. Flooding in 1825 then produced the most dramatic shift historically observed in the river's course as the newly formed channel overflowed its banks and shifted its course again, relocating the channel back east of the Project site, now flowing fully south and emptying into the bay near San Pedro. Subsequent shifts occurred along the braided streams within the broader, south-

flowing flood plain. The Los Angeles River flooded multiple times, including a catastrophic flood in 1938. Flood events such as these can produce substantial deposits of alluvial sediments within the respective floodplains. Alluvial terraces formed where flooding water eroded into adjacent hillsides. In the downtown Los Angeles area, the backslopes in the location of Bunker Hill delineate the edge of the historical floodplain.

The earliest soil surveys of the area were conducted before 1920 as county-wide effort focused on agricultural productivity. The report from 1919 define the soils in the Project site as the Hanford loam series (Nelson et al. 1919:55). Hanford loam is described as varying between 12 and 72 inches deep, consisting of a brown, friably, light-textured, micaceous loam. While the soil unit generally lacked gravel inclusions, the study notes that small patches and low strips of gravel occur in the courses of streamways where flooding had occurred, as in an area north of Exposition Park in the former westward course of the Los Angeles River. Contemporary soil reports from the U.S. Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation Service still retain approximately the same description for the Hanford series. Other recent works published by the California Geological Survey synthesized previous studies of the surficial geology and designated a more detailed typology (Bedrossian and Roffers 2012; Bedrossian et al. 2012:16). According to the Bedrossian and Roffers (2012) map, the Project site falls within surficial deposits defined as Young Alluvial Valley Deposits (abbreviated Qya), which were created during the late Pleistocene and Holocene-after approximately 11,700 years ago and before approximately 1000 years ago. The Qya unit is further divided into subunits. The Project site is in the Qya2 subunit (Figure 5), defined for sediments deposited in the late Pleistocene. Qva soils generally consist of unconsolidated to slightly consolidated, undissected to slightly dissected clay, silt, sand, and gravel along stream valleys and alluvial flats of large rivers (the Los Angeles River). The spatial extent of the Qya unit generally correlates with the Hanford loam described in 1919.

Preliminary results of the geotechnical report prepared for the Project (in preparation) identified up to 2 feet of artificial fill in the Project site. Limited soil testing in the Project site was conducted in 2015 by Certified Environmental Consultants, Inc. (CEC) as part of a Phase II ESA (Johannes 2015). The Phase II ESA also included a geophysical survey completed by Geovision Geophysical Services (GGS), which used magnetometers, high-frequency metal detectors, and ground-penetrating radar equipment to search for underground storage tanks (Feldman 2015). The GCS survey identified several surficial metallic objects and three sub-surface anomalies, none of which were considered to be consistent with a large underground storage tank (Feldman 2015). Further results of the geophysical survey are discussed below (see Results: Archival Research).

Anderson Environmental conducted additional soil testing in 2015 and summarized the results in a Site Characterization Report (Buchanan 2015). For their study, Anderson Environmental drilled four bores with six-inch samples taken at 5-foot intervals to a depth of 30 feet below grade. Bore logs completed for the sample locations characterized the soil composition at each of the sample depths. The sediment profiles identified multiple alluvial layers of fine-grained sand and silty sand, some with gravel inclusions, extending down to 10 to 30 feet. Below this the soil consisted of poorly graded sand. Three of the bores identified a stratum of decomposing granite mixed with sand between 15 and 25 feet below the surface.

CULTURAL SETTING

Prehistory

Prehistoric Overview

In the last several decades, researchers have devised numerous prehistoric chronological sequences to aid in understanding cultural changes in southern California. Building on early studies and focusing on data synthesis, Wallace (1955, 1978) developed a prehistoric chronology for the southern California coastal region that is still widely used today and is applicable to near-coastal and many inland areas. Four horizons are presented in Wallace's prehistoric sequence: Early Man, Milling Stone, Intermediate, and Late Prehistoric. Although Wallace's 1955 synthesis initially lacked chronological precision due to a paucity of absolute dates (Moratto 1984:159), this situation has been alleviated by the availability of thousands of radiocarbon dates obtained by southern California researchers in the last three decades (Byrd and Raab 2007:217). As such, several revisions were subsequently made to Wallace's 1955 synthesis using radiocarbon dates and projectile point assemblages (e.g., Koerper and Drover 1983; Koerper et al. 2002; Mason and Peterson 1994). The summary of prehistoric chronological sequences for southern California coastal and near-coastal areas presented below is a composite of information in Wallace (1955) and Warren (1968), as well as more recent studies, including Koerper and Drover (1983).

HORIZON I: EARLY MAN (CA. 10,000-6,000 BC)

The earliest accepted dates for archaeological sites on the southern California coast are from two of the northern Channel Islands, located off the coast of Santa Barbara. On San Miguel Island, Daisy Cave clearly establishes the presence of people in this area approximately 10,000 years ago (Erlandson 1991:105). On Santa Rosa Island, human remains have been dated from the Arlington Springs site to approximately 13,000 years ago (Johnson et al. 2002). Present-day Orange and San Diego counties contain several sites dating from 9,000 to 10,000 years ago (Byrd and Raab 2007:219; Macko 1998:41; Mason and Peterson 1994:55–57; Sawyer and Koerper 2006). Although the dating of these finds remains controversial, several sets of human remains from the Los Angeles Basin (e.g., "Los Angeles Man," "La Brea Woman," and the Haverty skeletons) apparently date to the Middle Holocene, if not earlier (Brooks et al. 1990; Erlandson et al. 2007:54).

Recent data from Horizon I sites indicate that the economy was a diverse mixture of hunting and gathering, with a major emphasis on aquatic resources in many coastal areas (e.g., Jones et al. 2002), and a greater emphasis on large-game hunting inland.

HORIZON II: MILLING STONE (6,000-3,000 BC)

Set during a drier climatic regime than the previous horizon, the Milling Stone horizon is characterized by subsistence strategies centered on collecting plant foods and small animals. The importance of the seed processing is apparent in the dominance of stone grinding implements in contemporary archaeological assemblages, namely milling stones (metates) and handstones (manos). Recent research indicates that Milling Stone horizon food procurement strategies varied in both time and space, reflecting divergent responses to variable coastal and inland environmental conditions (Byrd and Raab 2007:220).

HORIZON III: INTERMEDIATE (3,000 BC-AD 500)

The Intermediate horizon is characterized by a shift toward a hunting and maritime subsistence strategy, along with a wider use of plant foods. An increasing variety and abundance of fish, land mammal, and sea mammal remains are found in sites from this horizon along the California coast. Related chipped stone tools suitable for hunting are more abundant and diversified, and shell fishhooks became part of the toolkit during this period. Mortars and pestles became more common during this period, gradually replacing manos and metates as the dominant milling equipment and signaling a shift away from the processing and consuming of hard seed resources to the increasing importance of the acorn (e.g., Glassow et al. 1988; True 1993).

HORIZON IV: LATE PREHISTORIC (AD 500-HISTORIC CONTACT)

In the Late Prehistoric horizon, there was an increase in the use of plant food resources in addition to an increase in land and sea mammal hunting. There was a concomitant increase in the diversity and complexity of material culture during the Late Prehistoric horizon, demonstrated by more classes of artifacts. The recovery of a greater number of small, finely chipped projectile points suggests increased use of the bow

and arrow rather than the atlatl (spear thrower) and dart for hunting. Steatite cooking vessels and containers are also present in sites from this time, and there is an increased presence of smaller bone and shell circular fishhooks; perforated stones; arrow shaft straighteners made of steatite; a variety of bone tools; and personal ornaments such as beads made from shell, bone, and stone. There was also an increased use of asphalt for waterproofing and as an adhesive. Late Prehistoric burial practices are discussed in the Ethnographic Overview section below.

By AD 1000, fired clay smoking pipes and ceramic vessels were being used at some sites (Drover 1971, 1975; Meighan 1954; Warren and True 1961). The scarcity of pottery in coastal and near-coastal sites implies that ceramic technology was not well developed in that area, or that occupants were trading with neighboring groups to the south and east for ceramics. The lack of widespread pottery manufacture is usually attributed to the high quality of tightly woven and watertight basketry that functioned in the same capacity as ceramic vessels.

During this period, there was an increase in population size accompanied by the advent of larger, more permanent villages (Wallace 1955:223). Large populations and, in places, high population densities are characteristic, with some coastal and near-coastal settlements containing as many as 1,500 people. Many of the larger settlements were permanent villages in which people resided year-round. The populations of these villages may have also increased seasonally.

In Warren's (1968) cultural ecological scheme, the period between AD 500 and European contact, which occurred as early as 1542, is divided into three regional patterns: Chumash (Santa Barbara and Ventura counties), Takic/Numic (Los Angeles, Orange, and western Riverside counties), and Yuman (San Diego County). The seemingly abrupt introduction of cremation, pottery, and small triangular arrow points in parts of modern-day Los Angeles, Orange, and western Riverside counties at the beginning of the Late Prehistoric period is thought to be the result of a Takic migration to the coast from inland desert regions. Modern Gabrielino, Juaneño, and Luiseño people in this region are considered the descendants of the Uto-Aztecan, Takic-speaking populations that settled along the California coast in this period.

Ethnographic Overview

The Project site is in an area historically occupied by the Gabrielino (Bean and Smith 1978:538; Kroeber 1925: Plate 57). Surrounding native groups included the Chumash and Tatataviam/Alliklik to the north, the Serrano to the east, and the Luiseño/Juaneño to the south. There is well-documented interaction between the Gabrielino and many of their neighbors in the form of intermarriage and trade.

The name "Gabrielino" (sometimes spelled Gabrieleno or Gabrieleño) denotes those people who were administered by the Spanish from Mission San Gabriel. This group is now considered a regional dialect of the Gabrielino language, along with the Santa Catalina Island and San Nicolas Island dialects (Bean and Smith 1978:538). In the post-European contact period, Mission San Gabriel included natives of the greater Los Angeles area, as well as members of surrounding groups such as Kitanemuk, Serrano, and Cahuilla. There is little evidence that the people we call Gabrielino had a broad term for their group (Dakin 1978:222); rather, they identified themselves as an inhabitant of a specific community with locational suffixes (e.g., a resident of Yaanga was called a Yabit, much the same way that a resident of New York is called a New Yorker; Johnston 1962:10).

Native words suggested as labels for the broader group of Native Americans in the Los Angeles region include Tongva (or Tong-v; Merriam 1955:7–86) and Kizh (Kij or Kichereno; Heizer 1968:105), although there is evidence that these terms originally referred to local places or smaller groups of people within the larger group that we now call Gabrielino. Nevertheless, many present-day descendants of these people have taken on Tongva as a preferred group name because it has a native rather than Spanish origin (King

1994:12). The term Gabrielino is used in the remainder of this report to designate native people of the Los Angeles Basin and their descendants.

The Gabrielino subsistence economy was centered on gathering and hunting. The surrounding environment was rich and varied, and the tribe exploited mountains, foothills, valleys, deserts, riparian, estuarine, and open and rocky coastal eco-niches. Like that of most native Californians, acorns were the staple food (an established industry by the time of the Early Intermediate period). Inhabitants supplemented acorns with the roots, leaves, seeds, and fruits of a variety of flora (e.g., islay, cactus, yucca, sages, and agave). Freshwater and saltwater fish, shellfish, birds, reptiles, and insects, as well as large and small mammals, were also consumed (Bean and Smith 1978:546; Kroeber 1925:631–632; McCawley 1996:119–123, 128–131).

The Gabrielino used a variety of tools and implements to gather and collect food resources. These included the bow and arrow, traps, nets, blinds, throwing sticks and slings, spears, harpoons, and hooks. Groups residing near the ocean used oceangoing plank canoes and tule balsa canoes for fishing, travel, and trade between the mainland and the Channel Islands (McCawley 1996:7). Gabrielino people processed food with a variety of tools, including hammer stones and anvils, mortars and pestles, manos and metates, strainers, leaching baskets and bowls, knives, bone saws, and wooden drying racks. Food was consumed from a variety of vessels. Catalina Island steatite was used to make ollas and cooking vessels (Blackburn 1963; Kroeber 1925:629; McCawley 1996:129–138).

At the time of Spanish contact, the basis of Gabrielino religious life was the Chinigchinich cult, centered on the last of a series of heroic mythological figures. Chinigchinich gave instruction on laws and institutions, and also taught the people how to dance, the primary religious act for this society. He later withdrew into heaven, where he rewarded the faithful and punished those who disobeyed his laws (Kroeber 1925:637–638). The Chinigchinich religion seems to have been relatively new when the Spanish arrived. It was spreading south into the southern Takic groups even as Christian missions were being built and may represent a mixture of native and Christian belief and practices (McCawley 1996:143–144).

Deceased Gabrielino were either buried or cremated, with inhumation more common on the Channel Islands and the neighboring mainland coast, and cremation predominating on the remainder of the coast and in the interior (Harrington 1942; McCawley 1996:157). Remains were buried in distinct burial areas, either associated with villages or without apparent village association (Altschul et al. 2007). Cremation ashes have been found in archaeological contexts buried within stone bowls and in shell dishes (Ashby and Winterbourne 1966:27), as well as scattered among broken ground stone implements (Cleland et al. 2007). Archaeological data such as these correspond with ethnographic descriptions of an elaborate mourning ceremony that included a variety of offerings, including seeds, stone grinding tools, otter skins, baskets, wood tools, shell beads, bone and shell ornaments, and projectile points and knives. Offerings varied with the sex and status of the deceased (Dakin 1978:234–365; Johnston 1962:52–54; McCawley 1996:155–165).

Native American Communities in Los Angeles

The Project site is within the traditional territory of the Gabrielino (King 2004; McCawley 1996:36–40). In general, it has proven very difficult or impossible to establish definitively the precise location of Native American villages occupied in the Ethnohistoric period (McCawley 1996:31–32). Native American place names referred to at the time of Spanish contact did not necessarily represent a continually occupied settlement within a discrete location. Instead, in at least some cases, the communities were represented by several smaller camps scattered throughout an approximate geography, shaped by natural features subject to change over generations (see Johnston 1962:122). Many of the villages had long since been abandoned by the time ethnographers, anthropologists, and historians attempted to document any of their locations, at which point the former village sites were affected by urban and agricultural development, and Native

American lifeways had been irrevocably changed. Alternative names and spellings for communities, and conflicting reports on their meaning or locational reference, further confound efforts at relocation. McCawley quotes Kroeber (1925:616) in his remarks on the subject, writing that "the opportunity to prepare a true map of village locations 'passed away 50 years ago'" (McCawley 1996:32). Thus, even with archaeological evidence, it can be difficult to conclusively establish whether any given assemblage represents the remains of the former village site.

Although the precise location of any given village is subject to much speculation, it is clear the greater Los Angeles area once contained many Gabrielino villages, including several concentrated along the banks of major waterways and near the coast (Figure 6). This type of settlement pattern concentrated along waterways is reflected in historical maps published by the Southwest Museum (1962; reprinted in Johnston 1962) and George Kirkman (1938), shown here with the Project site plotted in Figure 7 and Figure 8, respectively. Maps such as these convey a general sense of significant historical areas based on the geographic information available at the time and are considered as a representational depiction of these locations rather than explicit geographic points.

The closest ethnographically documented village to the Project site is Yaanga (alternative spellings and names include Yang-na, Yangna, and Yabit). Though the actual location is disputed, generally Yaanga is believed to have been located near present-day Union Station (McCawley 1996:57), approximately 2.7 km (1.7 miles) north northwest of the Project site (Figure 9)². Historical records place Yaanga near Los Angeles's original plaza, located near present-day Union Station. Historians and archaeologists have presented multiple possible village locations in this general area; however, like the pueblo itself, it is likely that the village was relocated from time to time due to major shifts of the Los Angeles River during years of intense flooding. Dillon (1994) presented an exhaustive review of the potential locations, most within several blocks of the pueblo plaza. Johnston (1962:122) concluded that "in all probability Yangna lay scattered in a fairly wide zone along the whole arc [from the base of Fort Moore Hill to Union Station], and its bailiwick included as well seed-gathering grounds and oak groves where seasonal camps were set up." A second village, known as Geveronga, has also been described in ethnographic accounts as immediately adjoining the Pueblo of Los Angeles, though much like Yaanga, its location can only be inferred from ethnographic information (McCawley 1996:57).

Aside from the ethnographic evidence suggesting the location of these villages, little direct, indisputable archaeological evidence for the location of either village has been produced to date. Archaeological materials reportedly were unearthed during the construction of Union Station in 1939, and "considerably more" in 1970 during the rebuilding of the Bella Union Hotel on the 300 block of North Main Street (Johnston 1962:121; Robinson 1979:12). The preponderance of available evidence indicates that there were one or more early Historic-period Native American communities west of the Los Angeles River near the original pueblo site. This assumption is supported through several lines of ethnographic evidence, including the expedition journal of Fr. Juan Crespi and engineer Miguel Costansó, both of whom were associated with the 1769 Portolá expedition. The notes from these sources indicate the village was located between 2.0 and 2.4 km (1.3 and 1.5 miles) west-southwest from the Los Angeles River on high-level ground. The Pueblo of Los Angeles was documented to have been founded directly adjacent to this village. The location of Yaanga was also referenced by long-time Los Angeles resident Narciso Botello and Gabrielino

² Historical points of reference relevant to the former Yaanga village site discussed in this section are depicted in Figure 7. The map also includes other ethnographically significant locations that are discussed in the previous section. These include the former courses of the Los Angeles River (as reported by Gumprecht 2001), the Los Angeles Plaza, former locations of the Aliso Tree and Bella Union Hotel, multiple locations of Yaanga described in various documents, and several rancherias occupied by Gabrielino during the Mexican and early Historic periods. The sites are plotted on a topographic prepared by Crandell (2010), which depicts historical contours and former stream courses, as well as elements of the built environment, including zanjas and city blocks that formed the "Lower District" (now downtown Los Angeles).

consultant José María Zalvidea, who indicated that Yaanga was originally located adjacent to the original site of the Los Angeles plaza (Morris et al. 2016:112).

After the settlement of Los Angeles in 1781, Yaanga faced many new challenges because of its proximity to the new city. The history of the indigenous inhabitants after the incorporation of the City of Los Angeles is one of forced relocation and adaptation. The Native Americans who left the newly secularized mission lands and came to Los Angeles attempted to resettle near the original location of Yaanga, choosing a location near First and Los Angeles Streets called Rancheria de Los Poblanos. This rancheria existed for approximately 10 years, between 1826 and 1836, after which the indigenous population was again forced to relocate, to a plot of land near Commercial and Alameda Streets (Morris et al. 2016).

This rancheria existed for approximately another 10 years, between 1836 and 1845, during which nearby land owners attempted to forcibly relocate them to obtain more land for agricultural use. When they were finally successful, the Native American community was once again forced to relocate even further east, across the Los Angeles River to a site called Pueblito, which itself was razed in 1847, at which time legislation was passed to require the indigenous population to live in dispersed settlements or with their employers throughout the city. Other indigenous villages and community sites were present throughout the city concurrently with Rancheria de los Poblanos, including numerous smaller settlements along Commercial Street, and another Rancheria, Rancheria de los Pipimares, within downtown Los Angeles along 7th Street.

History

Post-contact history for the state of California is generally divided into three periods: the Spanish period (1769–1822), Mexican period (1822–1848), and American period (1848–present). Although Spanish, Russian, and British explorers visited the area for brief periods between 1529 and 1769, the Spanish period in California begins with the establishment in 1769 of a settlement at San Diego and the founding of Mission San Diego de Alcalá, the first of 21 missions constructed between 1769 and 1823. Independence from Spain in 1821 marks the beginning of the Mexican period, and the signing of the Treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo in 1848, ending the Mexican–American War, signals the beginning of the American period, when California became a territory of the United States.

Spanish Period (1769–1822)

Spanish explorers made sailing expeditions along the coast of southern California between the mid-1500s and mid-1700s. In search of the legendary Northwest Passage, Juan Rodríquez Cabríllo stopped in 1542 at present-day San Diego Bay. With his crew, Cabríllo explored the shorelines of present Catalina Island as well as San Pedro and Santa Monica bays. Much of the present California and Oregon coastline was mapped and recorded in the next half-century by Spanish naval officer Sebastián Vizcaíno. Vizcaíno's crew also landed on Santa Catalina Island and at San Pedro and Santa Monica bays, giving each location its long-standing name. The Spanish crown laid claim to California based on the surveys conducted by Cabríllo and Vizcaíno (Bancroft 1886:96–99; Gumprecht 2001:35).

More than 200 years passed before Spain began the colonization and inland exploration of Alta California. The 1769 overland expedition by Captain Gaspar de Portolá marks the beginning of California's Historic period, occurring just after the King of Spain installed the Franciscan Order to direct religious and colonization matters in assigned territories of the Americas. With a band of 64 soldiers, missionaries, Baja (lower) California Native Americans, and Mexican civilians, Portolá established the Presidio of San Diego, a fortified military outpost, as the first Spanish settlement in Alta California. In July 1769, while Portolá was exploring Southern California, Franciscan Fr. Junípero Serra founded Mission San Diego de Alcalá at

Presidio Hill, the first of the 21 missions that would be established in Alta California by the Spanish and the Franciscan Order between 1769 and 1823.

The Portolá expedition first reached the present-day boundaries of Los Angeles in August 1769, thereby becoming the first Europeans to visit the area. Father Juan Crespí, a member of the expedition, named the campsite by the river Nuestra Señora la Reina de los Angeles de la Porciúncula or "Our Lady the Queen of the Angeles of the Porciúncula." Two years later, Fr. Junípero Serra returned to the valley to establish a Catholic mission, the Mission San Gabriel Arcángel, on September 8, 1771 (Engelhardt 1927). In 1781, a group of 11 Mexican families traveled from Mission San Gabriel Arcángel to establish a new pueblo called El Pueblo de la Reyna de Los Angeles ("the Pueblo of the Queen of the Angels"). This settlement consisted of a small group of adobe-brick houses and streets and would eventually be known as the Ciudad de Los Angeles ("City of Angels").

A major emphasis during the Spanish period in California was the construction of missions and associated presidios to integrate the Native American population into Christianity and communal enterprise. Incentives were also provided to bring settlers to pueblos or towns, but just three pueblos were established during the Spanish period, only two of which were successful and remain as California cities (San José and Los Angeles). Several factors kept growth within Alta California to a minimum, including the threat of foreign invasion, political dissatisfaction, and unrest among the indigenous population.

Mexican Period (1822–1848)

After more than a decade of intermittent rebellion and warfare, New Spain (Mexico and the California territory) won independence from Spain in 1821. In 1822, the Mexican legislative body in California ended isolationist policies designed to protect the Spanish monopoly on trade, and decreed California ports open to foreign merchants.

Extensive land grants were established in the interior during the Mexican period, in part to increase the population inland from the more settled coastal areas where the Spanish had first concentrated their colonization efforts. The secularization of the missions following Mexico's independence from Spain resulted in the subdivision of former mission lands and establishment of many additional ranchos.

During the supremacy of the ranchos (1834–1848), landowners largely focused on the cattle industry and devoted large tracts to grazing. Cattle hides became a primary southern California export, providing a commodity to trade for goods from the east and other areas in the United States and Mexico. The number of nonnative inhabitants increased during this period because of the influx of explorers, trappers, and ranchers associated with the land grants. The rising California population contributed to the introduction and rise of diseases foreign to the Native American population, who had no associated immunities.

American Period (1848–Present)

War in 1846 between Mexico and the United States began at the Battle of Chino, a clash between resident Californios and Americans in the San Bernardino area. This battle was a defeat for the Americans and bolstered the Californios' resolve against American rule, emboldening them to continue the offensive in later battles at Dominguez Field and in San Gabriel (Beattie 1942). However, this early skirmish was not a sign of things to come and the Americans were ultimately the victors of this two-year war. The Mexican–American War officially ended with the Treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo in 1848, which resulted in the annexation of California and much of the present-day southwest, ushering California into its American period.

California officially became a state with the Compromise of 1850, which also designated Utah and New Mexico (with present-day Arizona) as U.S. territories. Horticulture and livestock, based primarily on cattle

as the currency and staple of the rancho system, continued to dominate the southern California economy through 1850s. The Gold Rush began in 1848; with the influx of people seeking gold, cattle were no longer desired mainly for their hides, but also as a source of meat and other goods. During the 1850s cattle boom, rancho vaqueros drove large herds from southern to northern California to feed that region's burgeoning mining and commercial boom. Cattle were at first driven along major trails or roads such as the Gila Trail or Southern Overland Trail, then were transported by trains when available. The cattle boom ended for southern California as neighbor states and territories drove herds to northern California at reduced prices. Operation of the huge ranchos became increasingly difficult, and droughts severely reduced their productivity (Cleland 1941).

On April 4, 1850, only two years after the Mexican–American War and five months prior to California's achieving statehood, Los Angeles was officially incorporated as an American city. Settlement of the Los Angeles region continued steadily throughout the Early American period. Los Angeles County was established on February 18, 1850, one of 27 counties established in the months prior to California's acquiring official statehood in the United States. At that time, the city was bordered on the north by the Los Felis and the San Rafael Land Grants and on the south by the San Antonio Luge Land Grant. Many of the ranchos in the area now known as Los Angeles County remained intact after the United States took possession of California; however, a severe drought in the 1860s resulted in many of the ranchos being sold or otherwise acquired by Americans. Most of these ranchos were subdivided into agricultural parcels or towns (Dumke 1944).

Ranching retained its importance through the mid-nineteenth century, and by the late 1860s, Los Angeles was one of the top dairy production centers in the country (Rolle 2003). By 1876, the county had a population of 30,000 (Dumke 1944:7). Los Angeles maintained its role as a regional business center, and the development of citriculture in the late 1800s and early 1900s further strengthened this status (Caughey and Caughey 1977). These factors, combined with the expansion of port facilities and railroads throughout the region, contributed to the impact of the real estate boom of the 1880s on Los Angeles (Caughey and Caughey 1977; Dumke 1944). By the late 1800s, government leaders recognized the need for water to sustain the growing population in the Los Angeles area. Irish immigrant William Mulholland personified the City's efforts for a stable water supply (Dumke 1944; Nadeau 1997). By 1913, the City of Los Angeles had purchased large tracts of land in the Owens Valley, and Mulholland planned and completed the construction of the 240-mile aqueduct that brought the valley's water to the city (Nadeau 1997).

Los Angeles continued to grow in the twentieth century, in part due to the discovery of oil in the area and its strategic location as a wartime port. The county's mild climate and successful economy continued to draw new residents in the late 1900s, with much of the county transformed from ranches and farms into residential subdivisions surrounding commercial and industrial centers. Hollywood's development into the entertainment capital of the world and southern California's booming aerospace industry were key factors in the county's growth in the twentieth century.

Los Angeles: From Pueblo to City

On September 4, 1781, 44 settlers from Sonora, Mexico, accompanied by the governor, soldiers, mission priests, and several Native Americans, arrived at a site along the Rio de Porciúncula (later renamed the Los Angeles River), which was officially declared El Pueblo de Nuestra Señora de los Angeles de Porciúncula, or the Town of Our Lady of the Angels of Porciúncula (Robinson 1979:238; Ríos-Bustamante 1992; Weber 1980). The site chosen for the new pueblo was elevated on a broad terrace 0.8 km (0.5 mile) west of the river (Gumprecht 2001). By 1786, the area's abundant resources allowed the pueblo to attain self-sufficiency, and funding by the Spanish government ceased.

Efforts to develop ecclesiastical property in the pueblo began as early as 1784 with the construction of a small chapel northwest of the plaza. Though little is known about this building, it was located at the pueblo's original central square near the corner of present-day Cesar Chavez Avenue and North Broadway (Newcomb 1980:67–68; Owen 1960:7). Following continued flooding, however, the pueblo was relocated to its current location on higher ground, and the new town plaza soon emerged.

Alta California became a state in 1821, and the town slowly grew as the removal of economic restrictions attracted settlers to Los Angeles. The population continued to expand throughout the Mexican period and on April 4, 1850, only 2 years after the Mexican–American War and 5 months prior to California earning statehood, the City of Los Angeles was formally incorporated. Los Angeles maintained its role as a regional business center in the early American period and the transition of many former rancho lands to agriculture, as well as the development of citriculture in the late 1800s, further strengthened this status (Caughey and Caughey 1977). These factors, combined with the expansion of port facilities and railroads throughout the region, contributed to the real estate boom of the 1880s in Los Angeles (Caughey and Caughey 1977; Dumke 1944).

Newcomers poured into the city, nearly doubling the population between 1870 and 1880, resulting in an increased demand for public transportation options. At the end of the nineteenth century numerous privately owned passenger rail lines were in place. Though early lines were horse and mule drawn, they were soon replaced by cable cars in the early 1880s and by electric cars in the late 1880s and early 1890s. Many of these early lines were subsequently consolidated into Henry E. Huntington's Los Angeles Railway Company (LARy) in 1898, which reconstructed and expanded the system into the twentieth century and became the main streetcar system for central Los Angeles, identified by their iconic "yellow cars." During this period, Huntington also developed the much larger Pacific Electric system (also known as the "red cars") to serve the greater Los Angeles area. Just as the horse-and-buggy street cars were replaced by electric cars along the same routes, gas-powered buses (coaches) eventually served former yellow car routes. Both the red cars and LARy served Los Angeles until they were eventually discontinued in the early 1960s.

Los Angeles continued to grow outward from the city core in the twentieth century in part due to the discovery of oil and its strategic location as a wartime port. The military presence led to the growth in the aviation and eventually aerospace industries in the city and region. Hollywood became the entertainment capital of the world through the presence of the film and television industries and continues to tenuously maintain that position. With nearly 4 million residents, Los Angeles is the second largest city in the United States (by population), and it remains a city with worldwide influence that continues to struggle with its population's growth and needs.

Historical Development of the Arts District Neighborhood

Maps and illustrations depicting pre-1880s Los Angeles capture an important, pre-industrial phase of the city's history, before small farms gave way to residential, commercial, and industrial developments. These documents depict the Project site within what was, for most of the nineteenth century, one of several abutting agricultural properties—mostly vineyards, but also fruit and nut trees—located immediately south of the city's historic core and west of the Los Angeles River (Figure 10–Figure 12). Farms in this area varied in size and shape—ranging up to approximately 50 acres with boundaries defined within a non-linear street grid—and were irrigated by water from Zanja Nos. 1, 2, 3, and 4. The 1880s population boom resulted quickly in the subdivision of these small farms into lots, which were sold for primarily residential and commercial properties.

Through the late 1890s and first decade of the twentieth century, the area showed signs of residential development within what is now known as the Arts District neighborhood. By 1906, the Project site was

mostly developed—only two lots of the block remained undeveloped. The Wood and Iron Preserving Company and the Los Angeles Cooperage Company are among some of the industrial facilities nearby. However, larger scale industrial and commercial developments quickly came to define the area. The rapid industrialization of the neighborhood was heavily influence by its proximity to several railways and freight depots. Atchison, Topeka, and Santa Fe (AT&SF) Railway, built in 1887, ran just east of the Project site along the Los Angeles River, while Southern Pacific Railway tracks ran along Alameda Street to the west. By 1906 a rail line extended west from the main AT&SF railroad through Sacramento Street, and another along the southern edge of Violet Street, splitting into eight different spurs by the time it reached Wilson Avenue. The City Council's decision to create an industrial district between Main Street and the river, and subsequent zoning changes in the 1910s quickened the conversion of the area into a fully industrial sector, with few remaining residences and an increasing number of manufacturers establishing warehouses and other facilities (Bray and Strauss 2015). Smaller gauge railroad spurs were constructed along many of the smaller streets to connect each block to the primary rail lines. By the 1930s very few dwellings or residential buildings remained in the neighborhood otherwise characterized by commercial properties such as restaurants, drug stores, and general stores situated between industrial facilities. As is the case with several of the former dwellings once located in the Project site, many of the houses were relocated from the Arts District area to other locations in the city.

With the growth in automobile sales and the demise of Los Angeles's public transportation system, many of the freight railroads and light-rail passenger trains gave way to the trucking industry, bus lines, and personal automobiles. The 2016 SurveyLA report on the Central City North Community Plan Area by the Historic Resource Group (HRG) describes the post-1950s development of the Arts District neighborhood as follows (footnotes in the original are converted here to in-text citations):

By the 1960s, however, the character of the area was evolving away from that of an industrial center. Industry on the whole struggled to adapt to the postwar challenges of containerization and other new technologies (Los Angeles Conservancy 2016). Railroads had given way to the trucking industry, and businesses in the area were constrained by the physical demands such methods placed on their operations. Furthermore, outlying fledgling industrial centers such as Vernon and the City of Commerce were comparatively undeveloped and offered plentiful land at lower prices, presenting many companies with an opportunity to relocate and construct newer and more efficient facilities (Miller 2014:28). As a result, by the 1970s many buildings in the industrial district were vacant.

However, the area found new life as artists and other creative types began to congregate amidst the vacant buildings and empty lots. Priced out of established artists' colonies in neighborhoods such as Venice and Hollywood, Los Angeles' industrial district provided many with an opportunity to live and work inexpensively in vast warehouse buildings (Los Angeles Conservancy 2016). Soon, the area was home to a number of avant-garde art galleries, giving rise to the group of early artists now called the "Young Turks" (Miller 2014). Many of the area's most prominent industrial buildings found new life as gallery space and underground hangouts for a burgeoning art and music scene. In 1981, the City of Los Angeles implemented the Artist-in-Residence Program, which legalized the residential use of formerly industrial buildings for artists, legitimizing their efforts (Los Angeles Conservancy 2016). In the mid-1990s, the area was officially designated as the Arts District by the City. A subsequent wave of development began in 1999 with the passage of the Adaptive Reuse Ordinance which relaxed zoning codes and allowed for the conversion of pre-1974 commercial and industrial buildings into residences for artists and non-artists alike (Los Angeles Conservancy 2016). (HRG 2016:14–15)

Historical Development of the Project Site

The Project site is located within the original limits of the City of Los Angeles patent boundary and on the southern periphery the city's historic core, centered around the pueblo site and plaza (Figure 10 and Figure 13). The first survey maps of the city were made first by Lieutenant E. O. C. Ord in 1849 and then updated and expanded by Henry Hancock and George Hanson in 1853 and 1857. According to these maps, the Project site is situated on what was the southern periphery of agricultural lands established in the Los Angeles River floodplain, outside the historic core (Figure 10). Although there is some margin of error when plotting these early survey maps on a contemporary street map, the Project site appears to have been located partially within or near a former agricultural plot identified on Ord's map as a corn field, outside of which was undeveloped land within the floodplain. As discussed above, the agricultural fields were irrigated through a series of ditches known as zanjas, which were formally managed as part of a water conveyance system established by the Spanish.

With the transition from agricultural to urban setting, streets and property lines in this part of the city were partly established according to the boundaries of the former agricultural plots. For example, the northern edge of the agricultural field mapped near the Project site became 7th Street, and its western edge became a smaller arterial street known Lemon Street (now Wilson Street). By the mid-1800s the agricultural field in which the Project site is plotted on earlier maps was subdivided into two properties: a northern half owned by J. Kiefer, and a southern half, which includes the Project site, owned by Lorezo Leck, a German merchant who came to Los Angeles in 1849. The 1880s population boom in Los Angeles quickly manifested in the sale and subdivision of agricultural properties like Leck and Kiefer's. The Project site was developed as part of the Hiscock and Smiths First Addition Tract. Sale of parcels within the Hiscock and Smiths First Addition Tract had commenced by 1900, at which point residential developments had already begun in the adjacent areas. Rowan and Koeberle's 1886 city map shows the various lots delineated within the tract. The development of this tract established Sacramento and Bay Streets, which have remained in the same alignment to the present day.

Review of Sanborn Fire Insurance maps, newspaper articles, building permits, and the City Directory document the development of the Project site as part of a residential block, before conversion to its use as a service station or truck yard from about 1891 to 1938. The first Sanborn Fire Insurance maps showing the Project site were published in 1900 and show five single-story dwellings located in Lots 78-82 and two detached structures at the back of Lots 80 and 79 (Figure 17). The construction dates for the dwellings are not known but based on review of the City Directories, it appears they were constructed as early as 1891. The Sanborn map from 1910 shows all but one of the lots in the Project site was developed with singlestory dwellings, as were most of the lots in the block. Street car maps show the Project site being served by a line as early as 1910 that ran along Mateo Street as part of the Los Angeles Railway Company's Santa Fe Avenue Line before becoming the "J" Line in 1920. All 14 of the residential buildings present in the 1910 Sanborn map were also still present in the 1921 when the Baist Real Estate map was published, but by 1927 the entire south half of the Project site was vacant and the northern half was almost entirely re-developed with commercial and industrial buildings (Figure 18). Several building permits approved in 1925 indicate that at least six of the dwellings were relocated. By 1930, Lot 78 (2016 Bay Street) contained the only dwelling in the Project site and was either relocated or demolished by 1938. Aerial photographs from 1927 to 1938 show that all but Lots 80, 82, and 84 remained largely vacant and unpaved (Figure 18); Lots 80, 82, and 84 were developed with what appear to have been six industrial buildings, plus a small restaurant located at 1010–1012 Mateo Street that Sanborn maps indicate was present at least until the mid-1950s.

In the early 1950s the Project site was developed as a storage, repair, and re-fueling yard for the Transfer Company. A certificate of completion was issued from the City in 1941 for a service station located at 2007 Sacramento Street, within Lots 81 and 83. The storage shed structure currently in the southeast corner of the Project site (Lot 73) can be seen in aerial photographs beginning in 1948. It was likely constructed

around the same time the Project site was being redeveloped in the early 1940s, and was likely re-purposed for various uses throughout the history of the Project site. After 1950 storage buildings in Lots 80 and 82 and an auto shop in Lots 77 and 79 were demolished. By 1956 only the office building located in the northwest corner of the Project site (Lot 87, 1000 Mateo Street) and possibly the restaurant were the only remaining structures constructed before 1950. Between 1953 and 1958 a small office building was also present in the middle of the Project site (behind the restaurant). In the 1950s railway spurs had been constructed along Sacramento Street, south of the Project site, connecting to the Southern Pacific Railroad Company tracks along Alameda Street. In the early 1960s the service station was still in operation and an auto laundry facility was present in the southeastern portion of the Project site within Lots 73 and 75.

RESULTS

CHRIS Records Search

Previously Conducted Studies

Results of the records search at the SCCIC indicate that 37 cultural resource studies have been conducted within 0.8 km (0.5 mile) of the Project site. Only one of these studies, LA-13239—a map study of the zanja system—directly intersects the Project site but does not have any relevance to the analysis of tribal cultural resources. The results of this search are summarized below in Table 1.

| SCCIC Report Number | Title | Study Type | Author: Affiliation | Year | Relationship to Project Site |
|---------------------------|--|--------------------------------|---|------|------------------------------------|
| LA- 02577 | Results of a Records Search Phase Conducted for the Proposed Alameda Corridor Project, Los Angeles County, California | Literature search | Wlodarski, Robert J.: Historical, Environmental, Archaeological, Research, Team | 1992 | Outside |
| LA- 02644 | The Results of a Phase 1 Archaeological Study for the Proposed Alameda Transportation Corridor Project, Los Angeles County, California | Archaeological, Field study | Wlodarski, Robert J.: Historical, Environmental, Archaeological, Research, Team | 1992 | Outside |
| LA- 02788 | Archaeological Literature and Records Review, and Impact Analysis for the Eastside Corridor Alternatives Los Angeles, California | Literature search | Brown, Joan C.: RMW Paleo Associates, Inc. | 1992 | Outside |
| LA- 02950 | Consolidated Report: Cultural Resource Studies for the Proposed Pacific Pipeline Project | Archaeological, Field study | Anonymous: Peak & Associates, Inc. | 1992 | Outside |
| LA- 03103 | Cultural Resources Impact Mitigation Program Angeles Metro Red Line Segment 1 | Monitoring | Greenwood, Roberta S. | 1993 | Outside |
| LA- 03115 | Addendum Report: Results of a Phase 1 Archaeological Study of the Proposed Construction of the Whittier Boulevard Shaft Site East Central Interceptor Sewer Project, East-west Alignment, Los Angeles County | Archaeological, Field study | Wlodarski, Robert J.: Historical, Environmental, Archaeological, Research, Team | 1995 | Outside |

| SCCIC Report Number | Title | Study Type | Author: Affiliation | Year | Relationship to Project Site |
|---------------------------|--|---|--|------|------------------------------------|
| LA- 03813 | An Archival Study of a Segment of the Proposed Pacific Pipeline, City of Los Angeles, California | Literature search | Anonymous: Peak & Associates, Inc. | 1992 | Outside |
| LA- 04044 | Environmental Impact Report: Seismic Retrofit of Olympic Boulevard and North Broadway Bridges Over the Angeles River | Management/ planning | Unknown: City of Los Angeles | 1995 | Outside |
| LA- 04074 | Sixth Street Viaduct Over Los Angeles River Earthquake Damages - W.O. E6000000 Determination of Effect Report | Architectural/ historical | Ohara, Cindy L.: City of Los Angeles | 1989 | Outside |
| LA- 04220 | Seismic Retrofit of Olympic Boulevard Bridge Over the Los Angeles River | Architectural/ historical | Lee, Portia | n.d. | Outside |
| LA- 04625 | Historic Property Survey Report for the Proposed Alameda Corridor from the Ports of Long Beach and Los Angeles to Downtown Los Angeles in Los Angeles County, California | Other research | Starzak, Richard: Myra L. Frank & Associates | 1994 | Outside |
| LA- 04834 | Cultural Resources Inventory Report for Williams Communications, Inc. Proposed Fiber Optic Cable System Installation Project, Los Angeles to Anaheim, Los Angeles and Orange Counties | Archaeological, Field study | Ashkar, Shahira: Jones & Stokes Associates, Inc. | 1999 | Outside |
| LA- 04835 | Cultural Resources Inventory Report for Williams Communications, Inc. Proposed Fiber Optic Cable System Installation Project, Los Angeles to Riverside, Los Angeles and Riverside Counties | Archaeological, Field study | Ashkar, Shahira: Jones & Stokes Associates, Inc. | 1999 | Outside |
| LA- 04883 | Negative Archaeological Survey Report - Highway Project Description | Archaeological, Field study | Storey, Noelle: Caltrans | 2000 | Outside |
| LA- 05430 | Cultural Resource Assessment for Pacific Bell Wireless Facility Sm 003-02, County of Los Angeles, Ca | Archaeological, Field study | Duke, Curt: LSA Associates, Inc. | 2000 | Outside |
| LA- 06348 | Cultural Resource Assessment for Pacific Bell Wireless Facility Sm 003-02, County of Los Angeles, California | Archaeological, Field study | Duke, Curt: LSA Associates, Inc. | 2000 | Outside |
| LA- 06837 | Cultural Resources Monitoring: Northeast Interceptor Sewer Project | Monitoring | Greenwood, Roberta S.: Greenwood and Associates | 2003 | Outside |
| LA- 07425 | City of Los Angeles Monumental Bridges 1900-1950: Historic Context and Evaluation Guidelines | Architectural/ historical, Evaluation | McMorris, Christopher: JRP Historical Consulting | 2004 | Outside |

| SCCIC Report Number | Title | Study Type | Author: Affiliation | Year | Relationship to Project Site |
|---------------------------|--|--|--|------|------------------------------------|
| LA- 07427 | Caltrans Historic Bridge Inventory Update: Metal Truss, Movable, and Steel Arch Bridges | Architectural/ historical, Evaluation | McMorris, Christopher: JRP Historical Consulting | 2004 | Outside |
| LA- 08252 | Request for Determination of Eligibility for Inclusion in the National Register of Historic Places/Historic Bridges in California: Concrete Arch, Suspension, Steel Girder and Steel Arch | Architectural/ historical, Evaluation, Other research | Snyder, John W., Stephen Mikesell, and Pierzinski: Caltrans | 1986 | Outside |
| LA- 08733 | Cultural Resources Records Search Results and Site Visit for Sprint Nextel Telecommunications Facility Candidate Ca8283e (van Wyck) 601 South Santa Fe Avenue, Los Angeles, Los Angeles County, California | Archaeological, Field study | Bonner, Wayne H. and Sarah A. Williams: Michael Brandman Associates | 2006 | Outside |
| LA- 09110 | Cultural Resources Records Search and Site Visit Results for Sprint Nextel Candidate LA73XC116B (Hardwood), South Santa Fe Avenue, Los Angeles, Los Angeles County, California | Archaeological, Field study | Bonner, Wayne H.: Michael Brandman Associates | 2007 | Outside |
| LA- 09271 | Archaeological Resources Assessment and Evaluation of "Maintenance of Way" Building for the Asphalt Plant No. 1 Street Services Truck Route Project City of Los Angeles, California | | Strauss, Monica, Candace Ehringer, and Angel Tomes: EDAW, Inc | 2007 | Outside |
| LA- 10451 | Finding of Effect - 6th Street Viaduct Seismic Improvement Project | Architectural/ historical | Chasteen, Carrie: Parsons | 2008 | Outside |
| LA- 10452 | Historical Resources Evaluation Report - 6th Street Viaduct Seismic Improvement Project | | Smith, Francesca: Parsons | 2007 | Outside |
| LA- 10506 | Cultural Resources Monitoring: North Outfall Sewer - East Central Interceptor Sewer Project | Monitoring | Greenwood, Roberta S., Scott Savastio, and Peter Messick: Greenwood and Associates | 2004 | Outside |
| LA- 10638 | Preliminary Historical/ Archaeological Resources Study, Southern California Regional Rail Authority (SCRRA) River Subdivision Positive Train Control Project, City of Los Angeles, Los Angeles County, California | Archaeological, Field study | Tang, Bai "Tom": CRM Tech | 2010 | Outside |

| SCCIC Report Number | Title | Study Type | Author: Affiliation | Year | Relationship to Project Site |
|---------------------------|---|--|---|------|------------------------------------|
| LA- 10789 | Cultural Resources Technical Report for the Olympic and Mateo Street Improvements Project, City of Los Angeles, Los Angeles County, California | Archaeological, Field study | Carmack, Shannon and Cheryle Hunt: SWCA Environmental Consultants | 2010 | Outside |
| LA- 10887 | Historic Property Survey Report for the North Outfall Sewer-East Central Interceptor Sewer, City of Los Angeles, County of Los Angeles, California | Other research | Starzak, Richard, Alma Carlisle, Gail Miller, Catherine Barner, and Jessica Feldman: Myra L. Frank& Associates, Inc. | 2001 | Outside |
| LA- 11048 | American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Funded Security Enhancement Project (PRJ29112359) - Improved Access Controls, Station Hardening, CCTV Surveillance System, and Airborne Particle Detection at Los Angeles Station and Maintenance Yard, LA, CA | Archaeological, Field study | Speed, Lawrence: URS | 2009 | Outside |
| LA- 11166 | Archaeological Monitoring Report - Asphalt Plant No. 1 Project, 2484 East Olympic Boulevard, Los Angeles, California | Monitoring | Slawson, Dana N.: Greenwood and Associates | 2011 | Outside |
| LA- 11409 | Construction Phase Cultural Resources Monitoring and Treatment Plan for the City of Los Angeles North Outfall - East Central Interceptor Sewer Project | Management/ planning, Monitoring | Horne, Melinda C.: Myra L. Frank & Associates | 2000 | Outside |
| LA- 11618 | Los Angeles Wholesale Terminal Market Historic Resource Report | Architectural/ historical, Evaluation, Other research | Grimes, Teresa, Jessica MacKenzie, and Jessica Fatone: Christopher A. Joseph & Associates | 2007 | Outside |
| LA- 11642 | Westside Subway Extension Project, Historic Properties and Archaeological Resources Supplemental Survey Technical Reports | Archaeological, Field study, Other research | Daly, Pam and Nancy Sikes: Cogstone | 2012 | Outside |
| LA- 11785 | Final Environmental Impact Statement/Final Environmental Impact Report for the Westside Subway Extension | Management/ planning | Rogers, Leslie: U.S. Department of Transportation Fedreral Transit Admin. & LA County Metro Transit Authority | 2012 | Outside |
| LA- 12586 | Archaeological Survey Report for the 6th Street Viaduct Improvement Project City of Los Angeles Los Angeles County, California | Archaeological, Architectural/ Historical, Evaluation, Field study | Glenn, Brian and Patrick Maxon: BonTerra Consulting | 2008 | Outside |
| LA- 13239 | Extent of Zanja Madre | Map Only | Gust, Sherri: Cogstone | 2017 | Within |

Previously Recorded Resources

The CHRIS records search identified a total of five previously documented archaeological resources within a 0.8-km (0.5-mile) radius of the Project site. None of the sites include components that could be considered a tribal cultural resource. The closest sites that with physical remains that could be reliably associated with Native Americans are located approximately 1.5 miles north of the Project site, near Union Station and the MWD Headquarters building (Figure 20³). These include four sites: P-19-00007, P-19-001575/H, P-19-004662, and P-19-100515. Of these sites, only P-19-001575/H included a large and diverse assemblage of artifacts and features, which included human remains, in a location that largely retained its physical integrity. Archaeological data recovery was conducted for the site and the results were published by Goldberg et al. (1999). Although P-19-001575/H is in the purported location of the Gabrielino village known as Yaanga, Goldberg et al. did not identify conclusive evidence to support the association. Rather, scholarly research suggests Yaanga was likely located across a wide zone between the Los Angeles plaza and present-day Union Station, approximately 2.1 km (1.3 miles) north-northwest of the Project site. The materials identified at P-19-00007, P-19-004662, and P-19-100515 include only isolated artifacts recovered from settings subject to extensive disturbances, both from historical developments and flooding along the Los Angeles River, which posed significant constraints on the ability of the resources to provide important scientific information and contribute to our understanding of Native American lifeways.

Archival Research

Archival research concentrated on determining existing disturbances to the Project site that could influence tribal cultural resources preservation potential. Beginning at least by 1849, historical maps indicate the Project site or at least portions were likely plowed and planted as a corn field. The Project site and surrounding area was subsequent developed as a residential block between the 1890s and 1910s, which was then subject to multiple episodes of redevelopment through the twentieth century as the area transitioned into an industrial sector. With the exception of the structure currently located in the southeast corner of the Project site, all former buildings and structures in the Project site were demolished and the building that currently occupies the Project site was constructed.

The historical sequence of construction and demolition has altered the surface and near surface within the Project site. Geotechnical work conducted for the Project (currently underway) estimates up to 2 feet of artificial fill within the Project site. Variations likely exist in the depth of the Historic-period disturbances, which include several locations where sub-surface structures once existed or are still present. These are described in the Project's Phase I ESA prepared by Environmental Managers & Auditors, Inc. (Mahmood 2015). The report identified extant and former buildings and structures associated with the historical uses, which include a wash rack with a clarifier, grease pit, above-ground storage tank, and at least two underground storage tanks (USTs). A 1975 grading permit for the storage tank backfill was approved but did not specify whether the tanks would be or already had been removed. The Phase I ESA concluded that additional work was required to assess the presence or absence of these subsurface structures, and a Phase II ESA and geophysical survey were conducted (Feldman 2015; Johannes 2015).

As a result of this work, the presence of several subsurface anomalies was identified and seemed to coincide with a previous service pump station, storage buildings, hydraulic hoists, and a grease pit (Figure 19). None of the anomalies were found to be consistent with the presence of any USTs, which seem to confirm that the USTs had been removed and backfilled when the 1975 permit was issued (Johannes 2015:3–4). The geophysical survey concluded that anomalies were reliably detected to a depth of 8 feet below grade, except

³ This figure contains confidential site location information that is included in a confidential appendix (Appendix B), which is excluded from public drafts of this report.

where constraints prevented any investigation (Feldman 2015:5). Interpretations of the geophysical survey data and findings in the Phase II ESA with respect to tribal cultural resources sensitivity are discussed below (see Sensitivity Assessment).

NATIVE AMERICAN COORDINATION

Sacred Lands File Search

On April 25, 2019, SWCA received the results of a Sacred Lands File (SLF) search from the NAHC. The NAHC letter indicated negative results. The NAHC letter is included in Appendix B.

SENSITIVITY ASSESSMENT

No tribal cultural resources were identified in a CHRIS records search within the project site and a 0.5-mile radius. The SLF records search did not identify any sacred lands or sites in the project site. The closest known sites with Native American-affiliated materials on file at the CHRIS are mapped in approximately 1.5 miles north of the Project site, between the Los Angeles Plaza, Union Station, and MWD Headquarters building. The Gabrielino village known as Yaanga and several other important Historic-period Gabrielino sites (e.g., Pueblito. Rancheria de los Poblanos, and two unnamed rancherias) were located in the same approximate area, more than 1 mile from the Project site.

The Project site is located in the floodplain of the Los Angeles River, which is currently located approximately 0.4 km (0.25 miles) to the east of the Project site. Shifts in the main channel of the Los Angeles River have occurred numerous times in recorded history, including two significant shifts in 1815 and 1825, the most recent which realigned the channel to its current location. The significance of the Los Angeles River to the Gabrielino is well-documented in ethnographic works and oral history. Waterways likely also influenced the location of footpaths and travel corridors used by foragers, increasing the likelihood that temporary camps may have been located within these travel corridors. The general proximity of the Project site to areas of known habitation, the river, and broad travel corridors has the effect of an overall increase in the sensitivity for unknown tribal cultural resources, at least higher than low background levels, particularly for the physical remains of temporary open camps. Such camps are typically identified by the presence of hearth features, ground stone and other types of artifact assemblages.

Additional criteria are required to distinguish levels of sensitivity for tribal cultural resource potential. Specifically, the scale of the Project site, land use history, depositional (soil) setting, and existing subsurface disturbances must also be considered and given weight in determining the sensitivity. Beginning at least by 1849, the Project site or at least portions were likely plowed and planted as a corn field. Subsequent development as a residential block between the 1890s and 1910s, and multiple episodes of redevelopment through the twentieth century would have displaced any former tribal cultural resources that were once present on the surface or near surface. This significantly reduces the sensitivity for tribal cultural resources within the Project site but does not preclude the potential for tribal cultural resources to be preserved as more deeply buried sites.

Tribal cultural resources can be preserved as deeply buried deposits that underlay Historic-period disturbances, particularly in Quaternary alluvium—soils deposited through flood events between 11,700 and 1000 years ago. It has been demonstrated elsewhere in the downtown portion of Los Angeles that deeply buried Native American archaeological sites can exist within alluvium below Historic-period disturbances and may also be intermixed with Historic-period debris. Alluvial deposits within the Los Angeles Basin can be massive, extending hundreds of feet below the surface, and may contain sediments deposited before human occupation of North America. Furthermore, most accumulations of alluvial sediments in the Los Angeles Basin were formed by a combination of high- and low-energy depositional

events. High-energy events are less likely to have preserved any material remains left on the surface by Native Americans, while low-energy floods tend to produce more favorable environments for the preservation of cultural materials. Thus, low-energy Quaternary alluvial sediments have the greatest potential for preserving tribal cultural resources. There is no absolute measure of depth below the surface in which sediments with these properties occur and site-specific conditions must be considered. Also, such soil conditions are an indicator of a setting favorable for preservation, but the presence of soils with these properties is not an absolute indicator of tribal cultural resources presence.

Preliminary geotechnical work at the Project site reports up to 2 feet of artificial fill present within the Project site. Prior soil testing included four samples taken at 5-foot intervals to a depth of 30 feet below grade. The sediment profiles described multiple alluvial layers of fine-grained sand and silty sand, some with gravel inclusions, extending down to 10 to 30 feet. Below this the soil consisted of poorly graded sand. Three of the bores identified a stratum of decomposing granite mixed with sand between 15 and 25 feet below the surface. This is typical of deposits within the Los Angeles River floodplain and reflects a mixture of high- and low-energy deposition. Although subtle variations may exist within the alluvial substratum that were not distinguished here, which could have relevance for tribal cultural resource preservation potential, SWCA interprets the disturbances from flood events represented in the soil profiles as having a net reduction in the sensitivity for tribal cultural resources. To the extent that the proposed ground disturbance extends into undisturbed alluvial soils buried beneath previously disturbed sediments, there may be some potential for preservation, but it is considered very unlikely for any tribal cultural resource to be present.

Based on the above considerations, SWCA finds a **low potential for encountering tribal cultural resources** within the Project site.

CONCLUSION

The CHRIS search identified no previously recorded tribal cultural resources within the project site or 0.5mile radius. An ethnographic literature review and archival research identified several former Native American communities located between 0.5 and 1.5 miles to the east-northeast of the project site, near the Los Angeles Plaza, Union Station, and eastern portions of the downtown area. The NAHC's search of the SLF did not identify any sacred lands or sites.

Ground disturbances for the project will occur during the proposed demolition, site preparation, and grading phases. Grading is estimated to require up to 25 feet of excavation below the surrounding street elevation that will extend into the underlying alluvial soils. SWCA assessed the potential for an unidentified tribal cultural resource to be present below the surface that could be encountered during the proposed ground disturbing activities. Although the location near the Los Angeles River, south of a known area of habitation would have provided generally favorable setting for Native American use, prehistorically and during the Historic period, the existing disturbances from the agricultural, residential, and industrial development of the Project site, plus flooding events prior to these developments would have likely destroyed any tribal cultural resources that may have once been present. Although deeply buried deposits are possible, they are considered to have a very low probability of occurring within the Project site. As a result, the potential for unidentified tribal cultural resources within the project site is found to be low.

The project is subject to the City's standard condition of approval for the inadvertent discovery of tribal cultural resources, which requires construction be halted and California Native American tribes be consulted on treatment. Though unlikely, if present, any unidentified tribal cultural resources have the potential to be significant under CEQA. However, based on the condition of approval, any potential impacts would be reduced to less than significant. Therefore, SWCA finds that the project will have less-than-significant impacts to tribal cultural resources.

REFERENCES CITED

Altschul, Jeffrey H., John G. Douglass, Richard Ciolek-Torrello, Sarah Van Galder, Benjamin R. Vargas, Kathleen L. Hull, Donn R. Grenda, Jeffrey Homburg, Manuel Palacios-Fest, Steven Shelley, Angela Keller, and David Maxwell

- 2007 Life at the Nexus of the Wetlands and Coastal Prairie, West Los Angeles. *Proceedings of the* Society for California Archaeology 20:34–42.
- Ashby, G. E., and J. W. Winterbourne
 - 1966 A Study of Primitive Man in Orange County and Some of Its Coastal Areas. *Pacific Coast Archaeological Society Quarterly* 2(1):5–52.
- Bancroft, Hubert Howe
 - 1886 *History of California, Volume 1, 1542-1800.* The History Company Publishers, San Francisco, California.
- Bean, Lowell J., and Charles R. Smith
 - 1978 Gabrielino. In *California*, edited by Robert F. Heizer, pp. 538–549. Handbook of North American Indians, Vol. 8, William C. Sturtevant, general editor, Smithsonian Institution Press, Washington, DC.

Beattie, George William

1942 Battle of Chino. *The Quarterly: Historical Society of Southern California*. 24(4):143–160.

Bedrossian, Trinda L., CEG, and Peer D. Roffers

2012 Geological Compilation of Quaternary Surficial Deposits in Southern California Los Angeles 30' × 60' Quadrangle. CGS Special Report 217. California Geological Survey

Bedrossian, Trinda L., Peter D. Roffers, Cheryle A. Hayhurst, Jermey T. Lancaster, and William R. Short

2012 Geological Compilation of Quaternary Surficial Deposits in Southern California. CGS Special Report 217. California Geological Survey

Blackburn, Thomas

1963 *Ethnohistoric Descriptions of Gabrielino Material Culture*. Annual Report, Archaeological Survey. University of California, Los Angeles.

Brooks, Sheilagh, Richard A. Brooks, G. E. Kennedy, J. Austin, James R. Firby, Louis A. Payen, Peter J. Slota, Jr., Christine A. Prior, and R. E. Taylor

1990 The Haverty Human Skeletons: Morphological, Depositional, and Geochronological Characteristics. *Journal of California and Great Basin Anthropology* 12(1):60–83.

Buchanan, Diana

2015 Site Characterization Report: 1024 Mateo Street; 2016 Bay Street; 2001, 2005, and 2025 Sacramento Street, Los Angeles, California 90021. Technical report prepared by Anderson Environmental.

Byrd, Brian F., and L. Mark Raab

2007 Prehistory of the Southern Bight: Models for a New Millennium. In *California Prehistory*, edited by Terry L. Jones and Kathryn A. Klar, pp. 215–228. Altimira Press, Lanham, Maryland.

Caughey, John, and LaRee Caughey

1977 Los Angeles, Biography of a City. University of California Press, Berkeley and Los Angeles.

Cleland, Robert Glass

1941 *The Cattle on a Thousand Hills: Southern California, 1850-80.* The Huntington Library, San Marino, California.

Cleland, James H., Andrew L. York, and Lorraine M. Willey

2007 *Piecing Together the Prehistory of Landing Hill: A Place Remembered.* EDAW Cultural Publications No. 3. EDAW, Inc., San Diego, California.

Crandell, John

2010 *Homage to Downtown: In Search of Place and Memory in Ancient L.A.* Visions of L.A., Los Angeles, California.

Dakin, Susanna Bryant

1978 A Scotch Paisano in Old Los Angeles: Hugo Reid's Life in California, 1832-1852 Derived from His Correspondence. Originally published 1939. University of California Press, Berkeley, Los Angeles, and London, United Kingdom.

Dillon, B. D.

1994 *Alameda District Plan, Los Angeles, California: Prehistoric and Early Historic Archaeological Research.* On file, South Central Coastal Information Center, California, Historic Resources Information System, University of California, Los Angeles.

Drover, Christopher E.

- 1971 Three Fired-Clay Figurines from 4-Ora-64, Orange County, California. *Pacific Coast Archaeological Society Quarterly* 7(4):73–86.
- 1975 Early Ceramics from Southern California. *The Journal of California Anthropology* 2(1):101–107.

Dumke, Glenn S.

1944 *The Boom of the Eighties in Southern California*. Huntington Library Publications, San Marino, California.

Elliot, H.B.

1891 Los Angeles, Cal., population of city and environs 65,000. [map] Southern California Land Co., Los Angeles, California. Retrieved from the Library of Congress, https://www.loc.gov/item/75693095/.

Engelhardt, Zephyrin

1927 San Gabriel Mission and the Beginning of Los Angeles. Mission San Gabriel, San Gabriel, California.

Erlandson, Jon M.

1991 Early Maritime Adaptations on the Northern Channel Islands. In *Hunter-Gatherers of Early Holocene Coastal California*, edited by J. M. Erlandson and R. Colten, pp. 101–112. Perspectives in California Archaeology, Vol. 1. Institute of Archaeology, University of California, Los Angeles.

Erlandson, Jon M., Torben C. Rick, Terry L. Jones, and Judith F. Porcasi

2007 One if by Land, Two if by Sea: Who Were the First Californians? In *California Prehistory: Colonization, Culture, and Complexity,* edited by Terry L. Jones and Kathryn A. Klar, pp. 53–62. Altamira Press, Lanham, Maryland.

Feldman, Emily

2015 *Geophysical Investigation at 2016 Bay Street, Los Angeles, California.* Technical report submitted by GeoVision Geophysical Services.

Glassow, Michael A., L. Wilcoxon, and J. M. Erlandson

1988 Cultural and Environmental Change During the Early Period of Santa Barbara Channel Prehistory. In *The Archaeology of Prehistoric Coastlines*, edited by G. Bailey and J. Parkington, pp. 64–77. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, United Kingdom.

Glover, Eli Sheldon

1877 Birds eye view of Los Angeles, California [Map]. Published by A. L. Bancroft & Co., San Francisco, California. Retrieved from the Library of Congress, https://www.loc.gov/item/75693093.

Goldberg, Susan K., B.J. Adams, C. Denardo, S.A. Williams, M.J. Wyss, M.C. Robinson, S.L. Martin, M.S. Shackley, T.M. Oringer, J.L. McVicar, and Beta Analytic Inc

1999 The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California Headquarters Facility Project, The People of Yaanga?: Archaeological Investigations at CA-LAN-1575/H. Report prepared by Applied EarthWorks, Inc., Hemet, California. On-file at the South Central Coastal Information Center, California Status University, Fullerton.

Gumprecht, Blake

2001 *The Los Angeles River: Its Life, Death, and Possible Rebirth.* Johns Hopkins University Press, Baltimore, Maryland.

Hancock, Henry

- 1857 Map of the City Of Los Angeles Showing the Confirmed Limits Surveyed in August 1857 by Henry Hancock U.S. Dep. Survey. Plan de la Ciudad De Los Angeles. Surveyed by E.O.C. Ord, Lt. U.S.A. and Wm. R. Hutton, Assistant, August 29, 1849. Donation Lots Surveyed by H. Hancock in August and April 1853, Geo. Hanson, Asst. Bancroft & Thayer, Los Angeles.
- 1859 *Plat of the City Lands of Los Angeles*. [map] Huntington Library, Solano-Reeve Collection. Unique Digital Identifier 313205.

Hansen, George

1855 *Los Angeles: Vigné Vineyard sold to Barela and Sainsevain*. [map] Huntington Library, Solano-Reeve Collection. Unique Digital Identifier 313167.

Harrington, John P.

1942 Culture Element Distributions: XIX Central California Coast. University of California Anthropological Records 7(1):1–46.

Heizer, Robert F.

1968 *Village Names in Twelve California Mission Records.* Reports of the University of California Archaeological Survey 74.

Hoffman, Abraham and Teena Stern

2007 The Zanjas and the Pioneer Water Systems for Los Angeles. *Southern California Quarterly* 89(1): 1-22.

Johannes, David

2015 Phase II Environmental Site Assessment Report for Commercial Property Located at 1024 Mateo Street, 2016 Bay Street, and 2001, 2005, and 2025 Sacramento Street, within the City of Los Angeles, California. Technical report submitted by Certified Environmental Consultants, Inc.

Johnson, J. R., T. W. Stafford, Jr., H. O. Ajie, and D. P. Morris

2002 Arlington Springs Revisited. In *Proceedings of the Fifth California Islands Symposium*, edited by D. R. Brown, K. C. Mitchell, and H. W. Chaney, pp. 541–545. Santa Barbara Museum of Natural History, Santa Barbara, California.

Johnston, Bernice E.

1962 *California's Gabrielino Indians*. Frederick Webb Hodge Anniversary Publication Fund 8, Southwest Museum, Los Angeles, California.

Jones, Terry L., Richard T. Fitzgerald, Douglas J. Kennett, Charles Miksicek, John L. Fagan, John Sharp, and Jon M. Erlandson

2002 The Cross Creek Site and Its Implications for New World Colonization. *American Antiquity* 67:213–230.

King, Chester D.

1994 Native American Placenames in the Santa Monica Mountains National Recreation Area, Agoura Hills. Topanga Anthropological Consultants, California.

Kirkman, George W.

1938 Kirkman-Harriman Pictorial and Historical Map of Los Angeles County 1860-1937 [Map]. Retrieved from Los Angeles Public Library Online Map Collection. Call Number 91.7941 L88Ki.

Koerper, Henry C., and Christopher E. Drover

1983 Chronology Building for Coastal Orange County: The Case from CA-ORA-119-A. *Pacific Coast Archaeological Society Quarterly* 19(2):1–34.

Koerper, Henry C., Roger D. Mason, and Mark L. Peterson

2002 Complexity, Demography, and Change in Late Holocene Orange County. In *Catalysts to Complexity, Late Holocene Societies of the California Coast*, edited by Jon M. Erlandson

and Terry L. Jones, pp. 63–81. Perspectives in California Archaeology Vol. 6. Costen Institute of Archaeology, University of California, Los Angeles.

Kroeber, Alfred J.

1925 *Handbook of the Indians of California*. Bulletin 78, Bureau of American Ethnology, Smithsonian Institution. Government Printing Office, Washington, DC. Reprinted 1976 by Dover Publications, Inc., New York.

Los Angeles Conservancy.

2016 *The Arts District: History and Architecture in Downtown L.A.* Retrieved from https://www.laconservancy.org (accessed April 2016).

McCawley, William

1996 *The First Angelinos: The Gabrielino Indians of Los Angeles*. Malki-Ballena Press, Banning, California.

Macko, Michael E.

1998 The Muddy Canyon Archaeological Project: Results of Phase II Test Excavations and Phase III Data Recovery Excavations at Archaeological Sites within the Crystal Cove Planned Community, Phase IV, Tentative Tract 15447, San Joaquin Hills, Orange County, California. Report on file, South Central Coastal Information Center, California State University, Fullerton.

Mahmood, Khalid

2015 Phase I Environmental Site Assessment of the Property Located at 2025 Sacramento Street, 1024 Mateo Street and 2016 Bay Street (Also Includes 2001-2005 Sacramento Street) Los Angeles, CA 91402. Technical report submitted by Environmental Managers & Auditors, Inc.

Mason, Roger D., and Mark L. Peterson

1994 Newport Coast Archaeological Project: Newport Coast Settlement Systems–Analysis and Discussion, Vol. 1, part 1 of 2. Prepared by the Keith Companies. Copies on file at the South Central Coastal Information Center, California State University, Fullerton.

Meighan, Clement W.

1954 A Late Complex in Southern California Prehistory. *Southwestern Journal of Anthropology* 10(2):215–227.

Merriam, Clinton Hart

1955 Studies of California Indians. University of California Press. Berkeley, California.

Miller, Lindsey

2014 *Isolation and Authenticity in Los Angeles' Arts District Neighborhood.* Master's thesis, University of Southern California.

Moratto, M. J.

1984 California Archaeology. Academic Press, New York.
Morris, Susan L., John R. Johnson, Steven J. Schwartz, René L. Vellanoweth, Glenn J. Farris, and Sara L. Schwebel

2016 The Nicoleños in Los Angeles: Documenting the Fate of the lone Woman's Community. *Journal of California and Great Basin Anthropology* 36(1):91–118.

Nadeau, Remi

1997 The Water Seekers. 4th ed. Revised. Crest Publishers, Santa Barbara, California.

Nelson, James William, C.J. Zinn, A.T. Strahorn, E.B. Watson, and J.E. Dunn

1919 *Soil Survey of the Los Angeles area, California.* United States Department of Agriculture. Bureau of Soils.

Newcomb, Rexford

1980 Architectural Observations (1822). In *The Old Plaza Church*, compiled and edited by Francis J. Weber, pp. 66–70. Libra Press Limited, Leicestershire, United Kingdom.

Ord, E. O. C.

1849 Plan de la Ciudad De Los Angeles. Surveyed by E.O.C. Ord, Lt. U.S.A. and Wm. R. Hutton, Assistant, August 29, 1849. [Map]

Owen, Thomas J.

1960 The Church by the Plaza: A History of the Pueblo Church of Los Angeles. *The Historical Society of Southern California Quarterly* March:5–28.

Ríos-Bustamante, Antonio

1992 *Mexican Los Angeles: A Narrative and Pictorial History.* Floricanto Press, Mountain View, California.

Robinson, W. W.

1979 Land in California: The Story of Mission Lands, Ranchos, Squatters, Mining Claims, Railroad Grants, Land Scrip, Homesteads. University of California Press, Berkeley.

Rolle, Andrew F.

2003 California A History. Revised and expanded 6th Ed. Harlan Davidson, Wheeling, Illinois.

Rowan, V.J. and T.G. Koeberle

1887 *Map of the City of Los Angeles. California. Compiled From Surveys Made By The City Surveyor During 1886, and from Records On File In The County Recorders Office.* [map] Schmidt Label & Litho Co., San Francisco, California.

Sawyer, William A., and Henry C. Koerper

2006 The San Joaquin Hills Venus: A Ceramic Figurine from CA-ORA-1405-B. In *Contributions* from Orange County Presented in Remembrance of John Peabody Harrington, edited by Henry C. Koerper, pp. 13–34. Coyote Press Archives of California Prehistory No. 53. Coyote Press, Salinas, California.

Southwest Museum

1962 The Gabrielino Indians at the Time of the Portola Expedition. [Map] Los Angeles Public Library Online Map Collection. Call Number R 91.7941 L88Los.

Stevenson, Henry J.

1884 *Map of the City of Los Angeles, California* [Map]. Huntington Library, Rare Book Maps Collection. Unique Digital Identifier 164406.

True, Delbert L.

1993 Bedrock Milling Elements as Indicators of Subsistence and Settlement Patterns in Northern San Diego County, California. *Pacific Coast Archaeological Society Quarterly* 29(2):1–26.

Wallace, W. J.

- 1955 A Suggested Chronology for Southern California Coastal Archaeology. *Southwestern Journal of Anthropology* 11(3):214–230.
- 1978 Post-Pleistocene Archaeology, 9000 to 2000 B.C. In *California*, edited by Robert F. Heizer, pp. 25–36. Handbook of North American Indians Vol. 8, William G. Sturtevant, general editor. Smithsonian Institution, Washington, DC.

Warren, Claude N.

1968 Cultural Tradition and Ecological Adaptation on the Southern California Coast. In Archaic Prehistory in the Western United States, edited by C. Irwin-Williams. Eastern New Mexico University Contributions in Anthropology 1(3):1–14, Portales, New Mexico.

Warren, Claude N., and D. L. True

1961 The San Dieguito Complex and its Place in California Prehistory. *Archaeological Survey Annual Report for 1960-1961*, pp. 246–337. University of California, Los Angeles.

Weber, Francis J.

1980 Nuestra Señora de Los Angeles (1966). In *The Old Plaza Church, A Documentary History,* compiled and edited by Francis J. Weber, pp. 203–211. Libra Press Limited, Hong Kong.

Women's University Club of L.A.

1929 Los Angeles as It Appeared in 1871 [Map]. Issued by the Women's University Club of L.A., California. Library of Congress Control No. 75690623.

Appendix A.

Report Figures

This page intentionally left blank.



Figure 1. Project site plotted on city map of Los Angeles.



Figure 2. Project site with associated parcels on a 2013 aerial and street map.

| ST | Lot 84 1000 S MATEO ST | Lot 82 2006 E BAY ST | Lot 80 2010 E BAY ST | Lot 78 2016 E BAY ST | Lot 76 2018 E BAY ST | | |
|--|---------------------------|---|--------------------------------|--------------------------------|--------------------------------|---|--|
| MATEO | Lot 83 1026 S MATEO ST | Lot 81 2007 E SACRAMENTO ST | Lot 79 2011 E SACRAMENTO ST | Lot 77 2015 E SACRAMENTO ST | Lot 75 2019 E SACRAMENTO ST | Lot 73 2023 E SACRAMENTO ST | |
| SACRAMENTO ST | | | | | | | |
| Streets (Centerl Lots Project Site | ine) | N 0 50 100 Feet 0 15 30 1:750 Lots: City of Los Angeles, Department of Public Works, Bureau of Engineering, Mapping Division http://maps.lacity.org/ NAD 1983 UTM Zone 11N 4/6/2019 | | | eet sters Vorks, | 51 West Dayton Street Pasadena, California 91105 Phone: 626.240.0587 Fax: 626.240.0607 www.swca.com | |

Figure 3. Former street addresses associated with each lot in the Project Site.



Figure 4. Project site and 0.5-mile records search radius plotted on USGS 7.5-minute quadrangle.



Figure 5. Surficial geology from Bedrossian and Roffers (2012) and former courses of the Los Angeles River from Gumprecht (2001).



Figure 6. Project site plotted on McCawley's (1996:36) map of Gabrielieno placenames cited in ethongraphic sources.



Figure 7. Project site plotted on a map of Native American and historical sites in the Los Angeles Basin published by the Southwest Museum (1962) and re-printed in Johnston (1962).



Figure 8. Project site plotted on the Kirkman-Harriman map (Kirkman 1938).



Figure 9. Historical reference points associated with Gabrielino settlement in the downtown Los Angeles area. The base map is a reconstruction of the late nineteenth century topography (gray contours) that includes former stream courses, irrigation channels (zanjas), and parcels composing the downtown "Lower District" (now downtown Los Angeles). Sources for the locations are indicated in the legend and footer.



Figure 10. Project site plotted on an appended draft of Hancock's 1857 map, which was based on Ord's original map of the City (Ord 1849). The parcel overlapped by the Project site was identified as a corn field in Ord's original map. The colored property lines were added after 1857.



Figure 11. Bird's eye view of Los Angeles facing southwest illustrated by E.S. Glover in 1877. The Project site is located in the area southwest of 7th and Alameda Streets.



Figure 12. Illustration of Los Angeles by H.B. Elliott in 1891 facing southwest showing the vicinity of the Project site and an early alignment of Zanja No. 2. The zanja alignment corresponds to the same approximate route depicted by Ord, Hancock, and Hanson's survey maps. The Project site is located in the open space between the Los Angeles River and Alameda Street, south of 7th Street.



Figure 13. Project site plotted on the original plat for the City of Los Angeles, surveyed in 1858 by Henry Hancock and published in 1859. The city limits are outlined light red. The historic core—including the Los Angeles Plaza and pueblo site—are located in the center.



Figure 14. The project site plotted on Stevenson's 1884 real estate map. The project site is in a parcel owned by Lorenzo Leck, and Zanja No. 1 is located directly within the Project site.



Figure 15. Project site plotted on an 1887 city map. This map is an updated version of Rowan and Koeberle's earlier 1886 map, showing the extensive development that occurred at the time. Zanja No. 1 can still be seen north of 7th Street but appears to longer exist within the Project site.



Figure 16. Project site plotted on USGS 7.5-minute topographic quadrangles from 1894 to 2018. Note that Mateo Street was present but not included in the 1894 map.



Figure 17. Project site plotted on Sanborn Fire Insurance maps from 1900 to 1953.



Figure 18. Project site plotted on aerial photographs from 1927, 1930, 1938, and 1956.



Figure 19. Geophysical survey results (Feldman 2015).

Appendix B.

Confidential Report Figure

[CONFIDENTIAL—NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION]

Archaeological and other heritage resources can be damaged or destroyed through uncontrolled public disclosure of information regarding their location. This appendix contains sensitive information regarding the nature and location of archaeological sites, which should not be disclosed to the general public or unauthorized persons and are exempt from public disclosure pursuant to the Public Records Act (California Code of Regulations Section 15120(d)). This page intentionally left blank.

Appendix C.

Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File (SLF) Search Results Letter This page intentionally left blank.

NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE COMMISSION Cultural and Environmental Department 1550 Harbor Blvd., Suite 100 West Sacramento, CA 95691 Phone: (916) 373-3710 Email: <u>nahc@nahc.ca.gov</u> Website: <u>http://www.nahc.ca.gov</u> Twitter: @CA_NAHC



April 25, 2019

Chris Millington SWCA

VIA Email to: cmillington@swca.com

RE: 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Development Project, Los Angeles County

Dear Mr. Millington:

A record search of the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File (SLF) was completed for the information you have submitted for the above referenced project. The results were <u>negative</u>. However, the absence of specific site information in the SLF does not indicate the absence of cultural resources in any project area. Other sources of cultural resources should also be contacted for information regarding known and recorded sites.

Attached is a list of Native American tribes who may also have knowledge of cultural resources in the project area. This list should provide a starting place in locating areas of potential adverse impact within the proposed project area. I suggest you contact all of those indicated; if they cannot supply information, they might recommend others with specific knowledge. By contacting all those listed, your organization will be better able to respond to claims of failure to consult with the appropriate tribe. If a response has not been received within two weeks of notification, the Commission requests that you follow-up with a telephone call or email to ensure that the project information has been received.

If you receive notification of change of addresses and phone numbers from tribes, please notify the NAHC. With your assistance, we can assure that our lists contain current information. If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at my email address: steven.quinn@nahc.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

Quin

Steven Quinn Associate Governmental Program Analyst

Attachment

Native American Heritage Commission Native American Contact List Los Angeles County 4/25/2019

Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians - Kizh Nation

Andrew Salas, Chairperson P.O. Box 393 Gabrieleno Covina, CA, 91723 Phone: (626) 926 - 4131 admin@gabrielenoindians.org

Gabrieleno/Tongva San Gabriel

Band of Mission IndiansAnthony Morales, ChairpersonP.O. Box 693GabrielenoSan Gabriel, CA, 91778Phone: (626) 483 - 3564Fax: (626) 286-1262GTTribalcouncil@aol.com

Gabrielino /Tongva Nation

Sandonne Goad, Chairperson 106 1/2 Judge John Aiso St., Gabrielino #231 Los Angeles, CA, 90012 Phone: (951) 807 - 0479 sgoad@gabrielino-tongva.com

Gabrielino Tongva Indians of

California Tribal CouncilRobert Dorame, ChairpersonP.O. Box 490GabrielinoBellflower, CA, 90707Phone: (562) 761 - 6417Fax: (562) 761-6417gtongva@gmail.com

Gabrielino-Tongva Tribe

Charles Alvarez, 23454 Vanowen Street West Hills, CA, 91307 Phone: (310) 403 - 6048 roadkingcharles@aol.com

Gabrielino

This list is current only as of the date of this document. Distribution of this list does not relieve any person of statutory responsibility as defined in Section 7050.5 of the Health and Safety Code, Section 5097.94 of the Public Resource Section 5097.98 of the Public Resource Code.

This list is only applicable for contacting local Native Americans with regard to cultural resources assessment for the proposed 1024 Mateo Street Mixed-Use Development Project, Los Angeles County.